

D 2007 1585427 5 California State Library	NIA BRARY. ference Dept.
Accession No. 74764 Class 7 - C	
20067 42 534	





CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY

8

41912

NEWS NOTES

OF

CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY

VOL. 19

NOS. 1-4

JANUARY-OCTOBER, 1924

CALIFORNIA STATE PRINTING OFFICE JOHN E. KING, State Printer SACRAMENTO, 1925 CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES

JANUARY

News Notes

OF

CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES

IN THIS NUMBER-SOME OF THE ITEMS OF INTEREST.

TWO SPECIAL LIBRARIES-OAKLAND: PUBLIC HEALTH LIBRARY; SAN DIEGO: SAN DIEGO SCIENTIFIC LIBRARY.

INTERESTING ACCESSIONS-CLAREMONT: POMONA COLLEGE LIBRARY; LOS ANGELES: UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA LIBRARY.

STANFORD UNIVERSITY-PACIFIC COAST DEPOSITORY OF THE BRITISH LIBRARY OF INFORMATION.

LOS ANGELES PUBLIC LIBRARY-GIFT OF MISS BARNSDALL.

CONSOLIDATED CITY AND COUNTY LIBRARY-KERN COUNTY.

WINDOW DISPLAYS-GLENN COUNTY FREE LIBRARY.

USE OF PICTURES-LASSEN COUNTY FREE LIBRARY.

NEW SECTION-LIBRARY CLUBS, ETC.

FOR SPECIAL ARTICLES, see Contents.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY

CALIFORNIA STATE PRINTING OFFICE FRANK J. SMITH, Superintendent SACRAMENTO, 1924

CONTENTS.

$\mathbf{P}^{\mathbf{a}}$
ADVERTISING THE COUNTY LIBRARY IN STANISLAUS COUNTY
A CHILDREN'S BOOK WEEK PARTY
MAP OF CALIFORNIA SHOWING COUNTIES
LIST OF COUNTIES HAVING COUNTY FREE LIBRARIES
CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES-NEWS ITEMS
DIRECTORY FOR LIBRARY SUPPLIES AND OTHER ITEMS OF GENERAL INTEREST
CALIFORNIA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION
CALIFORNIA COUNTY LIBRARIANS
LIBRARY CLUBS, ETC.
BOARD OF LIBRARY EXAMINERS
CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY
STAFF, ETC
DEPARTMENTS
RECENT ACCESSIONS
CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DURING OCTOBER, NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER, 1923
CALIFORNIA CITY PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DURING OCTOBER, NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER, 1923
BOOKS FOR THE BLIND ADDED DURING OCTOBER, NOVEMBER AND DECEM- BER, 1923

Issued quarterly in the interests of the libraries of the State by the CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY.

All communications should be addressed to the California State Library, Sacramento, California.

Note.--Standing matter is set solid and new matter leaded.

Entered as second-class matter December, 1913, at the post office at Sacramento, California, under the act of August 24, 1912.

Acceptance for mailing at the special rate of postage provided for in Section 1103. Act of October 3, 1917, authorized August 27, 1918.

ADVERTISING THE COUNTY LIBRARY IN STANISLAUS COUNTY

3080

Make 1924 A Reading Year tanislaus Counti Free Library Selects Good Books Cut loaned by Fresno Republican. for all readers Contro Dice why tor the

of circulation for this year promises to eclipse current year. Poster Advertising company, the service of the have appeared to date, the first one, posted at Ceres calling attention to books as winter even-Stanislaus County Free Library is being called to the attention of the local and general traveler The accompanying picture shows one of the three posters that ings diversion; the second at Keyes, telling along the highways these days.

Through the courtesy of the Cleveland Outdoor of books especially interesting to farmers, while with its patrons through outdoor poster adver-oster Advertising company, the service of the this voices the slogan of the library for the tising.--Modesto Morning Herald. The above cut and comment thereon appeared Stanislaus is a reading county and the record

that of last year which was over three hundred LIBRARES as a bit of library news and not as thousand books and magazines. Stanislaus taking one side or the other in the growing bill county is the first in California to get in touch beard controversy.--Eburoa. in a recent issue of the Modesto Morning Herald, and are reprinted in NEWS NOTES OF CALIFORNIA

A CHILDREN'S BOOK WEEK PARTY.

By FRANCES BURKET, Librarian, Amador County Free Library.

"Fools rush in where angels fear to the room. These had been made by the tread." Children's Book Week, my assistant and I felt that these words had been written expressly for us. The book party grew out of a desire to do something for the children that would increase their interest in books and at the same time be a bit out of the ordinary. We have had book talks, essays and book displays every year, and while the results have always been gratifying, we longed to do something different. We did.

In a moment of mental aberration we decided on a party, the guests to be the children from all parts of the county. I explained my plans-which were very meager at this stage-to the general supervisor and asked her cooperation. Her report after visiting several schools was terrifying, for we thought that if we could interest sixty or seventy children in the plan, we would do well. We issued invitations to every elementary school, whether or not it was cooperating with the county library. Every child was requested to come dressed to represent some character from a book he had read, and was to be prepared to tell the story.

As the library was too small to accommodate our guests, we asked permission to use the Woman's Club Room, thinking this would be large enough. As our acceptances poured in, we were driven to hunt still larger quarters. My assistant came to the rescue with the idea of holding the party in the open, which would be ideal providing the weather was fine. The spot selected was in an oak grove at the edge of town and afforded plenty of space for games and contests. There was only one drawback and that was the weather. It was cold and looked like "ain, but the Fates were on our side for November 11th proved one of the most delightful days of the Fall.

Our invitations read "from two to four in the afternoon" but when we arrived at the clubroom before one o'clock of the eventful day, we were greeted by a witch, the queen of hearts and several other celebrities. They entertained themselves by looking at the Book Week posters we had arranged in left, and by five the hostesses had gathered

During the days preceding children in the rural schools and were most attractive. By two o'clock over a hundred and twenty-five children, besides teachers, mothers and fathers, had arrived

> I had pressed the Boy Scouts into service and they were all present in full uniform. We wished to observe Armistice Day in some manner, so the patrol leader gave a short talk on the meaning of the holiday and led the audience in the salute to the flag. After this each child in turn walked to the center of the room and the rest guessed the character represented. Only one from each school told his story for the time was limited. It was splendid to see how the children entered into the spirit of the affair and without a great amount of trouble had made costumes which could be easily recognized as belonging to some well known book character.

> They were all there from the elaborate Ozma of Oz-in trailing white and glittering tinsel-to the little Austrian girl (her father was one of the victims of the Argonaut disaster) who came dressed in a clean gingham dress, but told me she was "the little white rabbit." The Old-Fashioned Girl, Rebecca of Sunnybrook Farm, Helen's Babies, Jack the Giant Killer, the Gingerbread Boy, a Signer of the Declaration of Independence, Dr. Doolittle and dozens of other favorites made their bow to the audience.

> At the request of the business men and other grown-ups, we formed a procession and marched through Main street out to the grove. The formation was unique. At the head of the procession rode the Knight of the X Bar B. Following him came the drum corps, next the Boy Scouts, then by twos the rest of the company. We gathered more children as we went through the streets, so that by the time we arrived at our destination, we had a much larger crowd than when we started.

For an hour, games were played and later refreshments of ice-cream cones, cookies and candy were served. It was after four o'clock when the first guests up the remains of the feast and departed for their homes.

Apart from the social side of the affair, which alone was worth the trouble, the book party accomplished the very thing we had hoped for. Increased interest in reading more and better books was noticeable in the towns, but the results were more gratifying in some of the rural districts. One teacher brought four of her pupils in a Ford over many miles of rough roads. This was the first time these children had been outside their com-

munity. They visited the library before they went home and chose the books they wanted from the shelves. Prior to this there had been practically no home reading done in that school, but since that time we have sent them several shipments. This is but one of several instances.

It seemed a big undertaking, but it really proved a success from every standpoint, and the next one—for there will be another as the children have asked for one next year—will not be such an effort, for we have a basis on which to work.



4

LIST OF COUNTIES HAVING COUNTY FREE LIBRARIES Statistics of July 1, 1923

County	Librarian	Established	Income 1922-23†	Books, etc.	Branches	.Total active school dists. in county§	School dists. that have joined
Alameda	Mary Barmby	Sept. 26, 1910	\$44,394 00	93.243	82	81	35
Amador	Frances M. Burket	June 2, 1919	5,822 48	8,589	34	37	18
Butte	Blanche Chalfant	Sept. 3, 1913	17,811 94	54,530	93	66	60
Colusa	Mrs Dorothy C. Worden.	June 8, 1915	10,842 10	36,353	46	32	30
Contra Costa	Mrs Alice G. Whitbeck	July 21, 1913	46,844 07	111,076	99	63	53
Fresno	Sarah E. McCardle	Mar. 12, 1912	173,772 40	299,176	243	169	154
Glenn	Faye T. Kneeshaw	April 8, 1914	14,236 91	32,602	68	45	40
Humboldt	Ida M. Reagan	May 12, 1914	24,360 01	64,146	163	109	101
Imperial	Mrs Thos. B. Beeman	Feb. 6, 1912	- /	66,584	79	59	55
Inyo	Anne Margrave	Sept. 15, 1913	8,315 42	22,769	46	32	30
Kern	Mrs Julia G. Babcock	Nov. 16, 1910	93,197 52	152,341	163	107	104
Kings	Julia Steffa	June 4, 1912	27,583 05	85,409	69	40	- 38
Lassen	Lenala A. Martin	Sept. 7, 1915	12,700 97	29,994	84	44	42
Los Angeles	Celia Gleason	Sept. 5, 1912	187,885 62	374,132	321	206	131
Madera	Blanche Galloway	May 3, 1910	23,369 47	65,351	65	50	. 50
Merced	Essae M. Culver	June 6, 1910	35,875 07	73,625	80	74	64
Modoc	Anna L. Williams	July 8, 1915	3,575 37	9,071	27	43	21
Monterey	Anne Hadden	Aug. 6, 1912	21,921 50	63,742	145	99	87
Napa	Estella DeFord	Feb. 9, 1916	11,043 56	14,330	60	53	41
Orange	Margaret Livingston	Dec. 9, 1919	20,072 84	22,731	47	57	26
Plumas	Carmelita Duff Chas. F. Woods	Sept. 7, 1915 Nov. 8, 1911	8,388 62	24,498	70	29	30
Riverside	Cornelia D. Provines	Nov. 8, 1911 Oct. 1, 1908	12,560 11	0	80	80	47
San Benito	Florence J. Wheaton		37,862 29 9,182 46	37,733 20,219	10 6 72	85 36	65 40
San Bernardino	Caroline S. Waters	July 14, 1913	27,999 63	20,219	136	30 81	40
San Diego	Eleanor Hitt	April 5, 1912	30,615 05	83,307	148	121	82
San Joaquin	H. O. Parkinson	Mar. 7, 1910	22,646 59	0,007	103	92	53
San Luis Obispo	Flo A. Gantz	July 6, 1915	14,574 51	32,602	96	93	79
San Mateo	Edna Holroyd		11,884 56	32,045	63	41	27
Santa Barbara	Mrs Frances B. Linn	Feb. 16, 1910	19,731 17	01,040	114	71	66
Santa Clara	Stella Huntington	July 20, 1912	27.614 13	76.078	96	88	76
Santa Cruz	Minerva H. Waterman.	Oct. 13, 1916	5,812 64	0,010	87	55	50
Siskiyou	Thelma Brackett	June 7, 1915	19,650 39	51,414	169	98	92
Solano	Clara B. Dills	April 6, 1914	21,269 99	47,065	64	56	49
Stanislaus	Bessie B. Silverthorn	Aug. 14, 1911	29,765 93	63,632	66	67	1 40
Sutter	Edna J. Hewitt	May 9, 1917	11,565 04	30,021	56	· 36	85
Tehama	Elizabeth Stevens	Aug. 8, 1916	10,382 84	28,129	74	57	- 55
Trinity	Mrs Harry A. Adams	Sept. 8, 1916	5,167 83	14,316	61	27	28
Tulare	Gretchen Flower	June 10, 1910	37,557 12	107,183	148	137	66
Tuolumne	Gladys English	July 3, 1917	8,020 75	24,080	63	34	30
Ventura	Elizabeth R. Topping	April 9, 1915	23,813 73	44,821	82	61	57
Yolo	Nancy C. Laugenour	July 12, 1910	19,525 73	65,863	79	47	48
42		O 1,'08-D 9,'19	\$1,213,035 ⁻ 2 9	2,537,370	4,047	2,958	2,369

The income as given does not include balance in fund July 1, 1922. §Includes elementary and high.

CALIFORNIA.

Area, 158,297 sq. miles. Second in size among the states. Population, 3,426,536. Assessed valuation, \$5,716,358,058. Number of counties, 58.

ALAMEDA COUNTY.

(Third class.)

County seat, Oakland. Area, 840 sq. mi. Pop. 344,127. Assessed valuation \$342,386,005 (taxable for county \$300,642,000).

ALAMEDA CO. LAW LIBRARY, OAKLAND. Miss Eloise B. Cushing, Lib'n.

Miss Cushing has been elected president of the Library Council, which is composed of librarians on the Oakland side of the bay.—Oakland Saturday Press, O 20

Alameda.

§ ALAMEDA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Marcella H. Krauth, Lib'n.

During the quarter the principal item of interest was the book review contest held as a feature of Children's Book Week. The Board of Library Trustees offered three prizes, each a beautiful book, one to the sixth, one to the seventh, and one to the eighth grade pupils for the best book reviews submitted.

The school department, under the direction of Superintendent of Schools C. J. Du Four, assisted in every possible way. On the Friday evening of Book Week, an entertainment was held at the Main Library with about 300 children in attendance. The successful competitors read their reviews after which the prizes were awarded. The contest did so much to stimulate interest in children's reading that it will probably become a yearly feature of our work.

MRS MARCELLA H. KRAUTH, Lib'n.

Oakland.

‡§||OAKLAND FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY. Chas. S. Greene, Lib'n.

As the result of the examination held for Chief of Department, Mrs Elsie W. Leclert was appointed Chief of the Children's Department on November 1st. Mrs Leclert had been acting as Chief since Miss Browne's resignation in May.

The Library Board reorganized at its Saturday mornings. It is under the genmeeting of November 5th, electing Dr. eral supervision of Dr. Alvin Powell,

ALAMEDA CO.—Continued. Oakland—Continued.

Wm. G. Eggleston, President, and Mrs Myrtle Fieberling, Vice President, vice Mrs Coral S. Quayle and Dr. Wm. S. Porter.

Miss Elvezia Lorenzini was appointed library assistant to serve in the Circulation Department on December 1, 1923.

The meeting of the First District of the California Library Association was held in Oakland on November 17th.

Miss Jane Isabel Curtis, Librarian of the Alden Branch, was the speaker at the Staff Meeting of December 27th, and also at the Library Council Luncheon of January 9th, telling of her experiences on her recent trip to Porto Rico and South America.

Miss Florence M. Van Gaasbeek, cataloger, has announced her resignation as of February 1st or as soon thereafter as her successor can be appointed. Civil Service examination for branch librarian was held on December 12th and one for cataloger will be held on January 16th. It is expected that the new cataloger will begin work by the first of March.

CHAS S. GREENE, Lib'n.

LAKEVIEW JUNIOB HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Miss Gertrude Feitag, in charge. Est. Oct. 1923.

Total vols. a. 200.

A library has been started in the school and two students have cataloged it under the supervision of their class teacher, Miss Feitag. Each class has elected a librarian to take charge of the distribution of books in that class.— San Francisco Examiner, O 7

PUBLIC HEALTH LIBRARY. Marion H. Clark, Lib'n. Est. 1923.

The library is located in the Ethel Moore Memorial Building near the Municipal Auditorium in Oakland. It is organized as one of the activities of the Health Education Department of the Public Health Center of Alameda County. Its purpose is to serve those in Alameda County who are interested in public health.

The library was started a year ago as a part time service and is open from 2-5 week day afternoons and from 10-12 Saturday mornings. It is under the general supervision of Dr. Alvin Powell,

ALAMEDA CO .-- Continued. Oakland-Continued.

Director of the Public Health Center, and Miss Mary Preston, Secretary of Health Education, and I am the only employee with the exception of a college student who assists with the mechanical work. Miss Mary Barmby, County Librarian, has adopted the library as a sort of stepchild and has been very helpful with advice and assistance. The library is maintained by the Public Health Center. which is a county institution, but as a part of the Health Education Department it receives assistance from the Community Chest.

As to the services rendered : The library contains at present 362 books on public health topics, as General Public Health, Child and Maternal Hygiene, Personal Hygiene, Mental Hygiene, Communicable Diseases, Foods and Nutrition, etc. In purchasing the books the bibliography on public health issued last spring by the National Health Council was used as a basis for selection and all the books recommended were purchased with the exception of a few technical volumes. To this nucleus have been and are being added books which are carefully chosen on authoritative recommendations. In addition to the books we have about 1000 pamphlets arranged in two files, a subject file and a source and information file. The collections are designed to give information in recent pamphlet form on public health topics and to show what material can be obtained from the various health and welfare organizations, national and local. On the magazine table are displayed current numbers of all the leading public health and welfare magazines and bulletins, some forty coming to the library each month. Books, pamphlets and magazines all circulate.

In addition to these usual library services the Public Health Library has a portable motion picture machine and three films, a balopticon and a collection of lantern slides, a set of food models, a collection of anatomical models and charts, and a collection of nearly 200 posters. All of this material is loaned for lectures, exhibits and classroom use.

The library is open to any interested resident of Alameda County. School teachers, school nurses, visiting nurses, able for county \$21,807,669).

ALAMEDA CO.-Continued. Oakland--Continued.

social workers, mothers, university and high school students, grade pupils, parentteacher associations and mothers' clubs are all numbered among our borrowers: The library is being used more and more each month as the public health workers discover what very real help we can give them, and it is the hope of the Public Health Center that the Public Health Library may be an influence for better public health in Alameda County.

MARION H. CLARK, Lib'n.

ALPINE COUNTY.

(Fifty-eighth class.)

County seat, Markleeville. Area, 575 sq. mi. Pop. 243. Assessed valuation \$807,549 (taxable for county \$711,513).

AMADOR COUNTY.

(Forty-fifth class.)

County seat, Jackson.

Area, 568 sq. mi. Pop. 7793.

Assessed valuation \$7,564.016 (taxable for county \$6,519,939).

AMADOR CO. FREE LIBRARY, JACKSON. Miss Frances M. Burket, Lib'n.

See "A Children's Book Week Party," p. 2.

BUTTE COUNTY.

(Twenty-second class.)

County seat, Oroville.

Area, 1764 sq. mi. Pop. 30,030.

Assessed valuation \$43,713,269 (taxable for county \$35,666,536).

CALAVERAS COUNTY.

(Forty-ninth class.)

County seat, San Andreas.

Area, 990 sq. mi. Pop. 6183.

Assessed valuation \$8,636,730 (taxable for county \$7,388,755).

COLUSA COUNTY.

(Forty-second class.)

County seat. Colusa. Area, 1080 sq. mi. Pop. 9290. Assessed valuation \$26,202,221 (tax-

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY.

(Thirteenth elass.)

.County seat, Martinez.

Area, 750 sq. mi. Pop. 53,889.

Assessed valuation \$91,000,885 (taxable for county \$80.513.905).

DEL NORTE COUNTY.

(Fifty-fourth class.)

County seat, Crescent City. Area, 1546 sg. mi. Pop. 2759. Assessed valuation \$10,683,291 (taxable for county \$10,647,991).

Crescent City.

CRESCENT CITY [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs Florence M. Patty, Lib'n.

Mrs Florence M. Patty is now Librarian of the Crescent City Public Library.

EL DORADO COUNTY.

(Forty-eighth class.)

County seat, Placerville.

Area, 1891 sq. mi. Pop. 6426.

Assessed valuation \$12,103,210 (taxable for county \$10,223,590).

FRESNO COUNTY.

(Fourth class.)

County seat, Fresno.

Area, 5696 sq. mi. Pop. 128,779.

Assessed valuation \$199,142,944 (taxable for county \$171.610.941).

FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, FRESNO. Miss Sarah E. McCardle, Lib'n.

The annual Custodians' Meeting was held in the Branch Department at the main library on October 31st, beginning at ten o'clock. There were twenty-two custodians and the entire staff from the main library in attendance. Miss Mc-Cardle presided and made the opening address, introducing the new custodians and calling the roll of all present so that everyone would feel acquainted. The rest of the morning was taken up with short talks by members of the staff on different phases of the work, followed by open discussions on each. Luncheon was served at the library by the staff, all remaining to meet the visitors and get in closer touch during this social hour. After luncheon Miss Yager, Children's Librarian, gave a talk on her work. Miss

FRESNO CO .-- Continued.

one of the new books on biography. She was followed by Miss Essae Culver, Librarian of Merced County and President of the Fourth District of the California Library Association, who gave a most inspiring talk. Miss Culver made everyone feel that her work, no matter how small, was a very valuable part of the whole scheme of county library service. The meeting closed with talks by the custodians on the ways they are employing to attract the people to the library.

Children's Book Week was observed November 11th to the 18th in all the larger branches and a good many schools. A book contest was held in the upper grades, each grade having a problem which included an essay about some character in one of the books read. There were many essays sent in and the prizes of illustrated books have been awarded to three children and honorable mention to three others. The week was observed in different ways in the branches, by book displays in conspicuous places, visits to the schools, story hours, etc.

Christmas was celebrated in several of the larger branches. Fresno had a large tree in the main reading room, the gift of one of the lumber companies. At Sanger Branch there was a tree for the story hour children in the children's room on the Saturday before Christmas. Christmas stories were told and each child received a gift. Reedley Branch also had a tree donated and decorated by some of the interested people of the town. At the main library the staff enjoyed a tree of their own. The party was held in the big room downstairs and each one received a gift, generally a joke on the recipient. After the distribution of the gifts the staff had luncheon together.

Hopewell School District and Butler School District have suspended this year. Lerona District, which was served last year as an emergency school, is now an independent school and has joined the library. Las Deltas, a new district, has also come in: We are now serving two emergency schools, the Nutritional Home and the Chiwanakee School.

The work having been completed at some of the lower camps of the Southern California Edison Co., the branches at Newcomet, Reference Librarian, reviewed Camps 33, 34, 35, 36, 37 and 42 have

FRESNO CO.-Continued,

been closed and the books returned. But the higher camps are doing a flourishing library business and we get very interesting letters from the men in charge.

SARAH E. MCCARDLE, Lib'n.

Butler School Dist.

BUTLER SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued during the quarter, the school having been suspended.

Chiwanakee School.

CHIWANAKEE SCHOOL BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

Hopewell School Dist.

HOPEWELL SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued during the quarter, the school having been suspended.

Las Deltas School Dist.

LAS DELTAS SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Lerona School Dist.

LERONA SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

Nutritional Home School.

NUTRITIONAL HOME SCHOOL BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

Reedley.

REEDLEY BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Fresno Co. Free Library,

Sanger.

SANGER BRANCH, FRESNÓ CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

GLENN COUNTY.

(Thirty-eighth class.)

County seat, Willows.

Area, 1460 sq. mi. Pop. 11,853.

Assessed valuation \$27,770,156 (taxable for county \$23,181,109).

GLENN CO .--- Continued.

GLENN CO. FREE LIBRARY, WILLOWS. Miss Faye T. Kneeshaw, Lib'n.

The Glenn County Library this year held during Children's Book Week attractive exhibits of new juvenile books, in Bayliss, Hamilton City and Orland branches and at the Main Office in Willows. A story hour was held for the children in each of these branches by Martha June Coleman, of the County Library Staff. At Bayliss and Hamilton City the children came to the library during school hours with their teachers. At Orland a general invitation was extended to the children of the 3d, 4th, 5th and 6th grades. At the hours appointed the Library was filled to the brim with eager boys and girls. To judge from the enthusiasm of children and custodians these story hours were a great success.

December 3d the Librarian read a paper on some of the new books of the season before the Monday Afternoon Club of Willows.

The County Library Branch at Artois has been reopened in an attractive library room at the grammar school, with Mr Stanley Thompson as custodian. Mrs W. W. Koehler is the new custodian at Ord Branch.

The staff of the Library is each week arranging an attractive window display for the main office in Willows; Miss Coleman supplies the newspapers of the county with reviews, etc., of the books thus displayed. The many requests received for these books prove again that "it pays to advertise."

FAYE T. KNEESHAW, Lib'n.

Artois.

ARTOIS BRANCH, GLENN CO. FREE LI-BRARY.

See note under Glenn Co. Free Library.

Bayliss.

BAYLISS BRANCH, GLENN CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Glenn Co. Free Library.

Hamilton City.

HAMILTON CITY BRANCH, GLENN CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Glenn Co. Free Library.

GLENN CO .-- Continued.

Ord.

ORD BRANCH, GLENN CO. FREE LI-BRARY.

See note under Glenn Co. Free Library.

Orland.

ORLAND BRANCH, GLENN CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Glenn Co. Free Library.

HUMBOLDT COUNTY.

(Twentieth class.)

County seat, Eureka.

Area, 3507 sq. mi. Pop. 37,413.

Assessed valuation \$43,494,094 (taxable for county \$38,557,459).

HUMBOLDT CO. FREE LIBRARY, EUREKA. Miss Ida M. Reagan, Lib'n.

Mettah School District Branch was established November 3. The postoffice is Weitchpec.

IDA M. REAGAN, Lib'n.

Mettah School Dist. (P. O. Weitchpec; no exp. office).

METTAII SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, HUM-BOLDT CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established November 3, 1923.

Arcata.

ARCATA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, HUMBOLDT CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs Virginia Todd Smith, Lib'n.

Miss Virginia Todd was married to Mr Charles Donovan Smith, of Falk, on November 8, 1923. Mrs Smith will continue as Librarian at Arcata. Mr Smith is connected with the Elk River Lumber Company.—Blue Lake Advocate, N 10

IMPERIAL COUNTY.

(Seventeenth class.)

County seat, El Centro.

Area, 4316 sq. mi. Pop. 43,383. Assessed valuation \$50,017,798 (tax-

able for county \$41,476,102).

IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY, EL CEN-TRO. Mrs Thomas B. Beeman, Lib'n.

Miss Helen Montgomery is now custodian at Calipatria; Mrs W. E. Miller has succeeded Mrs Frederick at Holtville.

EVALYN BOMAN, Asst. Lib'n.

IMPERIAL CO .-- Continued.

Calipatria.

CALIPATRIA BRANCH, IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Imperial Co. Free Library.

Holtville.

HOLTVILLE BRANCH, IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Imperial Co. Free Library.

INYO COUNTY.

(Forty-seventh class.)

County seat, Independence.

Area, 10,224 sq. mi. Pop. 7031.

Assessed valuation \$18,109,750 (taxable for county \$10,986,133).

KERN COUNTY.

(Twelfth class.)

County seat, Bakersfield.

Area, 8159 sq. mi. Pop. 54,843.

Assessed valuation \$180,996,178 (taxable for county \$151,384,375).

KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY, BAKERS-FIELD. Mrs Julia G. Babcock, Lib'n.

Mrs. Babcock has been elected Parliamentarian of the Bakersfield Business and Professional Women's Club.— Bakersfield Californian, O 11

The Supervisors voted on October 15 to move the books of the Bakersfield city branch to the courthouse, thus effecting actual physical consolidation of the city and county libraries.—Bakersfield *Cali*fornian, O 15

The first meeting of the custodians of Kern County Free Library branches was held in Memorial Hall at the courthouse on October 25.—Bakersfield *Californian*, O 25

New branches have been established at Inyokern (Mrs John McNeal, Custodian), Belridge (Miss Elizabeth Frick, Custodian), Wheeler Ridge and Dudley (Mrs Hattie Barker, Custodian).— Bakersfield Californian, O 18

The boys' and girls' branch library of Kern County Free Library was opened October 30 in the newly renovated Beale memorial library building.—Bakersfield *Californian*, O 30

The Kern County Free Library claims the distinction of being the only library in the state that has a cow in its collec-

KERN CO .- Continued.

tion of circulatory objects. It was loaned for an "old home town" scene at a dance Armistice night. The Jersey (stuffed) belonged to the Chamber of Commerce, which is moving into the quarters in the courthouse being vacated by the city hall branch of the county library, and the librarian took charge of lending it.— Fresno Bee, N 14

The consolidated city and county libraries will be open to the public on December 5.—Bakersfield Echo, D 4

Belridge.

BELRIDGE BRANCH, KERN CO. FREE LI-BRARY, was established during the quarter.

Dudley.

DUDLEY BRANCH, KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Inyokern.

INYOKEEN BRANCH, KEEN CO. FREE LIBBARY, was established during the quarter.

Wheeler Ridge.

WHEELER RIDGE BRANCH, KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

KINGS COUNTY.

(Twenty-ninth class.)

County seat, Hanford.

Area, 1373 sq. mi. Pop. 22,031.

Assessed valuation \$29,211,631 (taxable for county \$24,607,000).

KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY, HANFORD. Miss Julia Steffa, Lib'n.

Mr Harry Farrington was appointed custodian of the Murray Branch to succeed Mr William Marnack,

Miss Mildred Watson has been granted a leave of absence to take the winter course in the Riverside Training School. Miss Helen Arnold has been appointed page, the appointment beginning January 2d. Miss Maybelle Meldrim has been appointed temporary assistant.

Miss Steffa gave a talk on "Children's Reading" at the Hamilton School Parent Teachers Association in November and supplemented it with a collection of the more attractive and illustrated editions of standard juvenile classics.

JULIA STEFFA, Lib'n.

KINGS CO .- Continued.

Hanford.

HANFORD FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Julia Steffa, Lib'n.

Hanford Public Library celebrated Children's Book Week by a display of attractive children's books. Original posters, as well as the regular children's book week posters, and the distribution of book lists added to the interest of the exhibit. JULIA STEFFA, Lib'n.

Murray.

MURRAY BRANCH, KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Kings Co. Free Library.

LAKE COUNTY.

(Fifty-first class.)

County seat, Lakeport.

Area, 1332 sq. mi. Pop. 5402. Assessed valuation \$6,782,525 (taxable for county \$6,738,890).

LASSEN COUNTY.

(Forty-fourth class.)

County seat, Susanville.

Area, 4750 sq. mi. Pop. 8507.

Assessed valuation \$17,043,278 (taxable for county \$13,002,853).

LASSEN CO. FREE LIBRARY, SUSAN-VILLE. Miss Lenala A. Martin, Lib'n.

Amedee Branch Library has been discontinued. Mrs Guy Arnett has taken charge of the Hayden Hill Branch Library. As Mrs M. J. Hail, former custodian of Janesville Branch Library, moved away, Mrs G. R. Knox has been appointed to take her place. As the postoffice was changed from Lassen to Janesville, the branch library name was also changed to Janesville. The Riverside Hospital Branch Library was suspended November 1.

LENALA A. MARTIN, Lib'n.

The following interesting account of the use of some pictures, borrowed from the State Library by the Lassen County Free Library, is taken from a letter from Miss Martin, dated December 18, 1923:

"We borrowed the pictures, of course, especially for the art class as a treat. The class consists of eleven members who meet in our office each Monday afternoon.

LASSEN CO.—Continued.

We have never had less than seven in attendance and usually have nine or ten. We feel very much encouraged because the members are not only very much interested but also are studious. We have been growing gradually and so far no member has withdrawn. We have been holding the class regularly since October 1, and have finished the artists on the H. W. Wilson Study Outline on Italian Art, through the 15th century.

The pictures have been a great help and inspiration to the class, especially during the two lessons in which we studied them intensively. The members have come in also during the week to study the pictures, as well as the general public. The most interesting people who came to see them were twenty high school girls and their teacher. Only four of them did not seem to be interested. The pupils came in small numbers during their study periods. To the pupils interested, we gave a short sketch of each picture. Some of these pupils came a second time."

Amedee.

AMEDEE BRANCH, LASSEN CO. FREE LIBRARY, has been discontinued.

Hayden Hill (P. O. Merrillville; no exp. office).

HAYDEN HILL BRANCH, LASSEN CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Lassen Co. Free Library.

Janesville.

JANESVILLE BRANCH, LASSEN CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Lassen Co. Free Library.

Riverside Hospital.

RIVERSIDE HOSPITAL BRANCH, LASSEN Co. FREE LIBRARY, was suspended November 1, 1923.

LOS ANGELES COUNTY.

(First class.)

County seat, Los Angeles. Area, 3880 sq. mi. Pop. 936,438. Assessed valuation \$1,992,068,094 (taxable for county \$1,695,251,165).

LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY, LOS ANGELES. Miss Celia Gleason, Lib'n.

LOS ANGELES CO .-- Continued.

The La Verne Heights School District, originally established in November, 1916, withdrew from all service from the Los Angeles County Free Library, June, 1923. Upon request, the County Free Library again established a branch, January, 1924.

Miss Catharine Morrison has again resumed her work with the blind, the class meeting every Wednesday afternoon from 1 to 5 p.m. in the Librarian's Office, Los Angeles County Free Library, at 204 N. Broadway, Los Angeles.

Our latest branch to be established in February, 1924, is Hammel. It is located in a schoolhouse and borrowers cards for approximately 400 students were requested.

On November 1, 1923, the Lancaster Branch Library was moved into the new County building just finished, which was built from funds furnished by the County Free Library and general building fund. It will house the Library and Justice Court. The Library has all Library Bureau equipment, including stacks, desk, tables, chairs, etc., and is a great addition to that community.

CELIA GLEASON, Lib'n.

Alhambra.

ALHAMERA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Artena M. Chapin, Lib'n.

Miss Alice B. Fowler, cataloger, resigned to take a position in the high school library at San Mateo. Miss Edith Rose, R. L. S. '21, was appointed to succeed Miss Fowler and began her work here December 1st.

ARTENA M. CHAPIN, Lib'n.

The public library had a display of rare Japanese prints for the week of November 27th.—Alhambra Advocate, N 27

Arcadia.

ARCADIA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs F. W. Treen, Lib'n.

Mrs Edith Daniels has donated sixty volumes of fiction and non-fiction and Harper's Bazar for 1871 and 1872.— Arcadia Journal, S 29

Claremont.

POMONA COLLEGE LIBRARY. James A. Blaisdell, Pres. Victor E. Marriott, Lib'n.

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Claremont-Continued.

Dr Westergaard, Head of the History Department and a member of the Library Committee, has returned from eighteen months of travel and study in Europe, bringing with him many interesting books and pictures for the Westergaard Memorial Art collection. Beside books on architecture, sculpture and painting many of the books are studies of the arts and crafts of the various European countries, particularly those of the Scandinavian countries. Among the most significant are:

- Galschiöt, M. (ed).
 Danmark i Skildringer og Billeder

 ...Köbenhavn, P. G. Philipsen,
 1887-93. 2 pts. in 4 v.

 Kjöbenhavn, som den er, og som den burde vaere, Kjöbenhavn, Udgivet af foreningen til hovedstadens forskönnelse, 1914.
 Kunst: organ for dansk kunst... og kunsthaandvaerk. Köbennavn, Alfred Jacobsen, 1899-1904. v. 1-6.
 Larsson, Carl.
 De Mina och annat gammalt krafs

 av C. L. Stockholm, Albert Bonniert, 1919.

Lund. Danske national dragter . . . Kold-

Müller, Sigurd. Thorvaldsen, hans liv

og hans Kjöbenhavn, J. C vaerker . . . K Stockholm, 1893.

Ohman, Hjalmar. J. F. Willumsen

Köbenhavn,

Racinet, M. A. Le costume historique. Rombaldi, n. d. 2 v. Weilbach, Philip. Paris, R.

Nyt dansk kunstnerlexikon . . . 2 v. in 1. Kjöbenhavn, Gyldendal, 1896-1897.

Among the pictures in the additions to the collection, are good reproductions of famous pictures in the Vienna art galleries.

A few months ago, Miss Aurelia Harwood of Upland presented the Library with the following valuable set:

Audubon, John James.

viviparous quadrupeds of The North America, by John James Audubon and John Bachman . . . N. Y. J. J. Audobon, 1845. 2 v. Colored pls. F^o.

The college also prizes highly the gift of one of the College trustees, Mr Eli P. Clark of Los Angeles, of one of the six hundred and forty-one leaves of a Gutenberg Bible. As one of these rare examples of the first printing lacked pages and had been mutilated, each leaf has ment with the City Council for the use

LOS ANGELES CO .- Continued.

Claremont-Continued.

preface by the well known and charming book collector, Mr A. Edward Newton. The Pomona college copy is bound in blue morocco of a beautiful shade. The leaf is of heavy paper and the printing is in brilliant black ink in imitation of hand work. The headlines, the accents, and the illuminated initials are supplied by hand.

Miss Marion J. Ewing, Assistant Librarian, has returned from an interesting year in China where she acted as Librarian and did some teaching in Ginling College, Nanking, China.

VICTOR E. MARRIOTT, Lib'n.

Hammel.

HAMMEL BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Los Angeles Co. Free Library.

Lancaster.

LANCASTER BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Los Angeles Co. Free Library.

La Verne Heights School Dist.

LA VERNE HEIGHTS SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LI-BRARY, will be reestablished January 1, 1924.

Los Angeles.

[‡]§Los Angeles [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Everett R. Perry, Lib'n.

During this quarter \$156,000, being proceeds from the sale of library bonds chiefly to the local Fire and Police Pension Fund, has been made available. A portion of this will be applied on the grading contract of the new Central Library building which has already been started.

The Library Board has voted to extend the present lease on quarters for the main library in the Metropolitan Building at 5th and Broadway for another three years from the date of expiration, which is May 31, 1924, but has reserved the right to cancel this lease any time after the expiration of one year.

The Board has entered into an arrangebeen separately bound and includes a of a large room in the new Municipal

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

Building at Sawtelle, construction of which will begin soon. The arrangement provides that the Board shall pay a monthly rental and equip the room with necessary furniture while the city meets all other expenses.

Miss Aline Barnsdall has offered to the city her magnificent estate on the summit of Olive Hill at the corner of Vermont Avenue and Hollywood Boule-This includes nearly eight acres vard. of ground which is intended as a park, and her residence designed by the famous architect, Mr Frank Lloyd Wright, She wishes this residence to be maintained by the Public Library for the people of the neighborhood. Negotiations are under way between Miss Barnsdall, the City Council, the Park Commission and the Library Board which it is hoped will result in a satisfactory adjustment of all conditions so that the citizens of Los Angeles will be in full enjoyment of Miss Barnsdall's splendid gift not later than this summer.

Through the generosity and public spirit of Mr F. W. Braun the Public Library has been able to open a new branch on 59th Street near Vermont Avenue. Mr Braun has placed at the disposal of the library two of his storerooms, rent free for two years, and has offered to contribute \$500 a year toward expenses. The Library accepted his gift and the branch was opened early in December.

The branch library construction program was almost completed during this quarter and the following new branches were opened: University Branch, at the corner of 34th Street and University Avenue, on September 25; Moneta Branch, on the corner of 43d and Olive Streets, on September 28; Jefferson Branch, on the corner of Jefferson Street and Prescott Court, on November 2; and the Edendale Branch at 2030 Glendale Boulevard, on October 22. Suitable exercises were conducted by the Library Board at these openings.

EVERETT R. PERRY, Lib'n.

BARLOW MEDICAL LIBRARY. Dr William Duffield, Pres. Mrs Mary E. Irish, Lib'n.

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

This last year has been one of the greatest in activities since the organization of the Association. The membership has increased and the research work grown. Through the generosity of Dr Barlow there has been much binding of magazines, old files being filled out by gifts from the Lane Library and the Mayo Clinic, as well as by purchase from publishers and gifts from individuals. There has been a gift of many foreign magazines, and books added by gift and purchase.

MRS MABY E. IRISH, Lib'n.

CALIFORNIA SOCIETY, SONS OF THE REVOLUTION (REPOSITORY OF THE SOUTH-WEST) AND CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF COLONIAL WARS LIBRARY. Pierson W. Banning, Pres. Willis Milnor Dixon, Lib'n.

Seven beautiful bronze tablets have recently been placed in the library in token of appreciation of seven very valuable collections of books and manuscripts, that have been placed with the Society during the past few years. The gifts are the following:

In 1910 Gen. John Green Ballance, U. S. A., of Los Angeles, gift of Army records.

In 1915 Capt. Joseph Davis, of Hollywood, gift of New England and other historical records.

In 1918, a large number of members of the various chapters of the Daughters of the American Revolution, not only of California, but in many parts of the United States, began to give valuable historical and genealogical records to the library of the California Society. This has since been regularly added to.

In 1920, the heirs of the late Hon. William Matthew Marine of Baltimore, Maryland, gave a valuable collection of historical and reference works on the southern states and on the civil war.

In 1921, Warren Chamberlain Tudbury, of Berkeley, California, his entire collection of valuable genealogical and historical manuscripts and reference works.

In 1922, Mrs Elizabeth K. Hills, of Marblehead, Massachusetts, the very valuable collection of her late brother, Willard Aetherton Nichols, of Redlands, California.

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

In 1922, Hon. Frederic William Taylor, now of San Salvador, Central America, formerly head of the Department of Agriculture in the Philippines, as well as representing the United States Government in various foreign countries as its agricultural authority, his distinctive collection of American history and allied works.

Many others have given valuable small collections to the Society. But these above represent the great gifts of value and importance so far received by the Society. Frequently inquiry is made as to whether the Society will accept collections either large or small. The Society does everything it can to encourage placing in the library either large or small collections.

PIERSON W. BANNING, Pres.

LOS ANGELES CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, LIBRARY OF RESEARCH DEPARTMENT. Guy E. Marion, Mgr.

The Library of the Research Department of the Los Angeles Chamber of Commerce is classifying all of the studies, surveys, and compilations which it makes for the members of the Chamber as well as for outside inquirers in accordance with the best library practise.

This will make the finding of all data an easy matter when the cataloging of all the literature in the Chamber's files is brought into one uniform system. The library contains statistical data of every sort, covered by books, pamphlets, trade literature, clippings, maps, charts, etc. Cataloging of all the large collections already owned by the Chamber will soon be undertaken.

GUY E. MARION, Mgr.

"UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFOR-NIA, COLLEGE OF LIBERAL ARTS LIBRARY. Geo. F. BOVARD, D.D.L., Pres. Miss Charlotte M. Brown, Lib'n.

More than a thousand volumes a month are being added to the Library. During the past few months many rare and valuable books of reference have been received for the Hoose Memorial Library of Philosophy.

Among the important bibliographic given a generous amount of space for works are the following: Catalogue of the books in the library of the British Bible stories were the most popular

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

Museum printed in England, Scotland, to the year 1640, 3 vols.; books printed in the 15th century, 4 vols.; Hain, Repertorium bibliographicum ad annum, 2 vols.; and the rare supplements to this work, Copinger, 2 vols.; Peddie Conspectus incunabulorum, fifteenth century books; Pellechet, Catalogue général des incunables des bibliothèques publiques de France, 4 vols.

Many rare incunabula and philosophical works have been added to this library which now contains over three thousand volumes.

CHARLOTTE M. BROWN, Lib'n.

For account of meeting of Southern California College Librarians' Conference, of which Miss Brown is Secretary, see p. 42.

Pasadena.

\$||PASADENA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Jeannette M. Drake, Lib'n.

The previous bond election for bonds for the East Pasadena Branch having been declared illegal, another election will be held January 10, 1924.

Pomona.

§||POMONA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Sarah M. Jacobus, Lib'n.

Miss Beryl Lewis and Miss Violet Tapper gave lessons in the use of the library to students in the two junior high schools in November and December. These lessons were given in the English periods at the school buildings, instead of at the library as heretofore. This was at the request of the teachers, who had found class trips to the library to consume too much time. Lessons to the lower grades are to be given later in the year.

Children's Book Week was observed as usual. The novel features this year were a table of good juvenile periodicals, of inexpensive editions, of Bible stories and editions of the Bible for a child's own possession, and of colored prints suitable for a child's room, but very inexpensive. Ten inches of display space were engaged in each newspaper. In addition, we were given a generous amount of space for write-ups. Probably the prints and the Bible stories were the most popular

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Pomona-Continued.

features. The usual talks were given to clubs, but we found that newspaper space was better advertising, because programmes are apt to be so crowded that library talks must be condensed almost to invisibility.

Miss Emily Heath resigned in December, to take a position in the Fresno Library. Miss Ruth Welch is to take her place on the staff. Other recent appointments now made permanent are of Miss Violet R. Tapper (Riverside 1920) and Miss Marcella Tucker.

It is with pleasure that we note a gain in use of the library instead of the decrease which was our lot for about a year after radio took possession of the world, S. M. JACOBUS, Lib'n.

Santa Monica.

§SANTA MONICA [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Miss Elfie A. Mosse, Lib'n.

The defeat of a \$90,000 bond issue on December 4, 1923, for improvements to the public library building, will be followed by another election later.—Los Angeles *Times*, D 8

Whittier.

§WHITTIER [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Ruth Ellis, Lib'n.

There have been two changes in the librarianship at the Whittier Public Library. Miss Jessie Harris resigned in September to take charge of the library in the Whittier Union High School. Her place was filled by Miss Bertha Hole, who had been in the Whittier Library during the year 1921-22, while Miss Harris was on a leave of absence in the East, and who more recently had been in charge of the Yorba Linda District Library. In December Miss Hole resigned to return to her parents' home in Alliance, Ohio. Her place has been filled by Miss Ruth Ellis, who for the past two vears has been first assistant in the Santa Ana Public Library.

MADERA COUNTY.

(Thirty-seventh class.) County seat, Madera. Area, 2140 sq. mi. Pop. 12,203.

MADERA CO .- Continued.

Assessed valuation \$23,021,654 (taxable for county \$19,006,065).

MADERA CO. FREE LIBRARY, MADERA. Miss Blanche Galloway, Lib'n.

Miss Ethel Williams, cataloger, was married December 22d to John Heidenrich of Kerman. Mrs Heidenrich was granted a six months' leave of absence. Mrs George Smalley, graduate of Pomona College and of Riverside Library School, was appointed cataloger.

Mrs William Isakson was appointed part time assistant to replace Joedwin Willis who resigned because of ill health.

A small room, formerly used as a storeroom, has been cleared out, redecorated, and fitted with shelving for use of the Cataloging Department.

BLANCHE GALLOWAY, Lib'n.

MARIN COUNTY.

(Twenty-fifth class.)

County seat, San Rafael.

Area, 516 sq. mi. Pop. 27,342.

Assessed valuation \$27,697,445 (taxable for county \$24,129,460).

San Rafael.

SAN RAFAEL [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Margaret MacDonald, Lib'n.

In September, Mr Vincent Neale, for thirty years President of the Board of Trustees, resigned from the Board. The new President is Mr C. C. Stevenson. Mrs T. S. Brooke, whose father was at one time a member of the Board, has been appointed to fill the vacancy.

MARIPOSA COUNTY.

(Fifty-third class.)

County seat, Mariposa.

Area, 1580 sq. mi. Pop. 2775.

Assessed valuation \$5,449,196 (taxable for county \$4,588,303).

MENDOCINO COUNTY.

(Twenty-eighth class.)

County seat, Ukiah.

Area, 3400 sq. mi. Pop. 24,116.

Assessed valuation \$31,368,645 (taxable for county \$26,634,985).

MERCED COUNTY.

(Twenty-seventh class.)

County seat, Merced.

Area, 1750 sq. mi. Pop. 24,579. Assessed valuation \$37,976,051 (taxable for county \$31,365,037).

MERCED CO. FREE LIBRARY, MERCED. Miss Essae M. Culver, Lib'n.

Mrs Viola Frederickson and Mrs Isabelle Parks DeWitt have been appointed to take the places of Misses Ethel Stubblefield and Zula Andrews, who recently resigned.—Merced Star, O 5

The custodians of the county library branches met at headquarters for an allday session November 10, 1923.—Merced Sun, N 13

Miss Doris Flanagan, custodian of the El Nido Branch of the Merced County Free Library, is probably the youngest custodian in the state, being only thirteen years old. Miss Flanagan attended the custodians' meeting in Merced November 10.—Fresno Bee, N 16

The Merced Branch is to start a story hour, the first one being scheduled for November 24. Miss Olivia Wedel, a member of the staff, will tell the stories.—Merced Sun, N 21

MODOC COUNTY.

(Fifty-second class.)

County seat, Alturas.

Area, 4097 sq. mi. Pop. 5425. Assessed valuation \$8,235,805 (taxable for county \$7,784,400).

MONO COUNTY.

(Fifty-seventh class.)

County seat, Bridgeport. Area, 2796 sq. mi. Pop. 960. Assessed valuation \$4,595,141 (taxable for county \$2,373,300).

MONTEREY COUNTY.

(Twenty-fourth class.)

County seat, Salinas.

Area, 3450 sq. mi. Pop. 27,980. Assessed valuation \$46,171,385 (taxable for county \$38,399,315).

MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY, SALINAS. Miss Anne Hadden, Lib'n.

In October the County Librarian D 22

MONTEREY CO .- Continued.

attended the joint Teachers' Institute at Santa Cruz, and addressed the Monterey County teachers. A collection of especially attractive children's books was on display.

Mrs W. A. Skinner, custodian of the Parkfield Branch, resigned and Mrs D. S. Manning is keeping the community books at the school until the end of the school year. Mrs Parker, who was in charge of the library at Spreckels, has moved away and Mrs R. R. Weedon is now the custodian. There has also been a change of custodians at San Lucas, Mrs Roy Plaskett taking Miss Alice Tindall's place.

A community branch was established at San Ardo in November with Mrs Henry Foletta in charge. A branch was also established at the highway camp below the Big Sur under Mr Hatch's supervision. This branch was opened during the Christmas vacation.

The County Librarian, with Miss Vosper, exchange assistant from the Detroit Public Library, and Mrs Stalker, Rural School Supervisor, visited the coast country, beyond the roads, in November. The trip was made on horseback. At this time the branch at Lucia was officially closed until such time as the population of the district would again warrant its opening. Miss L. M. Harlan has been custodian since the branch was established in 1916. The Mansfield School. which has been suspended for a number of years and just revived, was also visited at this time and arrangements were made to make the school a branch of the County Library.

ANNE HADDEN, Lib'n.

Big Sur.

BIG SUR BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Monterey Co. Free Library.

Carmel.

CARMEL FREE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Janet Prentiss, Lib'n.

At the rummage sale which closed on December 15, about \$300 was cleared for the Carmel Library.—Carmel Pine Cone, D 22

MONTEREY CO .--- Continued.

Lucia.

LUCIA BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Monterey Co. Free Library.

Mansfield School,

MANSFIELD SCHOOL BRANCH, MONTE-REY CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Monterey Co. Free Library.

Monterey.

MONTEREY FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Etta Eckhardt, Lib'n.

The first of December, the "Story Hour" was begun at the Monterey Public Library. Stories are told every Saturday at 10 o'clock by the librarian. A great deal of interest is manifested.

ETTA ECKHARDT, Lib'n.

Parkfield.

PARKFIELD BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Monterey Co. Free Library.

San Ardo.

SAN ARDO BRANCH. MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established in November. Mrs Henry Foletta is custodian, LIBRARY, was established in October.

San Lucas.

SAN LUCAS BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Monterey Co. Free Library.

Spreckels.

SPRECKELS LIBRARY ASSOCIATION LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Monterey Co. Free Library.

NAPA COUNTY.

(Thirty-first class.)

County seat, Napa.

Area, 800 sq. mi. Pop. 20,678.

Assessed valuation \$25,596,755 (taxable for county \$21,840,687).

NAPA CO. FREE LIBRARY, NAPA. Estella DeFord, Lib'n. Miss

Branches were established at Napa Soda Springs, Sanitarium and Stag's Lib'n.

NAPA CO.-Continued.

Leap in October, and at Mount George in November.

ESTELLA DEFORD, Lib'n.

Mount George (P. O. R. 3, Box 133, Napa).

MOUNT GEORGE BRANCH, NAPA CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established in November.

Napa.

GOODMAN [FREE PUBLIC] LIBRARY. Miss Minnie C. Shreve, Lib'n.

We report this quarter a change in the personnel of our Board. Dr Otto T. Schulze was appointed a member of the Board and Mr Hensley S. Davis was elected President, his place on the Finance Committee being filled by Dr Schulze.

MINNIE C. SHREVE, Lib'n.

Napa Soda Springs.

NAPA SODA SPRINGS BRANCH, NAPA Co. FREE LIBRARY, was established in October.

Sanitarium.

SANITARIUM BRANCH. NAPA CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established in October.

Stag's Leap.

STAG'S LEAP BRANCH, NAPA CO. FREE

NEVADA COUNTY.

(Thirty-ninth class.)

County seat, Nevada City. Area, 982 sq. mi. Pop. 10,850. Assessed valuation \$9,626,797 (taxable for county \$6.989.020).

ORANGE COUNTY.

(Tenth class.)

County seat, Santa Ana. Area, 780 sq. mi. Pop. 61,375. Assessed valuation \$160,755,031 (taxable for county \$144,298,445).

Fullerton.

FULLERTON UNION HIGH SCHOOL AND JUNIOR COLLEGE LIBRARY. Louis E. Plummer, Prin. Mrs Ethelene M. Kitching, Lib'n.

Huntington Beach.

§HUNTINGTON BEACH [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Bertha Proctor Reynolds,

ORANGE CO .--- Continued.

Huntington Beach-Continued.

Each member of the staff received a \$10 raise, and the other employees a \$5 raise, to become effective January 1, 1924.

We have purchased 50 hand-colored photographs of California wild flowers, and during the last three months have added over \$500 worth of new books.

BERTHA P. REYNOLDS, Lib'n.

PLACER COUNTY.

(Thirty-second class.)

County seat, Auburn.

Area, 1484 sq. mi. Pop. 18,584. Assessed valuation \$21,515,221 (taxable for county \$14,979,135).

Lincoln.

LINCOLN FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Bertha C. Landis, Lib'n.

Our tax for 1923-24 is \$1,243.37, which is more than we have had heretofore. During the last quarter we have loaned 2489 books and 68 periodicals.

BERTHA C. LANDIS, Lib'n.

PLUMAS COUNTY.

(Fiftieth class.)

County seat, Quincy.

Area, 2361 sq. mi. Pop. 5681.

Assessed valuation \$19,637,355 (taxable for county \$12,357,724).

PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY, QUINCY. Miss Carmelita Duff, Lib'n.

Extension of county library service during the quarter includes the establishment of a branch library at Delleker at the mill of the Feather River Lumber Company and the reopening of the Belden Branch. Library service is also being given to an emergency school opened at Caribou for the children of the employees of the Great Western Power Company.

A feature attracting interest among both old and young in the county library observance of Children's Book Week was a bulletin board showing illustrations of favorite characters from children's books. Selected books suitable for the child's own book-shelf were also on display at Headquarters.

CARMELITA DUFF, Lib'n.

PLUMAS CO .- Continued.

Belden.

BELDEN BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY, was reopened during the quarter.

Caribou School.

CARIBOU SCHOOL BRANCH, PLUMAS ('O. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Plumas Co. Free Library.

Delleker.

DELLEKER BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter. It is located at the mill of the Feather River Lumber Company.

RIVERSIDE COUNTY.

(Fifteenth class.)

County seat, Riverside.

Area, 7008 sq. mi. Pop. 50,297.

Assessed valuation \$55,642,689 (taxable for county \$40,624,850).

RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY, RIVER-SIDE. Chas. F. Woods, Lib'n.

Mrs Mabel Faulkner, who has been in charge of the county work, has resigned to accept the librarianship of the Orange Public Library. She will begin at Orange on February 1.

Riverside Library Service School.

The registration at the Riverside Library Service School this winter comprises twenty-three students from six different states. This is a slight excess over the winter session of 1923.

CHAS. F. WOODS, Lib'n.

Hemet.

HEMET [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Minerva J. White, Lib'n.

Miss Minerva J. White, for the past year assistant at Fresno, has been chosen librarian at Hemet to begin December 16. Miss White is a graduate of the Riverside Library Service School. She succeeds Mrs Jessie Aylesworth, who returned to Hemet October 1, but resigned in November.—Hemet News, N 30

[Jan., 1924

SACRAMENTO COUNTY.

(Seventh class.)

County seat, Sacramento.

Area, 988 sq. mi, Pop. 90,978.

Assessed valuation \$142,912,136 (taxable for county \$120,171,655).

SACRAMENTO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAC-RAMENTO. Miss Cornelia D. Provines, Lib'n.

Miss Zula Andrews, head of the branch department, has resigned.—Sacramento *Bee*, N 19

Sacramento.

‡§SACRAMENTO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Susan T. Smith, Lib'n.

Our efforts during November were concentrated on Children's Book Week and Education Week which we combined in our posters and publicity. We had the usual exhibits of books for parents and children to look over until after Christmas and many gifts were selected in this way. A parade of the "Best sellers of long ago" was put on at the weekly luncheon of the Ad Club, girls from the county. state and city libraries participating. In choosing the characters which each was to represent, their likeness to the originals was used as the basis of selection. As each book was taken from the shelf by the Juvenile Librarian of the City Library, it needed no printed caption for the audience to recognize old favorites. so excellent was the makeup of each one.

An entirely voluntary contribution was made to the week's activities by the David Lubin School. Under the direction of the teachers, a book pageant was presented in which over 200 children participated. Characters from Mother Goose, history and literature, legendary heroes and heroines, fascinating fairies and horrible goblins, in a series of four reels, stepped through the pages of an enormous book, forming a colorful picture not soon to be forgotten.

These two events gave more widespread publicity to the purpose of the week than anything we have done, and developed a fine spirit of civic consciousness, since they brought into close cooperation the business world, the home, the school and the library.

SUSAN T. SMITH, Lib'n.

SAN BENITO COUNTY.

(Forty-third class.)

County seat, Hollister.

Area, 1476 sq. mi. Pop. 8995.

Assessed valuation \$14,711,808 (taxable for county \$13,211,495).

SAN BENITO CO. FREE LIBRARY, HOL-LISTER. Miss Florence J. Wheaton, Lib'n.

The librarian attended the Teachers' Institute held at Santa Cruz the first week in October, and spoke before the San Benito County section.

On November 17 the meeting of the Second District of the California Library Association was held at Santa Cruz. Miss Deborah King represented our library.

Children's Book Week was fittingly observed by a display of a large collection of the best children's books. The librarian also spoke before the Women's Club on "Children's reading."

The community branch at Tres Pinos has been re-established in Mr Leonard's store, giving a new impetus to the community reading and proving to be a distinct bettering of conditions.

FLORENCE J. WHEATON, Lib'n.

Tres Pinos.

TRES PINOS BRANCH, SAN BENITO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under San Benito Co. Free Library.

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY.

(Ninth class.)

County seat, San Bernardino.

Area, 20,055 sq. mi. Pop. 73,401.

Assessed valuation \$99,303,873 (taxable for county \$59,003,285).

SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN BERNARDINO. Miss Caroline S. Waters, Lib'n.

Mrs Mary L. Brown is the new custodian at Adelanto, having taken charge December 1, 1923. The branch is now located in the Adelanto store. Mrs A. M. Bell is the new custodian at Daggett Branch, having taken charge October 1, 1923. The new hours are Monday to Friday from 4 to 5 p.m.

The post-office address of the Atolia Branch has been changed from Atolia to Osdick.

SAN BERNARDINO CO .- Continued.

New hours at the Etiwanda Branch are Wednesday 3 to 7 and Saturday 4 to 6 p.m. At Fontana they are Tuesday 7 to 8.30 p.m., Wednesday 2 to 4.30 and Friday 2.30 to 4.30 p.m.

A branch was established at Monte Vista Home, County Hospital, on November 6, 1923. This is a home for aged women. The hours are Monday to Saturday 11,30 a.m. to 12.30 p.m., and Miss Jeane C. Heard is custodian. The branch at Santa Ana Power House No. 2 was discontinued December 13, 1923.

Miss Grace E. Curtis, who was school assistant, is now reference assistant. Miss Bessie C. Degenhart entered the library as a special temporary assistant in the school work December 27, 1923. Miss Marie Lamb resigned December 24, 1923. Miss Lamb during the last six months was an assistant in the reference department, including community branch shipments.

CAROLINE S. WATERS, Lib'n.

Adelanto.

ADELANTO BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO Co. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Atolia.

ATOLIA BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO Co. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Daggett.

DAGGETT BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO Co. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Etiwanda.

ETIWANDA BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO Co. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Fontana.

FONTANA BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO Co. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library,

SAN BERNARDINO CO .--- Continued.

Highland.

HIGHLAND LIBRARY DIST. LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Ella M. Parmalee, Lib'n.

The trustees of the district library voted on November 5 to transfer its books, magazines and pamphlets to the San Bernardino County Free Library.— San Bernardino *Telegram*, N 9

Monte Vista Home.

MONTE VISTA HOME BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, WAS established November 6, 1923.

Sec also note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Redlands.

A. K. SMILEY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Gwendolyn M. Tinker, Lib'n.

During Children's Book Week, November 11 to 17, there were special displays of recommended books. An essay contest was held in the 4th, 5th and 6th grades of the city, the children submitting compositions on the subject "My favorite book and why." A winner from all the 4th grades, from all the 5th and all the 6th was chosen and to each was given an illustrated copy of the book about which he or she wrote. On Saturday morning of this week a special matinee was held at one of the local theaters and the picture Huckleberry Finn was shown. About 400 children attended. Talks on children's books were given at some of the clubs. Special emphasis has been placed on the purchase of children's books and the result has been an increased interest in the children's department. There have been between eighty and one hundred children present at story-hour each Saturday; it has been held out in the park every Saturday but two this winter.

Much interest has also been shown in the work with the grade schools in teaching the children the use of the library. For two months three grades a week have been coming to the library and have received instruction under Miss Pew, the Children's Librarian. A new deposit station was established at the Lincoln Grammar School, making a total of four schools served in this way.

SAN BERNARDINO CO .- Continued.

Redlands-Continued.

Miss Sarah Williamson, formerly of the Staff but now attending the University of California, supplied during the Christmas vacation and catalogued 492 French books, an anonymous gift to the library. This very valuable collection of books, published in France, contains the complete works of Voltaire, Rousseau, Florian, Crebillon, and many others. All the volumes are bound in calf.

Miss Inez Smith, a graduate of the University of Redlands, completed her apprentice course December 1, and was assigned to the Cataloging Department as an assistant. Miss Glenetta Bunten, assistant in charge of the Reference Department, resigned January 1, 1924, on account of home duties. Mr Leonard Stokely, assistant in that department for three years, is at present in charge of the work.

GWENDOLYN M. TINKER, Lib'n.

Santa Ana Power House No. 2.

SANTA ANA POWER HOUSE No. 2 BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBBARY, was discontinued December 13, 1923.

SAN DIEGO COUNTY.

(Fifth class.)

County seat, San Diego.

Area, 4377 sq. mi. Pop. 112,248. Assessed valuation \$94,535,420 (taxable for county \$84,085,828).

San Diego.

\$\$SAN DIEGO [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs H. P. Davison, Lib'n Emeritus. Miss Althea H. Warren, Lib'n.

The San Diego Public Library has been allowed by the city council a budget of $7\frac{1}{2}$ cents on each \$100 worth of property valuation for 1924. This amounts to \$75,000. Of it \$50,000 is to be spent for salaries. The book fund, which is partly made up of fines, approximates \$12,000. The periodical fund, including magazines for nine branches and stations as well as the main circulating and reference collections, is \$2000, and the bindery charges are \$6000.

Our annual report for 1923 which has Society's library; a very fine geological recently been filed with the mayor shows library which was formerly the property

SAN DIEGO CO .- Continued.

San Diego-Continued.

an annual circulation of 919,104 books. This is a per capita average of 17.5 books a year for each registered borrower. As our increase in 1923 was nearly 10 per cent over the total circulation of 1922, we expect to reach the million mark in the present year.

To compare our records today with those of a decade ago shows that in 1913 each book issued cost the taxpayer 12½ cents, while last year the cost per volume circulated was less than 8 cents, an especially encouraging decrease in view of the fact that the government reports an average rise of 56 per cent in the cost of all commodities in the last ten years.

The overcrowded conditions in the main library are to be partially relieved the first of March when the reading-room, children's department and catalog department are to be moved to a new annex. They will occupy the entire second floor of the Streicher Building, diagonally across E street from the main library at the southwest corner of Eighth and E They have been secured on a streets. three years' lease. At the end of that time we optimistically believe that bonds for a new main building will have been achieved. An attempt is to be made to put the library bonds on the ballot at the next general election, in March, 1925.

Five members of our staff, Miss Peck, Miss Woodworth, Miss Patridge, Miss Dysart and Miss Warren, went to Alhambra for the 6th district meeting of the C. L. A. on January 26.

Miss Mary Van Wagenen, who has been head of our business and documents department since 1919, was married on Christmas to Mr Howard Fraser of San Diego. Fortunately for the library, Mrs Fraser will remain on our staff.

ALTHEA H. WARREN, Lib'n.

SAN DIEGO SCIENTIFIC LIBRARY. Miss Alice W. Barlow, Lib'n.

The San Diego Scientific Library was opened last summer, and as a foundation upon which to build we have the libraries of the San Diego Museum, and the Natural History Society of San Diego; a section of the San Diego County Medical Society's library; a very fine geological library which was formerly the property

SAN DIEGO CO .-- Continued.

San Diego-Continued.

of General Vogdes, and another group which includes archaeology, religion, and the art of Central and South America, China, Japan, and Egypt.

We also have current periodicals such as American Forests and Forest Life, American Journal of Science, Art and Archaeology, The Auk, Bird Lore, California Fish and Game, Natural History, the National Geographic, Nature Magazine, and Science.

Our library is housed in the California State Building which contains the replicas of the Maya monoliths whose originals are in Quirigua, Guatemala.

I should mention that this library is used by the general public for reference purposes.

ALICE W. BARLOW, Lib'n.

SAN FRANCISCO.

(Second class.)

City and county coterminous.

Area, 43 sq. mi. Pop. 506,676. Assessed valuation \$916,695,517 (taxable for county \$644,180,600).

BANK OF ITALY LIBRARY. Miss K. Dorothy Ferguson, Lib'n.

A library has been started in the Los Angeles Branch under the direction of Miss Estelle A. Brooks, to take care of the southern activities of the organization. At present Miss Brooks is doing only part-time library work, but I hope before long she will be able to devote all her time to the library work.

Miss Edla Romander, U. C., December, 1923, is now library assistant, at the Head Office of the Bank of Italy.

K. DOROTHY FERGUSON, Lib'n.

DONAHUE LIBRARY (Catholic Library of San Francisco). Reading room open free to the public daily except Sundays: Mon. to Fri, 12 m. to 5.30 and 7.30 to 9 p.m.; Sat. 11 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. Borrowing privileges \$1 per year. Located in Y. M. I. building, 50 Oak street.

SUTRO BRANCH, CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY, Milton J. Ferguson, State Lib'n.

See notes under California State Library, p. 45, 46.

SAN FRANCISCO-Continued.

UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY LIBRARY. J. M. Hill, Geologist in Charge.

There is nothing new to add to the previous reports on the U. S. Geological Survey Library, except for the acquisition of a number of reports and maps published during 1923. We have also enlarged somewhat the reference collection by the acquisition of reports of the Department of Geology, University of California, and reports of the Arizona Bureau of Mines.

J. M. HILL, Geologist in Charge.

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY.

(Eighth class.)

County seat, Stockton.

Area, 1370 sq. mi. Pop. 79,905. Assessed valuation \$119,746.530 (tax-

able for county \$102,967,210).

Stockton.

‡§STOCKTON FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. H. O. Parkinson, Lib'n.

The library has replaced its former make-shift cases with two permanent weather-proof sidewalk showcases designed in keeping with the facade of the building itself and producing a miniature effect. (Picture on file at State Library The cases, which are for lending.) located on either side of the main entrance to the library, have three exposures, facing respectively the street, the west sidewalk approach and the east sidewalk approach. The miniature character of the structures themselves proves an attraction.

The contents are automatically renewed, each book, when called for, being replaced by another at the time. This keeps the display continuously fresh, as no one book ever remains long in the case before requested.

H. O. PARKINSON, Lib'n.

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY.

(Thirtieth class.)

County seat, San Luis Obispo.

Area, 3500 sq. mi. Pop. 21,893. Assessed valuation \$37,508,524 (taxable for county \$32,687,420).

San Luis Obispo.

SAN LUIS OBISPO FREE PUBLIC LI-BRARY, Mrs E. L. Kellogg, Lib'n.

SAN LUIS OBISPO CO.-Continued.

San Luis Obispo-Continued.

On December 31 the San Luis Chamber of Commerce staged a library luncheon. A delightful program of music and recitation was given, after which Miss Flo Gantz told of library service in the county and Mrs E. L. Kellogg gave a talk on the service rendered by the city library. It was an excellent opportunity for the best kind of library publicity—talking library before the business men of the community —and good results have been noted.

The twelve-hour service inaugurated recently is proving very popular and is bringing to the library patrons who formerly found it inconvenient or impossible to avail themselves of library privileges.

Just before Thanksgiving the librarian told a group of stories appropriate to the holiday to a large audience of children at the Weekly Bible School of the Presbyterian Church. The Saturday after Thanksgiving a story hour was held at the library for children of the first, second, and third grades. Stories were told by the librarian and first assistant and were greatly enjoyed by a good sized audience.

ABBIE S. KELLOGG, Lib'n.

SAN MATEO COUNTY.

(Twenty-first class.)

County seat, Redwood City.

Area, 470 sq. mi. Pop. 36,781. Assessed valuation \$41,713,518 (tax-

able for county \$38,041,180).

SAN MATEO CO. FREE LIBRARY, RED-WOOD CITY. Miss Edna Holroyd, Lib'n.

Miss Edna Holroyd, who recently resigned as county librarian, was reappointed on October 8, 1924.—Redwood City *Tribune*, O 8

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY.

(Eighteenth class.)

County seat, Santa Barbara.

Area, 2450 sq. mi. Pop. 41,097.

Assessed valuation \$63,249,242 (taxable for county \$54,271,315).

SANTA BARBARA CO. FREE LIBRARY, SANTA BARBARA. Mrs Frances B. Linn, Lib'n.

The county appropriation for 1923-24 is \$15,750 and the schools will turn over \$4200.

MRS FRANCES B, LINN, Lib'n.

SANTA BARBARA CO .--- Continued.

Santa Barbara.

SANTA BARBARA FREE PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs Frances Burns Linn, Lib'n.

The appropriation for 1923-24 is \$24,-340. This is exclusive of the appropriation and school fund for county work, which bring the total fund available up to \$44,290.

MRS FRANCES B. LINN, 'Lib'n.

SANTA CLARA COUNTY.

(Sixth class.)

County seat, San Jose.

Area, 1355 sq. mi. Pop. 100,588.

Assessed valuation \$118,353,004 (taxable for county \$101,862,810).

SANTA CLARA CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN JOSE. Miss Stella Huntington, Lib'n.

The outstanding event of the last quarter was the opening of the new library building at Campbell. The building was built and furnished by the Campbell Library Association and the Campbell Country Women's Club and open to the public early in October. The County Library supplied about 2500 books, so the shelves were filled for the opening. It is a very pleasant library and we are all proud of it.

STELLA HUNTINGTON, Lib'n.

Campbell.

CAMPBELL FREE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA CLARA CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Elizabeth Kennedy, Lib'n.

See note under Santa Clara Co. Free Library.

Stanford University.

\$\$||LELAND STANFORD JUNIOR UNIVER-SITY LIBRARY. Dr Ray Lyman Wilbur, Pres. George T. Clark. Lib'n.

Stanford University Library has been made the Pacific coast depository of the British Library of Information. This library of information, which has hitherto been maintained only in New York for the United States, makes available a large variety of documents issued by the British government, particularly valuable to merchants and to men connected with industrial enterprises.—San Francisco *Chronicle*, N 4

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY.

(Twenty-sixth class.)

County seat, Santa Cruz.

Area, 425 sq. mi. Pop. 26,269. Assessed valuation \$25,742,997 (taxable for county \$22,120,280).

SANTA CRUZ CO. FREE LIBRARY, SANTA CRUZ. Miss Minerva H. Waterman, Lib'n.

The appropriation for county work for 1923-24 will be about \$5,000.

MINERVA H. WATERMAN, Lib'n.

SHASTA COUNTY.

(Thirty-fifth class.)

County seat, Redding. Area, 4050 sq. mi. Pop. 13,311. Assessed valuation \$22,309,159 (taxable for county \$15,474,285).

SIERRA COUNTY.

(Fifty-sixth class.)

County seat. Downieville. Area, 957 sq. mi. Pop. 1783. Assessed valuation \$2,975,701 (taxable for county \$2,638,085).

SISKIYOU COUNTY.

(Thirty-third class.)

County seat, Yreka.

Area, 6079 sq. mi. Pop. 18,545. Assessed valuation \$28,882,569 (taxable for county \$20,826,215).

SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY, YREKA. Miss Thelma Brackett, Lib'n.

In order to furnish framed pictures to each of the many elementary schoolrooms in the county, the help of manual training classes of various schools was enlisted. The first set of twenty-five frames, made by the McCloud High School, has reached the library. The Yreka High School also is making twenty-five, and the Weed Grammar school thirty-seven. The frames now ready are of oak, very well made, at a cost to the library of only 40 cents a Thus the cooperation of the frame. schools is a great aid in stretching funds.

The county librarian in December had an opportunity to drive to San Francisco with the county nurse. En route she had the pleasure of visiting the Tehama and Glenn County libraries, and the State Library.

The hours at the Dunsmuir Branch have been changed. It is now open six able for county \$43,188,855).

SISKIYOU CO.-Continued.

evenings and two afternoons a week, with a consequent large increase in circulation. Edgewood Branch has been moved back to the hotel, where it is under the care of Mrs M. B. Hemphill, Mrs Sylvia Clayton, custodian of Dorris Branch, having resigned, her mother, Mrs Lettie Ethridge, is taking her place.

THELMA BRACKETT, Lib'n.

Dorris.

DORRIS BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Siskiyou Co. Free Library.

Dunsmuir.

DUNSMUIR BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. LIBRARY.

See note under Siskiyou Co. Free Library.

Edgewood.

EDGEWOOD BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Siskiyou Co. Free Library.

SOLANO COUNTY.

(Nineteenth class.)

County seat, Fairfield.

Area, 911 sq. mi. Pop. 40,602.

Assessed valuation \$36,577,022 (taxable for county \$30,262,160).

SOLANO CO. FREE LIBRARY, FAIRFIELD. Miss Clara B. Dills, Lib'n.

Mrs Nell Wright has again joined the library staff to fill the vacancy caused by the resignation of Miss Blanche Lambert. Miss Lambert was married on October 11 to Mr Ross Bundy.

Before the holidays Christmas stories were told, as in previous years, at the various schools throughout the county. This event is always eagerly anticipated by the children, and we feel the effort expended was well worth while.

CLARA B. DILLS, Lib'n.

SONOMA COUNTY.

(Fourteenth class.)

County seat, Santa Rosa. Area, 1540 sq. mi Pop. 51,990.

Assessed valuation \$51,060,520 (tax-

SONOMA CO.-Continued.

Petaluma.

§PETALUMA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Sara Frances Cassiday, Lib'n.

Miss Alice Brown has been elected Library Trustee to take the place of E. L. Lippitt.

SARA F. CASSIDAY, Lib'n.

STANISLAUS COUNTY.

(Sixteenth class.)

County seat, Modesto.

Area, 1486 sq. mi. Pop. 43,557.

Assessed valuation \$59,520,342 (taxable for county \$51,958,175).

STANISLAUS CO. FREE LIBRARY, MO-DESTO. Miss Bessie B. Silverthorn, Lib'n.

In October the Knights Ferry Branch was moved from the porch of Mrs B. M. Bartlett to the porch of Mrs Anna Winkler, as Mrs Bartlett was returning to San Francisco to make her home. Mrs Winkler has glassed in one side of her porch, making an attractive nook for the bookcase and perfectly protected from the weather.

On December 6, Crows Landing Branch moved into its new quarters in the completed Community Hall. Here it will occupy a pleasant large room with builtin bookcases, window seats, and plenty of light. The library will be open two afternoons each week and one evening. The Crows Landing Woman's Club will share the room and assist in furnishing it with curtains and rugs.

On December 19 members of the staff of the county and the city library gave a program at the Modesto Lions Club luncheon. Miss Silverthorn introduced each department with a brief characterization, and those describing them at greater length were: Miss Ione Townsend, Accessions; Miss Mildred De Ferrari, Catalog; Miss Edith Gantt, Reference and Loan; Miss Shearer, Children's department; Miss Ida Huntington, County Branch department. Miss Silverthorn concluded the talks with an account of what people are reading in Modesto and Stanislaus County.

The leaflet, "Service to Business Folk," was used as a place card for each member, while the McCutcheon cartoon, "Buried Treasure in Public Libraries," was also at each plate.

The Lions expressed themselves as hav- Library.

STANISLAUS CO.—Continued.

ing greatly enjoyed the program by giving the guests three loud growls, "Grrrrrr-Grrrrrr-LIBRARIANS!"

During the past quarter addresses at the following places were made by the county librarian: Oct. 2, Oakdale Woman's Improvement Club; Oct. 4, Tegner Woman's Club; Nov. 20, Empire Parent Teacher Association; Nov. 25, Modesto Presbyterian Church, Evening service, "Children's reading," illustrated by small book collection; Dec. 3, Ceres Parent Teacher's Association; Dec. 6, Tegner Woman's Club; Dec. 6, Crows Landing, Dedication of new Community Hall and Library; Dec. 17, Ceres Board of Trade dinner.

The Ceres Grammar School has asked to join the county library and will be accepted as a branch at the January meeting of the board of supervisors. There are 14 teachers in the school and about 500 pupils. Walter White is principal.

The ^collowing are new custodians: Mrs Jack Young at Orange Blossom Branch (Route A, Box 47, Oakdale); Mrs Frederick Canliffe at Salida; Mrs F. E. McConnell at Westley

BESSIE B. SILVERTHORN, Lib'n.

Ceres.

CERES SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, STANIS-LAUS CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Stanislaus Co. Free Library.

Crows Landing.

CROWS LANDING BRANCH, STANISLAUS CO. FREE LIBBARY.

See note under Stanislaus Co. Free Library.

Knights Ferry.

KNIGHTS FERRY BRANCH, STANISLAUS Co. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Stanislaus Co. Free Library.

Orange Blossom (P. O. Route A, Box 47, Oakdale).

ORANGE BLOSSOM BRANCH, STANIS-LAUS CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Stanislaus Co. Free Library.

STANISLAUS CO.-Continued.

Salida.

SALIDA BRANCH, STANISLAUS CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Stanislaus Co. Free Library.

Westley.

WESTLEY BRANCH, STANISLAUS CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Stanislaus Co. Free Library.

SUTTER COUNTY.

(Forty-first class.)

County seat, Yuba City.

Area, 611 sq. mi. Pop. 10,115.

Assessed valuation \$21,891,134 (taxable for county \$17,949,070).

SUTTER CO. FREE LIBRARY, YUBA CITY. Miss Edna J. Hewitt, Lib'n.

The supervisors reappointed Miss Hewitt for another four-year term at their meeting on December 3, 1923.—Yuba City Independent, D 6

SUTTER CO. LAW LIBBARY, YUBA CITY. K. S. Mahon, Lib'n.

On December 3 the Sutter County Board of Supervisors filled a vacancy that has existed for almost sixteen years by appointing A. C. McLaughlin a trustee of the Sutter County Law Library. Mr McLaughlin succeeds S. J. Stabler, who died about 1907. The other trustees are Superior Judge K. S. Mahon, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors Graves, A. H. Hewitt, Lawrence Schillig.—Marysville Appeal, D 5

TEHAMA COUNTY.

(Thirty-sixth class.)

County seat, Red Bluff.

Area, 3200 sq. mi. Pop. 12,882. Assessed valuation \$20,342,954 (taxable for county \$16,846,610).

Red Bluff.

§ HERBERT KRAFT FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY. Mrs Frances Walker Whitney, Lib'n.

A new schedule of hours for the library has been adopted as follows: Week days 10 a.m. to 12 m., 1.30 to 5 and 7 to 9.30 p.m.; Sundays 1.30 to 5 p.m.—Red Bluff News, N 1

TRINITY COUNTY.

(Fifty-fifth class.)

County seat, Weaverville. Area, 3276 sq. mi. Pop. 2551. Assessed valuation \$3,893,835 (taxable for county \$3,438,770).

TULARE COUNTY.

(Eleventh class.)

County seat, Visalia. Area, 4863 sq. mi. Pop. 59,031. Assessed valuation \$87,860,140 (taxable for county \$68,530,135).

TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY, VISALIA. Miss Gretchen Flower, Lib'n.

The Yettem Branch was established October 1 with M, H. Knadjian as custodian. The Alpaugh School District joined the County Free Library on October 2. H. E. Kraus is custodian. Mr H. C. Morrison has succeeded Mr R. D. Morrison as custodian of the Poplar Branch. The branch is located in Mr Morrison's store. GRETCHEN FLOWER, Lib'n.

TULARE CO. LAW LIBRARY, VISALIA. Miss Anna Haas, in charge.

The Tulare County Law Library has been erroneously listed as cared for by the Tulare County Free Library. It is located in the courthouse and is in charge of Miss Anna Haas.

Alpaugh.

ALPAUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established October 2, 1923, with H. E. Kraus as custodian.

Poplar (P. O. Porterville).

POPLAR BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Tulare Co. Free library.

Thermal (P. O. Ducor).

THERMAL BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Tulare Co. Free library.

Visalia.

VISALIA FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY AND BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs M. J. McEwen, Lib'n.

Miss Katherine M. Peirce, assistant librarian for the past four years, will leave on January 3 to accept the position of librarian of All Saints School, an

TULARE CO.—Continued. Visalia—Continued.

Episcopal school for girls, in Sioux Falls, South Dakota.—Visalia *Times*, D 20

Yettem.

YETTEM BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established October 1, 1923. M. H. Knadjian is custodian.

TUOLUMNE COUNTY.

(Forty-sixth class.)

County seat, Sonora.

Area, 2292 sq. mi. Pop. 7768.

Assessed valuation \$11,952,956 (taxable for county \$8,474,886).

TUOLUMNE CO. FREE LIBRARY, SONORA. Miss Gladys English, Lib'n.

Miss Alma Fitch, assistant in the county library, resigned on January 1 to marry Mr Francis R. Sims, one of the county supervisors. The romance started in the county library.

The Big Oak Flat Branch, which was discontinued in September, because Mrs Annie Brinham could no longer take care of it, was reopened on November 5 in the home of Mrs Mattie Caplinger. The Moccasin Creek Branch, which was temporarily closed in October, when Mr and Mrs Toppins left Moccasin Creek, was moved to the Engineer's office and reopened on December 12, with Mr William Behrens in charge. On December 1, Mrs William Healy resigned as custodian of Tuolumne Branch and Mrs H. D. Zwinge was appointed in her place.

Miss Silverthorn from Modesto and Miss Harris and Miss Manson from Fresno visited the county library during the quarter.

GLADYS ENGLISH, Lib'n.

Big Oak Flat.

BIG OAK FLAT BRANCH, TUOLUMNE CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Tuolumne Co. Free Library.

Moccasin Creek.

MOCCASIN CREEK BRANCH, TUOLUMNE Co. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Tuolumne Co. Free Library.

Tuolumne.

TUOLUMNE BRANCH, TUOLUMNE CO. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Tuolumne Co. Free Library,

VENTURA COUNTY.

(Twenty-third class.)

County seat, Ventura.

Area, 1850 sq. mi. Pop. 28,724.

Assessed valuation \$57,684,592 (taxable for county \$50,454,129).

VENTURA CO. FREE LIBRARY, VENTURA. Miss Elizabeth R. Topping, Lib'n.

The library has new branches at Thousand Oaks near Triunfo and in the Holy Cross School at Ventura. It has also put a temporary branch in an emergency school on Sulphur Mountain. The school is in a barn. It started with no other equipment than a piece of canvas, a flag and some county library books.

Mrs Louise Browning, custodian of the Newbury Park Branch, has resigned and Mrs Allie Roche takes her place.

ELIZABETH R. TOPPING, Lib'n.

Newbury Park.

NEWBURY PARK BRANCH, VENTURA Co. FREE LIBRARY.

See note under Ventura Co. Free Library.

Sulphur Mountain.

SULPHUR MOUNTAIN SCHOOL BRANCH, VENTURA CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

See also note under Ventura Co. Free Library.

Thousand Oaks.

THOUSAND OAKS BRANCH, VENTUBA Co. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Ventura.

HOLY CROSS SCHOOL BRANCH, VENTURA Co. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

YOLO COUNTY.

(Thirty-fourth class.)

County seat, Woodland.

Area, 1017 sq. mi. Pop. 17,105. Assessed valuation \$32,480,480 (taxable for county \$26,416,050).

YOLO CO. FREE LIBRARY, WOODLAND. Miss Nancy C. Laugenour, Lib'n.

Contract has been awarded by the supervisors for a \$4200 addition to the Davis library building, work to begin the first of the year.—Oakland *Tribune*, D 11

.

YOLO CO.—Continued. Winters.

WINTERS FREE LIBRARY AND READING ROOM AND BRANCH, YOLO CO. FREE LI-BRARY.

Mrs Elizabeth Snodgrass, for sixteen years librarian of the Winters Free Library, died at the home of her sister, Mrs J. C. Butler, at Calistoga, November 23, 1923.—Sacramento *Bce*, N 27

Woodland.

WOODLAND FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY AND BRANCH, YOLO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Irma V. Cole, Lib'n.

YOLO CO.—Continued. Woodland—Continued.

Miss Cole resigned November 1, 1923, to be librarian at the office of the Sacramento *Bee*, but has now returned to Woodland.

YUBA COUNTY.

(Fortieth class.)

County seat, Marysville. Area, 625 sq. mi. Pop. 10,375. Assessed valuation \$19,664,423 (taxable for county \$16,731,980). The following directory is based on recommendations received from the libraries of California. New recommendations and corrections will be welcomed at any time.

SUPPLIES.

Amateur Plays.

ACTING DRAMAS FOR AMATEURS.

The Book Den, 464 Eighth st., Oakland, Calif.

A. L. A.

BOOKLIST. 78 E. Washington st., Chicago, Ill.

CATALOG.

1904 ed. \$1.

Superintendent of Documents, Government Printing Office, Washington, D. C.

1904-11 ed., \$1.50.

A. L. A. Pub. Board, 78 E. Washington st., Chicago, Ill.

HEADQUARTERS AND PUBLISHING BOARD. 78 E. Washington st., Chicago, Ill.

Binding and Mending.

BINDING.

- Foster & Futernick Co., 444 Bryant st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Herring & Robinson, 1927 Howard st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Hicks-Judd Co., 460 Fourth st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Pacific Library Binding Co., 210 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Sacramento Bookbindery, 309 J st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Silvius and Schoenbackler, 423 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

MENDING.

Stix Co., San Jose. Stix-Parchment mending tissue.

Blind.

Embossed books, etc. Addresses will be furnished by the State Library.

Book Cases.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Southern California Distributors), 610 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.

- Rucker-Fuller Sales Co., 510 J st., Sacramento, Calif.
- F. W. Wentworth & Co. (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Book Packing Bags.

Hoegee Co., 138–142 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Book Packing Boxes.

- Pacific Box Factory, 2600 Taylor st., San Francisco, Calif.
- CORRUGATED PAPER CARTONS.
 - Illinois-Pacific Glass Co., 15th and Folsom sts., San Francisco, Calif.
 - Richardson-Case Paper Co., 1021 Front st., Sacramento, Calif.

Book Plates.

- Manhattan Photogravure Co., 142 West 27th st., New York, N. Y.
- Sequoyah Studio, 319 42d st., Oakland, Calif.
- Times-Mirror Printing and Binding House, 118 S. Broadway, Los Angeles, Calif.
- Western Lithograph Co., 600-610 E. Second st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Book Pockets.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis.

- Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.
- Hicks-Judd Co., 460 Fourth st., San Francisco, Calif.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Southern California Distributors), 610 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Rucker-Fuller Sales Co., 510 J st., Sacramento, Calif.
- F. W. Wentworth & Co. (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- The Zellerbach Paper Co., 534 Battery st., San Francisco, Calif.

Book Stacks, Metal Furniture, Etc.

- Art Metal Construction Co., Jamestown, N. Y.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Southern California Distributors), 610 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- J. Niederer Co., 3409 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Rucker-Fuller Sales Co., 510 J st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Van Horn Iron Works Co., Cleveland, Ohio.
- F. W. Wentworth & Co. (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Book Supports, Bracket and Pedal for Perforating Stamp and Other Mechanical Appliances.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Southern California Distributors), 610 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365–369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Book Varnish.

Pacific Library Binding Co. 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Books.

- Baker & Taylor Co., 354 4th ave., New York City.
- Emporium, 835–865 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Himebaugh & Browne, 471 Fifth ave., New York, N. Y.
- H. R. Huntting Co., Springfield, Mass.
- A. C. McClurg & Co., Library Department, 330 E. Ohio st., Chicago, Ill.
- McDevitt-Wilson's, Inc., 30 Church st., New York City.
- Newbegin's, 358 Post st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Parker's Book Store (C. C. Parker), 220 S. Broadway, Los Angeles, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Sather Gate Bookshop, 2307 Telegraph ave., Berkeley, Calif.
- Chas. Scribner's Sons, 5th ave. and 48th st., New York, N. Y.
- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.
- Union Library Association, 225 Fifth ave., New York City.

Books-Continued.

- Vroman's Book Store, 60 E. Colorado st., Pasadena.
- Harr Wagner, 149 New Montgomery st., San Francisco, Calif.

Especially western books by western authors.

- White House, Sutter st., bet. Grant ave. and Kearny st., San Francisco, Calif.
- ENGLISH BOOKS AND PUBLICATIONS.
 - G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.
 - B. F. Stevens & Brown, 4 Trafalgar Square, London, W. C. 2, Eng.
- FOREIGN BOOKS AND PUBLICATIONS IN VARIOUS LANGUAGES.
 - G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.
 - Lemcke & Buechner, 30-32 East Twentieth st., New York City.

French.

- French Book Store, Alfred Blanc & J. Delabriandais, 324 Stockton st., San Francisco, Calif.
- J. Terquem, 19 Rue Scribe, Paris, France.

Italian.

A. Cavalli & Co., 255 Columbus ave., San Francisco, Calif.

Spanish.

Victoriano Suarez, Madrid, Spain.

LAW BOOKS.

- Bancroft-Whitney Co., 200 McAllister st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Matthew-Bender & Co., 109 State st., Albany, N. Y.

- Milton Bradley Co., 20 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- California School Book Depository, 149 New Montgomery st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Ginn & Co., 45 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- A. C. McClurg & Co., Library Department, 330 E. Ohio st., Chicago, Ill.
- Owen Publishing Co., 681 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- White House, Sutter st., bet. Grant ave. and Kearny st., San Francisco, Calif.

SCHOOL BOOKS.

[Jan., 1924

Books-Continued.

SECOND-HAND BOOKS.

- McDevitt-Wilson's, Inc., 30 Church st., New York City.
- Mudie's Select Library, 30-34 New Oxford st., London, Eng.
- Powner's Book Store, 542 Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Henry Sotheran & Co., 140 Strand, London, W. C. 2, Eng.
- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.
- B. F. Stevens & Brown, 4 Trafalgar Square, London, W. C. 2, Eng.
- A. R. Womrath, 15 E. 28th st., New York, N. Y. For used fiction.

por used netion.

Especially Californiana.

- Dawson's Book Shop, 627 S. Grand ave., Los Angeles, California.
- F. M. De Witt, 620 14th st., Oakland, Calif.
- Holmes Book Co., 104 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Cabinets.

See FURNITURE AND SUPPLIES.

Catalog Cards.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Southern California Distributors), 610 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rucker-Fuller Sales Co., 510 J st., Sacramento, Calif.
- F. W. Wentworth & Co. (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Yawman & Erbe Manufacturing Co., 132–140 Sutter st., San Francisco, and 727 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Charts.

H. S. Crocker Co., 565-571 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Clippings.

Allen's Press Clipping Bureau, 121 Second st., San Francisco, and 626 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

County Free Library Signs.

For information, write Mrs Frances Burns Linn, Santa Barbara County Free Library, Santa Barbara, Calif.

County Free Library Stickers. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

Cutter Tables, Size Rulers, Etc.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Southern California Distributors), 610 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.

F. W. Wentworth & Co. (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Duplicating Appliances.

Dandy Duplicator.

Dodge & Dent, New York, N. Y.

Edison Rotary Mimeograph.

H. S. Crocker Co. (Agents), 565–571 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Filing Cases.

See FURNITURE AND SUPPLIES.

Films.

- For Rent.
 - American Red Cross, Pacific Division, Larkin and McAllister sts., San Francisco, Calif.
 - Fox Film Corporation, New York, N. Y.
 - National Producers Film Service, 111 Golden Gate ave., San Francisco, Calif.
 - Pathe Exchange, Inc., Non-Theatrical Dept., 985 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
 - United States Forest Service, Ferry bldg., San Francisco, Calif.
 - University of California, Extension Division, Berkeley, Calif.

Furniture and Supplies.

- Grimes-Stassforth Stationery Co., 737-739 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Southern California Distributors), 610 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rucker-Fuller Desk Co., 677 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.

Furniture and Supplies—Continued. Rucker-Fuller Sales Co., 510 J st.,

- Sacramento, Calif.
- F. W. Wentworth & Co. (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Yawman & Erbe Manufacturing Co., 132-140 Sutter st., San Francisco, and 727 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Filing Cases for Music.

Los Angeles Desk Co., 848 S. Hill st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Globes.

- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rand-McNally Co., 125 E. Sixth st., Los Angeles, and 559 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- C. F. Weber & Co., 985 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Magazine Binders.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Elbe File and Binder Co., 215-217

Greene st., New York, N. Y.

Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

- Gem Binder Co., 65 W. Broadway, New York.
- Wm. G. Johnston & Co., Pittsburg, Pa. McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Southern California Distributors), 610 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- F. W. Wentworth & Co. (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Magazines.

See PERIODICALS.

Maps.

- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rand-McNally Co., 125 E. Sixth st., Los Angeles, and 559 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- C. F. Weber & Co., 985 Market st., San Francicso, Calif.

Music.

- Sherman, Clay & Co., Kearny and Sutter sts., San Francisco, Calif.
- G. Schirmer, 3 E. 43d st., New York, N. Y. 3-30809

Pamphlets and Multi-Binders and Pamphlet Boxes.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

Paste.

Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Pasting Machines.

A. G. Prior, 136 Liberty st., New York, N. Y.

Perforating Stamps.

B. F. Cummins Co., Chicago, Ill.

Moise-Klinkner Co., 365–369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Periodicals.

BACK VOLUMES AND NUMBERS.

- F. W. Faxon Co., 83-91 Francis st., Back Bay, Boston, Mass.
- F. M. De Witt, 1609 Telegraph ave., Oakland, Calif.
- International Magazine Co., 339 Bay Way North, Elizabeth, N. J.
- Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- H. W. Wilson Co., 958-64 University ave., New York City.

SUBSCRIPTION AGENCIES,

- John A. Clow, 2925 N. Lake ave., Pasadena, Calif.
- Franklin Square Agency, Franklin Square, New York City.
- Moore-Cottrell Subscription Agencies, North Cohocton, N. Y.
- Mutual Subscription Agency, 602 Crozer Bldg., Philadelphia, Pa.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- San Francisco News Co., 747 Howard st., San Francisco, Calif.
- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.

For foreign periodicals only.

- Sunset Subscription Agency, 631 Chamber of Commerce Bldg., Los Angeles, Calif.
- H. W. Wilson Co., 958-64 University ave., New York City.

Pictures.

Braun & Co., Dornach, Alsace, France.

Curtis & Cameron, Copley Square, Boston, Mass.

Especially for reproduction of American art.

Pictures-Continued.

- Toni Landau Photo Co., 1 E. 45th st., New York, N. Y.
- (Formerly Berlin Photographic Co.)
- Perry Pictures Co., Malden, Mass.
- Vickery, Atkins & Torrey, 550 Sutter st., San Francisco, Calif.

Rubber Stamps and Type.

- Chipron Stamp Co., 224 West First st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Los Angeles Rubber Stamp Co., 131 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365-369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Sleeper Stamp Co., 528 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

Scales.

Fairbanks-Morse & Co., 651 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.

Shelf Label-Holders.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis.

F. W. Wentworth & Co. (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Signs.

Dromgold-Schroeder Co., 1033 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif.

- Sam H. Harris, 631 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365-369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Tablet & Ticket Co., 604 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.

Slides.

Geo. Kanzee, 12 Geary st., San Francisco, Calif.

Stamp Affixers.

Multipost Co., Rochester, N. Y.

Steel Stacks.

See BOOK STACKS.

Stereoscopic Views.

Keystone View Co., Meadville, Pa.

Philip Brigandi (Agent Keystone View Co. and Underwood & Underwood), 1626 North Hobart blvd., Los Angeles, Calif.

Has also Industries of California, and Missions of California.

Willis E. Case (Agent Keystone View Co. and Underwood & Underwood), 1610 Grove st., Berkeley, Calif.

Typewriter Ribbons.

- L. & M. Alexander, 444 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Remington Typewriter Co., 240 Bush st., San Francisco, 424 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, and 1127 9th st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Typewriter Inspection Co., 426 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Underwood Typewriter Co., 531 Market st., San Francisco, 430 S. Broadway, Los Angeles, and 611 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SCHOOLS.

Los Angeles Library School. For full information, write to Librarian, Public Library, Los Angeles, California.

Riverside Library Service School. For full information write to Librarian, Public Library, Riverside, California.

Sce, also, this publication, p. 19.

University of California Department of Library Science. For full information write to Librarian, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIA-TION.

The officers of the American Library Association for 1923–24 are as follows:

Judson T. Jennings, Librarian, Public Library, Seattle, Wash., President.

Marilla W. Freeman, Librarian, Main I ibrary, Cleveland, Ohio, 1st Vice-President.

Phineas L. Windsor, Librarian, University of Illinois Library, 2nd Vice-President.

Carl H. Milam, Chicago, Secretary.

Edward D. Tweedell, Assistant Librarian, The John Crerar Library, Chicago, Treasurer.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE LIBRARIES.

The officers of the National Association of State Libraries for 1923-24 are as follows:

C. B. Lester, Secretary, Wisconsin Free Library Commission, Madison, Wis., President.

Mrs Maude B. Cobb, Librarian, Georgia State Library, Atlanta, Ga., 1st Vice-President.

Con P. Cronin, Librarian, Arizona State Library, Phoenix, Ariz., 2nd Vice-President. John P. Dulland, New Jersey State Library, Trenton, N. J., Secretary-Treasurer.

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF LAW LIBRARIES.

The officers of the American Association of Law Libraries for 1923-24 are as follows:

Andrew H. Mettee, Library Company of Baltimore Bar, President.

Con P. Cronin, State Library, Phoenix, Ariz., 1st Vice-President.

Josephine E. Norval, State Librarian, St. Paul, Minn., 2nd Vice-President.

Miss Robbie Mai Leach, Memphis Bar and Law Library, Memphis, Tenn., Secretary.

Sumner York Wheeler, Essex County Law Library, Salem, Mass., Treasurer.

LEAGUE OF LIBRARIES COMMIS-SIONS.

The officers of the League of Library Commissioners for 1923-24 are as follows:

Milton J. Ferguson, Librarian, California State Library, Sacramento, Calif., President.

Clarence B. Lester, Sec. Wisconsin Library Commission, Madison, Wis., 1st Vice-President.

Miss Nellie Williams, Sec. Nebraska Library Commission, Lincoln, Neb., 24 Vice-President.

Miss Fannie C. Rawson, Sec. Kentucky Library Commission, Frankfort, Ky., Secretary-Treasurer.

PACIFIC NORTHWEST LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

The officers of the Pacific Northwest Library Association for 1923-24 are as follows:

John Ridington, University of British Columbia Library, President.

Miss Joanna H. Sprague, Salt Lake Public Library, Salt Lake, Utah, 1st Vice-President.

Miss Flora M. Case, Salem Public Library, Salem, Ore., 2d Vice-President.

Ralph Munn, Reference Librarian. Seattle Public Library, Seattle, Wash., Secretary. Miss Elena A. Clancey, Head of Order Dept., Tacoma Public Library, Tacoma, Wash., 'Treasurer.

SPECIAL LIBRARIES ASSOCIA-TION.

The officers of the Special Libraries Association for 1923-24 are as follows:

Edward H. Redstone, State Librarian of Massachusetts. President.

Dorsey W. Hyde, Jr., U. S. Chamber of Commerce, 1st Vice-President.

Ruth G. Nichols, Federal Reserve Bank, Chicago, Ill., 2d Vice-President.

Laura R. Gibbs, Tel-U-Where Co., Boston, Mass., Secretary.

Gertrude Peterkin, American Telephone and Telegraph Co., New York, Assistant Secretary.

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

The officers of the School Library Association for 1923-24 are:

Northern Section—President, —— —— Secretary-Treasurer, —— ——

Southern Section-President, Miss Edith M. Schultz, High School, Redondo.

Secretary—Miss Jean Doan, Part-Time High School, 745 S. Grand ave., Los Angeles.

SPECIAL LIBRARIES ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA.

The officers of the Special Libraries Association of Southern California for 1923-24 are:

Guy E. Marion, Chamber of Commerce Library and Statistics Department, Los Angeles, President.

Leroy J. Armstrong, Librarian, Universal Film Co., Vice-President.

Mary E. Irish, Barlow Medical Library, Los Angeles, Secretary-Treasurer.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY SCHOOL ALUMNI ASSOCIATION.

The Alumni Associations of the California State Library School and the University of California Library School having voted to form a joint association, a temporary organization was effected at Yosemite, June 6, 1923. Officers were nominated to be voted on by mail.

EMPLOYMENT BUREAU.

The State Library registers all library workers in California who are looking for positions and all from outside the state who wish to come here. Also it will be glad to know of libraries that want head librarians or assistants in any branch of their work. In writing for recommendations, libraries are urged to

be as specific as possible, especially in regard to time position must be filled and salary offered. A librarian who wishes to be dropped from the Employment Bureau list and a library that fills a position for which it has asked a recommendation will help the work greatly by notifying the State Library at once. For further information, write to the State Library, Sacramento, California.

SCHOOL LIBRARY STATISTICS.

(From reports of County Superintendents of Schools, 1922-23.)

Total school districts	3,714
Elementary	3,356
High	358
Total expended for books for high schools	\$549,575
Total expended for books for elementary schools	\$522,761
Total volumes in elementary schools2	2,908,965
Total volumes in high schools	1,698,306

CALIFORNIA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

OFFICERS.

President, Jeannette M. Drake, Public Library, Pasadena.

Vice-President, H. O. Parkinson, Public Library, Stockton.

Secretary-Treasurer, Hazel Gibson, Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento.

Trustees Section.

President, F. H. Pettingell, Trustee Public Library, Los Angeles.

Secretary, Mrs Katherine G. Smith, Trustee Public Library, Los Angeles.

Municipal Libraries Section.

President, Ethel Carroll, Public Library, Oxnard.

Special Libraries Section.

Chairman, Margaret Hatch, Standard Oil Company Library, San Francisco.

COMMITTEES.

Executive Committee — The President, Vice - President, Secretary - Treasurer and Dr George Watson Cole, Jasmine Britton, Edith M. Coulter, Mabel R. Gillis, Helen T. Kennedy, Helen E. Vogleson.

Auditing — Margaret E. Livingston, Orange County Free Library, Santa Ana, chairman; Hubert Frazier.

Nominating—The Constitution provides for a "Nominating Committee consisting of representatives selected by the respective districts at their district meetings." First district, Charles S. Greene; Fourth District, Essae M. Culver; Sixth District, Artena M. Chapin.

Publications — Cornelia D. Provines, Sacramento County Free Library, Sacra-• mento, chairman; Winifred E. Skinner, Josephine L. Whitbeck.

Resolutions—Celia A. Hayward, Public Library, Berkeley, chairman; Philip Goulding, Mrs Frances B. Linn.

Certification—Mrs Theodora R. Brewitt, Public Library, Long Beach, chairman (1928); Jeannette M. Drake (1927); Susan T. Smith (1926); Mabel R. Gillis (1925); Helen E. Vogleson (1924).

٠

Cooperation—Mrs Julia G. Babcock, Kern County Free Library, Bakersfield, chairman; Anne Bell Bailey, Alice M. Butterfield, Mrs Gladys S. Case, Blanche Galloway, Mrs Algeline M. Lawson, Della J. Sisler.

J. L. Gillis Memorial-Milton J. Ferguson, State Library, Sacramento, chairman; Mary Barmby, Eleanor Hitt.

Legislative—Herbert V. Clayton, State Library, Sacramento, chairman; Nancy C. Laugenour, Rosamond Parma, Everett R. Perry, Mrs Miriam Colcord Post.

Membership — Jasmine Britton, City School Library, Los Angeles, chairman; 1st District, Olive Burroughs; 2d District, Stella Huntington; 3d District, Willjameena J. Boke; 4th District, Mary W. Harris; 5th District, Florence E. White; 6th District, Sarah M. Jacobus; 7th District, Ida M. Reagan; 8th District, Carmelita Duff; 9th District, Blanche Chalfant.

Music—Jessie M. Fredricks, Public Library, San Francisco, chairman; Gladys Caldwell, Caroline Wenzel.

Salaries—Milton J. Ferguson, State Library, Sacramento, chairman; Carleton B. Joeckel, Sydney B. Mitchell.

Seaman's Library—Mary Barmby, Alameda County Free Library, Oakland, chairman; Sarah M. Jacobus, Sybil Nye, Florence M. Freeman, Marjorie Van Deusen, Pauline Gunthrop, Clara B. Dills.

Jinks—Katherine Downer Kendig, Public Library, Los Angeles, chairman; Mary L. Boynton, Bessie B. Silverthorn, Mary Van Wagenen, Margaret Hatch, Gladys English, Hazel B. Manson.

DISTRICT OFFICERS AND DISTRICTS.

First District.

President, Charles S. Greene, Free Library, Oakland.

Secretary, Lucie C. Nye, Free Library, Oakland.

The first district consists of the following cities: San Francisco, Alameda, Berkeley, Oakland; and the following libraries: Leland Stanford Junior University Library and Margaret Carnegie Library, Mills College.

Second District.

President, Norah McNeill, Public Library, Richmond.

Secretary, Mrs Alice G. Whitbeck, Contra Costa County Free Library, Martinez.

The second district consists of the following counties: Alameda (excepting Alameda, Berkeley, and Oakland), Contra Costa, Monterey, San Benito, San Mateo, Santa Clara (excepting Stanford University), Santa Cruz.

Third District.

President, Estella De Ford, Napa County Free Library, Napa.

Secretary, Clara B. Dills, Solano County Free Library, Fairfield.

The third district consists of the following counties: Lake, Marin, Mendocino, Napa, Solano, Sonoma.

Fourth District.

President, Essae M. Culver, Merced County Free Library, Merced.

Secretary, Bess O. Schurtz, Merced County Free Library, Merced.

The fourth district consists of the following counties: Fresno, Inyo, Kern. Kings, Madera, Mariposa, Merced, Stanislaus, Tulare, Tuolumne.

Fifth District.

President, Irma V. Cole, Public Library, Woodland.

Secretary, Lily M. Tilden, State Library, Sacramento.

The fifth district consists of the following counties: Alpine, Amador, Calaveras, El Dorado, Mono, Nevada, Placer, Sacramento, San Joaquin, Yolo.

Sixth District.

President, Artena M. Chapin, Public Library, Alhambra.

Secretary, Faith E. Smith, Public Library, Los Angeles.

The sixth district consists of the following counties: Imperial, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Ventura.

Seventh District.

President, Mrs Florence Simpson Mc-Claskey, 447 Wabash ave., Eureka.

Secretary, Georgia Davis, Humboldt County Free Library, Eureka.

The seventh district consists of the following counties: Del Norte, Humboldt.

Eighth District.

President, Anna L. Williams, Public Library, Alturas.

Secretary, Elisabeth C. Haines, Lassen County Free Library, Susanville.

The eighth district consists of the following counties: Lassen, Modoc, Plumas, Sierra.

Ninth District.

President, Thelma Brackett, Siskiyou County Free Library, Yreka.

Secretary, Blanche Chalfant, Butte County Free Library, Oroville.

The ninth district consists of the following counties: Butte, Colusa, Glenn, Shasta, Siskiyou, Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Yuba.

ANNUAL MEETING.

The 29th annual meeting will be held at Huntington Hotel, Pasadena, April 28 to 30, 1924.

The County Librarians will meet at the same time and place, extending their session for special day on May 1.

DISTRICT MEETINGS.

First District Meeting.

The meeting of the First District of the California Library Association in Oakland, on November 17, 1923, was of a "progressive" nature, the guests assembling at the Public Museum at 10 o'clock, proceeding from there to the Snow Museum, and then to the Hotel Oakland for luncheon and the afternoon's session.

After a welcome from the Mayor's Secretary, the moving pictures of the H. A. Snow African Expedition were shown at the museum, Mr Snow himself being present and contributing greatly to the enjoyment of the guests by his explanations and reminiscences. With interest whetted by the pictures, the delegates journeyed to the Snow Museum, where Mr Snow's trophies are displayed

in a most attractive manner, from the skins and habitat groups inside the building, to the animals and birds which dwell in the spacious grounds, presided over by the two lion cubs who roared a greeting in the most approved fashion.

A short walk brought the company to the Hotel Oakland, where, after luncheon. the afternoon session was held in the south room, "Art in the Library" was the general subject of the meeting, and the audience was again treated to a visual exposition of the topic by the display of two beautiful pictures painted by Miss Calthea Vivian, an artist of note, who was the first speaker. After a brief talk on modern art, which she has recently studied in Europe, Miss Vivian gave the audience a bibliography of the subject, her scholarly reviews and keen comments proving so interesting that everyone present must have resolved not only to purchase all of the books for his or her library, but to read them as soon as possible. A second bibliography covered general books on art appreciation, especially some of the more recently published titles.

Miss Florence Browne, formerly Children's Librarian of the Oakland Free Library, led the discussion of the next topic, "The circulation of art books and pictures in the library." Miss Browne gave a history and description of the Oakland Library's picture collection, which now totals more than 70,000 pieces and consists of mounted pictures, clippings, stereographs, post cards and posters. Miss Ione Tucker, Children's Librarian of the Berkeley Public Library, described the picture collection on file there, and spoke of its growth and rapidly increasing usefulness. The San Francisco Public Library, Miss E. J. Sturges reported, does not have a picture collection at present, but books and magazines are indexed by the Reference Department, and pictures on many subjects thus made available. The Alameda Public Library has just started a picture collection.

Two groups of songs sung by Miss Beulah Masterson of the Fruitvale Branch of the Oakland Library were most appropriate additions to a program with this subject, being beautiful selections, artistically rendered.

in First District libraries were given by branches and schools and maintained in

representatives from each library, after which the meeting adjourned.

LUCIE C. NYE, Secretary.

Second District Meeting.

The Second District meeting of the California Library Association was held at Santa Cruz at Casa del Rey Hotel, November 17, 1923. Upon arrival luncheon was served in the dining room of the hotel. The guests found at their places charming photographs of scenery in and about Santa Cruz, autographed by the artist. The tables were most artistically decorated with baskets of zinnias and autumn foliage. Mr Samuel Leask made a few remarks of welcome.

After the luncheon the meeting was called to order by Miss Norah McNeill, the president of the district. Chairs were grouped around the piano in the lobby of the hotel. Mr Kunitz delighted the auditors with a solo, very graciously responding to an encore.

Karl Adams, Superintendent of Schools of Santa Cruz, took for the subject of his address, "Books and a child," in which he gave some pleasant reminiscences of his own reading as a child. His talk covered a wide range, dealing with the child's reading, the work with the schools, the advantages that teachers may have in what is offered the schools by the library, and the desirability of closer cooperation between the library workers and teachers as many of their problems are basically the same.

Mrs Coates of Santa Cruz gave two readings-a humorous monologue and a poem, "Home," by Edgar Guest.

The subject of Children's Book Week in rural communities was taken up, Mrs A. G. Whitbeck, of Contra Costa County Free Library, leading. Miss Mary Barmby, of Alameda County Free Library, reported that with the cooperation of the Superintendent of Schools the teachers were directed to have the children make posters for each of their branch libraries to be sent later to the county office for judging and public notice. Books were shown in nine branches and story hours held in five and book lists sent to each branch.

Miss Stella Huntington, of Santa Clara County Free Library, reported that they sent out collections of books to four large Reports on recent and interesting events branches, a copy of the "Bookshelf" to all the main library an exhibit of books, featuring the moderately priced book. Miss Anne Hadden, of Monterey County Free Library, reported through Miss Esther R. Ross that they celebrated the week rather early at Santa Cruz at the Teacher's Institute. They showed both the old classics and the newer and cheaper editions. Miss McNeill explained the book-week contest as conducted by 'he library and the schools in Richmond.

Mrs Whitbeck told of her program which was extended over the entire month of November and in which she visited as many clubs and P. T. A. meetings as she could, speaking sometimes both afternoon and evening. She carried about 200 books, showing the very lovely new editions as well as the moderately priced book. In addition copies of the "Bookshelf" were distributed to parents and teachers.

H. O. Parkinson, of Stockton Public Library, talked of his many novel ways of advertising. Among them were the paying of a man (\$3.00) to distribute leaflets not only to houses but to lodges, lunch rooms, etc., placing them in hat bands and pockets when possible. How he adver-

tised by mail, by collecting lists of prospects from school, chamber of commerce lists, etc.; checking these with the borrower's file and then sending only to nonborrowers. Practically 10 per cent responded to their mail list. He advocated the use of the book plate as a source of information instead of for the printing of rules. They have a column in the newspaper under the caption, "Under the reading lamp." Telephoning to children proved very effective. They did this for two hours each Saturday for ten weeks and reached 237 children. About 70 per cent responded. A home reading scene was staged at the county fair. There seems to be no end to the novel and original ways of advertising that Mr Parkinson has devised. In each case he was able to show results.

A few of the librarians who waited for a later train were treated to a wonderful drive with Miss Doeltz over the residential district. The views at many points were marvelous and left a very lovely impression of the town and its setting.

ALICE G. WHITBECK, Secretary.

CALIFORNIA COUNTY LIBRARIANS.

Milton J. Ferguson, Ex-officio Chair- HON. MILTON J. FERGUSON. man.

Advisory Committee.

Stella Huntington, Santa Clara County, Chairman.

Clara B. Dills. Solano County.

Margaret E. Livingston, Orange County. Sarah E. McCardle, Fresno County.

Cornelia D. Provines, Sacramento County, Treasurer.

COUNTY LIBRARIANS' CONVENTION.

The County Librarians' Convention will be held jointly with the Annual Meeting of the California Library Association at the Hotel Huntington, Pasadena, April 28-30, 1924, with a separate day for special county library business, May 1. The following committee has been appointed to assist in preparing the program: Miss Barmby, Miss Brackett, Miss Hitt and Miss Provines.

LETTER FROM SOUTH CAROLINA.

The praise in the following letter belongs to the county librarians, to whom it is here passed on :

WINTHROP COLLEGE

THE SOUTH CAROLINA COLLEGE FOR WOMEN, ROCK HILL, SOUTH CAROLINA. DAVID BANCROFT JOHNSON, President. January 21, 1924. State Librarian.

Sacramento, California.

MY DEAR MR FERGUSON:

I have sent out many an inquiry and questionnaire, but in all my life I have never had such a generous response as the response that has come from the librarians from the county libraries of California.

It is a remarkable illustration of the generous largeness of California, which means the generous largeness of your The librarians have not only people. sent printed materials in great abundance, but they have taken the pains to write letters giving minute details regarding their work.

In my career it is all unexampled. We are grateful to you for your good letter and for the materials you send.

We are organizing Study Centers for teachers in the counties throughout the state. The movement is marvelous. The Study Center, of course, is the first step toward a county library. California's example will be of incalculable service.

We are grateful to you, to your librarians and to the great people you represent.

Ever with best wishes,

Sincerely yours,

(Signed) A. P. BOURLAND, Director Extension Division.

LIBRARY CLUBS, ETC.

Under this heading will be given took up the morning period. The subjects accounts of meetings of the various library clubs and similar organizations throughout the state. Previously such accounts have been printed under the library where they have been held or the library where the president or secretary was located. This new arrangement should make these articles more available. News items of the various clubs are solicited.

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA COLLEGE LIBRARIANS' CONFERENCE.

The third meeting of the Southern California College and University Librarians' Conference was held at the University of California, Southern Branch Library, December 15, with twenty-eight present. An informal program and round table

of inter-library loans and the policy of each college in regard to the purchase of duplicates were discussed: Mr Victor E. Marriott read a letter from Meiji University, Japan, asking for books, and the members of the conference responded with offers of all available duplicates.

Mr J E. Goodwin, Librarian of the University of California, Southern Branch, was elected Chairman for the coming vear and Miss Charlotte M. Brown, Librarian of the University of Southern California was re-elected Secretary.

In the afternoon Professor Percy H. Houston gave a very interesting talk on his experiences in the English book shops and incidents in connection with the writing of his "Book of Jonson,"

CFARLOTTE M. BROWN, Secretary.

BOARD OF LIBRARY EXAMINERS, CALIFORNIA.

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD.

Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, Chairman.

Robert Rea, Librarian, San Francisco Public Library, Secretary.

Everett R. Perry, Librarian, Los Angeles Public Library.

Sections 6 and 7 of the County free library law (Chap. 68, Cal. Statutes 1911) read as follows:

SEC. 6. A commission is hereby created to be known as the board of library examiners, consisting of the state librarian, who shall be ex officio chairman of said board, the librarian of the public library of the city and county of San Francisco, and the librarian of the Los

Angeles public library. SEC. 7. Upon the establishment of a county free library, the board of super-visors shall appoint a county librarian, who shall hold office for the term of four years, subject to prior removal for cause, after a hearing, by said board. No perafter a hearing, by said board. No p son shall be eligible to the office of his county librarian unless, prior to appointment, he has received from the board of library examiners a certificate of qualification for the office. At the time of his appointment, the county librarian need not be a resident of the county nor a citizen of the State of California.

REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN.

There has been no meeting of the Board of Library Examiners during the past quarter.

CERTIFICATE HOLDERS.

NOTE.-First-grade certificates are valid or use throughout the state; second grade. in counties of the twenty-first to the fiftyeighth (except twenty-fifth, thirty-third, thirty-fifth and forty-second) classes, inclusive: third-grade in counties of the forty-ninth to the fifty-eighth classes, inclusive.

The new certificate, issued for the first time, December 22, 1920, is valid for use throughout the state.

First Grade.

Babcock, Mrs Julia G., Ln. Kern County Free Library, Bakersfield. Culver, Essae M., Ln. Merced County Free

New Certificate.

Adams, Mrs Lila (Dobell), Ln. Trinity County Free Library, Weaverville.
Bailey, Anne Bell, Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno.
Barmby, Mary, Ln. Alameda County Free Library, Oakland.
Be e m an, Mrs Anne (Madison), Mrs Thomas Beeman, Ln. Imperial County Free Library, El Centro.
Brackett, Thelma, Ln. Siskiyou County Free Library, Yreka.
Brewitt, Mrs Theodora R., Ln. Public Li-

Brewitt, Mrs Theodora R., Ln. Public Li-

brawn, Mis Theodora I., Li, Fubic Li-brary, Long Beach. Burket, Frances M., Ln. Amador County Free Library, Jackson. Chalfant, Blanche, Ln. Butte County Free Library, Oroville.

Chairant, Bianche, Lin. Butte County Free Library, Oroville.
Chatfield, Marguerite, Asst. Sacramento. County Free Library, Sacramento.
Chilberg, Marjorie J., Asst. Solano County Free Library, Fairfield.
Coulter, Mabel, Asst. Contra Costa County Free Library, Martinez.
Davis, Arline, Asst. Orange County Free Library Santa Ana

Library, Santa Ana. De Ford, Estella, Ln. Napa County Free

De Ford, Estena, En, Papa County Free Library, Napa. Dills, Clara B., Ln. Solano County Free Library, Fairfield. English, Gladys, Ln. Tuolumne County Free Library, Sonora.

Ferguson, K. Dorothy, Ln. Bank of Italy Library, San Francisco. Ferguson, Milton J., Ln. State Library, Ln. Bank of Italy

Sacramento.

Sacramento. Frazier, Hubert B., Asst. Public Library, Los Angeles. Frink, Ellen B., Asst. Monterey County Free Library, Salinas. Fuller, Mrs Melissa, Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno. Gal'oway. Blanche, Ln. Madera County Free Library, Madera. Gantt. Edith, Asst. Stanislaus County Free Library, Modesto. Gibson, Hazel G., Asst. Sacramento County

Gibson, Hazel G., Asst. Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento. Gleason, Celia, Ln. Los Angeles County Free Library, Los Angeles.

Greene, Charles S., Ln. Free Library, Oakland.

Hadden, Anne. Ln. Monterey County Free Library, Salinas.
Haines. Alice J., Head Documents Dept., State Library. Sacramento.
Harris, Mary W., Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno.
Hitt Flearar Lr. San Diago County Free

Hitt, Eleanor, Ln. San Diego County Free Library, San Diego. Huntington, Stella, Ln. Santa Clara County

Kitching, Mrs Ethelene M., Lu, Fullerton High School Library, Fullerton.
 Kneeshaw, Fave T., Lu, Glenn County Free Library, Willows.
 Kobler, Marjorie H., Asst. San Diego

Kobler, Marjorie H., Asst. San Diego County Free Library, San Diego. Laugenour, Nancy C., Ln. Yolo County Free Library, Woodland.

Culver, Essae M., Ln. Merced County Free Library, Merced.
Flower, Gretchen L., Ln. Tulare County Free Library, Visalia.
Hatch, Margaret, Ln. Standard Oll Co. Library. San Francisco.
Holroyd, Edna S., Ln. San Mateo County Free Library, Redwood City.
Morse, Marion, Ln. Maui County Free Library, Wailuku, T. H.
Koolfer, Marjorle H., Asst, San Diego.
Laugenour, Nancy C., Ln. Yolo Co Free Library, Woodland.
Linn, Mrs Frances Burns, Ln. Santa J bara Free Public Library and S Barbara.
Livingston, Margaret E., Ln. Ora County Free Library, Santa Ana. Linn, Mrs Frances Burns, Ln. Santa Bar-bara Free Public Library and Santa County Free Library, Santa

Orange

- McCardle, Sarah E., Ln. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno. Margrave, Anne, Ln. Inyo County Free Library, Independence.
- Lassen County
- Martin, Lenala A., Ln. L Free Library, Susanville
- Meredith, Roberta, Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno. Mumm, Beulah, Reference Ln. State Li-brary, Sacramento. Packer, Ella, Asst. Colusa County Free Library, Colusa.
- Perry, Everett R., Ln. Public Library, Los Angeles.
- Provines, Cornélia D., Ln. Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento, Rea, Robert, Ln. Public Library, San
- Rea, Rober, Francisco.
- Francisco. Reagan, Ida M., Ln. Hu Free Library, Eureka. Humboldt County
- Silverthorn, Bessie B., Ln. McHenry Pub-lic Library and Stanislaus County Free Library, Modesto.
- Smith, Susan T., Ln. City Library, Sacramento.
- Steffa, Julia, Ln. Hanford Public Library and Kings County Free Library, Hanford.
- Ln. Tehama County Stevens, Elizabeth, Free Library, Red Bluff. Thomas, Mabel W., Asst. Ln. Free Li-
- brary, Oakland.
- oping, Elizabeth R., Ln. County Free Library, Ventura. Ventura Topping,
- Vog'eson, Helen E., Asst. Ln. Los Angeles County Free Library, Los Angeles.
- Warren, Althea H., Ln. Public Library, San Diego.
- San Diego. Waterman, Minerva H., Ln. Santa Cruz Public Library and Santa Cruz County Free Library, Santa Cruz. Waters, Caroline S., Ln. San Bernardino. Whitbeck, Mrs Alice G., Ln. Contra Costa County Free Library, Martinez. Worden, Mrs Dorothy (Clarke), Mrs Charles J. Worden, Ln. Colusa County Free Library. Colusa.

- Free Library, Colusa.

Second Grade.

- De Witt, Mrs Isabelle (Park), Asst. Mer-ced County Free Library, Merced. Duff, Marcella Carmelita, Ln. Plumas

- ced County Free Library, Merced.
 Duff, Marcella Carmelita, Ln. Plumas County Free Library, Quincy.
 Encking, Louise F., Asst. Public Library, Seattle, Wash.
 Faulkner, Mrs Mabel F., Ln. Orange Public Library, Orange (To begin February 1, 1924).
 Gantz, Flo A., Ln. San Luis Obispo.
 Hewitt, Edna J., Ln. Sutter County Free Library, Yuba City.
 Schaer, Midred E., Asst. Public Library.

- Schaer, Mildred E., Asst. Public Library, Los Angeles.
- Wheaton, Florence J., Ln. San County Free Library, Hollister, San Benito
- Whitteck, Josephine L., Asst. City Li-brary, Sacramento.
- Yates, Mrs Bess (Ranton), Mrs John D. Yates, Asst. Orange County Free Li-brary, Santa Ana.

Third Grade.

Williams, Anna L., Ln. Modoc County Free Library, Alturas.

At Present Out of Library Work,

- Alexander, Mrs Lela (Clapperton) (New

- Alexander, Mrs Leia (Capperton) (1999) certificate).
 Dambachef, Mrs Helen (Rowland), Mrs Gustav Dambacher (2d grade).
 Ferris, Katharine Post (New certificate).
 Gregory, Marion L. (New certificate).
 Herrman, Mrs Jennie (Herrman), Mrs James White Herrman (New certifi-certificate). cate).
- cate). Jamieson, Mrs Dorothy (Henderson), Mrs Natt F. Jamieson (2d grade). Kyle, Eleanore (New certificate). Lewis, Mrs Anna Jean (Thomson), Mrs R. B. Lewis (New certificate). McDonald, Mrs Cra Regnart, Mrs Charles E. McDonald (New certificate). Widdleton Maude (New certificate).

- certificate).
- Middleton, Maude (New certificate). Work, Mrs Geraldine (Graham), George A. Work (2d grade). Mrs

COUNTY FREE LIBRARY LAW.

The "California county free library law and circular of information for applicants for certificates of qualification to hold office of county librarian in California" was published in News Notes of California Libraries, April, 1911, and later reprinted in pamphlet form. The edition being exhausted, a revised edition of the circular was printed in News Notes of California Libraries, January, 1914. This has been reprinted as a pamphlet. The fifth edition was issued December, 1921. (Circular of information only.) The fourth edition of the County free library law was also issued in December, 1921. Copies of both of above pamphlets will be furnished on request.

NEXT EXAMINATION.

The next examination will be held at the Public Library, Los Angeles, Saturday, April 26, 1924, and at the State Library, Sacramento, June 6, 1924.

APPLICATION BLANKS.

All who wish to take the examination should file applications with the Chairman of the Board. For application blanks or further information address the Chairman of the Board, Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, Sacramento, California.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY.

The bill establishing the California State Library was signed by Governor Peter H. Burnett, January 24, 1850. California State Library School was ortablied by medution

established by tember 4, 1913. resolution adopted Sep-

California State Library School was discontinued by motion adopted May 22, 1920.

Annual income for 1923-24, \$101,605.

Total accessions 248,164 (less 3239 lost and discarded = 244.925) exclusive of 15.723 accessions in Books for the Blind Department and of the Sutro Branch in San Francisco (estimated at about 106,665 vols .- this is exclusive of deposits).

FORMER TRUSTEES.

During the past few months two former members of the Board of Trustees of the State Library have died, Judge W. C. Van Fleet, who passed away on September 3, 1923, found time in a very busy life to serve the state as trustee from 1900 to 1912. Mr R. M. Richardson, who died on November 18, 1923, became a member of the board in 1910 and continued to serve until the board was abolished by legislative action in 1921. These two men gave unsparingly to the state of the high judicial and economic qualities which marked their life-work on the bench and in the counting-house. Even after they had retired as officers of the State Library, their interest in its development remained unabated, and their counsel might freely be had.

STAFF.

Milton J. Ferguson, Librarian.

Miss Mabel R. Gillis, Assistant Librarian and Head of Books for the Blind

Department. Herbert V. Clayton, Law and Legislative Reference Librarian.

Miss Eudora Garoutte, Head of Cali-fornia Department.

Miss Alice J. Haines, Head of Documents Department.

Mrs May Dexter Henshall, County Library Organizer.

Miss Annie Lowry, in charge of Periodicals and Binding.

Wm. H. Lugg, Head of Shipping, Re-pairs, etc., Department. Miss Beulah Mumm, Reference Libra-

rian.

Miss Ida G. Munson, Head of Catalog Department.

Miss Myrtle Ruhl, in charge of Order Department.

Miss Beryl Andrews, Assistant. Miss Helen M. Bruner, Assistant.

Miss Alice Chenu, Assistant.

Miss Ella A. Clark, Indexer. Miss Benneta Colton, Assistant.

Miss Mae Davies. Assistant. Miss Margaret Dennison, Assistant, Sutro Branch, San Francisco. Mrs Gerna R. Dickson, Assistant.

Miss Angelina Grant, Assistant. Miss Zilla Grant, Assistant.

Florence Lamb, Bookkeeper. Miss

Mrs Bessie Heath McCrea, Assistant.

Miss Alice Miller, Assistant. Miss D. Florence Montfort, Assistant.

Miss Mary V. Provines, Assistant. Miss Dorothy Puffer, Assistant.

Miss Irene E. Ryan, Assistant. Miss Lily M. Tilden, Assistant.

Mrs E. D. Waldron, Assistant. Miss Marguerite Walker, Stenographer. Miss Caroline Wenzel, Assistant.

Mrs Ina Brosseau, Book Repairer. Miss Emma F. de Merritt, Book Repairer.

Mrs Mae Moore, Book Repairer. (On leave of absence.)

Charles T. Edwards, Assistant Shipping Clerk.

Arden Hall, Assistant Shipping Clerk (Part-time).

Wm. G. Lyons, Assistant Shipping Clerk.

Margaret Hogan, Messenger. Ronald Miller, Messenger.

Leona Rasmussen, Messenger.

J. L. Foss, Janitor.

G. A. Klees, Janitor

Harry A. Simons, Elevator Operator.

STAFF NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Mumm served temporarily at the Sutro Branch, San Francisco, from October 15 to December 20.

Miss Lamont resigned as assistant in the Sutro Branch on December 10 to take a trip to Honolulu, where she may later enter library work. Miss Margaret Dennison, California State Library School, '17, began in Miss Lamont's place on December 12.

Miss Marie Taylor resigned on November 24 and was married in Riverside on November 29 to Alfred Leslie Higginbotham, a professor in the University of Nevada.

Miss Benneta Colton and Miss Lily M. Tilden, formerly of the State Library staff, have again been appointed, Miss Colton having began work on December 13

the state

* *

and Miss Tilden to begin on January 1. Miss Tilden has been first assistant in the Yolo County Free Library for the past six months.

Miss Myrtle Fields left on December 18 and Miss Dorothy Puffer was appointed to fill the vacancy on December 16. Charles T. Edwards, formerly of the staff, began as assistant in the Shipping Department on December 11. Arden Hall began as part-time messenger, Ronald Miller and Margaret Hogan as full-time messengers on October 15. Bethel Oswalt resigned as messenger on October 31 and was married in December to H. J. Mayfield. Shirley Abramson worked as messenger from October 1 to 6, Arthur M. Day as assistant shipping clerk from October 1 to 13, and Albert Oughten in the same position from November 26 to December 1.

The cornerstone of the capitol extension building, which is designated as the office building, was laid on October 2 with Masonic ceremonies. Mr Ferguson participated as a member of the Sacramento State Buildings Commission.

Mr Ferguson made a trip to Utah early in October at the invitation of the Utah Library Association. He spoke at the meeting of the association on October 6, the title of his address being "Highways physical and otherwise."

Mr Ferguson also spoke at the luncheon of the Booksellers' Association of San Francisco on November 8, giving a history of the State Library with special emphasis on the collection of Californiana.

Mrs Henshall attended the annual meeting of the County and City Superintendents of Schools held in Riverside in October. While on the trip she visited several county libraries.

Miss Gillis attended a meeting of the Executive Committee of the California Library Association at Pasadena on October 22. On the previous day she attended a social meeting of the Pasadena Library Club. held at the Pasadena Public Library. On October 25 Miss Gillis spoke at a meeting of the Custodians of Kern County Free Library branches, held at the courthouse in Bakersfield.

Miss Mumm represented the Library at the meeting of the First District of the California Library Association at Oakland on November 17.

Miss Susan T. Smith, librarian of the Sacramento City Library, assisted by girls of her staff, of the Sacramento County Library staff and by Miss Alice Chenu, Miss Angelina Grant and Miss Alice Miller of the State Library, put on a program in celebration of Children's Book Week before the Sacramento Ad Club on November 13. The girls in appropriate costume took part in a "Parade of the best sellers of years ago." This was repeated later for the Soroptomist Club and on November 23 it was given for the State Library staff meeting.

The staff had a Christmas party on December 19. A vaudeville performance, with an old-fashioned minstrel parade and setting, furnished the entertainment, while a beautifully decorated tree and refreshments appropriate to the season gave the Christmas touches.

*

بار بار

It becomes necessary to record that the State Library has had the experience of having to bring charges of insubordination against a member of its staff, before the State Civil Service Commission, of going through a trial, and, in the end, of dropping the defendant from its roster. This sort of thing is not common in the library profession, because, no doubt, of the high ethical standards of library assistants, which would ordinarily move them either to work in harmony with their chief, or else decently to resign.

When Mrs Suggett was dropped from the staff of the State Library June 1. 1923. Miss Ruth McLaughlin, who for several years had been a member of our Sutro Branch staff, was made assistant It became evident, after a in charge. little while, that she was more responsive to the former branch librarian than she was to the State Librarian. As a matter of protection of the interests of both the State Library and also of Miss McLaughlin herself-though quite obviously she did not appreciate the thought given to her welfare-she was directed to report, on October 1, 1923, for duty in Sacramento. This order she at first attempted to ignore; she sought to involve her chief in a letter writing contest; and through it all persisted in remaining on duty in San Francisco. It finally became necessary to file charges of insubordination against her on two counts: failure to appear in Sacramento, and persistence in appearing in San Francisco.

On November 5 the case came to trial. Miss McLaughlin was represented by an attorney. The State Librarian appeared both as appellant and as attorney in his Case Much testimony that was guite irrelevant was introduced by the defense. The appellant was content to present documentary evidence which conclusively proved his contention.

At the end of the hearing the Civil Service Commission directed the parties to submit briefs. And after due deliberation thereon it was decided by the Commission that Miss McLaughlin was guilty of insubordination on the two counts charged; and she was dismissed from the MILTON J. FERGUSON. service.

State Librarian.

LIBRARY HOURS.

Week days _____ 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Legislative session:

Week days _____ 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Sundays _____10 a.m. to 3 p.m.

LAW AND LEGISLATIVE REFER-ENCE DEPARTMENT.

HERBERT V. CLAYTON, in charge.

The Law and Legislative Reference Department is fully equipped with the latest reports, digests, encyclopedias and textbooks, the statutes of other states, the United States, Great Britain, Can-ada, Australia and certain other foreign countries, and briefs of counsel in cases decided in the California Supreme and Appellate courts. State officers are en-titled to borrow books, and private individuals are accorded the same privilege upon presentation of a request signed by a Supreme, Appellate or Superior Judge, or other state officer. Books may be kept three weeks, and will be once renewed for two weeks. All books are subject to recall, if required by a state officer, or if, in the opinion of the Librarian, a recall is fair and expedient.

In addition to special service to members of the Legislature, information on the laws of California and other states and countries is given on inquiry from libraries or individuals.

Recent accessions to the department will be found listed under the heading "Law" in the section on "Recent Accessions."

DOCUMENTS DEPARTMENT.

ALICE J. HAINES, in charge.

The Documents Department aims to collect, arrange and make available government publications, federal, state, city and foreign.

Recent accessions of California State and City publications will be found on page 85.

Copies of 41 California state publications have been received for distribution libraries during October. November and December, 1923.

Agriculture Dept. Monthly bull, vol. 12, no. 6.

no. 6. <u>Banking Dept.</u> Report, 1923. <u>Banking Dept.</u> Report, 1923. <u>Building & Loan Comms.</u> Report, 1923. <u>Communications</u> General laws governing building & loan associations. 1923. Dental Examiners Bd. Dental law. 1923. Equalization Bd. Passenger and freight motor transportation for hire license tay act. 1923. tax act. 1923.

- tax act. 1923. Fish & Game Comm. Cal. fish & game, vol. 9, nos. 3-4. Forestry Bd. Forest fire laws 1921, 1923. Health Bd. Regulations for the control of communicable diseases. 1923.
- of communicable diseases. 1923. Highway Comm. Cal. highways, vol. 1, no. 1.

1923.

- Organization of safety committees in industry. 1923.

Insurance Comm. List of insurance brokers. 1923.
Labor Statistics Bur. Labor laws. 1923.
Mining Bur. Bull no. 93.
— Cal. oil fields, vol. 9, nos. 1-4.
— Mining in Cal. vol. 19, no. 4.
Osteopathic Examiners Bd. Directory, supplement. Oct. 1923.
Public School Teachers Retirement Salary Fund Bd. Circular of information regarding teachers' retirement salary law. 1923.
Public Works Dent. Bull no. 7.

- 1924.
- eachers College, San Jose. Second annual conference on educational re-Teachers

search and guidance . . . 1923. Veterans Welfare Bd. Veterans' farm and home purchase act. 1923.

REFERENCE DEPARTMENT.

BEULAH MUMM, in charge.

The Reference Department furnishes information to any inquirer. It furnishes books to public libraries on request of the librarian, and to any other educa-tional institution on request of its official head or its librarian; to individuals through the signature of a state officer, of the Librarian of the local library or of the official head of any other educational institution or on receipt of a \$5.00 deposit; to a club or grange on request of its president, secretary or librarian. In counties having county free libraries, *all* requests must be made through the county free library.

As a means of securing the most efficient service we suggest that a prompt notification be sent in of all changes in the address of branches. We find that we are sometimes sending packages to the wrong place, because we have not been notified of the change of location of the branch. This information should be given on a "new branch" slip. When given on the request slip it is liable to be overlooked by the shipping department. "New branch" slips will be furnished on request.

ORDER AND ACCESSIONS DEPARTMENT,

MYRTLE RUHL, in charge.

During October, November and December, 1032 books, 62 prints and 2 maps were accessioned.

CATALOG DEPARTMENT.

IDA G. MUNSON, in charge.

During October, November and December, 922 books were cataloged and 7970 cards were added to the file. 14,595 cards were filed in the Union Catalog.

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT.

EUDORA GAROUTTE, in charge.

The California Department aims to have a thoroughly good collection of books on the history and description, resources and industries of the State, as well as the works of California authors in all departments of literature. These are made accessible by means of a card catalog. Full names and biographical sketches of California authors, artists, musicians, pioneers and early settlers are being secured, together with their photographs. The collection of bound periodicals is quite large. The Department also contains about 9000 bound volumes of newspapers, a file of which is being indexed with reference to the history of the State. Students will be assisted in their work.

Pioneers and Early Settlers.

Royal H. Waller was born in Vermont and came to California in 1849, making the trip around the Horn. Mr Waller settled in San Francisco and in 1854 was elected City Recorder, which office at that time was the same as police judge. He was later School Director, U. S. Land Receiver and Pension Agent in the U. S. Army with rank of Major. He was an active and honored citizen of San Francisco up to the time of his death in 1866.

Joseph Curtis Buffum arrived in '49, from the tourists who are making the trip across the plains. Mr ing through the building.

Buffum's diary of the events of this trip and of his early life in San Francisco is a most valuable document. After making several trips back East he finally returned to California in 1897, where he permanently remained until his death which occurred in 1904.

Henry Hovey Hyde also arrived in 1849. The cards of those who reached California in the 'fifties are as follows: Eugene Bandel, Helen McCowen Carpenter, William Willis Elmore, Henry Stuart Foote, Edmond Godcheaux, and Capt. Hallet M, Winslow.

California Authors.

The following author cards have been received since the last issue of *News Notes of California Libraries*:

> Adams, Mrs Eva Stiles (Butterfield) Mrs Arthur Greene Adams Capron, Mrs Cynthia Jane (Steves) Mrs T. H. Capron Chainey, George Cleiand, Robert Glass Gage, Walker Miller Haines, Donal Hamilton Hayden, Mrs Dorothea (Hoaglin) Mrs Newell M. Hayden McCleilan, Edwin North Nichols, Walter Hammond Pontius, Catherine Dorr Rousseau, Mrs Bessie May Guinean Mrs George E. C. Rousseau Shaffer, Geneve Sunderland, James Williams, Mary Floyd

California Artists.

The following artist cards have been received since the last issue of News Notes of California Libraries:

Childs, Minnie Calista Coast, Oscar R. Patigian, Haig Wolhaupter, Helen Phillips Wright, Stanton Macdonald

Newspaper Index.

The index covers the period from August 15, 1846, to date.

Catalog.

Three hundred forty-seven cards have been added to the California catalog during the last quarter.

Donations.

Donations are coming in as usual.

Exhibit.

The department has installed a display of early California relics and documents in the rotunda of the capitol building. The exhibit is attracting much attention from the tourists who are constantly passing through the building.

BOOKS FOR THE BLIND DEPARTMENT.

MABEL R. GILLIS, in charge.

Embossed books in the various types are sent to any blind resident in California upon application. Circular and finding list, with Call slip postal, will be sent on request. Writing appliances and games for the blind are loaned as samples to those wishing to buy such articles, so that the different kinds can be tried be-fore they are ordered. Addresses of firms supplying all articles loaned will be furnished on request.

Books sent to individuals from an institution distributing embossed literature are carried free through the mails.

Embossed catalogs in American Braille, Moon, and New York point are now available. They will be loaned to borrowers wishing them for use in book selection.

The State Library will be glad to have borrowers who care to do so write any letters or requests for books to the Library in Braille or New York point.

The first book was loaned June 13, 1905. There are now 1991 blind borrowers. 47 borrowers having been added during October, November and December, and 50 borrowers having been lost by death during 1923. Total accessions are 15,723 as follows: New York point books 2460; New York point music 188: American Braille books 3021; American Braille music 1269; European Braille books 2308; European Braille music 171: Moon books 3893; Moon music 5; Revised Braille books 1556; Revised Braille music 109; Standard dot books 14; Line books 193; Line music 21; Ink print books 352; *Appliances 84; *Games 46; Maps 33. 26 books were lost or discarded during 1923 and have been subtracted from the totals.

Copies of magazines have been donated during the last three months by F. B. Beans, Mrs C. W. Brett, Frank Caldwell, Mrs A. H. Clise, Mrs Anna Courtois, Kate M. Foley, Wm. Harper, J. W. Hoggard, Ruby Holtz, Rosa Laxson, Bessie A. Long, Mrs Rose McComb, Wm. A. Miller, Hattie B. Newman, Mrs L. Sargent, George W. Shoemaker, C. H. Snow, Amy Weihe, Canadian National Institute for the Blind, Christian Record Publishing Co., Free Gospel Library for the Blind, Permanent Blind Relief War Fund, Society for the Aid of the Sightless, Xavier Free Publica-

tion Society for the Blind, Ziegler Publishing Co.

Other gifts are indicated in the list of books, etc., which have been added to the library during the last three months. Sec page 91.

During October, November and December, 8224 books, etc., were loaned as follows: New York point 781; American Braille 709; European Braille 1381; Moon 3289; Revised Braille Grade 11 2052; Standard dot 0: Line 0: Ink print books 0: Appliances 4: Maps 6: Games 2. The loans were divided by class as follows: Philosophy and religion 702; sociology 44; language 69; primers 52; science 127; useful arts 66; fine arts 1; amusements 5; music 214; literature 261; fiction 4765; travel and history 681; biography 296; periodicals 941.

Home Teaching.

Owing to a decrease in the appropriation for the Library during the coming two years home teaching for the blind was discontinued by the Library on June 30.

On December 1, 1923, home teaching was officially reinstated under the State Board of Control. Persons knowing of possible pupils may communicate with the State Library, or, if in the bay district, with Miss Kate M, Foley, 146 McAllister street, San Francisco, and, if in Los Angeles and vicinity, with Miss Catharine J. Morrison, 951 El Molino street, Los Angeles.

SUTRO BRANCH.

The Sutro Branch occupies space in the Public Library, Civic Center, San Francisco, and is open every day, except Sunday, from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.

See page 23.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY SCHOOL GRADUATES.

Miss Esther M. Bomgardner, San Diego, Cal.

Cal.
'15. Asst. Public School L., Los Angeles.
'15. Asst. Public School L., Los Angeles.
'16. Asst. Prigss. Sacramento, Cal.
'14. Out of library work.
Miss Helen V. Brigss. Sacramento, Cal.
'15. Asst. Washington State College Library, Pullman, Wash.
Miss Helen M. Bruner, Sacramento, Cal.
'14. Asst. State L., Sacramento, Cal.
'14. Asst. State L., Sacramento, Cal.
'14. Asst. State L., Sacramento, Cal.
'15. Out of library work.

17. Out of library work.

^{*}Appliances and games are loaned as samples to anyone wishing to try them. 4-30809

- Miss Ruth E. Bullock, Redlands, Cal. '15. Out of library work. Miss Elta L. Camper, Berkeley, Cal. '17. Asst. Univ. of Cal. L., Berkeley. Miss Blanche Chalfant, Bishop, Cal. '14. Ln. Butte Co. F. L., Oroville. Miss Marguerite Chatfield, Pasadena, Cal. '20. Asst. Sacramento Co. F. L., Sacra-mento mento.
- Miss Nellie E. Christensen, Selma, Cal. '19. Ln. Selma High School L., Selma. Miss Mabel Coulter, Salinas, Cal. '14. Asst. Contra Costa Co. F. L., Mar-
- tinez. Miss Helen Esther Crawford, Winters, Cal.
- Miss Helen Esther Crawford, Winters, Cal. 20. Out of library work.
 Miss Dorotha Davis, Los Angeles, Cal. 117. Ln. Fresno High School L., Fresno.
 Miss Tillie de Bernardi, Santa Rosa, Cal. 118. Out of library work.
 Miss Estella De Ford, National City, Cal. 115. Ln. Napa Co. F. L., Napa.
 Miss Margaret Dennison, Alameda, Cal. 117. Asst. Sutro Branch, State L., San Erangisco.

- Francisco.
- Francisco.
 Miss Abbie Doughty, San Luis Obispo, Cal.
 '20. Teacher-Ln. Bonita Union H i g h School, La Verne.
 Miss Ellen B. Frink, Palo Alto, Cal.
 '19. Asst. Monterey Co. F. L., Salinas.
 (On exchange at Detroit Public Library)
 Miss Flo A. Contra Purport. Col.

- (On exchange at Detroit Public Library)
 Miss Flo A. Gantz, Pomona, Cal.
 '20, Lm. San Luis Obispo Co. F. L., San Luis Obispo.
 Miss Beatrice Y, Gawne, Berkeley, Cal.
 '17. Ln. Salinas Union High School L., Salinas.
 Miss Hazel G. Gibson, Santa Monica, Cal.
 '19. Asst. Sacramento Co. F. L., Sac-ramento. ramento.
- Miss Margaret V. Girdner, Sacramento. '17. Lm. Palo Alto High School L., Palo Alto.
- Miss Mary E. Glock, Madera, Cal. '15. Died, March 6, 1922.

- Miss Bernice L. Goff, San Jose, Cal. '14. Asst. P. L., New York City. Mrs Jennie Rumsey Gould, Woodland, Cal. '14. Out of library work.
- Mrs Mildred Kellogg Hargis, Salinas, Cal.
- '18. Out of library work. Mrs Louise Jammé Harriss, Hood River, Oregon. 5. Out of library work.
- Oregon.
 '15. Out of library work.
 Miss Margaret Hatch, Santa Rosa, Cal.
 '15. Ln. Standard Oil Co. L., San Fran-cisco.
- Mrs Hazel Meddaugh Heffner, Stockton, Cal.
 - '18. Out of library work.
- Miss Cecilia Henderson, Santa Paula, Cal. '14. Out of library work. Miss Edna S. Holroyd, Hanford, Cal.
- 15. Ln. San Mateo Co. F. L., Redwood City.
- Mrs Helen Hopwood Judd, Palo Alto, Cal. 20. Out of library work. rs Winona McConnell I
- Winona McConnell Kennedy, Elk Grove, Cal. 5. Out of library work. Mrs
- '15. Out of library work. rs Marguerite Ryan Kirschman, San Mrs Jose, Cal. '19. Out of library work. Mrs Algeline Marlow Lawson, San Diego,
- Cal.
- '18, Asst. P. L., San Diego. Miss Marjorie C. Learned, Pasadena, Cal. '20, Asst. P. L., Pasadena,

- Miss Amy G. Luke, Willows, Cal. '15. Out of library work. Mrs Bessie Heath McCrea, Michigan Bar, Cal.
 - '19. Asst. State L., Sacramento.

- Miss Everett I. McCullough, Berkeley, Cal. '19. Out of library work. Miss N. Ruth McCullough, Berkeley, Cal. '17. Out of library work. Mrs Ruth Beard McDowell, Modesto, Cal.
- '14. Out of library work. Miss M. Ruth McLaughlin, Lamanda Park,
- Cal. '17. Out of library work.
- Mrs Georgia Pearl Secker Meyers, Fresno, Cal.
- 19.
- '19. Out of library work. Miss Anne Margrave, Santa Barbara, Cal. '14. Ln. Inyo Co. F. L., Independence.
- Miss Lenala Martin, Sacramento, Cal.
 '14. I.m. Lassen Co. F. L., Susanville,
 Miss Vera V. Mitchell, Oakland, Cal.
 '19. Asst. La. Oroville High School L., Oroville
- Miss Marion Morse, Berkeley, Cal. '17. Ln. Maui Co. F. L., Wailuku, T. H. Mrs Alice Moore Patton, Los Gatos, Cal.
- Mrs Alice Moore Patton, Los Gatos,
 '18. Out of library work.
 Mrs Helen Katherine Kellogg Peabody, Salinas, Cal.
 '19. Out of library work.
 Mrs Marion Schumacher Percival, Han-

- Mrs Marion Schutzer, ford, Cal.
 '15. Out of library work.
 '15. Miriam Colcord Post, Modesto, Cal.
 '14. Ln. Bakersfield Branch, Kern Co.
 '14. Ence L. Bakersfield. (On leave
- of absence.) Miss Margaret L. Potter, Oakland, Cal. '16. Asst. Lane Medical L., San Francisco.
- rs Eunice Steele Price, Berkeley, Cal. '16. Out of library work. Mrs
- Mrs Beatrice Brasefield Rakestraw, Palo Alto, Cal.
- Alto, Cal.
 '18. Ln. Cleveland Junior High School L., Elizabeth, N. J.
 Miss Esther L. Ramont, Modesto, Cal.
 '20. Ln. Modesto High School L.,
- Modesto.
- Mrs Frances Haub Raymond, Sacramento, Cal.
- 20.
- '20. Out of library work. Miss Anna Belle Robinson, Claremont, Cal. '18. Died, June 22, 1920. Miss Myrtle Ruhl, Redwood City, Cal.
- Head of Order Dept., State L., '14.
- Sacramento. Miss Ruth Seymour, Mill Valley, Cal. '18. Ln. Tamalpais Union High School
- Miss Iden. Tamalpais Union Ing. 1.
 '18. Ln. Tamalpais Union Ing. L., Mill Valley.
 Miss Blanche L. Shadle, Lodi, Cal.
 '17. Asst. Kern Co. F. L., Bakersfield,
 Mrs Edith Edenborg Smalley, Muroc, Cal.
 Out of library work.
- Control Edenborg Smalley, Muroc, Ca. 18. Out of library work.
 rs Edna Bell Smith, Fairoaks, Cal. 17. Out of library work.
 rs Elizabeth Snyder Smith, Berkeley,
- Mrs
- Mrs. Cal.
- '20. Out of library work. '20. Out of library smith, Woodland, Cal. Mrs Vivian Gregory Smith, Woodland, Savings Ln. Security Trust and Savings
- '14. Ln. Security Trust and Savings Bank, Los Angeles.
 Mrs Rosamond Bradbury Waithman, Santa Barbara, Cal.
 '18. Out of library work.
 Miss Caroline Wenzel, Sacramento, Cal.
 '14. Asst. State L., Sacramento.
 Miss Josephine L. Whitbeck, Richmond, Cal.

- Miss Jo Cal.

- Cal.
 '16. Asst. P. L., Sacramento.
 Miss Essie T. White, Broderick, Cal.
 '19. Asst. Sacramento High School and Junior College L., Sacramento.
 Mrs Katharine Cahoon Wilson, Berkeley.
 '17. Out of library work.
 Miss Aldine Winham, Salinas, Cal.
 '20. Ln. State Teachers College L., Sonta Barbara
- - Santa Barbara.

- 12

 Mrs Dorothy Clarke Worden, Sacramento, Cal. '15. Ln. Colusa Co. F. L., Colusa. Mrs Bess Ranton Yates, Long Beach, Cal. '18. Asst. Orange Co. F. L., Santa Ana. News Items. 	CARNEGIE corporation of New York. Training for library service; a report prepared by Charles C. Williamson. 1923. x020.7 C28 Gift.
	Girt.
Since August, 1923, Miss Bernice Goff, '14, has been in the New York Public Library. She is working in the main building in the serial cataloging division. Miss Goff is an enthusiastic member of the Adirondack Mountain Club, of which she is also librarian.	CARPENTER, Frederic Ives. A reference guide to Edmund Spenser. 1923. GRIFFITH, Reginald Harvey. Alexander Pope; a bibliography. v. 1 pt. 1. 1922. (University of Texas studies) 012 P82
Mrs Beatrice Brasefield Rakestraw, '18.	studies)
is serving this year as librarian of the new	JETTINGER, Carl A.
Cleveland Junior High School in Elizabeth,	How and what to write as news; a
New Jersey. She expects to join Mr	book for correspondents and editors.
Rakestraw in England in the summer. Miss Margaret Dennison, '17, was ap-	Rev. ed. 1922. 070 J58
pointed on December 12 to be assistant	JONES, Edith Kathleen, ed.
in the Sutro Branch of the State Library	The hospital library, comprising arti-
in San Francisco, Miss Marie Lamont having resigned to go to Honolulu.	cles on hospital library service,
having resigned to go to Honorata.	organization, administration and book selection, 1923. ×027.6 J76
RECENT ACCESSIONS.	book selection. 1925. X027.0 370
Additions to the Library During Octo-	MACLEOD, Robert D.
ber, November and Decmber, 1923.	County library law: with a statistical
The last number of the Quarterly Bulle-	appendix. 1923. q×021 M1
tin of the California State Library which	Gift.
was issued was no. 4 of vol. 4, covering	VILLARD, Oswald Garrison.
the accessions for September-December, 1905. The Bulletin has been discontinued	Some newspapers and newspaper-men. 1923. 070 V71
and the matter contained in it is now	WALTER, Frank Keller.
appearing in News Notes of California	Library printing. Revised. 1923.
Libraries.	x025.1 W23a
The last list of recent accessions appeared in the October, 1923, issue of this	WEAD, Katharine Howes, comp.
publication.	A list of series and sequels for juvenile
, construction	readers. 2d ed., rev. and enl. by
GENERAL WORKS.	May G. Quigley. 1923. (Useful
A. L. A. catalog, 1912-1921; an anno-	reference series) 028 W36a
tated list of 4000 books. 1923.	WYNKOOP, Asa.
qr017 A51c1	Commissions, state aid and state agen-
ARNOLD, William Harris.	cies. Revised. 1923. (Manual of library economy) ×021.8 W98a
Ventures in book collecting. 1923. 010 A76	library economy) x021.8 W98a
	PHILOSOPHY AND ETHICS.
BARRY, Florence Valentine. A century of children's books.	[ATKINSON, William Walker]
A century of culturen's books. 028 B299	The Hindu-Yogi science of breath, by
BULKELEY, Mildred Emily.	Yogi Ramacharaka [pseud]
Bibliographical survey of contemporary	181 A887h
sources for the economic and social	BISCH, Louis Edward.
history of the war, 1922. (Carnegie	The conquest of self. 1923. 170 B62
endowment for international peace.	BUCKE, Richard Maurice.
Division of economics and social his-	Cosmic consciousness. [4th ed., cor.
tory of the world war. British series)	and entirely re-set. 1923]
q016.330 B9	126 B92

BUTLER, Edward Cuthbert. Western mysticism. c1923. 149.3 B98	MATHEW, Shailer. The validity of American ideals. c1922.
CHERRINGTON, Ernest Hurst. America and the world liquor problem. c1922. 178 C52am	(Wesleyan university. George Slocum Bennett foundation. Lectures) 172 M42v
COLUMBIA associates in philosophy. An introduction to reflective thinking c1923. 153 C72	NATIONAL honesty bureau. The honesty book; a handbook for teachers, parents and other friends of children. Preliminary ed. 1923.
CREED, Wiggington Ellis. Safeguarding the future of private	q174 N2 Gift.
business. 1923. (Barbara Wei stock lectures on the morals of trade) c174 C91	REID, Louis Arnaud. Knowledge and truth. 1923. 121 R35
Gift. DAWBARN, Climenson Yelverton Charles.	ROGERS, Arthur Kenyon. What is truth? an essay in the theory
Applied philosophy. 1923. 111 D26	of knowledge, 1923. 121 R72 SANTAYANA; George.
DICKINSON, Goldsworthy Lowes. War: its nature, cause and cure. 1923.	Scepticism and animal faith. 1923. 191 S23s
172.4 D55w ERIKSEN, Richard. Consciousness, life and the fourth dimension, 1923. 121 E68	STABLETON, John Kay. Your problems and mine in the guid- ance of youth. c1922 173 S77
FULLER, Benjamin Apthorp Gould. History of Greek philosophy. 1923.	WALDSTEIN, Sir Charles. Harmonism and conscious evolution. 1922. 171 W16
180 F96 GILLETT, Ransom Hooker.	WARD, James.
Repeal of the prohibition amendment; affirmative: Gen. Ransom H. Gillett;	A study of Kant. 1922. 193 K16zws
negative: Rev. John Haynes Holmes. [1923] (The reference shelf)	MIND AND BODY. BAUDOUIN, Charles.
178 G47 GRAY, Arthur Herbert. Men, women, and God; a discussion of	The power within us. Translated from the French by Eden and Cedar Paul. [1923] 130 C34p
sex questions from the Christian point of view. 1923. 176 G77	BRAGDON, Claude Fayette. A primer of higher space. 1923.
HARE, William Loftus. Mysticism of East and West; studies in	133 B81p HEUZÉ, Paul.
mystical and moral philosophy. [1923] 149.3 H27	Do the dead live? An inquiry into the present state of psychical research.
HAYNES, Roy Asa. Prohibition inside out. 1923.	Tr. from the French. 1923. 133.9 H59
178 H424 IBWIN, William Henry. Christ or Mars? 1923. 1724 I72c	INTERNATIONAL eugenics congress, 2d, New York, 1921. Scientific papers. 1923. 2 v.
KLEISEB, Grenville.	136 I61a
Training for power and leadership. c1923. 174 K64	JONES, Charles Robert Stansfeld. Crystal vision through crystal gazing. c1923. 133 J76
MALEBRANCHE, Nicholas. Dialogues on metaphyshics and on	LAUGHLIN, Harry Hamilton.
religion. Tr. by Morris Ginsberg. [1923] (Library of philosophy)	The second international exhibition of eugenics held September 22 to Octo-
[1925] (Inbrary of philosophy) 110 M24	ber 22, 1921, 1923. 136 L37

· · ·	
RICHET, Charles Robert. Thirty years of psychical research; tr. from the French by Stanley De Brath. 1923. 134 R52	LAIRD, Donald A. Applied psychology for nurses; an in- troduction, c1923. (Lippincott's nursing manuals.) 150 L18
	M Denne Di
CHILD STUDY. Asquith, Lady Cynthia Mary Evelyn (Charteris). The child at home. 1923. 136.7 A84	MACDOUGALL, Robert. The general problems of psychology. v. 1. 1922. (New York university studies in philosophy and religion) 150 M13g
DICKSON, Virgil Everett. Mental tests and the classroom teacher. 1923. (Measurement and adjust-	Contents: v. 1. Conceptions. ROBINSON, Edward Stevens, & Robinson,
ment series) 136.7 D55 FISHER, Mrs Dorothea Frances (Can-	Mrs Florence (Richardson) eds. Readings in general psychology. c1923.
field). What grandmother did not know.	150 R65 SPEARMAN, Charles Edward.
c1922. 136.7 F53w	The nature of "intelligence" and the principles of cognition. 1923.
HINES, Harlan Cameron. Measuring intelligence. c1923. (River-	150 S741
side educational monographs) 136.7 H66m	RELIGION.
HOLLINGWORTH, Mrs Leta (Stetter). Special talents and defects; their sig- nificance for education. 1923. (Ex-	AMIR 'Alī, Maulavī Saiyid. The spirit of Islâm. 1923? 297 A51
perimental education series) 136.76 H74s	BERGUER, Georges. Some aspects of the life of Jesus from the psychological and psycho-analytic
PATRI, Angelo. Talks to mothers. 1923. 136.7 P31t	point of view. Tr. by Eleanor Stim- ston Brooks and Van Wyck Brooks.
PINTNER, Rudolf.	c1923. 232 B48
Intelligence testing; methods and re- sults. c1923. 136.7 P65i	CHURCHWARD, Albert. The signs and symbols of primordial
RICHARDSON, C. A. Methods and experiments in mental	man. [1923] q291 C56
tests. 1922. 136.7 R52	CUMONT, Franz. After life in Roman paganism. 1922. (Yale university. Mrs Hepsa Ely
Wood, Ben D. Measurement in higher education. 1923.	Silliman memorial lectures)
(Measurement and adjustment series) 136.7 W87	292 C97 Ellwood, Charles Abram.
PSYCHOLOGY.	Christianity and social science; a challenge to the church. 1923.
BOYLE, John D.	261 E47c
Reactionism; the science of you. 1923. 150 B79	"A sequel to The reconstruction of religion."
BRIEBLEY, Mrs Susan Sutherland. An introduction to psychology, 1923. 1 50 B8 53	FRAZER, Sir James George. Folk-lore in the Old Testament; studies in comparative religion, legend and
EWER, Bernard Capen. Applied psychology. 1923. 150 E94	law. Abridged ed. 1923. 291 F84f1
GRIFFITH, Coleman Roberts.	GARDNER, Percy. The practical basis of Christian belief;
General introduction to psychology. 1923. 150 G85	an essay in reconstruction. 1923. 239 G22

 GILMAN, Mrs Charlotte (Perkins) Stetson. His religion and hers; a study of the faith of our fathers and the work of our mothers. c1923. 230 G48 HARTT, Rollin Lynde. The Man himself. 1923. 232 H33 HENDRICK, Burton Jesse. The Jews in America. 1923. 296 H49 HOPKINS, Edward Washburn. Origin and evolution of religion. 1923. 	EAST, Edward Murray. Mankind at the crossroads. 1923. 312 E13 GAULT, Robert Harvey. Social psychology; the bases of behavior called social. 1923. 301 G27 JOSEY, Charles Conant. Race and national solidarity. 1923. 301 J83 JOURNAL of applied sociology. v. 6. 1921-
MILLER, Elizabeth Erwin. Dramatization in the church school; a training course for leaders. 1923. (The University of Chicago publica- tions in religious education. Princi- ples and methods of religious educa- tion) 268 M64	22. c305 J86 MARCHANT, Sir James. The coming renaissance. 1923. 304 M31 MOREHOUSE, Frances Milton Irene, & Graham, Sybil Fleming. American problems. c1923. 304 M83
 PROTESTANT Episcopal church in the U.S.A. Book of common prayer. The proposed revision of the Book of common prayer. 1923. 264 P967p RELIGION & life. 1923. 240 R38 SCHURÉ, Édouard. The great initiates; sketch of the secret history of religions. Tr. by Fred Rothwell. 1922. 2 v. 290 S39 Contents: v. 1, Rama; Krishna; Hérmes; Moses; Orpheus. v. 2, Pythagoras; Plato; Jesus, the last great initiate. 	MORGAN, De Witt S. Living and working together. et 301 M847 ROOSEVELT, Theodore, pres. U. S. The Americanism of Theodore Roose- velt; selections from his writings and speeches, compiled by Herman Hage- dorn. 1923. (Publications of the Roosevelt memorial association) 304 R78am STUDIES in sociology. Sociological monographs. v. [1]-5, 1916-1921. c305 J86
 SETH Pringle Pattison, Andrew. The idea of immortality; the Gifford lectures delivered in the University of Edinburgh in the year 1922. 1922. 218 S49 YOUNG, William Allen. Christianity and civilization in the south Pacific. 1922. 266 Y78 YOUNGHUSBAND, Sir Francis Edward. The gleam. 1923. 248 Y78 SOCIOLOGY: GENERAL. 	POLITICAL SCIENCE AND CITIZENSHIP.ARNETT. Alex Mathews.The Populist movement in Georgia.1922. (Studies în history, economics and public law, Columbia university) 330.5 C72BAU, Mingchien Joshua.The open door doctrine in relation to China. c1923.BERRY, Margaret K., & Howe, Samual B. Actual democracy.Actual democracy.1923.320.73B53
COOPER, Samuel Albert. Two days and a night in America. c1922. 304 C771 EASLEY, Ralph Montgomery. The youth movement. Do we want it here? Complete ed. 301 E13	 DAVIE, Maurice Rea. A constructive immigration policy. 1923. 325.73 D25 DAVIS, Philip, & Schwartz, Bertha, eds. Immigration and Americanization. c1920. 325.73 D263

55

	1
DE KOVEN, Anna (Farwell) "Mrs Reg-	Carnegie endowment for interna-
iuald De Koven." A primer of citizenship. c1923. 323.6 D32	tional peace. Division of economic and history) 330.944 G45
DOLE, Charles Fletcher.	HOBSON, John Atkinson, & others.
The young citizen. Rev. & enl. ed. [1922] 323.6 D66y1	Some aspects of recent British economics. [1923] 330.942 H68
Holcombe, Arthur Norman.	HUDECZEK, Karl.
The foundations of the modern com- monwealth. 1923. 320 H72	The economic resources of Austria; authorized translation, by Julia F. Fiebeger, 1922. 330.9436 H88
INTERNATIONAL labor office, Geneva.	KEIR, Robert Malcolm.
Emigration and immigration: legisla- tion and treaties. 1922. 325 161	Industrial organization; an introduc- tion to the study of economics, 1923.
LAWSON, Leonard Axel.	331 K27
The relation of British policy to the	KYRK, Hazel.
declaration of the Monroe doctrine. 1922, (Columbia university, Studies	A theory of consumption. 1923. (Hart
in history, economics and public law) 330.5 C72	Schaffner and Marx prize essays) 331 K99
MORSE, Anson Daniel.	MIDDLETON, Thomas Hudson.
Parties and party leaders. 1923. (The Amherst books) 329 M88	Food production in war. 1923. (Car- negie endowment for international
PENMAN, John Simpson.	peace. Division of economics and
The irresistible movement of democ-	history. Economic and social history of the world war. British series)
racy. c1923. 320 P41	q330.942 M6
SMITH, Robert Edwin.	Moore, Henry Ludwell.
Christianity and the race problem.	Generating economic cycles. 1923.
c1922. 325.26 \$65	331 M82
Tow, Julius Su.	MOULTON, Harold Glenn, & McGuire,
The real Chinese in America. c1923.	Constantine Edward.
325.251 T73	Germany's capacity to pay; a study of
SOCIALISM.	the reparation problem. 1923. (The
GHENT, William James.	Institute of economics. Investiga- tions in international economic re-
The reds bring reaction. 1923.	construction) 330.943 M92
335 G41r STURT, Henry Cecil.	NATIONAL industrial conference board.
Socialism and character. c1922.	Changes in the cost of living, July,
335 \$93	1914-March, 1923. c1923. (Research
WILDE, Oscar Fingall O'Flahertie Wills,	report) 331 N277
The soul of man under socialism. 1919.	The consolidation of railroads in
335 W67	the United States. c1923. (Research
ECONOMICS.	report) 331 N277
DUNAWAY, Wayland Fuller.	RAŠÍN, Alois.
History of the James River and Kana-	Financial policy of Czecho-Slovakia during the first year of its history.
wha company. 1922. (Studies i	1923. (Carnegie endowment for
history, economics and public law. Columbia university) 330.5 C72	international peace. Division of
	economics and history. Economic
GIDE, Charles.	and social history of the world war.

life. 1923. (Publications of the

-

q330,94 R2

NATIONAL industrial conference board. Wages, hours and employment in American manufacturing industries July, 1914-January, 1923, with supplemental data up to April, 1923. c1923. (Research report) 331 N277 - Workmen's compensation acts in the United States; the medical aspect. [1923] (Research report) TILLYARD, Frank.

The worker and the state: wages. hours, safety, and health. 1923. (Ratan Tata foundation, London school of economics (University of London) Publications) 331 T57

UNTERMYER, Samuel & Hillquit, Morris. Shall trade unions be regulated by law' c1923. 331.88 U61

FINANCE.

BANKITALY life; published by, and for the employees of the Bank of Italy. v 4-5. 1920-21. c332.05 B21

BOECKEL, Richard. Labor's money. c1923. 332.1 B66

BRUNTON, John. Letters on practical banking. 1923. 332.1 B91

HAWTREY, Ralph George. Monetary reconstruction. 1923. 332 H39

NATIONAL association of mutual savings hanks. Women's division.

Special course in personal service for savings banks; Columbia university, Teachers' college, summer session, 332,2 N27 1922. c1922.

POOR'S rating service. 1923.

r332.6 P82rt

WARD, Roy Allen. The bank agricultural department. 1923. (Bank department series) 332.1 W26

YORK, Thomas.

International exchange, normal and abnormal. 1923, 332.45 Y63i

ROBERTSON, Dennis Holme. The control of industry, c1923, (Cambridge economic handbooks) 331 R64

ROSEBUSH, Judson George. The ethics of capitalism. 1923.

331 R79

- RUSSELL, Hon, Bertrand Arthur William & Russell, Mrs Dora Winifred (Black).
 - The prospects of industrial civilization. c1923. 331 R961

STRACHEY, John St. Loe. Economics of the hour. 1923.

331 \$89

LABOR.

BLOOMFIELD & Bloomfield. Employee vacation plans; a survey by Industrial relations, Bloomfield's labor digest. c1923. a331.8 B6

BRODERICK, John T. Pulling together. [1923] 331 B86

BUREAU of social hygiene, New York. Housing conditions of employed women in the borough of Manhattan, c1922. 331.83 B95

Gift of the Bureau of social hygiene.

- DOUGLAS, Paul Howard [and others]. The worker in modern economic society. [1923] (Materials for the study of business) 331 D73
- HAMILTON, Walton Hale, & May, Stacy. The control of wages. c1923. (The worker's bookshelf) 331.2 H22
- HOBSON, John Atkinson. The economics of unemployment. [1922] 331 H68e
 - Incentives in the new industrial order. [1922] (The new era series) 331 H68i
- INTERNATIONAL labour directory. 2d. 1922. r331,88 161
- KIRKCONNELL, Watson. International aspects of unemployment. 1923. 331.8 K59i

LEWIS, John Llewellyn. Statement before the house committee on labor, considering the Bland bill. q331.8 L6 331 N277

.

PRODUCTION, MANUFACTURE	HAYHURST, Emery Roe.
PRICES. AHERN, Albert M.	How to write an examination. c1922. 351.3 H41
Fur facts. c1923. 338.1 A28	Holt, William Stull.
DAVOL, Ralph. Raw products of the world. c1922. v. 1 Africa. 338 D26 HASTINGS, Hudson Bridge.	The Bureau of public roads, its his- tory, activities and organization. 1923. (Institute for government re- search. Service monographs of the United States government) 353.8 H75b
Costs and profits; their relation to business cycles. 1923. (Publications of the Pollak foundation for economic research) 338 H35	The Office of the chief of engineers of the army; its non-military history, activities, and organization. 1923. (Institute for government research.
JESNESS, Oscar Bernard. The coöperative marketing of farm products. c1923. (Lippincett's farm manuals) 338.1 J58	Service monographs of the United States government) 353.8 H750 HUGHAN, Jessie Wallace.
LLOYD, E. M. H. Stabilisation; an economic policy for producers and consumers. 1923.	A study of international government. c1923. (Crowell's social science series) 341 H89 INSTITUTE for government research,
338 L79 PUTNAM, George Ellsworth. Supplying Britain's meat. [1923] 338.1 P99	Washington, D. C. The U. S. Reclamation service, its his- tory, activities and organization. 1919. (Institute for government re-
SACHS, John C. Furs and the fur trade. [1923] (Pit- man's common commodities and in- dustries) 338.1 S12	search. Service monographs of the U. S. government) 353.8 159 INSTITUTE of politics, Williams college Round-table conferences of its first session, 1921. 1923. (Institute of
LAW AND ADMINISTRATION. BERNHARDT, Joshua.	politics publications. Williams col- lege, Williamstown, Mass.) 341 1591
The division of conciliation; its his- tory, activities and organization. 1923. (Institute for government research. Service monographs of the United	KALAW, Maximo M. The present government of the Philip- pines. 1921? 342.991 K14 Gift.
States government) 353.8 B52d ————————————————————————————————————	McCARTNEY, Eugene Stock. Warfare by land and sea. c1923. (Our debt to Greece and Rome) 355 M123
1923. (Institute for government re- search. Service monographs of the United States government) 353.8 B52r	MUNRO, William Bennett. Municipal government and administra- tion. 1923. 2 v. 352 M96m
CONOVER, Milton. The General land office. 1923. (Insti- tute for government research. Ser- vice monographs of the United States	PARRY, Edward Abbott. What the judge thought. 1923. 340.9 P26 SCHMECKEBIEB, Laurence Frederick, &
government) 353.8 C75g FISHER, Irving. League of war? 1923. 341.1 F53	Eble, Francis X. A. The Bureau of internal revenue; its history activities and organization. 1923. (Institute for government re-
FULK, Joseph Richard. The municipalization of play and rec- regation, 1922. 352.9 F96	search. Service monographs of the United States government) 353.8 S34b

STIMSON, Frederic Jesup. The American Constitution as it protects private rights. 1923.

342.73 **S**85

- THOMSON, Gladys Scott.
 Lords lieutenants in the sixteenth century; a study in Tudor local administration. 1923.
 352 T48
- "TRAVELLER", pseud. "All about passports." 341 T77
- TURKINGTON, Grace Alice. My country, a textbook in civics and patriotism for young Americans. Revised edition. c1923. 353 T95
- WILLIAMS, Roth. The League of nations to-day. 1923. 341.1 W72
- WILLOUGHBY, William Franklin.
 The reorganization of the administrative branch of the national government. 1923. (The Institute for government research. Studies in administration) 353 W73r

LAW.

- BALLANTINE, Henry Winthrop. The preparation of contracts and conveyances, with forms and problems. 1921.
- BLANCHARD, Fletcher A. Supplement to Digest of the bankruptcy decisions. Vols. 43 to 49 inclusive. 1923.
- BUCKLAND, William Warwick. A text-book of Roman law from Augustus to Justinian. 1921.
- CONNECTICUT. Laws, statutes, etc. A general index to the private laws and special acts. Compiled by Frederick L. Perry [Secretary of state] 1922.
- Cowan, Leonard L. Manual of securities laws of the United States. 1923.
- GOITEIN, Hugh. Primitive ordeal and modern law, 1923.
- HOHFELD, Wesley Newcomb. Fundamental legal conceptions as applied in judicial reasoning, and
 - other legal essays. Edited by Walter Wheeler Cook. 1923.

- PETERSON, Frederick, [and others] eds. Legal medicine and toxicology. 2d ed. 1923. 2 v.
- SHELTON, Thomas Wall. Spirit of the courts. 1918.
- TASMANIA, Laws, statutes, etc. Index to the statutes of Tasmania in force on July 1, 1921, by John Kidston Reid. 5th ed. 1921.
- WHITE, William Wallace. Patents throughout the world. 1923.

EDUCATION.

- ADAMS, John. Modern developments in educational practice. 1922. 370.1 A21
- BARNARD, Howard Clive. The French tradition in education. 1922. 379.44 B25
- BARNES, Ina G. Rural school management. 1923.

(Rural education series) 379.1 B26

- BOWEN, Wilbur Pardon, & Mitchell, Elmer D.
 - The practice of organized play. 1923. (Theory and practice of organized play) 371.74 B78p

BRIM, Orville Gilbert.

- Rural education; a critical study of the objectives and needs of the rural elementary school. 1923. (Rural education series) **379.73 B85**
- BRYANT, Frederick J.
- Working drawings of colonial furniture. c1922. q371.4 B9
- COPE, Henry Frederick, ed. Week-day religious education. c1922. q377 C78w

CUBBERLEY, Ellwood Patterson.

The principal and his school. c1923. (Riverside textbooks in education. Division of secondary education) 371.2 C96pr

DEAN, Arthur Davis.

- Just between ourselves; practical talks to industrial and vocational teachers. c1923. 370.01 D281
- DRUMMOND, Margaret.
 - The psychology and teaching of number. 1922. 372.7 D79

- FLEXNER, Abraham. A modern college, and A modern school. 1923. 378 F61
- GATES, Arthur Irving. Psychology for students of education. 1923. 370.1 G25
- The psychology of reading and spelling with special reference to disability. 1922. (Teachers college, Columbia university. Contributions to education) q372.4 G25

HAMILTON, Samuel.

The purpose, preparation and methods in the recitation. c1923..

371.3 H22

HOLMES, Edmond Gore Alexander. What is and what might be; a study of education in general and elementary education in particular. [1917] 370.1 H74

 KILPATRICK, William Heard.
 Source book in the philosophy of education. 1923, (Text-book series [in education])
 370 K48

KLINE, Linus Ward.

- The Kline-Carey measuring scale for free-hand drawing. pt. 1. 1923. (Johns Hopkins university studies in education) q371.2 K6a Contents: pt. 1, Representation.
- McCALL, William Anderson. How to experiment in education. 1923. (Experimental education series) 371.3 M12
- MEAD, Arthur Raymond. Learning and teaching. c1923. 370.1 M47
- MOREHOUSE, Frances Milton Irene, The discipline of the school. c1914. 371.5 M83

NEUMANN, Henry. Education for moral growth. 1923. 377 N49

PARKER, Samuel Chester. Types of elementary teaching and learning, including practical technique and scientific evidence. c1923. 371.3 P243

PRINGLE, Ralph W. Adolescence and high-school problems. c1922. 379.17 P95

- RADICE, Mrs Sheila (Jamieson). The new children, talks with Dr Maria Montessori. c1920. 372 R12
- SINCLAIR, Upton Beall.
 - The goose-step, a study of American education. [1923] 378.73 S61
- THE Stanford pictorial. v. 1-2. 1920-22. qc378.794 SQp

STARK, William Everett. Every teachers's problems. c1922. (American education series)

371 S79

- STOUT, John Elbert, & Thompson, James Voorhees.
- The daily vacation church school, how to organize and conduct it. c1923. (The Abingdon religious education texts. Daily vacation church school series) **377 \$88d**
- WRIGHT, Louise C. Story plays. 1923. 371.7 W95

ASSOCIATIONS AND INSTITUTIONS.

- CINCINNATI. Chamber of commerce and merchants' exchange. Impartial committee on workmen's compensation insurance.
 - Study of workmen's compensation insurance laws and service. c1923. 368 C57
- DOMINGE, Charles Carroll, & Lincoln, Walter Osborn.

Fire insurance inspection and underwriting. 3d ed. c1923. 368.1 D67a

- DRUCKER, Saul, & Hexter, Maurice Beck. Children astray. 1923. 364.1 D79
- HALBERT, Lercy Allen. What is professional social work? c1923. 361 H15

HOFFMAN, Frederick Ludwig. Life insurance progress, methods and results. 1922. 368.3 H69

JAMES, Marquis. A history of the American legion. 1923. 369.158 J28

JOHNSON, Alexander. Adventures in social welfare. 1923. 360 J66 MCCORMICK. William.

The problem of the working boy. c1923. 367 M13p

McLEAN, Francis Herbert.	CUSTOMS AND FOLKLORE.
The organization of family social work	BRABY, Maud Churton.
societies in smaller cities. 1921.	Modern marriage and how to bear it.
360 M16	392 B79
THE Prison journal; devoted to the	
science of penology. v. 1-2. 1921-	LEARNED, Ellin (Craven) "Mrs Frank
22. 365.05 P95	Learned."
	Everybody's complete etiquette. 1923.
U. S. American relief administration.	395 L43
Annual report of the executive com-	
mittee. Meeting of trustees and	Good manners for boys and girls.
members, April 4th, 1923.	1923. 395 L43 g
q361 U58	PARSONS, Mrs Elsie Worthington (Clews)
Gift.	ed.
VICKREY, Charles Vernon.	Folk-lore of the Sea Islands, South
Near East relief; a review for 1922	Carolina. 1923. (Memoirs of the
(annual report to Congress). 1923.	American folk-lore society) 398 A51
361 V63	American Tolk-Tole Society) 050 AST
Gift.	
COMMEDOE AND	LANGUAGE.
COMMERCE AND	Dodge, Howard Lewis.
COMMUNICATION.	Why? c421 D64
BENSON, William Shepherd.	Gift.
The merchant marine. 1923.	
387 B 47	EMERSON, Oliver Farrar.
BISHOP, Avard Longley.	A Middle English reader. New and
Outlines of American foreign com-	rev. ed. 1921. 428 E53
merce. c1923. 382 B62	Jones, Daniel.
	An outline of English phonetics. 1922.
CHATTERTON, Edward Keble.	421 J760
The mercantile marine. 1923.	421 0700
387 C49	MORRISON, William Eric, & Gauthier,
FISH, Frederick Perry.	Jean Ch.
Government.control of business through	
	A French grammar, c1923, 445 M88
anti-trust legislation and other ways.	A French grammar. c1923. 445 M88
anti-trust legislation and other ways. 1922. 380 F5 3	A French grammar. c1923. 445 M88 SENECA, Pasquale.
	SENECA, Pasquale.
1922. 380 F5 3	SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47
1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col-	SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison.
1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United	SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation.
 1922. McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation. 1923. (The Century handbook
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. 	SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation.
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation. 1923. (The Century handbook series) 421 S84
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with examination questions in the theory 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 \$47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation. 1923. (The Century handbook series) 421 \$84 STRATTON, Clarence.
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with examination questions in the theory and practice of commerce. 1923. 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. Conversation and composition. C1923. <
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with examination questions in the theory 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 \$47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation. 1923. (The Century handbook series) 421 \$84 STRATTON, Clarence.
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with examination questions in the theory and practice of commerce. 1923. 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. Conversation and composition. C1923. <
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with examination questions in the theory and practice of commerce. 1923. 380 M22 	SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation. 1923. (The Century handbook series) 421 S84 STRATTON, Clarence. The teaching of English in the high school. c1923. 420.7 S91 THOMPSON, Sir Edward Maunde. An introduction to Greek and Latin
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with examination questions in the theory and practice of commerce. 1923. 380 M22 MORGAN, Charles Stillman. 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation. 1923. (The Century handbook series) 421 S84 STRATTON, Clarence. The teaching of English in the high school. c1923. 420.7 S91 THOMPSON, Sir Edward Maunde.
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with examination questions in the theory and practice of commerce. 1923. 380 M22 MORGAN, Charles Stillman. Regulation and the management of 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation. 1923. (The Century handbook series) 421 S84 STRATTON, Clarence. The teaching of English in the high school. c1923. 420.7 S91 THOMPSON, Sir Edward Maunde. An introduction to Greek and Latin palæography. 1912. q481 T4
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with examination questions in the theory and practice of commerce. 1923. 380 M22 MORGAN, Charles Stillman. Regulation and the management of public utilities. 1923. (Hart, Schaff- ner & Marx prize essays) 380 M84 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation. 1923. (The Century handbook series) 421 S84 STRATTON, Clarence. The teaching of English in the high school. c1923. 420.7 S91 THOMPSON, Sir Edward Maunde. An introduction to Greek and Latin palæography. 1912. q481 T4 YASENISKY, M. P. B.
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with examination questions in the theory and practice of commerce. 1923. 380 M22 MORGAN, Charles Stillman. Regulation and the management of public utilities. 1923. (Hart, Schaff- ner & Marx prize essays) 380 M84 WHITE, Percival. 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation. 1923. (The Century handbook series) 421 S84 STRATTON, Clarence. The teaching of English in the high school. c1923. 420.7 S91 THOMPSON, Sir Edward Maunde. An introduction to Greek and Latin palæography. 1912. q481 T4 YASENISKY, M. P. B. A pocket dictionary of the Ukrainian-
 1922. 380 F53 McKEE, Marguerite Miller. The ship subsidy question in United States politics. 1922. (Smith col- lege studies in history) 387 M15 MAIRET, G. Trade, transport and finance, with examination questions in the theory and practice of commerce. 1923. 380 M22 MORGAN, Charles Stillman. Regulation and the management of public utilities. 1923. (Hart, Schaff- ner & Marx prize essays) 380 M84 	 SENECA, Pasquale. Spanish conversation and composition. c1923. 468 S47 STEVENS, David Harrison. The Stevens handbook of punctuation. 1923. (The Century handbook series) 421 S84 STRATTON, Clarence. The teaching of English in the high school. c1923. 420.7 S91 THOMPSON, Sir Edward Maunde. An introduction to Greek and Latin palæography. 1912. q481 T4 YASENISKY, M. P. B. A pocket dictionary of the Ukrainian- English languages. 2d remodelled and

1922.

series)

c1923.

LEWIS, Gilbert Newton, & Randall, Merle.

of chemical substances. 1923.

SERVISS, Garrett Putnam.

Thermodynamics and the free energy

The Einstein theory of relativity.

536.7 L67

530 S49

VOI. 15, 10, 1 CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARI.	
 NATURAL SCIENCE: GENERAL. CALDWELL, Otis William, & Slosson, Edwin Emery, eds. Science remaking the world. 1923. 504 C14 Lèctures delivered during the summer of 1922 at Teachers college, Columbia university. 	 SLOANE, Thomas O'Conor. Electric toy making for amateurs. 21st ed., rev. and much enl. 1923. 537.8 \$63e1 WATSON, Floyd Rowe. Acoustics of buildings. 1923. 534 W33
LANKESTER, Sir Edwin Ray. Great and small things. [1923] 504 L28g	CHEMISTRY. NERNST, Walther.
ROBINSON, James Harvey. The humanizing of knowledge, c1923. 507 R66	Theoretical chemistry from the stand- point of Avogadro's rule & thermo- dynamics. Rev. in accordance with the 8th-10th German ed., by L. W. Codd. 1923. 541 N44
MATHEMATICS. KEYSER, Cassius Jackson. Mathematical philosophy, a study of fate and freedom. c1922. 510 K44	SABATIER, Paul. Catalysis in organic chemistry Tr. by E. Emmet Reid. 1922. 541 S11
NEVILLE, Eric Harold. Prolegomena to analytical geometry in anisotropic Euclidean space of three dimensions. 1922. q516 N5	STOCK, Alfred Eduard. The structure of atoms, tr. from the 2d German ed., by S. Sugden. Rev. and enl. [1923] 541 2 886
Sмитн, David Eugene. Mathematics. c1923. (Our debt to Greece and Rome) 511 S64	THURSTON, Azor. Pharmaceutical and food analysis. 1922. 543.1 T54
THORNDIKE, Edward Lee [and others]. The psychology of algebra. 1923. 512 T49	GEOLOGY. BROOKS, Charles Ernest Pelham. The evolution of climate. 1922. 551.56 B87
PHYSICS. BAKER, Thomas Thorne. The spectroscope. 1923. 535.8 B168	CLATTON, Henry Helm. World weather, 1923. 551.5 C62
EDDINGTON, Arthur Stanley. The mathematical theory of relativity. 1923. q530 E2 GRAY, Andrew.	
Absolute measurements in electricity and magnetism. 2d ed. rewritten and extended. 1921. 537.7 G77a	
KEMPTON, Percival Henry Sydney. The industrial applications of X-rays.	

(Pitman's technical primer Molybdenum ores. [1922] 553.4 R22 537.54 K32 SHAW, Sir William Napier.

The air & its ways; the Rede lecture (1921) in the University of Cambridge. 1923. a551.5 S5

SPURR, Josiah Edward. The ore magmas; a series of essays on ore deposition. 1923. 2 v.

553.1 S77o

61

BIOLOGY.	ZOOLOGY.
BAITSELL, George Alfred.	CARPENTER, George Herbert.
Manual of biological forms. 1923.	Insect transformation. 1923.
570 B16	595.7 C29i
Collins, Archie Frederick. The book of the microscope. 1923. 578 C71	FABRE, Jean Henri Casimir, & Miall, Bernard. The life of the scorpion, trans. by
HOLMES, Samuel Jackson. Sudies in evolution and eugenics. 1923. 575.1 H75s	Alexander Teixeira de Mattos. 1923. 595.4 F121 KINDERMANN, Henny. Lola; or, The thought and speech of
KLAATSCH, Hermann. The evolution and progress of mankind. Edited and enlarged by Professor Adolf Heilborn, tr. by Joseph McCabe, [1923] q573 K6	animals. Tr. by Agnes Blake, with a chapter on thinking animals by Dr. William Mackenzie. [1923] 591.5 K51
-	LAIMBEER, Richard Harper. Birds I have known, 1923.
MORGAN, Conwy Lloyd.	598.2 L185
Emergent evolution; the Gifford lectures, 1922, 1923.575 M847	WHEELER, William Morton.
OSBORN, Henry Fairfield.	Social life among the insects. 1923. 595.7 W56s
Evolution and religion. 1923. 575 O81e	Previously published in the Scien- tific monthly, June, 1922, to Febru- ary, 1923.
TYLER, John Mason. The coming of man. 1923. (The Amherst books) 573 T98	USEFUL ARTS, MEDICINE AND HYGIENE.
WOODRUFF, Charles Edward.	BAKER, Sara Josephine.
Expansion of races. c1909. 572 W89e	Healthy mothers. 1923. 618.2 B16
	Coué, Émile. Self mastery through conscious auto-
BOTANY.	suggestion. c1922. 615.85 C85s
BAILEY, Liberty Hyde, ed. The cultivated evergreens; a handbook of the coniferous and most important	DEARMER, Percy. Body and soul. c1909. 615.85 D28
broad-leaved evergreens planted for	
ornament in the United States and Canada. 1923. 582 B15	DOUGALL, Lily. The Christian doctrine of health, 1923. 615.85 D73
COULTER, John Merle, Plants; a text-book of botany. 3d ed. rev. [1904] 581 C85p	GOEPP, Rudolph Max. Dental state board questions and answers. 1923. 617.6 G59
COULTER, Merle Crowe. Outline of genetics. [1923] 581.1 C855	HADFIELD, James Arthur. The psychology of power. 1923. 616.8 H12p
LINDSAY, Thomas Somerville Reeves. Plant names. 1923. (Nature lover's series) 580.1 L74	 HIPPOCRATES. Hippocrates, with an English translation. v. 1. 1923. (Loeb classical library) 610.8 H66j
TAYLOR, Norman. Botany; the science of plant life. 1922. 581 T244	HOPE, Edward William, & others. Industrial hygiene and medicine. 1923. 613.6 H79

KLIMMER, Martin. Veterinary hygiene. 3d. newly rev. 619 K65 ed. 1923.KRAUSE, Allen Kramer. Environment and resistance in tuberculosis. 1923. 616.99 K91 - Rest and other things; a little book of plain talks on tuberculosis 616.99 K91r problems, 1923. McLaughlin, Allan Joseph. The communicable diseases, how they spread and how they may be con-(Harper's public trolled. c1923. health series) 614.4 M16 MACMICKLE, Virgil. Eat and be healthy. c1923. 613.2 M16 MAXWELL, Samuel Steen. c1923. Labyrinths and equilibrium. (Monographs on experimental biol-612.88 M46 ogy) MOHS. Emma Louise. Principles of home nursing, textbook for college students. 1923.

610.73 M69

MOODIE, Roy Lee. The antiquity of disease. c1923. (University of Chicago science series) 616 M81

MORGULIS, Sergius.
 Fasting and undernutrition; a biological and sociological study of inanition. c1923.
 612.3 M85

O'SHEA, Michael Vincent. Tobacco and mental efficiency. 1923. 613.8 053

RUMSEY, H. St. John. No need to stammer. 1923.

612.7 R93 SANGER, Margaret H.

- Woman, morality, and birth control. 1922. 612.6 \$22w
- SCOTSON-CLARK, George Frederick. Eating without fears. 1923. 613.2 \$42
- SCRIPTURE, Edward Wheeler. Stuttering, lisping and correction of the speech of the deaf. 2d ed. 1923. 612.7 837

TRIDON, André. Psychoanalysis and gland personalities. c1923. 616.8 T82pg

- WALKER, George. Venereal disease in the American expeditionary forces. c1922.
 - 616.95 W17
- WALSH, James Joseph. Cures; the story of the cures that fail. 1923. 615 W22
- WARD, Ida C. Defects of speech. 1923. 612.7 W25
- WYNNE, Frederick Edward. Ductless and other glands. 1923. 612 W98

ZINSSER, Hans.

Infection and resistance. 3d ed. 1923. 614.4 Z78a

ENGINEERING.

- AMERICAN railway association. Mechanical division.
 - Car builders' cyclopedia of American practice. 10th ed. 1922. c1922.

q625.2 A5

- Earlier editions, by the Master car builders' association, have title: Car builders' dictionary.
- Locomotive cyclopedia of American practice. 6th ed. 1922. c1922. q621.13 A5
 - Earlier editions, by American railway master mechanics' association, have title: Locomotive dictionary.
- BRUNTON, David William, & Davis, John Allen.

Modern tunneling; new chapters on railroad tunneling by J. Vipond Davies. 2d ed., rev. and enl. 1922. 622.26 B91a

CAVILEER, John W. Model boat building for boys. c1923. c623.8 C3

CHILTON, Frederick Ernest. Electric cranes and hauling machines. (Pitman's technical primer series) 621.86 C53

CROFT, Terrell Williams, ed. Steam-turbine principles and practice. 1923. (Power plant series) 621.16 C94

Dowp, Albert Atkins, & Curtis, Frank W. Tool engineering, fixtures for turning, boring and grinding. 1923.

621.9 D74

BEAUCHAMP, Joseph William.

GOODRICH, Clarence Leon, & Stanley, Frank Arthur. Accurate tool work. 2d ed., 2d impression. 1923. 621.7 G65

- GRIMSHAW, Robert. Shop kinks. 1923. 621.7 G86
- HAYDEN, Stone & company. Mining companies and tables of statistics. c1922. 622 H41
- Hool, George Albert, & others, eds.
 Foundations, abutments and footings, compiled by a staff of specialists. 1923.
- HOPP, Adolf, & Neubecker, William. Estimating sheet metal work. 1922. 621.9 H79
- JAMES, Walter Herman, & Dole, Myron Wilkinson. Power plant machinery. 2d ed., rev.
 - and enl., with problems. 1923. 621.1 J29 Contents: v. 1. Mechanism of steam
 - engines.
- KIMBALL, Dexter Simpson, & Barr, John Henry.
 - Elements of machine design. 2d ed. thoroughly rev. and enl. 1923. 621 K49
- POORMAN, Alfred Peter. Applied mechanics. 2d ed. 1923.
- ROSBLOOM, Julius. Diesel and oil engine handbook. c1923. 621.43 R78d
- SHAW, Thomas Raynor.
 The mechanisms of machine tools.
 [1923] (Oxford technical publications)
 q621.9 \$5
- TRUSCOTT, Samuel John. A text-book of ore dressing. 1923. 622.7 T87
- WALKER, William Hultz [and others].
 Principles of chemical engineering.
 1923. 621.9 W18
- Young, George Joseph. Elements of mining. 2d ed. 1923. 622 Y72a

ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING.

ALLSOP, Frederick Charles.

- Practical electric light fitting. 9th ed. thoroughly rev. and largely re-written. 1923. 621.32 A44
- Industrial electric 1923. heating. (Pitman's technical primer series) 621.3 B37 CUSHING, Harry Cooke. Standard lighting with incandescent electric lamps. 2d ed. c1922. 621.32 C98 HOBART, Henry Metcalf. Electric motors, their theory and construction. 3d ed., rev. throughout. 621 31 H68e 1923. KENNELLY, Arthur Edwin. Electrical vibration instruments. c1923. (Engineering science series) 621.37 K36 AUTOMOBILES. DOVER. Alfred Thomas. Traction motor control. (Pitman's technical primer series) 625.6 D74 EMERSON, Lynn A., & Jones, Lynn C. Auto repair practice. 1923. (The Century vocational series) 625.6 E53 HAMMOND, Edward K., & Jones, Franklin Day. Automobile shop practice. 1923.625.6 H22 MOBIO, Frank Xavier. Automobile pattern drafting. 1922. 620.1 P82 625.6 M85 MOTOR land. v. 8-9. 1921. gc625.605 M919 MOTOR vehicle year book. 1923. rq625.6 M9v AGRICULTURE. DUGGAR. John Frederick. Agriculture for southern schools. Rev. ed. 1923. 630 D86ag EASSON, Ralph Barrows. California poultry production. 1923.
 - EATON, Theodore Hildreth. Vocational education in farming occu-

c636.5 E13

- pations. c1923. (Lippincott's rural education series) 630.7 E14v
- EVRARD, Eugéne. The mystery of the hive, tr. by Bernard Miall. 1923. 638 E93

- 10

HOCHWALT, Albert Frederick. Bird dogs, their history and achieve- ments. 1922. 636.7 H68b	BROWN, Alan Gowans. The normal child, its care and feeding. 1923, 649 B877
IRELAND. Dept. of agriculture and tech- nical instruction. Dairying in the Netherlands: a study and a comparison. 1922. 637 165	BUTTRICK, Helen Goodrich. Principles of clothing selection. 1923. 646 B98
Gift. JOURNAL of dairy science. v. 5. 1922. q637.05 J8	JENNINGS, Arthur Seymour. The decoration and renovation of the home. 1923. q645 J5
MONJONNIER, Timothy, & Troy, Hugh Charles.	NORTHEND, Mary Harrol. The small house, its possibilities. 1923. 645 N87
The technical control of dairy products. 1922. 637 M71	SAUER, Louis Wendlin. Nursery guide for mothers and nurses.
PETCH, Thomas. The diseases of the tea bush. 1923. 633 P47	1923
PUNNETT, Reginald Crundall, Heredity in poultry. 1923, 636.5 P98	CHAMBERS, Mrs Mary Davoren (Molony). A book of unusual soups. 1923.
ROFHL, Louis Michael. The farmer's shop book. c1923. 630 R71	641 C44b DONAHEY, Mrs Mary Augusta (Dicker- son).
SAMPSON, Arthur William. Range and pasture management, 1923. 633 \$19	The calorie cook book. c1923. 641 D67
STRUCK, Ferdinand Theodore. Construction and repair work for the farm. e1923. 630 S92	 KANDER, Lizzie (Black), "Mrs Simon Kander," comp. The Settlement cook book. 12th ed. enl. and rev. c1921. 647 K16
WATTS, Ralph Levi. Growing vegetables. 1923. (Harper's handbooks) 635 W35g	NICHOLS, Nell B. The farm cook and rule book. 1923. 641 N62
WEATHERWAX, Paul. The story of the maize plant. c1923.	SOUTHWORTH, May E. The motorist's luncheon book. c1923.
(University of Chicago science series) 633 W36	641 S72mo
WELISCH rice bowl, v. 6-7, no. 2, 1922- 1923. c633.105 W44	MANUFACTURES. BARKER, Aldred Farrer.
DOMESTIC ECONOMY.	Woolen and worsted spinning. [1923] 677 B25w
ANDREWS, Benjamin Richard. Economics of the household; its ad- ministration and finance. 1923. 647 A56	BURNHAM, Thomas H. Special steels. 1923. (Pitman's tech- nical primer series) 672 B96
BAKER, Sara Josephine. Healthy babies. 1923. 649 B16he	DARBY, William Dermot. Cotton, the universal fiber; a survey of the cotton industry, 1922.
Healthy children; a volume de- voted to the health of the growing child. 1923. 649 B16h	677 D21 Silk, the queen of fabrics. 1922. 677 D21s
BRADLEY, Alice, comp. Fifty family budgets. c1923. 647 B81 5-30800	Wool, the world's comforter. 1922. 677 D21w

HOOPER, Luther.	CHEMICAL TECHNOLOGY.
Weaving with small appliances. v. 1.	ALEXANDER, Jerome.
1922. 677 H78we	Glue and gelatin. 1923. (American
HORNER, Joseph Gregory.	chemical society. Monograph series)
The modern iron foundry. [1923]	668 A37
(Oxford technical publications)	BEERY, Pauline Gracia.
672 H81	Chemistry, applied to home and com- munity, c1923, 660 B41
HUBBARD, William Hustace.	munity. C1525. 000 D+1
Cotton and the cotton market. 1923.	CLAY products cyclopedia. 1st annual
677 H87	ed. c1922. q666.4 C6
NATIONAL industrial conference board.	GILL, Augustus Herman.
A graphic analysis of the census of	Engine-room chemistry; a compend for
manufactures of the United States,	the engineer and engineman. 3d ed.,
1849 to 1919. c1923. q670 N2	rewritten. 1922. 665 G47e
PERCIVAL, MacIver.	
The chintz book. q677 P4	HAWLEY, Lee Fred. Wood distillation. 1923. (American
Wargon Tahn Anthun	Wood distillation. 1923. (American chemical society. Monograph series)
WILSON, John Arthur. The chemistry of leather manufacture.	668.7 H39
1923. 675 W74	HEMMING, Emile.
	Plastics and molded electrical insula-
BUILDING.	tion. 1923. 666 H48
CLOW, George B.	Variation Tomas
Practical up-to-date plumbing, c1922. 696 C64p	KEWLEY, James. The petroleum and allied industries.
	1922. (Industrial chemistry)
DOMINGE, Charles Carroll, & Lincoln,	665.5 K43
Walter Osborn.	
Building construction as applied to fire insurance, c1922. 693 D67	MITCHELL, Charles Ainsworth. Ink. [1923] (Pitman's common com-
	modities and industries) 667.4 M68i
EAGLE-PICHER lead company.	
Fighting rust with sublimed blue lead. 1923. 691.7 E11	SCHEITHAUER, W.
1923. 691.7 E11	Shale oils and tars and their products.
HOOL, George Albert, & Kinne, William	Tr. from the German by Herbert Birtwhistle Stocks, 1923.
Spaulding, eds.	665.4 S32
Structural members and connections, compiled by a staff of specialists.	Sisco, Frank Thayer.
1923. 690 H78s	Technical analysis of steel and steel
	works materials. 1923. 669.1 S62
Joslin, Arthur Waldo.	
Estimating the cost of buildings. 3d ed., rev. and enl. 1923. 692 J83	THORPE, Jocelyn Field.
ea., 107. and chi. 1020. 002 000	Synthetic colouring matters. 1923. (Monographs on industrial chem-
KING, Alfred Grant.	istry) 667.2 T51
500 plain answers to direct questions on steam, hot water, vapor and	
vacuum heating. 2d ed., thoroughly	
rev. and enl. 1923. 697 K52f	BUSINESS METHODS.
New York (State) Generation on	AUMUELLER, Ferdinand O.
NEW YORK (State) Commission on ventilation.	The mechanics of advertising. 1922. 655.3 A92
Ventilation. e1923. q697-N5	
	BAER, Laura.
STARBUCK, Robert Macy.	Retail selling methods; everyday sales problems and their solution. 1923.
Mechanical drawing for plumbers. 3d 	

BELL, Spurgeon. Theory and practice of accounting, use	LIPPINCOTT, Wilmot. Outdoor advertising. 1923. 659 L76
in managerial control. c1922. 2 v. (Business management series) 657 B43t	MCKINSEY, James Oscar. Financial management, an outline of its principles and problems. c1922.
BLOOMFIELD, Daniel, ed. Problems in personnel management. 1923. (The modern executive's li-	(Business management series) 658 M158f
brary) 658 B65p CASSELL, Ralph Joseph.	MCMURRY, Karl Franklin. Manuals for teachers of bookkeeping. e1923. 657 M16
Constructive collecting. c1923. 658 C344c	MURPHY, Harry Duncan. The fundamental principles of purchas-
COPELAND, Melvin Thomas. Problems in marketing. 2d. ed. 1923. 658 C78m1	ing. 1923. 658 M97 NATIONAL asociation of railway and utili-
Published in 1920 under title: Marketing problems.	ties commissioners. Uniform classification of accounts for
CROWELL'S dictionary of business and finance. c1923. r658 C95	electrical utilities. c1922. 657 N27u
EDGAR, Albert E. How to plan and advertise a sale, for merchants and advertisers. c1922.	 Uniform classification of accounts for gas utilities. c1923. 657 N27ug O'CONNOR, Daniel Charles.
q658 E2 FERRIS, Elmer Ellsworth. Developing sales personality. 1923.	Selling own goods. c1923. 658 O18
658 F39 GAUSS, Chester A. Sales and advertising, c1922. (Busi-	PAGE, Walter Hines. A publisher's confession. New ed. 1923. 655 P13a
ness management series) 658 G27	PITMAN, Benn. The New practical shorthand manual.
GRANT, Harris Denison. Practical accounting for general con- tractors. 1922. 657 G76	c1910. 12th rev. ed. 653 P685n POROSKY, Matthew.
GREGG, John Robert. The basic principles of Gregg short- hand. c1923. 653 G81b	Practical factory administration. 1923. 658 P83 SANDERS, Walter R.
HALL, Samuel Roland. The handbook of business correspond-	Ice delivery; a complete treatise on the subject. c1922. 658 S21
ence. 1923. 658 H17h HARDY, Charles Oscar.	Scott-Maxwell, John Maxwell.
Risk and risk-bearing. c1923. 658 H26	Costing and price-fixing. 1923. 657 S42
HARRISON, Harry Hughes. Printing telegraph systems and mechan- isms. c1923. (Manuals of telegraph and telephone engineering) 654 H31	 SMITH, Charles Edward. A practical course in touch typewriting. 16th ed. rev. & enl. 1923. 652 S64a
HERKIMEE County historical society. The story of the typewriter, 1873–1923.	SORELLE, Rupert Pitt, & Gregg, John Robert. Secretarial dictation. c1923. 653 S71
[1923] ,	Secretarial attaction. c1925. c1922. 651 \$71
LEIGH, Ruth. Elements of retailing. c1923.	Teacher's manual to Secretarial
658 L52e	1

 STEVENSON, John Alford. Constructive salesmanship, principles and practice. 1923. 658 \$84 WEAKLY, Frank Ervan. 	FRENCH, Leigh, <i>jr</i> . Colonial interiors; photographs and measured drawings of the colonial and early federal periods. 1923.
Applied personnel procedure. 1923.	q728 F8
658 W361 WHITEHEAD, Harold. The business of selling. c1923. 658 W59b	THE HOME designer. Homes in South Curtis Oaks, Sacramento, Calif. March, 1923. qc728 H76 Gift.
 WINTERNITZ, Robert, & Cherington, Paul Terry. English manual for business. Prepared for the Educational department of the Associated advertising clubs of the world. c1923. 	ROSENBERG, Louis Conrad. Cottages, farmhouses and other minor buildings in England of the 16th, 17th and 18th centuries. 1923. q728 R8 WOODS, Neander Montgomery.
GARDENING. HARDING, Alice (Howard).	The most house for the least money. 1921. 728 W89
Peonies in the little garden. c1923. (The little garden series) 716 H26	PAINTING.
WATSON, William. Climbing plants. [1915] (Present- day gardening) 716 W34	BROWN, J. Hullah. Elementary water-colour painting. [1923] 751 B87
WHITE, Edward Albert. Principles of flower arrangement. 1923. 716 W58	HOLME, Geoffrey, ed. Figure painting in water-colours by contemporary British artists. 1923. (International studio. Special num- bers) q751 H7f
FINE ARTS: GENERAL.	
HOUSE and garden. v. 41-2. 1922. q705 H84 LEHMANN, Walter.	HOMER, Winslow. Winslow Homer, compiled by Nathaniel Pousette - Dart. c1923. (Distin-
The history of ancient Mexican art. 1922. (Orbis pictus; the universal	guished American artists) 759.1 H76p
library of art) q709.72 L5	PEERS, Gertrude Katherine (Shepherd), "Mrs C. R. Peers."
ORPEN, Sir William, ed. The outline of art. v. 1. 1923.	The early northern painters: their art
q709 O7	and times as illustrated from exam- ples of their work in the National
PLAYBOY; a portfolio of art and satire. v. 1, nos. 1-7. 1919-21. q705 P7	gallery, London. 1923. 759.9 P37
WRIGHT, Frederick Adam.	SMITH, Solomon Charles Kaines, & Bem- rose, H. Cheney.
The arts in Greece. 1923. 709.38 W94	Wright of Derby. [1922] (British artists series) 759.2 W95
ARCHITECTURE.	STALEY, John Edgcumbe.
BUILDING age and The builders' journal. v. 44. 1922. q720.5 B93	British painters, their story and their art. [1913] 759 2 S78
CRAM, Ralph Adams. The significance of Gothic art. c1918. (Occasional pamphlets bearing on the world after the war as this ap-	THAYER, Abbott Handerson. Abbott H. Thayer, compiled by Nathan- iel Pousette-Dart. c1923. (Distin- guished American artists) 759.1 T36
pears through study of the past or conditions of the present)	Vollard, Ambroise. Paul Cézanne; his life and art. 1923.

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
WRIGHT, Willard Huntington.	MUSIC.
The future of painting. 1923.	ALTON, Robert.
750 W95	Violin making and repairing, [1923]
	787.1 A46
DECORATION. DESIGN.	AUER, Leopold.
BOBRINSKÏI, Aleksieĭ Aleksandrovich,	My long life in music. 1923.
graf.	780.2 A91
Russian peasant art. [1922]	BAKER, Lacey, ed.
f749 B6	Picture music; a collection of classic
BODE, Wilhelm. Antique rugs from the near East. 3d	and modern compositions for the
rev. ed. 1922. q745 B6	organ especially adapted for moving
	pictures. [1919] 2 v. q786.8 B1
DEXTER, George Blake.	BECKWITH, Martha Warren.
The lure of amateur collecting, 1923.	Folk-games of Jamaica, with music.
749 D52	1922. (Publications of the Folk-
KEENER, Anna E.	lore foundation) 784.4 B39
Spontaneity in design. c1923. 745 K26	
THOMPSON, Bertha.	CLOKEY, Joseph W.
Rake knitting patterns. c1923.	In grandmother's garden; an operetta.
746 T 46	c1922. q782.8 C6
YOXALL, Sir James Henry,	Cooke, James Francis.
The A B C about collecting. 4th ed.	Standard history of music. c1910.
[1921] 749 Y83b	780.9 C77
PHOTOGRAPHY.	DAMROSCH, Walter Johannes.
DAVIS, William Steeple.	My musical life. 1923. 780.2 D16
Practical amateur photography. 1923.	Elson, Louis Charles.
(Useful knowledge books)	Curiosities of music. c1908.
770 D265	780.9 E49c
EASTMAN kodak company.	
The photography of colored objects.	FARNSWORTH, Charles Hubert, & Sharp,
5th ed. 1922. 778 E13	Cecil Jones, eds.
Wratten light filters. 5th ed. rev.	Folk-songs, chanteys and singing games. q7848 F2
1922. 771 E13w	Words and music.
FRAPRIE, Frank Roy.	words and music.
Practical printing processes. 18th	FARRELL, W. J.
thousand, rev. & enl. 1923. (Prac-	The true-tone violin. [1921]
tical photography) 770 F83pr	787.1 F24
LEE, Willis Thomas.	FLOWER, Walter Newman.
The face of the earth as seen from the	George Frideric Handel; his person-
air; a study in the application of	ality & his times, 1923.
airplane photography to geography.	780.2 H236f
1922: (American geographica)	
society. Special publication)	GIDDINGS, Thaddeus Philander [and
q770 L4	others] Songs of childhood, c1923. (Music
MAYER, Emil.	education series) 784.4 G45
Bromoil printing and bromoil transfer. 1923. 770 M46	
	HOFER, Mari Ruef.
SNODGRASS, Lloyd I.	Seasonal festivals and pageants. Spring
The science and practice of photo-	pantomime. c1916. (The child
graphic printing. 1923, 770 \$67	world playground series) q786.4 H6

793 C62p

 LANDORMY, Paul Charles René. A history of music, translated, with a supplementary chapter on American music, by Frederick H. Martens. 1923. 780.9 L26 LYLE, Watson. Camille Saint-Saëns, his life and art. 1923. (The musicians bookshelf) 780.2 S151 	WORK, Frederick J. Folk songs of the American negro 1907. 784.7 W920 Music. WORK, John Wesley. Folk songs of the American negro c1915. 784.7 W92 History.
 McSPADDEN, Joseph Walker. Stories from great operas. c1923. 782 M17s MARTENS, Frederick Herman. String mastery: talks with master violinists, viola players and violoncel- lists. 1923. 787 M37 NORDICA, Lillian. Lillian Nordica's hints to singers, together with an account of Lillian Nordica's training for the opera. c1923. 780.2 N83 	CHILDREN'S PLAYS. FOTHERINGHAM, E. M. Too much monkey; a play for sever boys. c1922. (French's plays for boys) 793.2 F76 GAIRDNER, William Henry Templeton. The good Samaritan; a New Testamen morality play in four scenes. 1923 793.2 G14 SMITH, Nora Archibald. Action poems and plays for children c1923. 793.2 S65ac
PARKER, Henry Taylor. Eighth notes. 1922. 780.4 P23 ROSENFELD, Paul. Musical chronicle (1917–1923). c1923. 780.4 R81m SCHUMANN, Robert Alexander. Schumann album of children's pieces	STEWART, Anna Bird. The belles of Canterbury. A play in one act for eleven girls. c1912. 793 S844 AMATEUR THEATRICALS. ANDERSON, Madge.
for piano, with illustrations by H. Willebeek Le Mair. q786.4 S39s SEYMOUR, Henry. The reproduction of sound. Being a description of the mechanical appli- ances and technical processes em- ployed in the art. [1918]	The heroes of the puppet stage. c1923 792 A5- BUENETT, Mrs Frances (Hodgson). Little Lord Fauntleroy; a drama in three acts. c1913. (French's inter national copyrighted edition of the works of the best authors) 793 B90
789.9 S52 TETRAZZINI, Mme. Luisa, How to sing. c1923. 784.9 T34 VOORHEES, Irving Wilson.	CAREY, Alice V. New names for old. c1923. (French's international copyrighted edition o the works of the best authors) 793 C2 CASTELL, C. A.
 Hygiene of the voice. 1923. 784.9 V95 WEDGE, George A. Advanced ear-training and sight-singing as applied to the study of harmony. c1922. q781 W3 WILLIAMS, J. Hugh. Voice production and breathing for concherence and fundamental studies for 	 Snowed-up with a duchess. c1906 (French's acting edition) 793 C34 CLEMENTS, Colin Campbell. Just women; a comedy in one act c1919. (French's international copy righted edition of the works of the best authors) 793 C62
speakers, and fundamental studies for singers. 1923. 784.9 W72	Plays for a folding theatre. c1923 793 C62

.

The is a substitution of the state of the second state of the state of the second stat	
 DARROW, James Wallace. Marches and drills, entertaining features easily adapted to use in the Grange and elsewhere. c1920. 793 D22 FENN, Frederick, & Pryce, Richard. 'Op-o'-me-thumb; a play in one act. c1904. (French's international copy- righted edition of the works of the best authors) 793 F33 	 PRICE, Graham. Marriages are made in heaven—and elsewhere. 1914. 793 P94 SPEARE, Florence Lewis. The star gleams; a community X-mas choral, "the story of the star" told entirely by use of community singing. c1922. 793 \$741 WISE, Claude Merton.
God's wonderland; a Christmas masque. 1922. 793 G58	Dramatics for school and community. c1923. 792 W81
HENRY, Theodore. Suggestions and arrangement for the presentation of a first part, old time, minstrel show. c1922. 793 H52	DANCING. BURCHENAL, Elizabeth. Folk-dancing as a popular recreation; a handbook. c1922. 793.1 B94
JACOBS, William Wymark. The monkey's paw; a story in three scenes. Dramatised by Louis N. Parker. c1910. (French's interna- tional copyrighted edition of the works of best authors) 793 J17m	CASKEY, George Martin. American clown, athletic dance for men or boys. c1916. q793.1 C3am ——— Athletic jubilee, a vigorous dance for men. c1911. q793.1 C3
JACOBS, William Wymark, & Rock, Charles. The ghost of Jerry Bundler. c1908. (French's international copyrighted edition of the works of the best authors) 793 J17	 Athletic pageant; a dance for men and boys. c1911. q793.1 C3p DAVIS, Helene. Complete guide to dancing. c1923. 793.1 D262
KUMMER, Mrs Clare (Beecher). Bridges. c 1922. 793 K96b	SPAČEK, Anna, & Boyd, Neva L. Folk dances of Bohemia and Moravia.
MCKINNEL, Norman. The Bishop's candlesticks; a play in one act. c1908. (French's interna- tional copyrighted edition of the works of the best authors) 793 M15	с1917. 793.1 \$73 Wнитworth, Geoffrey. The art of Nijinsky. 1913. 793.1 W62
MAPES, Victor. A flower of Yeddo; a Japanese comedy, in one act, in verse. Adapted from the French. c1906. (French's inter- national copyrighted edition of the works of the best authors) 793 M29	RECREATION. Collins, Francis Arnold. Mountain climbing. 1923. 796 C71 KETCHUM, Preston H. Checkers; the handy manual. c1923.
MEYER, Mrs Annie (Nathan). P's and Q's; a farce comedy in one act. c1921. (French's international copy- righted edition of the works of the	794 K43 LANIGAN, Ernest John. Baseball cyclopedia. c1922. 797 L28
best authors) 793 M61 MORRISON, Arthur, & Sargent, Herbert C. That brute Simmons; a play in one act adapted from [a] story in "Tales of	LASKER, Edward. Chess strategy, tr. by J. Du Mont. 5th ed. 1921. 794 L345c McGillVRAY, Ross.
mean streets." c1906. (French's international copyrighted edition of the works of the best authors)	Swimming and swimming strokes, 1923, 796 M14 MANSON, James Alexander.
702 M 979	Bowling 1923 796 M28

[Jan., 1924

RIPLEY, Robert L.	CHESTERTON, Gilbert Keith.
Spalding's official handball guide.	Fancies versus fads. 1923. 824 C52fa
c1923. (Spalding "red cover" series	CHEVRILLON, André.
of athletic handbooks) 797 R59	Three studies in English literature.
SHORTHOSE, William John Townsend.	1923. 820.4 C52
Sport & adventure in Africa. 1923.	
799 S 559	CICERO, Marcus Tullius.
SNYDER, Henry M.	Cicero. De senectute, De amicitia, De divinatione, with an English transla-
The ma-jung manual. 1923. 795 \$67	tion by William Armistead Falconer.
WALKER, Walton W.	1923. (The Loeb classical library)
"Inside" checkers; an exhaustive	875 C56s
analysis of selected games played be-	CLEMENS, Samuel Langhorne.
tween the best masters and amateurs.	Europe and elsewhere, by Mark Twain.
c1922. 794 W18	[pseud] c1923. 817 C62eu
WILCE, John Woodworth.	
Football, how to play it and how to	Collins, Joseph.
understand it. 1923. 797 W66	The doctor looks at literature; psycho- logical studies of life and letters.
Young, Franklin Knowles.	c1923. 804 C712
Field book of chess generalship; grand	Gift.
operations, 1923. 794 Y71f	Comment Trans
-	COOPER, Lane. The Poetics of Aristotle, its meaning
Young, Franklin Knowles, & Howell,	and influence. c1923. (Our debt
Edwin C. The minor tactics of chess. 1921.	to Greece and Rome) 888 C77
794 Y71m	,
101 1711	Dolch, Edward William.
LITERATURE.	Outlining for effective writing, c1923. 808 D66
BABENROTH, Adolph Charles.	
	ELTON, Oliver.
English childhood; Wordsworth's treat- ment of childhood in the light of	ELTON, Oliver. A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s
English childhood; Wordsworth's treat- ment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe.	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s
English childhood; Wordsworth's treat- ment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies	
English childhood; Wordsworth's treat- ment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative litera-	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15
English childhood; Wordsworth's treat- ment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA.
English childhood; Wordsworth's treat- ment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative litera- ture) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cun-	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from
English childhood; Wordsworth's treat- ment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative litera- ture) 821 W92zb BÂCOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cun- liffe, John William.	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the
English childhood; Wordsworth's treat- ment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative litera- ture) 821 W92zb BÂCOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cun- liffe, John William. French literature during the last half-	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen-
English childhood; Wordsworth's treat- ment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative litera- ture) 821 W92zb BÂCOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cun- liffe, John William.	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57
English childhood; Wordsworth's treat- ment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative litera- ture) 821 W92zb BÂCOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cun- liffe, John William. French literature during the last half-	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan.
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923.
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, wit, epigrams and reflections, by 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733 FRANCE, Anatole.
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, wit, epigrams and reflections, by Harry Rickel. 1923. 843 B19wr BARNES, Helen Elcessor. 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, wit, epigrams and reflections, by Harry Rickel. 1923. 843 B19wr BARNES, Helen Elcessor. A study of the variations between the 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733 FRANCE, Anatole.
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, wit, epigrams and reflections, by Harry Rickel. 1923. 843 B19wr BARNES, Helen-Elcessor. A study of the variations between the original and the standard editions of 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733 FKANCE, Anatole. The bloom of life. 1923. 843 F81bl GOSSE, Edmund William. More books on the table. 1923.
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, wit, epigrams and reflections, by Harry Rickel. 1923. 843 B19wr BARNES, Helen-Elcessor. A study of the variations between the original and the standard editions of Balzac's Les Chouans. [1923] 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733 FRANCE, Anatole. The bloom of life. 1923. 843 F81bl GOSSE, Edmund William.
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, wit, epigrams and reflections, by Harry Rickel. 1923. 843 B19wr BARNES, Helen Elcessor. A study of the variations between the original and the standard editions of Balzac's Les Chouans. [1923] 843 B19zba 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733 FKANCE, Anatole. The bloom of life. 1923. 843 F81bl GOSSE, Edmund William. More books on the table. 1923.
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, wit, epigrams and reflections, by Harry Rickel. 1923. 843 B19wr BARNES, Helen-Elcessor. A study of the variations between the original and the standard editions of Balzac's Les Chouans. [1923] 843 B19zba C'ERVANTES Saavedra, Miguel de 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733 FRANCE, Anatole. The bloom of life. 1923. 843 F81bl Gossse, Edmund William. More books on the table. 1923. 804 G67m
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, wit, epigrams and reflections, by Harry Rickel. 1923. 843 B19wr BARNES, Helen Elcessor. A study of the variations between the original and the standard editions of Balzac's Les Chouans. [1923] 843 B19zba CERVANTES Saavedra, Miguel de Novelas exemplares. Ed. pub. por 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733 FRANCE, Anatole. The bloom of life. 1923. 843 F81bl GOSSE, Edmund William. More books on the table. 1923. 804 G67m GOURMONT, Rémy de. The book of masks. 1921. 840.9 G71b
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, wit, epigrams and reflections, by Harry Rickel. 1923. 843 B19wr BARNES, Helen Elcessor. A study of the variations between the original and the standard editions of Balzac's Les Chouans. [1923] 843 B19zba CERVANTES Saavedra, Miguel de Novelas exemplares. Ed. pub. por Rodolfo Schevill y Adolfo Bonilla. 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733 FRANCE, Anatole. The bloom of life. 1923. 843 F81bl Gosse, Edmund William. More books on the table. 1923. 804 G67m GOURMONT, Rémy de. The book of masks. 1921. 840.9 G71b GRAHAM, Abbie.
 English childhood; Wordsworth's treatment of childhood in the light of English poetry from Prior to Crabbe. 1922. (Columbia university studies in English and comparative literature) 821 W92zb BACOURT, Pierre Dareutiere de, & Cunliffe, John William. French literature during the last halfcentury. 1923. 840.9 B12 BALZAC, Honoré de. The wisdom of Balzac; his philosophy, wit, epigrams and reflections, by Harry Rickel. 1923. 843 B19wr BARNES, Helen Elcessor. A study of the variations between the original and the standard editions of Balzac's Les Chouans. [1923] 843 B19zba CERVANTES Saavedra, Miguel de Novelas exemplares. Ed. pub. por 	A sheaf of papers. 1922. 824 E51s FAGIN, Nathan Bryllion. Short story writing. 1923. 808.3 F15 FLAMENCA. The story of Flamenca arranged from the Provençal original of the thirteenth century, by William Aspen- wall Bradley. 1922. 843 F57 FORSTER, Edward Morgan. Pharos and Pharillon. 1923. 824 F733 FRANCE, Anatole. The bloom of life. 1923. 843 F81bl Gosse, Edmund William. More books on the table. 1923. 804 G67m GOURMONT, Rémy de. The book of masks. 1921. 840.9 G71b GRAHAM, Abbie. Ceremonials of common days. c1923.

GREY, Pamela (Wyndham) Grey, vis- countess. Shepherd's crowns; a volume of essays. 1923. 824 G844	KIRKPATRICK, Frank Home. Public speaking, a natural method. c1923. 808.5 K59
GRIERSON, Herbert John Clifford. Classical and romantic. 1923. 824 G848	LAISTNER, M. L. W. Greek economics; introduction and translation. 1923. (Library of Greek thought) 888 L18
GUEDALLA, Philip.	LA ROCHEFOUCAULD, François VI, duc
Masters and men. 1923. 824 G92m	de, prince de Marsillac.
HANEMANN, Henry William. As is; a book of miscellaneous revela- tions. c1923. 817 H23	Maxims; tr. by John Heard, jr. c1917. 848 L32m
HANSEN, Harry. Midwest portraits. c1923. 810.9 H24	LAWRENCE, David Herbert. Studies in classic American literature. 1923. 810.9 L41
HARRISON, Frederic. De senectute; more last words, 1923. 824 H31d	LEACOCK, Stephen Butler. College days. 1923. 817 L43c
	LEVY, Reuben. Persian literature. 1923. ([The worlds manuals] Language & Lit- erature series) 891.5 L66
 HEARN, Lafcadio. Essays in European and Oriental literature; arranged and edited by Albert Mordell, 1923. 820.4 H43e 	LUCAS, Edward Verrall, comp. The open road; a little book for way- farers. 1923. 828 L930
HOLMES, Oliver Wendell.	You know what people are. 1923.
Address delivered at the dedication of	827 L93
the hall of the Boston medical	LYND, Robert.
library association. 1911.	Solomon in all his glory. 1923.
814 H75ad	824 L988so
Hooкнам, George.	MACHEN, Arthur.
Will o' the wisp; or, The elusive	Hieroglyphics, a note upon ecstasy in
Shakespeare. 1923. 822.33 ABhoo	literature. 1923. 801 M14
HUXLEY, Aldous Leonard.	MAIS, Stuart Petre Brodie.
On the margin; notes and essays.	Some modern authors. 1923.
c1923. 824 H9861	824 M23s
IRWIN, Wallace Admah.	MALLORY, Herbert Samuel, ed.
More letters of a Japanese schoolboy.	Background of book reviewing. 1923.
1923. c817 I72m	801 M25
JOHNSON, Lionel Pigot.	MATTHEWS, James Brander.
The art of Thomas Hardy. 1923.	Playwrights on playmaking. 1923.
828 H272zj	808.2 M43pl
KEARNEY, Paul William.	MORLEY, Christopher Darlington.
Toasts and anecdotes. c1923.	The powder of sympathy. 1923.
808.8 K24	814 M86po
KEEN, William Williams.	NICOLSON, Harold George.
Selected papers and addresses. c1923.	Tennyson, aspects of his life, character
814 K26	and poetry. 1923. 821.81 Bn
 KILMER, Mrs Aline (Murray). Hunting a hair shirt, and other spirit- ual adventures. c1923. 814 K48 	O'NEILL, James Milton, comp. Classified models of speech composition; ninety-five complete speeches. 1921. 808 5 058c

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

PHELPS, William Lyon. As I like it. 1923. 814 P54as ————————————————————————————————————	STEVENS, David Harrison, ed. 'Types of English drama, 1660-1780. c1923. 822.08
ture. c1923. (Dartmonth alumni	THOMAS, Henry.
lectureships on the Guernsey Center	Shakespeare and Spain. 1922. (The
Moore foundation) 810.9 P54	Taylorian lecture, 1922) 822.33 Fth
Ріткім, Walter Boughton. How to write stories. c1923. 808.3 Р68н	TOOMER, Jean. Cane. c1923. 818 T67
PONSONBY, Arthur Augustus William	UNTERMEYER, Louis.
Harry.	American poetry since 1900. 1923.
English diaries. [1923] 820.9 P79	811.09 U61am
Рум, Dora, ed.	 UZZELL, Thomas H. Narrative technique; a practical course
Readings from the literature of ancient	in literary psychology, based upon
Rome in English translations. 1923.	the theories and methods of Walter
878 Р99	B. Pitkin. c1923.
RINGWALT, Ralph CurtIs.	WALKEB, Mrs Janie (Roxburgh).
Brief drawing. 1923. 808.5 R58	Stories of the Victorian writers, by Mrs
Rolfe, John Carew.	Hugh Walker. 1922. 820.9 W18
Cicero and his influence. c1923. (Our debt to Greece and Rome) 875 C56zr SALMAGUNDI club, New York.	Contents: Thomas Carlyle.—Thomas Babington Macaulay.—John Ruskin.— Alfred Tennyson.—Robert Browning. —Elizabeth Barrett Browning.—Wil- liam Makepeace Thackeray.—Charles Dickens.—The Brontës.—George Eliot. —Elizabeth Cleghorn Gaskell.
New Salmagundi papers; series of	WILLIAMS, Stanley Thomas.
1922. [1922] 810.8 S17	Studies in Victorian literature. c1923.
SAUNDERS, Henry Scholey.	820.4 W72
Parodies on Walt Whitman. 1923. 817 S25	POETRY.
SCHELLING, Felix Emmanuel.	AIKEN, Conrad Potter.
Foreign influence in Elizabethan plays.	The pilgrimage of Festus. 1923.
1923. 822.09 \$32f	811 A29pi
Contents: Jonson and the classics. Shakespeare and the lure of Italy.— French influences at court and else- where.— Spanish influences on Fletcher, and after. SHARP, Dallas Lore. The magical chance. 1923. 814 S53m	ANTHOLOGIA graeca. Selections. Greek and English. Amaranth and Asphodel, poems from the Greek anthology, done into Eng- lish verse by A. J. Butler. 1923.
SIRICH, Edward Hinman, & Barton,	881 A62g
Francis B., eds.	BACON, Mrs Josephine Dodge (Daskam).
Harper's French anthology, XVII,	Truth o' women. 1923. 811 B12t
XVIII-XIX centuries, 1923.	BLUNT, Wilfrid Scawen.
840.8 S61 SMITH, Charles Alphonso, ed. Essays on current themes. c1923. 814 S64 SPENCE, Lewis. Legends & romances of Spain. [1920] 860 S74	Poems. 1923. 821 B65po CERVANTES SAAVEDRA, Miguel de. Viage del Parnaso; ed. pub. por Ro- dolfo Scheville, y Adolfo Bonilla. 1922. (<i>His</i> Obras completas) 861 C41
SPENCER, Herbert.	GIFFORD, Mrs Fannie Stearns (Davis).
Various fragments, Enl. ed., 1907.	The ancient beautiful things. 1923.
824 \$74v	811 G458an

GORMAN, Jean Wright, & Gorman, Her-	PINDARUS.
bert S., comps.	Pindar in English verse, 1922.
The Peterborough anthology; being a	884 P64w
selection from the work of the poets	RILEY, James Whitcomb.
who have been members of the Mac-	Riley songs of home. c1923.
Dowell colony. 1923. 811.08 G67	
Dowell Cololly, 1525. 611.06 Gor	811 R57rs
GRAVES, Robert.	SHIMIZU, Kashin.
Whipperginny. 1923. 821 G7762w	Wind of spring. c1923. 895.1 \$55
whipperginny. 1925. 621 G/762w	Gift.
GUEST, Edgar Albert.	
	SQUIRE, John Collings.
Poems of patriotism. c1922.	American poems, and others. c1923.
811 G93p	821 S77am
GUITERMAN, Arthur.	
The light guitar. c1923. 811 G961	THOMAS, Anglo-Norman poet, 12th cent.
	The romance of Tristram and Ysolt.
HASTINGS, Cristel.	c1923. 841 T45
Here and there in the Yosemite. 1923.	
c811 H357	VEDDER, Elihu.
HEINE, Heinrich.	Doubt and other things, verse and
Poems (rev. ed.). Selected and tr. by	illustrations. 1922. q811 V4
	mustrations. 1922. doit v4
Louis Untermeyer. c1923.	VILDBAC, Charles.
831.75 O2u	, .
KREYMBORG, Alfred.	A book of love, tr. by Witter Bynner.
Less lonely. c1923. 811 K92	c1923. 841 V69b
	Warnen Amer Miner
LEWIS, Edwin Herbert.	WILDER, Amos Niven.
University of Chicago poems. c1923.	Battle-retrospect, and other poems.
811 L673	1923. (The Yale series of younger
	poets) 811 W673
LINDSAY, Nicholas Vachel.	
Collected poems. 1923. 811 L74co	WORDSWORTH, William.
Teneres Deve Dellas f	The Ecclesiastical sonnets; a critical
LYMAN, Dean Belden, jr.	
The last lutanist, and other poems.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts.
	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English)
The last lutanist, and other poems.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets)	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English)
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921-23. c808.105 L99	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92ро DRAMA. Асоsта, Mercedes de.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921-23. c808.105 L99	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92ро DRAMA. Асоsта, Mercedes de.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921-23. C808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son).	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting;
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921-23. MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting ; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921-23. MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting;
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921-23. MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée: Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921-23. MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée: Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWRER, Paul Scott.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag-
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po Morgan, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 Mowrer, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWRER, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting ; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains ; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWREE, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936 OWEN, Frank.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921-23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWRER, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting ; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains ; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWRER, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936 OWEN, Frank. California sonnets. c1923. c811 O97	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting ; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains ; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb BAKER, Elizabeth.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWRER, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936 OWEN, Frank. California sonnets. c1923. c811 O97 PALMER, Walter Butler.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée: Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb BAKER, Elizabeth. Partnership; a comedy in three acts. c1921. (French's acting edition)
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWRER, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936 OWEN, Frank. California sonnets. c1923. c811 O97	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée: Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb BAKEB, Elizabeth. Partnership; a comedy in three acts.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWRER, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936 OWEN, Frank. California sonnets. c1923. c811 O97 PALMER, Walter Butler. Heart throbs and hoof beats; poems	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb BAKER, Elizabeth. Partnership; a comedy in three acts. c1921. (French's acting edition) 822 B16
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWRER, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936 OWEN, Frank. California sonnets. c1923. c811 O97 PALMER, Walter Butler. Heart throbs and hoof beats; poems of track, stable and fireside. 1922.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée : Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb BAKER, Elizabeth. Partnership; a comedy in three acts. c1921. (French's acting edition) 822 B16 ——— The price of Thomas Scott; a
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWREE, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936 OWEN, Frank. California sonnets. c1923. c811 O97 PALMER, Walter Butler. Heart throbs and hoof beats; poems of track, stable and fireside. 1922. c811 P177	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée: Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb BAKER, Elizabeth. Partnership; a comedy in three acts. c1921. (French's acting edition) 822 B16 —— The price of Thomas Scott; a play in three acts. 1923.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWRER, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936 OWEN, Frank. California sonnets. c1923. c811 O97 PALMER, Walter Butler. Heart throbs and hoof beats; poems of track, stable and fireside. 1922. c811 P177 PASCOLI, Giovanni.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée: Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb BAKER, Elizabeth. Partnership; a comedy in three acts. c1921. (French's acting edition) 822 B16 —— The price of Thomas Scott; a play in three acts. 1923. 822 B16p
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWREE, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936 OWEN, Frank. California sonnets. c1923. c811 O97 PALMEE, Walter Butler. Heart throbs and hoof beats; poems of track, stable and fireside. 1922. c811 P177 PASCOLI, Giovanni. Poems of Giovanni Pascoli, freely ren-	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée: Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb BAKER, Elizabeth. Partnership; a comedy in three acts. c1921. (French's acting edition) 822 B16 —— The price of Thomas Scott; a play in three acts. 1923. 822 B16p BARKEE, Harley Granville.
The last lutanist, and other poems. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 L98 THE Lyric West; a magazine of verse. 2 v. 1921–23. c808.105 L99 MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp- son). Poems. Complete ed. 1923. 821 M61po MORGAN, Angela. Because of beauty. 1922. 811 M847 MOWRER, Paul Scott. The good comrade and Fairies. c1923. 811 M936 OWEN, Frank. California sonnets. c1923. c811 O97 PALMER, Walter Butler. Heart throbs and hoof beats; poems of track, stable and fireside. 1922. c811 P177 PASCOLI, Giovanni.	edition by Abbie Findlay Potts. 1922. (Cornell studies in English) 821 W92po DRAMA. ACOSTA, Mercedes de. Sandro Botticelli. 1923. 812 A18 AKINS, Zoë. Déclassée: Daddy's gone a-hunting; and Greatness—a comedy. 1923. 812 A31 ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich. Samson in chains; posthumous trag- edy, tr. by Herman Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55sb BAKEB, Elizabeth. Partnership; a comedy in three acts. c1921. (French's acting edition) 822 B16 ————————————————————————————————————

[Jan., 1924]

BARNARD, Charles, & Burgess, Neil. ELLIS, Edith. "Contrary Mary"; a comedy in three The county fair: a comedy in four c1922. (French's standard acts. c1912. "(French's international acts. library edition). 812 B25 copyrighted ed, of the works of the best authors) 812 E46 BEITH, John Hay. Tilly of Bloomsbury; a comedy in FITZGERALD, Francis Scott Key. three acts, by Ian Hay [pseud]. The vegetable; or, From president to Rev., 1922. (French's acting edipostman. 1923. 812 F55 822 B42 tion) FORREST. Charles. Adapted from the author's novel, "Happy go lucky." The shepherd; a one-act rural play. (Repertory plays) 822 F72 1922.BELL, John Joy. The pie in the oven, a comedy in one GALSWORTHY, John. act. 1922. (Repertory plays) Plays. Second series : The eldest son, 822 B433 The little dream, Justice. [1913] BENEDIX, Roderich. 822 G17pl The law-suit; a comedy in one act, tr. GAY. John. by Barrett H. Clark. c1915. (World's 1923. g822 G2p Polly. best plays, by celebrated European Being the second part of the Begauthors) 832 B46 gar's opera. GERSTENBERG, Alice. BRIGHOUSE, Harold. A little world; a series of college plays The happy hangman; a grotesque in for girls. [3d ed.] c1923. 1922. one act. (Repertory plays) 812 G38! 822 B855ha Contents: The class president.-Captain Joe .- Betty's degree .- The CAMERON, Margaret (Mrs H. C. Lewis). class play. c1905. The piper's pay. (French's international convrighted edition of GILLMAN, F. J. the works of the best authors) The two pilgrims; founded on Tolsc312 C18p toy's Russian story, "Two old men." [1920] (Little plays) 891.72 G48 - The teeth of the gift horse. (French's international copyrighted GORDON. Leon. The gentleman ranker, and other plays. edition of the works of the best 812 G66 authors) c812 C18t 1919. Contents: The gentleman ranker.— As a pal.—Leave the woman out, in collaboration with Charles King. CHAMBERS, Charles Haddon. [1902] The tyranny of tears. 822 C44t HEMMERDE, Edward George, & Neilson, COOKE, Marjorie Benton. Francis. Dramatic episodes. 4th ed. F19231 A butterfly on the wheel; a play in 812 C771d c1922. (French's actfour acts. Contents: A court comedy.—Man-ners and modes.—The confessional.— The child in the house.—The lion and the lady.—Success.—Lady Betty's burglar.—A dinner—with complica-tions.—Reform.—When love is young. ing edition) 822 H48 HOUSMAN, Laurence. The Chinese lantern, 1921. 822 H84c IWASAKI, Yozan T. & Hughes, Glenn trs. - More modern monologues. [Sth Three modern Japanese plays. c1923. ed.] [1923] 812 C771m 895.2 196 DENNY, Ernest. Contents: Introduction .- The razor, by K. Nakamura.—The madman on the roof, by K. Kikuchi.—Nari-kin, by Y. T. Iwasaki. Just like Judy; a light comedy in three acts. c1922. (French's acting edi-822 D41i tion) JACKSON, Fred. A full house; a farce in three acts. DRINKWATER, John. e1922. [1923] (French's standard library . Robert E. Lee; a play. 812 J12 822 D78r edition)

JENNINGS, Gertrude E.	NEWTON, Alfred Edward.
Four one act plays: The rest cure— Between the soup and the savoury—	Doctor Johnson ; a play. 1923.
The pros and cons—Acid drops.	812 N55
[1914] 822 J54	NICHOLSON, Meredith, & Nicholson, Kenyon.
The young person in pink; a	Honor bright. c1923, (French's
comedy in three acts. (French's act-	standard library edition) 812 N62
ing edition) c1921. 822 J54y	PALMER, John.
JONES, Henry Arthur.	Over the hills; a comedy in one act.
Dolly reforming herself; a comedy in	1914. (Sidgwick & Jackson's series
four acts. c1910. 822 J77do	of one-act plays) 822 P174
KUMMER, Mrs Clare (Beecher).	PERTWEE, Roland.
"Be calm, Camilla !" A comedy in	The odd streak, a play in one act.
two acts. c1922. (French's stand- ard library edition) 812 K96	c1920. (French's acting edition)
ard horary edition) 812 K96	822 P4690
The rescuing angel; a comedy in	Postal orders; a farce. c1919.
three acts. c1923. (French's stand-	(French's acting edition) 822 P469
ard library edition) 812 K96r	PHILLPOTTS, Eden, & Groves, Charles.
LENORMAND, Henri René.	A golden wedding; an original comedy
Failures; a play in fourteen scenes, tr.	in one act. c1899. (French's inter-
from the French by Winifred Katzin. Time is a dream; a play in six	national copyrighted ed. of the works
scenes. 1923. 842 L57	of the best authors) 822 P565g
	PINERO, Sir Arthur Wing.
LOUDEN, Thomas, & Thomas, Albert	Letty, an original drama in four acts
Ellsworth.	and an epilogue, 1904. 822 P65le
The champion; a comedy in three acts. c1922. (French's standard library	Playgoers. c1923. (French's
edition) 812 L88	international copyrighted ed. of the
	works of the best authors)
Loving, Pierre, ed.	822 P65pl
Ten minute plays. c1923. 808.2 L91 Contents: Prologue for a marionette	SEARLE, Katherine. Two plays; Roderick's career, Game!
theatre, by H. von Hoffmannstahl	1920. 812 S 439
by A. Schnitzler.—In the darkness, by	SHAY, Frank, cd.
D. Totheroh.—Pandora's box, by J. G. Amend.—Scruples, by O. Mirbeau	A treasury of plays for men, 1923.
-Firefly night, by M. J. DorffA	812.08 \$53t
Contents: Prologue for a marionette theatre, by H. von Hoffmannstahl.— Echo, by J. T. Shipley.—Living hours, by A. Schnitzler.—In the darkness, by D. Totheroh.—Pandora's box, by J. G. Amend.—Scruples, by O. Mirbeau. —Firefly night, by M. J. Dorff.—A matter of husbands, by F. Molnar.— Philanthrophy, by F. G. Tompkins.— At the setting of the sun, by P. Louys.—Yesterday, by C. C. Clements. —The stronger, by A. Strindberg.— Indian summer, by P. Loving.—The white lie, by Marie Metz Koning.	
Louys.—Yesterday, by C. C. Clements.	SHELLEY, Mrs Mary Wollstonecraft (Godwin).
-The stronger, by A. Strindberg Indian summer, by P. Loving-The	Proserpine & Midas; two unpublished
white lie, by Marie Metz Koning.	mythological dramas. 1922.
MAETERLINCK, Maurice.	822 \$ 545
The cloud that lifted, and The power	SHIPMAN, Louis Evan.
of the dead. Tr. by F. M. Atkinson.	Three comedies; On parole, The foun-
1923. 842 M18c	tain of youth, Fools errant. 1923.
MASEFIELD, John.	812 \$557
A king's daughter: a tragedy in verse.	STRACK, Lilian Holmes.
1923. 822 M39k	Winning monologues for contests and public speaking, c1923. 812 S89
MONKHOUSE, Allan.	
The education of Mr. Surrage; a	
comedy in four acts1913. 822 M74e	Mollentrave on women; a comedy in three acts. c1905. 822 \$96mo
X77 M//10	three acts, c1905. 822 \$96mo

THOMAS, Albert Ellsworth. Only 38; a comedy in three acts. c1922. (French's standard library edition) 812 T4540	KYNE, Peter Bernard. Never the twain shall meet. 1923. cK99n
TOLER, Sidney, & Short, Marion. Golden days; a comedy in four acts.	MIGHELS, Mrs Ella Sterling (Clark). Wawona. c1921. cC9713w
c1921. (French's standard library edition) 812 T64	NORRIS, Charles Gilman. Bread. c1923. cN854br
TOMPKINS, Frank Gerow. The letters. c1923. (Stewart Kidd little theatre plays) and 812 T65	REEPMAKER, Michael. The birth of humanity. (Sequel to "Tuned higher than the race") 1923. CR3272b
UNGER, Gladys.	Gift.
Our Mr Hepplewhite; a comedy in three acts. c1919. (French's act- ing edition)822 U57	Tuned higher than the race. c1923. cR3273 Gift.
WADE, Leila A.	RICH, Winifred.
Plays from Browning, 1923. 822 W119	Tony's white room and how the white
WALKER, Stuart. Nevertheless. c1923. (Stewart Kidd	rose of love bloomed and flourished there. [1911] cR499
little theatre plays) 812 W18n	SINCLAIR, Mrs Bertha (Muzzy).
WEBBER, James Plaisted. The golden arrow. 1922. 812 W37	The Parowan bonanza, by B. M. Bower [pseud] 1923. cS616p
WILDE, Percival. The reckoning. 1922. 812 W672r	TAYLOR, Mrs Ada White. The mystic spell; a metaphysical romance, c1923. cT238
WISTER, Owen.	Gift.
Watch your thirst; a dry opera in three acts. 1923. q812 W8	WELCKER, Adair. Snob papers, a humorous novel. c1885.
CALIFORNIA FICTION.	cW442
AIKEN, Mrs Ednah (Robinson).	WILSON, Harry Leon. Oh, doctor! 1923. cW7480
If today be sweet. 1923. cA291f	
BURROUGHS, Edgar Rice. The girl from Hollywood. c1923.	WITWER, Harry Charles. Fighting blood. 1923. cW832
cB9721	BIOGRAPHY: COLLECTIVE.
ELIAS, Solomon Philip. Dreams come true, 1923. cE42	ANNUAIRE international des lettres et
GRECORY, Jackson.	des arts. 1922. r920.044 A6
Timber-Wolf. 1923. cG822t	As they are; French political portraits; translated from the French by Wini-
HANKINS, Arthur Preston.	fred Katzin. 1923. 923.2 A79
Falcon, of Squawtooth; a western story. c1923. cH241f	Contents: Georges Clemenceau. Joseph Caillaux.—Henry Chéron.— Maurice_Colrat.—Paul Doumer.—
The valley of Arcana. 1923. cH241v	Maurice Coirat.—Paul Doumer.— Pierre Forgeot.—Edouard Herriot.— Charles Jonnart.—André Lefèvre.— Louis Loucheur.—Georges Mandel.—
HART, Jerome Alfred.	Alexandre Millerand.—Paul Painlevė. —Raoul Péret.—André Tardieu.—
The Golconda bonanza. c1923.	Anatole de Monzie.—Maurice Bok- anowski.—René Viviani.—Aristide
cH325g IBWIN, Wallace Admah.	Briand.—Raymond Poincaré.—Louis Barthou.—Léon Bérard.—Henry Bé-
Lew Tyler's wives. 1923. cl7241	renger.—A n d r é Berthelot.—Marshal Foch.—Maurice Maunoury.

.

BALD, Marjory Amelia. Women-writers of the nineteenth cen- tury. 1923. 928.2 B17	Colonna. JERBOLD, Mrs Maud F. Vittoria Colonna. 1906. B C719j
	Crockett. CROCKETT, David.
Collins, Frederick Lewis.	Autobiography, with an introduction by
This king business, 1923. 923.1 C71	Hamlin Garland. c1923. (Modern
DARROW, Floyd Lavern.	students library. American division) B C938
Masters of science and invention.	
c1923. 925 D22	Curie. CURIE, Mme Marie (Sklodowska).
DIXON, Willis Milnor.	Pierre Curie; tr. by Charlotte and Ver-
Kith and kin. c1922. c929.2 D62d	non Kellogg, 1923. B C975c
Gift.	Curtis. Bok, Edward William.
Du Bois de la Villerabel, Arthur.	A man from Maine. 1923. B C9781b
vicomte.	Custer. CUSTER, Mrs Elizabeth (Bacon).
La legende merueilleuse de Monseig-	Following the guidon. [1890]
neur Saint Yues. 1889. q922 D8	B C987cf
HILLIS, Newell Dwight.	
Great men as prophets of a new era.	Davis. ECKENRODE, Hamilton James.
c1922. 920 H65	Jefferson Davis, president of the South. 1923. B D262e
Manager The American	1323. D D 2026
MASSON, Thomas Lansing. Our American humorists. 1922.	Duff. PATON, William.
928.1 M42	Alexander Duff, pioneer of missionary
	education. [1923] B D855p
"Who's who in Canada." 1922. r920.071 W62a	Dunraven. DUNBAVEN, Windham Thomas
r920.071 W 62a	Wyndham-Quin, 4th earl of.
BIOGRAPHY: INDIVIDUAL.	Past times and pastimes. [1922] 2v.
Adams, HARLOW, Ralph Volney.	B D925
Samuel Adams, promoter of the Ameri-	Elliott. ELLIOTT, Mrs Maud (Howe).
can revolution, 1923. B A217hr	Three generations. 1923. B E46
D. M. S. D. B.	
Baldwin. BALDWIN, James. In the days of my youth. c1923.	Fabre. BICKNELL, Percy Favor. The human side of Fabre. 1923.
B B181	B F123b
Beaumarchais. RIVERS, John.	
Figaro: the life of Beaumarchais.	Ford. BENSON, Allan Louis.
[1922] B B378r	The new Henry Ford. 1923. B F699be
	B F099be
Biddle. BIDDLE, Mrs Ellen McGowan.	Fulton. PARSONS, William Barclay.
Reminiscences of a soldier's wife. 1907. cB B584	Robert Fulton and the submarine. 1922.
Browning. BROWNING, Oscar.	B F974p
Memories of later years, [1923]	Cibbo Cuppe Sin Dhilin Hamilton
B B8857m	Gibbs. GIBBS, Sir Philip Hamilton. Adventures in journalism. c1923.
Burns. HUGHES, James Laughlin.	B G444
The real Robert Burns, 1922.	
B B967hu	Guincy. TENISON, Eva Mabel.
Chastarton Drivppoor Detrick	Louise Imogen Guiney, her life and works, 1861–1920. 1923. B G964t
Chesterton. BRAYBROOKE, Patrick. Gilbert Keith Chesterton. [1922]	
B C526b	Haeckel. HAECKEL, Ernst Heinrich Phil-
	ipp August.
Coleman, BANCROFT, Hubert Howe.	The story of the development of a youth,
History of the life of William T. Cole- man. 1891. cB C692b	translated by G. Barry Gifford. 1923. B H133
	- D 11100

[Jan., 1924

- Hall. HALL, Granville Stanley.
 Life and confessions of a psychologist.
 1923. B H176
- Harding. BLYTHE, Samuel George. A calm review of a calm man. 1923. B H263b
- Lidwina. HUYSMANS, Joris Karl. Saint Lydwine of Schiedam. Tr. from the French by Agnes Hastings. 1923. B L715h
- Lincoln. GUNN, Benjamin J. Life of Abraham Lincoln in verse. c1914. B L736gu
- McCowen. HORTON, Emily McCowen. Our family; with a glimpse of their pioneer life. 1922. cB M1319h Gift of Mila Landis.
- Macrobius. WHITTAKER, Thomas. Macrobius; or, Philosophy, science and letters in the year 400. 1923. B M1744w
- McWilliams. McWilliams, John. Recollections; his youth, experience in California and the civil war

Gift.

- Northeliffe. NORTHCLIFFE, Alfred Charles William Harmsworth, 1st viscount. My journey round the world (16 July 1921-Feb. 1922). [1923] B N873
- Page. HENDRICK, Burton Jesse. The life and letters of Walter Hines Page. 1922. 2 v. B P1331h
- Page. PAGE, Rosewell. Thomas Nelson Page; a memoir of a Virginia gentleman. 1923.

B P133p

cB M1774

- Parkhurst. PARKHURST, Charles Henry. My forty years in New York. 1923. B P246
- Pupin. PUPIN, Michael Idvorsky. From immigrant to inventor, 1923. B P984
- Sanderson, SANDERSON of Oundle, 1923. B \$194
- Scott. SCOTT, Mrs Evelyn. Escapade. 1923. B S425
- Shackleton. MILL, Hugh Robert. The life of Sir Ernest Shackleton. 1923. B \$5241m

- Stevenson. KELMAN, John.
- The faith of Robert Louis Stevenson. [2d ed.] [1904] B S848k
- Washington. LOWTHER, Minnie Kendall. Mount Vernon, Arlington and Woodlawn; history of these national shrines from the earliest titles of ownership to the present. 1922. **B W318**Iw
- Weigall. WEIGALL, Caroline Rachel Selina. Lady Rose Weigall. 1923. B W419w
- Wiggin. WIGGIN, Kate Douglas (Smith) "Mrs G. C. Riggs."
 - My garden of memory; an autobiography. c1923. **B W654**
- Wordsworth. LEGOUIS, Émile Hyacinthe. Wordsworth in a new light. 1923.

B W926le

HISTORY: EUROPE.

- BARNOUW, Adriaan Jacob. Holland under Queen Wilhelmina. 1923. 949.2 B29
- BEALS. Carleton. Rome or death; the story of fascism. 1923. 945 B36
- BUCHANAN, Sir George William. My mission to Russia and other diplomatic memories. 1923. 2 v.

947 B91

- CHAMPNEY, Mrs Elizabeth (Williams). Romance of the Bourbon châteaux. 1923, 944.03 C45
 - —— The romance of the feudal châteaux, 1911. 944.02 C45r
 - ----- Romance of the renaissance châteaux. 1923. 944.02 C45
- EARLE, Edward Mead. Turkey, the great powers, and the Bagdad railway, 1923. 949.6 E12
- FYVIE, John. The story of the Borgias. 1912. 945 F99
- GOOCH, George Peabody. History of modern Europe, 1878–1919. 1923. 940.9 G64h
- KEUN, Odette.
 - My adventures in bolshevik Russia. 1923. 947.08 K43

Originally written and published in French, under title Sous Lénine.

MORRIS, Ira Nelson. From an American legation. 1923. 948.5 M87

- ONCKEN, Hermann. The historical Rhine policy of the French. 1923. (The Freeman pamphlets) 943.4 058
- POSTGATE, Raymond William. Out of the past. 1923. 944.04 P85
- STONE, Thora Guinevere.
 England under the restoration (1660–1688). 1923. (University of London intermediate source-books of history) 942.06 S88

WILHELM II, German emperor.

The Kaiser's memoirs. English tr. by Thomas R. Ybarra, 1922.

943.08 W67k

ASIA.

FUJISAWA, Rikitaro.
 The recent aims and political development of Japan. 1923. (Institute of politics publications. Williams college)
 952 F96

- HOLMES, Mary Caroline. Between the lines in Asia Minor. c1923. 956 H75
- NORTON, Henry Kittredge. The Far Eastern Republic of Siberia. 1923. 957 N88
- STEPHENS, Henry Morse. Albuquerque. 1912. (Rulers of India) 954 \$83
- VAN TYNE, Claude Halstead. India in ferment, 1923. 954 V28

AFRICA.

- DE BURGH-EDWARDES, S. B. The history of Mauritius (1507-1914). 1921. 969 D28
- JOHNSON, Samuel. The history of the Yorubas from the earliest times to the beginning of the British protectorate, Ed. by O. Johnson, 1921. 960.9 J69

SCHREINER, Olive. Thoughts on South Africa. 1923. 968 \$37

BUTLER. Nicholas Murray. Building the American nation. 1923. 973 B986 GUTTRIDGE, George Herbert. The colonial policy of William III in America and the West Indies. 1922. 973.2 G98 HUNTINGTON, Joshua. & Huntington, Jedediah. Huntington papers. 1923. (Collections of the Connecticut historical society. 974.6 C75 vol. xx) JANVIER, Thomas Allibone. In old New York, c1923, 974.71 J35 LINDOUIST, Gustavus Elmer Emanuel. The red man in the United States. c1923. 970.1 L74 MALONE, James Henry. The Chickasaw nation. 1922. 970.3 M25 MORISON, Samuel Eliot. A prologue to American history. 1922. 973 M86 SMITH, Mrs Nancy W. Paine. The Provincetown book. c1922. 974.4 S65 PRIESTLEY, Herbert Ingram. The Mexican nation. 1923. 972 P94m TUOMEY, Honoria, & Emparan, Luisa Vallejo. History of the Mission. Presidio and Pueblo of Sonoma. 1923. c979.418 T92 WEST. Willis Mason.

NORTH AMERICA.

History of the American people, c1922. 973 W52h

ANCIENT.

- ABBOTT, Frank Frost.
 Roman politics. c1923. (Our debt to Greece and Rome)
 937 A12
 BUDGE, Sir Ernest Alfred Thompson Wallis.
 - Tutānkhāmen, Amenism, Atenism and Egyptian monotheism. 1923.

JAMES, Henry Rosher. Our Hellenic heritage. v. 1, 1921. 938 J27

81

6-30809

⁹³² B92

come to make the second state of the second state

JEEOME, Thomas Spencer. Aspects of the study of Roman history. 1923. 937 J56as	JENKINS, Rolland. The Mediterranean cruise; an up-to- date and concise handbook for trav- elers. 1923. 910.4 J52
JOHNS, Claude Hermann Walter. Ancient Babylonia. 1913. (The Cam- bridge manuals of science and liter- ature) 935.4 J65	LOBENZ, Daniel Edward. The new Mediterranean traveler; a handbook of practical information.
NAHAS, Bishara. The life and times of Tut-Ankh-Amen. 1923. 932 N15 O'LEARY, De Lacy Evans.	7th (post-war) ed. c1922. 910.4 L86 TATCHELL, Frank. The happy traveler; a book for poor men. 1923. 910 T21
A short history of the Fatimid khali- fate. 1923. (Trubner's oriental series) 932 O45	VEBRILL, Alpheus Hyatt. In the wake of the buccaneers. 1923. 910 V55
EUROPEAN WAR.	EUROPE.
CHURCHILL, Winston Leonard Spencer.	ABRAM, Annie.
The world crisis. 1923. 2v. 940.934 C56 GIBBONS, Herbert Adams.	English life and manners in the later middle ages. 1913. 914.2 A16
Europe since 1918. 1923.	CASEY, Robert J.
940.98 G441 Jones, Elias Henry. The road to En-Dor. 1920.	The lost kingdom of Burgundy. 1923. 914.44 C33
940.936 J76	CRICHTON, Charles H.
LYON, Laurance.	The lure of old Paris. 1923.
When there is no peace. c1923.	914.43 C55
940.91 L99	ERSKINE, Beatrice, "Mr's Steuart
STRAUB, Elmer Frank. A sergeant's diary in the world war.	Erskine."
1923. (Indiana historical collec- tions, vol. x) 940.935 S91	Madrid, past and present. 1922. 914.64 E73
THOMPSON, Basil Home.	GRESS, Edmund Geiger.
My experiences at Scotland yard. 1923. 940.921 T48	A dash through Europe, with snapshots by the way, including "how I planned the trip, and what I found out of
London edition (Hodder and Stoughton, ltd.) has title: Queer people.	value to others." 1923. 914 G83 HIELSCHER, Kurt.
WOOLDRIDGE, Jesse Walton.	Picturesque Spain; architecture, land-
The giants of the Marne; a story of	scape, life of the people. [1922]
McAlexander and his regiment. c1923.	q914.6 H6
c940.9731 W9 1	LONG, A. W.
GEOGRAPHY AND TRAVEL.	Irish sport of yesterday; sports, types and yarns of western Ireland life.
FRENCH, Joseph Lewis. Thrilling escapes. 1923. 910 F87	1923. 914.15 L84
	OAKLEY, Amy.
GOLDER, Frank Alfred.	Hill-towns of the Pyrenees. 1923. 914.6 O11
Bering's voyages; an account of the efforts of the Russians to determine	
the relation of Asia and America.	OSBORNE, Albert B. As it is in England. 1923. 914.2 081
1922. (American geographical society.	
Research series) 910 G61	PRIOLEAU, John.
HILDEBBAND, Arthur Sturges.	The adventures of Imshi; a two-seater in search of the sun. 1923.
Blue water. c1923. 910 H64	

VOI. 19, 10. 1] CALIFORNIA S	TATE LIBRARY. 03
SELIVANOVA, Nina Nikolaevna. Russia's women. c1923. 914.7 S46	FRENCH, Joseph Lewis. The pioneer West. 1923. 917.8 F87
SHERIDAN, Mrs Clare Consuelo (Frewen).West and East. c1923.914 \$55	LOFTHOUSE, Joseph. A thousand miles from a postoffice. 1922. 917.12 L82
SMITH, Cicely Fox.Sailor town days, 1923.914.21\$64	MANUFACTUBERS' record, Baltimore.
ASIA.	Blue book of southern progress. 1923. 917.5 M29
FRANCK, Harry Alverson. Wandering in northern China. c1923. 915.2 F79	QUINN, Vernon. Beautiful America. 1923. 917.3 Q7 RAND, McNally & co.
Holm, Frits Vilhelm. My Nestorian adventure in China. 1923. 915.1 H74	San Francisco, Oakland and other bay cities; a visitor's guide. 1923. c917.9461 R13
THE Indian year book. 10th. 1923. r915.4 139	RIDER, Arthur Fremont, & Cooper, Fred- eric Taber, eds.
McCormick, Elsie. Audacious angles on China. 1923. 915.1 M13	Rider's New York city; a guide book for travelers. 2d ed. 1923. 917.471 R54a
NORDEN, Hermann. From Golden Gate to golden sun; a record of travel, sport and observa- tion in Siam and Malaya. 1923. 915.9 N82	RIDER, Arthur Fremont. Rider's Washington; a guide book for travelers. 1922. 917.53 R54
OSSENDOWSKI, Ferdinand. Beasts, men and gods. c1922. 915 O84	PACIFIC ISLES. CARPENTER, Frank George.
WHITE, Sir Herbert Thirkell. Burma. 1923. (Provincial geographies of India) 915.92 W58	Java and the East Indies. 1923. (Carpenter's world travels) 919.1 C29 CLOMAN, Sydney Amos.
NORTH AMERICA.	Myself and a few Moros. 1923. 919.14 C64
BRADLEY, Arthur Granville. Canada. [1912] (Home university library of modern knowledge)	O'BRIEN, Frederick. Atolls of the sun. 1922. 919.6 O13at
917.1 B81c	SOUTH AMERICA.
CARPENTER, Frank George. Alaska, our northern wonderland. 1923. (Carpenter's world travels)	EL ANUARIO ARGENTINO. Decimaquinta ed. 1923. qr918.2 A6
917.98 C29	LANGE, Algot.
FAGAN, James Octavius. The Old South; or The romance of	The lower Amazon. 1914. 918.1 L271
early New England history. 1923.	MAY, Mrs Stella Burke.
917.44 F15	Men, maidens and mantillas. 1923. 918 M46
FARIS, John Thomson. Seeing the middle West. 1923. 917.7 F22	FRENCH.
FREDERICK, Justus George.	ANNUAIBE Général de la France et de
Adventuring in New York. 1923. 917.471 F85	l'etranger. 1922. r944 A61 BARBÉS, Maurice.
FREEMAN, Lewis Ransome.	Colette Baudoche, histoire d'une jeune
The Colorado River, yesterday, today	fille de Metz. 1918. (Les bastions
and tomorrow. 1923. 917.9 F85	de l'Est) 843 B27c1

a a construction of the second s	
Les déracinés. (Le roman de l'énergie nationale) 843 B27d	Il posto nel mondo, romanzo. c1921.
BOURGET, Paul Charles Joseph. Un drame dans le monde. c1921. 843 B77dra	853 B86p CHAETRES, Mrs Annie (Vivanti). Gioia! Novelle. 1921. 853 C48
BOURBIENNE, Louis Antoine Fauvelet de Mémoires de M. de Bourrienne, 1829. 10 v. 944.05 B77	DANTE Alighieri. Dantis Alagherii opera omnia. 1922. 2 v. 851.15 1
DOLTON, Clara S. Mon petit livre français. 1921. 448 D664	La Divina commedia. 1921. 851.15 P2a JAHIER, Piero.
LEBLANC, Maurice. Le bouchon de cristal. c1912. (Ad- ventures extraordinaires d'Arsène Lupin.) 843 L44b	Con me e con gli Alpini. Primo quad- erno. 1. ristampa. [1920] 940.945 J25 MESSINA, Maria.
LICTHENBERGER, André. Les centaures; roman fantastique. c1921. 843 L69c	Ragazze siciliane. [1921] (Biblioteca delle giovani italiane.) 853 M58 MORETTI, Marino.
PHILIPPE, Charles Louis. Le père Perdrix. 1922. 843 P55p	I due fanciulli. 1922. 853 M84d OJETTI, Ugo.
PROUST, Marcel. Le côté de Guermantes. (À la recherche du temps perdu) 843 P96b	Mio figlio ferroviere. [1922] 853 O39 SERAO, Matilde. Ella non rispose. 1914. 853 S48e
Du cote de chez Swann. c1919. 843 P96	WICKSTEED, Philip Henry. From Vita nuova to Paradiso. 1922. 851.15 Dwic
ROSTAND, Edmond. La princess Lointaine, ed. with intro- duction and notes, by J. L. Borger- hoff. [1909] (Heath's modern lan- guage series) 842 R83p1	ZÙCCOLI, Luciano. Perche ho lasciata Zina Scerkow; romanzi brevi. 1921. 853 Z94
gaage series,	PORTUGUESE.
SANSON, Henri. Sept générations d'executeurs, 1688– 1847. Memoires. 1862–3. 6 v. B S229s1	BRAGA, Theophilo. Costos phantasticos. 3a ed. 1914. 869.3 B81c
WARD, Charles Frederick. The récit and chronique of French Canada. [1921] 840.9 W25	CAMPOS Junior, Antonio de. A ala dos namorados. 2 v. 869.3 C198
	A estrella de Nagasaki. 869.3 C198e
ITALIAN.	A filha do Polaco.
ANNUNZIO, Gabriele d'. Nottvrno. 1921. 853 A61n	869.3 C198f Guerreiro e monge. 3a edição.
BENELLI, Sem. Ali; dramma in quattro atta. 1921. 852 B46a	1901. (Bibliotheca illustrada d' "O Seculo") q869.3 Clg
BOBADILLA, Emilio. A fuego lento. (2. ed.) 1913.	A senhora infanta. 869.3 C198s CASTELLO Branco, Camillo.
BRACCO, Roberto.	Agostinho de Ceuta. 4a ed. O Mar- quez de Torres-Novas. 3a ed. 1908.
La vita e la favola. c1914. 853 B79	869.2 C34

vol. 19, no. 1

*(

*

*1

*

淬

-

CASTRO, Joā de. A horda. 869.2 C355 —— Raíha Santa. 1920. q869.1 C3 CASTRO OSORIO, Anna de. Bem préga frei Thomaz. 1905. 869.2 C35	University Press, Bi ception of the public cultural Experiment the administrative distributed free. M tions of the State required by law to b after each entry. T
 De como Portugal foi chamado á guerra, 2a ed. 1919. 869.8 C355d Dias de festa. 869.8 C355di 	News Notes of Ca they are received at AGRICULTURE, DEP bulletin, vol. 12, no
Em tempo de guerra. 1918. 869.8 C355e Leno e aprendendo. 2a ed. [1922] 869 8 C355 i	230-313. illus. Proceedings of Western Plant Phoenix, Arizona Note. Pub with this numb
 A minha patria, 1906. 869.8 C355m Os nossos amigos. 4a ed. rev. & completada. [1922] 869.8 C355o 	Special products 1922–1923 dairy products plan
Quatro novelas; A vinha; A feiti- ceira; Diario duma criança; Sacrifi- cada. 1908. 869.3 C35 51	Same, no. California with re enforcement. 1923.
Uma lição da historia. 1909. 869.8 C355 ECA de Queiroz, José Maria. Notas contemporaneas. 2a ed. 1913. 869.4 E17 OSORIO de Oliverie, José	Same, no. lion registration for ing June 30, 1922. Same, no. tolerances and spec liquid measuring de
Ensaio sobre um programa no ensino da historia. 1919. 869.8 O83 SILVA, Cesar da. Amores de uma rainha. 2 v. 869.3 S58	BANKING DEPAR cisco).* Fourteent Superintendent of financial condition close of business J 807 p.
CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICA- TIONS RECEIVED DURING OCTOBER, NOVEMBER, AND DECEMBER, '923. [†] Many of the administrative depart- ments of the state are from time to time publishing reports, bulletins, etc., which are of considerable interest. Copies can usually be obtained free by writing to the lepartments issuing them. The publica- ions of the University of Colligonia are	——— Bank act fornia as amended 1 BUILDING AND (San Francisco). building and loan State of California. ——— General 1 ing and loan associa [DENTAL EXAMP Francisco). Denta

*Gift of Ana de Castro Osorio. *Except when otherwise noted publica-tions are printed at the state printing is in Sacramento, except when otherwise office, Sacramento, and are octavo in size. noted,

offered for sale or in exchange by the

erkeley, with the excations of the Agri-Station and some of bulletins, which are lost of the publica-Mining Bureau are e sold. Price is given he titles are listed in lifornia Libraries as the State Library.

ARTMENT OF. Monthly 6, June, 1923. p.

the Ffth convention Quarantine Board, May 21-23, 1923. lication discontinued er.

publication, no. 39. of California dairy and list of California ts. 1923. 29 p.

40. Dairy laws of gulations for their 56 p.

41. Report of stalthe fiscal year end-1923. 44 p.

42. Additional ifications applying to vices. 1923. 8 p.

TMENT (San Franth annual report of Banks, showing the of state banks at the une 30, 1923. 1923.

of the State of Cali-923. 1923. 167 р.

LOAN COMMISSIONER Annual report on the associations of the 1923. 161 p.

aws governing buildtions. 1923. 20 p.

VERS, BOARD OF] (San al law of California, approved May 21, 1915; amended May 26, 1921. 1923. 12 p.

CHARITIES AND CORRECTIONS, BOARD OF (San Francisco). Monthly census of inmates of state institutions. Bulletins, nos. 238–239, October–November, 1923.

Mimeographed sheets.

EDUCATION, BOARD OF. Bulletin no. 10-Ag. Regulations governing special credentials and certificates pre-vocational type in agriculture. Revised October, 1923. 1924. 6 p.

Same, no. 10-Com. Regulations governing special credentials and certificates commercial type. Revised October, 1923. 1924. 7 p.

Same, no. 10-El. Regulations governing granting of elementary certificates and elementary credentials. Revised November, 1923. 1924. 6 p.

Same, no. 10-II. M. Regulations governing special credentials and certificates pre-vocational type in homemaking. Revised October, 1923. 1924. 6 p.

Same, no. 10-J. H. Amended regulations governing junior high school credentials and certificates. Revised October, 1923. 1924. 7 p.

Same, no. 10-M. Regulations governing special credentials, miscellaneous type, in oral teaching of the deaf, teaching of the blind, teaching of atypical children, library craft, correction of speech defects, teaching of citizenship to adults, teaching of special classes organized under the part-time act, supervision of attendance, oral and dramatic expression, modern languages. Revised October 1923, 1924. 8 p.

Same, no. 10-0. Regulations governing special credentials and certificates pre-vocational type in occupations and home mechanics. Revised October, 1923. 1924. 6 p.

Same, no. 10-V. Regulations governing special credentials and certificates, vocational arts type, in trade and industrial occupations. 1924. 7 p.

[EQUALIZATION BOARD]. Passenger and freight motor transportation for hire license tax act. 1923. 5 p.

FISH AND GAME COMMISSION. California fish and game, vol. 9, nos. 3-4, July-October, 1923, illus.

FORESTRY, BOARD OF. Forest fire law and regulations, 1921, with attached supplement containing state forestry laws and appropriations, 1923. 1923. 126 p. 32°.

HEALTH, BOARD OF. Regulations for the control of communicable diseases. 1923. 37 p. 12°.

Special bulletin no. 42. Sanitation of automobile camps. 1923. 31 p. illus.

Same, no. 43. Planning and maintaining sewer systems and sewage disposal. A handbook of suggestions based upon experiences of the Bureau of Sanitary Engineering. 1924. 36 p.

------ Bureau of Child Hygiene. Routine for prenatal nursing visits and clinic routine. 1923. 7 p.

HIGHWAY COMMISSION. California highways, vol. 1, no. 1, January, 1924. maps. illus. 4°.

INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT COMMISSION (San Francisco). Advisory pamphlet on organization of safety committees in industry. 1923. 14 p. 32°.

----- California safety news, vol. 7, nos. 9-12, September-December, 1923. illus.

General construction safety orders, effective January 1, 1924. 1923. 66 p. 12°.

These orders are to supersede the General Construction safety orders of January 15, 1918.

Workmen's compensation, insurance and safety laws of the state of California, 1923, 82 p. INSUBANCE COMMISSIONER (San Francisco). Fifty-fifth annual report for the year ending December 31, 1922. 3 vols. 1923.

Vol. 1. Fire and fire and marine; vol. 2. Life and fraternal; vol. 3. Casualty and miscellaneous.

List of persons, partnerships and corporations licensed as insurance brokers in California, term ending July 1, 1924, including licenses issued to August 1, 1923. 1923. 57 p.

LAEOR STATISTICS, BUREAU OF (San Francisco). Labor laws of the state of California, 1923. 1924. 184 p. 24°.

LEGISLATURE. Journal of the Assembly during the 45th session of the Legislature of the State of California, 1923. 1923. 2719 p.

Journal of the Senate during the 45th session of the Legislature of the State of California, 1923. 1923. 2234 p.

Appendix to the Journals of the Senate and Assembly of the 45th session of the Legislature of the State of California. 1923. 5 vols.

Prayers offered by the Rt Rev Bishop Wm. H. Moreland, Chaplain of the Assembly, during the 45th session of the California Legislature. 1923. 62 p. illus. 32°.

LIBRABY, STATE. News Notes of California Libraries, vol. 18, no. 4, October, 1923. map. p. 341-574.

MINING BUREAU (San Francisco). Bulletin, no. 93. California mineral production for 1922. 1923. 188 p. map. illus.

Monthly chapter of report XIX of the state Mineralogist covering mining in California and the activities of the State Mining Bureau, vol. 19, no. 4, September, 1923. 1923. maps. illus.

Cover title, Mining in California.

OSTEOPATHIC EXAMINERS, BOARD OF. Supplement to the 1923 directory of physicians and surgeons, osteopaths, drugless practitioners holding certificates issued under the Medical practice acts of the state of California. October 25, 1923, 11 p.

PUBLIC SCHOOL TEACHERS' RETIRE-MENT SALARY FUND BOARD. 1923 edition of circular of information regarding teachers' retirement salary law. 1923. 10 p.

PUBLIC WORKS, DEPARTMENT OF. Division of Engineering and Irrigation. Bulletin no. 7. California irrigation district laws as amended 1923, 1923. 183 p.

RAILEOAD COMMISSION (San Francisco). Decisions. Vol. 22, July 3, 1922, to February 6, 1923. 1923. 1052 p.

Cover title: Opinions and orders of the Railroad Commission of California.

Rules of procedure, revised to November 1, 1923. 1923. 22 p.

REAL ESTATE DEPARTMENT. State real estate department act, 1923. [1923] 9 p.

PRISON, STATE (San Quentin). The bulletin, vol. 11, nos. 1-3, October-December, 1923.

A monthly journal devoted to inmate welfare.

SECRETARY OF STATE. Biennial report for the seventy-second and seventy-third fiscal years, beginning July 1, 1920, and ending June 30, 1922. 1922. 16 p.

----- Constitution of the State of California. [1923] 68 p.

SURVEYOR GENERAL. List of vacant state school lands in San Bernardino county. 1924. 27 p.

TEACHERS COLLEGE, San Jose. Bulletin. Proceedings of second annual conference on educational research and guidance held at San Jose State Teachers College, April 20 and 21, 1923. 1923. 128 p. 12°, UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (Berkeley). Bulletin, third series, vol. 16, no. 5. Los Angeles medical department, a school for graduates in medicine. Berkeley, October, 1923. 59 p. 12°.

Same, vol. 17, no. 4. Medical school. Announcement for 1923–1924. Berkeley, October, 1923. 125 p. illus. roy. 8°.

------Same, vol. 17, no. 6. Register 1922-1923, with announcements for 1923-1924, in two volumes. Berkeley, December, 1923.

Calendar, vol. LIX, nos. 7–17, October 1 to December 10, 1923. 8 p. folders.

A weekly bulletin of official University announcements. Price 25 cents a half-year postpaid.

Chronicle: vol. 24, no. 1, January, 1924. p. 1-121, illus. roy. 8°.

Contents: Spring petals, Ruth Harwood; Evolution and the ethical ideal, S. J. Holmes; Felicity, Elizabeth A. Everett; Echo song for May, Laura Bell Everett; Henry Adams and the writing of history, George H. Sabine; Some aspects of the romantic and the classic tendencies in art, Aram Torossian; William Thomas Reid, Eugene Jora'emon; Spring melody, Regina Kaufman; The California Pioneers of '49, George C. Pardee; Phrontistery; Reviews.

Price per year \$2.00; single copies 50 cents.

Record, vol. 3, no. 2, April, 1923. p. 11–22. roy. 8°.

Same, no. 365. Avocado culture in California, part 1. History, culture, varieties and marketing, by Knowles Ryerson. Part 2. Composition and food value, by M. E. Jaffa and H. Goss. Berkeley, June, 1923. p. 575-638. illus.

Same, no. 368. Bacterial decomposition of olives during pickling, by W. V. Cruess and E. H. Guthier. Berkeley, July, 1923. 15 p. illus,

Same, no. 369. Comparison of woods for butter boxes, by G. D. Turnbow. Berkeley, August, 1923. 10 p. illus.

Circular no. 220. Unfermented fruit juices, by W. V. Cruess and J. H. Irish. Berkeley, revised, July, 1923. 31 p. illus.

Same, no. 260. Selected list of references relating to irrigation in California, by Reid Venable. Berkeley, April, 1923. 62 p.

grain sacks, by James Koeber. Berkeley, April, 1923. 11 p. illus.

Same, no. 263. Tomato production in California, by J. T. Rosa. Berkeley, May, 1923. 19 p. illus.

Same, no. 265. Plant disease and pest control, by W. T. Horne, E. O. Essig and W. B. Herms. Berkeley, June, 1923. 104 p.

Same, no. 266. Analyzing the citrus orchard by means of simple tree records, by Robert W. Hodgson. Berkeley, June, 1923. 20 p. illus.

A study of the darkening of apple tissue, by E. L. Overholser and W. V. Cruess. Berkeley, June, 1923. 40 p.

Agricultural Sciences, vol. 4, no. 13. The toxicity of copper sulfate to the spores of Tilletia tritici (Bjerk.) Winter, by Fred N. Briggs. Berkeley, November 20, 1923. p. 407-12, 1 figure in text. roy, 8°,

Price 25 cents,

American Archaeology and Ethnology, vol. 20. Phoche Apperson Hearst memorial volume. 1923. 389 p. 2 plates, 22 figures in text. roy. 8°. Price \$5.00.

Astronomy. Lick Observatory Bulletin, no. 348. Measures of a selected list of double stars made in the years 1913–1922, with new orbits of eight systems. Berkeley. p. 58–98. 4°.

Price \$2.50 per vol. in advance. Vol. 11 current.

Botany, vol. 12, no. 1. Lichenes a W. A. Setchell et H. E. Parks in insula Tahiti a 1922 collecti, scripsit Edv. A. Vainio. Berkeley, 1924. p. 1-16. roy. 8°.

Price 35 cents.

7, no. 6. The use of forem in Tacitus, by Herbert C. Nutting. Berkeley, November 9, 1923. p. 209-19. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Geological Sciences. Vol. 14, no. 5. Fauna of the Sooke formation, Vancouver Island, by Bruce L. Clark and Ralph Arnold; with description of a new coral, by T. Wayland Vaughan. Berkeley, November 6, 1923. p. 123-234, plates 15-42. roy. 8°.

Price \$1.75.

The San Lorenzo group of the San Emigdio region, California, by Carroll M. Wagner and Karl H. Schilling. Berkeley, November 3, 1923. p. 235-76, plates 43-50. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Same, vol. 14, no. 7. Revision of the Rimella-like Gastropods from the west coast of North America, by Bruce L. Clark and Dorothy Kemper Palmer. Berkeley, October 31, 1923. p. 277-88, plate 51. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

A fauna from the middle Eocene shales near Vacaville, California, by Dorothy Bryant Kemper Palmer, Berkeley, November 3, 1923. p. 289-318, plates 52-57. roy. 8°.

Price 40 cents,

Price 25 cents.

Same, vol. 14, no. 10. Basin range structure in the Great Basin, by George D. Louderback'. Berkeley, November 8, 1923. p. 329–76, plates 60–68, 2 figs. in text. roy. 8°.

Price \$1.00.

Same, vol. 14, no. 11. Some new forms of west coast fossil echinoidea, by Merle C. Israelsky. Berkeley, November 7, 1923. p. 377–96, plates 69–74. roy. 8°.

Price 40 cents.

Alticamelus Alexandræ, a new camel from the Barstow upper Miocene of the Mohave Desert, by Pirié Davidson, Berkeley, November 20, 1923. p. 397-408, 16 figures in text. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Same, vol. 14, no. 13. Notes on stratigraphy and Pleistocene fauna from Beard Bay, Arctic Alaska, by Charles E. Meek. Berkeley, November 23, 1923. p. 409-22, plates 75-79, 1 figure in text. roy. 8°.

Price 30 cents.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (Berkeley). Publications. Mathematics, vol. 1, no. 15. Involutory quartic transformation in space of four dimensions, by Nina Alderton. Berkeley, November 8, 1923. p. 345-58. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

<u>Same</u>, vol. 1. no. 16. On the indeterminate cubic equation, $x^3+Dy^3+D^2z^3$ —3Dxyz=1, by Clyde Wolfe. Berkeley, December 19, 1923. p. 359-69.

Price 25 cents.

Same, vol. 1, No. 17. A study and classification of ruled quartic surfaces by means of a point-to-line transformation, by Bing Chin Wong. Berkeley, November 8, 1923. p. 371–87.

Price 25 cents.

A special quartic curve, by Elsie Jeanette McFarland. Berkeley, December 19, 1923. p. 389-400, 1 figure in text, Price 25 cents. Philosophy, vol. 4. Issues and tendencies in contemporary philosophy. Lectures delivered before the Philosophical Union, 1922–1923. Berkeley, November 30, 1923. 224 p. roy. 8°.

Price \$3.75.

Semitic philology, vol. 1, no. 5. Parallelism in Isaiah, chapters 1-35 and 37:22-35. The reconstructed text (Hebrew), by William Popper, Berkeley, August 20, 1923. p. 1-116. roy. 8°.

Price \$1.00.

Zoology, vol. 20, nos. 18 and 19. Methods of obtaining amoebafree rats for experimental infection with intestinal amoebae, by John F. Kessel. Experimental infection of rats and mice with the common intestinal amoebae of man, by John F. Kessel. Berkeley, October 31, 1923. p. 401-30, plates 38-39. roy. 8°.

Price 50 cents.

Same, vol. 20, no. 20. On the genus councilmania, budding intestinal amoebae parasitic in man and rodents, by Charles A. Kofoid, Olive Swezy and John F. Kessel. Berkeley, October 31, 1923. p. 431–45, 19 figures in text. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Morphology and binary fission of monoidium incurvum (Fres.) Klebs, by Richard P. Hall. Berkeley, November 10, 1923. p. 447-76, plates 40-41, 2 figures in text. roy. 8°.

Price 50 cents.

Same, vol. 20, no. 22. A skin reaction to extracts of Leishmania tropica and Leishmania infantum, by Edna Hannibal Wagener. Berkeley, December 31, 1923. p. 477-88, plate 42. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Studies on marine diatoms and dinoflagellates caught by aid of the Kofoid bucket in 1922, by Winfred Emory Allen. Berkeley, October 31, 1923. p. 435-45, 5 figures in text. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Same, vol. 22, no. 12. Statistical studies of marine diatoms of the San Diego region collected by U. S. S. Pioneer in midwinter 1923, by Winfred Emory Allen. Berkeley, November 20, 1923. p. 445-48. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Price 25 cents.

------ Same, vol. 25. A bibliography of eugenics, by Samuel J. Holmes. Berkeley, January, 1924. 514 p. roy. 8°. Price \$5.00.

Price 25 cents.

Same, vol. 26, no. 3. On the distinctions between endamæba coli and councilmania lafleuri, by Charles A. Kofoid, Olive Swezy, and John F. Kessel. Berkeley, 1924. p. 21-39, 24 figs. in text. roy. 8°.

Price 45 cents.

VETERANS' WELFARE BOARD. Veterans' farm and home purchase act. 1923. 7 p.

WHITTIER STATE SCHOOL. The Sentinel (new series). vol. 20, nos. 7–10, September-November, 1923.

Published monthly, Price \$1.00 per year; 10 cents per copy.

CALIFORNIA CITY PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DURING OCTOBER, NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER, 1923.

BERKELEY. Auditor. Annual report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1923. 42 p.

------ Public library. Bulletin, vol. 7, nos. 9-10, September-October, 1923.

FRESNO. Board of Education. Annual report of Fresno public schools for the year ending June 30, 1923. 37 p. Los ANGELES. Board of Education. Educational research bulletin, vol. 3, nos. 1–3, October-December 1923.

----- Department of Health. Public health, July-September, 1923.

------ Public library. Thirty-fifth annual report, 1923. 24 p.

——— Municipal league. Light on your city's affairs, bulletin, vol. 1, nos. 2–5, September-December, 1923.

OAKLAND. Auditor. Thirty-fourth annual report, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1923. 38 p.

PASADENA. City manager. First annual report, 1922. 44 p. illus.

------ Second annual report, 1923. 56 p. illus.

Municipal light and power department. Sixteenth annual report, 1923. 33 p. illus.

------ Water department. Tenth annual report, 1923. 44 p. illus.

RICHMOND. City Auditor. Annual report, 1923. 31 p.

------ Health department. Monthly report, October-November, 1923.

Public library. Monthly bulletin, vol. 10, nos. 2-6, August-December, 1923.

RIVERSIDE. Auditor. Annual report, fiscal year ending June 30, 1923. 43 p.

SACRAMENTO. H e alt h department. Statement of vital statistics for the months of October-December, 1923.

SAN DIEGO. Health department. Monthly report, October-December, 1923.

SAN FRANCISCO. Board of Supervisors. Journal of proceedings, vol. 18, nos. 36-48, September-October, 1923.

Municipal record, vol. 16, nos. 40–52, October-December, 1923.

STOCKTON. Public library. Bulletin, vol. 10, nos. 3-4, November-December, 1923.

BOOKS FOR THE BLIND ADDED DURING OCTOBER, NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER, 1923.

In American Braille.

Books marked c are printed with contractions.

BOOKS.

AYER, MABEL ADAMS, comp. Little offerings for loving hearts.

Duplicate copy. Gift of Marian Shorten.

cWORDSWORTH, WILLIAM. Selections from his poetical works.

Duplicate copy. Gift of T. Hugh Buckingham.

MUSIC. PLANO.

Duplicate copy.

———— Idilio, op. 134.

*LAVALLÉE, CALIXA. Le papillon (The butterfly).

Duplicate copy.

*Schubert, Franz Peter. Ave Maria; transcribed by Stephen Heller.

*SINDING, CHRISTIAN. Sounding waves, op. 34, no. 2.

Duplicate copy.

*THOME, FRANCIS LUCIEN JOSEPH. Beneath the leaves.

In European Braille.

BOOKS.

HYMNS. Eine sammlung schoner Kirchenleider, vol. 1. German text.

Hand copied by and gift of Mrs H. W. Bruning.

MAGAZINES.

- LE BRAILLE magazine for October, 1923. This is volume 1, no. 1, a sample copy. Published by the Permanent Blind Relief War Fund, Paris, in contracted French Braille.
- BRAILLE mail for October, November and December.
- BRAILLE musical magazine for September, October and November.
- CHANNELS of blessing for October.
- HAMPSTEAD for September, October and November.

*Gift of Bernice La Flamme.

HORA jucunda for October, November and	In New York Point.
December.	MAGAZINES.
INTERALLIED Braille magazine for No- vember, 1923.	CATHOLIC transcript for October, Novem- ber and December.
This is volume 1, no. 1, a sample copy. Published by the Permanent Blind Relief War Fund, Paris.	CHRISTIAN record for October, November and December.
THE LIGHTBRINGER for December-February.	GOSPEL trumpet for October, November and December.
THE LITERARY journal for October and November.	LUX VERA, Catholic monthly, for Octo- ber, November and December.
MORNING for September and October.	MATILDA Ziegler magazine for October, November and December.
PROGRESS for October. November and December.	SUNDAY school monthly for October, No-
SANTA Lucia for October and November.	vember and December.
MUSIC.	WEEKLY review for October. November and December.
BRAILLE musical magazine for September,	and December.
October and November.	In Revised Braille.
In Moon Type.	Books marked c are printed with contractions.
BOOKS.	BOOKS.
HARDY, THOMAS. Under the greenwood tree. 4 vols.	cAdams, Kate Chalmers. Rio de
An idyll of village life: the love	Janeiro, in the land of lure. Hand copied by and gift of Mrs
story of a village boy and girl.	Kate Chalmers.
MASSON, FLORA. Charles Lamb. 2 vols.	*cAKELEY, CARL. Three articles from
MILNE, ALAN ALEXANDER. Not that it matters. 3 vols.	World's work.
Contents: Vol. 1—The pleasure of writing; Acacia road; My library; The chase; Superstition; The charm	Contents: Hunting African buffalo; Bill, my Kikuyu gun-bearer; Hunting gorillas in Central Africa.
of golf; Goldfish; Saturday to Mon- day: The pond: A seventeenth cen-	*CALBERT HONORE CHARLES, prince of Monaco. Deep-sea mysteries. <i>Includes</i>
tury story; Our learned friend; A word for autumn: A Christmas num-	A strange pygmy people, by George P.
of golf; Goldfish; Saturday to Mon- day; The pond; A seventeenth cen- tury story; Our learned friend; A word for autumn; A Christmas num- ber; No flowers by request; The un- fairness of things. Vol. 2-Daffodils; A household book: Lunck: The signed	Busch.
ber; No nowers by request; The un- fairness of things. Vol. 2—Daffodils; A household book; Lunch; The friend of man; The diary habit; Midsummer day; At the bookstall; Who's who: A day at Lord's; By the sea; Golden fruit; Signs of character; Intellectual Snobbery: A question of form : A slice	*CATKEY, BERTRAM. Winnie and the
A day at Lord's; By the sea; Golden	panther man. The story of the death of Winnie's
snobbery; A question of form; A slice of fiction. Vol. 3—The label; The	lover.
of fiction. Vol. 3—The label; The profession; Smoking as a fine art:	cBIBLE. Old Testament. Volumes 1-8.
of fiction. Vol. 3—The label; The profession; Smoking as a fine art: The path to glory; A problem in ethics; The happiest half hours of life; Natural science; On going dry;	Contents: Vol. 1, Genesis. Vol. 2, Exodus. Vol. 3, Leviticus. Vol. 4, Numbers. Vol. 5, Deuteronomy. Vol. 6, Joshua, Judges, Ruth. Vol. 7, I & II Samuel, Vol. 8, I & II Kings.
A misjudged game: A doubtful char-	6, Joshua, Judges, Ruth. Vol. 7.
acter; Thoughts on thermometers: For a wet afternoon; Declined with thanks; On going into a house; The	This is the King James Version of
Ideal author.	the Bible, stereotyped and printed by the Universal Braille Press, Los An- geles.
The red house mystery. 4 vols.	*cBlythe, SAMUEL GEORGE, A calm
An entertaining detective story. MAGAZINES.	review of a calm man.
DAWN, part 149.	This is the biographical sketch of his
- I have a set	life that was being read to President Harding at the time of his death.

- Moon magazine for October, November and December,
- *Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California,

۰.

cFISHER, Mrs DOROTHEA FRANCES (CAN- FIELD). The first time after.	cSELECTED verse for school grades four to seven.
Gift of Dr E. M. Gebhardt. CGAHOR, THOMAS FRANK. The Episco- pal Church; its history, its prayer book, its ministry—five lectures. Contents: The history of the Church of England; The book of common prayer; The book of common prayer a product of the Reformation; The book of common prayer and the doctrinal and practical abuses which it superseded; The historic episcopate. Gift of the Department of Missions, National Council Episcopal Church.	Contents: Lie-awake songs, Amelie Josephine Burr; Two songs for a child, Sara Teasdale; Little blue pigeon, Eugene Field; The night wind; The wind and the moon, George McDonald; No boy knows, J. W. Riley; A boy's song, James Hogg; The ranchman's ride, William Chittenden; The seasons, Helen A. Ricker; What the robin told; The first bluebird, J. W. Riley; Baby. cTRAIN, ARTHUR CHEYNEY. As it was in the beginning. 2 vols.
cKALER, JAMES OTIS ("James Otis," pseud.) Mary of Plymouth, vol. 1. Story for young girls about the early days of the Pilgrims of Ply- mouth.	*cWALLACE, FREDERICK W. Life on the great banks. <i>Includes</i> Encircling Nav- ajo Mountain with a pack train, by Charles L. Bernheimer.
Hand copied by and gift of Mrs Alexander Brown in memory of her daughter, Marguerite.	cWENTWORTH, GEORGE ALBERT, & SMITH, DAVID EUGENE. Plane geometry. 8 vols.
cKNIGHT, WILLIAM ALLEN. St. Abigail of the pines. 2 vols.	*cWESTON, HAROLD F. Persian caravan sketches.
 CLEWARS, Mrs ELSIE (SINGMASTER), Emmeline, 2 vols. A story of the Civil War and the battle of Gettysburg. 	cWHITE, <i>Mrs</i> ELLEN G. (HARMON), Early writings, vol. 3. Vols. 1 & 2 added previously. Hand copied. Gift of Mrs Florence
cLLOYD, ERNEST, comp. Keys to the king's treasure house.	Livingston.
Hand copied. Gift of Mrs Florence Livingston. cMARSHALL, ARCHIBALD. Audacious Ann.	cWOOD, FRANCES GILCHRIST. Turkey red. Includes The camel's back, by Francis Scott Key Fitzgerald.
3 vols.	MAGAZINES.
Ann is the grand-daughter of Lady Sinclair. She is sent away to school where she proves to be a very dis- turbing element.— <i>Bk. rev. digest.</i>	cTHE BRAILLE courier for September, No- vember and December. No number published for October.
cMOORE, CHARLES. The transformation of Washington. <i>Includes</i> The Lincoln memorial, by William Howard Taft.	cCATHOLIC review for October, November and December.
Hand copied by and gift of Mrs Emilie Sussman.	cCHRISTIAN record for July, October and November.
cPACIFIC PRESS PUBLISHING Co. Leaves of autumn series. <i>Contents</i> : Inspiration of the Bible;	cGospel trumpet for October, November and December.
The sure word of prophecy: The great threefold message; Second com- ing of Christ; The millennium; The home of the Saviour. Hand copied. Gift of Mrs Florence Livingston.	cMATILDA Ziegler magazine for October. November and December. MESSENGER to the sightless for October
*CPUTNAM, GEORGE R. Beacons of the	and November.
sea. About lighthouses and lighthouse keepers.	cSUNDAY school monthly for October, November and December.
*Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California.	*Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California.

Appliances.

FEN OR PENCIL SCRIPT.

NICKERSON improved writing tablet for the adult blind.

Gift of Miss Mary E. Henderson.

In Ink Print. MAGAZINES.

THE BEACON for October and November.

ST. DUNSTAN'S review for August-September, October and November.



.

.

.

•

News Notes

OF

CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES

IN THIS NUMBER-SOME OF THE ITEMS OF INTEREST.

NEW LIBRARIANS AT ORANGE PUBLIC LIBRARY, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY, RIVERSIDE-SOUTHERN SIERRAS POWER COMPANY, VENICE HIGH SCHOOL, RED BLUFF PUBLIC LIBRARY.

FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY-DISTRICT INSTITUTE FOR CUSTODIANS.

LOS ANGELES: OCCIDENTAL COLLEGE-MARY CLAPP LIBRARY BUILDING. POMONA PUBLIC LIBRARY-SALARY INCREASES.

SACRAMENTO CO. FREE LIBRARY-GREENHORN CAMP BRANCH.

SAN DIEGO PUBLIC LIBRARY MAKES CIRCULATION RECORD.

STOCKTON PUBLIC LIBRARY INFORMATION CONTEST.

SANTA BARBARA PUBLIC LIBRARY-DECORATIVE ENTRANCE FEATURE OF BUILDING.

SANTA CLARA CO. FREE LIBRARY STAFF TOUR.

SAN JOSE LAW LIBRARY BECOMES SANTA CLARA CO. LAW LIBRARY.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY

CALIFORNIA STATE PRINTING OFFICE FRANK J. SMITH, Superintendent SACRAMENTO, 1924

CONTENTS.

	Page
THE MECHANICS'-MERCANTILE LIBRARY	95
MAP OF CALIFORNIA SHOWING COUNTIES	98
LIST OF COUNTIES HAVING COUNTY FREE LIBRARIES	99
CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES—NEWS ITEMS	100
DIRECTORY FOR LIBRARY SUPPLIES AND OTHER ITEMS OF GENERAL INTEREST	125
CALIFORNIA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION	13 2
CALIFORNIA COUNTY LIBRARIANS	139
LIBRARY OLUBS, ETC.	140
BOARD OF LIBRARY EXAMINERS	141
CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY	143
STAFF, ETC.	143
DEPARTMENTS	144
RECENT ACCESSIONS	148
CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DURING JANUARY, FEBRU- ABY AND MARCH, 1924	179
CALIFORNIA CITY PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DURING JANUARY, FEBRUARY AND MARCH, 1924	182
BOOKS FOR THE BLIND ADDED DURING JANUARY, FEBRUARY AND MARCH, 1924	183

Issued quarterly in the interests of the libraries of the State by the CALIFORNIA. STATE LIBRARY.

All communications should be addressed to the California State Library, Sacramento, California.

NOTE.-Standing matter is set solid and new matter leaded.

Entered as second-class matter December, 1913, at the post office at Sacramento, California, under the act of August 24, 1912.

Acceptance for mailing at the special rate of postage provided for in Section 1103, Act of October 3, 1917, authorized August 27, 1918.

THE MECHANICS'-MERCANTILE LIBRARY.*

By Byron Mauzy, President Mechanics' Institute, San Francisco,

turesque history of the Mechanics'-Mercantile Library.

It is not difficult to picture in words the history of the Mechanics' Institute with its various activities from its inception to the present day, if one had the artistic literary ability to portray it. Material is indeed abundant and even our English language is full enough to paint a picture of glowing colors that would win the approval of the most critical among you, if one could so blend them together. As a business man and not an artist in words, I am obliged to present you, indeed, only a very salient picture which I have secured through the courtesy of our able Secretary and our very efficient Librarian.

I am quite sure that what your program committee really expected was an account of the Mechanics' Institute, and of the Mercantile Library Association, each of which, in the early days of San Francisco, established and maintained a separate library under its own management, there being no connection whatever between them until January, 1906, when the Mercantile Library Association went out of existence and, under an agreement with its members, its books were taken over by the Mechanics' Institute: the libraries were combined and thereafter operated under the name of the Mechanics'-Mercantile Library until April, 1906, when the San Francisco fire wiped both collections out of existence.

Inasmuch as I represent the Mechanics' Institute as its president, but more particularly because its history is of a distinctly different type from that of the Mercantile Library Association, I shall begin with its organization, progressing as far as the amalgamation of the two associations in 1906, when we will go back over the years and review the story of the Mercantile Library.

To begin, as its name implies, the Mechanics' Institute was established as aid in the advancement of the an mechanic arts and science; its organizers were mechanics who felt the need of selfimprovement and who were willing to put their shoulders to the wheel to get this hibit, so, in addition to arranging for the

You have asked me to present a pic- advancement for themselves and to provide it for others. These men met in the office of the then tax collector on December 11, 1854, completed their organization, and devised a plan of operation. Several subsequent meetings were held at which the plan was further worked out; on March 6, 1855, a constitution was presented and adopted which set forth that the designs and objects of the association were to cultivate a social feeling of friendship and an educational improvement among its members; the dissemination of information and useful knowledge by the establishment of a library of circulation and reference, a museum and reading room, the formation of classes and delivery of lectures for tuition, the collection of cabinets, scientific apparatus, works of art, the purchase of property and the erection of buildings for the requirements of the Institute, or for any scientific. mechanical or literary purpose; and it was further provided that no individual right in its property should exist or be acquired, and that the property should be held in trust for the association and never be diverted from the purposes and intention for which it was acquired.

> Its library opened on April 5, 1855. with the gift of the following four books: the "Constitution of the United States," "Encyclopaedia of Architecture." an "Curtis on Conveyancing," and a copy of the Bible. Within a few months a room was rented on the fourth floor of the Express Building, at California and Montgomery streets, where the Kohl Building now stands, where, with varying ups and downs, it remained until 1858, when, with a libary of 900 volumes, it moved to larger quarters on Montgomery street, between Pine and California.

> During this time its members were not unmindful of the objects for which they had organized and after much consideration it was decided that, in addition to its other activities, it should further the city's interests by the holding of an exhibition of the manufactures and industries, not only of the city but of the entire state.

> At this time there was no structure of sufficient size to house the proposed ex-

^{*}Read at the meeting of the First and Second Districts, California Library Association, March 1, 1924.

³²¹⁷³

exhibit itself, it became necessary to provide a building therefor. The available funds of the Institute were limited to a few hundred dollars but, due to the courage and enterprise of its founders, the use of the James Lick lot, on Montgomery street, was secured without payment of rental, and a building covering 20,000 square feet, and costing some \$7000, was erected. From this beginning grew the annual so-called Mechanics' Fair, for which other and larger buildings were from time to time erected, and which speedily became the leading feature in the city's educational and social life. These fairs were discontinued in 1899, it having become apparent that they had served their purpose in bringing to the attention of the world the resources and manufactures of the state.

The management of the Institute was in the hands of a board of trustees elected from its membership, and the success and popularity of the fairs were not allowed to interfere with the progress of the other work provided for in the constitution. Additions were constantly made to the rapidly growing library, and in 1863 the Institute purchased its first real estate, a lot on California street, between Kearny and Montgomery, upon which a building was erected and into which it moved its 5000 volumes. The library remained here some three years, and in 1866 the Post street lot (the site of our present building) was purchased and a building erected thereon which was occupied by the library until destroyed by the fire of April, 1906.

During all of this time the educational aims of the Institute were featured to the fullest extent which its funds would permit. Lectures upon technical, scientific, and other subjects, by the best men in their respective lines, were provided. and classes in mechanical and free-hand drawing, and allied subjects were maintained where the apprentice or mechanic could, at a minimum of expense, provide himself with the knowledge necessary for his work. This feature of the Institute's activities placed it favorably and prominently before the public as an educational institution and it was, no doubt, responsible to a great extent for the section in the charter of the University of California, providing that the President of the in the number of volumes, there was

Mechanics' Institute should be ex officio a regent of the State University.

Perhaps the outstanding feature in the Institute's history, in the light of its relation to its finances, was the purchase in 1881 of the block of land bounded by Larkin, Hayes, Polk and Grove streets For some years previous for \$175,000. to this time the Institute had been holding its industrial exhibitions in its pavilion at Eighth and Mission streets (where now stands the Crystal Market), the land for which it had leased at one dollar per year and the payment of the taxes thereon. The building on this lot was moved to the new site and remained there until destroyed in the conflagration of 1906. In 1913 this land was sold to the city and county of San Francisco for the purpose of erecting thereon the present Municipal Auditorium. the purchase price being \$700,000.

The library in its Post street quarters continued to hold its place in the public esteem, and in the early part of 1906 it had upon its shelves considerably over 100,000 volumes, comprising a general library with an exceptionally fine scientific and technical collection. At this time came the consolidation with the Mercantile Library and the taking over of its collection of books which brought the number of volumes, in the combined libraries, to over 200,000, many of them rare, priceless volumes.

At this point, as I said earlier, let us go back over the years and review the story of the Mercantile Library. This association was organized by the merchants of San Francisco in December, 1852, and after considerable discussion as to the need of such an association the committee reported a pledged sum of \$6000. With this encouragement it was thought advisable to commence operations, and on the twenty-fifth of January, 1853, a meeting was called for the election of officers. The Library began with the purchase of a private collection of about 2500 books and pamphlets. Rooms were secured in the California Exchange Building at the northeast corner of Clay and Kearny streets, and opened to readers early in February, 1853.

The early history of this library shows that while there was a constant growth

always the worry about finances. 1865 the association decided to erect its own building and a lot was purchased on Bush street, between Montgomerv and Sansome streets, at a cost of \$50,000. A loan of \$100,000 was then negotiated, the lot and proposed building given as security therefor, and additional loans to the amount of \$100.000 were effected. The building was completed and dedicated on the eighteenth of June, 1868, at which time the total indebtedness was \$240,000. Various means to raise the amount were To tried but with very little success. quote from an annual report of that period : "the prospects were most gloomy ; it was impossible to obtain a supply even of the cheap current literature; and the morigagee had commenced a suit of foreclosure." Temporary relief was had. however, from a musical festival which provided the association with nearly \$20,000.

A bill, which became a law February 20, 1870, was passed by the legislature authorizing the association to hold three gift concerts. These were in reality lottery drawings, known as the "Mercantile Library Lottery," which netted a profit of \$310,120 with which the entire indebtedness of the association was paid, leaving a balance of \$20,000. The concerts were given at the California Theatre and the drawings of the lottery were held in the Mechanics' Institute pavilion, then located on the present Union Square.

In time its collection of books became known as one rich in treasures of art, literature, and rare editions, but its financial condition did not prosper, and several attempts were made to consolidate the association with the Mechanics' Institute but without avail. It was finally decided to purchase a lot on the northeast corner of Van Ness and Golden Gate avenues and to erect a new library building thereon; the cornerstone was laid on March 28, 1891. The library remained in this location until 1901 when it was moved back to the business center, into quarters secured on Sutter street between Kearny street and Grant avenue. Its consolidation with the Mechanics' Institute was effected early in 1906 but its usefulness was not fated to last long, for on April 18, 1906, the city was destroyed by the greatest fire in the world's history Library.

In and with it the combined library containits ing a priceless collection of books.

The Mechanics' Institute trustees immediately started the collection of another library and by August, 1906, a temporary building bad been erected on the former Mechanics' Pavilion lot at Grove and Polk streets and over 5000 volumes installed therein. Early in 1909 a contract was entered into for the erection of the present Post street building and by July, 1910, the library was back to the location it had occupied prior to 1906 since 1866.

Early in its existence the Institute established a chess center at which gathered all of the more prominent players of the day. Chess is, as you know, more than an ordinary game-very much in the nature of a mathematical calculation -and its practice makes for the development of a keen intellect. This feature has steadily grown. and today the Mechanics' Institute's Chess Club is known in every part of the world where chess is discussed. Practically all of the world's best known players have at one time or another made visits to this club and pitted their skill against that of players whose training was had in our chess club. I am proud to say that the science of our local players was, in a great many instances, superior to that of our visitors and that the Mechanics' Institute's Chess Club holds many records for skillful and daring playing.

The sale of the pavilion lot to the city in 1913 provided the Institute with a handsome endowment which has enabled the trustees to carry out more fully the aim of the founders of the Institute to disseminate information and useful knowledge at the least possible effort to the seeker and to advance the Mechanics' Institute as an educational center.

I trust that this paper may prove of interest to you and that you will gather from it this fact, that the progress of the Mechanics' Institute and of the Mercantile Library Association from nothing to something important was due to the indomitable will and determination of those early-day workers and to the conscientious labor of those who followed them. Without this spirit there would have been no Mechanics'-Mercantile Library.

MAP OF CALIFORNIA SHOWING COUNTIES



LIST OF COUNTIES HAVING COUNTY FREE LIBRARIES Statistics of July 1, 1923

County	Librarian	Established	Income 1922-23†	Books, etc.	Branches	Total active school dists. in county §	School dists. that have joined
Alameda Amador. Butte. Colusa Contra Costa. Fresno. Henno Glenn. Humboldt. Imperial Inyo. Kern. Kinzs. Los Angeles. Madera Modec Montrery. Napa. Orange. Plumas. Riverside. Sar Bernardino. San Bernardino. San Bernardino. San Bernardino. San Barbara. Santa Clara. Santa Cruz. Siskiyou. Solano. Stanislaus. Sutter. Tehama. Trinity. Tualer.	Mary Barmby Frances M. Burket Blanche Chalfant Mrs Dorothy C. Worden Faye T. Kneeshaw Ida M. Reagan Mrs Thos. B. Beeman Anne Margrave Julia Steffa Lenala A. Martin Celta Gleason Blanche Galloway Essae M. Culver Anna L. Williams Anna Hadden Estella DeFord Margarct Livingston Edith Gartt [*] Chas. F. Woods Cornelia D. Provines Florence J. Wheaton Caroline S. Waters Eleanor Hitt H. O. Parkinson Florence J. Wheaton Caroline S. Waters Eleanor Hitt Clara B. Linn Stella Hunington Minerva H. Waterman Minerva H. Waterman Minerva H. Waterman Minerva H. Waterman Minerva H. Waterman Minerva H. Waterman Minerva H. Waterman Gladys English Elizabeth Stevens Gridys English Elizabeth R. Topping	Sept. 26, 1910 June 2, 1919 Sept. 3, 1913 June 8, 1915 July 21, 1913 Mar. 12, 1912 April 8, 1914 Feb. 6, 1912 Sept. 15, 1913 Nov. 16, 1910 June 4, 1912 Sept. 7, 1915 Sept. 7, 1915 Aug. 6, 1912 Feb. 9, 1919 Sept. 7, 1915 Aug. 6, 1912 Feb. 9, 1919 Sept. 7, 1915 Nov. 8, 1911 Oct. 1, 1908 Feb. 4, 1918 July 14, 1913 April 5, 1912 Feb. 16, 1910 July 6, 1915 July 6, 1914 Aug. 14, 1911 Mar. 7, 1915 Sept. 5, 1912 Feb. 16, 1910 July 9, 1917 April 6, 1914 Aug. 8, 1916 June 10, 1910 July 3, 1917 April 9, 1915 July 12, 1910		$\begin{array}{c} 93,243\\ 8,589\\ 54,530\\ 299,176\\ 32,602\\ 64,146\\ 66,584\\ 22,760\\ 152,341\\ 85,409\\ 42,760\\ 29,994\\ 374,132\\ 65,351\\ 73,625\\ 9,071\\ 63,742\\ 63,742\\ 63,742\\ 14,330\\ 0,217\\ 9,071\\ 63,742\\ 14,498\\ 0,077,733\\ 20,219\\ 0,017\\ 63,625\\ 0,071\\ 14,310\\ 0,217\\ 14,570\\ 83,307\\ 0,01\\ 14,316\\ 0,021\\ 14,316\\ 0,021\\ 14,316\\ 10,183\\ 24,080\\ 0,021\\ 14,316\\ 10,183\\ 24,080\\ 0,021\\ 14,316\\ 10,183\\ 24,080\\ 0,021\\ 14,316\\ 10,183\\ 24,080\\ 0,021\\ 14,316\\ 10,183\\ 24,080\\ 0,021\\ 10,183\\ 24,080\\ 0,021\\ 10,183\\ 24,080\\ 0,021\\ 10,183\\ 10,$	$\begin{array}{c} 82\\ 34\\ 99\\ 99\\ 99\\ 99\\ 99\\ 163\\ 163\\ 163\\ 84\\ 321\\ 165\\ 560\\ 27\\ 145\\ 60\\ 0\\ 47\\ 700\\ 47\\ 700\\ 47\\ 700\\ 47\\ 109\\ 963\\ 114\\ 103\\ 966\\ 1148\\ 103\\ 966\\ 566\\ 74\\ 148\\ 63\\ 87\\ 79\\ 964\\ 44\\ 64\\ 656\\ 566\\ 74\\ 148\\ 82\\ 979\\ 9\\ 79\\ 9\\ 79\\ 79\\ 79\\ 79\\ 79\\ 79\\$	$\begin{array}{c} 81\\ 37\\ 666\\ 66\\ 99\\ 32\\ 32\\ 109\\ 99\\ 32\\ 206\\ 509\\ 32\\ 32\\ 29\\ 85\\ 36\\ 81\\ 121\\ 71\\ 88\\ 85\\ 36\\ 67\\ 36$	$\begin{array}{c} 35\\ 18\\ 60\\ 60\\ 30\\ 30\\ 154\\ 40\\ 101\\ 151\\ 55\\ 30\\ 42\\ 131\\ 50\\ 64\\ 24\\ 24\\ 87\\ 42\\ 24\\ 87\\ 42\\ 65\\ 40\\ 40\\ 711\\ 82\\ 53\\ 79\\ 79\\ 66\\ 66\\ 66\\ 55\\ 82\\ 86\\ 66\\ 30\\ 0\\ 57\\ 48\\ 48\\ 48\\ 48\\ 87\\ 71\\ 82\\ 82\\ 86\\ 66\\ 30\\ 30\\ 88\\ 88\\ 88\\ 88\\ 88\\ 88\\ 88\\ 88\\ 88\\ 8$
42		O 1,'08-D 9,'19	\$1,213,035 29	2,537,370	4,047	2,958	2,369

*Succeeds Carmelita Duff, April 1, 1924. †The income as given does not include balance in fund July 1, 1922. §Includes elementary and high.

99

CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES-QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Only those California libraries are listed for which there were news items. For complete list of libraries, *see* Annual Statistics Number, October, 1923.

CALIFORNIA.

Area, 158,297 sq. miles. Second in size among the states. Population, 3,426,536. Assessed valuation, \$5,716,358,058. Number of counties, 58.

ALAMEDA COUNTY.

(Third class.)

County seat, Oakland.

Area, 840 sq. mi. Pop. 344,127.

Assessed valuation \$342,386,005 (taxable for county \$300,642,000).

ALAMEDA CO. FREE LIBRARY, OAKLAND. Miss Mary Barmby, Lib'n.

Five of the girls from the University who are interested in County libraries have been doing their practice work in the County Library office for the last few months. They spend 100 hours doing this practice work and are given credit for it.

Preparations for Seamen's Book Week are being made. It is hoped that many good books will be received for the sailor boys.

The S. O. deposit which was discontinued for a while has been opened again. MARY BARMBY, Lib'n.

Miss Mary Barmby was elected vice president of the Business and Professional Women's Club and Miss Jean Baird recording secretary at the election held March 6, 1924.—Business Women's Herald, Mr 10

Alameda.

§ ALAMEDA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Marcella H. Krauth, Lib'n.

An entertainment was held at the Webster St. Branch Library on March 1st. The program included an address of welcome by Miss Vivian Loughlin and community singing under the leadership of Miss Theodora Larsen with Mr J. Holdings as accompanist.

Mr⁻ Chas. S. Greene, librarian of the Oakland Free Library, read a number of selections from Daly and Drummond, and Miss Edith A. Hibberd of the same library sang "Down in the Forest," and "I Pass

ALAMEDA CO.-Continued.

Alameda-Continued.

by Your Window," Through the kindness of Rev. Gordon Kent a number of moving pictures were presented. These included two reels of Alaska, and one showing the habits of the spider. Something new to the screen.

There was a most enthusiastic gathering, the room being filled to its capacity. A unique feature was the announcement that any one desiring to do so might donate a book or books to the library. Several books were presented. The wish was expressed that similar entertainment might be held soon and often.

MRS MARCELLA H. KRAUTH, Lib'n.

Berkeley.

[[\$BERKELEY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Carleton B. Joeckel, Lib'n.

Mrs Edith Moss has resigned as Librarian's Secretary. Miss Helen Detoy, formerly Junior Assistant in the Catalogue Department, has been appointed Librarian's Secretary. Miss Helen Downs, Junior Assistant in the Readers' Department, has resigned her position. Mrs Lydia Love Taylor is substituting temporarily in this position. Miss Lona Crane, U. C., 1923, has been appointed Junior Assistant in the Catalogue Department. Miss Doris Spinks, U. C., 1924, has been appointed Junior Assistant in the Readers' Department beginning May 1, 1924.

Work has been commenced on the new Claremont Branch. This building is being erected under the lease-contract plan and payment will be made in four annual installments. The total cost of the branch will be about \$25,000. The architect is Mr James Plachek of Berkeley. The seating capacity of the building will be 100 and the 10,000 books can be accommodated on wall shelves, with additional volumes, if required, on floor cases.

C. B. JOECKEL, Lib'n.

*CALIFORNIA SCHOOL FOR THE BLIND (EMBOSSED BOOK) LIBRARY. R. S. French, Prin,

ALAMEDA CO.—Continued.

Berkeley-Continued.

The library of the School for the Blind has ceased to be a circulating library and is now used only for school purposes.

Al! books in line letter and New York point have been discarded in compliance with the resolution of the American Association of Instructors for the Blind for the adoption of a uniform system of embossed literature. Books in American Braille are retained for the older pupils who still read that system. All new purchases consist of books in the Revised Braille.

The School will add to its library this year some five hundred volumes of new material. These are purchased chiefly under the National Subsidy fund but a fairly large number will be purchased under the provisions of the budget measure of 1923. The new accessions are confined to school books and books for supplementary use in language, literature, science and history.

R. S. FRENCH, Prin.

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF LIBRARY, Wm. A. Caldwell, Prin. Mrs Chas. S. Perry, Lib'n.

I am indebted to the Girl Scouts of California and personal friends for reading matter received this year, as our small book fund covers only classroom needs.

Mrs M. W. W. Perry, Lib'n.

Livermore.

LIVERMORE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Herbert Lee, Prin. Miss Ruth C. Anderson, Lib'n.

Our High School library is being improved this year by the addition of new books, its card catalog is being revised and a card catalog of six hundred pictures is being made.

HERBERT LEE, Prin.

Oakland.

‡§ OAKLAND FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY. Chas. S. Greene, Lib'n.

Mr David E. Martin, County Superintendent of Schools of Alameda County,

ALAMEDA CO .- Continued.

Oakland-Continued.

addressed the Oakland Library Council on February 13th.

The Librarian spoke to the Parent-Teachers' Association of the Frick School on February 21st.

Miss Van Gaasbeek resigned from the position of Cataloger on February 29, 1924. and on March 1st Miss Edith O. Stetson, having passed among the three highest on the eligible list for Cataloger, was appointed to the position. Miss Stetson was formerly Assistant Cataloger in the Department.

Civil Service Examinations have been announced by the Civil Service Board as follows: Library Substitute, May 9, 1924; Library Assistant May 16, 1924; Assistant Cataloger, May 23, 1924; Junior Bookkeeper, May 28, 1924.

The Dimond Branch moved on April 1st to a building erected for it by Mr William Beddig on 3548 Fruitvale avenue. The new building gives the Branch twice as much space as it had before and provides for a Children's Room. Appropriate opening exercises, under the auspices of the Fruitvale Women's Club, will be held on Friday evening, April 11th.

The Librarian addressed the library class at Mills College on March 11th, and the Assistant Librarian will also speak to the class on April 10th.

Miss Jennie M. Fenton, First Assistant in the Reference Department, and the Librarian have been appointed delegates to the California Library Association Meeting at Pasadena.

CHAS. S. GREENE, Lib'n.

· San Leandro.

§SAN LEANDRO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, ALAMEDA CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Mary Brown, Lib'n.

The librarian attended the C. L. A. meeting of the First and Second Districts at the Palace Hotel on March 1st.

Some improvements have been made during the last quarter—new shelving has been installed, the floors newly varnished and shrubbery set out in the garden.

MARY BROWN, Lib'n.

ALPINE COUNTY.

(Fifty-eighth class.)

County seat, Markleeville. Area, 575 sq. mi. Pop. 243. Assessed valuation \$807,549 (taxable for county \$711,513).

AMADOR COUNTY.

(Forty-fifth class.)

County seat, Jackson. Area, 568 sg. mi. Pop. 7793. Assessed valuation \$7,564,016 (taxable for county \$6,519,939).

AMADOR CO. FREE LIBRARY, JACKSON. Miss Frances M. Burket, Lib'n.

Mrs Louise Pitts has been appointed custodian of the Pine Grove branch library. She succeeds Miss Freda Riedeman, who has given splendid service since the establishment of the branch in 1920.

The Drytown branch has been moved from the Mother Lode Printing Office to the Campini & Garibaldi store, with Mr Campini in charge.

Trustees of the Drytown School District voted to join the County Library, Feb. 1, 1924.

BUTTE COUNTY.

(Twenty-second class.)

County seat, Oroville.

Area, 1764 sq. mi. Pop. 30,030.

Assessed valuation \$43,713,269 (taxable for county \$35,666,536).

Biggs.

BIGGS UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH BUTTE CO. FREE LIBRARY. L. S. Pratt, Prin.

The Biggs Union High School Library is a branch of the Butte County Library and is getting satisfactory service. Other than this I have no news items to report. L. S. PRATT, Prin.

Chico.

CHICO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. James Ferguson, Prin.

During the past year we added about five hundred books to our growing library. We expect to be able to add as many the coming year.

LILLIE EARLL, Lib'n.

CALAVERAS COUNTY.

(Forty-ninth class.)

County seat, San Andreas. Area, 990 sq. mi. Pop. 6183. Assessed valuation \$8,636,730 (taxable for county \$7,388,755).

COLUSA COUNTY.

(Forty-second class.)

County seat, Colusa. Area, 1080 sq. mi. Pop. 9290. Assessed valuation \$26,202,221 (taxable for county \$21,807,669).

COLUSA CO. FREE LIBRARY, COLUSA. Mrs Dorothy C. Worden, Lib'n.

The Colusa County Farm Bureau has been organized, and we are to cooperate with it by keeping at headquarters a special pamphlet file and book collection of interest to the Bureau, as well as collections at the centers over the county.

MRS DOROTHY C. WORDEN, Lib'n.

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY.

(Thirteenth class.)

County seat, Martinez. Area, 750 sq. mi. Pop. 53,889. Assessed valuation \$91,000,885 (taxable for county \$80,513,905).

Crockett.

JOHN SWETT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, W. H. Weslar, Prin.

A hundred new volumes have been added to the library. Although many of the new books are fiction, several biographies, historical references, scientific books and a set of "Home and School Reference Work" Encyclopaedia are included in the list.

The library is under the management of a teacher who has placed students in charge of the library during the different periods of the school day. An effort is being made not only to develop an interest in good reading, but also to teach the use and value of a school library.

GERTRUDE ADSIT, Lib'n.

Richmond.

RICHMOND [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Norah McNeill, Lib'n,

CONTRA COSTA CO .- Continued.

Richmond-Continued.

Improvements amounting to \$42,000 were viewed on March 14 by the people of Richmond, when the library held open house afternoon and evening. In the evening talks were given by the Mayor, the President of the Library Board and the State Librarian .- Richmond Record-Herald, Mr 15

DEL NORTE COUNTY.

(Fifty-fourth class.)

County seat, Crescent City. Area, 1546 sq. mi. Pop. 2759. Assessed valuation \$10,683,291 (taxable for county \$10,647,991).

Crescent City.

CRESCENT CITY [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs Florence M. Patty, Lib'n.

A new library board was appointed on March 10, 1924, consisting of Mrs John R. Breen, Mrs Catherine Rapp, Mrs Laura Gunnell, T. B. Cutler and E. L. Kendall.-Crescent City Triplicate, Mr 14

EL DORADO COUNTY.

(Forty-eighth class.)

County seat. Placerville.

Area, 1891 sq. mi. Pop. 6426.

Assessed valuation \$12,103,210 (taxable for county \$10,223,590).

FRESNO COUNTY.

(Fourth class.)

County seat, Fresno.

Area, 5696 sq. mi. Pop. 128,779.

Assessed valuation \$199,142,944 (taxable for county \$171,610,941).

[‡]FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, FRESNO. Miss Sarah E. McCardle, Lib'n.

The County Librarians of the Fourth District, with the Librarian of the Coalinga Library and the heads of departments of the Fresno County Free Library, have formed a luncheon club which meets every two months in Fresno, as the most central location. The first luncheon was held in January. It is proving a very pleasant way of getting together and law with special reference to the service talking over the work, each librarian tell- to the schools. A good deal of time

FRESNO CO .--- Continued.

ing of the new things she is doing and all taking part in the discussion of problems.

We have opened several new branches during the quarter. One is at the Cheney Pumping Station on the West Side and is in charge of Mrs D. C. Keyser in her home. We have had a small collection in the school near here and this has been moved to the regular branch. Another interesting branch is in the contagious ward at the General Hospital and is in charge of the head nurse of the ward. We send only discards, which are kept at the hospital. The rest of the branches are at the Southern California Edison Company's camps and at Power House No. 8 of the same company. We have visited these branches, with the exception of Camp 5 which is at the top of the incline and can only be reached by train. The branch at Power House No. 8 is called Schewanikee and will be a permanent branch. It is located in the power house until the club house is built, the club holding themselves responsible for the books.

Miss Kate Foley, State Teacher of the Blind, visited Fresno in January and met a number of the blind in this vicinity, teaching some to read and inspiring others to keep up their studies. She spoke to several of the luncheon clubs and the Rotary Club joined the California Society for the Blind in a body. She also spoke at St. Paul's Church and at the State College. We had the pleasure of having her talk to the staff and meeting her afterwards.

The County Superintendent of Schools and his supervisors held sectional institutes all during the month of February and we had a representative at each to tell the teachers about our work with the schools. Seventeen sessions were held and we feel that much will be gained by this personal contact with the teachers.

Miss Bailey and Miss Yager have started their class in School and Library Cooperation at the State College. This course is given to the normal students who wish to take it and credits are given them for their work. The course includes general library administration, selection of children's books and County Library

FRESNO CO.—Continued.

is spent in the study of the county manual also. We think that this class is most important as it gives the new teachers a right understanding of our work with the schools and simplifies our relations with them when they go into the county schools which belong to the library. We find that the teachers who take this course have a much more intelligent idea of the County Library scheme than those who have not.

Miss McCardle and a number of the staff attended the meeting of the Fourth District at Merced on the 27th of February. The meeting was most interesting and a very pleasant and profitable day was spent.

On the 19th of March we held a district institute for custodians at Reedley. The custodians from Fowler, Selma, Kingsburg, Clovis, Sanger, Del Rey, Parlier, Navelencia, Orange Cove and Reedley were in attendance. We left Fresno with two machines and took along a number of assistants from the main library to take the places of the custodians whom we took on to the meeting. They took charge of the branches for the day and on their return made a written report of the conditions which they found, thus giving us a better understanding of how the work is being carried on. We took our luncheons and spent the day in the Reedley library, which is a model for arrangement and neatness. The work of a branch library was taken up point by point, filing, children's work, work with the schools, etc. We expect to hold two other institutes in the near future, grouping the branches which are close together. SARAH E. MCCARDLE, Lib'n.

GLENN COUNTY.

(Thirty-eighth class.)

County seat, Willows.

Area, 1460 sq. mi. Pop. 11,853. Assessed valuation \$27,770,156 (taxable for county \$23,181,109).

GLENN CO. FREE LIBRARY, WILLOWS. Miss Faye T. Kneeshaw, Lib'n.

Glenn Branch has been moved from the schoolhouse to the home of Mrs John Landberg.

GLENN CO .--- Continued.

Miss Martha June Coleman, Cataloger, attended the Riverside Library Service School short course for work in story telling under Miss Edna L. Whiteman.

The Librarian has given talks on the library and its work before the following clubs of the county: Orland Woman's Improvement Club, Capay Rancho Woman's Club, Ord Bend Woman's Club, Bayliss Wednesday Afternoon Club.

FAYE T. KNEESHAW, Lib'n.

HUMBOLDT COUNTY.

(Twentieth class.)

County seat, Eureka.

Area, 3507 sq. mi. Pop. 37,413.

Assessed valuation \$43,494,094 (taxable for county \$38,557,459).

HUMBOLDT CO. FREE LIBRARY, EUREKA. Miss Ida M. Reagan, Lib'n.

Green Point School District (P. O. Korbel) joined the County Library February 23, 1924.

Mr J. R. Betts has resigned as custodian of Scotia Branch and Mr F. Bendorf took charge March 1, 1924.

IDA M. REAGAN, Lib'n.

IMPERIAL COUNTY.

(Seventeenth class.)

County seat, El Centro.

Area, 4316 sq. mi. Pop. 43,383.

Assessed valuation \$50,017,798 (taxable for county \$41,476,102).

IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY, EL CEN-TRO. Mrs Thomas B. Beeman, Lib'n.

There have been several changes in the personnel of the Imperial County Free Library. Mrs Chapman of Seeley Branch has moved to Willowbrook and Mrs Moughmer was appointed to fill the vacar.cy, Mrs Tredenick of Holtville resigned and was succeeded by Mrs W. E. Miller. Mrs O. B. Crary of Calipatria resigned and Miss Helen Montgomery has taken up the work there.

Miss Gladys Nietmann, of the Headquarters staff, was married to Mr William Strickland February 16 and has resigned to take up her new duties, while Miss Anita Kavanaugh has taken her

IMPERIAL CO .--- Continued.

place in the library. Miss Kavanaugh is not a stranger in our midst as she had charge of our Holtville Branch just last year. She is so interested in library work that she quit Normal School to accept the position. Her mother, Mrs John Kavanaugh, is one of the rural supervisors and a great booster for county libraries. Miss Julia Foncanon resigned March 1 and Miss Willoughby was appointed to fill the vacancy.

Miss Evalyn Boman, Acting Librarian, attended the District C. L. A. Convention in Alhambra, which was very much enjoyed.

Work on the new Court House Building, in which the library is to have new quarters, is progressing rapidly, but it will be some time before it will be ready for use. However it gives one quite a satisfied feeling to know that our hopes for a new place are going to materialize.

EVALYN BOMAN, Asst. Lib'n.

El Centro.

EL CENTRO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, IMPERIAL CO, FREE LIBRARY, J. L. HOUSE, Prin. Ruth Bullock, Lib'n.

In September, 1923, the library was reorganized as a combined library and study hall. The funds this year have of necessity been spent for "essentials" only, but by next year we hope to have a well selected library which will adequately serve the needs of both the High School and Junior College students.

RUTH BULLOCK, Lib'n.

Imperial.

IMPERIAL [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, IMPERIAL CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Mrs D. W. Hatch, Lib'n.

Outside the regular library work, a course in Nature Study has been carried on in the schools and clubs. Prizes were offered for the best essays to the 7th and 8th grade pupils on "Conservation of Birds" and "Save the Wild-flowers." One way of bringing the subject before our young people was to secure a lecture "Making Friends with the Wild" by Clinton G. Abbott, Director of the Balboa Park Museum, San Diego. This lecture was given March 13, before the P. T. A. and Junior Audubon Clubs. The pictures

IMPERIAL CO .- Continued.

Imperial-Continued.

shown, made from the lecturer's patient photography, beautifully illustrated the title and gave an ideal to be followed by all nature lovers. The speaker is brilliantly fitted to present Audubon principles to all interested.

MRS JESSIE H. HATCH, Lib'n.

INYO COUNTY.

(Forty-seventh class.)

County seat, Independence.

Area, 10,224 sq. mi. Pop. 7031. Assessed valuation \$18,109,750 (taxable for county \$10,986,133).

KERN COUNTY.

(Twelfth class.)

County seat, Bakersfield. Area, 8159 sq. mi. Pop. 54,843. Assessed valuation \$180,996,178 (taxable for county \$151,384,375).

KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY, BAKERS-FIELD. Mrs Julia G. Babcock, Lib'n.

The supervisors authorized the construction of a \$5000 fireproof library building for McKittrick at their meeting February 25, 1924. Charles H. Biggar was instructed, to prepare plans.—Bakersfield *Echo.*, F 26

KINGS COUNTY.

(Twenty-ninth class.)

County seat, Hanford.

Area, 1373 sq. mi. Pop. 22,031.

Assessed valuation \$29,211,631 (taxable for county \$24,607,000).

KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY, HANFORD. Miss Julia Steffa, Lib'n.

Miss Maude Middleton was appointed Head of the School Department to begin work on April 4. She succeeds Mrs Hilda S. Smith who left on April 1.

Miss Mildred Watson resigned her position as general assistant on April 1 and Mrs Harriet H. Walker was appointed to the vacancy.

ton G. Abbott, Director of the Balboa Park Museum, San Diego. This lecture was given March 13, before the P. T. A. and Junior Audubon Clubs. The pictures posed new Civic Center, The room is

KINGS CO .-- Continued.

27 by 32 feet, light, airy and cheerful. The city retinted the walls, painted the woodwork, fixed the floor, and installed new electric light fixtures. The county library put in nine sections of library bureau wall shelving, three oak tables and twelve oak chairs, which with the best of the old furniture, gives the library a very attractive and complete equipment.

The Stratford Branch Library building has been stuccoed and finished on the exterior. Plumbing has been installed and a seven-foot wide cement porch was put across the front of the building, adding to the comfort and attractiveness of the building.

Awnings have been put on the Grangeville Branch Library building and will aid materially in keeping the room comfortable during the warm weather.

Miss Addris Wilcox, custodian of the Hardwick Branch Library, was married on March 8th to Mr L. E. Blanchard.

JULIA STEFFA, Lib'n.

Hanford.

HANFORD FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Julia Steffa, Lib'n.

Miss Charlotte Stewart resigned her position as Cataloger to accept a similar position in the San Luis Obispo County Library. Miss Mildred Watson, who has just completed the course in the Riverside Library Service School, was appointed to succeed Miss Stewart.

JULIA STEFFA, Lib'n.

LAKE COUNTY.

(Fifty-first class.)

County seat, Lakeport.

Area, 1332 sq. mi. Pop. 5402. Assessed valuation \$6,782,525 (taxable for county \$6,738,890).

LASSEN COUNTY.

(Forty-fourth class.)

County seat, Susanville.

Area, 4750 sq. mi. Pop. 8507. Assessed valuation \$17,043,278 (taxable for county \$13,002,853).

LASSEN CO. FREE LIBRARY, SUSAN-VILLE. Miss Lenala A. Martin, Lib'n.

At the Milford and Johnstonville Farm Center meetings, the County Library

LASSEN CO .-- Continued.

furnished the entertainment, conducted games and told the children stories. These entertainments were given not only to revive interest in the Center Meetings through special entertainment for the children, but also to bring the people into closer touch with material available at the County Library. A short talk was given at each center by the librarian on books containing the needed helps. Special committees were appointed to carry on this work, with instructions to meet at the County Library to plan for future meetings.

The librarian spoke on books of interest to mothers at the New Milwood Parent Teachers Association.

The Art Program of the Monticola Woman's Club was in charge of the County Librarian. The program consisted of a resumé of the work covered by the art class.

Mrs Mitcheltree has been conducting a story hour for the children at the Susanville Branch Library once a week. Between 40 and 50 children attend regularly.

LENALA A. MARTIN, Lib'n.

LOS ANGELES COUNTY.

(First class.)

County seat, Los Angeles.

Area, 3880 sq. mi. Pop. 936,438.

Assessed valuation \$1,992,068,094 (taxable for county \$1,695,251,165).

Alhambra.

ALHAMBRA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Artena M. Chapin, Lib'n.

The 6th District C. L. A. held its meetings in Alhambra, January 26, about 300 being present. This was a record attendance for the district. (See p. 136.)

ARTENA M. CHAPIN, Lib'n.

Arcadia.

ARCADIA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs F. W. 'Treen, Lib'n.

The city has purchased property north of the City Hall for the library. The cost of the building and grounds was \$6200. The library must move from the City Hall on account of lack of space. The house purchased will be remodeled and used for library purposes for the present.—Arcadia Journal, F 23

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Glendale.

GLENDALE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. George U. Moyse, Prin. Estelle D. Lake, Lib'n.

The Glendale Union High School Library has moved into its beautiful and spacious quarters in the new high school building located at Broadway and Verdugo Road. The room, 109 x 35 feet, with a seating capacity of 180, is built with high-beamed ceiling and arched windows looking over the campus and towards the There is also an office, a workhills The room and a consultation room. library proper is completely equipped with Library Bureau furniture. The welcome contrast to the whole is a cramped, makeshift arrangements in the old school.

ESTELLE D. LAKE, Lib'n.

Long Beach.

§||LONG BEACH [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs Theodora R. Brewitt, Lib'n.

The Burnett Branch was opened on February first with Mrs Sibyl Foote as librarian in charge and Mrs Elizabeth Owens as children's librarian. The popularity of the new branch is foreseen in the large attendance on the opening night and the remarkable circulation of about nine hundred books on the first day open. The building consists of one room 40 x 60 feet with two small rooms for office and workroom. The book capacity is about seven thousand volumes. There is an enclosed patio which will be used as an out-of-door reading room. An attractive scheme of landscaping is being developed and the grounds and patio are to be made as beautiful as possible.

The library is conducting a series of weekly book talks during January and February. Besides several local speakers, Miss Gertrude Darlow of Los Angeles and Miss Helen Haines of Pasadena will talk. The attendance so far has been more than the capacity of the Art Gallery, where the talks are given.

Miss Alice Burgess, Pittsburg 1914, has been appointed supervisor of children's work to succeed Miss Katherine Scales, who has accepted a position as librarian in the Temple School of Long Beach. Miss Burgess comes directly from St. January, 1924.

.

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Long Beach-Continued.

Joseph, Missouri, where she has been in charge of the children's work.

THEODORA R. BREWITT, Lib'n.

LONG BEACH POLYTECHNIC HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. David Burcham, Prin. Miss Helen B. Courtright, Lib'n.

This library contains 10,000 vols. and there are 149 teachers on the staff of the high school. The number of teachers was very erroneously given in the statistics number of this publication.

Los Angeles.

[‡]SLOS ANGELES [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Everett R. Perry, Lib'n.

The work of leveling the Normal Hill to the grade of Grand Avenue for the site of the new library building was begun on January 14.—Los Angeles *Times*, Ja 15

Actual work of construction of the library building will probably begin about June 1.—Los Angeles *Express*, Mr 25

BARLOW MEDICAL LIBRARY. Dr William Duffield, Pres. Mrs Mary E. Irish, Lib'n.

On January 8 occurred the annual meeting, which was a very enthusiastic one and many plans were discussed for greater growth and usefulness. A new department was planned for and in the future any doctor who wishes the assistance of a medical secretary to translate foreign articles, abstract and do editorial work on his papers for programs or for publication may have the service at the library, a fee being asked from the one requiring the service. The facilities are here, and an assistant librarian, Mrs Helen Townsend, who will undertake this work, has been secured.

The new officers elected are: President, T. C. Lyster, M.D.; Vice President, George Dock, M.D., and Sec.-Treas., H. E. Schiffbauer, M.D.

MARY E. IRISH, Lib'n.

BELMONT HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Marjorie Van Deusen, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 1923. Located at Crown Hill near Clark Memorial Home.

This new high school opened in September, 1923, and the library opened in January, 1924.

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

CALIFORNIA SOCIETY, SONS OF THE REVOLUTION (REPOSITORY OF THE SOUTH-WEST) AND CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF COLONIAL WARS LIBRARY. Pierson W. Banning, Pres. Willis Milnor Dixon, Lib'n.

During the last few months the Society's Library has added a number of books to its shelves in the form of collections and individual gifts of books of Genealogy and Biography and History.

In February pamphlets with helps for teachers in preparing their programs to and celebrate Washington's Lincoln's birthdays were published by the Society and presented to the school board for distribution among the teachers. The demand for the copies was greater than supply. Teachers holding night our schools for foreigners found them invaluable in their work of teaching Americanism.

Thirty-five volumes of scrap books of the genealogical clippings from the Boston *Transcript* have been indexed and filed in our library in a card index.

WILLIS M. DIXON, Lib'n.

GENERAL PETROLEUM Co. LIBRARY. Ruth Delaney, Lib'n.

No further information rec'd.

*MASONIC LIBRARY. Thomas S. Southwick, Sec.

The Masonic *Digest* of April, 1924, has a two-page article on The Masonic Library of Los Angeles, giving a history of the library, its scope, aims and usefulness.

Total volumes are now about 4000 with an additional 8600 annuals bound into more than 1700 volumes. This makes one of the largest collections of Masonic reports in the country.

OCCIDENTAL COLLEGE AND ACADEMY LIBRARY. Remsen du Bois Bird, Prin. Geo. F. Cook, Lib'n.

The new Mary Clapp \$150,000 library building is nearing completion and April 23 has been set for the receiving of the beautiful structure by the president. This building is the gift of Mrs Mary Norton of Pasadena as a memorial to her daugh-

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

ter, Mrs Mary Clapp.—Pasadena Star-News, Ja 13

SOUTHEEN BRANCH OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARY. Dr E. C. Moore, Prin. John Edward Goodwin, Lib'n.

This library has recently adopted the Library of Congress Classification in place of the Decimal system under which the library was organized. The work is already vigorously inaugurated; new accessions are being placed in the new classification at once, and the old material in the library will be reclassified and recatalogued by classes.

J. E. GOODWIN, Lib'n.

Montebello.

MONTEBELLO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Mark R. Jacobs, Prin. Ruby Carver, Lib'n.

Sixty volumes have been added since July 1, 1923.

This year for the first time the library has been housed in a room by itself with a teacher librarian in charge.

RUBY CARVER, Lib'n.

Pasadena.

§ || PASADENA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Jeannette M. Drake, Lib'n.

On January 10 Pasadena voted \$50,000 for a new branch library building.

Miss Helen E. Haines gave a book talk, January 17, on "Keeping up with life," which included recent biographies. This is the first of a series of three book talks which she will give in the spring.

As a result of architectural competition, Mr Myron Hunt is the selected architect for the new \$400,000 main library building.

The firm of Marston & Van Pelt will be the architects for the new East Branch Library building, for which \$50,000 was voted for the grounds and building.

JEANNETTE M. DRAKE, Lib'n.

MOUNT WILSON OBSERVATORY LIBRARY. George E. Hale, Director of Observatory. Elizabeth Connor, Lib'n.

For meeting of Pasadena Library Club at Mount Wilson Observatory Library, see p. 140.

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Pomona.

§||POMONA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Sarah M. Jacobus, Lib'n.

The series of talks about books given in the fall at the Y. W. C. A. by the librarian was so well attended that a second series was asked for. This is weekly through February, March, and April. Instead of being given by the librarian alone, the senior members of the staff are each giving one talk. This alteration has proved to be popular with the class. It is good policy, too, for it makes very evident to the community how capable are all their library workers.

Several rather notable musical events have occurred in Pomona this winter. In preparation for these the library has advertised that anyone might have the records of the concert numbers played for them at any time. This is to meet the necessities of those who can not come to a stated phonograph concert. The response to this invitation was quite good.

At a Board meeting held January 19, it was voted that the staff be classified into three groups, with graded salaries in each group and no advancement from group to group except upon further training. Miss Beryl Lewis (Riverside 1922) was made head of the Circulation Department. The salaries of department heads were increased ten and fifteen dollars per month, according to the schedule of salaries adopted at the same meeting. These increases took effect as from January first.

The local historical collection has received from Mrs Mel Campbell of Pomona a complete history of the Pomona Woman's Cluo with a file of its programs and certain of the earlier record books.

S. M. JACOBUS, Lib'n.

Santa Monica.

SANTA MONICA HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, W. F. Barnum, Prin. Miss Mary L. McKinley, Lib'n.

During the year 1923–24, books to the number of 425 were added to the library. Books to the number of 1085 were cataloged during the year.

Plans are now being drawn by Allison and Allison, architects, for a new library building. This will front on Seventh street, between Pico and Michigan Blvds.

MARY L. MCKINLEY, Lib'n.

LOS ANGELES CO .-- Continued.

Venice.

VENICE UNION POLYTECHNIC HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, LOS AN-GELES CO. FREE LIBRARY. Edward W. Clark, Prin. Maude Dixon, Lib'n.

The Venice Union Polytechnic High School consists of the three upper years. A junior high school has recently been formed on the same campus. It is named Venice Union Junior High School. The library, located in the Polytechnic building, serves both at present.

MAUDE DIXON, Lib'n.

Miss Lillian Hutchison, librarian of the high school, was called to Cleveland by the illness of her father. His death has resulted in Miss Hutchison's remaining in Cleveland for the present. Miss Maude Dixon, formerly of the Riverside High School, will succeed Miss Hutchison.— Venice Vanguard, Ja 23

MADERA COUNTY.

(Thirty-seventh class.)

County seat, Madera.

Area, 2140 sq. mi. Pop. 12.203.

Assessed valuation \$23,021,654 (taxable for county \$19,006,065).

MADERA CO. FREE LIBRARY, MADERA. Miss Blanche Galloway, Lib'n.

Knowles School contracted for service January 20, making Madera County a complete unit for elementary school service.

Mrs William Isakson was appointed full time assistant to replace Hazel Knadler who left the service of this library March 1. Miss Rosie Tognotti was appointed part time assistant.

The branch library at Coarse Gold was removed to the home of Mrs William Krohn, who succeeded Mrs Ione Scribner as custodian.

BLANCHE GALLOWAY, Lib'n.

MARIN COUNTY.

(Twenty-fifth class.)

County seat, San Rafael. Area, 516 sq. mi. Pop. 27,342. Assessed valuation \$27,697,445 (taxable for county \$24,129,460).

MARIN CO.—Continued.

San Anselmo.

SAN FRANCISCO THEOLOGICAL SEMI-NARY LIBRARY, Rev Warren H. Landon, D.D., Pres. Rev Lynn T. White, D.D., Lib'n.

The Carnegie Endowment for International Peace recently designated the library of the San Francisco Theological Seminary, a depository of all its publications on condition that such publications would be made available for use by the public. We consider this a very real contribution to our growing collection on internationalism, especially since, through our Extension Service, we are sending books to Presbyterian ministers and other church workers residing in eleven western states, Alaska, and Hawaii.

LYNN T. WHITE, Lib'n.

Tomales.

TOMALES UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Chas. L. Hampton, Prin.

The library has been recently enriched by 50 books on agriculture, 10 on science and 6 on history and science.

C. L. HAMPTON, Lib'n.

MARIPOSA COUNTY.

(Fifty-third class.)

County seat. Mariposa.

Area, 1580 sq. mi. Pop. 2775. Assessed valuation \$5,449,196 (taxable for county \$4,588,303).

MENDOCINO COUNTY.

(Twenty-eighth class.)

County seat, Ukiah. Area, 3400 sq. mi. Pop. 24,116. Assessed valuation \$31,368,645 (taxable for county \$26,634,985).

MERCED COUNTY.

(Twenty-seventh class.)

County seat, Merced. Area, 1750 sq. mi. Pop. 24,579. Assessed valuation \$37,976,051 (taxable for county \$31,365,037).

MERCED CO. FREE LIBRARY, MERCED. Miss Essae M. Culver, Lib'n.

A new branch has been established in the Merced County Hospital for the Cedarville with Mrs James Patterson as

MERCED CO.—Continued.

patients and nurses. Mr Scandreth, who was chairman of the Board of Supervisors when the County Library was established, is now managing the hospital and has taken charge of the books deposited there. These books will not be returned to the main library but will be supplemented from time to time. Anv books requested by Mr Scandreth and the nurses will be kept in a separate case and returned when no longer in use.

A branch library has also been established at El Nido and is in charge of Mrs J. T. Flanagan.

A Monday morning staff meeting has been inaugurated at the main library for the purpose of reviewing books and magazines and for the discussion of problems of service. The first three meetings were devoted to reports on critical magazines and their value as aids in book selection and in evaluating books for the public. One of the outstanding modern dramas will be reviewed at the next meeting.

The foot and mouth disease has descended upon the county with very disastrous effects and strict quarantine is now being enforced. This means that no visits can be made by the librarian to branches or by custodians to the main office without violating the spirit of the quarantine. Some branch librarians report their circulation is seriously affected because people can not get to the library and others that people have more time to read and are therefore using the library more than ever and that the guards on duty are asking for many books.

The Fourth District of the California Library Association held its meeting in Merced on February 27. (See p. 135.)

ESSAE M. CULVER, Lib'n.

MODOC COUNTY.

(Fifty-second class.)

County seat, Alturas.

Area, 4097 sq. mi. Pop. 5425. Assessed valuation \$8,235,805 (taxable for county \$7,784,400).

[‡]Modoc Co. Free LIBRARY, ALTURAS. Miss Anna L. Williams, Lib'n.

A branch has been established at

MODOC CO.—Continued.

custodian. The library will be placed in the Community Hall and be under the supervision of The Cedarville Parent Teachers Association.

A branch is also in operation at Adin, which is placed in the office of their newspaper The Adin Argus, and Mr Pickard, the editor, is custodian.

ANNA L. WILLIAMS, Lib'n.

MONO COUNTY.

(Fifty-seventh class.)

County seat, Bridgeport. Area, 2796 sq. mi. Pop. 960. Assessed valuation \$4,595,141 (taxable for county \$2,373,300).

MONTEREY COUNTY.

(Twenty-fourth class.)

County seat, Salinas.

Area, 3450 sq. mi. Pop. 27,980.

Assessed valuation \$46,171,385 (taxable for county \$38,399,315).

MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY, SALINAS. Miss Anne Hadden, Lib'n.

Just as the Mansfield School on the coast joined the County Library, the school house was destroyed by a January forest fire and all its contents burned. Mrs Helen E. Reese is custodian and the post office is Jolon.

A group of books on house building, interior decoration, and garden planning placed in the Salinas Chamber of Commerce in January was well used. In the collection were some attractive books on small Spanish, Mexican, and French buildings.

The County Library had an exhibit of new non-fiction at the Central Grammar School in Salinas during Education-Music week, March 25-28.

The Monterey County Free Library has started a collection of prints and etchings of the Monterey County Coast. The first to be acquired is the "Twisted Cypress— 17 Mile Drive" by Miss M. DeNeale Morgan.

ANNE HADDEN, Lib'n.

NAPA COUNTY.

(Thirty-first class.)

County seat, Napa. Area, 800 sq. mi. Pop. 20,678. Assessed valuation \$25,596,755 (taxable for county \$21,840,687).

NEVADA COUNTY.

(Thirty-ninth class.)

County seat, Nevada City. Area, 982 sq. mi. Pop. 10,850. Assessed valuation \$9,626,797 (taxable for county \$6,989,020).

ORANGE COUNTY.

(Tenth class.)

County seat, Santa Ana. Area, 780 sq. mi. Pop. 61,375. Assessed valuation \$160,755,031 (taxable for county \$144,298,445).

ORANGE CO. FREE LIBRARY, SANTA ANA. Miss Margaret Livingston, Lib'n.

The Orange County Free Library moved into the new Hall of Records on February 29

MARGARET LIVINGSTON, Lib'n.

Fullerton.

FULLERTON [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Minnie Maxwell, Lib'n.

The new office and work room has been completed and was occupied about the middle of January. The addition, which is an extension of a wing of the library is two stories high and is 14 by 25 feet in size. The cost of the building complete, with what equipment it was necessary to buy, was \$2637.89.

The lower floor is the office and work room, with lavatory, coat closet, and plenty of supply cupboards and wall cases built in. The room is light, airy and pleasant, and is very greatly appreciated, especially by the librarian and her staff.

The room above is fitted up with wall cases and floor stacks and is used as a periodical room. At present only the files of unbound periodicals are shelved there.

ORANGE CO.—Continued. Fullerton—Continued.

The addition was built to relieve temporarily the crowded condition of the library and make it possible to "carry on" until the city can erect the much needed new library building.

A list of books on religious education was prepared for distribution at the Religious Education Conference to be held in Fullerton, April 2 and 3, 1924.

Pupils of the Los Angeles Library School, thirty in number, visited the libraries of Fullerton on April 1. Tea was served in the public library late in the afternoon with the staff as hostesses.

MINNIE MAXWELL, Lib'n.

Orange.

ORANGE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Mabel Faulkner, Lib'n.

Mrs Mabel Faulkner, formerly of the Riverside Public Library, began as librarian of the Orange Free Public Library on February 1, 1924.

Yorba Linda.

YORBA LINDA LIBRARY DISTRICT LI-BRARY. Miss Blanche Bemish, Lib'n.

The Yorba Linda Public Library purchased two lots recently intending to build as soon as they have the funds.

BLANCHE BEMISH, Lib'n.

PLACER COUNTY.

(Thirty-second class.)

County seat, Auburn.

Area, 1484 sq. mi. Pop. 18,584.

Assessed valuation \$21,515,221 (taxable for county \$14,979,135).

Auburn.

PLACER UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. John F. Engle, Prin. Margaret R. Ingrum, Lib'n.

The library has added several general reference books purchased with fines on overdue and damaged books. Grove's dictionary of music and musicians has been added recently. The horticultural class presented the library with a set of Bailey's standard cyclopedia of horticulture. The money for the purchase of this set was obtained by selling baskets of plants at Christmas.

MARGARET R. INGRAM, Lib'n.

PLACER CO.-Continued.

Roseville.

ROSEVILLE [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Georgiana R. Willits, Lib'n.

Books and magazines circulated during the quarter were 7302; new borrowers 143; books added 13.

GEORGIANA R. WILLITS, Lib'n.

ROSEVILLE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. E. W. Locher, Prin.

Total volumes in the school at present 1206. Teachers 20. We take \$295 worth of magazines this year.

M. M. WELSLET.

PLUMAS COUNTY.

(Fiftieth class.)

County seat, Quincy.

Area, 2361 sq. mi. Pop. 5681.

Assessed valuation \$19,637,355 (taxable for county \$12,357,724).

PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY, QUINCY. Miss Edith Gantt, Lib'n.

Miss Edith Gantt of the Stanislaus County Free Library was appointed county librarian of Plumas County, appointment taking effect April 1, 1924. She succeeds Miss Carmelita Duff, who has accepted a position in the State Library.

RIVERSIDE COUNTY.

(Fifteenth class.)

County seat, Riverside. Area, 7008 sq. mi. Pop. 50,297. Assessed valuation \$55,642,689 (taxable for county \$40,624,850).

RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY, RIVER-SIDE. Chas. F. Woods, Lib'n.

Riverside Library Service School.

The annual luncheon of the Riverside Library Service School was held at the Glenwood Mission Inn, Saturday, March 1. About seventy-five guests were present, including students and alumni, past and present members of the Library Board and instructors in the school. The program included speeches by the President of the Board, Mr C. L. McFarland; by Miss Ina Ten Eyck Firkins of the Library of the University of Minnesota,

RIVERSIDE CO.—Continued.

instructor in reference in the winter session; by Miss Doris Megginson, speaking for the class; and by the Librarian, Charles F. Woods. The remarks of the latter were confined largely to a definition of the policy of the school in the face of the Williamson report. A surprise feature of the luncheon was the introduction of Gene Stratton Porter who read an unfinished poem of her own writing.

Miss Jean Woodruff, recently graduated from the Riverside Library Service School, is now librarian of the Perris Union High School, Perris, California.

The Riverside Library Service School closed its ten weeks session March 14, 1924, having had an average attendance, there being twenty-two students from six states. The class was very high in quality, there being no failure in any of the classes.

CHAS. F. WOODS, Lib'n.

POLYTECHNIC HIGH SCHOOL AND JUNIOR COLLEGE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. A. G. Paul, Prin. Miss Rosa B. Cage, Lib'n.

The library has been the center of a number of school activities during the past few months. Parent Teacher Association parties have been given for the three upper classes in High School, and one for the Freshmen is to be held shortly. The Junior College has also had a party and the library was used for the games and general entertainment. In February a picture framing "bee" was held here and the results were extremely gratifying.

We are glad to be able to report that we are now binding many of our magazines.

Riverside will have co-education in the high schools next year, and as that will mean the combining of the two libraries, we are hoping for larger quarters in the new high school building. The new Junior College building provides for a large library, but for the present this room will be used as an assembly hall. Eventually however, this will be the location of the combined High School and Junior College Library.

ROSA B. CAGE, Lib'n.

*RIVERSIDE CITY GIRLS' HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE Co. FREE LIBRARY. F. P. Taylor, Prin. Miss Jean Urquhart, Lib'n.

RIVERSIDE CO.—Continued.

At the last meeting of the High School Parent-Teachers Association, held in the Girl's High School Library, the Librarian gave a brief talk on the course in Library Science which is open to Seniors and Juniors of high scholastic standing. JEAN G. URQUHART. Lib'n.

*SOUTHERN SIERRAS POWER Co. LI-BRARY. Miss Bernice Loveland, Lib'n.

The library is looking forward to June. when the \$100,000 addition to the Company's building will be finished and the library moved into its new quarters. The library will occupy a separate room on the main floor and this will greatly facilitate the work with all departments.

Miss Bernice Loveland has recently been appointed Librarian.

BERNICE LOVELAND, Lib'n.

SACRAMENTO COUNTY.

(Seventh class.)

County seat, Sacramento.

Area, 988 sq. mi. Pop. 90,978.

Assessed valuation \$142,912,136 (taxable for county \$120,171,655).

SACRAMENTO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAC-RAMENTO. Miss Cornelia D. Provines, Lib'n.

January was a busy month for the Sacramento County Free Library. On January 15, Miss Hazel Burk, a graduate of the University of Chicago, and of the Los Angeles Library Training School, arrived to take charge of the Branch Department of the Library, but, owing to the congested condition of our catalog department, has been largely employed in that department since coming to us.

On January 9, a branch was established in the Arcade District in the Del Paso store, with Mrs Anna Zentgraf in charge. The Arcade Branch has done a flourishing business ever since its establishment. On January 18, a branch was established at Greenhorn Camp, Shasta County, for the use of the prisoners from Folsom State Prison, who are working on the highway construction in Shasta County. The branch is an extension of the Folsom State Prison Branch, all books and communications passing through Represa to the branch. The branch was first estab-

SACRAMENTO CO.-Continued.

lished in the hospital building, but was soon moved to a building of its own, where a reading room has been established. Thirteen magazines have been subscribed for, and many of the men have private donations of books and magazines, and the patronage, both of the books and of the reading room facilities, has been heavy. One of the men acts as custodian, freely giving of his spare time for the benefit of his fellows. It is the one library in our county system which has neither "rules nor locks," and from which nothing has been lost! Fiction is at a discount, and the demand is for books in every line of general literature, with science and history predominating.

A branch was established at Point Pleasant on January 23, in the home of Mrs F. C. Sprock, who acts as custodian. As this is not a heavily populated community, it was not expected that the demand would be heavy, but the original shipment of 50 books proved all too small, and four additional shipments have been sent. On February 15, a branch was established in the County Jail, for the use of the prisoners. This has not been as largely served as it should be, but it is expected that better service will be established in the near future.

The Rio Linda Branch, having outgrown the quarters which it so long occupied in the store of H. Herring, was moved on February 29 to the Telephone Exchange, where more commodious quarters were available for it, with Mrs Belle Dennis in charge.

Mrs J. K. Harder, having resigned as custodian of the North Sacramento Branch, Mrs W. J. Hoskins was appointed to succeed her on March 1.

During the quarter, the County Librarian delivered 5 public addresses, and made 14 visits to schools and branches.

C. D. PROVINES, Lib'n.

Miss Provines was reappointed county librarian for four years on January 7, 1924—Sacramento Bee, Ja 7

SACRAMENTO CO.-Continued.

Sacramento.

‡§SACRAMENTO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Susan T. Smith, Lib'n.

Our circulation figures continue to mount. In spite of unprecedented clear weather, there was a gain of more than 10,000 during the first three months of 1924, over the same period last year.

To relieve the strain at the Loan Desk, entailed by the increasing use of the library, Miss Irma Keating of the California Fruit Exchange was added to the staff on Feb. 1, as clerical assistant. She has charge of all records pertaining to the circulation desk, an arrangement that has materially simplified and improved the routine work during the busy hours of the day.

Josephine Whitbeck attended the meeting of the Third District California Library Association, at Vallejo. Those attending the Fifth District meeting at Woodland were:—Florence White, Margaret Chiles, Donna Harris, Margery Richards and Susan T. Smith. Miss Richards gave a talk at the morning session.

SUSAN T. SMITH, Lib'n.

SAN BENITO COUNTY.

(Forty-third class.)

County seat, Hollister.

Area, 1476 sq. mi. Pop. 8995.

Assessed valuation \$14,711,808 (taxable for county \$13,211,495).

SAN BENITO CO. FREE LIBRARY, HOL-LISTER. Miss Florence J. Wheaton, Lib'n.

During the quarter the librarian has been giving a course of twelve lessons to the seniors at the High School on "Library Methods and the use of reference books."

In February a branch was established at the San Benito Farm Center. There is now a branch of the County library in each of the Farm Centers in the county. On March 1, the librarian attended the joint meeting of the First and Second Districts of the California Library Association held at the Palace Hotel in San Francisco.

FLORENCE J. WHEATON, Lib'n.

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY.

(Ninth class.)

County seat, San Bernardino. Area, 20,055 sq. mi. Pop. 73,401. Assessed valuation \$99,303,873 (taxable for county \$59,003,285).

SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN BERNARDINO. Miss Caroline S. Waters, Lib'n.

Mrs D. B. Davis is the new custodian at the County Hospital Branch having taken charge March 13, 1924. New hours: 1.00 to 2.00 p.m. except Saturday and Sunday.

The branch at Yermo was moved March 1, 1924, from the location in the rooming house into the fine new Yermo Club building of the Union Pacific Railroad Company. Mr A. E. Evans has charge of the library. New hours: 3.00 to 9.00 p.m. daily.

The Hicks Branch was withdrawn March 10, 1924. The people there will be served from the Barstow and Helendale branches. The branch at Barstow is in the telephone exchange and that at Helendale in Mr Trickey's general merchandise store.

CAROLINE S. WATERS, Lib'n.

Highland.

HIGHLAND LIBRARY DIST. LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Ella M. Parmalee, Lib'n.

Highland citizens have endorsed plans for a combined library and community building and by resolution directed the Library Board to call a bond election to provide funds to erect the structure.

ELLA M. PARMALEE, Lib'n.

Ontario.

CHAFFEY HIGH SCHOOL AND JUNIOR COLLEGE LIBRARY. Merton E. Hill, Prin. Wilbur A. Fiske, Lib'n.

SAN BERNARDINO CO.—Continued. Ontario—Continued.

Since the union of other school districts with Chaffey, making the greater Chaffey district, a demand has arisen for books of quality adapted to younger readers. To meet this demand some four hundred volumes have been placed in the Chaffey Library and are now being used by the boys and girls of the outer districts. These books are sent out in numbers of twenty-five, in special containers designed for the purpose. The books are placed under the care of the teachers of the schools, who are responsible for them. They are then issued to the pupils, in a manner similar to the way books are handled in any library. Each consignment of books is returned in four weeks and others are then taken out. In this way from fifty to one hundred volumes are continually in circulation.

This plan of getting good books into the hands of boys and girls who may not have the opportunity of coming in touch with them has been adopted by the Chaffey Library. It is believed in this way that the young people of our schools will be helped in the acquirement of the reading habit and will learn some of the essential lessons of life.

The books designed for this class of readers will be covered by the following heads: Mechanics for boys, Outdoor sports, Hero stories, Stories of industries, Stories of other lands, Stories of adventure, Animal stories, Nature stories, Stories of real people, Stories of the sea, Games for young people, Poetry for young people.

W. A. FISKE, Lib'n.

Redlands.

A. K. SMILEY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Gwendolyn M. Tinker, Lib'n.

In January work was begun in the instructing of the children of the 4th, 5th and 6th grades of the city in the use of the Library. Fourteen classes have visited the Children's Room of the Library so far, where Miss Mary Pew, Children's Librarian, explained to them the difference between fiction and nonfiction, the arrangement on the shelves and the use of the catalog. Catalog games were played.

SAN BERNARDINO CO.—Continued. Redlands—Continued.

Miss Frances Gay began her apprenticeship course in February.

The 30th anniversay of the founding of the Library was celebrated on February 23 with a reception and open house at the Library in the afternoon. There was a short program at which Mr Kirke H. Field, President of the Library Board, presided. Short talks on the value of the Library were given by Mayor A. E. Brock, Mrs Clarence G. White of the Contemporary Club, Pres. Victor L. Duke of the University of Redlands, Mrs H. G. Clement, Superintendent of Schools, Mr H. L. Titus for the Arts and Crafts, and Mr E. M. Lyon for the citizens of Redlands. Miss Artena Chapin, former Librarian, was one of the honored guests. Marked interest was shown in the work of the Library. Several substantial gifts of money toward an endowment fund were received, as well as cash for a system of lighting indirect and for additional children's books.

The circulation for March was the largest in the history of the Library, totaling 13,122.

GWENDOLYN M. TINKER, Lib'n.

SAN DIEGO COUNTY.

(Fifth class.)

County seat, San Diego.

Area, 4377 sq. mi. Pop. 112,248.

Assessed valuation \$94,535,420 (taxable for county \$84,085,828).

Fallbrook.

FALLBROOK UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. J. E. Potter, Prin.

The library has been enlarged by the purchase of the Encyclopedia Brittanica and nine volumes of standard fiction. Miss Constance Kendall has charge of the library.

JAMES E. POTTER, Prin.

San Diego.

\$\$San Diego [Free] Public Library, Mrs H. P. Davison, Lib'n Emeritus, Miss Althea H. Warren, Lib'n.

Our record in monthly circulation was reached in March, 1924. For the first time in library history more than 90,000 books were issued. The daily

SAN DIEGO CO.-Continued.

San Diego-Continued.

average for the entire system was 3525 books a day. Since moving the children's room into its enlarged quarters in the new annex on February 22, that department is making an especially vigorous growth. Our catalog department likewise has a place in the new annex with excellent light and ventilation which are much appreciated.

ALTHEA H. WARREN, Lib'n.

SAN FRANCISCO.

(Second class.)

City and county coterminous.

Area, 43 sq. mi. Pop. 506,676.

Assessed valuation \$916,695,517 (taxable for county \$644,180,600).

[‡]§[FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO. Robert Rea, Lib'n.

The library now has a total of 320,000 volumes and 93,797 cardholders.

ROBERT REA, Lib'n.

*JAMES HUGH WISE LIBRARY.

On account of the congested condition for office space it became necessary a short time ago for us to discontinue the library in this building. However, when our new building is completed, which will be about the middle of 1925, we expect at that time to reestablish the library for the benefit of our employees.

F. A. LEACH, JR.,

Vice President and General Manager, Pacific Gas and Electric Company.

SAN FRANCISCO BAR ASSOCIATION LIBKARY. George J. Martin, Sec. and Lib'n.

The new headquarters for the library will be formally opened January 21, 1924. at 564 Market street and 41 Sutter street.—San Francisco Journal, Ja 20

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY LIBRARY. F. T. Green, Dean.

Owing to lack of space we have distributed our library in the offices of the various chairs.

All works on Materia Medica, Botany, r the first and Pharmacognosy and allied subjects are with the Professor in those branches, The daily likewise all books relating to Pharmacy

SAN FRANCISCO—Continued.

are separated. Chemistry also is arranged in the room adjoining the laboratories. The teacher may at once direct the reading, or assign the references when inquiries are made.

We have purchased twenty books in the last quarter. It is my intention to have a professional librarian from the University institute a system.

FRANK T. GREEN, Dean.

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY.

(Eighth class.)

County seat, Stockton.

Area, 1370 sq. mi. Pop. 79,905.

Assessed valuation \$119,746,530 (taxable for county \$102,967,210).

Lodi.

LODI [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN JOAQUIN CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Amy L. Boynton, Lib'n.

We have recently purchased a reference file, and had shelves built for the walls between and under the windows. This provided a place for the reference department apart from the circulating books.

It was found necessary to add an extra assistant to the staff December 1. The position was filled by Miss Edna Thompson.

The librarian and Mrs Helen A. Botts, first assistant, attended the meeting of the fifth district at Woodland, March 29. AMY BOYNTON, Lib'n.

Stockton.

[‡]STOCKTON FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. H. O. Parkinson, Lib'n.

In order to illustrate the informational (as distinct from the recreational and educational) capacity of the Public Library, the following experiment was announced on March 6:

"To each of the first fifteen individuals requesting information from the library (in compliance with the conditions herein stated) who fails to receive said information within a reasonable period, the librarian agrees to make a personal gift of any one book in the following list:" (The list which followed included 56 titles covering a wide range of appeal and subjects.)

SAN JOAQUIN CO.—Continued.

Stockton-Continued.

Conditions.

1. Any resident of San Joaquin County 18 years of age or over is invited to participate.

2. Any individual may submit any number of inquiries, but not more than one forfeit will be conceded to any one individual.

3. Requests for information are always welcome, but only those received on or before Friday, March 21, will be considered in this demonstration.

4. Queries may be communicated by phone, mail or in person to the Library but must be clearly and explicitly stated and accompanied by name and address of inquirer.

5. Inquiries must be sincere and the information requested of some positive or recognized value to the applicant.

6. No questions of a personal or private nature will be considered.

7. Legal and medical information, while normally supplied to a limited extent, will not be considered in this procedure.

8. Requests for specific books will not be regarded within the scope of this experiment.

9. The Library, which is a cooperating unit of the California County Library system, reserves the right to utilize this system, in which the State Library functions as a clearing house, supplying supplementary printed matter or specifying in what libraries it is obtainable.

10. The applicant is to be his own judge as to whether the information supplied reasonably answers his inquiry.

Lists of questions and sources of replies were printed from time to time in the newspaper, but the announcement of the first *unanswered* question, "What is the origin of the phrase 'Curiosity killed a cat'?" appeared to excite far more attention than all the other items combined.

Out of some five hundred questions, the library failed to answer four, three of which were quotations while the fourth was a graphical representation of certain technical data.

H. O. PARKINSON, Lib'n.

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY.

(Thirtieth class.)

County seat, San Luis Obispo. Area, 3500 sq. mi. Pop. 21,893. Assessed valuation \$37,508,524 (taxable for county \$32,687,420).

SAN LUIS OBISPO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN LUIS OBISPO. Miss Flo A. Gantz, Lib'n.

Miss Ruth Bishop, first assistant and cataloguer, resigned her position here to become cataloguer in the Santa Ana Public Library in February. The vacancy here has been filled by Miss Charlotte Stewart, cataloguer of the Hanford Public Library. Miss Stewart begins work April 1.

The county librarian attended a most interesting meeting held in Paso Robles March 29. It was a sectional meeting of the teachers who come under the jurisdiction of Mrs O. Mae Willett, rural supervisor. The south side of the county under Mr D. H. Foree will hold a like meeting in May.

The main office has just undergone another rearrangement. We have just received a new Library B'ureau wall stack and every book in the library has been reshelved.

FLO A. GANTZ, Lib'n.

Arroyo Grande.

ARROYO GRANDE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. G. Frederickson, Prin. Mildred M. White, Lib'n.

We have a new library this year which is built adjoining the main study hall. It is divided into two parts—the main library with new heavy oak tables, chairs, and attendant's desk; and the text book room which is simply the store room for the school text books. A number of reference books for all departments have been added this year to increase the 1753 volumes already in the library.

Also we have succeeded this year in organizing a library science class of ten girls who are especially interested in library work. They meet with the librarian twice a week during the activities period and receive instruction and practice in the workings of a library. One unit credit is given for the course. So far the class

SAN LUIS OBISPO CO.-Continued.

Arroyo Grande-Continued.

has done some splendid work and at present is busily engaged in cataloging the library.

MILDRED M. WHITE, Lib'n.

San Luis Obispo.

SAN LUIS OBISPO FREE PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs E. L. Kellogg, Lib'n.

The project method in the teaching of geography as used in the seventh and eighth grades of the San Luis Obispo schools has made daily library users of all the pupils of those grades. Instruction in the use of the catalogue and other library tools has been given with good results. A duplicate file of the National Geographic Magazine, 1915–1923, with cumulative index has been added to the library, each number separately and substantially bound by the Pacific Library Bindery, for circulation to the schools. It has been of untold value in this work.

ABBIE S. KELLOGG, Lib'n.

SAN MATEO COUNTY.

(Twenty-first class.)

County seat, Redwood City. Area, 470 sq. mi. Pop. 36,781. Assessed valuation \$41,713,518 (taxable for county \$38,041,180).

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY.

(Eighteenth class.)

County seat, Santa Barbara.

Area, 2450 sq. mi. Pop. 41,097.

Assessed valuation \$63,249,242 (taxable for county \$54,271,315).

SANTA BARBARA CO. FREE LIBBABY, SANTA BARBARA. Mrs Frances B. Linn, Lib'n.

The Tajiguas Branch (P. O. Gaviota) was established February 29, 1924. Rinconada School District Branch (P. O. Lompoc) was discontinued January, 1924, the school district having been suspended.

MRS FRANCES B. LINN, Lib'n.

Santa Barbara.

workings of a library. One unit credit SANTA BARBARA FREE PUBLIC LIis given for the course. So far the class BRARY. Mrs Frances Burns Linn, Lib'n.

SANTA BARBARA CO .-- Continued.

Santa Barbara-Continued.

The decorative feature of carved wood for the main entrance of the Public Library, which has been awaited since the building was erected in 1917, has been completed. Last year a friend of the library gave half the fund necessary and the City Council appropriated the other half.

The overdoor is of wood, carved, gilded and painted in color. The design is in a restrained Spanish baroque to harmonize with the building in general. The theme is that of the coat-of-arms of the city of Santa Barbara, surrounded by the devices of four famous and ancient libraries of the old world, and with idealized statues of Plato and Aristotle placed at either side of the central coat-of-arms as sup-At the extreme bottom 'is a porters. sacramental symbol to represent the religious purpose which inspired the Mission Fathers, flanked by the castles of Spain. The cockleshells appearing in several places are the symbol of the Apostle, Saint James the Great, the patron saint of Spain and of the Spanish colonies. Plato at the left and Aristotle at the right typify philosophy and science and represent the source of modern literature. The shields above are the heraldic devices of the University of Bologna, the Bibliotheque Nationale, the University of Salamanca and the Bodleian Library.

MRS FRANCES B. LINN, Lib'n.

SANTA CLARA COUNTY.

(Sixth class.)

County seat, San Jose.

Area, 1355 sq. mi. Pop. 100,588. Assessed valuation \$118,353,004 (taxable for county \$101,862,810).

SANTA CLARA CO. FREE LIBBARY, SAN JOSE. Miss Stella Huntington, Lib'n.

The event of the quarter was a visit to Sacramento in March. The tour was personally conducted by Miss Huntington, who gets homesick for the State Library at times, and the party included Miss Wheeler, Miss Ward, and Miss Margaret Smith of the Santa Clara County Free Library, Miss Patterson of the Palo Alto Saturday, March 1, was attended by the

SANTA CLARA CO .--- Continued.

Benito County Library. We left San Jose at four o'clock Thursday afternoon. While we were waiting at Niles for the Sacramento train we visited the branch there of the Alameda County Library. A splendid collection of books and a charming custodian who kept the library open an extra half hour for the visitors sustained our pride in the county library system.

Friday morning we spent in the State Library, meeting various members of the staff, visiting the cataloging, documents, newspaper, reference, and circulation departments, and discovering Santa Clara County cards in the union catalog. Tn the afternoon we saw the Sacramento County, Yolo County, and Woodland Public Libraries. Miss Laugenour and her staff gave us a very nice tea in the Yolo County Library. In the evening we called on Mr and Mrs Ferguson in their delightful new home. Saturday morning, after Miss Susan Smith had taken us over the beautiful Sacramento City Library, we returned to the State Library to "do" the law, blind, shipping, and California departments. Each department seemed more interesting than the last and if it had not been for the prospect of luncheon with Miss Gillis we should probably still be bombarding the staff with questions and receiving very wise and helpful answers,

This account may sound a bit like the society notes of the local newspaper, but Miss Huntington's tour not only gave a great deal of pleasure to its members but quite equaled a whole course at a library school in educational value. It gave to us new ideas for our own library and greater professional interest in library work through the contacts with other libraries and librarians. It also helped us to a more intelligent understanding and appreciation of the splendid system and wonderful work of the California State Library, and of the share of the county library in that system and work.

MARGARET W. SMITH, Lib. Asst.

The Second District meeting of the California Library Association, held at the Palace Hotel in San Francisco on Public Library, and Miss King of the San following members of the County Library

SANTA CLARA CO.-Continued.

staff: Miss Huntington, Miss Moore, Miss Ryan. Miss Grace Smith, Miss Ward, and Miss Wheeler.

STELLA HUNTINGTON, Lib'n.

SANTA CLARA CO. LAW LIBRARY. Miss Louise Jennie Spencer, Sec. and Lib'n.

The San Jose Law Library, established in 1874, became the Santa Clara County Law Library in January, 1924. The original charter was to endure for 50 years and would expire March 20, 1924. Accordingly the supervisors took action to establish a library under the state law providing for county law libraries. The old law library trustees were appointed as the new library board, Mr Owen D. Richardson being named president at a meeting on February 25. Miss Louise J. Spencer was continued as librarian and all property was transferred.

The San Jose *Mercury-Herald* of February 27 gives the above facts as well as a complete history of the organization of the law library.

Mount Hamilton (No exp. office).

LICK OBSERVATORY LIBRARY. W. W. Campbell, Director. Dr R. G. Aitken, Associate Director, in charge.

Miss Lona Crane (U. C. 1923) was employed as Library Assistant for the period July 1, 1923, to March 1, 1924. In this interval she brought the card catalog of the bound volumes in the library (on the Dewey Decimal System) up to date, rearranged the shelving, and sorted and rough classified the large collection of pamphlets. An accurate count has not been made recently, but the bound volumes number at least 8500, and the pamphlets approximately 5000.

There is no special fund for the support of the library; appropriations from the regular budget of the observatory are made for it as required.

R. G. AITKEN, Associate Director.

Palo Alto.

PALO ALTO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Walter H. Nichols, Prin. Miss Margaret Girdner, Lib'n.

At last, with the completion of our new \$125,000 addition to the school, we are to have a real library with real library equipment. Up to this time, our library

SANTA CLARA CO.-Continued.

Palo Alto-Continued.

room has been used as a study room, with all the attendant difficulties and inconveniences of administration, so now the chance to develop a real high school library is very welcome. I have a library training class of five who help me in the library, and we have now started our revised card catalog, using L. C. cards. Up to this time, I have preferred to use my time for personal work with the students rather than in the more technical library practices, and now it is with enthusiasm that we are planning our work.

MARGARET V. GIRDNER, Lib'n.

San Jose.

SAN JOSE LAW LIBRARY. See Santa Clara Co. Law Library.

Stanford University.

\$\$||LELAND STANFORD JUNIOR UNIVEBstry LIBRARY. Dr Ray Lyman Wilbur, Pres. George T. Clark, Director of the University Libraries.

At a recent meeting of the Board of Trustees, Mr Clark's title was changed from "university librarian" to that of "director of the university libraries." The change seemed to be desirable for several reasons, but ch'efly to indicate better his administrative responsibilities for a system including not only the university library proper, but such distinct units as the Law Library, the Lane Medical Library, and the Hoover War Library, comprising altogether some 400,000 volumes.

The Hoover War Library now numbers over 40,000 volumes. Its policies will be determined by a directorate composed of Herbert Hoover, its founder, the President of Stanford University, the Director of the University Libraries, .representatives from the departments of History, Economics, Political Science, and Food Research Institute, with Professor E. D. Adams of the department of History as chairman. The Hoover War Library has its own budget and its own staff, and its endowment will permit it to continue the acquisition of material relating to the world war and reconstruction on a liberal scale. GEORGE T. CLARK.

Director of the University Libraries.

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY.

(Twenty-sixth class.) County seat, Santa Cruz. Area, 425 sq. mi. Pop. 26,269. Assessed valuation \$25,742,997 (taxable for county \$22,120,280).

SHASTA COUNTY.

(Thirty-fifth class.)

County seat, Redding. Area, 4050 sq. mi. Pop. 13,311. Assessed valuation \$22,309,159 (taxable for county \$15,474,285).

SIERRA COUNTY.

(Fifty-sixth class.)

County seat, Downieville. Area, 957 sq. mi. Pop. 1783. Assessed valuation \$2,975,701 (taxable for county \$2,638,085).

SISKIYOU COUNTY.

(Thirty-third class.)

County seat, Yreka.

Area, 6079 sq. mi. Pop. 18,545. Assessed valuation \$28,882,569 (taxable for county \$20,826,215).

SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY, YREKA. Miss Thelma Brackett, Lib'n.

February 1–2 was the date of the ninth district C. L. A. meeting. But few members were able to attend, because of the distance and the heavy snow. An effort was made to arouse the library custodians to enthusiasm by urging their attendance. Those who did come, and had the privilege of meeting Mr Ferguson and the other librarians attending, were not disappointed. (See p. 138.)

THELMA BRACKETT, Lib'n.

SOLANO COUNTY.

(Nineteenth class.)

County seat, Fairfield.

Area, 911 sq. mi. Pop. 40,602.

Assessed valuation \$36,577,022 (taxable for county \$30,262,160).

SOLANO CO. FREE LIBRARY, FAIRFIELD. Miss Clara B. Dills, Lib'n.

The branch library at South Vallejo was recently moved into new quarters. Miss Anna Magee of the Patterson The new room is much lighter and more Branch. Miss Ida M. Huntington, main

SOLANO CO.—Continued.

cheerful and already new borrowers are being added.

Mr Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, was a visitor at the library one day during the past quarter.

Miss Chilberg and Mrs Nell Wright attended the Third District library meeting which was held at Vallejo on March 8.

MARJORIE CHILBERG, Asst. Lib'n.

Miss Dills is away on leave of absence on account of illness.

SONOMA COUNTY.

(Fourteenth class.)

County seat, Santa Rosa.

Area, 1540 sq. mi. Pop. 51,990.

Assessed valuation \$51,060,520 (taxable for county \$43,188,855).

SONOMA CO. LAW LIBRARY, SANTA ROSA. Asst. Dist. Atty. Jack W. Ford, Sec.

There are now 7000 volumes in the library. The present Board of Trustees is composed of Judge Rolfe L. Thompson, Judge Ross Campbell, Chairman William King of the Board of Supervisors, J. Rollo Leppo and John Tyler Campbell.— Santa Rosa *Republican*, Mr 21

STANISLAUS COUNTY.

(Sixteenth class.)

County seat, Modesto.

Area, 1486 sq. mi. Pop. 43.557.

Assessed valuation \$59.520,342 (taxable for county \$51,958,175).

STANISLAUS CO. FREE LIBRARY. MO-DESTO. Miss Bessie B. Silverthorn, Lib'n.

A custodians' meeting was held at headquarters on January 31, at 10 o'clock. The county librarian reviewed the work of the past year, and took up in detail plans for the coming year. Dr Marcus McClure of Modesto gave a talk on the privilege of working among books and people that the custodians have, and proved most inspiring to his hearers. Luncheon at Hotel Hughson was enjoyed together. At the afternoon session, book reviews were briefly given by Mrs H. S. Crowe, custodian of the Oakdale Branch, and by Miss Anna Magee of the Patterson Branch. Miss Ida M. Huntington, main

STANISLAUS CO .--- Continued.

office branch assistant, concluded the program with a short talk giving suggestions on making the branches attractive with timely posters and flowers.

January 17 the county librarian addressed the Claus Woman's Club on the subject of "Outstanding books of the season."

February 1 the county librarian met with the Crows Landing Woman's Club, and discussed ways of beautifying the joint club room and library. At the same time an art exhibit was planned and held later on the evening of March 25. The pictures were loaned by the library.

Two members of the staff attended the district meeting in Merced. February 27. Miss Ione Townsend, and Miss Ida M. Huntington, who read a paper entitled "The sad and merry tale of a county library assistant," in which she described some of our methods of advertising and popularizing the library.

Mrs Bert Hayden, custodian of the Mountain View Branch for many years, died at her home during March. Mrs Hayden was active in all affairs affecting the welfare of her community and was much loved by all with whom she came in contact. The library will especially miss her interest and inspiring cooperation.

The county librarian and assistant, Miss Alma Rossel, attended the district meeting in Woodland, March 29, afterward enjoying a week-end house party with Miss Irma Cole, who also had as her guest, Miss Roberta Ingrum, high school librarian of Auburn, all having been associated together in Modesto at one time.

BESSIE B. SILVERTHORN, Lib'n.

On January 15, 1924, the supervisors reappointed Miss Silverthorn county librarian for a term of four years.

Modesto.

MCHENRY [FREE] PUBLIC. LIBRARY AND BRANCH, STANISLAUS CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Bessie B. Silverton. Lib'n.

Miss Edith Gantt resigned her position as desk curator of the McHenry Public Library, to take the position of county librarian of Plumas County, during March, and Mrs Clemence Parks, of the East 28, 1924.-Red Bluff News, Ja 29

STANISLAUS CO.-Continued. Modesto-Continued.

Bakersfield Branch of the Kern County Free Library, was appointed to take her place.

An interesting and interested visitor to the library during March was Miss Evelyn S. Lease, librarian of the Kellogg-Hubbard Library of Montpelier, Vermont, and for some time a member of the Vermont State Library Commission, who was spending a few months on the coast, and before her return east stopped in Modesto to see her former associate, the county librarian.

In compliment to Miss Evelyn S. Lease, of Vermont, her house guest, and Miss Edith Gantt, of her staff, who was to leave soon for Plumas County, Miss Silverthorn entertained at a waffle breakfast the members of her staff. March 28.

BESSIE B. SILVERTHORN, Lib'n.

SUTTER COUNTY.

(Forty-first class.)

County seat, Yuba City.

Area, 611 sq. mi. Pop. 10,115.

Assessed valuation \$21,891,134 (taxable for county \$17,949,070).

SUTTER CO. FREE LIBRARY, YUBA CITY. Miss Edna J. Hewitt, Lib'n.

The custodian of our Live Oak Branch Library, who has had charge practically ever since the library was established, has had to give up the work because of illness in her family. We regret very much Mrs Stafford's leaving us but feel very fortunate in being able to have Mrs W. F. Biglow take her place.

EDNA J. HEWITT, Lib'n.

TEHAMA COUNTY.

(Thirty-sixth class.)

County seat, Red Bluff.

Area, 3200 sq. mi. Pop. 12,882.

Assessed valuation \$20,342,954 (taxable for county \$16,846,610).

Red Bluff.

KRAFT FREE [PUBLIC] § || HERBERT LIBRARY.

Mrs Frances Walker Whitney has resigned as librarian and Mrs James Feeley was appointed by the trustees on January

TRINITY COUNTY.

(Fifty-fifth class.) County seat, Weaverville. Area. 3276 sq. mi. Pop. 2551. Assessed valuation \$3.893.835 (taxable for county \$3.438,770).

TULARE COUNTY.

(Eleventh class.)

County seat, Visalia. Area, 4863 sq. mi. Pop. 59,031. Assessed valuation \$87,860,140 (taxable for county \$68,530,135).

TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY, VISALIA. Miss Gretchen Flower, Lib'n,

Mrs Attie Brown has succeeded Mrs Ray Hawley as custodian of the Earlimart Branch. Mr R. J. Mull has succeeded Mr J. F. Smith as custodian of the Waukena Mrs Maggie E. Rohrer has Branch. succeeded Mrs J. C. Freeman as custodian of the Woodville Branch (P. O. Tulare). GRETCHEN FLOWER, Lib'n.

Miss Ellen Yoder of Cleveland, Ohio, was appointed children's librarian on January 21, 1924, the appointment to take effect March 1 .--- Visalia Times. Ja 21

Miss Winifred Lewis was named an assistant March 20, 1924, to take the place of Miss Hazel Levy, resigned. The appointment takes effect April 1.-Visalia Delta, Mr 21

Porterville.

PORTERVILLE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Sarah Louise Templeton, Lib'n.

Mrs Elsie B. Stone was engaged for four months in completing the catalog of the library.

LOUISE TEMPLETON, Lib'n.

TUOLUMNE COUNTY.

(Forty-sixth class.)

County seat, Sonora.

Area, 2292 sq. mi. Pop. 7768.

Assessed valuation \$11,952,956 (taxable for county \$8,474,886).

TUOLUMNE CO. FREE LIBRARY, SONORA. Miss Gladys English, Lib'n.

After Miss Fitch's resignation, Miss Genevieve Rosasco and Miss Forrestine, for county \$26,416,050).

TUOLUMNE CO .--- Continued.

both Sonora girls, have been helping in the County Library. Miss Maria Staunton, a graduate of the University of California Library School, worked during February. GLADYS ENGLISH. Lib'n.

VENTURA COUNTY.

(Twenty-third class.)

County seat, Ventura. Area, 1850 sq. mi. Pop. 28,724. Assessed valuation \$57.684.592 (taxable for county \$50,454,129).

VENTURA CO. FREE LIBRARY, VENTURA. Miss Elizabeth R. Topping, Lib'n.

The Fillmore Branch Library has moved into a larger room next door to the old building. The labor of moving was volunteered without request and much appreciated.

The Santa Susana Branch has moved from a store where it had a corner into an entire room that has direct access to the street. The room will be furnished with reading table and chairs.

Holy Cross Branch (P. O. and express Ventura) and Thousand Oaks Branch (P. O. Triunfo: no express) were established February 4, 1924.

ELIZABETH R. TOPPING, Lib'n.

For the past two years statistics for shipments from the Ventura County Free Library have been given incorrectly in News Notes of California Libraries. The first year it was from misinterpretation of the figures given; the second year it seems to have been a plain mistake. To rectify this as much as possible, the following correct figures are given: Shipments to branches (including schools) 1921-22, 1292 (17.993 items: books 16,649; periodicals 86; other material Special requests 12,058. 1258). Shipments 1922-23, 2243 (21,904 items: books 20,601; periodicals 126; other material 1177). Special requests 18,416.

YOLO COUNTY.

(Thirty-fourth class.)

County seat, Woodland.

Area, 1017 sq. mi. Pop. 17,105.

Assessed valuation \$32,480,480 (taxable

YOLO CO .-- Continued.

YOLO CO. FREE LIBRARY, WOODLAND. Miss Nancy C. Laugenour, Lib'n.

Miss Marie Lamb, formerly of San Bernardino County Free Library, succeeded Miss Lily Tilden, who resigned to return to the State Library.

Mrs B. P. George succeeded Mr J. N. Bennett, who resigned, as custodian of Broderick Branch.

The Board of Supervisors has allowed \$4083 for a library building in Davis.

NANCY C. LAUGENOUR, Lib'n.

Davis.

DAVIS FREE LIBRARY. Miss Hattie Weber, Lib'n.

During the last three months 626 books were loaned.

We expect to be in our new library in another month. We are to have a very fine reading room.

HATTIE WEBER, Lib'n.

Woodland.

WOODLAND HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. William M. Hyman, Prin. Mrs Elamae L. Proctor, Lib'n.

We lost our library of over 2000 volumes in a fire December 29, 1923.

YOLO CO.--Continued.

Woodland—Continued.

which gutted the whole building. We saved perhaps 80 volumes which students happened to have drawn out. However, we have begun to build anew and have accumulated 303 volumes of fiction and reference. We have just carried a \$250,000 bond issue for rebuilding and are guaranteed funds for books to replace, in part, anyway, our loss.

We have fitted up a small room as a library, putting therein our 303 volumes, a New International Encyclopedia, fifteen current magazines, atlas, dictionaries, year books, etc. The County Library has been very helpful so we are getting on well.

We hope to have some additions to report next time.

MRS ELAMAE L. PROCTOR, Lib'n.

YUBA COUNTY.

(Fortieth class.)

County seat, Marysville.

Area, 625 sq. mi. Pop. 10,375.

Assessed valuation \$19,664,423 (taxable for county \$16,731,980).

DIRECTORY FOR LIBRARY SUPPLIES AND OTHER ITEMS OF GENERAL INTEREST.

The following directory is based on recommendations received from the libraries of California. New recommendations and corrections will be welcomed at any time.

SUPPLIES.

Amateur Plays.

ACTING DRAMAS FOR AMATEURS.

The Book Den, 464 Eighth st., Oakland, Calif.

A. L. A.

BOOKLIST.

78 E. Washington st., Chicago, Ill.

CATALOG.

1904 ed. \$1.

Superintendent of Documents, Government Printing Office, Washington, D. C.

1904-11 ed., \$1.50.

A. L. A. Pub. Board, 78 E. Washington st., Chicago, Ill.

HEADQUARTERS.

86 E. Randolph st., Chicago, Ill.

Binding and Mending.

BINDING.

- Foster & Futernick Co., 444 Bryant st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Herring & Robinson, 1927 Howard st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Hicks-Judd Co., 460 Fourth st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Sacramento Bookbindery, 309 J st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Silvius and Schoenbackler, 423 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

MENDING.

Stix Co., San Jose.

Stix-Parchment mending tissue.

Blind.

Embossed books, etc. Addresses will be furnished by the State Library.

Book Cases.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Book Packing Bags.

Hoegee Co., 138–142 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Book Packing Boxes.

Pacific Box Factory, 2600 Taylor st., San Francisco, Calif.

CORRUGATED PAPER CARTONS.

- Illinois-Pacific Glass Co., 15th and Folsom sts., San Francisco, Calif.
- Richardson-Case Paper Co., 1021 Front st., Sacramento, Calif.

Book Plates.

- Manhattan Photogravure Co., 142 West 27th st., New York, N. Y.
- Sequoyah Studio, 319 42d st., Oakland, Calif.
- Times-Mirror Printing and Binding House, 118 S. Broadway, Los Angeles, Calif.
- Western Lithograph Co., 600-610 E. Second st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Book Pockets.

- Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.
- Hicks-Judd Co., 460 Fourth st., San Francisco, Calif.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- The Zellerbach Paper Co., 534 Battery st., San Francisco, Calif.

Book Stacks, Metal Furniture, Etc.

- Art Metal Construction Co., Jamestown, N. Y.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- J. Niederer Co., 3409 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Van Horn Iron Works Co., Cleveland, Ohio.

Book Supports, Bracket and Pedal for Perforating Stamp and Other Mechanical Appliances.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365–369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Book Varnish.

Pacific Library Binding Co. 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Books.

- Baker & Taylor Co., 354 4th ave., New York City.
- Emporium, 835–865 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Himebaugh & Browne, 471 Fifth ave., New York, N. Y.
- H. R. Huntting Co., Springfield, Mass.
- A. C. McClurg & Co., Library Department, 330 E. Ohio st., Chicago, Ill.
- McDevitt-Wilson's, Inc., 30 Church st., New York City.
- Newbegin's, 358 Post st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Parker's Book Store (C. C. Parker), 520 W. 6th st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Charles T. Powner Co., 542 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Sather Gate Bookshop, 2235 Telegraph ave., Berkeley, Calif.
- Chas. Scribner's Sons, 5th ave. and 48th st., New York, N. Y.
- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.
- Union Library Association, 225 Fifth ave., New York City.
- Vroman's Book Store, 329 E. Colorado st., Pasadena.
- Harr Wagner, 149 New Montgomery st., San Francisco, Calif.

Especially western books by western authors.

White House, Sutter st., bet. Grant ave. and Kearny st., San Francisco, Calif.

ENGLISH BOOKS AND PUBLICATIONS.

- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.
- B. F. Stevens & Brown, 4 Trafalgar Square, London, W. C. 2, Eng.

Books-Continued.

- FOREIGN BOOKS AND PUBLICATIONS IN VARIOUS LANGUAGES.
 - Charles T. Powner Co., 542 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
 - Lemcke & Buechner, 30-32 East Twentieth st., New York City.
 - G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.

French.

- French Book Store, Alfred Blanc & J. Delabriandais, 324 Stockton st., San Francisco, Calif.
- J. Terquem, 19 Rue Scribe, Paris, France.

Italian.

A. Cavalli & Co., 255 Columbus ave., San Francisco, Calif.

Spanish.

Victoriano Suarez, Madrid, Spain.

LAW BOOKS.

- Bancroft-Whitney Co., 200 McAllister st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Matthew-Bender & Co., 109 State st., Albany, N. Y.

SCHOOL BOOKS.

- Milton Bradley Co., 20 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- California School Book Depository, 149 New Montgomery st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Ginn & Co., 45 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- A. C. McClurg & Co., Library Department, 330 E. Ohio st., Chicago, Ill.
- Owen Publishing Co., 681 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- White House, Sutter st., bet. Grant ave. and Kearny st., San Francisco, Calif.

SECOND-HAND BOOKS.

- McDevitt-Wilson's, Inc., 30 Church st., New York City.
- Mudie's Select Library, 30-34 New Oxford st., London, Eng.
- Charles T. Powner Co., 542 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Henry Sotheran & Co., 140 Strand, London, W. C. 2, Eng.
- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.

Books-Continued.	Duplicating Appliances.				
B. F. Stevens' & Brown, 4 Trafalgar	Dandy Duplicator.				
Square, London, W. C. 2, Eng. A. R. Womrath, 15 E. 28th st., New	Dodge & Dent, New York, N. Y				
York, N. Y.	Edison Rotary Mimeograph.				
For used fiction.	H. S. Crocker Co. (Agents), 56				
Especially Californiana.	Market st., San Francisco, Cal				
Dawson's Book Shop, 627 S. Grand	Filing Cases. See FURNITURE AND SUPPLIES. Films.				
ave., Los Angeles, California. F. M. De Witt, 620 14th st., Oakland,					
Calif. Helmes Back Co. 104 Market et. San					
Holmes Book Co., 104 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.	For Rent.				
Francisco, Gani.	American Red Cross, Pacific Div				

Cabinets.

See FURNITURE AND SUPPLIES.

Catalog Cards.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Yawman & Erbe Manufacturing Co., 132-140 Sutter st., San Francisco, and 727 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Charts.

H. S. Crocker Co., 565-571 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Clippings.

Allen's Press Clipping Bureau, 121 Second st., San Francisco, and 626 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

County Free Library Signs.

For information, write Mrs' Frances Burns Linn, Santa Barbara County Free Library, Santa Barbara, Calif.

County Free Library Stickers. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

Cutter Tables, Size Rulers, Etc.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

5 - 571if.

- ision, Civic Center, San Francisco, Calif.
- Fox Film Corporation, New York, N. Y.
- National Producers Film Service, 111 Golden Gate ave., San Francisco, Calif.
- Pathe Exchange, Inc., Non-Theatrical Dept., 985 Market st., San Francisco. Calif.
- United States Forest Service, Ferry bldg., San Francisco, Calif.
- University of California, Extension Division, Berkeley, Calif.

Furniture and Supplies.

- Grimes-Stassforth Stationery Co., 737-739 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rucker-Fuller Desk Co., 677 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Yawman & Erbe Manufacturing Co., 132-140 Sutter st., San Francisco, and 727 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Filing Cases for Music.

Los Angeles Desk Co., 848 S. Hill st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Globes.

- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rand-McNally Co., 125 E. Sixth st., Los Angeles, and 559 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- C. F. Weber & Co., 985 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

3-32173

Magazine Binders.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Elbe File and Binder Co., 215-217 Greene st., New York, N. Y.

Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

Gem Binder Co., 65 W. Broadway, New York.

Wm. G. Johnston & Co., Pittsburgh, Pa.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Magazines.

See PERIODICALS.

Maps.

- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rand-McNally Co., 125 E. Sixth st., Los Angeles, and 559 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- C. F. Weber & Co., 985 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Music.

Sherman, Clay & Co., Kearny and Sutter sts., San Francisco, Calif.

G. Schirmer, 3 E. 43d st., New York, N. Y.

Pamphlet and Multi-Binders, and Pamphlet Boxes.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Paste.

Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Pasting Machines.

A. G. Prior, 136 Liberty st., New York, N. Y.

Perforating Stamps.

B. F. Cummins Co., Chicago, Ill. Moise-Klinkner Co., 365–369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Periodicals.

BACK VOLUMES AND NUMBERS.

- F. W. Faxon Co., 83-91 Francis st., Back Bay, Boston, Mass.
- F. M. De Witt, 620 14th st., Oakland, Calif.

Periodicals-Continued.

- International Magazine Co., 339 Bay Way North, Elizabeth, N. J.
- Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.

H. W. Wilson Co., 958-64 University ave., New York City.

SUBSCRIPTION AGENCIES.

- John A. Clow, 2925 N. Lake ave., Pasadena, Calif.
- Franklin Square Agency, Franklin Square, New York City.
- Moore-Cottrell Subscription Agencies, North Cohocton, N. Y.
- Mutual Subscription Agency, 602 Crozer Bildg., Philadelphia, Pa.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Sar Francisco News Co., 657 Howard st., San Francisco, Calif.
- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.

For foreign periodicals only.

- Sunset Subscription Agency, 631 Chamber of Commerce Bldg., Los Angeles, Calif.
- H. W. Wilson Co., 958-64 University ave., New York City.

Pictures.

Braun & Co., Dornach, Alsace, France.

Curtis & Cameron, Copley Square, Boston, Mass.

Especially for reproduction of American art.

- Toni Landau Photo Co., 1 E. 45th st., New York, N. Y.
- (Formerly Berlin Photographic Co.)
- Perry Pictures Co., Malden, Mass.
- Vickery, Atkins & Torrey, 550 Sutter st., San Francisco, Calif.

Rubber Stamps and Type.

- Chipron Stamp Co., 224 West First st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Los Angeles Rubber Stamp Co., 131 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365-369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Sleeper Stamp Co., 528 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

Scales.

Fairbanks-Morse & Co., Spear and Harrison sts., San Francisco, Calif.

Shelf Label-Holders.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Signs.

- Sam H. Harris, 631 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365-369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Tablet & Ticket Co., 604 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.

Slides.

Geo. Kanzee, 12 Geary st., San Francisco, Calif.

Stamp Affixers.

Multipost Co., Rochester, N. Y.

Steel Stacks.

See BOOK STACKS.

Stereoscopic Views.

Keystone View Co., Meadville, Pa.

Philip Brigandi (Agent Keystone View Co. and Underwood & Underwood), 1626 North Hobart blvd., Los Angeles, Calif.

Has also Industries of California, and Missions of California.

Willis E. Case (Agent Keystone View Co. and Underwood & Underwood), 1610 Grove st., Berkeley, Calif.

Typewriter Ribbons.

L. & M. Alexander, 444 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

- Remington Typewriter Co., 240 Bush st., San Francisco, 420 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, and 913 8th st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Typewriter Inspection Co., 426 S. Spring st., Los' Angeles, Calif.
- Underwood Typewriter Co., 531 Market st., San Francisco, 430 S. Broadway, Los Angeles, and 611 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SCHOOLS. Los Angeles Library School. For full

information, write to Librarian, Public Library, Los Angeles, California.

Riverside Library Service School. For full information write to Librarian, Public Library, Riverside, California. See, also, this publication, p. 112.

University of California Department of Library Science. For full information write to Librarian, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIA-TION.

The officers of the American Library Association for 1923-24 are as follows:

Judson T. Jennings, Librarian, Public Library, Seattle, Wash., President.

Marilla W. Freeman, Librarian, Main Library, Cleveland, Ohio, 1st Vice-President.

Phineas L. Windsor, Librarian, University of Illinois Library, 2nd Vice-President.

Carl H. Milam, Chicago, Secretary.

Edward D. Tweedell, Assistant Librarian, The John Crerar Library, Chicago, Treasurer.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE LIBRARIES.

The officers of the National Association of State Libraries for 1923-24 are as follows:

C. B. Lester, Secretary, Wisconsin Free Library Commission, Madison, Wis., President.

Mrs Maude B. Cobb, Librarian, Georgia State Library, Atlanta, Ga., 1st Vice-President.

Con P. Cronin, Librarian, Arizona State Library, Phoenix, Ariz., 2nd Vice-President.

John P. Dulland, New Jersey State Library, Trenton, N. J., Secretary-Treasurer.

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF LAW LIBRARIES.

The officers of the American Association of Law Libraries for 1923-24 are as follows:

Andrew H. Mettee, Library Company of Baltimore Bar, President.

Con P. Cronin, State Library, Phoenix, Ariz., 1st Vice-President.

Josephine E. Norval, State Librarian, St. Paul, Minn., 2nd Vice-President.

Miss Robbie Mai Leach, Memphis Bar and Law Library, Memphis, Tenn., Secretary.

Summer York Wheeler, Essex County Law Library, Salem, Mass., Treasurer.

LEAGUE OF LIBRARY COMMIS-SIONS.

'The officers of the League of Library Commissions for 1923-24 are as follows:

Milton J. Ferguson, Librarian, California State Library, Sacramento, Calif., President.

Clarence B. Lester, Sec. Wisconsin Library Commission, Madison, Wis., 1st Vice-President.

Miss Nellie Williams, Sec. Nebraska Library Commission, Lincoln, Neb., 2d Vice-President.

Miss Fannie C. Rawson, Sec. Kentucky Library Commission, Frankfort, Ky., Secretary-Treasurer.

PACIFIC NORTHWEST LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

The officers of the Pacific Northwest Library Association for 1923-24 are as follows:

John Ridington, University of British Columbia Library, President.

Miss Joanna H. Sprague, Salt Lake Public Library, Salt Lake, Utah, 1st Vice-President.

Miss Flora M. Case, Salem Public Library, Salem, Ore., 2d Vice-President.

Ralph Munn, Reference Librarian, Seattle Public Library, Seattle, Wash., Secretary.

Miss Elena A. Clancey, Head of Order Dept., Tacoma Public Library, Tacoma, Wash., 'Treasurer.

SPECIAL LIBRARIES ASSOCIA-TION.

The officers of the Special Libraries Association for 1923-24 are as follows:

Edward H. Redstone, State Librarian of Massachusetts, President.

Dorsey W. Hyde, Jr., U. S. Chamber of Commerce, 1st Vice-President.

Ruth G. Nichols, Federal Reserve Bank, Chicago, Ill., 2d Vice-President.

Laura R. Gibbs, Tel-U-Where Co., Boston, Mass., Secretary.

Gertrude Peterkin, American Telephone and Telegraph Co., New York, Assistant Secretary.

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

The officers of the School Library Association for 1923-24 are:

Northern Section-President, ----

Secretary-Treasurer, ------

Southern Section-President, Miss Edith M. Schultz, High School, Redondo.

Secretary---Miss Jean Doan, Part-Time High School, 745 S. Grand ave., Los Angeles.

SPECIAL LIBRARIES ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA.

The officers of the Special Libraries Association of Southern California for 1923-24 are:

Guy E. Marion, Chamber of Commerce Library and Statistics Department, Los Angeles, President.

Leroy J. Armstrong, Librarian, Universal Film Co., Vice-President.

Mary E. Irish, Barlow Medical Library, Los Angeles, Secretary-Treasurer.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY SCHOOL AND UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SCHOOL ALUMNI ASSOCIATION.

OFFICERS :

Edna S. Holroyd, C. S. L. S. '15, Librarian San Mateo Co. Free Library, Redwood City, President.

Fern Wing, U. C. L. S. '21, University of California Library, Berkeley, Vice President.

Ivander McIver, U. C. L. S. '20, University of California Library, Berkeley, Secretary.

EMPLOYMENT BUREAU.

The State Library registers all library workers in California who are looking for positions and all from outside the state who wish to come here. Also it will be glad to know of libraries that want head librarians or assistants in any branch of their work. In writing for recommendations, libraries are urged to

be as specific as possible, especially in regard to time position must be filled and salary offered. A librarian who wishes to be dropped from the Employment Bureau list and a library that fills a position for which it has asked a recommendation will help the work greatly by notifying the State Library at once. For further information, write to the State Library, Sacramento, California.

SCHOOL LIBRARY STATISTICS.

(From reports of County Superintendents of Schools, 1922-23.)

Total school districts	3,714
Elementary	3,356
Iligh	358
Total expended for books for high schools	\$549,575
Total expended for books for elementary schools	\$522,761
Total volumes in elementary schools	2,908,965
Total volumes in high schools	1,698,306

[April, 1924]

CALIFORNIA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

OFFICERS.

President, Jeannette M. Drake, Public Library, Pasadena.

Vice-President, H. O. Parkinson, Public Library, Stockton.

Secretary-Treasurer, Hazel Gibson, Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento.

Trustees Section.

President, F. H. Pettingell, Trustee Public Library, Los Angeles.

Secretary, Mrs Katherine G. Smith, Trustee Public Library, Los Angeles.

Municipal Libraries Section.

President, Ethel Carroll, Public Library, Oxnard.

Special Libraries Section.

Chairman, Margaret Hatch, Standard Oil Company Library, San Francisco.

COMMITTEES.

Executive Committee — The President, Vice - President, Secretary - Treasurer and Dr George Watson Cole, Jasmine Britton, Edith M. Coulter, Mabel R. Gillis, Helen T. Kennedy, Helen E. Vogleson.

Auditing — Margaret E. Livingston, Orange County Free Library, Santa Ana, chairman; Hubert Frazier.

Nominating—The Constitution provides for a "Nominating Committee consisting of representatives selected by the respective districts at their district meetings." First district, Charles S. Greene; Second district, Minerva H. Waterman; Third district, Leta Hutchinson; Fourth district, Essae M. Culver; Fifth district, Mabel R. Gillis; Sixth district, Artena M. Chapin; Seventh district, Ida M. Reagan; Eighth district, Lenala A. Martin; Ninth district, Lila D. Adams.

Publications — Cornelia D. Provines, Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento, chairman; Winifred E. Skinner, Josephine L. Whitbeck. Resolutions—Celia A. Hayward, Public Library, Berkeley, chairman; Philip Goulding, Mrs Frances B. Linn.

Certification—Mrs Theodora R. Brewitt, Public Library, Long Beach, chairman (1928); Jeannette M. Drake (1927); Susan T. Smith (1926); Mabel R. Gillis (1925); Helen E. Vogleson (1924).

Cooperation—Mrs Julia G. Babcock, Kern County Free Library, Bakersfield, chairman; Anne Bell Bailey, Alice M. Butterfield, Mrs Gladys S. Case, Blanche Galloway, Mrs Algeline M. Lawson, Della J. Sisler.

J. L. Gillis Memorial-Milton J. Ferguson, State Library, Sacramento, chairman; Mary Barmby, Eleanor Hitt.

Legislative—Herbert V. Clayton, State Library, Sacramento, chairman; Nancy C. Laugenour, Rosamond Parma. Everett R. Perry, Mrs Miriam Colcord Post.

Membership — Jasmine Britton, City School Library, Los Angeles, chairman; 1st District, Olive Burroughs; 2d District, Stella Huntington; 3d District, Williameena J. Boke; 4th District, Mary W. Harris; 5th District, Florence E. White; 6th District, Sarah M. Jacobus; 7th District, Ida M. Reagan; 8th District, Carmelita Duff; 9th District, Blanche Chalfant.

Music—Jessie M. Fredricks, Public Library, San Francisco, chairman; Gladys Caldwell, Caroline Wenzel.

Salaries—Milton J. Ferguson, State Library, Sacramento, chairman; Carleton B. Joeckel, Sydney B. Mitchell.

Seaman's Library—Mary Barmby, Alameda County Free Library, Oakland, chairman; Sarah M. Jacobus, Sybil Nye, Florence M. Freeman, Marjorie Van Deusen, Pauline Gunthrop, Clara B. Dills.

Jinks—Katherine Downer Kendig, Public Library, Los Angeles, chairman; Mary L. Boynton, Bessie B. Silverthorn, Mary Van Wagenen, Margaret Hatch, Gladys English, Hazel B. Manson.

DISTRICT OFFICERS AND DISTRICTS. First District.

President, Charles S. Greene, Free Li-

brary, Oakland.

Secretary, Lucie C. Nye, Free Library, Oakland.

The first district consists of the following cities: San Francisco, Alameda, Berkeley, Oakland; and the following libraries: Leland Stanford Junior University Library and Margaret Carnegie Library, Mills College.

Second District.

President, Norah McNeill, Public Library, Richmond.

Secretary, Mrs Alice G. Whitbeck, Contra Costa County Free Library, Martinez.

The second district consists of the following counties: Alameda (excepting Alameda, Berkeley, and Oakland), Contra Costa, Monterey, San Benito, San Mateo, Santa Clara (excepting Stanford University), Santa Cruz.

Third District.

President, Estella De Ford, Napa County Free Library, Napa.

Secretary, Clara B. Dills, Solano County Free Library, Fairfield.

The third district consists of the following counties: Lake, Marin, Mendocino, Napa, Solano, Sonoma.

Fourth District.

President, Essae M. Culver, Merced County Free Library, Merced.

Secretary, Bess O. Schurtz, Merced County Free Library, Merced.

The fourth district consists of the following counties: Fresno, Inyo, Kern, Kings, Madera, Mariposa, Merced, Stanislaus, Tulare, Tuolumne.

Fifth District.

President, Irma V. Cole, Public Library, Woodland.

Secretary, Lily M. Tilden, State Library, Sacramento.

The fifth district consists of the following counties: Alpine, Amador, Calaveras, El Dorado, Mono, Nevada, Placer, Sacramento, San Joaquin, Yolo.

Sixth District.

President, Artena M. Chapin, Public Library, Alhambra.

Secretary, Faith E. Smith, Public Library, Los Angeles.

The sixth district consists of the following counties: Imperial, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Ventura.

Seventh District.

President, Mrs Florence Simpson Mc-Claskey, 447 Wabash ave., Eureka.

Secretary, Georgia Davis, Humboldt County Free Library, Eureka.

The seventh district consists of the following counties: Del Norte, Humboldt.

Eighth District.

President, Anna L. Williams, Public Library, Alturas.

Secretary, Elisabeth C. Haines, Lassen County Free Library, Susanville.

The eighth district consists of the following counties: Lassen, Modoc, Plumas, Sierra.

Ninth District.

President, Thelma Brackett, Siskiyou County Free Library, Yreka.

Secretary, Blanche Chalfant, Butte County Free Library, Oroville.

The ninth district consists of the following counties: Butte, Colusa, Glenn, Shasta, Siskiyou, Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Yuba.

ANNUAL MEETING.

The 29th annual meeting will be held at Huntington Hotel, Pasadena, April 28 to 30, 1924.

The County Librarians will meet at the same time and place, extending their session for a special day on May 1.

DISTRICT MEETINGS.

First and Second Districts Meeting.

A joint meeting of the First and Second Districts of the California Library Association was held in San Francisco in the Concert Room of the Palace Hotel, March 1, 1924. The morning session was called to order by Miss Norah McNeill, librarian of the Richmond Public Library and president of the Second District. The first speaker was Byron Mauzy, president of the Mechanics Institute, who gave a history of the Mechanics' Mercantile Library. (See p. 95.)

Mrs Elizabeth Gray Potter, librarian of Mills College, who recently returned from France, spoke on the American Library in Paris. She gave a very illuminating idea of the work as carried on by the staff of librarians.

Harry Noyes Pratt, editor of the Overland Monthly, reviewed briefly the history of the magazine and voiced the hope that he might be able to restore its old-time literary flavor.

Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, spoke briefly of the change in the location of the Sutro Branch of the State Library from the Lane Medical Library Building to its present quarters in the San Francisco Public Library, Civic Center.

Miss Mary Barmby, Chairman of Committee on Seaman's Library, announced that in April a plea for books for sailors would be made and asked the help of all librarians present.

The question of personal and institutional membership was discussed by Miss Stella Huntington and a member from the First District.

Charles S. Greene was elected nominator for the First District, with Miss Edith Coulter, as alternate.

Luncheon was served to about one hundred and twenty guests. Miss Carol Donnan favored the assembly with two violin solos and Miss Melva Farwell with two flute solos. Miss Farwell explained that the music of her second number, a phantasy, was obtained from the music department of the San Francisco Public Library and was the only place from which she could obtain it.

Charles S. Greene, librarian of the Oakland Free Library and president of the First District presided at the afternoon session. He introduced Mrs Mary Roberts Coolidge who spoke on "The author and his audience." Mrs Coolidge said in part that all the arts had one thing in common, that they must have an audience.

A letter of regret that illness would prevent his attendance was read from Charles G. Yale, librarian of the Bohemian Club, who was to have talked on Bohemian authors. Dane Coolidge very kindly took his place on the program and talked on Western authors and writers of western stories.

Charles Caldwell Dobie, author and short story writer, related humorously his early experiences as a writer; he closed his remarks by saying that he had talked upon all subjects except that assigned him, his novel, "The blood red dawn."

Frederick O'Brien told how he wrote his "White shadows in the South Seas" and recounted many humorous incidents connected with his sojourn there.

Present day poets and poetry was the theme of Mrs Edwin Markham of New York. Mrs Markham has been the president of the Poetry Society of New York for many years and was able to give freely of her wide experience.

Miss Edith Hibberd of the Oakland Public Library sang two groups of songs in her very delightful way. The musical program for the day was arranged by Miss Fredericks, head of the music department of the San Francisco Public Library. The meeting was well attended, both districts being represented.

ALICE G. WHITBECK, Secretary.

Third District Meeting.

The annual meeting of the Third District of the California Library Association was held on Saturday, March 8, 1924, at the Vallejo Public Library. Miss Estella De Ford, president of the district, presided, and in the absence of Miss Clara B. Dills, Miss Marjorie Chilberg acted as secretary.

A word of welcome was given by S. A. Copper, president of the Board of Trustees of Vallejo Public Library, and also by A. H. Draughon, Mayor of the City of Vallejo.

A short business meeting was held at which Miss Leta Hutchinson was elected nominator for the district, with Miss Clara B. Dills as alternate. Following, an informal discussion of library problems was held, and each member present was asked to name the most interesting

book he had read recently and tell in a its trustees for their cooperation and few words something about the book. The meeting then adjourned till afternoon

Those present were taken to Mare Island where, through the courtesy of the Commandant, they were guests of the Vallejo Public Library at a luncheon served in the yard cafeteria.

Lunch over, the party was escorted about the island by Chaplain Hayes. This proved most interesting inasmuch as very few had visited the island before. The Rodman Naval Club Library and U. S. Hospital Library and recreation rooms were of special interest. The party then returned to Vallejo where the meeting was continued.

Mrs Zoe D. Moore of the Seven Arts Reading Room in the Palace of Fine Arts in San Francisco talked briefly regarding the work of the organization and extended a welcome to the use of the valuable material housed there.

A most delightful talk was then given by Mrs Elizabeth Gray Potter, of Mills College, on the work in the American Library in Paris. The library was established by the American Library Association during the war for the use of the men in service. With the end of the war it was to have been discontinued, but so many requests were made to keep it open that various means are now being taken to make it a war memorial. All nationalities and classes of people are using the library and it is felt that America and American literature will be better understood as the library continues.

Christopher Nixon of Stag's Leap, Napa County, then spoke on "The library from the borrower's view-point." A graduate of Oxford, Mr Nixon has had access to the British Museum, the Bodleian Library and other large libraries of Europe. He said, however, that nowhere was he able to get better service than in the State of California.

An interesting day was concluded by Miss Hastings of Sather Gate Book Shop. She told of her work with children, and in her charming manner told one of the old Persian hero tales, "The Birth of Rustam."

The meeting was the largest ever held in this district, 52 being present, and much credit for the success of the meeting should go to the Vallejo library and requests.

hospitality. MARJORIE CHILBERG,

Acting Secretary.

Fourth District Meeting.

On Wednesday, February 27, 1924, the annual meeting of the Fourth District of the California Library Association convened in Merced with eighty-five librarians from the ten San Joaquin Valley counties comprising the district in attendance.

The morning session, which was held at the County Library, opened at 10.30 with the greetings to the visiting librarians, followed by a brief business session at which the nominator and alternate were elected, to serve at the annual election of officers of the association. Miss Essae M. Culver and Miss Gretchen Flower were unanimously elected.

The first speaker on the program was Miss Julia Steffa, Librarian of Kings County Free Library, who described some of the literary shrines visited on a recent trip through Europe. Beginning with the library carried on shipboard she led us on to the American Library in Paris; the Vatican; the burial place of Michael Angelo and the monument of Dante in Florence; the British Museum; University of Oxford; Shakespeare's birthplace: to Scotland and the home of Burns. then back through Montreal to the United States and home. All of her hearers cherish a hope of visiting the shrines of which so attractive a glimpse was given.

Miss Ida Huntington, of the Stanislaus County Library staff, gave an allegorical presentation of "The sad and merry tale of a county library assistant." In a humorous and whimsical way she presented for consideration many ideas and ideals of library service, and her paper was original and greatly appreciated.

A round table discussion on library problems under the direction of Miss Mary Harris, of Fresno County, was next carried Miss Pauline Yager, of on. Fresno County, spoke on children's libraries, and contrasted the advantage of a small library with a larger one. Miss Martha Johnson, of the Taft Library, spoke on "How to interest the public in uonfiction books" and Mrs Lucile Isakson of Madera led a discussion on special

At 12.30 luncheon was served at El Capitan Hotel where an opportunity was given for all to get acquainted.

The afternoon session was held in the Elks' hall and commenced at 2 o'clock. Albert Gillette opened the session with two vocal numbers accompanied by Miss Dorothy Dunn.

The two addresses of the afternoon were "A little library talk" by Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, and "The spirit of American criticism" by Dr Aurelia Henry Reinhardt, President of Mills College.

BESS SCHURTZ, Secretary.

Fifth District Meeting.

The meeting of the Fifth District of the California Library Association was held in Woodland, March 29, 1924, in the Board of Trade rooms in the Yolo County Courthouse.

The meeting was called to order at 11 o'clock by the President, Miss Irma Cole, who extended a cordial welcome to all present. A short business session followed. Minutes of last year's meeting were read, after which the nominators were elected to represent this district at the California Library Association meeting at Pasadena in April. Miss Mabel R. Gillis of the State Library was elected nominator, and Miss Cornelia D. Provines of the Sacramento County Free Library, alternate.

Miss Marjorie Richards of the Sacramento City Library gave an interesting talk on "The attitude of the library worker toward his work." Miss Pearl Blundell of the San Joaquin County Free Library told of the "Information contest" which the library held. Four hundred and eighty questions were received during two weeks, one hundred and fifteen of this number required some research, two could not be answered and two were doubtful. A few minutes were given to informal discussion on questions of general interest to librarians, after which the meeting adjourned to visit the Woodland City Library and Yolo County Free Library, and to partake of a luncheon prepared by the ladies of the Methodist Church South.

thirty, with an able address by Rev. and in order to do this he commanded

currents in contemporary literature," and Miss Cornelia D. Provines gave a most interesting talk on "Contribution of the negro to American literature," which ended all too soon.

A rising vote of thanks was given to the speakers and the meeting adjourned. LILY M. TILDEN, Secretary.

Sixth District Meeting.

The Sixth District of the California Library Association met at Alhambra on January 26, 1924. There were about 300 present, that being 100 more than last year. The morning session was opened by an invocation by Rev. S. J. Kennedy, a member of the Alhambra Library Board. J. L. Davidson gave the address of welcome. He said, "In books lies the soul of all past time. If libraries could settle some of the unsettled problems of today through these books, it would be a fine thing."

The secretary read the part of the constitution applying to the election of a member of the nominating committee. Mrs Brewitt nominated Miss Artena M. Chapin, who was unanimously elected. Miss Faith Smith was elected as alternate. Communications were read from Miss Gibson regarding memberships for the California Library Association, from Miss Zaidee Brown with reference to her "Lantern Lists," and greetings from Charles S. Greene, president of the First District.

Miss Jeannette M. Drake, president of the California Library Association, gave the plans for the annual meeting in April.

Miss Marion J. Ewing, assistant librarian, Pomona College Library, gave a very illuminating talk on libraries and other things in China. She said in part: "Although China is a very dirty place, the tourists look in vain on the streets for scraps of paper bearing Chinese characters. There is great reverence for printed words even among illiterates, and papers are taken to nearby shrines to be rever-The story of libraries ently burned. begins with Confucius, who lived about 250 years before the Alexandrian Library was built. For two hundred years after Confucius, literature flourished. Then The afternoon session opened at two- Prince Chen wished to abolish feudalism, Harold S. Brewster of Modesto on "Some that all books be destroyed, and that the

scholars be beheaded; but some of the library building is in course of erection. scholars managed to conceal a large quantity of Confucian literature in a well, so that this was saved. Literature flourished again in the Han dynasty about 200 years A. D. when the emperor ordered the Chinese classics to be engraved on stone tablets, or pillars, so that they never could be destroyed. Real libraries About 1773 Emperor were established. Chun Lung decided that literature was not appreciated. He ordered that his subjects should turn in all manuscripts of any value. He appointed a director who read thousands of these and from them chose 3500 works. One thousand five hundred clerks were employed for ten years to make seven copies of each of Only three of these are left, and these. the Chinese are very eager to have them copied, but it would cost \$10,000 for 100 copies. No Chinese publishing house is willing to undertake this. One collection occupies one-fifth of a mile, and is classified by a scheme made 600 years before. The same classification is used in libraries now, but the Chinese are not satisfied with the scheme. At the present time libraries may be divided into three classes: Old libraries; libraries connected with foreign inissions; and government and municipal libraries influenced by foreigners.

Among the old libraries are 30 Buddhist libraries, exact duplicates of one another, Priests are allowed to take one book at a time from these collections. Once a year the public may look at these books under the supervision of the priests. The books are in old Chinese characters seldom used now. There is a public library in Nanking in an old building, with glass cases, used only by scholars. One must give notice a day in advance when one wishes to use certain books. Scholars have their own private libraries of Chinese classics of great age. An outgrowth of the libraries of the missions was a library school started by Miss Elizabeth Wood at Hankow, which is the Chicago of China. Miss Wood's graduates lecture on library work. She is trying to have some of the indemnity money spent on a national library. A government library is situated at Nanking where Mr Hung is librarian. He is a graduate of the New York State Library School and his library is like an American library. An imposing new music by local artists, stories told by

A very impressive library building may be seen at Soochow where a charming librarian shows one through the different rooms, but not a book is to be seen. China is in the imitative stage of library work and educational work. They will accept the best and eliminate the worthless, and will surely create something that will be a real contribution to the world of letters."

J. E. Goodwin, librarian of the Southern Branch of the University of Californ'a. spoke on some of the problems in his library. He said: "I left my membership in the California Library Association in 1912 and went to Texas. I returned to library work in California this year. When asked to speak at this meeting I visualized an informal gathering of onethird the number here. In Texas a meeting of the whole state is attended by about seventy-five. Because I have come from there so recently, I bring you greetings from that small association. I deeply appreciate the very cordial welcome received from Miss Fargo and other members of the staff of the University Library. Our problems are paralleled in any sizable college or university in the country, and they are the same as those in the instructional departments. Our physical plant is inadequate and not susceptible to extension. The university has announced that instruction shall be maintained on the same high standard as at Berkeley, therefore the library must be first class. The Southern Branch is borrowing very generously from Berkeley, far more than we could from any other library. In making purchases we must consider what shall be excluded. In accepting gifts we must determine whether the same standards shall be applied as we apply to pur-The responsibility of selection chases. lies in large measure with college faculties. The library buys largely for non-laboratory departments, but producing scientific men are those who insist upon first class laboratory equipment and first class magazines and books."

Miss Helen T. Kennedy, assistant librarian of the Los Angeles Public Library, conducted a very lively symposium on the modern novel.

The afternoon program consisted of

Miss Marion Greene, Children's Librarian of the Alhambra Public Library, and a paper by the author, Charles Francis Saunders, on "Finding the worth while in Calitornia."

FAITH E. SMITH, Secretary.

Seventh District Meeting.

The Seventh District of the California Library Association held its annual meeting Saturday, April 12, 1924, at the Humboldt County Free Library, Eureka. The meeting was preceded by an informal luncheon.

Those in attendance were: Mrs Florence McClaskey, president; Miss Ida M. Reagan, Miss Mona Kinney, Miss Edna Davis, Miss Georgia Davis, Humboldt County Free Library; H. A. Kendall, Mrs Helen Bartlett, Eureka City Library; Miss Eva Manning, Eureka High School; and Miss Ruth Larimer, Humboldt State Teachers College, Arcata.

Miss Ida M. Reagan was elected nominator and H. A. Kendall, alternate, to attend the annual meeting at Pasadena.

After the business session there followed a round table discussion of the program of the annual meeting of the association which had arrived that morning. The members present were interested in the program numbers and expressed themselves as wishing it were possible for them to attend.

GEORGIA A. DAVIS, Secretary.

Ninth District Meeting.

The members of the Ninth District of the California Library Association attending the meeting, which was held in Yreka February 1 and 2, 1924, arrived there late Friday afternoon, and were met at the train by Miss Thelma Brackett, president of the district, who had made arrangements for the entertainment of the members in private homes. Later all gathered and again were grateful to Miss Brackett for her thoughtfulness when as her guests they partook of a turkey dinner.

At 8 p.m. the meeting was formally called to order in the public library, Miss

Brackett presiding. After a cordial welcome to the members and friends, the president introduced Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, who made a few general remarks, and then delighted his listeners by reading a clever satire on George Washington, Mary Queen of Scots, and U. S. Grant, from Tom Masson's Annual for 1923.

"The door in the wall" was the subject chosen by a "far-away" borrower, Mrs Clarence Soule, for her inspiring talk. The "door" proved to be the county library and the books that had been made available to her and her family through the agency of that institution. She described in a delightful manner the systematic way she had read and studied for years.

At 10 a.m. February 2, the second session was called to order. J. W. Miller, Superintendent of Schools, who had lived and taught in Siskiyou before the era of the county library, spoke most appreciatively of what had been accomplished through the library service to schools.

Mrs Lila G. Adams was the speaker on children's books. Her experiment of personally sending postals to all the school children in Trinity County during Children's Book Week and asking them to write descriptions of their favorite books was most interesting and the audience was certainly entertained by the reading of a few of the cards she received in reply.

In the absence of Miss Edna Hewitt, Librarian of Sutter County, who was to have led the round table, Miss Blanche Chalfant opened the discussion. Problems that are always present in every library were discussed to the advantage of all present.

Mrs Lila Adams was elected nominator for the district, with Miss Chalfant as alternate.

Several custodians of Siskiyou County were in attendance, also a number of local people. Yreka being rather far from the center of population, made it difficult for some members to attend. The meeting, however, made up in enthusiasm what it lacked in attendance.

BLANCHE CHALFANT, Secretary.

CALIFORNIA COUNTY LIBRARIANS.

Milton J. Ferguson, Ex-officio Chairman.

Advisory Committee.

Stella Huntington, Santa Clara County, Chairman.

Clara B. Dills, Solano County.

Margaret E. Livingston, Orange County. Sarah E. McCardle, Fresno County.

Cornelia D. Provines, Sacramento County, Treasurer.

COUNTY LIBRARIANS' CONVENTION.

The County Librarians' Convention will be held jointly with the Annual Meeting of the California Library Association at the Hotel Huntington, Pasadena, April 28–30, 1924, with a separate day for special county library business, May 1. The following committee has been appointed to assist in preparing the program: Miss Barmby, Miss Brackett, Miss Hitt and Miss Provines.

[April, 1924

LIBRARY CLUBS, ETC.

accounts of meetings of the various library clubs and similar organizations throughout the state. Previously such accounts have been printed under the library where they have been held or the library where the president or secretary was located. This new arrangement should make these articles more available. News items of the various clubs are solicited.

PASADENA LIBRARY CLUB.

The Pasadena Library Club, with members from the libraries of Pasadena

Under this heading will be given and vicinity, met at the Mount Wilson Observatory Library Sunday afternoon, March 9, with about sixty present. The talk of the afternoon was by Captain R. B. Haselden, in charge of the manuscripts at the Huntington Library, who surveyed the history of the manuscript, explaining the characteristics of the different periods and illustrating by photographs of manuscripts.

ELIZABETH CONNOR.

Librarian, Mount Wilson Observatory Library; President, Pasadena Library Club.

BOARD OF LIBRARY EXAMINERS, CALIFORNIA.

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD.

Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, Chairman.

Robert Rea, Librarian, San Francisco Public Library, Secretary.

Everett R. Perry, Librarian, Los Angeles Public Library.

Sections 6 and 7 of the County free library law (Chap. 68, Cal. Statutes 1911) read as follows:

SEC. 6. A commission is hereby created to be known as the board of library examiners, consisting of the state libra-rian, who shall be ex officio chairman of said board, the librarian of the public library of the city and county of San Francisco, and the librarian of the Los Angeles public library.

SEC. 7. Upon the establishment of a county free library, the board of supervisors shall appoint a county librarian. who shall hold office for the term of four years, subject to prior removal for cause. after a hearing, by said board. No person shall be eligible to the office of county librarian unless, prior to his appointment, he has received from the board of library examiners a certificate of qualification for the office. At the time of his appointment, the county librarian need not be a resident of the county nor a citizen of the State of California.

REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN.

There has been no meeting of the Board of Library Examiners during the past quarter.

CERTIFICATE HOLDERS.

NOTE .- First-grade certificates are valid or use throughout the state; second grade, in counties of the twenty-first to the fiftyeighth (except twenty-fifth, thirty-third, thirty-fifth and forty-second) classes, in-clusive; third-grade in counties of the forty-ninth to the fifty-eighth classes, inclusive.

The new certificate, issued for the first time, December 22, 1920, is valid for use throughout the state.

First Grade.

Babeock, Mrs Julia G., Ln. Kern County Free Library, Bakersfield. Culver, Essae M., Ln. Merced County Free

Culver, Essae M., Ln. Merced County Free Library, Merced.
Flower, Gretchen L., Ln. Tulare County Free Library, Visalia.
Hatch, Margaret, Ln. Standard Oil Co. Library, San Francisco.
Holroyd, Edna S., Ln. San Mateo County Free Library, Redwood City.
Morse, Marion, Ln. Maui County Free Library, Wailuku, T. H.

-

New Certificate.

Adams, Mrs Lila (Dobell), Ln. Trinity County Free Library, Weaverville.
Bailey, Anne Bell, Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno.
Barmby, Mary, Ln. Alameda County Free Library, Oakland.
Be e m an, Mrs Anne (Madison), Mrs Thomas Beeman, Ln. Imperial County Free Library, El Centro.
Brackett, Thelma, Ln. Siskiyou County Free Library, Yreka.
Brewitt, Mrs Theodora R., Ln. Public Li-

Brewitt, Mrs Theodora R., Ln. Public Library, Long Beach.

Burket, Frances M., Ln. Amador County Free Library, Jackson.

Chalfant, Blanche, Ln. Butte County Free Library, Oroville. Chatfield, Marguerite, Asst. Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento.

Chilberg, Marjorie J., Asst. Solano County Free Library, Fairfield.

Coulter, Mabel, Asst. Contra Costa County Free Library, Martinez.

Davis, Arline, Asst. Orange County Free Library, Santa Ana.

De Ford, Estella, Ln. Napa County Free Library, Napa.

Dills, Clara B., Ln. Solano County Free Library, Fairfield.

English, Gladys, Ln. T. Free Library, Sonora. Tuolumne County

Ferguson, K. Dorothy, Ln. Bank of Italy Library, San Francisco. Ferguson, Milton J., Ln. State Library,

Sacramento.

Frazier, Hubert B., Asst. Public Library, Los Angeles.

Frink, Ellen B., Asst. Monterey County Free Library, Salinas. Fuller, Mrs Melissa, Asst. Fresno County

Free Library, Fresno. Gal'oway, Blanche, Ln. Madera County Free Library, Madera. Gantt, Edith, Ln. Plumas County Free

Library, Quincy.

Gibson, Hazel G., Asst. Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento. Gleason, Celia, Ln. Los Angeles County Free Library, Los Angeles. Greene, Charles S., Ln. Free Library, Oak-

land.

Hadden, Anne, Ln. Monterey County Free

Hadden, Anne, Lik Montree, County Fri Library, Salinas. Haines, Alice J., Head Documents Dept., State Library, Sacramento. Harris, Mary W., Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno.

Hitt, Eleanor, Ln. San Diego County Free Library, San Diego. Huntington, Stella, Ln. Santa Clara County

Huntington, Stella, Ln. Santa Clara County Free Library, San Jose.
Kitchirg, Mrs Ethelene M., Ln. Fullerton High School Library, Fullerton.
Kneeshaw, Faye T., Ln. Glenn County Free Library, Willows.
Kobler, Marjorie H., Asst. San Diego.
County Free Library, San Diego.
Laugenour, Nancy C., Ln. Yolo County Free Library, Wodland.
Linn Mrs Frances Burns Ln Santa Bar-

Linn, Mrs Frances Burns, Ln. Santa Bar-bara Free Public Library and Santa Barbara County Free Library, Santa Barbara.

Livingston, Margaret E., Ln. Orange County Free Library, Santa Ana. McCardle, Sarah E., Ln. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno. Margrave, Anne, Ln. Inyo County Free Library, Independence. Library, Independence.

Martin, Lenala A., Ln. La Free Library, Susanville.

Meredith, Roberta, Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno.

Middleton, Maude, Asst. Kings County Free Library, Hanford. Mumm, Beulah, Reference Ln. State Li-

brary, Sacramento. Packer, Ella, Asst. Colusa County Free Library, Colusa.

Perry, Everett R., Ln. Public Library, Los

Angeles.

Augeres, Provines, Cornelia D., Ln. Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento. Rea, Robert, Ln. Public Library, San

Francisco. Reagan, Ida M., Ln. H Free Library, Eureka. Ln. Humboldt County

Silverthorn, Bessie B., Ln. McHenry Pub-lic Library and Stanislaus County Free Library, Modesto.

Smith, Susan T., Ln. City Library, Sac-

ramento.

Steffa, Julia, Ln. Hanford Public Library and Kings County Free Library, Hanford.

Stevens, Elizabeth, Ln. Tehama County Free Library, Red Bluff. Thomas, Mabel W., Asst. Ln. Free Li-

brary, Oakland.

 Jongi, Elizabeth R., Ln. Ventura. County Free Library, Ventura.
 Vogleson, Helen E., Asst. Ln. Los Angeles. County Free Library, Los Angeles.
 Warren, Althea H., Lm. Public Library, · Ln,

Warren, Alth San Diego.

San Diego. Waterman, Minerva H., Ln. Santa Cruz Public Library and Santa Cruz County Free Library, Santa Cruz. Waters, Caroline S., Ln. San Bernardino. County Free Library, San Bernardino. Whitbeck, Mrs Alice G., Ln. Contra Costa County Free Library, Martinez. Worden, Mrs Dorothy (Clarke), Mrs Charles J. Worden, Ln. Colusa County Free Library, Colusa.

Free Library, Colusa.

Second Grade.

De Witt, Mrs Isabelle (Park), Asst. Mer-ced County Free Library, Merced. Duff, Marcella Carmelita, Asst. State

Library, Sacramento.

Encking, Louise F., Asst. Public Library, Seattle, Wash. ulkner, Mrs Mabel F.,

Seattle, Wash.
Faulkner, Mrs Mabel F., Ln. Orange Public Library, Orange.
Gantz, Flo A., Ln. San Luis Obispo County Free Library, San Luis Obispo.
Hewitt, Edna J., Ln. Sutter County Free Library, Yuba City.
Schaer, Mildred E., Asst. Public Library, Los Angeles.

Wheaton, Florence J., Ln. San County Free Library, Hollister San Benito

Whitheck, Josephine L., Asst. City Li-brary, Sacramento.

Yates, Mrs Bess (Ranton), Mrs John D. Yates, Asst. Orange County Free Li-brary, Santa Ana.

Third Grade.

Williams, Anna L., Ln. Modoc County Free Library, Alturas.

At Present Out of Library Work.

Alexander, Mrs Lela (Clapperton) (New certificate)

certificate). Dambacher, Mrs Helen (Rowland), Mrs Gustav Dambacher (2d grade). Ferris, Katharine Post (New certificate). Gregory, Marion L. (New certificate). Herrman, Mrs Jennie (Herrman), Mrs James White Herrman (New certificate).

Jamieson, Mrs. Dorothy (Henderson), Mrs Natt F. Jamieson (2d grade). Kyle, Eleanore (New certificate).

Kyle, Eleanore (New Certificate).
Lewis, Mrs Anna Jean (Thomson), Mrs R. B. Lewis (New certificate).
McDonald, Mrs Ora Regnart, Mrs Charles E. McDonald (New certificate).
Work, Mrs Geraldine (Graham), Mrs George A, Work (2d grade).

COUNTY FREE LIBRARY LAW.

The "California county free library law and circular of information for applicants for certificates of qualification to hold office of county librarian in California" was published in News Notes of California Libraries, April, 1911, and later reprinted in pamphlet form. The edition being exhausted, a revised edition of the circular was printed in News Notes of California Libraries, January, 1914. This has been reprinted as a pamphlet. The fifth edition was issued December, 1921. (Circular of information only.) The fourth edition of the County free library law was also issued in December, 1921. Copies of both of above pamphlets will be furnished on request.

NEXT EXAMINATION.

The next examination will be held at the Public Library, Los Angeles, Saturday, April 26, 1924, and at the State Library, Sacramento, June 6, 1924.

APPLICATION BLANKS.

All who wish to take the examination should file applications with the Chairman of the Board. For application blanks or further information address the Chairman of the Board, Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, Sacramento, California.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY.

The bill establishing the California State Library was signed by Governor Peter H. Burnett, January 24, 1850. California State Library School was ostabliched by resolution adouted Son

established by resolution adopted September 4, 1913.

California State Library School was discontinued by motion adopted May 22, 1920.

Annual income for 1923-24, \$101,605. Total accessions 249,831 (less 3246 lost and discarded = 246,585) exclusive of 15,992 accessions in Books for the Blind Department and of the Sutro Branch in San Francisco.

FORMER TRUSTEE.

In the last number of News Notes of California Libraries it was our sad duty to note the passing of two former members of the Board of State Library Trustees. Again it becomes necessary to record the death of another member, Mr Max J. Kuhl, who died on February 17, 1924. Mr Kuhl was in office at the time the board was abolished. He brought to the library a keen mind, and was at all times interested in the promotion of better library service.

NEW STATE LIBRARY AND COURTS BUILDING.

The cornerstone of the new building was laid with Masonic ceremonies on March 26.Other librarians present. besides the State Library staff, were Miss Mariorie Chilberg of Solano County, Miss Edna Hewitt of Sutter County, Miss Cornelia Provines of Sacramento County and Miss Susan T. Smith of Sacramento City, Mrs Alice G. Whitbeck of Contra Costa County. Mrs Ella Sterling Mighels of San Francisco was also a special guest of the State Library.

STAFF.

Milton J. Ferguson, Librarian.

Miss Mabel R. Gillis, Assistant Librarian and Head of Books for the Blind Department

Herbert V. Clayton, Law and Legislative Reference Librarian.

Miss Eudora Garoutte, Head of California Department.

Miss Alice J. Haines, Head of Documents Department.

4 - 32.173

Mrs May Dexter Henshall, County Library Organizer.

- Miss Annie Lowry, in charge of Periodicals and Binding.
- Wm. H. Lugg, Head of Shipping, Repairs, etc., Department,
- Miss Beulah Mumm, Reference Librarian.
- Miss Ida G. Munson, Head of Catalog Department.
- Miss Myrtle Ruhl, in charge of Order Department.
 - Miss Beryl Andrews, Assistant.
- Miss Helen M. Bruner, Assistant, Sutro Branch, San Francisco.
 - Miss Alice Chenu, Assistant.
 - Miss Ella A. Clark, Indexer. Miss Benneta Colton, Assistant.
 - Miss Mae Davies, Assistant.
- Miss Margaret Dennison, Assistant,
- Sutro Branch, San Francisco. Mrs Gerna R. Dickson, Assistant.
 - Miss Dorothy Geeslin, Assistant.
 - Miss Angelina Grant, Assistant.
 - Miss Zilla Grønt, Assistant.

 - Miss Florence Lamb, Bookkeeper. Mrs Bessie Heath McCrea, Assistant.

 - Miss Alice Miller, Assistant. Miss D. Florence Montfort, Assistant.
 - Miss D. Florence Montrolt, Assistant, Miss Mary V. Provines, Assistant, Miss Dorothy Puffer, Assistant, Miss Irene E. Ryan, Assistant, Miss Lily M. Tilden, Assistant,
- Miss July M. Huller, Assistant. Miss June Vladyka, Assistant. Mrs E. D. Waldron, Assistant. Miss Marguerite Walker, Stenographer.
 - Miss Caroline Wenzel, Assistant.
 - Mrs Ina Brosseau, Book Repairer. Miss Emma F. de Merritt, Book Re-
- pairer.
- Mrs Mae Moore, Book Repairer. (On leave of absence.)
- Charles T. Edwards, Assistant Shipping Clerk
- Arden Hall, Assistant Shipping Clerk (Part-time).
- Wm. G. Lyons, Assistant Shipping Clerk.
 - Ronald Miller, Messenger. Vera Palermo, Messenger.

 - Leona Rasmussen, Messenger. J. L. Foss, Janitor. G. A. Klees, Janitor.

 - Harry A. Simons, Elevator Operator.

STAFF NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Helen M. Bruner was transferred from the Books for the Blind Department to the Sutro Branch in San Francisco on January 14, where she is assistant in charge. Miss Mary Virginia Provines has been serving in Miss Bruner's place in the Blind Department, but will be succeeded there by Miss Carmelita Duff, County Librarian of Plumas County, who comes to the State Library early in April.

Miss Dorothy Geeslin began as an assistant in the Books for the Blind Department on February 7, and Miss June Vladyka as assistant at the Loan Desk on February 11.

Vera Palermo began as messenger on February 11, Margaret Hogan having left on January 31.

Mrs Martha Anderson was employed as temporary typist from January 21–24, 1924.

Mr Ferguson spoke at the State Music Conference, called by the State Board of Education, in Sacramento on January 10. He attended the following district meetings of the California Library Association: the Ninth at Yreka on February 1 and 2, where he spoke on "Some Worth While Things"; the Fourth, at Merced, on February 27, and gave "A Little Library Talk"; the First and Second at San Francisco on March 1, where he spoke briefly on the new location of the Sutro Branch; the Third at Vallejo on March 8: the Fifth at Woodland on March 29.

Mr Ferguson spoke also at the opening of the new addition to the Richmond Public Library building on March 14, and at the Kiwanis Club in Sacramento on February 25.

Staff members who attended the meeting of the Third District at Vallejo we'e Mrs E. D. Waldron, Miss Alice Miller and Miss Caroline Wenzel. Miss Alice J. Haines, Miss Helen M. Bruner and Miss Margaret Dennison attended the joint meeting of the First and Second districts at San Francisco. The following attended the Fifth District meeting at Woodland: Miss Colton, Mrs Dickson, Miss Gillis, Miss Lamb, Miss Mumm, Miss Munson, Miss Ryan, Miss Tilden and Mr Clayton. Miss Gillis was elected nominator for the district.

A staff meeting was held on March 6 at which State Library matters were discussed by Mr Ferguson.

On March 7 and 8 the State Library had the pleasure of a visit from the following librarians: Miss Stella Huntington, librarian of the Santa Clara County Free Library, and Miss Margaret Smith, Miss Ward and Miss Louise Wheeler

of her staff, Miss Frances Patterson, librarian of the Palo Alto Public Library, and Miss Deborah King, assistant in the San Benito County Free Library.

The library contributed books, etc., from the Books for the Blind Department to the exhibit made by the California Society for the Blind at the Child Welfare Exh'bit in San Francisco on March 31.

LIBRARY HOURS.

Week days _____ 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Legislative session :

Week days _____ 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Sundays _____10 a.m. to 3 p.m.

LAW AND LEGISLATIVE REFER-ENCE DEPARTMENT.

HERBERT V. CLAYTON, in charge.

The Law and Legislative Reference Department is fully equipped with the latest reports, digests, encyclopedias and textbooks, the statutes of other states, the United States, Great Britain, Canada, Australia and certain other foreign countries, and briefs of counsel in cases decided in the California Supreme and Appellate courts. State officers are entitled to borrow books, and private individuals are accorded the same privilege upon presentation of a request signed by a Supreme, Appellate or Superior Judge, or other state officer. Books may be kept three weeks, and will be once renewed for two weeks. All books are subject to recall, if required by a state officer, or if, in the opinion of the Librarian, a recall is fair and expedient.

In addition to special service to members of the Legislature, information on the laws of California and other states and countries is given on inquiry from libraries or individuals. Recent accessions to the department

Recent accessions to the department will be found listed under the heading "Law" in the section on "Recent Accessions."

DOCUMENTS DEPARTMENT.

ALICE J. HAINES, in charge.

The Documents Department aims to collect, arrange and make available government publications, federal, state, city and foreign.

Recent accessions of California State and City publications will be found on page 179.

Copies of 31 California state publications have been received for distribution libraries during January, February and March, 1924.

Agriculture Department. Special publications, nos. 43-44.

- Controller. Compiled statement of do-mestic corporations whose corporate powers have been suspended . . 1923. - Inheritance tax act. 1923. ration Dept. Corporate securities
- Corporation 1923. act.
- Fish & Game Comm. Cal. fish and game,

- vol. 10, no. 1. Health bd. Special bull. no. 44. Tuberculosis primer for school children. 1924. Highway Comm. Cal. highways, vol. 1, nos. 2-3.
- nos. 2-3. Important statutes . . . 1923. Report of traffic on state high-ways and county roads, 1922. 1924. Industrial Accident Comm. Report, 1923. Cal. sa'ety news, vol. 8, no. 1. Elevator safety orders. 1923. Conversit netroleum industry safety
- General petroleum industry safety
- Mining
 Bur.
 Cal.
 oil fields, vol.
 9, nos.

 Mining
 Bur.
 Cal.
 oil fields, vol.
 9, nos.

 Mining
 Inst uction, Supt.
 Sull nos.
 1,
- 4-A. Public School Teachers' Retirement Salary Fund B. Report for ten years, 1913-1923. 1924.
- 1923. 1924. Public Works Dept., Water Rights Div. Amended regulations 11 and 12. 1924. Div. Railroad Comm. Public utilities act.
- 1923.
- to be nominated, primary election, August 26, 1924. 1924. Teachers College, Chico. Course of study,
- 1924 25.
- Teachers College, Fresno. Sierra summer school. Regular summer session, 1924. Teachers College, San Diego. Bull. vol.
- 12, no. 1. Veterans' Home. Annual report, 1923.

REFERENCE DEPARTMENT.

BEULAH MUMM, in charge.

The Reference Department furnishes information to any inquirer. It furnishes books to public libraries on request of the librarian, and to any other educa-tional institution on request of its official head or its librarian; to individuals through the signature of a state officer, of the Librarian of the local library or of the official head of any other educa-tional institution or on receipt of a \$5.00 deposit; to a club or grange on request of its president, secretary or librarian. In counties having county free libraries, all requests must be made through the county free library.

ORDER AND ACCESSIONS DEPARTMENT.

MYRTLE RUHL, in charge.

During January, February and March, 1667 books were accessioned.

CATALOG DEPARTMENT.

IDA G. MUNSON, in charge.

During January, February and March, 1082 books were cataloged and 9104 cards were added to the file. 6800 cards were filed in the Union Catalog.

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT.

EUDORA GAROUTTE, in charge.

The California Department aims to have a thoroughly good collection of books on the history and description, resources and industries of the State, as well as the works of California authors, artists, in all departments of literature. These we made accessible by means of a card vatalog. Full names and biographical sletches of California authors, artists, nusicians, pioneers and early settlers are being secured, together with their photo-grapls. The collection of bound peri-odicals is quite large. The Department also contains about 9000 bound volumes of newspapers, a file of which is being indexed with reference to the history of the State. Students will be assisted in their work.

Pioneers and Early Settlers.

The card of Fordyce J. Benjamin is most interesting. Mr Benjamin was a member of Stevenson's famous regiment which arrived in 1847. He settled in Sonoma County but in 1876 moved to Lassen County, where he was a highly respected resident until his death which occurred at Susanville in 1896.

The card of Mrs Benjamin has also been received. Martha Anna (Morgan) Benjamin arrived with her parents in 1849 and was married in Petaluma to Fordyce J. Benjamin in 1850.

William Oscar Carpenter arrived in 1850. His experiences in the mines and in business in Sacramento were both exciting and unique. His letters home were unusually illuminating as to the life of the times. Extracts from these letters have recently been published under the title, "A California Pioneer of the Fifties." Mr Carpenter returned to his home in Michigan where he spent the remainder of his life. In the '80's he revisited the scenes of his California experiences and expressed regret that he had not made his permanent home within ' its borders.

Other cards received are those of Charles Miner Taylor, Francis Marion Griffin and John Wesley, Easter.

California Authors.

The following author cards have been received since the last issue of News Notes of California Libraries:

> Banning, Pierson Worrall Hunt, Mrs Laura Shellabarger Mrs William Hunt Kelley, Mrs Edith (Summers) Mrs Clyde F. Kelley Luther, Mark Lee *Madison, James Moore, Ernest Carroll Shimizu, Thomas Terukichi Strong, Nelle de Luce Weir, William J.

California Artists.

The following artist cards have been received since the last issue of News Notes of California Libraries: Foster, Arthur Turner

*Sargeant, Geneve R.

California Musicians.

The following musician cards have been received since the last issue of News Notes of California Libraries:

> Boyd, Mrs Ellen Constance (Edwards) Mrs Robert Morgan Boyd *Pasmore-Burrell, Mrs Mary Mrs Alfred Ray Burrell *Pasmore, Dorothy Bickford *Pasmore, Harriet Horn Pasmore, Henry Bickford

Newspaper Index.

The index covers the period from August 15, 1846, to date.

Catalog.

Two hundred ninety-two cards have been added to the California catalog during the last quarter.

Donations.

Donations are coming in as usual.

Exhibit.

A very interesting exhibit of old daguerreotypes and ambrotypes has been placed in the rotunda of the capitol and is exciting much interest.

*Native Californians.

BOOKS FOR THE BLIND DEPARTMENT.

MABEL R. GILLIS, in charge.

Embossed books in the various types are sent to any blind resident in California upon application. Circular and finding list, with Call slip postal, will be sent on request. Writing appliances and games for the blind are loaned as samples to those wishing to buy such articles, so that the different kinds can be tried before they are ordered. Addresses of firms supplying all articles loaned will be furnished on request.

Books sent to individuals from an institution distributing embossed literature are carried free through the mails.

Embossed catalogs in A merican Braille, Moon, and New York point are now available. They will be loaned to borrewers wishing them for use in book selection.

The State Library will be glad to have borrowers who care to do so write any letters or requests for books to the Library in Braille or New York point.

The first book was loaned June 13. 1905.There are now 2043 blind borrowers. 52 borrowers having been added during January, February and March. Total accessions are 15,992 as follows: New York point books 2475; New York point music 188; American Braille books 3024; American Braille music 1269; European Braille books 2381; European Braille music 174: Moon books 3956: Moon music 5; Revised Braille books 1658; Revised Braille music 109: Standard dot books 14; Line books 193; Line music 21: Ink print books 362; *Appliances 84; *Games 46; Maps 33.

Copies of magazines have been donated during the last three months by Mrs F. A. Bacher, F. B. Beans, Mrs C. W. Brett, Mrs H. W. Bruning, Frank Caldwell, Mrs A. H. Clise, Mrs Anna Courtois, Rosa Falck, Kate M. Foley, Ruby Holtz, Bessie A. Long, Mrs Rose McComb, Wm. A. Miller, Hattie B. Newman, Mrs M. E. Phillips, Mrs E. A. Riches, Mrs L. Sargent, George W. Shoemaker, C. H. Snow, Wm, H. Thomas, Amy Weihe, Canadian National Institute for the Blind, Christian Record Publishing Co., Free Gospel Library for the Blind, National Institute for the Blind, New York Association for the Blind, Permanent Blind Relief War Fund, Society for the Aid of the Sightless,

*Appliances and games are loaned as samples to anyone wishing to try them. Navier Free Publication Society for the Blind, Ziegler Publishing Co.

Other gifts will be indicated in the list of books, etc., which have been added to the library during the last three months, to be printed in July issue of this publication.

During January, February and March, 7130 books, etc., were loaned as follows: New York point 682; American Braille 564; European Braille 1113: Moon 2887: Revised Braille Grade 11 2052; Ink print books 3; Appliances 10; Maps 0; Games 2. The loans were divided by class as follows: Philosophy and religion 580; sociology 40; language 64; primers 70; science 94; useful arts 58; fine arts 1; amusements 9; music 128; literature 220; fiction 4198; travel and history 467; biography 348; periodicals 847.

Home Teaching.

Owing to a decrease in the appropriation for the Library during the present two years home teaching for the blind was discontinued by the Library on June 30.

On December 1, 1923, home teaching was officially reinstated under the State Board of Control. Persons knowing of possible pupils may communicate with the State Library, or, if in the bay district, with Miss Kate M, Foley, 146 McAllister street, San Francisco, and, if in Los Angeles and vicinity, with Miss Catharine J. Morrison, 951 El Molino street, Los Angeles.

SUTRO BRANCH.

The Sutro Branch occupies space in the Public Library, Civic Center, San Francisco, and is open every day, except Sunday, from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY SCHOOL GRADUATES.

Miss Esther M. Bomgardner, San Diego, Cal.

Alts Lastier M. Dougardner, San Diego, Cal.
'15. Asst. Public School L., Los Angeles.
Miss Thelma Brackett, San Diego, Cal.
'20. Ln. Siskiyou Co. F. L., Yreka.
Miss Helen V. Briggs, Sacramento, Cal.
'14. Out of library work.
Miss Agnes E. Brown, Palo Alto, Cal.
'15. Asst. Washington State College Library. Pullman, Wash.
Miss Helen M. Bruner, Sacramento, Cal.
'14. Asst. in charge, Sutro Branch, State L., San Francisco, Cal.
'15. Asst. The Charge, Sutro Branch, State L., San Francisco, Cal.
'16. Autor H Buchan, Palo Alto, Cal.
'20. Out of library work.
'17. Out of library work.

17. Out of library work.

- Miss Ruth E. Bullock, Redlands, Cal.
 '15. Ln. Central Union High School and Junior College L., El Centro.
 Miss Elta L. Camper, Berkeley, Cal.
 '17. Asst. Univ. of Cal. L., Berkeley.
 Miss Blanche Chalfant, Bishop, Cal.
 '14. Ln. Butte Co. F. L., Oroville.
 Miss Marguerite Chatfield, Pasadena, Cal.
 '20. Asst. Sacramento Co. F. L., Sacra-mento

- mento
- Miss Nellie E. Christensen, Selma, Cal. '19. Ln. Selma High School L., Selma. Miss Mabel Coulter, Salinas, Cal. '14. Asst. Contra Costa Co. F. L., Mar-
- tinez.

- tinez. Miss Helen Esther Crawford, Winters, Cal. '20. Out of library work. Miss Dorotha Davis, Los Angeles, Cal. '17. Ln. Fresno High School L., Fresno. Miss Tillie de Bernardi, Santa Rosa, Cal. '18. Out of library work. Miss Estella De Ford, National City, Cal. '15. Ln. Napa Co. F. L., Napa. Miss Margaret Dennison, Alameda, Cal. '17. Asst. Sutro Branch, State L., San Francisco.

- Francisco.
- Miss Abbie Doughty, San Luis Obispo, Cal.
 '20. Teacher-Ln. Bonita Union H i g h School, La Verne.
 Miss Ellen B. Frink, Palo Alto, Cal.
 '19. Asst. Monterey Co. F. L., Salinas.
 (On exchange at Detroit Public Library)

- Miss Flo A. Gantz, Pomora, Cal.
 '20. Ln. San Luis Obispo Co. F. L., San Luis Obispo.
 Miss Beatrice Y. Gawne, Berkeley, Cal.
- Ln. Salinas Union High School L., '17.
- Salinas. Miss Hazel G. Gibson, Santa Monica, Cal. '19. Asst. Sacramento Co. F. L., Sac-
- Miss Margaret V. Girdner, Sacramento. '17. Lm. Palo Alto High School L., Palo Alto
- Miss Mary E. Glock, Madera, Cal. '15. Died, March 6, 1922.

- Biss Bernice L. Goff, San Jose, Cal.
 '14. Asst. P. L., New York City.
 Mrs Jennie Rumsey Gould, Woodland, Cal.
 '14. Out of library work.
 Mrs Mildred Kellogg Hargis, Salinas, Cal.
 '19. Out of library work.
- '18. Out of library work. Mrs Louise Jammé Harriss, Hood River,
- Oregon.
- '15. Out of library work. Miss Margaret Hatch, San
- Santa Rosa, Cal. 15. Ln. Standard Oil Co. L., San Francisco.
- Mrs Hazel Meddaugh Heffner, Stockton, Cal.
 - 18. Out of library work.
- Miss Cecilia Henderson, Santa Paula, Cal.
 '14. Out of library work.
 Miss Edna S. Holroyd, Hanford, Cal.
 '15. Ln. San Mateo Co. F. L., Redwood
- City. Mrs Helen Hopwood Judd, Palo Alto, Cal.
- 20. Out or Winona Mrs
- Mrs Jose, Cal.
 - '19. Out of library work.
- Mrs Algeline Marlow Lawson, San Diego, Cal.

- Cal. '18. Asst. P. L., San Diego. Miss Marjorie C. Learned, Pasadena, Cal. '20. Asst. P. L., Pasadena. Miss Amy G. Luke, Willows, Cal. '15. Out of library work. Mrs Bessie Heath McCrea, Michigan Bar, Cal. '19. Asst. State L. Sacramento.
 - '19. Asst. State L., Sacramento.

- Miss N. Ruth McCullough, Berkeley, Cal. '17. Out of library work.
- Mrs Ruth Beard McDowell, Modesto, Cal. '14. Out of library work. Miss M. Ruth McLaughlin, Lamanda Park,
- Cal.
- Mrs
- '17. Out of library work. rs Everett McCullough Berkeley, Cal. '19. Out of library work. McMullan,
- Mrs Georgia Pearl Secker Meyers, Fresno, Cal.
- '19. Out of library work. Miss Anne Margrave, Santa Barbara, Cal. '14. Ln. Inyo Co. F. L., Independence.
- 14. Lift, Hyb Co, P. L., Hudpelmeter, Miss Lenala Martin, Sacramento, Cal.
 '14. Ln. Lassen Co. F. L., Susanville, Miss Vera V. Mitchell. Oakland, Cal.
 '19. Asst. Ln. Oroville High School L.,
- Oroville
- Oroville.
 Warion Morse, Berkeley, Cal.
 '17. Ln. Maui Co. F. L., Wailuku, T. H.
 Mrs Alice Moore Patton, Los Gatos, Cal.
 '18. Out of library work.
 Mrs Helen Katherine Kellogg Peabody, Salinas, Cal.
 '19. Out of library work.
 Mrs Marion Schumacher Percival, Han-ford, Cal.

- ford. Cal. '15. Out of library work. Mrs. Miriam Colcord Post, Modesto, Cal. '14. Ln. Bakersfield Branch, Kern Co. Free L., Bakersfield. (On leave of absence.)
- Miss Margaret L. Potter, Oakland, Cal. '16. Asst. Lane Medical L., San Francisco.
- Mrs Euroice Steele Price, Berkeley. Cal. '16. Out of library work. Mrs Beatrice Brasefield Rakestraw, Palo
- Mrs Beatrice Brassheld Takestraw, Fals Alto, Cal.
 '18. Ln, Cleveland Junior High School L., Eizabeth, N. J.
 Miss Esther L. Ramont. Modesto. Cal.
 '20. Ln, Modesto High School L.,
- Modesto. Mrs Frances Haub Raymond, Sacramento,

- Mrs Frances L. Cal. '20. Out of library work. Miss Anna Bel'e Robinson, Claremont, Cal. '18. Died, June 22, 1920. Miss Myrtle Ruhl, Redwood City, Cal. '14. Head of Order Dept., State L., Carramento.
- Miss Ruth Seymour, Mill Valley, Cal. '18. Ln. Tama'pais Union High School 55 18. L.
- L. Mill Valley. Mill Valley. Miss Blanche L. Shadle, Lodi, Cal. '17. Asst. Kern Co. F. L., Bakersfield, Mrs Edith Edenborg Smalley, Muroc, Cal.
- . Mrs Ans Edition School Sharley, Muroc, Cal.
 18. Out of library work.
 Mrs Edna Bell Smith, Fairoaks, Cal.
 17. Out of library work.
 Mrs Elizabeth Sayder Smith, Berkeley,

 - Mrs E.
- '20. Out of library work. Mrs Vivian Gregory Smith, Woodland, Cal. '14. Ln. Security Trust and Savings Bank, Los Angeles.
- Mrs Rosamond Bradbury Waithman,
- Santa Barbara. Cal. '18. Out of library work. Miss Caroline Wenzel, Sacramento, Cal. '14. Asst. State L. Sacramento, Miss Josephine L. Whitbeck, Richmond, Cal.

- '16. Asst. P. L., Sacramento. Miss Essie T. White, Broderick, Cal. '19. Asst. Sacramento High School and Junior College L. Sacramento. Mrs Katharine Cahoon Wilson, Berkeley. '17. Out of library work.

- Miss Aldine Winham, Salinas, Cal. '20. Ln. State Teachers College L., Santa Barbara. Mrs Dorothy Clarke Worden, Sacramento,
- Cal. '15.

'15. Ln. Colusa Co. F. L., Colusa. Mrs Bess Ranton Yates, Long Beach, Cal. '18. Asst. Orange Co. F. L., Santa Ana.

News Items.

Miss Ruth Bullock, '15, is now librarian of the Central Union High School and Junior College, El Centro, Calif.

Miss Everett I. McCullough, '19, was married on February 21 to Lieutenant James Myron McMullan at El Paso,

Texas, where they will make their home. Miss N. Ruth McCullough, '17, was called east by the serious illness of her father and will be for the present at his home, 24 N. Sheridan Road, Lake Forest, III.

We have heard indirectly that Miss Tillie de Bernardi, '18, is now teaching in Smith College, Northampton, Mass.

Mrs Edna Bell Smith, '17, has a son, born in January. Mr and Mrs Smith. with their little daughter and new son, are living at 911 S street, Sacramento, Calif.

RECENT ACCESSIONS.

Additions to the Library During January, February and March, 1924.

The last number of the Quarterly Bulletin of the California State Library which was issued was no. 4 of vol. 4, covering the accessions for September-December, 1905. The Bulletin has been discontinued and the matter contained in it is now appearing in the News Notes of California Libraries.

The last list of recent accessions appeared in the January, 1924, issue of this publication.

GENERAL WORKS.

BASTIAN, George C.

Editing the day's news; an introduction to newspaper copyreading, headline writing, illustration, makeup, methods. general newspaper and 070 B32 1923.

BENNETT, Jesse Lee.

What books can do for you. c1923 028 B47w

vol. 19, no. 2 CALIFORNIA S'	TATE LIBRARY. 149
BRAZILIAN American. v. 4–6. 1921–1922. q056 B8 THE CATHOLIC press directory for 1923; a complete list of Catholic papers and periodicals published in the United States. c1923. r016.05 C36	 MODERN humanities research association. Bibliography of English language and literature. 1921–22. 2 v. r016.82 M68 MURRAY, David. Bibliography, its scope and methods, with a view of the work of a local
Спамвева encyclopaedia. New ed. 1923. 2 v. rq030 C4a	bibliographical society. 1917. q010 M9 OSLER, Sir William, bart.
COLE, George Watson. Henry E. Huntington library and art gallery. 1923. x027 C68	Incunabula medica; a study of the earli- est printed medical books, 1467-1480. 1923. (Illustrated monographs)
COPINGER, Walter Arthur. Supplement to Hain's Repertorium bibliographicum. 1895–1902. 2v. in 3. r016.093 H15a	q016.610 08 PLOMER, Henry Robert. A dictionary of the printers and book- sellers who were at work in England, Scotland and Ireland from 1668 to 1725. 1922. (Bibliographical soci-
EATON, Annie Thaxter. School library service. 1923. (Ameri- can library association, Library	ety, London. Publications) 016.655 P72d1
handbooks) x027.8 E14 FORMAN, Maurice Buxton.	SALMON, Lucy Maynard. The newspaper and the historian. 1923. 070 \$17
A bibliography of the writings in prose and verse of George Meredith. 1922. 012 M55	SPAULDING, Forrest B. Material and plans for a county li- brary campaign. 1923. x021 \$73
GARDNER, Frederick Leigh. A catalogue raisonné of works on the occult sciences. 2d ed. 1923. v. 1, Rosicrucian bocks. 016.13 G22a	 STABRETT, Vincent. Stephen Crane; a bibliography. 1923. (The Centaur bibliographies of modern American authors) 012 C89
GRANNISS, Ruth Shepard. A descriptive catalogue of the first edi- tions in book form of the writings of Percy Bysshe Shelley, based on a memorial exhibition held at Grolier	WELSH, Charles, comp. The right reading for children in the school, the home and the library. 1902. 028 W46
club from April 20 to May 20, 1922. 1923. 012 \$ 54	PHILOSOPHY AND ETHICS. BABSON, Roger Ward.
THE INTERNATIONAL interpreter; the world-wide news weekly. v. 1, pts. 1-2. 1922-1923. q051 16i	What is success? c1923. 174 B11w BERRY, Jean. Finding oneself in the universe. 1923.
JOYFUL news co-operator, 1884, 1 v. fc051 J8	111 B53 BIRD, J. Malcolm. My psychic adventures. 1924.
MATSON, Charlotte. Books for tired eyes; a list of books in large print. 1923. 016 M43	133.9 B61 COFFIN, Joseph Herschel. Personality in the making. 1923.
MEETING of librarians of public libraries in cities of more than 100,000 popula- tion; three sessions at the Hotel Sherman, Chicago, Ill., Dec. 28, 1922. 1923. x020.6 M49	126 C67ENOCK, Arthur Guy.The problem of armaments; a book for every citizen of every country. 1923.172.4 E59

1923.

(Inter-

135 R62

128 S73

173 S79

133 S82e

121 \$92

153 V29

129 W19a

1922.

160 W83

[1923]

q152 W9

[1922]

FLAGG. Paluel Joseph. RIVERS, William Halse Rivers. Conflict and dream. The patient's view point. c1923. national library of psychology, philos-174.2 F57 [FRANKE, Willibald] ophy and scientific method) Voices from another world; edited by F. Curtis [pseud.]. 1923. SINGER, Edgar Arthur. 133.9 F82 Modern thinkers and present problems; GERSTENBERG, Charles William. an approach to modern philosophy Personal power in business. 1922.through its history. 1923. 190 S61 174 G38 SPALDING, Kenneth Jay. HAANEL, Charles Francis. Desire and reason, being an account of Mental chemistry, 1922. - 131 H11 the origin and development of intel-HENDERSON, Cicero Adolphus. lectual principles. 1922. Personal and business efficiency. c1923. STEARNS, Alfred Ernest. 174 H52 The challenge of youth, c1923. HOLMES, John Mallory. Talks to high school boys. 1923. STEINER, Rudolf. 174 H75 The East in the light of the West. KEITH. Arthur Berriedale. Authorized translation. Buddhist philosophy in India and Cey-1923. lon. 181 K28b STRONG, Charles Augustus. A theory of knowledge. 1923. KERR, Philip Henry, & Curtis, Lionel. The prevention of war. 1923. VARENDONCK, J. 172.4 K41 The evolution of the conscious facul-LEVINE, Israel. ties. [1923] The unconscious; an introduction to Freudian psychology, [1923] WALKER, Edward Dwight. 127 L66 Reincarnation, 1923. MCCLURE, Matthew Thompson, WITTGENSTEIN, Ludwig. How to think in business. 1923. Tractatus logico-philosophicus. 153 M12 (International library of psychology, MACDONALD, V. May. philosophy and scientific method) Mental hygiene and the public health nurse. c1923. (Lippincott's nurs-WOOSTER, Margaret. ing manuals) 131 M13 Certain factors in the development of a new spatial co-ordination. MCKERROW, James Clark. (Psychological review publications. Aberrations of life, a sequel to "The Psychological monographs) appearance of mind." 1923. 126 M15a MARTIN, Alfred Wilhelm. CHILD STUDY AND A philosophy of life and its spiritual MENTAL TESTS. values. 1923. 171 M379 ALLEN, William Sims. NATIONAL institute of social sciences. A study in Latin prognosis. 1923. Results of the Conference on limitation (Teachers college, Columbia univerof armaments. c1922. 172.4 N27 sity. Contributions to education) PAYOT, Jules. DRUMMOND, Margaret. The conquest of happiness. 1924.Some contributions to child psychology. 170 P34 1923. RILEY, Isaac Woodbridge. American thought from Puritanism to MATEER, Florence. pragmatism and beyond. The unstable child. c1924. 1923. 191 R57a1

150

136.76 M42

136.7 D795s

136.7 A43

vol.	19,	n 0.	2]	

- MORRISON, John Cayce. Morrison-McCall spelling scale for grades 2 to 8, 1923. q136.7 M87
- PORTEUS, Stanley David. Studies in mental deviations. 1922. (Publications of the Training school at Vineland, N. J. Department of research) 136.7 P84

PSYCHOLOGY.

- ALEXANDER, Hartley Burr. Nature and human nature. 1923. 150 A37
- BAUDOUIN, Charles. The birth of Psyche, tr. by Fred Rothwell. 1923. 150 B34

FARNSWORTH, Burt Byron.

- Practical psychology for men and women in the industries and professions, and for the general reader. 1923. 150 F23
- FULLER, Sir Bampfylde. Causes and consequences. 1923. 150 F96c
- GREIG, John Young Thomson. The psychology of laughter and comedy. 1923. 157 G82
- HAYWARD, Charles Williams. What is psychology? 1923. 150 H42

PROHIBITION.

THE REAL story of a bootlegger. c1923. 178 R28

- VECKI, Victor G. Alcohol and prohibition in their relation to civilization and the art of living. c1923. 178 V41
- WILSON, Clarence True, & Pickett, Elbert Deets.
 - The case for prohibition; its past, present accomplishments, and future in America. 1923. 178 W74
- WOODBURY, Nathan Franklin. Prohibition in Maine. 1920.

178 W88

RELIGION.

ARDSHER, Sohrābjī N. Wādiā. The message of Mohammed. 1923. (Message series) 297 A67

- _____
- BAIKIE, James. The Bible story; a connected narrative
 - retold from Holy Scripture. 1923. 220 B15
- BEGBIE, Harold.
- More twice-born men. 1923.
 - 248 B41m
- BIBLE, N. T. English.
 The New Testament; an American translation, by Edgar J. Goodspeed. c1923.
 225 B58go
- BRYAN, William Jennings. Orthodox Christianity versus modernism. c1923. 204 B910
- FOSDICK, Harry Emerson. Twelve tests of character. 1923. 240 F74t
- GULICK, Sidney Lewis. The winning of the Far East; a study of Christian movement in China,
 - Korea and Japan. c1923. 266 G972
- HORR, George Edwin. The Christian faith and eternal life. 1923. (The Ingersoll lecture).

218 H81

HYDE, Walter Woodburn. Greek religion and its survivals. [1923] (Our debt to Greece and Rome)

292 H99

LAKE, Kirsopp. The early days of monasticism on Mount Athos. 1909. 271 L19

LEO I, the Great, Saint, pope.

The Tome of Pope Leo the Great; Latin text with translation, introduction, and notes, by E. H. Blakeney. 1923. (Text for students)

281.1 L57

MARBLE, Mrs Annie (Russell). Women of the Bible, their services in home and state. c1923. 220.9 M31

MEECHAM, Henry George.

Light from ancient letters: private correspondence in the non-literary papyri of Oxyrhynchus of the first four centuries, and its bearing on New Testament language and thought. [1923] 227 M49

NICKERSON, Hoffman.

The inquisition; a political and military study of its establishment. 1923.

272 N63

SIIILER, Ernest Gottlieb. ment for international peace. Division of economics and history) From Augustus to Augustine. 1923. 270.1 S57 q312 D8 FALK, Isidore Sydney. SUBHADRA, Bhikshu. The principles of vital statistics. 1923. The message of Buddhism; the Buddha: the doctrine: the order, ed. by J. E. 312 F19 Ellam 1922 294 S94m NEWSHOLME, Arthur, The elements of vital statistics, in their VAN LOON, Hendrik Willem. bearing on social and public health The story of the Bible, c1923. problems, new edition entirely re-220 V26 written. [1923] 312 N55e SOCIOLOGY: GENERAL. PEARL, Raymond. BELL. Clive. Introduction to medical biometry and On British freedom, 1923, 301 B43 statistics. 1923. 312 P35 BUSHEE, Frederick Alexander. REUTER, Edward Byron. Principles of sociology. c1923. Population problems, 1923. (Lippin-301 B97 cott's sociological series) 312 R44 DAVIS. Edith M. WRIGHT. Harold. Allah kerim, c1920. c304 D26 Population. c1923. (Cambridge eco-Gift of author. 312 W94 nomic handbooks) FORD. James. ed. Social problems and social policy. BANKS AND BANKING. c1923. 301 F69 AMERICAN bankers association FORD ideals; being a selection from "Mr School savings banking, including the Ford's page" in The Dearborn indestandard method approved by the 304 F71 American bankers association. 1923. pendent, 1922. 332.2 A51 FRANK, Glenn. AMERICAN institute of banking. An American looks at his world; varia-Elementary banking. c1922. tions on a point of view. 1923. 332.1 A51e 304 F82 NEWMAN, Minnie May. AMERICAN institute of banking. New Handbook on racial and nationality York chapter. backgrounds. 1922-1923. 302 N55 Outline in bank organization and administration. [Rev. ed.] c1922. SOPER. Herbert Edward. 332.1 A51n Frequency arrays. 1922. 311 S71 CHAPMAN, John M. Fiscal functions of the Federal reserve WEEKS, Arland Deyett. 332.1 C46 banks. 1923. The control of the social mind; psychology of economic and political rela-FITZGERALD, James Anderson. tions. 1923. (Conduct of mind Making use of a bank. c1923. (Amer-301 W39c series) ican business series) 332.1 F55 WILSON, Woodrow, pres. U. S. FINANCE. The road away from revolution. c1923. 304 W75r EDWARDS, George Cunningham. WOLFE, Albert Benedict. Money, c1923. 332.5 E26 Conservatism, radicalism, and scientific MONROE, Arthur Eli. method. 1923. 301 W85 Monetary theory before Adam Smith. STATISTICS. 1923. (Harvard economic studies) 332.4 M75 DUMAS, Samuel, & Vedel-Petersen, Knud RAYMOND. William Lee. Otto 1923. Losses of life caused by war. 1923. State and municipal bonds. 332.6 R27s (Publications of the Carnegie endowSMITLEY, Robert Lincoln. VANCE, Ray. Course of study for brokerage, stock Business and investment forecasting: exchange, investment banking, 1923. forecasting methods and their appli-332.6 S664 cation in practical use. WRIGHT, Ivan. Farm mortgage financing. 1923. 332.7 W94f COFFEY, Diarmid. ECONOMICS. BALDUS, Simon Alexander. The new capitalism. 1923. 331 B17 BOWKER, Richard Rogers. Economic peace. 1923. (Economic peace series) 331 B786 BROWN, Harry Gunnison. Economic science and the common welfare. 1923. 331 B87 COLE, George Douglas Howard. Out of work; an introduction to the study of unemployment. [1923] 331.8 C68o CONFERENCE on unemployment, Washington, D. C., 1921. Committee on unemployment and business cycles. Business cycles and unemployment. Report. 1923, (U. S. Dept. of Commerce. Elimination of waste series) 331.8 C74 EDDY, George Sherwood. The new world of labor. c1923. 331.8 E21 FULLER, Raymond Garfield. Child labor and the constitution. c1923. 331.3 F96c HENRY, Alice. Women and the labor movement. c1923. ('The workers' bookshelf) 331.88 H52w HOXIE, Robert Franklin. Trade unionism in the United States. 2d ed. 1923. 331.88 H87 KING, Willford Isbell. Employment, hours and earnings in prosperity and depression, United States, 1920-1922. 1923. 331.8 K54 MANN, Harold Hart. Land and labour in a Decean village. (University of Bombay. Economic series) 330.954 M28a PATTEN, Simon Nelson. Essays in economic theory. 1924. 331 P31

The cooperative movement in Jugoslavia, Rumania and north Italy during and after the world war. 1922. (Carnegie endowment for international peace. Division of economics and history) a334 C6 DILLON, John J. Organized cooperation; a brief but comprehensive account of the development of organizations and government of them, c1923. 334 D57 STEEN, Herman. Cooperative marketing; the golden rule in agriculture. 1923.(American farm bureau federation library) 334.6 S81 WARBASSE, James Peter. Cooperative democracy attained through voluntary association of the people as consumers. 1923. 334 W25 LAW. ADMINISTRATION. AMERICAN institute of banking. Commercial law. c1921. 347.7 A51c - Negotiable instruments. c1922. 347.7 A51 BEARD, Charles Austin. The administration and politics of Tokyo; a survey and opinions. 1923. 352 B36ad BURNS, Cecil Delisle. Whitehall. 1921. (The world of 354.42 B96 today) FULLER, John Frederic Charles. The reformation of war. 1923.355 F96 JOHNSEN, Julia E., comp. Selected articles on government ownership of coal mines. 1923. (Handbook series) 351.8 J65 READ. James Burton. The law of sales, prepared in the Extension division of the University of Wisconsin. 1923. (Commercial education series) 347 R28

1922.

COOPERATION.

331 V22

	1
CONSTITUTIONAL HISTORY.	WILSON, Woodrow.
BRIDGMAN, Raymond Landon. The Massachusetts Constitutional con-	Woodrow Wilson's case for the League of nations, 1923. 341.1 W75
vention of 1917. 1923. 342.744 B85	
Burgess, John William.	ASSOCIATIONS, INSTITUTIONS. Boy scouts of America.
Recent changes in American constitu-	Community boy leadership. c1921.
tional theory. 1923. 342.73 B95	367 B78c
JAMES, Herman Gerlach.	
The constitutional system of Brazil.	Second handbook, fifth imprint. c1923.
1923. (Carnegie institution of Wash-	367 B78h
ington. Publications) q342.81 J2	HAYES, Samuel Perkins.
PATTERSON, Isaac Franklin, comp.	Self-surveys in schools for the blind.
The constitutions of Ohio. 1912.	1921. (Publications of the Pennsyl-
342.771 P31	vania institution for the instruction of the blind) q362.4 H4
RIDDELL, William Renwick. The Canadian constitution in form and	
in fact. 1923. (Columbia university	HAYWOOD, Harry Le Roy.
lectures. George Blumenthal founda-	The great teachings of masonry. c1923. (The M. S. A. national masonic li-
tion, 1923) 342.71 R54c	brary) 366.1 H42g
SCHUYLER, Robert Livingston.	——————————————————————————————————————
The Constitution of the United States;	pretation of the three degrees. c1923.
an historical survey of its formation.	366.1 H42
1923. 342.73 \$38	MASTEN, Vincent Myron.
SMITH, Herbert Arthur.	Crime and correction. c1923.
Federalism in North America; a com-	364 M42cr
. parative study of institutions in the	MAY, Emmet Claire. The empire of life insurance. c1923.
United States and Canada, 1923. 342.7 864	363.3 M46
THOMPSON, Walter.	NEWTON, Joseph Fort.
Federal centralization; a study and	The men's house; masonic papers and
criticism of the expanding scope of	addresses. c1923. 366.1 N56m
congressional legislation. c1923.	PARSONS, Sara E.
342.73 T 47	History of the Massachusetts general
LEAGUE OF NATIONS.	hospital training school for nurses. 1922. 362 P27
GUTHRIE, William Dameron.	
The League of nations and miscel-	THORNTON, William.
laneous addresses. 1923. 341.1 G98	Short lessons in life insurance. c1923. 368.3 T51
Jonnsen, Julia E., comp.	WRIGHT, Henry Collier.
Permanent court of international jus-	Valuation of a system for the adminis-
tice, 1923, (The reference shelf) 341.1 J65	tration of state institutions through
KEEN, Frank Noel.	one man control as operated in Illinois 1922. 361 W94
Towards international justice. c1923.	Illinois. 1922. 361 W94
341.1 K26	EDUCATION.
LEAGUE of nations union, London. Ad-	ASHBY, Arthur Wilfred, & Byles, Phoebe G.
visory education committee of the	Rural education. 1923. 379.42 A82
Welsh national council.	Bowen, Wilbur Pardon, & Mitchell,
Teachers and world peace; a memoran-	Elmer D. Theory of organized play; its nature
dum for the guidance of teachers who desire to explain the principles and	and significance. 1923. (The theory
history of the League of Nations in	and practice of organized play)

371.74 B78t

history of the League of Nations in schools. 341.1 L4342

154

vol. 19, no. 2]

.

CALIFORNIA league of women voters. A study of California's method of school financing, 1923, c379.11 C15	(Riverside textbooks in education. Division of secondary education) 371 M38
DALTON, Mattie. Talks to young teachers. 1923.	MEIKLEJOHN, Alexander. Freedom and the college. c1923. 378 M51f
371 D15 DOUGHERTY, M. L. How to teach phonics. c1923. (River-	MIRICK, George Alonzo. Progressive education. c1928.
side educational monographs) 372.4 D73	370 M67 PEARSON, Francis Bail,
DRAPER, William Henry. University extension; a survey of fifty years, 1873-1923. 1923. 378.1 D76	The teacher. 1921. (Vocational series) 371.1 P36
DUKE, Charles Wesley. Getting ahead as a tencher. c1923.	ROMAN, Frederick William. The new education in Europe. 1923. 370.94 R75
371 D87 ELIOT, Charles William,	SEELYE, Laurens Clark.
Harvard memories. 1923. 378.744 HEe	The early history of Smith College, 1871–1910. 378.744 SmE
GENERAL education board. Public education in Indiana. 1923. 379.772 G32	TAYLOR, George Robert Stirling. Oxford; a guide to its history and buildings. 1923. 378.42 OEta
GowIN, Enoch Burton, & others.	Welling, Jane Betsy, & Calkins, Char-
Occupations; a textbook for the educa- tional, civic and vocational guidance of boys and girls. Rev. ed. c1923. 370.01 G72a	lotte Wait. Social and industrial studies for the elementary grades. c1923. (Lippin- cott's school project series)
GRIZZELL, Emit Duncan.	371.3 W452 WHIPPLE, Guy Montrose.
Origin and development of the high school in New England before 1865. 1923. 379.74 G87	Problems in educational psychology. 1923. (Educational problem series) q370.1 W5
HARTMAN, Gertrude. Home and community life. c1923. 375 H33	THE Yearbook of the universities of the empire. 1923. r378 Y39
HOLMES, Edmond Gore Alexander. Freedom & growth, and other essays.	COMMERCE, COMMUNICATION.
1923. 370.4 H74	ELDRIDGE, Frank Reed. Oriental trade methods. 1923.
MCCRACKEN, Thomas Cooke, & Lamb, Helen Etta,	GRUPP, George W.
Occupational information in the ele- mentary school. c1923. (Riverside	Economics of motor transportation. 1924. 388 G89
textbooks in education. Division of secondary education) 370.01 M13	NAHOUM, Jules. The key to national prosperity; a pres-
McGRATH, Marie Cecelia. A study of the moral development of	entation of foreign trade. c1923. 382 N15
children. [1923] (Psychological re-	TROTTMAN, Nelson. History of the Union Pacific. 1923.
view publications, Psychological monographs) q377 M1	385 T85
MARTZ Charles Ellsworth, & Kinneman, John A.	VINER, Jacob. Dumping: a problem in international trade. c1923. (Materials for the
Social science for teachers. c1923.	study of business) 380 V78

WOMEN.	BOLLAND, William Craddock.
JOHNSON, Edith.	The general eyre; lectures delivered in
To women of the business world. 1923. 396 J66	the University of London at the request of the Faculty of laws. 1922.
LOMBROSO-FERRERO, Gina.	
The soul of woman (L'anima della	CALIFORNIA. Laws, statutes, etc.
donna); reflections on life. c1923. 396 L84	The Code of civil procedure of the state of California. 1923.
LUDOVICI, Anthony Mario.	CHILDS, Frank Hall.
Woman; a vindication. 1923.	Where and how to find the law; a guide
396 L94	to the use of the law library. 1923.
TICKNER, Frederick Windham.	Charles Charles II
Women in English economic history.	CLARK, George Luther. The law of torts, c1922.
1923. 396 T55	The law of torts, c1922.
CUSTOMS, FOLKLORE.	CLARK, Gilbert John.
	Great sayings by great lawyers. c1922.
BRYANT, Sara Cone. New stories to tell to children; stories	Channe With With
you never have heard, 1923.	Cook, William Wilson.
398 B915n	Power and responsibility of American bar. [1922?]
DAVIS, William Stearns.	57211. [.1.+//www]
Life on a mediaeval barony; a picture	CRAWFORD, Clarence Cory.
of a typical feudal community in the	A guide to the study of the history of
thirteenth century. 1923. 394.7 D26	English law and procedure. 1923.
INGERSOLL, Ernest.	CROCKER'S blue book on principal city
Birds in legend, fable and folklore.	street improvement laws of California.
1923. 398 147	1923 edition revised and annotated by
MACGOWAN, Kenneth, & Rosse, Herman.	H. C. Symonds. [1923]
Masks and demons. c1923. 390 M14	
	DALTON, Llewelyn Chisholm, comp.
OESTERLEY, William Oscar Emil.	Digest of case law, containing decisions in the Supreme court of British
The sacred dance; a study in compara- tive folklore, 1923. 394.3 O29	Guiana, for and including the years
	1910 to 1920. 1922.
VAËRTING, Matilde, & Vaërting, Mathias.	
The dominant sex ; trans. from the Ger-	DART, Henry Plauché.
man by Eden and Cedar Paul. c1923. 392 V12	The source of the Civil code of Louisi-
	ana. [1922]
LAW.	DUNCAN, Lewis.
AMERICAN federal tax reports, 1924. 3 v.	The law and practice of bankruptcy in Canada. 1922.
ARCHER, Gleason Leonard.	
Criminal law. 1923.	EVANS, Christmas, & Jones, Frederic
The law of weat mean anter 1002	Harry. The law and practice as to fidelity
The law of real property. 1923.	guarantees. 1922.
BISHOP, Joel Prentiss.	guarantees. 1000,
Bishop on criminal law. 9th ed., edited	FENTON, Horace Jewell.
by John M. Zane and Carl Zollman.	Constitutional law; an introducto y
1923. 2 v.	treatise. Rev. ed., July, 1914; re-
BLAKEMORE, Arthur Walker.	printed 1923 with slight additions.
National prohibition, the Volstead act	HICKS, Frederick Charles.
annotated, and digest of national and	Materials and methods of legal research
state prohibition decisions. 1923.	with bibliographical manual. 1923.

- LINCOLN, Walter Gould. California real estate laws; comp. from the statutes and court decisions. c1923.
- MACKENZIE, Sir William Warrender. The Industrial court: practice and procedure. 1923.
- MARTIN, Charles Emanuel. Representative modern constitutions. 1923.
- MOSCHZISKER, Robert von. Judicial review of legislation. 1923.
- ONTARIO bar association. Proceedings, 1920–1922.
- ROUGHEAD, William. Twelve Scots trials. 1913.
- SCOTT, James Alexander, & Roe, Charles Carroll. The law of habeas corpus. 1923.
- SMITH, George Joseph, defendant. Trial of George Joseph Smith, ed. by Eric R. Watson. [1922] (Notable English trials)
- SOUTH CAROLINA. Laws, statutes, etc. Code of laws of South Carolina, 1922. 1922. 3 v.
- WALSH, William Francis. Outlines of the history of English and American law. 1923.
- WILLIAMS, Easten Kenneth. Notes on the Canadian law of landlord and tenant as applied to corporeal hereditaments. 1922.

LANGUAGE.

CASTLE, Alfred Watkins. Reader and guide for new Americans; book one [two]. 1923. 2 v.

428 C35

CLARKE, Charles Cameron. Concerning French verse; an essay for English-speaking readers of French.

1922. 446 C59 CRABTREE, William Arthur. A manual of Lu-ganda. 1921. (Cam-

bridge guides to modern languages) 496 C88

- Dewey, Godfrey, Relativ frequency of English speech sounds, 1923, (Harvard studies in education) 421.4 D51
- HANDSCHIN, Charles Hart, Methods of teaching modern languages, 1923. 407 H23
- KARLGREN, Bernhard. Sound & symbol in Chinese. 1923. ([The world's manuals] Language & literature series) 495 K18
- LEROY, Olivier. A glossary of French slang. 1922. 447 L62
- LEWIS, Ervin Eugene. Lewis English composition scales for measuring business and social correspondence, c1923, g428 L6
- MCKENZIE, Kenneth, & Hamilton, Arthur. Elementary French grammar. 1923.
 - 445 M15
- PURDON, Mrs Martha (Farr). Purdon's vocabulary of words constantly needed. c1923. r423 P98
- SMITH, Logan Pearsall.
 English idioms 1923. (Society for pure English)
 423 S65
- VAN WAGENEN, M. J. English composition scales. c1923. g428 V2

NATURAL SCIENCE.

- HOBSON, Ernest William.
 The domain of natural science; the Gifford lectures delivered in the University of Aberdeen in 1921 and 1922. 1923.
 HUDSON, William Henry.
- Nature in downland, 1923, 504 H88n

MASSINGHAM, Harold John.

- Untrodden ways; adventures on English coasts, heaths and marshes, and also among the works of Hudson, Crabbe, and other country writers. [1923] 504 M41
- TOWNSEND, Charles Wendell. Beach grass. 1923. 504 T74
- WOODRUFF, Lorande Loss, ed. The development of the sciences, 1923. 509 W89

MATHEMATICS. TODD, David Peck. Astronomy; the science of the heavenly BALL, Walter William Rouse. bodies. 1922 520 T63 A short account of the history of mathematics. Stereotyped ed. 1922. PHYSICS. 510,4 B18s AYLMER-SMALL, Sidney. DICKSON, Leonard Eugene. The boy's book of electricity. [1923] Algebras and their arithmetics. c1923. 537 A97 512 D55a BIRKHOFF, George David, & Langer, FERGUSON, Donald Fraser, & Piggott, Rudolph Ernest. Harry Edward. Relativity and modern physics. 1923. Areas and volumes. [1923] 530 B619 511.8 F35 BROAD, Charlie Dunbar. FISHER, Arne. Scientific thought, 1923. (International library of psychology, philoso-An elementary treatise on frequency curves and their application in the phy and scientific method) 530 B86 analysis of death curves and life CROFT, Terrell Williams. tables. American edition, 1922. Practical heat. 1923. (Power plant 519 F53e series) 536 C94 HOPKINS, Marsh. Chance and error; the theory of evolu-EINSTEIN, Albert. Sidelights on relativity. I. Ether and tion. 1923. 519 H79 relativity. II. Geometry and experi-MANCHESTER, Raymond Earl. ence, tr. by G. B. Jeffery and W. The teaching of mathematics. 3d ed. Perrett. [1922?] 530 E35s c1923. 510.7 M26 HOUSTOUN, Robert Alexander. Light & colour. 1923. 535 H84 SMAIL, Lloyd Leroy. Elements of the theory of infinite proc-KAYE, George William Clarkson. esses. 1923. 517 S63 The practical application of X-rays. 1922. 537.54 K23p SYMONDS, Percival Mallon. Special disability in algebra. 1923. KOPFF, August. (Teachers college, Columbia univer-The mathematical theory of relativity. sity. Contributions to education) Tr. by H. Levy. [1923] 530 K83 512 S98 PRESCOTT, John. VAN TUYL, George Henry. Mechanics of particles and rigid bodies. Modern business mathematics. c1923. 2d ed., 1923. 531 P93 511 V28 REICHE, Fritz. ASTRONOMY. The quantum theory; trans. by H. S. Hatfield and Henry L. Brose, [1922] FLAMMARION, Camille, 530 R34 Dreams of an astronomer; tr. from the French by E. E. Fournier d'Albe. SOMMERFELD, Arnold Johannes Wilhelm. 1923. 523 F58d Atomic structure and spectral lines. Trans. from the 3d German edition JEANS, James Hopwood. by Henry L. Brose. [1923] The nebular hypothesis & modern cos-530.1 S69 mogony, being the Halley lecture WEYL, Hermann. delivered on 23 May, 1922. 1923. Space-time-matter. Tr. from the 523 J43 German by Henry L. Brose. [1922] MCCABE, Joseph. 530 W54 The wonders of the stars. 1923. 523 M11w WHITEHEAD, Alfred North. MITCHELL, Samuel Alfred. Principle of relativity with applications Eclipses of the sun. 1923. 523.7 M68 to physical science. 1922. 530 W59

5-32178

CHEMISTRY.	MCADIE, Alexander George.
BRYDEN, Charles Lazarus, & Dickey,	Making the weather. 1923. 551.5 M11m
George D. A text book of filtration. 1923.	WILLIS, Bailey.
542.67 B91	Geologic structures. 1923. 551 W73
EVANS, Ulick Richardson. Metals and metallic compounds. 1923. 4 v. 546.3 E92	Woods, Mrs Ethel Gertrude (Skeat). The principles of geography, physical & human, 1923. 551.4 W89
FABRE, Jean Henri Casimir. The wonder book of chemistry. Tr.	BIOLOGY.
from the French by Florence Consta-	BRIDGES, Calvin Blackman, & Morgan,
ble Bicknell. 1922. 540 F12	Thomas Hunt.
GRUENER, Hippolyte Washington. Chemistry; the science of matter and its changes. 1922. 540 G88	The third-chromosome group of mutant characters of Drosophila melano- gaster. 1923. (Carnegie institution of Washington. Publications)
MAHIN, Edward G., & Carr, Ralph Harold.	q575.1 B8
Quantitative agricultural analysis. 1923. (International chemical series)	HUXLEY, Julian Sorell. Essays of a biologist. 1923.
(International chemical series) 545 M21q	570.4 H986
RIVETT, Albert Cherbury David.	KELLOGG, Vernon Lyman.
The phase rule and the study of hetero-	Mind and heredity, 1923. 575.1 K29
geneous equilibria. 1923. 541.1 R92	KROEBER, Alfred Louis.
RUSSELL, Hon. Bertrand Arthur William. The A B C of atoms. c1923.	Anthropology. c1923. c572 K93 LARSON, John A.
541.2 R96 THOMPSON, Sir Joseph John.	Single fingerprint system. 1923. (Berke-
The electron in chemistry; being five	ley police monograph series) 573.6 L33
lectures delivered at the Franklin institute, 1923. 541.2 T48	LÉVY-BRUHL, Lucien.
WRIGHT, Arthur.	Primitive mentality. Authorized trans-
Industrial filtration. 1923. (The mod-	lation by Lilian A. Clare. [1923] 572 L66
ern library of chemical engineering)	METZ, Charles William, & others.
542.67 W94 GEOLOGY.	Genetic studies on Drosophila virilis.
GARFIAS, Valentine Richard.	1923. (Carnegie institution of Wash-
Petroleum resources of the world. 1923.	ington. Publications) q575.1 M5
553.2 G23 HALSE, Edward.	WALLIS, Thomas Edward. Analytical microscopy, its aims and
Mercury ores. [1923] (Imperial insti-	methods. 1923. 578 W21
tute. Monographs on mineral re-	WIGGAM, Albert Edward.
sources, with special reference to the British Empire) 553.4 H19	The new decalogue of science. c1923. 575 W65
HUNTINGTON, Ellsworth.	WILSON, Edmund Beecher.
Earth and sun; an hypothesis of weather and sunspots. 1923.	The physical basis of life. 1923.
551.56 H94e	576 W74p
LOOMIS, Frederic Brewster. Field book of common rocks and min-	BOTANY.
erals for identifying the rocks and	Bose, Sir Jagadis Chunder.
minerals of the United States and	Life movements in plants. 1923.
interpreting their origins and mean- ings, 1923. 552 L86	(Transactions of the Bose research institute, Calcutta) 581 B741

923. 551.4 W89 BIOLOGY. vin Blackman, & Morgan, lunt. romosome group of mutant of Drosophila melano-923. (Carnegie institution gton. Publications) q575.1 B8 n Sorell. biologist. 1923. 570.4 H986 ion Lyman. eredity, 1923. 575.1 K29 ed Louis. y. c1923. c572 K93 Α. print system. 1923. (Berkemonograph series) 573.6 L33 Lucien. entality. Authorized trans-Lilian A. Clare. [1923] 572 L66 William, & others. dies on Drosophila virilis. arnegie institution of Washublications) q575.1 M5 as Edward. microscopy, its aims and 578 W21 1923. rt Edward. calogue of science. c1923. 575 W65 ind Beecher. basis of life. 1923. 576 W74p BOTANY. dis Chunder. nents in plants. 1923.ions of the Bose research Calcutta) 581 B741

CLEMENTS, Frederic Edward, & Long, Frances Louise. Experimental pollination; an outline of	BENNETT, Robert Allan. "Suggestion" and common sense. 1922. 615.85 B47
the ecology of flowers and insects. 1923. (Carnegie institution of Wash- ington. Publications) q581.16 C6	 BLAIR, Mrs Margaret Josephine (Bailey). Health & beauty for women. c1923. 613 B63
ELLIS, David.	BROWN, Charles Reynolds.
Practical bacteriology for chemical stu- dents. 1923. 589.9 E47p	Faith and health. Rev. and enl. ed. 1924. 615.85 B877
 HALL, Harvey Monroe, & Clements, Frederic Edward. The phylogenetic method in taxonomy; the North American species of Artemisia, Chrysothamnus, and Atriplex. 1923. (Carnegie institution of Washington. Publications) q581.1 H1 	 BROWN, William. Suggestion and mental analysis. 2d ed., rev. and enl. [1922] 615.85 B88 CORNERS, George F. Rejuvenation; how Steinach makes people young. 1923. 612.6 C81
HORNIBROOK, Murray.	DOLONNE, A.
Dwarf and slow-growing conifers. 1923.	Self-healing by autosuggestion. c1923. 615.85 D66
585.2 H81	FRANZ, Shepherd Ivory.
TANSLEY, Arthur George. Practical plant ecology; a guide for	Nervous and mental re-education, 1923. 616.84 F83n
beginners in field study of plant com-	FROUDE, Charles C.
munities. [1923] 581 T16p	Right food. c1923. 613.2 F94
ZOOLOGY. JAEGER, Edmund C.	HINKLE, Mrs Beatrice (Moses). The re-creating of the individual. c1923. 616.8 H66
Denizens of the desert; a book of south-	JACOBS, Philip Peter.
western mammals, birds, and reptiles. 1922. c590 J22	The tuberculosis worker, 1923. 616.99 J17
PRATT, Henry Sherring.	KAMMERER, Paul.
A manual of land and fresh water verte- brate animals of the United States (exclusive of birds). c1923. 596 P91	Rejuvenation and the prolongation of human efficiency; experience with the Steinach-operation on man and ani- mals. 1923. 612.6 K15
THOMSON, John Arthur.	KEITH, Arthur.
The biology of birds. 1923. 598.2 T483	The human body. (Home university
596.2 1483	library of modern knowledge)
USEFUL ARTS.	612 K28h KELLOGG, John Harvey.
MEDICINE AND HYGIENE.	The natural diet of man. 1923.
ALEXANDER, Frederick Matthias.	613.2 K29
Constructive conscious control of the	KENDALL, Arthur Isaac.
individual. c1923. 615.85 A37c	Civilization and the microbe. 1923. 616.01 K33
AMERICAN medical directory. A register	KNOPF, Siegmund Adolph.
of legally qualified physicians of the	A history of the National tuberculosis
United States and Canada. 8th ed. 1923. qr610 A5	association; the anti-tuberculosis movement in the United States. 1922.
AMERICAN public health association. Lab-	616.99 K72h
oratory section.	LEONARD, Fred Eugene.
Standard methods of milk analysis,	A guide to the history of physical edu-
bacteriological and chemical. 4th ed. 1923. g614.32 A5a	cation. 1923. (The physical educa- tion series) 613.7 L58
4014.32 Aba	tion series) 613.7 L58

LUCKETT, George Sparr.	Сорроск, John B., & Lodge, George A.
The elements of public health adminis-	An introduction to mining science. 2d
tration. 614 L94	ed. 1923. (Longmans' technical
	handicraft series) 622.33 C78
MACFADDEN, Bernarr Adolphus.	
Fasting for health. 1923. 613.2 M14f	GARNETT, William.
The miracle of milk, 1923.	A little book on water supply. 1922.
615.85 M14	628.1 G23
MACNAGHTEN, Hugh Vibart.	HAMLIN, Marston Lovell, & Turner,
Emile Coué, the man and his work, 1922.	Francis Mills.
615.85 M16	
015.65 1010	The chemical resistance of engineering materials, 1923. 621.9 H223
MITCHELL, Thomas Walker.	materials. 1925. 621.9 H225
Medical psychology and psychical re-	HECK, Robert Culbertson Hays.
search. [1922] 616.84 M68m	Mechanics of machinery. [v. 1] Mecha-
Moone Hanne Hangall	nism. 1923. 620.1 H44
Moore, Harry Hascall.	
Public health in the United States, an	KITTREDGE, George Watson.
outline with statistical data. c1923.	The new metal worker pattern book.
(Harper's public health series)	1923. q621.7 K6a
614 M82	LEA, Frederick Charles.
NEWMAN, Horatio Hackett.	
The physiology of twinning. [1923]	Hydraulics for engineers and engineer-
(University of Chicago science series)	ing students. 4th ed. 1923. 627 L43
612.6 N55	
Department (N) 1 (D) (1 (d) 1	McCASLIN, Herbert John.
ROBERTSON, Thorburn Brailsford.	Wood pattern-making; a textbook. 1923.
The chemical basis of growth and senes-	621.7 M12
cence. c1923. (Monographs on ex-	MACNAUGHTON, Edgar.
perimental biology) 612.6 R652	Elementary steam power engineering.
THOMAS, Gertrude I.	1923. 621.1 M16
The dietary of health and disease. 1923.	
(The nurses text book series)	MANSON, Arthur James.
613.2 T45	Railroad electrification and the electric
WALSH, James Joseph.	locomotive; outline of principles in-
Psychotherapy, 1923. 615.85 W22p	volved in railroad electrification.
r sychotherapy. 1925. 015.65 W22p	c1923. 621.33 M28
WILLIAMS, Edward Huntington, & Hoag,	NICKEL, Frank Ferdinand.
Ernest Bryant.	Direct-acting steam pumps. 2d ed. 1923.
Our fear complexes. c1923.	621.64 N63
616.85 W72	
ZWARG, Leopold F.	OBERG, Erik Valdemar.
Apparatus work for boys and girls.	Turret lathe practice, 1923 621.94 012
c1923. 613.7 Z97	WALSH, John William Tudor.
	The elementary principles of lighting &
ENGINEERING.	photometry. [1923] 621.32 W22
AVERY, Alfred Henry.	
Dynamo design and construction. [1923]	WEISS, Charles.
(Cassell's workshop series)	Practical railway maintenance. 1923.
621.31 A95	625.1 W42
BESSON, Frank S.	AUTOMOBILES.
City pavements. 1923. 625.8 B55	Elliott, Benjamin George.
BURLING, Beverly B.	The automobile chassis; a text and ref-
Loose leaf shop manual, battery testing	erence book on the modern gasoline
and repair. c1922. (The Burling	automobile chassis. 1923.
vocational series) q621.35 B9	625.6 E46c

e

658 B11b

 HAMILTON, Erwin Hugh. Elementary thermodynamics of automobile engines. 1923. 625.6 H21 	Zon, Raphael, & Sparhawk, William Nor- wood. Forest resources of the world. 1923.
STONE, Paul McDowell.	2 v. 634.9 Z87
Electricity and its application to auto- motive vehicles. 1923. (Van No-	DOMESTIC ECONOMY.
strand's automotive texts) 625.6 \$87	BALDERSTON, Lydia Ray.
AGRICULTURE.	Laundering, home—institution. c1923. (Lippincott's home manuals) 648 B171
Allen, Frederick James. Studies of occupations in agriculture,	COLOUR schemes for modern interiors,
forestry and animal industry. 1921. 630 A425	with 120 designs in colour by modern architects. 1923. q645 C7
BENEDICT, Francis Gano, & Ritzman, Ernest George.	FALES, Mrs Winnifred (Shaw).
Undernutrition in steers, its relation to metabolism, digestion, and subsequent	A simple course in home decorating. c1923. q645 F1
realimentation. 1923. (Carnegie in-	FIELD, Bradda.
stitution of Washington. Publica- tions) q636.2 B4	Clothes that count and how to make them. 1923. 646 F45
BERRY, James Berthold. Farm woodlands; a textbook for stu-	COOKERY.
dents of agriculture. 1923. (New-	FARMER, Fannie Merritt.
world agriculture series) 634.9 B53	The Boston cooking-school cook book. New ed., rev. and enl. 1923.
BOGART, Ernest Ludlow.	641 F23n2
Economic history of American agricul- ture. 1923. 630 B67	Fox, Fannie Ferber, & Schwartz, Lavina S.
Соскевнам, Kirby Lee. A manual for spraying. 1923. 632 Сбб	Fannie Fox's cook book. 1923. 641 F791
DAVIS, Kary Cadmus.	GAGARINA, Mariia IAkovlevna (Lazarev-
New agriculture for high schools. c1923. 630.7 D262	skaia) kniaginia, comp. and tr. The Borzoi cook book. 1923. 641 G13
DOUGHERTY, J. E.	THE Hotel monthly.
Poultry raising in California. 1923. c636.5 D73	Ideas for refreshment rooms. c1923. q641 H8
Gift. HAZARD, F. Arthur.	Moore, Alice. Chinese recipes, 1923, 641 M8211
Profitable pigeon breeding. 1922.	
636.6 H42	PEASE, Martin A. The blue book on home candy making.
Jones, Robert E. Dairying in California. 1923.	1923. 642 P36
c637 J78 Gift.	PENNELL, Mrs Elizabeth (Robins). A guide for the greedy, by a greedy
KILLINGSWORTH, Wiley S.	woman; being a new and revised edi-
Deciduous fruit growing in California. 1923. c634 K48 Gift.	tion of "The feasts of Autolycus." [1923] 641 P41
THOMPSON, Homer C.	BUSINESS METHODS.
Vegetable crops. 1923. (Agricultural	
and biological publications)	Business fundamentals. c1923.

635 T47

162

- BLISS, James Harris. Financial and operating ratios in management. 1923. 658 B64
- BROWN, Calvin Franklin. The grocer's window book. 4th ed. c1923. 659 T245a
- BRUCE, William George. The commercial secretary. c1923. 651 B88
- BURNHAM, Alton Cyrel. Building your own business. 1923. 658 B96
- CUSTIS, Vanderveer. The foundations of national industrial efficiency. 1923. 658 C98
- Dewey, Godfrey. Personal shorthand exercises. 1922. 653 D51a
- EVERITT, Frank, & Heywood, Johnson. Cost control for foundries; edited by William R. Bassett. 1923.
- FRANKENTHAL, Herman. Draping. Edited by F. F. Purdy. c1923. 659 F82
- KREBS, William Samuel. Outlines of accounting. 1923. (American business series) 657 K92
- LANSBURGH, Richard Hines. Industrial management, 1923. 658 L29
- LEAKE, Percy Dewe. Depreciation and wasting assets and their treatment in computing annual profit and loss. 4th ed. 1923. 658 L43a
- MANAGEMENT engineering; a journal of production. 4 v. 1921-23.

q658.05 M2

657 E93

- PRAIGG, Noble T., ed. Advertising and selling, by 150 advertising and sales executives. 1923. 659 P89
- SANDERS, Thomas Henry. Problems in industrial accounting. 1923. 657 S21
- Scott, Walter Dill, & Clothier, Robert Clarkson. Personnel management. 1923.

658 S43p

- STARCH. Daniel. Principles of advertising. 1923. 659 S79p STEVENSON, John Alford, Problems and projects in salesmanship. 1923. 658 S84p TAINTOR, Sarah Augusta. Training for secretarial practice; a textbook in secretarial theory and 651 T13 correspondence, 1923. WEAVER, Amy, Office organization and practice. c1923. 658 W363 WILDER. Buell, Robert Holman. de ' Katharine Loving. Publicity; a manual for the use of business, civic or social service organizations. 1923. 659 W67 CHEMICAL TECHNOLOGY. AITCHISON, Leslie, & Barclay, William Robb. Engineering non-ferrous metals and alloys. [1923] (Oxford technical publications) -669.9 A31 Gow, Colin Clarence. The electro-metallurgy of steel. 1921. (A treatise of electrochemistry) 669.1 G72 LESLIE, Eugene Hendricks. Motor fuels; their production and technology. 1923. 665.5 L63 POWELL, Harry James. Glass-making in England. 1923. q666.1 P8 WEBB, Harry William. Absorption of nitrous gases. 1923. 668 W36 MECHANICAL TRADES. MILHAM, Willis Isbister. Time & timekeepers, including the history, construction, care, and accuracy of clocks and watches. 1923. 681 M64 STUART, George. The wheelwright's shop. 1923.
 - 684 S93
- WEST, Frank L. How to repair shoes. c1923.

685 W51

Wood, Eric, ed.	LANDSCAPE GARDENING.
Something to make. [1923] (The	DURAND, Herbert.
modern boy's library) 680 W87	Taming the wildings. 1923. 716 D94
	HUGHES, Thomas Harold.
BUILDING.	Towns and town-planning, ancient &
COLEMAN, George Stephen.	modern. 1923. q710 H89
Calculations in heating and ventilation.	KENNEDY-BELL M. G.
1923. 697 C69	The glory of the garden, 1923.
DINGMAN, Charles Francis.	716 K36
Estimating building costs. 1923.	KIMBALL, Theodora.
692 D58	Manual of information on city plan-
Honggor Thedenick Whomas & Williams	ning and zoning. 1923. q710 K4m
HODGSON, Frederick Thomas, & Williams, Morris.	
Stair-building and the steel square.	MITCHELL, Sydney Bancroft.
1923. 694 H69st	Gardening in California. 1923.
JAGGARD, Walter Robert.	c716 M68
Architectural building construction. 2	WILDER, Mrs Louise (Beebe).
v. 1922. (Cambridge technical	Adventures in my garden and rock
series) 690 J24	garden. 1923. 716 W67
POND, De Witt Clinton.	ARCHITECTURE.
Concrete construction for architects. 1923. 693.5 P79	
1925. 095.5 P75	BROWN, Frank Chouteau, comp. Modern English churches. 68 plates.
RADIO.	1923. q726 B87
BRANCH, Joseph Gerald.	1020. q120 boi
A complete course in radio engineering.	BUNGALOWCRAFT company, Los Angeles.
c1923. 654 B81	The new Spanish bungalow, singles and
HAYWARD, Charles Brian.	doubles. c1923. c728 B94
Modern radio practice. c1923.	CURTIS, Nathaniel Cortlandt.
654 H42m	Architectural composition. 1923.
	q720 C9
INTERNATIONAL correspondence schools,	HAMLIN, Alfred Daught Foster.
Scranton, Pa. Radio handbook, 1924. 654.6 161	A history of ornament, renaissance and
Radio handbook, 1524. 054.0 101	modern. 1923. 729 H22
IRWIN, John R.	
Radio; a practical manual with ques-	JOURDAIN, M.
tions and answers. 1923. 654.6 172	English interiors in smaller houses,
THOMAS, James Louis.	from the restoration to the regency, 1660–1830. [1923] q728 J7
Fundamentals of radio. 1923.	
654.6 T45	PENCIL points; a journal for the drafting
	room. v 1. 1920. q720.5 P3
FINE ARTS: GENERAL.	SWARBRICK, John.
BEATTY, John Wesley.	Robert Adam & his brothers; their
The relation of art to nature. 1922.	lives, work & influence on English
701 B36	architecture, decoration and furni-
DONNELLY, Francis Patrick.	ture. [1915] q720.18 S9
Art principles in literature. 1923.	TIPPING, Henry Avray.
701 D68	English homes, period III. v 1. Late
HENRI, Robert.	Tudor and early Stuart, 1558-1649.
The art spirit, compiled by Margery	1922. (Country life library)
Ryerson. 1923. 704 H51	f728 T5e1

vol. 19, no. 2] CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY.

JAQUES, Mrs Bertha Evelyn (Clauson). TOWNSEND, Reginald Townsend, ed. The book of building and interior Helen Hyde and her work. 1922. c759.1 H99 decorating. 1923. a728 T7 MEIER-GRAEFE, Julius. SCULPTURE. POTTERY. Degas, rendered into English by J. Holroyd-Reece. 1923. a759.4 D31 ADAMS. Mrs Adeline Valentine (Pond). The spirit of American sculpture. 1923. - Vincent van Gogh, a biographi-735 A21 cal study; trans. by John Holroyd BURTON. William. Reece. 1922. 2 v. q759.9 G6 Josiah Wedgewood and his pottery. OPPÉ, Adolf Paul. 1922. 738 W393b Thomas Rowlandson, his drawings and COOMARASWAMY, Ananda Kentish, ed. water-colours; edited by Geoffrey Visvakarma : examples of Indian archiq759.2 R88 Holme. 1923. tecture, sculpture, painting, handi-1914.a730 C7 SARGENT. Walter. craft. The enjoyment and use of color. 1923. HOBSON, Robert Lockhart. 752 S24 The wares of the Ming dynasty. 1923. VAN DYKE. John Charles. a738 H68 Rembrandt and his school; a critical study of the master and his pupils NATIONAL sculpture society, New York. with a new assignment of their pic-Exhibition of American sculpture cataq759.9 R3v logue. c1923. tures. 1923. q735 N2 NEURDENBURG, Elisabeth ENGRAVING. Old Dutch pottery and tiles; translated with annotations by Bernard Rack-BROWN, Bolton. ham. 1923. a738 N4 Lithography. 1923. 763 B87 HIND, Arthur Mayger. DRAWING, DECORATION, DESIGN, Wenceslaus Hollar and his views of HAYWARD, Arthur H. London and Windsor in the seven-Colonial lighting. c1923. 749 H42 teenth century. 1922. q767 H73 HUNTER, George Leland. HOLMAN. Louis Arthur. Decorative furniture; a picture book of George C. Wales, etcher of the sea; a the beautiful forms of all ages and record of his development in seamanall periods. 1923. q749 H9 ship & in art. 1922. (Goodspeed's 767 W172h monographs) JORDAN, Harvey Herbert, & Hoelscher, R. P. MCCAULEY, Lena M. Engineering drawing. 1923. 744 J82 George Elbert Burr's etchings of the desert (New Mexico, Arizona, Cali-SHERRILL, Charles Hitchcock. fornia). 1921. c769 B96 Stained glass tours in France. [1922] 748 S55sf NEVILL, Ralph Henry. TANNAHILL, Sallie Belle. Old English sporting prints and their P's and Q's; a book on the art of history, edited by Geoffrey Holme. letter arrangement. 1923. 1923. a760 N5 q745 T1 PRACTICAL engraving on metal, including PAINTING. hints on saw piercing, carving, in-762 P89 BRYANT,, Mrs Lorinda (Munson). laying, &c. [1922] French pictures and their painters. ZORN, Anders Leonard. 1922. 759.4 B91 Etchings; with an introduction and

critical notes by Ernest M. Lang.

q767 Z8

1923.

CORTISSOZ, Royal. American artists. 1923. 759.1 C82

793.2 M87

MUSIC. FREEBURG, Victor Oscar. FINCK, Henry Theophilus. Pictorial beauty on the screen. 1923.778 F85p Musical progress. c1923. 780 F49m THE Photodramatist ; the scenario writer's FLORIDIA, Pietro, ed. magazine. v. 2-4, 1920-23. Early Italian songs and airs. c1923. ac778.05 P5 (The musicians library) q784.4 F63 RUTLAND, James Richard, comp. FOWLES, Ernest. State censorship of motion pictures. Musical competition festivals. 1923. [1923] (The reference shelf) (The musician's bookshelf) 778 R97 780 F78 STEARNS, Myron Morris. GAMBLE, William. With the movie makers, by John Amid Music engraving and printing, 1923. [pseud.] c1923. 778 \$79 780.9 G19 VAN ZILE, Edward Sims. GREENE, K. Broadley. The marvel-the movie; a glance at its How to listen to good music and encourage the taste in instrumental and reckless past, its promising present. and its significant future. 1923.vocal music. [1923] 780.4 G81 778 V28 THE Musical directory, 1923. r780.3 M9 PAGEANTS. PRATT, Waldo Selden. CRUM. Mason. The history of music; a handbook and A guide to religious pageantry. 1923. guide for students. [1919?] 792.7 C956 780.9 P91 ELDERDICE, Dorothy. The sheathing of the sword. c1922. RIMSKII-KORSAKOV, Nikolai Andreevich. 792.7 E37 My musical life, tr. from the rev. 2d Russian ed. by Judah A. Joffe; SPICER, Dorothy Gladys. Folk festivals and the foreign comedited with an introduction by Carl Van Vechten, 1923. 780.2 B577 munity. c1923. 792.7 \$75 SAINT-SAËNS, Camille, THREE Biblical pageants with music for Outspoken essays on music. Tr. by churches, Sunday schools and com-Fred Rothwell, 1922(Musician's munity organizations. 1922. bookshelf) 780.4 S15 792.7 T53 YALE, Elsie Duncan. SWAN, Alfred J. The Easter light; a pageant. c1922. Scriabin, 1923. 780.2 S629s 792.7 Y17e WAGNER, Richard. - Three Christmas pageants. c1922. The ring of the Niblung; illus. by 792.7 Y17 Arthur Rackham. Tr. by Margaret Armour. q782.2 W1r CHILDREN'S PLAYS. WILSON, D. Miller. BENTON. Rita. The "player-piano"; its construction, The Bible play workshop. c1923. (The how to play-what to play and how Abingdon religious education texts) to preserve it and make adjustments 793.2 B47bi when necessary. [1922?] (Pit-DE LA MARE, Walter John. man's common commodities and in-Crossings. A fair play. 1923. dustries) 786 W74 793.2 D33 MOVING PICTURES. MORRIS, Mrs Elisabeth (Woodbridge). The crusade of the children. c1923.

THE Blue book of the screen. Ruth Wing, editor. c1923. gc778 B6

166

.

chell). In the children's play-house. 1923. 793.2 P26i	CAMP, Walter Chauncey. The book of sports and games. c1923. 796 C18b NATIONAL collegiate athletic association.
SOMEPLE, pseud. Mother Goose dramatized. c1923. 793.2 \$69	National collegiate athletic association track and field rules. 1923. (Spald- ing "Red cover" series of athletic handbooks) 796 N27
AMUSEMENTS.	
BAFFEL, Will. Easy conjuring without apparatus. 791 B14	PARSONS, Harry de Berkeley, & others. Handbook on American yacht racing rules. 2d. ed. 1923. 797 P26
BRANSON, L. H. Indian conjuring. 791 B82	STEWART, Douglas. How to play soccer. c1923. (Spald-
CAMPBELL, Lily Bess. Scenes and machines on the English	ing "Red cover" series of athletic handbooks, no. 39R) 797 884
stage during the renaissance. 1923.	WHITEHEAD, Wilbur Cherrier.
792 C18	Auction bridge, authoritative leads &
COOPER, Courtney Ryley. Under the big top. 1923. 791 C77	conventions of play together with the proper responses by partner. 1923. 795 W59au
FERRIS, Anita Brockway.	WINTERS, Edgar S.
Following the dramatic instinct, c1922. 793 F39f	Ma cheuk (also called "mah jong,"
GEISTER, Edna.	"pung chow" and "ma jung") as
The fun book; stunts for every month	played by the Chinese. c1923. 795 W78
in the year. c1923. 793 G31f	WORK, Milton Cooper.
HACKER, Fred A., & Eames, Prescott W. How to put on an amateur circus. c1923. 791 H11	Auction bridge of 1924, including the latest official laws. c1923. 795 W92auc
SAYLER, Oliver Martin. Our American theater. c1923.	LITERATURE.
792 \$270	ADCOCK, Arthur St. John. Gods of modern Grub street; impres-
STAGE illusions and entertainments. [1923] 792 \$779	sions of contemporary authors. 1923 820.9 A22
VAN DERVEER, Lettie C.	BABCOCK, Robert Weston, & Powell, John Henderson jr.
Holidays and in-between times, new ideas in entertainment. 1923.	How to debate. c1923. 808.5 B11
793 V24	BELL, Lucy D.
RECREATION.	The art of public speaking. 1923. 808.5 B43
AKELEY, Carl Ethan. In brightest Africa. 1923. 799 A31	BIRON, Sir Chartres. Pious opinions. [1923] 824 B619
BANKS, Newell Williams, & Steinberg,	BOAS, Frederick Samuel.
Morris, eds.	Shakespeare & the universities, and
Morris-systems scientific checkers. c1923. 794 B21	other studies in Elizabethan drama. 1923. 822.33 DAbo
BARETTO DE SOUZA, Joseph Michaël	Boas, Ralph Philip, & Hahn, Barbara M.
Thomas.	Social backgrounds of English litera-
Elementary equitation; principles of horseback-riding, c1922, 798 B24	ture. c1923, (Atlantic classics) 820.9 B66

1

BROWNING, Robert.	LAWRENCE, Edwin Gordon.
Letters to Miss Isa Blagden, arranged	Rudiments of speech; a system of train-
for publication by A. Joseph Arm-	ing in oral expression. c1923.
strong. c1923. 821.83 Ba	808.5 L41r
BUSBY, Olive Mary.	MACKAIL, John William.
Studies in the development of the fool	Virgil and his meaning to the world of
in the Elizabethan drama. 1923.	today. (Our debt to Greece and
822.09 B97	Rome) 873 V49zm
 CICERO, Marcus Tullius. The speeches, with an English translation. Pro Archia poeta—Post reditum in senatu—Post reditum ad quirites—De domo sua—De haruspicum responsis—Pro Plancio. 1923. (The Loeb classical library) 875 C56wa 	MACKALL, Lawton. Bizarre. 1922. 817 M15 MASSON, Thomas Lansing, ed. Tom Masson's annual for 1923. 1923. 817 M42t MENZIES, Lucy, comp. The first friend: an anthology of the friendship of man and dog, compiled
CLARKE, William James. Woman and the wits; epigrams on woman, love and beauty, collected & edited by G. F. Monkshood [pseud]. [1922] 828 C61	from the literature of all ages 1400 B. C1921 A. D. 1923. 808.8 M55 MORLEY, Christopher Darlington. Inward ho! 1923. 814 M86i
CROTHERS, Samuel McChord. The cheerful giver; essays. 1923. 814 C95c	OVERTON, Grant Martin. American nights entertainment. 1923. 810.9 O96 PERRY, Bliss.
FABRAR, John Chipman, ed.The Bookman anthology of essays.[1923]. c1923.810.8 F24	The praise of folly, and other papers. 1923. 814 P46pr
FRANCE, Anatole.	RICKARD, Thomas Arthur.
On life & letters, translation by D. B.	Technical writing, second edition re-
Stewart. 3d series. 1922.	written and enlarged, 1923.
840.4 F81	808 R53t1
FREEMAN, R. M.	ROXBURGH, John Fergusson.
The new Boswell, 1923. 827 F85	The poetic procession, a beginner's in-
GERHARDI, William.	troduction to English poetry. 2d ed.
Anton Chehov; a critical study. 1923.	1922. 821.09 R88
891.72 C51zg	Scott, Harold P.
HARBARGER, Sada Annis.	An analysis of writing. 1923. 808 S42
English for engineers. 1923.	SHREVE, F. D.
808 H25	Human aphorisms, by Tschar [<i>pseud.</i>].
HOMERUS.	1921. c818 S56
The Iliad of Homer, rendered into	Gift of author.
English prose. [Re-issued, corrected,	Sмітн, James Reuel.
1921] 883 H761bu	Springs and wells in Greek and Roman
The Odyssey, rendered into	literature, their legends and locations.
English prose. 2d ed. Corrected	1922. 880.9 S65
and re-set. [1922] 883 H76obt	SNYDER, Edward Douglas.
LAMBORN, Edmund Arnold Greening, &	The Celtic revival in English literature,
Harrison, George Bagshawe.	1760–1800. 1923. 820.9 \$675
Shakespeare the man and his stage.	STARRETT, Vincent.
1923. (The world's manuals)	Buried Caesars; essays in literary
822.33 Bla	appreciation. 1923. 814 \$796

в

-

STEVENS, Ashton. Actorviews; intimate portraits. 1923. 817 \$844	BURTON, Mrs Clara Ellen (Cooper). Mother poems for Mothers' day. c1923. 811 B9741
STEWART, Donald Ogden. Aunt Polly's story of mankind. c1923. 817 S84au SYMONS, Arthur.	CABNEGIE library school association, comp. Christmas in poetry; carols and poems. First series. 1922. q821.08 C2
Dramatis personae. c1923. 824 S98d	Thanksgiving in poetry. 1923. a811.08 C2
TASSIN. Algernon de Vivier.The oral study of literature.1923.820.7 T21	Снплья, Minnie Calista. Orange blossom time in California and other poems. c811 C53o
VAN LOOT, Cornelius Obenchain, pseud. The collector's whatnot. 1923. 817 V26	[Poems]. Featured for Mothers' day. 1923. c811 C53
WATERHOUSE, Francis Asbury. Random studies in the romantic chaos. 1923. 814 W32	Gift of author. CLARK, Thomas Curtis. Lincoln, and others. c1923. 811 C595
WELLS, Carolyn, ed. An outline of humor. 1923. 827 W450	COURNOS, John. In exile. c1923. 811 C86
WELLS, Gabriel. Gentle reactions. 1923. 814 W45 WHITING, Mary Bradford. Dante the man and the poet. 1922.	EDDA SAEMUNDAR. The poetic Edda, translated from the Icelandic by Henry Adams Bellows. 1923. (Scandinavian classics) 839.6 E211b
851.15 Bw POETRY. Aeschylus.	FAUSSET, Hugh I'Anson. The condemned and The mercy of God; two poems of crisis. 1923. 821 F26
The Choëphoroe (Libation-bearers); translated into English rhyming verse, by Gilbert Murray. [1923]	FEOST, Robert. New Hampshire; a poem, with woodcuts by J. J. Lankes. 1923. 811 F93ne
882 A25cm	FYLEMAN, Rose.
ANTHOLOGIA graeca. Selections. English. The girdle of Aphrodite; the complete love-poems of the Palatine anthology, trans. by F. A. Wright. [1923]	The fairy green. c1923. 821 F99 GREEVER, Garland, & Bachelor, Joseph M., comps. The soul of the city. 1923.
881 A62w AULT, Norman, comp. The poets' life of Christ. [1923]	801.1 G816 HYETT, Florence B.
BACON, Leonard. Ulug Beg; an epic poem, comic in in-	Fifty Christmas poems for children. 1923. 821.08 H99
tention, in VII cantos. 1923. 811 B128	LANG, Andrew. The poetical works of Andrew Lang, ed. by Mrs Lang, 1923. 4 v.
Boyd, Marion M. Silver wands. 1923. (Yale series of younger poets) 811 B789	821 L26p LAWRENCE, David Herbert.
BROWNING, Charles. My Sacramento. 1922. gc811 B8	Birds, beasts and flowers. 1923. 821 L419b
BURR, Amelia Josephine. Little houses; a book of poems. c1923. 811 B9681i	LAWTON, William Cranston. The soul of the Anthology. 1923. (Curtis Seaman Read memorial fund) 880.8 L42s

т

LEOPARDI, Giacomo, conte.	DRAMA.
The poems of Leopardi, edited with in-	ALLOTTE DE LA FUYE, Mme Marguerite
troduction and notes and a verse- translation in the metres of the origi-	(Pichelin).
nal, by Geoffrey L. Bickersteth. 1923.	The Lord of death; a play in a prologue
851 L58	and three acts. Trans. by Louis N. Parker. 1923. 842 A44
LYDGATE, John. Lydgate's Fall of princes, ed. by Henry	ANDREEV, Leonid Nikolaevich.
Bergen. 1923. 3 v. (Carnegie in-	Katerina (Yekaterina Ivanovna), a
stitution of Washington. Publica-	drama in 4 acts. Tr. by Herman Bernstein, c1923. 891.72 A55k
tions)	Bernstein. c1923. 891.72 A55k
MAVITY, Nancy Barr.	ARTSYBASHEV, Mikhail Petrovich.
A dinner of herbs. 1923. c811 M461	Jealousy; Enemies; The law of the savage, with an introductory essay on
MILLAY, Edna St. Vincent.	marriage, 1923. 891.72 A79j
The harp-weaver, and other poems.	
1923. 811 M6452h	BARING, Hon Maurice.
MORLEY, Christopher Darlington.	His Majesty's embassy & other plays. [1923] 822 B253h
Parsons' pleasure. c1923. 811 M86p	Contents.—His Majesty's embassy. —Manfroy, duke of Athens.—June,
	Manfroy, duke of AthensJune, and after.
Oxford poetry, 1923. 821.08 D98a6	BAX, Clifford.
PAGE, Curtis Hidden.	Midsummer madness; a play for music.
Japanese poetry. 1923. 895.1 P13	1923. (Contemporary British drama-
REDMAN, Ben Ray.	tists) 822 B35
Masquerade. 1923. 811 R31	CHAPIN, Harold.
ROE, Robert.	The comedies of Harold Chapin. 1921.
Here you have me! c1923. 811 R69	822 C463c
SCOLLARD, Clinton.	Muddle-Annie. 1921. (Repertory
The epic of golf. 1923. 811 S42e	plays, no. 10) 822 C463m
SOPHOCLES.	COHEN, Helen Louise, ed.
Oedipus, king of Thebes; tr. into Eng-	The junior play book. c1923.
lish rhyming verse, with explanatory	808.2 C67j Corkery, Daniel.
notes, by Gilbert Murray. 1911.	The yellow bittern and other plays.
882 S71om	1920. 822 C7 9
STERLING, George. Truth. 1923. A contract c811 S83tr	Contents.—King and hermit.—Clan Falvey.—The yellow bittern.
STEVENSON, Burton Egbert.	CROTHERS, Rachel. Mary the third; "Old lady 31"; A little
Famous single poems and the contro-	journey. c1923. 812 C95ma
versies which have raged around	
them. c1923. 811.09 S84	DAVIS, Owen. Robin Hood; or, The merry outlaws of
STEVENSON, Robert Louis.	Sherwood Forest; a play in three
The complete poems. 1923 821 \$84	acts. c1923. 812 D262r
STRONG, Leonard Alfred George.	THE Eleanor Duse series of plays, direc-
Dublin days. c1923. 821 S92	tion of Morris Gest, edited by Oliver
UNTERMEYER, Louis.	M. Sayler. c1923. 822.08 E38
Roast Leviathan. c1923. 811 U61r	FEDERAL council of the churches of Christ
ed. This singing world; an an-	in America. Committee on religious drama.
thology of modern poetry for young	Religious dramas, 1924. c1923.
people. c1923. 808.1 U61	812.08 F29

vol. 19, no. 2]

٠

[GREG, Walter Wilson]	NORTH DAKOTA, University. Dakota
Two Elizabethan stage abridgements:	
The battle of Alcazar & Orlando	
Furioso. 1923. (The Malone society.	four one-act plays on colonial themes.
Extra volume. 1922) 822 M25gr	
HOUSUM, Robert.	PEATTIE, Mrs Elia (Wilkinson).
The gipsy trail. c1920. (French's	The wander weed, and seven other little
standard library edition) 812 H843	theater plays, 1923, 812 P36
HUGHES, Glenn,	Contents.—The wander weed.—The great delusion.—Family reunion.— Sunrise. — Pity. — Spring cleaning. —
Pierrot's mother; a fantastic play in	great delusion.—Family reunion.—
	When the silver bell tree blooms,—
	Job's tears.
little theatre plays) 812 H89	PHILLPOTTS, Eden.
HUGHES, Richard Arthur Warren.	Curtain raisers, 1920. 822 P565c
The sisters' tragedy. 1922. 822 H89	Contents.—The point of view.—
T T I N I	Hiatus.—The carrier-pigeon.
JAST, Louis Stanley.	
The lover and the dead woman and five	PIRANDELLO, Luigi.
other plays in verse. 1923. 822 J39	Each in his own way, and two other
Contents.—The lover and the dead woman.—The geisha's wedding.—The	plays. c1923. 852 P66e
loves of the elements.—The call of the	QUINN, Arthur Hobson.
ninth wave.—Venus and the sheperd- ess.—Harbour.	
	A history of the American drama, from the beginning to the civil war. 1923.
JEROME, Jerome Klapka.	812.09 Q7
Fanny and the servant problem. c1909.	012.09 Q7
(French's standard library edition)	RACKSTRAW, E. C., & Muskerry, William.
822 J564f	"Make-believe"; a comedietta. c1910.
KAUFMAN, George S., & Connelly, Marcus	(French's acting edition) 822 R12
Cook.	
To the ladies. c1923. (rench's stand-	RENFROW, Carolyn.
ard library edition) 812 K21t	The last of the Strozzi, and The lure;
	two plays, 1923. 812 R41
KELLY, George Edward.	
The torch-bearers; a satirical comedy in	ROGERS, Thomas Badger.
three acts. 1923. 812 K31	Five plays. 1920. 822 R72
LAWSON, John Howard,	Contents.—The forfeit.—The hall of laughter.—Eyes to the blind.—The
	saint-king.—The heirloom.
Roger Bloomer; a play in three acts. 1923. 812 L425	
1020. 812 L425	Rose, Edward Everett.
MACNAMARA, Margaret.	Cappy Ricks; a comedy in three acts;
Love-fibs; a rustic comedy in one act.	adapted from the story by Peter B.
1920. 822 M16	Kyne. (French's standard library
Mag Holgen is and a f	edition) 812 R79
Mrs Hodges; a comedy of rural	Doomerry Edward
politics in two scenes. 822 M16m	ROSTAND, Edmond.
MANNERS, John Hartley.	Cyrano de Bergerac, an heroic comedy
The girl in waiting; a comedy in four	in five acts. A new version in Eng-
acts. 1922. (Baker's standard plays)	lish verse by Brian Hooker. 1923.
822 M28g	842 R83cy2
	RUBINSTEIN, Harold F., & Glover, Halcott.
MAXWELL, William Babington.	Exodus; a dramatic sequence in five
The last man in. 1922. (Repertory	episodes. (Contemporary British
plays) 822 M46	dramatists) 822 R89e
MUNDAY, Anthony.	uramatists) ozz R89e
John a Kent & John a Cumber. 1923.	SHAY, Frank, comp.
(Malone society reprints)	One thousand and one plays for the
(Mar ne society reprints) 822 M25mu	little theatre, c1913. 808.21 \$53a
ore meaning (and another of the sector sector sector sector

[April, 1924

SMITH, George Charles Moore. College plays performed in the Univer- sity of Cambridge. 1923.	DIBBLE, Roy Floyd. Strenuous Americans. c1923. 920.07 D54
822.09 S64 SMITH, Winchell, & Hazzard, John E.	Contents.—Jesse James.—Admiral Dewey.—Brigham Young.—Frances E. Willard.—James J. Hill.—P. T. Barnum.—Mark Hanna.
Turn to the right; a comedy in a pro- logue and three acts. (French's standard library edition) 812 S66	FINGER, Charles J. Highwaymen. 1923. 923.41 F49
[TÉLLEZ, Gabriel] The love-rogue; a poetic drama in three acts, transmuted from the Spanish of Tirso de Molina [<i>pseud.</i>] by Harry Kemp. 1923. 862 T27]	FURNISS, Harry. Some Victorian women, good, bad, and indifferent. 1923. 920.7 F98 GAGE, Walker Miller.
 TROUBETZKOY, Amélie (Rives) Chanler. The sea-woman's cloak, and November eve, two plays. c1923. 812 T85 	Gage families. 1922. c929.2 G13 Gift. HARRIS, Arthur Merton. Pirate tales from the law. 1923. 923.41 H31
CALIFORNIA FICTION.	HARRIS, Frank.
GREY, Zane. Tappan's burro, and other stories. c1923. cG845t	Contemporary portraits, fourth series. c1923. 928 H31a2
HAINES, Donal Hamilton.	PARKER, William Belmont. Uruguayans of today. 1921. (His-
Sky-line inn. 1923. cH1534 Gift of author.	panic notes & monographs; essays, studies, and brief biographies)
HART, William Surrey. A lighter of flames. c1923. cH3261 Gift of author.	920.089 P24u SUNDERLAND, James, & Sunderland, Jabez Thomas.
NICHOLS, Walter H. Trust a boy! 1923. cN623 Gift of author.	Biographical sketch and recollections of the lives of Thomas Sunderland (2d) and Sarah Broadhead Sunderland (Lovell), 1914. 929.2 S95
NORRIS, Mrs Kathleen (Thompson). Butterfly. 1923. cN855bu	Gift of Lester Thomas Sunderland.
NORTON, Brayton.	BIOGRAPHY: INDIVIDUAL.
El Diablo. c1921. cN882 Gift of author.	Bacon. Scorr, James Brown. Robert Bacon, life and letters. 1923. B B1284s
UPRIGHT, Blanche. The losing gain. c1922. cU681	Bernhardt. ARTHUR, Sir George Comp- ton Archibald, bart.
BIOGRAPHY: COLLECTIVE.	Sarah Bernhardt. 1923. B B527a
BIGHAM, Hon. Clive. The chief ministers of England, 920- 1720. 1923. 923.2 B59c	Blathwayt. BLATHWAYT, Raymond. The tapestry of life. c1923. B B644
BRIDGE, Frederick Maynard. Princes of Wales. 1922. 923.1 B85	Brooks. BROOKS, Elisha. A pioneer mother of California. 1922. CB B8732
BURGHILL, Francis. The visitation of the county of Rut- land. 1922. (The publications of the Harleian society) q929 H2	Bryan. WILLIAMS, Wayne C. William Jennings Bryan; a study in political vindication. c1923. B B915w

Carlyle. CARLYLE, Thomas.	Fay. FAY, Anna Maria.
Letters of Thomas Carlyle to John	Victorian days in England ; letters of an
Stuart Mill, John Sterling and Robert	American girl, 1851–1852. 1923.
Browning; ed. by Alexander Carlyle.	B F282
[1923] B C2865cal	Flint Error Chaples Peplett
	Flint. FLINT, Charles Ranlett.
Wilson, David Alec.	Memories of an active life. 1923.
Carlyle till marriage (1795–1826).	B F623
1923, B C286 5w	
	Franklin. DILL & COLLINS CO., Phila-
Casanora. LE GRAS, Joseph.	delphia.
Casanova, adventurer & lover. Trans-	The pictorial life of Benjamin Franklin.
lated from the French by A. Francis	1923. gB F831d
	dB 10010
Steuart. [1923] B C3351	Greenwall. GREENWALL, Harry J.
Cleveland. McElroy, Robert McNutt.	Scoops; being leaves from the diary of
Grover Cleveland, the man and the	a special correspondent. [1923]
statesman; an authorized biography.	B G8161
1923. 2 v. B C635m	
1020. 2 V. D 0000111	Hamilton. HAMILTON, Lord Ernest Wil-
Gauged Drypp Funct Dealers	liam.
Conrad. BENDZ, Ernst Paulus.	Old days and new. c1923. B H2176
Joseph Conrad, an appreciation. 1923.	ord days and new. crozo. D mano
B C754b	Harding. ASHER, Cash, comp.
Cook. Cook, James H.	He was "just folks"; the life and
Fifty years on the old frontier, as cow-	
	character of Warren Gamaliel Hard-
boy, hunter, guide, scout, and ranch-	ing, as mirrored in the tributes of
man. 1923. B C7711	the American press. c1923.
	B H263a
Coolidge. COOLIDGE, Thomas Jefferson.	
Autobiography, 1831-1920, 1923.	Harriman. HARRIMAN, Florence Jaffray
B C7745	(Hurst).
	From pinafores to politics. 1923.
WASHBURN, Robert Morris.	B H297
Calvin Coolidge; his first biography;	
from comparatore to comptantly,	Haskins. [JORDAN, William George]
from cornerstone to capstone to the	Charles Waldo Haskins, an American
accession. c1923. B C774w	pioneer in accountancy. 1923.
	-
Taylor. COPLEY, Frank Barkley.	B H351j
Frederick W. Taylor, father of scientific	HATTACH mounch and jowly on anony
management, 1923, 2 v. B T241c	HAUNCH, paunch and jowl; an anony-
	mous autobiography. c1923.
Crane. BEER, Thomas.	B H373
Stephen Crane; a study in American	Hearn. THOMAS, Edward.
	Lafcadio Hearn. 1912. (Modern biog-
letters. 1923. B C8912b	
	raphies) B H436t
Dostoevskii. Dostoevskii, Fedor Mikhai-	Hepburn. BISHOP, Joseph Bucklin.
lovich.	
Dostoevsky: letters and reminiscences,	A. Barton Hepburn ; his life and service
translated from the Russian by S. S.	to his time. 1923. B H529b
Koteliansky and J. Middleton Murry.	
	Herzen. HERZEN, Aleksandr Ivanovich.
1923. B D724k	The memoirs, parts I and II, translated
Dutus de Dinens Manuel T	from the Russian by J. D. Duff.
Dubuc de Rivery. MORTON, Benjamin	1923. B H582
Alexander.	
The veiled empress. 1923. B D821m	Holt. HOLT, Henry.
	Garrulities of an octogenarian editor,
Erasmus. SMITH, Preserved.	with other essays somewhat bio-
Erasmus; a study of his life, ideals and	graphical and auto-biographical. 1923.
place in history. 1923. B E65s	
+	B H758

Hudson. HUDSON, William Henry. Letters edited and with an introduction by Edward Garnett. c1923.	Northcliffe. PEMBERTON, Max. Lord Northcliffe, a memoir. [1922] B N873p
B H886g	Patterson. CROWTHER, Samuel.
Johnson. HOUSTON, Percy Hazen. Doctor Johnson. 1923. B J69ho	John H. Patterson, pioneer in industrial welfare. 1923. B P317c
Johnston. JOHNSTON, Sir Harry Hamil- ton. The story of my life. e1923. B J722	Piozzi. P10ZZI, Mrs Hester Lynch (Salusbury) Thrale. Dr. Johnson's Mrs Thrale; autobiog-
Julian. CLARKE, Mrs Grace Giddings (Julian).	raphy, letters and literary remains, edited by A. Hayward. 1910. B P663h
George W. Julian. 1923. Indiana his- torical collections. Biographical series) B J94	Raleigh. JONES, H. A. Sir Walter Raleigh and the air history. 1922. B R1631j
Lenéru. LENÉRU, Marie. Journal of Marie Lenéru, translation by William Aspenwall Bradley. 1923. B L565	 Rizal. RUSSELL, Charles Edward, & Rodriguez, E. B. The hero of the Filipinos; the story of José Rizal, poet, patriot and martyr.
Li Hung Chang. MANNIX, William	1923. B R627r
Francis. Memoirs of Li Hung Chang; with the story of a literary forgery, by Ralph	Robinson. ROBINSON, Sir Henry Augus- tus, bart.
D. Paine. 1923. B L693ml	Memories : wise and otherwise. [1923?] B R6612
Lincoln. TOWNSEND, William Henry. Abraham Lincoln, defendant; Lincoln's most interesting lawsuit. B L736to	Rosebery. RAYMOND, Edward Thompson. The life of Lord Rosebery. c1923. B R798r Ross. Ross, Sir Ronald.
Marbury. MARBURY, Elisabeth. My crystal ball; reminiscences. c1923. B M312	Memoirs, with a full account of the great malaria problem and its solu- tion, 1923. B R825
Marye. MARYE, George Thomas. From '49 to '83 in California and Ne- vada; chapters from the life of a pioneer of '49. 1923. cB M3936m	Stevenson. MASSON, Rosaline Orme. The life of Robert Louis Stevenson. 1923. B S848mal
project of 45, 1525. CD 1055011	Sunderland. SUNDERLAND, James.
Meads. MEADS, Simeon Pease. In my own lot and place; an auto-	Annals of a life of faith. 1923. cB S9581
biography. cB M482	Vivian. VIVIAN, Herbert.
Meath. MEATH, Reginald Brabazon, 12th earl of.	Myself not least, being the personal reminiscences of "X", 1923. B V858
Memories of the nineteenth century. 1923. B M484	Walker. MUNROE, James Phinney.
Michelet PUGH, Anne Reese.	A life of Francis Amasa Walker. 1923. B W179m
Michelet and his ideas on social re- form. 1923. (Columbia university studies in Romance philology and	Ward. TREVELYAN, Mrs Janet Penrose (Ward).
literature) B M623p	The life of Mrs Humphry Ward, by her daughter. [1923] B W261t
Mitchill. SMITH, Edgar Fahs. Samuel Latham Mitchill—a father in	
American chemistry. 1922. (The	
Chandler lecture, 1922) B M6821s	

.

Wordsworth, LEGOUIS, Émile Hyacinthe, William Wordsworth and Annette Val- lon, 1922, B W926lw	[BUCHANAN, George] The indictment of Mary, queen of Scots, as derived from a manuscript in the
Work. WORK, John. Journal. Edited by William S. Lewis and Paul C. Phillips. 1923. (Early western journals) B W9263	University library at Cambridge. 1923. 941 B91i COAR, John Firman. The old and the new Germany. 1924.
Younghusband. YOUNGHUSBAND, Sir George John.	943.08 C65 CORTI, Egon Caesar. Leopold I of Belgium; secret pages of
Forty years a soldier. 1923. B Y788f	European history, tr. by Joseph McCabe, 1923. 949.3 C82
HISTORY: GENERAL. STAWELL, Florence Melian, & Marvin,	D'Ewes, Sir Simonds, bart.
Francis Sydney. The making of the western mind. [1923] 901 \$79	The journal of Sir Simonds D'Ewes from the beginning of the Long Par- liament to the opening of the trial of
TOWNER, Rutherford Hamilton. The philosophy of civilization. 1923. 2 v. 901 T74	the Earl of Strafford, edited by Wal- lace Notestein, 1923. (Yale histori- cal publications. Manuscripts and edited texts) q942.06 D5
WHITTON, Frederick Ernest. The decisive battles of modern times. 1923. 904 W62	DE LA BATUT, Guy, & Friedmann, Georges. A history of the French people. (His- tories of the peoples) 944 D33
ANCIENT.	
BROWN, Brian, ed. The wisdom of the Egyptians. c1923. 932 B87	ELIZABETH, queen of England. The savings of Queen Elizabeth, by Frederick Chamberlin. [1923] 942.05 E43
 BUDGE, Ernest Alfred Thompson Wallis. A short history of the Egyptian people, with chapters on their religion, daily life, etc. 1914. 932 B92s 	 GORGOLINI, Pietro. The fascist movement in Italian life. Tr. and edited with introduction by M. D. Petre. 1923. 945 G66
THE Cambridge ancient history. v. 1. Egyt and Babylonia to 1580 B. c. 1923. 930 C17	GRIFFIS, William Elliot. The story of the Walloons, at home, in lands of exile and in America. 1923. 949.3 G85s
HOLMES, Thomas Rice Edward. The Roman republic and the founder of the empire. 1923. 3 v. 937.02 H75	HANBURY-WILLIAMS, Sir John. The Emperor Nicholas II as I knew him, 1922, 947.08 H23
JOHNS, Claude Hermann Walter. Ancient Assyria. 1912. (Cambridge manuals of science and literature) 935.2 J65	LODGE, Sir Richard. Great Britain & Prussia in the eight- eenth century. 1923. 940.9 L822 MILLER, William.
PETRIE, Sir William Matthew Flinders. Social life in ancient Egypt. 1923. 932 P49s	A history of the Greek people (1821– 1921). [1922] (Histories of the peoples) 949.5 M65h
VAN HOOK, Larue. Greek life and thought. 1923. 938 V25	PLUNKET, Ierne Arthur Lifford, Europe in the middle ages, 1922, 940.1 P73
EUROPE.	
ASHMEAD-BARTLETT, Ellis. The tragedy of central Europe, [1923] 943.9 A82	Powell, Edward Alexander, The struggle for power in Moslem Asia, 949.6 P88
6-32173	

175

POWERS, Harry Huntington. A Florentine revery. 1922. 945 5 P88	WILLIAMS, Edward Thomas. China yesterday and today. c1923.
PRICE, Clair.	951 W722
The rebirth of Turkey. 1923. 949.6 P94	NORTH AMERICA.
 RICHARDSON, Mrs Ethel Mary Emily (Stronge). The lion and the rose (the great How- ard story). Norfolk line, 957-1646, Suffolk line, 1603-1917. [1922] 2 v. 942.05 R52 	ADAMS, James Truslow. Revolutionary New England, 1691- 1776. c1923. 974 A211 BARNES, Viola Florence. The Dominion of New England, a study
Ross, Edward Alsworth. The Russian Soviet Republic. c1923. 947.08 R82ru	in British colonial policy. 1923. (Yale historical publications. Mis- cellany) 973.2 B26 EGERTON, Hugh Edward.
STEWART, Hugh Fraser, & Desjardins, Paul, eds. French patriotism in the nineteenth	Causes and character of the American revolution, 1923. 973.3 E29
century (1814-1833) traced in con- temporary texts. 1923. 944 S84 STRÖBEL, Heinrich.	GARLAND, Hamlin. The book of the American Indian; pictured by Frederic Remington.
The German revolution and after.[1923]943.089919	1923. q970.1 G23 Наскетт, Charles Wilson, <i>ed</i> .
TILLEY, Arthur Augustus, ed. Modern France; a companion to French studies. 1922. 944 T57m	Historical documents relating to New Mexico, Nueva Vizcaya and ap- proaches thereto, to 1773, collected by Adolph F. A. Bandelier and Fanny
TUBNER, Edward Raymond. Europe, 1450–1789. 1923. 940.5 T94	R. Bandelier. v. 1. 1923, (Carne- gie institution of Washington, Pub- lications, Papers of the Department
ASIA. ASHBEE, Charles Robert.	of historical research) q978.9 H1
A Palestine notebook, 1918–1923. 1923. 956.9 A81	HART, Albert Bushnell. We and our history ; a biography of the American people. 1923. q973 H3
GANDHI, Mohandas Karamchand. Young India, 1919–1922, by Mahatma Gandhi. 1923. 954 G19	JAMESON, John Franklin. Privateering and piracy in the colonial period. 1923. 973.2 J31
THE Glass palace chronicle of the Kings of Burma, translated by Pe Maung Tin and G. H. Luce. 1923. 959.2 G54	McClellan, Edwin North. The conquest of California. qc979.4 M1
	Gift of author.
HODGKIN, Henry Theodore. China in the family of nations. 1923. (Selly Oak colleges publications) 951 H68	MCILWAIN, Charles Howard. The American revolution: a constitu- tional interpretation. 1923.
ROBERTS, Paul Ernest. History of British India under the company and the crown. 1923. 954 R646	773.3 M15 NICHOLS, Jeannette Paddock. Alaska, a history of its administration,
WEALE, B. L. Putnam, <i>pseud</i> . An indiscreet chronicle from the Pacific. 1922. 951 W36 i	exploitation, and industrial develop- ment during its first half century under the rule of the United States. 1924. 979.8 N61

.

PAGE, Thomas Nelson. Washington and its romance; illus- trated by Walter O. & Emily Shaw	BOISSIER, Gaston. The country of Horace and Virgil. Tr. by D. Havelock Fisher. 1923.
Reese. 1923. 975.3 P13	913.37 B68
PYLE, Howard. Howard Pyle's book of the American spirit. 1923. q973 P9	CAPART, Jean. The tomb of Tutankhamen. Tr. from the French by Warren R. Dawson. c1923. 913.32 C234
SCHULTZ, James Willard. Friends of my life as an Indian. 1923. 970.2 S38f	HAMMEBTON, John Alexander. Wonders of the past. 1923.
	q913 H2
 STANARD, Mrs Mary Mann Page (Newton). Richmond, its people and its story. 1923. 975.51 R53 	HAVERFIELD, Francis John. The Romanization of Roman Britain. 4th ed. rev. by George MacDonald. 1923. 913.42 H38
EUROPEAN WAR.	
ALLEN, Henry Tureman. My Rhineland journal. 1923. 940.98 A42	MASPERO, Sir Gaston Camille Charles. Egypt: ancient sites and modern scenes, trans. by Elizabeth Lee.
Asquith, Herbert Henry.	913.32 M41eg
The genesis of the war. c1923. 940.912 A84	MASTERS, David. The romance of excavation. 1923. 913.32 M42
CONSETT, Montagu William Warcop Peter. The triumph of the unarmed forces (1914–1918). [1923] 940.91 C75	Morer, Alexandre. In the time of the Pharaohs. 1911.
LICHTENBERGER, Henri. The Ruhr conflict. 1923. (Publica- tions of the Carnegie endowment for international peace. Division of	913 32 M84 QUIBELL, Mrs Annie A. Egyptian history and art, with refer- ence to museum collections, 1923.
intercourse and education)	913.32 Q6
q940.98 L6 LLOYD GEORGE, David. Where are we going? c1923. 940.98 J79	SMITH, Grafton Elliot. Tutankamen and the discovery of his tomb by the late Earl of Carnarvon and Mr Howard Carter. 1923. 913.32 S64
PIERREFEU, Jean de. Plutarch lied, translated from the French by Jeffery E. Jeffery. 1924. 940.91 P62	WEICHARDT, Carl Friedrich Wilhelm. Pompeii before its destruction. Recon- struction of its temples and their
RAVAGE, Marcus Eli. The malady of Europe. 1923. 940.98 R25	surroundings. (English translation, by Harry Brett) English edition. [1898] q913.37 W4
WANNAMAKER, Olin Dantzler. With Italy in her final war of libera-	
tion; a story of the "Y" on the Italian front, $c1923$. 940.937 W24	DESCRIPTION AND TRAVEL.
ARCHAEOLOGY.	BRADLEE, Francis Boardman Crownin- shield. Piracy in the West Indies and its suppression. 1923.
BAIKIE, James.	910.4 B81
The life of the ancient East, being some chapters of the romance of	CURZON, George Nathaniel Curzon, 1st
modern excavation. 1923.	marquis.
913,32 B15	Tales of travel, c1923. 910.4 C98

 Dow, George Francis, & Edmonds, John Henry. The pirates of the New England coast, 1630–1730, 1923. (Marine research society, Salem, Mass. Publication) q910.4 D7 KEYSER, Arthur Louis. Trifles and travels. 1923. 910 K44t 	 MONCRIEFF, Ascott Robert Hope. Scotland, painted by Sutton Palmer, described by A. R. Hope Moncrieff. [1922] (Black's popular series of colour books). illus. 914.1 M73 MUIRHEAD, Findlay, ed. Switzerland, with Chamonix and the Italian lakes. 1923. (The blue
Риелам, James Duval. Travel and comment. 1923. c910.4 Р53 POULSEN, Frederik. Travels & sketches, trans. from the Danish. 1923. 914 Р87	guides) 914.94 M95 PULBROOK, Ernest C. English country life and work. [1923] 914.2 P981e WILLIAMSON, George Charles.
EUROPE. ALDIN, Cecil Charles Windsor. Old inns. [1923] q914.2 A3 BELL, Aubrey Fitz Gerald.	Curious survivals; habits and customs of the past that still live in the pres- ent. 1923. 914 2 W72 WILSON, Violet A. The coaching era. [1922] 914.2 W75
Spanish Galicia. 1923. 914.61 B43 BRUTON, Francis Archibald. Lancashire; painted by Albert Woods. 1921. 914.27 B91	ASIA. BIBESCO, Marthe Lucie (Lahovary). The eight paradises; travel pictures in Persia, Asia Minor, and Constanti-
CADBY, Will, & Cadby, Carine. Switzerland in summer (discursive information for visitors). [1922] 914.94 C12 CARPENTER, Frank George,	nople. c1923. 915.5 B58 Powers, Harry Huntington. Japan. 1923. 915.2 P88 RONALDSHAY, Lawrence John Lumley
 France to Scandinavia. 1923. (Carpenter's travels) 914 C29 FRAPRIE, Frank Roy. The spell of the Rhine. 1922. (The 	Dundas, earl.of. The lands of the thunderbolt, Sikhim, Chumbi & Rhutan. 1923. 915.4 R76 TEICHMAN, Eric.
spell series) 914.34 F83 HALLAYS, André. The spell of Province; translated by Frank Roy Fraprie. 1923. (The	Travels of a consular officer in eastern Tibet. 1922. 915.1 T26t AFRICA. CASSERLY, Gordon.
spell series) 914.49 H18 HIGGINS, Walter. Fathèr Thames. [1923] 914.22 H63 HOLDT, Hanns.	CASSERIA Goldon.Algeria today.[1923]916.5 C34FRASER, Donald.African idylls.1923.916.7 F84
Picturesque Greece; architecture, land- scape, life of the people. [1922] q914.95 H7 LUBBOCK, Percy. Roman pictures. [1923] 914.56 L92	NORTH AMERICA. BREEDEN, Marshall. Up, down and all around California. 1923. c917.94 B83
[McBRIDE, Robert Medill] Norwegian towns and people; vistas in the land of the midnight sun, by Rob- ert Medill [pseud.]. 1923. 914.81 M11	BROTHERS, Hal. J. San Francisco, serene, indifferent and beautiful, sketched in pencil and crayon, with a brief description of the city by Frank Morton Todd. 1924. qc917.9461 B87

_

178

vol. 19, no. 2]

- THE Chicago tribune. How to see Chicago. 1923.
 - 917.731 C53
- FUNK, John Clarence. So this is America! c1923. 917.3 F98
- GRAHAM, Stephen: In quest of El Dorado. 1923.

917 G74

Contents.—Spain.—The Indies.— New Mexico.—Panama.—Cibola and Quivira.—Mexico.

GRIGGS, Robert Fiske. The valley of Ten Thousand Smokes. 1922. c917.98 G8

HAWES, Charles Boardman.

- Gloucester, by land and sea; the story of a New England seacoast town. 1923. 917.44 H39
- HAYWARD, Victoria. Romantic Canada. 1922. q917.1 H4
- JORDAN, William F. Glimpses of Indian America. c1923. 917.2 J82
- LEWIS, Howard Thompson, & Miller, Stephen Ivan, jr., eds. The economic resources of the Pacific Northwest, c1923. 917.9 L67
- LONGSTRETH, Thomas Morris. The Adirondacks. 1922, 917.47 L85
- NUTTING, Wallace. Massachusetts beautiful. c1923. g917.44 N9
- RINEHART, Mrs Mary (Roberts). The out trail. c1923. 917.8 R57
- SHELDON, Charles. The wilderness of the North Pacific coast islands. 1912. 917.12 \$54w
- WALDRON, Webb. We explore the Great Lakes. c1923. 917.7 W16

WOODMAN, Charles D. A book without a title. [1914] c917.94 W892

Gift.

CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICA-TIONS RECEIVED DURING JANUARY, FEBRUARY AND MARCH, 1924.†

Many of the administrative departments of the state are from time to time publishing reports, bulletins, etc., which are of considerable interest. Copies can usually be obtained free by writing to the departments issuing them. The publications of the University of California are offered for sale or in exchange by the University Press, Berkeley, with the exception of the publications of the Agricultural Experiment' Station and some of the administrative bulletins, which are distributed free. Most of the publications of the State Mining Bureau are required by law to be sold. Price is given after each entry. The titles are listed in News Notes of California Libraries as they are received at the State Library.

AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF. Special publication no. 43. California crop report, 1923. 1924. 31 p.

----- Same, no. 44. Economic poisons [1922-1923], 1924. 59 p.

CHARITIES AND CORRECTIONS, BOARD OF (San Francisco).* Monthly census of inmates of state institutions. Bulletins nos. 240-242, December, 1923-February, 1924.

Mimeographed sheets.

CONTROL. BOARD OF. Bureau of Children's Aid. California laws relating to dependent and needy children, 1923. 1924: 88 p.

CONTROLLER. Certified copy of compiled statement of domestic corporations whose corporate powers, rights and privileges have been suspended and foreign corporations whose right to do intrastate business has been forfeited, March 1, 1924. 1924. 31 p.

Inheritance tax act of California in effect August 2, 1921, 1924, 28 p.

⁺Except when otherwise noted, publications are printed at the state printing office; Sacramento, and are octavo in size. *The location of an office or institution is in Sacramento, except when otherwise noted.

[CORPORATION DEPARTMENT]. Corporate securities act, providing for the regulation and supervision of companies, brokers and agents and sales of securities. 1924. 16 р.

EDUCATION, BOARD OF. Bulletin no. 3. List of high school textbooks. Revised January, 1924. 1924. 43 p.

----- Bulletin no. 10-Mus. Regulation governing special certification music type. 1924. 7 p.

----- Same, no. 10-P. E. Regulations governing special certification physical education type in general physical education, physical training activities. Rev. January, 1924. 1924. 7 p.

- Same, no. 11-E. General certification of elementary school teachers for use only during the school years 1923-24 and 1924-25, 1924, 6 p.

----- Same, no. 23-A. Supplement to document V, Bulletin no. 23-A, 1922-23 to 1926-27, inclusive. Vocational education, teacher-training course in homemaking for experienced home-makers. 1924. 7 p.

FISH AND GAME COMMISSION. California fish and game, vol. 10, no. 1, January, 1924. p. 1-49. map. illus.

HEALTH, BOARD OF. Special bulletin no. 5. Diphtheria. Regulations for the prevention and control of diphtheria. 1924. 10 p.

 Special bulletin no. 44. Mosquito and malaria control. 1924. 41 p. illus.

----- Bureau of Child Hygiene. Bulletin no. 4. Clothes for California children. 1924. 11 p. illus.

- Bureau of Tuberculosis. Tuberculosis primer for school children. 1924, 45 p. illus. 24°.

HIGHWAY COMMISSION. California highways, vol. 1, nos. 2-3, February-March, 1924, illus. maps.

the California Highway Commission. Compiled November, 1923. 1924. 88 p. 30, 1923. 1924. 40 p.

----- A report of traffic on state highways and county roads in California, 1922. by the U.S. Bureau of Public Roads and California Highway Commission with the cooperation of twenty-four California counties, 1924, 147 p. maps. illus.

INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT COMMISSION (San Francisco). Report from July 1. 1922, to June 30, 1923, 1924, 30 p.

----- California safety news, vol. S, no. 1, March, 1924. 15 p. illus,

------ Elevator safety orders, effective October 1, 1916, and as revised, effective April 1, 1918. 1924. 48 p. 32°.

----- General petroleum industry safety orders for drilling and production, effective March 1, 1924. 1924. 23 p. 32°.

LIBRARY, STATE. News Notes of California Libraries, vol. 19, no. 1, January, 1924. p. 1-94.

MINING BUREAU (San Francisco). Monthly chapter of report XX of the state Mineralogist covering mining in California and the activities of the State Mining Bureau, vol. 20, no. 1, January, 1924. illus.

Summary of operations California oil fields, vol. 9, nos. 5-7, November, 1923-January, 1924. illus.

PRISON, STATE (San Quentin). The bulletin, vol. 11, nos. 4-5, January-February, 1924.

A monthly journal devoted to in-mate welfare.

PUBLIC INSTRUCTION, SUPERINTENDENT OF. Bulletin no. 1. Information about California school system, March 1, 1924. 14 p. 1924.

Bulletin no. 4-A. Teaching the United States constitution and American ideals, an analysis of the law and suggestions for meeting the requirements. March 1, 1924. 8 p.

PUBLIC SCHOOL TEACHERS' RETIRE-- Important statutes relating to MENT SALARY FUND BOARD. Report for the ten years, August 10, 1913, to June

PUBLIC WORKS, DEPARTMENT OF. Division of water rights. Amended regulations 11 and 12, adopted February 19, 1924. 1924. [3p.]

RAILROAD COMMISSION (San Francisco). General order no. 58. Standards for gas service in the state of California. Revised order approved March 1, 1923. Effective April 1, 1923. [1924] 20 p.

Public Utilities act of the State of California and constitutional provisions and other enactments relating to public utilities (with 1923 amendments). 1924. 79 p.

SECRETARY OF STATE. Forms provided for by the presidential primary act. 1924. 28 p.

Offices for which candidates are to be nominated at the primary election, Tuesday, August 26, 1924, together with number of signatures to nomination papers required to be filed by candidates for state and district offices (partisan and non-partisan); primary and general election calendar. 1924. 19 p.

TEACHERS AND JUNIOR COLLEGE, Chico. [Circular of information] 1924–1925. 1924, 55 p. illus.

TEACHERS AND JUNIOR COLLEGE, Fresno. Sierra summer school. Regular summer session held at Huntington Lake, June 30-August 8, 1924. 1924. 25 p. illus.

TEACHERS COLLEGE, San Diego. Educational quarterly bulletin, vol. 12, no. 1. Announcement of courses, summer session of 1924. Term I. June 30 to August 8; Term II. August 11 to' September 5. 1924. 19 p.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (Berkeley). Bulletin, third series, vol. 17, no. 10. Announcement of the graduate division, April, 1924. 226 p.

----- Calendar, vol. LX, nos. 1-12, January 14-March 31, 1924. S p. folders. A weekly bulletin of official University announcement. Price 25 cents a half year, postpaid.

College of Agriculture. Agricultural Experiment Station. Emergency circular. Foot-and-mouth disease, by John R. Mohler. Berkeley, February, 1924. 10 p.

How livestock owners may protect their herds against foot-and-mouth disease, by C. M. Haring. Berkeley, February, 1924. [4 p.]

——— Foot-and-mouth disease notice no. 1. Berkeley, February 25, 1924. [3 p.]

American Archaeology and Ethnology, vol. 7, no. 4. Habitat of the Pitch Indians, a Wailaki division, by Pliny Earle Goddard, Berkeley, February 20, 1924. p. 217-25, 3 text figs. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Same, vol. 19, no. 1. Wappo texts, first series, by Paul Radin. Berkeley, February 7, 1924. p. 1-147. roy. 8°.

Price \$1.75.

Astronomy. Lick Observatory bulletin no. 350. Elements and ephemeris of minor planet 1923 PE. Berkeley, January 8, 1924. p. 122–123. 4°.

------ Same, no. 351. A study of the variable star SX Herculis. Berkeley, October, 1923. p. 124–130. 4°.

<u>Same</u>, no. 352. The orbit of the spectroscopic binary δ trianguli. Berkeley, August 20, 1923. p. 181– 182. 4°.

Price \$2.50 per vol. in advance. Vol. 11 current.

- Mathematics, vol. 1, no. 19. A study of cubic surfaces by means of involuntary cubic space transformations, by John Frederick Pobanz. Berkeley, January 24, 1924. p. 401-23. roy. 8°. Price 25 cents.

----- Seismographic Stations. Bulletin, vol. 2, no. 3. The registration of earthquakes at the Berkeley Station and at the Lick Observatory Station from October 1, 1921, to March 31, 1922, by James B. Macelwane and Perry Byerly, jr. Berkeley, 1924. p. 29-54. roy. 8°.

---- Zoology, vol. 20, no. 23. The distinguishing characteristics of the parasitic amoebae of culture rats and mice, by John F. Kessel, Berkeley, February 20, 1924. p. 489-544. Plates 43-48, 3 text figs. roy 8°. Price 75 cents.

- Same, vol. 21, no. 13. Revision of the genus lynx in California, by Joseph Grinnell and Joseph Dixon. Berkeley, January 24, 1924. p. 339-54. Plate 11, 1 text fig. roy 8°.

Price 25 cents.

- _____ Same, vol. 22, no. 14. Morphology of the digestive tract of teredo navalis, by Edgar Locke Lazier. Berkelev. February 29, 1924 p. 455-74. Plates 21-24; roy. 8°.

Price 35 cents.

— Same, vol. 24, no. 3. Birds and mammals of the Skeena River region of Northern British Columbia, by Harry S. Swarth. Berkeley, January 24, 1924. p. 315-94. Plates 9-11, 1 text fig. roy. 8°.

Price \$1.00.

- Same, vol. 26, no. 2. A precipitin test in experimental amoebic dysentery in cats, by Edna Hannibal Wagener. Berkeley, January 26, 1924. p. 15-20. Plate 2. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

VETERANS' HOME (Yountville). Annual report, fiscal year ended June 30, 1923. 1924. 42 p.

WHITTIER STATE SCHOOL. The Sentinew (new series). Vol. 21, nos. 1-2, December, 1923-March, 1924.

Published monthly. Price \$1.00 per 17, nos. 1-12, January-March, 1924. year; 2 cents per copy.

CALIFORNIA CITY PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DURING JANUARY, FEBRUARY AND MARCH, 1924.

BERKELEY, Public library, Bulletin, vol. 7, nos. 11-12, November-December, 1923; vol. 8, nos. 1-3, January-March. 1924.....

LOS ANGELES. Civil Service Commission. Twenty-first annual report, with charter provisions, July 1, 1922, to June 30. 1923.

- Board of Education. Educational research bulletin, vol. 3, nos. 4-8, January-March, 1924.

- Fire Department, Thirtyseventh annual report, June 30, 1923.

- Board of Harbor Commissioners. Tariff no. 1. Naming rates, rules and regulations governing the Port of Los Angeles. Effective January 1, 1924.

----- Chamber of commerce, Southern California business, vol. 2, no. 12, January, 1924; vol. 3, nos. 1-2, February-March, 1924.

---- Municipal league. Light on your city's affairs, bulletin, vol. 1, nos. 6-8. January-March, 1924.

PALO ALTO. City Council. Fourteenth annual report, fiscal year 1922-1923.

RICHMOND. Health department. Monthly report, January-March, 1924.

----- Public library. Monthly bulletin, vol. 10, nos. 7-8, January-February, 1924.

SACRAMENTO. Health department. Statement of vital statistics for the months of January-March, 1924.

SAN DIEGO, Health department. Monthly report, January-March, 1924.

SAN FRANCISCO. Auditor. Annual report of financial transactions of the city and county of San Francisco, fiscal year ended June 30, 1923.

----- Board of Supervisors. Journal of proceedings, vol. 18, nos. 49-53, December, 1923; vol. 19, nos. 1-6, January-February, 1924.

- ---- Municipal Record, vol.

0

BOOKS FOR THE BLIND ADDED DURING JANUARY, FEBRUARY AND MARCH, 1924

Additions for above months will be listed in News Notes of California Libraries, July, 1924.

.

.

.

.

.

.

Vol. 19, No. 3 Charles Fielder JULY Conference States 1924

News Notes

OF

CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES

IN THIS NUMBER-SOME OF THE ITEMS OF INTEREST.

GIFTS-BERKELEY-UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARY; AMADOR CO. FREE LIBRARY; EUREKA PUBLIC LIBRARY; LOS ANGELES-OCCIDENTAL COLLEGE; REDLANDS-A. K. SMILEY PUBLIC LIBRARY; UPLAND PUBLIC LIBRARY; SAN DIEGO CO. FREE LIBRARY-YSIDRO BRANCH BLDG.

NEW LIBRARIANS AT ARCATA—HUMBOLDT STATE TEACHERS COL-LEGE; IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY; SANTA MONICA HIGH SCHOOL; LA JOTA—PACIFIC UNION COLLEGE; SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC LIBRARY.

LOS ANGELES PUBLIC LIBRARY INCREASE IN TAX RATE.

BUILDING ACTIVITIES—BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY—CLAREMONT BRANCH; KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY—McKITTRICK BRANCH; LOS ANGELES PUBLIC LIBRARY—MAIN AND BRANCHES; CARMEL— HARRISON MEMORIAL BUILDING; SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY—BLOOMINGTON BRANCH.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY

CALIFORNIA STATE PRINTING OFFICE FRANK J. SMITH, Superintendent SACRAMENTO, 1924

CONTENTS.

SARATOGA SPRINGS AGAIN
ANNUAL MEETING OF THE CALIFORNIA LIBRARY ASSOCIA TION
STATE AND LOCAL LAW LIBRARIES
MAP OF CALIFORNIA SHOWING COUNTIES
LIST OF COUNTIES HAVING COUNTY FREE LIBRARIES
CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES—NEWS ITEMS
DIRECTORY FOR LIBRARY SUPPLIES AND OTHER ITEMS OF GENERAL INTEREST
CALIFORNIA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION
CALIFORNIA COUNTY LIBRARIANS
LIBRARY CLUBS, ETC.
BOARD OF LIBRARY EXAMINERS
CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY
STAFF, ETC.
DEPARTMENTS
RECENT ACCESSIONS
CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DUBING APRIL, MAY AND JUNE, 1924
CALIFORNIA CITY PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DUBING APRIL, MAY AND JUNE, 1924
BOOKS FOR THE BLIND ADDED FROM JANUARY 1. TO JUNE 30, 1924

Issued quarterly in the interests of the libraries of the State by the CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY.

All communications should be addressed to the California State Library, Sacramento, California.

NOTE.-Standing matter is set solid and new matter leaded.

Entered as second-class matter December, 1913, at the post office at Sacramento, California, under the act of August 24, 1912.

Acceptance for mailing at the special rate of postage provided for in Section 1103, Act of October 3, 1917, authorized August 27, 1918.

SARATOGA ŚPRINGS AGAIN.

By MILTON J. FERGUSON, Librarian, California State Library.

Do you remember 1918 at Saratoga Springs? War. World swaying projects. Growing enthusiasm for the tasks bequeathed by Louisville in 1917. Uniformed librarians who somehow had acquired, almost, a martial stride. The book, a fulcrum on which to elevate a nation to a higher plane of virtue and wisdom. Greed began the great conflict; knowledge, the printed word should end it.

The records of the A. L. A. set out that 620 persons attended that 1918 conference. But in that year there was a largeness, of ideas, of ideals, if not of numbers, which filled the old political convention hall, and made a grand company of those who thrice daily passed beneath the crystal chandeliers and on into that ocean of a dining room. Something was at stake. Tomorrow might see a great victory—for none could contemplate defeat—and each must be ready to do or die.

Is it, I wonder, that quality, or trait, or knack of the imagination which subtly transforms the yesterdays into perfect days, or was it fact which makes me believe today that in 1918 librarians registered at Saratoga Springs went to meetings with puritanical regularity and punctuality? I can not recall whether at that war conference golf had not yet broken out in the ranks, or whether the task in hand was so all absorbing that sticks had been forgotten in the cloak closet back home. Certainly I have no recollection of hearing anyone boast that he had a perfect score in session attendance : every meeting avoided.

By 1924, war, in library circles, had become a memory. Enthusiasms were in leash. Attendance had doubled over six years earlier but the convention hall had become a reechoing barn, which towards the end of the conference President Jennings showed good judgment in abandoning. Uniforms had taken refuge among the moth balls. Golf had become a passion Section meetings were more numerous than ever, and perhaps more attended. Bookmen, bookscantily binders, caterers to library needs were in force, and really had much of excellent value to show, if one had time and energy to see. Five o'clock tea was substituted for war-like fervor. And the book itself had taken the military feather out of its cap, and become a genial old friend, dependable, safe and sane, but incapable of leading the charge in the face of big berthas and mustard gas.

Saratoga Springs is a nice old town, set down in the fold of gentle rolling hills, made green with fine trees. Some

ambitious past. Without any wish to be unfair, one might deduce that it rather slumbered during a greater part of the year, and awoke on our national birthday to gather in the fruits of July and August. Then the summer visitor comes, bringing with him the babel of tongues spoken on the sidewalks of New York and in its foreign quarters but strangely old world sounding to western ears. The race track becomes alive again. Crowds throng and hope, and hope again : ponies are variable stars. The springs still bubble; and visitors quaff the waters from open faucet or from prettily labeled bottle, according to their economic philosophy: now, in solemn belief that it will reduce an out of bounds girth line, or take the limp out of a rheumatic foot; then, as a stunt on a summer picnic, just to feel the rising carbonated bubbles tickle the nose.

The old Grand Union Hotel is worth one visit to the little city, where I suppose a certain potato dish got its name, and where history tells us Benedict Arnold showed himself a dashing hero; I should not care to argue the affirmative for a second visit. It seems to date back a century or longer to Israel Putnam whose wolf-capturing episode pictured on an old swinging sign board told the traveler where to alight. This board is still to be found on the back veranda of the old hostelry; one can puzzle over the seriousness of that adventure in which, if the artist be not at fault, the General all but lost his pants but not through the ferocity of the wolf. Those endless verandas speak of a day before the automobile came, of a day when the rocking chair had not escaped from domesticity. The high ceilings and spacious bedrooms remind us that once building was cheap; but the absence of private baths makes us know that there was a time when the Saturday bath was an institution and not a vaudeville joke. And were it not for the fact that it became a sort of prison in which one served an indeterminate sentence thrice daily, the dining room would have been an interesting place; if for no other reason that that it harbored a larger number of negro captains, waiters, and bus boys of greater diversity of color, age, figure and gait than can probably be found, in a single body, elsewhere in continental America. I can shut my eyes now and see that endless room fading away towards a far distant kitchen, whence it were sometimes doubtful whether a colored man would ever return. Reason alone argued that he would, in hope, no houbt, that the diner like a certain traveler of old might have buried a talent, more or less, beneath his napkin. But if food came slowly, talk was abundant: bass and treble, laughter, solemn declaration, chatter, shop talk and talk, so intermingled, such a hash of sound that one coming into the room unaware could not have told face, business, or belief of the assembled diners.

That old convention hall, I wonder what stories it could tell. It must have seen men and sights to furnish material for a dozen political novels. With up state and down crowded into its five thousand seats, it was probably a satisfactory place to speak in; but with a thousand librarians sprinkled over its ground floor it was anything but inspirational to the speaker. Somehow his words seemed inclined to come tumbling back at him. The first part of a sentence hopefully launched reached the further walls and rolled back in a fairly successful attempt to choke the period down the orator's throat. There was something pathetic in our effort to use that giant's reading stand. One questioned whether Tammany tigers were tall enough to read from it in comfort, or whether their stuff was all extemporaneous. The paper covering which once concealed roof beams had yawning holes, here and there; and these ragged streamers murmured of ghosts of bygone days, and men, and customs. It was like, to speak in modern terms, a bottle of ginger ale the next morning, tepid, the fizz all gone.

As a sort of echo of the year's activities of the Temporary Library Training Board, the first general session was devoted to the subject of education for librarianship. While the speakers differed in the handling of their topics, there was unanimity in the conviction that training is essential. One could not tell, however, whether that session's doings would be the powder train leading to the dynamite of the evening's council meeting which should blow the works to that same far region, the graveyard of the enlarged program. At New York in April some of the library school people were in bullish mood: they wanted to toss the whole business. But when the council gathered, the rules of the game were stated-who could vote and who must simply listenwhen the report of the temporary board was read, and its recommendations, not a voice was raised in opposition. Some, seemingly, were armed with formidable antagonistic documents; and word had gone the rounds that the fight would be to the finish. But quietly, soberly, motion was made accepting the recommendations and thanking the committee for its

the noes were unanimously absent, or speechless. Thus did the A. L. A. in its somewhat ponderous fashion take another definite step towards the library of tomorrow.

Henceforth training for librarianship becomes the business of associated librarians. It is easily to be seen that the success of the profession, in its primary intent to give book service to a nation. will be gaged very largely by the results of this combined effort to secure a better trained personnel. What may become of the Association of Library Schools, which, while no doubt it has accomplished much. has seemingly been deeply interested in building a high barricade about its own corporate body, remains yet to be determined. Business men, note the action of the Carnegie Corporation on this subject, agree that in any field the first consideration must be given to the man on the job. Good as has been the product of the library schools of the past, it must be made We may now reasonably hope better. that the makeshifts and scrimpings of the schools may be replaced by modern machinery. Poverty is after all not one of the cardinal virtues.

President Jennings deserves high praise for his restraint in framing general sessions. He kept them down to four; and even then one was a joint affair with the College and Reference Section, and the Special Libraries Association. Furthermore, this executive whom we of the west claim as our own had a presidential message of excellent merit. In a spirit of kindly humor, he pointed out some of the pitfalls which yawn before the library world so eager to undertake community tasks of all kinds whether by any stretch of authority they rightfully come within the library field. Flaws are easily noted: the other fellow's mote becomes a granite boulder. But Mr. Jennings went further: in logical, understandable manner, he set down some of the things which libraries should undertake with renewed vigor and enthusiasm. Adult education took such prominence that it may be designated as the keynote of the convention-that, with training for librarianship as a harmonious No doubt this fine presidential minor. message will soon find wide circulation in one of the library publications; as I hope, too, may the able confirming words of Dr. Alexander Meiklejohn who so splendidly rounded out the program on the evening of July 4.

gone the rounds that the fight would be to the finish. But quietly, soberly, motion was made accepting the recommendations and thanking the committee for its excellent work. When the vote was taken single set of brains when he sees such tempting food simultaneously displayed on tables so far apart? If he goes one place he may not be in another; and as yet it is scarcely the custom to drop in, say, at the Children's Librarian's Section for a mental cocktail, pass on to Catalog Section for an inspiring entree, hurry forward for the roast beef served by the Law Librarian, and settle cosily down for dessert and demi-tasse with the Special Librarians. We may come to such a pass. On no half day, excepting, of course, when general sessions were held, were there fewer than seven meetings in progress; the maximum was ten. We were put to it in our childhood to get our money's worth at a three ring circus: at the A. L. A. we cash in on that early training.

Personally, I took pleasure in finding cut what people are reading in Boston; and count the effort on that evening worth while in that it gave me opportunity to know Frank Chase, a sort of fellow conspirator, who made out a good case for those people of the great cod fish center. Books speak a language intelligible to all sections of our great commonwealth. And if we have acquired the monotony of uniformity in dress, habits and thought, we at the same time profit by the strength inherent in national homogeneity.

But I would be insincere if I did not confess particular satisfaction in the meeting of the League of Library Commissions. The program was brief and pointed. It had certain Gallic qualities: it was divided into three parts. There was propounded the query what is the responsibility of the League for the machinery of our library system, its personnel, and its return to the stockholders in the corporation, the people. The new state librarian of Pennsylvania, Miss Anna A. MacDonald, responded to part one. Charles E. Rush of Indianapolis took the second, and Sydney B. Mitchell of the University of California concluded. When these three excellent papers appear in print I earnestly recommend that they be given the study and attention to which they are entitled.

The A. L. A. is busily engaged planning for its fiftieth birthday in 1926. It is thinking of a permanent home which shall become an informational and inspirational library center for America. It is looking forward and working toward a membership of 10,000 persons. It is planning surveys, catalogs and exhibits, all of which may reasonably be considered a part of the semi-centennial festival. Every item in this program will repay the profession for the pains and labor necessary in its

accomplishment. But in this well doing let us not forget that complete success will only come to the library forces when every American is potentially served with information and books. Not every citizen of this nation will care to become a book worm for profit or for pleasure; but the system must nevertheless be completed. As the count stands today half of our population has no book service; and it is probably the part which stands in greatest need. Men, women, and children in scattered rural sections, out on the great plains of the west, in the hills of the southern states, in forest and back country, in hamlet and small town, those who lack the inspirational influences of bigness in the cities, and have lost touch with the fresh charm of a new land: to these millions of our population the li-brary must minister. Can not the A. I. A. evolve a plan by which such sections of our country may be enabled to help themselves? It will require money, perbaps in no small sums, it will take hard work on the part of far-seeing executives. it may involve extensive demonstrations of a nature so removed from the habits of the past as to appear revolutionary; but the task must be grappled with. The A. L. A. alone is in position to act; singly or in smaller groups fair results may not be readily won. In certain favored states the library and the child are arriving at an understandable basis : adult education will develop and flower with increasing vigor. What we need now is to make the movement more or less uniformly national.

entertainment This year was not stressed; some comparatively few stole away now and then for a round of golf: the children's librarians served a cup of tea as a sort of stimulant to renewed talk on library problems; and after tea for an hour or two a group tried the charms of a syncopated orchestra for that stiffness contracted from long sitting on wooden chairs. Yaddo opened its hospitable doors, and the members in utmost freedom enjoyed its art treasures, its books, its wide flung lawns and magnificent views; though they were probably saddened at the story of the burden of calamity heaped upon its builder, the Trask family. Lake George called the early risers for a pleasant motor trip over rolling hills. The view from Mount MacGregor, where President Grant passed his last days, repaid the spin to its crest. But otherwise it was a business meeting, working smoothly because of the growing efficiency and wisdom of the headquarters staff, a business meeting of quality, with lots of unprogrammed talk morning, noon and

THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE CALIFORNIA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION AND OF THE CALIFORNIA COUNTY LIBRARIANS.

By STELLA HUNTINGTON, Librarian, Santa Clara County Free Library.

The twenty-ninth annual meeting of the | cation of applicants for cards; the inter-California Library Association was held at the Hotel Huntington, Pasadena, April 28-30, 1924. The California County Librarians' joined their fifteenth annual convention with the C. L. A., but had a special county program on May 1st.

The sessions opened at 10.00 a.m. on Monday in the lovely ballroom of the hotel, Miss Jeanette M. Drake, president, presided. As the mayor was out of town, Mr J. W. Wood, chairman of the advisory library board, welcomed the visitors to Pasadena. There was a short business meeting. The members present voted to have a "Convention registration fee" of \$1.00 for each annual meeting, to be paid by each member in attendance so that the increased expense of the meetings may be paid by the members that attend the meetings and get the benefit and pleasure from them. Miss Ethel Richardson, assistant state superintendent of public instruction of California, gave a most interesting talk on "Adult education: the significant factor in American life," Dr. Archibald Bouton, Dean of College of Arts and Pure Science, New York University, gave a scholarly and interesting paper on "The function of literature."

On Monday afternoon Miss Junia M. Wolff, music supervisor of the Pasadena Public Schools, led the librarians in a community sing. The favorite song seemed to be "Marcheta." This was followed by an address, "River of life," by Miss Madge Jension, of "Sunwise turn" fame. After this general session the "Municipal libraries" section met, presided over by Miss Ethel Carroll, president for the past year of the section and librarian of the Oxnard Public Library. Book mutilation was discussed by Harvey J. Addams, special investigator of the Los Angeles Public Library. Decreasing the temptation for book thefts and mutilation was the remedy offered for this perplexing problem by Mr Addams. He asserted that persons often take books on very slight pretext and might not do so if the opportunity did not present itself. As concrete remedies for this problem he recommended closer supervision of stacks and reading rooms; verifier Mrs Nettie K. Gravett, librarian of the

ception of fraudulent cardholders; closer scrutiny of satchels, hand bags, etc. He gave several examples of curious places in which missing books were found. One book, reported lost for seven months, was found doing duty for a missing caster under the leg of an office desk. Mr Greene of the Oakland Library thought that the association should protest to the school authorities against the making of scrap books for the schools. He said that children have been known to cut pictures out of valuable books, encyclopedias and magazines for this purpose and that the practice tended to make vandals of the children. Miss Althea Warren of the San Diego Public Library gave an interesting talk on entertainment material. Patrons crowd to the library to know how to celebrate some holiday fittingly and the librarian is often puzzled to make her material go around. Miss Warren gave sources for plays, games, recitations, etc. "In this branch of library work," she said, "it is sometimes necessary to lower our standards somewhat, for when a patron wants 'The face on the bar-room floor,' that's what he wants, not some classical poem." Miss Eleanor Hague, an authority on folklore, presented valuable material on folk songs, and Miss Maryette G. Mackey of the Los Angeles Public Library discussed the work with foreigners. In closing, Miss Mackey made a plea for the laying aside of an attitude of superiority when dealing with foreign patrons of libraries, for they honestly believe that their nation and their literature outranks or equals that of any other nation.

Two round tables were also held on Monday afternoon, one on school libraries and the part that they can play in the building of Citizenship and Americanization was discussed by Dr. Frederick Woellner of the University of California, Southern Branch. Miss Winifred F. Skinner of the Pasadena High School Library presided at this meeting. Miss Helen E. Haines gave one of her delightful talks before this group on "Interesting new books for High School libraries."

U. S. Veterans' Hospital No. 24, at Palo Alto, presided over the Hospital Libraries Round Table, and the principal speaker was Dr. Josephine Jackson, famous nerve specialist of Pasadena. Hospital library work. Mrs Gravett reported, is a result of the war when interest was stimulated in supplying hospitals with books. Libraries are now assisting in the work and it is spreading to private hospitals and promises to be a very important phase of library work.

Monday evening a marionette show was given, "Snow-white and the seven dwarfs," by the municipal players of the Los Angeles playground department. It was very well put on and much enjoyed. This was followed by an Italian carnival which was a great success. Some were masked and some were hard to recognize even without masks. The dignified State Librarian was finally found in the role of an Italian organ grinder. He was assisted in his labors by a well-known bookbinder.

Mr H. O. Parkinson presided at the third general session on Tuesday morning. Miss Helen E. Haines of the Los Angeles library school read a most interesting paper on "Modern fiction and the public library." "Librarians seldom regard fiction with serenity," Miss Haines said, and many of the librarians smiled. She told of one very excited lady who returned to the library a copy of Fabre's "Social life in the insect world" and demanded that it be withdrawn from circulation because it contained "One very passionate chapter"! "Selection and not censorship is the problem confronting the librarian and the public library should disclaim censorship and practice selection" Miss Haines continued. It was a very sane and practical paper on the question that is always uppermost in every library. Following community singing, led by Miss Wolff, interesting book symposiums were given by noted authorities on varied subjects. Sydney B. Mitchell, associate librarian of the University of California, spoke on architecture applicable to California. "California history and description" was the subject of Laura C. Cooley, assistant reference librarian of the Los Angeles Public Library. Francis M. Fultz, author of the "Elfin forest," spoke on "California out-of-doors." Each of these last three speakers had short printed have reached the saturation point in law,"

lists of books on their special subjects which were much appreciated when they were distributed to the librarians. At the morning business session the delegates endorsed a resolution favoring the adoption of a uniform system of lettering on bound magazines.

Jasmine Britton of the city Miss school library of Los Angeles spoke on the restoration of the library of the University of Louvain. Money is much needed to complete buildings to house the books already collected. Pledges were distributed which members were asked to fill out and send in.

The general session on Tuesday afternoon was omitted because of the fact that Benjamin F. Pearson of the Southern California Edison Company, who was to have spoken, was unable to be present on account of illness. The afternoon was devoted to the round table meetings beginning at three o'clock. All who attended the "Children's those round table" considered themselves very fortunate to hear the splendid discussions on nature study material, books for the intermediate grades, children and poetry, and especially Miss Frances Clarke's delightful account of her experiences in the children's room of the New York Public Library. The other round tables for the afternoon were the "Cataloging and reference round table," presided over by E. Louise Peck of the San Diego Public Library; and "Buildings and equipment," in charge of Miss Helen T. Kennedy of the Los Angeles Public Library.

Tuesday evening there were many library school and group dinners, a jolly crowd that filled the big dining room to overflowing. Miss Madge Jenison gave an after dinner address on the "Sunwise turn," and after dinner the whole party adjourned to the ballroom where Mr Donald R. Dickey gave a natural history film, "Game trails of the North." He showed us how he took the pictures of wild animals in their native haunts and it made a thrilling and most interesting evening.

On Wednesday Mr H. J. Stonier, Executive Secretary, University of Southern California, talked on the "Literature of a changing government." "America needs less law and more law enforcement. We

zie

Mr Stonier said. "The superabundance of laws in America today leads to a feeling among the so-called criminal class that the law does not mean what it says. Librarians have a place in eliminating this condition by aiding in satisfying the increasing inquisitiveness of American people in regard to forms and functions of covernment." Committee reports followed. Mr Sydney B. Mitchell was elected as a delegate from the C. L. A. to the meeting of the A. L. A. The Nominating Committee presented its report and the new officers for the year 1924-25 unanimously elected were : Mr H. O. Parkinson, librarian Stockton Public Library, president; Miss Helen T. Kennedy, assistant librarian Los Angeles Public Library, vice president; Miss Hazel G. Gibson, Sacramento County Library, secretary-treasurer. Resolutions were also adopted praising the work of Miss Drake, the retiring president. Wednesday morning there were three round tables. "University-College Round Table," presided over by Mr J. E. Goodwin, Librarian of the University of California, Southern Branch. A "Lending round table," in charge of Blanche Unterkircher of the Los Angeles Public Library, which discussed the purpose the library should serve to the public; and the obligations of the librarian to the public. Miss Littlejohn in her short talk on "fatigue study" emphasized the importance of the librarian keeping physically fit in order best to meet these obligations. Miss Van Waters of the Juvenile Court of Los Angeles County told very effectively in what ways the librarian can assist with the work of the Juvenile Court. At the "Publicity round table" Mr Joeckel of the Berkeley Public Library demonstrated the use of graphs as vivid means of showing the development of a Newspaper and other types of library. publicity were also discussed.

The members of the Association had the privilege in the afternoon of visiting the Henry E. Huntington Library at San Marino. Arrangements were made by the Chamber of Commerce for the transportation of the visitors from the hotel to the San Marino estate of Mr Huntington where the world-famous library is located. Dr. George Watson Cole, librarian of the Huntington Library, was host to the large group of visitors during the after- of her work with the State Prison.

The Gutenberg Bible was one of noon. the very special treasures on view. After leaving the Huntington Library the visitors had a drive around Pasadena and tea was served at the Spanish room of the Vroman bookstore. The trip was a delightful ending to a very interesting meeting. There was a record attendance, about 480 librarians and friends being present during the meeting. The thanks of the members are due the officers of 1923–1924, Miss Drake, Mr Parkinson, and Miss Gibson, for such a successful meeting.

*

On Thursday, May 1st, the County Librarians met for a special session on county library work, Mr Ferguson presiding.

The county librarians responded to roll call with a two-minute statement of "something accomplished, something done," but as the present writer is not a shorthand reporter it is impossible to give a full account of all the interesting things that they are doing.

Mrs Linn reported for the sign committee that the county library signs may again be obtained. The price is \$4.75 each in lots of ten or more, or \$5,15 in smaller numbers.

Miss Provines, the treasurer, reported \$57.30 in the treasury and reminded us that the convention fee of one dollar was now due and payable.

After luncheon there was a discussion of several interesting library questions. Most interesting of all, to judge from the discussion, was the question of a visiting instructor in book mending, the general opinion being that if it were possible to have such an instructor, it would be most useful.

Miss McCardle read a paper on "The best new books for the teachers' library," which she informed us was written by Anne Bell Bailey of her staff. She also agreed to send to any librarian a copy of the list of books recommended which will be very useful to all of us.

Miss Margaret W. Smith of the Santa Clara County Library told of "A new assistant's experience with school work," telling of her work with the schools this past year.

Miss Provines told in a delightful way

Mrs Babcock read the report of the resolutions committee on the resignation of Miss Celia Gleason as county librarian of Los Angeles County, as follows:

"We, the County Librarians of California in convention assembled, desire to express to Miss Celia Gleason our profound appreciation of her years of faithful and efficient service as Librarian of the Los Angeles County Free Library, our un-Angeles County Free Library, our un-shaken and unshakable confidence in her unintegrity, honor, and ability as a woman, as an executive, and as a public official.

"We desire to assure her of our love, we desire to assure her of our love, our loyalty, and our profound regret and sorrow over her resignation as Librarian of the Los Angeles County Free Library, which under her skillful and efficient man-agement has developed into the largest and most effective institution of the largest and most effective institution of its kind, not only in California, but in the United States, and in which we, as County Li-brarians, feel a deep professional pride and appreciation, because of its remarka-

ble development and splendid achievement.

The county librarians and their assistants had dinner together on Wednesday night, followed by Miss Hadden's Monterey County Library film, a moving picture taken by Miss Hadden's brother of a trip over Monterey County, visiting branches and schools. It made some of the librarians who do not ride horseback feel that Miss Hadden has some special problems in her county.

There is one really dreadful thing about a County Library meeting and that is the saying good-bye for another year, but it had to be done and the fifteenth annual California County Librarians' convention was over.

HOW THE CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY CAN BE OF ASSISTANCE TO LOCAL LAW LIBRARIES, COURTS AND ATTORNEYS.

By HERBERT V. CLAYTON, Law and Legislative Reference Librarian, California State Library.

The local law libraries of Californiacounty, bar association, and private law libraries-vary greatly in the extent and variety of their contents, from those containing possibly nothing but a fairly recent edition of our codes, and maybe also one or more of our recent statutes, up to the county law library containing some fifty thousand or more volumes.

As is said by Frederick C. Hicks, librarian of the Columbia University Law Library, in his recent book entitled "Materials and Methods of Legal Research," on pages 283 and 284:

"Few lawyers are able to possess all of the law books that they would like to have. The young lawyer especially must limit himself to a selection of books. Often he can not own what he considers to be the desirable minimum; such as the reports of the highest court of his state. the latest revision of laws, the codes, local practice books, and a few treatises. Many can add to the above only a set of annotated reports covering a wide range of cases and containing useful comments on other cases, or the National Reporter covering their own and adjoining states. Others possess also a comprehensive digest, or an alphabetically arranged text; such as Ruling Case Law, or Corpus Juris. But whatever the scope of one's should be purchased by the attorney, or

personal collection, the time usually comes when it will not suffice. The needs of legal research are often very extensive, so that recourse must be had to large law libraries."

What Mr Hicks says in regard to private law libraries is also just as true of the smaller county law libraries, and even the largest of them are at times unable to supply all of the books and other material that their patrons need. When this situation arises, why shouldn't they call upon other law libraries in their vicinity for the desired publications, and if they are not available locally, why not then check the matter up to the State Library? That is in the main the system now followed in the county free libraries; and should not the local law libraries, upon which the average well trained judge and lawyer place so much reliance for material upon which to base their opinions or arguments, follow a somewhat similar procedure? The local law library can not ordinarily afford to own all of the law books that its patrons need, even if it were possible for it to procure them. Many law books are out of print, or rare, and costly and their purchase even when available is not advisable for any but the larger law libraries. The books that

[July, 1924

the local law library, are those that he, or its patrons, need most; and those that he or it can not afford to own should be borrowed from other law libraries as the need for them arises.

The county law library should know what books are possessed by the other law libraries of that particular county. This can be accomplished by means of a union card catalog maintained in the county law library. This catalog should contain at least one card for each law book (not each copy of a book) to be found in the various law libraries in the county. Upon this card (either upon its face or back, or upon a supplemental card) should be stamped or written the names of the libraries containing that particular book (or edition thereof). The patrons of all of the law libraries in the county would soon come to realize the extreme value of the union catalog and would insist on its always being kept right up to date. The work of preparing and maintaining such a catalog would be comparatively light, and even in the more heavily populated counties should not prove burdensome.

Besides the resources of all the law libraries in the county, there should be available to the courts and attorneys thereof, through the county law library, the resources of the county free library and also of the various independent city libraries of the county. It is frequently necessary for an attorney to use scientific treatises in the preparation and argument of his cases, political and economic works and general literature in the preparation of addresses for special occasions, and a wide variety of material with which to keep abreast of the times. Why should he not obtain these through the one library in the county with which he has almost daily contact? Such a system of interlibrary book loans within the counties themselves is certainly both feasible Even with such an and practicable. arrangement there would frequently be times when it would be advisable to call upon the State Library for assistance.

In the law department of the California State Library are to be found a practically complete collection of the reports of the decisions of the courts, digests of decisions, the codes, statutes, and session laws, and the legal periodicals, not only of this

country but of all the countries of which English is the official language. General digests and legal encyclopedias of the United States and of England are also available. A large number of the textbooks published in this country, and a good selection from those published in Canada and England are there also. Most of the printed proceedings of the bar association of the various states are on its shelves, as is also a collection of legal miscellany covering trial tactics, legal history, legal essays, etc. It also has a very good collection of trials. Last, but not least in value to courts and attorneys. it has a bound collection of the printed records and briefs filed in the California Supreme Court and in the California District Courts of Appeal dating back to the early days of those courts and coming right down to the last published volumes of the reports of decisions thereof. There are some sixty thousand books all told in the law department of the California State Library.

The general reference department of that library with its extensive resources in all fields of literature, useful arts, sciences, engineering, history, etc., is a veritable mine of valuable information on almost any subject that is liable to engage the attention of any of our law library patrons. The constitutional histories, biographies and speeches of eminent judges, lawyers and statesmen of all ages, books on handwriting, forgery, inks, poisons, chemistry, medicine, debating, and surveying are all books that lawyers frequently need to consult, and are there waiting to serve them.

The documents department, as is repeatedly stated in News Notes of California Libraries, "aims to collect, arrange and make available government publications, federal, state, city and foreign." Of its collection those probably of most interest to judges and lawyers are: Interstate commerce commission reports, Treasury decisions, Public land decisions, Court of claims reports, Patent decisions, Decisions of the Comptroller of the Treasury, Treasury decisions under internal revenue laws of the U. S., Opinions of the Attorneys General of the U.S., Opinions of the Judge Advocates General of the Army, reports of the various officers, boards, commissions, departments, etc., of this state, of the several states in the Union and of the United States government, the Congressional Record, and the legislative bills and resolutions of our own state legislature and of Congress.

The California department, to quote again from News Notes of California Libraries, "aims to have a thoroughly good collection of books on the history and description, resources and industries of the state, as well as the works of California authors in all departments of literature. These are made accessible by means of a card catalog. Full names and biographical sketches of California authors, artists, musicians, pioneers and early settlers are being secured, together with their photographs. The collection of bound periodicals is quite large. The department also contains about 7000 bound volumes of newspapers, a file of which is being indexed with reference to the history of the state." The newspapers are to the lawyer undoubtedly the most valuable material in the department. They may not be withdrawn from the library, but cameragraph copies of legal notices and other matter therein will be furnished by the library at cost.

The Books for the Blind department contains some fifteen thousand books embossed in the various types in common use among blind readers. While none of the books is of a legal nature still many of them would undoubtedly be a welcome addition to the reading of the attorneys of this state who are afflicted with blindness.

The great bulk of the material in the State Library is subject to loan at any time. The material not loaned consists of encyclopedias, digests, dictionaries, indexes to periodicals, and other reference material, much of which will be found in almost any library. It also includes newspapers, rare books, some government publications, and some unbound material. However. the court reports, statutes. codes, session laws, legal textbooks, periodicals, bound court records, and legal miscellany, belonging to the law department, and most of the material in the other departments of the library that lawyers would be liable to have occasion to use, are available for circulation.

Material to be used away from Sacramento should be requested through the

county free library in counties having such a library, otherwise through the nearest city library. The request may be filed with the county law library, or with the local city library, which will forward it to the county free library. In case it has the requested material on its shelves, or at one of its branches not too distantly removed, the request will if possible be filled therefrom; otherwise the request will be forwarded to the State Library. The local library will forward the request direct to the State Library in case there is no county free library in that county. In forwarding the request to the State Library the county free library may designate that the material is to be sent direct to the library originally requesting it, the county free library in any case guaranteeing the return of the material. Transportation on books is paid by the borrowing library. Books are loaned for a period of five weeks, subject to renewal for an additional period of two weeks, with the understanding, however, that they may be recalled by the State Library in case they are needed by a state officer, or if in the opinion of the state librarian a recall is fair and expedient. State officers (judges of superior courts included) are entitled to borrow books direct from the State Library, and attorneys are accorded the same privilege upon the presentation of a request signed by a supreme, appellate or superior judge, or other state officer.

The State Library maintains a free employment bureau that helps to bring in touch with each other librarians and library assistants desiring employment or a change of location and libraries having vacancies on their staffs to fill. This service is for law librarians and law libraries and other special libraries as well as for general libraries and those trained for that line of library work. It is a service that should be taken advantage of by all kinds of libraries and librarians.

The State Library will at any time be pleased to give advice to other law libraries of the state regarding the purchase of additional books. Libraries desiring to avail themselves of this service should indicate in a general way just what their present collection consists of, what books they have calls for and do not have, and an estimate of the amount of money that they will have available for additions,

[July, 1924

Funds should ordinarily be invested: (1) in books that will be of permanent value; (2) in books of reference that may in the course of a few years become more or less out of date but that will in the meantime be used sufficiently to justify their purchase, and (3) in standard textbooks. Most textbooks, codes and statutes of other states and countries, foreign reports, and American side reports (reports other than those containing the decisions of the courts of last resort of the various states) can be borrowed from the State Library whenever needed, and their purchase by the smaller library is ordinarily a waste of funds.

The State Library has citators for the United States reports, National Reporter System, and most of the state reports, and Rose's Notes on United States Reports and similar sets covering the reports of some of the states. Some of these publications include constitutional and statutory citations; and the library also has extensively annotated sets of codes and compiled statutes of other states.

If anyone wants to know where a constitutional or statutory provision has been cited or construed, or a case has been cited, affirmed, reversed, modified, or distinguished, he may write to the State Library, and the desired information will be immediately forwarded to him.

The California Law Review should be in every law library in the state that contains more than five hundred volumes. Other legal periodicals may be borrowed from the State Library or consulted at it or at one of the other large law libraries.

Every law library that contains more than one thousand volumes should own a set of the indexes to legal periodicals, the current volumes of which are published by the American Association of Law Libraries. They are a set of keys that will unlock for the lawyer an extremely valuable mine of information, and that will help him to keep abreast of the current developments of the law. These indexes are issued quarterly and then cumulated each year into annual volumes. They index practically all of the leading legal periodicals of the United States and of the British Empire, as well as the proceedings of the various bar associations of the United States and Canada. Some arti-

cles of a semilegal nature published in other periodicals are also covered.

If a library does not contain a set of these indexes and it wishes to know what has been published in the legal periodicals along any particular line, a request may be sent to the State Library the same as for a book, the request showing the specific subject to be looked up, the period of time to be covered, whether merely a list of the articles published is desired or a list and one or more of the leading articles.

Every law library of more than one thousand volumes should contain at least one legal directory of comparatively recent publication. The two leading ones (Hubbell's and Martindale's) contain not only lists of attorneys practicing in the various cities of this and other states and the Canadian provinces, but also excellent summaries of the laws of those states and provinces, of the outlying possessions of the United States, and of Mexico and a few other foreign jurisdictions. The State Library will be pleased to furnish any of the information contained in these publications, except that relating to the standing of the various attorneys listed therein -which information the library agrees with the publishers not to circulate.

The State Library also maintains in connection with its law department a legislative reference service whose purpose is to supply members of the legislature with information relative to past, current, and prospective legislation. While this service is primarily for the members of the legislature the law libraries and attorneys of the state are also urged to make use of it,

The State Library maintains a "Union Catalog" in which are to be found cards, alphabetically arranged, covering practically all of the books to be found in the county free libraries of the state, in some of the city libraries, and many in the general libraries of the University of California, Leland Stanford University, and the University of Southern California. When the State Library receives a request for a book that it does not have in its own collection this Union Catalog is consulted and the library or individual requesting the book is notified as to where it may be found. So far it contains but few cards for law books as only a com-

194

paratively few law books are to be found in the general libraries of the state, and to date only a very few of the law libraries of the state have sent in cards covering their collections.

It is not necessary that one have a highly developed imaginative faculty in order to be able to visualize the general benefit to the law libraries of the state of having in one place a catalog covering all of the law books to be found in all of the public libraries of the state. The larger law libraries contain many law books the use of which is infrequent and the cost of which is prohibitive to the smaller libraries. These books would be just as valuable to the libraries that own them, and of more value to the courts and the lawyers of the state in general, if they were all listed in the Union Catalog at the State Library, from which they could be readily located for anyone in any part of the state.

A short time ago the State Library received a request for the laws of the Republic of Honduras relating to aliens and their property. The library did not possess the desired book or books and the Union Catalog contained no cards for Honduras statutes or codes. It immediately wrote to four of the larger law libraries of the state to ascertain if they possessed a book or books giving the desired information, but by the time that it had received a favorable response from one of them the party for whom the information was desired had referred the matter to an attorney in a large eastern city. If cards for the desired books had been in the Union Catalog one California attorney would have earned a fee that, as it was, went to an eastern attorney.

The main things that the public law libraries of the state lack at the present time are: (1) a vision of a more extensive as well as a more intensive service in their own communities, and (2) a spirit of cooperation that will link them up with the other public—general as well as law—libraries of the state. They buy books and hoard them up, apparently for no other purpose than their use right in the local library itself. Most of the county law libraries, however, do permit attorneys to withdraw books for use before courts in session in the court house,

but at least one such library is reported as charging a fee for the privilege. Most of them not only will not loan books to other libraries but they seem to consider it to be entirely beyond their sphere to supplement their own collections with books borrowed from other libraries.

Why should not a county law library freely loan its books to any and all of the judges, lawyers, law students, and county officials and employees of the county, whether located at the county seat or elsewhere? The books therein are public property and undoubtedly the general public would be better served by the above mentioned classes were they allowed a wide latitude in the use of such books. Those people have ordinarily to be at their own places of business during library hours and can frequently make better use of the books away from the Who is library than they can at it. there in the state today among the patrons of the county free libraries who would advocate that those libraries should discontinue the loaning of books? As a matter of fact, why should not the books in the county law libraries circulate just as freely as the books in the county free libraries? Are the books in the county law libraries any the less public property than the books in the county free libraries?

If a young man or a young woman in a remote part of a county desires to study law, why should not he or she be allowed to borrow the necessary books through the local branch of the county free library? We have no law prohibiting county law libraries from loaning their books through the county free libraries and their branches. Would it not be better for the books to be worn out than for them to stand idle on the shelves of the libraries week after week and month after month?

Undoubtedly the librarians and library boards that are unwilling to cooperate with other libraries do not realize the value of cooperation. This is an age of cooperation and nowhere is it more extensively practiced on a large scale than in this state. We hear it discussed on every hand. The county free library system of the state is a cooperative scheme, and the county free libraries have certainly prospered. Why should not the county law libraries of the state fall into line and render a service that will be comparable to that rendered by their sister libraries?

In the county free library law there is a section making possible a close connection between the county law library and the county free library. It provides that the board of supervisors may enter into a contract or agreement with the board of law library trustees, whereby the law library may be conducted by the county librarian and her staff for a compensation to be named therein. Such an arrangement assures the county law library of expert library service. Some of the counties are now working under this plan, Fresno and Kern counties being striking examples of the practical utility thereof.

Modern appliances and modern methods should be installed in the public law libraries of the state just as they have been in the majority of the other public libraries thereof. They are certainly proving their value in the libraries that have adopted them.

Every law library of any size should have a good card catalog covering all of the books in its collection; and the books should be cataloged according to approved library methods. The writer recommends that textbooks, casebooks, and series of reports on special subjects be classified according to the Dewey decimal classification scheme. This was done in the Kern County Law Library when Mrs Julia G. Babcock, librarian of the Kern County Free Library, took it under her supervision; and a year's experience in that library converted the writer from an advocate of the author arrangement of textbooks and legal miscellany to that of an advocate of the arrangement thereof according to the decimal classification. While that classification is not as satisfactory for law books as it might be, yet his experience is that it is a big improvement over the commonly accepted author arrangement.

In regard to the subject headings to be used in your card catalog the writer suggests that you procure from the Library of Congress its Tentative Headings and Cross-References for a Subject Catalogue of American and English Law, and that it be your guide. You will most likely find it necessary to add subject headings and cross-references from time to time, but do not substitute other head-

ings for those used therein unless you are firmly convinced that it will help to make your catalog more usable. Always bear in mind that a subject heading suitable for use in general catalogs may when used in a law catalog, on account of a difference between the popular and the egal meaning thereof, apply to an entirely different or more limited class of books. On L. C. cards you will find that the subject headings to be used in law catalogs are enclosed by brackets. A law dictionary is also one of the necessary tools of a cataloger of law books.

Every public law library should also have in operation a good modern system of charging books to borrowers, and of notifying borrowers when books are overdue.

It pays to advertise in a law library as well as elsewhere. New books should be displayed in a conspicuous place in the library for a few weeks. It would be well to post above or near them a label calling particular attention to the fact that they are new books. One or more bulletin boards should also occupy conspicuous places in the library. One of them might well bear the heading; Books Recently Ordered or Received. The other might be headed: Books That Will Be Borrowed From State Library Upon Request. Below the respective headings can be displayed publishers' circulars regarding new or forthcoming books that may be of interest to patrons of the library.

Do not be afraid to stimulate a desire for publications that your library does not possess and has not the money to purchase—the books in your State Library are at your service. Also please feel perfectly free to check up to the State Library at any time any and all of your vexatious library problems.

As law librarians, do not neglect to read the current literature relating to library work in general as well as that devoted specifically to law libraries and other special libraries. Library problems are pretty much the same in law libraries and in other special libraries; and methods and practices successfully applied in one library can ordinarily be readily adapted so as to accomplish the same end in almost any other library. You can test this out for yourself by borrowing from the State Library, and reading, any one or more of a number of current books and pamphlets on library economy. In addition you should by all means own, study, and use a copy of Hicks' Materials and Methods of Legal Research. It treats of law libraries, and of law books and their use, and contains an excellent bibliographical nianual. It is a guide that law librarians have long needed.

The librarians of the county free libraries of the state meet in convention each year, usually at the same place as, and immediately preceding or following the sessions of, the California Library Association. There they discuss their work and learn to know each other better. Why would it not be a fine thing for the law librarians of the state to hold a convention each year at the same place and time as the convention of the librarians of the county free libraries? There is a national organization of law librarians known as the American Association of Law Libraries. It holds its annual conventions at the same time and place as the American Library Association. Many of the leading law librarians of the country attend these sessions. It is due to its efforts and encouragement that the indexes to legal periodicals covering the period of from 1898 to date have been published. It was also responsible for the recent issuance of a check list of the bar association proceedings of the United States and Canada. The problems discussed at its meetings are those of the smaller law libraries as well as the larger. Its proceedings, including the papers read at its various sessions, have been published in the Law Library Journal which is issued as a supplement to the numbers of the Index to Legal Periodicals, and which is also now being issued separately. A perusal of its pages will be a help to

any law iibrarian in the way of inspiration and new ideas of value in his daily work. A state association of law librarians would necessarily be more limited in its sphere of action, but the law librarians of this state certainly have problems enough confronting them to devote two days each year to their discussion in a convention where there would be a free interchange of ideas and plans. Not only that, but they would become acquainted with each other, and cooperation would follow just as naturally as night follows day.

A library organizer from the State Library goes out over the state to assist in the organization of new county free libraries, and to help all of them to do better and more effective work. She discusses their problems with them, tells them what other libraries are doing and how they are doing it, and helps them in any and every way that she can. When advisable she talks to the members of their boards, to clubs, to societies, and to others that are or may be interested in the work that the county library is doing or should be doing in their communities. At the present time there is not sufficient demand to warrant a similar service to county law libraries. But if the time should come when such a work could profitably be taken up, the State Library will make every effort to provide such service. Whatever we do to build up our local law libraries and cause them to render better service to the courts and attorneys of the state will be a help toward the better and more efficient administration of justice therein. May the day speedily come when all of the law libraries of the state will be working harmoniously together on the problems that confront them.

MAP OF CALIFORNIA SHOWING COUNTIES



LIST OF COUNTIES HAVING COUNTY FREE LIBRARIES Statistics of July 1, 1923

County	Librarian	Established	Income 1922-23†	Books, etc.	Branches	Total active school dists. in county §	School dists. that have joined
Alameda	Mary Barmby Frances M. Burket Blanche Chalfant Mrs Dorothy C. Worden Karah E. McCardle Faye T. Kneeshaw Ida M. Reagan Evalyn Boman [*] Anne Margrave Mrs Julia G. Babcock Julia Steffa Lenala A. Martin Celia Gleason Blanche Galloway Essae M. Culver Anna L. Williams Anna L. Williams Anna L. Williams Anna L. Williams Anna L. Williams Cronelia D. Provines Estella DeFord Margaret Livingston Edith Gantt Canoline S. Waters Elenanor Hitt H. O. Parkinson Florence J. Wheaton Caroline S. Waters Elena Hofroyd Mrs Frances B. Linn Stella Hurington Minerva H. Waterman Thelma Brackett Clara B. Dills Bessie B. Silverthorn Edna Hofryd Mrs Harry A. Adams Gretchen Flower Gladys English Nancy C. Laugenour	Sept. 26, 1910 June 2, 1919 Sept. 3, 1913 June 8, 1915 July 21, 1913 Mar. 12, 1910 April 8, 1914 Feb. 6, 1912 Sept. 15, 1913 Nov. 16, 1910 June 4, 1912 Sept. 5, 1913 Nov. 16, 1910 June 6, 1910 Dec. 9, 1916 Sept. 7, 1915 Nov. 8, 1911 Oct. 1, 1908 Feb. 4, 1918 July 14, 1913 April 5, 1912 Feb. 16, 1914 Aug. 6, 1914 Aug. 6, 1914 Aug. 6, 1915 Sept. 5, 1912 Feb. 16, 1914 Aug. 14, 1911 May 9, 1917 Aug. 8, 1916 June 10, 1910 July 3, 1917 April 9, 1915 July 12, 1910	$ \begin{array}{r} \$44,394 \ 00 \\ 5,822 \ 48 \\ 17,811 \ 94 \\ 10,842 \ 10 \\ 14,286 \ 91 \\ 12,319 \\ 22,583 \ 05 \\ 27,583 \ 05 \ 05 \\ 27,583 \ 05 \ 05 \\ 27,583 \ 05 \ 05 \\ 27,583 \ 05 \ 05 \\ 27,583 \ 05 \ 05 \ 05 \\ 27,583 \ 05 \ 05 \ 05 \ 05 \\ 27,583 \ 05 \ 05 \ 05 \ 05 \ 05 \ 05 \ 05 \ 0$	$\begin{array}{c} 93,243\\ 8,589\\ 54,530\\ 239,176\\ 239,176\\ 249,176\\ 249,176\\ 249,176\\ 249,176\\ 249,176\\ 249,176\\ 249,194\\ 22,769\\ 229,94\\ 374,132\\ 65,844\\ 22,769\\ 22,731\\ 24,498\\ 9,071\\ 24,498\\ 9,071\\ 24,498\\ 9,071\\ 24,498\\ 9,071\\ 24,498\\ 9,071\\ 24,498\\ 0,077,33\\ 20,012\\ 22,733\\ 24,498\\ 0,075\\ 22,733\\ 20,012\\ 22,733\\ 20,012\\ 22,045\\ 20,012\\ 20$	$\begin{array}{c} 82\\ 34\\ 93\\ 68\\ 99\\ 243\\ 68\\ 163\\ 68\\ 84\\ 321\\ 65\\ 56\\ 60\\ 27\\ 70\\ 80\\ 145\\ 60\\ 27\\ 70\\ 80\\ 106\\ 720\\ 136\\ 143\\ 145\\ 63\\ 114\\ 106\\ 63\\ 87\\ 169\\ 64\\ 66\\ 56\\ 74\\ 61\\ 1148\\ 63\\ 82\\ 79\\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 81\\ 37\\ 666\\ 609\\ 322\\ 639\\ 109\\ 99\\ 322\\ 107\\ 40\\ 44\\ 206\\ 500\\ 444\\ 206\\ 500\\ 444\\ 206\\ 550\\ 899\\ 80\\ 85\\ 366\\ 81\\ 121\\ 92\\ 933\\ 411\\ 121\\ 88\\ 85\\ 56\\ 67\\ 366\\ 67\\ 366\\ 57\\ 27\\ 137\\ 344\\ 61\\ 47\\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 35\\ 18\\ 60\\ 60\\ 30\\ 30\\ 30\\ 154\\ 40\\ 101\\ 101\\ 101\\ 101\\ 101\\ 101\\ 101$
42		O 1,'08-D 9,'19	\$1,213,035 29	2,537,370	4,047	2,958	2,369

*Appointed May 5, 1924. †The income as given does not include balance in fund July 1, 1922. §Includes elementary and high.

CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES-QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Only those California libraries are listed for which there were news items. For complete list of libraries, see Annual Statistics Number, October, 1923.

CALIFORNIA.

Area, 158,297 sq. miles. Second in size among the states. Population, 3,426,536. Assessed valuation, \$5,716,358,058. Number of counties, 58.

ALAMEDA COUNTY.

(Third class.)

County seat, Oakland.

Area, 840 sq. mi. Pop. 344,127. Assessed valuation \$342,386,005 (taxable for county \$300,642,000).

Berkeley.

||§BERKELEY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Carleton B. Joeckel, Lib'n.

Miss Virginia Hall, U. C., 1924, has been appointed Junior Assistant in the Children's Room beginning July 1, 1924.

Mr Joeckel is attending the convention at Saratoga Springs, and while in the East will visit several libraries.

It is expected that the new Claremont Branch Library building will be ready for occupancy by September 1.

C. B. JOECKEL, Lib'n.

#18UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA LI-BRARY, W. W. Campbell, Pres. J. C. Rowell, Lib'n Emeritus; Harold L. Leupp, Lib'n.

On behalf of the heirs of the late Professor Alvin Putzker, world famous linguist, his son, Otto A. Putzker, of Berkeley, is presenting to the University of California his father's large and valuable library.

The library consists of approximately 4000 volumes, including books in almost every language and of great value and rarity. Professor Putzker during his lifetime mastered twenty-seven languages. He was connected with the German department of the University for fortythree years.—Berkeley *Gazette*, My 27

The Mark J. Fontana library, consisting of several thousand volumes of Italian art, literature and science, was dedicated at the Doe library at the university on May 29, 1924. The library is the gift of the late Mark John Fontana of San Francisco.—S. F. Chronicle, My 30

ALAMEDA CO .- Continued.

Oakland.

[‡]\$||OAKLAND FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY. Chas. S. Greene, Lib'n.

On May S the Staff Meeting was addressed by Mrs Krauth of Alameda, and by Miss Fenton and Librarian Greene on the Pasadena Conference of the C. L. A.

Director Clapp of the Art Gallery left on May 28 to attend the Annual Meeting of the Western Association of Art Museum Directors. He reported a most successful meeting and arranged for several large exhibits at the Oakland Art Gallery. The jury system, devised by him to insure fair treatment for all the various schools of art, he found commanding the approval of all the other Directors.

An expedition to the Arctic was sent out by Mr H. A. Snow of the Snow African Museum to take moving pictures and secure further specimens from the far north. Sidney Snow, son of H. A. Snow, and his companion in Africa, was in charge of the expedition on the *Herman*. Mr Snow expects to join the party later, but delays to push ahead the scheme of securing a suitable building for the collections. In April hides for a fine group of gemsbok reached the Museum from Bechunanaland.

The budget estimate for the Library, the Museums, and the Art Gallery was sent to the Commission of Revenue and Finance on June 11. In spite of all attempts to keep it down, it footed \$199, 325.00, without including the Snow building, or any expansions.

In the older Museum, under Miss Mott's charge, a special Easter flower show was held, supplementing the continuous flower exhibit, which has been maintained for many years. The Colonial bedroom, one of the most approved installations among Museum people, has had a thorough redraping with spotless curtains and bed canopy.

On June 10 the Staff was invited to the house of Librarian Greene to meet a Miss Gretchen Green, who had just returned from India, where she was for

ALAMEDA CO .--- Continued.

Oakland-Continued.

two years private secretary to Rabindranath Tagore. She gave a charming talk on her experiences and showed a large collection of Indian craftwork.

CHAS. S. GREENE, Lib'n.

ALPINE COUNTY.

(Fifty-eighth class.)

County seat, Markleeville.

Area, 575 sq. mi. Pop. 243.

Assessed valuation \$807,549 (taxable for county \$711,513).

AMADOR COUNTY.

(Forty-fifth class.)

County seat, Jackson.

Area, 568 sq. mi. Pop. 7793. Assessed valuation \$7,564,016 (taxable for county \$6,519,939).

AMADOR CO. FREE LIBRARY, JACKSON. Miss Frances M. Burket, Lib'n.

The library has received a fine collection of books and documents on immigration, labor and kindred subjects from the library of the late Senator Anthony Caminetti.—Stockton *Record*, Je 26

BUTTE COUNTY.

(Twenty-second class.)

County seat, Oroville.

Area, 1764 sq. mi. Pop. 30,030.

Assessed valuation \$43,713,269 (taxable for county \$35,666,536).

BUTTE CO. FREE LIBRARY, OROVILLE. Miss Blanche Chalfant, Lib'n.

The county library is moving from its present quarters to the Vaughan building on Robinson and Huntoon streets. The library will be open in its new location during the first week in July—Oroville *Mercury*, Je 28

The Vaughan building is a recently erected, fire-proof building.

CALAVERAS COUNTY.

(Forty-ninth class.)

County seat, San Andreas. Area, 990 sq. mi. Pop. 6183. Assessed valuation \$8,636,730 (taxable for county \$7,388,755).

COLUSA COUNTY.

(Forty-second class.)

County seat, Colusa.

Area, 1080 sq. mi. Pop. 9290.

Assessed valuation \$26,202,221 (taxable for county \$21,807,669).

COLUSA CO. FREE LIBRARY, COLUSA. Mrs Dorothy C. Worden, Lib'n.

About 200 books were collected for Sailors' Book week—the donations not being as plentiful as had been anticipated.

Butte Creek Branch was established June 10. It is open daily in the home of Mrs Paul Terry, who is custodian.

Three new branches were established June 27: Leesville Branch, Mrs Roscoe Parkinson, custodian, is located in the Leesville store, open daily; Wilbur Springs Branch. Mrs A. M. Cuthbert, custodian, is located in the Wilbur Springs Hotel, open daily; Cooks Springs Branch, Mrs B. Bauer, custodian, is located in the Cooks Springs Hotel, and also open daily.

MRS DOROTHY C. WORDEN, Lib'n.

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY.

(Thirteenth class.)

County seat, Martinez.

Area, 750 sq. mi. Pop. 53,889.

Assessed valuation \$91,000,885 (taxable for county \$80,513,905).

CONTRA COSTA CO, FREE LIBRARY, MARTINEZ. Mrs Alice G. Whitbeck, Lib'n,

Mrs Whilbeck gave two exhibitions of the Art Appreciation set of pictures, one before the Martinez Woman's Club and another before the Byron Club. A talk on the pictures was given at Crockett before the Citizenship classes.

At a meeting held at Selby to form a Community Club, Mrs Whitbeck talked on Books and Reading.

At a meeting held at the University of California, College of Agriculture, before the Farm Home Demonstration Department, Mrs Whitbeck represented the library service of Contra Costa County, which has been the demonstration unit.

The Sunshine Caup, composed of fifty undernourished children, was fitted out with a case of books, many records and lovely poster pictures for the dining hali.

2-33352

[Julv, 1924

CONTRA COSTA CO.-Continued.

The Boy Scouts Camp received fifty or more books for their camp in Mitchell Canvon.

Mrs Whitbeck was invited for the second time to talk before the San Anselmo Farm Bureau on the establishment of a county library in Marin County.

MRS ALICE G. WHITBECK, Lib'n.

DEL NORTE COUNTY.

(Fifty-fourth class.)

County seat, Crescent City.

Area, 1546 sq. mi. Pop. 2759.

Assessed valuation \$10,683.291 (taxable for county \$10.647.991).

EL DORADO COUNTY.

(Forty-eighth class.)

County seat, Placerville.

Area, 1891 sq. mi. Pop. 6426.

Assessed valuation \$12,103,210 (taxable for county \$10,223,590).

FRESNO COUNTY.

(Fourth class.)

County seat, Fresno. Area, 5696 sq. mi. Pop. 128,779. Assessed valuation \$199,142,944 (taxable for county \$171,610,941).

[‡]FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, FRESNO. Miss Sarah E. McCardle, Lib'n.

The School Department has had a busy quarter with the closing of the most of the schools and the opening of those in the mountains. It has been necessary, on account of lack of room at the main library, to leave most of the books at the schoolhouse through the summer. The books have been checked up and this has taken a great deal of time.

There has been excellent co-operation from the teachers and most of the school libraries were in good condition.

The new district of Pinedale has joined the library. This was formerly served as a part of the Lincoln District.

The Cantua School on the West Side is issuing books to the people of the community through the summer months.

Mr James H. Fee, for years the faithful janitor at the main library, resigned

FRESNO CO .--- Continued.

his position the first of May to care for an invalid sister in Long Beach. On the twenty-ninth of May he died quite suddenly of heart trouble. Mr Fee was a member of the C. L. A. for years and was quite proud of the fact.

Boys' Week was observed in the Juvenile Department with collections of books and lists calculated to interest them in books written for their special tastes.

We have a new custodian at the Firebaugh Branch, Mrs Walter Bishop, and at Miller Branch, Mrs Emma Coates. Center Branch, located in the Hospitality Center of the Y. W. C. A., has been closed for the summer as the association will not carry on their work there during those months.

Several trips have been made to the mountain branches and these have been found in good condition. Mrs Lofberg, who has charge of the camp libraries for the Southern California Edison Company, is doing a fine work and the men appreciate the books very much. They read a remarkably good class of books, many carrying on their studies through the library.

Miss McCardle attended the meeting of the C. L. A. at Pasadena.

SARAH E. MCCARDLE. Lib'n.

GLENN COUNTY.

(Thirty-eighth class.)

County seat, Willows.

Area, 1460 sq. mi. Pop. 11,853. Assessed valuation \$27,770,156 (taxable for county \$23,181,109).

GLENN CO. FREE LIBRARY, WILLOWS. Miss Faye T. Kneeshaw, Lib'n.

Elk Creek Branch, Glenn County Free Library, has been moved from the home of Mrs Bickford to the Knight, Butler and Lucas Store and Post Office, and Mrs Lucas is the custodian.

The branch libraries at Artois and Codora are to be open during the summer, custodians having been placed upon the payroll of the library; Miss Lillian Petrick at Artois and Miss Blanch Wood at Codora. Our one summer branch at Alder Springs has been opened in the office of the Forest Service.

FAYE T. KNEESHAW, Lib'n.

HUMBOLDT COUNTY.

(Twentieth class.)

County seat, Eureka.

Area, 3507 sq. mi. Pop. 37,413. Assessed valuation \$43,494,094 (taxable for county \$38,557,459).

Arcata.

HUMBOLDT STATE TEACHERS COLLEGE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, HUMBOLDT CO. FREE LIBRARY.

Mr C. E. Graves, the new librarian, has arrived in Arcata, and will take his position the middle of July, as he will be librarian at the summer school as well as the regular session. Mr Graves was for several years librarian of the State Historical Society at St. Paul, Minn., but for the past four years has been engaged in apple culture at Hood River.—Arcata Union, Je 26

Miss Ruth Larimer, former librarian, resigned to accept the position of Reference Librarian in the Kansas State Library,

Eureka.

\$\$EUREKA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. H. A. Kendal, Lib'n.

The late Miss Mary J. C. Thompson left \$14,000 to be divided between the Eureka Fire Department and the Public Library.—Eureka *Times*, Ap 29

IMPERIAL COUNTY.

(Seventeenth class.)

County seat, El Centro.

Area, 4316 sq. mi. Pop. 43,383.

Assessed valuation \$50,017,798 (taxable for county \$41,476,102).

IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY, EL CEN-TRO. Miss Evalyn Boman, Lib'n.

Miss Beulah Willoughby, an assistant at headquarters, has gone to Riverside to attend the summer session of their school, and will resume her duties here when school is out.

Mrs Thos. Beeman resigned as County Librarian and Miss Boman was appointed to fill the vacancy on May 5.

Imperial County was well represented at the C. L. A. Convention this year with four of the librarians in attendance. They all reported it a fine meeting and much useful information was obtained, along with the "suggestions" and "helps."

EVALYN BOMAN, Lib'n.

Mrs Beeman is now librarian of the Sawtelle High School.

INYO COUNTY.

(Forty-seventh class.)

County seat, Independence.

Area, 10,224 sq. mi. Pop. 7031.

Assessed valuation \$18,109,750 (taxable for county \$10,986,133).

INYO CO. FREE LIBRARY, INDEPENDENCE. Miss Anne Margrave, Lib'n.

Miss Louise Baxter has entered the library for a period of instruction as apprentice.

On the resignation of Mrs V. V. Davis, Mrs Laura Eichholtz was in June appointed custodian at Tecopa Branch. Mrs Eichholtz has the branch in her home, which is more centrally located than the former place.

KERN COUNTY.

(Twelfth class.)

County seat, Bakersfield.

Area, 8159 sq. mi. Pop. 54,843.

Assessed valuation \$180,996,178 (taxable for county \$151,384,375).

KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY, BAKERS-FIELD. Mrs Julia G. Babcock, Lib'n.

The contract for the branch library building at McKittrick was awarded to Zimmerman and Lindsley for \$5625.— Bakersfield *Echo*, My 20

The library is having a sign three by five feet in size, in the shape of a book, to hang outside headquarters. It has an oyster white background with raised, rounded gold leaf enamel letters spelling "Kern County Free Library."—Bakersfield *Echo*, Je 24

Taft.

TAFT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. J. T. McReur, Prin.

Miss Kathleen Hacker, librarian for the past two years, will leave May 11 for Santa Monica, where she has accepted a position as librarian of the Santa Monica High School,—Taft Driller, My 10

KINGS COUNTY.

(Twenty-ninth class.)

County seat, Hanford.

Area, 1373 sq. mi. Pop. 22,031.

Assessed valuation \$29,211,631 (taxable for county \$24,607,000).

KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY, HANFORD. Miss Julia Steffa, Lib'n.

KINGS CO.---Continued.

Miss Wilma Waite and Miss Vivian Bulloch have been appointed temporary assistants in the School Department and are helping put the June avalanche of school books in good condition for next fall's use.

JULIA STEFFA, Lib'n.

LAKE COUNTY.

(Fifty-first class.)

County seat, Lakeport.

Area, 1332 sq. mi. Pop. 5402.

Assessed valuation \$6,782,525 (taxable for county \$6,738,890).

LASSEN COUNTY.

(Forty-fourth class.)

County seat, Susanville.

Area, 4750 sq. mi. Pop. 8507. Assessed valuation \$17,043,278 (taxable for county \$13,002,853).

LOS ANGELES COUNTY.

(First class.)

County seat, Los Angeles.

Area, 3880 sq. mi. Pop. 936,438.

Assessed valuation \$1,992,068,094 (taxable for county \$1,695,251,165).

LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY, LOS ANGELES, Miss Helen E. Vogleson, Acting Lib'n.

Miss Celia Gleason, librarian since the beginning of the Los Angeles County. Free Library in September, 1912, resigned May 31, 1924. A civil service examination for her successor will be given soon.

Miss Helen E. Vogleson, assistant librarian, has been appointed by the supervisors as acting librarian.

Alhambra.

ALHAMBRA CITY HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, Forrest V. Routt, Prin. Miss Clara M. Willits, Lib'n.

The Alhambra City High School Library has been moved into light and airy quarters in the east wing of the new High School administration building. The reading room is beautiful with new Library Bureau furniture and is equipped with every library convenience of files, catalog cabinets, and bulletin boards. The seating capacity is now 155

CLARA M. WILLITS, Lib'n.

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Glendale.

GLENDALE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Alma J. Danford, Lib'n.

An election for the purpose of voting on bonds to the amount of \$47,000 for library purposes will be held July 8. *The money will be used.for an addition to the main library and the construction of a northwest branch.—Glendale *Press*, Je 12

Long Beach.

§ LONG BEACH [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs Theodora R. Brewitt, Lib'n.

Purchase of a lot to cost \$8500, at the corner of Fourth street and Roswell avenue, as a site for a branch library building was authorized May 13.—Long Reach Sun, My 14

Los Angeles.

\$\$Los Angeles [Free] Public Li-BRARY. Everett R. Perry, Lib'n.

On April 23 Mr Bertram Grosvenor Goodhue, Architect of the Central Library building, died suddenly in New York City of heart failure. His death was a severe loss to the architectural profession in general and was a grievous shock to his friends in Los Angeles and to the members of the Library Board. Fortunately plans for the Central Library building were practically completed, which simplified the situation arising after his death. After conferences with the legal representatives of all parties concerned, an agreement has been reached, in accordance with which the Associate Architect, Mr Carleton M. Winslow, will complete the contract with the Library Board and will furnish detailed drawings and the necessary supervision during construction. In fact the plans and specifications have already been completed and bids have been advertised for and August 13 set as the day on which they should be received.

Early in June the contract for the rough grading of the Central Library site and excavation for foundations was completed, about 75,000 cubic yards having been removed at a cost of approximately \$56,000.

The City Council has sold the balance of the bonds of the 1921 issue, amounting to \$1,333,000, and also the entire issue of 1923, amounting to \$500,000, which

*Bonds were defeated.

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

was voted for the purpose of acquiring the Flower street frontage of the Central Library site.

Owing to certain conditions attached, the City Council saw fit to reject the proposed gift of Miss Arline Barnsdall. This was eight acres of ground surrounding her residence on Olive Hill, and the residence itself which she intended for a branch library.

On May 6th, by an overwhelming majority, the voters of Los Angeles, approved a new City Charter. In this charter the library tax rate is increased five cents to seven cents on every one hundred dollars worth of assessed valuation.

On June 10th the last of the branch libraries to be constructed from funds appropriated from the 1921 bond issue was opened. This was the branch at 10th and Gaffey Streets in San Pedro. The total cost was approximately \$75,000, of which \$10,000 was spent for the site.

During this quarter two branches have been removed to larger quarters, the El Sereno Branch to 5022 Huntington Drive and the Gardena Branch to 827¹/₂ Palms Street, Gardena. In these new locations it is expected that they will enter upon a new period of usefulness.

On the first of June the library suffered a great loss in the resignation of Miss M. Grace Smith, principal of the fiction department, who was forced to give up her work on account of poor health. In her place Miss Katharine D. Kendig was appointed. Miss Kendig had been acting as principal of the Cahuenga Branch Library. To succeed her there Miss Alice M. Dunlap, formerly of the Duluth Public Library, was selected by the Library Board.

Los Angeles Public Library School.

Thirty students completed the Library School course June 30. Dr. Frederic T. Blanchard, head of the English department in the University of California, Southern Branch, gave the address at the closing exercises, choosing "Looking Forward" as his topic.

Appointments have been made as follows: Ella Carrick, Cataloger, Library Association, Portland, Oregon; Mildred library technique, and is open to high

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

B. Cole, Assistant, Library Association, Portland, Oregon; Ruth Davenport, Assistant, Long Beach Public Library; Julia Dietsch, Attendant, Lincoln Heights branch, Los Angeles Public Library; Fonnie V. Douden, Children's Librarian, Stephenson branch, Los Angeles Public Library; June Fairfield, Cataloger, Long Beach Public Library; Edith J. Hubbart, Librarian, Huntington Beach High Schools; Myrtie V. Imhoff, Librarian, Roosevelt Junior High School, San Diego; Leora A. Janssen, Assistant, John Crerar Library, Chicago; Louise Jenner, Attendant, University branch, Los Angeles Public Library; Hilda F. Marsh, Assistant, Circulation department, Oregon Agricultural College Library, Corvallis; Margaret L. May, Cataloger, Los Angeles Public Library; Isabel O'Connor, Children's Librarian, San Diego Public Library; Helen O'Conor, Summer substitute, General Literature department, Los Angeles Public Library; Gertrude Olds, Assistant Reference department, Oregon Agricultural College Library, Corvallis; Eric Richmond, Children's librarian, Seattle Public Library; Arnoldine J. Saul, Attendant, Los Angeles Public Library; Irene Scott, Summer substitute, University branch, Los Angeles Public Library; Leona Shepherd, Attendant, School and Teachers Department, Los Angeles Public Library; Dorothy Smith, Attendant, Sociology department, Los Angeles Public Library; Lucile Spalding, Assistant, New York Public Library; Carolyn Walker, Assistant, Pomona Public Library; Alice Welch, Assistant, Library Association, Portland, Oregon; Mary Louise Wieder, Assistant, New York Public Library; Medora Williams, Assistant, School Department, Los Angeles County Free Library; Dorothy de Yoe, Assistant, New York Public Library.

The entrance examination for applicants for the Class of 1925 was given June 7. Another examination will be given September 6 if there are any vacancies in the class at that time.

The two months course for junior attendants began July 7, with a class of 19. This course covers the simpler phases of

[July, 1924

LOS ANGELES CO .- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

school graduates who can use the typewriter,

Plans for next year include special work in the Library of Congress classification, which is being used in many university libraries, and special courses for children's librarians. The demand for catalogers and children's librarians increases, and it is hoped that these courses will prepare more persons for such positions.

EVERETT R. PERRY, Lib'n.

OCCIDENTAL COLLEGE AND ACADEMY LIBRARY. Remsen du Bois Bird, Prin. Geo. F. Cook, Lib'n.

The creation of a \$25,000 Charles M. Stinson library fund in memory of Charles M. Stinson, friend of Occidental College, and a generous benefactor, has been announced. The income will be used to add new books on religion, ethics and philosophy.—Glendale News, My 14

Pomona.

§ || POMONA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Sarah M. Jacobus, Lib'n.

The building has been painted and tinted outside and in, and some odds and ends of cabinet work have been done which have added very much to ease of working for the staff.

A garage to shelter four motors has been built, for the use of the staff.

We hung the Syracuse Public Library's "Map of Good Stories" conspicuously in our rotunda, and displayed the novels alluded to on a nearby table. This was such a success that in a day or so we had to take down the map, for lack of any more novels.

In May we displayed in our showcase some books which had been subjected to improper handling. On each was a ticket, to explain its presence. On top of the showcase was a card giving the cost of replacement of these books whose working life had been shortened by abuse, not by legitimate wear. The newspapers gave us plenty of publicity, and the books told their own story to library visitors.

The Travel Club vacation reading plan used by the Alhambra Library last sum-

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Pomona-Continued.

mer has been put into operation here. Public and private schools are endorsing the plan, and sending children to join. So far we have had 313 registrants.

Miss Annice Healton (Los Angeles), who has been away on leave of absence, has resigned, to take a place in the Los Angeles Public Library. Miss Lola Davidson has married Mr Reve Leggett, and gone to live in Ventura. Miss Marcella Tucker has married Mr Howard Payne, but continues work for the present.

The staff was well represented at the California Library Association meeting in Pasadena.

S. M. JACOBUS, Lib'n.

MADERA COUNTY.

(Thirty-seventh class.)

County seat, Madera.

Area, 2140 sq. mi. Pop. 12,203. Assessed valuation \$23,021,654 (taxable for county \$19,006,065).

MARIN COUNTY.

(Twenty-fifth class.)

County seat, San Rafael. Area, 516 sq. mi. Pop. 27,342.

Assessed valuation \$27,697,445 (taxable for county \$24,129,460).

San Anselmo.

SAN ANSELMO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Belle Meagor, Lib'n.

On May 31, 1924, Miss Anna A. Gruber, who has been assistant librarian for the last three years, resigned on account of her marriage to Mr A. Loser of San Anselmo. Miss Frances McComish was appointed to fill the vacancy.

BELLE MEAGOR, Lib'n.

MARIPOSA COUNTY.

(Fifty-third class.)

County seat, Mariposa.

Area, 1580 sq. mi. Pop. 2775.

Assessed valuation \$5,449,196 (taxable for county \$4,588,303).

MENDOCINO COUNTY.

(Twenty-eighth class.)

County seat, Ukiah. Area, 3400 sq. mi. Pop. 24,116. Assessed valuation \$31,368,645 (taxable for county \$26,634,985).

MERCED COUNTY.

(Twenty-seventh class.)

County seat, Merced. Area, 1750 sq. mi. Pop. 24,579. Assessed valuation \$37,976,051 (taxable for county \$31,365,037).

MODOC COUNTY.

(Fifty-second class.)

County seat, Alturas. Area, 4097 sq. mi. Pop. 5425. Assessed valuation \$8,235,805 (taxable for county \$7,784,400).

MONO COUNTY.

(Fifty-seventh class.)

County seat, Bridgeport. Area, 2796 sq. mi. Pop. 960. Assessed valuation \$4,595,141. (taxable for county \$2.373,300).

MONTEREY COUNTY.

(Twenty-fourth class.)

County seat, Salinas. Area, 3450 sq. mi. Pop. 27,980. Assessed valuation \$46,171,385 (taxable for county \$38,399,315).

Carmel.

CARMEL FREE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Janet Prentiss, Lib'n.

Plans and specifications for the proposed Harrison memorial library building, prepared by Jo J. Mora, were accepted by the city trustees May 20.—Monterey *H crald*, My 21

NAPA COUNTY.

(Thirty-first class.)

County seat, Napa.

Area, 800 sq. mi. Pop. 20,678. Assessed valuation \$25,596,755 (t

Assessed valuation \$25,596,755 (taxable for county \$21,840,687),

NAPA CO.-Continued.

La Jota.

PACIFIC UNION COLLEGE LIBRARY. William E. Nelson, Prin.

Elizabeth Evans, Riverside '24, is the new librarian of the Pacific Union College.

NEVADA COUNTY.

(Thirty-ninth class.)

County seat, Nevada City. Area, 982 sq. mi. Pop. 10,850. Assessed valuation \$9,626,797 (taxable for county \$6,989,020).

Nevada City.

[NEVADA CITY FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY.

Miss Annie James, librarian since 1918, and previous to that assistant librarian since the beginning of the library in 1902, passed away in San Francisco early in April.—Grass Valley Union, Ap 6

ORANGE COUNTY.

(Tenth class.)

County seat, Santa Ana.

Area, 780 sq. mi. Pop. 61,375.

Assessed valuation \$160,755,031 (taxable for county \$144,298,445).

Fullerton.

FULLERTON [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Minnie Maxwell, Lib'n.

The time for the monthly meeting of the Library Trustees has been changed from the fourth Monday of the month to the first Wednesday.

The Librarian has been granted a month's leave of absence in addition to her month of vacation, and will leave July 14 for an extended automobile trip, going north to Seattle, east to the Yellowstone Park, Minneapolis, Chicago and Indianapolis.

MINNIE MAXWELL, Lib'n.

Orange.

ORANGE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Mabel Faulkner, Lib'n.

An experiment which has aroused a certain degree of interest among the Orange Public Library patrons, was the moving of the young people's department from a corner of the main reading room to a large, well lighted room downstairs,

ORANGE CO.—Continued.

Orange-Continued.

hitherto used occasionally as an auditorium but most of the time closed up. With the optimism that characterizes most librarians, we are planning for new furnishings, decorating—all the things necessary to make this attractive room an irresistible magnet for the young people of Orange.

The old "pergola" at the back of the library has been enclosed and properly opened up into the main reading room. 11 makes an attractive annex, and this, in conjunction with the additional space of the corner formerly devoted to the young people, gives us much needed room for expansion.

The grounds about the library have been newly "landscaped" and we now vie with the City Hall across the way in civic improvement.

MABEL F. FAULKNER, Lib'n.

PLACER COUNTY.

(Thirty-second class.)

County seat, Auburn.

Area, 1484 sq. mi. Pop. 18,584. Assessed valuation \$21,515,221 (taxable for county \$14,979,135).

PLUMAS COUNTY.

(Fiftieth class.)

County seat, Quincy.

Area, 2361 sq. mi. Pop. 5681.

Assessed valuation \$19,637,355 (taxable for county \$12,357,724).

PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY, QUINCY. Miss Edith Gantt, Lib'n.

Mrs L. E. Perine, custodian of the Greenville Branch for ten years, has resigned, and the Branch has been moved to new quarters in the hall over Mr Harry Wardlow's Ice Cream Parlor, where a reading room will be maintained. Mrs J. G. Wilson is the new custodian.— Quincy Independent, Je 5

W. A. Curry is the new custodian at Caribou Branch, Caribou Power House, Belden; Mrs Margaret Pasetti at Johnsville Branch; Mrs Garnet M. Nail at Meadow Valley Branch.

EDITH GANNT, Lib'n.

PLUMAS CO.-Continued.

Miss Edith Gannt's appointment as county librarian took effect April 1. Miss Carmelita Duff, former librarian, resigned to accept a position in the State Library.

RIVERSIDE COUNTY.

(Fifteenth class.)

County seat, Riverside, Area, 7008 sq. mi. Pop. 50,297. Assessed valuation \$55,642,689 (taxable for county \$40,624,850).

Riverside.

§||RIVERSIDE [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Chas. F. Woods, Lib'n.

Miss Jeanne F. Johnson has resigned as Cataloger of the Riverside Library to accept position as Head Cataloger of the Los Angeles County Free Library.

Riverside Library Service School.

The six weeks summer session opened June 30, 1924, with twenty-six students in attendance. The registration for later courses is expected to bring this number to a total exceeding thirty. The students in this session come from three states, California, Arizona and Utah.

Miss Frances Bandy, Riverside 1924, is substituting as Librarian for the Southern Sierras Power Company, Riverside, in the prolonged vacation of Miss Bernice Loveland, Librarian.

Miss Elizabeth Evans, Riverside 1924, has been appointed Librarian of the Pacific Union College, St. Helena, California.

Miss Doris Megginson, Riverside 1924, began work July 1st as Assistant Cataloger, Riverside Public Library.

Miss Rosalie Wilson of Riverside, who was certified in February, 1924, and has since served as senior attendant in charge of the County Department of the Riverside Public Library, has just been assured appointment as assistant to Miss Edith M. Schulze, Librarian of the Redondo Union High School, Redondo Beach, California.

CHAS. F. WOODS, Lib'n.

*RIVERSIDE CITY GIRLS' HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. F. P. Taylor, Prin. Miss Jean Urquhart, Lib'n.

RIVERSIDE CO.-Continued.

Riverside—Continued.

During the first week in April instruction in the use of the library was given to all Freshmen through the English classes. The care and construction of books, simple classification, the card catalog, dictionaries, encyclopedias and the Reader's Guide were all covered briefly and the students given some practical experience in searching out books on the shelves and in the use of reference books. We feel that after this time spent with the students they will be able to do their reference work with much more efficiency and with less help from the Librarian.

JEAN G. URQUHART, Lib'n.

*SOUTHERN SIERRAS POWER Co. LI-BRARY. Miss Bernice Loveland, Lib'n.

Miss Frances Bandy, Riverside '24, is substituting as librarian in the prolonged vacation of Miss Bernice Loveland.

SACRAMENTO COUNTY.

(Seventh class.)

County seat, Sacramento. Area, 988 sq. mi. Pop. 90,978. Assessed valuation \$142,912,136 (taxable for county \$120,171,655).

Sacramento.

‡§SACRAMENTO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Susan T. Smith, Lib'n.

The most important development during the last quarter has been a change in quarters for the Elmhurst and Oak Park Through the courtesy of the branches. City Board of Education, the Library was given permission to partition off one half of a bungalow on the Coloma School grounds, making a distinct room for the Library. The walls were covered with gray beaver board, new shelving and furniture added, which, with the bright colored posters and pictures, have made the room most attractive. A corner was set apart for a special collection of children's books. An experiment was made in opening the room Saturday afternoon with Miss Miller in charge, while Miss Chiles of the Periodical Department told stories every other Saturday. The story hour

SACRAMENTO CO.—Continued.

Sacramento-Continued.

and the increase in circulation for two months was over 600.

A three years' lease was taken of a onestory building on Sacramento Boulevard and on June 1st the Oak Park Branch was moved. The gray tinted walls and newly polished furniture have transformed the branch. An increase of 500 in the circulation for June indicates that the change was advisable.

Margaret Chiles has taken charge of the McKinley Park Branch since the resignation of Mrs Thwaites. She still remains Head of the Periodical Department.

A library publication called *The Staff* made its appearance the 1st of June. It is edited and mimeographed by members of the staff and shows much latent literary ability.

Marjorie Richards is the latest victim of the matrimonial germ, having announced her engagement to Ross Cummings.

SUSAN T. SMITH, Lib'n.

SAN BENITO COUNTY.

(Forty-third class.).

County seat, Hollister. Area, 1476 sq. mi. Pop. 8995. Assessed valuation \$14,711,808 (taxable for county \$13,211,495).

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY.

(Ninth class.)

County seat, San Bernardino. Area, 20,055 sq. mir Pop. 73,401. Assessed valuation \$99,303,873 (taxable for county \$59,003,285).

SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN BERNARDINO. Miss Caroline S. Waters, Lib'n.

Miss Charlotte Ferrill, assistant in the school department, resigned June 30, 1924, to be married. Miss Fay Nicholson, charging clerk, resigned June 20, 1924. Miss Katherine Stites, cataloger, resigned June 30, 1924, to enter the Los Angeles Public Library.

Miss Miller in charge, while Miss Chiles of the Periodical Department told stories every other Saturday. The story hour was given a most enthusiastic reception a general assistant. Miss Kring Rogers,

SAN BERNARDINO CO.-Continued.

high school student, entered the library June 9, 1924, as extra assistant for the summer months only.

The branch at Big Bear Valley was moved May 31, 1924, from Mr A. W. Friedrich's store to the Chamber of Commerce building. Mrs C. O. McQuown is the new custodian. The library occupies one room and the furniture, which is rustic, typical of the mountains, was made and designed especially for the room. New hours: 2.00-5.00 p.m. daily except Sunday.

The community of Bloomington backed by the Bloomington Chamber of Commerce with the cooperation and aid of the San Bernardino County Free Library, decided the first part of June to build a library building for the community. The building will be started during July.

The Camp Baldy Branch was moved from the school house into the Social Hall of the Camp Baldy resort for the summer months, with Mrs Wm. K. Vernon in charge. New hours: 10.00 a.m.-12.00 m. daily except Sundays.

The coordination of libraries at the County Hospital has been effected. The special library for the Nurses' training class, the medical library, the general library for the patients and one for the nurses in the Nurses' home have all been placed in one room provided for the purpose. Through the cooperation of the Medical Superintendent all medical books are furnished through the County Library. In addition to this service some of the best of the discarded books are provided for the Isolation ward. An entirely separate library of books carefully selected and magazines and newspapers is furnished the Tuberculosis Ward building on the hospital grounds.

The Harper Lake School and Community Branch is being kept open during the summer months at the school house, which is used as a community building. Mrs Ina Pomeroy is the custodian of the branch.

Midway School and Community Branch is being kept open during the summer months at the school house, which is used as a community building. Miss Ella Franklin is custodian of the branch, Hours: Thursdays 12.00 m.-2.00 p.m.

SAN BERNARDINO CO .- Continued.

19, for a month, until new quarters are finished.

The branch at Strawberry Flats in the San Bernardino Mountains was reopened May 15, 1924, with Mrs B. W. Switzer as custodian The branch at Pinecrest, in the San Bernardino Mountains, was reopened June 26, 1924, for the summer months, with Mrs J. N. Baylis as custodian. The branch at Crestline, in the San Bernardino Mountains, was reopened on May 20, 1924, for the summer months with Mrs Laurita Tuttle as custodian.

Oak Glen Community Branch separated from Oak Glen School for the summer months, June 27, 1924. It is located at Friendship Cottage, R. R. No. 2, Box 62, Yucaipa, California. Miss Olive Harris is custodian.

The name of the Post Office of the Newberry Branch has been changed from Water to Newberry.

CAROLINE S. WATERS, Lib'n.

Ontario.

ONTARIO [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss K. A. Monroe, Lib'n.

May 20th our library suffered a great affliction in the sudden death of Mr H. E. Swan, who had been a member of the Library Board for twenty-one years and president for the last fourteen years. His place can never be filled.

Our basement having been finished for the purpose, the juvenile department was moved there and opened April 24th. The change seems to be a success and popular.

K. A. MONROE, Lib'n.

Rediands.

A. K. SMILEY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Gwendolyn M. Tinker, Lib'n.

Mr George Putnam, son of Mr Charles Putnam, for many years a member of the Board of Library Trustees, has given the library \$250. From this gift a new lighting system has been installed, "The children's encyclopedia" has been purchased, and balance is still available for other library needs.—Redlands Facts, My 26

Upland.

UPLAND [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs F. H. Manker, Lib'n.

It is just possible that the Upland Pub-Oro Grande Branch was closed on June lic Library news items may cover a longer

SAN BERNARDINO CO .-- Continued.

Upland-Continued.

period than the last three months inasmuch as the apportionment for the year is \$1000 more than last year and part of it was received in February. However, everyone will no doubt rejoice with those benefited even though the news be late. Contrary to what might be expected possibly, no advance in salaries was made because those in authority, at the suggestion of the librarian, thought the wiser thing to do was to tint the interior and varnish the woodwork and on the outside paint all wood. As nothing had been done except varnish the floors three or four times since the building was opened to the public in August, 1913, it seemed that much good would be the result. Block letters have been placed on the building notifying the public that this is the "UPLAND PUBLIC LIBRARY," a great addition and really adding to the beauty of the building as it looks as though it had always been there. Awnings also have been placed on the west side over the three groups of windows and ventilators, making the room cooler for readers and making a softer light also. Since the city trustees and city engineer have moved down town, the room formerly used by the city engineer has been transformed into a Baby Conference room, beautifully decorated and furnished by the Red Cross Chapter. This is open every Tuesday for the benefit of the babies of this vicinity and is in charge of the city nurse. Mrs Lottie Fuller. and Dr. Mary Craig Williamson. A long closet used formerly by the city engineer has had a door cut through one end and shelving put up and in there are kept magazines that may not be kept in filing cases as their value may be only temporary.

The first inventory ever taken of the library was in January, 1924, and to the credit of all concerned may it be said that but 87 books were missing that could not be accounted for in some way.

Miss Aurelia Harwood made a gift of a \$100 check to the library fund for books and R. R. Harrington one of \$50 for the same purpose. Blessed be our friends!

Mrs Edith Troeller, formerly a member of the library board, is spending a few Panama Canal Zone library, has been ap-

SAN BERNARDINO CO .- Continued.

Upland-Continued.

weeks with her mother after two years of teaching in the Hawaiian Islands.

Mrs Manker and her assistant, Mrs Mary Haddow, attended the California Library Association meeting at Huntington Hotel, Pasadena.

The city trustees planted a pepper tree on the west side of the library and two evergreens at the front recently. Upland Public Library is in the only park in the city consequently it is used for public affairs more than many libraries and the grounds around are used for playgrounds more than seem altogether necessary. However, "service" is the watchword here as elsewhere and if a playground is wanted, a playground it is.

MRS F. H. MANKER, Lib'n.

For account of meeting of the San Antonio Library Club held at Upland in June, see p. 226.

SAN DIEGO COUNTY.

(Fifth class.)

County seat, San Diego.

Area, 4377 sq. mi. Pop. 112,248.

Assessed valuation \$94,535,420 (taxable for county \$84,085,828).

SAN DIEGO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN DIEGO. Miss Eleanor Hitt, Lib'n.

Mr Frank B. Byers, of San Ysidro, has offered to give \$8000 for a library building for the branch there. His only stipulations are that the library shall be located on the boulevard and that it shall contain a smoking room for men. A library board has been selected with Mr Goetz of the water company as presiding officer.—Chula Vista Star, My 16

San Diego.

‡§SAN DIEGO [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs H. P. Davison, Lib'n Emeritus. Miss Althea H. Warren, Lib'n.

Mrs Rachel Rhoads Anderson, graduate of Pratt Library School and of the senior course of the New York Public Library, who has had experience in the library of the University of Michigan, the public library of Portland, Oregon, and the Panama Canal Zone library, has been ap-

SAN DIEGO CO.—Continued. San Diego—Continued.

pointed as first assistant in our catalog department.

Mrs Henry Lippitt, president of our Board of Library Trustees, and ten of our staff attended the annual meeting of the California Library Association at Pasadena April 28th to 30th, Miss Louise Peck, head of our catalog department, planned and conducted the program of the combined catalog and reference sections. Miss Lena Hunzicker, head of our reference department, was chairman of a committee to investigate the practicability of a uniform method of marking bound magazines which presented recommendations and an exhibit. Miss Helen Dysart, our children's librarian, spoke on books for the intermediate age at the meeting of the children's section. Miss Warren spoke on entertainment material at the municipal section. Mrs Mary Fraser, head of our business department, contributed a side show to the Monday night's carnival.

That the library workers of San Diego who could not go to the C. L. A. meeting might hear Miss Madge Jenison, our library combined with the San Diego branch of the American Literary Association to have her for dinner and a talk on the evening of April 29th. As a result of our president's attendance at the C. L. A. in Pasadena in April the Board of Library Trustees has adopted a resolution that in the future the librarian's expenses are to be paid to all annual library meetings. This has not before been the policy.

East San Diego, the largest incorporated city next to San Diego in our county, last fall voted to become a part of San Diego, The election was contested, however, and annexation can only be assured by decision of the supreme court. As a temporary expedient the San Diego County Free Library has agreed to run the East San Diego Library, under contract with the city of San Diego, until January, 1925. The San Diego city council has by special ordinance appropriated funds to remunerate the county for current expenses. By next year it is expected that the controversy will be settled by a court decision.

Valuable help in the development of our for the junior employees, was compiled by station and branch system is being given us, and distributed by Mr Ferguson to all

SAN DIEGO CO.—Continued.

San Diego-Continued.

the library by the Parent Teachers Association. In the Spanish quarter, known as Old Town, the P. T. A. of the Fremont School secured the use of a room in a disused school building from the Board of Education, fitted it with book cases and reading tables, and for a year paid one of the women of the neighborhood to issue books to children and grown-ups two afternoons a week. The books were supplied by our stations department. Their use has justified the library trustees in taking over, from July 1, 1924, all expenses of the little branch. The Parent Teachers Association of the Florence School is, as part of a vacation playground in one of the richer sections of the city, making the same experiment this summer. If the circulation is sufficient the public library will establish a community branch, with a trained librarian at the Florence School.

ALTHEA H. WARREN, Lib'n.

SAN FRANCISCO.

(Second class.)

City and county coterminous.

Area, 43 sq. mi. Pop. 506,676.

Assessed valuation \$916,695,517 (taxable for county \$644,180,600).

BANK OF ITALY LIBRARY. Miss K. Dorothy Ferguson, Lib'n.

Mrs Millar, who has been conducting a course in "Special Libraries" at the University of California Library School, brought her class on a tour of inspection to our library. We showed them the little there was to see, but tried to convey the far reaching field for service open to a library in any big corporation or banking institution and that the service given should not be measured by the extent of equipment.

Through the cooperation of the State and County libraries a scheme is being tried out whereby the employees of the Bank of Italy throughout our 84 branches may be put in touch with the best financial and economic literature. A list of the best books on banking, intended mostly for the junior employees, was compiled by us, and distributed by Mr Ferguson to all

SAN FRANCISCO-Continued.

the county librarians asking them to check those they had and to add to the list any suitable substitute. A letter was sent to the branch managers and to every member of our staff, advising them of the scheme and asking for their cooperation.

We are anxious to know whether the results will justify the work this has entailed. It did seem as if this scheme might bring a number of young business men in touch with their local libraries and that coming for professional books they might learn of the number of other treasures that every library holds for those who know how to use it.

K. DOROTHY FERGUSON, Lib'n.

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY.

(Eighth class.)

County seat, Stockton.

Area, 1370 sq. mi. Pop. 79,905.

Assessed valuation \$119,746,530 (taxable for county \$102,967,210),

Stockton.

\$STOCKTON FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. H. O. Parkinson, Lib'n.

A branch library with reading room was established in April at the recently acquired Stockton Municipal Baths.

II, O. PARKINSON, Lib'n.

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY.

(Thirtieth class.)

County seat, San Luis Obispo. Area, 3500 sq. mi. Pop. 21,893. Assessed valuation \$37,508.524 (taxable for county \$32,687,420).

San Luis Obispo.

SAN LUIS OBISPO FREE PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs E. L. Kellogg, Lib'n.

Miss Athleen Venema has been elected part-time assistant to fill the vacancy created by the resignation of Miss Nellie Smith. Miss Venema served for one year on the staff of the Carnegie Library of Ogden, Utah.

Early in June the librarian gave a talk on Reading for the Business Woman at the Dinner Club of the Business and Professional Women of San Luis Obispo,

The usual decline in circulation ex- able for county \$101,862,810).

SAN LUIS OBISPO CO .- Continued.

San Luis Obispo-Continued.

pected at this time of year when schools are out, teachers gone, and clubs disbanded, did not materalize. The June circulation exceeded that of the previous month by 265 and that of June last year by 350.

The librarian told a group of stories to the children of the Vacation Bible School of the Presbyterian Church.

ABBIE S. KELLOGG, Lib'n.

SAN MATEO COUNTY.

(Twenty-first class.)

County seat, Redwood City.

Area, 470 sq. mi. Pop. 36,781.

Assessed valuation \$41,713,518 (taxable for county \$38,041,180).

South San Francisco.

SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN MATEO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs. J. B. Coffinberry, Lib'n.

The old Board of Library Trustees was removed June 16, 1924, by the new city trustees. The Library Trustees were the last of the former city administration to be replaced. The new board consists of E. E. Cunningham, John F. Davis, Mrs James Singleton, Mrs Manuel Garcia, Mrs Mary Jennings .- South San Francisco Enterprise, Je 19

Mrs Coffinberry, present librarian, has been notified by the new Board of Library Trustees that she will be succeeded on July 1 by Mrs Pache. Friends of Mrs Coffinberry and patrons of the library are circulating petitions protesting against this change.—South San Francisco Enterprise, Je 26.

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY.

(Eighteenth class.)

County seat, Santa Barbara. Area, 2450 sq. mi. Pop. 41,097. Assessed valuation \$63,249,242 (taxable for county \$54,271,315).

SANTA CLARA COUNTY.

(Sixth class.)

County seat, San Jose.

Area, 1355 sq. mi. Pop. 100,588. Assessed valuation \$118.353,004 (tax-

[July, 1924

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY.

(Twenty-sixth class.)

County seat, Santa Cruz. Area, 425 sq. mi. Pop. 26,269. Assessed valuation \$25,742,997 (taxable for county \$22,120,280).

SHASTA COUNTY.

(Thirty-fifth class.)

County seat, Redding. Area, 4050 sq. mi. Pop. 13,311. Assessed valuation \$22,309,159 (taxable for county \$15,474,285).

SIERRA COUNTY.

(Fifty-sixth class.)

County seat, Downieville. Area, 957 sq. mi. Pop. 1783. Assessed valuation \$2,975,701 (taxable for county \$2,638,085).

SISKIYOU COUNTY.

(Thirty-third class.)

County seat, Yreka. Area, 6079 sq. mi. Pop. 18,545. Assessed valuation \$28,882,569 (taxable for county \$20,826,215).

SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY, YREKA. Miss Thelma Brackett, Lib'n.

The Dunsmuir Branch was destroyed in the fire that destroyed the heart of the business district April 25.—Sacramento *Bee*, Ap 26

The Dunsmuir Branch reopened May 22 in the manual training building on the grammar school grounds. This is a temporary location until fall. The hours are 7 to 9 p.m. daily; 3 to 5 p.m. Tuesdays and Thursdays.—Dunsmuir *News*, My 16

SOLANO COUNTY.

(Nineteenth class.)

County seat, Fairfield.

Area, 911 sq. mi. Pop. 40,602.

Assessed valuation \$36,577,022 (taxable for county \$30,262,160).

SOLANO CO. FREE LIBRARY, FAIRFIELD. Miss Clara B. Dills, Lib'n.

Three new book stacks have been added Modesto sea story writer. The retiring to the library during the past quarter— custodian, Mrs A. E. Ulch, gave a brief two in the reading room of the main li-

SOLANO CO .- Continued.

brary and the third at the Rio Vista Branch. This addition greatly facilitates the shelving of books.

The custom of supplying books to the Boy Scout Camp is being continued. This year the camp is established at Forestville on the Russian River. A summer depository has been placed in the Allendale School District at the home of Mrs T. H. Parsons.

Miss Chilberg attended the joint meeting of the County Librarians and the California Library Association which was held in April at Pasadena in place of Miss Dills who is still on leave of absence.

MARJORIE CHILBERG, Asst. Lib'n.

SONOMA COUNTY.

(Fourteenth class.)

County seat, Santa Rosa. Area, 1540 sq. mi. Pop. 51,990. Assessed valuation \$51,060,520 (taxable for county \$43,188,855).

STANISLAUS COUNTY.

(Sixteenth class.)

County seat, Modesto. Area, 1486 sq. mi. Pop. 43,557. Assessed valuation \$59,520,342 (tax-

able for county \$51,958,175).

STANISLAUS CO. FREE LIBRARY, Mo-DESTO. Miss Bessie B. Silverthorn, Lib'n.

April S was Library Day at the Rotary Club. When the Rotarians took their luncheon places, they found place cards in the form of books applicable to their profession or gentle jokes. The county librarian read The Rotarian's Duty to his Public Library, issued by Rotary Headquarters some years ago. She was followed by the guest of honor of the day, Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, who spoke on Books and Business. Later Mr and Mrs Ferguson were callers at the library before returning to Sacramento.

Ceres Branch was moved into more spacious quarters May 31st, and the event was celebrated with an informal reception, followed by readings from his book, "Fenceless Meadows," by Bill Adams, Modesto sea story writer. The retiring custodian, Mrs A. E. Ulch, gave a brief talk. and the incoming custodian, Miss

STANISLAUS CO.—Continued.

Gertrude Salter, presented her with a beautiful basket of flowers in behalf of the library. The library is now situated in the room next to the bank and the post office, and with additional reading tables, shelves, and window for book displays, promises to be of greatly increased benefit to the community.

BESSIE B. SILVERTHORN, Lib'n.

Miss Silverthorn has been asked to present a paper on "Improving reading habits through a county library system," at the American Library Association meeting July 3. Miss Silverthorn will not be present but is sending her paper to be read.— Modesto *Herald*, Je 25

SUTTER COUNTY.

(Forty-first class.)

County seat, Yuba City. Area, 611 sq. mi. Pop. 10,115. Assessed valuation \$21,891,134 (taxable for county \$17,949,070).

TEHAMA COUNTY.

(Thirty-sixth class.)

County seat, Red Bluff.

Area, 3200 sq. mi. Pop. 12,882.

Assessed valuation \$20,342,954 (taxable for county \$16,846,610).

ТЕНАМА СО. FREE LIBRARY, RED BLUFF. Miss Elizabeth Stevens, Lib'n.

Mrs E. C. Frisby resigned on May first and Miss Nell McKenzie succeeded Mrs Frisby. Miss McKenzie was completing a course at Columbia University and could not reach here until July first. During June, Miss Isabelle Moore of the Santa Clara County Free Library staff filled the vacancy.

On June 9th Miss Neva Reno came to us for practice work. She plans to enter library school later.

On June 24th the librarian attended a P. T. A. meeting at Cottonwood, Shasta County, and talked with the members about "Children's literature and storytelling." At the close of the meeting there was an informal discussion of the cost and results of county library operation. Our neighbors on the north are hoping that

their county library may become a reality this year.

ELIZABETH STEVENS, Lib'n.

TRINITY COUNTY.

(Fifty-fifth class.)

County seat, Weaverville. Area, 3276 sq. mi. Pop. 2551. Assessed valuation \$3,893,835 (taxable for county \$3,438,770).

TULARE COUNTY.

(Eleventh class.)

County seat, Visalia.

Area, 4863 sq. mi. Pop. 59,031.

Assessed valuation \$87,860,140 (taxable for county \$68,530,135).

TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY, VISALIA. Miss Gretchen Flower, Lib'n.

Mrs Linnie Blick has succeeded Mrs Phoebe Wells as custodian of the Hammond Branch.

Y. W. C. A. Camp for Girls Branch was established June 9 at Sequoia Lake, General Grant Park, California. Miss Elizabeth Blick is custodian.

Mrs Mattie Decker was appointed custodian of the Grant Park Library June 15, 1924. Mrs Guy Hopping was appointed custodian of the Giant Forest Library July 1, 1924.

GRETCHEN FLOWER, Lib'n.

Miss Ellen Yoder, children's librarian, will tell stories to the children of Visalia at the City Library each week. Later she will give similar service to Porterville and Tulare, and it is hoped to extend the plan gradually throughout the county. —Visalia *Delta*, Ap 26

TUOLUMNE COUNTY.

(Forty-sixth class.)

County seat, Sonora.

Area, 2292 sq. mi. Pop. 7768.

Assessed valuation \$11,952,956 (taxable for county \$8,474,886).

TUOLUMNE CO. FREE LIBRARY, SONORA. Miss Gladys English, Lib'n.

In May Mrs Nell Steinmetz started work as assistant in the County Library, succeeding Mrs Frances R. Sims, who was married in January. Mrs H. D. Zwinge

TUOLUMNE CO.—Continued.

resigned as custodian of the Tuolumne Branch in May and Mrs Mina James was appointed in her place. During vacation Mrs H. E. Finney will take care of the children's reading in her home at Moccasin Creek; and at Tuttletown School Mrs L. L. Coffer will circulate books to both adults and children.

Mr Robert Hestwood, who is connected with the Art Department of the Sonora High School, designed five beautiful posters to accompany lists of juvenile books. Miss Eva Willey, a student at the high school, has made the lists to accompany the posters.

In June the County Library welcomed a number of interesting visitors, Miss Barmby, Miss Jean Baird, Mrs May Dexter Henshall and last of all Miss Edna Holroyd, who brought her mother to the Tuolumne County Free Library for the first time.

GLADYS ENGLISH, Lib'n.

VENTURA COUNTY.

(Twenty-third class.)

County seat, Ventura.

Area, 1850 sq. mi. Pop. 28,724.

Assessed valuation \$57,684,592 (taxable for county \$50,454,129).

VENTURA CO. FREE LIBRARY, VENTURA. Miss Elizabeth R. Topping, Lib'n.

There have been several changes on the staff. Miss Julia Crocker has left us to go to the reference department of the Tacoma Public Library, and Miss Bessie Nelson to be in that of the University of California, Southern Branch. Miss Pearl McDowell took Miss Crocker's place as loan clerk when Miss Crocker for county \$16,731,980).

VENTURA CO .- Continued.

resigned and then Miss Nelson's place as cataloger. Miss Helen Kearney succeeds Miss McDowell in the loan work.

The Ventura County Board of Education has made a ruling that the new books recommended by the board shall not be purchased in any quantity for use until the old books recommended by the board are all in use and actual new copies for the work are needed. When that occurs the new recommendations are to be purchased. This applies to the books which the county library buys for supplementary work for the schools.

ELIZABETH R. TOPPING, Lib'n.

YOLO COUNTY.

(Thirty-fourth class.)

County seat, Woodland.

Area, 1017 sq. mi. Pop. 17,105.

Assessed valuation \$32,480,480 (taxable for county \$26,416,050).

Davis.

DAVIS FREE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, YOLO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Hattie Weber, Custodian.

We have moved into our new building and have a very fine reading room. During the last three months 1770 books and magazines were loaned.

HATTIE WEBER, Custodian,

YUBA COUNTY.

(Fortieth class.)

County seat, Marysville.

Area, 625 sq. mi. Pop. 10,375.

Assessed valuation \$19,664,423 (taxable

DIRECTORY FOR LIBRARY SUPPLIES AND OTHER ITEMS OF GENERAL INTEREST.

The following directory is based on recommendations received from the libraries of California. New recommendations and corrections will be welcomed at any time.

SUPPLIES.

Amateur Plays.

ACTING DRAMAS FOR AMATEURS.

The Book Den, 464 Eighth st., Oakland, Calif.

A. L. A.

BOOKLIST.

78 E. Washington st., Chicago, Ill.

CATALOG.

1904 ed. \$1.

Superintendent of Documents, Government Printing Office, Washington, D. C.

1904-11 ed., \$1.50.

A. L. A. Pub. Board, 78 E. Washington st., Chicago, Ill.

HEADQUARTERS.

86 E. Randolph st., Chicago, Ill.

Binding and Mending.

BINDING.

- Foster & Futernick Co., 444 Bryant st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Herring & Robinson, 1927 Howard st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Hicks-Judd Co., 460 Fourth st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif. Sacramento Bookbindery, 309 J st.,
- Sacramento. Calif.
- Silvius and Schoenbackler, 423 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

MENDING.

3-33352

Stix Co., San Jose. Stix-Parchment mending tissue.

Blind.

Embossed books, etc. Addresses will be furnished by the State Library.

Book Cases.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Book Packing Bags.

Hoegee Co., 138–142 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Book Packing Boxes.

Pacific Box Factory, 2600 Taylor st., San Francisco, Calif.

CORRUGATED PAPER CARTONS.

- Illinois-Pacific Glass Co., 15th and Folsom sts., San Francisco, Calif.
- Richardson-Case Paper Co., 1021 Front st., Sacramento, Calif.

Book Plates.

Manhattan Photogravure Co., 142 West 27th st., New York, N. Y.

- Sequoyah Studio, 319 42d st., Oakland, Calif.
- Times-Mirror Printing and Binding House, 118 S. Broadway, Los Angeles, Calif.
- Western Lithograph Co., 600-610 E. Second st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Book Pockets.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis.

- Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.
- Hicks-Judd Co., 460 Fourth st., San Francisco, Calif.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- The Zellerbach Paper Co., 534 Battery st., San Francisco, Calif.

Book Stacks, Metal Furniture, Etc.

- Art Metal Construction Co., Jamestown, N. Y.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- J. Niederer Co., 3409 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- •Van Horn Iron Works Co., Cleveland, Ohio.

Book Supports, Bracket and Pedal for Perforating Stamp and Other Mechanical Appliances.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365-369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Book Varnish.

Pacific Library Binding Co. 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Books.

- Baker & Taylor Co., 354 4th ave., New York City.
- Emporium, 835–865 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Himebaugh & Browne, 471 Fifth ave., New York, N. Y.

H. R. Huntting Co., Springfield, Mass. A. C. McClurg & Co., Library Depart-

ment, 330 E. Ohio st., Chicago, Ill.

- McDevitt-Wilson's, Inc., 30 Church st., New York City.
- Newbegin's, 358 Post st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Parker's Book Store (C. C. Parker), 520 W. 6th st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Charles T. Powner Co., 542 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Sather Gate Bookshop, 2235 Telegraph ave., Berkeley, Calif.
- Chas. Scribner's Sons, 5th ave. and 48th st., New York, N. Y.
- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.
- Union Library Association, 225 Fifth ave., New York City.
- Vroman's Book Store, 329 E. Colorado st., Pasadena.
- Harr Wagner, 149 New Montgomery st., San Francisco, Calif.

Especially western books by western authors.

White House, Sutter st., bet. Grant ave. and Kearny st., San Francisco, Calif.

ENGLISH BOOKS AND PUBLICATIONS.

- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.
- B. F. Stevens & Brown, 4 Trafalgar Square, London, W. C. 2, Eng.

Books-Continued.

FOREIGN BOOKS AND PUBLICATIONS IN VARIOUS LANGUAGES.

- Charles T. Powner Co., 542 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Lemcke & Buechner, 30-32 East Twentieth st., New York City.
- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.

French.

- French Book Store, Alfred Blanc & J. Delabriandais, 324 Stockton st., San Francisco, Calif.
- J. Terquem, 19 Rue Scribe, Paris, France.

Italian.

A. Cavalli & Co., 255 Columbus ave., San Francisco, Calif.

Spanish.

Victoriano Suarez, Madrid, Spain.

LAW BOOKS.

- Bancroft-Whitney Co., 200 McAllister st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Matthew-Bender & Co., 109 State st., Albany, N. Y.

SCHOOL BOOKS.

- Milton Bradley Co., 20 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- California School Book Depository, 149 New Montgomery st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Ginn & Co., 45 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- A. C. McClurg & Co., Library Department, 330 E. Ohio st., Chicago, Ill.
- Owen Publishing Co., 681 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- White House, Sutter st., bet. Grant ave. and Kearny st., San Francisco, Calif.

SECOND-HAND BOOKS.

- McDevitt-Wilson's, Inc., 30 Church st., New York City.
- Mudie's Select Library, 30-34 New Oxford st., London, Eng.
- Charles T. Powner Co., 542 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Henry Sotheran & Co., 140 Strand, London, W. C. 2, Eng.
- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.

Books-Continued.

- B. F. Stevens & Brown, 4 Trafalgar Square, London, W. C. 2, Eng.
 A. R. Womrath, 15 E. 28th st., New
- A. R. Womrath, 15 E. 28th st., New York, N. Y. For used fiction.

Especially Californiana.

- Dawson's Book Shop, 627 S. Grand ave., Los Angeles, California.
- F. M. De Witt, 620 14th st., Oakland, Calif.
- Holmes Book Co., 104 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Cabinets.

See FURNITURE AND SUPPLIES.

Catalog Cards.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Yawman & Erbe Manufacturing Co., 132-140 Sutter st., San Francisco, and 727 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Charts.

H. S. Crocker Co., 565-571 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Clippings.

Allen's Press Clipping Bureau, 121 Second st., San Francisco, and 626 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

County Free Library Signs.

For information, write Mrs Frances Burns Linn, Santa Barbara County Free Library, Santa Barbara, Calif.

County Free Library Stickers. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

Cutter Tables, Size Rulers, Etc.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Duplicating Appliances.

Dandy Duplicator.

For Rent.

Dodge & Dent, New York, N. Y.

Edison Rotary Mimeograph.

H. S. Crocker Co. (Agents), 565-571 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Filing Cases.

See FURNITURE AND SUPPLIES.

Films.

- American Red Cross, Pacific Division, Civic Center, San Francisco, Calif.
- Fox Film Corporation, New York, N. Y.
- National Producers Film Service, 111 Golden Gate ave., San Francisco, Calif.
- Pathe Exchange, Inc., Non-Theatrical Dept., 985 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- United States Forest Service, Ferry bldg., San Francisco, Calif.
- University of California, Extension Division, Berkeley, Calif.

Furniture and Supplies.

- Grimes-Stassforth Stationery Co., 737-739 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rucker-Fuller Desk Co., 677 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Yawman & Erbe Manufacturing Co., 132-140 Sutter st., San Francisco, and 727 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Filing Cases for Music.

Los Angeles Desk Co., 848 S. Hill st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Globes.

- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rand-McNally Co., 125 E. Sixth st., Los Angeles, and 559 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- C. F. Weber & Co., 985 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Magazine Binders.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Elbe File and Binder Co., 215-217 Greene st., New York, N. Y.

Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

Gem Binder Co., 65 W. Broadway, New York.

Wm. G. Johnston & Co., Pittsburgh, Pa.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Magazines.

See PERIODICALS.

Maps.

- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rand-McNally Co., 125 E. Sixth st., Los Angeles, and 559 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- C. F. Weber & Co., 985 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Music.

Sherman, Clay & Co., Kearny and Sutter sts., San Francisco, Calif.

G. Schirmer, 3 E. 43d st., New York, N. Y.

Pamphlet and Multi-Binders, and Pamphlet Boxes.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Paste.

Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Pasting Machines.

A. G. Prior, 136 Liberty st., New York, N. Y.

Perforating Stamps.

B. F. Cummins Co., Chicago, Ill. Moise-Klinkner Co., 365–369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Periodicals.

BACK VOLUMES AND NUMBERS.

- F. W. Faxon Co., 83-91 Francis st., Back Bay, Boston, Mass.
- F. M. De Witt, 620 14th st., Oakland, Calif.

Periodicals-Continued.

- International Magazine Co., 339 Bay Way North, Elizabeth, N. J.
- Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- H. W. Wilson Co., 958-64 University ave., New York City.

SUBSCRIPTION AGENCIES.

- John A. Clow, 2925 N. Lake ave., Pasadena, Calif.
- Franklin Square Agency, Franklin Square, New York City.
- Moore-Cottrell Subscription Agencies, North Cohocton, N. Y.
- Mutual Subscription Agency, 602 Crozer Bldg., Philadelphia, Pa.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- San Francisco News Co., 657 Howard st., San Francisco, Calif.
- G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.

For foreign periodicals only.

- Sunset Subscription Agency, 631 Chamber of Commerce Bldg., Los Angeles, Calif.
- H. W. Wilson Co., 958-64 University ave., New York City.

Pictures.

Braun & Co., Dornach, Alsace, France.

Curtis & Cameron, Copley Square, Boston, Mass.

Especially for reproduction of American art.

Toni Landau Photo Co., 1 E. 45th st., New York, N. Y.

(Formerly Berlin Photographic Co.)

Perry Pictures Co., Malden, Mass.

Vickery, Atkins & Torrey, 550 Sutter st., San Francisco, Calif.

Rubber Stamps and Type.

- Chipron Stamp Co., 224 West First st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Los Angeles Rubber Stamp Co., 131 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365–369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Sleeper Stamp Co., 528 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

Scales.

Fairbanks-Morse & Co., Spear and Harrison sts., San Francisco, Calif.

Shelf Label-Holders.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, Calif.

Signs.

- Sam H. Harris, 631 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365-369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Tablet & Ticket Co., 604 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.

Slides.

Geo. Kanzee, 12 Geary st., San Francisco, Calif.

Stamp Affixers.

Multipost Co., Rochester, N. Y.

Steel Stacks.

See BOOK STACKS.

Stereoscopic Views.

Keystone View Co., Meadville, Pa.

Philip Brigandi (Agent Keystone View Co. and Underwood & Underwood), 1626 North Hobart blvd., Los Angeles, Calif.

Has also Industries of California, and Missions of California.

Willis E. Case (Agent Keystone View Co. and Underwood & Underwood), 1610 Grove st., Berkeley, Calif.

Typewriter Ribbons.

- L. & M. Alexander, 444 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Remington Typewriter Co., 240 Bush st., San Francisco, 420 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, and 913 8th st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Typewriter Inspection Co., 426 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Underwood Typewriter Co., 531 Market st., San Francisco, 430 S. Broadway, Los Angeles, and 611 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SCHOOLS.

Los Angeles Library School. For full information, write to Librarian, Public Library, Los Angeles, California.

See, also, this publication, p. 205.

Riverside Library Service School. retary-Treasurer.

For full information write to Librarian, Public Library, Riverside, California. Sce. also, this publication, p. 208.

University of California Department of Library Science. For full information write to Librarian, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIA-TION.

The officers of the American Library Association for 1924-25 are as follows:

H. H. B. Meyer, Library of Congress, Washington, D. C., President.

Margaret Mann, Engineering Societies Library, New York, 1st Vice-President,

John A. Lowe, Brooklyn Public Library, 2d Vice-President.

Carl H. Milam, Chicago, Secretary.

Edward D. Tweedell, Assistant Librarian, The John Crerar Library, Chicago, Treasurer.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE LIBRARIES.

The officers of the National Association of State Libraries for 1924-25 are as follows:

Con P. Cronin, Librarian, Arizona State Library, Phoenix, Ariz., President.

H. J. Conant, Assistant Librarian, Vermont State Library, Montpelier, Vt., 1st Vice-President.

W. J. Millard, Librarian, Washington State Law Library, Olympia, Wash., 2d Vice-President.

Herbert S. Hirshberg, Librarian, Ohio State Library, Columbus, Ohio, Secretary-Treasurer.

LEAGUE OF LIBRARY COMMIS-SIONS.

The officers of the League of Library Commissions for 1923-24 are as follows:

Milton J. Ferguson, Librarian, California State Library, Sacramento, Calif., President.

Clarence B. Lester, Sec. Wisconsin Library Commission, Madison, Wis., 1st Vice-President.

Miss Nellie Williams, Sec. Nebraska Library Commission, Lincoln, Neb., 2d Vice-President.

Miss Fannie C. Rawson, Sec. Kentucky Library Commission, Frankfort, Ky., Secretary-Treasurer.

PACIFIC NORTHWEST LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

The officers of the Pacific Northwest Library Association for 1923-24 are as follows:

John Ridington, University of British Columbia Library, President.

Miss Joanna H. Sprague, Salt Lake Public Library, Salt Lake, Utah, 1st Vice-President.

Miss Flora M. Case, Salem Public Library, Salem, Ore., 2d Vice-President.

Ralph Munn, Reference Librarian, Seattle Public Library, Seattle, Wash., Secretary.

Miss Elena A. Clancey, Head of Order Dept., Tacoma Public Library, Tacoma, Wash., 'Treasurer.

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

The officers of the School Library Association for 1923–24 are:

Northern Section—President, —— — Secretary-Treasurer, —— ——

Southern Section — President, Laura

Grover Smith, Virgil Junior High School, Los Angeles.

Secretary-Treasurer, Florence Hazel Macloskey, Lincoln Junior High School, Santa Monica.

SPECIAL LIBRARIES ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA.

The officers of the Special Libraries Association of Southern California for 1924-25 are:

Alice Scheck, First National Bank, Los Angeles, President.

B. E. Edwards, Standard Oil Co., El Segundo, Vice-President. Rose M. Purcell, Southern California Edison Co., 3d st., Los Angeles, Secretary-Treasurer.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY SCHOOL AND UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SCHOOL ALUMNI ASSOCIATION.

OFFICERS :

Edna S. Holroyd, C. S. L. S. '15, Librarian San Mateo Co. Free Library, Redwood City, President.

Fern Wing, U. C. L. S. '21, University of California Library, Berkeley, Vice President.

Ivander McIver, U. C. L. S. '20, University of California Library, Berkeley, Secretary.

EMPLOYMENT BUREAU.

The State Library registers all library workers in California who are looking for positions and all from outside the state who wish to come here. Also it will be glad to know of libraries that want head librarians or assistants in any branch of their work. In writing for recommendations, libraries are urged to be as specific as possible, especially in regard to time position must be filled and salary offered. A librarian who wishes to be dropped from the Employment Bureau list and a library that fills a position for which it has asked a recommendation will help the work greatly by notifying the State Library at once. For further information, write to the State Library, Sacramento, California.

SCHOOL LIBRARY STATISTICS.

(From reports of County Superintendents of Schools, 1922-23.)

Total school districts	3,714
Elementary	3,356
High	358
Total expended for books for high schools	\$549,575
Total expended for books for elementary schools	\$522,761
Total volumes in elementary schools	2,908,965
Total volumes in high schools	1,698,306

CALIFORNIA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

OFFICERS.

President, H. O. Parkinson, Public Library, Stockton.

Vice-President, Helen T. Kennedy, Public Library, Los Angeles.

Secretary-Treasurer, Hazel Gibson, Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento.

Trustees Section.

President, F. H. Pettingell, Trustee Public Library, Los Angeles.

Secretary, Mrs Katherine G. Smith, Trustee Public Library, Los Angeles.

Municipal Libraries Section.

President, Minnie Maxwell, Public Library, Fullerton.

Special Libraries Section.

Chairman, Margaret Hatch, Standard Oil Company Library, San Francisco.

COMMITTEES.

Executive Committee — The President, Vice - President, Secretary - Treasurer and Mrs Julia G. Babcock, Essae M. Culver, Jeannette M. Drake, Milton J. Ferguson, Carleton B. Joeckel, Ida M. Reagan.

Auditing—Mrs Abbie S. Kellogg, Public Library, San Luis Obispo, chairman; Frances D. Patterson.

Nominating—The Constitution provides for a "Nominating Committee consisting of representatives selected by the respective districts at their district meetings."

Publications—Faith E. Smith, Public Library, Los Angeles, chairman; Celia A. Hayward, Minna Stillman.

Resolutions—J. E. Goodwin, University of California, Southern Branch, Los Angeles, chairman; Thelma Brackett, Margaret E. Livingston.

Certification—Susan T. Smith, City Library, Sacramento, chairman (1926); Mabel R. Gillis (1925), Eleanor Hitt (1927), Mrs Theodora R. Brewitt (1928), Mary Barmby (1929). Cooperation — Mrs Gladys S. Case, Public Library, Los Angeles, chairman; Mary Boynton, Helen Evans, Gretchen Flower, Edith S. Newcomet, Myrtle Ruhl, Alice M. Scheck, Edith M. Schulze.

J. L. Gillis Memorial-Milton J. Ferguson, State Library, Sacramento, chairman; Mary Barmby, Eleanor Hitt.

Legislative—Herbert V. Clayton, State Library, Sacramento, chairman; Jasmine Britton, Charles S. Greene, Mrs Frances B. Linn, Mrs F. H. Manker.

Salaries—Everett R. Perry, Public Library, Los Angeles, chairman; Sarah M. Jacobus, Sarah E. McCardle.

Scaman's Library—Stella Huntington, Santa Clara County Free Library, San Jose, chairman; Gladys English, Nellie M. Gish, Mrs Ruth M. Moore, Robert Rea.

Membership—Essae M. Culver, Merced County Free Library, Merced, chairman; 1st District, Alice M. Healy; 2d District, Anne Hadden; 3d District, Mrs Elizabeth C. Wright; 4th District, Blanche L. Shadle; 5th District, Amy L. Boynton; 6th District, Katherine D. Kendig; 7th District, Ida M. Reagan; 8th District, Edna Hewitt.

Music—Gladys Caldwell, Public Library, Los Angeles, Chairman; Ethel Carroll, Edith A. Hibberd.

Jinks—Althea H. Warren, Public Library, San Diego, chairman; Frances M. Burket, B. B. Futernick, Norah McNeill, Elizabeth R. Topping.

Special Committee on Uniform Lettering for Magazine Binding-Lena B. Hunzicker, Public Library, San Diego, chairman; Ida G. Munson, Della J. Sisler.

P.N.L.A. and C.L.A. Cooperation— C. B. Joeckel, Public Library, Berkeley, chairman; Susan T. Smith, Julia Steffa.

DISTRICT OFFICERS AND DISTRICTS.

First District.

President, Frank M. Bumstead, University of California Library, Berkeley.

Secretary, Alice Charlton, University of California Library, Berkeley.

The first district consists of the following cities: San Francisco, Alameda, Berkeley, Oakland; and the following libraries: Leland Stanford Junior University Library and Margaret Carnegie Library, Mills College.

Second District.

President, Florence J. Wheaton, San Benito County Free Library, Hollister.

Secretary, Ellen B. Frink, Monterey County Free Library, Salinas.

The second district consists of the following counties: Alameda (excepting Alameda, Berkeley, and Oakland), Contra Costa, Monterey, San Benito, San Mateo, Santa Clara (excepting Stanford University), Santa Cruz.

Third District.

President, Margaret A. Barnett, Public Library, Santa Rosa

Secretary, Ruth Hall, Public Library, Santa Rosa.

The third district consists of the following counties: Lake, Marin, Mendocino, Napa, Solano, Sonoma.

Fourth District.

President, Blanche Galloway, Madera County Free Library, Madera.

Secretary, Mrs Irene G. Bennett, Madera County Free Library, Madera.

The fourth district consists of the following counties: Fresno, Inyo, Kern, Kings, Madera, Mariposa, Merced, Stanislaus, Tulare, Tuolumne.

Fifth District.

President, Beulah Mumm, State Library, Sacramento.

Secretary, Donna Harris, City Library, Sacramento. The fifth district consists of the following counties: Alpine, Amador, Calaveras, El Dorado, Mono, Nevada, Placer, Sacramento, San Joaquin, Yolo.

Sixth District.

President, Charles F. Woods, Public Library, Riverside.

Secretary, Gwendolyn M. Tinker, A. K. Smiley Public Library, Redlands.

The sixth district consists of the following counties: Imperial, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Ventura.

Seventh District.

President, Henry A. Kendal, Public Library, Eureka.

Secretary, Edna D. Davis, Humboldt County Free Library, Eureka.

The seventh district consists of the following counties: Del Norte, Humboldt.

Eighth District.

President: Edith Gantt, Plumas County Free Library, Quincy.

Secretary, Lenala A. Martin, Lassen County Free Library, Susarville.

The eighth district consists of the following counties: Lassen, Modoc, Plumas, Sierra.

Ninth District.

President, Faye T. Kneeshaw, Glenn County Free Library, Willows.

Secretary, Elizabeth Stevens, Tehama County Free Library, Red Bluff.

The ninth district consists of the following counties: Butte, Colusa, Glenn, Shasta, Siskiyou, Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Yuba.

ANNUAL MEETING.

For an account of the annual meeting, see this publication, page 188.

vol. 19, no. 3]

CALIFORNIA COUNTY LIBRARIANS.

man.

Advisory Committee.

Stella Huntington, Santa Clara County, Chairman.

Clara B. Dills, Solano County.

Margaret E. Livingston, Orange County. Sarah E. McCardle, Fresno County.

Cornelia D. Provines. Sacramento County, Treasurer.

COUNTY LIBRARIANS' CONVENTION.

For account of County Librarians' Convention, see p. 190.

CONFERENCE OF SOME CO-OPER-ATING AGENCIES CONCERNING NUTRITION METHODS IN A PROGRAM FOR CALIFORNIA.

The County Libraries' representative sat in conference with the Co-operating Agencies at Agriculture Hall, June 11, 1924.

The purpose of the meeting, as stated by the chairman, was to become more familiar with the plan of work of each representative; to know how it is being done and to see if opportunity offers to correlate the work at any point better than it is at present.

In order to cover the program a short talk was given by each organization's representative answering three suggested questions :

1. Purpose or goal of the organization as regards rural life in California.

2. In what way it touches nutrition work.

3. Facilities of your organization for accomplishing this work.

Contra Costa County was asked to demonstrate its progress in nutrition work in its different departments, this county having been used by the Agricultural Department as a demonstration unit for nutrition work. Miss Helen Burling, Home Demonstration Agent, acted as chairman of this discussion. Mrs M. M. Garrett, representing the Farm Bureau Centers; Mrs Mabel Tikiob, a project leader, and Mrs Alice G. Whitbeck, the

Milton J. Ferguson, Ex-officio Chair-| County Librarian, all gave interesting notes on nutrition as they saw it. Mrs Whitbeck spoke of their library buying health posters and books for the use of their Home Demonstration Agent and County Nurse, an interesting work and one that no doubt most of the county librarians are doing.

> Some very interesting agencies were represented there and all reported on their interest and connection with nutrition work. The American Red Cross was reported on by William Carl Hunt, manager Pacific Division, who gave a very enlightening talk on their connection with nutrition work in California. The California Federation of Women's Clubs' interest was given by Mrs Sarah Rails-California Tuberculosis Associaback. tion's important work was told by Mrs Ethel D. Watts. Mrs Grace Stanley. Commissioner of Elementary Schools. presented the interest of that department in nutrition. The State Board of Health was represented by Ellen E. Stadtmuller, M.D., Director of Child Hygiene. A very definite connection with nutrition work was presented by her. The State Library's facilities and willingness to help in this nutrition, as well as every other good work for California, was well presented by Helen M. Bruner, Sutro Branch of the State Library. The State Farm Bureau Federation was represented by F. L. Selleck, The Dairy Council work was given by S. H. Greene. Mrs Hugh Bradford, State President of the Parent-Teachers' Associations, gave a very interesting outline of the close connection of 'their clubs' interest in nutrition, especially in the schools. The county library's purpose and goal were presented by County Librarian Mary Barmby, She emphasized the fact that the county libraries are the channels through which much of interest and value is constantly being sent to all parts of the state and that if county libraries could send cases of bees or a skeleton on call they would no doubt gladly help to send nutrition in the form of books, charts, posters and lists.

> > MARY BARMBY,

County Libraries' Representative.

LIBRARY CLUBS. ETC.

Under this heading will be given the Special Libraries Association, was reaccounts of meetings of the various library clubs and similar organizations throughout the state, Previously such accounts have been printed under the library where they have been held or the library where the president or secretary was located. This new arrangement should make these articles more available. News items of the various clubs are solicited.

SAN ANTONIO LIBRARY CLUB.

The San Antonio Library Club held its annual meeting at the Upland Public Library, following the State meeting, when reports were given of the California Library Association by Miss Chapin, Mrs F. H. Clapp, and Mrs F. H. Manker. Each member responded at roll call with some new idea tried out in her library during the past year. Mrs Isabel K. Neales of Chaffey Library presided. Miss Elizabeth Harris of Pomona Public Library was elected president for 1924-25 and Miss Rees of San Dimas Public Library was elected secretary-treasurer. Following the business, the members adjourned to the Red Hill Country Club where luncheon was enjoyed.

MRS F. H. MANKER.

SPECIAL LIBRARIES ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA.

The annual business meeting of the Special Libraries Association of Southern California was held on June 24, 1924, in the Library of the First National Bank with Miss Alice Scheck as hostess. The meeting was called to order at seven o'clock by the President, Mr Marion.

The election of officers resulted as follows:

President, Miss Alice Scheck, First National Bank, Vice-Pres., Mr B. E. Edwards, Standard Oil Company; Sec.-Treas., Miss Rose Marie Purcell, Southern California Edison Co.; Executive Committee, Officers and Mr Guy E. Marion and Miss Mary Ramona Bean.

ported by Mr Marion, who gave the substance of it as concerning the vote of this Association on the change of the Constitution to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting of the Special Libraries Association and asking that we request affiliation if the change was adopted. This brought about much discussion as to the intent of the law and how it would affect this organization. Miss Scheck moved that Mr Marion write for specific information on the subject. The motion was carried and the following suggestions were made as to points to be submitted: Proportion of dues to be refunded, what proportion of members must pay, how would institutional membership be handled, if membership by institutions were taken might it not be arranged for more than one to be member, etc.

Committee Reports: Miss Fossler reported for the Committee on the Union List. Miss Fossler said that more assistance would be needed soon to put lists together. She asked for instructions on symbols, etc. Miss O'Toole reported for the Membership Committee, in the absence of Miss Bean, Chairman. She told of letters sent out to the various libraries and gave list of names of those becoming members. Miss Scheck, Chairman of the Methods Committee, reported the trial of a plan for each meeting of a short discussion of methods and spoke of the work planned for the committee if we affiliate with the Special Libraries Association. Mr Marion, chairman of the Directory Committee, reported that one meeting had been held, a questionnaire prepared which would soon be ready for distribution. Miss Scheck reported for the Special Committee appointed to act at the meeting of the California Libraries Association. There was no Special Libraries Section and the failure to have meeting was not the fault of Miss Drake, President, as program had to be printed before arrangements had been made.

Mr Marion closed his term of office with a few words of thanks for co-opera-A letter from Mr Redstone, President of tion during his term, introduced the new

nands of the meeting freshent, miss	lingness to carry out the wishes of the society and serve to the best of her ability.			
Alice Scheck.	There being no other business the meet-			
Miss Scheck thanked the members for	ing was adjourned until fall.			
the honor given her and pledged her wil-	MARY E. IRISH, Secretary.			

•

[July, 1924

BOARD OF LIBRARY EXAMINERS, CALIFORNIA.

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD.

Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, Chairman.

Robert Rea. Librarian. San Francisco Public Library, Secretary.

Everett R. Perry, Librarian, Los Angeles Public Library.

Sections 6 and 7 of the County free library law (Chap. 68, Cal. Statutes 1911) read as follows:

SEC. 6. A commission is hereby created to be known as the board of library ated to be known as the board of library examiners, consisting of the state libra-rian, who shall be ex officio chairman of said board, the librarian of the public library of the city and county of San Francisco, and the librarian of the Los Angeles public library. SEC. 7. Upon the establishment of a county free library, the board of super-visors shall appoint a county librarian

visors shall appoint a county librarian. who shall hold office for the term of four years, subject to prior removal for cause. after a hearing, by said board. No perafter a hearing, by said boards son shall be eligible to the office of unless prior to his county librarian unless, prior to his appointment, he has received from the board of library examiners a certificate of qualification for the office. At the time of his appointment, the county librarian need not be a resident of the county nor a citizen of the State of California.

REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN.

The Board of Library Examiners held an examination in Los Angeles, April 26 and in Sacramento, June 5-6, 1924. Sixteen candidates were examined and certificates were issued as follows: Mrs Rachel R. Anderson, Evalyn Boman, Martha June Coleman, Edna Hewitt (new certificate), Mabel V. Miller, H. O. Parkinson, Margaret W. Smith, Minette L. Stoddard, Muriel Wright, Mrs Bess Ranton Yates (new certificate-old one expiring).

The life of certificates expiring during 1924 was extended to December 31, 1924.

Renewals were granted to the following county librarians holding first grade certificates expiring this year: Mrs Julia G. Babcock, Essae M. Culver.

CERTIFICATE HOLDERS.

NOTE .--- First-grade certificates are valid for use throughout the state ; second grade, in counties of the twenty-first to the fiftyeighth (except twenty-fifth, thirty-third, thirty-fifth and forty-second) classes, in-

clusive: third-grade in counties of the forty-ninth to the fifty-eighth classes, inclusive.

The new certificate, issued for the first time, December 22, 1920, is valid for use throughout the state.

First Grade.

Babcock, Mrs Julia G., Ln. Kern County Free Library, Bakersfield.
Culver, Essae M., Ln. Merced County Free Library, Merced.
Flower, Gretchen L., Ln. Tulare County Free Library, Visalia.
Hatch, Margaret, Ln. Standard Oil Co. Library, San Francisco.
Holroyd, Edna S., Ln. San Mateo County Free Library, Redwood City.
Morse, Marion, Ln. Maui County Free Library, Wailuku, T. H.

New Certificates.

Adams, Mrs Lila (Dobell), Ln. Trinity County Free Library, Weaverville. Anderson, Mrs Rachel (Rhoads). Asst.

Anderson, Mrs Rachel (Rhoads). Asst. Public Library, San Diego. Bailey, Anne Bell, Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno. Barmby, Mary, Ln. Alameda County Free Library, Ochland

Barmby, Mary, Ln, Alameda County Free Library, Oakland,
Beardsley, Mrs Arline Davis, Asst. Orange County Free Library, Santa Ana.
Be e m an, Mrs Anne (Madison), Mrs Thomas Beeman, Ln, Sawtelle High School Library, Sawtelle,
Bornan, Evalyn, Ln, Imperial County Free Library, El Centro.

Library, El Centro. Brackett, Thelma, Ln. Free Library, Yreka. Siskiyou County

Brewitt, Mrs Theodora -R., Ln. Public Li-

brary, Long Beach. Burket, Frances M., Ln. Amador County Free Library, Jackson.

Chalfant, Blanche, Ln. Butte County Free Library, Oroville. Chatfield, Marguerite, Asst. Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento.

Colliberg, Marjorie J., Asst. Solano County Free Library, Fairfield. Coleman, Martha June, Asst. Glenn County Free Library, Willows.

Coulter, Mabel, Asst. Contra Costa County Free Library, Martinez.

De Ford, Estella, Ln. Napa County Free

Library, Napa. Dills, Clara B., Ln. Solano County Free Library, Fairfield.

English, Gladys, Ln. Tu Free Library, Sonora. Tuolumne County

Ferguson, K. Dorothy, Ln. Bank of Italy Library, San Francisco. Ferguson, Milton J., Ln. State Library,

Sacramento.

Frazier, Hubert B., Asst. Public Library, Los Angeles.

Frink, Ellen B., Asst. Monterey County Free Library, Salinas. Fuller, Mrs Melissa, Asst. Fresno County

Free Library, Fresno. lloway, Blanche, Ln. Ln. Madera County

Galloway, Blanche, Lm. Madera County Free Library, Madera. Gantt, Edith, Ln. Plumas County Free

Library, Quincy.

- Gibson, Hazel G., Asst. Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento. Greene, Charles S., Ln. Free Library, Oak-
- land.

- land. Hadden, Anne, Ln. Monterey County Free Library, Salinas. Haines, Alice J., Head Documents Dept., State Library, Sacramento. Harris, Mary W., Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno. Hewitt, Edna J., Ln. Sutter County Free Library, Yuba City. Hitt, Eleanor, Ln. San Diego County Free Library, San Diego. Huntington, Stella, Ln. Santa Clara County Free Library, San Jose. Kitching, Mrs Ethelene M., Ln. Fullerton

- Huntington, Stella, Ln. Santa Clara County Free Library, San Jose.
 Kitching, Mrs Ethelene M., Ln. Fullerton High School Library, Fullerton.
 Kneeshaw, Faye T., Ln. Glenn County Free Library, Willows.
 Kobler, Marjorie H., Asst. San Diego County Free Library, San Diego.
 Laugenour, Nancy C., Ln. Yolo County Free Library, Woodland.
 Linn, Mrs Frances Burns, Ln. Santa Bar-bara Free Public Library and Santa Barbara. Barbara.
- Barbara.
 Livingston, Margaret E., Ln. Orange County Free Library, Santa Ana.
 McCardle, Sarah E., Ln. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno.
 Margrave, Anne, Ln. Inyo County Free Library, Independence.
 Martin, Lenala A., Ln. Lassen County Free Library, Susanville.
 Meredith, Roberta, Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno.
 Middleton, Maude, Asst. Kings County Free Library, Hanford.
 Miller, Mabel V., Asst. Los Angeles County Free Library, Los Angeles.
 Mumm, Beulah, Reference Ln. State Li-brary, Sacramento.

- Mulini, Bedali, Actionali, Parkinson, K. Schwarz, Schwarz, Schwarz, Colusa, County Free Library, Colusa, Parkinson, H. O., Ln. Stockton Public Li-brary and San Joaquin County Free Library.
- Perry, Everett R., Ln. Public Library, Los
- Angeles. Provines, Cornelia D., Ln. Sacram County Free Library, Sacramento. Sacramento
- Rea, Robert, Francisco. Robert, Ln. Public Library, San
- Reagan, Ida M., Ln. H Free Library, Eureka. Humboldt County
- Silverthorn, Bessie B., Ln. McHenry Publie Library and Stanislaus County Free Library, Modesto.
- Smith, Margaret W., Asst. Santa Clara County Free Library, San Jose. Smith, Susan T., Ln. City Library, Sac-
- ramento.
- ffa, Julia, Ln. Hanford Public Library and Kings County Free Library, Han-Steffa. ford.
- Stevens, Elizabeth, Ln. Tehama County Stevens, Elizabeth, Ln. Tenama County Free Library, Red Bluff. Stoddard, Minette L., Asst. Merced County Free Library, Merced. Thomas, Mabel W., Asst. Ln. Free Li-brary, Oakland.

- Topping, Elizabeth R., Ln. Ventura. County Free Library, Ventura. Vogleson, Helen E., Asst. Ln. Los Angeles. County Free Library, Los Angeles.
- Warren, Althea H., Ln. Public Library, San Diego. Minerva H., Ln. Santa Cruz
- Waterman, Minerva H., Ln. Santa Cruz Public Library and Santa Cruz County Free Library, Santa Cruz.
- Waters, Caroline S., Ln. San Bernardino County Free Library, San Bernardino.

- Whitbeck, Mrs Alice G., Ln. Contra Costa County Free Library, Martinez.
 Worden, Mrs Dorothy (Clarke), Mrs Charles J. Worden, Ln. Colusa County Free Library, Colusa.
 Wright, Muriel, Asst. Kern County Free Library, Polycostold
- Library, Bakersfield. tes, Mrs Bess (Ranton), Mrs John D. Yates, Asst. Orange County Free Li-brary, Santa Ana. Yates,

Second Grade.

De Witt, Mrs Isabelle (Park), Asst. Mer-ced County Free Library, Merced. Duff, Marcella Carmelita, Asst. State

- Library, Sacramento.
- Encking, Louise F., Asst. Public Library, Seattle, Wash. Faulkner, Mrs Mabel F., Ln. Orange
- Faulkner, Mrs Maber Public Library, Orange. Flo A., Ln. San
- Gantz, Flo A., Ln. San Luis Obispo. County Free Library, San Luis Obispo. Schaer, Mildred E., Asst. Public Library, Los Angeles.
- San Benito
- Cos Angeles.
 Wheaton, Florence J., Ln. San Benito County Free Library, Hollister.
 Whitbeck, Josephine L., Asst. City Li-brary, Sacramento.

Third Grade.

lliams, Anna L., Ln. Free Library, Alturas. Williams, Ln. Modoc County

At Present Out of Library Work.

- Alexander, Mrs Lela (Clapperton) (New certificate).
 Dambacher, Mrs Helen (Rowland), Mrs Gustav Dambacher (2d grade).
 Ferris, Katharine Post (New certificate).
 Gleason, Celia (New certificate).
 Gregory, Marion L. (New certificate).
 Herrman, Mrs Jennie (Herrman), Mrs James White Herrman (New certificate). cate).

- cate). Jamieson, Mrs Dorothy (Henderson), Mrs Natt F. Jamieson (2d grade). Kyle, Eleanore (New certificate). Lewis, Mrs Anna Jean (Thomson), Mrs R. B. Lewis (New certificate). McDonald, Mrs Ora Regnart, Mrs Charles E. McDonald (New certificate). Work, Mrs Geraldine (Graham), Mrs George A. Work (2d grade).

COUNTY FREE LIBRARY LAW.

The "California county free library law and circular of information for applicants for certificates of qualification to hold office of county librarian in California" was published in News Notes of California Libraries, April, 1911, and The later reprinted in pamphlet form. edition being exhausted, a revised edition of the circular was printed in News Notes of California Libraries, January, This has been reprinted as a 1914.pamphlet. The fifth edition was issued December, 1921. (Circular of information only.) The fourth edition of the County free library law was also issued in December, 1921. Copies of both of above pamphlets will be furnished on request.

NEXT EXAMINATION.

No date has been set for the next examination.

APPLICATION BLANKS.

All who wish to take the examination California.

should file applications with the Chairman of the Board, For application blanks or further information address the Chairman of the Board, Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, Sacramento,

vol. 19. no. 31

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY.

The bill establishing the California State Library was signed by Governor Peter H. Burnett, January 24, 1850. California State Library School was

established by resolution adopted September 4, 1913.

California State Library School was discontinued by motion adopted May 22, 1920.

Annual income for 1923-24, \$101,605. Total accessions 251,560 (less 3254 lost and discarded = 248,306) exclusive of 16,336 accessions in Books for the Blind Department and of the Sutro Branch in San Francisco

STAFF.

Milton J. Ferguson, Librarian. Miss Mabel R. Gillis, Assistant Librarian and Head of Books for the Blind Department.

Herbert V. Clayton, Law and Legisla-

tive Reference Librarian. Miss Eudora Garoutte, Head of Cali-fornia Department.

Miss Alice J. Haines, Head of Documents Department.

Mrs May Dexter Henshall, County Library Organizer. Miss Annie Lowry, in charge of Peri-

odicals and Binding

Wm. H. Lugg, Head of Shipping, Re-pairs, etc., Department.

Miss Beulah Mumm, Reference Librarian

Miss Ida G. Munson, Head of Catalog Department.

Miss Myrtle Ruhl, in charge of Order Department.

Miss Beryl Andrews, Assistant. Miss Helen M. Bruner, Assistant, Sutro

Branch, San Francisco. Miss Alice Chenu, Assistant.

Miss Ella A. Clark, Indexer. Miss Benneta Colton, Assistant. Miss Mae Davies, Assistant. Miss Margaret Dennison, Assistant, Sutro Branch, San Francisco. Mrs Gerna R. Dickson, Assistant. Miss Carmelita Duff, Assistant.

Miss Dorothy Geeslin, Assistant.

Miss Angelina Grant, Assistant.

Miss Zilla Grant. Assistant.

Miss Florence Lamb, Bookkeeper.

Mrs Bessie Heath McCrea, Assistant.

Miss Alice Miller, Assistant. Miss D. Florence Montfort, Assistant.

Miss Mary V. Provines, Assistant. Miss Dorothy Puffer, Assistant.

Miss Irene E. Ryan, Assistant. Miss Lily M. Tilden, Assistant.

Miss June Vladyka, Assistant. Mrs E. D. Waldron, Assistant. Miss Marguerite Walker, Stenog-

rapher.

Miss Caroline Wenzel, Assistant.

Mrs Ina Brosseau, Book Repairer. Miss Emma F. de Merritt, Book Repairer.

Charles T. Edwards, Assistant Shipping Clerk.

Arden Hall, Assistant Shipping Clerk (Part-time).

Wm. G. Lyons, Assistant Shipping Clerk.

Addalbert Morris, Messenger.

Vera Palermo, Messenger.

Leona Rasmussen, Messenger.

J. L. Foss, Janitor. G. A. Klees, Janitor. Harry A. Simons, Elevator Operator.

STAFF NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Carmelita Duff began work as assistant in charge of the Books for the Blind Department on April 8.

Ronald Miller resigned as messenger and Addalbert Morris took his place on April 10.

Miss Ruth Ferguson is doing temporary work in the Reference Department for six weeks beginning June first.

Mrs Mae Moore, Book Repairer, who had been on leave of absence for a year, resigned May 1, 1924.

Mr Ferguson was invited to attend a three-day meeting of the Temporary Library Training Board of the A. L. A. in New York, April 15-17, and accordingly made the trip east at that time. He spoke at the Library Day of the Modesto Rotary Club on April 8, and at the Sacramento Rotary Club on May 29, his subject there being "My Own Job."

On May 12 the Chamber of Commerce, other civic organizations and the bar association of Sacramento entertained the justices of the State Supreme Court and the Third District Appellate Court. Mr. Feguson spoke on the early history of Sacramento.

Mr Ferguson attended the International Rotary Conference at Toronto June 16-20, having been named a delegate by the Sacramento Rotary Club. From there he went to the A. L. A. meeting at Saratoga Springs, June 30-July 5. On his way home he will stop

at Iowa City, Iowa, where he will give two talks at annual Library Workers Conference held jointly by the Extension Division of the University of Iowa and the University Library, July 9-10. At the A. L. A. Mr Ferguson read a paper on "What People Are Reading in California."

At the annual meeting of the California Library Association and the County Libraries Convention April 28-May 1, the State Library was represented by Mr Ferguson, Mrs Henshall and Miss Mrs Henshall took part on the Gillis. County Librarians' program, her subject being "Reports of School Service to School Trustees, etc." Miss Mumm had written a paper on "Some Types of Newspaper Publicity" for the Publicity Round Table, and it was read by Miss Gillis.

Mr Parkinson, president of the C. L. A., has appointed Miss Mumm president of the Fifth District. He has also named Miss Ruhl on the Cooperation Committee and Miss Munson on the Special Committee on Uniform Lettering for Magazine Binding.

Miss Garoutte was the speaker at the meeting of the California Genealogical Society in San Francisco on June 7. She talked on the work of the California Department of the State Library.

Miss Bruner represented the State Library at the "Informal Conference of Some Cooperating Agencies Concerning Methods in a Nutrition Program for California" held at the University of California June 11. (For account of this meeting see County Librarians section. p. 225.)

A staff meeting was held on May 7, at which Mr Ferguson, Miss Gillis and Mis Henshall told of the meetings of the A. L. A. Temporary Library Training Board, the California Library Association and the California County Librarians.

LIBRARY HOURS.

Week days ____ ----- 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Legislative session:

	ys 9				
Sundays	10	a.m.	to	3	p.m.

The Library will close at noon on Saturdays during July and August.

LAW AND LEGISLATIVE REFER-ENCE DEPARTMENT.

HERBERT V. CLAYTON, in charge.

The Law and Legislative Reference Department is fully equipped with the latest reports, digests, encyclopedias and textbooks, the statutes of other states, the United States, Great Britain, Can-ada, Australia and certain other foreign countries, and briefs of counsel in cases decided in the California Supreme and Appellate courts. State officers are en-titled to borrow books, and private indi-viduals are accorded the same privilege upon presentation of a request signed by a Supreme, Appellate or Superior Judge, or other state officer. Books may be kept three weeks, and will be once renewed for two weeks. All books are subject to recall, if required by a state officer, or if, in the opinion of the Librarian, a recall is fair and expedient.

In addition to special service to members of the Legislature, information on the laws of California and other states and countries is given on inquiry from libraries or individuals.

Recent accessions to the department will be found listed under the heading "Law" in the section on "Recent Accessions."

See also "How the California State Library Can Be of Assistance to Local Law Libraries. Courts and Attorneys." p. 191.

DOCUMENTS DEPARTMENT.

ALICE J. HAINES, in charge.

The Documents Department aims to collect, arrange and make available government publications, federal, state, city and foreign.

Recent accessions of California State and City publications will be found on pp. 265, 268.

Copies of 17 California state publications have been received for distribution libraries during April, May and June 1924.

Agriculture Department. Special publication, no. 45.

Financial transactions Controller. of municipalities and counties for 1923. Fish & Game Comm. Cal. fish and game, vol. 10, no. 2.

Tariff charges for port Harbor Comm.

of San Francisco. 1924. ghway Comm. Cal. Highways, vol. 1, Highway Comm. no. 4.

Industrial Accident Comm. Cal. safety

1924.

Mining Bur. nos. 8-9. Cal. oil fields, vol. 9,

Mining in Cal., vol. 20, no. 2.

Public Instruction Supt. Bulletin no. 1-A. 1924.

1924. presidential primary election. Teachers College, Fresno. information. 1924. Circular of

Teachers College, San Diego. Bulletin, vol. 12, no. 2. Teachers College, San Francisco. Circular of information, pt. 1. 1924.

REFERENCE DEPARTMENT.

BEULAH MUMM, in charge.

The Reference Department furnishes information to any inquirer. It furnishes books to public libraries on request of the librarian, and to any other educational institution on request of its official head or its librarian; to individuals through the signature of a state officer, of the Librarian of the local library or of the official head of any other educational institution or on receipt of a \$5.00 deposit: to a club or grange on request of its president, secretary or librarian. In counties having county free libraries, all requests must be made through the county free library.

The questionnaire sent out in May dealing with the use of the two copies of the reprint of recent accessions from News Notes of California Librarics showed conditions that seem worth discussion. A few libraries report that the two copies are clipped and mounted according to the plan adopted long ago. Several libraries report that this is not done on account of lack of time-a situation easily imagined. Answers from many of the libraries, however, show that the purpose of sending out two copies has not been understood.

The plan is that the two copies should be clipped and mounted and the items filed alphabetically. This would provide for each library an author catalog, with call numbers, of the accessions to the State Library. Such a file should prove useful along many lines. Primarily it would save time. In making requests the librarian would be saved looking up author's full name and imprint, and the State Library would be saved looking up the call number. As an aid in book selection it should be of value. The positive assurance that a certain title is in the State Library might often be sufficient reason for not purchasing. Since the author's full name and the classification number are given, the list would help in cataloging and classifying. To the pub-

lic eye it would be an effective demonstration of cooperation between state and local libraries.

While the reprints of recent accessions were first made at the request of some of the county librarians, they will gladly be sent to any of the city libraries also, that care to clip, mount and file them for the uses suggested.

In view of the fact that the plan in regard to recent accession reprints was not entirely understood by all librarians the State Library has decided to prepare a letter to send out to all new county librarians upon taking office. The letter will attempt to cover in full all the points of State Library service. Any suggestion as to details that should be included in such a letter will be gladly considered.

ORDER AND ACCESSIONS DEPARTMENT,

MYRTLE RUHL, in charge.

During April, May and June, 1729 books were accessioned.

CATALOG DEPARTMENT.

IDA G. MUNSON, in charge.

During April, May and June, 1067 books were cataloged and 7:338 cards were added to the file. 16,565 cards were filed in the Union Catalog.

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT.

EUDORA GAROUTTE, in charge.

The California Department aims to have a thoroughly good collection of books on the history and description, resources and indusries of the State, as well as the works of California authors in all departments of literature. These are made accessible by means of a card catalog. Full names and biographical sketches of California authors, artists, musicians, pioneers and early settlers are being secured, together with their photo-graphs. The collection of bound peri-odicals is quite large. The Department also contains about 9000 bound volumes of newspapers, a file of which is being indexed with reference to the history of the State. Students will be assisted in their work.

Pioneers and Early Settlers.

We are pleased to note the receipt of the biographical card of one of our pioneer mothers, who is still living at the age of 91 years. Mrs Sidney Jane Hamblen arrived in 1849 in a covered wagon. She settled with her parents in Yuba county, where she married and reared a large family. For the last twenty years she has made her home in Oakland. Mrs Hamblen states that she attended the wedding of the daughter of General Sutter to Mr Engler in 1852. This wedding took place at Hock Farm and was one of the great weddings of the early days.

William B. Latham, Jr., was another argonaut of '49, who lived in California for over sixty years. He held many prominent public offices and was the friend and associate of some of California's most noted citizens. Mr Latham came to California by water and lived at various times in Marysville, Sacramento, and San Francisco where his long and useful life ended.

Others whose cards have been placed on file are Susan (Roop) Arnold, after whom Susanville was named; Isaac and Seth Farwell; Ira Manley Luther; Dr. George McCowan, still living at Ukiah; David Manning; John A. Nagely and Monroe Wilson.

California Authors.

The following author cards have been received since the last issue of News Notes of California Libraries:

Cornell, Mrs Sarah (Hughes) Holland, Christopher F. Pendexter, Hugh Thom, Mrs Laura Gould (Brown) Mrs Robert Thom.

California Musicians.

The following musician card has been received since the last issue of News Notes of California Libraries:

Sengler, Vivian Consula

Newspaper Index.

The index covers the period from August 15, 1846, to date.

Catalog.

Two hundred thirty-one cards have been added to the California catalog during the last quarter.

Exhibit.

A very interesting exhibit of old daguerreotypes and ambrotypes has been placed in the rotunda of the capitol and is exciting much interest.

BOOKS FOR THE BLIND DEPARTMENT.

MABEL R. GILLIS, in charge.

Embossed books in the various types are sent to any blind resident in California upon application. Circular and finding list, with Call slip postal, will be sent on request. Writing appliances and games for the blind are loaned as samples to those wishing to buy such articles, so that the different kinds can be tried before they are ordered. Addresses of firms supplying all articles loaned will be furnished on request. Books sent to individuals from an in-

Books sent to individuals from an institution distributing embossed literature are carried free through the mails.

Embossed catalogs in American Braille, Moon, and New York point are available. They will be loaned to borrowers wishing them for use in book selection.

The State Library will be glad to have borrowers who care to do so write any letters or requests for books to the Library in Braille or New York point.

The first book was loaned June 13, 1905. There are now 2098 blind borrowers, 55 borrowers having been added during April, May and June. Total accessions are 16,336 as follows: New York point books 2493; New York point music 188:American Braille books 3025: American Braille music 1269: European Braille books 2525; European Braille music 178; Moon books 3986; Moon music 5: Revised Braille books 1794: Revised Braille music 113: Standard dot books 14; Line books 193; Line music 21; Ink print books 369; *Appliances 84; *Games 46; Maps 33.

During April, May and June, 7839 books, etc., were loaned as follows: New York point 640; American Braille 528; European Braille 1394; Moon 3072; Revised Braille Grade 1½ 2198; Ink print books 1; Appliances 6; Maps 0; Games 0. The loans were divided by class as follows: Philosophy and religion 608; sociology 46; language 80; primers 52; science 111; useful arts 52; fine arts 0;

*Appliances and games are loaned as samples to anyone wishing to try them. amusements 6 : music 134 : literature 256 ; fiction 4646; travel and history 589; biography 263; periodicals 996.

Copies of magazines have been donated during the last three months by Mrs F. A. Bacher, F. B. Beans, Mrs H. W. Bruning, Frank Caldwell, Mrs A. H. Clise, Rosa Falck, Kate M. Foley, F. W. Foster, M. Gebhart, Wm. Harper, Ruby E. Holtz, Bessie A. Long, Mrs Rose Mc-Comb, Mrs Bertha Mattausch, Wm. A. Miller, Hattie B. Newman, John O'Donnell, Mrs M. E. Phillips, Bertha Ripplinger, Mrs L. Sargent, George W. Shoemaker, C. H. Snow, Wm. H. Thomas, Amy Weihe, Donald Wheaton, Canadian National Institute for the Blind, Christian Record Publishing Co., Free Gospel Library for the Blind, Irish Association for the Blind, National Institute for the Blind, New York Association for the Blind, Permanent Blind Relief War Fund. Society for the Aid of the Sightless, Western Pennsylvania Institute for the Blind, Xavier Free Publication Socicty for the Blind, Ziegler Publishing Co.

Other gifts will be indicated in the list of books, etc., which have been added to the library during the last six months.

Sec p. 269.

Among the gifts of the last quarter have been over a hundred volumes in French and a few in English from the Permanent Blind Relief War Fund, and the first few titles of the sixty-eight to be donated by the U. S. Veterans' Bureau. Both these collections are intended primarily for blinded war veterans, but their use is also for blind civilians as soon as the demand from veterans has been filled. As there are but few blinded veterans in California, the use of these two fine donations is practically at once available for all the blind of the state.

Home Teaching.

Owing to a decrease in the appropriation for the Library during the present two years home teaching for the blind was discontinued by the Library on June 30, 1923.

On December 1, 1923, home teaching was officially reinstated under the State Board of Control. Persons knowing of

possible pupils may communicate with the State Library, or, if in the bay district, with Miss Kate M, Foley, 146 McAllister street, San Francisco, and, if in Los Angeles and vicinity, with Miss Catharine J. Morrison, 951 El Molino street. Los Angeles.

SUTRO BRANCH.

The Sutro Branch occupies space in the Public Library, Civic Center, San Francisco, and is open every day, except Sunday, from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY SCHOOL GRADUATES.

Miss Esther M. Bomgardner, San Diego, Cal.

Cal.
'15. Asst. Public School L., Los Angeles.
Miss Thelma Brackett, San Diego, Cal.
'20. Ln. Siskiyou Co. F. L., Yreka.
Miss Helen V. Briggs, Sacramento, Cal.
'14. Out of library work.
Miss Agnes E. Brown, Palo Alto, Cal.
'15. Asst. Washington State College Library, Pullman, Wash.
Miss Helen M. Bruner, Sacramento, Cal.
'14. Asst. in charge. Sutro Branch.

 Asst. in charge, Sutro Branch, State L., San Francisco, Cal. Lucile Huff Buchan, Palo Alto, Cal.
 Out of library work. 14.

- Mrs

- Mrs Lucile Hun Bushin,
 '20. Out of library work.
 Mrs Virginia Clowe Bullis, Woodland, Cal.
 '17. Out of library work.
 Miss Ruth E. Bullock, Redlands, Cal.
 '15. Ln. Central Union High School and Junior College L., El Centro.

- And Junior Conege L., El Centro, Miss Elta L. Camper, Berkeley, Cal. '17. Asst. Univ. of Cal. L., Berkeley, Miss Blanche Chalfant, Bishop, Cal. '14. Ln. Butte Co. F. L., Oroville, Miss Marguerite Chalfield, Pasadena, Cal. '20. Asst. Sacramento Co. F. L., Sacramento.
- Miss Nellie E. Christensen, Selma, Cal. '19, Ln. Selma High School L., Selma, Miss Mabel Coulter, Salinas, Cal. '14. Asst. Contra Costa Co. F. L., Mar-
- tinez

Miss Helen Esther Crawford, Winters, Cal. '20. Out of library work. Miss Dorotha Davis, Los Angeles, Cal. '17. Ln. Fresno High School L., Fresno.

- Miss Dotoma David Lin, Fresno.
 '17. Ln, Fresno High School L., Fresno.
 Miss Tillie de Bernardi, Santa Rosa, Cal.
 '18. Out of library work.
 Miss Estella De Ford, National City, Cal.
 '15. Ln. Napa Co. F. L., Napa.
 Miss Margaret Dennison, Alameda, Cal.
 '17. Asst. Sutro Branch, State L., San
 Ereneisco.

- Francisco.
 Wiss Abbie Doughty, San Luis Obispo, Cal.
 '20. Teacher-Ln. Bonita Union H i g h School, La Verne.
 Miss Ellen B. Frink, Palo Alto, Cal.
 '19. Asst. Monterey Co. F. L., Salinas.
 Miss Flo A. Gantz, Pomona, Cal.
 '20. Ln. San Luis Obispo Co. F. L., San Luis Obispo.
 Miss Beatrice Y. Gawne, Berkeley, Cal.
 '17. Ln. Salinas Union High School L.

- 17.
- Ln. Salinas Union High School L., Salinas.
- Miss Hazel G. Gibson, Santa Monica, Cal. '19. Asst. Sacramento Co. F. L., Sacramento.

- Miss Margaret V. Girdner, Sacramento. '17. Ln. Palo Alto High School L., Palo Alto. Miss Mary E. Glock, Madera, Cal. '15. Died, March 6, 1922. Miss Bernice L. Goff, San Jose, Cal. '14. Asst. P. L., New York City. Mrs Jennie Rumsey Gould, Woodland, Cal. '14. Out of library work. Mrs Mildred Kellogg Hargis, Salinas, Cal. '18. Out of library work. Mrs Louise Jammé Harriss, Hood River, Mrs Louise January Oregon. '15. Out of library work. Miss Margaret Hatch, Santa Rosa, Cal. '15. Ln. Standard Oil Co. L., San Fran-'20. cisco. Mrs Hazel Meddaugh Heffner, Stockton, Cal. '18. Out of library work. Miss Cecilia Henderson, Santa Paula, Cal. '14. Out of library work.
 Miss Edna S. Holroyd, Hanford, Cal.
 '15. Ln. San Mateo Co. F. L., Redwood '15. Ln. San Anderson City.
 Mrs Helen Hopwood Judd, Palo Alto, Cal.
 '20. Out of library work.
 Mrs Winona McConnell Kennedy, Elk '17. rs How '20. Out of M. Grove, 'Cal. '15. Out of library work. '15. Out of library work. Tose, Cal. 'Uhrary work. 'Sawson, San Diego, Mrs Marguerite Ryan Kirschman, San-Jose, Cal. '19. Out of library work. Mrs Algeline Marlow Lawson, San Diego, Mrs Cal. Cal. '18. Asst. P. L., San Diego. Miss Marjorie C. Learned, Pasadena, Cal. '20. Asst. P. L., Pasadena. Miss Amy G. Luke, Willows, Cal. '15. Out of library work. Mrs Bessie Heath McCrea, Michigan Bar, Cal. '10. Asst. Staté L., Sacramento. Y19. Asst. State L., Sacramento.
 Miss N. Ruth McCullough, Berkeley, Cal.
 Y17. Out of library work. Miss Jo Cal. Mrs Ruth Beard McDowell, Modesto, Cal. '14. Out of library work. Miss M. Ruth McLaughlin, Lamanda Park, Cal. Mrs '17. Out of library work.
 rs Everett McCullough Berkeley, Cal.
 '19. Out of library work. 17. Mrs McMullan, Mrs Georgia Pearl Secker Meyers, Fresno, Cal. '19. Ln. Tulare Joint Union High 19. Ln. Tulare Joint Union High School L., Tulare.
 Miss Anne Margrave, Santa Barbara, Cal.
 '14. Ln. Inyo Co. F. L., Independence.
 Miss Lenala Martin, Sacramento, Cal.
 '14. Ln. Lassen Co. F. L., Susanville, Miss Vera V. Mitchell, Oakland, Cal.
 '19. Asst. Ln. Oroville High School L., Oroville Oroville Miss Marion Morse, Berkeley, Cal. '17. Ln, Maui Co. F. L., Wailuku, T. H. Mrs Alice Moore Patton, Los Gatos, Cal. '18. Out of library work. Mrs Helen Katherine Kellogg Peabody, Salinas, Cal. '19. Out of library work. Mrs Morion Schumacher, Bornival, Hon-'19. Out of library work. rs Marion Schumacher Percival, Han-Mrs Y15. Out of library work.
 Mrs. Miriam Colcord Post, Modesto, Cal.
 Y14. Ln. Bakersfield Branch, Kern Co. Free L., Bakersfield. (On leave of absence.)
 - Miss Margaret L. Potter, Oakland, Cal. '16. Asst. Lane Medical L., San Francisco.
 - Mrs Eunice Steele Price, Berkeley, Cal. '16. Out of library work.
 - Mrs Beatrice Brasefield Rakestraw, Palo Alto, Cal.
 - Alto, Cal. '18. Ln. Cleveland Junior High School L., Elizabeth, N. J. Miss Esther L. Ramont, Modesto, Cal. '20. Ln. Modesto High School L., Nadasto

 - Modesto.
 - Mrs Frances Haub Raymond, Sacramento, Cal.
 - Out of library work,
 - Miss Anna Belle Robinson, Claremont, Cal. Miss Mind Bene Roomson, Charemont, Car.
 '18. Died, June 22, 1920.
 Miss Myrtle Ruhl, Redwood City, Cal.
 '14. Head of Order Dept., State L.,

 - Sacramento.
 - Miss Ruth Seymour, Mill Valley, Cal. '18. Ln. Tamalpais Union High School '18. Ln. Tamalpai L., Mill Valley.
 - Miss Blanche L. Shadle, Lodi, Cal. '17. On vacation.
 - Mrs Edith Edenborg Smalley, Muroc, Cal.
 - '18. Out of library work. Mrs Edna Bell Smith, Fairoaks, Cal. '17. Out of library work.

 - Elizabeth Snyder Smith, Berkeley,
 - '20. Out of library work.
 - Mrs Vivian Gregory Smith, Woodland, Cal. '14. Ln. Security Trust and Savings Bank, Los Angeles.
 - Mrs Rosamond Bradbury Waithman. Santa Barbara, Cal.

 - Salita Dalbara, Cal.
 '18. Out of library work.
 Miss Caroline Wenzel, Sacramento, Cal.
 '14. Asst. State L., Sacramento.
 Miss Josephine L. Whitbeck, Richmond,

 - '16. Asst. P. L., Sacramento, Miss Essie T. White, Broderick, Cal. '19. Asst. Sacramento High School and

 - Junior College L., Sacramento. Katharine Cahoon Wilson, Berkeley. 7. Out of library work.

 - Miss Aldine Winham, Salinas, Cal. '20. Ln. State Teachers College L., Santa Barbara. Mrs Dorothy Clarke Worden, Sacramento,
 - Cal.

 - ^{115.} Ln. Colusa Co, F. L., Colusa.
 ^{115.} Ln. Colusa, Co, F. L., Colusa.
 ^{118.} Asst. Orange Co. F. L., Santa Ana.

News Items.

Miss Ellen Frink returned from her work in the Detroit Public Library to the Monterey County Free Library May 19.

Miss Blanche L. Shadle resigned from the Kern County Free Library in June. For personal reasons it is necessary for her to be located farther north.

Mrs Pearl Secker Meyers has been appointed librarian of the Tulare Joint Union High School.

RECENT ACCESSIONS. Additions to the Library During April, May and June, 1924. The last number of the Quarterly Bulle- in of the California State Library which was issued was no. 4 of vol. 4, covering he accessions for September-December, 1905. The Bulletin has been discontinued and the matter contained in it is now uppearing in the News Notes of Cali- ionnia Libraries.	 PIERCE, Anna Eloise. Catalog of literature for advisers of young women and girls. Rev. and enl. ed. 1923. q016.396 P6c SALMON, Lucy Maynard. The newspaper and authority. 1923. 070 S17n SOHON, Julian Arell, & Schaaf, William L., comps. A reference list of bibliographies:
The last list of recent accessions appeared in the April, 1924, issue of this publication.	chemistry, chemical technology, and chemical engineering since 1900. 1924. qr016.6 S6
GENERAL WORKS. AMERICAN Library Association, Reading course on home economics, 1924. 028 A51h	SUGGETT, Laura Steffens. The beginning and the end of the best library service in the world. 1924. c021 S94
 Reading course on house plan- ning, interior decoration and furni- ture. 1924. 028 A51 	 SWETLAND, Horace Monroe, ed. Industrial publishing. c1923. 070 S97 WILSON, H. W., firm, publishers. Standard catalog: fiction section; a
BEDFORD, Clayton W., & Winkelmann, Herbert A. Systematic survey of rubber chemistry. 1923. 016.66 B41	selected list of 2350 of the best novels for public libraries, compiled by Corinne Bacon. 1923. (Standard catalog series) q016.823 W7al
'RAWFORD, Nelson Antrim.	PHILOSOPHY AND ETHICS.
The ethics of journalism. 1924. 070 C89 HASLAM, W. The library handbook of genuine trade secrets and instructions for cleaning, repairing and restoring old man- uscripts, e n g r a v i n g s and books. [1923] x025.7 H35 LANTERN lists, compiled by Zaidee Brown. 028 L29 <i>Contents:</i> No. 1, Books of adven- ture. No. 2, Cheerful books. MACLEOD, Robert D. County rural libraries, their policy and organization. 1923. x021 M16	 BACON, Roger. Roger Bacon's letter concerning the marvelous power of art and of nature and concerning the nullity of magic, translated from the Latin by Tenney L. Davis. 1923. 192 B129 BODLEY. Homer S. The fourth "R," the forgotten factor in education. c1923. 171 B66 BOSWELL, Foster Partridge. A primer of Greek thought. 1923. 180 B74 BURNS. Cecil Delisle. The contact between minds: a metaphysical hypothesis. 1923. 121 B96
Moore. Annie Carroll. New roads to childhood. c1923. 028 M821n	EGGLESTON, Mrs Margaret W, Womanhood in the making. c1923. 173 E29

4

.

FINLEY, John Huston. The debt eternal; the eternal debt of maturity to childhood and youth. c1923. 173 F51	 PUTNAM, Elizabeth (Lowell), "Mrs William Lowell Putnam." Master lights. 1924. 170 P989 SADLER, William Samuel.
FITCH, George Hamlin. The sensible life. c1924. c170 F54	The truth about spiritualism. 1923. 133.9 S12 SALT, Henry Stephens.
GIVLER, Robert Chenault. The ethics of Hercules. 1924, 171 G53	Animal's rights. 1915. 179.3 S17a Killing for sport. 1915.
 GRUENBERG, Benjamin Charles. Parents and sex education. c1923. (American social hygiene association inc. Publication) 173 G886 HOERNLÉ, Reinhold Froedrich Alfred. Matter, life, mind, and God; five lec- tures on contemporary tendencies of 	179.3 S17k SHADWELL, Arthur. Drink in 1914–1922. 1923. 178 S52d TAPPER, Thomas. Youth and opportunity. c1912. 174 T17y WAITE, Arthur Edward. The occult sciences. 1923. 133 W14
thought. [1923] 104 H69 JACKSON, William Marvin. Making business advancement sure. 1924. 174 J14	MIND AND BODY. Brown, Brian.
KING, Thomas Starr. Socrates. An oration. 1924. c183 S67zk	The dynamic power of the inner mind; an outline of practical psychology. 1924. 134 B87
LAMOTTE, Ellen N. The ethics of opium. c1924.	GALTON, Sir Francis. Noteworthy families. 1906. 136 G18
178.8 L23e LAPE, Esther Everett, ed.	HAANEL, Charles Francis. Cause and effect. 1923. 131 H11
Ways to peace; twenty plans selected from the most representative of those submitted to the American peace award. 1924. 172.4 L31	LARSON, Christian Daa. The new science of work. c1924. 131 L33n
LAWSON, Charles Francis. You can change it (though you won't). 1924. 170 L42	MARCHANT, Sir James, ed. The claims of the coming generation. 1923. 136 M31
MACDONALD, William. The intellectual worker and his work. [1923] 174 M13	PFISTER, Oskar Robert. Expressionism in art, its psychological and biological basis. Authorized trans. by Barbara Low and M. A. Mugge. 1922. 130 P52e
MORE, Paul Elmer. Hellenistic philosophies. 1923. (Greek tradition) 183 M83	Wohlcemuth, Adolf. A critical examination of psycho- analysis. [1923] 130 W84
 O'NEILL, John. Cosmology; an introduction to the philosophy of matter. 1923. 113 O58 PEIRCE, Charles Santiago Sanders. Chance, love and logic. 1923. (International library of psychology, philosophy and scientific method) 104 P37 	CHILD STUDY. Cox, Genevieve Lenore. The interests, abilities and achieve- ments of a special class for gifted children. 1923. (Teachers college, Columbia university. Contributions to education) 136.7 C88

-

CUNNINGHAM, Bess Virginia. The prognostic value of a primary group test. 1923. (Teachers college, Columbia university. Contributions to education) 136.7 C973	LUDGATE, Katherine Eva. The effect of manual guidance upon maze learning. [1923] (Psycho- logical review publications. Psy- chological monographs) q151 L9
SKAGGS, Ernest Burton. An elementary textbook of mental measurements. 1923. • 136.7 862	RIGNANO, Eugenio. The psychology of reasoning. 1923. 153 R57
STENQUIST, John Langdon.Measurements of mechanical ability.1923. (Teachers college, Columbiauniversity. Contributions to educa-tion)136.7 S82m	 SEMON, Richard Wolfgang. Mnemic psychology. Translated from the German by Bella Duffy. [1923] 154 \$47 SMITH, Walter Whately.
STINCHFIELD, Sara Mae. The formulation and standardization of a series of graded speech tests. [1923] (Psychological review pub-	The measurement of emotion. 1922. (International library of psychology, philosophy and scientific method) 157 S66 WATES, George Frederick.
lications. Psychological monographs) q136.7 S85	The magic of common sense. 1923. 153 W33
TAYLOR, Grace Adelaide. An inventory of the minds of indi- viduals of six and seven years mental age. 1923. (Teachers college,	WELLS, Frederic Lyman. Pleasure and behavior. 1924. (The conduct of mind series) 157 W45
Columbia university. Contributions to education) 136.7 T24	RELIGION. ARROWSMITH, Richard Staines.
Toops, Herbert Anderson. Tests for vocational guidance of chil- dren thirteen to sixteen. 1923. (Teachers college, Columbia univer- sity. Contributions to education) 136.7 T67	The prelude to the reformation; a study of English church life from the age of Wycliffe to the breach with Rome. 1923. (Studies in church history) 270.5 A77
	BEEBE, James Albert. The pastoral office. c1923. 250 B41
PSYCHOLOGY. BOVET, Pierre. The fighting instinct. Authorized Eng- lish translation by J. Y. T. Greig. [1923] 158 B78	BIBLE. Selections. English. The living Word; the Bible abridged for public and private reading, edited and arranged with notes, by Henry Hallam Saunderson. c1924. 220 B58s
DOWNEY, June Etta. The will-temperament and its testing. 1923. 159 D74	BRYAN, William Jennings. Famous figures of the Old Testament, c1923. 220.9 B91
DRESSER, Horatio Willis. Psychology in theory and application. c1924. 150 D77p	BUTTERFIELD, Kenyon Leech. A Christian program for the rural com- munity. 1923. (The Fondren lee-
Foster, William Silliman. Experiments in psychology. 1923.	tures) 261 B98 CASE, Shirley Jackson.
150 F75 Косн, Helen Lois. The influence of mechanical guidance upon maze learning. [1923] (Psy-	The social origins of Christianity c1923. 270.1 C334 DAWSON, Marshall.
chological review publications. Psychological monographs) g151 K7	Nineteenth century evolution and after

FARBRIDGE, Maurice Harry. Studies in Biblical and Semitic sym- bolism. 1923. (Trübner's oriental series) 220.6 F21	BARTLETT, Frederick Charles. Psychology and primitive culture. 1923. 301 B28
FOAKES-JACKSON, Frederick John. Studies in the life of the early church. c1924. 270 F64s	BERNAYS, Edward L. Crystallizing public opinion. c1923. 301 B52 COLYER, W. T.
HIRST, Margaret E.	Americanism; a world menace, 1922.
The Quakers in peace and war; an	304 C72
account of their peace principles and	COOLIDGE, Calvin.
practice. [1923] 289.6 H66	The price of freedom. 1924. 308 C77p
Hopous, Lewis.Buddhism and buddhists in China.1924.294 H83	Dove, Patrick Edward. The theory of human progression. 1910. 301 D74
JACKS, Lawrence Pearsall.	ELRIDGE, Seba.
Religious perplexities. c1923. 230 J12	Political action. c1924. (Lippincott's
MCGOVERN, William Montgomery.	sociological series) 301 E37
A manual of Buddhist philosophy. v. 1.	Hobhouse, Leonard Trelawney.
1923. (Trübner's oriental series)	Social development, its nature and
294 M14m	conditions. [1924] 301 H683
NORTON, Frederick Owen.	JACKS, Lawrence Pearsall.
The rise of Christianity. c1924. (The	Realities and shams. c1924. 304 J12r
University of Chicago publications in	KARSTEN, Karl G.
religious education. Handbooks of	Charts and graphs; an introduction to
ethics and religion) 270 N88	graphic methods in the control and
PARKS, Leighton.	analysis of statistics. 1923. 311 K18
What is modernism? 1924. 230 P25	MANUAL of charting. Board of editors;
PATTON, Cornelius Howard.	Thomas S. Adams, Richard T. Ely,
The business of missions. 1924.	Adelaide R. Hasse [and others].
266 P32b	1923. (Business school series)
PENTY, Arthur Joseph.	311 M29
Towards a Christian sociology. [1923]	Rowntree, Harold.
261 P41	Changing human nature. 1923.
PORTER, Mrs Gene (Stratton).	301 R88
Jesus of the emerald. Decorations by	TANNEBAUM, Frank.
Edward Everett Winchell. 1923.	Darker phases of the South. 1924.
232 P84	304 T16
SEARS, Clara Endicott. Days of delusion; a strange bit of history. 1924. 289.3 \$43	POLITICAL SCIENCE AND CITIZENSHIP.
STRATON, John Roach. The battle over the Bible. c1924. 230 \$89	BORAH, William Edgar. American problems, a selection of speeches and problems, edited by Horace Green, 1924. 320.73 B72
SOCIOLOGY: GENERAL.	BROOKS, Robert Clarkson.
ALLPORT, Floyd Henry.	Political parties and electoral problems.
Social psychology. c1924. 301 A44	1923. 329 B873
BALZ, Albert George Adam.	CLELAND, Robert Glass.
The basis of social theory. 1924.	One hundred years of the Monroe doc-
301 B19	trine. 1923. 327.73 C62
BARNES, Harry Elmer. Sociology and political theory. 1924. 301 B26	CUBRAN, Henry Hastings.

- HAYNES, Frederick Emory. Social politics in the United States. 1924. 329 H42s
- HEARNSHAW, Fossey John Cobb. The social and political ideas of some great mediæval thinkers. [1923] 320.9 H43
- HOLT, Lucius Hudson. The elementary principles of modern government, 1923, 320 H75e
- KENT, Frank Richardson. The great game of politics. 1923. 320.73 K37
- LEISERSON, William Morris. Adjusting immigrant and industry. 1924. (Americanization studies) 323 6 L53
- MOWRER, Paul Scott. Our foreign affairs; a study in national interest and the new diplomacy. c1924. 327.73 M93
- MUIR, Ramsay. Politics and progress. [1923] 321.8 M95p
- RICHARDSON, Norval. My diplomatic education, 1923. 327 R52
- Scorr, William Ellison. Citizenship for new Americans. c1923. 323.6 843
- SHEPHERD, William Gunn. The boys' own book of politics for Uncle Sam's young voters. 1923.
 - 320.73 S54
- Тномая, David Yancey. One hundred years of the Monroe doctrine, 1823-1923. 1923. 327.73 Т45
- WHELPLEY, James Davenport. British-Americans relations. 1924. 327.73 W56b

IMMIGRATION.

- NATIONAL industrial conference board. The immigration problem in the United States. c1923. (Research report) 331 N277
- PHELPS, Edith M., comp. Restriction of immigration. 1924. 325.73 P53r
- Post, Louis Freeland. The deportations delirum of nineteentwenty. c1923, 325.73 P85

STELLA, Antonio. Some aspects of Italian imimgration to the United States. 1924. 325.245 S82 ECONOMICS. ATKINS, David. The economics of freedom, 1924. 330 A873 BLANC, Elsie Terry. Co-operative movement in Russia. 1924. 330.947 B63 CHRISTIANITY and economic problems. 1922.(Social problem discussion series) 330 C55 DARIAC. M. The Dariac report; Ruhr, Rhineland and Saar. The full text of the secret 330.943 D21 report. DOUGLAS-IRVINE, Helen. The making of rural Europe. [1923] 330.94 D73 ELY, Richard Theodore [and others]. Elementary principles of economics, together with a short sketch of economic history. 3d ed., rev. 1923. 330.2 E52al - Outlines of economics (4th rev. ed.) 1923. (Social science textbooks) 330 E52o FLUX, Alfred William. Economic principles, an introductory study. 2d ed., rev. [1923] 330.1 F64 HUNTER, Merlin Harold & Watkins, Gordon S. The background of economics. 1923. 330 H94 JOHNSON, Joseph French. We and our work. 1923. q330 J6 LE ROSSIGNOL, James Edward. Economics for every man. 1923.330.1 L61 MARRIOTT, John Arthur Ransome, Economics and ethics: a treatise on 330.1 M35 wealth and life. [1923] MONROE, Arthur Eli, ed. Early economic thought; selections from economic literature prior to Adam

Smith, 1924, 330.9 M75

NANSEN, Fridtjof.	BENJAMIN, Lewis S.
Russia & peace. [1923] 1924.	The South Sea bubble. 1923.
330.947 N18	336.42 B46
PARSONS, Floyd W _k Everybody's business; the story of America's assets and opportunities as represented by the nation's chief in-	 HAM, Arthur Harold. A credit union primer. 1923. 334.2 H19 KEYNES, John Maynard. Monetary reform. 1924. 332 K44
dustries. 1923. 330.973 P26 ROBINSON, James Eugene. Wrongs and remedies; economic live wire essays. 1923. 330 R66	KNIFFIN, William Henry. Commercial banking. 1923. 2 v. 332.1 K69c
CAPITAL AND LABOR. BLANSHARD, Paul. An outline of the British labor move- ment. c1923. 331.8 B64	METZ, Charles James. Condition of public funds, state of Georgia, January 1st, 1916. [1916] 336.758 M59 PUTNAM, Thomas Milton.
BUILDING trades employers' association of	Mathematical theory of finance. 1923.
New York city.	336 P99
The handbook of the Building trades	TAXATION.
employers' association of the city of	KAHN, Otto Hermann.
New York, 1922; a list of members,	Why I favor the Mellon tax plan. 1924.
the rates of wages, the joint arbitra-	336.2 K12w
tion plan. 1922. 331.88 B932	KOHLEB, Eric Louis.
COMMONS, John Rogers, Legal foundations of capitalism. 1924. 331 C73le	Accounting principles underlying federal income taxes. 1924. 336.2 K79
 HIGGINS, Henry Bournes. A new province for law & order; being a review of the Australian Court of conciliation and arbitration. [1922] 331.1 H63 	[KUSHIDA, Tamizô]. War and armament taxes of Japan. 1923. (Publications of the Carnegie endowment for international peace. Division of economics and history) g336.52 K9
QUICK, Herbert.	ROSSMOORE, Emerson Emanuel.
The real trouble with the farmers.	Federal income taxes, principles and
c1924. 331 Q6	practice. 1924. 336.2 R83fe
ROCKEFELLER, John Davison. The personal relation in industry. c1923. 331.8 R68a TAYLOR, Paul Schuster.	TUCKER, James Irwin. Oil valuation and taxation; the federal income tax and its appraisal methods
The Sailor's union of the Pacific. 1923.	applied to the oil industry. c1923.
c331.88 T24	336.2 T89
WARE, Norman.	COMMERCE, COMMUNICATION.
The industrial worker, 1840–1860.	DUNCAN, Kenneth.
1924. (Hart, Schaffner & Marx prize	Equipment obligations. 1924.
essays) 331.8 W271	385 D91e
WOOD, Mrs Edith (Elmer). Housing progress in western Europe. c1923. 331.83 W874h	
BANKING AND FINANCE.	LITMAN, Simon.
AMERICAN institute of banking,	Essentials of international trade. 1923.
Credits, c1923. 332.7 A51	382 L77

242

vol. 19, no. 3]

WADE, Herbert Treadwell.	REDFIELD, William Cox.
Scales and weighing; their industrial	With Congress and cabinet. 1924.
applications. 1924. (Ronald manu-	353 R31
facturing management and adminis- tration series) 389 W11	REED, Thomas Harrison. Government and politics of Belgium.
tration series) 389 W11	1924. (Government handbooks)
LAW AND ADMINISTRATION.	342.493 R32
Conover, Milton.	RUSSIA (1917) Constitution.
Office of experiment stations, its history,	The soviet constitution, edited by An-
activities and organization. 1924.	drew Rothstein. [1923] 342.47 R96
(Institute for government research.	SCHMECKEBIER, Laurence Frederick.
Service monographs of the United	The customs service; its history, activi-
States government) 353.8 C750	ties and organization. 1924. (Insti-
ELLIOTT, Edward.	tute for government research. Serv-
Biographical story of the Constitution;	ice monographs of the United States
a study of the growth of the Ameri-	government) 353.8 \$34c
can union. c1910. 342.73 E463b	SHORT, Lloyd Milton.
GOEBEL, Julius Ludwig.	Development of national administrative
The equality of states; a study in the	organization in the United States. 1923. (Institute for government re-
history of law. 1923. 341 G59	search, Studies in administration)
JOHNSEN, Julia E., comp.	353.8 S55d
Soldiers' bonus, 1924. (The reference	Sмітн, Darrell Hevenor.
shelf) 351.5 J65	The United States Employment service;
MACDONALD, Austin F.	its history, activities and organiza-
Federal subsidies to the states; a study	tion. 1923. (Institute for govern- ment research. Service monographs
in American administration. 1923.	of the United States government)
353 M13	353.8 S64u
MCMICHAEL, Stanley L. & Bingham, Rob-	SMITH, Darrell Hevenor, & Herring,
ert F.	Henry Guy.
City growth and values. 1923.	The Bureau of immigration. 1924. (In-
352 M16	stitute for government research.
MANNING, William Ray, ed. Arbitration treaties among the Ameri-	Service monographs of the United
can nations, to the close of the year	States government) 353.8 S64
1910. 1924. (Publications of the	WEBER, Gustavus Adolphus, 1863-
Carnegie endowment for international	The Patent office; its history, activities and organization. 1924. (Institute
peace. Division of international law)	for government research. Service
q341.2 M2	monographs of the United States gov-
MITCHELL, Charles Ainsworth.	ernment) 353.8 W37p
The expert witness and the applications	WRONG, Humphrey Hume.
of science and of art in human iden-	Government of the West Indies. 1923
tification, criminal inevstigation, civil actions & history. 1923.	342.729 W95
347.94 M68	
	EDUCATION.
NATIONAL industrial conference board.	BATCHELDER, Samuel Francis.
The soldiers' bonus; or, Adjusted com- pensation for soldiers. [1923]	Bits of Harvard history. 1924. 378.744 HEba
(Special report) 331 N277s	
	BLACKFORD, Mrs Katherine M. (Hunt singer) & Newcomb, Arthur.
NEWTON, Arthur Percival. Federal and unified constitutions. 1923.	
(University of London historical	
series) 342 N56	

243

CLEMENT, John Addison.	ORCHAED, Hugh Anderson.
Curriculum making in secondary	Fifty years of Chautauqua. 1928.
schools. 1923. 375 C62	374.9 064
Collings, Ellsworth. An experiment with a project curricu- lum.~ 1923. 371.3 C71	OSUNA, John Joseph. Education in Porto Rico. 1923. (Teachers college, Columbia univer- sity. Contributions to education)
COMMITTEE on the war and the religious	379.7295 085
outlook.	PARLIN, Frank Edson.
The teaching work of the church. 1923.	English phonetics; a manual for teach-
377 C73	ers for non-English-speaking pupils.
 EDUCATIONAL finance inquiry commission. Elementary school costs in the state of New York. 1924. 379.747 E24e Financial statistics of public edu- 	1923. 372.4 P24 SHOWAN, P. B. Citizenship and the school. 1923. (Cambridge handbooks for teachers) 375 S55
action in the United States, 1910– 1920. 1924. q379.1 E2 ————————————————————————————————————	373 535 SMITH, Edward Ehrlich. The heart of the curriculum. 1924. 372.4 864 SMITH, Eugene Randolph.
379.747 E24	Education moves ahead. c1024.
HASKINS, Charles Homer.	371.3 S64
The rise of universities. 1923. (Brown	SNEDDEN, David Samuel.
university, The Colver lectures, 1923)	Educational applications of sociology.
378 H35	1924. 370.1 S67eu
HUMPHREYS, Harry Christopher.	WELLS, Guy Fred.
The factors operating in the location of	Paris education in colonial Virginia.
state normal schools, 1923. (Teach-	1923. (Teachers college, Columbia
ers college, Columbia university. Con-	university. Contributions to educa-
tributions to advection). 270.72 H00	tion) 379.755 W45
tributions to education) 370.73 H92 HURT, Huber William. The college blue book. c1923. r378.73 H96 Contents: v. 1 Liberal arts & science.	ASSOCIATIONS. DAVIS, Susan Lawrence. Authentic history, Ku Klux klan, 1865– 1877. 1924. 363 D26
KANDEL, Isaac Leon, ed.	GUY, Cuthbert Arnold.
Twenty-five years of American educa-	Scouting and religion. 1924.
tion. 1924. 370.973 K16	367 G98
LA RUE, Daniel Wolford.	MECKLIN, John Moffatt.
The child's mind and the common	The Ku Klux klan: a study of the
branches. 1924. 370.1 L33	American mind. 1924. 363 M48
LOSH, Rosamond.	NATIONAL industrial conference board.
Primary number projects. c1923. (Riv-	A manual for mutual benefit associa-
erside educational monographs)	tions. c1924. (Research report)
372.7 L87	331 N277
McMillan, Margaret.	RICHARDS, George L., ed.
Education through the imagination.	The medical work of the Near East
[1923] 370.1 M16	relief. 1923. 361 R51
MANSBRIDGE, Albert.	CUSTOMS AND FOLK-LORE.
The older universities of England: Ox-	GERSTLE, Miriam.
ford & Cambridge. 1923.	Star dust; fairy tales for children from
378.42 M28	six to sixty. 1923. c398 G38

GREEN, Laura S., comp. and tr. Hawaiian stories and wise sayings, 1923. 398 G796	CostiGAN, George Purcell, Cases on wills, descent, and administra- tion, 1910(American casebook series)
 LUTES, Mrs Della (Thompson). The gracious hostess; a book of eti- quette, c1923. LUTZ, Henry Frederick. 	CREAM, Thomas Neill, dcfcndant. Trial of Thomas Neill Cream, edited by W. Teignmouth Shore. [1923] (Nota- ble British trials)
Textiles and costumes among the peoples of the ancient Near East. 1923. 391 L87 OLDEN, Sarah Emilia.	EVANS, Robert Ramsey. The law and practice relating to divorce and other matrimonial causes, 1923.
Karoc Indian stories. c1923. 398 O44	GOLDMAN, Samuel P.
 PARSONS, Mrs Elsie Worthington (Clews). Folk-lore from the Cape Verde Islands. 1923. 2 v. (Memoirs of the Ameri- can folk-lore society) 398 A51 	Stock exchange law, with special reference to the New York stock exchange and New York law. 1923.GOBDON, Saul.
THORPE, Mrs Cora Wells. In the path of the trade winds. 1924.	Gordon's annotated forms of agreement, 1923.
398 T518 VCGUE. Vogue's book of etiquette; present-day customs of social intercourse with the rules for their correct observance. 1924. r395 V88	HILL, L. V., & Wilkin, Ralph Horace. Workmen's compensation statute law; an alalytical and compared digest of the statute law of all the states and territories relating to workmen's com- pensation. 1923.
1000 100	-
WADIA, Ardeshir Ruttonji. The ethics of feminism. [1923] 396 W12	JONES, BUIT W. The law of evidence in civil cases. 3d ed., rev. and enl. 1924.
WADIA, Ardeshir Ruttonji. The ethics of feminism. [1923]	Jones, Burr W. The law of evidence in civil cases. 3d
WADIA, Ardeshir Ruttonji. The ethics of feminism. [1923] 396 W12 WESTERVELT, William Drake. Hawaiian historical legends. c1923. 398 W52h LAW.	 JONES, Burr W. The law of evidence in civil cases. 3d ed., rev. and enl. 1924. JOYCE, Joseph Ashbury, & Joyce, Howard Clifford.
WADIA, Ardeshir Ruttonji. The ethics of feminism. [1923] 396 W12 WESTERVELT, William Drake. Hawaiian historical legends. c1923. 398 W52h	 JONES, Burr W. The law of evidence in civil cases. 3d ed., rev. and enl. 1924. JOYCE, Joseph Ashbury, & Joyce, Howard Clifford. A treatise on the law of defenses in actions on commercial paper, including the Uniform negotiable instruments law with full annotations. 2d ed., rev. and enl., by Daniel W. Crockett. e1924. 2 v.
 WADIA, Ardeshir Ruttonji. The ethics of feminism. [1923] 396 W12 WESTERVELT, William Drake. Hawaiian historical legends. c1923. 398 W52h LAW. BEWES, Wyndham Anstis. The romance of the law merchant, being an introduction to the study of inter- national and commercial law. 1923. BYWATERS, Frederick Edward Francis, <i>defendant</i>. 	 JONES, Burr W. The law of evidence in civil cases. 3d ed., rev. and enl. 1924. JOYCE, Joseph Ashbury, & Joyce, Howard Clifford. A treatise on the law of defenses in actions on commercial paper, including the Uniform negotiable instruments law with full annotations. 2d ed., rev. and enl., by Daniel W.
 WADIA, Ardeshir Ruttonji. The ethics of feminism. [1923] 396 W12 WESTERVELT, William Drake. Hawaiian historical legends. c1923. 398 W52h LAW. BEWES, Wyndham Anstis. The romance of the law merchant, being an introduction to the study of inter- national and commercial law. 1923. BYWATERS, Frederick Edward Francis, 	 JONES, Burr W. The law of evidence in civil cases. 3d ed., rev. and enl. 1924. JOYCE, Joseph Ashbury, & Joyce, Howard Clifford. A treatise on the law of defenses in actions on commercial paper, including the Uniform negotiable instruments law with full annotations. 2d ed., rev. and enl., by Daniel W. Crockett. c1924. 2 v. KAGEY, Charles Claudius.
 WADIA, Ardeshir Ruttonji. The ethics of feminism. [1923] 396 W12 WESTERVELT, William Drake. Hawaiian historical legends. c1923. 398 W52h LAW. BEWES, Wyndham Anstis. The romance of the law merchant, being an introduction to the study of inter- national and commercial law. 1923. BYWATERS, Frederick Edward Francis, <i>defendant</i>. Trial of Frederick Bywaters and Edith Thompson, edited by Filson Young. 	 JONES, Burr W. The law of evidence in civil cases. 3d ed., rev. and enl. 1924. JOYCE, Joseph Ashbury, & Joyce, Howard Clifford. A treatise on the law of defenses in actions on commercial paper, includ- ing the Uniform negotiable instru- ments law with full annotations. 2d ed., rev. and enl., by Daniel W. Crockett, c1924. 2 v. KAGEY, Charles Claudius. Land survey and land titles. 1914. KANSAS. Laws. statutes, clc. Revised statutes of Kansas (annotated)
 WADIA, Ardeshir Ruttonji. The ethics of feminism. [1923] 396 W12 WESTERVELT, William Drake. Hawaiian historical legends. c1923. 398 W52h LAW. DEWES, Wyndham Anstis. The romance of the law merchant, being an introduction to the study of inter- national and commercial law. 1923. BYWATERS, Frederick Edward Francis, <i>defendant</i>. Trial of Frederick Bywaters and Edith Thompson, edited by Filson Young. [1923] (Notable British trials) CALIFORNIA. Laws, statutes, etc The Civil code of the state of California. 	 JONES, Burr W. The law of evidence in civil cases. 3d ed., rev. and enl. 1924. JOYCE, Joseph Ashbury, & Joyce, Howard Clifford. A treatise on the law of defenses in actions on commercial paper, including the Uniform negotiable instruments law with full annotations. 2d ed., rev. and enl., by Daniel W. Crockett. c1924. 2 v. KAGEY, Charles Claudius. Land survey and land titles. 1914. KANSAS. Laws, statutes, clc. Revised statutes of Kansas (annotated) 1923. KINGSTON, Charles. Famous judges and famous trials.

the State housing law of California. MORRIS, Sylvanus. Principia of law, 1923. c1023.

-

MYRICK, Herbert. How to use the new Agricultural credits act of 1923; including official text of the act of Congress approved March	McLAREN, J. A concise English-Kafir dictionary. 1923. 496 M16c
 4, 1923. 1923. NEW HAMPSHIRE. Laws, statutes, etc. Report of the commissioners to compile and revise the statute laws of New Hampshire. 1878. 	MARCHAND, Charles M. Advanced French grammar. c1923. 445 M31 MASON, William Lesley. Troublesome words and how to use them, c1924. 421 M41
 NEW YORK (State). Laws, statutes, etc. Cahill's Consolidated laws of New York, being the Consolidated laws of 1909, as amended to July 1, 1923. 1923. PENNSYLVANIA. Reports. Various courts. Northumberland legal journal. 1915– 1920. 4 v. 	 ROA, Armando. Spanish business grammar. 1924. 465 R62 ROGERS, Herbert Lionel, & Harley, T. R., eds. Roman home life and religion; a reader.
RHODE ISLAND. Laws, statutes, etc. General laws of the state of Rhode Island and Providence Plantations. Revision of 1923. 1923.	1923. 478 R72 TROFIMOV, Mikhail V., & Jones, Daniel. The pronunciation of Russian. 1923. (Cambridge primers of pronuncia- tion) 491.7 T84
RIDGES, Edward Wavell. Constitutional law of England. 1922. SALMOND, John William. Jurisprudence. 7th ed. 1924.	 WRIGHT, Joseph, & Wright, Mrs Elizabeth Mary (Lea). An elementary Old English grammar. 1923.
 The law of torts : a treatise on the English law of liability for civil injuries. 6th ed. 1924. SOUTH DAKOTA. Constitution. Constitution, 1923, state of South Dakota, annotated. c1923. 	NATURAL SCIENCE: GENERAL. BEEBE, Charles William. 'Galapagos, world's end. 1924. q508.986 B4 HUDSON, William Henry.
 STREET, Arthur Leonard Howell. American funeral law. 1924. THOMPSON, George Washington. Commentaries on the modern law of real property. 1924. 	Hampshire days. 1923. 504 H88ha MARVIN, Francis Sydney, ed. Science and civilization. 1923. 504 M39 SLOSSON, Edwin Emery. Chats on science. c1924. 504 S63
 VERMONT, Laws, statutes, etc. The general laws of Vermont 1917, including the public acts of 1917. 1918. VIRGINIA law review, v. 1-9. 1914-1923. 	MATHEMATICS. KENT, Frederick Charles. Mathematical principles of finance. 1924. 510 K372
LANGUAGE. BELL, Ralcy Husted. The mystery of words. c1924. 420.4 B43m	Young, Jacob William Albert. Monographs on topics of modern mathe- matics. 1924. 510 Y73 PHYSICS.
 Fowler, Henry Watson, & Fowler, Francis George. The king's English. 2d ed. 1922. 425 F78 	CAMPBELL, Leslie Lyle. Galvanomagnetic and thermomagnetic effects. 1923. (Monographs on phy-

- FAJANS, Kasimir. Radio activity and the latest developments in the study of the chemical elements. [1923] 537.5 F17
- RICE, James. Relativity. 1923. 530 R49
- RUSK, Rogers D. How to teach physics. c1923. 530.7 R95
- SMITH, William Griswold. Engineering kinematics. 1923. 531.1 S66
- STANTON, Thomas Ernest. Friction. 1923. 531.4 S79

CHEMISTRY.

ALLEN, Alfred Henry.

- Allen's commercial organic analysis. 5th ed. Rev. and in part rewritten. c1923. 543 A42a
- BARKER, Thomas Vipond. Graphical and tabular methods in crystallography. [1922] q548 B2
- BORN, Max. The constitution of matter, modern atomic and electron theories; trans. from the 2d revised German edition. [1923] 541.2 B73
- GRAETZ, Leo. Recent developments in atomic theory. [1923] 541.2 G73
- Holst, Helge, & Kramers, H. A.
 The atom and the Bohr theory of its structure; an elementary presentation. 1923.
 541.2 H75
- IIOPKINS, B. Smith. Chemistry of the rarer elements. c1923. 546.6 H79
- RAIZISS, George W. Organic arsenical compounds. 1923. 546.1 R16

GEOLOGY.

- HERDMAN, Sir William Abbott. Founders of oceanography and their work. 1923. 551.46 H54
- HUMPHREYS, William Jackson. Weather proverbs and paradoxes. 1923. 551.5 H92w

- MACFARLANE, John Muirhead. Fishes the source of petroleum. 1923. 553.2 M143
- MILNER, Henry B. An introduction to sedimentary petrography. [1922] 552.5 M65
- WILLIAMS, A. Francon. Everyone's book of the weather. 1923. 551.5 W72

BIOLOGY.

BURKITT, Miles Crawford, Our forerunners. c1924. (Home university library of modern knowledge) 571 B95o COULTER, John Merle, & Coulter, Merle Crowe. Where evolution and religion meet. 575 C85 1924. DAVENPORT, Charles Benedict. Body-build and its inheritance, 1923. (Carnegie institution of Washington. Publication) q575.1 D2b MACKENZIE, Donald Alexander, Ancient man in Britain, 1922.

571 M15

- THOMSON, John Arthur. What is man? 1924. 575 T48w
- WASMANN, Erich. Modern biology and the theory of evolution. 1923. 570 W31

BOTANY.

- BERRY, Edward Wilber. Tree ancestors; a glimpse into the past. 1923. 582 B53
- DALLIMORE, W. & Jackson, Albert Bruce.
 A handbook of Coniferae including Ginkgoaceae. 1923.
 582 D14
- GIBSON, Robert John Harvey.
 British plant names and their derivations. 1923. 580.1 G44
- LE CORBEAU, Adrien. The forest giant. 1924. c582 L46
- LÖHNIS, Felix & Fred, Edwin Broun. Textbook of agricultural bacteriology. 1923. (Agricultural and biological publications) 589.9 L83

PRATT, Merritt Berry.	MEDICINE AND HYGIENE.
Shade and ornamental trees of Cali-	BANNING, Pierson Worrall.
fornia. [1922?] qc582 P9	Mental and spiritual healing, all schools
RIGG, George Burton.	and methods. c1923. (Thread of
The pharmacists' botany. 1924.	life series) c615.85 B21
581 R56	Gift of author.
RUSSELL, Sir Edward.	BEARD, Harriet Elizabeth.
The Micro-organisms of the soil. 1923.	Safety first for school and home. 1924.
(Rothamsted monographs on agri-	614.8 B368
cultural science) 589.9 R961	BERG, Ragnar.
	Vitamins. [1923] 612.39 B49
BIRDS.	BLEULER, Eugen. & Brill, Abraham Arden.
FITZSIMONS, Frederick William.	Textbook of psychiatry. 1924.
The natural history of South Africa.	616.84 B64
1923. 2 v. 598.2 F56	BOULNOIS, Helen Mary.
HOLMER, M. R. N.	The healing power. 1922. 615.85 B76
Indian bird-life. 1923. 598.2 H74	
	DOTY, Alvah Hunt. Walking for health. 1923. 613.7 D72
THORBURN, Archibald.	Walking for health. 1923. 613.7 D72
Game birds and wild-fowl of Great	FINCK, Henry Theophilus.
Britain and Ireland. 1923. f598.2 T4	Girth control, for womanly beauty,
1096.2 14	manly strength, health and a long
	life for everybody. 1923. 613.2 F49
ZOOLOGY.	HEGNER, Robert Wilhelm, & Taliaferro,
BUXTON, Patrick Alfred.	William Hay.
Animal life in deserts, a study of the	Human protozoology. 1924.
fauna in relation to the environment. 1923. 591.15 B99	616.96 H46
1925. 591.15 699	HOOP, J. H. van der. Character and the unconscious. Author-
DUNBAR-BRANDER, Archibald Alexander.	ized translation by Elizabeth Trevel-
Wild animals in central India. 1923.	yan, 1923. (International library
590 D95	of psychology, philosophy and
MCEWEN, Robert Stanley.	scientific method) 616.8 H78
Vertebrate embryology. c1923.	KOBER, George Martin.
591.3 M14	Industrial health. [1924] 613.6 K75i
MACFARLANE, John Muirhead.	
The evolution and distribution of fishes.	McFARLAND, Joseph. Fighting foes too small to see. 1924.
1923. 597 M14	616.91 M14
MAXWELL-LEFROY, Harold.	
Manual of entomology, with special	MENDEL, Lafayette Benedict. Nutrition: the chemistry of life. 1923.
reference to economic entomology.	612.3 M53
1923. 595.7 M46	MILES, Walter Richard.
	Alcohol and human efficiency. 1924.
USEFUL ARTS: GENERAL.	(Carnegie institution of Washington.
BONSER, Frederick Gordon & Mossman,	Publication) q613.8 M6
Lois Coffey.	MITCHELL, Philip Henry.
Industrial arts for elementary schools.	A textbook of general physiology for
1923. 607 B72	colleges. 1923. (Agricultural and
SELVIDGE, Robert Washington.	biological publications) 612 M68
How to teach a trade. c1923.	MOON, Robert Oswald.
607 S46	Hippocrates and his successors in rela-
SMITH, Harry Bradley.	tion to philosophy of their time. 1923.
Industrial history, 1923. 609 \$64	610.9 M81

5 - 33352

MOTTRAM, Vernon Henry. A manual of histology. [1923] 611 M92	WHYATT, Henry Gilbert. Streets, roads and pavements; a treatise on the materials, equipment, and
MÜLLER, Jorgen Peter. The daily five minutes, for the fit to keep fit and the best basis of physical training for both sexes. 1924. 613.7 M95	methods employed in the construc- tion and maintenance. 1923. (Pit- man's technical primer series) 625.7 W62
OGDEN, Robert Morris. Hearing. c1924. 612.8 O34 PETERS, Lulu Hunt.	ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING. FLIGHT, William Stanley. Electrical insulation. 1923. (Pitman's
Diet for children (and adults) and the kalori kids. 1924. 613.2 P48d SALEEBY, Caleb Williams.	technical primer series). 621.31 F62 JANSKY, Cyril Methodius. Elements of storage batteries. 1923. 621.35 J35
Sunlight and health. 1924. 615.83 S16 STARLING, Ernest Henry. The action of alcohol on man. 1923.	MORECROFT. John Harold. & Hehre, Frederick William. Continuous current circuits and
613.8 S795 TRIDON, André. Psychoanalysis and man's unconscious	machinery. 1923. 621.31 M83c SMITH, Charles Frederick. Testing of transformers and alternating
motives. c1924. 616.8 T82pm WILDER, Harris Hawthorne. The history of the human body. 2d ed.,	current machines. [1922] (Pitman's technical primer series) 621.31 S64t
rev. 1923. 611 W67	AGRICULTURE.
ENGINEERING. ADAMS, Henry Charles. Domestic sanitation and house drainage. [1923] (Oxford technical publica- tions) 628.6 A21	AMERICAN reforestation association. Comprehensive, nation-wide plan for conservation and reforestation. [1923] q634.9 A5r EDWARDES, Tickner. Bee-keeping for all, a manual of honey-
ADAMS, Henry Charles. Domestic sanitation and house drainage. [1923] (Oxford technical publica- tions) 628.6 A21 BFARD, James Thom. Mine examination questions and	Comprehensive, nation-wide plan for conservation and reforestation. [1923] q634.9 A5r EDWARDES, Tickner. Bee-keeping for all, a manual of honey- craft. 1923. 638.1 E25 FARNUM, Edward John.
ADAMS, Henry Charles. Domestic sanitation and house drainage. [1923] (Oxford technical publica- tions) 628.6 A21 BFARD, James Thom.	Comprehensive, nation-wide plan for conservation and reforestation. [1923] q634.9 A5r EDWARDES, Tickner. Bee-keeping for all, a manual of honey- craft. 1923. 638.1 E25 FARNUM, Edward John. Muskrat farming for profit. c1923. 636.9 F23
 ADAMS, Henry Charles. Domestic sanitation and house drainage. [1923] (Oxford technical publications) 628.6 A21 BFARD, James Thom. Mine examination questions and answers. 1923. 3 v. 622 B36 CORMAC, P. A treatise on engine balance using exponentials. 1923. 621 C81 	Comprehensive, nation-wide plan for conservation and reforestation. [1923] q634.9 A5r EDWARDES, Tickner. Bee-keeping for all, a manual of honey- craft. 1923. 638.1 E25 FARNUM, Edward John. Muskrat farming for profit. c1923.
 ADAMS, Henry Charles. Domestic sanitation and house drainage. [1923] (Oxford technical publications) 628.6 A21 BFARD, James Thom. Mine examination questions and answers. 1923. 3 v. 622 B36 CORMAC, P. A treatise on engine balance using ex- 	Comprehensive, nation-wide plan for conservation and reforestation. [1923] q634.9 A5r EDWARDES, Tickner. Bee-keeping for all, a manual of honey- craft. 1923. 638.1 E25 FARNUM, Edward John. Muskrat farming for profit. c1923. 636.9 F23 GRAY, Lewis Cecil. Introduction to agricultural economics. 1924. (Social science textbooks) 630 G77 HODGES, R. E., & Wickson, Edward James. Farming in California. 1923.
 ADAMS, Henry Charles. Domestic sanitation and house drainage. [1923] (Oxford technical publications) 628.6 A21 BFARD, James Thom. Mine examination questions and answers. 1923. 3 v. 622 B36 CORMAC, P. A treatise on engine balance using exponentials. 1923. 621 C81 HOOL, George Albert, & Kinne, William Spaulding, eds. Movable and long-span steel bridges. 	Comprehensive, nation-wide plan for conservation and reforestation. [1923] q634.9 A5r EDWARDES, Tickner. Bee-keeping for all, a manual of honey- craft. 1923. 638.1 E25 FARNUM, Edward John. Muskrat farming for profit. c1923. 636.9 F23 GRAY, Lewis Cecil. Introduction to agricultural economics. 1924. (Social science textbooks) 630 G77 HODGES, R. E., & Wickson, Edward James. Farming in California. 1923. 6630 H68 KRANICH, Frank Nicola Girard. Farm equipment for mechanical power.
 ADAMS, Henry Charles. Domestic sanitation and house drainage. [1923] (Oxford technical publications) 628.6 A21 BFARD, James Thom. Mine examination questions and answers. 1923. 3 v. 622 B36 CORMAC, P. A treatise on engine balance using exponentials. 1923. 621 C81 HOOL, George Albert, & Kinne, William Spaulding, eds. Movable and long-span steel bridges. 1923. 624 H78 IHUEBOTTER, Harry Adolph. Mechanics of the gasoline engine. 1923. 	Comprehensive, nation-wide plan for conservation and reforestation. [1923] q634.9 A5r EDWARDES, Tickner. Bee-keeping for all, a manual of honey- craft. 1923. 638.1 E25 FARNUM, Edward John. Muskrat farming for profit. c1923. 636.9 F23 GRAY, Lewis Cecil. Introduction to agricultural economics. 1924. (Social science textbooks) 630 G77 HODGES, R. E., & Wickson, Edward James. Farming in California. 1923. c630 H68 KRANICH, Frank Nicola Girard.

[July, 1924

MILLER, Merritt Finley. The soil and its management. c1924. 631 M64	LUCKIESH, Matthew. Light and color in advertising and merchandising. 1923. 659 L94
SAVAGE, Elmer Seth, & Maynard, Leonard Amby. Better dairy farming. 1923. 636.2 S26	MONTGOMERY, Robert Hiester, & Staub, Walter Adolph. Auditing principles. 1924. 657 M78p
 SHANTZ, Homer Le Roy. The vegetation and soils of Africa. 1923, (American geographical society. Research series) VENN, John Archibald. Foundations of agricultural economics. 1923. WARDLE, Robert Arnold, & Buckle, Philip. The principles of insect control. 1923. 632 W26 	OFFICE equipment catalogue, inc. Office equipment catalogue. 1st annual ed, c1924. q651 O3 SALIERS, Earl Adolphus, ed. Accountants' handbook. 1923. 657 S16ac SCHOLFIELD, Ethel E. Filing department operation and con- trol from the standpoint of the management. 1923. 651 S36 SIMONDS, Alvan T.
COOKERY.	Business fundamentals. 1923.
ALLEN, Mrs Ida Cogswell (Bailey). Mrs Allen on cooking, menus, service; 2500 recipes. 1924. 641 A42m	658 S59 TEAD, Ordway. A course in personnel administration. 1923. 658 T25c
Allen, Lucy Grace. Choice recipes for clever cooks. 1924. 641 A427	TIPPER, Harry, & French, George. Advertising campaigns. 1923. 659 T59ad
JUDSON, Helena. The new Butterick cookbook, rev. and enl. c1924. 641 J93	WOODCOCK, B. C. A textbook of advertisement writing & designing. 1922. 659 W88
MCKENNEY, Ella Clark. Cooking problems of the community group and formulas standardized for quantity work; breads. 1923. 641 M155	FREEMAN, Frank Nugent.
BUSINESS METHODS. BAKER, Ray Palmer. Preparation of reports, engineering, scientific, administrative. 1924. 658 B168 DUTTON, Henry Post. Factory management. 1924. 658 D98	LANGIE, André. Cryptography, translated from the French by J. C. H. Macbeth. 1922. 652 L28
HARVARD university. Graduate school of	
business administration. Business a profession. 1924. 658 H339g ISMAN, Felix. Real estate in all its branches. 1924. 658 I83	c1923. 652 N53 PITMAN, Sir Isaac. Courses in Isaac Pitman shorthand. New era ed. 1923. 653 P68c
KNOBLE, Cliff.	PRINTING.
Automobile selling sense; a book on the merchandising of motor cars. 1923. 658 K721	Park street, new and old, 1828-1923.

vol. 19, no. 3]

JOHNSON, Henry Lewis. Historic design in printing; reproduc- tions of book covers, borders, initials, decomptions, printer, market, etc.	ZIEGLER, Vic Oil well d
decorations, printers' marks, etc. 1923. q655 J6	MANUFAC
Косн, Theodore Wesley. The German book crisis. 1923. q655 K7 Reprinted from Publishers' weekly, Nov. 17, 24 and Dec. 1, 1923.	GLAZIER, Ric Historic to of the t pattern [1923]
 MORISON, Stanley. A brief survey of printing: history and practice. 1923. 655.1 M86 WALPOLE, Horace, 4th earl of Orford. 	HALL, Alber Home han through
Journal of the printing office at Straw- berry hill. 1923. q655.1 W2	Kellogg, Ro Pulpwood America
CHEMICAL TECHNOLOGY. BROWN, Nelson Courtlandt. The American lumber industry. 1923. 674 B87am	Shaw, Geor Knots, use
COOPER, Frederick John. Textile chemistry: an introduction to the chemistry of the cotton industry. [1923] 660 C77	ARTHUR, Wi Appraisers 1924.
DALBY, William Ernest. Strength and structure of steel and other metals. 1923. 669 D13	CRUSSELL, H Jobbing w and han
DAVIDSON, William Brown. Gas manufacture. 1923. 665.7 D25 INSTITUTE of American meat packers,	Hool, Georg Spauldin Stresses in
Chicago. The packing industry. c1924. (Materials for the study of business) 664.9 159	by a s (Structu brary)
L'ESPAGNOL de la Tramerye, Pierre. The world-struggle for oil; tr. from the French by C. Leonard Leese. 1924. 665.5 L637	STATE build fornia. Twenty-for State bu
RAMBUSH, N. E. Modern gas producers. 1923.	fornia.
665.7 R16 REYNOLDS, Philip Keep. The story of Cuban sugar. 1924. q664.1 R4	URQUHART, I Charles Design of
SCOTT, Wilfred Welday. Technical methods in analysis of metal- lurgical and allied products. 1923.	FINE Bennett, C
669 S43 SMYTHE, John Armstrong. Lead, its occurrence in nature, the	Art traini [1923]
modes of its extraction, 1923. (Monographs on industrial chemis- try	DREIER, Kat Western a

tor.

rilling methods. '1923. 665.5 Z66

TURES. MECHANICAL TRADES.

ehard.

extile fabrics, a short history radition and development of in woven & printed stuffs. q677 G5

t Neely.

adicraft for boys; learning doing. c1923. 680 H17h

- val Shaw. and wood pulp in North 1923. 674 K29p
- ge Russell. eful and ornamental. 1924. 677.1 S53

- BUILDING. lliam. and adjusters' handbook. 692 A79ap
- Edward H. ork for the carpenter, builder ndy man. 2 ed. 1923.

694 C95a

- ge Albert, & Kinne, William ng, eds.
- a framed structures, compiled staff of specialists. 1923. ural engineers' handbook li-690 H78st
- ing trades council of Cali
 - urth annual convention of the uilding trades council of Cali-1924. qc690.6 S7

Leonard Church, & O'Rourke, Edward.

concrete structures. 1923. 693.5 U79

ARTS: GENERAL.

harles Alpheus. ng for life and for industry. 707 B47

herine Sophie.

art and the new era. c1923. q709 D7

KAHN, Otto Hermann. Art and America. [1924] 704 K12a	EberLei Detail
VAN DYKE, John Charles. Venice, Milan. 1924. (New guides to old masters) 708.5 V24v	mea 1923 Humphr
Rome. 1924. (New guides to old masters) 708.5 V24	Bermu MURTAG
 WEBER, V. F. "Ko-ji Ho-ten;" dictionnaire a l'usage des amateurs et collectionneurs d'objets d'art japonais et chinois. 1923. 2 v. r703 W3 WETHERED, Newton. Mediaeval craftsmanship and the modern amateur. 1923. 707.2 W53 	Small Soule, V Spanis built Tippiñg, Englis Tud life
GARDENING.	
BARRON, Leonard, ed. Flower growing, rev. and adapted from the text of I. M. Bennett's "The flower garden." 1924. (The Ama- teur's book of the garden series) 716 B27f	Bolton, Early in c EATON, John
Coon, Nelson. The small nursery. 1923. 716 C77	app: list spee
ELEY, Charles. Gardening for the twentieth century. 1923. 715 E39	HIND, C Lands the
HAMBLIN, Stephen Francis. Lists of plant types for landscape planting. 1923. q716 H1	art Meyer, Chines
Hottes, Alfred Carl. A little book of perennials. 1923. (Little book series) 716 H831	thou 1070
HUTCHESON, Mrs. Martha Brookes (Brown). The spirit of the garden. c1923.	OPPÉ, A Water Cotr
q710 H9 OBTLOFF, Henry Stuart. A garden bluebook of annuals and bi- ennials. 1924. 716 077	PACH, V Georg mon
STEELE, Fletcher. Design in the little garden. c1924. (The little garden series) 710 881	SHANNO Boston 1923 SUTRO, I
TOWNSEND, Reginald Townsend, ed. The book of gardens and gardening. 1924. q710 T75	Nicola WALEY, An in
ARCHITECTURE.	pair
Bossom, Alfred C. An architectural pilgrimage in old	WARD, I Recoll
Mexico, 1924. q720.972 B7	

EBERLEIN, Harold Donaldson. Details of the architecture of Tuscany;
measured drawings by Oliver Reagan. 1923. q723.4 E1
HUMPHREYS, John Sanford. Bermuda houses. c1923. q728 H92
MURTAGH, Gilbert. Small houses. 1924. q728 M9
Soule, Winsor. Spanish farm houses and minor public buildings. 1924. q728 \$722
 FIPPING, Henry Avray. English homes, period II. v. 1. Early Tudor, 1485–1558. 1924. (Country life library) f728 T5e
PAINTING.
BOLTON, Theodore. Early American portrait draughtsmen in crayons. 1923. 757 B69e
 EATON, Cynthia. John Taylor Arms, aquatinter; an appreciation with an authoritative list of his aquatints. 1923. (Goodspeed's monographs) 759.1 A734
 HIND, Charles Lewis. Landscape painting, from Giotto to the present day. [1923] (Universal art series) 758 H66
MEYER, Agnes E. Chinese painting as reflected in the thought and art of Li Lung-mien, 1070-1106. [2d ed.] 1923. q759.91 M6
OPPÉ, Adolf Paul. Water-colour drawings of John Sell Cotman. 1923. q759.2 C8440
Расн, Walter. Georges Seurat. 1923. (The Arts monographs) q759.4 S4
SHANNON, Martha A. S. Boston days of William Morris Hunt. 1923. 759.1 H943s
SUTBO, Mrs Esther Stella (Isaacs). Nicolas Poussin. 1923. 759.4 P878s
WALEY, Arthur. An introduction to the study of Chinese painting. 1923. q759.91 W1
WARD, Edwin A.

lections of a Savage. 1923. 759.2 W257

•

WATSON, Forbes. CRAIG, Edward Gordon, & Mansfield, John. William Glackens. 1923. (Arts monoq759.1 G5 graphs) MUSIC. BECKWITH, Martha Warren. Christmas mummings in Jamica, 1923. 784.4 B39c THE confessions of a prima donna. 1924. 780.2 C74 EVANS. Edwin. Beethoven's nine symphonies fully described & analysed. [1923] 2 v. ORRIN. J. F. 785 E92 Contents: v. I, nos. 1-5. FELLOWES, Edmund Horace. William Byrd; a short account of his 780.2 B99 life and work. 1923. GRAHAM. John. A century of Welsh music. 1923. (The Music-lover's library) 780.9 G73 GREGORY, Adam. Denison's descriptive music book for plays, festivals, pageants and moving pictures. [1923] a786.4 G82 JERITZA, Maria. Sunlight and song; a singer's life; translated by Frederick H. Martens. 1924. 780.2 J55 LUMMIS, Charles Fletcher, comp. Spanish songs of old California. [1923] qc784.4 L95 MYERS, Rollo H. Modern music, its aims and tendencies. ADE, George. [1923?] (The Music-lover's library, Series II) 780.9 M61 c1923. OLD songs in French and English; illus. by Rie Cramer, 1923, a784.8 O4 play in one act, c1923. PRATT, Waldo Selden. The new encyclopedia of music and musicians. 1924. r780.3 P91 PULVER, Jeffrey. A dictionary of old English music & musical instruments. 1923.(The International library of music) 780.3 P98 SHERA, Frank Henry. Musical groundwork; a short course of aural training. 1922. 780.7 S55 AMUSEMENT. BABCOCK, J. P. Babcock's rules for mah-jongg, c1923.

Scene. 1923. q792 C8s FAUST. Alfred Luke. 792.7 F26 World service, c1923. FOSTER, Robert Frederick. Foster on mah-jongg. 1924. 795 F75m GEISTER. Edna. 793 G311 Let's play. c1923. The conjurer's vade mecum. [1922] (The vade-mecum series) 791 075 RADCLIFFE, William Hiram. Magic for amateurs, 1924. 791 R12 SAYLOR. Oliver Martin. Max Reinhardt and his theatre. 1924. 792 S27m SHEPARD, Edward Valentine. Auction to win. c1923. 795 \$547 STOPES, Mrs Charlotte (Carmichael). The seventeenth century accounts of the masters of the revels. 1922. [Shakespeare association papers. No. 6] q792 S8 WOOLCOTT. Alexander. Enchanted aisles, 1924. 792 W91 AMATEUR THEATRICALS. Marse Covington, a play in one act. 793 A22m - The mayor and the manicure: 793 A22

- Nettie, a play in one act. c1923. 793 A22n

- Speaking to father; play in one 793 A22s act. c1923.

APPLEGARTH, Margaret Tyson.

795 B11

More short missionary plays. c1923. 793 A64m

Contents: Empty stockings. --- A summer Christmas tree ree pageant.— The lady-who-Strictly private; or, The lady-who-hoarded-Easter.—Galatea takes a lease on life.—The yes but-ers.— Katydid.—Wait a minute.—Jack the giantkiller.—The subscription clinic. Mrs. Jarlay's more more The third -Mrs Jarley's wax-works .- The child in the midst.

DAYTON, Helena Smith, & Barratt, Louise	GREY, Zane.
Bascom.	Roping lions in the Grand Canyon.
The book of entertainments and theatri- cals. 1923. 793 D276	c1924. 799 G84 r
Cais. 1525. 155 D210	HAMMET, Charles Edward & Lundgren,
KASER, Arthur Leroy.	Carl Leonard.
A black recruit, a darky skit. c1923.	How to be an athlete. c1923.
(Denison's blackface series) 793 K23b	796 H224
755 N255	HANDLEY, Louis de B. Swimming for women. c1923. (Spald-
Lend me fo' bits, a negro talking	Swimming for women. c1923. (Spald- ing's "red cover" series of athletic
a c t. c1923. (Denison's blackface	handbooks) 796 H23s
series) 793 K231	Depart Sector Warral
KNICKERBOCKER, Edwin Van Berghen,	POPE, Saxton Temple. Hunting with the bow & arrow. c1923.
ed.	796 P82
Twelve plays. c1924. 793 K69t	WACK, Henry Wellington.
Contents: Where but in America, by O. M. Wolff,—The forfeit, by T. B.	Summer camps, boys and girls. c1923.
Rogers.—Poor Maddalena, by Louise Saunders — Playing with fire by P	796 W11
Wilde.—The stepmother, by A. Ben-	WEGENER, Albert Benjamin.
Contents: Where but in America, by O. M. Wolff.—The forfeit, by T. B. Rogers.—Poor Maddalena, by Louise Saunders.—Playing with fire, by P. Wilde.—The stepmother, by A. Ben- nett.—On vengeance height, by A. Davis.—A marriage proposal, by A. Tchekoff.—A pipe of peace, by Mar- garet Cameron.—Enter the hero, by Theresa Helburn.—The pot boiler, by Alice Gerstenberg.—Over the hills, by J. Palmer.—The game of chess, by K. S. Goodman.	Track and field athletics. 1924.
Tchekoff.—A pipe of peace, by Mar- garet Cameron.—Enter the hero, by	796 W41
Theresa Helburn.—The pot boiler, by	
J. Palmer.—The game of chess, by K.	LITERATURE.
S. Goodman.	AENEAS Tacticus.
NICHOLS, Adelaide.	Aeneas Tacticus, Asclepiodotus, Onas- ander, with an English translation, by
The haunted circle, and other outdoor plays. c1924. 793 N61	members of the Illinois Greek club.
plays. 01324. 735 [10]	1923. 888 A251
CHILDREN'S PLAYS.	ALCIPHRON.
CUMMINS, Stevenson Lyle.	Letters from the country and the town.
Bluebeard, Haroun el Rashid. c1923.	[1923] 886 A35
(Plays for children) 793.2 C97	Apapran nighta
Goldilocks and the three bears;	ARABIAN nights. Stories from the Arabian nights, retold
Torquil MacFerron; Thomas Olifant;	by Laurence Housman; with draw-
Tyranny. c1923. 793.2 C97g	ings, by Edmund Dulac. q892.7 A6h
St. George and the dragon; The	BARNES, Walter.
sleeping beauty. c1923. 793.2 C97s	The new democracy in the teaching of
GARNETT, Mrs Louise (Ayres).	English. c1923. 807 B26n
Three to make ready; Hilltop Muffins;	BENNETT, Charles Andrew Armstrong.
the pig prince; three plays for young	At a venture. 1924. 818 B471
people. c1923. (The Drama league	
junior play series) 793.2 G23	BOUGHTON, John Allen. comp. The fiction writers' question book. 1923.
HOBBS, Mabel, & Miles, Helen.	808.3 B75
Six Bible plays. c1924, 793.2 H682	BULLETT, Gerald William.
MONAGHAN, Mary L.	The innocence of G. K. Chesterton.
Dialogues for closing day. c1923.	[1923] 824 C52zb
793.2 M73	CHAPMAN, John Jay.
	Letters and religion. 1924. 814 C46le
OUTDOOR SPORTS.	
BACHMAN, Charles W. A manual of football for high school	CHAYTOR, Henry John. The troubadours and England. 1923.
coaches, 1923, 797 B12	

COBB, Irvin Shrewsbury. New York, c1924. 817 C65n	HERGESHEIMER, Joseph. The Presbyterian child. 1923.
	818 H54
CORNFORD, Francis Macdonald. Greek religious thought from Homer to the age of Alexander. 1923. (The library of Greek thought) 888 C81	HILSON, Jane Anderson, & Wheeling, Katherine Eleanor. Illustrative material for high-school lit-
CROCE, Benedetto.	erature. 1923. 807 H65
Goethe. Trans. by Miss Emily Ander- son. 1923. 832.62 Dc	HIND, Charles Lewis. Life and I. [1923] 824 H66
DEPEW, Chauncey Mitchell.	JAMES, Henry.
Speeches and addresses on the threshold of eighty. 1914? 815 D41spe	"A most unholy trade," being letters on the drama. 1923. 824 J27m
DE SELINCOURT, Basil.	KENNARD, Joseph Spencer.
The English secret and other essays.1923.824 D44	The friar in fiction. 1923. 814 K34
DOBSON, Austin.	MACHEN, Arthur. Dog and duck, 1924. 824 M14d
An anthology of prose & verse. 1922.	Dog and duck. 1924. 824 M14d
828 D63a	MANLY, John Matthews, & Rickert, Edith.
DRAPER, Frederick William Marsden.	The writer's index of good form and good English. c1923. 808 M27w
The rise and fall of the French roman-	MOLNÁR, Ferenc.
tic drama, with special reference to the influence of Shakespeare, Scott,	Husbands and lovers; nineteen dia-
and Byron. 1923. 842.09 D76	logues. English texts, by Benjamin
ELIOT, Charles William,	Glazer. 1924. 894.52 M72h
A late harvest; miscellaneous papers written between eighty and ninety. c1924. 814 E421	MONAHAN, Michael. Heinrich Heine; romance and tragedy of the poet's life, with a critical ap-
Ford, Henry.	preciation. 1924. 831.75 Bm
365 of Henry Ford's sayings. c1923. 818 F69t	POLLARD, Alfred William. The foundations of Shakespeare's text.
	1923. (The British academy. The
FRANK, Waldo David. Salvos; an informal book about books	annual Shakespeare lecture, 1923) q822.33 Dpof
and plays. c1924. 814 F82	
Cappyon Edward Connett	PRITCHARD, Francis Henry. Training in literary appreciation, an
GARDNER, Edmund Garratt. Dante. c1923. 851.15 Bga	introduction to criticism. c1924.
	801 P96
GORDON, George Stuart. The discipline of letters. 1923.	RALEIGH, Sir Walter Alexander.
807 G66	Some authors, a collection of literary
	essays 1896–1916. 1923. 824 R16
	SAINTSBURY, George Edward Bateman.
Warton lecture on English poetry)	The collected essays and papers of George Saintsbury, 1875–1920, 1923.
q821 S5zg	3 v. 824 S15c
GORMAN, Herbert S. The procession of masks. 1923.	—— A second scrap book. 1923.
820.9 G671	824 S15s
HEARN, Lafcadio.	SCHULTZ, William Eben.
Creole sketches; edited by Charles Woodward Hutson, 1924. 814 H43c	Gay's Beggar's opera; its content, his- tory & influence, 1923, 822 G285zs

[July, 1924

SCOTT-MONCRIEFF, Charles Kenneth,	FOGERTY, Elsie.
comp.	The speaking of English verse. 1923.
Marcel Proust; an English tribute, by	HOERINAN William C
Joseph Conrad, Arnold Bennett [and others]. 1923. 843 P96zs	HOFFMAN, William G. Public speaking for business men. 1923.
	808.5 H71
SELIGMAN, Herbert Jacob.	PELSMA, John Reinder.
D. H. Lawrence; an American interpre-	Essentials of speech. [1924]
tation. 1924. 828 L41z	Bioppendie Hannen Hannend
SIM, Frances M.	ROBERTS, Henry Howard. The public speaker and what is required
Robert Browning, the poet and the man,	of him. 1923. (The writer's series)
1833-1846. 1923. 821.83 Bsi	808.5 R64
SMITH, Paul Jordan.	DRAMA.
On strange altars. 1924. c814 S656	[ASHTON, Winifred]
STANOYEVICH, Milivoy Stoyan.	The way things happen; a story in
The Jugoslav renaissance, 1923.	three acts, by Clemence Dane [pseud.]
891.82 S 78j	1924. 822 A82wy
STEWART, Hugh Fraser.	BEACH, Lewis.
The classical movement in French lit-	Ann Vroome, a play in seven scenes.
erature. 1923. 840.8 \$84c	1924. 812 B36an
THOMAS, Edward.	A square peg, a play in three acts.
Cloud castle and other papers. [1922]	1924. 812 B36s
824 T45	CANFIELD, Mary Cass.
UTTER, Robert Palfrey.	Lackeys of the moon ; a play in one act.
Pearls & pepper. 1924. 814 U89	1923. 812 C22
VIN Dopper Charl Olintan	COHAN, George Michael.
VAN DOREN, Carl Clinton. Many minds, 1924. 814 V246m	Broadway Jones ; a comedy in four acts.
	c1923. (French's standard library
WARD, Christopher.	edition) 812 C67
The triumph of the nut. 1923.	CUSHING, Catherine Chisholm.
817 W25	Polyanna, the glad girl. 1923.
WEIRICK, Bruce.	(French's standard library edition)
From Whitman to Sandburg in Ameri- can poetry, 1924. 811.09 W42	812 C98
can poetry, 1924. Ollog W42	DODD, Lee Wilson.
WHITRIDGE, Arnold.	The changelings; a comedy. 1924.
Critical ventures in modern French lit-	812 D63
erature. 1924. 840.9 W62	ERVINE, St. John Greer.
WRIGHT, Frederick Adam.	The lady of Belmont; a play in five acts. 1924. 822 E731
Feminism in Greek literature from	acus. 1924. 022 L731
Homer to Aristole. 1923.	FAGAN, James Bernard.
880.9 W94	The wheel of life; a play in three acts.
	c1922. 822 F15
ORATORY.	GALSWORTHY, John.
ARNOLD, John Henry.	Windows; a comedy in three acts for
The debater's guide, revised and en-	idealists and others. 1923.
larged. c1923. 808.5 A75	822 G17w
Collins, George Rowland.	GROVER, Harry Greenwood.
Platform speaking; a practical study	Thompson's luck; a tragedy in one act.
for business and professional men.	c1923. (Stewart Kidd modern plays) 812 G88
c1923. 808.5 C71	812 088

256

vol. 19, no. 3] CALIFORNIA ST	TATE LIBRARY. 257
Намson, Knut. In the grip of life. 1924. 839.82 H23	STURGIS, Granville Forbes. Little plays for all occasions. 1923. 812 893
HOUSMAN, Laurence. Echo de Paris, 1924. 822 H84e	Contents: Madame.—The fatal pill. —Red roses.—Two of a kind.—Just before dawn.—Winning a husband.— Little Colombine.—Our Mary.—A col-
INDIANA prize plays, as presented by the Little theatre society of Indiana dur- ing the season of 1922–23, c1924. 812.08 139	lege joke.—The butcher's daughter.— The widow Sabrina.—One war babe. THOMAS, Albert Ellsworth. The better understanding. 1924.
Contents: The marriage gown, by Judith K. Sollenberger.—Where do we go from here? by W. O. Bates.— Brothers, by D. G. King.—Treason, by M. C. Tull.—Two dollars, please!	812 T454be Just suppose. c1923. (French's standard library edition) 812 T454j
by Margaretta Stevenson.—Noc- turne, by H. L. Earnest. KELLY, George Edward, Finders-keepers; a play in one act.	 THOMAS, Albert Ellsworth, & Hamilton, Clayton Meeker. Thirty days; a farce in three acts. 1923. (French's standard library
c1923. (Stewart Kidd modern plays) 812 K29	edition) 812 T454t TOLLEB, Ernst.
KEMP, Harry. Boccaccio's untold tale. c1924. 812 K32b	The machine-wreckers. English version, by Ashley Dukes. 1923. 832 T65 WEIR, William John.
MACKAYE, Percy. This fine-pretty world; a comedy of the Kentucky mountains. 1924.	A daughter of old Spain, and other plays. 1923. c812 W42
812 M15th MARTINEZ Sierra, Gregorio.	Life's quicksands. 1923. c812 W42 WIED, Gustav Johannes.
Plays. [1923] 2 v. 862 M38p MILLAY, Edna St. Vincent.	2 x 2=5; a comedy in four acts, author- ized translation, by Ernest Boyd and Holger Koppel. 1923. 839.82 W642
Aria da capo (a play in one act). 1920. 812 M64a	POETRY.

Moses, Montrose Jonas. Representative continental dramas, revolutionary and transitional. 1924. 808.2 M91r

PINSKY, David, King David and his wives. 1923. 892.42 P65k

RICE. Elmer L. The adding machine; a play in seven 1923. (Theatre guild liscenes. 812 R495 brary)

ROLLAND, Romain. The Montespan, 1923. 842 R74m

ROSENBERG, James Naumburg. Punchinello, a ballet. 1923. 812 R81

SMITH, Evelyn, comp. Form room plays; senior book, compiled from English literature. (The king's treasuries of literature) 822.08 S646

lsworth. standing. 1924. 812 T454be se. c1923. (French's 812 T454i y edition) llsworth, & Hamilton, r. farce in three acts. ch's standard library 812 T454t ckers. English version, es. 1923. 832 T65 а. old Spain, and other c812 W42 sands. 1923.c812 W42 nnes. ly in four acts, author-, by Ernest Boyd and 1923, 839.82 W642 ETRY. AUSLANDER, Joseph. Sunrise trumpets. 1924. 811 A932 BARTON, Ralph. Science in rhyme without reason. 1924. 811 B293 BELLOC, Hilaire. Sonnets and verse. [1923] 821 B44s THE Best poems of 1923. 808.1 B56 BODENHEIM, Maxwell. Against this age. c1923. 811 B66a association, CARNEGIE library school comp.

Christmas in poetry; carols and poems. 1923. q821.08 C2a

COOKE, Edmund Vance. Companionable poems. 1924.

811 C772c DAVIDSON, Donald. An outland piper. 1924. 811 D252

NEWS NOTES OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES. [July, 1924]

DAVIES, Mary Carolyn.	NODTON Cross Fallow
Marriage songs. 1923. 811 D256m	NORTON, Grace Fallow. The miller's youngest daughter. 1924.
DE JEAN, Louis Leon.	ONDERVIEWAS Tomos
Songs of the air. c1923. 811 D326	OPPENHEIM, James. The sea. 1924. 811. 062s
DE LA MARE, Walter John, comp.	PHILLPOTTS, Eden.
Come hither; a collection of rhymes	Cherry-stones. 1924. 821 P564c
and poems for the young of all ages.	
c1923. 821.08 D33	PIPER, Edwin Ford. Barbed wire and Wavfarers, 1924.
DRESBACH, Glenn Ward.	Barbed wire and Wayfarers. 1924. 811 P66
The enchanted mesa, and other poems.	011 P00
. 1924. 811 D77e	QUILLER-COUCH, Mabel, & Quiller-Couch,
DRISCOLL, Louise.	Lilian.
Garden grace. 1924. 811 D781	The treasure book of children's verse.
_	808.1 Q6 REESE, Lizette Woodworth.
ERWIN, Margaret.	Wild cherry. 1923. 811 R329w
Canyon garden. 1922. c811 E732	White cherry. 1025. Off horsw
FICKE, Arthur Davison.	ROBINSON, Edwin Arlington.
Out of silence, and other poems. 1924.	The man who died twice. 1924.
811 F44o	Shumu Cicela Fer
FRIIS, Oluf, comp.	SMITH, Cicely Fox. Sea songs and ballads, 1917–22. 1924.
A book of Danish verse. 1922.	821 S644se
839.81 F91	SMYTHE, Albert Stafford.
FROTHINGHAM, Robert.	The garden of the sun. 1923.
Songs of the sea & Sailors' chanteys. 1924. 808.1 F94s	821 S66
1924. 808.1 F94s	Some British ballads, illustrated by
GRAY, Morris.	Some Dritish panaus, mustrated by
Ghai, Mollis.	- Arthur Rackham, [1919]
The city's voice; a book of verse. c1923.	- Arthur Rackham. [1919] q821.08 \$69
The city's voice; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781	q821.08 \$69
The city's voice; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp.
The city's voice; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, <i>comp.</i> The call of the open, a nature anthology.
The city's voice; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893
The city's voice; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce.
The city's voice; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other
The city's voice; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author.
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STEONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. e1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur.
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling.
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin Osgood Grover. c1924. 811 H84d	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics ;
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STEONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics ; being a translation from the French,
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin Osgood Grover. c1924. 811 H84d LERMONTOV, Mikhail JUr'evich.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STEONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics ; being a translation from the French, by Gertrude Laughlin Joerissen of the
The city's voice; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin Osgood Grover. c1924. 811 H84d LERMONTOV, Mikhail JUr'evich. A sheaf from Lermontov, translated by J. J. Robbins. 1923. 891.71 L61	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STEONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics ; being a translation from the French,
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin Osgood Grover. c1924. 811 H84d LERMONTOV, Mikhail JUr'evich. A sheaf from Lermontov, translated by J. J. Robbins. 1923. 891.71 L61 LIVESAY, Florence Randal.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics; being a translation from the French, by Gertrude Laughlin Joerissen of the book of Franz Toussaint entitled "La
The city's voice; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin Osgood Grover. c1924. 811 H84d LERMONTOV, Mikhail JUr'evich. A sheaf from Lermontov, translated by J. J. Robbins. 1923. 891.71 L61	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. STMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics ; being a translation from the French, by Gertrude Laughlin Joerissen of the book of Franz Toussaint entitled "La flute de jade : poèsies chinoise [s]." 1924. 895.1 T87
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin Osgood Grover. c1924. 811 H84d LERMONTOV, Mikhail JUr'evich. A sheaf from Lermontov, translated by J. J. Robbins. 1923. 891.71 L61 LIVESAY, Florence Randal.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STEONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics; being a translation from the French, by Gertrude Laughlin Joerissen of the book of Franz Toussaint entitled "La flute de jade: poèsies chinoise [s]." 1924. 895.1 T87 WALEY, Arthur, tr.
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin Osgood Grover. c1924. 811 H84d LERMONTOV, Mikhail JUr'evich. A sheaf from Lermontov, translated by J. J. Robbins. 1923. 891.71 L61 LIVESAY, Florence Randal. Shepherd's purse. 1923. 821 L78 MACLEISH, Archibald. The happy marriage, and other poems.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. STMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics ; being a translation from the French, by Gertrude Laughlin Joerissen of the book of Franz Toussaint entitled "La flute de jade : poèsies chinoise [s]." 1924. 895.1 T87
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin Osgood Grover. c1924. 811 H84d LERMONTOV, Mikhail JUr'evich. A sheaf from Lermontov, translated by J. J. Robbins. 1923. 891.71 L61 LIVESAY, Florence Randal. Shepherd's purse. 1923. 821 L78 MACLEISH, Archibald.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics; being a translation from the French, by Gertrude Laughlin Joerissen of the book of Franz Toussaint entitled "La flute de jade: poèsies chinoise [s]." 1924. 895.1 T87 WALEY, Arthur, tr. The temple, and other poems. 1923. 895.1 W17t
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin Osgood Grover. c1924. 811 H84d LERMONTOV, Mikhail JUr'evich. A sheaf from Lermontov, translated by J. J. Robbins. 1923. 891.71 L61 LIVESAY, Florence Randal. Shepherd's purse. 1923. 821 L78 MACLEISH, Archibald. The happy marriage, and other poems. 1924. 811 M164	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STRONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics; being a translation from the French, by Gertrude Laughlin Joerissen of the book of Franz Toussaint entitled "La flute de jade: poèsies chinoise [s]." 1924. 895.1 T87 WALEY, Arthur, tr. The temple, and other poems. 1923. 895.1 W17t WILKINSON, Mrs Marguerite Ogden
The city's voice ; a book of verse. c1923. 811 G781 GWYNN, Stephen Lucius. Collected poems. 1924. 821 G99 HARDY, Thomas. Collected poems. 1923. 821 H27c HEYWARD, Du Bose. Skylines and horizons. 1924. 811 H622s HOVEY, Richard. Dartmouth lyrics, edited by Edwin Osgood Grover. c1924. 811 H84d LERMONTOV, Mikhail JUr'evich. A sheaf from Lermontov, translated by J. J. Robbins. 1923. 891.71 L61 LIVESAY, Florence Randal. Shepherd's purse. 1923. 821 L78 MACLEISH, Archibald. The happy marriage, and other poems.	q821.08 S69 STOWELL, Leonard, comp. The call of the open, a nature anthology. [1922] 821.08 S893 STEONG, Nelle de Luce. When the sun goes low, and other verses. c1922. c811 S923 Gift of author. SYMONS, Arthur. London nights. 1923. 821 S9810 Ts'AO Shang-ling. The lost flute, and other Chinese lyrics ; being a translation from the French, by Gertrude Laughlin Joerissen of the book of Franz Toussaint entitled "La flute de jade: poèsies chinoise [s]." 1924. 895.1 T87 WALEY, Arthur, tr. The temple, and other poems. 1923. 895.1 W17t WILKINSON, Mrs Marguerite Ogden (Bigelow).

258

CALIFORNIA FICTION. CAMERON, Margaret.	Barnes. BABNES, George Nicoll. From workshop to war cabinet. 1924.
Johndover. [1924] cC182	B B2612
DUNN, Joseph Allan Elphinstone. The water-bearer. 1924. cD923 HUNT, Laura Shellabarger.	Bernhardt. BERTON, Mme Thérèse (Meil- han). The real Sarah Bernhardt, whom her audience never knew, 1924.
Ultra, a story of pre-natal influence. 1923. cH941	B B527be Bismarck. SMITH, Munroe.
LUTHER, Mark Lee. The boosters. c1924 cL973 Gift.	Bismarck and German unity. 3d ed., rev. and enl. 1923. B B622sl
MACGOWAN, Alice & Newberry, Perry. The mystery woman. 1924. cM146my	Blackwood. BLACKWOOD, Algernon. Episodes before thirty. 1923. B B632
NORRIS, Mrs Kathleen (Thompson). The Callahans and the Murphys. 1924. cN856ca	Bruce. BROWN, Robert Neal Rudmose. A naturalist at the poles; the life, work & voyages of Dr W. S. Bruce, the polar explorer. 1923. B B3877b
BIOGRAPHY: COLLECTIVE. BARRY, David S. Forty years in Washington. 1924. 923.2 B27	Buller. MELVILLE, Charles Henderson. Life of General the Right Hon. Sir Redvers Buller. 1923. 2 v. B B936
FORBES, Bertie Charles. Men who are making the West. c1923. c920.079 F69	Burke. BURKE, Edmund. The early life, correspondence and writ- ings of the Rt. Hon. Edmund Burke. 1923. B B959
HAMILTON, Cosmo. Unwritten history. 1924. 928 H21	Burns. DAKERS, Andrew. Robert Burns, his life and genius. 1923. B B967d
HARRIS, Frank. Contemporary portraits (third series). c1920. 928 H31al	Campbell-Bannerman. Spender, John Alfred.
HART, Ivor B. Makers of science; mathematics,	Life of the Right Hon. Sir Henry Campbell-Bannerman. 1924. 2 v. B C1921s
physics, astronomy. 1923. 925 H325 KERNAHAN, Coulson.	Carey: CAREY, S. Pearce. William Carey, D.D., fellow of Linnaean society. [1923] B C266c
Celebrities : little stories about famous folk. 1923. 920.042 K39	Carpenter. CARPENTER, William Oscar. A California pioneer of the fifties.
O'HIGGINS, Harvey Jerrold, & Reede, Hiram.	qcB C297
The American mind in action. 1924. 920.07 O37 PHILLIPSON, Coleman.	Casanova de Seingalt. CASANOVA DE SEINGALT, Giacomo Girolomo.
Three criminal law reformers : Beccaria, Bentham, Romilly. 1923.	The memoirs of Casanova de Seingalt. 1922. B C335a
923.4 P56	Clemens. GILLIS, William R. Memories of Mark Twain and Steve Gillis. c1924. cB C625g
BIOGRAPHY: INDIVIDUAL.	
Agassiz. AGASSIZ, Alexander.	
Letters and recollections with a skotch	Cobb. DAVIS, Robert Hobart.
Letters and recollections, with a sketch of his life and work, ed. by G. R.	

Coit. Coir, Daniel Wadsworth.	TARBELL, Ida Minerva.
A memoir of Daniel Wadsworth Coit of	In the footsteps of the Lincolns. 1924.
Norwich, Connecticut, 1787-1876,	B L736ti
privately printed, 1908. cB C681	Livingstone. WILSON, Hubert F. Living-
Coolidge. Hennessy, Michael Edmund.	stone.
Calvin Coolidge, from a Green Moun-	Livingstone, the master missionary.
tain farm to the White House. c1924.	B L788w
B C774h	Longstreet. WADE, John Donald.
WHITING, Edward Elwell.	Augustus Baldwin Longstreet; a study
President Coolidge; a contemporary	of the development of culture in the
estimate. c1923. B C774wh	South. 1924. B L857w
Cushing. FUESS, Claude Moore.	MacDonald. [HAMILTON, Mrs Mary
The life of Caleb Cushing. c1923. 2 v.	Agnes (Adamson)]
B C984f	J. Ramsay MacDonald, the man of to-
De Windt. DE WINDT, Harry.	morrow, by Iconoclast [pseud.] 1924.
My note-book at home and abroad. 1923.	B M1351h
B D521	Mavor. MAVOR, James.
Dickinson. DICKINSON, Emily. The life and letters. 1924. B D553b	My windows on the street of the world. 1923. 2 v. B M461 Montague. MONTAGUE, Mrs Elizabeth
Durant. KINGSLEY, Mrs Florence (Morse). The life of Henry Fowle Durant, founder of Wellesley college. c1924. B D951k	 (Robinson). Mrs Montague, "Queen of the blues," her letters and friendships from 1762 to 1800. [1923] B M7583m1 Morrill. PARKER, William Belmont.
Francesco d' Assisi. WHITWELL, Rich-	Life and public services of Justin
ard.	Smith Morrill. 1924. B M874p
Francis of Assisi, saint, mystic, poet,	Newton. NEWTON, Joseph Fort.
democrat. 1923. B F815w	Preaching in New York; diaries and
 Glover. GLOVER, Elizabeth Rosetta (Scott) lady. Memories of four continents; recollections grave and gay of events in social and diplomatic life. 1923. B G566 	 papers. c1924. B N564p Nichols. Nichols, William Ford, bp. Days of my age; chimney corner chats for the home circle. 1923. cB N623
Harris. HARRIS, Corra May (White)	Olney. JAMES, Henry.
"Mrs L. H. Harris."	Richard Olney and his public service.
My book and heart. 1924. B H313	1923. B 051j
Johnson. JOHNSON, Robert Underwood. Remembered yesterdays. 1923. B J68	Pepys. BRADFORD, Gamaliel. The soul of Samuel Pepys. 1924. B P425br
Joyce. GORMAN, Herbert S. James Joyce, his first forty years. 1924. B J89g	Pieshkov. [PIESHKOV, Aleksieĭ Maksim- ovich] My university days, by Maxim Gorky [pseud.] 1923. B P624m
Lauderdale. MACKENZIE, William Cook. The life and times of John Maitland, duke of Lauderdale (1616–1682). 1923. B L369m	Platt. Gosnell, Harold Foote. Boss Platt and his New York machine. c1924. B P7195g
Lincoln. RANKIN, Henry Baseom.	Raisuli. FORBES, Mrs Rosita (Torr).
Intimate character sketches of Abraham	The sultan of the mountains; the life
Lincoln 1924 B J 736rai	story of Raisuli, 1924. B R1591f

- Rodd. Rodd, Sir James Rennell.
 Social diplomatic memories (second series) 1894–1901, Egypt and Abyssinia. 1923.
- Sanderson. WELLS, Herbert George. The story of a great schoolmaster. 1924. B \$216w
- Sayce. SAYCE, Archibald Henry. Reminiscences. 1923. B S274
- Scotty. TAYLOR, Charles A. The story of "Scotty," (Walter Scott) king of the Desert mine. c1906.

Gift.

- Secton. SETON, Robert, abp. Memories of many years (1839–1922). 1923. **B \$495**
- Somerville. SOMERVILLE, E dith Anna OEnone, & Martin, Violet Florence. Wheel-tracks. 1924. **B S6962**
- Spencer. SPENCER, Walter Thomas. Forty years in my book shop. 1923. B \$746
- Sterenson. OSBOURNE, Lloyd. An intimate portrait of R. L. S. 1924. B \$8480s
- Storer. STORER, Mrs Maria (Longworth).

In memoriam Bellamy Storer; with personal remembrances of President Mc-Kinley, President Roosevelt and John Ireland, archbishop of St. Paul.
 1923. B \$884

- Ulianov. LEVINE, Isaac Don. The man Lenin. 1924. **B U39le**
- Vincent. VINCENT, Walter Borodell. Life as I have known it; a chronicle of seventy-five years. c1924. **B** V775
- Washington. HENDERSON, Archibald. Washington's southern tour, 1791. 1923. qB W31h
- HEUSSER, Albert Henry. In the footsteps of Washington; Pope's Creek to Princeton. c1921.
- В W318heu Waugh. WAUGH, Alec. Myself when young. [1924] В W3541
- White. MANNING, Frederic. The life of Sir William White. 1923. B W5891m

- Wilson. ANNIN, Robert Edwards. Woodrow Wilson; a character study. 1924. B W754an
 - ----- DANIELS, Josephus.
 - The life of Woodrow Wilson. 1856-1924. c1924. **B W754da**

HISTORY: GENERAL.

ADAIR, Edward Robert.

- The sources for the history of the Council in the 16th and 17th centuries. 1924. 902 H48
- cB S4312 LARNED, Josephus Nelson.

The new Larned History for ready reference, reading and research; completely rev., enl. and brought up to date. 1922-1924. 9 v. qr903 L3a

PERRY, William James.

Children of the sun; a study in the early history of civilization. [1923] 901 P46

ANCIENT.

- BAILEY, Cyril, ed. The legacy of Rome, essays by C. Foligno [and others]. 1923. 937 B15
- FIREBAUGH, W. C. The inns of Greece and Rome and a history of hospitality. 1923.

938 F52

GREENE, William Chase. The achievement of Greece. 1923. 938 G81

HENDERSON, Bernard William. The life and principate of the Emperor Hadrian, A. D. 76–138. 1923.

937.06 H49

- LANE, William Horsburgh. Babylonian problems. 1923. 935.4 L26
- MERCER, Samuel Alfred Browne. Tutankhamen and Egyptology. c1923. (Biblical and oriental series)

932 M55

WILSON, Robert Forrest. The living pageant of the Nile. c1924. 932 W75

EUROPE.

ALEXANDRA, empress consort of Nicholas II, emperor of Russia.

Letters of the Tsaritsa to the Tsar, 1914-1916, 1924, 947.08 A37

262 NEWS NOTES OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES. [July, 1924 _____

 BARKER, Ernest. The crusades. 1923. (The world's manuals) 940.4 B25 BATES college, Lewiston, Me. French occupation of the Ruhr, Bates college versus Oxford union society of Oxford college, City hall, Lewiston, Maine, September 27, 1923. (The reference shelf) 940.98 B32 CRESSON, William Penn. Diplomatic portraits. 1923. 940.9 C92 DARK, Sidney. The story of the renaissance. c1924. (Doran's modern readers' bookshelf) 	 SCHREINER, George Abel, ed. Entente diplomacy and the world; a matrix of the history of Europe, 1909–14, tr. from the original texts, by B. de Siebert. 1921. 940.912 S37 SHERRILL, Charles Hitchcock. The purple or the red. c1924. 940.98 S55p TURNER, Edward Raymond. Europe since 1789. 1924. 940.9 T94e1 UNION of Soviet Socialist Republics. The constitution of the Union of Socialist Soviet Republics. 1924. 947.08 U58
940.6 D21	ASIA.
DENNIS, Alfred Lewis Pinneo. The foreign policies of soviet Russia. c1924. 947.08 D41	CHANNING, C. G. Fairfax. Siberia's untouched treasure, its future rôle in the world. 1923. 957 C45
ELLISON, Grace.	CHINA review. v. 1. 1921. q951.05 C5
An Englishwoman in Angora. [1923] 949.6 E47 ELTON, Godfrey. The revolutionary idea in France, 1789– 1871. 1923. 944 E51	ELLIOTT, Mabel Evelyn. Beginning again at Ararat. c1924. 956.6 E46 HARRISON, Mrs Marguerite E. (Baker)
GJERSET, Knut. History of Iceland, 1924. 949.1 G53	Red bear or yellow dragon. c1924. 950 H32
GOLDMAN, Emma.	AFRICA.
My disillusionment in Russia. 1923. 947.08 G61 HARDEN, Maximilian. Germany, France and England. c1924. 943.08 H25	 BEER, George Louis. African questions at the Paris peace conference, with papers of Egypt, Mesopotamia, and the colonial settle- ment. 1923.
KESSLER, Harry Klemens Ulrich. graf	CLARIDGE, William Wilton.
von. Germany and Europe. 1923. (The In- stitute of politics publications, Wil- liams college, Williamstown, Mass.) 940.98 K42	A history of the Gold Coast and Ashanti from the earliest times to the commencement of the twentieth century. 1915. 2 v. 966 C59
MUMBY, Frank Arthur. George III and the American revolu- tion, v. 1. 1923. (History in con-	SLATIN, Sir Rudolph Carl. Fire and sword in the Sudan. c1922. 962.6 S63
temporary letters) 942.07 M96	WALKER, Thomas Hamilton Beb.
PHILLIPS, Walter Alison. The revolution in Ireland, 1906–1923. 1923. 941.5 P56	History of Liberia. c1921. 966.6 W18 NORTH AMERICA.
RUSSELL, Charles Edmund.	ELIAS, Solomon Philip. Stories of Stanislaus. c1924.
True adventures of the secret service. 1923. 940.921 R96	c979.457 E42

.

ENGELIANDE Charles Anthony

HADRISON Francis Burton

San Juan Capistraho mission. 1922. (Missions and missionaries of Cali- fornia. New series. Local history) c979.402 E57sj ————————————————————————————————————	 The corner-stone of Philippine independence; a narrative of seven years 1922. 991.4 H31 JOHNSEN, Julia E., comp. Independence for the Philippines. Revel. of Abridged handbook. 1924. (The ed. of Abridged handbook. 1924.)
California. New series. Local his- tory). c979.402 E57sb GT. BRIT. Parliament. Proceedings and debates of the British parliaments respecting North Amer-	reference shelf) 991.4 J65a Wood, George Arnold. The discovery of Australia. 1922. 994 W87
ica, edited by Leo Francis Stock. 1924. (Carnegie institution of Wash- ington. Publication Papers of the Department of historical research) q973.2 G7	GEOGRAPHY AND TRAVEL: GENERAL. CORNISH, Vaughan. The great capitals, an historical geog raphy. [1923] 911 Ca
GRINNELL, George Bird. The Cheyenne Indians, their history and ways of life. 1923. 2 v. 970.3 G86	NEWBIGIN, Marion Isabel. Commercial geography. [1924] (Home university library of modern knowl- edge) 910 N53c
HISTORY of Sacramento county, Cali- fornia. 1923. qc979.453 H6r MACDONALD, William. Three centuries of American democracy. 1923. 973 M13t	PAINE, Albert Bigelow. The lure of the Mediterranean; The ship dwellers: a story of a happy cruise. c1921. 910.4 P144
PUTNAM, George Haven. Some memories of the civil war. 1924.	EUROPE. BLASCO, Ibañez, Vicente. In the land of art (En el país del arte)
973.7 P99 SHOTWELL, Walter Gaston. The civil war in America. 1923. 2 v. 973.74 \$55	Trans. by Frances Douglas. c1923. 914.5 B644a DITCHFIELD, Peter Hampson.
STORER, Malcolm. Numismatics of Massachusetts. 1923. 974.4 M41c	Country folk, a pleasant company [1923] 914.2 D61c FRESHFIELD, Douglas William.
Тном, Laura Gould, comp. Memories of the Days of old, days of gold, days of 49. с979.44 T45	Below the snow line. [1923] 914.94 F88 GORDON, Jan, & Gordon, Cora Josephine.
TYLER, Daniel. A concise history of the Mormon bat- talion in the Mexican war. 1881. qc973.6 T98	Two vagabonds in Spain. 1923. 914.6 G66 LAUGHLIN, Clara Elizabeth. So you're going to Paris! 1924.
OCEANICA. ATKINSON, Meredith, ed. Australia; e c o n o m i c and political studies by various writers. 1920.	914.43 L37 MUIRHEAD, Findlay, & Monmarché Marcel, eds. The French Alps. 1923. (The blue guides) 914.4 M956
994 A87 DUNBABIN, Thomas. The making of Australasia. 1922. 993 D89	PAGE, William. London, its origin and early develop ment. 1923. 914.21 P13

PATON, William Agnew. Picturesque Sicily. New and rev. ed. e1897. 914.58 P31

- PIUS, xi, pope.
 Climbs on Alpine peaks; trans. by J.
 E. C. Eaton. 1923. 914.94 P69
- RICHARDSON, Leslie. Things seen on the Riviera. 1924. 914.5 R52
- RIDGE, William Pett.A story teller; forty years in London.[1923]914.21 R54
- STRONG, Anna Louise. The first time in history; two years of Russia's new life (August, 1921, to December, 1923) c1924. 914.7 S92
- Young, Stark. The three fountains. 1924. 914.5 Y76

ASIA.

- BIGELOW, Poultney, Japan and her colonies, being extracts from a diary, 1923, 915.2 B59
- BRUCE, Hon. Charles Granville. The assault on Mount Everest, 1922. 1923. q915.4 B8
- DOUGHTY, Charles Montagu. Travels in Arabia Deserta. [1913] 915.3 D73
- GREGORY, John Walter, & Gregory, C. J. To the Alps of Chinese Tibet. 1923. 915.15 G82
- JEANNERAT, de Beerski, P. Angkor ruins in Cambodia. 1924. 915.9 J43
- RICE, Mrs Clara Colliver (Hammond). Persian women & their ways. 1923. 915.5 R49
- SETON, Grace (Gallatin) "Mrs Ernest Thompson Seton." Chinese lanterns. 1924. 915.1 \$49

AFRICA.

JOHNSON, Martin Elmer. Camera trails in Africa. c1924. 916.7 J68

MACKENZIÉ, Jean Kanyon. African clearings, 1924. 916.7 M15f MELLAND, Frank Hulme. In witch-bound Africa, 1923.

916.8 M52

O'CONNOR, Vincent Clarence Scott. A vision of Morocco, the far west of Islam. 1924. 916.4 018

Roscoe, John. The Bakitara or Banyoro. 1923. 916.7 R79b

WITHERS, Percy. Egypt of yesterday and today. 1909. 916.2 W82

MEXICO.

- BEALS, Carleton. Mexico; an interpretation. 1923. 917.2 B36 CARPENTER, Frank George. Mexico. 1924. (Carpenter's world
 - travels) 917.2 C295
- INGERSOLL, Ralph McAllister. In and under Mexico. c1924.

917.2 147

UNITED STATES.

- ALVORD, Clarence Walworth, & Bidgood, Lee. The first explorations of the trans-Allegheny region by the Virginians, 1650-1674. 1912. 917.5 A47 BAILEY, Gilbert Ellis. California, a geologic wonderland, 1924. c917.94 B15 BRANDT, Fred, & Wood, Andrew Younger. Fascinating San Francisco. 1924. c917.9461 B82 DREISER, Theodore. The color of a great city. [New York] c1923. 917.471 D77 KALLEN, Horace Meyer. Culture and democracy in the United 917.3 K14 States. c1924. LINCOLN highway association. The complete official road guide of the Lincoln highway. 4th ed. c1921. 917.3 L74 MILLS, Enos Abijah. The Rocky Mountain national park. 1924. 917.8 M65r NEVINS, Allan, ed.
 - American social history as recorded by British travellers, 1923. 917.3 N527

NUTTING, Wallace.	ing reports
New Hampshire beautiful. c1923.	considerabl
(States beautiful series)	be obtained
(istates beautiful series) g917.42 N9	ments issui
da11.42 143	the Univer
Connecticut beautiful. c1923.	
(States beautiful series)	for sale or
q917.46 N9	Press, Berl
Torrey, Bradford.	publication
A Florida sketch-book. 1924.	ment Stati
917.59 T69	trative bu
511.05 105	free. Mos
TOWNSHEND, Richard Baxter.	State Mini
The tenderfoot in New Mexico. 1924.	to be sold
917.89 T74	entry. Th
	Notes of C
PACIFIC ISLES. POLAR REGIONS.	received at
	CONTROL
ENDICOTT, William.	cial transa
Wrecked among cannibals in the Fijis.	counties of
1923. (Marine research society, Salam Mass Publications)	1924. 213
Salem, Mass. Publications) 919.61 E56	1021. 210
919.01 200	EDUCATI
Evans, Ivor Hugh Norman.	C. A sugg
Studies in religion, folk-lore, & custom	raphy for t
in British North Borneo and the	mented by 1
Malay Peninsula. 1923.	trating the
919.11 E92s	four, five a
HUMPHRIES, W. R.	
HUMPHRIES, W. R. Patrolling in Papua. [1923]	A
	governing s
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923.	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182	governing s credentials. & governing
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian.	governing s credentials, governing cates, elem
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New	governing s credentials, governing cates, elem garten-prin
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian.	governing s credentials. governing cates, elem garten-prin 1924. 192
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles.	governing s credentials. governing cates, elem garten-prin 1924. 192
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles.	governing s credentials. governing cates, elem garten-prin 1924. 192
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank.	governing s credentials. governing cates, elem garten-prin 1924. 192
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923.	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank.	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66 YOUNG, D. Hastings.	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. e1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66 YOUNG, D. Hastings. A white Australia—is it possible? The	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66 YOUNG, D. Hastings. A white Australia—is it possible? The problem of the empty north. 1922.	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66 YOUNG, D. Hastings. A white Australia—is it possible? The problem of the empty north. 1922. 919.4 Y69	governing s credentials. governing cates, elem garten-prin 1924. 192- k cation, gen Board of F and maint aided vocas fiscal years 49 p. k lating to vo 1922-23 to
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66 YOUNG, D. Hastings. A white Australia—is it possible? The problem of the empty north. 1922. 919.4 Y69 CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICA-	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66 YOUNG, D. Hastings. A white Australia—is it possible? The problem of the empty north. 1922. 919.4 Y69 CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICA- TIONS RECEIVED DURING	governing s credentials. governing cates, elem garten-prin 1924. 1924 cation, ger Board of H and maint aided voca fiscal years 49 p. lating to vo 1922-23 to FISH AN nia fish an 1924. p. 5
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66 YOUNG, D. Hastings. A white Australia—is it possible? The problem of the empty north. 1922. 919.4 Y69 CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICA- TIONS RECEIVED DURING APRIL, MAY AND JUNE, 1924.;	governing s credentials. governing cates, elem garten-prin 1924. 1924 Cation, gen Board of H and maint aided vocas fiscal years 49 p. Lating to voc 1922–23 to FISH ANI nia fish an 1924. p. 5 GRAND
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66 YOUNG, D. Hastings. A white Australia—is it possible? The problem of the empty north. 1922. 919.4 Y69 CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICA- TIONS RECEIVED DURING APRIL, MAY AND JUNE, 1924.1	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66 YOUNG, D. Hastings. A white Australia—is it possible? The problem of the empty north. 1922. 919.4 Y69 CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICA- TIONS RECEIVED DURING APRIL, MAY AND JUNE, 1924.;	governing s credentials.
Patrolling in Papua. [1923] 919.5 H92 ISLES of illusion; letters from the South Sea, edited by Bohun Lynch. c1923. 919.34 182 OVERELL, Lilian. A woman's impressions of German New Guinea. [1923] 919.5 O96 SEWARD, Albert Charles. A summer in Greenland. 1922. 919.8 S51 WILD, Frank. Shackleton's last voyage. 1923. 919.9 W66 YOUNG, D. Hastings. A white Australia—is it possible? The problem of the empty north. 1922. 919.4 Y69 CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICA- TIONS RECEIVED DURING APRIL, MAY AND JUNE, 1924.1	governing s credentials.

tions are printed at the state printing

office, Sacramento, and are octavo in size, 84 p. illus.

6-33352

- 6

s, bulletins, etc., which are of e interest. Copies can usually d free by writing to the departing them. The publications of rsity of California are offered in exchange by the University keley, with the exception of the s of the Agricultural Experiion and some of the adminislletins, which are distributed st of the publications of the ing Bureau are required by law Price is given after each l. he titles are listed in News California Libraries as they are the State Library.

LER. Annual report of finanactions of municipalities and California for the year 1923. p.

ION. BOARD OF. Bulletin no. 2gestive course of study in geoghe elementary schools. Supplelist of phonograph records illusmusic of many nations, grades and six. 1924. 83 p.

Same, no. 10-Ad. Regulations school administration and school 1924. 7 p.

Same, no. 10 El. Regulations granting of elementary certifinentary credentials and kindernary credentials. Rev. June. 4. 7 p.

Same, no. 23. Vocational eduneral regulations of the State Education for the establishment tenance of federal and statetional education in California. s 1922-28 to 1926-27. 1924.

Same, no. 23-A. Documents reocational education, fiscal years 1926-27 inclusive. 82 p.

D GAME COMMISSION. Califorad game, vol. 10, no. 2, April, 50-101. illus.

ARMY OF THE REPUBLIC, Deof California and Nevada. proceedings of the fifty-sixth acampment, held at city of California, May 14-18, 1923. 266

------ Official roll of the fifty-seventh annual encampment, city of San Diego, nia oil fields, vol. 9, nos. 8-9, February-California, May 12 to 16, 1924. 46 p.

Report of officers of the fiftyseventh annual encampment, p. 29-46.

HARBOR COMMISSIONERS, BOARD OF (San Francisco)*. Tariff charges for the port of San Francisco, California, dockage, tolls, demurrage and rentals. Rules and regulations for operation of the State Belt Railroad and State Grain Terminal. Effective July 1, 1924. 1924. 46 p.

HEALTH, BOARD OF. Special bulletin no. 6. Typhoid fever, regulations for the prevention and control of typhoid fever. Adopted June 1, 1914. 1924. 8 p.

- Same, no. 15. Poliomyelitis, regulations for the prevention of poliomyélitis (infantile paralysis), 1924, 7 p.

- Same, no. 19. Scarlet fever. regulations for the prevention of scarlet fever, control of epidemics among school children. Adopted November 4, 1916. 2d ed. 1924. 8 p.

- Same, no. 26. Smallpox, regulations for the prevention of smallpox. 1924. 11 p. illus.

----- Same, no. 45. Protection of water supplies. July, 1924. 7 p.

52, September 29, 1923-February 9, 1924; yol. 3, nos. 1-18, February 16-June 14, 1924.

HIGHWAY Commission. California highways, vol. 1, nos. 4-6, April-June, 1924. illus. maps.

INDUSTRIAL A C C I D E N T COMMISSION (San Francisco). California safety news, vol. 8, no. 2, June, 1924. 15 p. illus.

- Tentative elevator safety orders. 1924. 75 p. 32°.

LIBRARY, STATE. News Notes of California Libraries, vol. 19, no. 2, April, 1924. p. 95-183.

MINING BUREAU (San Francisco). Bulletin no. 92. Gold placers of California. 1923, 167 p. illus, maps.

------ Summary of operations Califor-1924. March, 1924. illus. 104 p.

> OSTEOPATHIC EXAMINERS, BOARD OF. Directory of graduates of osteopathic schools holding physician and surgeon licenses, osteopathic licenses, drugless practitioner licenses. May 1, 1924, 86 p.

> PRISON, STATE (San Quentin). The bulletin, vol. 11, nos. 6-9, March-June, 1924.

A monthly journal devoted to inmate welfare.

PUBLIC INSTRUCTION, SUPERINTENDENT OF. Bulletin 1-A. Information about California state textbooks. 1924, 6 p.

----- Same, no. 5-D. Lessons in oral English for classes of beginners-women. 1924. 45 p.

------ Same, no. 5-E. Lessons in oral English for beginners, in rural schools. 1924. 38 p.

PUBLIC WORKS, DEPARTMENT OF. Division of Water Rights. Amended regulations 11 and 12, adopted February 19, 1924. 1924. [3 p.]

RAILROAD COMMISSION (San Francisco). 'Gas service bulletin. Third edition. 1924. 105 p. illus.

SECRETARY OF STATE. Statement of vote of California presidential primary election, May 6, 1924, for delegates to National Conventions, 1924. 45 p.

SURVEYOR GENERAL. List of vacant state school lands in Napa, Solano, Sonoma and Yolo counties. May 1, 1924. 6 p.

TEACHERS COLLEGE, FRESNO. Circular of information, April, 1924. 1924. 76 p. illus. 24°.

TEACHERS COLLEGE AND JUNIOR COL-LEGE, San Diego. The educational quarterly bulletin, vol. 12, no. 2. Announcement of courses of instruction offered in education, teacher training, arts, literature, science, commerce, social service, 1924–1925, 1924, 59 p.

^{*}The location of an office or institution is in Sacramento, except when otherwise noted.

TEACHERS COLLEGE, San Francisco. Circular of information, issued in two parts. Part 1. concerning regular elementary course, kindergarten-primary course, junior high school course, 1924. 1-40. illus. 38 p. 24°. UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (Berkeley). Calendar, vol. LX, nos. 13-16, April 7-28, 1924. 8-p. folders. A weekly bulletin of official University announcements. Price 25 cents a half year, post-38. illus. -paid. ----- Chronicle. Vol. 16, no. 2, April, roy. 8°. 1924. p. 123-234. illus. Contents: Frontispiege, William Wallace Campbell; A triad of sonnets on Mount Hamilton, Henry Meade Bland; Money and loans in ancient Babylonia, H. F. Lutz; Shadows, The Custom House, Eunice Mitchell Leh-Custom House, Eunice Mitchell Leh-mer; The bookplate, Beulah Mitchell Clute; A great skeptic: W. H. Hud-son, Merritt Y. Hughes; Source, Anna Kalfus Spero, Tolstoy and Andreyev, Alexander Kaun; The scavenger, A. C. L.; Matthew Arnold as a critic of literature, Stanley T. Williams; Phrontistery: Reviews - Same. no. literature, Stanley T Phrontistery; Reviews. Price per year \$2.00; single copies 50 cents. ----- Publications. College of Agriculture. Report of the College of Agriculture and the Agricultural Experiment p. illus. Station of the University of California from July 1, 1922, to June 30, 1923. 1923. 476 p. illus.

Agricultural Experiment Station. Bulletin, no. 370. Factors influencing the development of internal browning of the yellow Newtown apple, by E. L. Overholser, A. J. Winkler and H. E. Jacob. Berkeley, September, 1923. p. 1-40. illus.

---- Same, no. 371. The relative cost of yarding small and large timber, by Donald Bruce. Berkeley, October, 1923. p. 1-36. illus.

-- Same, no. 372. The cost of producing market milk and butterfat on 246 California dairies, by R. L. Adams. Berkeley, November, 1923. p. 1-164. illus.

------ Same, no. 373. Pear pollination, by Warren P. Tufts and Guy L. Philp. Berkeley, Lecember, 1923. **D**. 1-36. illus.

----- Same, no. 374. A survey of orchard practices in the citrus industry of Southern California, by Roland S. Vaile. Berkeley, January, 1924. р.

- Same, no. 375. Results of rice experiments at Cortena, 1923, and progress in experiments in watergrass control at the Biggs Rice Field Station 1922-23, by Carroll F. Dunshee and Jenkin W. Jones. Berkeley, February, 1924. p. 1-

----- Same, no. 376. Sundrying and dehydration of walnuts, by L. D. Batchelor and A. W. Christie, assisted by E. H. Guthier and R. G. La Rue. Berkeley, March, 1924. p. 1-26. illus.

- Circular no. 268. Inexpensive labor-saving poultry appliances, by J. E. Dougherty and S. S. Gossman. Berkeley, July, 1923. 32 p. illus.

269.An orchard brush burner, by W. L. Zink. Berkeley, August, 1923. 10 p. illus.

----- Same, no. 270. A farm septic tank, by W. B. Herms and H. L. Belton, Berkeley, September, 1923. 16

- ____ Same, no. 271. Brooding chicks artificially, by J. E. Dougherty and S. S. Gossman. Berkeley, October, 1923. 29 p. illus.

- Same, no. 272. California farm tenancy and methods of leasing, by R. L. Adams. Berkeley, November, 1923. 48 p.

- Same, no. 273. Saving the gophered citrus tree, by Robert W. Hodgson. Berkeley, December, 1923. 19 p. illus.

- _____ Same, no. 275. Marketable California decorative greens, by C. L. Flint. Berkeley, February, 1924. 15 p. illus.

- Astronomy. Lick Observatory bulletin no. 353. Elements and ephemeris for the minor planet 1922 MZ=1913 TC. Berkeley, March 31, 1924. p. 133-134. 4°.

Price \$2.50 per vol. in advance. Vol. 11 current.

Botany, vol. 12, no. 2. Report upon a collection of ferns from Tahiti, by William R. Maxon. Berkeley, May 27, 1924. p. 17-44, plates 1-6. roy. 8°.

Price 45 cents.

Classical philology, vol. 7, nos. 7–8. The characteristics of Lucretius' verse and Lucubrationes Lucretianae, by William A. Merrill. Berkeley, May 15, 1924. p. 221–267.

Price 70 cents.

Extension Division. The Spokesman, vol. 1, no. 12, October, 1923, vol. 2, nos. 1–8, November, 1923–June, 1924.

Geological Sciences, vol. 15, no. 1. Period of scarp production in the Great Basin, by George D. Londerback. Berkeley, May 22, 1924. p. 1–44, plates 1–3, 3 figures in text. roy. 8°.

Price 60 cents.

———— Mathematics, vol. 1, no. 20. The hyperspace generalization of the lines on the cubic surface, by Daniel Victor Steed. Berkeley, May 17, 1924. p. 425–43, 1 figure in text. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Modern philology, vol. 8, no. 4. Etude morphologique et syntaxique des verbes dans Maistre Pierre Pathelin, par George Z. Patrick. Berkeley, June 30, 1924. p. 287–379. 8°.

Price 90 cents.

Zoology, vol. 26, no. 4. The boring mechanism of teredo, by Robert Cunningham Miller. Berkeley, May 27, 1924. p. 41-80, plates 3-6, 6 figures in text. roy. 8°.

Price 60 cents.

Price 75 cents.

Same, vol. 26, no. 6. Fatal effects of the removal of the micronucleus in euplotes, by Charles V. Taylor and William P. Farber. Berkeley, May 29, 1924. p. 131-44, plate 7. roy, 8°. Price 25 cents.

Price 45 cents.

Same, vol. 26, no. 9. The cytology of Endamoeba gingivalis (Gros) Brumpt compared with that of E. dysenteriae with special reference to the determination of the amoebas in bone marrow in arthritis deformans of Ely's second type, by Charles A. Kofoid and Olive Swezy. Berkeley, June 24, 1924. p. 165–98, plates 14–18, 1 figure in text. roy. 8°.

Price 50 cents.

<u>Same</u>, vol. 26, no. 10. Morphology and mitosis of dinenympha fimbriata sp. nov., by Harold Kirby, Jr. Berkeley, June 24, 1924. p. 199–220, plates 19–22. roy 8°.

Price 35 cents.

Price 35 cents.

Surface catches of marine diatoms and dinoffagellates made by U. S. S. Pioneer between San Diego and Seattle in 1923, by Winfred Emory Allen. Berkeley, June 24, 1924, p. 243-48, plate 25. roy. S^o.

Price 25 cents.

WHITTIER STATE SCHOOL. The Sentinel (new series). Vol. 21, nos. 3-4, April-May, 1924.

Published monthly. Price \$1.00 per year; 10 cents per copy.

CALIFORNIA CITY PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DURING APRIL, MAY AND JUNE, 1924.

BERKELEY. Public Library. Bulletin, vol. 8, nos. 4-6, April-June, 1924.

Los ANGELES. Board of Education. Educational research bulletin, vol. 3, nos. 9–12, March-April, 1924.

Board of Public Service Commissioners. Twenty-second annual report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1923.

----- Social service commission. Tenth annual report, July 1, 1922, to June 30, 1923.

----- Chamber of Commerce, Southern California business, vol. 3, nos. 3-5, April-June, 1924.

----- Municipal league. Light on your city's affairs, bulletin, vol. 1, nos. 9-11, April-June, 1924.

RICHMOND. Health department. Monthly report, April-June, 1924.

----- Public Library. Monthly bulletin, vol. 10, nos. 9-11, March-May, 1924.

SACRAMENTO. Health department. Statement of vital statistics for the months of April-June, 1924.

SAN DIEGO, Civil Service Commission. Ninth annual report for the calendar year 1923. 1924.

Mimeographed.

- Health Department. Monthly report, April-May, 1924.

SAN FRANCISCO. Board of Supervisors. Journal of proceedings, vol. 19, nos. 7-18. February-May, 1924.

- Municipal Record, vol. 17, nos. 13-25, March-June, 1924.

- Bureau of Governmental Research. The city, vol. 4, nos. 1-5, January-May, 1924.

STOCKTON, City Council, Official bulletin, March to June, 1924.

BOOKS FOR THE BLIND ADDED FROM JANUARY 1-JUNE 30, 1924.

In American Braille. Books marked c are printed with contractions.

MAGAZINES.

CILLUMINATOR for December and March.

In European Braille. BOOKS

BRONTE, EMILY JANE. Wuthering Heights, 4 vols.

.

A weird story of love, hate and revenge laid amid the dales and fells of moorland Yorkshire. THACKERAY, WILLIAM MAKEPEACE. lected Roundabout papers. 2 v

CONRAD, JOSEPH. Almayer's folly. $\mathbf{2}$ vols.

The history of a European married to a Malayan wife, who reverts to her ancestral savagery.

COOPER, Mrs ELIZABETH (BEAVER). The heart of O Sono San. 2 vols.

> The heart of O Sono San is not only the heart of every Japanese girl but the heart of woman the world over.

- CRAWFORD, FRANCES MARION. Uncanny tales. 2 vols.
- DRINKWATER, JOHN, 'The way of poetry. 4 vols.
- DUMAS, ALEXANDRE. The three musketeers. 8 vols.
- FENN, GEORGE MANVILLE. Nephew Jack. 4 vols.

A thrilling tale of the sea.

GUTHRIE. THOMAS ANSTEY ("T. ANSTEY," pseud.). The tinted Venus. 2 vols.

A farcical romance.

- HARTE, FRANCIS BRET. Tales, poems and sketches. 4 vols.
- KIPLING, RUDYARD. The brushwood boy, and The Maltese cat.
- LANKESTER, Sir EDWIN RAY. Secrets of earth and sea. 3 vols.

LOCKE, WILLIAM JOHN. The joyous adventures of Aristide Pujol. 2 vols.

The book bubbles with spontaneous fun.—Literary digest.

- The morals of Marcus Ordeyne. 3 vols.

The diary of a baronet, recluse and student, and of his ward, rescued from a harem.

MARRYAT, CAPTAIN FREDERICK. Masterman Ready. 4 vols.

A wreck, Crusoe life on an island, a fight with savages, etc.

THE MORSE code.

RICCI, LEWIS ANSELM DA COSTA ("BAR-TIMEUS," pseud.). An awfully big adventure. 2 vols.

Selected Roundabout papers. 2 vols.

- VACHELL, HORACE ANNESLEY. Quinney's. 3 vols.
 - The career of Quinney, a dealer in antiques, is both amusing and appealing.
- WHARTON, Mrs EDITH NEWBOLD (JONES), In Morocco, 2 vols,
- WHYTE-MELVILLE, GEORGE JOHN. The gladiators. 5 vols.

An energetic story of Rome and the Holy Land (A. D. 69-70).

WYLIE, IDA ALMA ROSS. The Rajah's people. 3 vols.

French Text.

*ABRÉGÉ orthographique français. An instruction book for blinded French.

- *ANNUNZIO, GABRIELE D'. L'enfant de volupté. 4 vols.
- *ARENE, PAUL AUGUSTE. Jean-des-Figues. 2 vols.
- *ARMANDY, ANDRÉ. Rapa-Uni. 3 vols.
- *BARCLAY, Mrs FLORENCE LOUISA (CHARLESWORTH). Le rosaire. 3 vols.
- *BARRÈS, MAURICE. Un jardin sur L' Oronte.
- *BARTHOU, LOUIS. Mirabeau. 4 vols.
- *BAUCQ, PHILIPPE. Le journal de ma captivité.
- *BENOÎT, PIERRE. L'Atlantide. 2 vols.
- *BEYLE, MARIE HENRI ("STENDAHL," pscud.). Le rouge et le noir.
- *BLASCO IBÁÑEZ, VICENTE. Dans les orangers.

*CONRAD, JOSEPH. Typhon.

- *DROUILLY, JOSÉ GEBMAIN, & STÉPHANE, FAYE. Un fils de France : le général Laperrine. 2 vols.
- *DUDEVANT, Mme AMANTINE LUCILE AURORE (DUPIN) ("GEORGE SAND," pseud.). La mare au diable.
- *FORBIN, V. Les fiancées du soleil. 2 vols.
 - *Gift of Permanent Blind Relief War Fund, Inc.

- *FRANCE, ANATOLE. Le lys rouge. 2 vols.
- *----- THAÏS. 2 vols.
- *GAUDY, GEORGES. Le chemin-des-dames en feu.
- *GILBERT DE VOISINS, A. Le bar de la fourche. 2 vols.
- *GOSSELIN, LOUIS LEÓN THÉODORE ("GEORGES LENOTRË," pseud.). Viëlles maisons, vieux papiers. 2 vols.
- *HALGAN, CYPRIEN. Le tragique amour de Madame de Pradun. 2 vols.

*KESSEL, J. L'equipage. 2 vols.

----- La steppe rouge.

- *LA FAYETTE, MARIE MADELEINE DE. La princesse de Clèves. 2 vols.
- *LEVEL, MAURICE. L'île sans pom. 2 vols.
- *LOTI, PIERRE. Aziyade, 2 vols.
- ------ Les désenchantées. 3 vols.
- *MADELIN, LOUIS. Danton. 4 vols.
- *MURGER, HENRI. Scènes de la vie de bohème. 3 vols.
- *RIIAÏS, ELISSA. La fille des pachas. 2 vols.
- *SAINT-RENÉ TAILLANDIER, Mme M. Madame de Maintenon. 3 vols.
- *SAINT-SORNY., Pasca ou le désert enchanté. 2 vols.
- *SCHOPFER, JEAN ("CLAUDE ANET," pseud.). L'amour en Russie.
- *STEVENSON. ROBERT LOUIS. L'île au trésor. 2 vols.
- *VIOLET, JEANNE ("GUY CHANTEPLEUBE," pseud.). La passagère. 3 vols.
- *VOGÜÉ, EUGÉNE MARIE MELCHOIR, vicomte dé. Le maitre de la mer. 4 vols.
- *WALEFFE, MAURICE DE. La reine Taia. 2 vols.
- *WHITE, STEWART EDWARD. Terres de silence. 2 vols.
 - *Gift of Permanent Blind Relief War Fund, Inc.

vol. 19, no. 3]

 *X. Pére et fils. 2 vols.
 *Gift of Permanent Blind Relief War Fund, Inc.

German Text.

- *ARNDT, PAUL. Sagen und Schwänke von Rübezahl. 2 vols.
- *HYMNS. Eine sammlung schöner Kirchenlieder. Vol. 2. Hand copied and gift of Mrs H. W. Bruning.
- *JENSEN, WILHELM. Karin von Schweden; a novel.
- *Schiller, Johann Christoph Friedrich von. Wallenstein's lager.

MAGAZINES.

BLIND citizen for October.

Published by Irish Association for the blind.

-BRAILLE mail for January-June.

BRAILLE musical magazine for December, 1923-May, 1924.

BRAILLE packet for February-June.

CHANNELS of blessing for December, February and April.

HAMPSTEAD for December-May.

HORA jucunda for January-June.

INTERALLIED Braille magazine for December-June.

THE LIGHTBRINGER for May and August.

THE LITERARY journal for December-June.

LE LOUIS Braille.

Gifts of back numbers.

PROGRESS for January-June.

REVUE Braille. Gifts of back numbers.

SANTA LUCIA for December-June.

TRIBUNE for January-June.

MUSIC.

BRAILLE musical magazine for December-June.

*Gift of Mrs H, W. Bruning,

In Moon Type.

BOOKS,

BIBLE. New Testament. Acts, John, Luke. Matthew. 8 vols.

----- Old Testament. Psalms. 3 vols. The above 11 volumes are the gift of Mrs A. B. Moody.

THURSTON, ERNEST TEMPLE. The city of beautiful nonsense. 6 vols.

A fanciful love story.

VACHELL, HORACE ANNESLEY. The face of clay, 6 vols.

An attractive story of artist life in Brittany.—Outlook.

WALPOLF, HUGH SEYMOUR. Jeremy. 5 vols.

A keen study of the psychology of boyhood; but more than that, it is a good story.—Springfield Republican.

MAGAZINES.

DAWN, parts 150, 151.

THE Moon, weekly newspaper, for January-June.

Moon magazine for January-June.

In New York Point.

MAGAZINES.

CATHOLIC transcript for January-June.

CHRISTIAN record for January-June.

GOSPEL trumpet for January-June.

LUX VERA, Catholic monthly, for January-June.

MATILDA Ziegler magazine for January-June.

SUNDAY school monthly for January-June.

WEEKLY review for January-June.

In Revised Braille.

Books marked c are printed with contractions.

BOOKS.

ADDINGTON, SARAH. The pied piper in Pudding Lane.

Hand copied by and gift of Mrs Alexander Brown in memory of her daughter Marguerite. A companion story to The boy who lived in Pudding Lane, CALLEN, NELLIE BURNHAM. Asia: India and Ceylon.

Contents: India—the land and the people; Some Indian cities; Indian farms and factories; Ceylon, the pearl of India.

c South America: Chile and Ecudor.

Contents: Over the Andes to Chile; Chile and the Chilians; Deserts and desert products.

cANDERSON, W. H. On the trail of Livingstone, vol. 4.

Vols. 1-3 added previously. Hand copied. Gift of Mrs Florence Livingston.

CATHERTON, Mrs GERTRUDE FRANKLIN (HORN). California: an intimate history. 7 vols.

Hand copied. Gift of San Francisco Chapter, American Red Cross.

CAVERY-STUTTLE, Mrs IAILLA DALE. Gleanings.

Hand copied. Gift of Mrs Florence Livingston.

- BALDWIN, JAMES. The story of George Washington, 2 vols.
- cBALZAC, HONORÉ DE. The atheist's mass, and Christ in Flanders.

Hand copied by and gift of Mrs M. M. Brereton, San Francisco. The atheist's mass is the pathetic story of an infidel's tribute to the religion of a great and modest soul. Christ in Flanders: 'A miracle appears to a chance gathering of rich and poor.

c----- La grande Breteche.

Hand copied by and gift of Mrs M. M. Brereton, San Francisco.

CBELLETT, JOHN GEORGE. A short meditation on the moral glory of the Lord Jesus Christ. 8 vols.

Hand copied by and gift of Miss E. B. Aldridge.

CBENNETT, ENOCH ARNOED. Some impressions of Portugal. *Includes* Denmark, the model monarchy, by Francis Hackett.

Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California.

cBIBLE. Old Testament. Isaiah. King James version.

*c----- 1 and II Chronicles.

*c----- Ezra-Job.

*c----- Psalms.

*c----- Proverbs to Solomon.

*c_____ Jeremiah to Lamentations.

*c----- Ezekiel.

*c----- Daniel to Malachi.

*c------ New Testament. Matthew to Mark.

*c----- Luke to John.

*c----- Acts to Romans.

*c----- I Corinthians to II Timothy.

*These eleven volumes are the gift of the National Transcribers Society (Mrs Florence Livingston, in charge) and complete our set of the King James version of the Bible printed by the Universal Braille Press, Los Angeles.

CBROOKS, CHARLES STEPHEN. Luca Sarto, 5 vols.

> An entertaining story of adventure and romance laid in the year 1471.

cBROWNE, CHARLES FARRAR ("ARTEMUS WARD," *pseud.*). Selections from Artemus Ward's best stories, edited by Clifton Johnson.

Contents: An interview with President Lincoln; Affairs around the village green; The surrender of Cornwallis; Romance; Only a mechanic; Romance of the French school; William Barber; Agriculture; Biographical_notes.

Hand copied by and gift of Mrs M. M. Brereton, San Francisco.

cBuchan, John. Salute to adventurers. 3 vols.

Gift of the U.S. Veterans' Bureau.

- cBurroughs, John. The story of my boyhood. 2 vols.
- CCALDWELL, OTHS WILLIAM & EIKEN-BERRY, WILLIAM LEWIS, General science, 4 vols.

CCAMERON, ANNE. For you a rose in Portland grows. *Includes* Myrtle's beau, by Elsie Singmaster.

Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California.

cCOBB, IRVING SHREWSBURY. A kind of a feeling.

c----- 'The value of a good name.

Hand copied by and gift of Mrs Kate Chalmers, San Francisco. CCOOPER, JAMES FENIMORE. The deerslayer. 5 vols.

Indian warfare and adventure in colonial New York.

- CRAWFORD, JAMES PYLE WICKERSHAM. Temas españoles.
- cDAVIS, RICHARD HARDING. The boy scout, and other stories. 2 vols.
- cDAVIS, RICHARD HARDING. Gallegher, and my disreputable friend, Mr. Raegen.

Gallegher is an impish office-boy on a newspaper.

*cEATON, WALTER PRICHARD. Fireflies and woodland voices.

> Other articles: In the mountains of the desert, by W. D. Steele; Lords of the Sahara, by W. J. Harding King.

*c—— Fruit of the earth, and The last savage. *Includes* Concerning salt marshes by Richard Le Galliene.

The six articles listed above are from Harper's Magazine.

cFREEMAN, Mrs MARY ELEANOR (Wilkins). The Christmas masquerade, and other stories.

Contents: The Christmas masquerade; The pot of gold; Where Sarah Jane's doll went; Little Mirandy and how she earned her shoes.

cFROM the outposts. 2 vols.

Contents: Vol. 1, The raider's souvenir, by F. Rainsford-Hanney; Jokiloboyn, by Sir Robert Baden-Powell; He brought them out safely, by A. J. P.; The cannibal, by Amasis. Vol. 2, In Nigeria, by Col. C. E. Vickery; The capture, by "Hathi." Army sketches. The last story is an account of the capture of an outlaw leader in India. Hand copied by and gift of Women

Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California.

cGALE, ZONA. Faint perfume. 3 vols.

The story of Leda Perrin, delicate, sensitive, high souled, driven by circumstances to live with her vulgar, squabbling relatives.

CGREY, ZANE. The lone star ranger, 4 vols.

A story of abundant action laid in Texas in the period of the seventies. Gift of U. S. Veterans' Bureau.

cGRIERSON, ELIZABETH WILSON. The heir of Linne, and other stories.

Contents: The heir of Linne; Hynde Horn; The gudeman of Ballengeich.

*Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California. 7-33352

.

cGBIMSHAW, BEATRICE ETHEL. Conn of the coral seas. 7 vols.

A thrilling tale of the South Seas.

cGROSVENOR, GILBERT HOVEY. The Capitol, wonder building of the world. *Includes* The sources of Washington's charm, by J. R. Hildebrand.

Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California.

HANNAY, JAMES OWEN ("GEORGE A. BIRMINGHAM," pseud.) Spanish gold. 5 vols.

A hunt for hidden treasure.

cHawes, Charles Boardman. The mutineers. 6 vols.

A tale of old days at sea and of adventures in the Far East.

- CHENDRICK, BURTON JESSE. The life and letters of Walter H. Page: Part I. 5 vols. Part II. 5 vols.
 - Part II is gift of U. S. Veterans' Bureau.
- cJohnson, Clifton. John Burroughs' talks, 3 vols.

Reminiscences and comments, by the great naturalist, on a wide range of subjects—politics, religion, philosophy, science, literature—recorded by Clifton Johnson.

- cJOHNNY Bear, and other bear stories by various authors.
- CJOKES, Book of.

Hand copied. Gift of S. F. Chapter, American Red Cross.

CKALER, JAMES OTIS. Mary of Plymouth, vol 2.

Hand copied by and gift of Mrs Alexander Brown in memory of her daughter, Marguerite. Vol. 1 previously added.

CKINGSLEY, CHARLES. Hypatia. 6 vols.

Hellenic Egypt in 413-415 when Christianity and paganism were at war; Goths, Romans, Greeks and a crowd of minor races come on the stage.

*cKINGSLEY, Mrs FLORENCE (MORSE). Miss Philura's wedding gown. 3 vols.

- CKIPLING. RUDYARD. The man who would be king.
- *cKLAHR, EVELYN GILL. Miss Ida Jones. Includes The house of joy that is gone, by Ricbard Le Galliene.

*Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California. *cKyne, Peter Bernard. Cornflower Cassie's concert.

*c----- The long lane.

- LEWIS, ANGELO. The wrong black bag. A story with graded spacing for teaching adults.
- cLINDERMANN, FRANK BIRD. Indian why stories; sparks from War Eagle's lodge-fire.

Tales told by the older men bf the Blackfeet, Chippewa and Cree tribes.—*Preface*.

MAUPASSANT. GUY DE. Huit contes choisis.

Contents: La parure; Le bonheur; Le baptême; La dicelle; Deux amis; Mademoiselle Perle; Mon oncle Jules; En voyage.

cMAYO. KATHERINE & O'HIGGINS, HAR-VEY JERROLD. Israel Drake, and other stories.

Contents: Israel Drake; Babe; The case of Padoges Palmer.

- cMUIR, JOHN. Stickeen. Includes Comet, by S. A. Derieux.
- cPAGE, THOMAS NELSON. Two little confederates.
- CPEARY, Mrs JOSEPHINE (DIEBITSCH). The snow baby.

True story of little American Marie Peary, born in Greenalnd.

- cPENDEXTER. HUGH. Red belts. 6 vols. A stirring pioneer tale.
- cPRESCOTT, W., AND OTHERS. A series of lectures upon prophecy.

Hand copied. Gift of National Braille Transcribers Society.

- cPyle, Howard. Merry adventures of Robin Hood. 4 vols.
- *cREESE, LOWELL OTUS. The park bench.
- *cREEVE, ARTHUR BENJAMIN. The radio wraith, and Dead men tell tales.
- *c _____ Thicker than water, and The hawk.

A new set of Reeve stories, featuring all the newest scientific instruments and experiments.

cRHODES, JOHN KIDDER. A blind boy who became a great physician.

The story of Dr Robert H. Babcock. Duplicate copy. Former copy hand copied.

..*Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California. CROBBINS, LEONARD HARMAN. Mr. Downey sits down. *Includes* Wilfred Reginald and the dark horse, by James Mahoney.

Humorous stories.

CSCOTT. Sir WALTER. Ivanhoe. 6 vols.

- *cSINGMASTER, ELSIE. A man in the house. and A sound in the night.
- cSouthcott, JOANNA. Sound an alarm in my holy mountains.

Hand copied. Gift of Mrs Rose Maltpress, San Diego.

- eSTOCKTON, FRANCIS RICHARD. The casting away of Mrs Lecks and Mrs Aleshine. 2 vols.
- *cTERHUNE, ALBERT PAYSON. The mystery man.
- cTOLSTOI, LEO NIKOLATEVITCH. A captive in the Caucasus, and Where love is there God is also.

The life of a captive officer in a Tartar village pictures in a vivid way the whole surroundings of the half-savage mountaineers.

CTOWNSEND, Mrs FRANCES (HODGSON) BURNETT, A fair barbarian. 2 vols.

> The experiences of a young American girl arriving unexpectedly in England to visit an aunt.

cVAN DYKE, HENRY JACKSON. The mansion. Duplicate **co**py. Gift of Mrs G.

W. Dickinson. cWHITE, Mrs ELLEN G. (HARMON).

Early writings. Vols. 4 and 5.

Vols. 1-3 previously added. Gift of *Mrs* Florence Livingston.

cWhite, Stewart Edward. The magic forest.

A boy's summer with a tribe of Canadian Indians.

cWILLIAMS, HENRY SMITH. Conjuring with plants. Vol. 1.

Gift of American Brotherhood of Free Reading for the Blind,

c----- Radio-mastery of the ether. 2 vols.

Gift of American Brotherhood of Free Reading for the Blind.

*cWILLIAMS, MAYNARD OWEN. Through the heart of Hindustan.

*Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California. *eWISSLER, CLARK. Unearthing the secrets of the Aztec ruins.

> Other articles: Sea monsters, by Herbert Rovandel Sass; Master weavers of the desert, by M. D. C. Crawford.

Young, Bennett Henderson. Dr. Gander of Youngland. 2 vols.

Gift of the Susan B. Merwin fund.

MAGAZINES.

cTHE BRAILLE courier for January and June.

cCATHOLIC review for January and June.

cCHRISTIAN record for December and June.

cGospel trumpet for January and June.

cMATILDA Ziegler magazine for January and June.

MESSENGER to the sightless for December and June.

SEARCHLIGHT for March and April.

*Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California. cSUNDAY school monthly for January and June.

MUSIC.

- cGRIFFES, CHARLES. The fountain of the Acqua Paola, from "Roman sketches." op. 7, no. 3. (6)
- cMASSENET, JULES ÉMILE FRÉDÉRIC. Air de ballet from Suite no. 2 "Scenes pittores ques."
- cRODENBERG, L. W. Embossed music its history, present status and future.
- cTERRY. R. H. The answer, in A. (Low voice)

In Ink Print.

MAGAZINES.

THE BEACON for December and June.

- THE OUTLOOK for the blind for March and June.
- ST. DUNSTAN'S review for December and June.

.

· · ·

and the second sec

.

.

News Notes

OF

CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES

ANNUAL STATISTICS NUMBER

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY

CALIFORNIA STATE PRINTING OFFICE JOHN E. KING, Superintendent SACRAMENTO, 1925

34984

•

CONTENTS.

MAP OF CALIFORNIA SHOWING COUNTIES
LIST OF COUNTIES HAVING COUNTY FREE LIBRARIES
CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES—ANNUAL STATISTICS AND QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS
MAUI COUNTY FREE LIBRARY, T. H
DIRECTORY FOR LIBRARY SUPPLIES AND OTHER ITEMS OF GENERAL INTEREST
CALIFORNIA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION
CALIFORNIA COUNTY LIBRARIANS
LIBRARY CLUBS, ETC.
BOARD OF LIBRARY EXAMINERS
CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY
STAFF, ETC.
DEPARTMENTS
RECENT ACCESSIONS
CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DURING JULY, AUGUST AND SEPTEMBER, 1924
CALIFOBNIA CITY PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DURING JULY, AUGUST AND SEPTEMBER, 1924
BOOKS FOR THE BLIND ADDED DURING JULY, AUGUST AND SEPTEMBER 1924

Issued quarterly in the interests of the libraries of the State by the CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY.

All communications should be addressed to the California State Library, Sacramento, California.

NOTE .--- Standing matter is set solid and new matter leaded.

Entered as second-class matter December, 1913, at the post office at Sacramento, California, under the act of August 24, 1912.

Acceptance for mailing at the special rate of postage provided for in Section 1103, act of October 3, 1917, authorized August 27, 1918.



MAP OF CALIFORNIA SHOWING COUNTIES



.

LIST OF COUNTIES HAVING COUNTY FREE LIBRARIES Statistics of July 1, 1924.

					-		
County	Librarian	Established	Income 1923-24 ²	Books, etc.	Branches	Total active school dists. in county ³	Active School dists. that have joined
Alameda	Mary Barmby	Sept. 26, 1910	\$46,232 27	103,168	87 37	50	37 21
Amador	Frances M. Burket	June 2, 1919	4,837 39	$10,679 \\ 57,496$	94	36 66	21 60
Butte Colusa	Mrs Dorothy C. Worden	Sept. 3, 1913 June 8, 1915	17,654 13 10,970 52	39.379	48	33	29
Contra Costa	Mrs Alice G. Whitbeck	July 21, 1913	47,840 66	125.391	98	63	54
Fresno	Sarah E. McCardle	Mar. 12, 1910	150.028 33	331.256	239	178	149
Glenn	Faye T. Kneeshaw	April 8, 1914	13,450 58	38,355	67	46	41
Humboldt	Ida M. Reagan	May 12, 1914	24,791 21	73,967	163	111	106
Imperial	Evalyn Boman	Feb. 6, 1912	12,348 24	71,609	79	59	54
Inyo	Anne Margrave	Sept. 15, 1913	8,757 80	24,343	43	32	30
Kern	Mrs Julia G. Babcock	Nov. 16, 1910	102,671 90	217,991	184	108	108
Kings	Julia Steffa	June 4, 1912	33,644 23	94,083	58	40	38
Lassen	Lenala A. Martin	Sept. 7, 1915	12,679 01	33,714	77 329	43	42 129
Los Angeles	Helen E. Vogleson	Sept. 5, 1912	235,899 02	439,939	329 68	166 47	47
Madera Merced	Blanche Galloway	May 3, 1910 June 6, 1910	22,157 07 40,767 32	74,227 95,530	84	69	65
Modoc	Anna L. Williams	July 8, 1915	4,627 88	11,691	29	43	27
Monterev	Anne Hadden	Aug. 6, 1912	19.857 75	70.255	142	100	87
Napa	Estella DeFord	Feb. 9, 1916	11.361 13	17,408	69	51	45
Orange	Margaret Livingston	Dec. 9, 1919	21,971 13	37,873	55	57	29
Plumas	Edith Gantt	Sept. 7, 1915	7.806 27	28,545	69	32	32
Riverside	Chas. F. Woods	Nov. 8, 1911	13.545 00	0	78	78	48
Sacramento	Cornelia D. Provines	Oct. 1, 1908	37,057 05	47,548	109	83	63
San Benito	Florence J. Wheaton	Feb. 4, 1918	9,335 28	24,088	72	37	37
San Bernardino	Caroline S. Waters	July 14, 1913	30,260 18	83,079	137 142	81 117	· 71 103
San Diego	Eleanor Hitt H. O. Parkinson	April 5, 1912 Mar. 7, 1910	32,583 48 26,369 47	88,961	142	94	62
San Joaquin	Flo A. Gantz	July 6, 1915	14,502 08	37.251	97	93	79
San Mateo	Edna Holroyd	Sept. 5, 1912	a.11.800 00	a.32.045	63	41	27
Santa Barbara	Mrs Frances B. Linn	Feb. 16, 1910	20.478 00	0	114	$\tilde{70}$	63
Santa Clara	Stella Huntington	July 20, 1912	29,011 90	86,359	96	86	75
Santa Cruz	Minerva H. Waterman	Oct. 13, 1916	5,882 14	· 0	91	55	53
Siskiyou	Thelma Brackett	June 7, 1915	20,222 45	57,829	164	94	91
Solano	Clara B. Dills	April 6, 1914	21,723 62	54,526	65	55	50
Stanislaus	Bessie B. Silverthorn	Aug. 14, 1911	40,644 29	71,948	68	68	42
Sutter	Edna J. Hewitt	May 9, 1917	12,690 18	32,431	$\frac{49}{74}$	36 55	34 53
Tehama Trinity	Elizabeth Stevens	Aug. 8, 1916	11,375 39 4,971 76	$ \begin{array}{c} 30,332 \\ 15,932 \end{array} $	60	35 27	27
Tulare	Gretchen Flower	Sept. 8, 1916 June 10, 1910	52,341 73	125.039	118	137	69
Tuolumne	¹ Martha J. Coleman	July 3, 1917	6.830 61	21,334	64	34	31
Ventura	Elizabeth R. Topping	April 9, 1915	23,861 49	58 436	87	60	57
Yolo	Nancy C. Laugenour	July 12, 1910	20,606 59	72,590	77	47	46
42		O 1, '08-D 9, '19	\$1,296,446 53	2,936,627	4,068	2,878	2,411
				1			

*Appointed Sept. 22, 1924. ¹Appointed July 21, 1924. ²The income as given does not include balance in fund July 1, 1923. ³Includes elementary and high. Formerly number of "high schools" was given in county superintendents' reports instead of number of high school districts. This year both are given but this table includes number of high school districts only. This accounts for apparent radical decrease in number of active school districts in some counties.

279

[Oct., 1924

CALIFORNIA LIBRARIES—ANNUAL STATISTICS AND QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Before October 1 annual report blanks were sent to all California libraries listed. Statistics from these annual reports are printed in this issue. Except when otherwise noted, statistics are for the period from July 1, 1923, to June 30, 1924.

According to the plan adopted last year, branch library statistics are omitted under the names of the various branches. They are included, however, in the general figures given under the main library.

On account of the above, high school, public and other libraries, which are affiliated with a county free library, show, as a rule, statistics for their own books only and not for county service.

The annual statistics are followed by quarterly news items covering the period July to October, 1924. News items from the annual reports are given at the end of the statistics, except those that have already been given in quarterly issues.

In order to keep statistics given herein consistent with figures given by the State Department of Education, and in order that there may not appear to be a great unexplained drop in the number of school districts belonging to the county libraries (due to the formation of union districts), we have counted all districts in a union district as separate districts in "number of active school districts that have joined county libraries." There will in some counties, however, appear to be a decrease on account of the fact that high school districts this year represent the exact number of "districts," while in former years the County Superintendents' reports have listed number of high schools rather than districts. Under County Teachers' Libraries number of districts and number of high schools are both given.

1

All libraries are listed except elementary public school and church libraries and those which belong to private individuals. They are arranged alphabetically by place under counties and counties are arranged alphabetically. To determine the county in which any place is located see list following these introductory paragraphs. This list includes locations of branch libraries, although the branches are listed only under the main library.

Those libraries are marked with an asterisk (*) which are not free to the public for either loan or reference purposes.

Libraries marked with ‡ are United States depository libraries; those marked

with § are depositories for the Official Gazette of the Patent Office; those marked with || are geological depositories; those marked with # are Library of Congress card depositories. This information was revised in October, 1920.

When a branch has a reading room, it is indicated by \mathbf{r} . \mathbf{r} . in the list of branches under county free library.

The months after newspaper clippings are abbreviated as follows:

January Ja	July Jl
February F	August Ag
March Mr	September S
April Ap	October O
May My	November N
June Je	December D

In order that the figures for circulation may be uniform, current magazines are included in the total whether reported that way or not.

An effort is being made to have the statistics uniform in reference to number of branches. Any distributing point through which service is given directly from headquarters is counted as a branch. For example, in a school with several classrooms, if service is given directly to each classroom separately, each room served is counted as a branch. But, on the other hand, if a school district has joined and both school and community service are given from one location, such service is counted as two branches.

There are in California 42 county free libraries: 4 library district libraries: 4 union high school district libraries; 138 libraries supported by city taxation; 59 towns or districts with free public libraries that are included in county free library service (33 under Sec. 3, 2 under Sec. 4, 12 under Sec. 16, 12 under Pol. C., Sec. 4041) : 68 law libraries, of which 56 are county law libraries; 58 county teachers' libraries; 378 libraries in educational institutions, of which 6 are universities, 7 colleges, 7 state teachers colleges, 301 public high schools, 57 private schools and other institutions: 61 miscellaneous institution libraries: 60 association or society libraries and 26 subscription libraries. In connection with the above libraries are 4483 branches and deposit stations.

There are 246 library buildings, of which 174 were gifts, and of these gifts 144 are from Andrew Carnegie.

As the libraries are listed under counties, the following alphabetical list by place, giving county, is printed. List includes places mentioned under County Free Libraries as having branches.

Aberdeen School District, Inyo co. Acacia School District, Imperial co. Acampo, San Joaquin co. Acton, Los Angeles co. Adams School District, Santa Clara co. Adelanto, San Bernardino co. Adein, Modoc co. Adventist, Kings co. Adventist School, Kern co. Actna Springs, Napa co. Agnew, Santa Clara co. Agricola, Santa Barbara co. Agua Caliente School District, Kern co. Agua Dulce, Los Angeles co. Agua Puerca, Santa Cruz co. Aguaje, Santa Barbara co.

Aguas Frias School District, Glenn co. Ahwahnee, Madera co.

Air Point School District, Santa Clara co. "

Alameda, Alameda co.

Alameda, Los Angeles co.

Alameda School District, Fresno co.

Alamitos School District, Imperial co.

Alamitos School District, Orange co.

Alamo, Contra Costa co.

Alamo, Imperial co.

Alamo School District, Contra Costa co.

Alamo School District, Madera co.

Alamo School District, San Luis Obispo co.

Alamos School District, Riverside co. Albany, Alameda co.

Albany School District, Alameda co.

Alberhill School District, Riverside co.

Alcatraz School District, Santa Barbara co.

Alder Point, Humboldt co.

Alder Springs, Glenn co.

Algerine, Tuolumne co.

Alhambra, Los Angeles co.

Alisal School District, Monterey co.

Aliso School District, San Diego co.

Allendale School District, Solano co.

Allensworth, Tulare co

Alliance School District, San Luis Obispo co.

Allison-Spring Valley School District, San Diego co.

Alma, Santa Clara co.

Almondale, Los Angeles co.

Alpaugh, Tulare co.

Alpha School District, Madera co.

Alpine, San Diego co.

Alpine, San Mateo co.

Alpine School District, Modoc co.

Alpine School District, San Joaquin co.

Alta Loma, San Bernardino co.

Alta Mesa, Sacramento co.

Alta Robles School District, Tulare co.

Alta School District, San Diego co.

Alta Vista School District, Fresno co.

Alta Vista School District, Tulare co.

Altadena, Los Angeles co.

Altamont, Alameda co.

Altamont School District, Fresno co.

Alton, Humboldt co.

Alturas, Los Angeles co.

Alturas, Modoc co.

Alvarado, Alameda co. Arlight, Santa Barbara co. Alvina School District, Fresno co. Arlington School District, Modoc co. Alviso, Alameda co. Armona, Kings co. Alviso, Santa Clara co. Arnaz School District, Ventura co. Amador City. Amador co. Arno School District, Sacramento co. Amboy, San Bernardino co. Aromas, Monterey co. Ambrose School District, Contra Costa Aromas School District, San Benito co. 0.0 Aromitas, San Benito co. Amedee, Lassen co. Arrowhead, San Bernardino co. American Basin School District, Sac-Arrowhead Lake Emergency School, ramento co. San Bernardino co. American Can Company, Los Angeles Arrowhead Springs, San Bernardino co. co. Arroyo, Alameda co. American Canyon School District, Napa Arroyo Grande, San Luis Obispo co. co. Arroyo Seco School District, Monterey American Colony School District. Fresno co. co. Amesti School District, Santa Cruz co. Artesia, Los Angeles co. Amsterdam, Merced co. Artesia School District, Santa Barbara Anahauc School District, San Diego co. co. Anaheim, Orange co. Artois, Glenn co. Anderson, Shasta co. Arundel School District, Merced co. Andrade, Imperial co. Arvin, Kern co. Andrew Jackson, Los Angeles co. Ascencion School District, San Luis Angels Camp, Calaveras co. Obispo co. Angiola, Tulare co. Ash Valley School District, Lassen co. Annandale, Los Angeles co. Ash View School District, Madera co. Annette, Kern co. Asilomar, Monterey co. Ano Nuevo Island Light Station, San Associated, Contra Costa co. Mateo co. Antelope, Amador co. Associated Midway Club, Kern co. Antelope, Los Angeles co. Atascadero, San Luis Obispo co. Antelope, Sacramento co. Athearn School District, San Joaquin Antelope, San Benito co. co. Antelope School District, Colusa co. Athlone, Merced co. Antelope School District, Tehama co. Atkins School District, Butte co. Antioch, Contra Costa co. Atlanta, San Joaquin co. Antone School District, Alameda co. Atolia, San Bernardino co. Anzar, San Benito co. Atwater, Merced co. Apache School District, Ventura co. Auberry, Fresno co. Apple Valley School District, San Ber-Auburn, Placer co. nardino co. Applegate School District, Merced co. August School District, San Joaquin Appling School District, Merced co. co. Apricot School District, Yolo co. Aurora School District, Tulare co. Ausaymas School District, San Benito Aptos, Santa Cruz co. co. Aqueduct School District, Kern co. Austin Corners, Santa Clara co. Arastraville, Tuolumne co. Austin School District, Santa Clara co. Arbuckle, Colusa co. Auto Rest, Trinity co. Arcade, Sacramento co. Avalon, Los Angeles co. Arcade School District, Sacramento co. Avenue School District, Ventura co. Arcadia, Los Angeles co. Arcata, Humboldt co. Avila, San Luis Obispo co. Arcola School District, Madera co. Avon School District, Contra Costa co. Arden School District, Sacramento co. Azalea School District, Siskiyou co. Arena School District, Merced co. Aztec School District, Kern co.

283

Azusa, Los Angeles co. B Gardens, Los Angeles co. Badger, Tulare co. Bagdad. San Bernaraino co. Bailey Flats, Madera co. Bair. Humboldt co. Bakersfield, Kern co. Bald Mountain, Santa Cruz co. Baldwin Park, Los Angeles co. Ball, Siskiyou co. Ballard, Santa Barbara co. Ballena School District, San Diego co. Bangor, Butte co. Banner School District, Humboldt co. Banner School District, San Diego co. Banning, Riverside co. Banning School District, San Luis Obispo co. Banta, San Joaquin co. Bard. Imperial co. Bardsdale School District, Ventura co. Barfield School District, Merced co. Barnes School District, Kern co. Barrett, San Diego co. Barry, Sutter co. Barstow, Fresno co. Barstow, San Bernardino co. Barstow School District, Fresno co. Basin, Fresno co. Bassett, Los Angeles co. Bay City School District, Orange co, Bay Point, Contra Costa co. Bay School District, Humboldt co. Bay School District, Monterey co. Bayliss, Glenn co. Bayside, Humboldt co. Bear Creek School District, Santa Cruz co. Bear River School District, Humboldt CO. Bear Valley, San Benito co. Bear Valley School District, San Diego CO. Beardsley School District, Kern co. Beaumont, Riverside co. Beaver Union School District, Sacramento co. Beckwith, Plumas co. Bee, Los Angeles co. Bee Rock School District, San Luis Obispo co. Beech School District, Imperial co. Beegum School District, Tehama co.

Belden, Plumas co. Bell, Los Angeles co. Bell. San Mateo co. Belle Vernon, Los Angeles co. Belleview, Los Angeles co. Bellevue School District, San Luis Obispo co. Bellflower, Los Angeles co. Bellview, Tuolumne co. Belmont, San Mateo co. Belpassi School District, Stanislaus co. Belridge School District, Kern co. Belvedere, Los Angeles co. Ben Lomond, Santa Cruz co. Bend, Tehama co. Bender School District, Fresno co. Benicia, Solano co. Berenda, Madera co. Berkeley, Alameda co. Bernabe School District, Monterey co. Berry Creek, Butte co. Berryessa, Santa Clara co. Bethel School District, Fresno co. Bethel School District, Madera co. Bethel School District, San Luis Obispo co. Betteravia, Santa Barbara co. Beverly Hills, Los Angeles co. Bicknell, Santa Barbara co. Bidwell Bar School District, Butte co. Bieber, Lassen co. Big Bar School District, Butte co. Big Bear Valley, San Bernardino co. Big Bend School District, Butte co. Big Creek, Fresno co. Big Creek No. 2, Fresno co. Big Creek School District, Fresno co. Big Oak Flat, Tuolumne co. Big Pine, Inyo co. Big Sandy School District, Fresno co. Big Springs School District, Siskiyou co. Big Sur, Monterey co. Biggs, Butte co. Binghamton School District, Solano co. Biola, Fresno co. Biola School District, Fresno co. Bird Flat School District, Lassen co. Bishop, Inyo co. Bitterwater, San Benito co. Bitterwater-Tully Union School District, San Benito co. Black Butte School District, Glenn co.

Black Mountain School District, Co-	Briones School District, Contra Costa
lusa co.	co.
Blacks, Yolo co.	Brittan School District, Sutter co.
Blake School District, Kern co.	Broderick, Yolo co.
Blanchard Flat, Trinity co.	Brooks, Yolo co.
Blanco School District, Monterey co.	Brown, Sacramento co.
Blochman School District, Santa Bar-	Brown School District, Santa Cruz co.
bara co.	Browns School District, Sutter co.
Blocksburg, Humboldt co.	Browns Valley, Napa co.
Bloomfield, Los Angeles co.	Browns Valley School District, Solano
Bloomington, San Bernardino co.	co.
Blue Lake, Humboldt co.	Bruella School District, San Joaquin
Blue Mountain Joint School District,	co.
Solano co.	Brundage School District, Kern co.
Bluff Prairie School District, Hum-	Brush Creek, Butte co.
boldt co.	Bryman Emergency School, San Ber-
Blythe, Riverside co.	nardino co.
Boggs School District, Colusa co.	Bryn Mawr, San Bernardino co.
Bogus, Siskiyou co.	Buck Meadows, Tuolumne co.
Bolsa School District, Orange co.	Buck Mountain School District, Hum-
Boney Mountain, Ventura co.	boldt co.
Bonita, San Diego co.	Buckeye School District, Yolo co.
Bonita School District, Santa Barbara	Buckhorn School District, Ventura co.
	Bucksport School District, Ventura eo.
co. Barita School District Stanisland on	Buelltor, Santa Barbara co.
Bonita School District, Stanislaus co.	Buena Park, Orange co.
Bonsall, San Diego co.	Buena Vista School District, Amador
Booker School District, Santa Clara co.	Co.
Boonville, Mendocino co.	Buena Vista School District, Kern co.
Borel Club, Kern co.	Buena Vista School District, Monterey
Bostonia, San Diego co.	co.
Boulder Creek, Santa Cruz co.	
Boulevard, San Diego co.	Buena Vista School District, Tulare co. Buhach School District, Merced co.
Bowerbank School District, Kern co.	
Bowles School District, Fresno co.	Bull Creek School District, Humboldt
Bowman School District, Tehama co.	CO.
Boy Scout Camp, Kern co.	Bullard School District, Fresno co.
Boy Scout Camp, Orange co.	Bunker Hill School District, Humboldt
Boy Scout Camp, Solano co. Boy Scout Camp, Tulare co.	co. Buntingrille Legger co
Bradley, Monterey co.	Buntingville, Lassen co.
Braly School District, Santa Clara co.	Burbank, Los Angeles co.
Branch School District, San Luis	Burbank, Santa Clara co.
Obispo co.	Burlingame, San Mateo co.
Brawley, Imperial co.	Burnett School District, Santa Clara
Brea, Orange co.	CO.
Brentwood, Contra Costa co.	Burnt Ranch, Trinity co.
Briceland, Humboldt co.	Burr Creek School District, Humboldt
	Co. Derry Volley, School District, Webarra
Bridgeport, Mono co.	Burr Valley School District, Tehama
Bridgeport School District, Colusa co.	co.
Bridgeport School District, Lassen co.	Burrel School District, Fresno co.
Bridgeville, Humboldt co.	Burrell School District, Santa Clara co.
Briggs School District, Ventura co.	Burton School District, Tulare co.
Brighton School District, Sacramento	Burwood School District, San Joaquin
CO.	co.

Butler School District, Fresno co.	Camp No. 42, Fresno co.
Butte City, Glenn co.	Camp No. 60 School District, Fresno
Butte Creek School District, Colusa co.	со.
Butte School District, Butte co.	Camp No. 61, Fresno co.
Butte School District, Plumas co.	Camp No. 61c, Fresno co.
Buttonwillow, Kern co.	Camp No. 62, Fresno co.
Byron, Contra Costa co.	Camp No. 63, Fresno co.
Cabazon School District, Riverside co.	Camp Rogers, Plumas co.
Cache Creek School District, Yolo co.	Camp West Fork, Los Angeles co.
Cacheville School District, Yolo co.	Campbell, Santa Clara co.
Cachil Dehe School District, Colusa co.	Campo, San Diego co.
Cadenasso School District, Yolo co.	Canal School District, Fresno co.
Cahuilla School District, Riverside co.	Canal School District, Humboldt co.
Cajon School District, San Bernardino	Canal School District, Merced co.
co.	Cañon School District, Yolo co.
Cajon Valley Union School District,	Canright School District, Solano co.
San Diego co.	Cantua School District, Fresno co.
Calabasas, Los Angeles co.	Canyon Creek, Butte co.
Calabasas, Santa Cruz co.	Canyon School District, Contra Costa
Calaveras School District, San Joaquin	co.
co.	Canyon School District, San Luis
Calexico, Imperial co.	Obispo co.
Caliente. Kern co.	Capay, Tehama co.
California George Junior Republic, San	
Bernardino co.	Capay, Yolo co.
	Capay Rancho, Glenn co.
California Redwood Park, Santa Cruz	Capell, Napa co.
co.	Capetown School District, Humboldt
California Salt Works, Alameda co.	Co. Conitale South Churn as
Calipatria, Imperial co.	Capitola, Santa Cruz co.
Calistoga, Napa co.	Carbondale School District, Amador co.
Calla, San Joaquin co.	Cardiff, San Diego co.
Callahan, Siskiyou co.	Careaga, Santa Barbara co.
Calneva, Lassen co.	Caribou, Plumas co.
Calor, Siskiyou co.	Caribou Emergency School, Plumas co.
Calumet School District, Glenn co.	Carlotta, Humboldt co.
Calwa City, Fresno co.	Carlsbad, San Diego co.
Calwa School District, Fresno co.	Carlton School District, Santa Cruz co.
Camarillo, Ventura co.	Carmel, Monterey co.
Cambria, San Luis Obispo co.	Carmelo School District, Monterey co.
Cambrian School District, Santa Clara	Carmenita, Los Angeles co.
co.	Carmichael, Sacramento co.
Cameron School District, Kern co.	Carneros, Napa co.
Camp Baldy, San Bernardino co.	Carneros School District, Monterey co.
Camp C, Siskiyou co.	Carpinteria, Santa Barbara co.
Camp Meeker, Sonoma co.	Carquinez School District, Contra Costa
Camp Nelson, Tulare co.	co.
Camp No. 5, Fresno co.	Carroll School District, Sacramento co.
Camp No. 7, Fresno co.	Carrolton School District, Monterey co.
Camp No. 33, Fresno co.	Carson School District, Glenn co.
Camp No. 34, Fresno co.	Cartago School District, Inyo co.
Camp No. 35, Fresno co.	Caruthers, Fresno co.
Camp No. 36, Fresno co.	Casa Verdugo, Los Angeles co.
Camp No. 37, Fresno co.	Casitas School District, Ventura co.
Camp No. 38, Fresno co.	Casmalia, Santa Barbara co.

÷.

Casserly School District, Santa Cruz	Chartville School District, San Joaquin co.
co.	
Castaic, Los Angeles co.	Chatham School District, Tulare co.
Castle Peak School District, Madera co.	
Castle School District, San Joaquin co.	
Castro Hill, Alameda co.	Cherry Hill School District, San Benito
Castro Valley School District, Alameda	CO.
co.	Chester, Plumas co.
Castroville, Monterey co.	Chico, Butte co.
Catalina School District, Los Angeles	Chico Vecino, Butte co.
co.	Chicquero, Santa Barbara co.
Cathedral Oaks, Santa Barbara co.	Chiles Valley, Napa co.
Caution, Trinity co.	Chinese Camp, Tuolumne co.
Cayucos School District, San Luis	Chino, San Bernardino co.
Obispo co.	Choice Valley School District, San
Cedar Park, Siskiyou co.	Luis Obispo co.
Cedarville, Modoc co.	Cholame School District, San Luis
Celite, Santa Barbara co.	Obispo co.
Cement, Solano co.	Chowchilla, Madera co.
Center Camp, Tuolumne co.	Christian Colony, San Joaquin co.
Center Joint School District, Sacra-	Chrome, Glenn co.
mento co.	Chualar, Monterey co.
Center School District, Lassen co.	Chula Vista, San Diego co.
	Cienega, San Benito co.
Center School District, Merced co.	Cima, San Bernardino co.
Center School District, Solano co.	Cima Emergency School, San Bernar-
Center School District, Ventura co.	dino co.
Centerville, Alameda co.	Citrona Park, Glenn co.
Centerville, Butte co.	Citrona School District, Glenn co.
Centerville School District, Fresno co.	City Creek School District, San Ber-
Centerville School District, Humboldt	nardino co.
co.	Cla-Mar School District, San Diego co.
Central Camp, Madera co. Central House School District, Butte	Claremont, Los Angeles co.
	Clark School District, Humboldt co.
co. Central School District, Colusa co.	Clarksburg, Yolo co.
Central School District, Fresno co.	Claus, Stanislaus co.
	Clay, Sacramento co.
Central School District, Imperial co.	Clay School District, Fresno co.
Central School District, Los Angeles co. Central School District, Madera co.	
Central School District, Madera co.	Clay School District, Merced co.
	Clayton, Contra Costa co.
dino co.	Clear Creek, Siskiyou co.
Central School District, San Luis	Clear Creek School District, Butte co.
Obispo co.	Clear Springs School District, San Ber-
Central School District, Santa Cruz co.	nardino co.
Central School District, Stanislaus co.	Clearwater School District, Los An- geles co.
Central-Gaither Union School District,	
Sutter co.	Clearwater-Hynes, Los Angeles co.
Centralia School District, Orange co.	Clements, San Joaquin co.
Ceres, Stanislaus co.	Cleveland School District, Kern co.
Cerritos School District, Los Angeles	Clinton School District, Amador co.
co.	Clio, Plumas co.
Challenge, Yuba co.	Clipper Mills, Butte co.
Charleston School District, Amador co.	Clover Flats School District, San Diego
Charleston School District, Merced co.	co.
Charter Oak, Los Angeles co.	Clover School District, Yolo co,

Cloverdale, Sonoma co.	Corona, Riverside co.
Cloverswale School District, Modoc co.	Coronado, San Diego co.
Clovis, Fresno co.	Corral de Piedra School District, San
Clyde, Contra Costa co.	Luis Obispo co.
Coachella, Riverside co.	Corralitos, Santa Cruz co.
Coalinga, Fresno co.	Cortina School District, Colusa co.
Coarse Gold, Madera co.	Coso, Inyo co.
Coast, Monterey co.	Costa Mesa, Orange co.
Coburn, Monterey co.	Cotati, Sonoma co.
Codora School District, Glenn co.	Cottonwood, San Benito co.
Coffee Creek, Trinity co.	Cottonwood School District, Modoc co.
Coffee Creek School District, Humboldt	Cottonwood School District, San Diego
20.	co.
	Cottonwood School District, Siskiyou
Cohasset Union School District, Butte	
O. Cold Suring Senta Barbara co	
Cold Spring, Santa Barbara co. Cole Creek School District, Fresno co.	Cottonwood School District, Tehama co
Cole School District, Stanislaus co.	Cottonwood School District, Yolo co.
	Courtland, Sacramento co.
College City, Colusa co.	Covelo, Mendocino co.
College Park School District, Santa	Covina, Los Angeles co.
Clara co.	Cow Creek, Tuolumne co.
College School District, Santa Barbara	Cowell, Contra Costa co.
.0.	Cox's Bar, Trinity co.
Colma, San Mateo co.	Coyote, Santa Clara co.
Colonia School District, Ventura co.	Cram School District, San Bernarding
Colonial Heights, Sacramento co.	со.
Colony School District, Sacramento co.	Cranmore, Sutter co.
Colorado School District, Imperial co.	Crannell, Humboldt co.
Colton, San Bernardino co.	Crescent, Kings co.
Columbia, Tuolumne co.	Crescent City, Del Norte co.
Columbine School District, Tulare co.	Crescent Mills, Plumas co.
Columbus School District, Napa co.	Crescent School District, Fresno co.
Colusa, Colusa co.	Crescent School District, Plumas co.
Compton, Los Angeles co.	Crescent School District, Solano co.
Concepcion, Santa Barbara co.	Crescenta School District, Los Angeles
Concord, Contra Costa co.	co.
Concow School District, Butte co.	Cressey School District, Merced co.
Cone School District, Tehama co.	Crestline, San Bernardino co.
Conejo, Fresno co.	Creston, San Luis Obispo co.
Conejo School District, Ventura co.	Crockett, Contra Costa co.
	Cromberg, Plumas co.
Confidence, Tuolumne co.	Crook School District, Modoc co.
Conn Valley, Napa co.	Cross Creek School District, Kings co.
Constantia School District, Lassen co.	Crows Landing, Stanislaus co.
Continental Salt Works, Alameda co.	
Cooks Springs, Colusa co.	Crystal School District, Solano co.
Coombs School District, Napa co.	Cucamonga, San Bernardino co.
Coombs Valley, Napa co.	Cuddeback School District, Humboldt
Cooper School District, Solano co.	CO.
Copeo, Siskiyou co.	Culver City, Los Angeles co.
Corcoran, Kings co.	Cummings Valley School District, Kern
Cordelia, Solano co.	co.
Cornell, Los Angeles co.	Cunningham School District, Madera
Corner, Tuolumne co.	co.
Corning, Tehama co.	Cupertino, Santa Clara co.

-

Currey School District, Solano co. Dennis School District, Madera co. Curtis Creek School District, Tuolumne Denverton School District, Solano co. De Sabla, Butte co. co. Cutler, Tulare co. Descanso. San Diego co. Cutten School District, Humboldt co. Desert School District, Riverside co. Cuyama, Santa Barbara co. Devore, San Bernardino co. Cuyama School District, San Luis Dewitt. Lassen co. De Wolf School District, Fresno co. Obispo co. Cypress, Orange co. Diamond School District, Orange co. Daggett, San Bernardino co. Diamondville School District, Butte co. Dickinson School District, Merced co. Dairyland School District, Madera co. Dakota School District, Fresno co. Dillard School District, Sacramento co. Dallas, Kings co. Dillon. Siskiyou co. Dinuba, Tulare co. Daly City, San Mateo co. Dixie Valley School District, Lassen co. Danville, Contra Costa co. Dixieland School District, Imperial co. Darwin, Inyo co. Dixieland School District, Madera co. Davis. Siskiyou co. Dixon. Solano co. Davis, Yolo co. Dobbyn School District, Humboldt co. Davis Creek School District, Modoc co. Doheny, Santa Barbara co. Davis School District, San Joaquin co. Dome, Santa Barbara co. Dayton School District, Butte co. Dominguez, Los Angeles co. Deardorff, Siskiyou co. Domino, Kern co. Death Valley, Inyo co. Don Pedro, Stanislaus co. Decker, Los Angeles co. Dorris, Siskiyou co. Decoto, Alameda co. Dos Palos, Fresno co. Dedrick, Trinity co. Dos Palos, Merced co. Deep Creek School District, Tulare co. Douglas, Siskiyou co. Deep Well School District, Madera co. Douglas City, Trinity co. Downey, Los Angeles co. Deer Creek School District, Tulare co. Downieville, Sierra co. Deer Flat. Tuolumne co. Dows Prairie School District, IIum-Dehesa School District, San Diego co. holdt co. Delano, Kern co. Doyle, Lassen co. Delevan, Colusa co. Dry Creek Joint School District, Sac-Delhi, Merced co. ramento co. Delhi School District, Orange co. Dry Creek School District, Fresno co. Delleker, Plumas co. Dry Creek School District, Stanislaus Del Mar, San Diego co. CO, Del Monte School District, Monterey Dry Creek School District, Tehama co. co. Dry Valley School District, Lassen co. Delmorma School District, Modoc co. Drytown, Amador co. Del Norte School District, Ventura co. Duarte, Los Angeles co. Del Paso Heights, Sacramento co. Dublin, Alameda co. Del Paso Heights School District, Sac-Ducor, Tulare co. ramento co. Dudley, Kern co. Delphi School District, San Joaquin co. Duke School District, Fresno co. Delphic, Siskiyou co. Dulzura, San Diego co. Del Rey, Fresno co. Duncan School District, Kern co. Del Rosa, San Bernardino co. Dunkard School District, Fresno co. Del Sur, Los Angeles co. Dunlap, Fresno co. Delta View School District, Kings co. Dunnigan, Yolo co. De Luz, San Diego co. Dunsmuir, Siskiyou co. Del Valle, Alameda co. Durham, Butte co. Den, Santa Barbara co. Dwinnell School District, Siskiyou co. Denair, Stanislaus co. Dyerville, Humboldt co.

Eagle Lake School District, Lassen co.	Elk River School District, Humboldt
Eagle Rock, Los Angeles co.	CO.
Eagle School District, San Luis Obispo	Elkhorn School District, Fresno co.
CO.	Elkhorn School District, Monterey co.
Eagleville School District, Modoc co.	Elkhorn School District, San Joaquin
Earle School District, San Diego co.	co.
Earlimart, Tulare co.	Elkins School District, Tehama co.
Easterby School District, Fresno co.	Elliott, San Joaquin co.
East Fork, Siskiyou co.	Ellis School District, Monterey co.
East Gridley, Butte co.	Elm School District, Imperial co.
Eastin School District, Madera co.	Elmira, Solano co.
East Lynne School District, Tulare co.	El Modeno, Orange co.
East Nicolaus, Sutter co.	El Monte, Los Angeles co.
Easton, Fresno co.	El Monte School District, San Diego
East Orosi School District, Tulare co.	co.
East San Diego, San Diego co.	Elmwood, San Joaquin co.
East Santa Fe School District, San	El Nido, Merced co.
Luis Obispo co.	El Retiro, Los Angeles co.
Eastside School District, Imperial co.	El Sausal School District, Monterey co.
East Vale School District, Riverside co.	El Segundo, Los Angeles co.
East Whittier, Los Angeles co.	Elsinore, Riverside co.
Eden School District, Merced co.	El Toro School District, Orange co.
Eden Vale School District, Alameda co.	El Venado, Los Angeles co.
Edgemont, Lassen co.	Elverta, Sacramento co.
Edgewood, Siskiyou co.	Emerald School District, Glenn co.
Edison Emergency School District,	Emeryville, Alameda co.
Fresno co.	Emidio School, Kern co.
Edison No. 60, Fresno co.	Emigrant School District, Glenn co.
Edison School District, Glenn co.	Emmet, San Benito co.
Edison School District, Kern co.	Empire, Stanislaus co.
Eel River School District, Humboldt	Empire School District, Fresno co.
CO.	Empire School District, Kings co.
Eel Rock School District, Humboldt co.	Encinal, Sutter co.
Elbow Creek School District, Tulare co.	Encinal School District, San Luis
El Cajon, San Diego co.	Obispo co.
El Capitan School District, Merced co.	Encinal School District, Santa Clara co.
El Capitan School District, San Diego	Encinitas, San Diego co.
CO.	Engel Mine Lower Camp, Plumas co.
El Centro, Imperial co.	Engel School District, Plumas co.
El Cerrito, Contra Costa co.	Englewood School District, Humboldt
Elder Creek School District, Sacra-	co.
mento co.	Ensign School District, Riverside co.
El Dorado School District, San Luis	Enterprise, Los Angeles co.
Obispo co.	Enterprise School District, Amador co.
Eldridge, Sonoma co.	Enterprise School District, Napa co.
Electra, Amador co.	Enterprise School District, Sacramento
El Granada, San Mateo co.	CO.
Elim School District, Merced co.	Enterprise School District, San Benito
Elinor School District, Humboldt co.	CO
Elizabeth Lake Los Angeles co.	Enterprise School District, San Joa-
Elizabeth Lake, Los Angeles co.	quin co.
Elk Bayou School District, Tulare co.	Enterprise School District, Tulare co.
Elk Creek, Glenn co.	Enterprise School District, Yolo co.
Elk Grove, Sacramento co.	Erie, San Benito co.
Elk Hills, Kern co.	Escalon, San Joaquin co.
Elk Hills School District, Kern co.	Eschscholtzia School District, Merced
Elk Ridge School District, Humboldt	CO.
eo,	Escondido, San Diego co.

-

[Oct., 1924

Esparto, Yolo co. Esperanza, Los Angeles co. Estrella School District, San Luis Obispo co. Ethanac Union School District, River- side co. Etiwanda, San Bernardino co. Etina Mills, Siskiyou co. Ettersburg, Humboldt co. Eucalyptus School District, Imperial co. Eucalyptus School District, Kings co. Eureka, Humboldt co. Eureka, Santa Cruz co. Eureka, Santa Cruz co. Eureka, School District, Kings co. Evergreen, Santa Clara co. Evergreen, Tehama co. Excelsior School District, Contra Costa co. Excelsior School District, Kings co. Excelsior School District, Kings co. Excelsior School District, Kings co. Excelsior School District, Sacramento co. Excelsior School District, Siskiyou co. Excelsior School District, Monterey co. Fairacres School District, Monterey co. Fairfaetd School District, Stanislaus co. Fairfaetd School District, San Joaquin co. Fairfaetd School District, Xolo co. Fairfield School District, Yolo co. Fairfield School District, Yolo co. Fairfield School District, Yolo co. Fairfield School District, Stanislaus co. Fairfield School District, Stan Joaquin co. Fairfield School District, Kern co. Fairfield School District, Kern co. Fairfield School District, Stan Joaquin co. Fairfield School District, Kern co. Fairfield School District, Kern co. Fairwew, San Benito co. Fairwew, San Benito co. Fairwew, San Benito co. Fairwiew School District, Fresno co. Fairview School District, Kern co.	 Falls School District, Solano co. Fandango School District, Modoc co. Farmdale School District, Merced co. Farmersville, Tulare co. Farmington, San Joaquin co. Farquhar, Tehama co. Fellows, Kern co. Felton, Santa Cruz co. Fern School District, Imperial co. Ferndale School District, Santa Cruz co. Field School District, Humboldt co. Fields Landing, Humboldt co. Fields Landing, Humboldt co. Fields Landing, Humboldt co. Fillmore, Ventura co. Fillmore School District, Yolo co. Finely Camp, Siskiyou co. Fiorence, Los Angeles co. Florence School District, Tehama co. Florence School District, Solano co. Florence School District, Solano co. Flournoy Union School District, Tehama co. Flournoy Union School District, Tehama co. Floyd School District, Madera co. Fly School District, Napa co. Folsom, Sacramento co. Foothill School District, Siskiyou co. Forest School District, Siskiyou co. Forest School District, Butte co. Forest School District, Butte co. Forest School District, Siskiyou co. Forest School District, Siskiyou co. Forest School District, Butte co. Forest School District, Butte co. Forest School District, Humboldt co. Forest School District, Humboldt co. Forest School District, Siskiyou co. Forest School District, Siskiyou co. Forest School District, Siskiyou co. Fo
Fairview School District, Lassen co.	Fort Sage School District, Lassen co.
Fairview School District, San Bernar-	Fort Washington School District,
dino co.	Fresno co.
Fairview School District, San Luis Obispo co.	Fortuna, Humboldt co. Fortuna School District, Fresno co.
Fairview School District, Stanislaus co.	Forty-nine School District, Modoc co.
Fairview School District, Ventura co	Foster, San Diego co.
Fairview School District, Yolo co.	Fountain Valley School District, Or-
Falk, Humboldt co.	ange co.
Fall Creek, Siskiyou co.	Fowler, Fresno co.
Fallbrook, San Diego co.	Franklin, Sacramento co.

Franklin School District, Contra Costa	General Grant National Park, Tulare
co.	co.
Franklin School District, Fresno co.	General Petroleum, Kern co.
Franklin School District, Merced co.	General Petroleum Lebec, Kern co.
Franklin School District, Napa co.	Genesee, Plumas co.
Franklin School District, Santa Clara	Geneseo School District, San Luis
co.	Obispo co.
Franklin School District, Sutter co.	Georgeson School District, Humboldt
Frankwood School District, Fresno co.	co.
Frazer School District, Kings co.	Gerber, Tehama co.
Frazier, Ventura co.	German School District, Glenn co.
Freeport, Sacramento co.	Gertrude School District, Madera co.
Fremont School District, Sacramento	Geyserville, Sonoma co.
co.	Giant, Contra Costa co.
Fremont School District, Yolo co.	Giant Forest, Tulare co.
French Camp, San Joaquin co.	Gibson, Lassen co.
French Creek, Siskiyou co.	Gilroy, Santa Clara co.
Freshwater School District, Colusa co.	Glade School District, Lassen co.
Freshwater School District, Humboldt	Glamis, Imperial co.
co.	Glen Ellen, Sonoma co.
Fresno, Fresno co.	Glen Valley School District, Colusa co.
Fresno Colony School District, Fresno	Glenavon School District, Riverside co.
co.	Glendale, Los Angeles co.
Fresno Flats, Madera co.	Glendale School District, Humboldt co.
Fresno School District, Madera co.	Glendora, Los Angeles co.
Friant School District, Fresno co.	Glenn, Glenn co.
Fruit Growers Camps, Lassen co.	Glenn School District, Glenn co.
Fruit Growers Co., Lassen co.	Glennville, Kern co.
Fruitland School District, Merced co.	Glenwood, Santa Cruz co.
Fruitland School District, Tehama co.	Glenwood School District, San Joaquin
Fruitridge School District, Sacramento	co. Goffs, San Bernardino co.
CO.	Golden West School District, San
Fruitvale School District, Butte co.	Joaquin co.
Fruitvale School District, Fresno co.	
Fruitvale School District, Kern Co.	Goleta, Santa Barbara co. Gomer School District, Solano co.
Fruitvale School District, Santa Cruz	Gonzales, Monterey co.
co.	Gorda, Monterey co.
Fruto, Glenn co.	Gordon School District, Yolo co.
Fullerton, Orange co.	Gordon Valley School District, Napa
Gabilan, San Benito co. Gallatin, Los Angeles co.	co.
Galt, Sacramento co.	Gosford, Kern co.
Garberville, Humboldt co.	Goshen, Tulare co.
Garden Farms, San Luis Obispo co.	Grafton, Yolo co.
Garden Grove, Orange co.	Graham, Los Angeles co.
Garden School District, San Joaquin	Grand Island School District, Colusa
(O.	co.
Garey, Santa Barbara co.	Grand View School District, Tulare co.
Garfield, Humboldt co.	Grangeville, Kings co.
Garfield School District, Fresno co.	Granite School District, Kern co.
Garlock School District, Kern co.	Granite School District, Sacramento co.
Garvey, Los Angeles co.	Grant, Los Angeles co.
Gaviota, Santa Barbara co.	Grant School District, Fresno co.
Gazelle, Siskiyou co.	Grant School District, Humboldt co.

Grant School District, San Joaquin co. Grant School District, Solano co. Grantville School District, San Diego	Guadalupe School District, Santa Clara co. Guatay, San Diego co.
Co.	Guernsey, Kings co. Guinda, Yolo co.
Granville School District, Fresno co.	Guinda, 1010 co. Gustine, Merced co.
Grape Vine School District, Amador co.	
Grapevine, Glenn co.	Hacienda School District, Santa Clara
Grass Valley, Nevada co.	Co. Halevon San Luis Obigne es
Grass Valley, Trinity co.	Halcyon, San Luis Obispo co.
Grasshopper Valley, Lassen co.	Half Moon Bay, San Mateo co.
Graton, Sonoma co.	Hall School District, Monterey co.
Gratton School District, Stanislaus co.	Hall's Valley School District, Santa Clara co.
Gravel Range, Tuolumne co.	
Gray Colony School District, Fresno co.	Hamburg, Siskiyou co.
Grayson School District, Stanislaus co.	Hames School District, Monterey co.
Great Western School District, Fresno	Hames Valley, Monterey co. Hamilton City, Glenn co.
co.	Hamilton School District, Riverside co.
Greeley School District, Kern co.	Hamilton School District, Riverside co.
Green Meadows, Los Angeles co.	Hammel, Los Angeles co.
Green Point School District, Humboldt	Hammond, Tulare co.
°0,	Hanford, Kings co.
Green School District, Alameda co.	Hanover School District, Madera co.
Green School District, Madera co.	Happy Camp, Siskiyou co.
Green Springs, Tuolumne co.	Happy Valley, Santa Cruz co.
Green Valley, Santa Cruz co.	Hardin School District, Napa co.
Green Valley School District, Contra	Hardwick, Kings co.
Costa co.	Harmony School District, Colusa co.
Green Valley School District, San	Harmony School District, Napa co.
Diego co.	Harmony School District, San Joaquin
Green Valley School District, Solano	co.
co.	Harmony School District, San Luis
Greenfield, Monterey co.	Obispo co.
Greenfield School District, Kern co.	Harney School District, Santa Clara
Greenhorn Camp, Sacramento co.	co.
Greenhorn School District, Kern co.	Harper Lake, San Bernardino co.
Greenhorn School District, Siskiyou co.	Harper-Fairview Union School Dis-
Greenleaf School District, San Bernar-	trict, Orange co.
dino co.	Harris, Humboldt co.
Greenview, Siskiyou co.	Hart School District, Stanislaus co.
Greenville, Plumas co.	Hawkeye School District, Fresno co.
Greenville School District, Orange co.	Hawkins Bar, Trinity co.
Greenwood School District, San Joa-	Hawkins School District, Fresno co.
quin co.	Hawkins School District, Madera co.
Greersburg, San Mateo co.	Hawkinsville School District, Siskiyou
Grenada, Siskiyou co.	co.
Gridley, Butte co.	Hawthorne, Los Angeles co.
Grimes, Colusa co.	Hay Lease, Kern co.
Grindstone School District, Glenn co.	Hayden Hill, Lassen co.
Grindstone School District, Humboldt	Hayfork, Trinity co.
Co. Cuinaly Pluff School District Hambeldt	Hayward, Alameda co.
Grizzly Bluff School District, Humboldt	Hayward Heath, Alameda co.
co. Grizzly Island, Solano co.	Hazel Dell, Santa Cruz co.
Grossmont, San Diego co.	Healdsburg, Sonoma co.
Groveland, Tuolumne co,	Heber, Imperial co. Hedger School District, Sutter co.
Guadalupe, Santa Barbara co.	Helendale, San Bernardino co.
Terrorite During the Co.	acconduct, build bernardino co.

Helm, Fresno co.	Honey Lake School District, Lassen
Hemet, Riverside co.	co.
Hemet Valley School District, River-	Honey Springs School District, San
side co.	Diego co.
Henderson School District, San Joa-	Honolulu, Siskiyou co.
quin co.	Hooker School District, Tehama co.
Herald, Sacramento co.	Hoover Farm, Kern co.
Hercules, Contra Costa co.	Hope School District, San Luis Obispo
Hermosa Beach, Los Angeles co.	co.
Herndon School District, Fresno co.	Hope School District, Santa Barbara
Hesperia, San Bernardino co.	co.
Hesperia School District, Monterey co.	Hope School District, Tulare co.
Hester Creek, Santa Cruz co. Hester School District, Santa Clara co.	Hopeton School District, Merced co.
Hetten Valley, Trinity co.	Hopetown, Los Angeles co.
Hewes Park, Orange co.	Hopewell School District, Fresno co.
Hickman, Stanislaus co.	Hopewell School District, Modoc co.
Hicks, San Bernardino co.	Hopland, Mendocino co.
Higgins, San Mateo co.	Horace Mann School District, Fresno
High Valley School District, Napa co.	co.
Highgrove, Riverside co.	Hornbrook, Siskiyou co.
Highland, San Bernardino co.	Horrs Ranch School District, Stanis-
Highland School District, Fresno co.	laus co.
Highland School District, Lassen co.	Horse Creek School District, Siskiyou
Highland School District, San Luis	co.
Obispo co.	Hot Springs, Tulare co.
Highland School District, Santa Clara	Hot Springs School District, Plumas co.
CO.	Houghton School District, Fresno co.
Highland School District, Santa Cruz	Houston School District, San Joaquin
co.	co.
Highland School District, Siskiyou co.	Howard School District, Madera co.
Highland Valley, San Diego co.	Howard School District, Sacramento co.
Highline School District, Imperial co.	Howell Mountain School District, Napa
Highway School District, Tulare co.	co.
Hill, Santa Cruz co.	Howell School District, Tehama co.
Hillsborough, San Mateo co.	Huasna School District, San Luis
Hilmar School District, Merced co.	Obispo co.
Hilt, Siskiyou co.	Hudson School District, Los Angeles
Hinkley, San Bernardino co.	co.
Hipass, San Diego co.	Hueneme School District, Ventura co.
Hoaglin, Trinity co.	Huer Huero School District, San Luis
Holcomb Valley Emergency School,	Obispo co.
San Bernardino co.	Hughson, Stanislaus co.
Hollister, San Benito co.	Humboldt Road, Butte co.
Holmes, Humboldt co.	Hume, Fresno co.
Holtville, Imperial co.	Hunter School District, Solano co.
Home School District, San Luis Obispo	Hunter School District, Tehama co.
co.	Huntington, Fresno co.
Homestead, San Mateo co.	Huntington Beach, Orange Co.
Honby, Los Angeles co.	Huntington Park, Los Angeles co.
Honcut, Butte co.	Hurleton, Butte co.
Honda School District, Santa Barbara	Huron School District, Fresno co.
co.	Hutchinson, Butte co.
Honey Dew School District, Humboldt	Hutchinson Logging Camp, Butte co.
co.	Huyck School District, Santa Clara co.

2-34984

-

Hyampom, Trinity co. Jackson School District, Santa Clara Hyatt School District, Riverside co. co. Hydesville, Humboldt co. Jackson School District, Stanislaus co. Iaqua, Humboldt co. Jacksonville, Tuolumne co. Idyllwild, Riverside co. Jacobs School District, Kings co, Jacoby Creek School District, Hum-Illinois School District, Sutter co. Imperial, Imperial co. boldt co. Imperial Beach, San Diego co. Jacumba, San Diego co. Independence, Inyo co. Jalama, Santa Barbara co. Jamacha, San Diego co. Independence School District, San Luis Jamesburg, Monterey co. Obispo co. Jamestown, Tuolumne co. Independent School District, Alameda Jamul, San Diego co. CO. Independent School District, San Joa-Janes School District, Humboldt co. Janesville, Lassen co. quin co. Independent School District, Tehama Japatul, San Diego co. Jasmine School District, Kern co. co. Indian Creek, Trinity co. Jasper School District, Imperial co. Jefferson, Los Angeles co. Indian Creek School District, Siskiyou Jefferson, Santa Cruz co. co. Jefferson School District, Fresno co. Indian Falls School District. Plumas co. Jefferson School District, Lassen co. Indian Valley Joint School District, Jefferson School District, Sacramento Colusa co. Indian Valley School District, Monco. terey co. Jefferson School District, San Benito Indian Wells Valley School District, co. Jefferson School District, Santa Clara Kern co. co. Indio, Riverside co. Jelly's Ferry School District, Tehama Inglewood, Los Angeles co. Inglewood Acres, Los Angeles co. co. Jennings School District, Stanislaus co. Ingomar School District, Merced co. Jersey, Contra Costa co. Inman School District, Alameda co. Johannesburg, Kern co. Inyokern, Kern co. Johns School District, Colusa co. lone, Amador co. Johnson Joint School District, Merced Iowa School District, Fresno co. Irish Hills School District, San Luis co. Johnston School District, Tehama co. Obispo co. Johnstonville School District, Lassen Iron House School District. Contra Costa co. co. Johnsville, Plumas co. Iron Springs School District, San Luis Jolon. Monterey co. Obispo co. Jonata, Santa Barbara co. Irving, Siskiyou co. Jones Prairie School District, Hum-Irvington, Alameda co. Irwin, Merced co. boldt co. Jordan School District, Merced co. Irwindale, Los Angeles co. Isabella, Kern co. Josephine School District, San Luis Obispo co. Island, Kings co. Julian, San Diego co. Island Mountain School District, Trin-Julian School District, Amador co. ity co. Island School District, Humboldt co. Junction, Siskiyou co. Junction City, Trinity co. Island School District, Plumas co. Island School District, San Joaquin co. Junction Oil Station, Kern co. Junction School District, Sacramento Isleton, Sacramento co. Ivanhoe School District, Tulare co. co. Jackson, Amador co. Juniper School District, Lassen co.

Jurupa Heights School District, River-	La Cañada, Los Angeles co.
side co.	La Crescenta, Los Angeles co.
Justice, San Joaquin co.	Ladoga, Colusa co.
Kanawha School District, Glenn co.	Lafayette, Contra Costa co.
Kandra, Siskiyou co.	Lafayette, San Joaquin co.
Karlo, Lassen co.	Lafayette School District, Stanislaus co.
Katella School District, Orange co.	La Grange, Stanislaus co.
Kaweah, Tulare co.	Laguna, Los Angeles co.
Kearney Park, Fresno co.	Laguna, Orange co.
Kearney School District, Fresno co.	Laguna, Santa Barbara co.
Keddie, Plumas co.	Laguna, Santa Cruz co.
Keeler, Inyo co.	Laguna Mountain, San Diego co.
Keen Camp, Riverside co.	Laguna School District, Fresno co.
Keenbrook, San Bernardino co.	Laguna School District, Imperial co.
Keene, Kern co.	Laguna School District, Sacramento co.
Kelseyville, Lake co.	Laguna School District, San Diego co.
Kelso, San Bernardino co.	Laguna School District, San Luis
Kensington Park, Contra Costa co.	Obispo co.
Keppel School District, Los Angeles co.	Laguna School District, Santa Clara
Kerckhoff, Fresno co.	
Kerman, Fresno co.	co. Lagunita School District, Monterey co.
Kern River No. 1, Kern co.	
Kern River No. 3, Kern co.	La Habra, Orange co. La Honda, San Mateo co.
Kernville, Kern co.	La Honda, San Mateo co. Laird School District, Stanislaus co.
Keyes, Stanislaus co.	
Kiddies' Camp, Kern co.	La Jota, Napa co. Lake City School District, Modoc co.
Kilowatt, Kern co.	
Kimberlena Pumping Station, Kern co.	Lake School District, Glenn co.
King City, Monterey co.	Lake School District, Lassen co.
King School District, Kings co.	Lake School District, Monterey co.
Kings River, Fresno co.	Lake View, Santa Barbara co.
Kings River School District, Kings co.	Lakeport, Lake co.
Kings River School District, Tulare co.	Lakeside, San Diego co.
Kings School District, Butte co.	Lakeside School District, Kings co.
Kingsburg, Fresno co.	Lakeside School District, Modoc co.
Kingston School District, San Joaquin	Lakeside School District, Santa Clara
co.	co.
Kinney School District, Sacramento co.	Lakeview School District, San Diego co.
Kirk, Fresno co.	La Lake School District, Siskiyou co.
Klamath City School District, Siskiyou	La Mesa, San Diego co.
c0.	La Mesa Heights, San Diego co.
Klamath Hot Springs, Siskiyou co.	La Mirada, Los Angeles co.
Klamath School District, Humboldt co.	Lammersville School District, San Joa-
Klamath School District, Siskiyou co.	quin co.
Kneeland School District, Humboldt co.	La Motte, Tulare co.
Knights Ferry, Stanislaus co.	Lancaster, Los Angeles co.
Knights School District, Sutter co.	Lancha Plana School District, Amador
Knightsen, Contra Costa co.	co.
Knowles, Madera co.	Landers School District, Kern co.
Korbel, Humboldt co.	Lane's Valley School District, Tehama
Kramer, San Bernardino co.	co,
Kunkle School District, Butte co.	Lanfair, San Bernardino co.
Kutner Colony School District, Fresno	Lang, Los Angeles co.
co.	Langley School District, Monterey co.
La Ballona, Los Angeles co.	Lankershim, Los Angeles co.

-

[Oct., 1924

Lantana School District, Imperial co. Libby School District, San Diego co. La Panza School District, San Luis Liberal School District, Tehama co. Obispo co. Liberty, Los Angeles co. La Patera, Santa Barbara co. Liberty School District, Contra Costa La Porte, Plumas co. co. Laribee School District, Humboldt co. Liberty School District, Glenn co. Larkin Valley, Santa Cruz co. Liberty School District, Napa co. Larkspur, Marin co. Liberty School District, Tulare co. Las Cruces, Santa Barbara co. Likely, Modoc co. Las Deltas School District, Fresno co. Lilac, San Diego co. Las Flores School District, San Diego Lime Quarry School District, Contra co. Costa co. Las Lomitas School District, San Lincoln, Monterey co. Mateo co. Lincoln, Placer co. Las Manzanitas School District, Santa Lincoln, Siskiyou co. Clara co. Lincoln School District, Alameda co. Las Plumas. Butte co. Lincoln School District, Fresno co. Las Posas School District, Ventura co. Lincoln School District, Glenn co. Lassen School District, Tehama co. Lincoln School District, Plumas co. Las Virgines, Los Angeles co. Lincoln School District, Sacramento co. Lathrop, San Joaquin co. Lincoln School District, San Joaquin Laton, Fresno co. co. Laugenour School District, Yolo co. Lincoln School District, San Luis Laural School District, Orange co. Obispo co. Laurel, Santa Cruz co. Lincoln School District, Sutter co. Laurel Canyon, Los Angeles co. Lincoln School District, Tehama co. La Verne, Los Angeles co. Lindcove School District, Tulare co. La Verne Heights, Los Angeles co. Linden. San Joaquin co. La Verne School District, Imperial co. Linder, Tulare co. Lindsay, Tulare co. La Vina. Los Angeles co. Lindsay School District, Fresno co. La Vina School District, Madera co. Linne School District, San Luis Lawndale, Los Angeles co. Obispo co. Laws, Inyo co. Linn's Valley School District, Kern co. Lebec School District, Kern co. Linwood School District, Tulare co. Lee School District, Sacramento co. Lisbon School District, Sacramento co. Lee School District, Sutter co. Little Hot Spring School District, Leesville, Colusa co. Modoc co. Leffingwell, Los Angeles co. Little Lake, Los Angeles co. Le Grand, Merced co. Little River School District, Humboldt Lemon Cove, Tulare co. Lemon Grove, San Diego co. co. Little Shasta, Siskiyou co. Lemon Home School District, Glenn co. Little Stony School District, Colusa co. Lemoore, Kings co. Little Valley, Lassen co. Leona, Los Angeles co. Littlerock, Los Angeles co. Lerdo School District, Kern co. Live Oak, Los Angeles co. Lerona, Fresno co. Live Oak, San Benito co. Lethent School District, Fresno co. Live Oak, San Joaquin co. Lewis Joint School District, Monterey Live Oak, Sutter co. CO. Live Oak School District, Santa Cruz Lewis School District. San Benito co. co. Lewiston, Trinity co. Live Oak School District, Tehama co. Lewiston Dredge, Trinity co. Lexington School District, Santa Clara Livermore. Alameda co. Livingston, Merced co. co.

296

Llagas School District, Santa Clara co.	Lowell School District, Stanislaus co.
Llano, Los Angeles co.	Lower Lake, Lake co.
Llewellyn, Los Angeles co.	Lower Trinity, Trinity co.
Locan School District, Fresno co.	Lowood School District, Siskiyou co.
Lockeford, San Joaquin co.	Lowrey School District, Tehama co.
Lockwood, Monterey co.	Loyalton, Sierra co.
Lockwood School District, Ventura co.	Lucerne, Kings co.
Lodi, Napa co.	Lucerne, Lassen co.
Lodi, San Joaquin co.	Lucerne School District, San Bernar-
Loleta, Humboldt co.	dino co.
Loma Linda. San Bernardino co.	Lucia, Monterey co.
Lomita, Los Angeles co.	Ludlow, San Bernardino co.
Lomita, San Mateo co.	Lugo School District, Los Angeles co.
Lompoc, Santa Barbara co.	Lyman, Napa co.
Lone Pine, Inyo co.	Lynden School District, Santa Barbara
Lone Star School District, Humboldt	co. '
20.	Lynwood, Los Angeles co.
Lone Star School District, Modoc co.	Lytle, San Bernardino co.
Lone Star School District, Siskiyou co.	McArthur, Shasta co.
Lone Tree School District, Butte co.	McCabe, Contra Costa co.
Lone Tree School District, Contra	McCabe Union School District, Impe-
Costa co.	rial co.
Lone Tree School District, Merced co.	McCann School District, Humboldt co
Lone Tree School District, San Joa-	McCloud, Siskiyou co.
quin co.	McConaughy, Siskiyou co.
Long Beach, Los Angeles co.	McDiarmid School District, Humbold
Long Ridge, Trinity co.	co.
Long Valley School District, Lassen co.	Macdoel, Siskiyou co.
Long Valley School District, Monterey	McDonald School District, Lassen co
:0.	McFarland, Kern co.
Loop School District, Plumas co.	Machado School District, Santa Clara
Lopez Canyon, Los Angeles co.	co.
Lopez Canyon School District, San	McHenry School District, Stanislaus
Luis Obispo co.	co.
Loraine, Kern co.	McIntosh School District, Glenn co.
Lordsburg, Los Angeles co.	McKenzie Ranch, Plumas co.
Los Alamos, Santa Barbara co.	McKinley School District, Fresno co
Los Altos, Santa Clara co.	McKinley School District, Santa Clara
Los Angeles, Los Angeles co.	co.
Los Banos, Merced co.	McKinleyville, Humboldt co.
Los Berros School District, San Luis	McKittrick, Kern co.
Obispo co.	Macon Springs, Tehama co.
Los Cerritos, Los Angeles co.	McSwain School District, Merced co.
Los Gatos, Santa Clara co.	Mad River, Trinity co.
Los Medanos, Contra Costa co.	Mad River School District, Humbold
Los Molinos, Tehama co.	co.
Los Nietos, Los Angeles co.	Madeline, Lassen co.
Los Olivos, Santa Barbara co.	Madera, Madera co.
Los Osos School District, San Luis	Madison, Yolo co.
Obispo co.	Madison School District, Fresno co.
Lost Hills, Kern co.	Madison School District, Merced co.
Lovell School District, Tulare co.	Magalia, Butte co.
Lowden School District, Siskiyou co.	Magnolia School District, Fresno co.
Lowell, Los Angeles co.	Magnolia School District, Imperial co
and the stagered to,	and a source about the imperial to

. .

Magnolia School District, Orange co. Mendota, Fresno co. Maine Prairie School District, Solano Menlo Park, San Mateo co. co. Merced, Merced co. Malaga School District, Fresno co. Merced Colony School District, Merced Maltby, Contra Costa co. co. Maltha, Kern co. Merced Falls, Merced co. Mammoth Rock School District, San Meridian. Butte co. Luis Obispo co. Meridian, Sutter co. Manhattan Beach, Los Angeles co. Merguin School District, Merced co. Merrill School District, Tehama co. Manhattan School District, Los Angeles co. Merrimac, Butte co. Mann School District, Plumas co. Mesa Grande, San Diego co. Manning School District, Fresno co. Mesquite Lake School District, Impe-Mansfield School District, Monterey co. rial co. Manteca, San Joaquin co. Messilla Valley School District, Butte Manton, Tehama co. co. Manzana, Los Angeles co. Metropolitan, Humboldt co. Manzanar, Inyo co. Mettah School District, Humboldt co. Manzanita School District, Butte co. Metz, Monterey co. Manzanita School District, Fresno co. Michigan Bar School District, Sacra-Manzanita School District, Madera co. mento co. Maple, Santa Barbara co. Middle Bar School District, Amador co. Maple School District, Kern co. Middle Camp School District, Tuolumne Marble Mountain, Siskiyou co. co. Marcum School District, Sutter co. Middletown, Lake co. Mare Island, Solano co. Midway, San Bernardino co. Maricopa, Kern co. Midway School District, Alameda co. Marina, Monterey co. Midway School District, Kern co. Marion School District, Glenn co. Midway School District, Santa Clara Marion School District, Tehama co. co. Mariposa, Mariposa co. Miguelito School District, Santa Bar-Markleeville, Alpine co. bara co. Martinez, Contra Costa co. Milford, Lassen co. Marysdale School District, Madera co. Mill, Los Angeles co. Marysville, Yuba co. Mill Creek School District, Fresno co. Massack, Plumas co. Mill Creek School District, Siskiyou co. Mather, Tuolumne co. Mill School District, San Bernardino Mattole School District, Humboldt co. co. Maxey, Ventura co. Mill School District, Ventura co. Maxwell, Colusa co. Mill Valley, Marin co. Mayfield, Santa Clara co. Millbrae School District, San Mateo co. Mayten, Siskiyou co. Miller. Fresno co. Maywood, Los Angeles co. Miller School District, Kern co. Maywood M. C. Church, Los Angeles Millerton School District, Fresno co. co. Milligan School District, Amador co. Maywood School District, Tehama co. Milliken School District, Santa Clara Meadow Valley, Plumas co. co. Meamber, Siskiyou co. Mills, Siskiyou co. Mecca, Riverside co. Mills College, see Oakland. Mechanicsville School District, Fresno Millwood School District, Fresno co. co. Millwood School District, Lassen co. Meloland School District, Imperial co. Milpitas, Santa Clara co. Melrose School District, Plumas co. Milpitas School District, Monterey co. Mendocino, Mendocino co. Milton School District, Inyo co.

Milzner School District, Solano co.	Montgomery Joint School District, Yolo
Mineral, Tehama co.	co.
Minersville, Trinity co.	Montgomery School District, Tehama
Minneola, San Bernardino co.	co.
Mint Canyon, Los Angeles co.	Monticello, Napa co.
Miramar School District, San Diego co.	Montpellier, Stanislaus co.
Miramar School District, San Mateo	Monument, Yolo co.
co.	Monument School District, Humboldt
Miramonte, Fresno co.	
Miranda, Humboldt co.	Monument School District, San Diego
Mission, Monterey co.	
Mission San Jose, Alameda co.	Moon School District, Tehama co.
Mission School District, San Bernar-	Moore School District, San Joaquin co. Mooretown School District, Butte co.
dino co.	Moorland, San Joaquin co.
Mission School District, Santa Barbara	Moorpark, Ventura co.
co.	Moraga School District, Contra Costa
Missouri Bend School District, Lassen	
co.	Co.
Mitchell School District, Humboldt co.	Morek School District, Humboldt co.
Mitchell School District, Merced co.	Moreland, Santa Clara co.
Mitchell School District, Stanislaus co.	Moreno, Riverside co.
Moccasin Creek, Tuolumne co.	Morgan Hill, Santa Clara co.
Mocho School District, Alameda co.	Morgan Territory School District, Con-
Modesto, Stanislaus co.	tra Costa co. Morongo, San Bernardino co.
Moffitt Creek School District, Siskiyou	Morris Ravine School District, Butte
CO.	
Mohawk, Plumas co.	co. Marrison School District Korn co
Mojave, Kern co.	Morrison School District, Kern co.
Mojave School District, San Bernar-	Morro, San Luis Obispo co. Moss Beach, San Mateo co.
dino co.	Moss Landing, Monterey co.
Moneta, Los Angeles co.	Moss Landing, Monteley co. Mossdale School District, San Joaquin
Monroe School District, Fresno co.	
Monroe School District, Merced co.	co.
Monroeville Orchards, Glenn co.	Mound School District, Siskiyou co.
Monrovia, Los Angeles co.	Mound School District, Ventura co.
Monson School District, Tulare co. Montague, Siskiyou co.	Mt. Bidwell School District, Modoc co.
	Mount Diablo School District, Contra
Montalvo School District, Ventura co. Montara, San Mateo co.	Costa co.
Monte Vista Home, San Bernardino co.	Mount Dome, Siskiyou co.
Monte Vista School District, Los An-	Mount Eden, Alameda co.
geles co.	Mount George, Napa co.
Monte Vista School District, Stanislaus	Mount Hamilton, Santa Clara co.
co.	Mount Hebron, Siskiyou co.
Montebello, Los Angeles co.	Mount Hermon, Santa Cruz co.
Montebello, Ventura co.	Mount Owen, Kern co.
Montebello School District, Santa Clara	Mount Pleasant, Yolo co. Mount Pleasant School District, Santa
co.	Clara co.
Montecito, Santa Barbara co.	
Monterey, Monterey co.	Mount Shasta, Siskiyou co. Mount Signal Union School District,
Monterey Park, Los Angeles co.	Imperial co.
Montezuma School District, Solano co.	Mt. Veeder School District, Napa co.
Montezuma School District, Solaho co. Montezuma School District, Tuolumne	Mount View School District, Madera
co.	co.

٠

Mount Wilson, Los Angeles co.	New Hope School District, Fresno co.
Mountain, Santa Cruz co.	New Hope School District, San Joa-
Mountain House School District, Ala-	quin co.
meda co.	New Idria, San Benito co.
Mountain House School District, Butte	New Jerusalem School District, San
co.	Joaquin co.
	Newman, Stanislaus co.
Mountain School District, Yolo co.	
Mountain Springs School District,	Newport Beach, Orange co.
Butte co.	New School District, San Luis Obispo
Mountain View, Los Angeles co.	CO.
Mountain View, Santa Clara co.	Newville School District, Glenn co.
Mountain View, Stanislaus co.	Nichols, Contra Costa co.
Mountain View School District, Fresno	Nicolaus, Sutter co.
	Niland, Imperial co.
co.	Nile Gardens, San Joaquin co.
Mountain View School District, Kern	Niles, Alameda co.
CO,	Nimshew School District, Butte co.
Mountain View School District, San	
Bernardino co.	Nipomo, San Luis Obispo co.
Mountain View School District, San	Nord, Butte co.
Luis Obispo co.	Nordhoff Union School District, Ven-
	tura co.
Mowry's Landing School District, Ala-	Normal Heights, San Diego co.
meda co.	Norris School District, Kern co.
Mulberry School District, Imperial co.	North Butte School District, Sutter co.
Munzer School District, Kern co.	North End School District, Imperial co.
Mupu School District, Ventura co.	
Murdock School District, Glenn co.	North Fork, Fresno co.
Muroc, Kern co.	North Fork, Madera co.
	North Fork Mission, Madera co.
Murray, Kings co.	North Fork School District, Fresno co.
Murray School District, Alameda co.	North Fork School District, Kern co.
Murrietta. Riverside co.	North Fork School District, Plumas co.
Mussel Slough, Kings co.	North Grafton School District, Yolo co.
Myers, Humboldt co.	North Inyo School District, Inyo co.
Nacimiento School District, Monterey	North Sacramento, Sacramento co.
co.	Norwalk, Los Angeles co.
Naglee School District, San Joaquin co.	
Napa, Napa co.	Noyes School District, Sutter co.
	Nuestro School District, Sutter co.
Napa Soda Springs, Napa co.	Nuevo, Riverside co.
National City, San Diego co.	Oak Bar, Siskiyou co.
Natividad School District, Monterey co.	Oak Dale School District, San Luis
Natomas, Sacramento co.	Obispo co.
Navelencia, Fresno co.	Oak Flat, Los Angeles co.
Needles, San Bernardino co.	Oak Flat School District, San Luis
Neenach, Los Angeles co.	Obispo co.
Nees Colony School District, Fresno co.	
Nelson, Butte co.	Oak Glen, San Bernardino co.
Nevada City, Nevada co.	Oak Grove, San Diego co.
	Oak Grove, Siskiyou co.
Newark, Alameda co.	Oak Grove School District, Contra
Newberry, San Bernardino co.	Costa co.
Newbury Park, Ventura co.	Oak Grove School District, Napa co.
Newcastle, Placer co.	Oak Grove School District, Santa Clara
New Era, Los Angeles co.	co.
Newhall, Los Angeles co.	Oak Knoll, Napa co.
New Home School District, Kings co.	Oak Park School District, Tehama co.
	+

Oakdale, Santa Cruz co.	Olive School District, Tulare co.
Oakdale, Stanislaus co.	Olive View, Los Angeles co.
Oakdale School District, Glenn co.	Olivenhain School District, San Diego
Oakdale School District, Humboldt co.	co.
Oakdale School District, San Diego co.	Oliveto, Los Angeles co.
Oakdale School District, Solano co.	Olmstead School District, San Luis
Oakdale School District, Tulare co.	Obispo co.
Oakes School District, Humboldt co.	Olsen Ranch, Plumas co.
Oakhurst School District, Fresno co.	Olympia, Santa Cruz co.
Oakland, Alameda co.	Olympia School District, San Benito
Oakland Camp, Plumas co.	co.
Oakland Colony School District, Tulare co. Oakley, Contra Costa co. Oakvale School District, Kings co. Oakville School District, Napa co. Oasis School District, Riverside co. Oat Creek School District, Tehama co. Oat Hill School District, Napa co. O'Banion Corners, Sutter co. Occidental, Sonoma co. Occidental School District, Merced co.	O'Neals, Madera co. Ontario, San Bernardino co. Onyx, Kern co. Orange, Orange co. Orange Blossom, Stanislaus co. Orange Center School District, Fresno co. Orange Cove, Fresno co. Orange Glen School District, San Diego co.
Ocean View, Santa Cruz co.	Orangedale School District, Fresno co.
Ocean View School District, Orange co.	Orangethorpe School District, Orange
Ocean View School District, Ventura	co.
co.	Orangevale, Sacramento co.
Oceano, San Luis Obispo co.	Orchard, San Joaquin co.
Oceanside, San Diego co.	Orchard Park School District, Tehama
Oceanview School District, San Diego	co.
co.	Orchard School District, Santa Clara
Ockenden, Fresno co.	co.
Ogilby, Imperial co.	Orcutt, Santa Barbara eo.
Oil Center, Kern co.	Ord, Glenn co.
Oildale, Kern co.	Ordena School District, Kern co.
Ojai, Ventura co.	Oregon School District, Modoc co.
Ojai Valley, Ventura co.	Orella, Santa Barbara co.
Oklahoma Union School District, Siski-	Orick, Humboldt co.
you co.	Orinda Park. Contra Costa co.
Olancha School District, Inyo co.	Orland, Glenn co.
Old Paleto School District, Kern co.	Orleans, Humboldt co.
Old River, Los Angeles co.	Oro Fino, Siskiyou co.
Old River School District, Kern co.	Oro Grande, San Bernardino co.
Old Town School District, Kern co.	Oro Loma School District, Fresno co.
Oleander, Fresno co.	Orosi, Tulare co.
Oleta, Amador co.	Oroville, Butte co.
Oleum, Contra Costa co.	Orr Lake, Siskiyou co.
Olig School District, Kern co.	Ortigalito School District, Merced co.
Olinda, Orange co.	Osdick, San Bernardino co.
Olive School District, Butte co. Olive School District, Napa co. Olive School District, Orange co.	Oso Flaco School District, San Luis Obispo co. Otay, San Diego co. Oulton School District, Sacramento co.
Olive School District, Santa Barbara	Outside Creek School District, Tulare
Olive School District, Solano co.	co. Owens School District. Solano co.

Owenyo, Inyo co. Pavnes Creek, Tehama co. Owl Creek School District, Modoc co. Peaceful Glen School District, Solano Oxnard, Ventura co. co. Ozena, Ventura co. Peachtree School District, Monterey co. Peak, Trinity co. Pacheco, Contra Costa co. Pacheco, San Benito co. Pearland, Los Angeles co. Pacific Dredge, Trinity co. Pecho School District, San Luis Obispo Pacific Grove, Monterey co. CO. Pacific School District, Monterey co. Penitencia Union School District. Pacific School District, Sacramento co. Santa Clara co. Pennington, Sutter co. Pacific School District. San Luis Pentz, Butte co. Obispo co. Pepperwood, Humboldt co. Pacific School District, Santa Cruz co. Peralta, San Benito co. Packer School District, Colusa co. Perrin School District, Fresno co. Paddock School District, Kings co. Perris, Riverside co. Paicines, San Benito co. Perry, Los Angeles co. Palermo. Butte co. Pershing School District, Fresno co. Paleto School District, Kern co. Pershing School District, Kern co. Palliser School District, San Bernar-Pershing School District, Madera co. dino co. Pescadero, San Mateo co. Palm City, San Diego co. Peshine, Santa Barbara co. Palm School District, Kern co. Petaluma, Sonoma co. Palm Springs, Riverside co. Peters, San Joaquin co. Palmdale, Los Angeles co. Palo Alto, Santa Clara co. Peterson School District, San Joaquin Palo Colorado School District, Monco. Petroleum. Kern co. terey co. Petrolia, Humboldt co. Paloma, Tulare co. Pfeiffer School District, Monterey co. Paloma School District, Kern co. Palomar, Los Angeles co. Phelan, San Bernardino co. Palomar Mountain, San Diego co. Phillips School District, San Luis Palomares School District, Alameda co. Obispo co. Phillipsville, Humboldt co. Panama, Kern co. Phoenix, Tuolumne co. Panoche, San Benito co. Picacho School District, Imperial co. Paradise, Butte Co. Pico, Los Angeles co. Paradise School District, Stanislaus co. Piedmont School District, San Ber-Park Hill School District, San Luis nardino co. Obispo co. Piedra School District, Fresno co. Parkfield, Monterey co. Pierce School District, Colusa co. Parlier, Fresno co. Pigeon Creek School District, Amador Parrott School District, Butte co co. Pasadena, Los Angeles co. Pigeon Pass, Riverside co. Paskenta, Tehama co. Pigeon Point School District, San Paso Robles, San Luis Obispo co. Pass School District, San Bernardino Mateo co. Pinal, Santa Barbara co. CO. Patrick's Point School District, Hum-Pine Grove, Amador co. Pine Grove, Santa Barbara co. boldt co. Pine Grove School District, Fresno co. Patterson, Stanislaus co. Pattiway, Kern co. Pine Grove School District, Lassen co. Patton, San Bernardino co. Pine Ridge, Fresno co. Paulsen's Ranch, Trinity co. Pinecrest. San Bernardino co. Pauma School District, San Diego co. Pinedale School District, Fresno co. Paxton, Plumas co, Pinkham's, Trinity co.

Pinole, Contra Costa co.	Point Happy School District, Riverside
Pioneer, San Bernardino co.	co.
Pioneer School District, Amador co.	Point Pleasant, Sacramento co.
Pioneer School District, Merced co.	Poleta School District, Inyo co.
Pioneer School District, Plumas co.	Polk School District, Madera co.
Pioneer School District, Santa Clara	Pollasky School District, Fresno co.
co.	Pomerado Union School District, San
Piru, Ventura co.	Diego co.
Pismo, San Luis Obispo co.	Pomona, Los Angeles co.
Pitt River School District, Lassen co.	Pomona School District, Fresno co.
Pitts School District, Solano co.	Pomponio, San Mateo co.
Pittsburg, Contra Costa co.	Poncho Rico, Monterey co.
Pittville, Lassen co.	Pond, Kern co.
Pixley, Tulare co.	Pope Valley, Napa co.
Placentia, Orange co.	Poplar, Tulare co.
Placerville, El Dorado co.	Poplar School District, Kern co.
Plainfield, Yolo co.	Poplar School District, Lassen co.
Plainsburg School District, Merced 90.	Port Kenyon School District, Humboldt
Planada, Merced co.	co.
Playa del Rey, Los Angeles co.	Port School District, San Luis Obispo
Plaza School District, Glenn co.	co.
Pleasant Grove, Sacramento co.	Porterville, Tulare co.
Pleasant Grove, Sutter co.	Portola, Plumas co.
Pleasant Hill, Contra Costa co.	Portola School District, San Mateo co.
Pleasant Point School District, Hum-	Poso Flat School District, Kern co.
boldt co.	Potrero, San Diego co.
Pleasant Prairie School District, Yolo	Potrero Heights, Los Angeles co.
CO.	Poverty Hill School District, Tuolumne
Pleasant Vale School District, Fresno	co.
co.	Poway, San Diego co.
	Power Plant, Inyo co.
Pleasant Valley, Santa Cruz co.	Pozo School District, San Luis Obispo
Pleasant Valley School District, Butte	co.
CO.	Prairie Center, Tulare co.
Pleasant Valley School District, Inyo	Prairie Flower School District, Merced
co.	co.
Pleasant Valley School District. San	Prairie School District, Fresno co.
Luis Obispo co.	Prairie School District, Yolo co.
Pleasant Valley School District, Santa	Prescott School District, Stanislaus co.
Barbara co.	Price Creek School District, Humboldt
Pleasant Valley School District, Ven-	co.
tura co.	TO A AT THE OTHER TO TOTAL A A TOTAL
	Priest Valley School District, Monte-
Pleasant View, Los Angeles co.	rey co.
Pleasant View, Los Angeles co. Pleasant View School District, San	
	rey co.
Pleasant View School District, San	rey co. Princeton, Colusa co.
Pleasant View School District, San Bernardino co.	rey co. Princeton, Colusa co. Princeton School District, Fresno co.
Pleasant View School District, San Bernardino co. Pleasanton, Alameda co.	rey co. Princeton, Colusa co. Princeton School District, Fresno co. Proberta, Tehama co. Progress School District, Kern co. Prosperous School District, Siskiyou co.
Pleasant View School District, San Bernardino co. Pleasanton, Alameda co. Pleasants Valley School District, Solano	rey co. Princeton, Colusa co. Princeton School District, Fresno co. Proberta, Tehama co. Progress School District, Kern co.
Pleasant View School District, San Bernardino co. Pleasanton, Alameda co. Pleasants Valley School District, Solano co.	rey co. Princeton, Colusa co. Princeton School District, Fresno co. Proberta, Tehama co. Progress School District, Kern co. Prosperous School District, Siskiyou co.
Pleasant View School District, San Bernardino co. Pleasanton, Alameda co. Pleasants Valley School District, Solano co. Pleyto, Monterey co.	rey co. Princeton, Colusa co. Princeton School District, Fresno co. Proberta, Tehama co. Progress School District, Kern co. Prosperous School District, Siskiyou co. Providence School District, Lassen co.
Pleasant View School District, San Bernardino co. Pleasanton, Alameda co. Pleasants Valley School District, Solano co. Pleyto, Monterey co. Plum Valley School District, Tehama co. Plumas-Sierra Mine, Plumas co.	rey co. Princeton, Colusa co. Princeton School District, Fresno co. Proberta, Tehama co. Progress School District, Kern co. Prosperous School District, Siskiyou co. Providence School District, Lassen co. Prunedale School District, Monterey
Pleasant View School District, San Bernardino co. Pleasanton, Alameda co. Pleasants Valley School District, Solano co. Pleyto, Monterey co. Plum Valley School District, Tehama co.	rey co. Princeton, Colusa co. Princeton School District, Fresno co. Proberta, Tehama co. Progress School District, Kern co. Prosperous School District, Siskiyou co. Providence School District, Lassen co. Prunedale School District, Monterey co.

.

Punta Gorda School District, Ventura Reedley, Fresno co. Reed's Creek, Tehama co. co. Reef. Kings co. Purisima. Santa Barbara co. Reese, Sacramento co. Purissima, San Mateo co. Purissima School District. Santa Clara Represa, Sacramento co. Resideal School District, Madera co. co. Quail Lake, Los Angeles co. Rhett Lake, Siskiyou co. Rhine School District, Solano co. Quartz, Tuolumne co. Quartz Valley, Siskiyou co. Rhoades School District, Sacramento Quien Sabe, San Benito co. co. Quimby School District, Trinity co. Rialto, San Bernardino co. Quincy, Plumas co. Rice, Santa Barbara co. Quinn, Sacramento co. Rich, Plumas co. Quiotal School District, Ventura co. Rich Bar School District, Plumas co. Railroad School District, Santa Cruz Rich School District, Monterey co. co. Richfield, Tehama co. Rainbow Lodge, Monterey co. Richgrove School District, Tulare co. Raisin, Merced co. Richland, San Diego co. Richland School District, Kern co. Raisin City, Fresno co. Richmond, Contra Costa co. Ramona, Alameda co. Richmond School District, Lassen co. Ramona, San Diego co. Richvale, Butte co. Ramona School District, Kings co. Rincon School District, San Diego co. Rancheria School District, Amador co. Ranchita School District, San Luis Rindge School District, San Joaquin co. Rio Bonito School District, Butte co. Obispo co. Rio Bravo Pump Station, Kern co. Ranchito, Los Angeles co. Rio Bravo School District, Kern co. Rancho Santa Fe, San Diego co. Rio Dell, Humboldt co. Randsburg. Kern co. Rio Linda, Sacramento co. Rannells. Riverside co. Rio Oso, Sutter co. Ransom School District, Stanislaus co. Rio School District, Ventura co. Ravendale, Lassen co. Rio Vista, Solano co. Ravenswood, San Mateo co. Ripon, San Joaquin co. Rawhide, Tuolumne co. Ripperdan School District, Madera co. Rawson School District, Tehama co. River, San Joaquin co. Ray Union School District, San Joa-River School District, Butte co. quin co. Rivera, Los Angeles co. Raymond, Madera co. Riverbank, Stanislaus co. Red Bank, Tehama co. Red Banks School District, Fresno co. Riverbank, Yolo co. Red Bluff, Tehama co. Riverbend, Kings co. Red Rock, Lassen co. Riverdale, Fresno co. Red Rock, Siskiyou co. Riverdale School District, Tulare co. Red Rock School District, Kern co. Riverside, Lassen co. Red Star School District, Modoc co. Riverside, Riverside co. Redd School District, Siskiyou co. Riverside, Siskiyou co. Redding, Shasta co. Riverside Brickyard, Sacramento co. Riverside Hospital, Lassen co. Redlands, San Bernardino co. Riverside School District. Invo co. Redman. Los Angeles co. Riverside School District, Merced co. Redondo Beach, Los Angeles co. Redwood City, San Mateo co. Riverside School District, Sacramento Redwood School District, Alameda co. co. Redwood School District, Humboldt co. Riverside School District, Ventura co. Redwood School District, Monterey co. Riverview Union School District. Redwood School District, Napa co. Fresno co.

D. L. Osharl District Santa Courses	Dustia Subsel District San Josquin co
Roache School District, Santa Cruz co.	Rustic School District, San Joaquin co.
Roberts Ferry School District, Stani-	Rutherford, Napa co.
slaus co.	Ryan, Inyo co.
Roberts School District, Sacramento co.	Ryer Island School District, Solano co.
Robinson School District, Stanislaus	Sacramento, Sacramento co.
co.	Sacramento River School District, Yolo
Robla School District, Sacramento co.	co.
Robley, Monterey co.	St. Helena, Napa co.
Rochester School District, San Bernar-	St. Johns School District, Tulare co.
dino co.	Salem School District, Sutter co.
Rock Creek School District, Butte co.	Salida, Stanislaus co.
Rock River School District, Glenn co.	Salinas, Monterey co.
Rockefeller School District, Butte co.	Salmon Creek School District, Hum-
	boldt co.
Rockford School District, Tulare co.	
Rocklin, Placer co.	Salmon River School District, Siskiyou
Rockpile School District, Kern co.	co.
Rockville School District, Solano co.	Salt Creek, Trinity co.
Rockwood School District, Imperial co.	Salvador, Napa co.
Rocky Comfort School District, River-	Samoa, Humboldt co.
side co.	San Andreas, Calaveras co.
Rocky Hill School District, Tulare co.	San Andreas, Santa Cruz co.
Rocky Mountain, Siskiyou co.	San Anselmo, Marin co.
Rodeo, Contra Costa co.	San Antonio, Los Angeles co.
Roeding School District, Fresno co.	San Antonio School District, Ventura
Rogers, Los Angeles co.	co.
Rohnerville, Humboldt co.	San Antonio Union School District,
Rolph School District, Humboldt co.	
Rome, Sutter co.	Monterey co.
Romero School District, Merced co.	San Ardo, Monterey co.
Roosevelt, Los Angeles co.	San Benito, San Benito co.
	San Bernardino, San Bernardino co.
Roosevelt School District, Fresho co.	San Bruno, San Mateo co.
Rosamond, Kern co.	San Carlos, San Mateo co.
Rose School District, Imperial co.	San Carpojo, San Luis Obispo co.
Rose School District, Siskiyou co.	Sand Creek School District, Madera
Rosedale, Butte co.	co.
Rosedale, Kern co.	Sand Hill School District, San Luis
Resedule School District, Tulare co.	Obispo co.
Roselawn School District, Stanislaus	Sand Mound School District, Contra
co.	Costa co.
Roseville, Placer co.	San Diego, San Diego co.
Ross School District, Fresno co.	San Dieguito School District, San
Rotterdam School District, Merced co.	Diego co.
Round Hill School District, Solano co.	San Dimas, Los Angeles co.
Round Mountain School District,	San Felipe, San Benito co.
Fresno co.	San Felipe School District, San Diego
Round Valley School District, Inyo co.	co.
Rowe School District, Stanislaus co.	San Felipe School District, Santa Clara
Rowland, Los Angeles co.	co.
Ruch, Trinity co.	San Fernando, Los Angeles co.
Rucker School District, Santa Clara co.	San Francisco, see same.
Rumsey, Yolo co.	San Francisquito, Los Angeles co.
Russell, Alameda co.	San Gabriel, Los Angeles co.
Russell School District, Merced co.	Sanger, Fresno co.
Rustic School District, Kings co.	San Gregorio, San Mateo co.

.

·····

Sanitarium, Napa co.	Santa Clara School District, Ventura
San Jacinto, Riverside co.	co.
San Joaquin, Fresno co.	Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz co.
San Joaquin School District, Orange	Santa Fe School District, San Luis
C0.	Obispo co.
San Joaquin School District, Sacra-	Santa Margarita School District, San
mento co.	Luis Obispo co.
San Joaquin School District, San Joa-	Santa Maria, Santa Barbara co.
quin co.	Santa Monica, Los Angeles co.
San Jose, Kings co.	Santa Paula, Ventura co.
San Jose, Santa Clara co.	Santa Rita, Santa Barbara co.
San Juan Bautista, San Benito co.	Santa Rita School District, Monterey
San Juan Capistrano, Orange co.	co.
San Juan Valley, San Benito co.	Santa Rosa, Santa Barbara co.
San Julian School District, Santa Bar-	Santa Rosa, Sonoma co.
bara co.	Santa Rosa School District, San Luis
San Justo School District, San Benito	Obispo co.
co.	Santa Rosa School District, Ventura
San Leandro, Alameda co.	co.
San Lorenzo, Alameda co.	Santa Susana, Ventura co.
San Lucas, Monterey co.	Santa Ynez, Santa Barbara co.
San Lucas, Monterey co. San Luis Obispo, San Luis Obispo co.	Santa Ynez, School District, Ventura
San Luis Obispo, San Luis Obispo co. San Luis Rey School District, San	
Diego co.	co.
San Marcos, San Diego co.	Santa Ysabel School District, San
San Marcos, San Diego co. San Marcos School District, San Luis	Diego co.
Obispo co.	Santee, San Diego co.
-	San Tomas, Santa Clara co.
San Marino, Los Angeles co.	San Vicente School District, Santa
San Martin, Santa Clara co.	Cruz co.
San Mateo, San Mateo co.	San Ysidro, San Diego co.
San Miguel, San Luis Obispo co.	San Ysidro School District, Santa
San Onofre School District, San Diego co.	Clara co.
	Saranap, Contra Costa co.
. San Pablo, Contra Costa co.	Saratoga, Santa Clara co.
San Pasqual, San Diego co.	Saticoy, Ventura co.
San Pasqual Valley Union School Dis- trict, San Diego co.	Saucelito, Tulare co.
San Pedro, San Mateo co.	Saugus, Los Angeles co.
San Quentin, Marin co.	Sausalito, Marin co.
San Rafael, Marin co.	Savana School District, Merced co.
San Ramon, Contra Costa co.	Savanna School District, Orange co.
San Salvador School District, San Ber-	Savannah, Los Angeles co.
nardino co.	Sawmill School, Kern co.
	Sawyers Bar, Siskiyou co.
Santa Ana, Orange co.	Scandinavian School District, Fresno
Santa Ana Power House No. 2, San	co.
Bernardino co.	Schewanikee, Fresno co.
Santa Ana School District, San Benito	Schmitt Mill, Siskiyou co.
co.	Scotia, Humboldt co.
Santa Ana School District, Ventura co.	Scott River School District, Siskiyou
Santa Anita Cañon, Los Angeles co.	CO.
Santa Anita School District, San	Scotts Valley, Santa Cruz co.
Benito co.	Seal Beach, Orange co.
Santa Barbara, Santa Barbara co.	Seaside, San Mateo co.
Santa Clara, Santa Clara co.	Seaside, Santa Cruz co.

Sisson Union School District. Siskivou Sebastopol. Sonoma co. Secret Valley School District, Lassen co. Skyland, San Bernardino co. co. Skyland, Santa Cruz co. Seeley, Imperial co. Slauson Ranch, Los Angeles co. Seiad School District, Siskiyou co. Sloat, Plumas co. Selby, Contra Costa co. Slough School District, Sutter co. Selma, Fresno co. Sloughhouse, Sacramento co. Semitropic School District, Kern co. Snelling, Merced co. Seneca, Plumas co. Snowden School District, Siskiyou co. Sentinel School District, Fresno co. Sobrante School District, Contra Costa Sequoia, Santa Cruz co. Sequoia School District, Humboldt co. co. Sequoya, Contra Costa co. Soda Canyon School District, Napa co. Service School District, Madera co. Soda Springs School District, Napa co. Sespe, Ventura co. Solano Joint School District, Solano co. Seville, Tulare co. Soldier Creek School District, Modoc Shafter, Kern co. co. Shafter School District, Kern co. Soldiers' Home, Los Angeles co. Shandon, San Luis Obispo co. Soledad, Monterey co. Shannon, Santa Clara co. Soledad School District, Los Angeles Sharon School District, Madera co. co. Shasta River School District, Siskiyou Soledad School District, San Diego co. co. Solvang, Santa Barbara co. Shasta Union School District, Butte Somavia School District, Monterey co. Someo School District, San Luis Obispo Shasta View School District, Siskiyou co. CO. Somis, Ventura co. Shawmut, Tuolumne co. Sonoma, Sonoma co. Shaw's Flat, Tuolumne co. Sonora, Tuolumne co. Sheep Mountain School District, Siski-Soquel, Santa Cruz co. you co. Soscol School District, Napa co. Sheldon School District, Contra Costa Soulsbyville, Tuolumne co. CO. South Bay Union School District, San Shelter Cove, Humboldt co. Diego co. Shelvin Rock School District, Siskiyou South Fork, Trinity co. co. South Fork School District, Kern co. Shenandoah School District, Amador South Pasadena, Los Angeles co. co. South Power House, Tehama co. Sherman, Los Angeles co. South San Francisco, San Mateo co. Sherman Island, Sacramento co. South Santa Anita, Los Angeles co. Shiloh School District, Stanislaus co. South Side, San Benito co. Shively, Humboldt co. South Vallejo, Solano co. Shoshone, Inyo co. South Whittier, Los Angeles co. Shower's Pass, Humboldt co. Spanish Peak School District, Plumas Shurtleff School District, Napa co. co. Sierra Chautauqua, Fresno co. Spencer Valley School District, San Sierra Madre, Los Angeles co. Diego co. Sierra School District, Sacramento co. Spreckels, Monterey co. Silsbee School District, Imperial co. Spring Garden, Plumas co. Silveyville School District, Solano co Spring Hill School District, San Diego Simi, Ventura co. co. Simmler School District, San Luis Spring Lake, Yolo co. Obispo co. Spring School District, Siskiyou co. Sisquoc, Santa Barbara co. Spring Valley, Napa co.

307

 Spring Valley School District, Amador o. Spring Valley School District, Coluss Spring Valley School District, Moatera co. Spring Valley School District, Tuolunne co. Stardard School District, Frenso co. Standard, Tuolunne co. Standard Chi, Alameda co. Standard Chi, Alameda co. Standard Chi, Alameda co. Standard Chi, Alameda co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Inyoe co. Stata Lassen co. Stata Lassen co. Stata Lassen co. Standard School District, Inyoe co. Stata Clara School District, Inyoe co. Stata Clara School District, Inyoe co. Stata School District, Inyoe co. Stata School District, Inyoe co. Stata Lue School District, Inyoe co. Stata Lue School District, Inyoe co. Stata Lue School District, Inyoe co. Stata School District, Inyoe co. Stata School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Inyoe co. Stata Ina School District, Inyoe co. Statifung City, Butte co. Stool Took School District, Kanalsaus co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathord, Kings co. Strathord, Kings co. Strathord, Kings co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strathord, Kings co. Strathord, Kings co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strate Cod, District, San Luis Obispo co. Strate School District, San Luis Obispo co. Sunset School District, Moatera co. Sunset School		
 Sulphur Spring School District, Plumas co. Springfield School District, Monterey co. Springrille School District, Tuolume co. Springrille School District, Ventura co. Synue School District, Ventura co. Synue School District, Imperial co. Starty, Lassen co. Stardard Midway Club, Kern co. Standard Oil, Alameda co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Inyo co. Stathord University, Santa Clara co. State Line School District, Imo co. State Line School District, Stanislaus, Tuolumne co. State Line School District, Iso Angeles co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Sterling School District, San Luis Obispo co. State Line School District, San Luis Obispo co. State Line School District, San Secol District, Tulare co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Kern co. Stone School District, Glean co. Stone School District, Glean co. Stome School District, Glean co. Stomy Brook School District, Alameda co. Statford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tulare co. 		
 spring Valley School District, Madera go. springrile School District, Monterey springrille School District. Tuolume springrille School District, Tuperial co. springrille School District, Imperial co. springrille School District, Plumas co. squaw Valley, Fresno co. stady and Midway Club, Kern co. standard Oil, Alameda co. standard Oil, Alameda co. standard Oil, Alameda co. standard Midway Club, Kern co. standard School District, Kern co. stata Farm, San Joaquin co. stathe School District, Iwyo co. statuffer, Yentura co. sterling School District, Kern co. sterling School District, Kern co. sterling School District, Kern co. sterling School District, Iwyo co. stanford School District, Kern co. sterling School District, Kern co. straiford School District, Kern co. straifing City, Butte co. stone School District, Sanislaus co. stone School District, Sanislaus co. stone School District, Sanislaus co. stone School District, San Luis Obispo stone School District, San Luis Obispo stone School District, San Luis Obispo story Brook Retreat, Kern co. story Brook School District, Alameda co. strathord, Kings co. strathore, Tulare co. strathore, Tulare co. strathore, Talare co. strathore, San Bernardino		
 Sulphur Springs, Los Angeles co. Supringville School District, Monterey o. Springville School District, Tuoluma co. Springville School District, Ventura co. Springville School District, Ventura co. Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Standard, Tuolumne co. Standard Oil, Alaneda co. Standard Oil, Alaneda co. Standard Oil, Alaneda co. Standard Oil, Alaneda co. Standard District, Kern co. Standard District, Impoile Co. Standish, Lassen co. State Line School District, Modoe co. State Line School District, Modoe co. State Line School District, Nodoe co. State Ine School District, Impoile Co. State School District, Kern co. State School District, Kern co. State Ine School District, Nodoe co. State Ine School District, Nogaen State School District, Kern co. State Ine School District, San Bernar- do. Stevinson, Merced co. Stime School District, Kern co. Strather ventum co. Stork Enool District, Stanislaus co. Stork Enool District, Stanislaus co. Stork Enool District, Stanislaus co. Story Brook School District, Alameda co. Stutter Creek, Anador co. Stutter Creek, Anador co. Stutter School District, Scramento co. Stutter School District, Scramento co. Stutter Creek, Anador co. Stutter School District, Madera co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strathore, Talare co. Strathore, Talare co. Strathore, Talare co. Strathore, Talare co. Strathore, Talare co. Strawberry Fark, San Bernardino co. Sweet Vater Creek, Anador co. Sweet School District, Madera co. 		
Springfield School District, Monterey co. Springfield School District. Tuolunne co. Springfield School District. Tuolunne co. Springfield School District, Tuperial co. Springfield School District, Ventura co. Springfield School District, Ventura co. Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Statafard Toliunne co. Standard Oil, Alaneda co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Stata Farm, San Joaquin co. State Farm, San Joaquin co. State Iane School District, Iny co. State Iane School District, Iny co. Statuffer, Yentura co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stine School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Monterey co. Stotokton, San Joaquin co. Statawberry Flats, San Bernarilino co. Sutter School District, Monterey co. Sutter School District, Madera co. Sweetwater School District, Madera co. Sweetwater School District, Monterey co. Sweetwater School District, Monterey co. Sweetwater School District, Monter		
 co. Springfield School District, Tuolume, Springville, Tulare co. Springville School District, Ventura co. Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Squawill, Tehama co. Summit School District, Fresno co. Standard, Tuolumne co. Standard Oil, Alameda co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Modee co. Stantislaus, Tuolumne co. Station School District, Imyo co. Statine School District, Kern co. Statifer, Yentura co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Stinling City, Butte co. Stoekton, San Joaquin co. Stoekton, San Joaquin co. Stoekton, San Joaquin co. Stoekton School District, Kern co. Stinling City, Butte co. Stoekton School District, Kern co. Stome Lagoon School District, Humpolite Co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispo Stony Brook School District, San Bernardino co. Stony Brook School District, Madera co. Stuter School District, San Bernardino co. Stony Brook School District, Mameda co. Sture School District, Sanislaus co. Stony Brook School District, Anamedo. Statter, Stan Granardino co. Statter School District, San Bernardino co. Sture School District, San Bernardino co. Sunset School District, Humperial co. Sture School District, San Bernardino co. Sunset School District, Plumas co. Sunset School District, Sunter co. Sutter, Sutter co. Sutter School District, Madera co. Sweet Vatter School District, Monterey co. Sweet School		
 Springield School District, Tuoluman Springville, Tulare co. Springville School District, Ventura co. Spruee School District, Imperial co. Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Stardy, Lassen co. Standard Midway Club, Kern co. Standard Oil, Alaneda co. Standard Oil, Alaneda co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard Lue School District, Kern co. Standard Lue School District, Kern co. State Farm, San Joaquin co. State Lane School District, Invo co. State Ine School District, Invo co. State Ine School District, Kern co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Sterling School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoidard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoid School District, Stanislaus co. Stony Brook School District, Maneda co. Sturter Co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispo co. Startford, Kings co. Strathore, Tulare co. Startaford, Kings co. Strathorer, Fulare co. Startamore, Tulare co. Startamore, Tulare co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispo co. Startamore, Tulare co. Startamo		
 co. Springville, Tulare co. Springville School District, Ventura co. Spruce School District, Imperial co. Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Stard, Taolumne co. Standard Midway Club, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Nodoe co. State Line School District, Inyo co. State Line School District, Inyo co. State Trubumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Sterinson, Merced co. String City, Butte co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stord Lagoon School District, Mangeise co. Stord School District, Kern co. Stord School District, Kern co. Sting City, Butte co. Stord School District, Kern co. Stord Lagoon School District, Mangeise co. Store Lagoon School District, Mangeise co. Story Brook School District, Mangeise co. Story Brook School District, Stanislaus co. Story Fook School District, Stanislaus co. Story Fook School District, Stanislaus co. Stratford, Kings co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathore, Tulare co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathorey Flats, Son Bernardino co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathorey Flats, Son Bernardino co. Strathorey Flats, Son Bernardino co. Strathorey Flats, Son Bernardino co. Strathory Flats, Son Ber		
 Springville, Tulare co. Springville School District, Ventura co. Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Stardard School District, Plumas co. Standard Midway Club, Kern co. Standard Oil, Alameda co. Standard District, Kern co. Stata Farm, San Joaquin co. Statuffer, Ventura co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Straithor School District, Kern co. Stoddard School District, Kern co. Stond Zehool District, Kern co. Stong Erook School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook School District, Mameda co. Story Ford, Colusa co. Storyford, Colusa co. Storyford, Colusa co. Storyford, Colusa co. Storyford, Colusa co. Startahmore, Tulare co. Startathore, Tulare co. Starathore, Tulare co. Starathore, Tulare co. Star		
Springville School District, Ventura co. Spruce School District, Imperial co. Squaw Yalley, Fresno co. Squaw Yalley, Fresno co. Squaw Yalley, Fresno co. Standard Creek School District, Plumas co. Stard, Tuolumne co. Standard Oil, Alameda co. Standard Oil, Alameda co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. State Line School District, Modoc co. State Farm. San Joaquin co. Stati School District, Tulare co. Stati School District, Tulare co. Stati School District, Tulare co. State School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Straine School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Storkton, San Joaquin co. Storkton, San Joaquin co. Storkton, San Joaquin co. Stor Stool District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Story Brook Retreat, Kern co. Story Brook Retreat, Kern co. Story Brook Retreat, Kern co. Story Brook Retreat, Kern co. Sturt School District, San Luis Obispo co. Starafford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathm		
Spruce School District, Imperial co. Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Statulil, Tchama co. Statafer A Midway Club, Kern co. Standard Ol, Alaneda co. Standard Ol, Alaneda co. Standard University, Santa Clara co. Standish, Lassen co. Standish, Lassen co. Standish, Lassen co. Standish, Lassen co. Statu E Farm, San Joaquin co. State Farm, San Joaquin co. State I Le School District, Mode co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stering School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stoddard School District, Kern co. Stookton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Kern co. Stone Lagoon School District, Hume holdt co. Stom School District, San Luis Obispo co. Starafford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Starafford, Kings co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.		
Squaw Valley, Fresno co. Squawkill, Tehama co. Squawkill, Tehama co. Squirrel Creek School District, Plumas co. Stay Lassen co. Stay Lassen co. Standard Midway Club, Kern co. Standard Midway Club, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Stantishus, Tuolumne co. Station School District, Inyo co. Statt E Farm, San Joaquin co. Statt E Farm, San Joaquin co. Steriling School District, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Stirie School District, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Stirie School District, Kern co. Store Lagoon School District, Humboldt co. Stone School District, Stanislaus co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Story Ford, Colusa co. Storyford, Colusa co. Stratford, Kings co. Stratford, Kings co. Stratthmore, Tulare co. Stratford, Kings co. Stratthmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.		
 Squawhill, Tehama co. Squawhill, Tehama co. Squirrel Creek School District, Plumas co. Stacy, Lassen co. Stardard, Tuolumne co. Standard Midway Club, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard Line School District, Kern co. Station School District, Inyo co. Stati Lae School District, Inyo co. Stati E Farm, San Joaquin co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Strie School District, Kern co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Humboldt co. Stome School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Frok School District, San Luis Obispo co. Startford, Kings co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Startford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Startford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore,		
Squirrel Creek School District, Plumas co. Stardard, Tuolumne co. Standard Midway Club, Kern co. Standard Oil, Alanaeda co. Standard Oil, Alanaeda co. Standard Oil, Alanaeda co. Standish, Lassen co. Standard District, Kern co. Standish, Lassen co. Stantord University, Santa Clara co. State Farm, San Joaquin co. State Farm, San Joaquin co. Statifer, Venturn co. Steat, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stering School District, Inyo co. Stering School District, Los Angeles co. Stering School District, Kern co. Stimi School District, Kern co. Stimi School District, Kern co. Stimi School District, Kern co. Stimi School District, Kern co. Stoddard School District, Kern co. Stoud School District, Kern co. Stoud School District, Stanislaus co. Stoud School District, Kern co. Stoud School District, Kern co. Stoup Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispo co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Story Brook School District, San Luis Obispo co. Strattord, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Stope District, Moreede co. Strathmore, Stope District, San		
 co. Stardy, Lassen co. Stardy, Lassen co. Standard, Tuolumne co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard Chiversity, Santa Clara co. Standish, Lassen co. Stante Line School District, Modoe co. Statifer, Ventura co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stord Ad School District, Stanislaus co. Store Lagoon School District, Stanislaus co. Stone School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Sturer School District, San Luis Obispo co. Sutter School District, Sutter co. Sutter School District, Madera co. Sweetwater, San Diego co. Sweetwater, San Diego co. Sweetwater School District, Monterey co. 	· · ·	
 Stacy, Lassen co. Stags Leap, Napa co. Standard, Tuolumne co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standish, Lassen co. Stantish, Lassen co. Stantord University, Santa Clara co. Statinish, Lassen co. Statinish, Lassen co. Station School District, Inyo co. Statifer, Venturn co. Statuffer, Venturn co. Statuffer, Venturn co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Sterling City, Butte co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stone Lagoon School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispo co. Stattford, Kings co. Stratthorde, Kings co. Strattord, Kings co. Stratthore, Tulare co. Story Prok School District, San Luis Obispo co. Stattathore, Tulare co. Story Prok School District, San Luis Obispo co. Stattathord, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Stattathorde, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Stattathore, Tulare co. Statthmore, Tulare co. Stattathore, Tulare co. Statthmore, Tulare co.		
 Stags Leap, Napa co. Standard, Tuolumne co. Standard Oil, Alameda co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standiaus, Tuolumne co. State Farm, San Joaquin co. State Line School District, Inyo co. Station School District, Inyo co. Statifer, Venturn co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Striling City, Butte co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stone Lagoon School District, Humboldt co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Grod, Colusa co. Startford, Kings co. Stratthmore, Tulare co. Starthord, Kings co. Stratthmore, Tulare co. Starthmore, Tulare co. Starthmore, Tulare co. Stony Ford, Colusa co. Strathord, Kings co. Strathord, Kings co. Strathord, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathord, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Stattory Park, Los Angeles co. 		
 Standard, Tuolumne co. Standard Midway Club, Kern co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standiard School District, Kern co. Stantish, Lassen co. Stantish, Lassen co. Stantord University, Santa Clara co. Stantish, Lassen co. Stantish, Lassen co. Stantord University, Santa Clara co. State Line School District, Modoe co. State Line School District, Inyo co. State Line School District, Inyo co. State Line School District, Inyo co. State Line School District, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Storkton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Kern co. Storddard School District, Kern co. Store Lagoon School District, Humboldt co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispo co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispo co. Stattford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Stattford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Stattford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co		-
 Standard Midway Club, Kern co. Standard Oil, Alameda co. Standard School District, Kern co. Stanford University, Santa Clara co. Stanford University, Santa Clara co. Stantislaus, Tuolumne co. State Farm, San Joaquin co. Station School District, Inyo co. Statuffer, Venturn co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Kern co. String City, Butte co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stone Lagoon School District, Humboldt co. Stony Brook Refreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Refreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Refreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispo co. Stantford, Kings co. Stratthord, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Stantard School District, San Luis Obispo co. Sunnyside, San Mateo co. Sunnyside, San Mateo co. Sunnyside School District, Stanislaus co. Store Lagoon School District, Humbol Koold co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Statter School District, San Luis Obispo co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore,		
Standard Oil, Alameda co. Standard School District, Kern co. Standish, Lassen co. Stantislaus, Tuolumne co. State Farm, San Joaquin co. State Lue School District, Inyo co. Statuffer, Venturn co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Glenn co. Stong Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stattford, Kings co. Stratthore, Tulare co. Stattaftord, Kings co. Stratthore, Tulare co. Strattory Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Statter School District, San Luis Obispo co. Strattory Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. Standard Oil, Alameda co. State School District, Hum- boldt co. Statter School District, Santauis Obispo co. Strattory Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. Stata School District, Monterey co. Statter School District, Santauis Obispo Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. Stata School District, Monterey co. Sweetwater School District, Monterey co.	Standard Midway Club, Kern co.	
Standard School District, Kern co. Standish, Lassen co. Stanford University, Santa Clara co. Stanford University, Santa Clara co. Statislaus, Tuolumne co. State Farm, San Joaquin co. Statuffer, Venturn eo. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stephenson, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stervinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stattford, Kings co. Stratthmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Stratthmore, Tulare co. Stratthmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore	Standard Oil, Alameda co.	
Standish, Lassen co. Stanford University, Santa Clara co. Stantislaus, Tuolumne co. State Line School District, Inyo co. State Line School District, Inyo co. Statuffer, Venturn co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Refreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook School District, Mameda co. Statistic, Stanislaus co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispe co. Statiford, Kings co. Strathore, Tulare co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathore, Tulare co. State Lagoon School District, Stanislaus co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispe co. Stature School District, San Luis Obispe co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strathore, Tulare co. Stature School District, San Luis Obispe co. Strathory Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.	Standard School District, Kern co.	-
 stanford University, Santa Clara co. Stanislaus, Tuolumne co. State Farm, San Joaquin co. Station School District, Inyo co. Stauffer, Ventura co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Glenn co. Stone Lagoon School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispe co. Statafford, Kings co. Strathore, Tulare co. Stanford Co. Stany Brook School District, San Luis Obispe co. Statafford, Kings co. Strathore, Tulare co. Statafford, Kings co. Strathory, Tulare co. State Farm, San Bernardino co Strathory Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. 	Standish, Lassen co.	
State Farm, San Joaquin co. State Line School District, Modoe co. Station School District, Inyo co. Statific, Venturn co. Stephenson, Los Angeles co. Stephenson, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Glenn co. Stone School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Staratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.	Stanford University, Santa Clara co.	
State Farm, San Joaquin co. State Line School District, Modoe co. Station School District, Inyo co. Station School District, Inyo co. Statifer, Ventura co. Statuffer, Ventura co. Stephenson, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stirling City, Butte co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stone Lagoon School District, Hum- boldt co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Golusa co. Stateford, Kings co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strathore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.		
 Station School District, Inyo co. Stauffer, Venturn eo. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stephenson, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Refreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispe co. Stattford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Stophologic co. Stepholo	· · · ·	
 Stauffer, Venturn co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stent, Tuolumne co. Stephenson, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stirling City, Butte co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stone Lagoon School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispe co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tu	· · ·	Sunnyslope, Los Angeles co.
Stent, Tuolumne co. Stephenson, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stime School District, Kern co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stone Lagoon School District, Hum- boldt co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Brook School District, San Luis Obispe co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.		Sunnyvale, Santa Clara co.
Stephenson, Los Angeles co. Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stirling City, Butte co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stone Lagoon School District, Hum- boldt co. Stone School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Statuford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.		Sunol, Alameda co.
 Sterling School District, Los Angeles co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stinling City, Butte co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Grod, Colusa co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. 		Sunol School District, Santa Clara co.
 co. Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stining City, Butte co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Humboldt co. Stone Lagoon School District, Humboldt co. Stone School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony Grod, Colusa co. Stratford, Kings co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. 		Sunrise School District, San Bernar-
Stevinson, Merced co. Stine School District, Kern co. Stirling City, Butte co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoil, Tulare co. Stone Lagoon School District, Hum- boldt co. Stone School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony ford, Colusa co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. Stine School District, Merced co. Sunset School District, Monterey co. Sunset School District, Monterey co. Sunset School District, Monterey co. Sunset School District, Monterey co. Susset School District, Plumas co. Sutter Creek, Amador co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.		dino co.
Stine School District, Kern co. Stirling City, Butte co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoil, Tulare co. Stone Lagoon School District, Hum- boldt co. Stone School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony ford, Colusa co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.		Sunset School District, Fresno co.
Stirling City, Butte co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoil, Tulare co. Stone Lagoon School District, Hum- boldt co. Stone School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stonyford, Colusa co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.		Sunset School District, Kings co.
 Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stockton, San Joaquin co. Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoil, Tulare co. Stone Lagoon School District, Humboldt co. Stone School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stonyford, Colusa co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. 		Sunset School District, Merced co.
Stoddard School District, Stanislaus co. Stoil, Tulare co. Stone Lagoon School District, Hum- boldt co. Stone School District. Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stony ford, Colusa co. Stawe School District, San Luis Obispe co.Sunset Spings School District, Plumas co. Superior School District, Plumas co. Susanville, Lassen co. Sutter Creek, Amador co. Sutter School District, Sacramento co. Sutter School District, Tehama co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Susanville, Lassen co. Sutter Creek, Amador co. Sutter School District, Sacramento co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co.		
Stoil, Tulare co. Stone Lagoon School District, Hum- boldt co. Stone School District. Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stonyford, Colusa co. Stowe School District, San Luis Obispe co.Superior School District, Plumas co. Sugerior School District. Tulare co. Susanville, Lassen co. Sutter Creek, Amador co. Sutter School District, Sacramento co. Sutter School District, Tehama co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Superior School District, Plumas co. Sugerior School District. Tulare co. Sutter Creek, Amador co. Sutter School District, Sacramento co. Sweiter School District, Tehama co. Sweetwater, San Diego co. Sweetwater School District, Monterey co.		
Stone Lagoon School District, Hum- boldt co.Surprise School District. Tulare co.Stone School District. Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, AlamedaSurprise School District. Tulare co. Susanville, Lassen co. Sutter, Sutter co. Sutter School District, Sacramento co. Sutter School District, Tehama co. Swain School District, Tehama co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co.co. Stonyford, Colusa co. Stowe School District, San Luis ObispeSutter School District, Tehama co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co.co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Superior District, Fulmas co. Susanville, Lassen co. Sutter, Sutter co. Sutter School District, Sacramento co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co.		perial co.
boldt co. Stone School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stonyford, Colusa co. Stowe School District, San Luis Obispe co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. Supplies School District, Tuntre ca. Supplies School District, Supplies School District, Madera co. Sweetwater, San Diego co. Sweetwater School District, Monterey co.		Superior School District, Plumas co.
 Stone School District, Glenn co. Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, Alameda co. Stonyford, Colusa co. Stowe School District, San Luis Obispe co. Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. 	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-
Stony Brook Retreat, Kern co. Stony Brook School District, AlamedaSutter, Sunter Co. Sutter School District, Sacramento co. Sutter School District, Sutter co. Sutter School District, Sutter co. Sutter School District, Tehama co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co.co. Stony ford, Colusa co. Stowe School District, San Luis ObispeSutter School District, Sutter co. Sutter School District, Tehama co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Sutter (sol. Sutter School District, Sacramento co. Sweiter School District, Tehama co. Sweetwater, San Diego co. Sweetwater School District, Monterey co.		
Stony Brook School District, AlamedaSutter School District, Sacramento co.co.Sutter School District, Sutter co.Stonyford, Colusa co.Sutter School District, Sutter co.Stowe School District, San Luis ObispeSwain School District, Tehama co.co.Sweet Flower School District, Maderaco.Strathmore, Tulare co.Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino coSweetwater, San Diego co.Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Sweetwater School District, Montereyco.Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
co.Surter School District, Sutter co.Stonyford, Colusa co.Sutter School District, Sutter co.Stowe School District, San Luis ObispeSutter School District, Sutter co.co.Stratford, Kings co.Strathmore, Tulare co.Sweet Flower School District, MaderaStrawberry Flats, San Bernardino coSweetwater, San Diego co.Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Sweetwater School District, Montereyco.co.		
Stonyford, Colusa co. Stowe School District, San Luis ObispoSutter School District, Sutter Co. Sutterville, Sacramento co. Swain School District, Tehama co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Sutter School District, Sutter Co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co. Sweetwater, San Diego co. Sweetwater School District, Monterey co.		
Stowe School District, San Luis Obispe co.Swain School District, Tehama co. Sweet Flower School District, Madera co.Stratford, Kings co. Strathmore, Tulare co. Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Sweit School District, Madera co.Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Sweetwater, San Diego co. Sweetwater School District, Monterey co.		
co.Sweat Flower School District, MaderaStratford, Kings co.Sweet Flower School District, MaderaStrathmore, Tulare co.Sweetwater, San Diego co.Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino coSweetwater School District, MontereyStrawberry Park, Los Angeles co.co.		
Stratford, Kings co.co.Strathmore, Tulare co.Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino coStrawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Sweetwater, San Diego co.Sweetwater School District, Montereyco.	, *	
Strathmore, Tulare co.Sweetwater, San Diego co.Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino coSweetwater School District, MontereyStrawberry Park, Los Angeles co.co.		
Strawberry Flats, San Bernardino co Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co.Sweetwater School District, Monterey co.		
Strawberry Park, Los Angeles co. co.		
Switzer's Camp, Los Angeles co.		
	Strickland, hos Aligeres co.	Switzer's Gamp, 108 Angeles co.

Sycamore, Colusa co.	Thorn, Humboldt co.
Sycamore School District, Contra Costa	Thornton, San Joaquin co.
	Thousand Oaks, Alameda co.
co.	Thousand Oaks, Ventura co.
Sylvan, Sacramento co.	Three Rivers, Tulare co.
Table Bluff School District, Humboldt	
CO.	Tierra Bonita, Los Angeles co
Table Rock, Siskiyou co.	Tierra Buena School District, Sutter
Taft, Kern co.	co.
Tajiguas, Santa Barbara co.	Timber School District, Ventura co.
Talmage, Mendocino co.	Tipton, Tulare co.
Tank Farm, Contra Costa co.	Tobin, San Mateo co.
Tassajara School District, Contra	Todd School District, San Bernardino
Costa co.	co.
Taurusa School District, Tulare co.	Tokay Colony, San Joaquin co.
Taylor School District, Plumas co.	
Taylorsville, Plumas co.	Toland School District, Solano co.
Teague School District, Fresno co.	Tolenas School District, Solano co.
	Tollhouse, Fresno co.
Tecate School District, San Diego co.	Toltec School District, Kern co.
Tecolote School District, Santa Bar-	Tomales, Marin co.
bara co. Tecopa, Inyo co.	Topanga, Los Angeles co.
	Torrance, Los Angeles co.
Tegner, Stanislaus co.	Torrey, Ventura co.
Tehachapi, Kern co.	Town of Temple, Los Angeles co.
Teilman School District, Fresno co.	Townsend School District, Alameda co.
Tejon Indian Reservation School Dis-	Townsend School District, Tulare co.
trict. Kern co.	Trabuco School District, Orange co.
Tejon Ranch, Kern co.	Tracy, San Joaquin co.
Temecula Union School District, Riv-	Tranquillity, Fresno co.
erside co.	Traver, Tulare co.
Temescal Joint School District, Ven-	Tremont School District, Solano co.
tura co.	
Temperance School District, Fresno co.	Tres Pinos, San Benito co.
Temple, Los Angeles co.	Trifolium School District, Imperial co.
Templeton, San Luis Obispo co.	Trigo School District, Madera co.
Tenaja School District, San Diego co.	Trinidad, Humboldt co.
Tennant, Siskiyou co.	Trinity Center, Trinity co.
	Trona, San Bernardino co.
Tennyson School District, Alameda co.	Truckee, Nevada co.
Tepusquet School District, Santa Bar-	Trujillo School District, Riverside co.
bara co.	Tucker, Napa co.
Terminous School District, San Joa-	Tujunga, Los Angeles co.
quin co.	Tulare, Tulare co.
Termo, Lassen co.	Tulare Co. Kiddie Kamp, Tulare co.
Terra Bella, Tulare co.	Tunis, San Mateo co.
Terrace Union School District, San	Tuolumne, Tuolumne co.
Bernardino co.	Turlock, Stanislaus co.
Terry School District, Fresno co.	Turner School District, San Joaquin
Thalheim School District, Stanislaus	
co.	Tuttle School District, Merced co.
Tharsa School District, Madera co.	Tuttletown, Tuolumne co.
The Pines, Madera co.	
Thermal, Riverside co.	Twain, Plumas co.
	Tweedy, Los Angeles co.
Thermal School District, Tulare co	Twenty-Nine Falms School District,
Thermalito, Butte co.	San Bernardino co.
Thomas, Siskiyou co.	Twin Cities, Sacramento co.
3-34984	

Twin Lakes, Santa Cruz co.	Valley View School District, Santa
Twin Oaks School District, San Diego	
C0.	Van Allen School District, San Joa-
Ukiah, Mendocino co.	quin co.
Ulmar, Alameda co.	Vandalia School District, Tulare co.
Union, San Benito co.	Vasco School District, Contra Costa co.
Union Ave. School District, Kern co.	Vaughn School District, Kern co.
Union Mattole School District, Hum-	Venice, Los Angeles co.
boldt co.	Venice Hill, Tulare co.
Union School District, Amador co.	Venice School District, San Joaquin co.
Union School District, Butte co.	Ventura, Ventura co.
Union School District, Glenn co.	Verde School District, Imperial co.
Union School District, Inyo co.	Verde School District, San Luis Obispo
Union School District, Plumas co.	CO.
Union School District, Sacramento co.	Veritas School District, San Joaquin
Union School District, San Luis Obispo	Co.
co. Union School District Santa Clara co.	Vernalis, San Joaquin co. Vernon, Los Angeles co.
Union School District, Santa Clara co. Union School District, Solano co.	Vernon School District, Sutter co.
Union School District, Stanislaus co.	Veterans' Home, Napa co.
Union School District, Tulare co.	Victor School District, San Bernardino
Union School District, Yolo co.	co.
U. S. Experiment Farm, Kern co.	Victor School District, San Joaquin co.
U. S. Forest Supervisor, Monterev co.	Victorville, San Bernardino co.
U. S. Public Health Service Hospital,	Vidal, San Bernardino co.
San Mateo co.	Viejas School District, San Diego co.
U. S. Veterans Bureau, San Joaquin	Vina, Tehama co.
co.	Vincent School District, Merced co.
University Colony School District,	Vincent School District, Tulare co.
Fresno co.	Vine Hill School District, Contra Costa
Upham, Butte co.	CO.
Upland, San Bernardino co. Upper Lake, Lake co.	Vine Hill School District, Santa Cruz
Upper Mattole School District, Hum-	co. Vineland School District, Kern co.
boldt co.	Vineland School District, Kern co.
Upper Pope, Napa co.	Vineyard School District, Merced co.
Uvas School District, Santa Clara co.	Vineyard School District, Monterey co.
Vaca Valley School District, Solano co.	Vineyard School District, San Benito
Vacaville, Solano co.	co.
Valencia School District, Santa Cruz	Vinland School District, Fresno co.
co.	Vinton, Plumas co.
Valle Vista, Alameda co.	Visalia, Tulare co.
Vallecitos School District, San Diego	Vista, San Diego co.
co.	Volcano, Amador co.
Vallejo, Solano co.	Volta, Merced co.
Valley, San Bernardino co. Valley Center, San Diego co.	Voltaire, Los Angeles co.
Valley Center, San Diego co. Valley Center School District, River-	Vorden, Sacramento co.
side co.	Waddington, Humboldt co.
Valley Home, Stanislaus co.	Wahtoke School District, Fresno co. Walker Mine, Plumas co.
Valley School District, Inyo co.	Walkers Basin School District, Kern
Valley School District, San Joaquin co.	co.
Valley View School District, Santa	Walnut, Los Angeles co.
Clara co.	Walnut Creek, Contra Costa co.

Walnut Grove, Sacramento co.	West Athens, Los Angeles co.
Walnut Grove School District, Glenn	West Bishop School District, Inyo co.
co.	West Butte School District, Sutter co.
Walnut Grove School District, Tulare	West Covina, Los Angeles co.
co.	West Elizabeth Lake, Los Angeles co.
Walnut School District, Fresno co.	West Fallbrook Union School District,
Ward's Ferry, Tuolumne co.	San Diego co. West Clapp Butta co
Warm Springs, Alameda co.	West Glenn, Butte co. Westland, Los Angeles co.
Warm Springs, San Bernardino co.	Westley, Stanislaus co.
Warner School District, San Diego co.	West Liberty, Butte co.
Warren Creek School District, Hum-	West Liberty, Butte co. Westminster, Orange co.
boldt co. Wasco, Kern co.	Westminister, Orange co. Westmoreland, Imperial co.
	Weston School District, San Joaquin
Washington, Sacramento co.	co.
Washington, Santa Barbara co. Washington Colony School District,	Weston School District, Tulare co.
Fresno co.	West Park School District, Fresno co.
Washington School District, Lassen co.	West Side, Fresno co.
Washington School District, Madera	West Side, San Benito co.
Co.	Westside School District, Imperial co.
Washington School District, Merced co.	Westside School District, Modoc co.
Washington School District, San Luis	Westwood, Lassen co.
Obispo co.	Wheatland, Yuba co.
Washington School District, Stanislaus	Wheatland School District, San Joaquin
co.	co.
Washington School District, Yolo co.	Wheatland School District, Tulare co.
Washington Union School District,	Wheeler Ridge, Kern co.
Monterey co.	Whisman School District, Santa Clara
Wasioja, Santa Barbara co.	co.
Waterdale, Los Angeles co.	White Cottages, Napa co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber-	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts. Los Angeles co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildomar, Riverside co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts. Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildomar, Riverside co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildomar, Riverside co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildomar, Riverside co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildomar, Riverside co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Wats, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co. Weaverville, Trinity co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildomar, Riverside co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co. Weaverville, Trinity co. Webster, Fresno co.	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildomar, Riverside co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co. Wildwood School District, Kern co.
 Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Bernardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co. Webster, Fresno co. Webster School District, Madera co. 	Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildomar, Riverside co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co. Williams, Colusa co. Williams, Creek School District, Hum-
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co. Weaverville, Trinity co. Webster, Fresno co. Webster School District, Madera co. Weed, Siskiyou co.	 Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co. Williams, Colusa co. Williams Creek School District, Humboldt co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co. Weaverville, Trinity co. Webster, Fresno co. Webster School District, Madera co. Weed, Siskiyou co. Weed Patch, Kern co.	 Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co. Williams, Colusa co. Williams Creek School District, Humboldt co. Williams Creek School District, Humboldt co. Williams, Mendocino co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co. Weaverville, Trinity co. Webster. Fresno co. Webster. School District, Madera co. Weed, Siskiyou co. Weed Patch, Kern co. Weimar, Placer co.	 Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whither, Los Angeles co. Wildbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co. Williams, Colusa co. Williams Creek School District, Humboldt co. Willits, Mendocino co. Willow Creek, San Benito co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co. Weaverville, Trinity co. Webster, Fresno co. Webster School District, Madera co. Weed, Siskiyou co. Weed Patch, Kern co.	 Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co. Williams, Colusa co. Williams Creek School District, Humboldt co. Williams Creek, San Benito co. Willow Creek, Siskiyou co.
 Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Bernardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Watts. Los Angeles co. Watts. Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co. Weaverville, Trinity co. Webster. Fresno co. Webster School District, Madera co. Weed, Siskiyou co. Weed Patch, Kern co. Weitchpec School District, Humboldt 	 Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whither, Los Angeles co. Wildbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co. Williams, Colusa co. Williams Creek School District, Humboldt co. Willits, Mendocino co. Willow Creek, San Benito co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Wats, Los Angeles co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, San Joaquin co. Webster, Fresno co. Webster, Fresno co. Webster, Fresno co. Weed, Siskiyou co. Weed, Siskiyou co. Weed Patch, Kern co. Weimar, Placer co. Weitchpec School District, Humboldt Co.	 Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whither, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co. Williams, Colusa co. Williams Creek School District, Humboldt co. Willix, Mendocino co. Willow Creek, Siskiyou co. Willow Creek School District, Humboldt co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Wats, Los Angeles co. Watts, Los Angeles co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co. Weebster, Fresno co. Webster, Fresno co. Webster School District, Madera co. Weed, Siskiyou co. Weed, Siskiyou co. Weimar, Placer co. Weitchpec School District, Humboldt co. Welcome School District, Tulare co.	 Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wilbur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co. Williams, Colusa co. Williams Creek School District, Humboldt co. Willix, Mendocino co. Willow Creek, San Benito co. Willow Creek School District, Humboldt co.
Waterford, Stanislaus co. Waterloo, San Joaquin co. Waterman, Amador co. Waterman School District, San Ber- nardino co. Watsonville, Santa Cruz co. Wats. Los Angeles co. Watts. Los Angeles co. Waukena, Tulare co. Waverly School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, San Joaquin co. Wayne School District, Kings co. Webster, Fresno co. Webster School District, Madera co. Weed, Siskiyou co. Weed Patch, Kern co. Weitchpee School District, Humboldt co. Welcome School District, Tulare co. Wendel, Lassen co.	 Whitethorn School District, Humboldt co. Whitmer School District, Merced co. Whittier, Los Angeles co. Wildur Springs, Colusa co. Wilder School District, Humboldt co. Wildwood Joint School District, Colusa co. Wildwood Joint School District, Yolo co. Wildwood School District, Kern co. Williams, Colusa co. Williams Creek School District, Humboldt co. Willow Creek, Siskiyou co. Willow Creek School District, Humboldt co.

Willow Creek School District, Plumas co. Willow Glen School District, Santa Clara co. Willow Grove, San Benito co. Willow Grove School District, Kings co. Willow School District, Tulare co.	Woodbridge, San Joaquin co. Woodcrest, Los Angeles co. Wooden Valley School District, Napa co. Woodlake, Tulare co. Woodland, Yolo co. Woodland Prairie, Yolo co. Woods School District, San Joaquin co.
Willow Slough, Yolo co. Willow Spring School District, Solano co. Willow Spring School District, Yolo co. Willow Springs, Kern co.	Woodville, Tulare co. Woody, Kern co. Worth School District, Tulare co. Worthington School District, Humboldt
 Willow Spring School District, Yolo co. Willow Springs, Kern co. Willow Springs School District, Amador co. Willow Springs School District, Contra Costa co. Willow Springs School District, Contra Costa co. Willows, Glenn co. Willows, Glenn co. Wilson Inn, Napa co. Wilson School District, Sacramento co. Wilson School District, Sutter co. Wilson School District, Tulare co. Wilsona, Los Angeles co. Wilton, Sacramento co. Winchester, Riverside co. Windsor School District, Tulare co. Windsor School District, Sutter co. Windsor School District, Sutter co. Winship School District, Sutter co. Winter School District, Modoc co. Winterhaven School District, Imperial co. 	 co. Wright Tract, San Joaquin co. Wrights, Santa Clara co. Wurr, San Mateo co. Wyandotte, Butte co. Wynola, San Diego co. Yager School District, Humboldt co. Yankee Hill, Butte co. Yerba Buena School District, Ventura co. Yermo, San Bernardino co. Yettem, Tulare co. Ynez School District, Santa Barbara co. Yolo, Yolo co. Yorba Linda, Orange co. Yorba School District, Orange co. Yosemite, Mariposa co. Youd School District, Kings co.
 Winters, Yolo co. Winton, Merced co. Witch Creek, San Diego co. Wolfskill School District, Solano co. Woll School District, Monterey co. Wolters School District, Fresno co. W. R. C. Home, Santa Clara co. Wood Colony, Stanislaus co. 	Yount School District, Napa co. Yountville, Napa co. Yreka, Siskiyou co. Yuba City, Sutter co. Yuba School District, Sutter co. Yucaipa, San Bernardino co. Zayante, Santa Cruz co. Zenia, Trinity co.

CALIFORNIA.

Area, 158,297 sq. miles. Second in size among the states. Population, 3,426,536. Assessed valuation, \$6,661,409,392. Number of counties, 58.

ALAMEDA COUNTY.

(Third class.)

County seat, Oakland.

Area, 840 sq. mi, Pop. 344,127. Assessed valuation \$374,469,952 (taxable for county \$329,912,967).

ALAMEDA CO. FREE LIBRARY, OAKLAND. Miss Mary Barmby, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 26, 1910, under contract section. Started Nov. 1, 1910; est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, July, 1918. Includes entire county Berkeley and Oakland. Annual income 1923-24, \$46,232.27 (from taxation \$32,-000; from school districts having joined \$10,400; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$832.27; from other sources \$3000). Total payments \$46,070.46. Bal. July 1, 1924. \$161.81. 50 employees: 7 in office; 43 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Hall of Records. Total branches 87, as follows: community 38—California Girls' Training Home (r. r.) in Alameda, Al-bany (r. r.), Altamont (r. r.), Alvarado (r. r.), Alviso (r. r.), Arroyo (r. r.), California Salt Works (r. r.), Castro Hill (r. r.), Centerville (r. r.), Continental Salt Works (r. r.), Decoto (r. r.), Del Valle (r. r.), Dublin (r. r.), Emeryville (r. r.), Farmers' (r. r.) and Public Li-brary (r. r.) in Hayward, Hayward Heath (r. r.), Irvington (r. r.), Liver-more Public Library (r. r.), Mission San Jose (r. r.), Mount Eden (r. r.), Newark (r. r.), Niles (r. r.), Alameda Co. Jail and Alameda Co. Medical Society (r. r.) in Oakland, Pleasanton (r. r.), Ramona (r. r.), Russell (r. r.), San Leandro Pubfollows : community 38-California Girls' (r. r.), Russell (r. r.), San Leandro Pub-lic Library (r. r.), Alameda Co. In-firmary (r. r.), and Alameda Co. Infirmary Nurses in San Leandro, San Lorenzo (r. r.), Standard Oil, Sunol (r. r.), Thousand Oaks (r. r.), Ulmar, Valle Vista, Warm Springs (r. r.); active school districts that have joined 37 (including 3 dists, with 2 branches, 1 dist, with 3 branches and 1 dist, with 7 branches)—Albany (incl. Marin), Alvarado, Alviso, Antone, Castro Valley, Centerville, Decoto, Eden Vale, Emeryville (incl. Emeryville annex), Green, Hay-ward (incl. Fairview, First St., Hayward Grammar, John Gamble, Orchard Ave., Pacific Primary), Independent, Inman, Irvington, Lincoln, Livermore, Midway, Mission San Jose, Mocho, Mount Eden, Mountain House, Mowry's Landing, Mur-BRARY AND BRANCH, ALAMEDA CO. FREE

ALAMEDA CO.—Continued.

ray. Newark, Niles, Palomares, Pleasan-ton, Redwood, Russell, San Leandro (incl. (a) Schools, San Lorenzo (incl. Schools), Stony Brook, Sunol, Tennyson, Town-send, Valle Vista, Warm Springs; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library (r. r.) in Oakland. 1333 periodicals (all (r. r.) in Oakland. 1555 periodicals (an for circulation) rec'd r e g u l a r l y: 817 newspapers; 516 mags. Distributed: 58 to effice; 1275 to branches.

Total books, etc. 103,168 : books 85,725 ; pamphlets 493; maps 318; prints and postals 4863; slides 366; music records 638; music sheets 365; stereographs 10,-210; charts 85; globes 100; planetariums 5. Added 15,517: books 13,768 (purchase 13,666, gift or exchange 102); pamphlets 140; maps 136; prints and postals 346; music records 112; music sheets 99; stereographs 835; charts 33; globes 43; planetariums 5. Withdrawn 5588: books 5560 (lost 211, discarded 5349); maps 1; slides 4; music records 23. Books rep'd 5167: reb'd 13. Cardholders 18,885. Added 2880; cancelled 12. Circulation 202,396: books 179,101; periodicals 21,-073; other material 2222. Vols. loaned to other libs. 3; borrowed from other libs. 1047 (all from State Library). 1804 shipments (26,037 items: 23,815 books; 2222 other material) were sent to branches. Of these 11.447 were supplementary books. 15,158 special requests.

During the year 256 visits were made to 68 branches. 405 visits were made to headquarters by 119 custodians. 3 branches were established. 1 branch was discontinued (Ulmar).

Our Standard Oil Branch was reopened and we are now furnishing reference books to the men through the main office.

Five students from the University of California Department of Library Science received instruction and did their practice work in the county library headquarters.

ALAMEDA CO, LAW LIBRARY, OAKLAND. Miss Eloise B. Cushing, Lib'n. Est. 1891. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. 2 employees. Open daily : week days 9 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sun. 10 a.m. to 4 p.m. Located in courthouse. Library trustees annual meeting first Tues, in January.

Total vols. a. 16,841.

LIBRARY. Miss Daisy Furscott, Lib'n. Est. Jan. 1915. Annual income 1923–24, \$2582 (from Alameda Co. Free Library \$300; from Public Health Center of Alameda Co. \$1500; from Alameda Co. Medical Ass'n \$782). 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Public Health Center of Alameda Co., 31st and Grove sts. 68 mags. rec'd regularly. Library trustees meeting every three months.

Total books, etc. 5983: books 5263; pamphlets 210; reprints 50; charts 5; other material 455. Added 987: books 267 (purchase 65, gift or exchange 80, binding 122); pamphlets 210; reprints 50; charts 5; other material 455. Books lost 4. Circulation 1936: books 556; periodicals 1260; other material 120. Vols. loaned to other libs. 15; borrowed from other libs. 144.

Being a medical library it is used more as a reference library and much material is looked up for the doctors.

ALAMEDA CO, TEACHERS' LIBRARY AND BRANCH, ALAMEDA CO, FREE LIBRARY, OAKLAND, David Martin, Co, Supt. Est. 1889. Joined County Free Library. Income 1923-24, 8841, from ½ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Located in Hall of Records. Open Mon, to Fri, 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m.

Teachers employed 2545: elem. 1663; high 882. Active school districts: elem. 43 (incl. 1 jt.): high 7 (36 high schools): city 4; union. 3. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$38,457.76; high \$25,436.09. Vols. in schools: elem. 139,431; high 125,628.

Alameda.

\$\|ALAMEDA F R E E PUBLIC 'LIBRARY. M'rs Marcella H. Krauth, Lib'n. Est. 1877: as F. P. 1879. Annual income 1923-24. \$32,709.97 (from taxation \$31,-430.63. library tax being .1022 m. on the collar; from other sources \$1279.34). Total payments \$23,792.08. Bal. July 1, 1924. \$8917.89. 11 employees: 8 in office; 3 in branch. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Lo cated in \$35,000 Carnegie bldg. Rents btanch bldg. 1 branch. 221 periodicals (22 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 30 newspapers; 189 mags.; 2 transactions. Library trustees monthly meeting last Tues.

Total books, etc. 66,320: books 63,757; pamphlets 2432; maps 11; globes 1; other material 119. Added 5430: books 4830 (purchase 4410, gift or exchange 360,

ALAMEDA CO.—Continued.

Alameda-Continued.

binding 60); pamphlets 599; maps 1. Withdrawn 2264: books 2216 (lost 66, discarded 2150); pamphlets 20; maps 28. Cardholders 24,830. Added 3349; cancelled 848. Circulation 253,026 (from main library 204,664, from branch 48,-362): books 246,859; periodicals 5685; other material 482. Vols. loaned to other libs. 1; vols. borrowed from other libs. 37 (all from State Library).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Theodora Larsen, library assistent, is giving talks on "How to use the library" to the pupils of the high school and the higher grades of the grammar schools. The classes meet in the library. Also, Miss Helen McGlew, children's librarian, is speaking to the lower grade children of the schools. Her talks are intended to interest the younger children in books. Included in these talks are short summaries of the best books.

Slides advertising the library have been displayed in our leading theatre.

MARCELLA H. KRAUTH, Lib'n.

ACADEMY OF NOTRE DAME LIBRARY, Sister M. Editha, Prin. Est. 1881, 16 mags, and 4 newspapers ree'd regularly.

Total vols, 4878. Added 27. Teachers 6; pupils 58.

ALAMEDA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Dr G. C. Thompson, Prin. Elizabeth Dorn, Lib'n. Est. 1875. 30 mags. and 20 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 4137. Added 842: purchase 392; gift 450. Teachers 64; pupils 1380.

Berkeley.

[\$BERKELEY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Carleton B. Joeckel, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 1:293; as F. P. Dec. 1895. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$31.328.99. Annual income 1923-24, \$96,338.61 (from taxation \$89,722.53, library tax being 1.3 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$6616.08). Total payments \$79,323.19. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$48,344.41. 39 employees: 25 in main library; 14 in branches. Open daily except Thanksgiving and Christmas; week days 9 a.m. to 9.30 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$40,000 Carnegie bldg. Purchasing West Berkeley Branch bldg. (cost \$14,000, site \$3200) under lease contract; Claremont Branch bldg. being erected. 28 branches, of which 6 have reading rooms and 22 are in schools. 604 periodicals (all for circulation) ree'd

Berkeley—Continued.

regularly, Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues,

Total books, etc. 128,466: books 105,404: pamphlets 8860; prints 14,202, Added 12,250: books 9880 (purchase 8632, gift or exchange 828, binding 420); pamphlets 1560; prints 810. Withdrawn 3214: books 2041 (lost 305, discarded 1736): pamphlets 1200. Books rep'd 3806: reb'd 4475. Cardholders 28,295. Added 14,277; cancelled 14,018. Circulation 605,021 (from main library 330,-244, from b r a n c h e s 274,777): books 578,538: periodicals 21,138; other material 5345. Vols, borrowed from other libs, 233 (214 from State Library).

During the year monthly bulletins and miscellaneous booklists have been issued.

Three lessons were given to all pupils in Burbank Junior High School on use of books and libraries.

*ANNA HEAD SCHOOL LIBRARY. Miss Mary Elizabeth Wilson, Prin. Est. 1883. Open for students of school only all day apd evening until 9 o'clock. Located at 2538 Channing Way. 16 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1991. Added 142 by purchase. Teachers 28; pupils 270.

BERKELEY HIGH SCHOOL LABRARY, C. L. Biedenbach, Prin, Mrs Gertrude II, Mathewson, Lib'n, Est, 1883, Open 5 days, 8 hrs, each day, 35 mags, ree'd regularly,

Total vols. a. 6500. Teachers a. 90; pupils a. 2000.

Annual report not rec'd.

*CALIFORNIA SCHOOL FOR THE BLIND (EMBOSSED BCOK) LIBRARY, R. S. French, Prin. Open daily during school hours. 12 embossed magazines rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000. Added 300. Teachers 14; pupils 100.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

I am sorry to have to report that our library is in the transition state and that our book space is so limited that we must discard at once all books which are not in class use. It is, therefore, practically impossible to report on the number of books, and since we have no one person in charge of the library, even the accessions can not be listed.

- 6

ALAMEDA CO.—Continued.

Berkeley-Continued.

I hope that this may be remedied next year by the appointment of a teacher who will have partial charge of the library and in addition carry certain teaching work in the grades.

R. S. FRENCH, Prin.

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF LIBRARY. Wm. A. Caldwell, Prin. Mrs Chas. S. Perry, Lib'n. Est. a. 1860, destroyed 1875 and re-est. 1879.

Total vols. a. 5000. Teachers a. 38. Annual report not rec'd.

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL OF ARTS AND CRAFTS LIBRARY. Frederick H. Meyer, Director. Est. June, 1907. 1 employee. Open to students for reference only, week days 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located 2119 Allston way. 30 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1700, Teachers 23; pupils 400.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Eleanor Stout, for the past ten vears librarian of the California School of Arts and Crafts Library, dropped dead from heart disease last evening as she was about to board a street car at University and Shattuck avenues, Berkeley,---San Francisco Bulletin, Jl 10

EDISON JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, Est. Nov. 13, 1922. Located between Oregon and Russell sts. west of Grove. No further information rec'd.

GARFIELD JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, D. L. Hennessey, Prin, Elizabeth I. Patton, Lib'n, Est. school Jan, 1910; lib. Feb. 21, 1922. 32 mags, and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2000. Added 375: purchase 325; gift 50. Teachers 36; pupils 900. Circulation 450 daily.

GEOGRAPHICAL SOCIETY OF THE PACIFIC LIBRARY, R. S. Holway, Asst. Sec. Est. March 16, 1881. Destroyed April, 1906 (over C00 vols, and 2000 charts and maps). Re-est. immediately. Society guiescent. Located 27. Library bldg., University of California.

MISS HEAD'S SCHOOL LIBRARY. See Anna Head School Library.

NEWMAN CLUE LIBRARY, W. H. Conlin, Chairman Library Committee.

Total vols. a. 4674.

Annual report not rec"d.

Berkeley-Continued.

PACIFIC SCHOOL OF RELIGION LIBBARY. Dr Herman F. Swortz, Pres. Geo. T. Tolson, Lib'n. Est. 1866. Supported by the Seminary for the use of its faculty and students, but open to public for reference daily except Sun. 8 a.m. to 10 p.m. Located in the Seminary bldg., 2223 Atherton st. \$100,000 Holbrook Memorial library bldg. being planned. 60 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 16,843.

Annual report not rec'd.

PACIFIC UNITABIAN SCHOOL FOR THE MINISTRY LIBRARY. William S. Morgan, Acting Dean. Miss Lillian Burt, Lib'n. Est. 1904. Open to students, and to others by permission, Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.: Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in \$40,000 library bldg., 2400 Allston way.

Total vols. 16,000.

SAN FRANCISCO MICROSCOPICAL SO-CIETY LIBRARY, Est. 1872. Permanently deposited in University of California Library since 1906.

Total vols. a. 1700.

###UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA LI-BRARY. W. W. Campbell, Pres. J. C. Rowell, Lib'n Emeritus; Harold L. Levpp, Lib'n. Est. 1868. 42 employees. Open to public for reference and to students daily; week days 8 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sun. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Owns #1,000,000 Doe memorial library bldg. 6 branches. a. 8000 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 544,449. Added 33,190. Circulation 889,788.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, ACADEMY OF PACIFIC COAST HISTORY, BANCROFT L'BTARY. Herbert E. Bolton, Director. IV. J. Priestly, Lib'n: Est. 1905. 8 emplovees. Open to public daily: week days 8 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sun. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in Doe memorial library bldg. 20 mags. 50 newspapers and 10 transaction: rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc. a. 75,775; books a. 65,775; manuscripts a. 10,000.

Annual report not rec'd.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, LAW LI-BRARY. Rosamond Parma, Lib'n. Est. 1911. 4 employees. Open daily: week days 8 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sun. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in Boalt Hall. 282 period'cals (incl. citators, bar assoc. repts., advance sheets and mags.) rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 30,000.

Annual report not rec'd.

ALAMEDA CO.—Continued.

Berkeley-Continued.

WASHINGTON LOWER HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. H. Glessner, Prin. Est. Jan. 1910. Located cor. Grove st. and Bancroft way. 12 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 670. Teachers a. 28; pupils a. 811.

Annual report not rec'd.

*WELLESLEY SCHOOL LIBRARY. Adelaide Smith, Prin. Est. 1874 as Snell Seminary Library. Located in school bldg., 2429 Channing way. 4 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 500. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 15.

Annual report not rec'd.

Centerville.

WASHINGTON HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. G. W. Wright, Prin. Est. 1892, 12 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers a. 11; pupils a. 225.

Annual report not rec'd.

Hayward.

HAYWARD [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, ALAMEDA CO, FREE LI-BRARY, Mrs Elizabeth Creehman, Lib'n, Est, as F. P. 1898; became branch April 18, 1911. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1897.19. Annual income 1923–24, \$3526.50 (from taxation \$3262.45, library tax being 10 m, on the dollar; from other sources \$264.05). Total payments \$3606.27. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1817.42. 3 employees. Open to public daily except Sun, and holidays 10 a.in, to 12 m., 1.30 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 28 periodicals rec'd regularly; 8 newspapers; 20 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting last Mon.

Total books, etc. 4303: books 3981; pamphlets 312; maps 6. Added 188: books 175 (purchase 173, gift or exchange 2); pamphlets 12; maps 1. Withdrawn 125: books 25 (lost 3, discarded 22); pamphlets 100. Books rep'd 2000. Cardholders 3313. Added 305; cancelled 20. Circulation 8937.

HAYWARD UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BBARY. Fréderic Perley Johnson, Prin. Ruth G. Kellogg, Lib'n. Est. 1892. 25 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2200. Teachers a. 20; pupils a. 350.

Annual report not rec'd.

Livermore.

LIVERMORE FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY AND BRANCH, ALAMEDA CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Myrtle E. Harp, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 1896; as F. P. Sept. 1901; branch est. Aug. 22, 1911. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$554.97. Annual income 1923-24, \$2152.07 (from taxation \$2134.07, library tax being .15 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$18). Total payments \$1523.02. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1184.02. 2 employees. Open to public daily except Sun. 11 a.m. to 12 m., 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. Value of building and site \$25,000. 44 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly; 5 newspapers; 39 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting last Mon.

Total vols. 4795. Added 85: purchase 72; gift or exchange 12; binding 1. Lost 5; discarded 11; rep'd 80; reb'd 82. Cardholders 1640. Added 207; cancelled 88. Circulation 13.294: books 11,311; periodicals 1983. Vols. loaned to other libs. 14; borrowed from other libs. 97 (65 from State Library).

LIVERMORE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, Herbert Lee, Prin. Est. 1892. Open to students 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 4 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1724. Added 84 by purchase. Teachers 8; pupils 130. Circulation 2600.

Mills College. See Oakland.

Mission San Jose.

DOMINICAN NORMAL SCHOOL LIBRARY. No further information rec'd.

Oakland.

\$\$"OAKLAND FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY. Chas. S. Greene, Lib'n. Est. 1868; as F. P. 1878. Annual income 1923-24. \$169,657.08 (from taxation \$160,000; from Piedmont contract \$1500; from other sources \$8157.08). Total payments \$168,786.81. Bal. July 1. 1924, \$870.77. 121 employees: 57 in main library; 14 in muscum and Snow Collection; 48 in branch dept, and branches; 2 in art gallery. Open daily except Sun. and holidavs, 9 a.w. to 9 p.m. Located in \$93,627 Carnegie bldg. (\$50,000 from Carnegie) and owns \$35,000 Carnegie Alden, Golden Gate, Melrose and 23d Ave, branch bldgs. Main bldg, 14th st., S.W. cor, Grove. 19 branches, of which 13 have reading rooms. 1250 periodicals (730 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 188 pewspapers; 1062 mags. Distributed: 474 to main library; 776 to branches. Library trustees monthly meeting Mon. after first Thurs.

ALAMEDA CO.—Continued.

Oakland-Continued.

Total books, etc. 297,089: books 141,-053; pamphlets 54,718; maps 3276; prints, pictures and clippings 70,611; stereographs 3715; posters 749; music sheets 22,967. Added 16,134 : books 5682 (purchase 4687, gift 688, binding 271, exchange 18, transfer 18); pamphlets 5676; maps 80; prints, pictures and clippings 4691; posters 5. Withdrawn 13.479: books 12,681 (lost or discarded 7527, transfers 40, missing 5114); pamphlets 535; stereographs 263. Books rep'd 26,904; reb'd 5963. Cardholders 58,483. Added 28,781; cancelled 27,435. Circulation 1,069,742 (from main library 323,-928, from branches 745,814): books 909,409; periodicals 83,473; music and pictures 76,860. Vols, borrowed from State Library 391.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The contract for binding for the fiscal year 1924–25 was awarded to Foster & Futernick Company, they being the only bidders.

A "40-hour week" instead of the regulation 42-hour week was allowed the Staff Iuring the period of the school vacation this summer. The public was allowed the privilege of taking extra books during this time, and these privileges were greatly appreciated by both staff and public.

The Librarian has appointed the following committees for the Staff for the six months beginning July 1, 1924: Program: Mr Greene, Chairman; Miss Hibberd, Miss Seaman. Staff Bulletin: Miss Thomas, Chairman: Miss Alexander, Miss E. Schaufler. The Staff Bulletin, published monthly since June, 1917, has been bound in two volumes up to and including December, 1923.

The appropriation for the fiscal year 1924–25, for the Library and Branches, including the Museums and Art Gallery, will amount to approximately \$168,950. This amount allows for no expansions and the greatest economy will have to be practiced to get through the year upon the amount allowed.

Miss Thelma R. Robinson, for several years the bookkeeper for the Library, resigned her position August 18 to attend the University of California. Miss Alice M. Gauge, who successfully passed the

[Oet., 1924

ALAMEDA CO.—Continued.

Oakland—Continued.

Civil Service Examination for Junior Bookkeeper, was appointed to fill the vacancy.

The September Staff Meeting was addressed by Mr Hamb and Mr Dwyer of the Municipal Civil Service Employees Association on the proposed pension plan for municipal employees, which will come up for vote of the people at the November election. While details of the pian have not been fully made, in general it will follow the system used in San Francisco.

Mr Sydney A. Mitchell gave an account of the A. L. A. meeting at Saratoga Springs at the September luncheon of the Oakland Library Council. Dr Wm. G. Eggleston, President of the Library Board, was elected Chairman for the ensuing year, vice Miss Eloise B. Cushing, Alameda County Law Librarian.

The Library loaned part of its collection of War Posters to the Committee in charge of the Defense Day Program for display in the Municipal Auditorium, and also exhibited some in the Library and Branches.

The lease for the Branch Department has been renewed for a term of three years. Since the burning of the Garfield School on September 10th, four primary classes have been using the auditorium and study room of the 23d Avenue Branch. The Union Street Station has been discontinued, as it has been ascertained that no one will be deprived of library privileges, since the Main Library and the West Oakland Branch will be accessible to library borrowers who live in this neighborhood. McChesney Station bas been reduced to three days a week from 3 to 5 p.m. instead of five days as heretofore.

The Sunday hours at the Museum, 1426 Oak Street have been changed to 1 to 5 p.m. instead of 2 to 6. The Council allowed \$42,500 in the budget toward the construction of the first unit of a building for the Snow Museum. Mr Snow is making plans for a large "Movie Ball" to be held Thanksgiving Eve in the Auditorium, the proceeds to go toward the construction of the building.

CHAS. S. GREENE, Lib'n.

ALAMEDA CO.—Continued.

Oakland-Continued.

ALAMEDA Co. free, law, medical and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Alameda Co.

ALEXANDER HAMILTON JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Miss Dorothy Clark, Lib'n.

No further information rec'd.

College of the Holy NAMES LI-BRARY, Sister M. Redempta, Prin. Est. 1886, Annual amt. spent for library a. \$450. For the use of its instructors and students. Open daily except Sun. 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in College bldg., 2054 Webster st. 10 mags. and 6 newspapers ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 6000. Teachers a. 25; pupils a. 200.

Annual report not rec'd.

"THE JOHN C. FREMONT HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. D. Brasefield, Prin. Margaret W. Smith, Lib'n. Est. school 1905; library 1914. Located at Foothill blvd. and 47th ave. 100 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 12,497. Added 655: purchase 604; gift 43; binding 8. Teachers 75; pupils 1593.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Mary Ives, Librarian of Fremont High School for seven years, resigned and is now in the Los Ang Jes Public Library. Miss Margaret W. Smith, who was in Santa Chara Co. Free Library last year, has taken Miss Ives' place.

MARGARET W. SMITH, Lib'n.

LAKEVIEW JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Miss Gertrude Feitag, in charge. Est. Oct. 1923.

Total vols. a. 200.

Annual report not rec'd.

LUIS DE CAMOES LIBRARY. Mrs Mary J. Gloria, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 1918. Located 1450 47th ave., Souza Bros. Hall.

This is a small library containing only Portuguese books, both fiction and history.

This Portuguese collection was begun by Mrs Gloria and now consists of about 500 volumes. It is for the Portuguese of the bay region, who pay nothing for borrowing.—S. F. Chronicle, Ag 10

MCCLYMONDS HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, W. A. Tenney, Prin. Mrs Helen Hathway White, Lib'n. Est. 1915. Open school days 8.20 to 11,30 a.m. and 12,15

Oakland-Continued.

to 3.30 p.m. Located on Myrtle st. near 26th. 44 mags, rec'd regularly,

Total vols, 2695. Added 362: purchase 358; binding 4. Teachers 40; pupils 600. Circulation 40.000.

*MILLS COLLEGE, MARGARET CARNEGIE LIBRARY. Aurelia Henry Reinhardt, Pres. Mrs Elizabeth Gray Potter, Lib'n, Est. 1865. 7 employees. Open to students and faculty daily: week days 8 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sun, 2.30 to 5.30 p.m. Located in Greater Oakland, Mills College P. O. Located in \$28,000 Carnegie bldg. 279 mags, and 15 newspapers rec'd regularly. Twatege annual meeting compresent Trustees annual meeting commencement,

Total vols. 32,316. Added 1208: purchase 604; gift 386; binding 218. Teachers 73; pupils 546.

OAKLAND DIRECTORY LIBRARY. Made up entirely of directories rec'd in exchange. 1 employee. Free to public for reference only. Open daily except Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located at 470 13th st.

Total vols. a. 1000.

Annual report not rec'd.

OAKLAND HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Chas. E. Keyes, Prin. Miss Hazel Levy, Lib'n. Est. 1869. 1 employee. Open to students of institution, school days 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located 12th and Jefferson sts. 48 mags, rec'd regularly.

Total vols, 15,858. Added 839. Teachers 67: pupils 1839. Circulation 17.884.

OAKLAND PUBLIC SCHOOL LIBRARY. Mrs Elizabeth S. Madison, Supervisor.

In Oakland, the school library system has been systematized into a regularly organized school department, with a director of school libraries acting in a supervisory capacity. Mrs Elizabeth S. Madison, in charge of the Teachers' Professional Library, is also supervisor of the school libraries.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The opening of the new term has brought three new school Librarians into the Oakland system.

Mrs Helen Hathway White has become Librarian of McClymonds High School, and is ensconced in her pleasant library room in the big new high school building. Mrs White is a graduate of the University of California Library Training

ALAMEDA CO.—Continued.

Oakland-Continued.

staff of Mills College. She is taking an enthusiastic interest in the library service which deals particularly with the industrial training and the technical shop work. We all feel that she will be a great asset to our school service.

Miss Margaret Smith is Librarian at Fremont High School during the absence of Miss Mary Ives who is on leave. Miss Smith is a University of California Library School graduate and has had interesting experience in the county library work. She has already won an enviable place for herself in the Fremont faculty.

Miss Dorothy Clark has become Librarian at Alexander Hamilton Junior High School. She is the first full time Junior High School Librarian to be employed in Oakland. She is also a graduate of the University of California Library School. Miss Clark has a most interesting career before her and has started out with the spirit which is bound to win.

A resume of the other school libraries in Oakland follows:

Oakland High School, Miss Hazel Levy, Librarian.

Recovert High and Junior High School, Miss Edna Browning, Librarian. Miss Browning was formerly of Oakland High School where her success was so marked that she was selected to plan and conduct the new library in the school which is considered the finest obtained from our 1919 School Bond Issue, Roosevelt High School also contains a Junior High School and therefore presents a problem of the combined high and junior high organization.

Miss Florence Baker, Librarian, Miss Editha Beckett, assistant, at Technical High School. The Technical High School Library was threatened by fire this summer so that the faculty and students have expressed renewed appreciation of their library equipment which gives such continuous service.

University High School Library, Miss Helen Price, Librarian, Miss Miltona Thwing, assistant. Miss Price became a member of the summer school faculty at Riverside this year and offered a particularly live and helpful course. This library is the training field, under Miss School and recently was a member of the Price, for certain parts of the University

Oakland-Continued.

of California work. Especially fine work in the preservation of pamphlet material has been done at this school, together with exceptionally beautiful work in mounting and preserving pictures that are particularly attractive to children and young people.

Woodrow Wilson Junior High School, Miss Lulu Shelton, Librarian. Miss Shelton was the first librarian in Oakland assigned to work in the Junior High School. She has built up her library work from situations where she gave only a few hours to the work to the place where she now gives practically the whole day to this service.

Prescott Junior High School Library, Miss Hazel Batchelor, Librarian, on half time assignment. The Junior High School library development is the chief undertaking in the library field in the Oakland schools this year.

The Americanization Library, for the use of naturalization classes and evening schools, formerly housed at Oakland High School, has been removed to become a section of the Teachers' Professional Library in the City Hall, under Mrs Elizabeth Madison, Librarian.

The Oakland Public Schools have issued this month in the form of a Superintendent's Bulletin a book list for Junior High Schools which correlates with the Oakland course of study. The issuance of such a list has been the chief aim of Mrs Madison for several years. The present Junior High School list under the various chairmen listed on page 5, will be expanded during the next year to include a list for high schools and elementary schools.

> Mrs Elizabeth Madison. Supervising Lib'n.

OAKLAND TECHNICAL HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, Philip M. Fisher, Prin. Florence M. Baker, Lib'n. Est. 1896. 2 employees. Open to students school days 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at 45th and Broadway. 77 mags, rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 13,736. Added 1200: purchase 1161; gift 15; binding 24. Teachers 107; pupils 2500. Circulation 390 daily.

*Piedmont. Miss Ransom and Miss Bridges School Lierary. Miss Marian

ALAMEDA CO.-Continued.

Oakland—Continued.

Ransom, Prin. Est. 1906. Located Hazel lane, Piedmont. 12 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2885. Teachers a. 30; pupils a. 170.

Annual report not rec'd.

*POLYTECHNIC COLLEGE OF ENGINEER-ING LIBRARY. W. W. Fogg, Prin. Est. 1910. Open daily 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. For use of students of institution only. Located at 13th and Madison sts. 5 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 550.

Annual report not rec'd.

PRESCOTT JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LA-BRARY. Miss Hazel Batchelor, Lib'n (on half time assignment).

No further information rec'd.

PUBLIC HEALTH LIBRARY. Marion H. Clark, Lib'n, Est. 1923. Located in Ethel Moore Memorial bldg. near Municipal Auditorium. Maintained by Public Health Center.

Total books, etc. a. 1362: books a. 362; pamphlets a. 1000.

Annual report not rec'd.

ROOSEVELT HIGH AND JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Miss Edna Browning, Lib'n. 21 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2425.

ST. MARY'S COLLEGE AND HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Brother Gregory, Pres Brother Clement, Lib'n. Est, 1863. Open daily for use of students. 24 mags. and 8 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 17,691. Teachers a. 35; pupils a. 487.

Annual report not rec'd.

*SWEDISH SOCIETY OF SAN FRANCISCO BRANCH LIBEARY. Chas. A. Blom, Corr, Sec., 525 Pacific ave., Alameda. Fredrik Westerholm, Lib'n. Est. a. Jan. 1, 1902. Open to members only, 2d and 4th Tues. of month from 8 to 10 p.m. Located in Castle Hall, 12th and Franklin sts.

Total vols. a. 400. Members a. 350.

Annual report not rec'd.

THEOSOPHICAL SOCIETY LIBRARY. Mrs Clara J. Rider, Lib'n. Est. 1908. Supported by lodge members. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 2 to 4 p.m. Located in Pacific bldg., 16th and Jefferson sts. 3 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 614. Members a. 84. Annual report not rec'd.

Oakland-Continued.

UNIVERSITY HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, F. H. Boren, Prin. Miss Helen L. Price, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 1, 1914. 3 employees. Open school days 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at 48th and Webster sts. 58 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 6422. Added 884 by purchase. Teachers 75; pupils 1250. Circulation 66,410.

WOODROW WILSON JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Miss Lulu Shelton, Lib'n. 3 mags, rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 11,085.

San Leandro.

\$SAN LEANDRO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, ALAMEDA CO. FREE LI-BRARY, Miss Mary Brown, Lib'n. Est. May 3, 1905; as F. P. Nov. 6, 1905; became branch Oct. 3, 1914. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$612.37. Annual income 1923– 24, \$2958.32 (from taxation \$2776.04, library tax being 6.5 m, on the dollar; from other sources \$182.28). Total payments \$2711.63. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$859.06. 3 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 10 a.m. to 12 m., 1.30 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$12,000 Carnegie bldg. 79 periodicals rec'd regularly; 9 newspapers; 45 mags.; 10 transactions; 15 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting second Thurs.

Total books, etc. 5559: books 4616; pamphlets 750: maps 30: manuscripts 12; stereographs 150; globes 1. Books added 392: purchase 376; gift or exchange 16. Lost 19; discarded 163; rep'd 1085; reb'd 24. Cardholders 1737. Added 942; cancelled 849. Circulation 24.690: books 20.500; periodicals 4190. Vols, loaned to other libs, 12.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mr F. A. Bricker has been appointed on the Library Board to succeed Mr W. O. Davies, resigned.

Miss Alice Wilkins has been conducting the "Story Hour" this year with an average of forty children in attendance.

The Americanization class under the direction of the local American Legion is being held regularly in the auditorium of the library building.

The librarian's salary has been raised. MARY BROWN, Lib'n.

ALPINE COUNTY.

(Fifty-eighth class.) County seat, Markleeville.

Area, 575 sq. mi. Pop. 243.

Assessed valuation \$\$96,878 (taxable for county \$720,842).

ALPINE CO. LAW LIBRARY, MARKLEE-VILLE. Fred S. Dunlap, Lib'n. Est. 1864. Located in courthouse.

Annual report not rec'd.

ALPINE CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, MARKLEEVILLE. Mrs Eugenia Bruns. (P. O. address Sheridan, Nev.), Co. Supt. Income 1923-24, \$2 from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fees for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$62.10. Located in courthouse.

Teachers employed 3: elem. 3; high 0. Active school districts: elem. 3; high 0. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$60.41; high 0. Vols. in schools: elem. 770; high 0.

Markleeville.

ALPINE Co. law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Alpine Co.

AMADOR COUNTY.

(Forty-fifth class.)

County seat, Jackson.

Area, 568 sq. mi. Pop. 7793.

Assessed valuation \$7,807,700 (taxable for county \$6,730,729).

AMADOR CO. FREE LIBRARY, JACKSON. Miss Frances M. Burket, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, May 5, 1919; work started Jan. 1, 1920. Includes entire county for tax and service. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$4574.90. Annual income 1923-24, \$4837.39 (from taxation \$1984.20, library tax being .3 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$1264.04; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$42; from other sources \$1547.15). Total payments \$5387.47. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$4024.82. 15 employees: 2 in office; 13 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri: 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in rented building known as the Spagnoli building. Total branches 37, as follows: community 15— Amador City, Antelope, Drytown, Electra, Grape Vine, Ione, Jackson (r. r.), Lancha Plana, Oleta, Pine Grove, Pioneer, Plymouth, Preston School of Industry, Sutter Creek, Volcano; active school districts that have joined 21—Amador City, Carbondale, Charleston, Clinton, Drytown, Enterprise, Grape Vine, Ione, Julian, Lancha Plana, Middle Bar, Oleta, Pigeon Creek, Pine Grove, Pioneer, Rancheria, Shenandoah, Spring Valley, Union, Vol-

[Oct., 1924

AMADOR CO.-Continued.

cano, Willow Springs; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Jackson. 98 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 72 mags.; 21 other serials. Distributed: 44 to office; 54 to branches.

Total books, etc. 10,679: books 8960; pamphlets 462; serials 21; maps 87; prints 256; music records 172; music sheets 5; stereographs 449; stereoscopes 20; charts 242; globes 5. Added 2425: books 1996 (purchase 1591, gift or exchange 405); pamphlets 125; serials 2; maps 36; music records 58; music sheets 2; charts 206. Withdrawn 335: books 324 (lost 162, discarded 162); serials 4; music records 6; stereographs 1. Books rep'd 344; reb'd 219. Cardholders 2937: headquarters 1045; branches 1892. Added 409: cancelled 123. Circulation 34.166 (from headquarters 14,067, from branches 20,099) : books 31,329; periodicals 2813; other material 24. Vols. loaned to other libs. 22; borrowed from other libs. 371 (368 from State Library). 411 shipments (6469 items: 5152 books; 1317 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 1646 were supplementary books. In addition 967 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 2849 special requests.

During the year 58 visits were made to 29 branches. 75 visits were made to headquarters by 20 custodians. 3 branches were established; 1 branch was discontinued (Antelope School District suspended).

Amador County cooperates in giving library service to the Weimar Sanatorium, Placer County.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The following school districts have joined the library during the past quarter: Buena Vista, Jackson, Milligan.

At the September meeting of the Board of Supervisors it was decided that the custodians of the various branch libraries in the county should be paid for their services from the county free library fund.

At the recent County Teacher's Institute, the county library had an exhibit of new professional books and other material for teachers. The Librarian was in attendance during the entire session and the plan proved very profitable to the teachers as well as to the library.

AMADOR CO.—Continued.

The tax rate for 1924–1925 is .4 of a mill on the dollar. This will bring in approximately \$2,692. In addition there was a .6 m. on the dollar tax levied for the new library building. This amounts to about \$4,038.

FRANCES M. BURKET, Lib'n.

AMADOR CO. LAW LIBRARY, JACKSON. William Going, Lib'n. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Open to public 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 704.

Annual report not rec'd.

AMADOR CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, JACK-SON. Mrs Sabra Greenhalgh, Co. Supt. Joined County Free Library. Income for 1923-24, \$27, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$26.

Teachers employed 69: elem. 50; high 19. Active school districts: elem. 33 (incl. 2 jt.); high: union 2; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$2254.36; high \$955.75. Vols. in schools: elem. 13,694; high 2640.

Buena Vista School Dist.

BUENA VISTA SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, AMADOR CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

lone.

IONE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. R. R. Davis, Prin. Est. June 1, 1902. 7 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Vols. added 13. Teachers 4; pupils 46.

Jackson.

AMADOR Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Amador Co.

JACKSON JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Thos. J. Terry, Prin. Est. Jan. 1912. 15 mags. and 5 newspapers ree'd regularly.

Total vols. 858. Added 100 (gift 60). Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 100.

JACKSON SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, AMA-DOR CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Milligan School Dist.

MHLLIGAN SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, AMADOR CO. FREE LIBRARY. was established during the quarter.

Sutter Creek.

SUTTER CREEK UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, J. A. Bryson, Prin. Est. July 1911. 12 mags. rec'd regularly. AMADOR CO .--- Continued.

Sutter Creek-Continued.

Total vols. 1200. Teachers 8; pupils a. 111.

Waterman.

PRESTON SCHOOL OF INDUSTRY LI-BRARY. O. H. Close, Supt. Mrs R. M. Halsey, Lib'n. Est. 1893. Open daily 1 to 4.30 p.m. Located in Administration bldg. 268 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 5919. Added by gift 1061. Circulation 12,252.

BUTTE COUNTY.

(Twenty-second class.)

County seat, Oroville.

Area, 1764 sq. mi. Pop. 30,030.

Assessed valuation \$45,178,756 (taxable for county \$36,680,773).

BUTTE CO. FREE LIBRARY, OROVILLE. Miss Blanche Chalfant, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law Sept. 3, 1913. Work began Nov. 1, 1913. Includes en-tire county for tax and service except Chico. Gridley is taxed by request and Biggs and Oroville joined under Sec. 3, Co. Teachers' Library joined also. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1604.89. Annual income 1923-24. \$17,654.13 (from taxation \$12,090.56, library tax being .4 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$3700; from other sources \$1863.57). \$3700; from other sources \$1863.57). Total payments \$18,941.98. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$317.04. 39 employees: 5 in office; 34 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Yaughan bldg, at Huntoon and High sts. Total branches 94, as follows: community 38—Bangor, Berry Creek, Biggs (r. r.), Brush Creek, Canyon Create, Canterville, Contral, Honse, Chico Creek, Centerville, Central House, Chico Vecino (r. r.), Clipper Mills, De Sabla, Durham (r. r.), East Gridley, Gridley (r. r.), Honcut, Humboldt Road, Hurleton, Hutchinson, Hutchinson Logging Camp. Las Plumas, Hutchinson Logging Camp. Las Plumas, Magalia, Meridian, Merrimac, Nelson, Nord, Oroville (r. r.) and main office in Oroville, Palermo, Paradise (r. r.), Pleasant Valley, Rich-vale, Rosedale, Stirling City, Thermalito, Upham, West Glenn, West Liberty, Wyan-dotte, Yankee Hill: active school districts that here, isimel C0 (57, actual) and that have joined 60 (55 school branches) -Atkins, Bangor, Berry Creek; Bidwell Bar, Big Bar, Big Bend, Biggs, Biggs High, Butte, Centerville, Central House, Clear Creek, Clipper Mills, Cohasset Union (Grafton and North Point Dists.), Concow, Dayton. De Sabla, Diamondville, Durham, East Gridley, Floral, Forest, Fruitvale, Gridley, Honcut, Kings, Kunkle, Lone Tree, Magalia, Manzanita,

BUTTE CO .- Continued.

Meridian, Messilla Valley, Mooretown, Morris Ravine, Mountain House, Mountain Springs, Nelson Union (Nelson and Rio Seco Dists.), Nimshew, Olive, Palermo, Parrott, Pleasant Valley, Richvale, Rio Bonito, River, Rock Creek, Rockefeller, Shasta Union ('Antelope, Clayton, Walnut, and Webster Dists.), Stirling City, Thermalito, Union, Upham, West Liberty, Wyandotte, Yankee Hill; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Oroville. 195 periodicals (191 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 4 newspapers; 191 mags. Distributed: 26 to office; 169 to branches.

Total books, etc. 57,496: books 48,651; pamphlets 2150; maps 687; music records 594 : stereographs 5359 : globes 55. Added 6432 : books 5413 (purchase 5401, gift or exchange 12); pamphlets 146; maps 30; music records 34; stereographs 800; globes 9. Withdrawn 1968; books 1954 discarded; music records 14. Books reb'd 314.Cardholders 9802. Added 393: cancelled 96. Circulation 65.882. Vols. loaned to other libs. 36; borrowed from other libs, 559 (550 from State Library). 25,913 items (21,162 books; 2114 periodicals; 2637 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 13,469 were supplementary books. In addition 13,593 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 2185 special requests.

During the year 37 visits were made to 32 branches. 3 branches were established; 3 branches were discontinued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Radical changes have occurred in the personnel of the staff of the Butte County Free Library. Miss Freda Rippey, who had been the first assistant and cataloger for several years, resigned the first of August to attend Mills College, and her position has been filled by Miss Mary Esther Bentz, of Oakland, a graduate of the University of California, 1924. Miss Hazel Kabkee, assistant for two years, resigned early in June, going to Oregon. Her place has been filled by Miss Mac Harris.

Joseph Robinson was appointed custodian at Nelson, succeeding Chas. Tracie who moved away. Mrs Hattie E. Mitchell became custodian at Berry Creek, taking the place of J. L. Romer, and Mrs Geo. Barnes, custodian at Honcut.

Two branches have been discontinued, the one at the Hutchinson Boarding

[Oct., 1924]

BUTTE CO .--- Continued.

House was closed in the spring, and the Centerville Branch July 1. A branch was opened at the Hutchinson Logging Camp at Feather Falls, but was discontinued after a short time owing to local conditions at the camp. A branch was established at the store at Pentz, July 27, with Mrs Aleata P. Childress as custodian.

The County Library headquarters were moved the first of July from the Green building to the Vaughan building, which is fireproof. The new location is one block south of the courthouse, at Huntoon and High streets.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .4 m. on the dollar.

BLANCHE CHALFANT, Lib'n.

BUTTE CO. LAW LIBRARY, OROVILLE. James A. McGregor, Lib'n. Reorg. June 3, 1907. Annual income ree'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. 1 employee. Open to public daily except Sun. 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. 1 periodical rec'd regularly. Library trustees regular meeting first day in quarter.

Total vols. a. 2638.

Annual report not rec'd.

BUTTE Co. TEACHERS' LIBRARY. ORO-VILLE. C. H. Nielsen, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined County Free Library. Income 1923–24, \$36, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$9.83. Books cared for by Co. Free Library since Nov. 1913. Open Mon. to Sat. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Teachers employed 270: elem. 195; high 75. Active school districts: elem. 61; high: city 1; union 4. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24; elem. \$5974.55; high \$6963.32. Vols. in schools: elem. 16,532; high 25,052.

Berry Creek.

BERRY CREEK BRANCH, BUTTE CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Butte Co. Free Library.

Biggs.

BIGGS [FREE] PUBLIC LIBEARY AND BRANCH, B UT T E CO. FREE LIBEARY. Miss Marchia V. Webb, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Feb. 19, 1906; joined Co. Free Library Dec. 1913. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$479.06. Annual income 1923–24, \$691.33 (from taxation \$686.33, library tax being 2.6 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$5). Total payments \$676.20. Bal.

BUTTE CO.-Continued.

Biggs—Continued.

July 1, 1924, \$494.19. 1 employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 6.30 to 8.30 p.m. Located in \$6000 Carnegie bldg. 24 periodicals rec'd regularly : 8 newspapers; 16 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Wednesday.

Total vols. 1200. Discarded 31. Cardholders 825. Added 58; cancelled 20. Circulation 5175: books 3175; periodicals 2000.

BIGGS UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, BUTTE CO. FREE LIBRARY. L. S. Pratt, Prin. Est. 1913. 6 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 618. Added 20 by purchase. Teachers 7; pupils 78.

Centerville.

CENTERVILLE BRANCH, BUTTE Co. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued July 1, 1924.

Chico.

CHICO [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Laura A. Sawyers, Lib'n. Est. 1878; as F. P. 1902. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3380.31. Annual income 1923–24, \$6671.51 (from taxation \$6220.81, library tax being 1.2 m, on the dollar: from other sources \$450.70). Total payments \$6102.89. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$3948.93. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 79 periodicals rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 68 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting Fri. before first Tues.

Total vols. 10,789. Added 988: purchase 522; gift or exchange 466. Lost 12; discarded 69. Reb'd 589. Cardholders 2536. Added 26. Circulation 37,922: books 35,618; periodicals 2304. Vols. borrowed from State Library a. 90.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The resignation of Miss H. Dorothy Tilly as assistant librarian was accepted July 1 at the regular library board meeting. Miss Tilly is leaving to take a position in Detroit.—Chico *Record*, Jl 2

CHICO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. James Ferguson, Prin. Est. July, 1902. 30 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2300. Added 725: purchase 700; gift 25. Teachers 30; pupils 700.

1923, 91.33 C. M. Osenbaugh, Pres. Alice Anderson, Lib'n. Est. 1888. 1 employee. Open to urces public for reference and under certain conditions for circulation daily except

BUTTE CO.—Continued.

Chico-Continued.

Sun. Sept. to the middle of June; Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 4.30 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in teachers college bldg. SS mags, and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 17,683. Teachers a. 28; pupils a. 367.

Annual report not rec'd.

Gridley.

Gridley. GRIDLEY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, BUTTE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs Emma Sligar, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Nov. 1, 1915; branch est. Feb. 8, 1915. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1171.88. Annual in-come, 1923-24, \$1902.15 (from taxation \$1657.35; from other sources \$244.80). Total payments \$1635.97. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1438.06. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 6.30 to 9 p.m. Located in \$8000 Carnegie bldg. 40 periodicals rec'd regularly: 10 newspapers: 30 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting second Monday. Total yols. 3254. Added 293: purchase

Total vols. 3254. Added 293: purchase 194; gift or exchange 99. Discarded 100. Cardholders 1022. Circulation 15,211. Vols. borrowed from State Library 55.

GRIDLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Est. 1880. Open to students 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. 22 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 500. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 155.

Annual report not rec'd.

Honcut.

HONCUT BRANCH, BUTTE CO. FREE LI-BRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Butte Co. Free Library.

Hutchinson.

HUTCHINSON LOGGING CAMP BRANCH, BUTTE CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Butte Co. Free Library.

Nelson.

NELSON BRANCH, BUTTE CO. FREE LI-BRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Butte Co. Free Library.

Oroville.

© OROVILLE [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY
AND BRANCH. BUTTE CO. FREE LIBRARY.
MTS Edith Simons, Lib'n. Est. 1903;
as F. P. Oct. 8, 1906; joined Co. Free Library Dec. 1913. Bal. July 1, 1923;
\$124.28. A n n u al i n c o me 1923-24;
\$7180.40 (from taxation \$4339.68; from ANDREAS. J. A. Smith, Superior Judge,

BUTTE CO.—Continued.

Oroville-Continued.

other sources \$2840.72). Total payments \$5182.92. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2121.76. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days (summer) 9 a.m. to 8 p.m., (winter) 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 8 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 79 periodicals rec'd regularly: 11 news-papers; 43 mags.; 24 transactions; 1 other serial. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues meeting first Tues.

Total books, etc. 5576: books 5540; pamphlets 26; maps 10. Added 1097: books 1070 (purchase 717, gift or exchange 210, provision of law 114, binding 29); pamphlets 26; maps 1. Books lost 69: discarded 500; rep'd 863; reb'd Cardholders 1262. Added 1302: 167. cancelled 40, Circulation 28,022: books 23,252; periodicals 4759; other material 11. Vols. loaned to other libs. 4; borrowed from other libs. 150 (146 from State Library).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

At the annual meeting of the Board of Library Trustees, Mrs R. G. Stapleton was elected President, and Miss Freida Beik Vice President.

The Librarian has been made Chairman of the Literature Section of Oroville Monday Club for the year.

In September Mrs Simons and Miss Marian Tuhey, our new assistant, visited the State Library, the Sacramento Public and Sacramento County Libraries.

MRS EDITH SIMONS, Lib'n.

BUTTE Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Butte Co.

OROVILLE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. J. B. Hughes, Prin. Est. 1892.

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 181.

Annual report not rec'd.

Pentz.

PENTZ BRANCH, BUTTE CO. FREE LI-BRARY, was established July 27, 1924.

CALAVERAS COUNTY.

(Forty-ninth class.)

County seat, San Andreas.

CALAVERAS CO .--- Continued.

in charge. Est. 1895. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits and donations by county. No paid employees. Open to public daily except Sun. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. Library trustees annual meeting first Mon. in Jan.

Total vols. a. 560.

Annual report not rec'd.

CALAVERAS CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, SAN ANDREAS. Charles Schwoerer, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Income 1923–24, \$24, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$15.43. Open daily except when visiting schools.

Total vols. 684. Teachers employed 64: elem. 52; high 12. Active school districts: elem. 39 (incl. 2 jt.); high, union 2. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$2284.18; high \$1507.41. Vols. in schools: elem. 20,611; high 5356.

Angels Camp.

BRET HARTE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBBARY. W. P. Campbell, Prin. Est. Oct. 1905. Open daily 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. Total vols. a. 802. Teachers a. 5;

pupils a. 79.

Annual report not rec'd.

San Andreas.

CALAVERAS Co. law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Calaveras Co.

CALAVERAS UNION HIGH SCHOOL LA-BRARY. Francis W. Goff, Prin. Est. 1905. 1 branch (West Point). Open to public 8.30 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. 3 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1200. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 73.

Annual report not rec'd.

COLUSA COUNTY.

(Forty-second class.)

County seat, Colusa.

Area, 1080 sq. mi. Pop. 9290.

Assessed valuation \$26,474,911 (taxable for county \$21,756,571).

Colusa Co. FREE LIBRARY, COLUSA. Mrs Dorothy C. Worden, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, June S. 1915. Work started August 1, 1916. Includes entire county for tax and service, tax being made under Pol. Code, Sec. 4041. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$165.81. Annual income 1923–24. \$10,970.52 (from taxation \$7000, library tax being .3 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$2045; from Co. Teachers' Library fund

COLUSA CO.-Continued.

\$34.50; from other sources \$1891.02). Total payments \$10,769.32. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$367.01. 26 employees: 4 in office; 22 in branches. Open daily except Sunand holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Hall of Records. Total branches 48, as follows: community 22—Antelope, Arbuckle (r.r.), Black Mountain, Butte Creek, C e n tral, College City (r.r.), Colusa (r.r.), Cooks Springs, Cortina, Freshwater, Glen Valley, Grimes, Harmony, Ladoga, Leesville, Maxwell (r.r.), Princeton (r.r.), Spring Valley, Stonyford, Sycamore, Wilbur Springs, Williams (r.r.); active school districts that have joined 29 (25 school branches)— Antelope, Arbuckle Union (Arbuckle and Franklin Dists.), Black Mountain, Boggs, Bridgeport, Butte Creek, Cachil Dehe, Central, Colusa, Cortina, Freshwater, Glen Valley, Grand Island Union (Grand Island and Wilkins Slough Dists.), Harmony, Indian Valley, Johns, Leesville, Little Stony, Maxwell Union (Maxwell, Delevan and Fairview Dists.), Packer, Pierce, Princeton, Spring Valley, Wildwood, Williams; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Colusa. 289 periodicals (264 for circulation) rec'd regularly: S newspapers; 272 mags.; 9 other serials.

Total books, etc. a. 39,379: books 29,411; pamphlets a. 2800; serials 32; maps 268; prints 2294; music records 216; music sheets 138; stereographs 4180; charts 31; globes 9. Added a. 4371 : books 2976 (purchase 2544, gift or exchange 413, binding 19); pamphlets a, SOO; serials 5; maps 15; prints 26; music records 28: music sheets 120: stereographs 400; charts 1. Withdrawn 1343: books 943 (lost 13. discarded 407. burned 523); stereographs 400. Books rep'd a. 3000; reb'd 482. Cardholders 5431. Added 499; cancelled 329. Circulation 71,183: books 67,993; periodicals 2482; other material 708. Vols. loaned to other libs. 3; borrowed from other libs. 914 (857 from State Library). 960 shipments (16,257 items: 15,549 books; 708 other material) were sent to branches. 10,226 special requests.

During the year 206 visits were made to 34 branches. 188 visits were made to headquarters by 34 custodians. 3 branches were established.

A talk on the use of the library and librarianship as a profession was given to high school classes by the county librarian.

COLUSA CO.—Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The Butte Creek Branch has been discontinued and the books for that district will be kept in the Butte Creek schoolhouse. The Arbuckle Branch will be moved this month to quarters in Nelson's realty office, as the room now being used is needed by the Arbuckle American. Miss Emily Howard will continue in charge.

The library purchased an electric motor and buffer this summer and has rejuvenated all school texts.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .3 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$7000. Mrs DOROTHY C. WORDEN, Lib'n.

A new branch of the County Free Library has been established at Delevan in the home of Mrs F. M. Baker.—Colusa *Herald*, JI 22

Colusa County cooperates in giving library service to the Weimar Sanatorium, Placer County.

COLUSA CO. LAW LIBRARY, COLUSA. Judge Ernest Weyand, in charge. Est. Dec. 1895. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits and from appropriations of Supervisors. No paid employees. Open daily except Sun. 10 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. 3 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3100.

Annual report not rec'd.

COLUSA CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, COLUSA. H. H. Sauber, Co. Supt. Est. a. 1890. Joined County Free Library. Income 1923-24, \$30, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Teachers employed 98: elem. 60; high 38. Active school districts: elem. 28 (incl. 1 jt.); high: union 3; jt. union 2. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$2110.77; high \$4752.89. Vols. in schools, high 5826.

Arbuckle.

ARBUCKLE BRANCH, COLUSA CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Colusa Co. Free Library.

Butte Creek.

BUTTE CREEK BRANCH, COLUSA CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Colusa Co. Free Library.

COLUSA CO.-Continued.

College City.

PIERCE JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Est. 1897. 12 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1629. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 86.

Annual report not rec'd.

Colusa.

Colusa FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, COLUSA CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Belle Crane, Lib'n. Est. Jan. 1901; as F. P. Jan. 1901; became branch Dec. 19, 1916. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1141.85. Annual income 1923-24, \$2053.80 (from taxation \$2025.80, library tax being .9 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$28). Total payments \$1964.50. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1231.15. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$12,500 Carnegie bldg. 42 periodicals rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 37 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 6038. Added 135: purchase 86; gift or exchange 49. Cardholders 1129. Added 207; cancelled 153. Circulation 13,563.

COLUSA Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Colusa Co.

COLUSA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. A. Williams, Prin. Est. Aug. 1893; branch est. Sept. 2, 1919. 6 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1762. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 75.

Delevan (Exp. Maxwell.)

DELEVAN BRANCH, COLUSA CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established July 21, 1924.

Maxwell.

MAXWELL UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Eugene J. Irwin, Prin. Miss Helen Rourke, Lib'n. Est. 1912. Open school days and hours. 20 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1450. Teachers a. 6: pupils a. 72.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The library seats 60 students and carries 22 of the better magazines. We are building up a strong reading list for students of each of the four years with two ideas in view—first, not overemphasizing fiction to the disadvantage of good reference books of a nonfiction nature and second, carefully selecting good books for each year of the course.

Maxwell—Continued.

In other words a "balanced ration" with plenty of food—in this case books. This year additions of twenty books of fiction and twenty of nonfiction for each of the four years have been approved.

EUGENE J. IRWIN, Prin.

PRINCETON JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. P. E. Baker, Prin. Est. Sept. 1911. Open to students only, daily during school hours. 31 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 550. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 65.

Annual report not rec'd.

Williams.

WILLIAMS UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, Raymond J. Palmer, Prin. Est. 1909. 15 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1050. Added 50 by purchase. Teachers 6; pupils 50.

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY.

(Thirteenth class.)

County seat, Martinez.

Area, 750 sq. mi. Pop. 53,889.

Assessed valuation \$97,102,962 (taxable for county \$86,032,560).

CONTRA COSTA CO. FREE LIBRARY, MARTINEZ. Mrs Alice G. Whitbeck, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, July 21, 1913; work started Oct. 1, 1913. Includes entire county except Richmond for tax and service. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$6383.35. Annual income 1923–24, \$47,-\$40.66 (from taxation \$34,468,41, library tax being .6 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$10,445.22; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$148,50; from other sources \$2778.53). Total payments \$49,161.95. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$5062.06. 52 employees: 9 in office; 43 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in Martinez Reading Room Ass'n bldg. Total branches 98, as follows: community 40--Alamo (r. r.), Antioch (r. r.), Associated (r. r.), Bay Point (r. r.), Brentwood (r. r.), Byron (r. r.), Clayton, Clyde (r. r.), Jersey, Kensington P a rk, Knightsen, Lafayette, Los Medanos (r. r.), McCabe (r. r.), Oakley (r. r.), Oleum (r. r.), Pleasant Hill, Rodeo (r. r.), San Pablo, San Ramon, Saranap, Selby, Sequoya, Tank Farm, Walnut Creek (r. r.); active school dis-

CONTRA COSTA CO .--- Continued.

tricts that have joined 54 (57 school branches) — A l a m o, Ambrose, Antioch and Live Oak (Union Dist.), Avon, Bay Point, Brentwood-Deer Valley (Union Dist.), Briones, Byron, Canyon, Carquinez, Concord, Mt. Diablo Union High in Concord, Cowell, Danville, San Ramon Valley Union High in Danville, Excelsior, Franklin, Green Valley, Iron House, Jersey, Knightsen (2 schools), Lafayette, Liberty, Lime Quarry, Lone Tree, Martinez (3 schools), Alhambra Union High in Martinez, Moraga, Morgan Territory, Mt. Diablo, Nichols, Oak Grove, Oakley, Orinda Park, Pacheco, Pinole-Hercules (Union Dist.), Pittsburg (3 schools), Pleasant Hill, Rodeo, Sand Mound, San Pablo, San Ramon, Selby, Sheldon, Sobrante, Sycamore, Tassajara, Vasco, Vine Hill, Walnut Creek (2 schools), Willow Springs; special school branches 2—Co. Teachers' Library in Martinez, Crockett (Americanization). S38 periodicals rec'd regularly: 20 newspapers; 756 mags.; 62 other serials. Distributed: 97 to office; 741 to branches.

Total books, etc. 125,391: books 109,-843; pamphlets 1711; serials 1195; maps 470; music records 842; stereographs 11,050; charts 238; globes 42. Added 20,373: books 18,923 (purchase 18,764, gift or exchange 103, binding 56); pamphlets 113; serials 62; maps 72; music records 131; stereographs 1050; charts 16; globes 6. Withdrawn 4190: books discarded 4081; pamphlets 67; Cardholders 11,544. music records 42. Circulation 165,352: books 154,489; periodicals 10,863. Vols. loaned to other libs. 3; borrowed from other libs. 327 (323 from State Library). 1631 shipments (33,319 items: 31,747 books; 1572 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 11,635 were supplementary books. 2103 special requests.

During the year 176 visits were made to 41 branches. 2 branches were established (Sequoya Branch and Lime Quarry School Dist. Branch).

A new postoffice was built in Lafayette with a library room separate from the postoffice department. This was done by the Community Club. New quarters were rented for the San Pablo postoffice with enlarged space for the library, although it is in the same room.

There are Carnegie buildings, costing about \$3000 each, for the Antioch, Concord and Walnut Creek Branch Libraries.

Contra Costa County cooperates in giving library service to the Weimar Sanatorium, Placer County.

CONTRA COSTA CO.—Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The months of July, August and September have not been eventful in any way. August and September have been full and overflowing with the regular school work.

The additional \$12,500 library building bonds were passed in Pittsburg, making a total of \$20,000 to be used for a library branch. It will be situated directly opposite the new town hall.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .6 m. on the dollar.

MRS ALICE G. WHITBECK, Lib'n.

CONTRA COSTA CO. LAW LIBRARY, MARTINEZ. J. T. Barkley, Sec. Board of Trustees. Est. 1892. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. 2 employees. Open at all hours. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 4000.

Annual report not rec'd.

CONTRA COSTA CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY AND BRANCH, CONTRA COSTA CO. FREE LIBRARY, MARTINEZ. W. H. Hanlon, Co. Supt. Joined County Free Library Sept. 1916. Income 1923-24, \$154, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Open Mon. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. 1 mag. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Teachers employed 470: elem. 332; high 138. Active school districts: elem. 55; high, union 8. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$12,-936.81; high \$11,245. Vols. in schools: elem. 19,122; high 35,784.

Antioch.

RIVERVIEW UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. W. F. Ellis, Prin. Est. Feb. 1903. 25 mags. ree'd regularly.

Total vols. 2300. Added 200 by purchase. Teachers 11; pupils 161.

Brentwood.

LIBERTY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, J. E. Webb, Prin. Est. 1902. 10 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 921. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 65.

Annual report not rec'd.

. .

Concord.

MOUNT DIABLO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, CONTRA COSTA CO. FREE LIBRARY. Bertha Romaine, Prin. Est. 1904; branch est. Sept. 1915. 29 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

CONTRA COSTA CO.—Continued.

Concord-Continued.

Total vols. a. 1985. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 255.

Annual report not rec'd.

Crockett.

JOHN SWETT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. H. Weslar, Prin. Est. 1902. Open chiefly for students during school hours. 20 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1409. Teachers a. 9; pupils a. 111.

Annual report not rec'd.

Danville.

SAN RAMON VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, CONTRA COSTA CO. FREE LIBRARY. V. R. Belieu, Prin. Est. 1913. Branch re-est. Nov. 1919. 8 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 650. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 85.

Annual report not rec'd.

Martinez.

ALHAMBRA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, CONTRA COSTA CO. FREE LIBRARY. Maurice H. Rowell, Prin. Est. July, 1901. Branch est. Sept. 22, 1919. Open to students 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 30 mags. (24 from Co.) and 2 newspapers ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 652. Teachers a. 11.

Annual report not rec'd.

CONTRA COSTA CO. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Contra Costa Co.

*DE LA SALLE INSTITUTE LIBRARY. Brother V. Leo, Prin. Est. 1879. Supported by institute, for use of institute only. 2 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 38.

Annual report not rec'd.

Pittsburg.

PITTSBURG BRANCH, CONTRA COSTA Co. Free Library,

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Sce note under Contra Costa Co. Free Library.

Richmond.

RICHMOND [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Norah McNeill, Lib'n. Est. Aug. 16, 1907; as F. P. March 15, 1909; became branch Oct. 1, 1913; branch discontinued Jan. 24, 1916. Bal. July 1, 1923. \$3254.14. Annual income 1923–24, \$26,854.99 (from taxation \$25,884.47, library tax being 10 m. on the dollar; from

Richmond-Continued.

other sources \$970.52). Total payments \$26,695.82. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$3413.31. 10 employees: 8 in main library; 2 in branches. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$59,500 bldg., partly gift of Carnegie. 12 branches: 20 periodicals (188 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 17 newspapers; 133 mags.; 50 other serials. Distributed: 157 to main library; 43 to tranches. Library trustees monthly meetbranches. Library trustees monthly meeting last Thurs.

Total books, etc. 64,512: books 43.731: prints 20,781. Added 7996; books 4803 (purchase 4735, gift or exchange 46, binding 22); prints 3193. Books lost 105; discarded 1164; rep'd 1586; reb'd 2517. Cardholders 7779: main library 6448; branches 1331. Added 1623; cancelled 5850. Circulation 227,671 (from main library 163,307, from branches 64,364): books 183,578; periodicals 5473; other material 38,620. Vols. loaned to other libs. 4; borrowed from other libs. 14 (13 from State Library).

During the year the main library building was enlarged to double its original size by an addition costing \$42,000.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Madeleine Glavin, U. C. '23, joined the staff in July to fill the position left vacant by the resignation of Miss Dorothy Squires, U. C. '22, who was married August 3, 1924, to Mr Kenneth Traver of San Francisco.

Miss Minnie A. Lewis, graduate of the Syracuse Library School and until recently librarian of the General Electric Company Sales Office, San Francisco, has been appointed first assistant on the Richmond library staff. Miss Lois Woods. Illinois State Library School, '14, who has held the position for the last four years, resigned in September to become director of the U.S. Naval libraries at San Diego.

NORAH MCNEILL, Lib'n.

RICHMOND UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. B. X. Tucker, Prin. Est. 1907. 7 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1206. Teachers a. 36; pupils a. 574.

Annual report not rec'd.

SANTA FE LIBRARY. Mrs Essex, Lib'n. DEL NORTE Co. high school, law and Est. 1902. Income from billiards, pool, and from baths. 1 employee. Open to under Del Norte Co.

CONTRA COSTA CO.-Continued.

Richmond—Continued.

railroad employees and their families daily 8.30 a.m. to 10 p.m. 14 mags. and 10 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 450.

No further information rec'd.

STANDARD OIL CO., REFINERY LIBRARY. No further information rec'd.

DEL NORTE COUNTY.

(Fifty-fourth class.)

County seat, Crescent City.

Area, 1546 sq. mi. Pop. 2759.

Assessed valuation \$10,474,770 (taxable for county \$10,418,670).

DEL NORTE CO. HIGH SCHOOL LA-BRARY, CRESCENT CITY. C. F. Quick, Prin. Est. 1892. 10 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1170. Added 26: purchase 20; gift 6. Teachers 7; pupils 84.

DEL NORTE CO. LAW LIBRARY, CRES-CENT CITY. E. C. Hersch, Dist. Att'y, Lib'n. Est. 1903. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 100.

Annual report not rec'd.

DEL NORTE CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, CRESCENT CITY. E. A. Moore, Co. Supt. Est. 1892. Income 1923-24, 0 from 1 of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. spent for books 0.

Total vols. 500. Teachers employed 32: elem. 24; high 8. Active school districts: elem. 15; high, county 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$927: high \$696. Vols. in schools: elem. 7573; high 1170.

Crescent City.

CRESCENT CITY [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY, Mrs F. M. Patty, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Oct. 7, 1907. Annual income \$500, rec'd from the city tax, being 1.5 m. on the dollar. 1 employee. ni. on the doltar. 1 employee. Open to public of city and county daily except bolidays: week days 1 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun, 2 to 5 p.m. Located in Lipowitz bldg. 14 mags. and 6 news-papers rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting last Mon. Open to

Total vols. a. 2010. Added a. 35; purchase a. 20; gift or exchange 15.

EL DORADO COUNTY.

(Forty-eighth class.)

County seat, Placerville. Area, 1891 sq. mi. Pop. 6426.

Assessed valuation \$12,866,545 (taxable for county \$10,232,445).

EL DORADO CO. HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, PLACERVILLE. Leland S. Martin, Prin. Est. 1905. 18 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3000. Teachers a. 15; pupils a. 176.

Annual report not rec'd.

EL DORMO CO. LAW LIBRARY, PLAC-ERVILLE. Abe Darlington, Lib'n. Est. 1891. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits, and appropriations from Supervisors. No paid employees. Open to public daily 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. 6 periodicals rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. a. 1858.

Annual report not rec'd.

EL DORADO CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, PLACERVILLE. E. J. Fitzgerald, Co. Supt. Est. 1880. Destroyed by fire May, 1910; re-est. Income 1923-24, \$21, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$2.07.

Total vols. 850. Teachers employed 84: elem. 71; high 13. Active school districts: elem. 50 (incl. 2 jt.); high, county 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$1641; high \$1831. Vols. in schools: elem. 23,164; high 2208.

Placerville.

PLACERVILLE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. A. J. Mahler, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Jan. 2, 1906. Destroyed by fire July 14, 1913; re-est. 1 employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in city hall. 10 mags. ree'd regularly. Library trustees have no regular time for meeting.

Total vols. 3224. Added 169: purchased 154; gift or exchange 15. Lost 10; discarded 5; deposit returned 140; rep'd 125. Circulation 6975: books 6500; periodicals 475. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 5 (all from State Library).

Et Dorado Co, high school, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under El Dorado Co.

.

FRESNO COUNTY.

(Fourth class.)

County seat, Fresno.

Area, 5696 sq. mi. Pop. 128,779.

Assessed valuation \$204,390,666 (taxable for county \$171,785,877).

[‡]FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, FRESNO. Miss Sarah E. McCardle, Lib'n. Est. under 1909 Co. F. L. law, March 12, 1910; under Sec. 2 of 1911 law, Jan. 8, 1913. Includes entire county for tax and service except Coalinga union high school district. Fresno and Selma joined under Sec. 3. Co. Law Library and Co. Teachers' Library joined also. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$4808.32. Annual income 1923– 24. \$150.028.33 (from taxation \$120,-24, \$150,025.55 (From taxaton gives, 698.16, library tax being .8 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$19,518.54; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$200; from Co. Law Library fund \$200; from Co. Law Library fund 1011 42.05, 11011 concest \$7461.63). Total payments \$154,161.05, Bal. July 1, 1924, \$675.60, 113 employees: 47 in office: 66 in branches. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.: Sun. 2 to 7 p.m. Located in \$30,000 Carnegie library bldg. Total branches 239, as follows: community 86—Auberry, Barstow (r. r.), Basin, Big Creek (r. r.), Big Creek No. 2, Camp No. 5, Camp No. 7, Camp No. 33, Camp No. 34, Camp No. 35, Camp No. 36 (r. r.), Camp No. 37 (r. r.), Camp No. 36 (r. r.), Camp No. 61, Camp No. 62, Camp No. 63, Caruthers (r. r.), Clorigo (r. r.), Clorigo (r. r.), Del Rey (r. r.), Dos Palos, Dunlap, Easton, Edison No. 60, Firebaugh, Fowler (r. r.), County Hospital Control (r. r.), Camp (r. r.), County Hospital Control (r. r.), Camp (r. r.), County Hospital Control (r. r.), County Hospital Control (r. r.), Camp (r. r.), Camp (r. r.), County Hospital Control (r. r.), Camp (r. r office; 66 in branches. Open daily ex-County Hospital, County Hospital Contagious Ward, County Law Library, De-tention Home, Dickey, Fink-Smith (r. r.). tention Home, Dickey, Fink-Smith (r. r.), Grace Church (r. r.), International (r. r.), Kirk, Mexican Mission (r. r.), Old Peoples Home, Tubercular Hospital (r. r.), and Webster (r. r.) in Fresno, Helm, Huntington, Kearney Park (r. r.), Kerckhoff, Kerman (r. r.), Kings River, Kingsburg (r. r.), Laton (r. r.), Lerona, Lethent School Dist., Mendota (r. r.), Miller (r. r.), Miramonte, Navelencia (r. r.), North Fork, North Fork School Dist., Ockenden, Oleander (r. r.), Orange Dist., Ockenden, Oleander (r. r.), Orange Cove (r. r.), Oro Loma School Dist., Parlier (r. r.), Pine Grove School Dist., Pine Ridge, Pollasky School Dist., Raisin City (r. r.), Reedley (r. r.), Riverdale (r. r.), S ch e wa ni ke e, Selma (r. r.), Sierra Chautauqua (r. r.), Squaw Valley, T ollh o u se, Tranquillity (r. r.). Uni-versity Colony School Dist., Vinland School Dist., Wahroke School Dist. and West Side (r. r.): active school districts that have joined 157 (149 school branches)—Alameda. Altamont Union Dist., Ockenden, Oleander (r. r.), Orange

FRESNO CO.—Continued.

(incl. Alta, Mt. Olive, and Smith Moun-tain), Alta Vista, Alvina, American Col-ony, Auberry, Barstow, Bender, Bethel, Big Creek, Big Sandy, Biola, Bowles, Bullard, Burrel, Butler, Calwa, Canal, Cantua, Caruthers, Centerville, Central, Central Union High, Clay, Clovis, Clovis Union High, Cole Creek, Crescent, Dakota, De Wolf, Dry Creek, Duke, Dun-bard Fasterby, Edison Emergency Elk Dakota, De Wolf, Dry Creek, Duke, Dun-kard, Easterby, Edison Emergency, Elk-horn, Empire, Fairview, Firebaugh, For-tuna, Fort Washington, Fowler, Fowler Union High, Franklin, Frankwood, Fresno Colony, Friant, Fruitvale, Gar-field, Glendora, Grant, Granville, Gray Colony, Great Western Union (incl. Fink and Mt. Campbell), Hawkeye, Hawkins, Herndon, Highland, Hopewell, Horace Mann, Houghton, Huron, Iowa, Jefferson, Kearney, Kerman, Kerman Union High, Kingsburg Jt. Union (incl. Agenda, Eschol, Kingsburg and Riverbend), Kutner Colony, Laguna, Las Deltas, Laton, Laton Jt. Union High, Lerona, Lethent, Lincoln, Lindsay, Locan, Mc-Kinley, Madison, Magnolia, Malaga, Manning, Manzanita, Mechanicsville, Mendota, Mill Creek, Millerton, Millwood, Miramonte, Monroe, Mountain View, Navelencia Union (incl. Navelencia, Cit-rus Cove and Clarks Valley), Nees Colony, New Hope, North Fork, Oak-Corony, New Hope, North Fork, Oak-hurst, Oleander, Orange Center, Orange Cove, Orangedale, Oro Loma, Parlier, Parlier Union High, Perrin, Pershing, Piedra, Pine Grove, Pine Ridge, Pinedale, Pleasant Vale, Pollasky, Pomona, Prairie, Princeton, Raisin City, Red Banks, Reefley, Riverdale, Riverdale Joint Union Wich, Binarnier Union High, Riverview Union (incl. Riverbend and Riverside). Roeding, Roosevelt, Ross, Round Mountain, Sanger, Sanger Union High, San Joaquin, Scandinavian, Selma, Selma Union High, Sierra Union High, Setma Union High, Sierra Union High, Squaw Valley, Summit Lake, Sunset, Teague, Teilman, Teilman No. 2, Tem-perance, Terry, Tranquillity, University Colony, Vinland, W a h t o k e; Walnut, Washington Colony, Washington Union High, West Park, Wolters; special school branches 3—Co. Teachers' Library in Fresno, Nutritional Home Emergency and Supervisors of County Schools, 2507 and Supervisors of County Schools. 3597 periodicals (3304 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 79 newspapers: 3488 mags.: 1 transaction: 29 other serials. Dis-tributed: 72 to office; 3525 to branches.

Total books, etc. 331,256: books 293,-881; pamphlets 14,711; maps 724; prints 1200; slides 600; music records 352; stereographs 19,518; charts 176; globes Added 39,680: books 35,360 (pur-94. chase 34,178, gift or exchange 1003, binding 179); pamphlets 2883; maps 98; prints 2; music records 1; stereographs 1325: globes 11. Withdrawn 7955: books 7344 (lost 945, discarded 6399); maps and the work was stopped.

FRESNO CO.—Continued.

16; music records 13; charts 564; globes 18. Books rep'd 8189; reb'd 8631. Cardholders 48,297. Added 9082; cancelled 11,649. Circulation 852,775: books 798,-968; periodicals 46,844; other material 6963. Vols. loaned to other libs. 87: borrowed from other libs. 706 (640 from State Library). 4294 shipments (118.-061 items: 111,651 books; 182 periodicals: 6228 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 51.822 were supplementary books. In addition 70,740 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 23,401 special requests.

During the year 1162 visits were made to 1049 branches. 1218 visits were made to headquarters by custodians. 10 branches were established: 1 branch (Kings River) was discontinued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The annual Custodians' Meeting was held in the main library Wednesday, September 24, beginning at 10.30 a.m. There were twenty-five custodians and several visitors in attendance, besides the staff in the building. This was a very interesting meeting, the program consisting of open discussions of branch problems, two book reviews and several talks on children's work, the use of games in the library, etc. The two outstanding numbers were an address by Mrs Julia G. Babcock of Kern County Library on "The secret of success as a custodian of books" and a talk by Mrs Lofberg, who has charge of all the camp libraries for the Southern California Edison Co.

A branch has opened at Biola in a room donated by one of the interested citizens. There has been a very lively interest taken in the branch and it has started off with an unusual number of borrowers and a large circulation. The branch at Miramonte has been moved from the store into Mrs Blythe's residence.

The branch at Basin was located in a lumber camp and destroyed in a forest fire during September. The branches at Camp No. 34, 35, 36, 37, 38 and 42 have been discontinued, as also those at Hume and Kings River. At the latter place, the branch was located in the camp of the San Joaquin Light and Power Company

FRESNO CO .--- Continued.

There have been several changes in the staff during the quarter. Miss Neva Hunsberger, custodian at Reedley, has asked for a leave of absence and a successor has not yet been appointed. Mrs Luceil Enos of the Conejo Branch has resigned and Mrs Lephia Fudge appointed to the vacancy. Mrs Vesta Robison of Orange Cove died September 19 after a Mrs Robison was very short illness. popular with her people and was doing a fine work. Mrs Cordie I. Peet has been appointed to the place. Miss Florence Robertson, assistant at the loan desk in the Fresno City Branch, resigned to take a position in the Los Angeles Public Library. Miss Enid Freeman has been appointed to fill the position. Miss Calla Mathison, Law Librarian, has also resigned and Miss Irene Whitford will take her place.

The School Department has had a busy time getting the books ready for the opening of the county schools. An emergency school has been opened at Camp 60 and this is being served. Sentinel District, which has been suspended for several years, has reopened and is again being served. A lady who lives at one of the San Joaquin Light and Power camps, forty-five miles from a school, is teaching her children this winter and the School Department is giving her regular school service.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .8 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$122,424.01.

SARAH E. MCCARDLE, Lib'n.

FRESNO CO. LAW LIBRARY, FRESNO. Irene Whitford, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 29, 1891. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Cared for by Fresno Co. Free Library. Located in courthouse. 7 periodicals rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tures.

Total vols. 9300. Added 1017.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Sec note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

FRESNO CO. TEACHERS' LIBEARY, FRESNO. C. W. Edwards, CO. Supt. Income 1923-24, \$332, from ½ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$453.53. Books in charge of Co. Free Library, 1868 vols. having been turned over Sept. 1915. Office open every week day. Located in courtbouse.

FRESNO CO .- Continued.

Total vols. 251. Teachers employed 1289: elem. 863; high 426. Active school districts: elem. 156 (incl. 11 jt.); high: city 5; union 13; jt. union 4. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$24,075; high \$33,052. Vols. in schools: elem. 47.262: high 106.137.

Basin.

BASIN BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LI-BRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Sce note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

Biola (No exp. office.)

BIOLA BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LI-BRARY, was established in July, 1924.

Calwa City (Exp. Fresno).

SANTA FE READING ROOM. Chas. H. Phillips, Lib'n. Est. June 7, 1915. Supported by the company for the use of employees. Open daily 8 a.m. to 10 p.m. 27 mags. and 14 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 457.

Annual report not rec'd.

Camps No. 34, No. 35, No. 36, No. 37, No. 38, No. 42.

CAMPS No. 34, No. 35, No. 36, No. 37, No. 38, No. 42 BRANCHES, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, were discontinued during the quarter.

Camp No. 60 School.

CAMP NO. 60 SCHOOL BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Caruthers.

CARUTHERS HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. C. Leroy Walton, Prin.

Annual report not rec'd.

Clovis.

CLOVIS UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LI-BRARY, E. C. McKesson, Prin. Ottilia C. Anderson, Lib'n. Est. 1899. Joined County Free Library Oct. 13, 1919. 16 mags. and 1 newspaper from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1042. Teachers a. 15; pupils a. 225.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

We have student librarians in charge of the library each period of the day, each of whom has assigned duties under the

FRESNO CO.-Continued.

Clovis-Continued.

general supervision of the school librarian. The high school is receiving twentyfive different periodicals this year, and six copies of the *Literary Digest*. A bulletin board has been placed in the library on which library announcements and pictures, etc., may be placed.

OTTILIA C. ANDERSON, Lib'n.

Coalinga.

COALINGA UNION HIGH SCHOOL DIST. LIBRARY. Miss Ella Louise Smith, Lib'n. Est. June 25, 1912. Annual income 1922-23, \$6481.22. 7 employees: 6 in main library; 1 in branch. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in \$17,500 Carnegie bldg. 10 branches, of which 3 have reading rooms. 170 periodicals rec'd regularly: 20 newspapers; 147 mags.; 3 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting second Wed.

Total books, etc. a. 16,096: books a. 14,758; pamphlets a. 1297; maps a. 41. Cardholders a. 3916.

Annual report not rec'd.

Conejo.

CONEJO BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

Easton.

WASHINGTON UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. L. P. Linn, Prin, Est. 1893. Open 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. on school days. 33 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2500. Teachers a. 16; pupils a. 250.

Annual report not rec'd.

Fowler.

FOWLER UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY. V. A. Rohrer, Prin. Est. 1898. Branch est. Aug. 1, 1919. Open 8.20 a.m. to 4.15 p.m. on school days. 36 mags. and 4 newspapers from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1537. Added 59: purchase 35; gift 24. Teachers 14; pupils 261. Circulation 14,383.

Fresno.

FRESNO BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Nec note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

FRESNO CO .- Continued.

Fresno—Continued.

ARMENIAN YOUNG MEN'S LIBRARY CLUB. Manoog G. Abkarian, Sec. Est. May, 1911. Open Tues., Thurs. and Sun. Located at cor. M and Ventura sts. 1 mag. and a. 15 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1200. Members a. 90. Annual report not rec'd.

CHINESE PUBLIC LIBRARY OF CENTRAI CALIFORNIA. C. King Young, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 5, 1916. Open week days 9 a.m. to 10 p.m. Located at 1043 G st. 12 mags. and 25 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 300. Members include all Chinese of central California.

Annual report not rec'd.

FRESNO CO. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Fresno co.

||FRESNO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Delbert Brunton, Prin. Miss Dorotha Davis, Lib'n. Est. 1889. 1 employee. Open week days for students only, 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 41 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 5000. Teachers a. 62; pupils a. 1400.

Annual report not rec'd.

*STATE TEACHERS COLLEGE LIBRARY. C. L. MCLANE, Pres. Agnes Tobin, Lib'n. Est. April 10, 1911. Open to students of institution only week days 8 a.m. to 4.20 p.m. 60 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2863.

Annual report not rec'd.

Hume.

HUME BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LI-BRARY, was discontinued in July, 1924.

Kerman.

KERMAN UNION HIGH S CHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Wm. A. Otto, Prin. Est. 1910. Branch est. Aug. 19, 1920. 30 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly. Total vols. 2400. Added 100 by purchase. Teachers 15; pupils 275.

Kings River.

KINGS RIVER BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued in July, 1924.

Kingsburg.

KINGSBURG JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. T. O. Renfrow, Prin. Est. 1905. Library open to public school days. 35 mags. ree'd regularly.

335

FRESNO CO.—Continued.

Kingsburg-Continued.

Total vols. a. 1500. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 223.

Annual report not rec'd.

Laton.

LATON JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY, O. H. Richardson, Prin. Est. 1905. 9 mags. and 2 newspapers from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 950. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 90.

Annual report not rec'd.

Miramonte.

MIRAMONTE BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Sce note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

Orange Cove.

ORANGE COVE BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

Reedley.

REEDLEY BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Sce note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

REEDLEY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Dr E. W. Hauck. Prin. Est. 1904. 1 employee. 47 mags, and 2 newspapers ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2616. Teachers a. 29; pupils a. 450.

Annual report not rec'd.

Riverdale.

RIVERDALE HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, FRESNO CO, FREE LIBRARY, C. H. Paxton, Prin. Est. Sept. 19, 1912. Branch est. July 5, 1919. 24 mags, and 1 newspaper from Co, rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 300. Teachers a. 2; pupils a. 30.

Annual report not rec'd.

Sanger.

SANGER UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LABRARY. H. H. Wardrip, Prin. Est. 1899: branch est. June 9, 1919. 8 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 801. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 106.

FRESNO CO.—Continued.

Selma.

SELMA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, J. R. McKillop, Prin. Miss Nellie Christensen, Lib'n. Est. 1892. Open Mon. to Fri. 8.30 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. 27 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2754. Added 236: purchase 221; binding 15. Teachers 30; pupils 522. Circulation 5259.

Sentinel School Dist.

SENTINEL SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, FRESNO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Sec note under Fresno Co. Free Library.

Tranquillity.

TRANQUILLITY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, Julia M. Doughty, Prin. Est. Aug. 1917. 17 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 899. Added 159 by purchase. Teachers 9; pupils 70.

GLENN COUNTY.

(Thirty-eighth class.)

County seat, Willows.

Area, 1460 sq. mi. Pop. 11,853.

Assessed valuation \$27,998,153 (taxable for county \$23,002,144).

GLENN CO. FREE LIBRARY, WILLOWS. Miss Faye T. Kneeshaw, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2 of Co. F. L. law, April 8, 1914. Work started Aug. 1, 1914. Includes entire county for tax and service. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3867.17. Annual income 1923-24, \$13,450.58 (from taxation \$8756.68. library tax being A m. on the lollar: from school districts having ioined \$2535.50: from other sources \$2158.40). Total payments \$15,822.69. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1495.06. 60 emoloyees: 5 in office; 55 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Masonic Temple bldg. Total branches 67, as follows: community '9—Alder Springs, Artois, Bayliss (r. r.), Black Butte, Butte City, Capay Rancho (r. r.), Chrome, Citrona Park, Codora, Edison, Elk Creek (r. r.), Emerald, Floyd, Fruto, Glenn, Grapevine, Hamilton City (r. r.), Lake, Liberty, Lincoln, Marion. Monroeville Orchards, Newville, Oakdale, Ord, Orland (r. r.), Plaza, Willows (r. r.) and Farm Adviser (r. r.) in Willows: school districts that have joined 41 (38 school branches)—Aguas Frias, Bayliss, Black Butte, Calumet, Carson, Cherokee, Chrome, Citrona, Codora, Edison, Elk Creek Union (incl. Elk Creek and Mountain). Emerald, Emigrant, Fairview, Floyd, German, Glenn,

GLENN CO.—Continued

Grapevine, Grindstone, Hamilton City Union (incl. Hamilton and Mills Orchard), Kanawha, Lake, Lemon Home, Liberty, Lincoln, McIntosh, Marion, Murdock, Newville, Oakdale, Ord, Plaza, Rock River, Stone, Union, Walnut Grove, Walsh, Willows Union (incl. Jacinto and Willows). 341 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers: 336 mags. Distributed: 44 to office; 297 to branches.

Total books, etc. 38.355; books 30.785; pamphlets 3114: serials 144: maps 245: music records 336; stereographs 150; charts 3931; globes 18; pictures 532. Added 8235: books 6262 (purchase 6051, gift or exchange 211); pamphlets 206; maps 1; music records 35; charts 1383; globes 4: pictures 344. Books lost 10; discarded 1592; rep'd 534; reb'd 269. Cardholders 5262. Added 320; cancelled Circulation 53.816: books 45.661; -33 periodicals 8023; other material 132. Vols, borrowed from other libs, 362 (352 from State Library). 2378 shipments (24,285 items: 18,743 books; 3312 periodicals; 2230 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 9927 were supplementary books. In addition 6873 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 14,079 special requests.

During the year 253 visits were made to 55 branches. 175 visits were made to headquarters by 36 custodians. One branch was established (Glenn).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .5 m. on the dollar.

FAYE T. KNEESHAW, Lib'n.

GLENN CO. HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, WILLOWS. W. H. Hooper, Prin. Est. 1895. Open to students school days during school hours. Located in high school bldg.

Total vols. a. 980. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 196.

Annual report not rec'd.

GLENN CO. LAW LIBRARY, WILLOWS. Ben F. Geis, Lib'n. Est. 1891. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. a. 2375.

Annual report not rec'd.

GLENN CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, WIL-LOWS. S. M. Chaney, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Income 1923–24, \$23, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of from State Library).

GLENN CO.—Continued.

\$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$28.23.

Total vols. 1080. Teachers employed 121: elem. 85; high 36. Active school districts: elem. 43 (incl. 2 jt.); high 3 (4 high schools): county 1; union 1; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for s c h o o l s, 1923-24: elem. \$2794; high \$2387. Vols. in schools: elem. 20,710; high 3780.

Hamilton City.

HAMILTON CITY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Mrs E. M. Barkley, Prin. Est. Feb. 1917. 16 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1200. Teachers 6; pupils 72.

Orland.

ORLAND FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, GLENN CO. FREE LIBRARY. Valerie Magnenat, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 15. 1912; branch est. Nov. 7, 1914. Annual income a. \$1000. 2 employees. Open daily except holidays 2 to 9 p.m. Located in \$8000 Carnecie bldg. 17 mags. from Co. ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 701.

Annual report not rec'd.

ORLAND JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. D. M. Durst, Prin. Est. 1895. Open during school hours. 10 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2064. Teachers a. 16; pupils a. 250.

Annual report not rec'd.

Willows.

WILLOWS FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Bertha S. Tavlor, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. March 15, 1906; joined Co. Free Library Aug. 1914. Bal. July 1, 1923. \$1024.46. Annual income 1923–24, \$3451.86 (from taxation \$3319.08, library tax being 1.4 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$132.78). Total payments \$4193.05. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$283.27. 4 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 1.30 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 45 periodicals (35 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 30 mags.; 3 transactions: 7 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 6190. Added 853: purchase 719; gift or exchange 134. Lost 10; discarded 71; rep'd 150; reb'd 290. Cardholders 921. Added 200; cancelled 522. Circulation 20.152: books 19,403; periodicals 749. Vols. loaned to other libs. 25: borrowed from other libs. 50 (32 from State Library).

337

GLENN CO.-Continued.

Willows-Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Beginning with November first the Willows Free Public Library will take over as Willows Branch all the circulation formerly handled from the headquarters of the Glenn County Free Library. For this purpose between one and two thousand County Library books will be placed in the Willows Library collection. As the Willows Library tax rate has been raised from 1.4 to 2 mills on the dollar we look forward to a busy and useful winter.

BERTHA S. TAYLOR. Lib'n.

Mr and Mrs G. A. Gutman, before leaving for San Francisco, presented to the Willows Free Public Library 118 books of fiction, history, etc.—Willows Journal, S 3

GLENN CO. free, high school, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Glenn Co.

HUMBOLDT COUNTY.

(Twentieth class.)

County seat, Eureka.

- 6

Area, 3507 sq. mi. Pop. 37,413.

Assessed valuation \$57,322,251 (taxable for county \$52,110,326).

HUMBOLDT CO. FREE LIBRARY, EUREKA. Miss Ida M. Rengan, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, May 12, 1914. Work started April 12, 1915. Includes entire county for tax and service except Eureka. Arcata and Ferndale joined under Sec. 3. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$7052. Annual income 1923–24, \$24,791.21 (from taxation \$15,326.36, library tax being .5 m. on the dollar: from school districts h av in g joined \$7222.68; from other sources \$2242.17). Total payments \$23,-535.44. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$8307.77. 64 employees: 6 in office; 58 in branches. Open daily except Sat. afternoons, Sun. and holidays, 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in bldg. across from courthouse. Total branches 163, as follows: community 56 --Alder Point, Alton, Arcata (r. r.), Bair, Bayside, Bear River, Blocksburg, Blue Lake (r. r.), Briceland, Bridgeville, Capetown, Carlotta, Crannell, Dobbyn School Dist., Dyerville, Eel Rock, Elk Ridge, Ettersburg, Main Office in Eureka, Excelsior School Dist., Falk, Ferndale (r. r.), Fields Landing, Fort Seward, Fortuna (r. r.), Garberville, Garfield, Harris, Holmes, Hydesville, Iaqua, Kneeland, Korbel, Loleta, McCann, McKinleyville, Metropolitan. M i r an d a, Myers,

HUMBOLDT CO.-Continued.

Orick, Orleans, Patricks Point School Orick, Orieans, Patricks Fourt School Dist., Pepperwood, Petrolia, Phillipsville, Rio Dell, Rohnerville, Samoa, Scotia, Shelter Cove, Shively, Showers Pass, Thorn, Trinidad (r.r.), Waddington, Yager School Dist.; active school dis-tricts that have joined 106 (106 school branches)—Alder Point, Alton, Arcata, Danner Bear Diers, Blocksburg, Banner, Bay, Bear River, Blocksburg, Blue Lake, Bluff Prairie, Briceland, Buck Mountain, Bucksport, Bull Creek, Bunker Hill, Burr Creek, Canal, Capetown, Cen-terville, Clark, Coffee Creek, Cuddeback, Cutten, Dobbyn, Dow's Prairie, Dyer-ville, Eel River, Eel Rock, Elinor, Elk Ridge, Elk River, Englewood, Excelsior, Ferndale, Field, Fieldbrook, Florence, Forest, Fort Seward, Fortuna Union High School, Fortuna, Freshwater, Garberville, Garfield, Georgeson, Glendale, Grant Union (incl. Grant and Salt River), Green Point, Grindstone, Grizzly Bluff, Harris, Honey Dew, Humboldt State Teachers College (not a school dis-State Teachers College (not a school dis-trict), Hydesville, Island, Jacoby Creek, Janes, Jones Prairie, Klamath, Kneeland, Korbel, Laribee, Little River, Loleta, Lone Star, McCann, McDiarmid, Mad River, Mattole, Mettah, Mitchell, Monu-ment, Morek, Myers, Oakdale, Oakes, Orick, Orleans, Patricks Point, Pepper-wood, Phillipsville, Pleasant Point, Port Kenyon, Price Creek, Redwood, Rio Dell, Bobner viille, Bolph Salmon Creak Renyon, Frice Creek, Redwood, 140 Den, Rohn erville, Rolph, Salmon Creek, Samoa, Scotia, Sequoia, Showers Pass, Stone Lagoon, Strong, Table Bluff, Trini-ład, Union Mattole, Upper Mattole, War-ren Creek, Weitchpec, Whitethorn, (ad. Union Mattole, Upper Mattole, War-ren Creek, Weitchpec, Whitethorn, Wilder, Williams Creek, Willow Creek, Worthington, Yager; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Eureka. 234 periodicals (200 for circu-lation) rec'd regularly: 14 newspapers; 220 mags. Distributed: 34 to office; 200 to branches.

Total books, etc. 73,967: books 70,724; pamphlets 173; maps 410; prints 2029; nusic records 411; stereographs 12; harts 174; globes 34. Added 8500: books 8223 (purchase 7968, gift or exchange 255; pamphlets 173; maps 41; music records 17; stereographs 2; charts 39; globes 5. Books lost and burned 243; discarded 465; rep'd 2294; reb'd Added 2641: 2349. Cardholders 7205. cancelled 1315. Circulation 175,783: books 170,909; periodicals 4848; other material 26. Vols. loaned to other libs. 4: borrowed from other libs, 504 (498 from State Library). 1428 shipments (35,079 items: 33,475 books; 71 periodicals; 1533 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 12,990 were supplementary books. 3603 special requests.

HUMBOLDT CO.—Continued.

During the year 106 visits were made to 63 branches. 536 visits were made to headquarters by custodians. 5 branches were established; 4 branches were discontinued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .4 m. on the dollar, which will raise \$16,251.83. IDA M. REAGAN, Lib'n,

HUMBOLDT CO. LAW LIBRARY, EUREKA. Asst. Dist. Att'y Kennett Newlett, Sec. Est. 1898. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open daily except holidays 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 2000.

Annual report not rec'd.

HUMBOLDT CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, EUREKA. Robert A. Bugbee, Co. Supt. Joined County Free Library. Income 1923-24, \$58, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachcrs' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$44.51.

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers employed 308: elem. 234; high 74. Active school districts: elem. 107; high: city 1; union 3. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$8624; high \$6544. Vols. in schools: elem. 38,896; high 12,584.

Arcata.

ARCATA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, HUMBOLDT CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs Virginia Todd Smith, Lib'n. Est. 1879; joined Co. Free Library July 2, 1914; branch est. June 1, 1915. Total payments 1922–23 \$1324.85. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in town hall. 41 periodicals rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 30 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon. after first Thurs.

Total vols. a. 1850. Cardholders a. 1096.

Annual report not rec'd.

ARCATA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. A. O. Cooperrider, Prin. Est. 1894. 16 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1150. Added 50 by purchase. Teachers 14; pupils 268.

HUMBOLDT STATE TEACHERS COLLEGE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, HUMBOLDT CO. FREE LIBRARY. Ralph W. Swetman, Pres. C. E. Graves, Lib'n. Est. Aug. 10, 1913. Open Mon. to Fri. 8.30 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. 31 mags. rec'd regularly.

HUMBOLDT CO .-- Continued.

Arcata—Continued.

Total vols. 8157. Added 168. Circulation 7477: books 6774; mags. 703. Feachers 13; pupils 166.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Under our new president, Mr Ralph W. Swetman, many of the college courses have been reorganized this year, including the course in Library Training. This course is now required of all first year Feachers College students, and is elective There are at present 73 for others. students registered in the course. It is given in two sections, once a week each semester. The purpose is to give students a working knowledge of how to use libraries, and also to give them the technical knowledge necessary to organize small libraries, either school or public, in the communities in which they may teach.

The student body, acting through a representative constitutional convention, is drafting a new constitution, which will nclude a plan for self government, extending to the control of discipline in the (ibrary reading room.

The College Civic Club, organized by the members of the class in Civic Edutation, is planning to stage a library lemonstration within a few days, the blject of which is to impress upon the new students by visual methods the proper way to use the library books, and the proper observance of library rules.

C. E. GRAVES, Lib'n.

Eureka.

[‡] EUREKA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. H. A. Kendal, Lib'n. Est. Jan. 25, 1878; as F. P. April 30, 1878. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$244.27. Annual income 1923–24. \$9508.78 (from taxation \$7572.16, library tax being 6.5 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$1936.62). Total paynents \$9035.67. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$717.38. 4 employees. Open daily except July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas: week days 9 a.m. to 9 ..m.; Sun. 1.30 to 9 p.m. Located in \$35,000 Carnegie bldg. 134 periodicals "ec'd regularly: 54 newspapers: 80 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 14,913. Added 1404: purchase 1333; binding 71. Lost 78; discarded 1018; rep'd 3589; reb'd 814. Cardholders 7059. Added 883; cancelled 242. Circulation 71,198: books 69,655;

HUMBOLDT CO.-Continued.

Eureka-Continued.

periodicals 1543. Vols. borrowed from other libs, 106 (all from State Library).

EUREKA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Geo. C. Jensen, Prin. Miss Ethel M. Man-ning, Lib'n. Est. 1897. 9 student assist-ants. 30 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3304. Teachers a. 30: pupils a. 660.

Annual report not rec'd.

HUMBOLDT Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Humboldt Co.

Ferndale.

Ferndale. FERNDALE [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, HUMBOLDT CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Mrs N. E. Winslow, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Dec. 1904; joined Co. Free Library July 26, 1915. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$286.10. Annual income 1923–24, \$1444.87 (from taxation \$1407.62; from other sources \$37.25). Total payments \$1148.90. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$582.07. 1 employee. Open to public daily except Sun. and holidays 10 a.m. to 12 m., 1.30 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$826? to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$8262 Carnegie bldg. 32 periodicals rec'd regu-larly: 7 newspapers; 25 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Wed.

Total books, etc. a. 4638: books 2358; pamphlets a. 2250; maps 30. Books added 60: gift 58; binding 2. Rep'd 68. Cardholders 226. Added 46: cancelled 47. Circulation S263: books 7582; periodicals 681. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 35 (34 from State Library).

FERNDALE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Harry W. Auten, Prin. Est. 1905; branch est. Aug. 1917, 22 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2443. Added 493: purchase 443; gift 50. Teachers 9; pupils 127.

Fortuna.

FORTUNA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, HUMBOLDT CO. FREE LIBRARY. G. W. Hoffman, Prin. Est. 1903; branch est. Jan. 1917. 21 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1850. Added 120 by purchase. Teachers 17; pupils 304.

IMPERIAL COUNTY.

(Seventeenth class.)

County seat, El Centro.

.

Area, 4316 sq. mi. Pop. 43,383.

Assessed valuation \$51,314,280 (taxable for county \$41,951,344).

IMPERIAL CO.-Continued.

IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY, EL CEN-TRO. Miss Evalyn Boman, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Feb. 6, 1912. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. Iaw, Feb. 6, 1912. Includes entire county for tax and serv-ice. El Centro and Imperial joined under Sec. 3. Co. Teachers' Library joined also. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$406.40. Annual income 1923-24, \$12,348.24 (from taxation \$5650.32, library tax being .15 m, on the dollar; from school districts Annual income in 2012, \$12, 513, 514, 512, 513, 514, 515 in, on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$5435; from Co. Teach-ers' Library fund \$120; from other sources \$1142.92). Total payments \$12,-452.05. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$302.59. 14 employees: 4 in office; 10 in branches. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in bldg, in rear of courthouse. Total branches 79. as fol-lows: community 29—Acacia, Alamitos, Alamo (r.r.), Andrade, Bard (r.r.), Beech, Brawley (r.r.), Calexico (r.r.), Calipatria (r.r.), Colorado, El Centro (r.r.), Elm, Glamis, Heber, Holtville (r.r.), Imperial (r.r.), Jasper, La Verne, McCabe Union, Mt. Signal Union, Niland, North End, Ogilby, Rockwood, Seeley (r.r.), Sunset Springs, Trifolium, Verde, Westmoreland; active school dis-tricts that have joined 54 (49 school branches)—Acacia, Alamitos, Alamo, An-heado Rawd Beach Brawley Caloxie branches)-Acacia, Alamitos, Alamo, An-Irade, Bard, Beech, Brawley, Calexico, Calexico High, Calipatria, Central, Col-orado, Dixieland, Eastside, El Centro, Elm, Eucalyptus, Fern, Glamis, Heber, Highline, Holtville, Imperial, Imperial High, Jasper, Laguna, Lantana, La Verne, McCabe Union (incl. Date and McCabe), Magnolia Union (incl. Date and McCabe), Magnolia Union (incl. Alam-orio and Magnolia), Meloland, Mesquite Lake, Mt. Signal Union (incl. Centinela, Lone Star, and Mt. Signal), Mulberry, Niland, North End, Ogilby, Picacho, Rockwood, Rose, Seeley Union (incl. Florence and Seeley), Silsbee, Spruce, Sunset Springs, Trifolium, Verde, Westmoreland, Westside, Winterhaven; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in El Centro. 115 periodicals rec'd regularly: 2 newspapers; 113 mags. Mags. distributed: 17 to office; 96 to branches.

Total books, etc. 71,609: books 53,-543; pamphlets 1349; maps 72; music records 236; stereographs and pictures 16,381; educational exhibits 28. Added 7910: books 6107 (purchase 5930, gift or exchange 177); pamphlets 61; maps 18; music records 109; stereographs and pictures 1615. Withdrawn 2885: books 2270 (burned 35, discarded 2235); pamphlets 3; maps 1; music records 16; stereographs and pictures 595. Books rep'd 436; reb'd 1677. Cardholders 9007. Added 1024; cancelled 79. Circulation 68,951: books 62,203; periodicals 6748. Vols, loaned to other libs, 5; borrowed

IMPERIAL CO.-Continued.

from other libs. 275 (233 from State Library). 951 shipments (47,859 items: 37,315 books; 10,544 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 25,621 were supplementary books. 5104 special requests.

During the year 45 visits were made to 11 branches. 1183 visits were made to headquarters by 47 custodians.

The story hour plan was extended this year so that we had six schools and two branches on our regular monthly schedule. In addition our story teller visited many other places during the year.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

We are all busy with Children's Book Week. Several of the branches are giving a course of instruction to the school children on the use of the library and the care of books during this period. During the first part of November, the Librarian, with one of her assistants, expects to visit and check up several of the branches, which are so far away that they have not been visited for some time, such as Bard, Andrade and Winterhaven.

We find that we will not be able to move into our new quarters until after the first of the year but we are not discouraged since we have been assured of all new equipment when we do move. Miss Willoughby attended the summer session of the Riverside Library School and is back again very enthusiastic over her work and the school. There seems to be more interest shown in the library work this year than ever before and we anticipate a wonderful year.

There has been a little change in the plans for the branch library at Westmoreland. It is now located in the schoolhouse with Mrs Higginbotham in charge. The principal of the school very generously donated a room with proper equipment to make a very nice reading room for the public.

Mr Spencer will be the new custodian for the Seeley Branch. He expects to take charge the first of the year. Mrs O. H. Mattall was appointed custodian of the Brawley Branch to fill the vacancy caused by Mrs Corns' resignation. Mrs Corns is attending the Teachers College in San Diego. She expects eventually to take up school library work.

IMPERIAL CO.—Continued.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .15 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$6300. EVALYN BOMAN, Lib'n.

IMPERIAL Co. LAW LIBRARY, EL CEN-TRO. Franklin J. Cole, Lib'n. Est. Jan. 1909. Open daily from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m. Located in courthouse. 12 periodicals ree'd regularly.

Total vols. 3468. Added 109.

IMPERIAL CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, EL CENTRO. H. C. Coe, Co. Supt. Joined Co. Free Library June 30, 1914. Income 1923-24, \$120, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Books located in Imperial Co. Free Library headquarters.

Teachers employed 326: elem. 229; high 97. Active school districts: elem. 53; high, union 6. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$8343; high \$7762. Vols. in schools, high 6410.

Brawley.

BRAWLEY BRANCH, IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Imperial Co. Free Library.

BRAWLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Geo. R. Momyer, Prin. Ann Wallace, Lib'n. Est. 1908; branch est. June, 1918. Open daily 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. for students of high school and for community. 19 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 200.

Annual report not rec'd.

Calexico.

CALEXICO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs Bess Wofford, Lib'n. Est. as Calex-'co Free Reading Room Feb. 1, 1909; as branch Imperial Co. Free Library Sept. 1, 1912; as F. P. Feb. 20, 1919. Annual income 1923-24, \$6029.21 (from taxation \$6007.14; from other sources \$22.07). Total payments \$5696.70. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$332.51. 3 employees. Open daily: week days 12 m. to 8 p.m.; Sun and holidays 3 to 9 p.m. Located in \$12,300 Carnegie bildg. 70 periodicals rec'd regularly: 8 newspapers; 62 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting Mon. night before first Tues.

Total books, etc. 7384: books 7055; pamphlets 318; maps 11. Added 1032: books 994 (purchase 823, gift 137, binding 34); pamphlets 36; maps 2. Books lost 65; discarded 10; rep'd 525; reb'd 296. Cardholders 950. Added 449. Circulation 28,332: books 25,953; periodicals

IMPERIAL CO .--- Continued.

Calexico-Continued.

2379. Vols. borrowed from State Library 95.

With the exception of the first grades, all school children were brought or sent to the library once during the year. Children from the second to the fifth grades were given instruction in the care of books, and where books suitable to each grade were to be found; stories were told them. Children from the sixth grade on through high school were given instruction in the use of the card catalog, Readers' Guide, distinction in classes of nonfiction, and the arrangement of books on the shelves.

CALEXICO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. C. B. Collins, Prin. Est. Sept. 18, 1910. 7 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 960. Added 50 by purchase. Teachers 13; pupils 150.

El Centro.

EL CENTRO [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, IMPERIAL CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Agnes F. Ferris, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 21, 1907; as F. P. June 29, 1909; joined Co. Free Library Feb. 27, 1912. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$2506.58. Annual income 1923-24 \$12,847.71 (from taxation \$12,594.47, library tax being 1.7 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$253.24). Total payments \$11,547.53. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$3506.76. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. and 7 to 9 p.m., Sun. 2 to 6 p.m. Located in \$11,000 Carnegie bldg. 102 periodicals (81 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 12 newspapers; 90 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Thurs.

Total books, etc. 17,218: books 14,694; serials 9; maps 55; prints 1560; stereographs 899; globes 1. Books added 1603: purchase 1257; gift or exchange 228; binding 118. Lost and discarded 360; rep'd 51; reb'd 201. Cardholders 4317. Added 787; cancelled 392. Circulation 45,379: books 42,646; periodicals 2473; other material 260. Vols. loaned to other libs. 41; borrowed from other libs. 209 (106 from State Library).

Beginning May 1 a course of six weeks apprentice work, with one lesson each day, was given to a class of three, two of whom are taking the Riverside Service School's summer course in library methods.

5-34984

IMPERIAL CO.-Continued.

El Centro—Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mrs Helen McGovney resigned from the staff June 30 and Miss Helen Crosby was appointed as assistant in her place.

The juvenile department was moved last year to a new room in the basement. This gave us the much needed space for new bookstacks and facilitated the work with the children, making it possible to hold story hours each Saturday. This move of the juvenile department made it necessary to add a third assistant to our staff and Miss Josephine Smith, who took practice work in this library last year and completed the short course at Riverside this summer, was appointed Sept. 1 to work half time.

AGNES F. FERRIS, Lib'n.

EL CENTRO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY. J. L. HOUSE, Prin. Ruth Bullock, Lib'n. Est. 1908; branch est. Sept. 23, 1914. 12 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 500. Teachers 22; pupils 350.

IMPERIAL Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Imperial Co.

Holtville.

HOLTVILLE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Est. May, 1909; branch est. May, 1918. 12 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3413. Teachers a. 16; pupils a. 210.

Annual report not rec'd.

Imperial.

IMPERIAL [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, IMPERIAL CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Mrs D. W. Hatch, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. June 17, 1908; open to public April 3, 1909; joined Co. Free Library March 13, 1912. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$572.21. A n u al income 1923–24, \$1236.88 (from taxation \$1226.36; from other sources \$10.52). Total payments \$1827.45. Deficit July 1, 1924, \$18.36. 2 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 10 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5.30 p.m. three days; 1 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. three days; 1 to 5.0 for. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 34 periodicals rec'd regularly: 3 newspapers; 31 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 4722. Added 166: purchase 161; gift 5. Lost 5; discarded 48. Cardholders 1851. Added 164; cancelled 207. Circulation 6865.

IMPERIAL CO.-Continued.

Imperial-Continued.

I M P E RIAL VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, IMPERIAL Co. FREE LIBRARY. Est. Oct. 1, 1906; branch est. Feb. 1919. 11 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1475. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 145.

Annual report not rec'd.

Seeley.

SEELEY BRANCH, IMPERIAL CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Imperial Co. Free Library.

Westmoreland.

WESTMORELAND BRANCH, IMPERIAL Co. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Imperial Co, Free Library.

INYO COUNTY.

(Forty-seventh class.)

County seat, Independence.

Area, 10,224 sq. mi. Pop. 7031.

Assessed valuation \$18,690,398 (taxable for county \$11,403,095).

INYO CO. FREE LIBRARY, INDEPEND-CE. Miss Anne Margrave, Lib'n. Est. ENCE under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Sept. 15, 1913; work started Oct. 1, 1913. In-cludes entire county for tax and service. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$2381.83. Annual in-come 1923-24, \$8757.80 (from taxation \$5554.00 librow tax tax tax \$5584.98, library tax being .5 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$1480; from Co. Teachers' Library fund
\$55; from other sources \$1637.82). Total payments \$8267.01. Bal. July 1, 1924.
\$2872.62. 17 employees: 2 in office; 15 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and to 9 p.m. Located on ground floor of courthouse. Total branches 43, as follows: community 16-Big Pine (r. r.), lows: community 10-Big File (F.F.), Bishop (r. r.), Coso, Darwin, Death Val-ley, Haiwee, Independence (r. r.), Keeler, Laws, Lone Pine (r. r.), Manzanar (r. r.), Owenyo, Power Plant, Ryan, Shoshone, Tecopa : active school districts Shoshone, Tecopa, active school branches) that have joined 30 (26 school branches) —Aberdeen, Big Pine Union (incl. Big Pine and Fish Springs), Bishop, Gram-mar School Union (incl. Bishop, Sunland, and Warm Springs). Bishop Union High, Cartago, Darwin, Death Valley, Inde-pendence, Keeler, Lone Pine, Manzanar, Milton, North Inyo, Olancha, Owenyo, Owens Valley Union High, Pleasant Valley, Poleta, Power Plant, Riverside, in her statements, and the banks will Round Valley, Ryan, Shoshone, Station, Tecopa, Union, Valley, West Bishop;

INYO CO.—Continued.

special school branches 1-Co. Teachers' Library in Independence, 150 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 20 newspapers; 130 mags. Distributed: 5 to office; 145 to branches.

Total books, etc. 24,343: books 17,787; pamphlets 5742; maps 239; music records 112; stereographs 406; charts 20; globes 13: stereoscopes 24. Added 2520: books 2058 (purchase 1644, gift or exchange 373, binding 41); pamphlets 405; maps 35; music records 18; charts 3; globes 1. Withdrawn 946: books 776 (lost 56, discarded 720); pamphlets 165; music records 5. Books reb'd 123. Cardholders 3183. Added 401; cancelled 350. Circulation 38,677: books 32,986; periodicals 5691. Vols. loaned to other libs. 1: borrowed from other libs. 222 (216 from State Library). 603 shipments (7392 items: 7076 books; 54 periodicals; 262 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 2748 were supplementary books. In addition 2329 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 4722 special requests.

During the year 19 visits were made to 11 branches. 15 visits to headquarters were made by 8 custodians. 1 branch was established; 2 branches were suspended (Poleta School District and Keeler Branch).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The Library is working on the celebration of Children's Book Week at Independence, Bishop and Lone Pine, in conjunction with clubs and schools. At Bishop, the Parent-Teachers' Association will serve tea at the Library at the close of the library hours, to the teachers of Bishop and nearby schools, and a Fathers' Meeting will be held before the evening hours. The County Librarian will speak at these meetings and at other club meetings. Several of the teachers are working out interesting projects with their pupils, and the children's interest is to be utilized in invitations to the parents.

It seemed advisable to work out a plan of reaching more fully all the scattered residents of the county, so insertion slips were printed addressed primarily to the taxuaver who does not use the library, but also of interest to others. The tax collector allowed us to place these slips

INYO CO .--- Continued.

to depositors. We are not attempting to distribute them through the branches.

The assistant in the County Library, Mrs Jessie Roeper, spent her vacation in Los Angeles, and utilized an extra week in the mending department of the Los Angeles Public Library, learning the tricks of that trade.

Mrs W. J. Garity succeeds her husband as custodian at the Death Valley Branch. The branch has been moved into the new Adobe Town, into a room used very generally by all the camp. More books have been added to the collection, and the circulation has responded to the new conditions. Mrs Helen Strong was appointed custodian at Owenyo Branch, in place of Ruth Wilhite, resigned.

Page service has been allowed at Bishop Branch for the busy hours. Miss Mardell Smith is doing the work.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .5 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$5700. ANNE MARGRAVE, Lib'n.

INYO CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY AND BRANCH, INYO CO. FREE LIBRARY, BISHOP, A. A. Brierly, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined County Free Library May 8, 1917. Income 1923-24, \$35, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Teachers employed 67: elem. 44; high 23. Active school districts: elem. 28; high, union 4. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$1050; high \$1964. Vols. in schools: elem. 647; high 6396.

Big Pine.

BIG PINE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LA-BRARY. Ray O. Diether, Prin. Est. 1910. Open primarily for students Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 3 p.m. 3 mags. ree'd regularly.

Teachers a. 3; pupils a. 26. Annual report not rec'd.

Bishop.

BISHOP BRANCH, INYO CO. FREE LI-BRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Inyo Co. Free Library.

BISHOP UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, INYO CO. FREE LIBRARY. E. W. Locher, Prin. Est. 1902; branch est. Aug. 3, 1918. 58 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1850. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 92.

Annual report not rec'd.

INYO CO.—Continued.

Bishop-Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Our Board of Trustees has voted \$200 for aid in supporting the Inyo County Library in return for its services to us.

We have about 1850 books on our own shelves, and perhaps 4500 textbooks of various kinds in the school.

We are emphasizing the use of magazines this year in a number of classes, and for professional reading. We shall subscribe for about 58 magazines and also the Readers' Guide.

Student library helpers assist our Librarian, Miss Frances E. Yaney. We are hoping to have a more effective indexing system for books inaugurated in the near future.

E. W. LOCHER, Prin.

Death Valley.

DEATH VALLEY BRANCH, INYO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Inyo Co. Free Library.

Independence.

OWENS VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, INYO CO. FREE LIBRABY. Mrs Mabel G. Lazier, Prin. Est. Sept., 1916. Open 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. 5 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 190. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 44.

Annual report not rec'd.

INYO Co. free and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Inyo Co.

Lone Pine.

LONE PINE BRANCH, INYO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Inyo Co. Free Library.

LONE PINE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, Y. M. Oberkoller, Prin. Open to students school days. 10 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 750. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 35.

Annual report not rec'd.

Owenyo.

OWENYO BRANCH, INYO CO. FREE LI-BRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Inyo Co. Free Library.

KERN COUNTY.

(Twelfth class.) County seat, Bakersfield.

Area, 8159 sq. mi. Pop. 54,843.

Assessed valuation \$188,198,003 (taxable for county \$157,230,345).

KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY, BAKERSFIELD. Mrs Julia G. Babcock, Lib'n. Est. Nov. 16, 1910; under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, July 11, 1911; work started Nov. 1, 1911. Includes entire county for tax and serv-Kern Co. Law Library and Kern Co. Kern Co. Law Library and Kern Co. Teachers' Library joined. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$22,399.88. Annual income 1923-24, \$102,671.90 (from taxation \$90,146.82, library tax being .6 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$8817: from School districts having the dollar; from school districts having joined \$8817; from Co. Teachers' Li-brary fund \$175; from other sources \$3533.08). Total payments \$81,428.88. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$43,642.90. 96 em-ployees: 16 in office; 80 in branches. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 3 to 6 p.m. Located in basement of courthouse. Total branches 184, as follows: commun-ity 73—Annette. Arvin. Associated Mid-Total branches 184, as follows: commun-ity 73—Annette, Arvin, Associated Mid-way (r.r.), Bakersfield (r.r.), Amer-ican (r.r.), Boys and Girls (r.r.), Detention Home, East Bakersfield (r.r.), Elks Club, Kern Co. Farm Adviser, Home Demonstration Agent, Martiaultusal Commission and Meanital Horticultural Commission and Hospital Horticultural Commission and Hospital (r.r.) in Bakersfield, Belridge, Borel Club, Boy Scout Club, Buttonwillow, Caliente, Delano (r. r.), Domino, Dudley, Elk Hills (r. r.), Fellows (r. r.), General Petroleum (r. r.), General Petroleum Lebec, Glennville, Gosford, Hay Lease, Hoover Farm, Inyokern, Isabella, Jas-mine, Johannesburg, Junction Oil Sta-tion, Keene, Kern River No. 1 (r. r.) (formerly Edison Power Plant), Kern River No. 3 (r. r.) (formerly Edison Camp No. 1), Kernville, Kiddie Camp Temporary, Kilowatt, Kimberlena Pump-ing Station, Loraine, Lost Hills, Mc-Temporary, Kilowatt, Kimberlena Pump-ing Station, Loraine, Lost Hills, Mc-Farland (r. r.), McKittrick (r. r.), Mal-tha, Maricopa (r. r.), Mojave (r. r.), Mount Owen, Muroc, Oil Center (r. r.), Oildale, Onyx, Panama (r. r.), Pattiway, Petroleum, Pond, Randsburg, Rio Bravo Pumping Station, Rosamond (r. r.), Rosedale, Shafter (r. r.), Standard Mid-way (r. r.), Stony Brook Retreat (r. r.), Taft (r. r.), Tehachapi (r. r.), Tejon Ranch, U. S. Experiment Farm, Wasco (r. r.), Weed Patch (r. r.), Wheeler Ridge, Willow Springs, Woody; active school districts that have joined 108 (104 school branches) — Adventist School, A g u a Caliente, Annette, Aqueduct, Caliente, Annette, Aqueduct, Agua Aztec, Barnes, Beardsley, Bel-Blake, Bowerbank, Brundage, Vista, Buttonwillow, Caliente, Arvin, ridge, Buena Cameron, Cleveland, Cummings Valley, Delano Grammar School Union (incl. Delano and Midland), Delano Joint Union High School, Duncan, Edison, Elk

KERN CO.-Continued.

KERN CO.—Continued. Hills, Emidio, Fairfax, Fairview, Fruit-vale, Garlock, Granite, Greeley, Green-field, Greenhorn, Hamlin, Indian Wells Valley Union (incl. Brown, Inyokern, Los Flores, Orchard), Isabella, Jasmine, Johannesburg, Keene, Kern County Union High, Kernville, Landers, Lebec, Lerdo, Lincoln, Linn's Valley, Lost Hills, McFarland Union (inel. McFarland, Robertson, Stiles), McKittrick, Maple, Maricopa High, Midway, Miller, Mojave, M o r r i s o n, Mountain View, Munzer, Muroc, Norris, North Fork, Old Paleto, Old River, Old Town, Olig, Ordena, Paleto, Palm, Paloma, Panama, Persh-ing, Petroleum, Pond, Poplar, Poso Flat, Progress, Randsburg, Red Rock, Richland, Rio Bravo, Rockpile, Rooss-velt, Rosamond, Rosedale, Sawmill, Semitropic, Shafter, South Fork, Union (incl. Scodie, South Fork, Weldon), Standard, Stine, Stony Brook Retreat, Tehachapi, Tejon Indian, Toltec, Union Avenue, Vaughn, Vineland, Wasco J, West Antelope, Wildwood, Willow Springs, Woody; special school branches 7—Office Collections for School Superintendent and School Supervisors. 1274 periodicals rec'd regularly: 61 newspapers; 1213 mags. Distributed: 254 to office; 1020 rec'd regularly: 61 newspapers; 1213 mags. Distributed: 254 to office; 1020 to branches.

Total books, etc. 217,991: books 175,060; pamphlets 18,192; maps 564; prints 2090; slides 1931; films 1; music records 861; music rolls 81; stereographs 18.989; charts 56; globes 66; stereoscopes 100. Added 71,631: books 55,904 (purchase 14,662, gift or exchange 281, binding 343, consolidation of City Libraries 40,618); pamphlets 10,805; maps 91; prints 1303; slides 300; music records 97; music rolls 7; stereographs 3101; charts 1; globes 12; stereoscopes 10. Books lost 1163; discarded 4818; rep'd 4710; reb'd 3290. Cardholders 32,104: headquarters 3445; branches 28,659. Added 22,558; cancelled 17,832. Circulation 413,947 (from headquarters 99,013, from branches 314,934): books 392,683; periodicals 16,074; other material 5190. Vols. loaned to other libs. 58; borrowed from other libs. 381 (379 from State Library). 3942 shipments (64,917 items: 63,315 books; 1602 other material) were sent to branches. the above 37,908 were supplementary books. In addition 6625 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 40,187 special requests.

During the year 235 visits were made to 81 branches. 257 visits were made to headquarters by custodians.

KERN CO.-Continued.

KERN CO .- Continued.

The branch library building at Mc-Kittrick is being completed. It is erected from county library funds at a cost of \$6000, with equipment costing about \$1800.

In addition Kern County Free Library has branch buildings as follows: Delano Branch, located in \$9000 library building, plus \$2500 equipment. Erected and equipped from Kern County Library fund. Oil Center Branch, located in portable library building erected from county library fund at cost of \$800. Taft Branch, located in \$10,000 library building, plus \$2500 equipment. Erected and equipped from Kern County Library fund. Wasco Branch, located in \$7500 library building, plus \$2000 equipment. Erected and equipped from Kern County Library fund. McFarland Branch, located in \$11,000 library building, plus \$2500 equipment. Erected and equipped from Kern County Library fund. Maricopa Branch, located in \$10,000 library building, plus \$2000 equipment. Erected and equipped from Kern County Library fund. The Boys and Girls Branch is located in \$8000 Beale Memorial building in Bakersfield, and the East Bakersfield Branch in \$30,000 building.

The Bakersfield City Library was consolidated with the Kern Co. Free Library, Sept. 4, 1923, and was put into the same quarters in December, 1923.

Two high school students have taken up a study of reference books at the library for which they have received high school credit. All 8th grade classes in the Bakersfield Schools have had a little course during school hours at the library on "How to use a library."

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mrs Harriet B. Stovall, Law Librarian, resigned her position in order to accompany her husband to San Diego where he has been made instructor of Engineering in the San Diego State Teachers College. Mr James Ogden Reavis has been appointed Law Librarian. Mr Reavis is a graduate of the Stanford University Law School. During the absence of Judge H. A. Peairs October 10, Mr Reavis sat as judge in a case and his decision was approved and highly commended. He was said on that occasion to be the youngest judge in the state, as he is twenty-three years of age.

Miss Aimée Peters has been appointed head cataloger to take the position left vacant by Miss Florence Wheaton when she was appointed librarian of the San Benito County Free Library. Miss Peters was head cataloger of the library of the College of Agriculture, at Cornell University.

The librarian has opened a little book shop in Bakersfield because of the need of a discriminating book store in this growing city. She has placed a woman in charge who is well and favorably known throughout the community and who is as accurate as a cash register. Current books, both fiction and nonfiction, are featured, the best in children's books, a "quality" line of magazines, and fine stationery and cards make up the stock.

The Bakersfield schools have joined the County Free Library system and are receiving service at all schools. The Walker's Basin school contracted for school service August 6.

The tax rate for 1924–25 is .5 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$85,000. JULIA G. BABCOCK, Lib'n.

Miss Mable Duff, assistant at the East Bakersfield Branch of Kern Co. Free Library, died Aug. 4. She had come to Bakersfield in March from her home state Wyoming.—Bakersfield *Echo*, Ag 5

KERN CO. LAW LIBRARY, BAKERSFIELD. Julia G. Babcock, Lib'n.; J. O. Reavis, in charge. Est. a. Dec. 14, 1891, Turned over to care of Kern Co. Free Library, July 7, 1920. Annual income rec'd from \$2 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Open to public week days 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse on 3d floor. 4 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 6700. Added 175.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Kern Co. Free Library.

KERN CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, BAK-ERSFIELD. L. E. Chenoweth, Co. Supt. Joined County Free Library and cared for by County Free Library. Annual income 1923–24, \$175, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$175.

Teachers employed 591: elem. 449; high 142. Active school districts: elem. 103; high 5 (7 high schools): district 1;

KERN CO.-Continued.

union 3; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$15,842; high \$16,194. Vols. in schools: elem. 39,386; high 25,732.

KERN CO. UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY, BAKERSFELD. H. A. Spindt, Prin. Mrs H. S. Craig, Lib'n. Est. 1893; joined Co. F. L. Sept. 6, 1916. 71 mags. (57 from Co.) and 3 newspapers (2 from Co.) rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 3063. Added 22 by purchase. Teachers 72; pupils a. 1425.

Bakersfield.

BEALE MEMORIAL [FREE PUBLIC] LIBRARY.

Consolidated with Kern Co. Free Library, Sept. 4, 1923.

BAKERSFIELD SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Delano.

DELANO JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY. L. A. Baker, Prin. Mrs Nellie Stiles Woosley, Lib'n, Est. 1911; branch est. Oct. 7, 1916. 46 mags, and 1 newspaper from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1194. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 146.

Annual report not rec'd.

Maricopa.

MARICOPA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY, J. R. Cookman, Prin. Est. 1916. 3 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 420. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 89.

Annual report not rec'd.

Taft.

TAFT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. J. T. McReur, Prin. Est. July 1, 1915. 2 employees. 59 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2651. Teachers a. 30; pupils a. 500.

Annual report not rec'd.

Walker's Basin School Dist.

(P. O. Caliente).

WALKER'S BASIN SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, KERN CO. FREE LIBRARY, WAS established Aug. 6, 1924.

Wasco.

WASCO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. PINES 5578; music records 141, stereo-C. C. Hill, Prin. Est. Sept. 20, 1915.; graphs 5239; charts 314; globes 32.

KERN CO .--- Continued.

Wasco-Continued.

branch est. Oct. 7, 1916. 20 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2420. Teachers a. 9; pupils a. 147.

Annual report not rec'd.

KINGS COUNTY.

(Twenty-ninth class)

County seat, Hanford.

Area, 1373 sq. mi. Pop. 22,031.

Assessed valuation \$30,769,229 (taxable for county \$25,824,262).

KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY, HANFORD. Miss Julia Steffa, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, June 4, 1912; work began Nov. 12, 1912. Includes entire county for tax and service as Hanford joined under Sec. 3. Co. Teachers' Li-brary joined also. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$7647.88. Annual income 1923-24, \$33,644.23 (from taxation \$23,740.55, li-\$33,644.23 (from taxation \$23,740.55, li-brary tax being 1 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$7555.93; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$110; from other sources \$2237.75). Total payments \$31,040.51. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$10,251.60. 27 employees: 6 in office; 21 in branches. Open daily, except Sat. afternoons, Sun. and holidays, 9 a.m. to 5 n pr. Located in courthouse. Total 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. Total branches 58, as follows: community 22-(r. r.), Adventist. Armona Corcoran, Grangeville (r. r.), Crescent, Dallas, Dallas, Grangeville Hanford Public Li-(r.r.), Guernsey, Hanford Public Li-brary (r.r.), and Farm Adviser, Home Demonstration and Horticultural Branch in Hanford, Hardwick (r. r.), Island, Lemoore (r. r.), Lemoore Standard Oil, Lucerne, Murray, Mussel Slough, Reef, Riverbend, San Jose, Stratford (r. r.) active school districts that have joined active school districts that have joined 38 (35 school branches)—Armona, Cor-coran Union (incl. Corcoran and Tens-muir), Corcoran Union High, Crescent, Cross Creek, Dallas, Delta View, Empire, Eucalyptus, Eureka, Excelsior, Frazer, Grangeville, Hanford, Hardwick, Island, Jacobs King, Kings Bivar Lakazida Jacobs, King, Kings River, Lakeside, Lemoore Union (incl. Lake and Le-moore), Lucerne, Mussel Slough, New Home, Oakvale, Paddock, Ramona, Reef, Dentio Rustic, San Jose, Stratford Union (incl. Rustic, San Jose, Stratford Union (incl. Lakeview and Stratford), Sunset, Wayne, Willow Grove, Youd; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Hanford. 921 periodicals (839 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 22 news-papers; 885 mags.; 14 other serials. Dis-tributed: 38 to office; 883 to branches.

Total books, etc. 94,083: books 81,277; pamphlets 1142; serials 14; maps 346; prints 5578; music records 141; stereographs 5239; charts 314; globes 32.

KINGS CO.-Continued.

Added 12,556: books 12,495 (purchase 12,483, gift 12); pamphlets 6; maps 49; music records 3; charts 1; globes 2. Books lost 1; discarded 3880; rep'd 711; reb'd 754. Cardholders 10,127. Added 758; cancelled 471. Circulation 97.683; books 91,804; periodicals 5513; other material 366. Vols. loaned to other libs. 11: borrowed from other libs, 366 (349) from State Library), 1938 shipments (35,317 items: 34,015 books; 936 periodicals; 366 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 23.031 were supplementary books. In addition 12,589 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 1559 special requests,

During the year 142 visits were made to 58 branches. 966 visits were made to headquarters by 58 custodians.

Kings Co. Free Library has 3 branch buildings owned by the county: Grangeville, costing \$2500; Hardwick, costing \$1700; Stratford, costing \$1900.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

A complete inventory was made during the summer months of all books, maps, globes, charts, and other material left by teachers in the schools of the county.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .8 m. on the dollar.

JULIA STEFFA, Lib'n.

KINGS CO. LAW LIBRARY, HANFORD, E. F. Pickerill, in charge. Est. July 1, 1893. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. 1 employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. Library trustees meet at call of chairman.

Total vols, 2100.

.

KINGS CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY AND BRANCH, KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY, HANFORD. Miss M. L. Richmond, Co. Supt. Est. 1903; Joined Kings County Free Library Nov. 26, 1915. Moved to Co. Library Office April, 1921. Income 1923–24. \$68, from ½ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$110. 4 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Teachers employed 208: elem. 155; high 53. Active school districts: elem. 37 (incl. 1 jt.); high: union 2; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$6916; high \$4378. Vols. in schools, high 9941.

KINGS CO.—Continued.

Corcoran.

CORCORAN UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY. Roger S. Phelps, Prin. Est. 1914; branch est. Dec. 27, 1915. 18 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1735. Added 80 by purchase. Teachers 10; pupils 135.

Hanford.

HANFORD FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, KINGS CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Julia Steffa, Lib'n. Est. 1890; as F. P. 1900; joined Co. Free Library Nov. 12, 1912. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3540.59. Annual income 1923–24, \$7901.72 (from taxation \$7000; from other sources \$901.72). Total payments \$8294.24. Bal, July 1, 1924, \$3148.07. 5 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$12,500 Carnegie bldg. 113 periodicals (110 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 10 newspapers; 101 mags.; 2 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting second Thurs.

Total vols. 9156. Added 673 by purchase. Discarded 200; reb'd 314. Cardholders 6845. Added 634; cancelled 271. Circulation 70,443: books 64,669; periodicals 5774. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 142 (139 from State Library).

HANFORD UNION HIGH SCHOOL LA-BRARY, Jacob L. Neighbor, Prin. Miss Edith M. Church, Lib'n. Est, 1895, 40 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly. Total vols. 2994. Added 170. Teachers

31; pupils 650.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

We have nine girls taking library work this year and we are planning to put on a skit for the Girls' League Convention of the San Joaquin Valley, which is to be held in November of this year. We are doing many other interesting things to make the rest of the school realize that the library is a living body instead of a machine.

EDITH M. CHURCH, Lib'n.

Lemoore.

LEMOORE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. J. F. Graham, Prin. Rose E. Collins, Lib'n. Est. 1901. Open to public 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. 26 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2383. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 150.

LAKE COUNTY.

(Fifty-first class.)

County seat, Lakeport. Area, 1332 sq. mi. Pop. 5402.

Assessed valuation \$7,051,345 (taxable for county \$6,999,530).

LAKE CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, LAKE-PORT. Minerva Ferguson, Co. Supt. Income 1923–24, \$15, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$6.52.

Total vols. 433. Teachers employed 70: elem. 40; high 30. Active school districts: elem. 29; high, union 5. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$1070; high \$1603. Vols. in schools: elem. 9397; high 9913.

Kelseyville.

KELSEYVILLE FREE LIBRARY. Mrs Della Laughlin, Lib'n. Est. 1914. Annual income 1923–24, \$160.85. Total payments \$112.68. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$48.17. 2 employees (unpaid). Open to public Tues. and Sat. afternoons.

Total vols. a. 1405. Added 105: purchase 85; gift or exchange 20.

Lakeport.

LAKEPORT [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Ella M. Clark Lib'n. Est. Nov. 13, 1906; as F. P. Sept. 7, 1910. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$689.62. Annual income 1923– 24, \$1511.42 (from taxation \$1448.72, library tax being 2.1 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$62.70). Total payments \$1146.33. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1054.71. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Sat. 2 to 5.30 p.m. and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sat. also 10 a.m. to 12 m. Located in \$8700 Carnegie bldg. 46 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 4 newspapers; 31 mags; 1 transaction; 10 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total books, etc. 4892: books 4868; pamphlets 10; maps 2; stereographs 6; other material 6. Added 477: books 468 (purchase 4, gift or exchange 464); pamphlets 2; maps 1; other material 6. Books discarded 107. Cardholders 1027. Added 91; c an celled 75. Circulation 11,522: books 8800; periodicals 2722. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 24 (all from State Library).

CLEAR LAKE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Wm. R. McNair, Prin. Est. 1904. 10 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 100.

Annual report not rec'd.

LAKE CO. teachers' library is the first listed under Lake Co.

LAKE CO.—Continued.

Lower Lake.

LOWER LAKE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Malcolm E. McGillvray, Prin. Est. Sept. 1922. 4 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 583. Added 183: purchase 178; gift 5. Teachers 4; pupils 26. Circulation 211.

The budget allows \$600 for purchase of books this year.

Middletown.

MIDDLETOWN UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. F. Burke, Prin. Est. Aug., 1914. 4 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 900. Teachers a. 3; pupils a. 31.

Annual report not rec'd.

Upper Lake.

HARRIET LEE HAMMOND FREE LI-BRARY. Hattie Porter, Lib'n. Est. Oct. 19, 1914. Supported by donations. 1 employee. Open daily 3 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$6000 Hammond Memorial bldg.

Total vols. a. 2567.

Annual report not rec'd.

UPPER LAKE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. John H. Thompson, Prin. Est. Sept. 1918. 21 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1600. Teachers a. 4.

Annual report not rec'd.

LASSEN COUNTY.

(Forty-fourth class.)

County seat, Susanville.

Area, 4750 sq. mi. Pop. 8507.

Assessed valuation \$17,343,600 (taxable for county \$13,118,732).

LASSEN Co. FREE LIBRARY, SUSAN-VILLE. Miss Lenala A. Martin, Lib'n. Est, under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Sept. 7, 1915; work started Oct. 1, contract having been made under Sec. 5 with Sacramento Co. for librarian; contract cancelled Oct. 1, 1921. Includes entire county for tax and service. Co. Teach-'ers' Library joined. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$234.18. Annual income 1923–24. \$12, 679.01 (from taxation \$7641.58, library 'tax being .6 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$3025; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$39; from other s o u r ce \$ \$179.743. Total payments \$12,913.19. 69 employees: 4 in office; 65 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in courthouse. Total branches 77, as follows: community 36—Amedee, Bieber (r.r.), Buntingville, Calneva, De-Witt, Doyle, Eagle Lake, Edgemont, Fair-

LASSEN CO .-- Continued.

view, Fruit Growers (r. r.), Fruit Growers Camps (3), Gibson, Glade, Grasshopper Valley, Hayden Hill, Janesville, Karlo, Little Valley, Lucerne, Madeline, Milford, Pittville, Providence, Ravendale, Red Rock, Riverside, Riverside Hospital, Standish, Susanville (r. r.), Lassen Co. Hospital and Main Office in Susanville, Termo (r. r.), Wendel, Westwood (r. r.); active school districts that have joined 42 (40 school branches)—Amedee, Ash Valley, Bieber, Bird Flat, Bridgeport, Center, Constantia, Dixie Valley, Dry Valley, Eagle Lake, Fairview, Fort Sage, Glade, Hayden Hill, Highland, Honey Lake Union (incl. Honey Lake, Soldier Bridge and Standish), Janesville, Jefferson, Johnstonville, Juniper, Lake, Little Valley, Long Valley, Lucerne, McDonald, Madeline, Milford, Missouri Bend, Pine Grove, Pitt River, Poplar, Providence, Ravendale, Richmond, Riverside, Secret Valley, Susanville, Washington, Westwood, Willow Creek; special school branches 1.—C6. Teachers' Library in Susanville. 170 periodicals (149 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 14 newspapers; 156 mags. Distributed: 21 to office; 149 to branches.

Total books, etc. 33,714: books 27,500; pamphlets 2508; maps 133; music records 518; stereographs 47; framed pictures 104; mounted pictures 2792; charts 72; globes 40. Added 4154: books 3813 (purchase 3661, gift or exchange 135, binding 17); pamphlets 266; maps 36; music records 5; stereographs 13; mounted pictures 5; charts 10; globes 6. Withdrawn 444: books 419 (lost 10, discarded 409); music records 16; mounted pictures 9. Books rep'd 4384; reb'd 581. Cardholders 3841: headquarters C6; branches 3775. Added 648; cancelled 440. Circulation 57,731: books 54,760; periodicals 1761; other material 1210. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 441 (all from State Library). 729 shipments (16,446 items: 15,236 books; 1210 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 7000 were supplementary books. In addition 3091 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 9651 special requests.

During the year 23 visits were made to 17 branches. 95 visits were made to headquarters by 46 custodians. 1 branch was established; 5 branches were discontinued (incl. Ash Valley School Dist. suspended).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The Librarian gave a short talk at Teachers' Institute September 13.

LASSEN CO .- Continued.

A small collection of books of interest to mothers was taken to Milwood School as a deposit station for the use of the mothers of that district. The Librarian talked about all the books and many were borrowed.

The Library had a booth at the County Fair. Owing to a hard rain storm the last day, the booth had to be taken down hastily to save spoiling our books and pictures. Our decorations were entirely spoiled.

Two art classes have been started this year. One class consists of 16 members and the other of 10. Three people take both courses making the total number 23.

Calneva Branch Library was transferred to Stacy Sept. 1. It is now in charge of Mrs Frances Newman. Mrs Edna Winter Whitlock now has charge of Susanville Branch Library. Mrs Mitcheltree gives all her time to the County Library Main Office. She still gives the Story Hour for Susanville Branch. The hour has been changed from Saturday morning to Wednesday afternoon. Branches were established at Glade and Providence July 1.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .7 m. on the dollar.

LENALA A. MARTIN, Lib'n.

LASSEN CO. HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, SUSANVILLE. Robert M. Fulton, Prin. Est. 1902. 1 branch at Bieber. 4 mags. ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1080. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 80.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

We have just added to our library several volumes of books in vocational guidance. We are planning in connection with the library to give definite vocational information to the High School pupils and are also planning to send mimeographed material to the grade schools.

ROBERT M. FULTON, Prin.

LASSEN CO. LAW LIBRARY, SUSAN-YHLLE. H. D. Burroughs, Superior Judge, in charge. Income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Open to public 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in judge's chambers.

Total vols. a. 925.

LASSEN CO.-Continued.

LASSEN CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, SUSANVILLE, Mrs Julia A. Norwood, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined Lassen Co. Free Library Oct. 25, 1915. Income 1923-24, \$39, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$39.

Teachers employed 97: elem. 73; high 24. Active school districts: elem. 41; high: district 1; union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$3025; high \$1982. Vols. in schools: elem. 5991; high \$175.

Calneva.

CALNEVA BRANCH, LASSEN CO. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued Sept. 1, 1924.

Glade (P. O. and exp. Ravendale).

GLADE BRANCH, LASSEN CO. FREE LI-BRARY, was established July 1, 1924.

Milwood School Dist.

MILWOOD SCHOOL DIST. DEPOSIT STA-TION, LASSEN CO. FREE LIBRARY, WAS established during the quarter.

Providence (P. O. Adin).

PROVIDENCE BRANCH, LASSEN CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established July 1, 1924.

Stacy.

STACY BRANCH, LASSEN CO. FREE LI-BRARY, was established Sept. 1, 1924.

Standish (No exp. office).

*STANDISH LITERARY CLUB LIBRARY. Mrs Nettie S. Doyle, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 4, 1905. Income from membership dues, etc. Open at any time to members only. Located in residence of Mrs Nettie S. Doyle.

Total vols. a. 169.

Annual report not rec'd.

Susanville.

SUSANVILLE BRANCH, LASSEN CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Lassen Co. Free Library.

LASSEN Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Lassen Co.

Westwood.

WESTWOOD FREE LIBRARY. Mrs R. Green, Custodian. Est. a. Feb. 1920. Open daily 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in basement of community church. 100 mags. and 13 newspapers ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1300. Cardholders a. 806. Annual report not rec'd.

LASSEN CO .--- Continued.

Westwood—Continued.

WESTWOOD HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. D. Miller, Prin. Est. 1915. Open primarily for students. 6 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1596. Teachers 10.

LOS ANGELES COUNTY.

(First class.)

County seat, Los Angeles.

Area 3880 sq. mi. Pop. 936,438.

Assessed valuation \$2,716,223,805 (taxable for county \$2,375,150,555).

LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY, LOS LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY, LOS ANGELES. Miss Helen E. Vogleson, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Sept. 5, 1912. Includes entire county for tax and service except Alhambra, Ar-cadia, Azusa, Covina, Glendale, Glendora, Long Beach, Los Angeles, Monrovia, Boundore Boome and Reader de Boach Long Beach, Los Angeles, Monrovia, Pasadena, Pomona, Redondo Beach, Santa Monica, Sierra Madre, South Pasa-dena, and Whittier. Watts joined under Sec. 3. Co. Teachers' Library joined also. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$49,160.12. Annual income 1923-24, \$235,899.02 (from tax-ation \$189,441.28, library tax being .5 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$35,312,66; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$2857; from other sources \$8288.08). Total payments \$208,sources \$8288.08). Total payments \$208,-154.28. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$76,904.86. 214 employees: 28 in office; 186 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 8.30 a.m. to 12 m. Located in p.m.; Sat. 8.30 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Hall of Records, Broadway annex. Total branches 327, as follows: community 178 —Acton, Agua Dulce, Alameda, Almon-dale, Altadena (r. r.), Alturas, American Can Co. (r. r.), Andrew Jackson, Annan-dale (r. r.), Antelope, Artesia (r. r.), Avalon (r. r.), Baldwin Park (r. r.), Bassett, Bee (r. r.), Bell (r. r.), Bell Vernon, Belleview, Bellflower (r. r.), Belvedere (r. r.), B-Gardens (r. r.), Beverly Hills (r. r.), Bloomfield, Bur-bank (r. r.), Carmenita, Casa Verdugo, Cas (r. r.), Carmenita, Casa Verdugo, Cas-taic, Central School Dist., Charter Oak, Claremont (r. r.), Clearwater-Hynes (r. r.), Compton (r. r.), Cornell, Culver City (r. r.), Decker, Del Sur, Dominguez, City (r. r.), Decker, Del Sur, Donnigues, Downey (r. r.), Duarte, East Whittier, Elizabeth Lake, El Monte (r. r.), El Re-tiro (r. r.), El Segundo (r. r.), El Venado, Enterprise, Esperanza, Fair-Venado, Enterprise, Esperanza, Fair-mont, Fairview, Florence (r. r.), Galla-tin, Garvey, Graham (r. r.), Grant, Green Meadows, Hammel, Hawthorne (r. r.), Hermosa Beach (r. r.), Honby, Hopetown (r. r.), Huntington Park (r. r.), Inglewood (r. r.), Inglewood Acres, Irwindale, Jefferson, La Ballona, La Cañada (r. r.), La Crescenta (r. r.), Laguna, La Mirada, Lancaster (r.r.),

Lang, Lankershim, Las Virgines, Laurel Canyon, La Verne Heights, La Vina (r.r.), Lawn dale (r.r.), Leffingwell, Leona, Liberty, Little Lake, Littlerock, Live Oak, Llano, Llewellyn, Lomita Inve Oak, Litano, Liewenyn, Lomita (r. r.), Lopez Canyon (r. r.), Lordsburg (r. r.), Los Angeles Co. Farm (r.r.), Los Angeles Co. Jail, Los Angeles Co. Juve-nile Hall (r. r.), Los Angeles Co. Museum of History, Los Angeles General Hospital of History, Los Angeles General Hospital (r.r.), Main Office (Central Branch) and Otis Art Institute in Los Angeles, Los Cerritos, Los Nietos, Lowell, Lyn-wood (r.r.), Manhattan Beach (r.r.), Manzana, May wood, Maywood M-C-Church, Mill, Mint Canyon, Moneta (r.r.), Montebello (r.r.), Monterey Park (r.r.), Mount Wilson, Mountain View, Neenach, New Era, Newhall (r.r.), Nor-walk (r.r.), Oak Flat, Old River, Olive View (r.r.), Oliveto, Palmdale (r.r.), Palomar, Pearland, Perry, Pico, Plava del Palomar, Pearland, Perry, Pico, Playa del Rey, Pleasant View, Potrero Heights, Puente (r. r.), Quail Lake, Ranchito, Redman, Rivera (r. r.), Rogers, Roosevelt, Rowland, San Antonio (r. r.), San Dimas (r. r.), San Fernando (r. r.), San Francisquito, San Gabriel (r. r.), San Marino (r. r.), Santa Anita Canyon, Saugus, Savannah, Sherman (r. r.), Slauson Ranch (r. r.), South Santa Anita, South gus, Savannah, Sherman (r. r.), Slauson Ranch (r. r.), South Santa Anita, South Whittier, Stephenson, Strawberry Park, Strickland (r. r.), Sulphur Springs, Sun-land (r. r.), Sunpy Slope, Switzer's Camp (r. r.), Temple (r. r.), Tierra Bonita, Topanga, Torrance (r. r.), Town of Temple, Tujunga (r. r.), Tweedy, Venice (r. r.), Vernon, Voltaire, Walnut, Water-dale, Watts (r. r.), West Athens, West Covina, West Elizabeth Lake, Westland, Whittier State School, Will ow brook (r. r.), Wilsona, Wood crest (r. r.); school districts that have joined 128 (148 school branches)—Agua Dulce, Alameda, Alturas, Antelope, Arcadia, Artesia, Azusa, Baldwin Park, Bassett, Bee, Bell, Belle Vernon, Belleview, Bellflower, Bev-erly Hills, Bloom field, Burbank (5 schools), Burbank High, Calabasas, Car-menita, Castaic, Catalina, Cerritos, Char-ter Oak, Claremont, Claremont High, Clearwater, Compton, Cornell, Crescenta, Culver City, Decker, Downey, Downey High, Duarte, East Whittier, Elizabeth Lake, El Monte, El Monte High, El Se-gundo, Enterprise, Esperanza, Excelsior Janke, El Monte, El Monte Ingli, El Se-gundo, Enferprise, Esperanza, Excelsior Union High, Fairmont, Fairview, Galla-tin, Garvey, Glendora, Grant, Hawthorne, Honby, Hudson (including Central and Puente schools), Huntington Park (in-cluding Intermediate, Malabar Ave, Miles Avec Pacific and South Cote Condous Ave., Pacific and South Gate Gardens Ave.. Pacific and South Gate Gardens schools), Huntington Park Union High, Inglewood, Jefferson, Keppel Union (incl. Almondale, Alpine, Llano, and Pleasant View), La Ballona, La Cañada, Laguna, Lancaster, Las Virgines. La Verne City, Leona, Liberty, Little Lake, Live Oak, Llewellyn, Los Nietos, Lowell Joint, Lugo, Manhattan, Manzana, Maywood,

LOS ANGELES CO .-- Continued.

Mill. Mint Canyon, Monrovia (including Mill, Mint Canyon, Monrovia (including Office, Charlotte Ave., Linwood, Orange Ave., and Wild Rose Ave. schools), Monte Vista. Mountain View, Neenach, New Era, Newhall, Norwalk, Oak Flat, Old River, Palmdale, Palomar, Perry, Pico, Playa del Rey, Potrero Heights, Quail Lake, Ranchito, Redman, Redondo Beach (including Central, North and South schools), Rivera, Rogers, Roosevelt, Row-land San Antonio, San Dimas, San Schools), Rivera, Rogers, Rooseveit, Row-land, San Antonio, San Dimas, San Francisquito, San Gabriel (including Lin-coln and Washington schools), San Marino, Saugus, Savannah, Sierra Madre, Soledad, South Santa Anita, South Whittier, Sterling, Temple, Tierra Panita Tuniung, Turaodr Wavier Dal South Whittier, Sterling, Temple, Tierra Bonita, Tujunga, Tweedy, Venice Poly-technic High, Vernon City, Voltaire, Wal-nut, Waterdale, Watts City (including Compton Ave., Fir, Lark, North Comp-ton, and Wilmington Ave. schools), West Covina. West Elizabeth Lake, Willow-brook, Wilsona; special school branches 1--Co. Teachers' Library (r. r.) in Los Angeles. 2178 periodicals rec'd regularly. D is tr i b u ted: 89 to office; 2089 to branches branches.

Total books, etc. 439,939: books 434,-618; pamphlets 4373; maps 676; charts 211; globes 61. Added 84,763: books 84,541 (purchase 82,251, gift or exchange 2290); pamphlets 207; maps 15. Withdrawn 18.956; books 18.475 (lost 334, discarded 18,141); pamphlets 481. Books reb'd 10,926. Cardholders 67,473: headquarters 1566; branches 65,907. Added 27,323; cancelled 20,698. Circulation 1,069,736 (from headquarters 9754, from branches 1,059,982) : books 950,058; periodicals 119,678. Vols. loaned to other libs. 52; borrowed from other libs. 122 (113 from State Library). 3759 shipments (149.246 items) were sent to branches.

During the year 2812 visits were made to 321 branches. 244 visits were made to headquarters by custodians. 6 branches were established; 4 branches (Eagle Rock School Dist., Annandale, Lankershim and Laurel Canvon) were discontinued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The following branches were moved into larger quarters under lease for three years: At Hawthorne, a new building,

351

Tujunga an impossible looking old building was remodeled into a very attractive room 20 by 50 feet with easement windows. The branch at Garvey was moved from a private house to a room prepared by the women in the Club House of the Wilmar Woman's Community Association.

Miss Jeanne F. Johnson was appointed Head of the Catalog Department July 1. Miss Johnson was Head Cataloger of the Tacoma Public Library 1914 to 1923 and was more recently in charge of the catalog work in the Riverside Public Library and the Riverside Library Service School.

Helen E. Vogleson was appointed County Librarian Sept. 22, by unanimous vote of the Board of Supervisors after certification by the Civil Service Commission as a result of the examination held September 4, 1924.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .4 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$234,420.37.

HELEN E. VOGLESON, Lib'n.

Los ANGELES Co. LAW LIBRARY, Los ANGELES Thos. W. Robinson, Lib'n. Est. 1891. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits, and from \$6 membership fee from attorneys who wish to use books in court. 4 employees. Open daily: week days 8,30 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sun. 9 a.m. to 1 p.m. Located on 7th floor of Hall of Records. 17 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 59,000.

Annual report not rec'd.

Los ANGELES CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY AND BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY, LOS ANGELES. Mark Keppel, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined the Co. Free Library May 6, 1914. Income 1923-24, \$2857, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$1554. Open daily except Sun.: Mon. to Fri. 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 8.30 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Hall of Records. 37 periodicals from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 11,623. Teachers employed 9870: elem. 6484; high 3386. Active school districts: elem. 140 (incl. 1 jt.); high 26 (70 high schools): city 6; district 5; union 15. Total expended for b o o k s for s c h o o l s, 1923-24: elem. \$178,484; high \$257,435. Vols. in schools: elem. 921,663; high 1,089,835.

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Alhambra.

ALHAMBRA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Marian P. Greene, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 4, 1906. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3480.64. A n n u a l income 1923-24, \$20,208.44 (from taxation \$17,845.01, library tax being 1.2 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$2363.43). Total payments \$17,622.05. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$6067.03. 9 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun, and holidays 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$41,000 bldg. 141 periodicals (135 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 14 newspapers; 127 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting second Thurs.

Total vols. 31,226. Added 3337: purchase 2638; gift or exchange 170; binding 223; replacement 306. Discarded 438; rep'd 2701; reb'd 1289. Cardholders 9221. Added 2808; cancelled 2886. Circulation 158,929: books 148,339; periodicals 9760; other material 830. Vols. borrowed from other libs, 52.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Artena Chapin, Librarian of the Alhambra Public Library since 1922, resigned her position on account of illhealth, and has returned to her home in Fort Wayne, Indiana, to the great regret of the Board of Trustees and the public in general. Miss Marian P. Greene was appointed Librarian, and Miss Ferne McCleery first assistant.

Miss Esther Ross, formerly of the Monterey County Free Library at Salinas, has been appointed to succeed Miss Edith Rose, resigned.

The growth of the work in Alhambra has necessitated the addition of a new member to the staff. Miss Jean Thomson, New York Public Library School, 1918–19 has accepted the new position. Miss Thomson was formerly assistant in the East Technical High School of Cleveland, Ohio, and librarian of the Benson Memorial Library, 'Titusville, Pennsylvania.

The Vacation Reading Club was very popular' with the boys and girls of Alhambra, although the reading required was decidedly more "solid" than in former years. Each applicant was given a ladder, mineographed by a local 14 year old, who edits the "Squeak," a monthly magazine that appears with more or less regularity. Twelve lists of

Alhambra-Continued.

books were prepared, one for each rung of the ladder, and readers might choose any book on the proper list, as they climbed upwards. The first rung belonged to prehistoric times, and the boys and girls climbed from "Ab the cave-man," "Og, son of fire" and other tales of early man, up to the present time. One rung belonged to myths and legends, one to the "days of old, when knights were bold," one to the discoverers, to colonial days, revolutionary times, and so on, ind we reached modern stories of our own land. and of foreign countries. There were lists for junior climbers as well as for the older boys and girls, and the Children's Librarian learned as much as any of the climbers, in her search for material that was worthy of being included. A poster advertised the Club, representing the good ship Imagination surrounded by the twelve lists. Below, a jingle printed on the rungs of a ladder read :

Come one, come all

Both short and tall

And climb up, rung by rung

A book to read

Is all you need---

It's fun for old and young.

MARIAN P. GREENE, Lib'n.

ALHAMBRA CITY HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Forrest V. Routt, Prin. Miss Clara M. Willits, Lib'n. Est. 1898. Located in high school administration bldg. Open to students from 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 56 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 3751. Added 257. Teachers 62; pupils 1385.

Arcadia.

ARCADIA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs F. W. Treen, Lib'n. Est. as branch of Los Angeles Co. Free Library June, 1913; as F. P. 1919. Located in own bldg. next city hall.

Cardholders 1308.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The past summer we outgrew our old quarters and are now in our own building adjoining the city hall.

> MRS EMMA D. MEADE, Sec. Library Board.

Azusa.

AZUSA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Mary Y. Bonner, Lib'n. Est. July, 1902; as F. P. Nov. 18, 1903. Bal. July 1,

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Azusa-Continued.

1923. \$1080.12. Annual income 1923-24, \$2099.85 (from taxation \$1858.88; from other sources \$240.97). Total payments \$2544.73. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$635.24. 3 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 10 a.m. to 12 m., 1.30 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$11,700 Carnegie bldg. 92 periodicals rec'd regularly: 8 newspapers; 67 mags.; 17 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting first Thurs.

Total books, etc. 6735: books 5709; serials 92; manuscripts 150; slides 557; globes 1; other material 226. Added 206: books 192 (purchase 181, gift or exchange 7, binding 4); serials 9; other material 5. Withdrawn 133: books 132 (lost 2, discarded 130); other material 1. Books rep'd 61; reb'd 109. Cardholders 995. Added 305; cancelled 223. Circulation 18,250: books 15,033; periodicals 3157; other material 60.

CITRUS UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. F. S. Hayden, Prin. Est. 1892, 12 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 3000. Added 500 by purchase. Teachers 20; pupils 350.

Burbank.

BURBANK UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, F. S. Moore, Prin. Miss Corrie V. Ziegler, Lib'n. Est. 1909. 28 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Vols. added a. 1540 : purchase a. 1500 ; gift a. 10 ; binding a. 30. Teachers 29 ; pupils a. 600.

Claremont.

CLAREMONT HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LI-BRARY. W. H. Hughes, Prin. Est, Oct. 1910. 27 periodicals from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 176. Teachers a. 12; pupils a. 124.

Annual report not rec'd.

[‡]POMONA COLLEGE LIBRARY. James A. Blaisdell, Pres. Victor E. Marriott, Lib'n (on leave of absence). Miss Marion J. Ewing, Acting Lib'n. Est. 1887. 25 employees. Open to public during college year: week days 7.25 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sun 1.30 to 5 p.m. Located in \$50,000 Carnegie bldg. 369 mags. and 13 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc. 81,096: books 44,138; pamphlets 36,958. Books added 2444: purchase 1137; gift 911; binding 396. Teachers 68; pupils 837. Circulation 16,973.

Claremont-Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mr Victor E. Marriott, who has been the Librarian of Pomona College since September 1912, is spending a sabbatical year studying at the University of Chicago. Miss Marion Ewing has been made Acting Librarian; Miss Katherine Woods holds the position of cataloger; and Mrs Hattie McConnaughey is the new Assistant Librarian.

Beginning about the middle of January, the Rembrandt Club and the Pomona College Library are holding a Chinese Exhibit for one month in Claremont. Mr Dana, Librarian of the Newark Public Library, Newark, New Jersey, was collecting material for this really remarkable exhibit for two years. It was exhibited in the Newark Museum for two months where it received most glowing praise from New York and other Since January 1924 Eastern papers. it has been a traveling exhibit. The University and College Club of Southern California will hold a meeting in Claremont while the exhibit is here. It is hoped that other organizations may avail themselves of the privilege of seeing this exhibit.

As the exhibit is being brought here at considerable expense, it is necessary to require a slight charge. Societies will be given club rates, and any society or club wishing it, will be able to have a special day reserved for a visit. Full particulars of time, place and admission will be sent later. Please address all correspondence to Miss Marion Ewing, Acting Librarian, Pomona College Library, Claremont, California.

MARION J. EWING, Acting Lib'n.

Compton.

COMPTON UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. O. S. Thompson, Prin. Miss Elizabeth Neal, Lib'n. Est. 1897. 8 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 800. Teachers a. 39; pupils a. 800.

Annual report not rec'd.

Covina.

COVINA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Henrietta M. Faulder, Lib'n. Est. 1897; as F. P. 1902. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1155.22. Annual income 1923-24, \$3456.90 (from taxation \$3134.50, li-

LOS ANGELES CO .- Continued.

Covina-Continued.

brary tax being 1.5 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$322.40). Total payments \$3411.64. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1200.48. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays and Sun. during summer: week days 1 to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in a. \$9000 Carnegie bldg. 108 periodicals (94 for circulation) ree'd regularly: 14 newspapers; 94 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Thurs.

Total vols. 10,680. Added 479: purchase 404; gift or exchange 31; binding 44. Lost 7; discarded 40; rep'd 2930; reb'd 100. Cardholders 1495. Added 270; cancelled 160. Circulation 32,021. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 40.

COVINA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. B. S. Millikan, Prin. Ruth Pauline Nichols, Lib'n. Est. 1898. 40 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2490. Teachers a. 21; pupils a. 365.

Annual report not rec'd.

Downey.

DowNEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LA-BRARY AND BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY, J. C. Templeton, Prin. Est. 1904; branch est. Sept. 1916. 19 periodicals from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1001. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 124.

Annual report not rec'd.

Eagle Rock.

EAGLE ROCK [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY became Eagle Rock Branch of Los Angeles Public Library, July 1, 1923.

El Monte.

EL MONTE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY. Henry A. Keeley, Prin. Est. 1903; branch est. Aug. 13, 1915. 3 periodicals from Co. rec'd regularly.

Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 194.

Annual report not rec'd.

Florence.

FLORENCE BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Los Angeles Co, Free Library.

Garvey.

GARVEY BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Los Angeles Co. Free Library.

Glendale.

GLENDALE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Alma J. Danford, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 20, 1906; as F. P. Aug. 14, 1907. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$9859.94. Annual income 1923-24. \$30.026.88 (from taxation \$27,603.60; from other sources \$2423.28). Total payments \$32,021.24. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$7865.58, 13 employees: S in main library; 5 in branches. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$12,500 Carnegie bldg. 2 branches. 226 periodicals (184 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 15 newspapers; 211 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 31,925. Added 5215. Lost 292; discarded 691; reb'd 2941. Cardholders 17,634: main library 14,366; branches 3268. Added 4299. Circulation 240,096 (from main library 177,520, from branches 62,576): books 222,683; periodicals 16,629; other material 784.

GLENDALE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. George U. Moyse, Prin. Estelle D. Lake, Lib'n. Est. 1901. Open for students of institution only, regular school hours. Located at Broadway and Verdugo rd. 55 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 7114. Teachers a. 90; pupils a. 1752.

Annual report not rec'd.

Glendora.

GLENDORA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Harriet Gifford, Lib'n. Est. April 10, 1911; as F. P. May 20, 1912. Total payments 1923–24, \$1274. 1 employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 10 to 11 a.m., 2 to 5.30 and 7 to 8.30 p.m. Located in city hall. 56 periodicals rec'd regularly: 4 newspapers; 52 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Wed.

Total vols, 7427. Added 144: purchase 111; gift or exchange 33. Rep'd 712. Cardholders 2701. Circulation 14,993.

Hawthorne.

HAWTHORNE BRANCH, LOS ANGELES Co. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Los Angeles Co. Free Library.

Huntington Park.

HUNTINGTON PARK UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, LOS AN-GELES CO. FREE LIBRARY. Thomas A. Russell, Prin. Mrs Gretchen Smith Boyle, Lib'n. Est. 1909; branch est. July 20, 1916. Open Mon. to Fri. 8.20 a.m. to 3 p.m.

Total vols. a. 3500. Teachers a. 70; pupils a. 1306.

Annual report not rec'd.

LOS ANGELES CO.-Continued.

Inglewood.

INGLEWOOD UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. George M. Green, Prin, Mary Caine, Lib'n. Est. 1905. Open 8.30 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. 87 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 4174. Teachers a. 43; pupils a. 740.

Lancaster.

ANTELOPE VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Curtis E. Warren, Prin, Est, Oct. 21, 1914. 24 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1450. Teachers a. 13; pupils a. 185.

Annual report not rec'd.

La Verne.

BONITA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Wm. T. Randall, Prin. Miss Abbie H. Doughty, Lib'n. Est. 1904. Located in library bldg. 39 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1991. Teachers a. 15; pupils a. 184.

Annual report not rec'd.

Long Beach.

\$||LONG BEACH [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs Theodora R. Brewitt, Lib'n. Est, 1895; as F. P. 1901. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$14,662.34. Annual income 1923-24, \$146,102.66 (from taxation \$138,-\$76.51; from other sources \$7226.15). Total payments \$147,072.24. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$13,692.76. 56 employees. Open daily except three holidays 9 a.m. to 9. p.m. Located in \$47,000 Carnegie bldg. and owns Alamitos branch library bldg. and lot costing \$7500, Burnett branch library bldg. and lot costing \$24,121, East Long Beach branch library bldg. and lot costing \$44,587. 3 branches, 1 subbranch, 10 stations, 3 school branches. 137 class room collections in 20 schools. \$56 periodicals rec'd regularly: 78 newspapers; 778 mags.

Total vols. 83,436. Added 15,096: purchase 14,204; gift or exchange 591; binding 125; lost books found 176. Withdrawn 6639; recased 2683; reb'd 39.150. 5930.Cardholders Added 21.648:cancelled 16,791. Circulation 839.643 (from main library 588,609, from branches 251,034) : books 740,736; periodicals 49,968; other material 48,939. Vols. loaned to other libs. 4; borrowed from other libs. 28 (7 from State Library).

During the year the new buildings of the Burnett and East Long Beach branches were completed. The Burnett Branch was started in January. 1 subbranch is in rented building, and 3 ele-

Long Beach—Continued.

mentary school libraries have been provided with permanent collections. These have trained full time librarians employed by schools. 2 stations were opened and 2 discontinued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The annual report of the Long Beach Public Library for the past fiscal year shows a circulation of 790,704 exclusive of pictures and clippings. This is a 23 per cent increase over the home use of books for the previous year.

The library budget for the present fiscal year is \$200,000. This amount includes \$60,000 for two new branch buildings.

THEODORA R. BREWITT, Lib'n.

HEALD'S BUSINESS COLLEGE LIBRARY. D. G. Boleyn, Prin. Est. 1901. Open daily except Sun. 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 17 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 800. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 400.

Annual report not rec'd.

LONG BEACH POLYTECHNIC HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. David Burcham, Prin. Helen B. Courtright, Lib'n. Est. 1895. Open to students school days 7.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at 16th st. and Atlantic ave. 150 mags. and 7 newspapers ree'd regularly.

Total vols. 14,000. Added 800: purchase 750; gift 50. Teachers 149; pupils 4091. Circulation 200 per day.

Los Angeles.

‡§Los ANGELES [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Everett R. Perry, Lib'n. Est. Dec. 1872; as F. P. July, 1891. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$22,883.80. Annual income 1923-24, \$591,146.87 (from taxation \$497,168.17, library tax being .5 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$93;-978.70). Total payments \$531,543.01. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$82,487.66. 298 employees. Open daily except July 4 and Christmas day: week days 9 a.m.to 9 p.m.; Sun. 1 to 9 p.m. Located in rented quarters in Metropolitan bldg. Owns \$37,500 Carnegie Arroyo Seco branch bldg., \$37,500 Carnegie Eagle Rock branch bldg., \$37,200 Carnegie Lincoln Heights branch bldg., \$12,000 Carnegie San Pedro branch bldg., \$40,000 Carnegie Vermont Square branch bldg., \$40,000 Carnegie Vernon branch bldg., \$101,841 Hollywood branch bldg., \$55,000

LOS ANGELES CO.-Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

Moneta branch bldg., \$3360 Palms branch bldg., \$2954 Santa Monica branch bldg., \$13,098 Figueroa branch bldg., \$14,088 Edendale branch bldg., \$19,017 Jefferson branch bldg., \$43,550 Pico Heights branch bldg., \$720 Barton Hill branch bldg., \$73,400 San Pedro branch bldg. 180 branches. 3004 periodicals (340 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 218 newspapers; 2786 mags. Library trustees semimonthly meetings second working day and third Wed.

Total books, etc. 638,363: books 535,626; pamphlets 90,451; maps 4762; music sheets 7524. Books added 65,927. Withdrawn 19,369. Cardholders 199,341. Added 81,380; cancelled 65,662. Circulation 4,317,688. Vols. loaned to other libs. 244; borrowed from other libs. 88 (30 from State Library).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Activities of the past quarter have been chiefly in the Branches Department. The old San Pedro Branch Library building has been turned back to the City and placed under the jurisdiction of the Board of Public Works, which has granted space to the Library for a reading room for the benefit of sailors and longshoremen. The new San Pedro Branch at 10th and Gaffey Streets was opened in June. A new branch has been opened in rented quarters on North Vermont Avenue near Hollywood Boulevard, and is called the Los Feliz Branch.

Requests have been received from several different sections of the City for the establishment of new branches: from the Allesandro District; two requests, from east and west Central Avenue; two requests from West Washington District, one from the section around Arlington and 18th Streets, the other from the section around Washington and Rimpau; and finally, a very insistent request for a branch in the eastern portion of Boyle Heights. An offer of a site and building has been received from the town of Girard.

At the Main Library the resignation of Miss Zulema Kostomlatsky, Principal of the General Literature Department, has been received. This was in anticipation of marriage. Miss Monica Shannon has returned to the Library as Principal of Publicity.

Los Angeles-Continued.

A second multigraph machine has been placed in operation. This will be used chiefly to print the different forms used by the Library, and for book lists.

EVERETT R. PERRY, Lib'n.

BARLOW MEDICAL LIBRARY. Dr William Duffield, Pres. Mary E. I r i s h , Lib'n. Est. Feb. 1907. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$531.85. Annual income 1923–24, \$3784.20 (from fees from members \$2813; from salary fund from University of California \$000; from other sources \$371.20). Total payments \$3472.46. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$\$43.59. 3 employees. Open daily except Sun., Sat. afternoons and bank holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Essentially for reference but members of association under certain conditions may take out literature. Located in \$35,000 library bldg. at 742 N. Broadway. 172 periodicals (all for circulation) ree'd regularly: 162 mags.; 10 transactions. Annual meeting of association second week in January.

Total vols. 10,630. Added 560: purchase 41; gift or exchange 285; binding 77; deposit 157. Discarded 22; rep'd 25. Cardholders 232. Added 38; cancelled 15. Circulation 2416: books 572; periodicals 1844. Vols. loaned to other libs. 8; borrowed from other libs. 80.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The last few months have been a period of active progress for this library. Many gifts of books and journals have been received. Some new books have been presented by their authors. Other gifts were: from Dr Leo Newmark 115 volumes, including a number of valuable bound journals on psychology, in English and in German; from Drs George Dock, William Duffield, and Henry Sherk some standard Medical works as well as some very interesting old and rare books. Among the latter were the works of Vesalius, printed in Latin in 1725 and illustrated with fine steel engravings of skeletons in captivating positions, with landscapes in the background; and Aristotle's Compleat Masterpiece, printed in English about 1636.

This library has been made the depository of books, journals and Society Transactions by the Eye and Ear Section, and the Dermatological Section of the Los Angeles County Medical Association, and by the Orthopedic Society. This material is to be used and loaned as if 6-34984

.

LOS ANGELES CO .- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

it belonged to the library. We have received loans also of late standard medical books, through Dr Kress, from the University of California. These books may be consulted in the reading room, but may not be taken out.

A much valued and much needed gift was that from Dr Barlow of steel stacks with capacity of about 3000 volumes. All the books in the library have been moved, giving room for growth, and providing also a foreign and a duplicate section.

The most outstanding addition to the library is again the gift of Dr Barlow, a statue of Galen. Such a statue finds fitting place in a Medical library, since Galen may be considered the founder of the modern school of medicine, and is called the Father of Anatomy. To his writings and his influence later generations owe much. The statue was brought from Italy, is of Carrara marble and is about 600 years old: It will be placed at the rear of the main room facing the entrance.

It is of much interest to the librarian, when she is indexing new journals, to find many papers written by men who have done their research work in this library.

MRS MARY E. IRISH, Lib'n.

BELMONT HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. W. Tritt, Prin. Marjorie Van Deusen, Lib'n. Est. 1923. Located at 2d and Loma drive. 50 mags. rec'd regularly. Vols. added 1141. Teachers 48; pupils 1050. Circulation 7776.

CALIFORNIA SOCIETY, SONS OF THE REVOLUTION (REPOSITORY OF THE SOUTH-WEST) AND CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF COLONIAL WARS LIBRARY, Pierson W. Banning, Pres. Willis Milnor. Dixon, Lib'n. Est. May 15, 1893. Income rec'd from societies. One paid employee. Open for reference only week days: 10 a.m. to 12 m. to public; afternoon to members of the society. Located in Broadway Central bldg. S periodicals rec'd regularly: 2 newspapers; 6 mags. Library trustees annual meeting in January.

Total vols. 6687. Added 118: purchase 7; gift 83; exchange 17; binding 11. Lost 2.

CALIFORNIA STATE FISHERIES LABO-RATORY LIBRARY has been discontinued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

CATHEDRAL HIGH SCHOOL FOR GIRLS LIBRARY. Sister M. Redempta, Prin. Est. 1906. Located at 2d and Main sts. 5 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly. Total vols. a. 1340. Teachers a. 12; pupils a. 200.

Annual report not rec'd.

CENTRAL JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. J. C. Reinhard, Prin. Lillian C. Ford, Lib'n. Located 451 N. Hill St. Open school days 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 35 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 4034. Teachers a. 60; pupils a. 1156.

Annual report not rec'd.

*DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL. 2D DIST., LIBRARY, J. H. Crumrine, Lib'n. Est. March, 1907. Income rec'd from part of court fees. 1 employee. For use of appellate judges only, and not open to public except at sessions of court, when it is used by lawyers for reference. Located in Pacific Finance bldg.

Total vols. 10,882. Added 121.

FIRST NATIONAL BANK. RESEARCH DE-PARTMENT LIBRARY. Alice M. Scheck, Lib'n. Located at 834 Van Nuys bldg.

No further information.

FRANKLIN HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Charles B. Moore, Prin. Vicla Estelle Stevens, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 1916. Located at 830 W. Ave. 54. 43 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 5357. Added 70 by gift,

GARDENA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. John H. Whitley, Prin. Clara E. Purdum, Lib'n. Est. 1905; library est. 1913. Located at 732 E. 27th st. 40 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 4221. Teachers a. 28; pupils a. 500.

Annual report not rec'd.

GENEBAL PETROLEUM CORPORATION ENGINEERING LIBRARY, Mrs Ruth Delaney, Lib'n. Est. 1920. Open during ordinary business hours of Refinery for employees only. Located in office bldg. of Gen. Petroleum Refinery, 2525 E. 37th st.

The library has: Technical books on Engineering and Petroleum Technology; U. S. Government documents; Trade Literature; Technical periodicals, bound vols. and current nos.; U. S. Patents, a comprehensive and valuable collection.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

As this is a Special Technical Library our happenings, though of interest to our

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

staff, are not of the kind that would have any application to outside libraries. We have no outside circulation and the serious business of the Library is research on questions pertinent to Petroleum Technology and allied subjects. Almost the same as any business department it is more interesting, however, to the Librarian than ordinary business inasmuch as research leads into most interesting fields of thought that are commonly known only to scientific specialists.

MRS RUTH DELANEY, Lib'n.

*GIRLS' COLLEGIATE SCHOOL LIBRARY. Misses Alice K. Parsons and Jeanne N. Dennen, Prins. Est. 1892. Open all the time to students of institution. Located at 1008 W. Adams st. 17 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1450. Teachers a. 24; pupils a. 161.

Annual report not rec'd.

*HARVARD MILITARY SCHOOL LIBRARY. Rev Robert Gooden, Prin. Jane G. Badenheusen, Lib'n. Est. 1900. Open daily S to 9 and by request. Located in school bldg., Western ave., cor. 16th. 15 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1500. Teachers a. 25; pupils a. 300.

Annual report not rec'd.

*HISTORICAL SOCIETY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA LIBRARY. R. D. Hunt, Pres. Est. Nov. 1, 1883. Annual income rec'd from membership dues. No paid employees. Open to members daily except Sun. 1 to 3 p.m. Located in Museum History, Science and Art bldg. in Exposition Park. 6 mags. (all for circulation) rec'd regularly, Annual meeting of society Dec. 1; monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. a. 2176. Members a. 90.

This library is not in active use.

HOLLYWOOD HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Wm. H. Snyder, Prin. Statie M. Weber, Lib'n. Est. 1903. Open to students on school days. Located in library bldg. at 6735 Leland way. 60 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 7500. Teachers a. 110; pupils a. 2800.

Annual report not rec'd.

IMMACULATE HEART COLLEGE LIBRARY. Mother M. Redempta, Prin. Est. March 15, 1906. Located at 5515 Franklin st., Hollywood. 8 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

Total vols. a. 4000. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 275.

Annual report not rec'd.

JEFFERSON HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Theodore Fulton, Prin. Linnie Marsh and Mildred Berrier, Lib'ns. Est. 1916. Located at 38th and Compton sts. 73 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 5500. Added 550: purchase 500; binding 50. Teachers 123; pupils 2800. Circulation 250 per day.

KROTONA INSTITUTE OF THEOSOPHY, LIBRARY OF THE. C. J. Van Vliet, Lib'n. Est. April 5, 1912. Open to public daily 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located at Krotona, head of Vista Del Mar ave., at Hollywood. 30 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3600.

Annual report not rec'd.

LASKY STUDIO LIBRARY. Helen Gladys Percey, Lib'n. Located at 1520 N. Vine st., Hollywood.

No further information rec'd.

LINCOLN HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Miss Ethel P. Andrus, Prin. Ella S. Morgan, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 1913. Located at 3625 N. Broadway. 65 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 7467. Teachers a. 104; pupils a. 2600.

Annual report not rec'd.

LOMITA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. C. F. Griffin, Prin. Est. 1921. Located at Lomita. Open 3 hrs. a day 5 days a week. 25 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1106. Teachers a. 17; pupils a. 215.

Annual report not rec'd.

LOS ANGELES CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, LIBRARY AND STATISTICAL DEPARTMENT. Guy E. Marion, Mgr.

Library contains statistical data of every sort, covered by books, pamphlets, trade literature, clippings, maps, charts, etc.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Mabel E. Gleason is undertaking the work of organizing the library of the Chamber of Commerce preparatory to our moving into the new building. She is a graduate of the University of Washington, Class of 1909, and has had several years of business experience.

GUY E. MARION, Mgr.

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

Los ANGELES CHAMBER OF MINES AND OIL. MINING AND SCIENTIFIC LIBRARY. A. C. McLaughlin, Pres. G. M. Swindell, Sec. Est. 1906. Maintained by organization. Open to members and to public for reference only, daily except Sundays and legal holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located at 414 Wilcox bldg., 206 S. Spring st. 50 technical mags. rec'd regularly.

Total books a. 2000; maps a. 250. Annual report not rec'd.

LOS ANGELES CITY DIRECTORY LA-BRARY. R. F. Montgomery, in charge. Est. 1880. Income rec'd from company. Open to public free for reference, but small charge for looking up addresses, etc., week days 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in Suite 818, Broadway Central bldg.

This is simply a reference library of all directories published in the United States by the Association of American Directory Publishers, about 350 volumes in all.

Annual report not rec'd.

Los ANGELES CITY SCHOOL LIBRARY. Mrs Susan Dorsey, Supt. Miss Jasmine Britton, Lib'n. Est. 1896. Annual income a. \$26,000. 15 employees. Open to teachers of Los Angeles city schools Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 6 p.m., Sat. 9 a.m., to 12 m. Located in Olive st. school bldg. 279 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 401,936. Added 81,620: purchase 79,990; gift 1630. Teachers 3999; pupils 100,652.

Los Angeles Co. free, law, and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Los Angeles Co.

*Los ANGELES FREE METHODIST SEMI-NARY LIBBARY. J. A. Howard, Prin. Est. 1903. Open daily during school year to students and others. Located in administration bldg., Walnut Hill ave. and Wheeling way. 10 mags. and 5 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2705. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 150.

Annual report not rec'd.

Los ANGELES HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. H. Housh, Prin. Est. 1873. 2 employees. Located at 4900 Country Club drive. 62 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 10,557. Teachers a. 90; pupils a. 2000.

Annual report not rec'd.

LOS ANGELES LODGE THEOSOPHICAL SOCIETY LIBRARY. Arthur Moran, Sec.; Mrs Ruth Emery, Lib'n. Est. 1894,

Los Angeles-Continued.

under the auspices of the parent society at Adyar, Madras, India. Rent \$95 per mo., met by dues from members of the Lodge, fines and donations. No paid employees. Open to public daily except Sun. and holidays 12 to 4 p.m. Rooms open Sun. evenings for free lectures except during July, August and September. Located 129 W. 2d st. 12 mags. rec'd regularly. Trustees weekly meeting Wed.

Total vols. a. 800. Members a. 175. Annual report not rec'd.

*LOS ANGELES MILITARY A C A D E M Y LIBRARY. Walter J. Bailey, Prin. Est. 1898. 20 employees. Supported by Academy, and open to teachers and students only. 8 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 5000. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 60.

Annual report not rec'd.

*Los ANGELES RAILWAY CO. LIBRARY. W. B. Rees, Lib'n. Est. March 6, 1906. Maintained by Los Angeles Railway Co. and for platform men only. Open Mon., Wed. and Fri. 10 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at E. 53d and San Pedro sts. 2 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 766.

MCKINLEY EVENING HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Harry L. Cassell, Prin.

Teachers 22; pupils 900.

The library of the McKinley Junior High is available but is not used in connection with the night school.

MCKINLEY JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Emma R. Domers, Lib'n.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Emma R. Domers, formerly of the Science and Industry Department of the Los Angeles Public Library, has been appointed librarian of McKinley Junior High School Library.

*MANUAL ARTS HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, Albert E. Wilson, Prin, Mabel S. Dunn, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 1910. 2 employees. Located at 42d and Vermont aves. 90 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 12,522. Added 1067 by purchase. Teachers 125; pupils 3450.

*MARLBOROUGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Ada S. Blake, Prin. Est. 1889. Located 5029 W. 3d st. 12 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1000. Added 65: purchase 20; gift 45. Teachers 18; pupils 235.

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

*MASONIC LIBRARY. Thomas S. Southwick, Sec. Est. June 26, 1897. Supported by contributions from various Masconic Lodges and Bodies and free to members. Open daily except Sun. 8.30 a.m. to 10.30 p.m. Located at Pico and Figueroa sts. Annual meeting of directors in Jan.

Total vols. a. 4000 with an additional 8600 annuals bound into more than 1700 vols.

One of largest collections of Masonic reports in country.

Annual report not rec'd.

METAPHYSICAL LIBRARY. Marian Miller, Sec.; Eleanor M. Reesberg, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 1902. Each cardholder pays 25 cents per mo. for use of books and mags. 2 employees. Reading room open to public daily except Sun. 9 a.m. to 8 p.m. Located 233 S. Broadway. 20 mags, rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1353. Members a. 500. Annual report not rec'd.

NEIGHBORHOOD SETTLEMENT LIBRARY. Deaconess Mary, Sec. Alvina Davidson, Lib'n. Est. April 1, 1907. No income. 5 employees. Open Wed. and Sat. 2 to 5 p.m.; Fri. 7 to 9 p.m. Located at 2150 E. 9th st. 8 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2633. Cardholders a. 1137.

Annual report not rec'd.

OCCIDENTAL COLLEGE AND ACADEMY LIBRARY. Remsen du Bois Bird, Prin. Geo. F. Cook, Lib'n. Est. 1886. 8 employees. Open to students daily except Sun. Located in Mary Clapp \$150,000 library bldg. 185 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 19,790. Added 1574: purchase 1162; gift 291; binding 121. Teachers 54; pupils 544. Circulation 12,705.

OWENSMOUTH HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. G. Walter Monroe, Prin. Est. Oct. 1914. Open Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 17 mags. rec'd regularly.

Teachers a. 9; pupils a. 105.

Annual report not rec'd.

*PAGE MILITARY ACADEMY LIBRARY. Robert A. Gibbs, Prin. Est. 1908.

Total vols. a. 600. Teachers a. 24; pupils a. 260.

Annual report not rec'd.

POLYTECHNIC EVENING HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. A. Dunn, Prin. Mrs Edith Wheat Locklin, Lib'n. Same library as Polytechnic High School Library.

Los Angeles-Continued.

POLYTECHNIC HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, W. A. Dunn, Prin. Mrs Edith Wheat Locklin, Lib'n, Est. 1905. 2 employees. Located at 400 W. Washington st. 55 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 14,133. Teachers a. 119; pupils a. 2716.

Annual report not rec'd.

SACRED HEART ACADEMY LIBBARY. Sister M. Louise, Prin. Est. 1891. Open school days. Located at 308 S. Sichel st. 8 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 600. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 481.

Annual report not rec'd.

*ST. MARY'S ACADEMY LIBRARY AND DEPOSIT STATION, LOS ANGELES PUBLIC LIBRARY. Sister Aurelia Mary, Prin. Sister Ignatia, Lib'n. Est. 1889. Located at 3300 Slauson ave. 7 mags, and 5 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 10,000. Teachers a. 17; pupils a. 300.

Annual report not rec'd.

ST. VINCENT'S PARISH LIBRARY. Est. Aug. 1913. Maintained by Young Ladies' Sodality. Open Fri. 1 to 5 p.m., Sat. 7 to 9 p.m., Sun. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in St. Vincent's College, 1887 S. Grand ave. 12 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2070.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN PEDRO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Ralph D. Wadsworth, Prin. Mabel W. Corey, Lib'n. Est. 1903, Located at 5th ave, and Washington. 77 mags, rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 5270. Added 396: purchase 346; gift 10; binding 40. Teachers 60; pupils 1200.

There is a library class of 12 senior students,

SANTA FE COAST LINES HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION LIBRARY. N. H. MORVISON, Chief Surgeon, in charge. Est. 1906. Income rec'd from Santa Fe Hospital Assoc. No paid employees. Open to patients, employees and their families daily, 8 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in Santa Fe Hospital, 6th and St. Louis sts. 25 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 500.

Annual report not rec'd.

SECURITY TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK REFERENCE LIBRARY, DEPT. OF RESEARCH AND SERVICE. Vivian G. Smith, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 1, 1921. 3 employees. Open week days 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located on third floor of Security Bank bldg.

LOS ANGELES CO .- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

223 periodicals (35 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 47 newspapers; 66 mags; 110 other serials.

Total vols. 465. Added 72: purchase 39; gift or exchange 10; binding 23.

SOUTHERN BRANCH OF THE UNIVER-SITY OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARY. DT E. C. Moore, Prin. John Edward Goodwin, Lib'n. Est. as State Normal School Library 1881.' Income rec'd from University of California. 4 employees; 6 student assistants. Open to students Mon. to Fri. 7.45 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sat. 7.45 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in library bldg. 338 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 43,699. Teachers a. 97; pupils a. 4000.

Annual report not rec'd.

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA ACADEMY OF SCIENCES LIBRARY. Holdridge O. Collins, Pres. Est. 1891. Income rec'd from dues and an endowment fund. Open to menobers for reference and lending, to any other students for reference only every day except Sun. and holidays. Located room 719, San Fernando bldg.

Total vols. a. 3000.

Annual report not rec'd.

*SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. LITBRARY. Miss Rose Marie Purcell, Lib'n. 3 employees. Open week days: Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 8 a.m. to 1 p.m. Located at 301 Edison bldg. 76 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total bound vols. a. 1804. Documents a. 1249.

Annual report not rec'd.

SOUTHWEST MUSEUM, MUNK LIBRARY OF A R I Z O N I A N A. Milbank Johnson, Director. Miss Cora Hatch, Lib'n. Est. 1903, An unusually large and comprehensive collection of literature dealing exclusively with Arizona and related subjects. Items were collected by Joseph Amasa Munk, M.D., since 1884, and donated by him to the Southwest Museum in 1908. It is being constantly increased by the donor and is maintained by the museum as a free reference library. Open daily from 1 to 5 p.m. at Museum Hill, Marmion way and Avenue 46. 9 mags. (none for circulation) ree'd regularly.

Total books, etc. a. 14,827. Added 522: books 140 by purchase; pamphlets 172; maps 4; manuscripts 1; prints 14; other material 191.

The Charles Thompson Ornithological Library of about 300 vols. is located in this library, and is also open for reference.

Los Angeles-Continued.

SOUTHWEST UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW LIBRARY. A. J. Abbott, A.B., J.D., Dean. J. J. Schumacher, Sec. Est. May 10, 1913. Open to students 8.30 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in room 500, Wilcox bldg. a. 12 or 15 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1600. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 54.

Annual report not rec'd.

*UNITED STATES CIRCUIT COURT LI-BRARY. Wm. M. Van Dyke, Clerk of U. S. Circuit Court, in charge. Est. Jan. 10, 1887. For use of judges and court officials only. Located in Tajo bldg., 307 W. 1st st.

Total vols. a. 207 (Supreme Court reports).

Annual report not rec'd.

*UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFOR-NIA, COLLEGE OF LIBERAL ARTS LIBERARY. R. B. von Klein Smid, Pres. Miss Charlotte M. Brown, Lib'n, Est. 1882. 12 employees. Located at W. 35th and University sts. Open for students Mon. to Fri. 7.50 a.m. to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m., Sat. 8 a.m. to 3.30 p.m. 350 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 45,524. Added 8106: purchase 6021; gift 1648; binding 437. Teachers 210; pupils 4694. Circulation 101.982.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

During the summer vacation the library was entirely rearranged. A large room on the ground floor was given to the library for a collateral reading room. This room has a seating capacity of two hundred and fifty and the open stack room has a capacity of seven thousand volumes.

The loan and reference departments are now separate. The reference department occupies the entire north wing of the Old College building with a seating capacity of over two hundred.

Miss Nelle M. Bate, formerly librarian of Fullerton High School, became assistant cataloger September 1.

A departmental library was opened July 15 in the downtown Metropolitan College of Commerce of this University. Three thousand dollars will be spent this year for books for collateral reading for courses offered in this college.

CHARLOTTE M. BROWN, Lib'n.

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Los Angeles-Continued.

* COLLEGE OF DENTISTRY. GEORGE H. CUSHING LIBRARY. Lewis E. Ford, Dean. Dr J. Endelman, Lib'n. Est. 1892. Open to students of institution for reference only, 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. Located at 16th and Los Angeles sts. 6 mags. rec'd regularly.

Teachers 63; pupils 600. Circulation 1200.

*_____ COLLEGE OF LAW LIBRARY. Frank M. Porter, Dean. Glenn E. Whitney, Lib'n. Est. 1905. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. 7.45 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sat. 7.45 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in Tajo bldg, 6 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 11,500.

Annual report not rec'd.

College of Music Library. W. F. Skeele, Dean. Miss Ruth Nelson, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 1918. Open Mon. to Fri. 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 8.30 a.m. to 1 p.m. Located at 2601 S. Grand ave. 10 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 830. Added 55: purchase 45; gift 8; binding 2. Teachers 20; pupils 295. Circulation 2776.

VAN NUYS HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. J. P. Inglis, Prin. Gertrude Morton. Lib'n. Est. Sept. 1919. 46 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 3227. Added 287: purchase 264; gift 15; binding 8. Teachers 40; pupils 725. Circulation 53 per day.

*WESTLAKE SCHOOL FOR GIRLS LI-BRARY AND DEPOSIT STATION, LOS AN-GELES PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss F. de Laguna and Miss Jessica S. Vance, Prins. Est. Sept. 1904. Supported by school for use of its students only. Open daily 8,30 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in school bldg., 333 S. Westmoreland ave. 10 mags. and 5 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2000. Teachers 35; pupils 200.

WILMINGTON HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. I. Travis, Prin. Est. 1910. Located at Wilmington. 28 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1695. Added 71 by purchase. Teachers 20; pupils 425. Circulation 456.

§Y. M. C. A. LIBEARY. J. Gustav White, Director of Ed. Est. 1887. Open Mon. to Fri. 8.30 a.m. to 9.30 p.m.; Sat. 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in Y. M. C. A. bldg., 715 S. Hope st. 10 mags. and 5 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1250. Added 5 by gift. Teachers 24; pupils 250.

Los Angeles-Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

There is only one innovation we have made and that is the establishment of the Depository of Association Press publications. This depository is maintained in connection with the library for the use of ministers and social workers in particular and any others who desire to purchase Association books.

H. G. EDDY, Asso. Director of Religious and Social Activities.

Monrovia.

\$||MONBOYIA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Anne L. Crews, Lib'n. Est. 1891; as F. P. 1894. Total payments 1923-24, \$6000 (from city appropriation). 4 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 10.30 a.m. to 8.30 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 93 periodicals (78 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 82 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total books, etc., 10,872: books 10,407; pamphlets 459; maps 6. Added 821: books 761 (purchase 667, gift or exchange 61, binding 33); pamphlets 60. Books lost 28; discarded 124; rep'd 1298; reb'd 374. Cardholders 2782. Added 1659; cancelled 57. Circulation 64,006: books 56,843; periodicals 7163.

MONROVIA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. A. R. Clifton, Prin. Anne L. Crews, Lib'n. Est. 1893. Open 8.30 to 11.15 a.m.; 2.30 to 3.45 p.m. 3 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1935. Teachers a. 29; pupils a. 485.

Annual report not rec'd.

Montebello.

MONTEBELLO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Mark R. Jacobs, Prin. Ruby Carver, Lib'n. Est. 1910. 18 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1250. Teachers a. 9; pupils a. 160.

Annual report not rec'd.

Norwalk.

EXCELSION UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-RRARY AND BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY. D. A. Stouffer, Prin. Est. 1903. Branch est. July, 1921. 8 periodicals from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 523. Teachers a. 12; pupils a. 191.

Annual report not rec'd,

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Pasadena.

\$||PASADENA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Jeannette M. Drake, Lib'n. Est. Dec. 26, 1882; as F. P. Sept. 9, 1890. Amt. rec'd from taxation 1923-24, \$85,-140. Total payments \$83,093.71. 47 employees: 31 in main library; 16 in branches. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$50,000 bldg. Boys' and Girls' Library located in \$12,000 bungalow about 30 feet from main library. North Pasadena Branch located in bldg., rent \$30 per mo. East Pasadena Branch located in room, rent \$35 per mo. 6 branches, of which 5 have reading rooms. 484 periodicals rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting second Tues.

Total vols. 96,341. Added 10,801: purchase 9827; gift 598; binding 300; lost and found 76. Discarded 2594; rep'd 22,129; reb'd 5453. Cardholders 38,993. Added 10,422. Circulation 752,236 (from main library 440,375, from branches 311,-861): juvenile 220,271; adult 531,965.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Plans drawn by Marston, Van Pelt and Mayberry for the East Branch Library building have been accepted by the City Board of Directors. The building will be one story of Spanish design.

Miss Faith Green and Miss Mary Hill of the Pasadena staff are spending the summer in Europe and Miss George Diehl is spending four months in New York City.

Miss Jeannette M. Drake, Librarian, was elected President of the Pasadena Library Club, for the ensuing year and Mr Cole, of the Huntington Library, Secretary.

JEANNETTE M. DRAKE, Lib'n.

\$CALIFORNIA INSTITUTE OF TECH-NOLOGY LIBRARY. Dr Robert A. Millikan, Chairman Exec. Council. Miss Frances H. Spining, Lib'n. Est. 1904. 1 employee. Open to students and to the public for reference, every school day, 8 a.m. to 10 p.m. Located in College bldg. 148 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 15,086. Added 1124: purchase 670; gift 275; binding 179. Teachers 58; pupils 559.

JOHN MUIR JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Katharine West, Lib'n.

No further information rec'd.

Pasadena—Continued.

MOUNT WILSON SOLAR OBSERVATORY LIBRARY. George E. Hale, Director of Observatory. Elizabeth Connor, Lib'n. Est. 1904. Library is made up entirely of astronomical and physical books. 1 employee. Open Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 4.30 p.m.; Sat. 8 a.m. to 12 m. Located on Santa Barbara st. 142 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc., a. 12,268: books a. 7268; pamphlets a. 5000; slides a. 2000. Annual report not rec'd.

*ORTON SCHOOL LIBRARY. Anna B. Orton, Prin. Est. 1890. For use of students only. Located at 130 and 154 S. Euclid ave. 8 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1000. Teachers a. 18; pupils a. 80.

Annual report not rec'd.

PASADENA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. F. Ewing, Prin. Miss Winifred Skinner, Lib'n. Est. 1891. 3 employees. 1 branch (Polytechnic branch). Located at E. Colorado st. and Sierra Bonita ave. 80 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 13,814. Added 1615: purchase 1512; gift 41; binding 62. Teachers 145; pupils 3000. Circulation 62,401.

The textbook circulation is also under Library Department. It amounted to 42,110, making a grand total circulation of 104,511.

PASADENA UNIVERSITY LIBRARY. Rev A. O. Hendricks, Pres. Est. 1910. Open daily except Sat. and Sun. 8 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. Located in University Park. 35 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 5000. Teachers a. 34; pupils à. 475.

Annual report not rec'd.

Pomona.

§ POMONA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Sarah M. Jacobus, Lib'n. Est. 1887; as F. P. 1902. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$10,902.30. Annual income 1923-24, \$23,637.19 (from taxation \$22,764.48; from other sources \$872.71). Total payments \$23,392.80. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$11,146.69. 12 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$25,000 Carnegie bldg. 11 branches, of which 1 has a reading room and 10 are in schools. 161 periodicals (130 for circulation) rec'd r eg ul a r ly: 9 newspapers; 148 mags.; 4 transactions. Library trustees ponthly meeting first Mon.

LOS ANGELES CO .-- Continued.

Pomona-Continued.

Total books, etc. a. 70,459: books 50,-427; pamphlets a. 9952; manuscripts 2; prints 9759; music records 319. Added 6154: books 3213 (purchase 2757, gift or exchange 289, binding 167); pamphlets 1125; manuscripts 1; prints 1790; music records 25. Books discarded 1101; rep'd 1213. Cardholders 10,043. Added 2420; cancelled 2175. Circulation 210,-447 (from main library 147,396, from branches 63,051): books 186,656; periodicals 7349; other material 16,442.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

During the summer the building has been painted and tinted inside and out, and some necessary repairs made.

Mrs Howard Payne and Miss Violet Tapper have resigned this summer, Mrs Payne to go to housekeeping, and Miss Tapper to take a position in the Santa Ana Public Library. Miss Carolyn Walker (Los Angeles '24) began work September first. Mrs Donald Lyman (formerly Fern Hartman, Los Angeles '20) is to work at least for a few months, b e g i n n i n g mid-October. Miss Zilpha Johnson (Pomona College Library) has also joined the staff. This enlarges the working force by one over last year.

More than one-third of the children who registered for the vacation reading course completed the required reading. Diplomas bearing the city seal were awarded these September 26. The President of the Library Board and the Superintendent of City Schools were present and made brief addresses. The number of diplomas granted was 109.

The work schedule has been so arranged that we are able to man an "In formation Desk" instead of answering inquiries for books at the delivery desk.

S. M. JACOBUS, Lib'n.

POMONA HIGH SCHOOL AND JUNIOR COLLEGE LIBRARY. H. P. Reynolds, Prin. Edna Adell Hester, Lib'n. Est. 1893. Located corner Pearl and Gibbs sts. Open school days from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 21 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3200. Teachers a. 37. Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

In August the High School moved into its new building. The new library quar-

Pomona-Continued.

ters are delightfully located in the east wing at the end of the central corridor on the main floor. The library, 68 by 28 feet, has a large combination work and consultation room opening back of the librarian's desk, with a room for textbooks back of that.

The library proper is entirely equipped with Library Bureau furniture, the $7\frac{1}{2}$ foot tables being used. At present the room will seat 90 pupils.

The books, which had been mended, reclassified, shelf listed, and labeled, will now be cataloged; a work that will be pushed this year, as we are fortunate in having a class of four Junior College girls.

EDNA A. HESTER, Lib'n.

Puente.

PUENTE HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, R. H. Blee, Prin. Est. Sept. 13, 1915. 12 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1350. Added 50 by purchase. Teachers 11; pupils 148.

Redondo Beach.

REDONDO BEACH [FREE] PUBLIC LA-BRARY, Miss Emma E. Catey, Lib'n. Est. 1895: as F. P. Nov. 23, 1908. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3678. Annual income 1923-24, \$7794.71 (from taxation \$6954.09, library tax being 11 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$\$40.62). Total payments \$6998.18. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$4474.53. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 10 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2.30 to 4.30 p.m. Located in city hall. 123 periodicals (103 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 112 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Wed.

Total vols. 13,524. Added 1381: purchase 1180; gift or exchange 164; binding 37. Lost 74; discarded 39; rep'd 2030; reb'd 385. Cardholders 2838. Added 1392; cancelled 2567. Circulation 94,-104: books 86,919; periodicals 7185. Vols. loaned to other libs. 25; borrowed from other libs. 13.

The library has discontinued reserving fiction and has installed a system of pay fiction instead. During the year instruction and practice in the library were given to two students.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Lola Clegg, Librarian, tendered pupils a. 450. her resignation August 19, and was mar-

.

LOS ANGELES CO.—Continued.

Redondo Beach-Continued.

ried the following day to Mr Louis Molnar, former mayor of this city. Miss Emma E. Catey, first assistant, was made Librarian and Mrs Miriam N. Burney was advanced to Miss Catey's former position. Miss Carlotta Hoye, who took the library training here about two years ago, gave up a position at Sawtelle to become second assistant.

The Library was represented in a parade during Greater Redondo Week by a float consisting of two "books," one six feet high and the other four, the latter typifying the present outgrown quarters and the larger one what is hoped may materialize into a library building. The "books" were lined with shelves filled with magazines and books from the library and other volumes ranged around the edges of the float bore legends signifying the classifications to be found in the library. Two young girls acted as "librarians."

Recently a large amount of additional shelving was installed and a very handsome quarter-sawed oak receiving and discharging desk was made to order. This is large enough to permit of three or four people performing various tasks at one time within its confines.

EMMA E. CATEY, Lib'n.

REDONDO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. C. A. Langworthy, Prin. Miss Edith M. Schulze, Lib'n. Fist. 1905. Open school days 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 38 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 3905. Added 815. Teachers 43; pupils 816.

San Fernando.

SAN FERNANDO ACADEMY LIBRARY. H. G. Lucas, Prin. Est. 1902. 16 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1250. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 85.

Annual report not rec'd.

\$SAN FERNANDO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Mrs E. C. Ingham, Prin. Miss Addie I. Duprey, Lib'n. Est. 1896. Open to public school days S a.m. to 5 p.m.; 2 evenings 7 to 9 p.m. 56 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 7607. Teachers a. 30; pupils a. 450.

San Gabriel.

SAN GABRIEL BRANCH, LOS ANGELES Co. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Los Angeles Co. Free Library.

Santa Monica.

\$SANTA MONICA [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Miss Elfie A. Mosse, Lib'n. Est. 1886; as F. P. Dec. 5, 1890. Annual income 1922–23, \$20,126.91 (from taxation \$19,191.24). 9 employees. Open daily except holidays 9 a.m. to 10.30 p.m. Located in \$18,500 Carnegie bldg. and owns \$15,000 Carnegie branch bldg. at Ocean Park. 1 branch. 203 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly : 16 newspapers; 187 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. a. 35,362. Cardholders a. 10.500.

Annual report not rec'd.

SANTA MONICA HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. W. F. Barnum, Prin. Miss Mary L. McKinley, Lib'n. Est. 1891. 2 employees. Open to students every school day. 65 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 6519. Teachers a. 52; pupils a. 963.

Annual report not rec'd.

Sierra Madre.

SIERRA MADRE [FREE] PUBLIC LI-RRARY. Miss Lulu Moore, Lib'n. Est. 1887; as F. P. March 31, 1910. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$859.45. Annual income 1923–24, \$3830.82 (all from taxation). Total payments \$3248.02. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1342.25. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 1.30 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$3500 bldg. 79 periodicals (65 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 2 newspapers; 64 mags.; 1 transaction; 12 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting first Wed.

Total books, etc. 12,952: books 9929; pamphlets 2248; serials 756; maps 19. Added 732: books 606 by purchase; pamphlets 102; serials 20; maps 4. Books lost 15; discarded 35; reb'd 100. Cardholders 1433. Added 411. Circulation 32,323: books 27,144; periodicals 5179. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 16.

Soldiers' Home.

*SOLDIERS' HOME LIBRARY. Gen. P. H. Barry, Gov. H. C. Scribner, Lib'n. Est. 1889. Income from Post Fund. 3 employees. Open to members, officers and civilian employees daily except legal holidays 8 to 11.30 a.m., 12.30 to 4.30 and 6 to 8 p.m. Owns bldg, valued at

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Soldiers' Home-Continued.

\$35,000. 46 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 6 newspapers; 40 mags.

Total vols. 11,150. Added 500: purchase 360; gift or exchange 140. Discarded 350. Cardholders 500. Added 800; cancelled 600. Circulation 23,846: books 23,800; periodicals 46.

South Pasadena.

\$SOUTH PASADENA FREE PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs Nellie E. Keith, Lib'n. Est. 1889; as F. P. Nov. 1895. Total payments 1923-24, \$13,260.30. 5 employees. Open daily except holidays and Sun. during July, August and September: week days 10 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$18,000 Carnegie bldg. 100 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 9 newspapers; 91 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting Fri. before second Mon.

Total vols. 23,772. Added 1366: purchase 1171; gift or exchange 83; binding 112. Cardholders added 1159. Circulation 123,087: books 113,090; periodicals 9997.

*SOUTH PASADENA HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. John E. Alman, Prin. Mabel S. Hulberg, Lib'n. Est. 1915. Open school days 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 34 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2740. Teachers 28; pupils 706.

Torrance.

*TORRANCE HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. T. W. Barnett, Prin. Est. 1916. 12 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 573. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 34.

Annual report not rec'd.

Tujunga.

TUJUNGA BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Los Angeles Co. Free Library.

Venice.

VENICE FREE LIBRARY AND READING ROOM. Mrs M. Matter, in charge. Est. March 20, 1908. Income from donations, etc. No paid employees. Open daily 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.; Sun. reading room only. 7 mags. ree'd regularly (all for circulation).

Total vols. a. 500. Cardholders a. 35. Annual report not rec'd.

LOS ANGELES CO .--- Continued.

Venice-Continued.

VENICE UNION POLYTECHNIC HIGH CLIOCI LIBRARY AND BRANCH, LOS AN-GELES CO. FREE LIBRARY. Edward W. Clark, Prin. Lillian L. Hutchinson, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 11, 1911. Branch est. April 21, 1916. 20 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2100. Added 300 by purchase. Teachers 40; pupils 535.

Watts.

WATTS [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LI-BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Mrs Margaret Gamble, Custo-dian. Est. as F. P. April 22, 1913; as branch, Los Angeles Co. F. L. June 13, 1913; joined Los Angeles Co. F. L. July 18, 1916. 2 employees. Open daily ex-cept Mon.: week days 1.30 to 8 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$19,000 Carnegie bldg. Library trustees monthly meeting first Sat. 24 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. from Co. a. 3029.

West Alhambra.

RAMONA CONVENT OF THE HOLY NAMES LIBRARY, Sister Mary Marcella, Prin. Est. Jan. 1890. 4 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2100. Teachers a. 13; pupils a. 139.

Annual report not rec'd.

Whittier.

SWHITTIER [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Ruth Ellis, Lib'r. Est. as F. P. April 9, 1900. Bal. July 1, 1923, April 9, 1900. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$5766.12. Annual income 1923–24, \$15,-017.75 (from taxation \$13,812.44, library tax being 1.5 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$1205.31). Total payments \$10,699.65. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$10,084.22. 6 employees. Open daily: week days 10 a.m. to 9 p.m., Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$13,000 Carnegie bldg. 122 periodi-calls (115 for circulation) recid-net lacht. cals (115 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 8 newspapers; 102 mags.; 12 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting second Tues.

Total books, etc. 17,066: books 17.039: maps 26; globes 1. Added 1386: books 1385 (purchase 969, gift or exchange 171, duplicate pay collection 114, binding 123, found 8); maps 1. Books lost 38; discarded 330; sold 17; rep'd 4827; reb'd 216.Cardholders 5223. Added 2129: cancelled 1523. Circulation 110.887: books 88,082; periodicals 9544; other

LOS ANGELES CO.-Continued.

Whittier-Continued.

son, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 12, 1905. 1 em-ployee. Open to students and to public for reference during school year daily except Sat. and Sun., 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in one large room in main bldg. 69 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly. Trustees annual meeting last Tues. in June.

Total vols. 8601. Added 778: purchase 304: gift 371: binding 103. Teachers 21: pupils 219. Circulation 4917.

A new four drawer information file from Library Bureau has been installed.

WHITTIER STATE SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, LOS ANGELES CO. FREE LI-BRANCH, Fred C. Nelles, Supt. Mrs L. S. Howard, Lib'n. Est. 1891. Branch est. June, 1913. For use of officers of school and children who attend school. Open Mon. to Fri. 4 to 5 p.m. Located in school

Total vols. a. 3500. Pupils a. 310. Annual report not rec'd.

WHITTHER UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Olney C. Albertson, Prin. Miss Jessie A. Harris, Lib'n. Est. 1901. 43 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3000. Teachers 44: pupils 1020.

The library is being reorganized.

MADERA COUNTY.

(Thirty-seventh class.)

County seat, Madera.

Area, 2140 sq. mi. Pop. 12,203.

Assessed valuation \$27,401,745 (taxable for county \$22.083.700).

MADERA CO. FREE LIBRARY, MADERA. Miss Blanche Galloway, Lib'n. Est. May 3, 1910; under Sec. 2, 1911 Co. F. L. law, June 3, 1911. Includes entire county for tax and service. Co. Law Library and Co. Teachers' Library joined. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$7970.14. Annual income 1923– 24, \$22,157.07 (from taxation \$15,609.06, library tax being .8 m. on the dollar from school districts having joined \$4040; from other sources \$2508.01). Total pay-ments \$26,387.66. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$3739.55. 27 employees: 8 in office; 19 in branches. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2.30 to 6 p.m. Located in \$12,500 library bldg. Total branches 68, as follows: commun-ity 20—Ahwahnee, Bailey Flats, Berenda, books 88,082; periodicals 9544; other material 13,261. [WHITTIER COLLEGE LIBRARY. Walter F. Dexter, Pres. Miss Anna L. Tomlin-Adviser (r. r.) in Madera, North Fork,

MADERA CO .- Continued.

North Fork Mission, O'Neals, Raymond, Sugar Pine (Mill [r.r.] and Wood's Store [r.r.]), The Pines; active school districts that have joined 47 (47 school branches)—Alpha, A r c o l a, Ash View, Bailey Flats, Berenda, Bethel, Castle Peak, Central, Chowchilla, Chowchilla High, Coarse Gold Union (incl. Coarse Gold and Picayune), Cunningham, Dairyland, Dennis, Dixieland, Eastin, Fairmead, Flume, Fresno, Gertrude, Green, Hawkins, Howard, Knowles, La Vina, Madera, Manzanita, Marysdale, Mt. View, North Fork Mission, North Fork Union (incl. Cleveland and San Joaquin), Pershing, Polk, Raymond, Raymond Granite Union High, Resideal, Ripperdan, Sand Creek, Service, Sharon, Spring Valley, Sweet Flower, Tharsa, Trigo, Washington, Webster, Willow Creek; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Madera. 917 periodicals (913 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 10 newspapers; S99 mags.; 8 other serials. Distributed: 107 to office; S10 to branches.

Total books, etc. 74,227: books 60,639; pamphlets 3923; maps 185; prints 1600; slides 400; pictures 12; music records 164; music sheets 622; stereographs 6420; post cards 18; charts 150; globes 94. Added 9814: books 8896 (purchase 8874, gift or exchange 17, binding 5); pamphlets 495; maps 32; pictures 12; music records 31; stereographs 300; post cards 18; charts 30. Withdrawn 938: books 894 discarded; music records 44. Books rep'd 270; reb'd 1272. Cardholders 2730. Added 945. Circulation 69.245: books 65.797; periodicals 3448. Vols, loaned to other libs, 2; borrowed from other libs. 301 (284 from State Library). 549 shipments (25,724 items: books 23,711; periodicals 26; other material 1987) were sent to branches. Of these 13,335 were supplementary books. In addition 6926 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 12,309 special requests.

During the year 44 visits were made to 36 branches. 695 visits to headquarters were made by 104 custodians. 3 branches were established; 5 branches (suspended school districts) were discontinued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Alamo School, newly organized, has contracted for County Library service. Two old schools, Deepwell and Hanover, having lapsed last year, have returned to the fold, and are being served by the County Library,

MADERA CO.—Continued.

Homecoming week for books was conducted by publicity in the local papers, and posters in the library. The results justified the effort spent.

A cut from .8 m. to .6 m. on the dollar in our tax rate for the present year is preventing any new activities from being started.

BLANCHE GALLOWAY, Lib'n.

MADERA Co. LAW LIBRAEY, MADERA. Blanche Galloway, Lib'n. Est. May, 1893; destroyed (a. 450 vols.) by fire Dec. 24, 1906; re-est. 1907. Income rec'd from \$2 fee for filing papers. No paid employees. Open daily: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2.30 to 6.30 p.m. Located in County Free Library. 14 periodicals rec'd regularly. Library trustees meet at call of pres.

Total vols. a. 2520.

Annual report not rec'd.

MADERA Co. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, MA-DERA. Mrs Meta N. Footman, Co. Supt. Est. May, 1903. Joined County Free Library. Amt. paid for books \$43.61. Open daily 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. except Sat. p.m. and Sun.

Teachers employed 143: elem. 107; high 36. Active school districts: elem. 44; high, union 3. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$4083; high \$1982. Vols. in schools, high 7422.

Alamo School Dist.

ALAMO SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, MADERA CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Chowchilla.

CHOWCHILLA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, MADERA CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Mr J. COANOEUR, Prin. Est. June 11, 1917. 7 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Annual report not rec'd.

Deepwell School Dist.

DEEPWELL SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, MADERA CO. FREE LIBRARY, was reestablished during the quarter.

Hanover School Dist.

HANOVER SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, MADERA CO. FREE LIBRARY, was re-established during the quarter.

Madera.

MADERA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Est. 1901; destroyed a. 2000 vols. by fire Dec. 24, 1906; re-est. as F. P. April 18, 1910.

MADERA CO.—Continued.

Madera-Continued.

The town of Madera is acting under section 3 of the 1911 county free library law, having discontinued its library trustees.

MADERA Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Madera Co.

MADERA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, Prof R. J. Teall, Prin. Est. 1904. 25 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1702. Teachers, a. 21; pupils a. 364.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mrs Barta Hilliard, who was formerly librarian, does not have charge of the library any more. Miss Virginia Short, who is also in charge of high school music, has the library under her charge for the year.

VIRGINIA L. SHORT.

North Fork.

FOREST RANGERS' OR SIERRA NORTH RESERVE LIBRARY, J. T. Shinn, in charge, Est. 1908. Income from fines and gifts. For use of forest rangers and their families. Open week days 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. Located in Government office. 4 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 65. Pamphlets a. 250. Employees a. 25.

Annual report not rec'd.

Raymond.

RAYMOND G RANITE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, MADERA CO. FREE LIBRARY. C. P. Stevens, Prin. Est. July, 1915; joined Co. F. L. Sept. 11, 1916. 5 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 500. Added a. 100. Teachers 3 ; pupils 42.

Sugar Pine (No exp. office).

SUGAR PINE LIBRARY. Mary A. Gray, Lib'n. Est. Oct. 1, 1907. Annual amt. spent for lib. a. \$500. 1 employee. Open week days to employees of Sugar Pine Lumber Co. 36 periodicals rec'd regularly (all for circulation).

Total vols. a. 600.

Annual report not rec'd.

MARIN COUNTY.

(Twenty-fifth class.) County seat, San Rafael.

Area, 516 sq. mi. Pop. 27,342.

Assessed valuation \$29,076,550 (taxable for county \$25,328,955).

MARIN CO.-Continued.

MARIN Co. LAW LIBRARY, SAN RAFAEL, C. S. Whitaker, Lib'n. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Open to public daily 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 1909.

Annual report not rec'd.

MARIN CO. TEACHERS' LIBRABY, SAN RAFAEL, Jas. B. Davidson, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Income 1923–24, \$36, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$33.71.

Total vols. 565. Teachers employed 211: elem. 144; high 67. Active school districts: elem. 44 (incl. 3 jt.); high: city 1; union 1; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923–24: elem. \$4390; high \$5288. Vols. in schools: elem. 62.441; high 6045.

Fairfax.

FAIRFAX COMMUNITY LIBRARY AND READING ROOM. Est. July 9, 1923. Open Mon., Tues., Wed. and Fri. 7 to 9 p.m.; Wed. and Fri. 3 to 5 p.m. also; Sat. 3 to 5 p.m.

No further information rec'd.

Larkspur.

LARKSPUR FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Alice de V. Cagwin, Lib'n. Est. Jan. 19, 1914; as F. P. Apr. 4, 1923. Annual income 1923–24, \$546 (from appropriation \$500; from other sources \$46). Total payments \$492.11. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$53.89. 1 employee. Open Mon. and Fri. 7.45 to 9 and Tues. 2.30 to 4.30 p.m. Located in Town Hall, rent free. 9 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 1 newspaper; 8 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 2240. Added 97: purchase 83; gift or exchange 12; binding 2. Lost 13; discarded 4; rep'd 156; reb'd 27. Cardholders 177. Added 94; cancelled 41. Circulation (for 10 mos.) 4083: books 3906; periodicals 177.

Mill Valley.

MILL VALLEY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Sybil Nye, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Oct. 13, 1908. Annual income 1922–23, \$4809.58 (from taxation \$4793.88). 3 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 42 periodicals rec'd regularly: 6 newspapers; 36 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. a. 5114. Cardholders a. 1266.

MARIN CO .--- Continued.

Mill Valley-Continued.

TAMALPAIS UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, Ernest E. Wood, Prin. Miss Ruth Seymour, Lib'n. Est. 1908. 41 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3126. Teachers a. 30; pupils a. 600.

Annual report not rec'd.

San Anselmo.

SAN ANSELMO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Belle Meagor, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 8, 1914. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$360.92. Annual income 1923-24, \$2871 (from taxation \$2500, library tax being 1.2 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$371). Bal. July 1, 1924, \$257.16. 4 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 12 m. to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 46 periodicals rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 41 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting third Tues.

Total vols. 5878. Added 282: purchase 93; gift or exchange 155; binding 34. Lost 6; discarded 54; reb'd 50. Cardholders 1334. Added 173. Circulation 20,118: books 19,140; periodicals 978. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 25 (all from State Library).

SAN FRANCISCO THEOLOGICAL SEMI-NARY LIBRARY. Rev Warren H. Landon, D.D., Pres. Rev Lynn T. White, D.D., Lib'n. Est. 1871. Annual amt. spent for lib. a. \$1000. Supported by seminary for use of students and clergy, and under certain conditions also for public. Used by ministers of all coast states. 2 employees. Open week days 8 a.m. to 10 p.m. 34 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 19,608. Added 674: purchase 504; gift 170. Teachers 7; pupils 103. Average monthly circulation 211.

San Quentin.

SAN QUENTIN PRISON LIBRARY. J. A. Johnston, Warden. Est. 1852. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 4 and 5.30 to 8 p.m. 37 mags. (1800 copies) rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 14,955.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

During the quarter shipments of books were received from the Contra Costa County Free Library and San Francisco Public Library, discards which were still in good shape and which, with rebinding, make valuable additions to our stock here. Their courtesy and generosity are deeply appreciated, and the donations have added to the usefulness of our Library.

MARIN CO .--- Continued.

San Quentin-Continued.

We are now receiving over 100 publications, monthly, semimonthly and weekly, through the courtesy of the publishers and their San Francisco distributors. The receipts average 2363 copies per month, and amply provide the means of supplying the large population with sufficient good reading material. The circulation of the Library has increased during the quarter and the service rendered by the department has also increased.

There has also been a considerable increase in the use of the privilege of drawing books from the State Library by the inmates. Most of the books so drawn are for reference use in connection with studies from the University of California in history and other advanced subjects.

1727 books and 8289 magazines were received during the quarter, and 766 books were rebound. The book circulation amounted to 8313, and the magazine to 11.050.

J. A. HEFFERNAN, Acting Secretary.

San Rafael.

SAN RAFAEL [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Margaret MacDonald, Lib'n. Est. 1887; as F. P. 1890. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1854.84. A n n u a 1 income 1923-24, \$5712.59 (from taxation \$5205.39, library tax being 1 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$507.20). Total p a y m e n ts \$5557.42. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2010.01. 3 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: week days 10 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$25,000 Carnegie bldg. 65 periodicals (21 for circulation) rec'd r e g u l a r l y: 6 newspapers; 58 mags.; 1 transaction. Library trustees monthly meeting second Fri.

Total books, etc. 12,080: books 12,068; stereographs 11 sets; globes 1. Books added 780: purchase 476; gift or exchange 282; binding 22. Lost 8; discarded 179; reb'd 29. Cardholders 1781. Added 908; cancelled 951. Circulation 43,098: books 41,265; periodicals 1833. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 61 (58 from State Library).

*DOMINICAN COLLEGE LIBRABY. Mother M. Louis, Prin. Est. July 16, 1889. For students of institution only. 10 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 8000. Teachers a. 25; pupils a. 147.

MARIN CO.-Continued.

San Rafael-Continued.

*HITCHCOCK MILITARY ACADEMY LI-BRARY. Rex W. Sherer, Prin. Est. 1878. Library organized Jan. 1922. H. G. Pfander, Lib'n. Supported by academy for use of its students and instructors only. 8 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1100. Teachers a. 18; pupils a. 140.

Annual report not rec'd.

MARIN Co. law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Marin Co.

*MOUNT TAMALPAIS MILITARY ACAD-EMY LIBRARY. N. F. Vanderbilt, Commandant. Est. 1890. 4 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 900. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 167.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN RAFAEL HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. D. R. Jones, Prin. Est. 1888. 12 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1800. Teachers a. 12; pupils a. 188.

Annual report not rec'd.

Sausalito.

SAUSALITO FREE PUBLIC LIBBARY. Caroline L. Fiedler, Lib'n. Est. March 1, 1906, Bal. July 1, 1923, \$612.07. Annual income 1923-24, \$2149.53 (from taxation \$2008.53, library tax being. 8 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$141). Total payments \$2183.22. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$578.38. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 10 to 11 a.m., 2 to 6 and 7.15 to 9 p.m. Located in Bank of Sausalito bldg., owned by town. 28 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 8 newspapers; 20 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting second Tues.

Total vols. 5640. Added 231: purchase 203; gift or exchange 28. Lost 6; discarded 41; rep'd 200. Cardholders 4896. Added 180; cancelled 33. Circulation 20,178: books 19,458; periodicals 720. Vols. borrowed from State Library 2.

During the year a class of young men met for study of Current Events from 9 to 10 one evening a week after closing hours. The librarian has directed selection of books for High School students, after obtaining lists of books required from school. One hundred books and seventy-five magazines for sailors were collected.

.

MARIN CO .- Continued.

Tomales.

TOMALES UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, Chas. L. Hampton, Prin. Est. 1913. Open school days, 9 a.m. to 3.30 p.m. 25 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1131. Added 36: purchase 35: gift 1. Teachers 6; pupils 65. Circulation 45 per mo.

MARIPOSA COUNTY.

(Fifty-third class.)

County seat, Mariposa.

Area, 1580 sq. mi. Pop. 2775.

Assessed valuation \$5,503,883 (taxable for county \$4,636,098).

MARIPOSA CO. HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, MARIPOSA. C. C. Childress, Prin. Est. 1914. 3 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 820. Teachers a. 4. Annual report not rec'd.

MARIPOSA CO. LAW LIBRARY, MARI-POSA. Judge J. J. Trabucco, trustee. Est. 1894. Income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open to public 9 a.m.: to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. 1 periodical rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 400.

Annual report not rec'd.

MARIPOSA CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, MARIPOSA. T. B. Price, Co. Supt. Income 1923-24, \$22, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$7.68.

Total vols. 1000. Teachers employed 35: elem. 31; high 4. Active school districts: elem. 28 (incl. 2 jt.); high, county 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$924; high \$105. Vols. in schools: elem. 11,162; high 1200.

Mariposa.

MARIPOSA Co. high school, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Mariposa Co.

· Yosemite.

YOSEMITE VALLEY BRANCH OF SIERRA CLUB LIBRARY, LE CONTE MEMORIAL LI-BRARY. Custodian only during summer months. Supported by club, Open to public for reference only. Located in Le Conte Memorial Lodge. No mags. but 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 55.

The library is kept open only during the three months of heaviest travel each summer.

MENDOCINO COUNTY.

(Twenty-eighth class.)

County seat, Ukiah.

Area, 3400 sq. mi. Pop. 24,116.

Assessed valuation \$32,464,292 (taxable for county \$26,784,552).

MENDOCINO [CO.] LAW LIBRARY, UKIAH. J. M. Mannon, Sec. Est. 1892. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open week days 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. 2 periodicals rec'd regularly. Library trustees annual meeting first Mon. in Aug.

Total vols. a. 1492.

Annual report not rec'd.

MENDOCINO CO. TEACHERS' LIBBARY, UKIAH. Roy Good, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Income 1923–24, \$79, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$52.32.

Total vols. 1250. Teachers employed 237: elem. 174; high 63. Active school districts: elem. 111; high 8 (9 high schools), union 8. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$8425; high \$3017. Vols. in schools: elem. 57,153; high 17,778.

Boonville.

ANDERSON VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. D. Hendricks, Prin. Est. 1912. 8 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 600. Teachers 4; pupils 35.

Covelo.

ROUND VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Dr Chas. G. Davis, Prin. Est. 1903. 16 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1462. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 42.

Annual report not rec'd.

Fort Bragg.

FORT BRAGE [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Bertie F. Wright, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Sept. 26, 1910. 3 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. 24 periodicals rec'd regularly: 4 newspapers; 20 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 5994. Added 484. Cardholders 3307. Added 325. Circulation 20,115: books 19,618; periodicals 497.

FORT BRAGG UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. J. S. Cotton, Prin. Est. 1901. 4 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers a. 5; pupils a. 67.

Annual report not rec'd.

MENDOCINO CO____Continued.

Hopland.

HOPLAND UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, F. L. Caughey, Prin. Est. Sept. 1916. 5 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 375. Teachers a. 3; pupils a. 30.

Annual report not rec'd.

Mendocino.

MENDOCINO LIBRARY ASSOCIATION READING ROOM, Paul A. Schulz, Lib'n. Est. July 6, 1908. Annual income a. \$600, rec'd' from subscriptions. 1 employee. Open to public daily: week days 7 to 9.30 p.m.; Sun. and holidays all day. Located in Kelly bldg. 10 mags. and 7 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 192.

Annual report not rec'd.

MENDOCINO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LA-BRARY, Howard O. Coale, Prin. Est. 1893. 7 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 112. Annual report not rec'd.

Point Arena.

POINT ARENA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. F. I. Selzer, Prin. Est. 1910. 8 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1000. Added 50 by purchase. Teachers 4; pupils 60. Circulation 50.

Talmage.

MENDOCINO STATE HOSPITAL LIBRARY. Donald R. Smith, Med. Supt. Mrs Gertrude Elliott, Custodian. Est. Dec., 1893. Open daily 1 to 4 p.m.

Total books, etc. a. 620; books a. 608; pamphlets a. 12.

Annual report not rec'd.

Ukiah.

UKIAH FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Mary L. Burrey, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. March 6, 1906. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1429.96. A n n u a 1 income 1923-24, \$2660.96 (from taxation \$2610.51, library tax being 1.9 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$50.45). Total payments \$1921.90. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2169.02. 3 empoyees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 10 a.m. to 12 m., 1 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$8000 Carnegie bldg. 33 periodicals rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 28 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first day of month.

Total books, etc. 7301: books 6040; pamphlets 748; serials 141; maps 30; slides 335; globes 1; pictures 6. Added 783: books 575 (purchase 135, gift or

MENDOCINO CO.-Continued.

Ukiah-Continued.

exchange 436, binding 4); pamphlets 148; serials 56; maps 4. Books lost 8; discarded 84; rep'd 331. Cardholders 4043. Added 212; cancelled 74. Circulation 21,481: books 20,596; periodicals 885. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 68 (all from State Library).

MENDOCINO CO. law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Mendocino Co.

UKIAH UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Chas. Fillkerson, Prin. Est. 1891. 12 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1500. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 216.

Annual report not rec'd.

Willits.

WILLITS FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Sarah R. Livermore, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. March 3, 1906. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1581.44. An n u a l'income 1923–24, \$1952.65 (from taxation \$1773.45; from other sources \$179.20). Total payments \$2301.55. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1232.54. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$8000 Carnegie bldg. 22 periodicals rec'd regularly: 4 newspapers; 18 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting last Mon.

Total books, etc. 2989: books 2986; maps 2; globes 1. Books added 400: purchase 340; gift or exchange 60. Lost 6; discarded 52; rep'd 226. Cardholders 770. Added 175; cancelled 133. Circulation 12,858. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 10 (all from State Library).

WILLITS UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. R. C. Olmstead, Prin. Est. 1903. 5 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 600. Added 200; discarded 300. Teachers 9; pupils 110.

MERCED COUNTY.

(Twenty-seventh class.)

County seat, Merced.

Area, 1750 sq. mi. Pop. 24,579.

Assessed valuation \$39,414,762 (taxable for county \$32,215,481).

MERCED CO. FREE LIBRARY, MERCED. Miss Essae M. Culver, Lib'n. Est. June 6, 1910, under contract section; under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, July 6, 1916. Includes entire county for tax and service, tax being made under Pol. Code, Sec. 4041. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1971.14. An-7-34984

MERCED CO.—Continued.

nual income 1923-24, \$40,767.32 (from nual income 1923–24, \$40,167.32 (from taxation \$30,614.52, library tax being 1 m. on the dollar; from school districts h a v in g joined \$7368.43; from other sources \$2784.37). Total payments \$43,-551.72. Deficit July 1, 1924, \$813.26. 28 employees: 9 in office; 19 in branches. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 12 m., 1 to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in county library building in court house park. Total branches 84, as follows: community 20branches S4, as follows: community 20— Amsterdam, Athlone, Atwater (r. r.), Delhi, Dos Palos (r. r.), El Nido, Gustine (r. r.), Irwin (r. r.), Le Grand (r. r.), Livingston (r. r.), Los Banos (r. r.), Merced (r. r.), Merced Falls, Planada, Raisin, Snelling (r. r.), Stevinson (r. r.), Volta, Winton (r. r.); active school dis-tricts that have joined 65 (63 school branches)—Applerate Appling Arona tricts that have joined 65 (63 school branches)—Applegate, Appling, Arena, Arundel, Athlone, B ar field, Buhach, Canal, Center, Charleston, Clay, Cressey, Delhi, Dickinson, Dos Palos, Dos Palos Town, Eden, El Capitan, Elim Union (incl. North Elim and South Elim), Fl Nido, Eschscholtzia, Fairview, Farmdale, Franklin, Fruitland, G u s t i n e, Hilmar, Hopeton, Ingomar, Johnson Joint, Jor-dan, Le Grand, Livingston, Lone Tree, McSwain, Madison, Merced Colony, Mer-ced Falls, Merquin Union (incl. Jefferson, Stevenson and San Joaquin—2 school Stevenson and San Joaquin—2 school bldgs.), Mitchell, Monroe, Occidental, Ortigalito, Pioneer, Plainsburg, Planada, Ortigalito, Pioneer, Plainsburg, Planada, Prairie Flower, Raisin, Riverside, Ro-mero, Rotterdam, Russell, Savana, Snell-ing, Sunset, Tuttle, Vincent, Vineyard, Volta, Washington, Whitmer, Winton; special school branches, 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Merced. 635 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 28 news-papers; 607 mags. Distributed: 143 to office; 492 to branches.

Total books, etc. 95,530; books 77,569; pamphlets 6225; maps 103; prints 4097; slides 981; films 6; music records 978; music sheets 464; stereographs 4965; charts 91; globes 21; posters 30. Added 13,081: books 11.677 (purchase 11,341, gift or exchange 214, binding 122); pamphlets 687; maps 13; music records 87; stereographs 600; charts 15; globes 2. Withdrawn 2492: books 2457 discarded; pamphlets 15; music records 20. Books rep'd 4794; reb'd 718. Cardholders 16,002. Added 1969; cancelled 829. Circulation 150,922: books 136,654; periodicals 12,285; other material 1983. Vols. loaned to other libs. 17; borrowed from other libs. 360 (332 from State Library). 1769 shipments (30,415 items: 25,551 books; 255 periodicals; 4609 other material) were sent to branches. Of the

MERCED CO.-Continued.

above 17,988 were supplementary books. 29,857 special requests.

During the year 80 visits were made to 76 branches. 760 visits were made to headquarters by 78 c u s to d i a n s. 2 branches were established.

The county owns the following branch library buildings, erected by the county and paid for from the general fund: Dos Palos, cost \$5500; Livingston Library and Justice Court, cost \$10,000; Los Banos Branch Library is located in \$3500 library building.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is 1 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$32,000. ESSAE M. CULVER, Lib'n.

MERCED CO. LAW LIBRARY, MERCED. Miss Essae M. Culver, Lib'n. Est. 1880. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Books cared for by Merced Co. Free Library since Nov. 6, 1911. Located in county library and open to public same hours. Library trustees annual meeting June 1.

Total vols. 1908. Added 58.

MERCED Co. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, MERCED, C. S. Weaver, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined Co. Free Library. Income 1923– 24, \$67, from ½ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$5.83. Books are cared for by Merced Co. Free Library. Open week days: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m.

Teachers employed 254: elem. 184; high 70. Active school districts: elem. 63 (incl. 4 jt.); high: union 4; jt. union 2. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$9675; high \$6121. Vols. in schools: elem. 33,116; high 23,919.

Dos Palos.

DOS PALOS JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Elmo C. Eby, Prin. Est. 1907. 18 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1700. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 93.

Annual report not rec'd.

Gustine.

GUSTINE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, W. F. Drew, Prin. Est. Sept. 1913. 1 employee. 3 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 700. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 87.

Annual report not rec'd.

MERCED CO.-Continued.

Irwin.

HILMAR COLONY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Maurice G. Greenly, Prin. Est. Sept. 1911. Open school days 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 8 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2150. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 135.

Annual report not rec'd.

Le Grand.

LE GRAND JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. P. H. Benson, Prin. Est. 1909. 4 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2100. Teachers a. 5; pupils a. 100.

Annual report not rec'd.

Los Banos.

WEST SIDE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. W. T. Walton, Prin. Est. 1897. 19 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly. Total vols. a. 100. Teachers a. 7;

Annual report not rec'd.

pupils a. 140.

Merced.

MERCED FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, MERCED CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Essae M. Culver, Lib'n. Est. Aug. 21, 1905. Financial statistics counted with Merced Co. Free Library. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 12 m., 1 to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in county library bldg. in courthouse park. 91 mags. and 31 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Statistics given with those of Merced Co. Free Library.

MERCED Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Merced Co.

MERCED UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBBARY. A. W. Meany, Prin. Est. 1895. Open daily 8.30 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. 17 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3927. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 190.

Annual report not rec'd.

MODOC COUNTY.

(Fifty-second class.)

County seat, Alturas.

Area, 4097 sq. mi. Pop. 5425.

Assessed valuation \$8,210,615 (taxable for county \$7,770,405).

[†]MODOC CO. FREE LIBRARY, ALTURAS. Miss Anna L. Williams, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, July 8, 1915; work started July 1, 1916. Includes entire county for tax and service. Al-

MODOC CO.—Continued.

turas joined under Sec. 3. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$427.51. Annual income 1923-24, \$4627.88 (from taxation \$1544.52, library tax being .2 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$1488.36; from other sources \$1600). Total payments \$4220.78. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$834.61. 30 employees: 1 in office; 29 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. Total branches 30, as follows: community 3—Adin, Alturas, Cedarville; active school districts that have joined 27—Adin, Alpine, Alturas, Arlington, Cedarville, Cloverswale, Cottonwood, Crook, Davis Creek, Delmorma, Eagleville, Fandango, Forty-nine, Hopewell, Lake City, Lakeside, Likely, Little Hot Spring, Lone Star, Mt. Bidwell, Oregon, Owl Creek, Red Star, Soldier Creek, State Line, Westside, Winter. 75 periodicals rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 70 mags. Distributed: 33 to office; 42 to branches.

Total books, etc. 11.691; books 9380; pamphlets 1240; serials 1000; maps 18; music records 50; globes 3. Added 2970: books 2680 (purchase 2600, gift or exchange 40, provision of law 40); pamphlets 50; serials 240. Withdrawn 350: books 200 (lost 100, discarded 100); serials 140; music records 10. Cardholders 1671. Added 350; cancelled 114. Circulation 10,423: books 9392; periodicals 991; other material 40. Vols. borrowed from other libs, 20 (all from State) Library). 200 shipments (5190 items: 5000 books; 150 periodicals; 40 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 4500 were supplementary books. In addition 500 supplementary books were retained from previous year.

During the year 3 visits were made to 3 branches. 29 visits were made to headquarters by 29 custodians. 5 branches were established; 2 branches (Likely and New Pine Creek) were suspended.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924–25 is .1 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$700. ANNA L. WILLIAMS, Lib'n.

MODOC CO. LAW LIBRARY, ALTURAS. Judge Clarence A. Raker, Lib'n. Est. April 5, 1905. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Open week days 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. 2 periodicals rec'd regularly. Trustees annual meeting July 7.

Total vols. a. 180.

Annual report not rec'd.

MODOC CO.—Continued.

MODOC CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, AL-TURAS. Chas. J. Toreson, Co. Supt. Income 1923-24, \$24, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$63.61.

Total vols. 248. Teachers employed 76: elem. 54; high 22. Active school districts: elem. 40; high: union 2; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$2091; high \$1346. Vols. in schools: elem. 11,448; high 5477.

Adin.

BIG VALLEY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. R. Benham, Prin. Helen E. Wirt, Lib'n.

Annual report not rec'd.

Alturas.

ALTURAS [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, MODOC CO, FREE LIBRARY, Miss Anna L. Williams, Lib'n. Est. Jan. 20, 1906; as F. P. Jan. 6, 1908; joined the County Free Library Sept. 14, 1915. 1 employee. Open daily except legal holidays, 2 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie library bldg.

Statistics given with those of Modoc Co. Free Library.

Modoc Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Modoc Co.

MODOC UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. J. B. Sanders, Prin. Est. 1903. 2 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1034. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 78.

Annual report not rec'd.

Cedarville.

SURPRISE VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Irving W. Snow, Prin. Est. 1904. 10 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 68. Annual report not rec'd.

Annual report not recu.

Likely.

YOUNG PEOPLE'S LIBRARY. Flora Williams, Lib'n. Est. Aug. 24, 1909. Supported by Young People's Club. Located in home of C. W. Williams. No paid employees. Open to public Thurs. and Sat. 9 a.m. to 4 p.m.

Total vols. a. 50.

MONO COUNTY.

(Fifty-seventh class.)

County seat, Bridgeport.

Area, 2796 sq. mi. Pop. 960.

Assessed valuation \$4,774,040 (taxable for county \$2,450,380).

Mono Co. LAW LIBRARY, BRIDGEPORT. Est. 1881. Annual income ree'd from \$1 fee for filing papers and from appropriations from general fund of supervisors. No paid employees. Open to public week days 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. 5 periodicals ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1000.

Annual report not rec'd.

MONO CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, BRIDGE-PORT. Miss Mildred Gregory, Co. Supt. Income 1923-24, \$8, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Total vols. 100. Teachers employed: elem. 11. Active school districts: elem. 11; high 0. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$492; high 0. Vols. in schools: elem. 5864; high 0.

Bridgeport.

Mono Co. law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Mono Co.

MONTEREY COUNTY.

(Twenty-fourth class.)

County seat, Salinas.

Area, 3450 sq. mi. Pop. 27,980.

Assessed valuation \$48,028,098 (taxable for county \$39,509,759).

MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY, SALINAS. Miss Anne Hadden, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Aug. 6, 1912; work started Sept. 2, 1913. Includes entire county for tax and service except Monterey and Pacific Grove. King City and Salinas joined under Sec. 3. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1155.23. Annual income 1923–24, \$19,857.75 (from taxation \$11,762.68, library tax being. 35 m. on the dollår; from school districts having joined \$5860.90; from other sources \$2234.17). Total payments \$18,568.95. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2444.03. 35 employees: 7 in office; 28 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m. Located in Salinas Public Library bldg. Total branches 142, as follows: community 71—Aromas, Arroyo Seco, Asilomar (r. r.), Bay, Bernabe, Big Sur, Blanco, Bradley, Buena Vista, Carmel (r. r.), Carmelo, Carneros, Carrolton, Castroville, Chualar, Coast, Coburn, Elkhorn, Ellis, Fair View, Gonzales, Gorda, Greenfield (r. r.), Hall, Hames Valley, Hesperia, Indian Valley, Jamesburg, Jolon, King City (r. r.), Lagunita, Lake, Langley,

MONTEREY CO.—Continued.

Lewis, Lincoln, Lockwood, Long Valley, Los Burros Branch of Pacific School, Lucia, Mansfield, Marina, Metz, Milpitas, Mission, Moss Landing, Nacimiento, Matsion, Moss Landing, Nacimiento, Natividad, Palo Colorado, Park field, Peachtree, Pleyto, Pleyto school at Bry-son, Poncho Rico, Priest Valley, Prune-dale, Rainbow Lodge, Robley, Salinas Public Library (r.r.), Chamber of Com-merce and Co. Farm Adviser (r.r.) in Salinas, San Ardo, San Lucze, Santa Salinas, San Ardo, San Lucas, Santa Rita, Seaside Branch of Del Monte school, Soledad (r. r.), Soma via, Spreckels (r. r.), Sweetwater, U. S. Forest Super-visor, Vineyard, Woll; active school dis-tricts that have joined 87 (68 school branches)—Alisal, Aromas, Arroyo Seco, Bay, Blanco, Bradley, Buena Vista, Carmelo, Carneros, Carrolton, Castroville Union (incl. Castroville and Rincon), Union (incl. Castroville and Rincon), Chualar Union (incl. Cañon, Chualar and Deep Well), Del Monte, Del Monte Sea-side Branch, Elkhorn, Ellis, El Sausal, Fair View, Gonzales Union (incl. Gloria and Gonzales), Greenfield Union (incl. Espinosa, Greenfield and Zabala), Hall, Hames, Hesperia, Indian Valley, James-burg, King City Union (incl. King City, Shearer and Teague), King City Union Coburn Branch, Lagunita, Lake, Langley, Lewis, Long Valley, Long Valley Pine Valley Branch, Mansfield, Marina, Mil-bitas, Milpitas Milpitas Hill Branch, Mis-sion Union (incl. Mission and Soberanes), sion Union (incl. Mission and Soberanes), Moss Landing, Nacimiento, Natividad, Pacific, Pacific Los Burros Branch, Palo Colorado, Parkfield Union (incl. Cholame, Melville and Parkfield), Peachtree, Pfeif-fer, Pleyto, Priest Valley, Prunedale, 'S a li n a s (incl. City Superintendent's Office, Central, East End, Washington and West End schools), San Antonio Union (incl. Argyle, Franklin, Jolon, Pinkerton and Pleasant View), San Ardo Union (incl. San Ardo, Paris Valley and Sargeant), San Lucas Union (incl. Al-berta, Oasis and San Lucas), Santa Rita, Soledad Union (incl. Los Coches, Metz, Oak Grove, Parisa, San Vicente, Soledad sion Union (incl. Mission and Soberanes), Oak Grove, Paraisa, San Vicente, Soledad and Sycamore), Somavia, Spreckels, and Sycamore), Somavia, Spreckers, Springfield, Sunset, Sweetwater, Vine-yard, Washington Union (incl. Lincoln and Washington), Woll; special school branches 3—Americanization, Rural School Supervisor, Co. Teachers' Library in Salinas. 208 periodicals rec'd regu-lauly: 6 newspapers' 202 mage Dic larly: 6 newspapers; 202 mags. D tributed: 54 to office; 154 to branches. Dis-

Total books, etc. 70,255: books 62,107; pamphlets 2073; maps 238; prints 125; slides 81; music records 448; stereographs 4282; charts 455; globes 33; photographs 413. A d d e d 7299: books 6659 (purchase 6606, gift or exchange 49, deposit 4); pamphlets 282; maps 21; music r e c o r d s 18; stereographs 225; globes 13; photographs 81. Books with-

MONTEREY CO .--- Continued.

drawn 786. Cardholders not reported. new registration in progress. Circulation record incomplete. Vols. loaned to other libs, 8; borrowed from other libs, 398 (383 from State Library). 1843 shipments (24,566 items) were sent to branches. Of the above 8856 were supplementary books. 16,506 special requests.

During the year 75 visits were made to 556 visits were made to 55 branches. headquarters by 67 custodians. 8 branches were established; 3 branches were discontinued (incl. Salinas Union High School withdrawn and Lucia Branch and Tassajara School suspended).

OUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Esther R. Ross, Cataloger in the Monterev County Free Library, left in August for a position in southern California. Her place is being filled by Beatrice Y. Gawne. Winifred Roberts began work as assistant in July.

Mrs W. A. Skinner has resumed the custodianship of the Parkfield Branch.

Redwood School at Lucia, which has been suspended for some time, was reestablished in September. A new school district, Rich District, postoffice King City, has been formed. This district includes the children of the former Hill Branch of the Milpitas School. The former Sherman School is now included in the revived Long Valley District. Its name was changed last term to Pine Valley Branch, Long Valley School, but as it is this year the only school in the district, it is now known as the Long Valley School.

The County Board of Education arranged during September to meet for discussion of the course of study with the teachers of the different districts of its members, and Saturday meetings were held at King City, Pajaro, Pacific Grove, and Salinas. These meetings were successful and helpful. They were all attended by the County Librarian, who took part in the sessions.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .35 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$11,500. ANNE HADDEN, Lib'n.

MONTEREY CO. LAW LIBRARY, SALINAS. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Monterey Co. Free Library.

- 6

MONTEREY CO .--- Continued.

Every attorney has key to library. Lo-cated in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 1300.

Annual report not rec'd.

MONTEREY CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY AND BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LI-BBARY, SALINAS. James G. Force, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined the Co. Free Library, May 10, 1915. Income 1923–24, \$61, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Teachers employed 247: elem. 178; high 69. Active school districts : elem. 95 (incl. 3 jt.); high: district 1; union 4. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24; elem. \$6926; high \$5076. Vols. in schools : elem. 10.323 : high 18.672.

Carmel.

CARMEL FREE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Janet Prentiss, Lib'n. Est. Oct. 5, 1905; branch est. March 21, 1914. Income from subscriptions and fines. 3 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 p.m. Located in bldg. costing about \$1600. Name of donor of lot and build-ing not to be known. Trustees monthly meeting first Mon meeting first Mon.

Total vols. a. 4911.

Annual report not rec'd.

Gonzales.

GONZALES UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Bert M. Carner, Prin. Est. 1908. 20 mags, rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2300. Added 368 by purchase. Teachers 8; pupils 80.

King City.

KING CITY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Mrs E. E. Mansfield, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 19, 1913, Joined Co. F. L. April 5, 1915 – Branch est. May, 4, 1915 – No. 1915. Branch est. May 4, 1915. No paid employees. Open Mon., Wed., Fri. and Sat. 7 to 8.30 p.m.; Tues. and Sat. 3 to 5 p.m. Located in room in city hall. 1 mag. ree'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting last Fri.

Total vols. a. 425. Cardholders a. 210. Annual report not rec'd.

KING CITY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-ARY. Wm. C. Waibel, Prin. Est. BRABY. Wm. C. Walder, 1111. 1915. 30 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1476. Teachers a. 10: pupils a. 128.

Annual report not rec'd.

Long Valley School Dist.

LONG VALLEY SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH,

[Oct., 1924]

MONTEREY CO .-- Continued.

Long Valley School Dist.-Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Monterey Co. Free Library.

Monterey.

MONTEREY FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Eitta Eckhardt, Lib'n. Est. 1901; as F. P. Feb. 6, 1906. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1552.23. Annual income 1923–24, \$4480.49 (from taxation \$4296.54, library tax being 1 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$183.95). Total payments \$4191.97. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1840.75. 3 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 1.30 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 82 periodicals rec'd regularly: 7 newspapers; 75 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting last Sat.

Total vols. 9673. Added 531: purchase 453; gift or exchange 20; provision of law 14; binding '44. Lost 32; discarded 85; rep'd 745; reb'd 34. Cardholders 1993. Added 500; cancelled 396. Circulation 27,564: books 24,826; periodicals 2738. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 32 (18 from State Library).

MONTEREY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LA-BRARY, James McIntosh, Prin. Est. 1904. 5 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 500. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 77.

Annual report not rec'd.

PRESIDIO OF MONTEREY, POST LIBRARY. Arthur Brown, Post Lib'n. Est. Sept. 1902. 2 employees. Open to soldiers at post and discharged soldiers daily 1 to 4.30 and 5.30 to 10 p.m. Located in Government bldg. 40 periodicals rec'd regularly: 2 newspapers; 38 mags.

Total books, etc. a. 2650. Cardholders a. 620.

Annual report not rec'd.

Pacific Grove.

\$PACIFIC GROVE [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Miss Jessie W. Nichols, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Dec. 19, 1905. Annual income 1923-24, \$4017.20 (from taxation \$3717.21, library tax being .13 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$299.99). Total payments \$3882.06. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$135.14. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 1 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$14,000 Carnegie bldg. 97 periodicals rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 86 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Thurs.

Total books, etc. 13,296: books 13,286; maps 9; globes 1. Added 1102: books 1101 (purchase 590, gift or exchange 459,

MONTEREY CO .- Continued.

Pacific Grove-Continued.

binding 50, deposit 2); maps 1. Books lost 20; discarded 60; rep'd 709; reb'd 50. Cardholders 9605. Added 795; cancelled 50. Circulation 53,603: books 47,-194; periodicals 6409. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 42 (40 from State Library).

High school classes were brought to the library and given instruction in use of catalog, Readers' Guide and atlas by the librarian.

PACIFIC GROVE HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. A. B. Ingham, Prin. Est. 1898. 18 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1192. Teachers a. 12; pupils a. 195.

Annual report not rec'd.

*PACIFIC GROVE MUSEUM ASSOCIATION LIERARY. Miss Laura Duncan, Curator. Est. Nov. 10, 1899. Books are mostly donations. 1 employee. Open to public daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 p.m. Located in Chautauqua Library bldg. and addition given by city. 2 mags. rec'd regularly. L ib r a ry trustees monthly meeting last Fri.

Total books, etc. 2210: books 359; pamphlets 1851. Added 19: books 2 by provision of law; pamphlets 17.

Parkfield.

PARKFIELD BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Monterey Co. Free Library.

Redwood School Dist. (P. O. Lucia).

REDWOOD SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, MON-TEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY, was reestablished in September, 1924.

Rich School Dist. (P. O. King City).

RICH SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, MON-TEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Salinas.

SALINAS CITY [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, MONTEREY CO. FREE LIBRARY. MrS Carrie E. Striening, Lib'n. Est. 1900; as F. P. Dec. 18, 1905; branch est. Jan. 17, 1914; joined Co. F. L. June 5, 1916. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1.60. Annual income 1923–24, \$2018.43 (from taxation \$1718.43, library tax being 3 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$300). Total payments \$1883.08. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$136.95. 3 employees. Open daily

MONTEREY CO.—Continued.

Salinas-Continued.

except Sun, and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 51 periodicals rec'd regularly: 8 newspapers; 43 mags. Li b r a r y trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total books, etc. 7083: books 6343; pamphlets 739; globes 1. Added 280: books 204 (purchase 184, gift or exchange 20); pamphlets 76. Books lost 14; discarded 35. Cardholders 10,633. Added 530; cancelled 125. Circulation 19,660: b o o k s 18,910; periodicals 750. Vols. loaned to other libs. 20; borrowed from other libs. 70 (all from State Library).

MONTEREY Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Monterey Co.

SALIMAS UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-DRARY, E. L. Van Dellen, Prin. Miss Helen A. Brewster, Lib'n. Est. 1882. Branch est. Aug. 5, 1918. Joined Co. F. L. under new plan, Sept. 1919. Open school days 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. 47 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 4034. Added 539: purchase 530: gift 9. Teachers 21; pupils 360. Circulation 7205.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

"Book Club" meets every second and fourth Wednesday night in the library of the Salinas Union High School. Mrs F. Y. Humphries of the English department gives reviews of the latest books. The meetings have proven very instructive and entertaining.

HELEN A. BREWSTER, Lib'n.

Spreckels.

SPRECKELS LIBRARY ASSOCIATION LI-BRARY. Mrs C. L. Parker, Lib'n. Est. May 17, 1911. Open Mon. and Wed. 7 to 8.30 p.m.; Fri. 3.30 to 5 p.m. Located in Spreckels Hall. 2 employees. Library trustees monthly meeting first Wed.

Total vols. a. 600. Cardholders a. 300. Annual report not rec'd.

NAPA COUNTY.

(Thirty-first class.)

County seat, Napa.

Area, 800 sq. mi. Pop. 20,678.

Assessed valuation \$26,066,485 (taxable for county \$21,973,195).

NAPA CO. FREE LIBRARY, NAPA. Miss Estella DeFord, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Feb. 9, 1916; work started Jan. 1, 1920. Includes entire previous year,

NAPA CO.—Continued.

county for tax and service except Calis-toga, Napa and St. Helena. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$406.11. Annual income 1923-24, 1923. \$406.11. Annual income 1923-24, \$11,361.13 (from taxation \$7242.15, library tax being .5 m, on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$2318.98; from other sources \$1800). Total payments \$11,046.10. Bal July 1, 1924, \$721.14. 72 employees: 3 in office; 69 in branches. Open daily ex-cept Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Hall of Records. Total branches 69, as follows: community 29—Aetna Springs. Browns community 29-Aetna Springs, Browns Valley, Capell, Capell School Dist., Carne-Valley, Coles Valley, Conn Valley, Coombs Valley, Lodi, Lyman, Monticello, Mt. George, Goodman Library (r. r.), Farm Adviser and Home Demonstration Agent Napa, Napa Soda Springs, Oak Knoll, Pope Valley, Rutherford, Salvador (r. r.), Sanitarium, Spring Valley, Stags Leap, Tucker, Upper Pope, White Cottages, Wilson's Inn, Wooden Valley, Yount-Wilson's Inn, Wooden Valley, Yount-ville; active school districts that have joined 45 (37 school branches)—Ameri-can Canyon, Browns Valley, Calistoga Union (incl. Bennett, Calistoga and Tucker), Capell, Carneros, Chiles Val-ley, Columbus, Conn Valley, Coombs, Enterprise, Fly, Franklin, Gordon Val-ley, Hardin, Harmony, High Valley, Howell Mountain Liberty Monticello ley, Hardin, Harmony, High Valley, Howell Mountain, Liberty, Monticello Union (incl. Cherry Valley and Monti-cello), Mt. Veeder, Oak Grove, Oakville, Oat Hill, Olive, Pope Valley, Redwood, Rutherford, St. Helena Union (incl. Lodi, St. Helena, Spring Valley and Vineland). Salvador Union (incl. Jefferson, Oak Knoll and Salvador), Shurtleff, Soda Canyon, Soda Springs, Soscol, Upper Pope, Wooden Valley, Yount, Yount-ville; special school branches 3—Co. Teachers' Library, Music Supervisor I Teachers' Library, Music Supervisor I and Music Supervisor II in Napa. 146 periodicals rec'd regularly : 2 newspapers : 139 mags.; 5 other serials. I 17 to office; 129 to branches. Distributed :

Total books, etc. 17,408: books 16,252; maps 108; pictures 248; music records 691; charts 73; globes 14; other material 22. Added 3501; books 3250 (purchase 3166; gift or exchange 84); maps 37; pictures 112; music records 48: charts 28; globes 4; other material 22. Books lost 52; discarded 371; reb'd 213. Cardholders not reported, new registration in progress. Circulation 33.558. Vols. loaned to other libs. 2; borrowed from other libs, 662 (647 from State Library). 1194 shipments (12,407 items: 11,314 books; 1093 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 3368 were supplementary books. In addition 2607 supplementary books were retained from

NAPA CO.-Continued.

During the year 53 visits were made to 25 branches. 640 visits were made to headquarters by 58 custodians.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .5 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$11,767. ESTELLA DEFORD, Lib'n.

NAPA Co. LAW LIBBARY, NAPA. Wallace Rutherford, Secty, Est. 1902. Open at all times. Located in courthouse. Library trustees annual meeting Dec. 1.

Total vols. a. 3890.

Annual report not rec'd.

NAPA Co. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, NAPA. Miss Eva Holmes, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined County Library Dec. 1922. Income 1923-24, \$39, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$29.10.

Teachers employed 139: elem. 99; high 40. Active school districts: elem. 48 (incl. 4 jt.); high: union 2; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$971; high \$2555. Vols. in schools, high 6991.

Calistoga.

CALISTOGA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs E. Wright, Lib'n. Est. 1902; as F. P. Nov. 1, 1902. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$287.03. Annual income 1923–24, \$663.93 (from taxation \$564.29, library tax being .65 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$99.64). Total payments \$606.29. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$344.67. 1 employee. Open daily, except Fri., Sun, and holidays: Tues., Thurs., and Sat. 2.30 to 4.30 p.m.; Mon., Wed, and Sat. 7 to 8.30 p.m. Located in town 'hall. 20 mags. rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 3630. Added 209: purchase 181; gift or exchange 28. Lost 10; discarded 50; reb'd 6. Cardholders 430. Added 30; cancelled 20. Circulation 10,723: books 9580; periodicals 1143.

CALISTOGA JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Mr McCarthy, Prin. Miss Lucille M. Slade, Lib'n. Est. Aug. 1912. 4 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 700. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 95.

Annual report not rec'd.

La Jota.

PACIFIC UNION COLLEGE LIBRARY. William E. Nelson, Prin. Elizabeth Evans, Lib'n. Est. 1909. Open daily: 7.20 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. 5 days a week; 2.30 to 5 p.m. one day, 45 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

NAPA CO.—Continued.

La Jota—Continued.

Total vols. a. 7521. Teachers a. 28; pupils a. 380.

Annual report not rec'd.

This was formerly listed under St. Helena,

Napa.

GOODMAN [FREE PUBLIC] LIBEARY. Miss Minnie C. Shreve, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. 1885. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$6.48. Annual income 1923–24, \$6658.73 (from taxation \$6378.68, library tax being 1.25 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$280.05). Total payments \$5807.07. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$858.14. 4 employees, incl. matron of rest room. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$15,000 library bldg. 113 periodicals rec'd regularly: 17 newspapers; 96 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting second Tues.

Total vols. 16,368. Added 779: purchase 225; gift or exchange 157; binding 40; deposit 357. Lost and discarded 130; rep'd 586; reb'd 241. Cardholders 2033. Added 527; cancelled 591. Circulation 44,722: books 42,678; periodicals 1926; other material 118. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 91 (all from State Library).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

During this quarter, our library has had the misfortune to lose a Trustee, Dr O. T. Schulze, a man of strong character and forceful personality. He gave generously of his time and energy to our interest and we shall greatly miss him.

The librarian has been appointed Chairman of the Better Books and Community Life Department of the Napa Valley Federation of Parent-Teachers Association.

Our library was closed for more than two weeks this summer to allow for painting and general cleaning to the building. We have been enjoying our clean, light quarters and we were glad to have a call from Mr Charles S. Greene, of the Oakland Free Library, with his wife at this time.

MINNIE C. SHREVE, Lib'n.

NAPA Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Napa Co.

NAPA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Osman Hull, Prin. Kara Whitcher, Lib'n. Est. 1897.

Total vols. a. 1000. Teachers a. 24; pupils a. 445.

Annual report not rec'd.

381

NAPA CO.-Continued.

St. Helena.

St. HELENA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs G. B. Anderson, Lib'n. Est. 1884; as F. P. 1892. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$70. Annual income 1923–24, \$1556.86 (from taxation \$1466.91, library tax being 3 m, on the dollar; from other sources \$89,95). Total payments \$1555.15. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$91.71. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$8500 Carnegie bldg. 30 periodicals rec'd regularly: 3 pewspapers: 27 mass. Library trustees newspapers; 27 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total books, etc. 8002: books 6148; pamphlets 1854. Added 438: books 338 (purchase 217, gift or exchange 121); pamphlets 100. Books discarded 142: rep'd 300; reb'd 20. Cardholders 780. Added 89: cancelled 40. Circulation 17,144: books 15,680; periodicals 1464. Vols, loaned to other libs, 3; borrowed from other libs, 12 (all from State Library).

ELMHURST URSULINE ACADEMY LI-BRARY. Mother Agatha, Prin. Est. 1898, 3 mags. and 5 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 600. Teachers a. 5; pupils a. 51.

Annual report not rec'd.

PACIFIC UNION COLLEGE LABRARY. Sec LA JOTA.

ST. HELENA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LA-BRARY. Roy T. Nichols, Prin. Est. 1893. 14 mags, and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1206. Teachers a. 6: pupils a. 100.

Annual report not rec'd.

Veterans' Home.

VETERANS' HOME LIBRARY. Colonel J. P. Edmunds, Commandant. Walter W. Pollard, Lib'n. Est. 1886. 2 employees. Open to members of Home daily 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. Located in Lincoln Hall. 33 mags. and 27 newspapers rec'd regularly. Total vols. a. 5096.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

During the last three months the library has been completely renovated, having been redecorated throughout, and battle-ship linoleum laid on all floors of entry, book rooms, and reading room. New furniture, consisting of eight solid oak library tables, and fifty oak arm chairs for the reading room, has been installed. The old wooden bookcases have been replaced with six 9' and one from State Library).

NAPA CO.—Continued.

Veterans' Home-Continued.

14' modern all steel book stacks, making for sanitary cleanliness, besides giving more book room.

84 volumes of recent fiction and 11 of non fiction have been accessioned for the library during the quarter.

WALTER W. POLLARD, Lib'n.

NEVADA COUNTY.

(Thirty-ninth class.)

County seat, Nevada City.

Area, 982 sq. mi. Pop. 10,850.

Assessed valuation \$9,612,292 (taxable for county \$7,035,320).

NEVADA Co. LAW LIBRARY, NEVADA CITY. W. E. Wright, Secretary. Est. Sept. 29, 1892. Open to public daily except Sat. p.m. and Sun. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. 2247.

NEVADA CO, TEACHERS' LIBBARY, NEVADA CUTY. Mrs E. M. Austin, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Income 1923–24, \$24, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$4.97.

Total vols. 259. Teachers employed 84: elem. 62; high 22. Active school districts: elem. 33; high; city 2; union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$2177; high \$1432. Vols. in schools: elem. 33,023; high 7179.

Grass Valley.

GRASS VALLEY [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Miss Frances Doom, Lib'n. Est. May 19, 1911. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$646.83. Annual income 1923-24, \$3385.57 (from taxation \$3125, library tax being 1.75 m. a the dollar; from other sources \$260.57). Total payments \$2938.31. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1094.09. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun, 2 to 5 p.m. Lo-cated in \$15,000 C a r n e g i e bldg. 37 .periodicals ree'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 29. more Library tractors reaching Library trustees monthly 32mags. meeting first Thurs.

Total books, etc. 12,425: books 7899; pamphlets 4478; maps 6; prints 1; other material 41. Added 847: books 772 (purchase 261, gift or exchange 495, binding 16); pamphlets 75. Books lost 2; discarded 70; rep'd 180. Cardholders 2320. Added 359; cancelled 52. Circulation 21,056: books 19,188; periodicals 1868. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 50 (all

Grass Valley-Continued.

GRASS VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. John G. Curtis, Prin. Est. 1892. 1 employee. 10 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 889. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 200.

Annual report not rec'd.

Nevada City.

[NEVADA CITY FREE [P U B L I C] LI-BRARY. Miss Iva Williamson, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Feb. 20, 1902. Annual income 1922-23, \$1761.31 (f r o m taxation \$1743.56). 2 employees. Open daily except July fourth and Christmas day: week days 12 m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 39 periodicals rec'd regularly; 3 newspapers; 36 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting third Wed.

Total vols. a. 6551. Cardholders a. 804.

Annual report not rec'd.

NEVADA CITY HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. F. M. Williams, Supervising Prin. Est. 1902. 8 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1000. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 140.

Annual report not rec'd,

NEVADA Co. law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Nevada Co.

Truckee.

MEADOW LAKE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. F. W. Farley, Prin. Est. 1901. Library destroyed by fire Sept. 2, 1916. Re-established. 4 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 500. Added 74: purchase 50; gift 24. Teachers 4; pupils 30.

ORANGE COUNTY.

(Tenth class.)

County seat, Santa Ana.

Area, 780 sq. mi. Pop. 61,375.

Assessed valuation \$173,296,561 (taxable for county \$154,244,890.)

ORANGE CO. FREE LIBRARY, SANTA ANA. Miss Margaret Livingston, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Sept. 9, 1919; work started Aug. 1, 1921. Includes entire county for tax and service except Anaheim, Buena Park Library District, Fullerton, Huntington Beach, Newport Beach, Orange, Placentia Library District, Santa Ana and Yorba Linda Library District. Bal, July 1, 1923, \$4057.86. Annual income 1923–24, \$21,971.13 (from taxation \$14,670.98, library tax being .2 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$4904.57; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$300; from other sources \$2095.58.) Bal, July 1, 1924, \$5095.57. 16 employees; 3 in office; 13 in branches.

ORANGE CO.—Continued.

Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in Hall of Records. Total branches 55, as follows: community 26—Alamitos, Bolsa, Boy Scout Camp, Brea (r.r.), Costa Mesa (r.r.), Cypress, Delhi, El Modena, El Toro, Fountain Valley, Garden Grove (r.r.), Harper-Fairview. Health Department, Hewes Park, Katella, Laguna (r.r.), La Habra (r.r.), Laural, Olinda, Co, Hospital in Orange, San Joaquin, San Juan Capistrano (r.r.), Farm Adviser in Santa Ana, Seal Beach (r.r.), Westminster (r.r.), Yorba; active school districts that have joined 29 (28 school branches)—Alamitos, Bay City, Bolsa, Centralia, Cypress, Delhi, Diamond, El Toro, Fountain Valley, Garden Grove High School, Greenville, Harper-Fairview Union (incl. Harper and Fairview), Huntington Beach, Katella, Laguna. La Habra, Laural, Magnolia, Ocean View, Olive, Orangethorpe, San Joaquin, San Juan Capistrano High School, San Juan, Savanna, Trabuco, Westminster, Yorba ; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Santa Ana. 306 periodicals rec'd regularly: 296 mags.; 10 other serials.

Total books, etc. 37,873: books 36,319; pamphlets 376; serials 10; maps 41; manuscripts 2; prints 716; music records 196; music sheets 202; charts 1; globes Added 15,410: books 14,536 (pur-10. chase 12,654, gift or exchange 1733, binding 149); pamphlets 75; serials 1; maps 28; manuscripts 1; prints 716; music records 22; music sheets 24; charts 1; globes 6. Withdrawn 267: books 236 (lost 12. discarded 224); pamphlets 25; music records 6. Cardholders 12,514. Added 5324; cancelled 203. Circulation 118,110: books 114,217; periodicals 3865; other material 28. Vols, loaned to other libs. 9; borrowed from other libs. 295 (279 from State Library). 771 shipments (19,960 items: 19,391 books; 569 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 9637 were supplementary books. In addition 6206 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 11,438 special requests.

During the year 107 visits were made to 37 branches. 385 visits were made to headquarters by 34 custodians and teachers. 6 branches were established: 3 branches were discontinued (incl. El Modena suspended).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mrs Harry Beardsley, formerly Arline Davis, and Hazel Royce are now the assistants in Orange Co. Free Library.

MARGARET LIVINGSTON, Lib'n,

ORANGE CO.—Continued.

ORANGE CO. LAW LIBRARY, SANTA ANA. Charles D. Swanner, Sec. Est. June 19, 1906, Annual income from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Open 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in rooms 16 to 18, Trust bldg., 114¹/₂ W. Fourth st.

Total vols. a. 830.

Court decisions from all states in libeary

Annual report not rec'd.

ORANGE CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, SANTA ANA. R. P. Mitchell, Co. Supt. Est. 1889, Joined Co. Free Library. In-come 1923–24, \$226, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$340.35.

Teachers employed 827 : elem. 582 ; high 245. Active school districts: elem. 49; high: city 1; union 7. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$9775; high \$38,855. Vols. in schools: elem, 56,461; high 75,328.

Anaheim.

ANAHEIM [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY, J. Elizabeth Calnon, Lib'n, Est, as F. P. Aug. 12, 1902. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3310.67. Annual in come 1923-24. \$10,033.30 (from taxation \$9085.99, li-\$10,033.30 (from taxation \$4085.99, h-brary tax being 1.45 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$947.31). Total pay-ments \$9553.10, Bal, July 1, 1924, \$3790.87. 5 employees. Open daily ex-cept holidays. Located in \$11,000 Car-negie bldg. 115 periodicals (90 for cir-culation) rec'd regularly: 12 newspapers; 103 mags Library trustees monthly Library trustees monthly 103 mags. meeting first Fri.

Total vols, 6969. Added 1045 by purchase. Lost and discarded 50; rep'd 1000; reb'd 518. Cardholders 3960. Added 1034: cancelled 150. Circulation 73.460: books 68.394; periodicals 5066.

ANAHEIM UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-Parker-Coyner, Lib'n. Est. 1898. 2 em-ployees. Open 8 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. each school day. 65 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 6401. Added 741: purchase 705; binding 36. Teachers 41; pupils 500.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Since the opening of school in September the library has been completely inventoried, new books added and now we have 7846 volumes and a new order of books to be sent in October. National Picture Week was observed from October 13 to 23 by having on display many pic- 462. Vols. borrowed from other libs. tures, art magazines, beautifully illus- 12 (7 from State Library).

ORANGE CO.-Continued.

Anaheim-Continued.

trated books, exhibits from the Art Department and the Camera Club. We have just purchased a statue, "The appeal to the Great Spirit." This, with Joan of Arc, Venus, The Victory of Samothrace and our hand-embroidered silk flag, adds much to the beauty and dignity of our library.

CORA PARKER-COYNER, Lib'n.

Buena Park.

BUENA PARK FREE LIBRARY. Est. 1905. No regular income, being sup-ported by subscriptions, the Epworth League of the M. E. church and the En-deavor Society. No paid employees. Open to public daily 7 a.m. to 10 p.m. Located in residence of Dr Hasson. 2 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 262. Cardholders a. 88. Annual report not rec'd.

BUENA PARK LIBRARY DISTRICT LI-BRARY, Miss Anna R. Luebkeman, Lib'n. Est, June 4, 1919. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun., Mon. and holidays: Tues., Thurs. and Sat. 5 hrs. per day: Wed. and Fri. 3 hrs. per day. Located in \$850 library bldg. 21 mags. (all for circulation) rec'd regularly. Library circulation) rec'd regularly. Lib trustees monthly meeting first Wed.

Total vols. a. 1054. Cardholders a. 420.

Annual report not rec'd.

Fullerton.

FULLERTON [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Minnie Maxwell, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 19, 1906; as F. P. Dec. 16, 1907. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$132.89. Annual income 1923–24. \$14,032.22 (from taxation \$13,219.85, library tax being 1 m. on the dollar: from other sources \$12,927). \$13,219,85, library tax being 1 m, on the dollar; from other sources \$812,37). Total payments \$14,089,49, Bal, July 1, 1924, \$75,62, 7 employees. Open daily except holidays; week days 9 a,m. to 9 p.m.; Sun, 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 147 periodicals (141 for circulation) rec'd regularly; 10 newspapers; 126 mags.; 2 transactions; 9 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting fourth Mon. ly meeting fourth Mon.

Total books, etc. 15,069: books 11,810; pamphlets 2337; serials 11; maps 11; stereographs 900. Added 1691: books 1590 (purchase 1478, gift or exchange 54. binding 58); pamphlets 100; maps 1. Withdrawn 264: books 114; pamphlets 150. Cardholders 6578. Added 1413: cancelled 217. Circulation 95,046: books 85,485; periodicals 9099; other material

- 383

ORANGE CO.—Continued.

Fullerton—Continued.

During the year each of the four eighth grade classes was given three lessons covering the use of reference tools, the arrangement of books in the library and the use of the catalog.

FULLERTON UNION HIGH SCHOOL AND JUNIOR COLLEGE LIBRARY. LOUIS E. Plummer, Prin. Miss Hazel Roach, Lib'n. Est. 1893. 2 employees. Open school days 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 110 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 8219. Teachers a. 60; pupils a. 896.

Annual report not rec'd.

Garden Grove.

GARDEN GROVE HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, ORANGE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Helena F. Curtiss, Lib'n, Est. Aug. 12, 1921.

Annual report not rec'd.

Huntington Beach.

\$HUNTINGTON BEACH [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Bertha Proctor Reynolds, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. June 14, 1909. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3359.55. Annual income 1923-24, \$10,948.81 (from taxation \$10.742; from other sources \$206.81). Total payments \$10,442.52. Bal. July 1. 1924, \$3855.84. 5 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 10 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegic bldg, 125 periodicals rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 114 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total books, etc. 11,904: books 10,748; pamphlets 1140; maps 15; globes 1. Added 2080: books 1945 (purchase 1875, binding 70); pamphlets 134; maps 1. Books lost 47; discarded 511; rep'd 710; reb'd 354. Cardholders 4943. Added 999. Circulation 50,438: books 46,802; periodicals 3636.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mr Clark Reid, Superintendent of Grammar School, and Rev Luther Arthur, pastor of the Baptist Church, were chosen as the new library trustees in place of Mrs Manning and Mr Dunning, resigned.

It was decided at the last meeting that the Children's Room would be moved to a room downstairs, which will be equipped with Library Bureau furniture. The change will take place as soon as the furniture arrives.

ORANGE CO.—Continued.

Huntington Beach-Continued.

The Library Past—Present will be represented in a historical pageant here for Armistice Day, Orange County.

MRS BERTHA P. REYNOLDS, Lib'n.

HUNTINGTON BEACH UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, M. G. JONES, Prin. Edith Hubbart, Lib'n. Est. 1904, 41 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2901. Teachers a. 15; pupils a. 258.

Annual report not rec'd.

Newport Beach.

Newport Beach. Refe PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs C. K. Douglas, Lib'n. Est. June 7, 1920. Open daily except legal holidays, Thurs. and Sun. 1 to 6 p.m. Located in Ebell clubhouse. Annual income 1922-23, \$1522.58, (from taxation \$1400, library tax being .03 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$122.58). 1 employee. 18 periodicals ree'd regularly: 3 newspapers; 15 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting when called.

Total vols. a. 3200. Cardholders a. 643.

Annual report not rec'd.

Orange.

ORANGE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. MITS Mabel F. Faulkner, Lib'n. Est. June, 1885; as F. P. Jan., 1894. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1744.81. Annual income 1923–24, \$9518.99 (from taxation \$9066.73, library tax being 1.5 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$452.26). Total p a y m en ts \$9551.88. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1711.92. 7 employees. Open daily except holidays; week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$12,000 Carnegie bldg. 93 periodicals (10 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 9 newspapers; 84 mags. Jibrary trustees monthly meeting second Wed.

Total vols. 12,806. Added 1785: purchase 1387; gift 178; binding 220. Discarded 227; rep'd 1421. Cardholders 3974. Added 989; cancelled 230. Circulation 73,363: books 70,046; periodicals 3181; other material 136. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 7 (4 from State Library).

During the year instruction in library handicraft and book repair has been given to the staff and emergency assistants.

ORANGE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. F. A. Henderson, Prin. Margaret G. Scott, Lib'n. Est. 1904. Open Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 50 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

ORANGE CO.—Continued.

Orange-Continued.

Total vols, 5163. Added 253: purchase 221; gift 12; binding 20. Teachers 34; pupils 600.

Placentia.

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT LIBRARY. Mrs Olive Bailey, Lib'n. Est. Oct. 30, 1919; work started Jan. 15, 1920. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$4633.25. Annual income 1923–24. \$11,260.25 (f r o m taxation \$11,200, library tax being 8 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$60.25). Total payments \$4358.64. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$11,534.86. 3 employees. Open daily ex-cept holidays: week days 2 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in rented bldg. 75 periodicals (62 for circulation) rec d regularly: S newspapers; 67 mags. Li-PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT LIBRARY. regularly: S newspapers; 67 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting last Tues.

Total books, etc. 3542: books 3506; pamphlets 28; maps 8. Added 550: books 533 (purchase 456, gift 13, binding 64); pamphlets 16; maps 1. Books lost 7; discarded 18; rep'd 207; reb'd 125. Cardholders 984, Added 174, Circulation 21,820: books 18,708; periodicals 3112.

San Juan Capistrano,

SAN JUAN CAPISTRANO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, ORANGE Co. FREE LIBRARY, J. S. Malcom, Prin, Est. Aug. 19, 1921. 25 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 986. Added 400. Teachers 5; pupils 31.

Santa Ana.

\$SANTA ANA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Jeannette'E, McFadden, Lib'n, Est. 1891. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$9153.14. Annual income '1923-24, \$20,851.06 (from the occupant) of the statement of the stat Aufful income 1525-24, \$20,551.00 (from taxation \$19,803.32, library tax being 13.5 m, on the dollar; from other sources \$1047.74). Total payments \$22,476, Bal. July 1, 1924, \$7528.20, 11 employees. 9 a,m. to 9 y.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Lo-cated in \$10,500 Carnegie bldg. 5 branches. 187 periodicals rec'd regularly : 15 newspapers; 127 mags.; 45 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting second Mon.

Total vols. 30,866. Added 4492: purchase 4208; gift or exchange 51; binding 233. Lost 78; discarded 1066; rep'd 7594; reb'd 1045. Cardholders 7131. Added 4100; cancelled 4021. Circulation 183,376 (from main library 160,069, from branches 23,307) : books 179.329 : periodicals 4047.

ORANGE Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Orange Co.

ORANGE CO.—Continued.

Santa Ana-Continued.

SANTA ANA HIGH SCHOOL AND JUNIOR College Library, D. K. Harmond, Prin, Miss Mary L. Harris, Lib'n, 2 employees, 98 mags, and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 10,994. Added 949: purchase 792; gift 100; binding 57. Teachers a. 50; pupils a. 1200.

Westminster.

I. O. O. F. WESTMINSTER FREE LI-BRARY. Willis H. Werner, Sec.; Mrs M. G. Waters, in charge. Est. 1901. In-come from various orders, which are drawn on regularly for support of library. 1 employee. Open to public Wed., Sat. and Sun. Located in Odd Fellows bldg., rent free. Several periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000.

Annual report not rec'd.

Yorba Linda.

YORBA LINDA LIBRARY DISTRICT LI-BRARY. Miss Blanche Bemish, Lib'n. Est. as Free Library May 6, 1913; as Library District Library Oct. 1, 1913; as Library District Library Oct. 1, 1913, to take effect March 1, 1914. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3474.78. Annual income 1923–24, \$4639.30 (from taxation \$4508.27, library tax hoing 2 m or the Allow form the tax being 3 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$136.03). Total p a ym en t s \$5241.38. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2872.70. 1 employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays. 2 to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m. Lo-cated in library bldg. costing \$2950. 35 periodicals ree'd regularly : 2 newspapers ; 32 more Library trustace monthly meat. 33 mags. Library trustees monthly meet-ing last Wed.

Total books, etc. 4613: books 4511; maps 1; stereographs 100; globes 1. Books added 913: purchase 900; gift or exchange 13. Lost 10; discarded 129; rep'd 58. Cardholders 1295. Added 141: cancelled 98. Circulation 16,154: books 14,502; periodicals 1652.

During the year land was purchased for a site for a larger library, which is to be built as soon as enough money has been saved.

PLACER COUNTY.

(Thirty-second class.)

County seat, Auburn.

Area, 1484 sq. mi. Pop. 18,584. Assessed valuation \$21,878,532 (taxable for county \$15,174,820).

PLACER CO. LAW LIBRARY, AUBURN. Est. Jan. 1, 1894. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open to public daily 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. All attorneys have keys

PLACER CO.-Continued.

to room in which library is located. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 2000.

Annual report not rec'd.

PLACER CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, AUBURN. Irene Burns, Co. Supt. In-come 1923-24, \$56, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$52.13.

Total vols. 1009. Teachers employed 166: elem. 116; high 50. Active school districts: elem. 53 (incl. 3 jt.); high, union 3. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem, \$3988; high Vols. in schools: elem. 62,630; \$3454. high 12,503.

Auburn.

AUBURN FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Madeline Kriechbaum, Lib'n, Est, as F. P. June 3, 1906. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 1.30 to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Car-negie bldg. 56 periodicals rec'd regularly: 4 newspapers; 52 mags. Libr trustees monthly meeting first Thurs. Library

Total vols. 7450. Added 750: purchase 650; gift or exchange 100. Circulation 25.685: books 19.800; periodicals 5885. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 260 (all from State Library).

PLACER Co. law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Placer Co.

PLACER UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. John F. Engle, Prin. Margaret R. Ingrum, Lib'n. Est. 1900. Open five days from 8.45 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. 20 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3358. Teachers a. 20; pupils a. 300.

Annual report not rec'd.

Lincoln.

LINCOLN FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs. Bertha C. Landis, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Jan. 9, 1906. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$249.59. Annual income 1923–24, \$1325.77 (from taxation \$1297.52, library tax being 2 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$28.25). Total payments \$1357.93. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$217.43. 1 employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 8 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in \$9000 Carnegie bldg. 21 periodicals rec'd regularly: 4 news-papers; 17 mags. Lib rary trustees monthly meeting first Mon. papers; 17 mags. Libr monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 5887. Added 365: purchase 317: gift or exchange 48. Lost 13: discarded 97. Cardholders 577. Added 184; cancelled 147. Circulation 10,110: books 9828; periodicals 282. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 20 (all from State Library).

PLACER CO.—Continued.

Lincoln-Continued.

LINCOLN UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Richard A. Lee, Prin. Est. 1907. 20 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3000. Teachers a. 7: pupils a. 100.

Annual report not rec'd.

Newcastle.

NEWCASTLE LIBRARY. Est. Feb. 19, 03. Maintained by Good Templars 1903. Maintained by Good Templars Lodge. Open to public daily except Sun-days, 7 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in office in I. O. G. T. bldg. 5 mags. and 5 news-papers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 600. Cardholders a. 19. Annual report not rec'd.

Rocklin.

ROCKLIN FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs. Lulu Farrell, Lib'n. Est. June 23, 1884; as F. P. Jan. 2, 1906. 1 employee. Open Sun. 1 to 3 p.m., Thurs. 6 to 8 p.m. Library trustees meet at call of president.

Total vols. 1322. Added 48: purchase 32; gift or exchange 16. Lost 1. Circulation 1143.

FINNISH LIBRARY. Richard Kesti, Lib'n. Est. Dec. 24, 1880. Supported by Finnish Temperance Society. No paid employees. Open to public Sunday eve-nings 7 to 10 p.m. Located in Finnish Temperance Hall. 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols, a. 437. Members a. 25.

Annual report not rec'd.

Roseville.

ROSEVILLE [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Georgiana R. Willits, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Jan. 16, 1911. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1620.49. Annual income 1923-24. \$1620.49, Annual income 1923-24, \$2851.75 (from taxation \$2803.78, li-brary tax being 2 m, on the dollar; from other sources \$47.97). Total payments \$3112.49. Bal, July 1, 1924, \$1359.75. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 12 m, to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Lo-cated in \$12,000 Carnegie bldg, 42 periodicals rec'd recularly. S newspapers' cated in \$12,000 Carnegie bldg. 42 periodicals rec'd regularly: 8 newspapers; 34 mags. Library trustees monthly meet-ing first Tues.

Total vols. a. 4963. Added 486: purchase 363; gift or exchange 123. Lost 12; rep'd 701; reb'd 232. Circulation 23,479: books 22,584; periodicals 895. Vols. borrowed from State Library 28.

ROSEVILLE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-Est. 1912. 16 mags, rec'd BRARY. regularly.

Total vols. a. 500. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 195.

Annual report not rec'd.

PLACER CO.—Continued.

Weimar.

The Weimar Joint Sanatorium in Placer County is receiving library service. Since Placer County has no county free library, the county libraries of the counties cooperating in the upkeep of the sanatorium are sending in books and magazines.

Magazines are subscribed for and three books per month are sent in from each of the following county libraries: Amador, Colusa, Contra Costa, Plumas, Sacramento, Sutter, Tuolumne and Yolo.

PLUMAS COUNTY.

(Fiftieth class.)

County seat, Quincy.

Area, 2361 sq. mi. Pop. 5681.

Assessed valuation \$20,356,299 (taxable for county \$12,691,950).

PLUMAS CO. FREE LABRARY, QUINCY. Miss Edith Gantt, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2. Co. F. L. law, Sept. 7, 1915. In-cludes entire county for tax and service. Co. Teachers' Library joined. Bal, July 1, 1923, \$3303.21. Annual in come 1922-24. \$7506.827. (from taxation Co. Teachers' Library joined. Bat. 546, 1, 1923, \$3303.21. Annual in come 1923-24, \$7806.27 (from taxation \$3712.36, library tax being .3 m. on the \$3712.36, library tax being .3 m. on the having \$3112.50, horary tax being ,5 m, on the dollar: from school districts having joined \$2200; from Co. Teachers' Li-brary fund \$21.40; from other sources \$1872.51). Total payments \$8473.83. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2635.65. 31 em-ployees: 3 in office; 28 in branches, Open daily event Sum and holidays 9 a m to daily except Sun, and holidays 9 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m. Located in court-house. Total branches 69, as follows: community 29—Beckwith, Camp Rodgers, Community 29—Beckwith, Camp Rodgers, Caribou (r. r.), Chester, Clio, Crescent Mills, Cromberg, Delleker (r. r.), Engel Mine Lower Camp (r. r.), Genesee, Greenville (r. r.), Johnsville, Keddie, La Porte, McKenzie Ranch, Massack, Masdaw Valle, Mckenzie Ranch, Massack, Greenville (r. r.), Johnsville, Keddle, La Porte, McKenzie Ranch, Massack, Meadow Valley, Mohawk, Paxton, Plumas Sierra Mine, Portola, Quincy (r. r.), Rich, Seneca, Sloat (r. r.), Spring Gar-den, Taylorsville (r. r.), Twain, Walker Mine; active schol districts that have joined 32 (39 school branches)—Beck-with, Butte, Caribou Emergency School Pranch, Crescent Engel, Genesee, Green-Branch, Crescent, Engel, Genesee, Green-ville, incl. Greenville Branch High, Hot Springs, Indian Falls, Island, Johnsville, La Porte, Lincoln, Loop, Mann, McIrose, North Fork, Pioneer, Plumas Co. High School (incl. Portola High), Portola, School (incl. Portola High), Portola, Ouincy (4 classroom collections), Rich Bar, Seneca, Spanish Peak, Spring Gar-den, Squirrel Creek, Sulphur Spring, Summit. Superior, Taylor, Twain Emer-gency School Branch, Union, Walker Mine, Willow Creek; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Quincy. 291 periodicals (all for circu-lation) rec'd regularly: 4 newspapers; 276 mags.; 11 other serials. Distributed: 58 to office; 233 to branches.

PLUMAS CO.—Continued.

Total books, etc. 28,545 : books 23,542 ; pamphlets 1791; maps 137; prints 150; music records 343; stereographs 2378; charts 149; globes 19; other material 36. Added 4600: books 3896 (purchase 3729, gift or exchange 167); pamphlets 311; maps 28; prints 8; music records 120; stereographs 226; charts 8; globes 3. Books discarded 547; rep'd 398; reb'd Cardholders 2768: headquarters 216.554; branches 2224. Added 588; cancelled 386. Circulation 27.920 (from headquarters 8229, from branches 19,691): books 23,033; periodicals 4887. Vols. loaned to other libs. 2; borrowed from other libs, 244 (235 from State Library). 891 shipments (12,024 items: 10,612 books; 22 periodicals; 1390 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 4574 were supplementary books. In addition 1112 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 6455 special requests.

During the year 45 visits were made to 40 branches. 124 visits were made to readquarters by 30 custodians. 7 branches were established.

Plumas County cooperates in giving library service to the Weimar Sanatorium, Placer County.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

During the quarter the Belden Branch was reopened with Miss Clifford Arnold as custodian, and three new branches at Chester, Oakland Camp and Vinton were established. The new Chester Branch is located in the Wardlow store, while the old Chester Branch is now to be known as the Olsen Ranch Branch. The Vinton Branch in the Summit School District is the same location as the old Chilcoot Branch, discontinued three years ago.

Several new custodians have been appointed—W. A. Curry for Caribou Branch, Mrs J. G. Wilson for Greenville, Mrs Margaret Pasetti for Johnsville, Mrs Garnet M. Nail for Meadow Valley and Clyde R. Day for Walker Mine,

We now have three High Schools in Plumas County instead of one High School and two branches. They are all three under the one High School Board however.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .5 m. on the dollar.

EDITH GANTT, Lib'n.

PLUMAS CO.--Continued.

PLUMAS CO. HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LI-BRARY, QUINCY. L. R. Switzer, Prin. Est, 1909; joined the Plumas Co. Free Library Sept. 7, 1915. 18 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2271. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 55.

Annual report not rec'd.

PLUMAS CO. LAW LIBRARY, QUINCY. J. D. McLaughlin, Lib'n. Est. March 9, 1905. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open to public daily 7 a.m. to 10 p.m. Located in courthouse. 1 periodical rec'd regularly. Library trustees annual meeting July 1,

Total vols. a. 1350.

Annual reoprt not rec'd.

PLUMAS CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY AND BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY, QUINCY. Mrs Vivian Long, Co. Supt. Est. 1889; joined Co. Free Library Sept. 5, 1915. Income 1923-24, \$15, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt, paid for books \$23,75. 2 mags. (from Co.) rec'd regularly.

Teachers employed 50: elem. 38; high 12. Active school districts: elem. 31; high 1 (3 high schools), county 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923–24: elem. \$1850; high \$1370. Vols. in schools, high 3500.

Belden.

BELDEN BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Plumas Co. Free Library.

Caribou (P. O. Belden).

CARIBOU BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Plumas Co. Free Library.

Chester.

CHESTER BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Greenville.

GREENVILLE BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS. See note under Plumas Co. Free Library.

PLUMAS CO.-Continued.

Johnsville.

JOHNSVILLE BRANCH, PLUMAS, CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Plumas Co. Free Library.

Meadow Valley.

MEADOW VALLEY BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Plumas Co. Free Library.

Oakland Camp (P. O. Quincy).

OAKLAND CAMP BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established July 1, 1924.

Olsen Ranch (P, O. Chester).

OLSEN RANCH BRANCH, PLUMAS Co. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Plumas Co. Free Library,

Quincy.

PLUMAS Co. free, high school, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Plumas Co.

Vinton (Exp. Chilcoot).

VINTON BRANCH, PLUMAS CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Walker Mine (P. O. Spring Garden). Walker Mine Branch, Plumas Co. Free Library.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Plumas Co. Free Library.

RIVERSIDE COUNTY.

(Fifteenth class.)

County seat, Riverside.

Area, 7008 sq. mi. Pop. 50,297. Assessed valuation \$61,263,894 (taxable for county \$44,652,060).

RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY, RIVER-SIDE. Chas. F. Woods, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 16, Co. F. L. law, Nov. 9, 1912, under an agreement between Board of Supervisors of Riverside Co. and Board of Directors of Riverside Public Library. Includes entire county for tax and service. Annual income 1923–24, \$13,545 (from Co. under contract \$9750; from school districts having joined \$3795). A. 15 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 9 p.m. Located in Riverside Public

RIVERSIDE CO .--- Continued.

Library. Total branches 78, as follows: community 29—Arlington, B a n n i n g (r.r.), Beaumont (r.r.), Blythe (r.r.), Citrus Experiment Station, Coachella, Corona (r.r.), Elsinore (r.r.), Hemet (r.r.), Highgrove, Idyllwild (r.r.), Indio, Keen Camp (r.r.), La Sierra Academy, Mecca, Montessori School, Moreno (r.r.), Murrietta (r.r.), Nuevo, Palm Springs, Perris (r.r.), Pigeon Pass, Rannells, County Home Demonstration in Riverside, San Jacinto, Thermal, Valley Center, Wildomar, Winchester; school districts that have joined 48 (49 school branches)—Alamos, Alberhill, Banning, Cabazon, Cahuilla, Coachella, Coachella Valley Union High, Desert, East Vale, Elsinore Union (incl. Elsinore, Grand Ave., Lake and Sedco), Elsinore High, Ensign, Ethanac Union (incl. Benedict and Ethanac), Glenaven, Hamilton, Hemet Valley Union (incl. Diamond, Fruitvale, Harmony, Hemet, Little Lake and Valley Vista), Highgrove, Hyatt, Indio, Jurupa Heights, Mocca, Murrietta, Nuevo, Oasis, Perris, Point Happy, Riverside, Riverside High, Rocky Comfort, San Jacinto, San Jacinto High, Temecula Union (incl. Pujol and Santa Gertrudes), Thermal, Trujilo, Union Joint, Valley Center, Wildomar, Winchester; special school branches 1— Co. Teachers' Library in Riverside. 319 periodicals (none for circulation) rec'd regularly: 28 newspapers; 281 mags. Distributed: 283 to main library; 36 to branches.

Statistics the same as for Riverside Public Library. Shipments consisting of 23,830 items were sent to branches.

During the year 50 visits were made to 42 branches. Visits were made to headquarters by about 100 custodians.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The branch at Elsinore Union High School was discontinued Sept. 18, and that at Perris Grammar School Aug. 29. CHAS, F. WOODS, Lib'n.

RIVERSIDE Co. LAW LIBRARY, RIVER-SIDE. A. M. Haynes, Sec. in charge. Est. June, 1893. Annual income rec'd from fees for filing papers in civil suits and from appropriations of supervisors. 1 employee. Open any time.

Annual report not rec'd.

RIVERSIDE CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Ira Landis, Co. Supt. Est. 1894. Branch est. 1913. Income 1923–24, \$159, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$138.

Teachers employed 489: elem. 320; high 169. Active school districts: elem. 67 (incl. 1 jt.); high: city 5; union 6. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$9211; high \$8319. Vols. in schools: elem. 47,595; high 21,622.

RIVERSIDE CO .--- Continued.

Banning.

BANNING UNION HIGH SCHOOL DIST. LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs Louise S. Stone. Lib'n. Est. Aug. 21, 1916; became branch Sept. 1916. 1 employee. Open week days 2 to 6 p.m. Located in high school bldg. 13 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 5000. Added 1550: purchase 1500; gift 50. Cardholders a. 946.

BANNING UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, J. W. Means, Prin. Est. 1894. Open school days 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. 4 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1232. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 60.

Annual report not rec'd.

Beaumont.

BEAUMONT LIBRARY DIST. LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Pearl V. Kohler, Lib'n. Est. Aug. 12, 1911. Bal. July 1, 1923. \$1979.27. Annual in c o me 1923–24, \$3893.39 (from taxation \$3786.50, library tax being 2.6 m, on the dollar; from other sources \$106.89). T ot al payments \$3760.06. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2112.60. 2 employees. Open daily except Christmas: week days 1 to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. and holidays 2 to 6 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 72 periodicals (61 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 48 mags.; 19 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting second Tues.

Total vols, 4399. Added 953: purchase 324; gift or exchange 84; binding 39; deposit 506. Lost 6; discarded 16; deposit ret'd 279; rep'd 75; reb'd 171. Cardholders 934. Added 220; cancelled 126. Circulation 11,937: books 10,921; periodicals 1016. Vols. borrowed from State Library 1.

BEAUMONT HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. C. O. Harvey, Prin. Est. 1909.

Total vols. a. 700. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 74.

Annual report not rec'd.

Blythe.

BLYTHE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Mary Love, Librarian. Est. Nov. 6, 1919. Branch est. Nov. 1914; re-est. Nov. 1, 1919. 1 employee. Open 8 hrs. a week. Located in rent free room.

Total vols. a. 100.

Annual report not rec'd.

PALO VERDE VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Geo. W. Scott, Prin. Est. 1914; branch est. April, 1919, 12 mags, and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

RIVERSIDE CO.-Continued.

Blythe-Continued.

Total vols, a. 1016. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 125.

Annual report not rec'd.

Coachella.

UNION COACHELLA VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVER-SIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Harry L. Howe, Prin. Est. Oct. 1910; branch est. Oct. 28. 1915.

Total vols. a. 29. Teachers a. 2: pupils a. 18.

Annual report not rec'd.

Corona.

CORONA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss E. Leone Fink, Lib'n. Est. 1893; as F. P. Sept. 1, 1899; branch est. Jan. 1913. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1850.10. An-nual income 1923-24, \$6468.39 (from taxation \$5900.86, library tax being 11 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$567.53. Total payments \$6627.80. 5567.53). Total payments \$6327.80. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1990.69. 5 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 9 p.m. Located in \$12,500 Carnegie bldg. 91 periodicals rec'd regularly: 7 rec'd regularly: 7 newspapers; 84 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues

Total books, etc. 15,541 : books 10,523; pamphlets 4268; maps 158; music records 7; music sheets 85; stereographs Added 929: books 728 (purchase 500603, gift or exchange 22, pay collection 103); pamphlets 200; maps 1. Books lost 50; discarded 252; reb'd a. 450. Cardholders 1589. Circulation 40,561: books 36,892; periodicals 3669. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 432 (33 from State Library).

During the year the interior of the building has been re-decorated.

Three pupils were instructed in classification, cataloging and general library work.

CORONA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Glenn D. Wight, Prin. Est. 1894; branch est. March 1, 1921.

Total vols. a. 681. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 193.

Annual report not rec'd.

Elsinore.

ELSINORE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Reta Hersey, Lib'n. Est. July 6, 1906; branch est. Dec. 1911. 1 employee. Open to public daily except Sun. and larly.

RIVERSIDE CO .--- Continued.

Elsinore-Continued.

holidays: 10 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m. and three evenings 6.30 to 8.30 p.m. Library trustees monthly meeting first Thurs.

Total vols. 2037. Added 150 by purchase. Lost 10; discarded 175. Circulation 6369.

ELSINORE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Alexander J. Barnes, Prin. Est. 1891. Branch est. Oct. 5, 1916; re-est. Nov. 23, 1920; discontinued. 3 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 980. Added 40: purchase 5; binding 35. Teachers 8; pupils 100.

OUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Riverside Co. Free Library.

Hemet.

Hemet. HEMET [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Minnie J. White, Lib'n. Reading room est. 1906; library March, 1907; as F. P. June 29, 1910; branch est. Dec. 1911. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1332.61. An-nual income 1923–24, \$3225.34 (from taxation \$2279.84, library tax being 2.4 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$945.50). Total payments \$2699.87. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1858.08. 3 em-ployees. Open daily except holidays: week days 10 a.m. to 12.30 p.m. and 2 to 5 and 7 to 8.30 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 48 periodicals (24 for circulation) ree'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 43 mags. Li-brary trustees monthly meeting first Tues. Tues.

Total books, etc. 5962: books 5880; music records 82. Books added 112: purchase 93; gift or exchange 19. Rep'd Cardholders 3001. 1440: reb'd 185. Added 319; cancelled 100. Circulation 24.886: books 23.099; periodicals 1787. Vols. borrowed from State Library 24.

During the year three high school students spent part time in the library, doing page work and receiving instruction in library methods and repair work.

HEMET UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Oren B. Waite, Prin. Est. 1910.

Total vols. a. 1692. Teachers a. 13; pupils a. 197.

Annual report not rec'd.

Perris.

PERRIS UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. V. Hartsnorn, Prin. Jean Woodruff, Lib'n. Est. 1898. 20 mags. rec'd regu-

RIVERSIDE CO.—Continued.

Perris-Continued.

Total vols. 1100. Added 220: purchase 200; binding 20. Teachers 8; pupils 90.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The Library of Perris Union High School was organized in 1898, and catalogued in the spring of 1922. No regularly appointed librarian was in charge until the fall of 1923. Regular instruction in Library Science is given to a class of five this term (1924–25). The Library now numbers about 1500 volumes, and nearly as many pamphlets.

JEAN WOODRUFF, Lib'n.

PERRIS SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, RIVER-SIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued Aug. 29, 1924.

*PERRIS VALLEY LIBRARY ASSOCIATION LIBRARY. H. W. Akin, Lib'n. Est. July 24, 1898.

Total vols. a. 700. Library stored.

Riverside.

\$||RIVERSIDE [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Chas. F. Woods, Lib'n. Est. 1879; as F. P. March 5, 1907. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$125.70. Annual income 1923–24, \$39, -320.34 (from taxation \$21,395.85, library tax being 1.8 m. on the dollar; from Co. under contract \$9750; from school districts having joined \$3795; from other sources \$4379.49). Total payments \$39,336.90. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$109.14. A. 15 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 9 p.m. Located in \$65,500 Carnegie bldg. 17 branches. Owns \$5500 Arlington branch bldg. 319 periodicals rec'd regularly: 38 newspapers; 281 mags. Distributed: 283 to main library; 36 to branches. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues. except first day of month.

Total vols. 111,113. Added 8722: purchase 3712; gift or exchange 710; recataloged 32; provision of law 400; binding 163; unaccessioned readers 1205; unaccessioned other vols. 2500. Lost and discarded 5548; rep'd and reb'd 6696. Cardholders 8229. Added 2278; cancelled 1701. Circulation 253,652: from main library 153,426; from branches 100,226. Vols. loaned to other libs. 26; borrowed from other libs. 293 (287 from State Library).

RIVERSIDE CO.—Continued.

Riverside-Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Elizabeth Iredell, Riverside '23, has been appointed Assistant in the Maui County Free Library, Wailuku, T. H. Miss Iredell sailed from Port Los Angeles, September 21. Miss Marv Adams, student in the Winter Session '23, formerly librarian, Atlantic City, Iowa, has been appointed librarian of the Escondido Public Library, San Diego County, Miss Nellie P. Chapin, student in the Summer Session '23 and Winter Session "24 and thereafter for some weeks a special student, has been appointed assistant in the University of California Medical School Library, San Francisco. Miss Ella M. McLoney, one time librarian of the Des Moines, Iowa. Public Library, student in the Winter Session '24, has been appointed Assistant Librarian, Public Library, Marshfield. Oregon.

An increase on the assessed valuation of improvements in the City of Riverside will give the library an increase of income of nearly \$4000 during the fiscal year 1924-25.

The long course 1924-25 will open October 6 with ten students, one more to enter November 1.

For the Winter Session 1925, Miss Bessie Graham of Philadelphia has been engaged to teach Book Selection, Miss Anna K. Fossler, Reference, and Mrs. Hildegard Flugel Millar, Business Libraries. A number of other courses will be carried by the librarian and members of the Riverside staff, the instructor in cataloging not yet having been engaged. A feature of this session will be a series of individual lectures on the literature of various sciences, as the literature of economics, the literature of sociology, masters of literary criticism and milestones in educational literature, by members of the faculty of the Riverside Junior College.

The library tax for 1924-25 is 1.8 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$25,000.

CHAS. F. WOODS, Lib'n.

John C. Deagon has made a gift of 250 books to the Riverside Public Library. The books cover a wide variety

RIVERSIDE CO.-Continued.

Riverside—Continued.

of subject matter; many are very valuable, and some are quite rare.--Riverside Press. Jl 11

BOYS' POLYTECHNIC HIGH SCHOOL AND JUNIOR COLLEGE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. A. G. Paul, Prin. Miss Rosa B. Cage, Lib'n. Est. 1911, as branch 1912. 54 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3517. Teachers a. 56: pupils a. 754.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Since the last issue of "News Notes" we have moved our Library into the new Applied Arts building of the High School unit. As the senior high schools have been combined this year, we have a large addition of books from the Girls High School which adds very materially to our Library.

Unfortunately our space is limited for the reading room, so of necessity we practically have a reference library only. The books circulate as usual but students may remain for reference work only.

We are glad to have some new equipment and many new books. We have also acquired a small workroom which is a great help. Mary Louise Dykes, G. II. S. '24, is the new assistant.

ROSA B. CAGE, Lib'n.

CITRUS EXPERIMENT STATION LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LI-BRARY. J. T. Barrett, Prin. Margaret Margaret Buvens, Lib'n. Est. July, 1917; branch est. Oct. 1917. Open week days 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Total vols. a. 4000.

Annual report not rec'd.

*RIVERSIDE CITY GIRLS' HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LIBRARY. F. P. Taylor, Prin. Miss Jean Urquhart, Lib'n. Est. 1912. Branch est. 1913. For use of students and teachers only. 23 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 3976. Added 72. Teachers 33; pupils 678. Circulation 4508.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The beginning of this school year found radical changes in the school library. In the first place co-education had taken the place of segregation that has been carried out the past few years. So the

RIVERSIDE CO.—Continued.

Riverside-Continued.

belonged to the higher classes were moved to the new Union High School Library.

Also two Junior High Schools have been formed, segregation still being carried out in these. So now the old Girls' High School building is the Girls' Junior High School. Books suitable for that age have refilled the shelves and we now have a useful Junior High Library. AILEEN GROOMES, Sub-Lib'n.

RIVERSIDE Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Riverside Co.

*SOUTHERN SIERRAS POWER Co. LI-BRARY. Miss Bernice Loveland, Lib'n. Est. May, 1919. Open daily except com-pany holidays. Located in company bldg. 100 periodicals rec'd regularly: a. a. 37 newspapers; a. 63 mags.

Total books, etc. a. 1145: books a. 376; pamphlets a. 769.

Annual report not rec'd.

San Jacinto.

SAN JACINTO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, RIVERSIDE CO. FREE LI-BRABY, H. H. Meyer, Prin. Est. 1893; branch est. Dec. 11, 1917. 8 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 500. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 103.

Annual report not rec'd.

SACRAMENTO COUNTY.

(Seventh class.)

County seat, Sacramento.

Area, 988 sq. mi. Pop. 90,978.

Assessed valuation \$148,208,604 (taxable for county \$124,007,817).

SACRAMENTO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAC-BACKAMENTO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAC-RAMENTO. Miss Cornelia D. Provines, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 16, Co. F. L. law, Oct. 1, 1908. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Sept. 18, 1919; work started Jan. 15, 1920. Includes entire county for tay and service constants. for tax and service except Sacramento. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$4200. Annual income 1923-24, \$37,057.05 (from taxation \$26,-400, library tax being .57 m. on the dol-lar; from school districts having joined \$5983.75; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$109; from other sources \$4564.30). Total payments \$36,857.50. Bal. July I, 1924, \$4399.55. 49 employees: 6 in office; 43 in branches. Open daily except Sat. afternoon, Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. books from the Girls' High Library that to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. Total

SACRAMENTO CO.-Continued.

branches 109, as follows: community 46 -Alta Mesa, Antelope, Arcade, Brown, Carmichael, Clay, Colonial Heights (r.r.), Courtland, Del Paso Heights, Elk Grove (r.r.), Elk Grove Standard Oil, Elverta, Fairoaks (r.r.), Florin, Folsom (r.r.), Folsom Standard Oil, Franklin, Freenort Calt (r.r.) Calt Standard Oil Freeport, Galt (r. r.), Galt Standard Oil, Greenhorn Camp, Herald, Isleton, Natomas, North Sacramento (r. r.), Natomas, North Sacramento (1.1.), Orangevale (r.r.), Pleasant Grove, Point Pleasant, Quinn, Reese, Represa, Rio Linda, Riverside Brickyard, Co. Farm Adviser, Home Demonstration, Hospital, Jail, and Main Office in Sacramento, Sloughhouse, Sutterville, Sylvan, Twin Cities, Vorden, Walnut Grove, Wal-nut Grove Standard Oil, Washington, Wilton; active school districts that have Milton: active school districts that have joined 63 (62 school branches)—Amer-ican Basin, Arcade, Arden, Arno, Beaver Union (incl. Goodhope and Walker), Brighton, Brown, Carmichael, Carroll, Center Joint, Colony, Del Paso Heights, Dillard, Dry Creek Joint, Elder Creek, Elt Grava Union (incl. Elk Grava Jack Elk Grove Union (incl. Elk Grove, Jackson and Victory), Enterprise, Excelsior, Fairoaks, Florin, Franklin Union (incl. Franklin, Goethe, Prairie), Freeport, Franklin, Goethe, Prairie), Freeport, Fremont, Fruitridge, Galt, Granite, Herald (formerly Alabama), Howard, Jefferson, Junction, Kinney, Laguna, Lee, Lincoln, Lisbon (2 schools), Michigan Bar, North Sacramento (3 schools), Despression Outcon Bacifa Placeout Orangevale, Oulton, Pacific, Pleasant Grove, Point Pleasant, Reese, Rhoades, Grove, Point Pleasant, Reese, Khoades, Rio Linda Union (incl. Fruitvale and Rio Linda), Riverside, Roberts, Robla, San Joaquin, Sierra, Sutter, Sylvan, Twin Cities, Union, Walnut Grove, Washington, Wilson; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Sacramento. 466 periodicals (457 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 1 news-paper: 465 mags Distributed 9 to paper; 465 mags. D office; 457 to branches. Distributed: 9 to

Total books, etc., 47,548: books 45,596; maps 200; prints 61; music records 620; music sheets 7; charts 1014; globes 50. Added 13,800: books 13,632 (purchase 13,608, gift 24); maps 26; music records 113; charts 12; globes 17. Withdrawn 3992: books discarded 3970: music records 22. Carholders 6585 : headquarters 47; branches 6538. Added 1073; cancelled 198. Circulation 123,962 (from headquarters 728, from branches 123.234): books 117.234; periodicals 5618; other material 1110. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 509 (502 from State Library). 4360 shipments (217,-311 items: 216,201 books; 1110 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 200,465 were supplementary books. In addition 2590 supplementary books were retained from previous year.

SACRAMENTO CO.-Continued.

During the year 102 visits were made to 71 branches. 44 visits were made to headquarters by 16 custodians. 4 branches were established; 2 schools (Mokelumne and Stonehouse) were suspended.

Sacramento County cooperates in giving library service to the Weimar Sanatorium, Placer County.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

On August 1st, Miss Marguerite Chatfield left us to take a position as Children's Librarian in the Ventura County Free Library. On October 1st, Miss Mary Virginia Provines, of the State Library, assumed the position of cataloger, which had been left vacant by Miss Chatfield's resignation.

On September 26th, a branch was established for Sherman Island in the Riverside School. Mr Howard Pease, teacher of the Riverside school, will act as custodian.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .5 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$23,178. CORNELIA D. PROVINES, Lib'n.

SACRAMENTO CO. LAW LIBRARY, SAC-RAMENTO. M. W. Stewart, Lib'n. Est. March 31, 1891. Annual income partly rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. 1 employee. Open week days: Mon. to Fri, 9.30 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9.30 a.m. to 12 m. Located in courthouse. 2 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 6237.

Annual report not rec'd.

SACRAMENTO CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, SACRAMENTO. R. E. Golway, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined County Free Library. Income 1923-24, \$135, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Teachers employed 742: elem. 534; high 208. Active school districts: elem. 77 (incl. 2 jt.); high: city 1; union 4; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$13,023; high \$18,336. Vols. in schools: elem. 38,596; high 57,041.

Courtland.

COURTLAND UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, S. J. Halley, Prin. Est. 1916. Open school days 9 a.m. to 3.40 p.m. 14 mags. ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 500. Teachers a. 9; pupils a. 70.

Annual report not rec'd.

SACRAMENTO CO.—Continued.

Elk Grove.

ELK GROVE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Homer Derr, Prin. Est. 1893. Total vols. a. 500. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 150.

Annual report not rec'd.

Fairoaks.

SAN JUAN UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. E. O. McCormick, Prin. Est. Sept. 1, 1913. 25 mags. rec'd regularly. Total vols. a. 850. Teachers a. 14;

pupils a. 210.

Annual report not rec'd.

Galt.

GALT JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Wm. Bland, Prin. Est. Sept. 10, 1912. 7 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1208. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 70.

Annual report not rec'd.

Represa.

*FOLSOM STATE PRISON LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SACRAMENTO CO. FREE LI-BRARY, J. J. Smith. Warden. H. J. Carter, Educational Director. Est. 1880. Branch est. March 7, 1921. Open daily except Sun. 9 hrs. Located in prison chapel.

Total vols. a. 4311. Officers and employees a. 100; inmates a. 1150.

Annual report not rec'd.

Sacramento.

[‡]SACRAMENTO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARX. Miss Susan T. Smith, Lib'n. Est. 1857; as F. P. June 1879. Total payments 1923–24, \$39,635.70. 19 employees: 15 in main library; 4 in branches. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 1 to 6 p.m. Located in \$130,000 Carnegie bldg. 4 branches. 353 periodicals (17 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 56 newspapers; 297 mags.

Total vols. 107,800. Added 4374: purchase 3614; gift or exchange 323; provision of law 143; binding 294. Cardholders 20,823. Added 5194. Circulation 325,009: headquarters 233,211; branches 91,798.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

We announced a book tour for the vacation months to the ports of the world, using the material furnished by the National Booksellers' Association. The nearest port of course to the Sacramento Valley is San Francisco and we were surprised at the prompt and eager response to our first reading list

SACRAMENTO CO.---Continued.

Sacramento-Continued.

published in the book page of the Sacramento Bee, which covered the history, points of interest and fiction with San Francisco as the setting.

We are frank to admit that we could have made far more of this tour than we did. Our readers were eager to enroll as passengers, sign the log and meet for discussion of the books read. We might have had side trips for the fast readers, and made of it a real study of the customs, history and literature of the countries visited. But as we had not planned for this, it was not possible to carry it out with our staff, limited as it was with vacations and sickness. It is a suggestion however, for the promotion of "adult education."

Grace Taylor, who has been an assistant at the Loan Desk, left September 1 on a year's leave of absence to attend the Los Angeles Library School.

SUSAN T. SMITH, Lib'n.

§‡‡CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY. See page 467.

*CATHOLIC LIBRARY OF SACRAMENTO. Mrs N. E. White, Lib'n. Est. Jan. 1910. Supported by contributions and by membership dues of \$1 per yr. Open on Sun. and church festivals. Located in Cathedral bldg. 3 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 720. Members a. 100.

Annual report not rec'd.

*DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, 3D DIS-TRICT LIBRARY. Est. April 15, 1905. Open 10 a.m. to 4 p.m. for use of court and officers of court only. Located in State Capitol.

SACRAMENTO CO. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Sacramento Co.

SACRAMENTO HIGH SCHOOL AND JUNIOR COLLEGE LIBRARY. John F. Dale, Prin. Miss Jean F. Ross, Lib'n. 3 employees. Est. 1891. Open Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 40 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 9449. Teachers a. 93; pupils a. 1620.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

We are in our beautiful new library in the new high school building and are very proud to show it off. Our formal opening for the entire school is set for the evening of Nov. 12.

SACRAMENTO CO .--- Continued.

Sacramento-Continued.

We can accommodate 125 readers, and have all new equipment. Our accession record showed 9449 volumes in June 1924 and we have added 474 this fall. JEAN F. Ross. Lib'n.

*STATE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE LIBRARY. G. H. Hecke, Sec. Est. 1881. Open 39 hours a week. Devoted to horticulture, entomology and kindred topics. Located in Mull bldg.

Total books, etc. a. 22,246.

Annual report not rec'd.

*STATE FORESTRY LIBRARY. M. B. Est. Pratt, State Forester, in charge. Est. 1905. Open Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 4 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Forum bldg. 7 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1105.

Annual report not rec'd.

.Sherman Island.

SHERMAN ISLAND BRANCH, SACRA-MENTO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established Sept. 26, 1924.

SAN BENITO COUNTY.

(Forty-third class.)

County seat, Hollister.

Area, 1476 sq. mi. Pop. 8995.

Assessed valuation \$14,871,836 (taxable for county \$13.185.665).

SAN BENITO CO. FREE LIBRARY, HOL-INSTER. Miss Florence J. Wheaton, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Feb. 4, 1918. Includes entire county for Teb. 4, 1918. Includes entire county to, tax and service, tax being made under Pol. Code, Sec. 4041. Bal, July 1, 1923, \$802.67. Annual income 1923-24, \$9335.28 (from taxation \$5288.14, li-brary tax being .4 m. on the dollar; from the districts having joined \$2215; brary tax being .4 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$2215; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$14.50; from other sources \$1817.64). Total payments \$9282.36. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$\$55.59. 5 employees: 4 in office; 1 in branches. Open daily except Sun, and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in courthouse. Total branches 72, as follows: community 33—Antelone. 72, as follows: community 33-Antelope, Anzar, Aromitas, Ausaymas, Bear Valley, Bitterwater, Cienega, Cottonwood, Em-met, Erie, Fairhaven, Fairview, Gabilan, Hollister (r.r.) and Main Office (r.r.) in Hollister, Live Oak, New Idria, Pacheco, Paicines, Panoche, Peralta, Juan Bautista (r.r.), San Juan Valley, Santa Ana, South Side, Tres Pinos,

SAN BENITO CO.-Continued.

Union, West Side, Willow Creek, Willow Grove; active school districts that have joined 39 (38 school branches)—Ante-lope, Anzar, Aromas, Aromitas, Ausaymas, Bear Valley, Bitterwater-Tully Union (incl. Bitterwater and Tully), Cherry Hill, Cienega, Cottonwood, Emmet, Enterprise, Erie, Fairhaven, Fairview, Gabilan, Hollister, Jefferson, Lewis, Live Oak, Miss Kennedy's School Branch, New Oak, Miss Kennedy's School Branch, New Idria, Olympia, Pacheco, Paicines, Panoche, Peralta, Quien Sabe, San Felipe Joint, San Juan, San Justo, Santa Ana, Santa Anita, Southside, Tres Pinos Union (incl. Tres Pinos and Sunnyside), Union, Vineyard, Willow Grove; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library (r. r.) in Hollister. Teachers' Library (r.r.) in Hollister. 157 periodicals rec'd regularly: 3 news-papers; 141 mags.; 13 other serials. Distributed: 20 to office; 137 to branches.

Total books, etc., 24,088: books 21,770; pamphlets 402; serials 13; maps 77; prints 919; music records 229; stereographs 539; charts 128; globes 11. Added 4615: books 4177 (purchase 3940, gift or exchange 237); pamphlets 346; serials 6; maps 20; prints 6; music records 56; charts 2; globes 2. Withdrawn 746: books 736 (lost 587, discarded 149); music records 10. Books rep'd 543; reb'd 195. Cardholders 3813: headquarters 137; branches 3676. Added 857; cancelled 250. Circulation 38.699; from headquarters 2832; from branches 35,867. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 176 (172 from State Library). S98 shipments (17.482 items: 16.728 books; 754other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 8042 were supplementary books. 9332 special requests.

During the year 78 visits were made to 36 branches. 827 visits were made to headquarters by 93 custodians. 3 branches were established (one being a re-opened school).

A course of twelve lessons was given by the librarian to the senior class (48 students) of San Benito High School during the third quarter.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Blanche Harris has been engaged to fill the position on the staff made vacant by the resignation of Miss Deborah King who accepted a position in the University of California Southern Branch. Miss Harris was graduated in the class of 1924 from the University of California.

SAN BENITO CO.-Continued.

Miss Lucille Gleason became custodian of the San Juan Valley Branch in August, and Mrs Viola Cox of the Anzar Branch.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .4 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$5274. FLORENCE J. WHEATON, Lib'n.

SAN BENITO CO. HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BENITO CO. FREE LIBRARY. James P. Davis, Prin. Rose Power, Lib'n. Est. 1895. Open school days 8.30 a.m. to 3.10 p.m. 14 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1624. Added 73. · Teachers 20: pupils 400.

SAN BENITO Co. LAW LIBRARY, HOL-LISTER. A. M. Runnell, Sec. Annual income rec'd from fees for filing papers in civil suits and from appropriations by supervisors. No paid employees. Open 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. 3 periodicals rec'd regularly.

SAN BENITO CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BENITO CO. FREE LI-BRARY, HOLLISTER. Catherine W. Gray, Co. Supt. Joined County Free Library Feb. 5, 1918. Income 1923–24, \$4, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$11.90. 3 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Teachers employed S3: elem. 63; high 20. Active school districts: elem. 36; high, county 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$1880; high \$336. Vols. in schools, elem. 5733.

Anzar.

ANZAR' BRANCH, SAN BENITO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Benito Co. Free Library.

Hollister.

HOLLISTER FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BENITO CO. FREE LI-BRARY, MI'S Anna J. Nolte, Lib'n. Est. 1884; as F. P. 1904. Branch est. Dec. 10. 1918. Annual income 1922–23, \$2287.54 (from taxation \$2141.24). 1 employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 19 periodicals rec'd regularly: 3 newspapers; 16 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 4264. Cardholders a. 1168. Annual report not rec'd.

SAN BENITO Co. free, high school, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under San Benito Co.

SAN BENITO CO .-- Continued.

San Juan Bautista.

SAN JUAN BAUTISTA FREE PUBLIC LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BENITO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Adelaide Breen, Lib'n. Est. Nov. 1896; as F. P. Dec. 5, 1905. Branch est. April 1, 1919. 1 employee. Open daily except holidays: week days 2 to 3.30 and 6.45 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2.30 to 4.30 p. m. Located in room rented from Masons. 10 periodicals rec'd regularly: 4 newspapers; 6 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. a. 1933.

Annual report not rec'd.

San Juan Valley.

SAN JUAN VALLEY BRANCH, SAN BENITO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Benito Co. Free Library.

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY.

(Ninth class.) •

County seat, San Bernardino.

Area, 20,055 sq. mi. Pop. 73,401.

Assessed valuation \$108,585,273 (taxable for county \$66,214,755).

SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN BERNARDINO. Miss Caroline S. Waters, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law. July 14, 1913; work started Feb. 1, 1914. Includes entire county for tax and service except Ontario, Redlands and San Bernardino. Chino, Colton, Highland Library District and Upland joined under Sec. 3. Chino also entered into a contract under Sec. 4 to supplement its service under Sec. 3. Co. Teachers' Library joined County Free Library. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1033.18. Annual income 1923–24. \$30,260.18 (from taxation \$19,727.50, library tax being .5 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$6445: from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$289; from other sources \$3798.68). Total payments \$29,920.15. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1373.21. 127 employees: 9 in office; 118 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. S.30 a.m. to 12 m. Located in courthouse. Total branches 137, as follows: community 65—Adelanto, Alta Loma, Amboy, Arrowhead, Atolia, Bagdad, Barstow, Big Bear Valley, Bloomington (r. r.), Bryn Mawr, California Geo. Jr. Republic, Camp Baldy, Chino (r. r.), Cima, Colton (r. r.), Crestline, Cucamonga, Daggett, Del Rosa (r. r.), Etiwanda, Fontana, Goffs, Harper Lake. Helendale, Hesperia, Hicks, Highland (r. r.), Hinkley, Keenbrook, Kelso, Kramer, Lanfair. Ludlow (r. r.), Lytle, Midway, Minneola, Monte Vista Home,

Morongo, Needles, Newberry, Oak Glen, Oro Grande, Osdick, Phelan, Pine Crest, Pioneer, Rialto (r.r.), San Bernardino (r.r.), County Detention Home, County Hospital (r.r.), County Hospital Nurses' Cottage, County Hospital Tubercular Ward and County Jail in San Bernar-dino, Santa Ana Power House No. 2, Skaland Strawbarwa Flat Skyland, Strawberry Flat, Summit, Trona (r. r.), Upland (r. r.), Valley, Victorville (r. r.), Vidal, Warm Springs, Yermo (r. r.), Yucaipa (r. r.); active school districts that have joined 71 (71 school districts that have joined if (II school branches)—Alta Loma, Amboy, Apple Valley, Arrowhead, Atolia, Bag-dad, Barstow Union High, Big Bear Valley, Bloomington, Cajon, Camp Baldy, Central, Cima, City Creek, Clear Springs, Cram, Cucamonga, Daggett, Del Rosa, Priwanda, Fairiaw, Fontana, Coffe Etiwanda, Fairview, Fontana, Goffs, Greenleaf, Harper Lake, Hesperia, Highland, Hinkley, Keenbrook, Kelso, Kramer, Lanfair, Lucerne, Ludlow, Lytle, Mid-way, Mill, Minneola, Mission (1 dis-trict, 3 branches several miles apart), Mojave, Mountain View, Needles (1 dis-trict, 2 branches), Needles High, Oak Glen, Oro Grande, Osdick, Palliser, Pass, Phalan Luian (incl. Baldy, Masa and Phelan Union (incl. Baldy Mesa and Sheep Creek), Piedmont, Pioneer, Pleas-ant View, Rialto, Rochester, San Salva-dor, Summit, Sunrise, Terrace Union (incl. La Loma and Terrace), Todd, Trona, Twenty-Nine Palms, Valley, Vic-tor, Victor Valley Union High, Vidal, Warm Springs, Waterman (incl. Hicks), Yermo, Yucaipa; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in San Ber-nardino. 537 periodicals (507 for cir-culation) rec'd regularly: 20 newspapers; 509 mags.; 8 other serials. Distributed: 60 to office; 477 to branches.

Total books, etc. 83,079: books 72,012; pamphlets 3582; maps 344; prints 3440; framed pictures 10; music records 318; stereographs 3013; charts 48; globes 51; sets of reading cards 261. Added 10.537: books 9416 (purchase 7053, gift or exchange 2354, recovered from loss 9); pamphlets 944; maps 62; prints 54; music records 41; charts 16; globes 4. Withdrawn 2028: books 1994 (lost 309, discarded 1685); maps 3; prints 7; music records 23; stereographs 1. Books rep'd 8194; reb'd 815. Cardholders 23,254: headquarters 1323; branches 21.931.Added 8621; cancelled 5283. Circulation 200,102 (from headquarters 10,040, from branches 190,062): books 185,609; periodicals 14,493. Vols. loaned to other libs. 4 ; borrowed from other libs. 175 (165 from State Library). 1406 shipments (40,755 items: 30,279 books; 118 periodicals; 10,358 other material)

SAN BERNARDINO CO .-- Continued.

were sent to branches. Of the above 12,832 were supplementary books.

During the year 186 visits were made to 106 branches. 4 branches were established; 4 branches were discontinued (incl. Morongo School Dist. suspended).

The library units of service at the County Hospital, with the exception of that in Tubercular Ward, were consolidated into one unit and a separate room was provided in the main hospital building for the library. Service was started to the Medical Department of the Hospital, and now all medical books are being purchased for the Department by the County Free Library.

The San Bernardino Co. Free Library owns one branch building—Highland Library District Library building transferred to county by trustees of Highland Library District. This cost about \$3500 when built.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Ethel McGough, who had previously been connected with the San Bernardino County Free Library for three years, entered the library again July 1. to have charge of the reference work and community branch shipments, until October 1, 1925, when she will reenter Stanford University where she is a student. Miss Bessie C. Degenhart, assistant in the school department, resigned Sept. 1, Miss Ethel Gergen, to be married. assistant to the cataloger, resigned Sept. 1, to enter the University of California, Southern Branch. Miss Caroline M. Roberts entered the library September 1, filling the position from which Miss Ethel Gergen resigned. Miss Louise A. Anderson entered the library September 1, as general assistant. Mrs A. E. Austerman entered the library September 1, as assistant in school department, and desk attendant, filling the position from which Miss Bessie Degenhart resigned.

The Arrowhead, Cajon, Clear Springs, Keenbrook, and Lytle school districts have consolidated with the San Bernardino City Schools, so County Free Library service to them has been discontinued. Five schools started too late this fall to have their districts formed this year, so the County Free Library is serving these emergency schools free.

They are: Arrowhead Lake, which started Sept. 15, with Mrs J. E. Henck as teacher; Bryman, at Halleck, opening Sept. 29, with Miss Ellen Sells as teacher; Cima Emergency, opening Sept. 29, with Miss Jean Walden as teacher (not to be confused with Cima School twenty-five miles away); Fawnskin, opening Sept. 29, with Miss Nita Mobley as teacher; Holcomb Valley, at Fawnskin, opening Sept. 29, with Mrs M. G. Foster as teacher. The Lanfair and Pleasant View school districts have been suspended for the year 1924–25.

The Devore Branch, with Mrs R. B. Peters as custodian, was established July 1, to be open Sundays from 9 to 10 a.m. This is a temporary branch only for the children of the community. The Loma Linda Branch, located in the Academy School building, with Miss Fedalma Ragon as custodian, was established Sept. 18. The time for circulation is during school hours. The branch at Oro Grande, that has been closed temporarily, was reopened September 4 in the social hall with Mrs Crawford B. Ousley in charge. The new hours are 6 to 9 p.m. on Tuesday and Thursday and 1 to 4 p.m. on Saturday. The branch at Skyland in the San Bernardino Mountains, was reopened July 8, for the summer months only with Mrs W. O. Raub, in charge. It was closed September 20. Camp Baldy Branch was moved October 2 from the social hall of the Camp Baldy Resort to the school house for the winter months. Miss Lucile Cheever is in charge of the branch. The Arrowhead Springs Hospital Branch was withdrawn July 1, 1924, on account of the hospital having been closed down. The Oak Glen Branch was withdrawn Sept. 30. The people there at Oak Glen will be served at Oak Glen school, and from the Yucaipa Branch, that is located in the Woman's Club House. Mrs Henry Crain is the new custodian at the Big Bear Valley Branch, having taken charge September 1. The new hours are from 2 to 6 p.m. on Monday and Thursday. Mrs Clara B. Johnson is the new custodian at Phelan, having taken charge there Aug. 12. The new hours are 3.30 to 4.30 p.m. on Tuesday and Thursday, and 8 p.m. to midnight every other Saturday

SAN BERNARDINO CO .-- Continued.

(community night). Mrs Roy Williams is the new custodian at Trona, having taken charge September 9. The new hours are 6 to 8 p.m. on Monday, Tuesday and Friday, and 2 to 4 p.m. on Wednesday and Saturday.

The new hours at the County Hospital Branch are 1 to 3 p.m. daily except Saturday and Sunday. At Fontana Branch the new hours are 7 to 8.30 p.m. on Monday and 2 to 4.30 p.m. on Tuesday, Wednesday and Friday.

The tax rate for 1924–25 is .5 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$20,476.

CAROLINE S. WATERS, Lib'n.

SAN BERNARDINO CO. HOSPITAL BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LI-BRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

SAN BERNARDINO CO. LAW LIBRARY, SAN BERNARDINO. Jerome B. Kavanaugh, Lib'n. Est. July 3, 1891. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open to public daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located on first floor of courthouse.

Total vols. 45.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN BERNARDINO CO. TEACHERS' LI-BRARY, SAN BERNARDINO. Ida M. Collins, Co. Supt. Est. 1889; joined Co. Free Library Jan. 7, 1915. Income 1923–24, \$264, from ½ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$264.

Total vols. 4605. Teachers employed 689: elem. 469; high 220. Active school districts: elem. 73 (incl. 1 jt.); high 8 (9 high schools): city 1; district 3; union 4. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$14,469; high \$13,492. Vols. in schools: elem. 93,657; high 70,781.

Arrowhead Lake Emergency School. ARROWHEAD LAKE EMERGENCY SCHOOL BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LI-BRARY, was established Sept. 15, 1924.

Arrowhead School Dist.

ARROWHEAD SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued during the quarter.

Arrowhead Springs (P. O. and exp. San Bernardino).

A R ROWHEAD SPRINGS HOSPITAL BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LI-BRARY, was discontinued July 1, 1924.

Barstow.

BARSTOW UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Lena S. Paxton, Prin. Est. Sept. 1915; branch est. Oct. 18, 1915. 12 mags. from Co. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 950.

Annual report not rec'd.

SANTA FE LIBRARY. Geo. W. Mc-Cauley, Lib'n. Est. May 9, 1901. Destroyed (a. 500 vols.) by fire Sept. 20, 1909. Reopened Feb. 12, 1911. Income ree'd frem billiards, pool and from baths. 1 employee. Open to railroad employees and their families daily 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in company's recreation hall. 32 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 500. Employees a. 6. Annual report not rec'd.

Big Bear Valley.

. BIG BEAR VALLEY BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Bryman Emergency School.

BRYMAN EMERGENCY SCHOOL BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established Sept. 29, 1924.

Cajon School Dist.

CAJON SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued during the quarter.

Camp Baldy.

CAMP BALDY BRANCH, SAN BERNAR-DINO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Chino.

CHINO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Mrs Genevieve Breslin, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. April 15, 1913; joined San Bernardino Co. F. L. under Sec. 3, Aug. 18, 1914; made supplementary contract under Sec. 4. All payments made by County Free Library from County Free Library fund and from sum turned over to County Free Library by contract with city of Chino. 2 employees. Open week days 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. 22 mags., 4 newspapers and 2 other serials rec'd regu-

SAN BERNARDINO CO .- Continued.

Chino-Continued.

larly. Library trustees semimonthly meeting first and third Tues.

Total vols, a. 2153. Cardholders a. 939.

Annual report not rec'd.

CHINO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. E. J. Shives, Prin. Est. 1896; branch est. Dec. 1916. A. 13 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1100. Teachers a. 25; pupils a. 290.

Annual report not rec'd.

Cima Emergency School.

CIMA EMERGENCY SCHOOL BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established Sept. 29, 1924.

Clear Springs School Dist.

CLEAR SPRINGS SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN, BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued during the quarter.

Colton.

COLTON [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs Anna Enright Spragins, Lib'n. Est. May 7, 1906; as F. P. July 2, 1906; joined Co. Free Library Sept. 1919. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$34.95. Annual income 1923-24, \$3129.20 (from taxation \$2551.99; from other sources \$577.21). Total payments \$2856.15. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$308. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and legal holidays 1 to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$16,000 Carnegie bldg. 82 periodicals rec'd regularly: 6 newspapers; 68 mags.; 8 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total books, etc. 11,998: books 10,674; pamphlets 507; serials 8; stereographs 809. Added 459: books 407 (purchase 326, gift or exchange 77, binding 4); pamphlets 50; serials 2. Withdrawn 112: books 77 (lost 32, discarded 45); pamphlets 35. Rep'd 1044; reb'd 290. Cardholders 2648. Added 459; cancelled 232. Circulation 35,179: books 33,050; periodicals 2117; other material 12.

COLTON HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Geo. H. Jantzen, Prin. Est. 1895. 11 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2511. Teachers a. 11; pupils a. 153.

Annual report not rec'd.

Devore.

DEVORE BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO Co. FREE LIBRARY, was established July 1, 1924.

Fawnskin Emergency School.

FAWNSKI'N EMERGENCY SCHOOL BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LI-BRARY, was established Sept. 29, 1924.

Fontana.

FONTANA BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Sce note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Highland.

HIGHLAND LIBRARY DISTRICT LIBRARY has been discontinued.

Holcomb Valley Emergency School.

HOLCOMB VALLEY EMERGENCY SCHOOL BRANCH. SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established Sept. 29, 1924.

Keenbrook School Dist.

KEENBROOK SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY. was discontinued during the quarter.

Lanfair School Dist.

LANFAIR SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Loma Linda.

LOMA LINDA BRANCH, SAN BERNAR-DINO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

OUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Lytle School Dist.

LYTLE SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued during the quarter.

Needles.

NEEDLES HIGH SCHOOL LIERARY AND BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LI-BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LI-BRANCH, Miss H. Strawser, Custodian. Est. Sept. 24, 1917. Open Mon. to Fri. 12.30 to 1.30 and 2.15 to 3.15 p.m. 11 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 939.

Annual report not rec'd.

SANTA FE LIBRARY. Mrs. J. L. Davis, Lib'n. Est. 1903, 1 employee. Open to railroad employees and their families daily 8.30 a.m. to 10 p.m. 56 mags. and 21 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1100. Employees a. 9. Annual report not rec'd.

SAN BERNARDINO CO .--- Continued.

Oak Glen.

OAK GLEN BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO Co. FREE LIBRARY, was discontinued Sept. 30, 1924.

Ontario.

ONTARIO [F B E E] PUBLIC LIBEARY. Miss K. A. Monroe, Lib'n. Est. a. 1885; as F. P. March, 1902. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$2640.47. Annual income 1923-24, \$8812.19 (from taxation \$6430.42, li-brary tax being 1.47 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$2381.77). Total payments \$7083.75. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$4368.91. 6 employees. Open daily ex-cept holidays: week days 2 to 9 p.m.; Sun. reading room only 2 to 5 p.m. Lo-cated in \$12,000 Carnegie bldg. 78 peri-odicals rec'd regularly; 6 newspapers; 72 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting ONTARIO [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 12,398. Added 781: purchase 710; gift 41; binding 30. Lost 8; discarded 411; rep'd 325; reb'd 140. Added 1103; can-Cardholders 4015. celled 482. Circulation 55.333: books 52,091; periodicals 3242.

April 24, 1924, the juvenile books were moved to the basement, which had been finished for that purpose. Mrs V. C. Beck is in charge of the juvenile room.

CHAFFEY HIGH SCHOOL AND JUNIOR COLLEGE LIBRARY. Merton E. Hill, Prin. Wilbur A. Fiske, Lib'n. Est. May 27, 1911. 3 employees. Open Mon. to Fri. 7.45 a.m. to 5 p.m. 160 periodicals rec'd regularly: 10 newspapers; 150 mags.

Total vols. a. 19,000. Teachers a. 68: pupils a. 1207.

Library cared for by endowment of \$110,000.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Friends of the Chaffey Library will be glad to know that the library is continuing its rapid growth. The library has a patronage in the high school, Junior College and surrounding territory of approximately two thousand people. It has now over nineteen thousand accessions and new books are continually being received. The library is acquiring many books of a higher grade since the establishment and successful operation of the Junior College. The library receives one hundred fifty magazines and ten newspapers. Thirteen hundred new books were cataloged during the summer and are now ready to be placed on the shelves. Other improvements incident to

Ontario-Continued.

a library have added much to the interest of the work.

W. A. FISKE, Lib'n.

Oro Grande.

ORO GRANDE BRANCH, SAN BERNAR-DINO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Patton.

*Southern California State Hos-PITAL LIBRARY. Dr John A. Reily, Med. Supt. K. M. Boyle, Lib'n. Est. 1893. Open Sat. 1 to 4 p.m. Located in ad-ministration bldg. For use of patients only. 6 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 850.

Annual report not rec'd.

Phelan.

PHELAN BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Pleasant View School Dist.

PLEASANT VIEW SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LI-BRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Redlands.

A. K. SMILEY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. A. K. SMILEY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Myrtle Danielson, Acting Lib'n. Est. Nov. 1893; as F. P. Feb. 22, 1894. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$11,326.73. Annual income 1923–24, \$17,857.42 (from taxa-tion \$16,062.26; from other sources \$1795.16). Total payments \$20,767.82. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$8416.33. 11 em-ployees. Open daily: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. and holidays 2 to 6 p.m. Located in \$55,000 bldg. 9 deposit sta-tions tions.

Total books, etc. 64,250 : books 40,835 ; pamphlets 23,415, Added 5134; books 3264 (purchase 2200, gift 885, binding 161, reported lost 18); pamphlets 1870. Withdrawn 1311: books 1070 lost and discarded; pamphlets 241. Books rep'd 3522. Cardholders 6528. Added 2590 :cancelled 1798. Circulation 125.323.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Gwendolyn M. Tinker, Librarian, resigned August 30, to be married to Mr Jesse L. Smith. She is now living at 2610 Dwight Way, Berkeley. Miss Mary E. Pew, Children's Librarian, resigned chase 2546; gift or exchange 125; bind-

SAN BERNARDINO CO .--- Continued.

Redlands-Continued.

Sept. 6, to accept the position as Librarian of the Redlands High School Library.

Miss Myrtle Danielson is the Acting Librarian. Miss Catherine Hockridge, graduate of the Riverside Service School, Summer Course '24, entered the library September 1, as Reference Librarian. Mrs Arthur N. Nelson entered the library September 15, as assistant in the Loan Department. Miss Frances Gay is the Acting Children's Librarian. Miss Zora Lang began the apprentice course September 8.

MYRTLE DANIELSON, Acting Lib'n.

Mr W. E. Howard of West Highland ave, donated a check for \$100 to be added to the endowment fund of the library.--Redlands Facts, S 5

REDLANDS HIGH SCHOOL LIERARY AND DEPOSIT STATION, A. K. SMILEY PUBLIC LIBRARY. A. Haven Smith, Prin. Mary E. Pew, Lib'n. Est. 1904. Open Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 40 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Added 332: pur-Total vols. 6493. chase 162; gift 149; binding 21. Teachers 35; pupils 681.

UNIVERSITY OF REDLANDS LIBRARY AND DEPOSIT STATION, A. K. SMILEY PUBLIC LIBRARY. Victor L. Duke, Pres. Eleanor A. Symmes, Lib'n. Inc. 1907. Open Sept. 1909. 2 employees. Open every day except Sun. and holidays 7.30 a.m. to 4.40 p.m. Located in the ad-ministration bldg., Univ, of Redlands. 78 mage and 2 parameter media 78 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 14,321. Added 2078; purchase 1034; gift 525; binding 519. Teachers 29; pupils 409.

San Bernardino.

SAN BERNARDINO FREE PUBLIC LI-\$ SAN BEENARDING FREE FORM Lib'n. BRARY. Miss May Coddington, Lib'n. Est, as F. P. 1891. Bal. July 1, 1923, 2011 10 Annual income 1923-24, \$6941.19. Annual income 1923-24, \$16,338.59 (from taxation \$14,881.51; from other sources \$1457.08). Total payments \$16,722.07 Pol. Let. payments \$16,722.07. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$6557.71. 9 employees. Open daily 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in \$37,000 lia.m. to 9 p.m. Located in \$51,000 h-brary bldg., partly gift of Carnegie. 146 periodicals (50 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 18 newspapers; 128 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 26,170. Added 2742: pur-

[Oct., 1924

SAN BERNARDINO CO.—Continued.

San Bernardino-Continued.

ing 71. Lost 117; discarded 680; rep'd 4357; reb'd 1496. Cardholders 8313. Added 2964: cancelled 270. Circulation 152,074: books 146,292; periodicals 5782.

SAN BERNARDINO CO. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under San Bernardino Co.

SAN BERNARDINO POLYTECHNIC HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. K. L. Stockton; Prin. Alvan W. Clark, Lib'n. 1 employee. Est. 1891. Open school days S a.m. to 4.30 p.m. 56 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 4600. Added 240: purchase 238; binding 2. Teachers 55: pupils 1085.

Skyland.

SKYLAND BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Trona.

TRONA BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Bernardino Co. Free Library.

Upland.

UPLAND [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs F. H. Manker, Lib'n, Est. May 3, 1909; as F. P. May 23, 1913; branch est. May 15, 1914. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$196.S3. Annual income 1923-24, \$4102.32 (from taxation \$3674.43, library tax being 2 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$427.S9). Total payments \$3928.37. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$370.78. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 1 to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$14,000 Carnegie bldg. 54 periodicals rec'd regularly: 3 newspapers; 51 mags. UPLAND [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND rec'd regularly: 3 newspapers; 51 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting on call.

Total books, etc. 6566: books 6408; maps 13; prints 138; stereographs 7. Books added 862: purchase 602; gift or exchange 212; binding 48. Lost and discarded 311; rep'd 880; reb'd 194. Cardholders 2115. Added 754; cancelled 80. Circulation 44,956: books 39,500; periodicals 5353; other material 103. Vols. loaned to other libs. 1.

Victorville.

VICTOR VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL

SAN BERNARDING CO.—Continued

Victorville-Continued.

1915. Branch est. Nov. 3, 1920. Open 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. 14 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2453. Teachers 6: pupils 72.

SAN DIEGO COUNTY.

(Fifth class.)

County seat, San Diego.

Area, 4377 sq. mi. Pop. 112,248.

Assessed valuation \$105,376,789 (taxable for county \$88,549,938).

SAN DIEGO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN DIEGO Miss Eleanor Hitt, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, April 5, 1912; work started Feb. 15, 1913. In-cludes entire county for tax and service except Coronado, Escondido, National City, Oceanside and San Diego. Chula Vista joined under Sec. 3. Co. Teachers' Library joined County Free Library. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$5669.63. Annual income 1923-24, \$32,583.48 (from taxation \$24,-286.61, library tax being 1.2 m. on the dollar; from onbod distribution dollar; from school districts having joined \$5485; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$295; from other sources \$2516.87). Total payments \$31,919.75. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$6333.36. 137 employees; 8 in office: 129 in branches. Open daily ex-cept Sun, and holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Union bldg., 3d and Broadway. Total In Union bidg., 3d and Broadway. Fotal branches 142, as follows: community 63-Alpine (r. r.), Alpine Sanatorium, Bar-rett, Bonita, Bonsall, Bostonia, Boule-vard, Campo, Cardiff, Carlsbad, Chula Vista (r. r.), Del Mar, De Luz, Descanso, Dulzura, East San Diego (r. r.), El Caico (r. r.), Encipites Econdido Fall-Cajon (r. r.), Encinitas, Escondido, Fall-brook (r. r.), Foster, Grossmont, Guatay, Highland Valley, Hipass, Imperial Beach (r. r.), Jacumba, Jamacha, Jamul, Japa-Highland Valley, Hipass, Imperial Beach (r. r.), Jacumba, Jamacha, Jamul, Japa-tul, Julian, Laguna Mountain, Lakeside (r. r.), La Mesa (r. r.), La Mesa Heights, Lemon Grove (r. r.), Lilac, Mesa Grande, Normal Heights (r. r.), Oak Grove, Otay, Palm City, Palomar Mountain, Potrero, Poway, Ramona (r. r.), Rancho Santa Fe, Richland, Home Demonstration Agent's Office, County Farm Adviser, County Hospital, County Jail, County Probation Office and Main Office in San Diego, San Marcos, San Pasqual, Santee, San Ysidro (r. r.), Sweetwater, Valley Center, Vista, Witch Creek, Wynola; active school districts that have joined 103 (78 school branches) --Aliso, Alison-Spring Valley, Alpine, Alta, Anahauc, Ballena, Banner, Bear Valley, Bonsall Union (incl. Monserrate, Mt. Fairview and River), Cajon Valley Union (incl. El Cajon, Hillsdale, Ja-macha and Meridian), Campo, Cardiff, Carlsbad Union (incl. Carlsbad and LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN BERNARDINO CO. FREE LIBRARY. J. H. Francis, Prin. Miss Evelyn Farley, Custodian. Est. Carlsbad Union (incl. Carlsbad and

SAN DIEGO CO .-- Continued.

South Oceanside), Chula Vista Union (incl. Bonita, Chula Vista and Sunnyside), Cla-Mar, Clover Flats, Cottonwood, Dehesa, Del Mar, De Luz, Descanso, Dulzura, Earle, El Capitan, El Monte, Encinitas, Fallbrook, F o s t e r, Grantville, Green Valley, Hipass, Honey Springs, J a c u m b a, Jamul, Japatul, Julian, Julian Union High, L ag u n a, Lakeside, Lakeview, La Mesa Heights, Las Flores, Lemon Grove, Libby, Lilac, Mesa Grande, Miramar, Monument, Normal Heights, Oakdale, Oceanview, Olivenhain, O r a ng e G l e n, Otay, Pauma, Pomerado Union (incl. Bernardo, Merton and Poway), Potrero, Ramona Union (incl. Ramona and Santa Maria), Richland, Rincon, San Dieguito, San Felipe, San Luis Rey, San Marcos, San Onofre, San Pasqual Valley Union (incl. East San Pasqual valley Union (incl. East San Pasqual and San Pasqual), Santa Ysabel, Santee, San Ysidro, Soledad, South Bay U n i on (incl. Highland, Oneonta, and South San Diego), Spencer Valley, Spring Hill, Tecate, Tenaja, Twin Oaks, Vallecitos, Valley Center Union (incl. Buena, Delpy and Vista), Warner, West Fallbrook Union (incl. More and West Fallbrook Union (incl. More and West Fallbrook Union (incl. for and West Fallbrook Union (incl. for e'd regularly, Distributed : 11 to office; 556 to branches.

Total books, etc. 88,961: books 79,832; pamphlets 4700; maps 245; prints 2713; music records 447; stereographs 808; charts 181; globes 35. Added 12,095: books 10,577 (purchase 9633, gift or exchange 944); pamphlets 358; maps 37; prints 1000; music records 120; Withdrawn 5441: books 4042 globes 3. lost and discarded; pamphlets 1281; maps 1; music records 108; charts 9. Books rep'd 12,658; reb'd 307. Cardholders 11,525: headquarters 299; branches 11,226. Added 2233; cancelled 1639, Circulation 258,346 (from headquarters 1618, from branches 256,728); books 231,912; periodicals 26,434. Vols. loaned to other libs. 98; borrowed from other libs. 378 (304 from State Library). 2080 shipments (58,088 items: 53,438 books; 20 periodicals; 4630 other material) were sent to branches, Of the above 18,254 were supplementary books. In addition 7511 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 34,659 special requests.

During the year 106 visits were made to 49 branches. 757 visits were made to

SAN DIEGO CO .-- Continued.

headquarters by 82 teachers and custodians. 2 branches were established; 4 branches were discontinued (incl. El Monte suspended).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The new library building at San Ysidro is nearing completion. It is the gift of Frank and Blanche Beyer and will cost about \$10,000. It will bear the distinction of being the only public library in the country which has a smoking room for men, as Mr Beyer insisted that most men wish to smoke while they read.

The tax rate for 1924–25 is 1.2 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$19,500. ELEANOR HITT, Lib'n.

SAN DIEGO CO. LAW LIBEARY, SAN DIEGO. J. V. Hicks, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 2, 1892. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. 1 employee. Open to public daily except Sundays and holidays, 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse, D st. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues. at 9 a.m. 25 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 6285.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN DIEGO CO. TEACHERS' LIBBARY, SAN DIEGO. Ada York, Co. Supt. Est. 1889; joined San Diego Co. Free Library March 3, 1915. Income 1923–24, \$283, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$131.78.

Total vols. 2660. Teachers employed 951: elem. 622; high 329. Active school districts: elem. 107 (incl. 1 jt.); high 10 (13 high schools): city 1; district 1; union 8. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$16,832; high \$32,939. Vols. in schools: elem. 108,480; high 26,014.

Bostonia (No exp. office).

BOSTONIA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Open to students during school hours.

Total vols. a. 675. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 90.

Annual report not rec'd.

Chula Vista (No exp. office).

CIULA VISTA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN DIEGO CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Mrs Ida R. Collar, Lib'n. Est. March 1, 1912; as F. P. Nov. 1, 1912; branch est. June 5, 1913. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1097.68. Annual income 1923– 24, \$5200.27 (from taxation \$3544.06, library tax being 1.4 m. on the dollar;

SAN DIEGO CO .--- Continued.

Chula Vista—Continued.

from other sources \$1656.21). Total payments \$4298.13. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1999.82. 4 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 76 periodicals (60 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 12 newspapers; 64 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total books, etc. 5617: books 4496; pamphlets 1115; maps 6. Added 520: books 499 (purchase 393, gift 106); pamphlets 21. Books lost 3; discarded 45; rep'd 211. Cardholders 1299. Added 553; cancelled 163. Circulation 13,372: books 12,953; periodicals 419.

Coronado.

CORONADO BEACH [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Miss Gabrielle Morton, Lib'n. Est. a. 1890; as F. P. March, 1895. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$2816.51. Annual income 1923-24. \$5096.75 (from taxation \$4789.82. library tax being 9 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$306.93). Total payments \$5159.46. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2753.80. 3 employees. Open daily except holidays 9 a.m. to'9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 bldg. 77 periodicals rec'd regularly: 9 newspapers; 68 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting second Fri.

Total books, etc. 9488: books 9474; maps 14. Added 1002: books 1000 (purchase 563, gift or exchange 196, binding 93, transferred rent collection 148); maps 2. Books lost 10; discarded 521; rep'd 539; reb'd 261. Cardholders 3108. Added 922; cancelled 524. Circulation 56,844: books 51,269; periodicals 5575.

CORONADO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. J. L. Cutler, Prin. Est. 1913. 5 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 350. Added 12 by purchase. Teachers 11; pupils 200.

Escondido.

§ESCONDIDO [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Mary Adams, Lib'n. Est. 1890; as F. P. 1898. Annual income 1923-24, \$2925.72 (from taxation \$2782.87, library tax being 15 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$142.85). Total payments \$2692.55. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$233.17. 1 employee. Open daily except holidays 12 m. to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$7500 Carnegie bldg. 41 periodicals rec'd regularly: 7 newspapers; 34 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Thurs.

Total vols. 5185. Added 587: purchase 350; gift or exchange 111; binding maps 3. Withdrawn 110: books 60;

SAN DIEGO CO .-- Continued.

Escondido-Continued.

126. Cardholders 634. Added 42; cancelled 38. Circulation 18,617.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mr Everett Cooper, librarian for fourteen years of Escondido Public Library, resigned in September, as he has a school bus contract. Miss Mary Adams is the new librarian.

ESCONDIDO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. M. W. Perry, Prin. Est. 1895. 3 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1935. Added 47 by purchase. Teachers 11; pupils 369.

Fallbrook.

FALLBROOK UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. J. E. Potter, Prin. Est. 1892. 8 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 850. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 50.

Annual report not rec'd.

Grossmont.

GROSSMONT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. C. N. Vance, Prin. Est. August, 1920. 2 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 619. Teachers a. 11; pupils a. 280.

Annual report not rec'd.

Julian (No exp. office).

JULIAN UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN DIEGO CO. FREE LI-BRARY. B. J. Clearbrook, Prin. Est. 1889, 7 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1720. Teachers a. 3; pupils a. 25.

Annual report not rec'd.

National City.

NATIONAL CITY FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Susie Moore, Lib'n. Est. a. Sept. 1895; as F. P. July, 1896. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$725.71. Annual income 1923–24, \$2124.43 (from taxation \$1961.19, library tax being 8 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$163.24). Total p a y m en ts \$1997.75. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$852.39. 3 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 2 to 5 and 6 to 8.30 p.m.; Sun. 3 to 5 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 49 periodicals ree'd regularly: 4 newspapers; 45 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total books, etc. 9460: books 7795; pamphlets 715; maps 50; prints 900. Added 361: books 346 (purchase 335, gift or exchange 11); pamphlets 12; maps 3. Withdrawn 110: books 60;

SAN DIEGO CO .- Continued.

National City-Continued.

pamphlets 50. Books rep'd 926. Cardholders 1583. Circulation 35,208: books 28,009; periodicals 7199. Vols. loaned to other libs. 58; borrowed from other libs. 15.

SWEETWATER UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BEARY. Guy Hudgins, Prin. Grace I. Dick, Lib'n. Est. 1895; branch est. May 2, 1918. Open Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 3.30 p.m. 54 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 10,000. Teachers 25; pupils 500.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Twelve students enrolled in the library science class. These act as assistants to the librarian at least one period each day. One half credit is given for each period. Each student has for his problem at least one poster and one scrap book.

GRACE I. DICK, Lib'n.

Oceanside.

OCEANSIDE [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. II. D. Brodie, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Dec. 13, 1904. Open to public daily except Sun. and holidays 8 a.m. to 12 m., 1 to 5 p.m. Library trustees monthly meeting first Thurs.

Total vols. a. 7366.

Annual report not rec'd.

OCEANSIDE-CARLSBAD UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Geo. A. Dickson, Prin. Est. 1906. 10 mags. and 1 newspaper ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1000. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 133.

Annual report not rec'd.

Ramona (No exp. office).

RAMONA FUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN DIEGO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs H. A. Miles, Lib'n. Est. 1893; branch est. May 26, 1913. Income from rent of offices, entertainments, etc., in bldg. given to Ransona for library purposes, valued at \$12,000. 1 room only is used for library. Hall is controlled by a corporation of 5 trustees. 1 employee. Open to public daily 1 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. 12 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1820. Cardholders a. 56. Annual report not rec'd.

RAMONA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, John H. Wilson, Prin. Est. 1895; branch est. March 15, 1917. 11 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 700. Teachers a 5; pupils a. 47.

Annual report not rec'd.

9-34984

SAN DIEGO CO .--- Continued.

San Diego.

[‡]§SAN DIEGO [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARX. Mrs H. P. Davison, Lib'n Emeritus. Miss Althea H. Warren, Lib'n. Est, as F. P. 1882. Bal. Jan. 1, 1923, \$3759.23. Annual income 1923, \$80,094.17 (from taxation \$72,500, library tax being 7.25 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$7594.17). Total payments \$79,522.19. Bal. Jan. 1, 1924, \$4331.21. 58 employees (22 part-time). Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 8 p.m. Located in \$60,000 Carnegie bldg. 38 branches of which 10 have reading rooms. 387 periodicals (99 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 70 newspapers; 317 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting second Fri.

T ot al books, etc. 148,040: books 104,370; pamphlets 20,694; seriels 10,-208; maps 898; prints 9322; stereographs 2547; globes 1. Added 16,447: books 12,266 (purchase 11,504, gift 327, binding 121, exchange or transfer 314); pamphlets 2547; serials 302; maps 65; prints 1092; stereographs 175. Withdrawn 6164: books 4290 discarded; pamphlets 1874. Books rep'd 5862; reb'd 4448. Cardholders 52,240. Added 8454; cancelled 634. Circulation 919,104 (from main library 464,468, from branches 454,636): books 842,361; periodicals 57,773; other material 18,970.

North Park Branch was opened in June, 1923, in room provided by Plymouth Church. This is to serve the northeast section of the city.

DIRECTORY LIBRARY. William Tomkins, Executive Sec. Merchants Association of San Diego, in charge. Est. a. 1913. Maintained by Merchants Association and San Diego Directory Publishing Co. Open to public daily. Located cor. Second and Broadway.

Total vols. a. 300 city directories from the principal cities in United States.

The old issues of directories are donated to the San Diego Chamber of Commerce for the benefit of the entire public.

Annual report not rec'd.

FRANCIS W. PARKER SCHOOL OF SAN DIEGO LIBRARY. Mrs Ethel Dummer Mintzer, Prin. Est. Sept. 1, 1914. Located 4201 Randolph st. 7 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 5100. Teachers a. 18; pupils a. 125.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN DIEGO CO .-- Continued.

San Diego-Continued.

LA JOLLA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION LI-IRRARY AND BRANCH OF SAN DIEGO P. L. Miss Irene Eckis. Lib'n. Est. 1899; as branch, Feb. 1, 1910. Income received from donations. 3 employees. Open daily: reading room and reference room, 8 a.m. to 9 p.m.; for exchange of books 10 to 11 a.m. and 2.30 to 5.30 p.m. and Wed. and Sat. evening 7 to 8. Located in \$40,000 library bldg. Library trustees monthly meeting upon call. 90 mags. and 6 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 8417. Added 1081: purchase 440; gift 334; binding 38; deposit 269. Discarded 75. Cardholders a, 1477.

ROOSEVELT JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Myrtie M. Imhoff, Lib'n.

No further information rec'd.

SAN DIEGO. Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under San Diego Co.

SAN DIEGO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Glenn O. Perkins, Prin. Ada M. Jones, Lib'n. Est, 1886. 2 employees. Located at 14th and Ash sts. 60 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 11,369. Teachers a. 107; pupils a. 2128.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN DIEGO MEDICAL LIBRARY ASSOCIA-TION LIBRARY. R. J. Pickard, M.D., Pres. C. O. Tanner, M.D., Sec. Mrs Mildred S. Farrow, Lib'n. Est. March 1, 1915. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 10 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 10 a.m. to 12 m. to all interested in medical and allied sciences. Located suite 1230 First National Bank bldg. A. 55 periodicals rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 4086. Added 86: purchase 28; gift or exchange 15; binding 43.

SAN DIEGO SCIENTIFIC LIBRARY. Miss Alice Barlow, Lib'n. Est. July 14, 1923. Located in California bldg., Balboa Park.

Total vols. a. 60,000.

Annual report not rec'd.

SCRIPPS INSTITUTION FOR BIOLOGICAL RESEARCH OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALI-FORNIA, LIBRARY OF. Tillie Genter, Lib'n. Est. 1905. 1 employee. For use of Biological Station primarily, but open to public for reference week days 8 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m. Located at La Jolla. 80 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc. a. 19,660: books lation 2,013,631: from main 9566; pamphlets 10,094. Added 1960: 600,036; from branches 1,413,595.

SAN DIEGO CO .--- Continued.

San Diego-Continued.

books 587 (purchase 328, gift or exchange 90, binding 169); pamphlets 1373.

STATE TEACHERS COLLEGE LIBRARY. Edward L. Hardy, Prin. Mrs Charlotte G. Robinson and Miss W. F. Woods, Lib'ns. Mrs Myra B. Lyons, Ass't Lib'n. Est. Nov. 1898. Open school days 7.30 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. 85 mags, and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 20,936. Teachers a 42; pupils a. 735.

Annual report not rec'd.

San Ysidro.

SAN YSIDRO BRANCH, SAN DIEGO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Diego Co. Free Library.

SAN FRANCISCO.

(Second class.)

City and county coterminous.

Area, 43 sq. mi. Pop. 506,676.

Assessed valuation \$989,217,070 (taxable for county \$683,667,338).

[‡]§[FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO. Robert Rea, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. 1878. Destroyed (a. 166,344 vols.) April, 1906. Re-est, 1906. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$4800.70. Annual income 1923–24. \$255,527.50 (from taxation \$237,237.90; from other sources \$18,289.60). Total payments \$256,265.83. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$4062.37. 68 employees. Open daily except legal holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 1.30 to 5 p.m. Owns bldgs.: main library valued at \$1,150,000 (partly Carnegie gift). McCreery branch \$50,000. Park branch \$34,000, and the following Carnegie branch bldgs.: Golden Gate Valley branch \$44,000, Richmond branch \$50,000. Mission branch \$49,000, Noe Valley branch \$37,000, Sunset branch \$44,000, North Beach branch \$67,000 and Presidio branch \$85,000. Main building located in Civic Center. 9 branches with reading rooms; 17 deposit stations. 470 periodicals rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting second Tues.

Total vols. 323,408. Added 45,539. Withdrawn 23,402. Cardholders 93,421: main library 36,701; branches 56,720. Added 30,691; cancelled 26,184. Circulation 2,013,631: from main library 600,036; from branches 1,413,595.

*SAN FRANCISCO CO. MEDICAL SOCIETY LIBRARY. René Bine, Sec. Dr Leo Eloesser, Lib'n. Est. 1891. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 5000 vols.). Re-est. June, 1908. 1 employee. Open to physicians daily except Sun. and holidays 10 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. Located at 925 Hyde st.

No further information rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO CO. TEACHERS' LI-BRARY. Joseph Marr Gwinn, City and Co. Supt. Income 1923–24, \$243, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates, Amt. paid for books \$148.79,

Total vols. 895. Teachers employed 2157: elem. 1644; high 513. Active school districts: elem. 1; high 1 (9 high schools); city 1. Total expended for b o o k s for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$26,799: high \$19,666. Vols. in schools: elem. 199,153; high 109,242.

§SAN FRANCISCO LAW LIBRARY. James H. Deering, Lib'n. Est. 1865. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 45,000 vols.). Re-est. immediately. Annual income rec'd from appropriations by city, life membership fees of \$100, dues of \$15 a year and fees for suits filed. 5 employees. Open daily : week days 9 a.m. to 10.45 p.m.; Sun. 10.30 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. During court vacation library closes at 6 p.m. Located at 436 City Hall. Library trustees annual meeting last Sat. in March.

Total vols. a. 52,407. Added 2451.

ASTRONOMICAL SOCIETY OF THE PA-CIFIC LIBRARY. Mr W. S. Adams, Pres. J. D. Galloway, Sec.-Treas. Est. 1889. 109 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc. 9490. Added 104.

Deposited with Sutro Branch, California State Library.

*B'NAI B'RITH LIBRARY. I. J. Aschheim, Sec. Est. 1876. Destroyed (over 12,000 vols.) April. 1906. Re-est. Annual amt. spent for library a. \$1200. Open to members only daily 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located at 149 Eddy st. Annual meeting Feb. 20.

Total vols. a, 1500.

The books consist principally of Hebrew and German Jewish literature, and are not for circulation, but the room is open to anyone interested in these studies.

Annual report not rec'd.

BANK OF ITALY LIBRARY. Miss K. Dorothy Ferguson, Lib'n. Est. Dec. 1, 1922. 3 employees, S7 branches: Located in head office Bank of Italy, Market and Powell. 236 periodicals rec'd regularly.

SAN FRANCISCO—Continued.

Vols. added 124. Newspapers are clipped and circulated daily. Approximately 1061 clippings are circulated monthly, 228 mags. and 46 books.

One graduate from the University of California Library School received one month's practice work in the library.

Through the cooperation of the State Library and County Library system, the 87 branches of the Bank of Italy were provided with books on banking and allied subjects.

*BOHEMIAN CLUB LIBRARY. Charles G. Yale, Lib'n. Est. 1872. Destroyed (a. 5000 vols.) April, 1906. Re-est. A private library for use of members. No books allowed to circulate. Located at Post and Taylor sts. Expended for periodicals \$1560 per year.

Total vols. a. 6260.

Annual report not rec'd.

BOYS' AND GIRLS' AID SOCIETY LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC LIBRARY. Geo. C. Turner, Supt. Sophie Louder, Matron and Lib'n. Est. 1874. Branch est. Oct. 1, 1919. Open evenings. Located at 460 Baker st. 15 mags. and 6 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 700. Teachers a. 5; pupils a. 150.

Annual report not rec'd.

§BUILDERS' EXCHANGE. James A. Wilson, Sec. Not a library, but has on file the official gazette of the U. S. patent office. Located 180-188 Jessie st.

CALIFORNIA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE LI-BRARY. Dr Joseph Grinnell, Lib'n. Est. May 16, 1853. Destroyed (a. 12,300 vols.) April, 1906. Re-est. immediately. Open every week day from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in new academy bldg. in Golden Gate Park. 50 periodicals ree'd regularly. Annual meeting of academy third Wed. in Feb.

Total vols. a. 15,000. Members a. 500.

Annual report not rec'd.

CALIFORNIA CAMERA CLUB LIBRARY. Edward G. Eisen, D.D.S., Pres. F. H. Horn, Lib'n, Est. 1896. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 600 vols.). Re-est. Supported by club. Members have keys to club rooms. Located at \$33 Market st. 15 photographic mags. and 2 newspapers ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 200.

Annual report not rec'd.

CALIFORNIA DEVELOPMENT BOARD LI-BRARY. R. N. Lynch, Vice-Pres. Mrs E. M. Van Frank, Sec. Est. 1887. On

Jan. 1, 1910, the California Promotion Committee, the State Board of Trade and the Manufacturers' and Producers' Association were merged and the California Development Board organized. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located second floor Ferry bldg. 280 periodicals rec'd regularly: 200 newspapers; 80 mags.

Total vols. a. 8208.

Annual report not rec'd.

CALIFORNIA GENEALOGICAL SOCIETY LIBRARY. Dr C. F. Griffin, Pres. Miss Sarah Louise Kimball, Sec. Mr Henry Byron Phillips, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 12. 1898. 9 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting first Sat.

Total books, etc. 2159. Added 57.

Each member gives or loans to the Society Library one volume each year.

Deposited with Sutro Branch, California State Library.

§ CALIFORNIA SCHOOL OF MECHANICAL ARTS AND WILMERDING SCHOOL OF IN-DUSTRIAL ARTS LIBRARY. Geo. A. Merrill, Prin. Est. Jan. 1895. 1 employee. Open daily except Sat, and Sun. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at 16th and Utah sts. 35 mags. ree'd regularly.

Total vols. 3838. Added 293 by purchase. Teachers 23; pupils 431,

The California School of Mechanical Arts and Wilmerding School of Industrial Arts have combined.

*CALIFORNIA SOCIETY SONS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION LIBRARY. Major Leon French, Registrar. Est. 1875. For use of members only. 2 periodicals rec'd regularly. Annual meeting April 19.

Total vols. 355. Members a. 422.

Deposited with Sutro Branch, California State Library.

CHINESE READING SOCIETY READING ROOM. Wong Kin, Sec. Est. July, 1908. Income from monthly subscription of 50 cents a member. A. 50 members. Open daily. Rents room in Kong Ha Tong bldg., 145 Waverly place, near Washington st., \$30 per mo. One corner of room is occupied, rent free, by barber, who looks after reading room. 30 Chinese newspapers rec'd regularly, 10 from Chinese consul.

No books. About 95 readers patronize reading room.

Annual report not rec'd.

CHURCH DIVINITY SCHOOL OF THE PACIFIC LIBRARY. Rt Rev Wm. F. Nichols, D.D., Prin. Est. 1893. For use of students in institution. Located 1051 Taylor st.

SAN FRANCISCO-Continued.

Total vols. a. 7400. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 11.

Annual report not rec'd.

COMMONWEALTH CLUB OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARY. Wm. H. Waste, Pres. Dr Morton R. Gibbons, Sec. Miss I. O. Drewitz, Lib'n. Est. 1907. Income from club fund dues \$3 per quarter. Devoted to data on civic problems, chiefly those of California. Open to club members and others week days: Mon, to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 1 p.m. Located 345 Sutter st. Annual meeting in Dec.

Total books, etc. 14,513: books 3581; pamphlets 9345; other material 1587. Added 1615: books 211; pamphlets 1193; other material 211. Withdrawn 197: books 9; pamphlets 169; other material 19.

DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, 1ST DIST. No library. Use Supreme Court Library.

DONAHUE LIBRARY (Catholic Library of San Francisco). Reading room open free to public week days: Mon. to Fri. 12 m. to 5.30 and 7.30 to 9 p.m.; Sat. 11 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. Borrowing privileges \$1 per year. Located in Y. M. I. bldg., 50 Oak st.

*FEDERAL RESERVE BANK LIBRARY. Miss Lois Howe, Lib'n. Est. 1918. Open 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in filing dept. For employees only. 35 mags. and 15 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 732.

Annual report not rec'd.

FIRE UNDERWRITERS ASSOCIATION OF THE PACIFIC, LIBRARY OF THE, Mrs J. P. Moore, Lib'n. Est. 1878. Open to public for reference; members of Association only can borrow books. Located at 912 Merchants Exchange bldg., 465 California st. The library is on insurance subjects, mostly fire insurance.

Total books and pamphlets a. 5000.

The library is now being recataloged. It is the largest of its kind in the West.

*FIRST HUNGARIAN SOCIETY OF SAN FRANCISCO LIBRARY. Max Roth, in charge. Est. 1879. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 2200 vols.). Supnorted by the society. Dues \$1 per mo. Open to members only daily. Located in California Hall, Polk and Turk Sts.

Total vols. a. 400. Members a. 75.

GENERAL ELECTRIC OFFICE LIBRARY. Miss Minnie A. Lewis, Lib'n. Maintained for use and benefit of sales and engineering organizations of Co. Information contained in library chiefly data and magazine clippings on all of products of Co. Vols., too, dealing with

salesmanship, business letter writing, steam and water power engineering, illumination data. 30 technical and business mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc. a. 675.

Annual report not rec'd.

GIRLS' HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, Dr A. W. Scott, Prin. Est, Jan 1860. Located Geary and Scott sts. 12 mags. rec d regularly.

Total vols. a. 2575, Teachers a. 45; pupils a. 1320.

Annual report not rec'd.

HAMLIN SCHOOL LIBRARY (SARAH D. HAMLIN SCHOOL). Kate S. Hamlin, Prin. Est. 1890. Located in school bldg., 2234 Pacific ave.

Vols. added a. 1000. Teachers 16; pupils 160.

THE HENRY PIERCE LIBRARY. Miss Ruth B, Turner, in charge. Est. 1903. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 400 vols.). Re-est. immediately. Annual income rec'd from interest on bequest. 1 employee. For use of ministers and laymen of Unitarian churches of Pacific coast, the carriage of books being paid one way by the trustees of the fund. Open daily except Sun, and holidays and all of month of July: Mon. to Fri. 10 a.m. to 12 and J to 5 p.m.; Sat. 10 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Unitarian church at Geary and Franklin sts.

Total vols. a. 556.

Annual report not rec'd,

HIGH SCHOOL OF COMMERCE LIBRARY. Chas. H. Murphy, Prin. Est. July 1900. Located at Van Ness ave. and Hayes st. 2 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1144. Teachers 63; pupils a. 1580.

HOOPER FOUNDATION LIBRARY. Branch of University of California library.

No further information rec'd.

HUMBOLDT EVENING HIGH SCHOOL uses Mission high school library. Located 18th and Dolores sts.

Annual report not rec'd.

IMMACULATE CONCEPTION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Located at 1212 Guerrero st.

No further information rec'd.

IRISH HISTORICAL AND LITERARY SO-CIETY OF SAN FRANCISCO LIBRARY. Frank S. Drady, Lib'n., 761 Arguello blvd. Est. Jan. 1, 1910.

Total vols, not reported. Members a, 125.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO—Continued.

JACK LONDON MEMORIAL INSTITUTE LIBRARY.

See People's Institute Library.

JAMES HUGH WISE LIBRARY has been discontinued.

JEWISH LIBRARY. H. Koblik, Sec. S. Rosoff, Lib'n. Est, April 17, 1918. Conducted by Workmen's Circle Branch 114. 6 periodicals rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 1 mag.

Total vols. a. 430.

Annual report not rec'd.

JOHN HAYS HAMMOND PUBLIC MIN-ING LIBRARY. Charles Gregory Yale, Trustee. Est. 1906. Open to public daily except Sun. and holidays for reference only: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in State Mining Bureau, Ferry bldg.

Total vols. a. 268.

LANE MEDICAL LIBRARY OF STANFORD UNIVERSITY. Miss Louise Ophüls, Lib'n. Est. 1895. S employees. Open to public for reference week days: Mon. to Fri. S.45 a.m. to 5.30 and 7.30 to 9.30 p.m.; Sat. 8.45 a.m. to 5 pm. Located in Lane Medical Library bldg., valued at \$125,000, 50r. Sacramento and Webster sts. 500 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 57,600.

LETTERMAN GENERAL HOSPITAL LI-BRARY. Mrs Inez G. McConnell, Lib'n.

LEVI COOPER LANE LIBRARY OF MEDI-CINE AND SURGERY.

See Lane Medical Library of Stanford University.

LOWELL HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. F. H. Clark, Prin. Est. 1864. Located 'Hayes and Masonic ave. 4 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers a. 37; pupils a. 1260.

Annual report not rec'd.

*MARKET STREET RAILWAY CO. LAW LIBRARY. Clifford A. Smith, Lib'n. Destroyed Apr. 1906. Re-est. immediately. For use of company's attorneys only. Open week days 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. Located in Holbrook bldg., 56 Sutter st. 25 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 5000. Added 150.

This was formerly listed as United Railroads of San Francisco Library.

[‡]§MECHANICS' MERCANTILE LIBRARY. Francis B. Graves, Lib'n. Est. 1854. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 200,000 vols.). Re-est. Annual income 1922–23, \$137,911.96. 12 employees. Open daily: week days 9 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sun. and holidays 11 a.m. to 5 p.m. Owns bldg.

valued at \$340,000, 57 Post st. Library trustees monthly meetings first and third Tuesday evenings.

Total vols. a. 87,855. Cardholders a. 4974.

Annual report not rec'd.

*MERCANTILE TRUST CO. LIBRARY. Annette Windele, Lib'n. Est. Aug. 1920. 1 employee. Open week days for officers, employees and customers of the bank 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at 464 California st. 25 mags. and 13 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1000.

Annual report not rec'd.

MILLS BUILDING LAW LIBRARY. Southall R. Pfund, Lib'n. Maintained by the Mills bldg., but open for the use of public officials week days 9 a.m. to 6 and 7.30 to 10 p.m.

Total vols. a. 10.000.

Annual report not rec'd.

MISSION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, Wm. J. Drew, Prin. Est. 1898, Located 18th and Dolores sts. 5 mags, and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 747. Teachers a. 28; pupils a. 640.

Annual report not rec'd.

*NATIVE SONS' LIBRARY AND READING ROOM. Edward Tietjen, Sec. J. C. Clement, Lib'n. Est. June, 1885. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 500 vols.). Reest. Income from N. S. G. W. parlors in San Francisco. 2 employees. Open to members only all the time. Located 414 Mason st. 38 mags. and 8 newspapers rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting third Fri.

Total vols. a. 1154. Members a. 5750. Annual report not rec'd.

NORTH BEACH EVENING HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, Est. 1912, Located 1329 Jackson st. 1 mag, and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 165. Teachers a. 1; pupils a. 42.

Annual report not rec'd.

*PACIFIC COAST GAS ASSOCIATION LI-BRARY. Henry Bostwick, Sec. Clifford Johnstone, Lib'n. Est. 1893. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at \$12 Howard st. 4 mags. and 3 transactions rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc. 2070: books 1418; pamphlets 652. Added 78: books 12 (purchase 9, gift or exchange 3); pamphlets 66.

SAN FRANCISCO—Continued.

*PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY LAW LJBRARY, Paul E. Sloane, Lib'n. Est. 1901. 2 employees. For use of attorneys of company only. Open daily 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. except Sat. and Sun. Located at 445 Sutter st. 6 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 5394.

Annual report not rec'd.

*PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY LIBRARY.

Owing to lack of space this library has been temporarily discontinued and will remain closed probably until the middle of next year or until the new building, now in course of construction, is occupied.

PACIFIC PHILATELIC SOCIETY LIBRARY. Henry C. Marcus, Sec. The society is affiliated with the Mechanics' Institute. Est. 1889. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 2000 vols.). Re-est. Address of Sec. 1040 Lombard st. 15 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 250. Members a. 35. Annual report not rec'd.

PEOPLE'S INSTITUTE LIBRARY. Ruth Epperson Kennell, Sec. Est. 1917. Open daily 9 a. m. to 11 p. m. Located 580 Eddy st. 21 mags. and 25 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 4500. Members a. 200, and a. 129 library members who pay 50 cents per 3 mos. for library privileges only.

Annual report not rec'd.

This library was formerly the Jack London Memorial Institute Library.

POLYTECHNIC HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. James E. Addicott, Prin. Est. 1895. Located at 1st ave. and Willard st.

Total vols. a. 800, Teachers a. 92. Pupils a. 2000.

Annual report not rec'd.

*SACRED HEART COLLEGE LIBRARY. Brother V. Leo, Prin. Est. 1872. Destroyed April, 1906 (3000 vols.). Reest. Located at Ellis and Franklin sts. 10 mags. and 6 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1500. Teachers a. 24; pupils a. 567.

Annual report not rec'd.

ST. ANDREW'S SOCIETY LIBRARY. Wm. J. Millar, Lib'n. Est. a, 1863. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 1500 vols.). Re-est. Books donated by members and others. Open to members for exchange of books Mon. evenings, but open for reference

to any one presented by a member. Located in Native Sons' Hall, 414 Mason st. 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Vols. added a. 50 by purchase.

ST. IGNATIUS COLLEGE LIBRARY. See University of St. Ignatius.

ST. PETER'S ACADEMY LIBRARY. Sr. M. Bernard, Prin. Sr. M. Liguori, Lib'n. Est. 1878. Located 1245 Alabama st.

Total vols. a. 1000. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 465.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO ART ASSOCIATION LI-BRARY, J. R. Martin, Asst. Sec. and Lib'n. Est. March 2S, 1872. Destroyed April, 1906. Re-est. Open to students of Institute of Art, members of association and to public for reference on certain days. Located in Institute bldg., cor. California and Mason sts.

Total vols. a. 396.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO ASSOCIATION FOR THE BLIND. Edna S. Risley, Sec. Mrs Ruth Quinan, Supt. Est, 1902. Destroyed April, 1906. Re-est. Oct. 23, 1906. Annual income from membership dues, San Francisco Association for the Blind; regular membership \$5 a year; auxiliary membership \$2 a year; contributing membership \$1 a mo. 4 employees. Open to public week days 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at 1120 Folsom st. 4 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly (all for circulation). Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues. 11 a.m.

Total vols. a. 317.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO BAR ASSOCIATION LIBRARY. George J. Martin, Sec. and Lib'n. Est. March 28, 1872. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 9500 vols.). Re-est. immediately. Annual income rec'd from dues. Open to public week days 9 a.m. to 10 p.m. Located 928 Pacific bldg.

Total vols. a. 11,000.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO C H A P T E R OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF BANKING LI-BRARY. T. J. Gough, in charge. Est. March 16, 1902, and affiliated with Mechanics' Institute up to April, 1906; re-est. Aug. 1, 1907. Income from clearing house of San Francisco. Open to members and their friends 10 a.m. to 10 p.m. Located 126 Post st. 15 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 565. Employees a. 2; others in institution a. 1200.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO—Continued.

SAN FRANCISCO CHRONICLE LIBRARY. Miss Alice Swain, Lib'n, 3 employees. Open daily 9 a.m. to 11 p.m. Located in Chronicle bldg. 5 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1200.

This library contains bound vols. of Chronicle since 1868.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO LAW SCHOOL LIBRARY. Entirely for use of students.

Total vols. a. 2000.

No further information rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO METAPHYSICAL LI-BRARY. Ida Jane Ayres, Mgr. Est. Jan. 1, 1915. 3 employees. Open to public 'week days 10 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located 165 Post st. 25 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 634. Cardholders a. 189. Annual report not rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO NAVAL TRAINING STA-TION LIBRARY.

*SCOTTISH RITE OF FREEMASONRY LI-BRARY. John R. Ruckstell, Lib'n. Est. May, 1907. Open to members only daily 9 a.m. to 12 m. Books for reference only not for circulation. Located Scottish Rite Temple, Sutter and Van Ness ave. 2 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1500.

Annual report not rec'd.

SEAMEN'S CHURCH INSTITUTE LI-BRARY. M. E. Hopkins, Supt. Located at 58 Clay st. Library consists of hundreds of books, which are sent to the Seamen's Institute by friends and immediately placed gratis on board ships sailing. Library has a small number of books, which sailormen use.

SHELL OIL COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARY. John A. Dean, Lib'n. Est. 1919. 4 employees: Open daily except Sat. and Sun. 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in rooms 208–209, 200 Bush st. 125 mags., 50 newspapers and 10 transactions rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000.

THE SIERRA CLUB LIBRARY, Wm. E. Colby, Pres. Est. Sept. 16, 1892. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 500 vols.). Reest. Nov. 1, 1907. Supported by Club. 1 employee. 1 branch at Yosemite. Open to members mainly, but also to public daily except Sun. and holidays, 9 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. Located in room 402, Mills bldg. 2 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Annual report not rec'd.

*SOCIETY OF CALIFORNIA PIONEERS LI-BRARY. H. L. Byrne, Sec. and Lib'n. Est. 1850. Destroyed April, 1906 (a.

2500 vols.). Re-est. Open to members only, daily 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at 5 Pioneer place.

Total vols. 600.

Annual report not rec'd.

Society of Mayflower Descendants IN STATE OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARY, Prof Chas. Mills Gayley, Gov. Theodore Gray, Sec. Located at 1102 Flood bldg.

Total vols. a. 400.

This is a special library of families through whom Mayflower descent is traced.

*Southern Pacific Company Li-Brary. Miss Julia Evans, Lib'n. Est. 1908. 43 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc. 4404: books 3484; pamphlets 920. Cardholders a. 500.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The Southern Pacific General Office Library is one of the oldest business libraries in San Francisco, having been established in 1908 as a recreational feature of the Company's personnel system. Since June 1, 1911, all library service work has been under the direction of Miss Julia Evans.

At the present time, however, the circulating fiction collection forms only a minor phase of the library's activities. The development of a reference service, planned to contain information and source material of a general nature, as well as a highly specialized transportation library has been the aim of the present Librarian. As a result of this policy the library now contains 1400 volumes of fiction, 2084 volumes of nonfiction, and 920 annual reports of railroads and other public utilities.

Besides the research information furnished in the regular routine of a technical library, fiction and 43 current magazines are circulated to some 500 employees regularly enrolled as library borrowers.

The Librarian also has the direction of the extension service in the eleven Railway Clubs situated at various division points on the Pacific System.

In September the addition of a number of new book stacks and the installation of new equipment and lighting fixtures entailed the entire reorganization and rearrangement of the library. For the six weeks consumed in this work the

SAN FRANCISCO-Continued.

Librarian has had the valuable assistance of Mrs Gladys F. Wittet, who has had extensive experience in organizing and directing business libraries in New York and other cities throughout the United States. Mrs Wittet came to the Southern Pacific Company from Los Angeles, where she was Assistant Librarian of the Southern California Edison Company Library.

As the technical collection was transferred to the new shelves an inventory was made and the collection of annual reports of various bodies was partially reclassified. The annual reports of all railway companies form an especially important part of this library and a system is imperative whereby all reports may be carefully preserved and still be immediately available. A shelf-list record is kept of the reports as well as of the catalogued non-fiction material, while the fiction is cataloged by author and title.

Several hundred miscellaneous pamphlets were fully indexed and incorporated with existing pamphlet material, the completed collection being transferred to vertical filing cabinets.

The filing of unbound magazines, always a difficult problem in libraries with limited shelf space, was solved by the expedient of using large size transfer cases placed on the lower wall shelves made vacant by the removal of the main collection to the floor stacks. The magazines are thus effectively protected from dust and may be consulted with a minimum of handling.

A union card catalog has been prepared covering all bound material kept in various departments throughout the organization, with the exception of the Law and Geological Libraries. This catalog is kept in the library and makes available to the Librarian a mass of source material not contained in the main library collection.

JULIA EVANS, Lib'n.

SOUTHERN PACIFIC LAW DEPARTMENT 'LIBRARY, J. E. Powers, Lib'n. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 15,000 vols.). Re-est. 1 employee. Open to members of S. P. Law Dept. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at 841 Flood bldg. 5 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 8290. Annual report not rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO-Continued.

*STANDARD OIL CO. LIBRARY. Miss Margaret Hatch, Lib'n. Est. June, 1918. 3 employees. Open to employees of Standard Oil Co. week days: Mon. to Fri. 8.15 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 8.15 a.m. to 1 p.m. Located in Standard Oil Co. bldg. 243 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2261. Circulation 10,922. Vols. borrowed from other libs, 982.

STANFORD UNIVERSITY. For the library of its college of medicine, see Lane Medical Library of Stanford University.

STATE MINING BUREAU LIBBARY. Lloyd L. Root, State Mineralogist. Est, 1880. Income from state appropriation. Open to public for reference only daily except Sun, and legal holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Ferry bldg. and contains also John Hays Hammond Public Mining Library. 35 mags. and 50 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 5000.

STATE TEACHERS COLLEGE LIBRARY. Archibald Anderson, Pres. Miss Ruth Fleming, Librarian. Miss Mildred M. Holman, Head of Children's Dept. Est. 1899. Destroyed April, 1906 (8500 vols.). Re-est. immediately. Income from state appropriation. 2 employees. Open to students week days: Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at Waller and Buchanan sts. 67 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 47,016. Teachers a. 48: pupils a. 642.

Annual report not rec'd.

SUPREME COURT LIBRARY. Thomas F. Dunn, Lib'n. Est. March, 1868, Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 18,000 vols.). Re-est. Income from fees collected by Clerk of Supreme Court as provided in section 753 of Political Code. 1 employee. In charge of the Justices of the Supreme Court and solely for their use in chambers and in the court room when required by attorneys having cases under consideration. Located in State bldg. 3 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols, 17,769, Added 540.

SUTRO BRANCH, CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY. Milton J. Ferguson, State Lib'n. Helen M. Bruner, Ass't in charge. Est. 1913; opened to public Jan. 2, 1917. Following libraries have been deposited at the Sutro Branch: California Genealogical Society L i b r a r y, California Society Sons of the American Revolution Library, Astronomical Society of the Pacific Library, the private library of Mrs May Stansbury Mansfield, the Heald commercial collection and the California Historical Society Library. Supported by the California State Library. Includes that part of the

SAN FRANCISCO—Continued.

Sutro Library collected by the late Adolph Sutro which escaped the fire of April, 1906, this valuable collection of rare books having been given to the State Library by Mr Sutro's heirs in 1913. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in the Public Library, Civic Center. 121 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc a. 116,147. Added 1209 by gift or deposit. Discarded, etc. 15,606. Circulation 5848 (home use 534). Vols. loaned to other libs. 9; borrowed from other libs. 344 (339 from State Library).

All deposits are being changed to gifts or returned to the persons depositing them as rapidly as possible in order to onform with the agreement with the Public Library authorities in allowing the Sutro Branch space in their building. The Sutro Branch should contain only old and rare books so all other material is being returned to the donors or discarded. The original Sutro collection is being fully cataloged.

*Swedish Society of SAN FRANCISCO LIBRARY. Harry Mentzer, Sec. Arvid V. Nelson, Lib'n. Est. Aug. 1873. Destroyed April, 1906 (a. 780 vols.). Reest. July, 1908. 1 branch in Oakland. Open to members and friends evenings 8 to 10. Owns bldg., the Swedish-American hall, 2174 Market st. 6 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000.

Annual report not rec'd.

THEOSOPHICAL BOOK CONCERN AND LIERARY. Dr Fannie McG. Williams, Lib'n. Est. 1885. Destroyed April. 1906 (a. 1000 vols.). Re-est. 1906. No paid employees. Open to public week days 12 m, to 4 p.m. and 8 to 9 p.m. Thursday and Friday. Located in Native Sons bldg., 414 Mason st. 8 mags. rec'd regularly (none for circulation). Library directors monthly meeting last Fri.

Total vols. a. 470. Members a. 93. Annual, report not rec'd.

*\$UNION LEAGUE CLUB LIBRARY. H. L. J. Warren, Lib'n. Open to members only. Located at 555 Post st. 58 mags. and 16 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3000.

Annual report not rec'd.

*UNITED RAILROADS OF SAN FRAN-CISCO LIBRARY.

See Market Street Railway Co. Law Library.

SAN FRANCISCO-Continued.

UNITED STATES CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS, NINTH CIRCUIT, LIBRARY. O. W. Yeargain, Lib'n. Est. July 31, 1894. Annual income rec'd from congressional Annual income fee of from congressional appropriations. 1 employee. For the use of judges of the court, local members of the bar of the court, and visiting mem-bers of the bar of the court from outlying bers of the bar of the court from outlying districts in the ninth circuit, when en-gaged in argument before the court. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 4 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in U. S. P. O. and courthouse bldg., 7th and Mission sts. 16 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 12,212.

Annual report not rec'd.

UNITED STATES DEPT. OF AGRICUL-TURE, FOREST SERVICE, LIERARY. Paul G. Redington, District Forester, in charge. Miss Alma I. Oviatt, Lib'n. Est. Dec. 1, 1908. Special allotment for library purposes \$500. No paid em-ployees. Open to members of Forest Service, and to public for reference daily except Sun., holidays and Sat. afternoon, 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in Ferry bldg. A. 75 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: a. 60 mags.; a. 10 trans-actions: a. 5 other serials. actions; a. 5 other serials.

Total vols. a. 4425. Added 296: purchase 22; gift or exchange and provision of law 268; binding 6. Discarded 202; deposit ret'd 78; rep'd a. 40. Circulation between 600 and 800. Vols, borrowed from U. S. Forest Service Library in Washington, D. C., 6.

Volumes in this instance include pamphlets cataloged as books, serials and manuscripts, all of which are handled like bound volumes except that manuscripts are kept in a separate manuscript section, filed in vertical filing cases (drawers). This is a special library limited to books and publications on forestry and allied subjects.

UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY IBBARY, James M. Hill, Geologist. LIBRARY. LIBRARY. James M. Hill, Geologist. Est, 1902. Open to public for reference week days: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. and Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located 303 U. S. Custom House, Washington and Battery sts. 6 mags. and 1 trans-action rec'd regularly. This library is for the use of the min-ing public, and includes a complete set of all topographic maps and geological folios of every state in the Union

of every state in the Union.

Books, etc. added a. 116: books a. 50 by provision of law; serials 6; maps 60.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA. COLLEGE OF DENTISTRY LIBRARY. Dr Guy S. Mill-berry, Dean. Miss Bessie McNab, Lib'n.

SAN FRANCISCO—Continued.

Income from department fund. 1 employee. Open to dentists and dental students week days: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 4.30 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12.30 p.m. Located in College bldg., 1st and Parnas-sus aves. 37 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 3841. Added 274: purchase 160; gift 32; binding 82. Pupils 450.

College of PHARMACY LI-BRARY, F. T. Green, Dean. Est. 1878. Open daily 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. Located in College bldg., Parnassus and 2d aves. 20 periodicals rec'd regularly. Trustees an-nual meeting June 30.

Total vols. a. 973. Instructors a. 6: students a. 89.

Annual report not rec'd.

——— MEDICAL SCHOOL AND HOS-PITALS LIBRARY. Dr L. S. Schmitt, Acting Dean. Miss Eva West, Lib'n. Est. 1862. 3 employees. Open week days: Mon. to Fri. 8.30 a.m. to 5.30 and 7.90 to 10 p.m. Sat. 8.20 a.m. to 5.20 and 7.30 to 10 p.m.; Sat. 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located at 2d and Parnassus aves. a. 245 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 15,455. Added 2714: purchase 465; gift 155; binding 425; from old sources heretofore not accessioned 1610; transfer from Hooper Foundation 36; exchange 23. Teachers 137; pupils 255. Circulation 5543.

OUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Hazel Schultz, Assistant Librarian, resigned July 1. After an extended trip.through the East, she entered upon her duties as Assistant Librarian at the Fullerton (Cal.) Union High School. Miss Nelly P. Chapin, of Ontario, California, was appointed to succeed Miss Schultz at the Medical School of the University.

EVA WEST, Lib'n.

UNIVERSITY OF ST. IGNATIUS LIBRARY. Rev Pius L. Moore, S.J., Prin. Jos. W. Riordan, S.J., Lib'n. Est. 1856. De-stroyed April, 1906 (50,000 vols.). Re-est. June, 1906. Open daily S a.m. to 6 p.m. Located at 2130 Fulton st. 3 branches. S mags. and 10 newspapers nocid weenlawly. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 17,945. Teachers a. 46; pupils a. 846.

Annual report not rec'd.

*WELLS FARGO NEVADA BANK LI-BRARY, Miss Stayner, Lib'n. Est. Dec. 1919. Open Mon. to Sat. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. 23 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN FRANCISCO-Continued.

*WEST PIKE AND WEST LAW LI-BRARY. Margaret Rooney, Lib'n. No further information rec'd.

*WILMERDING SCHOOL OF INDUSTRIAL ARTS LIBRARY.

Nec California School of Mechanical Arts Library.

WORKMEN'S CIRCLE JEWISH LIBRARY. See Jewish Library.

Y. W. C. A. LIBRARY. Mrs George P. Thurston, Pres. Elvira A. Gordon, Sec. Open 10 a.m. to 12 m., 1 to 8 p.m. Owns bldg., 620 Sutter st. 10 mags. and 8 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2400. Members a. 1800. Annual report not rec'd.

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY.

(Eighth class.)

County seat, Stockton.

Area, 1370 sq. mi. Pop. 79,905.

Assessed valuation \$120,017,753 (taxable for county \$103,424,889).

SAN JOAQUIN CO. FREE LIBRARY, STOCKTON. H. O. Parkinson, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 16, Co. F. L. law, March 7, 1910, under an agreement between Board of Supervisors of San Joaquin County and Board of Trustees of Stockton Public Library. Includes entire county for tax and service. Annual income 1923–24, \$26,369.47 (from Co. under contract \$20,000; from school districts having joined \$6369.47). 52 employees: 20 in office; 32 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 1 to 9 p.m. Located in Stockton Free Public Library. Total branches 124, as follows: community 53—Acampo, Atlanta, Banta, Calla, Christian Colony (r.r.), Clements (r.r.), Elliott No. 1, Elliott No. 2, Elmwood, Escalon (r.r.), Justice, Lafayette, Lathrop (r.r.), Justice, Lafayette, Lathrop (r.r.), Linden (r.r.), Manteea (r.r.), Moorland, Nile Gardens, Orchard, Peters, Ripon (r.r.), River, State Farm, Amblers, Boy Scouts Camp, Camp Fire Girls' Camp, Congregational Sunday School, 4 engine companies, Fair Oaks, Farm Adviser, Municipal Baths, Municipal Camp, St. Joseph's Hospital, Sperry Flour Co. office, Y. M. C. A. Boys Camp and Y. M. C. A. Boys' Dept. in Stockton, Summer Home, Thornton, Tokay Colony, Tracy (r.r.), Tracy Standard Oil Station, U. S. Veterans' Bureau, Vernalis, Vernalis Oil Station, Waterloo, Woodbridge (r. r.), Wright Tract No. 2; active school districts that have joined 62 (70 school

SAN JOAQUIN CO .- Continued.

branches) — A l p i n e, Athearn, Atlanta, August, Bruella Union (incl. Brunswick and Lavella), Burwood, Calaveras, Calla, Castle, Chartville, Davis, Delphi, Elkhorn, Elliott, Elmwood, Enterprise, Escalon, Fairchild, Farmington, French Camp, Golden West, Greenwood, Henderson, Houston, Independent, Island, Justice, Kingston, Lafayette, Lammersville, Lathrop, Linden, Live Oak, Lockeford, Lone Tree, Manteca, Moore, Mossdale, Naglee (2 buildings), New Hope, New Jerusalem, Peterson, Ray Union (incl. Franklin and Mokelumne), R i n d g e, Ripon, River, Rustic, San Joaquin, Summer Home, Terminous, Tokay Colony, Valley. Van Allen, Venice, Veritas, Victor, Waverly, Weston, W he a t l an d, Woods. 672 periodicals (all mags. except current nos. for circulation) rec'd regularly: 46 newspapers; 626 mags. Distributed: 274 to office; 398 to branches.

Total books, etc. counted with Stockton Free Public Library. Cardholders 9839. Added 2003; cancelled 2108. Circulation 207.892. S50 shipments (41,344 items) were sent to branches. Of the above 14,897 were supplementary books. In addition 1641 supplementary books were retained from previous year.

During the year 12 branches were established (9 school district branches).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The following school districts joined the library during the quarter, making a total of 65: Garden, Glenwood, Grant, Harmony, Lincoln, Turner. The Wheatland district was merged with Farmington in September.

The tax rate for 1924-25 on territory outside of incorporated towns is .4 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$23,000. H. O. PARKINSON, Lib'n,

SAN JOAQUIN CO. LAW LIBBABY, STOCKTON. Miss Laura Klench, Lib'n. Est. July 30, 1894. Annual income from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. 1 employee. Open to public daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in rooms 10 and 11 of courthouse. 4 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 7000.

SAN JOAQUIN CO. TEACHERS' LIBBARY, STOCKTON. HARTY W. Bessac, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Income 1923–24, \$120, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$768,90.

Total vols. 1683. Teachers employed 607: elem. 439; high 168. Active school

SAN JOAQUIN CO.-Continued.

districts: elem. 87 (incl. 1 jt.); high: district 1; union 6. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$15,-612; high \$12,318. Vols. in schools: elem. 80,174; high 43,206.

Garden School Dist.

GARDEN SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN JOAQUIN CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Glenwood School Dist.

GLENWOOD SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN JOAQUIN CO. FREE LIBRARY, WAS established during the quarter.

Grant School Dist.

GRANT SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN JOAQUIN CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Harmony School Dist.

HARMONY SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN JOAQUIN CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Lincoln School Dist.

LINCOLN SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN JOAQUIN CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Lodi.

LODI [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN JOAQUIN CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Amy L. Boynton, Lib'n. Est. May 1, 1902; as F. P. July 29, 1907; branch est. April 16, 1910. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3078.97. Annual income 1923-24, \$9688.29 (from taxation \$9084.02, library tax being 1.8 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$604.27). Total payments \$8676.03. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$4091.23. 6 employees. Open daily except Sun. and 7 holidays 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. (Also Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. for reading during Dec., Jan., Feb., Mar.) Located in \$10,500 Carnegie bldg. 94 periodicals rec'd regularly: 8 newspapers; 85 mags.

Total books, etc. 12,993: books 10,304; pamphlets 120; maps 5; prints 234; stereographs 2330. Added 2108: books 1454 (purchase 1369, gift or exchange 49, binding 36); pamphlets 120; prints 234; stereographs 300. Books lost 43; discarded 186; rep'd 2232; reb'd 86. Cardholders 5163. Added 954; cancelled 111. Circulation 59,738: books 55,203; periodicals 4535. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 33 (all from State Library).

SAN JOAQUIN CO .--- Continued.

Lodi-Continued.

LODI UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, Wm. Inch, Prin. Est. 1896. 32 mags. 'rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2146. Added 104. Teachers a. 28; pupils 550.

Ripon.

RIPON UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Verne B. Brown, Prin. Est. 1910. Open school days 8.30 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. 32 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 341. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 91.

Annual report not rec'd.

Stockton.

[‡]STOCKTON FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. H. O. Parkinson, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. May, 1880. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$13,286.68. Annual income 1923–24, \$56,506.31 (from taxation \$28,675, library tax being .67 m. on the dollar; from Co. under contract \$20,000; from school districts having joined \$6369.47; from other sources \$1761.84). Total payments \$51,127.67. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$18,965.32. 20 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 1 to 9 p.m. Located in \$50,000 library bldg. 572 periodicals (all mags. except current nos. for circulation) rec'd regularly: 46 newspapers; 626 mags. Distributed: 274 to main library; 398 to branches.

Total books, etc. 153,948: books 80,489; pamphlets 55,978; prints 6806; music records 75; music sheets 600. Added 5428: books 4278 (purchase 3917, gift or exchange 121, binding 182, returned that were reported lost 58); pamphlets 920; prints 180; music records 50. Books lost 305; discarded 3152. Cardholders 12,729. Added 6109; cancelled 6053. Circulation 201,646. Vols. loaned to other libs. 6; borrowed from other libs. 292 (284 from State Library).

\$COLLEGE OF THE PACIFIC LIBRARY. John L. Seaton, Pres. Miss Harriet E. Boss, Lib'n. Est. July, 1851, at San Jose; moved to Stockton 1924. 2 employees. Open during school term week days 8 a.m. to 10 p.m. Located in Weber Memorial Hall. Library trustees annual meeting May.

Total vols. a. 15,000. Teachers a. 31; students a. 314.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The summer just passed saw our library pass the 15,000 mark in our accessions—just the round numbers we had before the fire nine years ago that

SAN JOAQUIN CO.—Continued.

Stockton—Continued.

destroyed our entire library. We might have doubled this number had we accepted all gifts offered us; but from the start we resolved to accept only those of up-to-date usefulness, or of classic value.

The passing of this milestone came with the removal to our new campus at Stockton, where the library is in temporary quarters in Weber Memorial Hall. We are enjoying double the amount of floor space that we had at San Jose.

Stockton has given our college a wonderful welcome, and all seem happy in our new environment. Aside from the books themselves nearly all in connection with the library is new. The beautiful building in which we are housed is Stockton's own gift to the college.

Hours of service have been extended in both reference and magazine rooms to cover time from eight in the morning until ten at night, Sundays excepted. Number of full time librarians, two, much of the desk work being done by students.

HARRIET E. Boss, Lib'n.

SAN JOAQUIN Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under San Joaquin Co.

STOCKTON HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Noel H. Garrison, Prin. Miss Mildred Smith, Lib'n. Est. 1870. Open every school day 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 25 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 8000. Teachers a. 71; pupils a. 1500.

Annual report not rec'd.

Tracy.

WEST SIDE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. H. O. Williams, Prin. Est. Sept. 11, 1912. Open 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. 12 mass. and 60 school exchanges rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1800. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 129.

Annual report not rec'd.

Turner School Dist.

TURNER SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN JOAQUIN CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established during the quarter.

Wheatland School Dist.

WHEATLAND SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN JOAQUIN CO. FREE LIBRARY, WAS discontinued in September, 1924.

Also see note under San Joaquin Co. Free Library.

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY.

(Thirtieth class.)

County seat, San Luis Obispo.

Area, 3500 sq. mi. Pop. 21,893.

Assessed valuation \$38,349,009 (taxable for county \$33,194,845).

SAN LUIS OBISPO CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN LUIS OBISPO. Miss Flo A. Gantz, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, July 6, 1915; work started July 1, 1919. Includes entire county for tax and service except Paso Robles and San Luis Obispo. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$735.09. Annual in-come 1923-24, \$14,502.08 (from taxation \$8079.36, library tax being .3 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$4400; from other sources \$2022.72). Total payments \$14,654.51. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$582.66. 22 employees: 5 in office; 17 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. in summer, 9 a.m. to 3 p.m. during school term. Located in Andrews bldg., Osos and Monterey sts. Total branches 97, as and Monterey sts. Total branches 97, as follows: community 18—Arroyo Grande (r.r.). Atascadero (r.r.), Avila, Cam-bria, Cayucos, Creston, Garden Farms, Halcyon (r.r.), Morro, Nipomo, Oceano (r.r.), Pismo, San Carpojo, Main Office (r.r.) and Farm Adviser in San Luis Obieno San Mierel (r.r.) Shendon Obispo, San Miguel (r. r.), Shandon, Templeton (r. r.); active school districts that have joined 79 (78 school branches) —Alamo, Alliance, Arroyo Grande, As-cencion, Atascadero, Avila, Banning (incl. schools nos. 1 and 2), Bee Rock, Bellevue, Bethel, Branch, Cambria, Can-von, Cayucos, Central, Choice Valley, Cholame Conval de Bidra, Crastor Non, Cayacos, Central, Choice Vaney, Cholame, Corral de Piedra, Creston, Cuyama, Eagle, East Santa Fe, El Do-rado, Encinal, Estrella, Fairview, Gene-seo, Harmony, Highland, Home, Hope, Huasna, Huer Huero, Independence, Irish Hills, Lorg, Swing, Lorgabia, Lorgabia Huasha, Huer Huero, Independence, Fish Hills, Iron Springs, Josephine, Laguna, La Panza, Lincoln, Linne, Lopez Canyon, Los Berros, Los Osos, Mammoth Rock, Morro Union (incl. Excelsior and Morro), Mountain View, New, Oak Dale, Oak Flat, Oceano, Olmstead, Oso Flaco, Pacific, Park Hill, Pecho, Phillips, Pismo, Pleasant Valley, Port, Pozo, Ranchita, Son Margon Car Miguel Union (ind San Marcos, San Miguel Union (incl. San Miguel and Nacimiento), Santa Fe, Santa Margarita, Santa Rosa, Shandon, Simmler, Someo, Stowe, Summit, Sunder-land, Templeton, Union, Verde, Washing-ton; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in San Luis Obispo. 36 periodicals rec'd regularly: 3 news-papers; 32 mags.; 1 other serial.

Total books, etc. 37,251: books 34,739; pamphlets 1598; maps 186; slides 25; music records 277; charts 298; globes 22; other material 106. Added 5053: books 4526 (purchase 4487, gift or exchange 39); pamphlets 242; maps 35;

SAN LUIS OBISPO CO.-Continued.

music records 79; charts 132; globes 3; other material 36. Withdrawn 404:339 discarded; pamphlets 65. books Books rep'd 304; reb'd 375. Cardholders 4273: headquarters 82: branches 4191. Added 531; cancelled 16. Circulation 62.255 (from headquarters 1592. from branches 60,663); books 60,530; periodicals 1079; other material 646. Vols. loaned to other libs. 26; borrowed from other libs, 175 (152 from State Library). 935 shipments (20,364 items: 19.718 books: 646 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 17,318 were supplementary books. In addition 3543 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 16.364 special requests.

During the year 142 visits were made to 41 branches. 639 visits were made to headquarters by 97 custodians. 2 branches (Oso Flaco School and Cayucos) were established.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The Sand Hill School District joined the County Free Library in September.

The tax rate for 1924–25 is .3 m. on the dollar.

FLO A. GANTZ, Lib'n.

SAN LUIS OBISPO CO. LAW LIBRARY, SAN LUIS OBISPO. F. A. Norton, Superior Judge, in charge. Est. under act of 1891. Income from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Open 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 2411.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN LUIS OBISPO CO. TEACHERS' LI-BRARY, SAN LUIS OBISPO. Robert L. Bird, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined County Free Library. Income 1923-24, \$94, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$162.43.

Teachers employed 235: elem. 166; high 69. Active school districts: elem. 87; high 6 (7 high schools) : city 1; union 5. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$6432; high \$4091. Vols. in schools: elem. 41,040; high 5812.

Arroyo Grande.

ARROYO GRANDE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. G. Frederickson, Prin. Mildred M. White, Lib'n. Est. 1892. 7 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1157. Teachers a. 9; pupils a. 129.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN LUIS OBISPO CO .-- Continued.

Paso Robles.

PASO ROBLES [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Edith Allen Phelps, Lib'n. Est. 1902: as F. P. 1904. Annual income 1923-24, \$3453.76 (all from taxation, library tax being 1.3 m. on the dollar). Total payments \$3073.56. Bal. July 1, 1924. \$380.20. 2 employees. Open daily except legal holidays: week days 10 a.m. to 12 m., 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 108 periodicals ree'd regularly (10 newspapers). Library trustees semimonthly meetings first and third Mon.

Total books, etc. 6793: books 6238; pamphlets 555. Added 897: books 617 (purchase 411, gift or exchange 187, binding 15, ret'd after being counted lost 4); pamphlets 280. Books discarded 477; lost since beginning of library 234; rep'd 179; reb'd 112. Cardholders 1835. Added 244. Circulation, 16,594: books 15,375; periodicals 1219. Vols. loaned to other libs. 2; borrowed from other libs. a. 6 (all from State Library).

PASO ROBLES HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. F. Clarke, Prin. Jessie E. Boyd, Lib'n. Est. 1892. 12 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1450. Teachers a. 17; pupils a. 235.

Annual report not rec'd.

Sand Hill School Dist. (P. O. and exp. San Luis Obispo).

SAND HILL SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, SAN LUIS OBISPO CO. FREE LIBRARY, WAS established in September, 1924.

San Luis Obispo.

SAN LUIS OBISPO FREE PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs E. L. Kellogg, Lib'n. Est. 1894; as F. P. 1897. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3183.55. A n u a l income 1923-24, \$6455.78 (from taxation \$6050.76, library tax being 1.2 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$405.02). Total payments \$6152.10. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$3487.23. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 88 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 77 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 15,127. Added 843: purchase 722; gift or exchange 81; binding 40. Lost 14; discarded 286; reb'd 410. Cardholders 2932. Added 1550; cancelled 1382. Circulation 57,870: books 51,396; periodicals 6474. Vols. loaned to other libs. 12; borrowed from other libs. 47 (40 from State Library).

And And

SAN LUIS OBISPO CO .-- Continued.

San Luis Obispo-Continued.

The library, formerly open eight hours a day, is now open twelve hours.

During the year the librarian trained one substitute and one assistant.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

An outdoor story hour held at the library in August was particularly attractive and successful. The library, built on ground that was formerly part of the Mission enclosure, has a portion of the old ivy-covered wall in the rear of the building. This and an ancient umbrella tree in which many of the little audience were perched, made a setting for the story telling so pleasing that adult patrons were lured from the library and were observed seated on the grass among the About sixty children under listeners. twelve years of age attended. The librarian was assisted in telling the stories by the Misses Venema of the library staff, and like all out-of-door feasts, the stories seemed to have an especially good flavor.

Mrs Minnie Stearns of the Santa Maria Public Library spent a day of inspection and exchange of ideas in the library, a visit greatly enjoyed by librarian and staff.

ABBIE S. KELLOGG, Lib'n.

CALIFORNIA POLYTECHNIC SCHOOL LI-BRARY. B. S. Randall, Pres. J. C. Devel, Lib'n. Est. 1903. 1 employee. Open Mon. to Fri. S a.m. to 4.30 p.m.; Sat. S a.m. to 12 m. Located in Science Hall. 65 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 4000. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 106.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN LUIS OBISPO Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under San Luis Obispo Co.

SAN LUIS OBISPO HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, Arthur H. Mabley, Prin. Selina Sharpe, in charge. Est. July 15, 1895. 19 mags. ree'd regularly.

Total vols. 2038. Added 32: purchase 24; gift 8. Teachers 23: pupils 370.

Templeton.

TEMPLETON UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, D. E. Clark, Prin. Est. 1915; branch est. Oct. 7, 1919; discontinued 1923.

Total vols. a. 225. Teachers a. 3; pupils a. 29.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN MATEO COUNTY.

(Twenty-first class.)

County seat, Redwood City. Area, 470 sq. mi. Pop. 36,781.

Assessed valuation \$43,279,817 (tax-

able for county \$39,335,905).

SAN MATEO CO. FREE LIBRARY, REDwood CITY. Miss Edna Holroyd. Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Sept. 5, 1912. Work started Dec. 1, 1915. Includes entire county for tax and service except Burlingame and San Mateo. Redwood City and South San Francisco ioined under Sec. 3. Annual income 1922-23. \$14,806 (from taxation \$10,966, library tax being 35 m. on the dollar). Employees 50: 3 in office; 47 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in courthouse. Total branches 63, as follows: community 34—Alpine, Ano Nuevo Island, Bell, Belmont, Colma (r. r.), Greersburg, Half Moon Bay, Higgins, Hillsborough, Homestead, La Honda, Lomita, Menlo Park, Montara, Moss Beach, Pescadero, Pomponio, Purissima. Ravenswood, Redwood City '(r. r.) and Main Office in Redwood City, San Bruno, San Carlos, San Gregorio, San Pedro, Seaside, South San Francisco (r. r.), Sunnyside, Tobin, Tunis, U. S. Public Health Service Hospital, Wurr; active school districts that have joined 27 (29 school branches)—Alpine, Bell, Belmont, Burlingame, Greersburg, Hilgsins, Hillsborough, La Honda, Las Lomitas, Menlo Park, Millbrae (incl. 2 schools), Miramar, Montara (incl. Moss Beach school), Pescadero, Pigeon Point, Pomponio, Portola, Purissima, Ravenswood, San Carlos, San Gregorio, San Pedro, Seaside, Sunnyside, Tobin, Tunis, Wurr. 492 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total books. etc. a. 32,045. Cardholders a. 6000.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

A gift of 85 books to the Menlo Park Branch of San Mateo Co. Free Library by Mrs Alexander Hamilton was announced today.—Palo Alto *Times*, Ag 26

SAN MATEO CO. LAW LIBRARY, REDwood CITY. Geo. H. Buck, in charge. Est. a. 1891. Income from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Open to public Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in courthouse. 1 periodical rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1118.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN MATEO CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, REDWOOD CITY. Roy W. Cloud, Co. Supt. Est. in early 70's. Income 1923–24, \$57, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt, paid for books \$44.72.

SAN MATEO CO .--- Continued.

Total vols. 3002. Teachers employed 328: elem. 219; high 109. Active school districts: elem. 35; high 6 (7 high schools): district 1; union 5. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$6150; high \$8781. Vols. in schools: elem. 46,766; high 24,828.

Belmont.

COLLEGE NOTRE DAME LIBRARY. Sister Euphrasia, Prin. Sister Anthony, Lib'n. Est. 1851 in San Jose; moved to Belmont 1923. Supported by college for use of its students.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Our library is yet in the course of adjustment and is largely in packing cases, hence we have no items of interest. SISTER ANTHONY, Lib'n.

Burlingame.

BURLINGAME [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Mary T. Gervais, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Oct. 18, 1909; opened Sept. 11, 1911. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$764.59. Annual income 1923-24, \$5557.02 (from taxation \$5361.60, library tax being 11 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$195.42). Total payments \$4713.24. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1608.37. 4 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 1 to 9 p.m. Located in \$3500 bldg. 54 periodicals rec'd regularly: 10 newspapers; 44 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting last Fri.

Total vols. 13,639. Added 1680: purchase 915; gift or exchange 765. Discarded 198; reb'd 262. Cardholders 3363. Added 1008; cancelled 216. Circulation 45,002: books 44,012; periodicals 990.

Half Moon Bay (No exp. office).

HALF MOON BAY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Guy J. Roney, Prin. 21 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a, 1100. Teachers a. 5; pupils a, 65.

Annual report not rec'd.

Menlo Park.

MENLO PARK BRANCH LIBRARY, SAN MATEO CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under San Mateo Co. Free Library.

*ST. PATRICK'S SEMINARY LIBRARY. V. Rev H. Ayrinhac, S.S., D.D., Pres. Rev E. Godon, S.S., Lib'n. Est. 1898. Supported by seminary and for its use only. 22 periodicals ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 9500. Instructors a. 12; students a. 85.

Annual report not rec'd.

SAN MATEO CO .--- Continued.

Redwood City.

REDWOOD CITY FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN MATEO CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Laura E. Barton, Lib'n. Est. Jan. 15, 1889; as F. P. Nov. 26, 1900. Became part of San Mateo Co. Free Library Feb. 16, 1914; branch est. Feb. 1, 1921. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$90.75. Annual income 1923-24, \$2260.11 (from taxation \$3100.32, library tax being 7.5 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$159.79). Total payments \$3500.67. Deficit July 1, 1924, \$155.81. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 2 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 1.30 to 4.30 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 47 periodicals rec'd regularly: 14 newspapers; 24 mags.; 9 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting second Mon.

Total books, etc. 6280: books 6266; pamphlets 3; serials 9; maps 2. Books added 627: purchase 617; gift or exehange 10. Lost 3; discarded 200; reb'd 161. Cardholders 2879. Added 470; cancelled 229. Circulation 28,390.

SAN MATEO CO. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under San Mateo Co.

SEQUOIA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. S. P. McCrea, Prin. Anna W. Neff, Lib'n. Est. 1895. 1 employee. Open Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 3.45 p.m. 6 mags. rec'd regularly

Total vols. a. 1594. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 145.

Annual report not rec'd.

San Mateo.

SAN MATEO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Inez M. Crawford, Lib'n. Est. July 3, 1884; as F. P. Sept. 1899. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1272.51. Annual income 1923-24, \$9241.98 (from taxation '\$8110.78, library tax being 15 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$1131.20). Total payments \$8099.81. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2414.68. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9.30 a.m. to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 4 p.m. Located in \$12,500 Carnegie bldg. 133 periodicals rec'd regularly: 15 newspapers; 105 mags.; 1 transaction; 12 other serials. Library trustees monthly meeting second Thurs.

Total vols. 15,793. Added 1104: purchase 610; gift or exchange 168; binding 68; pay shelf 258. Lost 27; discarded 156; reb'd 380. Cardholders 2904. Added 1145; cancelled 1167. Circulation 55,271: books 51,711; periodicals 3560. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 54 (all from State Library).

SAN MATEO CO.—Continued.

San Mateo-Continued.

SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRABY, W. L. Glascock, Prin. Miss Marion Harris, Lib'n. Est. 1902, 22 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 4450. Teachers a. 50: pupils a. 700.

Annual report not rec'd.

South San Francisco.

SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SAN MATEO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs Ruby Pache, Lib'n. FREE LIBERARY, Mrs Ruby Pache, Libra, Est, July 20, 1914; joined San Mateo Co, Free Library Sept. 4, 1915. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$13,500 Carnegie bldg. 47 periodicals (1 from Co.) rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 36 mass Library trustose monthly meeting Library trustees monthly meeting mags. last Thurs.

Total vols. a. 2914. Cardholders a. 921.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mrs Ruby Pache became Librarian of South San Francisco Public Library July 1. Mrs J. B. Coffinberry had been in the position for the eight years just previous.

SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. L. E. Adams, Prin. Est. 1917. 3 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 500. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 63.

Annual report not rec'd.

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY

(Eighteenth class.)

County seat, Santa Barbara.

Area, 2450 sq. mi. Pop. 41,097.

Assessed valuation \$67.005.858 (taxable for county \$57,109,525).

SANTA BARBARA CO. FREE LIBRARY. SANTA BARBARA. Mrs Frances B. Linn, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 16, Co. F. L. law, Feb. 16, 1910, under an agreement be tween the Board of Supervisors of Santa Barbara County and the Board of Trus-tees of the Santa Barbara Public Li-brary. Includes entire county for tax service. Annual income 1923-24, and \$20.478 (from Co. under contract \$16,063; from school districts having joined \$4340; from Co. Teachers' Li-brary fund \$75). 100 employees: 18 in office; 82 in branches. Open daily: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in Santa Barbara Public joined \$4340; from Co. Teachers' Li-brary fund \$75). 100 employees: 18 in office; 82 in branches. Open daily: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in Santa Barbara Public 10 2020 10-34984

SANTA BARBARA CO .--- Continued.

Library. Total branches 114, as follows: Library. Total branches 114, as follows: community 54—Agricola, Aguaje, Ar-light (r. r.), Ballard, Betteravia, Bick-nell, Buellton, Careaga, Carpinteria (r. r.), Casmalia, Cathedral Oaks, Celite (r. r.), Chicquero, Cold Spring, Concep-cion, Cuyama, Den, Doheny, Dome (r. r.), Garey, Gaviota, Goleta (r. r.), Guada-lupe (r. r.), Jalama, Jonata, Laguna, Lake View, La Patera, Las Cruces, Lompoc (r. r.), Los Alamos (r. r.), Cos Olivos, Maple, Montecito (r. r.), Orcutt (r. r.), Orella, Peshine (r. r.), Pinal (r. r.), Pine Grove, Purisima, Rice. San Julian, Santa Barbara (r. r.), Santa (r. r.), Orella, Peshine (r. r.), Pinal (r. r.), Orella, Peshine (r. r.), Pinal (r. r.), Pine Grove, Purisima, Rice, San Julian, Santa Barbara (r. r.), Santa Maria (r. r.), Santa Rita, Santa Rosa, Santa Ynez (r. r.), Sisquoe, Solvang, Summerland (r. r.), Tajiguas, Tepusquet, Washington, Wasioja; active school dis-tricts that have joined 63 (59 school branches)—Agricola, Aguaje, Alcatraz, Artesia, Ballard, Betteravia, Bicknell, Blochman, Bonita, Careaza, Carpinteria Union (incl. Aliso, Carpinteria, Ocean, Rincon), Carpinteria High, Casmalia Union (incl. Casmalia and Pan Ameri-can), Cathedral Oaks, Chicquero, Cold Spring, College, Cuyama, Den, Doheny, Garey, Goleta, Guadalupe, Honda, Hope, Jalama, Jonata, Laguna, Lake View, La Patera, Las Cruces, Lompoc, Los Alamos, Los Olivos, Lynden, Maple, Miguelito, Mission, Montecito Union (incl. Monte-cito and Ortega). Olive, Orcutt Union (incl. Newlove and Orcutt), Orella, Pine Grove, Pleasant Valley, Purisima, Rice, San Julian, Santa Maria, Santa Maria Union High, Santa Rita, Santa Rosa, Summerland, Tecolote, Tepusquet, Wash-ington, Wasioja, Ynez; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Santa Barbara. 705 periodicals (405 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 25 news-papers: 680 mass. Distributed: 325 to main library: 380 to branches.

Statistics the same as for Santa Barbara Public Library. Circulation from branches 152,911. 44,719 items were sent to branches. Of the above 17,896 were supplementary books. In addition 7325 supplementary books were retained from previous year.

During the year 54 visits were made to 51 branches. 800 visits were made to headquarters by 48 custodians. 3 branches were established: 2 branches were discontinued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .3 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$16,500. FRANCES B. LINN, Lib'n.

SANTA BARBARA CO.—Continued.

to public 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in 19 Howard-Canfield bldg.

Total vols. a. 3722.

Annual report not rec'd.

SANTA BARBARA CO. TEACHERS' LI-BRARY, SANTA BARBARA. A. S. Pope, Co. Supt. Est. 1895; joined the Santa Barbara Co. Free Library Dec. 24, 1914. Income 1923–24, \$97, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$118.

Total vols. a. 500. Teachers employed 338: elem. 228; high 110. Active school districts: elem. 65 (incl. 1 jt.); high 5 (8 high schools): city 1; union 4. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$6054; high \$7397. Vols. in schools: elem. 26,463; high 34,429.

Carpinteria.

CARPINTERIA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA BARBARA Co. FREE LIBRARY. William Q. Osborn, Prin. Est. 1914; branch est. Sept. 19, 1916. Open 2 days per week 2.20 to 4 p.m. 12 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1512. Added 204: purchase 54; gift 150. Teachers 7; pupils 77. Circulation 800.

Lompoc.

LOMPOC [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA BARBARA CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Mrs Stella G. White, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. June 24, 1907; branch est. Dec. 13, 1910. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1146.84. Annual income 1923–24, \$2357.49 (from taxation \$2126.78, library tax being 2 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$230.71). Total payments \$2515.86. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$988.47. 3 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days J.30 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$20,000 bldg. (partly gift of Carnegie). 59 periodicals (52 for circulation) rec'd regularly; 7 newspapers; 52 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon. evening.

Total vols. 4426. Added 190. Withdrawn 150; rep'd 147; reb'd 117. Cardholders 1268. Added 179; cancelled 169. Circulation 23,427: books 21,706; periodicals 1721.

During the year there has been considerable increase in the use of reference books, and in general reading in the reading rooms, especially evenings.

A large box of books and magazines was sent to the officers and men stationed at La Honda after the wreck of the seven U. S. destroyers in September, 1923, These were greatly appreciated as

SANTA BARBARA CO .- Continued.

Lompoc-Continued.

La Honda is only a navy station on a lonely stretch of railroad.

Our library building is situated on a corner, with side entrance to basement club rooms. A heavy wire fence, with metal posts set in concrete, has recently been placed on the east and south sides of the lot, and climbing rose bushes planted along it. This will make a very attractive background, and add greatly to the appearance of the grounds.

LOMPOC UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Lillian P. Williams, Prin. Est. 1895. Open school days 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. 20 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 4455. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 109.

Annual report not rec'd.

Montecito.

MONTECITO LIBRARY. Mrs M. A. Spring, Lib'n. Est. 1900. Closed for 2 to 3 years. Re-opened Feb. 18, 1910. Supported by Montecito Hall and Library Association. Open Tues. 7 to 9 p.m. Owns bldg. valued at \$5000. 6 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols, 1031. Added 6 by gift. Lost 4; discarded 3. Circulation 2250.

Santa Barbara.

SANTA BARBARA FREE PUBLIC LI-BRARY. Mrs Frances Burns Linn, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. 1882. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$24.59. Annual in come 1923–24, \$44,978.74 (from taxation \$24,340; from Co, under contract \$16,063; from school districts having joined \$4340; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$75; from other sources \$160.74). To tal payments \$45,057.91. Deficit July 1, 1924, \$54.58. 18 employees. Open daily: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.: Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$70,000 bldg. (partly the gift of Carnegie). To5 periodicals (405 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 25 newspapers; 680 mags. Distributed: 325 to main library; 380 to branches. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 84,798. Added 7707: purchase 6426; gift or exchange 1134; binding 147. Discarded 3295. Cardholders 17,246. Added 2750; cancelled 662. Circulation 236,252. Vols. loaned to other libs. 46; borrowed from other libs. 262 (253 from State Library).

SANTA BARBARA Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Santa Barbara Co,

SANTA BARBARA CO.—Continued.

Santa Barbara-Continued.

SANTA BARBARA HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Homer Martin, Prin. Miss Maude Huse, Lib'n. Est. 1878, Library est. 1906. 2 mags. and 3 newspapers ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 5214.

Annual report not rec'd.

*STATE TEACHERS COLLECE LIBRARY. Clarence L. Phelps, Prin. Miss Aldine Winham, Lib'n. Est. 1909. 1 employee. Open Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. 56 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols, a. 5403. Teachers a. 18; pupils a. 312.

Annual report not rec'd.

Santa Maria.

SANTA MARIA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA BARBARA CO. FREE LIBRARY. MI'S Minnie Stearns, Lib'n. Est. 1907; as F. P. 1908; branch est. Dec. 13, 1910. Annual income 1923–24, \$2461.56 (from taxation \$2425.51; from other sources \$36.05). Total payments \$2555.86. Deficit July 1, 1924, \$94.30. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 1 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 46 veriodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 6 newspapers; 40 mags.

Total books, etc. 4058: books 4049; maps 9. Added 187: books 185 (purchase 116, gift or exchange 69); maps 2. Books lost 8; discarded 52; rep'd 110; reb'd 74. Cardholders 1000. Added 268. Circulation 13,306: books 12,537; periodicals 769. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 76 (20 from State Library).

SANTA MARIA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA BARBARA CO. FREE LIBRARY. A. A. Bowhay, Jr., Prin. Ida M. Kriegel, Lib'n. Est. 1891; branch est. June 1, 1920. 2 employees. Open school days 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. 34 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 4249. Added 83 by purchase. Teachers a. 25; pupils a. 500. Circulation 8964.

Santa Ynez (No exp. office).

SANTA YNEZ VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, James A, Westcott, Prin, Est. 1896, 14 mags, and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1158. Added 82: purchase 76; gift 6. Teachers 5; pupils 45.

SANTA CLARA COUNTY.

(Sixth class.)

County seat, San Jose.

Area, 1355 sq. mi. Pop. 100,588.

Assessed valuation \$119,887,623 (taxable for county \$104,586,102).

SANTA CLARA CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN Miss Stella Huntington, Lib'n. SANTA CLARA CO. FREE LIBRARY, SAN JOSE. Miss Stella Huntington, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2 Co. F. L. law, July 20, 1912. Work started July 1, 1914. In-cludes entire county for tax and service except Gilroy, Los Gatos, Palo Alto, San Jose, Santa Clara and Sunnyvale. Moun-tain View joined under Sec. 4. Bal. July 1923. \$1773.09 Annual income tain View joined under Sec. 4. Bal. July 1. 1923, \$1773.09. Annual income 1923-24, \$29,011.90 (from taxation \$17,046.69, library tax being .3 m. on the dollar; from school districts having inined \$8809: from Co. Teachers' Library joined \$8809; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$170; from other sources \$2986.01). Total payments \$30,155,77. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$629,22, 38 employees: 10 in office; 28 in branches. Open daily ex-cept Sun, and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in Hall of Justice. Total Located in Hall of Justice. Total branches 96, as follows: community 28– Agnew, Alma, Alviso, Austin Corners, Berryessa, Burbank, Campbell (r. r.), Coyote, Cupertino, Evergreen, Gilroy (r. r.), Los Altos, Mayfield, Milpitas, Moreland, Morgan Hill (r. r.), Mount Hamilton, Mountain View (r. r.), College of the Pacific (r. r.) Co Hospital Pavil-Hamilton, Mountain View (r. r.), College of the Pacific (r. r.), Co. Hospital Pavil-lion (r. r.) and Main Office (r. r.) of Santa Clara Co. Free Library in San Jose, San Martin, San Tomas, Saratoga, Shannon, Sunnyholme Preventorium, W. R. C. Home, Wrights; school districts that have joined 75 (67 school branches) -Adams. Agnew, Air Point, Alviso, Aus-tin, Booker, Braly, Burbank, Burnett, Burrell, Cambrian, Campbell Union (incl. Camphell Hamilton Meridian San To-Campbell, Hamilton, Meridian, San To-mas), College Park, Cupertino Union (incl. Collins, Doyle, Lincoln, San An-tonio), Encinal, Evergreen, Franklin, Gilroy. Gilroy High, Guadalupe, Hacienda, Hall's Valley, Harney, Hester, Highland, Huyck, Jackson, Jefferson, Laguna, Lake-side, Las Manzanitas, Lexington, Llagas, Los Altos, Los Gabos, Machado, McKin-ley, Mayfield, Midway, Milliken, Milpitas, Montebello, Moreland, Morgan Hill, ley, Mayfield, Midway, Milliken, Milpitas. Montebello, Moreland, Morgan Hill, Mount Hamilton, Mount Pleasant, Moun-tain View. Oak Grove, Orchard, Peni-tencia Union (incl. Berryessa, Eagle, Pala). Pioneer, Prunedale, Purissima, Rucker. San Felipe, San Martin, Santa Clara, San Ysidro, Saratoga, Summit, Sunnyvale, Sunol, Union, Uvas, Valley View, Whisman, Willow Glen; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in San Jose. 210 mags. (all for circu-lation) rec'd regularly. Distributed: 34 to office: 176 to branches.

Total books, etc. 86,359: books 85,452: maps 15; music records 871; charts 8; globes 13. Added 12,751: books 12,552 (purchase 12,396, gift or exchange 73,

binding 83); music records 199. Withdrawn 2470: books 2445 (lost 166, discarded 2279) : music records 25. Books rep'd 10.923; reb'd 1116. Cardholders 19,718. Added 2369; cancelled 918. Cir-309.045(from headquarters culation 44,107, from branches 264,938). Vols. borrowed from other libs. 782 (all from State Library). 1831 shipments (46,804 items) were sent to branches. 7615 special requests.

During the year 169 visits were made to 95 branches.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .3 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$17,046. STELLA HUNTINGTON, Lib'n.

SANTA CLARA CO. LAW LIBRARY, SAN JOSE. Miss Louisa J. Spencer, Lib'n. Est. 1874 as San Jose Law Library; became Santa Clara Co. Law Libra 1924. Income from fees and dues. Library 1 employee. Open week days: Mon. to Fri, 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in Knox block. 2 peri-odicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 7150. Added a. 150.

SANTA CLARA CO. MEDICAL SOCIETY LIBRARY, SAN JOSE. Dr J. L. Pritchard. Sec. Located in Twohy bldg., 210 South First st.

Total vols. unknown.

Annual report not rec'd.

SANTA CLARA CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, SAN JOSE. J. E. Hancock, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined Co. Free Library. Income 1923-24, \$159, from 1/2 of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Teachers employed Total vols. 2237. 819: elem. 540; high 279. Active school districts: elem. 77 (incl. 3 jt.); high: city 1; district 2; union 6. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$17,223; high \$16,883. Vols. in schools: elem, 31,126; high 33,610,

Agnew.

AGNEWS STATE HOSPITAL LIBRARY. Leonard Stocking, Med. Supt. Est, 1888. Open daily 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. Located in administration bldg.

Total vols. a. 1200. Employees a. 150; patients a. 1000.

Annual report not rec'd.

Campbell.

CAMPBELL FREE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA CLABA CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Elizabeth Kennedy, Lib'n. Est. April, 1894; branch est. June 8, 1915. 1 em-

SANTA CLARA CO.—Continued.

Campbell-Continued.

ployee. Open Mon., Wed. and Sat. 7 to 9 p.m. and Thurs. and Sat. 3 to 5 p.m. Located in \$12,500 bldg. 18 periodicals 'rec'd regularly: 2 newspapers; 16 mags.

Total books, etc. a. 1110: books a. 1109; maps 1. Cardholders a. 847.

Annual report not rec'd.

CAMPBELL UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. D. H. Cramer, Prin. Est. 1900. 12 mags, rec'd regularly,

Total vols. 2888. Added 164 by purchase. Teachers 13; pupils 250.

Gilroy.

Giroy. [GILROY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA CLARA CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Pearl G. Lavin, Lib'n. Est. Dec. 11, 1907: branch est. Oct. 23, 1915. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$638.19. Annual in-come 1923–24, \$3000 (all from taxation, library tax being 1.96 m. on the dollar). Total payments \$2804.30. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$853.89. 2 employees. Open daily except holidays 1.30 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 45 periodicals rec'd regularly: 5 newsnapers: periodicals rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 40 mags. Library trustees monthly meet-ing first Mon.

Total vols. 5123. Added 752: purchase 665; gift or exchange 87. Lost 25; discarded 11; rep'd 1009; reb'd 331. Cardholders 1253. Added 140: cancelled Circulation 19,614: books 17,737; 95.periodicals 1877.

GILROY HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA CLARA CO. FREE LI-BRARY. E. E. Brownell, Prin. Miss Katharine M. Crusoe, Lib'n. Est. 1879; branch est. Aug. 24, 1916, 22 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 423. Teachers 12; pupils 132.

Annual report not rec'd.

Los Gatos.

Los GATOS [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Caroline H. Bailey, Lib'n. Est. 1898; as F. P. June 1, 1898. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1284.89. Annual income 1923–24, \$4222.52 (from tax sation 33661.19; from other sources \$561.33). Total payments \$3728.54. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1778.87. 3 employees. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 10 a.m. to 12 m. 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 87 periodicals read regularly 12 newspapers; 74 LOS GATOS [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 87 periodicals rec'd regularly: 12 newspapers; 74 mags.; 1 transaction. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total books, etc. 10,048: books 10,046; maps 2. Books added 269. Rep'd 823. Cardholders a. 2125. Added 427; can-

Los Gatos-Continued.

celled a. 80. Circulation 28,183: books 25,451; periodicals 2732. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 65 (58 from State Library).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The box of favorite children's books, belonging to Paul Steele, who passed away some time ago, and given by his wish to the library, are now ready for circulation. — Los Gatos Mail-News, JI 24

||Los Gatos High School Library and Branch, Santa Clara Co. Free Library. J. W. Ayer, Prin. Est. 1893. 15 mags, from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1600. Teachers a. 12; pupils a. 129.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

A new high school building is being erected in this town, with a splendid new library.

J. W. AYER, Prin.

MONTEZUMA MT. RANCH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. E. A. Rogers, Pres. Est. Jan. 11, 1911. Open daily till 9.30 p.m. 6 mags. and 4 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1180.

Annual report not rec'd.

Morgan Hill.

LIVE OAK UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Lewis H. Britton, Prin. Est. 1905. Open school days 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. 18 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1558. Teachers a. 11; pupils a. 158.

Annual report not rec'd.

Mount Hamilton (No exp. office).

LICK OBSERVATORY LIBRARY. W. W. Campbell, Director. Dr R. G. Aitken, Associate Director, in charge. Est. 1888. 100 serials rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 9025.

This library is purely technical for the use of the astronomers at the Lick Observatory. Expenses for periodicals, binding, books, and service are met from the general maintenance budget of the observatory. They total about \$500 a month.

The card catalog of bound volumes has been brought up to date during the year and pamphlets have been roughly classified.

SANTA CLARA CO.—Continued.

Mountain View.

MOUNTAIN VIEW [FREE] PUBLIC LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA CLARA CO. FREE LIBRARY. Arthur L. Palmer, Lib'u. Est. April, 1905; as F. P. Sept. 20, 1905. Branch est. June 5, 1921. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$759.06. Annual income 1923-24, \$1500.15 (from taxation \$1309.39, library tax being 10 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$190.76). Total pay ments \$1466.18. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$793.03. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 1 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in town hall. 44 periodicals ree'd regularly: 12 newspapers; 27 mags.; 5 transactions. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 5120. Added 136: purchase 90; gift or exchange 38; binding 8. Lost 12; discarded 30; reb'd 171. Cardholders 1068. Added 272; cancelled 224. Circulation 20,145: books 19,783; periodicals 362. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 414 (13 from State Library).

MOUNTAIN VIEW HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. W. E. Hester, Prin. Est. 1902. 10 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1750. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 197.

Annual report not rec'd.

Palo Alto.

PALO ALTO [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Frances D. Patterson, Lib'n. Est. 1896; as F. P. 1902. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1974.63. Annual income 1923-24, \$11,-978.93 (from taxation \$10,148.14; from other sources \$1830.79). Total payments \$12,092.55. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1861.01. 4 employees. Open daily except July 4 and Christmas day: week days 8.30 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$51,000 bldg. (\$10,000 from Carnegie). 155 periodicals rec'd regularly : 14 newspapers; 141 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first day of month.

Total vols. 18,539. Added 1418: purchase 764; gift or exchange 309; binding 79; pay books 266. Lost 30. Cardholders 6550. Added 2636; cancelled 2107. Circulation 90,560. Vols. loaned to other libs. 4; borrowed from other libs. 214 (187 from State Library).

The library has had a number, of picture exhibits, held a garden flower exhibit which roused much enthusiasm and has had several instructive talks on art. Once a week "sketch club" meets in the Exhibit Room to which any one interested is invited.

There has been an increase in the number of books drawn from the library

Palo Alto-Continued.

during the year 1923–24 over that of 1922–23 of 26,809, or a total of 90,560 volumes compared with 63,751.

MISS HARKER'S SCHOOL LIBRARY, Miss Catherine Harker, Prin. Est. 1902. 12 mags. and 3 newspapers ree'd regularly,

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers a. 15; pupils a. 86.

Annual report not rec'd.

PALO ALTO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Walter H. Nichols, Prin. Miss Margaret Girdner, Lib'n. Est. 1898. Open to students Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 4.30 p.m.

Total vols. a. 4788. Teachers a. 22; pupils a. 459.

Annual report not rec'd.

San Jose.

\$||SAN JOSE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Edith Daley, Lib'n. Est. 1874; as F. P. 1880. Annual income 1923-24, \$18,344.11 (from appropriation \$17,300; from other sources \$1044.11). Total payments \$16,564.88. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1779.23. 10 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in \$50,000 carnegie bldg. and owns \$7000 East San Jose Carnegie branch bldg. 1 branch. 157 periodicals rec'd regularly: 28 newspapers; 129 mags. Mags. distributed: 120 to main library; 9 to branches. Library trustees monthly meeting third Wed.

Total books, etc. 27,442: books 27,177; maps 20; charts 1; globes 1; hand-tinted photographs 243. Books added 2554: purchase 2073; gift or exchange 355; binding 126. Lost 211; discarded 1595; rep'd 2029; reb'd 1026. Cardholders 10,811. Added 4571; cancelled 2963. Circulation 124,207 (from main library 108,990; from branch 15,217): books 120,380; periodicals 3795; other material 32. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 116 (113 from .State Library).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mrs V. K. Maddox of San Francisco, formerly of this city, has given to the Public Library two pieces of statuary purchased at the Centennial Exposition in 1876 by her mother, Mrs Knox Goodrich. The statues, companion pieces in white Italian marble, are both of little children.—San Jose *Mercury-Herald*, JI 3

COFFEE CLUB LIBRARY, Mrs E. W. Jack, Sec. Mrs Fred Stewart, Lib'n, Est, 1900. Annual income rec'd from membership fees, etc. Membership fe

SANTA CLARA CO .--- Continued.

San Jose-Continued.

\$1, constituting life membership in assoc. and use of books for 1 year. Books loaned to non-members at 10c per week. 1 paid employee. Open week days 11 a.m. to 7.30 p.m. Located 114–116 S. Second st. 18 mags. and 24 newspapers rec'd regularly. Annual meeting third Mon. in October.

Total vols. a. 2240.

Annual report not rec'd.

*COLLEGE NOTRE DAME LIBRARY. See Belmont.

COLLEGE OF THE PACIFIC LIBRARY. See Stockton.

SAN JOSE HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Raymond B. Leland, Prin. Lillian S. Hyde, Lib'n. Est. 1856. 3 employees. Open daily 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 44 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 6636. Teachers a. 91; pupils a. 2021.

Annual report not rec'd

SAN JOSE LAW LIBRARY. See Santa Clara Co. Law Library.

SANTA CLARA Co. free, law, medical and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Santa Clara Co.

STATE TEACHERS COLLEGE LIBRARY. Dr E. R. Snyder, Pres. Miss Joyce Backus, Lib'n. Est. 1872. Income from state appropriations. 5 employees. Open to students during school term, Sept. to June; Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. 126 mags. and 5 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 25,016. Teachers a. 75; pupils a. 965.

Annual report not rec'd.

Santa Clara.

SANTA CLARA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Mary A. Mulhall, Lib'n. Est. Oct. 1904. 1 employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays for 5 hours. Located in town hall. 17 mags, and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting second Thurs.

Total vols. a. 1500. Cardholders a. 1165.

Annual report not rec'd.

SANTA CLARA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Chas. W. Townsend, Prin. Est. 1872. 26 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1682. Teachers a. 18; pupils a. 340.

Annual report not rec'd.

Santa Clara-Continued.

*SODALITY DEBATING SOCIETY LI-BRARY, Est. Sept. 1890. Annual income rec'd from dues. Open to members at all hours. Located in Sodality Club bldg. 10 mags. and 5 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 820.

Annual report not rec'd.

UNIVERSITY OF SANTA CLARA LIBRARY. Rev Z. J. Maker, S.J., Pres. Joseph Sasia, S.J., Lib'n. Est. March 19, 1851. 4 sub-branches. Open for reference to faculty, students and public daily 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in administration bldg. 12 mags. and 6 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 10,000. Teachers a. 38; pupils a. 430.

Annual report not rec'd.

Stanford University.

^{\$\$}LELAND STANFORD JUNIOR UNIVER-SITY LIBRARY. Dr Ray Lyman Wilbur, Pres. George T. Clark, Director of the University Libraries. Est. 1891. 37 employees. 1 branch, Lane Medical Library, San Francisco. Open week days 8 a.m. to 10 p.m. Located in \$700,000 library bldg. 1271 periodicals rec'd regularly: mags. 1260; newspapers 11.

Total vols. 317,604. Added 13,484; purchase 7329; gift 4197; binding 1956; old stock 2. Withdrawn 234.

Sunnyvale.

SUNNYVALE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Ellen Ballard, Lib'n. Est. as free library and reading room Oct. 14, 1908; as F. P. July 20, 1914. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$544.32. Annual income 1923–24, \$1731.34 (from taxation \$1653.51, library tax being 1.5 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$77.83). Total payments \$1753.57. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$522.09. 2 employees. Open daily except holidays 2 to 6 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in Wright bldg. 31 periodicals rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 20 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total books, etc. 3572: books 2846; pamphlets 726. Added 596: books 546 (purchase 447, gift 68, binding 31); pamphlets 50. Books lost 5; discarded 151; rep'd 300; reb'd 31. Cardholders 604. Added 212; cancelled 194. Circulation 14.628.

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY.

(Twenty-sixth class.)

County seat, Santa Cruz.

Area, 425 sq. mi. Pop. 26,269.

Assessed valuation \$26,144,918 (taxable for county \$22,286,415).

SANTA CRUZ CO. FREE LIBBABY, SANTA CRUZ. Miss Minerva H. Water-man, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 16, Co. F. man, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 16, Co. F. L. law, Oct. 13, 1916, to take effect Nov. 15, under an agreement between Board of Supervisors of Santa Cruz Co. and Board of Trustees of Santa Cruz Public Library. Includes entire county for tax and service except Santa Cruz and Watand service except Santa Uruz and Wat-sonville. A n n a l income 1923-24, \$5882.14 (from Co. under contract \$3292.14; from school districts having joined \$2590). Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in Santa Cruz Public Library. 38 em-ployees: 6 in main library. 22 ii. ployees: 6 in main library; 32 in branches. Total branches 91, as fol-lows: community 36—Agua Puerca, Ap-tos, Bald Mountain, Ben Lomond (r.r.), lows: community 36—Agua Puerca, Ap-tos, Bald Mountain, Ben Lomond (r. r.), Ben Lomond school dist., Boulder Creek (r. r.), Calabasas, California Red-wood Park (r. r.), Capitola, Corralitos, Eureka, Felton, Glenwood, Green Val-ley, Happy Valley, Hazel Dell, Hester Creek, Hill, Jefferson, Laguna, Larkin Valley, Laurel, Mt. Hermon (r. r.), Mountain, Oakdale, Ocean View, Olym-pia (r. r.), Pleasant Valley, San An-dreas, Scotts Valley, Seaside, Sequoia, Skyland (r. r.), Soquel (r. r.), Twin Lakes, Zayante; active school districts that have joined 53 (55 school branches) —Agua Puerca, Amesti, Aptos, Bald Mountain, Bear Creek, Ben Lomond, Boulder Creek Union (incl. Bear Creek High, Brown, Calabasas, Carlton, Cas-serly, Central, Corralitos Union (incl. Browns Valley, Corralitos, Redwood), Eureka, Felton, Ferndale, Fruitvale, Glenwood, Green Valley, Happy Valley, Hazel Dell, Hester Creek, Highland, Hill, Jefferson, Laguna, Larkin Valley, Laurel, I've Oak, Mountain, Oakdale, Ocean View, Pacific, Pleasant Valley, Laurel, I've Oak, Mountain, Oakdale, Ocean View, Pacific, Pleasant Valley, Railroad, Roache, San Andreas, Santa Cruz, San Vicente, Scotts Valley, Sea-side, Sequoia, Soquel Union, Valencia, Valley View, Vine Hill. Zayante. 158 periodicals (151 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 3 newspapers; 155 mags. Mags. distributed: 51 to main library; 104 to branches. Mags. distributed: 51 to main library; 104 to branches.

Statistics the same as for Santa Cruz Public Library. Shipments consisting of 17,672 items (17,307 books; 365 other material) were sent to branches. 851 visits were made to headquarters by teachers.

During the year 1 branch (Twin Lakes) was established.

SANTA CRUZ CO.---Continued.

SANTA CRUZ CO. LAW LIBRARY. SANTA CRUZ. Harry E. Miller, Sec. and Lib'n. Est. Aug. 3, 1896. Annual in-come from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits and probate matters. 1 employee. Open week days 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in rooms 5 and 6 of the courthouse. Law publications and journals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3350.

Annual report not rec'd.

SANTA CRUZ CO. TEACHER'S LIBRARY, SANTA CRUZ. Miss Cecil M. Davis, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Income 1923-24, \$63, from 4 of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Teachers employed Total vols. 2300. 242: elem. 163; high 79. Active school districts: elem. 52; high: district 1; union 2. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$4533; high \$11.645. Vols. in schools : elem. 20.871 ; high 28,534.

Ben Lomond.

BEN LOMOND LIBRARY AND BRANCH, DEN LOMOND LIBRARY AND BRANCH. SANTA CRUZ CO. FREE LIBRARY. Wini-fred Walker, Lib'n. Est. March 11, 1911. Income from county supervisors. 1 em-ployee. Open to public 3 afternoons and 3 evenings per week. Located in \$1200 library bldg. 35 mags. (15 from Co.) roa'd regularly rec'd regularly.

Annual report not rec'd.

Boulder Creek.

BOULDER CREEK UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA CRUZ CO. FREE LIBRARY. Harlan C. Smith, Prin. Est. 1905; branch est. Jan. 1920. mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1020. Teachers a. 3; pupils a. 39.

Annual report not rec'd.

Santa Cruz.

\$SANTA CRUZ [FREE] P UBLIC LI-BRARY. Miss Minerva H. Waterman, Lib'n. Est. 1868; as F. P. 1881. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1243.39. Annual income 1923-24. \$14,213.01 (from taxation \$7650.55, library tax being 1 m. on the dollar; from Co. under contract \$220914. from school districts having \$3292.14; from school districts having \$3292.14; from school districts having joined \$2590; from other sources \$680.32). Total payments \$15,360.67. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$95.73. 9 employees: 6 in main library; 3 in branches. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in \$20,000 Carnegie bldg. Owns \$3000 Carnegie Garfield Park Branch bldg., \$3000 Carnegie Seabright Branch bldg., and \$5000 East Side Branch bldg. (narthy eift of Carnegie). 5 branches. (partly gift of Carnegie). 5 branches, 158 periodicals (151 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 3 newspapers; 155 mags. Mags. distributed : 51 to main library ; 104 to branches. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

SANTA CRUZ CO.—Continued.

Santa Cruz-Continued.

Total vols 54,480, Added 4993; purchase 4896; gift or exchange 97. Lost 268; discarded 1272. Cardholders 4831. Circulation 166,721 (from main library 119,251, from branches 47,470): books 156,748; periodicals 9608; other material 365. Vols, loaned to other libs, 24.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .9 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$8730. MINERVA H. WATERMAN, Lib'n.

LA SALLE PAROCHIAL SCHOOL LIBRARY. Brother Paul, Prin. Est. 1900. Located 32 High st. 4 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 470. Teachers a. 3: pupils a. 100.

Annual report not rec'd.

SANTA CRUZ HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA CRUZ PUBLIC LI-BRARY. G. A. Bond, Prin. Mrs M. C. Grover, Lib'n. Est. 1876; branch est. 1914. 25 periodicals ree'd regularly.

Total vols. 2863. Added 450: purchase 300; gift 125; binding 25. Teachers 43; pupils 785.

SEABRIGHT LIBRARY ASSOCIATION LI-BRARY, Miss S. A. Tyrrell, Sec. Est. a. 1896. Library has been closed for some time. The books will eventually be given to the public library.

Total vols. a. 350.

Watsonville.

Watsonville. §WATSONVILLE [FREE] P UBLIC LI-BRABY. Miss Belle M. Jenkins, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. Nov. 21, 1896. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$238.95. Annual income 1923– 24, \$353.59 (from taxation \$3216.46, library tax being 1 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$317.13). Total pay-ments \$3396.37. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$376.17. 3 employees. Open daily ex-cept holidays 12.30 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$12,000 Carnegie bldg. 59 periodicals (50 for circulation) ree'd regularly: 8 newspapers; 51 mags. Li-brary trustees monthly meeting first Tues. Tues.

Total vols. 10,135. Added 645: purchase 540; gift or exchange 60; binding 45. Lost 85; discarded 95; rep'd 150; reb'd 196. Cardholders 1404. Circulation 31,779. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 145 (all from State Library).

ST. FRANCIS SCHOOL LIBRARY. Rev. F. Burelbach, Prin. George Barron, Lib'n. Est. 1869. Open daily 12.30 to 1.30 and 4 to 5 p.m. 9 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Watsonville-Continued.

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 165.

Annual report not rec'd.

WATSONVILLE HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. T. S. McQuiddy, Prin. Miss Ida Mc-Adam, Lib'n. Est. 1892. 1 employee. Open school days 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. 32 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3708. Teachers a. 26; pupils a. 684.

Annual report not rec'd.

SHASTA COUNTY.

(Thirty-fifth class.)

County seat, Redding.

Area, 4050 sq. mi. Pop. 13,311.

Assessed valuation \$23,027,638 (taxable for county \$16,132,325).

The Supervisors of Shasta Co. established a county free library on May 10, 1917. No tax for its maintenance has ever been levied.

SHASTA CO. LAW LIBRARY. REDDING. Judge Walter E. Herzinger, Pres. Hiram R. Baker, Lib'n. Est. a. 1890. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits and from appropriations from county. 1 employee. Open all day. Located in courthouse. 3 periodicals rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. a. 1820.

Have complete reporter system.

SHASTA CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, RED-DING. Mrs Charlotte Cunningham, Co. Supt. Income 1923-24, \$42, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$61.40.

Total vols. 1030. Teachers employed 155: elem. 123; high 32. Active school districts: elem. 97; high: union 2; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923–24: elem. \$4260; high \$2028. Vols. in schools: elem. 47,331; high 9160.

Anderson.

ANDERSON UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Roy E. Simpson, Prin. Miss Lucille Keyt, Lib'n. Est. 1908. 8 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1608. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 108.

Annual report not rec'd.

SHASTA CO.—Continued.

McArthur.

FALL RIVER JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, J. C. Stanley, Prin. Est. Sept. 11, 1911. 7 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 600. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 50.

Annual report not rec'd.

Redding.

REDDING [FREE PUBLIC] CARNEGIE LI-BRARY. Miss Ida Southern, Lib'n. Est. Feb. 1, 1896; as F. P. 1903. Annual income 1923-24, \$2514.47 (from taxation \$2257; from other sources \$257.47). Total payments \$2204.19. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$310.28. 2 employees. Open daily except holidays 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 33 periodicals rec'd regularly: 6 newspapers; 27 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 4244. Added 188: purchase 186; gift or exchange 2. Lost 5; discarded 119; rep'd 200. Cardholders 510. Added 273; cancelled 246. Circulation 11,069: books 10,697; periodicals 372. Vols. borrowed from State Library 14.

SHASTA Co. law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Shasta Co.

SHASTA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, J. O. Osborn, Prin. Est. 1899, 1 employee. Open school days 8.40 a.m. to 4 p.m. 10 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2719. Teachers a. 16; pupils a. 328.

Annual report not rec'd.

SIERRA COUNTY.

(Fifty-sixth class.)

County seat, Downieville.

Area, 957 sq. mi. Pop. 1783.

Assessed valuation \$3,285,112 (taxable for county \$2,921,495).

SIERRA Co. LAW LIBBARY, DOWNIE-VILLE. Est. since 1891. Income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Open 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in chambers of Judge of Superior Court.

Total vols. a. 135.

Annual report not rec'd.

SIEBBA CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, DOWNIEVILLE. Miss Belle Alexander, Co. Supt. Income 1923-24, \$13, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Total vols. 263. Teachers employed 24: elem. 16; high 8. Active school districts: elem. 14; high 1 (4 high schools), jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24; elem. \$555; high \$250.
 Vols. in schools: elem. 9479; high 1325.

Downieville.

SIERRA Co. law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Sierra Co.

Loyalton.

SIERRA VALLEY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. R. B. Montgomery, Prin. Est. Aug. 1908. 5 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 712. Teachers a. 3; pupils a. 21.

Annual report not rec'd.

SISKIYOU COUNTY.

(Thirty-third class.)

County seat, Yreka.

Area, 6079 sq. mi. Pop. 18,545.

Assessed valuation \$29,145,103 (taxable for county \$21,058,455).

SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY, YREKA. Miss Thelma Brackett, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, June 7, 1915; work started Aug. 1, 1915. Includes entire county for tax and service, tax being made under Pol. Code, Sec. 4041. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$2413.44. Annual income 1923–24, \$20,222.45 (from taxation \$10,-377.96, library tax being. 5 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$7707.94; from Co. Teachers' Library \$70; from other sources \$2066.55). Total payments \$21,678.90. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$956.99. 30 employees: 5 in office; 25 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. during June, July and August. Located in courthouse. Total branches 164, as follows: community 80—Ball Home Deposit, Big Springs, Bogus, Callahan, Calor, Camp C., Cedar Park, Clear Creek, Copco, Davis Home Deposit, Dear dorff Home Deposit, Delphic, Dillon, Dorris, Douglas, Dunsmuir (r.r.), East Fork, Edgewood (r.r.), Etna Mills (r.r), Excelsior, Fall Creek, Finley Camp, Forks, Fort Jones (r.r.), French Creek, Gazelle, (r.r.), Greenview, Grenada, Hamburg, Happy Camp, Hilt (r.r.), Honolulu, Hornbrook, Indian Creek, Irving, Junction, Kandra Home Deposit, Kamath City, Klamath Hot Springs, 14 Lake, Lincoln, Little Shasta, Lowden, Lowood. Macdoel, McCloud, Mc-Conaughy, Marble Mountain, Meamber, Mill Creek, Mills Home Deposit, Montarue. Mound. Mt. Dome, Mount Hebron, Mt. Shasta (formerly Sisson) (r.r.), Oak Bar, Oak Grove, Oklahoma Union, Oro Fino, Orr Lake, Quartz Valley,

SISKIYOU CO.—Continued.

Red Rock, Redd, Rhett Lake, Riverside, Rocky Mountain, Rose, Sawyers Bar, Schmitt Mill, Shasta View, Snowden, Table Rock, Tennant (r.r.), Thomas Table Rock, Tennant (r.r.), Thomas Home Deposit (transferred to Copco), Weed, Willow Creek, Yreka (r.r.) and Co. Hospital in Yreka; active school districts that have joined 91 (84 school branches)—Azalea, Big Springs, Bogus, Callahan, Cedar Park, Clear Creek, Cot-tonwood, Delphic, Dillon, Dorris, Doug-las, Dunsmuir, Dwinnell, East Fork, Edgewood Etna Union (incl. Etna Edgewood, Etna Union (incl. Etna. Washington, and Union), Excelsior, Fall Creek, Foothill, Forks, French Creek, Gazelle Forks, Fort Jones, Jazelle Union (incl. Gazelle, Independence, and Wheatfield), Greenhorn, Greenview Union (in cl. Greenview and Kidder Creek), Grenada, Hamburg, Happy Camp, Hawkinsville, Highland, Hilt, Honolulu, Horse Creek, Indian Creek, Irving, Junction, Klamath, Klamath City, La Lake, Lincoln, Little Shasta, Lone Star, Lowden, Lowood, McCloud Union (incl. Pebble and Mc-Cloud), McConaughy, Macdoel Union (incl. Macdoel and Shady Dell), Meam-hen Will Creek Moder Creek Variance (incl. Macdoel and Shady Dell). Meamber, Mill Creek, Moffit Creek, Montague, Mound, Mt. Hebron, Oak Grove, Okla-homa Union (incl. Lakeview and Mt. Dome), Oro Fino, Orr Lake, Pros-perous, Quartz Valley, Red Rock, Redd, Rhett Lake, Riverside, Rocky Mountain, Rose, Salmon River, Sawyers Bar, Scott River, Seiad, Shasta River, Shasta View, Sheep Mountain, Shelvin Rock, Sisson Union (incl. Black Butte and Sisson), Snowden, Spring, Table Rock, Tennant, Vineland, Weed Union (incl. Mt. Shasta and Summit). Willow Creek, Yreka: special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Yreka. 419 periodicals (412 Library in Yreka. 419 periodicals (412 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers: 410 mags.; 4 other serials. Distributed: 26 to office; 393 to branches.

Total books, etc. 57,829: books 47,085; pamphlets 3623; maps 598; prints 2651; music records 336; stereographs 3353; charts 142; globes 41. Added 11,065: books 10,730 (purchase 10,244, gift or exchange 482, binding 4); pamphlets 112; maps 27; prints 96; music records 41; charts 52; globes 7. Withdrawn 4650: books 4532 (burned •1033, discarded 3499); maps 1; music records 19; stereographs 93; charts 5. Books rep'd 1528; reb'd 612. Cardholders not reported; borrowers' file in process of revision. Circulation 75.926: books 74,407; periodicals 1519. Vols. loaned to other libs. 2; borrowed from other libs. 278 (275 from State Library). 1655 shipments (42,499 items: 38,473 books; 3756 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 20,792 were

SISKIYOU CO .-- Continued.

supplementary books. In addition 4078 supplementary books were retained from previous year, 21,755 special requests.

During the year 70 visits were made to 23 branches. 362 visits were made to headquarters by 72 custodians. 3 branches were established; 5 branches were discontinued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The Siskiyou County Teachers' Institute, held in Yreka September 9, 10, 11, was a busy time for the library, which kept open from eight until six to accommodate the many teachers who have no other opportunity, during the year, to visit the county seat. The librarian gave a short talk on Books for Children, and was responsible for the entertainment of the teachers at the evening gathering held in place of the former receptions. Anticipating the sort of evening which has been held heretofore, only a part of the teachers were present. It was gratifying during the following days of Institute to hear many expressions of regret from those who had thought they were escaping an evening of boredom by staving at home.

The Dunsmuir Branch of the library which, after the fire in May, had been using, temporarily, the manual training room of the grammar school, was forced to move once more before school opened. Mr F. B. Van Fossen offered a room in a newly remodelled office building, at a decidedly reduced rate. Here the library will remain, in painfully cramped quarters, until the new City Hall is built. The bonds for this hall have just been favorably voted upon, with the result that the hall will probably be completed within a year. An attractive room is planned for the library in this building.

Fort Jones Branch also has moved. For years the library was located in the same room as the town board, and was patronized as little as possible because of the fact that the room was shared also by bats. The townspeople finally realized the futility of trying to carry on in such quarters, and have selected a pleasant downstairs office room, which the town is to put into an attractive condition and the county is to pay the rent.

Miss Dorothy Ellis, who completed the library course at the University of Cali-

SISKIYOU CO. -Continued.

fornia in May, began work as catologer on June 1. Miss Ellis has been helping with the task of taking inventory in the branches throughout the country.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .4 m. on the dollar.

THELMA BRACKETT, Lib'n.

SISKIYOU CO. LAW LIBRARY, YREKA. J. F. Lodge, Superior Judge, Lib'n. Est. 1892. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open week days 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in judge's chambers, courthouse. 5 periodicals rec'd regularly. Library trustees have monthly meetings.

Total vols. a. 800.

Annual report not rec'd,

SISKIYOU CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, YREKA. L. S. Newton, Co. Supt. Est. 1889; joined county free library Aug. 1915. Income 1923–24, \$50, from ½ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$70.

Teachers employed 199: elementary 154; high 45. Active school districts: elem. 91; high 3 (8 high schools): district 1; union 2. Total expended for books for schools, 1923–24: elem. \$7500; high \$2250. Vols. in schools: elem. 44,776; high 3928.

Dorris.

DORRIS HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCU, SISKIYOU CO, FREE LIBRARY, Mrs K. H. Livingston, Custodian, Est. Oct. 4, 1919.

Total vols. a. 97.

This school is a branch of the Siskiyou union high school.

Annual report not rec'd.

Dunsmuir.

DUNSMUIR BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Siskiyou Co. Free Library.

DUNSMUIR HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Harry Burch, Prin. Est. Sept. 25, 1911; branch est. Oct. 10, 1917.

Total vols. a. 360. Teachers a. 3; pupils a. 20.

Annual report not rec'd.

Etna Mills (No exp. office).

ETNA FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Vivian Smith, Lib'n. Est. F. P. Nov. 1904; branch est. Jan. 6, 1916. 1

SISKIYOU CO .- Continued.

Etna Mills-Continued.

employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 8 p.m. Located in town hall rent free. 4 mags, from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc. a. 1455: books a. 1243; pamphlets a. 212. Cardholders a. 92.

Annual report not rec'd.

[ETNA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. Rode, Prin. Est. 1892. Destroyed by fire May 16, 1913. Re-est. Branch est. Sept. 9, 1916. 16 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1600. Teachers a. 7; pupils 95.

Annual report not rec'd.

Fort Jones (No exp. office).

FORT JONES BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Siskiyou Co. Free Library.

FORT JONES HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Will Jessup, Prin. Est. Oct. 4, 1919.

Total vols. a. 118.

This school is a branch of the Siskiyou union high school.

Annual report not rec'd.

McCloud.

McCLOUD CLUB LIBRARY. Chas. Ford, in charge. Est. Sept. 10, 1906. Annual income rec'd from dues, etc. Fee 50 cts. per mo. 1 employee. Open to public week days 1 to 5.30, 7 to 10 p.m. Reading and reference room free to public, but some books are free to members only. Located in bldg. furnished free of charge by McCloud River Lumber Co. 39 mags. and 8 newspapers rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting 18th.

Total vols. a. 1200.

Annual report not rec'd.

McCloud High School Library and Branch, Siskiyou Co. Free Library. R. S. Hicks, Prin. Est. Oct. 4, 1919.

Total vols. a. 276.

This school is a branch of the Siskiyou upion high school.

Annual report not rec'd.

Mayten (P. O. Montague, Motor Route A).

MAYTEN HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Mrs Zelma Carpenter, Lib'n. Est. Sept. 1920. Total vols. a. 48.

SISKIYOU CO.-Continued.

Mayten-Continued.

This school is a branch of the Siskiyou union high school.

Annual report not rec'd.

Montague.

MONTAGUE HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Vivian Tarbox, Custodian. Est. Sept. 1921.

Total vols. a. 96.

This school is a branch of the Siskiyou union high school.

Annual report not rec'd.

Mt. Shasta.

SHASTA FOREST RESERVE LIBRARY. A. F. Tissot, Lib'n. Est. 1900. Open week days 8 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. Located in U. S. Forest Service office. 2 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total books, etc. a. 3175: books 105; pamphlets 2020; serials 500; maps 300; films 250.

This is simply a small collection of books relating to Forestry and allied subjects for reference of local Forest Service employees of whom there are ten to twenty in the area served.

SISSON HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY. Felix H. Hurn, Prin. Est. Oct. 4, 1919.

Total vols. a. 9.

This school is a branch of the Siskiyou union high school.

Annual report not rec'd.

Weed.

WEED HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY. E. T. Lakin, Prin. Est. Oct. 4, 1919.

T. 1 1 49

Total vols. a. 43.

This school is a branch of the Siskiyou union high school.

Annual report not rec'd.

Yreka.

YREKA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Nellie Dowling, Lib'n. Est. March 21, 1910; as F. P. June 6, 1910. 2 employees. Open daily except holidays 1.15 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$8000 Carnegie bldg. 24 periodicals rec'd regularly: 4 newspapers; 20 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 2960. Added 65: purchase 1; gift or exchange 62; binding 2. Lost 2; discarded 53; rep'd 132; reb'd 2. Cardholders 1487. Added 229; cancelled 36.

Financial statistics not rec'd.

SISKIYOU CO.—Continued.

Yreka-Continued.

SISKIYOU Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Siskiyou Co.

SISKIYOU UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, SISKIYOU CO. FREE LIBRARY. E. C. Browne, Prin. Polly R. Hatch, in charge. Est. 1893. Destroyed by fire Oct. 1916. Branch est. Oct. 4, 1919. Open school days 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. 20 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2550. Teachers a. 10: pupils a. 160.

Annual report not rec'd.

SOLANO COUNTY.

(Nineteenth class.)

County seat, Fairfield.

Area, 911 sq. mi. Pop. 40,602.

Assessed valuation \$37,066,757 (taxable for county \$30,323,027).

SOLANO CO. FREE LIBRARY, FAIRFIELD. SOLANO CO. FREE LIBRARY, FAIRFIELD. Miss Clara B. Dills, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, April 6, 1914; work started Aug. 1, 1914. Includes entire county for tax and service, tax being made under Pol. Code, Sec. 4041. Bal, July 1, 1923, \$4491.10. Annual in-come \$21,723.62 (from taxation \$15,-484.64, library tax being .5 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$3708; from other sources \$2530 98) Total payments \$21 053.50 \$2530.98). Total payments \$21,053.50. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$5161.22. 14 em-ployees: 4 in office; 10 in branches. ployees: 4 in office; 10 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in Armijo Union High School. Total branches 65, as fol-lows: community 15—Benicia (r. r.), Boy Scouts Camp, Cement, Cordelia, Dixon (r. r.), Elmira, Fairfield (r. r.), and courthouse in Fairfield, Grizzly Island, Mare Island (r. r.), Rio Vista (r. r.), South Vallejo (r. r.), Suisun (r. r.), Vacaville (r. r.), Vallejo; active school districts that have joined 50 (49) school districts that have joined 50 (49 school branches) — Allendale, Armijo High, Benicia, Binghamton, Blue Moun-High, Benicia, Engnannton, Bute Moun-tain Jt., Browns Valley, Canright, Cement, Center, Cooper, Crescent, Crys-tal, Currey, Denverton, Dixon, Elmira, Fairfield, Falls, Flosden, Gomer, Grant, Green Valley, Hunter, Maine Prairie, Milzner, Montezuma, Oakdale, Olive, Owens, Peaceful Glen, Pitts, Pleasants Valley, Rhine, Rio Vista, Rockville, Round Hill, Ryer Island, Silveyville, Solano Jt., Suisun, Toland, Tolenas, Tre-mont, Union, Vaca Valley Union (incl. mont, Union, Vaca Valley Union (incl. Alamo, Lagoon, Pena, and Vacaville), FIELD, Dan H. White, Co. Willow Spring, Wolfskill; special school Co. Free Library. Income branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in from ½ of \$2 fee for teacher Fairfield. 664 periodicals (all for cir- Amt, paid for books \$6.50.

SOLANO CO .--- Continued.

culation) rec'd regularly: 364 news-papers; 300 mags. Distributed: 95 to office; 569 to branches.

Total books, etc. 54,526: books 47,864; pamphlets 214; maps 338; prints 238; music records 1237; music sheets 232; stereographs 4178; charts 48; globes 177. Added 8837: books 8192 (purchase 8183. gift or exchange 9); maps 8; prints 13; music records 68; music sheets 213: stereographs 325; charts 8; globes Withdrawn 1395: books discarded 10. 1382 : music records 13. Books rep'd 7002: reb'd 862. Cardholders 3592. Added 447; cancelled 20. Circulation 103,810 (from headquarters 19,029, from branches 84,781): books 96,363; periodicals 4128; other material 3319. Vols. loaned to other libs. 38; borrowed from other libs, 851 (806 from State Library). 1355 shipments (24.252 items: 20,963 books: 3289 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 10,840 were supplementary books. 13,916 special requests.

During the year 60 visits were made to 49 branches. 405 visits were made to headquarters by 5 custodians and 96 teachers.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Dills has returned to the library much improved in health after six months absence.

During the past quarter assistance has been given several clubs in planning programs on modern fiction.

A depository has been placed at the Red Cross Health Center in the Armijo District for the use of the nurse in charge

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .55 m. on the dollar.

CLARA B. DILLS, Lib'n.

SOLANO CO. LAW LIBRARY, FAIRFIELD. Louise Morrill, Lib'n. Est. 1891. Annual income received from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. 1 employee. Open to public week days 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. A. 12 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 4033.

Annual report not rec'd.

SOLANO CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, FAIR-FIELD. Dan H. White, Co. Supt. Joined Co. Free Library. Income 1923-24, \$47, from ½ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

SOLANO CO.-Continued.

Total vols. 525. Teachers employed 224: elem. 159; high 65. Active school districts: elem. 49 (incl. 2 jt.); high: city 1; district 1; union 3; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$4520; high \$4716. Vols. in schools: elem. 37.226; high 13.818.

Benicia.

BENICIA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SOLANO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss May Houlahan, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. June 5, 1906; branch est. Sept. 6, 1915. 1 employee. Open 23 hours a Library trustees monthly meetweek. ing first Thurs.

Total vols. a. 3300. Cardholders a. 1000.

Annual report not rec'd.

BENICIA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. J. O. Gossett, Prin. Est. 1897. 4 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1500. Teachers a. 5: pupils a. 68.

Annual report not rec'd.

Dixon.

DIXON FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Est. April 3, 1906. No trustees appointed.

DIXON UNION HIGH SCHOOL DIST. LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SOLANO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Leta Hutchinson, Lib'n, Est. July 1, 1911; branch est. Sept. 6, 1915. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$592.73. An-nual income 1923–24, \$3617.13 (from taxation \$3561.68, library tax being 6 m. tatation 4000160; indat; tat terms 550.45). Total payments \$3218.37. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$991.49. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 10 a.m. to 12 m.; 1.30 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Lo-cated in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 47 periodicals rec'd regularly: 3 newspapers; 44 mags.

Total vols. 4471. Added 139: purchase 50; gift 48; binding 41. Lost 5; discarded 20; rep'd 400; reb'd 25. Cardholders 1040. Added 115; cancelled 30. . Circulation 12,191: books 11,091; periodicals 1100.

DIXON UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. H. Hooper, Prin. Est. 1892. Open school days 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. 12 mags. and 8 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1080. Teachers a. 7: pupils a. 94.

Annual report not rec'd.

SOLANO CO.-Continued.

Fairfield—Continued.

R. W. Everett, Prin. Est. 1891; branch est. Sept. 1, 1915.

Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 131.

Annual report not rec'd.

SOLANO Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Solano Co.

Rio Vista.

RIO VISTA JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, J. W. Douglass, Prin. Est. Sept. 1912. Branch est. Oct. 23, 1912. 1 employee. 7 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1072. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 89.

Annual report not rec'd.

Suisun.

SUISUN FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Ed Dinkelspiel, Sec. Lib'y Trustees. Est. as F. P. May 8, 1906.

Vacaville.

VACAVILLE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Est. June 21, 1905.

VACAVILLE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY DIST. LIBRARY AND BRANCH, BRARY DIST. LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SOLANO CO. FREE LIBRARY. MISS Nan Reese, Lib'n: Est. as free library Feb. 15, 1912: as high school library dist. library Nov. 5, 1912; branch est. Sept. 1, 1914. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$744.89. An-nual income 1923–24, \$3449.35 (from taxation \$3407.30; from other sources \$42.05). Total payments \$3114.21. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1080.03. 2 employees. Onen daily excent Sun and holidays 10 July 1, 1924, \$1080.03. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 10 a.m. to 12 m., 1.30 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$12,500 Carnegie bldg. 60 periodicals rec'd regularly: 5 news-papers; 55 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Wed.

Total vols. 2516. Added 80: purchase 38; gift or exchange 23; binding 19. Lost 3: discarded 8: rep'd 60; reb'd 35. Cardholders 439. Added 34; cancelled 20. Circulation 15.815; books 14.294; periodicals 1521. Vols. borrowed from other libs, 58 (all from State Library).

VACAVILLE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. E. W. Stoddard, Prin. 1893. 5 mags. rec'd regularly. Est.

Total vols. a. 2172. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 89.

Annual report not rec'd.

Vallejo.

Fairfield. ARMIJO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SOLANO CO. FREE LIBRARY. SOLANO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Est. 1883; as F. P. 1884; branch est.

SOLANO CO .--- Continued.

Vallejo-Continued.

Sept. 6, 1915. Annual income 1923-24, \$12,153.38 (from taxation \$11,630; from other sources \$523.38). Total payments \$11,562.75. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$590.63. 7 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 10 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 1 to 5 p.m. Located in \$20,000 Carnegie bldg. 106 periodicals rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 95 mags.

Total books, etc. 20.322: books 20,320: maps 2. Books added 1591: purchase 1379; gift or exchange 148; binding 64. Rep'd a. 500. Cardholders a. 5500. Added 2857. Circulation 93,457.

VALLEJO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, C. S. Brown, Prin. Est. 1870. 8 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1400. Teachers a. 15; pupils a. 347.

Annual report not rec'd.

SONOMA COUNTY.

(Fourteenth class.)

County seat, Santa Rosa.

Area, 1540 sq. mi. Pop. 51,990.

Assessed valuation \$51,256,865 (taxable for county \$43,240,585).

SONOMA CO. FREE LIBRARY. Est. May 11, 1916. The support of the library was not included in the tax levy, Sept. 1924. On July 5, 1916, the Cloverdale Free Public Library joined the Sonoma Co. Free Library.

SONOMA CO. LAW LIBRARY, SANTA ROSA, Asst. Dist. Atty. Jack W. Ford. Sec. Est. 1891: Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Located in courthouse. Library trustees meet at call of president.

Total vols. a. 3300.

Annual report not rec'd.

SONOMA CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY. SANTA ROSA. Miss Louise Clark. Co. Supt. Est. 1875. Income 1923-24, \$102. from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books. \$326.93.

Total vols. 2300. Teachers employed 470: elem. 328; high 142. Active school districts: elem. 141 (incl. 2 jt.); high 7 (8 high schools): district 3; union 4. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$6718; high \$11,000. Vols. in schools: elem. 182,327; high 13,754.

SONOMA CO.—Continued.

Camp Meeker.

CAMP MEEKER FREE LIBRARY. Miss Helen M. Smith, Lib'n. Est. May 1, 1910. Supported by donations. 1 employee. Open to public daily except Wed. and Sun. 12 m. to 4 p.m. 3 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1563.

Annual report not rec'd.

Cloverdale.

CLOVERDALE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs Lillian Domine, Lib'n. Est. March, 1910; opened by Women's Improvement Club Sept. 3, 1913; est. as F. P. Dec. 6, 1913; joined Co. Free Library July 5, 1916. Bal, July 1, 1923, \$97.05. Annual income 1923–24, \$364.87 (from taxation \$165.07, library tax being .003 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$199.80). Total payments \$340.08. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$121.84. 1 employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 8.30 p.m. Located in Women's Improvement clubhouse. 15 periodicals ree'd regularly: 2 newspapers; 13 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting last Tues.

Total vols. 1994. Added 102: purchase 101; gift 1. Cardholders 366. Circulation 5733.

CLOVERDALE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Louis E. Flinspach, Prin. Est. 1892. 6 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 25. Teachers a. 3; pupils a. 31.

Annual report not rec'd.

Cotati.

COTATI FREE LIBRARY. Miss Edwina Keyt, Lib'n. Est. Dec. 9, 1912. Income from membership dues of \$1, and subscriptions. No paid employees. Open Thurs. 2 to 4 p.m. Located in room in Ladies' Improvement Club Hall.

Total vols. a. 1780. Cardholders a. 70. Annual report not rec'd.

Eldridge.

*SONOMA STATE HOME LIBRARY, F. O. Butler, Med. Supt. Mabel Sassenrath, Lib'n, Est. 1906. Open daily 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. Located in club rooms.

Total vols. a. 1217.

Annual report not rec'd.

Geyserville.

GEYSERVILLE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. H. D. Billman, Prin. Est. Sept. 27, 1917. 14 periodicals (7 mags.) rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 600. Teachers a. 5; pupils a. 66.

Annual report not rec'd.

SONOMA CO .- Continued.

Glen Ellen.

JACK LONDON MEMORIAL LIBRARY. Located in Jack London memorial bldg. No further information rec'd.

Graton.

GRATON W. C. T. U. LIBRARY. Mrs H. B. Churchman, in charge. Est. Dec. 1911. Supported by subscriptions. 1 employee. Open Mon. and Fri. afternoon and evening; reading room open all day. Located in Graton electric depot. 3 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1182.

Annual report not rec'd.

Healdsburg.

HEALDSBURG CARNEGIE [FREE] PUB-LIC LIBRARY. Miss Christal Fox, Lib'n. Est, 1888; as F. P. 1898. Bal, July 1, 1923, \$1118.08. Annual income, 1923–24, \$2461.13 (from taxation \$2145.71; from other sources \$315.42). Total payments \$2855.39. Bal, July 1, 1924, \$693.82, 2 employees Onen doily excent Sun and \$2855.59. Bal. July 1, 1524, 4055.52. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 1.30 to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$10,700 Carnegie bldg, 74 periodicals rec'd regularly: 8 news-papers; 62 mags.; 4 transactions. Li-terest transactions. Li-terest transactions. Li-terest set the machine for the former former for the former for the former for the former for the former former for the former former for the former former for the former for the former for the former former for the former former for the former for the former for the former former for the former former for the former former former for the former former former for the former former for the former former for the former former former for the former former former for the former former former former former former for the former former former former for the former fo brary trustees monthly meeting first of month.

Total vols. 6720. Added 405: purchase 306; gift or exchange 5; binding 4: pay collection 90. Lost 4: discarded 41; reb'd 108. Cardholders 2588. Added 192: cancelled 88. Circulation 18,055; books 16,685; periodicals 1370. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 120 (112 from State Library).

HEALDSBURG HIGH SCHOOL LIRBARY. E. R. Morehead, Prin. Gertrude Bon-ham, Lib'n. Est. 1888; re-est. 1920. Open school days 8.30 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. 43 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1675. Added 500: purchase 368; gift 122; binding 10. Teachers 19: pupils 324. Circulation 5642.

Occidental.

OCCIDENTAL FREE LIBRARY. Miss Olive Chick, Custodian. Est. Dec. 1, 1913. Income from subscriptions. Open daily 3 hrs. Located in post office bldg.

Total vols. a. 250.

Annual report not rec'd.

Petaluma.

SPETALUMA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. *PETALUMA [FREE] FUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Sara Frances Cassiday, Lib'n. Est. 1867: as F. P. 1878. Bal. July 1, 1923. \$1272.43. Annual income 1923–24, \$6440.72 (from taxation \$6150.72, li-brary tax being 1 m. on the dollar; from BRANCH, SANTA ROSA PUBLIC LIBRARY.

SONOMA CO .- Continued.

Petaluma-Continued.

other sources \$290). Total payments \$6282.40. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1430.75. 3 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 1 to 9 p.m. Located in \$18,500 Carnegie bldg. 82 periodicals rec'd regularly: 11 newspapers; 71 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 14,251. Added 1146: purchase 1111; binding 35. Discarded 615. 2627. Cardholders Added 515: cancelled 207. Circulation 51,018. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 17 (all from State Library).

PETALUMA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Bruce H. Painter, Prin. Est. 1872. 35 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2250. Teachers a. 16: pupils a. 315.

Annual report not rec'd.

Santa Rosa.

\$\$SANTA ROSA FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Margaret Adelle Barnett, Lib'n, Est. 1869; as F. P. 1884. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1774.38. Annual income \$12,-1923, \$1774.38. Annual mecome \$12,-896.18 (from taxation \$11,871.43, li-brary tax being 10 m. on the dollar: from other sources \$1024.75). Total payments \$\$501.60. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$6168.96. 5 employees. Open daily ex-cept holidays. Located in \$25,000 Car-negic bldg. 11 branches. 110 periodicals rec'd regularly: 6 newspapers; 104 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 29,799. Added 1886: purchase 1709; gift or exchange 76; binding 88; previously accessioned etc. 13. Lost (2 yrs.) 245; discarded 816. Cardholders 7099. Added 1372: cancelled 301. Circulation 119,846: books 112,380; periodicals 5072; pictures 2394. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 158 (all from State Library).

SANTA ROSA HIGH SCHOOL AND JUNIOR COLLEGE LIBRARY AND BRANCH, SANTA ROSA PUBLIC LIBRARY, E. H. Barker, Prin. Dagney Jewell, Custodian. Est. 1876; branch est. Nov. 1914. Open school days 8.30 a.m. to 4.30 p.m. 9 mags, rec'd regularly.

10,170.Added Total vols. 1604 Teachers 39; puplis 680. Circulation 18.103.

SONOMA CO.-Continued.

Santa Rosa-Continued.

Sister Agatha, Supt. Est. 1880. Located on B st. 11 mags. and 6 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 5528. Teachers a. 21; pupils a. 100.

Annual report not rec'd.

Sebastopol.

SEBASTOPOL FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY. Mrs R. C. Murphy, Lib'n. Est. July 1, 1911; as F. P. Nov. 15, 1911. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$580.90. Annual income 1923– 24, \$1296.66 (from taxation \$1217.16, library tax being 11 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$79.50). Total payments \$1164.57. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$712.59. 1 employee. Open daily except Sun. and holidays. Located in \$7500 Carnegie bldg. 27 periodicals rec'd regularly: 5 newspapers; 22 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting last Fri.

Total books, etc. 4331: books 4304; serials 27. Books added 448: purchase 385; gift or exchange 57; binding 6. Discarded 71; rep'd 250; reb'd 6. Cardholders 994. Added 109; cancelled 35. Circulation 11,354: books 3654; periodicals 7700. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 6 (all from State Library).

ANALY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Est. 1909. 4 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 866. Teachers a. 11; pupils a. 197.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Alice B. Fowler, a graduate of the Riverside Library School, and formerly connected with the Alhambra Public Library, was this year appointed as high school librarian in the Analy Union High School.

ALICE B. FOWLER, Lib'n.

Sonoma.

SONOMA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Kate I. McDonell, Lib'n. Est. Oct. 1903; as F. P. Aug. 5, 1909. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$84.46. Annual income 1923–24, \$932.60 (from taxation \$900; from other sources \$32.60). Total payments \$790.35. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$226.71. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 4.30 and 7 to 8.30 p.m. Located in \$7000 Carnegie bldg. 29 periodicals rec'd regularly: 7 newspapers; 22 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. 3421. Added 40 by gift. Cardholders 1082. Added 81.

11-34984

SONOMA CO.-Continued.

Sonoma—Continued.

SONOMA VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, L. H. Golton, Prin. Est. 1892. 20 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1165. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 97.

Annual report not rec'd.

STANISLAUS COUNTY.

(Sixteenth class.)

County seat, Modesto.

Area, 1486 sq. mi. Pop. 43,557.

Assessed valuation \$63,313,164 (taxable for county \$53,347,950).

STANISLAUS CO. FREE LIBRARY, MO-DESTO. Miss Bessie B. Silverthorn, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Aug. 14, 1911; work started Jan. 1, 1912. 14, 1911; work started Jan. 1, 1912. Includes entire county for tax and serv-ice. Modesto joined under Sec. 3, Tur-lock under Sec. 4. County Teachers' Library joined Co. Free Library. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$948.82. Annual income \$40,644.29 (from taxation \$32,407.01, Ubraw tax bais and the second July 1, 1923, \$948.82, Annual Income \$40,644.29 (from taxation \$32,407.01, library tax being .6384 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$4829.50; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$114; from other sources \$293.78). Total payments \$30,733.85. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$10,859.26. 74 employees: 3 in office; 71 in branches. Open daily except holidays and Sun, during July and Aug.: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun, 2 to 5 p.m. Located in McHenry Free Public Library, Modesto. Total branches 68, as follows: community 27—Ceres (r.r.), Claus, Crows Landing (r.r.), Denair (r.r.), Don Pedro, Empire (r.r.), Hick man, Hughson (r.r.), Keyes, Knights Ferry, La Grange, McHenry Public Library (r.r.) and Farm Adviser in Medate Montrollion Montria, View in Modesto, Montpellier, Mountain View, Newman (r. r.), Oakdale (r. r.), Orange Blossom, Patterson (r. r.), Riverbank (r. r.), Salida (r. r.), Tegner, Turlock (r. r.), Valley Home (r. r.), Waterford (r. r.), Wesley (r. r.), Wood Colony; active school districts that have joined 42 (40 school berncher). Be the page 42 (40 school branches) — B el p a s s i, Bonita, Central, Ceres, Cole, Dry Creek, Empire Union (incl. Garner and New Hope), Fairacres, Fairview, Gratton, Grayson, Hart, Horrs Ranch, Jackson, Jennings, Keyes, Lafayette, La Grange, Laird, Lowell, McHenry, Mitchell, Monte Vista, Mountain View, Paradise, Pres-cott, Ransom, Riverbank, Roberts Ferry Union (incl. Hermitage and Tilden), R ob i n s o n, Roselawn, Rowe, Salida, Shiloh, Stoddard, Tegner, Thalheim Joint, Union, Washington, Waterford; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Modesto. 431 periodicals (422 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 9 news-42 (40 school branches)-Belpassi,

[Oct., 1924

STANISLAUS CO.—Continued.

papers; 422 mags. Distributed: all to branches.

Total books, etc. 71,948: books 63,442; pamphlets 239; maps 187; pictures 4540; music records 687; music sheets music books 24: charts 2621;162:Added 10.549; books 9487 globes 26. (purchase 9446, gift or exchange 41); maps 25; music records 28; music sheets 952; charts 51; globes 6. Withdrawn 2243 : books discarded 2238 ; music rec-Books rep'd 199; reb'd 991. ords 5. Cardholders 20,178. Added 5543 : cancelled 8498. Circulation 418,765: books 402,213; periodicals 16,139; other material 413. Vols, loaned to other libs. 113; borrowed from other libs. 648 (all from State Library). 1447 shipments (29,172 items: 24,613 books; 4559 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 11,169 were supplementary books. In addition 14,881 supplementary books were retained from previous year, 16,391 special requests.

During the year 196 visits were made to 40 branches. 1294 visits were made to headquarters by 17 custodians and 126 teachers. 1 branch (Ceres School District Branch) was established.

Branch library buildings owned are as follows: Oakdale Branch, Carnegie building, \$6500; Patterson Branch, Carnegie building, \$12,000 (\$3000 from Carnegie Corporation, the rest from local subscription); Riverbank Branch, Carnegie building, \$3000. Newman Branch, Carnegie building, valued at \$8000, is owned by the community.

The county library continues to add books to the collections in the offices of the Farm Bureau and Home Demonstration Agent. Several magazines are subscribed for for the latter, which are used by her out in the county at the home department meetings.

Discarded books are given to the County Hospital, jail and the Seaman's Institute in San Francisco.

We have been reregistering patrons in county and city both, and generally revising borrowers' records—hence the large withdrawal shown in this report.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .3676 m, on the dollar, which will raise about \$29,215.

BESSIE B. SILVERTHORN, Lib'n.

STANISLAUS CO.—Continued.

STANISLAUS CO. LAW LIBRARY, MO-DESTO. Henry I. Thomson, Lib'n. Est. 1893. Income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. 1 paid employee. Open 9 a.m. to 5 p.n.. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. 3426. Added 140.

STANISLAUS CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, MODESTO. A. G. Elmore, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined Co. Free Library, Nov. 25, 1914. Income 1923–24, \$119, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$114.

Total vols. 1309. Teachers employed 450: elem. 300; high 150. Active school districts: elem. 60 (incl. 3 jt.); high: city 1; union 7. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$11,297; high \$11,400. Vols. in schools: elem. 45,271; high 40.697.

Ceres.

CERES HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. W. Dableen, Prin. Est. 1908, 12 mags, and 5 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1300. Teachers 12; pupils 190.

Denair.

DENAIR HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. J. M. Burk, Prin. Est. Sept. 1912. 4 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 150. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 40.

Annual report not rec'd.

Hughson.

HUGHSON UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, Frank F. Otto, Prin. Est. Aug. 15, 1910. 16 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 717. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 83.

Annual report not rec'd.

Modesto.

MCHENRY [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, STANISLAUS CO, FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Bessie B. Silverthorn, Lib'n. Est. 1905; as F. P. Sept. 4, 1907. Bal, July 1, 1923, \$2344.58. Annual income 1923-24, \$14,597.64 (from taxation \$11,753.34, library tax being 1.1 m. on the dollar: from other sources \$2844.30). Total payments \$14,527.74. Bal, July 1, 1924, \$2414.48. 10 employees. Open daily except holidays and Sun, during June, July and Aug.: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun, 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$22,500 bidg. 138 periodicals (109 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 18 newspapers; 120 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total books, etc. 26,546: books 18,180; pamphlets 5950; stereographs 2416. Added 2683: books 2092 (purchase 1995,

STANISLAUS CO.-Continued.

Modesto-Continued.

gift or exchange 71, binding 26); pamphlets 305; stereographs 241. Books withdrawn 667; rep'd 221; reb'd 815. Cardholders 6961. Added 3409: cancelled 5929 (re-registration). Circulation 114,-746: books 108,892; periodicals 5441; stereographs 413, Vols. borrowed from other libs. 268 (all from State Library).

Deposits of books were made at the three fire stations during the year for reading at the stations only. No circulation records are kept.

The library hours of opening were increased six hours a week during the year by having the library open during the supper hour of 6 to 7.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 will raise about \$13.620.

B'ESSIE B. SILVERTHORN, Lib'n.

MODESTO HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. W. E. Faught, Prin. Esther L. Ramont, Lib'n. Est. 1885. Open school days 8 a.m. to 4.20 p.m. 51 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 4700. Teachers a. 63; pupils a. 1378.

Annual report not rec'd.

Newman.

ORESTIMBA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Thos. Downey, Prin. Est. 1906. 10 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1208. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 67.

Annual report not rec'd.

Oakdale.

OAKDALE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. C. E. Overman, Prin. Est. 1892. 10 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1368. Teachers a. 8: pupils a. 125.

Annual report not rec'd.

Patterson.

PATTERSON UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. E. P. Halley, Prin. Est. April, 1913. 12 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1154. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 103.

Annual report not rec'd.

Turlock.

STANISLAUS CO.—Continued.

Turlock-Continued.

est. Sept. 18, 1920. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$215.36. Annual income 1923-24, \$215.36. Annual income 1923-24, \$3879.83 (from taxation \$3854.83; from other sources \$25). Total payments \$3792.24. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$302.95. 4 employees. Open daily except Christ-mas day: week days 9.30 a.m. to 5.30 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun, and holidays 2.30 to 5.30 p.m. Located in \$9200 Carnegie bldg. 68 periodicals rec'd regularly: 9 pawsporers 5.9 mags Library trustees newspapers; 59 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 6517. Added 824: purchase 523; gift or exchange 4; binding 297. Discarded 50. Cardholders 1446. Circulation 25,349: books 18,289; periodicals 1147; other material 5913.

TURLOCK UNION HIGH SCHOOL LA-BRARY. J. Perry Ratzell, Prin. Est. 1908. Open 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 24 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1190. Teachers a. 26; pupils a. 524.

Annual report not rec'd.

SUTTER COUNTY.

(Forty-first class.)

County seat, Yuba City.

Area, 611 sq. mi. Pop. 10.115.

Assessed valuation \$22,163,421 (taxable for county \$17,943,180).

SUTTER Co. FREE LIBRARY, YUBA CITY. Miss Edna J. Hewitt, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, May 9, 1917; work started Oct. 8, 1917. Includes entire county for tax and service. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1583.93. Annual income 1923–24, \$12,690.18 (from taxation \$7353.70, li-bourt day heine 4 m on the dollow: from 1929, \$10:53.95. Annual methods 1920-24, \$12,600,18 (from taxation \$7353.70, library tax being .4 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$3558; from Co. Teachers' Library tund \$34; from other sources \$1744.48). Total payments \$9319.16. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$4954.95. 13 employees: 4 in office; 9 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m., Tues. and Fri. evening 7 to 9 p. m. Located in Mission Hall. Total branches 49, as follows: community 18—Barry, Cranmore, East Nicolaus, Encinal, Lee, Live Oak (r.r.), Meridian, Nicolaus, Nuestro, O'Banion Corners, Pennington, Pleasant Grove, Rio Oso, Rome, Sutter (r.r.), Sutter school district, Vernon, Yuba Surfer school district, Vehich, Tuba City (r.r.); active school districts that have joined 34 (30 school branches)— Barry Union (incl. Barry and Grant), Brittan, Browns, Central-Gaither Union (incl. Central and Gaither), Encinal, Durablic Indexen Uliacity Vehicts Las. TURLOCK [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND (incl. Central and Gaither), Encinal, BRANCH, STANISLAUS CO. FREE LIBRARY. Franklin, Hedger, Illinois, Knights, Lee, Mrs J. H. Love, Lib'n. Est. March 20, Lincoln. Live Oak, Live Oak Union 1908; as F. P. Oct. 5, 1909. Branch High, Marcum, Meridian, Nicolaus,

439

SUTTER CO.-Continued.

North Butte, Noyes, Nuestro, Pleasant Grove Union (incl. Auburn, Cottonwood, and Eagle), Rome, Salem, Slough, Sutter, Tierra Buena, Vernon, West Butte, Wilson, Winship, Yuba, Yuba City Union High; special school branches 1— Co. Teachers' Library in Yuba City. 262 periodicals (252 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 3 newspapers; 252 mags.; 7 other serials. Distributed: 50 to office; 212 to branches.

Total books, etc. 32,431: books 29,819; pamphlets 208; maps 104; pictures 136; music records 128; stereographs 1950; charts 75; globes 10; planatarium 1. Added 3279: books 3212 (purchase 3176, gift or exchange 18, binding 18); pamphlets 19; maps 34; music records 9; charts 3; globes 2. Withdrawn 841: books 799 (lost 18, discarded 781); music records 17; charts 25. Books Cardholders 3869. Added rep'd 245. 746; cancelled 117. Circulation 49,506; books 46,670; periodicals 2836. Vols. loaned to other libs. 7; borrowed from other libs. 477 (460 from State Library). 1688 shipments (16,223 items: 13,664 books; 75 periodicals; 2484 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 8384 were supplementary books. In addition 3047 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 11,661 special requests.

During the year 222 visits were made to 39 branches. 305 visits were made to headquarters by 33 custodians. 1 branch was established; 2 branches were discontinued.

One hour a week has been spent in staff meetings during the year. The California County Free Library Law is being studied and discussed each week. After completing the law we expect to have a course in classification.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

During Teachers Institute the Sutter County Free Library invited the teachers of the county to the library to see a large map of the county that was made by an engineer for the Board of Supervisors. The map was made of plaster of paris and then colored to bring out the rivers, highways, bridges, etc. The county engineer explained the map in detail and gave a very interesting account of the county. It has been impossible to obtain material on Sutter County to teach in the schools so by having the teachers see

SUTTER CO.-Continued.

the large map, we feel that they will be able to give a better idea of the county than formerly.

The tax rate of the Sutter County Free Library has been raised from .4 mills on the dollar to .5 mills.

EDNA HEWITT, Lib'n.

SUTTER CO. LAW LIBRARY, YUBA CITY. K. S. Mahon, Lib'n. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open daily 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 550.

Annual report not rec'd.

SUTTER CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, YUBA CITY. Mrs Minnie Gray, Co. Supt. Est. 1880. Joined Co. Free Library. Income 1923-24, \$27, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Teachers employed 97: elem. 65; high 32. Active school districts: elem. 33; high, union 3. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-4: elem. \$3200; high \$2129. Vols. in schools: elem. 9647; high 5875.

Live Oak.

LIVE OAK UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BEARY AND BRANCH, SUTTER CO. FREE LIBRARY. J. E. FRAESER, Prin. Branch est. Aug. 26, 1920. 10 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

No further information rec'd.

Sutter.

SUTTER UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. G. W. Spring, Prin. Est. 1893. 16 mags. and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 970. Teachers a. 9; pupils a. 125.

Annual report not rec'd.

Yuba City.

SUTTER Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Sutter Co.

TEHAMA COUNTY.

(Thirty-sixth class.)

County seat, Red Bluff.

Area, 3200 sq. mi. Pop. 12,882.

Assessed valuation \$20,738,184 (taxable for county \$17,129,000).

TEHAMA CO. FREE LIBRARY, RED BLUFF. Miss Elizabeth Stevens, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Aug. 8, 1916; work started Oct. 2, 1916. Includes entire county for tax and service except Corning, Tehama, and Red Bluff. Co. Teachers' Library joined Oct. 11,

TEHAMA CO .--- Continued.

1916. Bal, July 1, 1923. \$9.82. Annual income, 1923-24. \$11.375.39 (from taxa-tion \$5670.03, library tax being .4 m. on income, 1923–24. \$11.375.39 (from taxa-tion \$5670.03, library tax being .4 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$3875.16; from Co. Teachers' Li-brary fund \$24; from other sources \$1806.20). Total payments \$11.239.98. Bal, July 1, 1924, \$145.23. 77 em-ployees: 4 in office; 73 in branches. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 9 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. Total branches 74, as fol-lows: community 23-Bend, Cap ay, Dairyville, Evergreen, Farquhar, Gerber (r, r,) Henleyville, Hooker, Kirkwood, Los Molinos (r, r.). Macon Springs, Man-ton, Mineral, Paskenta, Paynes Creek, Proberta, Red Bank, Main Office (r, r.) in Red Bluff, Reeds Creek, Richfield, South Power House, Squawhill, Vina; active school districts that have joined 53 (50 school branches)-Antelope, Bee-gum, Bend, Bowman, Burr Valley, Capay, Cone 1, Cone 2, Corning, Cotton-wood, Dry Creek, Elkins, Evergreen, Farquhar, Flores, Flournoy Union (incl. Gleason and Shultz), Fruitland, Gerber Farquhar, Flores, Flournoy Union (incl. Gleason and Shultz), Fruitland, Gerber Union (incl. El Camino and Gerber), Hooker, Howell, Hunter; Independent, Jelly's Ferry, Johnston, Lane's Valley, Lassen, Liberal, Lincoln, Live Oak, Los Molinos, Los Molinos High, Lowrey, Macon Springs, Manton Joint Union (incl. Junction and Pine Grove, Tehama Co., Benton and Lee, Shasta Co.), Marion, Maywood, Merrill, Montgomery, Moon, Oak Park, Oat Creek, Orchard Park, Plum Valley, Rawson, Red Bank, Reeds Creek, Richfield, Swain, Tehama: special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Red Bluff, 132 periodicals (129 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 3 newspapers; 119 mags.; 10 other serials. newspapers; 119 mags.; 10 other serials.

Total books, etc. 30,332: books 25,806; pamphlets 1140; serials 865; maps 63; music records 68; stereographs 2332; charts 54; globes 4. Added 3884; books 3699 (purchase 3608, gift or exchange 91); pamphlets 100; serials 10; stereographs 75. Withdrawn 1681: books 1678 (lost 5, discarded 1673); music records 3. Books rep'd 3354; reb'd 176. Cardholders 6025: headquarters 563; branches 5462. Added 312; cancelled 42. Circulation 120,045: books 115,186; periodicals 3359; other material 1500. Vols. loaned to other libs. 15; borrowed from other libs. 128 (118 from State Library). 1350 shipments (21,154 items: 20,968 books; 129 periodicals; 57 other ma-Of the terial) were sent to branches. above 12,139 were supplementary books. In addition 3556 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 15,739 special requests.

TEHAMA CO.—Continued.

During the year 285 visits were made to 74 branches. 2 branches were established. One school district was suspended (Happy Valley).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .4 m. on the dollar.

ELIZABETH STEVENS, Lib'n.

TEHAMA CO. LAW LIBRARY, RED BLUFF. John F. Ellison, Pres. Est. March, 1897. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open to public daily 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. Library trustees annual meeting first Tues. in Jan.

Total vols. a. 1550.

Annual report not rec'd.

TEHAMA CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, RED BLUFF. Mamie B. Lang, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined Co. Free Library. Income 1923-24, \$24, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Teachers employed 133: elem. 93; high 40. Active school districts: elem. 52 (incl. 1 jt.); high: unjon 3. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24, high \$2806. Vols. in schools: elem. 11.280; high 5282.

Corning.

CORNING FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY, Miss Winona Isaac, Lib'n. Est. April 15, 1909; as Free Public Nov. 4, 1913. 2 employees. Open daily except Sun. and holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m.. Located in \$10,180 Carnegie bldg. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. a. 4534. Cardholders a. 843. Annual report not rec'd.

CORNING UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Arthur Shull, Prin. Est. 1903. Branch est. Sept. 1917. Open 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 20 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1350. Added 99 by purchase. Teachers 12; pupils 204.

Los Molinos.

NARCISSA COX VANDERLIP FREE LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, TEHAMA CO. FREE LIBRARY. Sara Miles, Lib'n. Mrs Alta P. Maring, Custodian. Est. Feb. 3, 1913. Branch est. Dec. 1, 1916. Supported by Women's Club. Open Mon., Wed. and Sat. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in McVey bldg. 37 mags. (14 from Co.) rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1000.

Annual report not rec'd.

LOS MOLINOS HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, TEHAMA CO. FREE LI-BRARY, H. Clifford Fox, Prin. Est.

TEHAMA CO.—Continued.

Los Molinos-Continued.

Sept. 1917.- 16 mags and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 409. Teachers a. 6; pupils a. 75.

Annual report not rec'd.

Red Bluff.

§ [HERBERT KRAFT FREE [PUBLIC] LI-BRARY. Mrs James Feeley, Lib'n. Est. 1898; as F. P. 1901. Bal. July 1, 1923, 82259,60. Ann u al income 1923–24, \$4015.75 (from taxation \$3416.79; from other sources \$598.96). Total payments \$4647.81. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1727.54. 3 employees. Open daily except holidays 10 a.m. to 12 m., 1.30 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in \$40,000 library building. 53 periodicals rec'd regularly: 7 newspapers; 46 magazines. Library trustees monthly meeting last Mon. Total hooks acto 0461. herber 5050

Total bocks, etc. 9461: bcoks 7953; pamphlets 1500; maps 4; stereographs 3; globes 1. Books added 320: purchase 254; gift or exchange 66, Rep'd 151. Cardholders 925. Circulation 14,008: books 13,261; periodicals 747. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 61 (all from State Library).

RED BLUFF UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, R. R. Hartzell, Prin. Est. 1897. Branch est. Sept. 1917; discontinued June 1, 1923.

Total vols. a. 1126. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 226.

Annual report not rec'd.

TEHAMA Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Tehama Co.

TRINITY COUNTY.

(Fifty-fifth class.)

County seat, Weaverville.

Area, 3276 sq. mi. Pop. 2551.

Assessed valuation \$3,845,248 (taxable for county \$3,373,835).

TRINITY Co. FREE LIBRARY. WEAVER-VILLE. Mrs Lila G. Adams, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 5. Co. F. L. law, Sept. 8, 1916, under Sec. 2, Nov. 9, 1916; work started Oct. 2, contract having been made under Sec. 5 with Sacramento Co. for librarian; contract cancelled Sept. 1, 1919. Includes entire county for tax and service, tax being made under Pol. Code, Sec. 4041. Co. Teachers' Library also joined. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$2658.57. Annual income 1923–24, \$4971.76 (from taxation \$2636.06, library tax being .8

TRINITY CO.—Continued.

m. on the dollar: from school districts having joined \$810; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$22; from other sources \$1503.70). Total payments \$4654.27. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2976.06. 3 employees. Open daily except Sun, and holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in \$10,000 bldg. owned by Co. Total branches 60, as follows: community 33—Auto Rest, Blanchard Flat, Burnt Ranch, Caution, Coffee Creek, Cox's Bar, Dedrick, Douglas City, Forest, Grass Valley, Hawkins Bar, Hayfork, Hetten Valley, Hoaglin, Hyampom, Indian Creek, Junction City, Lewiston, Lewiston Dredge, Long Ridge, Lower Trinity, Mad River, Minersville, Pacific Dredge, Paulsen's Ranch, Peak, Pinkham's, Ruch, Salt Creek, South Fork, T r in it y Center, Weaverville (r.r.), Zenia: active school districts that have joined 27 (26 school branches)—Burnt Ranch, Coffee Creek, Cox's Bar, Douglas City, Forest, Grass Valley, Hawkins Bar, Hayfork Union (incl. Hayfork, Ruch, and Tule Creek), Hetten Valley, Hoaglin, Hyampom, Island Mountain, Junction City, Lewiston, Long Ridge, Lower Trinity Co. High (incl, Hayfork High), Weaverville, Zenia; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Weaverville, 107 periodicals (98 for circulation) rec'd regularly; 1 newspaper; 99 mags; 7 other serials, Distributed: 9 to office; 98 to branches.

Total books, etc. 15,932: books 13,283: maps 170; prints 1440; music records 67; stereographs 931; charts 17; globes 24.Added 1985: books 1577 by purchase; maps 8; stereographs 400. Withdrawn 369: books 362 discarded; maps 4; music records 3. Books rep'd 109. Cardholders 1125: headquarters 263; branches 862. Added 43; cancelled 15. Circulation 17,143 (from headquarters 6741, from branches 10,402): books 15,073; periodicals 1950; other material 120. Vols loaned to other libs, 3: borrowed from other libs. 40 (36 from State Library). 325 shipments (6221 items: 6101 books; 120 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 2226 were supplementary books. In addition 714 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 207 special requests.

During the year 3 visits were made to 3 branches. 15 visits were made to headquarters by 9 custodians. 1 branch was established. 4 branches were discontinued (Auto Rest, Blanchard Flat, Lake Mountain and South Fork).

During the year a high school girl was trained for library assistant,

TRINITY CO.—Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The Board of Supervisors has authorized several improvements. A covering of battleship linoleum is to be put on the floor, a new desk and chair have been ordered for the library office, and indirect lighting is to be installed. Several changes are to be made in the interior which will add a great deal of additional shelf space and increase the work room.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .6 m. on the dollar.

MRS LILA G. ADAMS, Lib'n.

TRINITY CO. HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH. TRINITY CO. FREE LI-BRARY, WEAVERVILLE, R. I. LOVET, Prin. Est, 1908; joined Co. F. L. Oct, 20, 1916. A, 19 mags. (10 from Co.) rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 434. Teachers a. 4; pupils a. 31.

Annual report not rec'd.

TRINITY Co. LAW LIBRARY, WEAVER-VILLE. Horace R. Given, Lib'n. Est. a. 1891. Income from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open daily except holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. No periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols, 660. Added 40.

TRINITY CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, WEAVERVILLE, LUCY M. YOUNG, CO. Supt. Income 1923-24, \$20, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Joined Co. Free Library.

Total vols. a. 125. Teachers employed 35: elem. 28; high 7. Active school districts: elem. 26; high, county 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923–24, elem. \$810. Vols. in schools: elem. 10.244; high 600.

Hayfork (No exp. office).

HAYFORK HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, TRINITY CO. FREE LIBRARY, 5 mags. rec'd regularly.

Annual report not rec'd.

This high school is a branch of the Trinity Co, High School.

Weaverville.

CATHCLIC LIBRARY is no longer in existence.

TULARE COUNTY.

(Eleventh class.)

County seat, Visalia.

Area, 4863 sq. mi. Pop. 59,031.

Assessed valuation \$89,894,036 (taxable for county \$68,976,550).

TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY, VISALIA. Miss Gretchen Flower, Lib'n. Est. June 10, 1910: under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, 1910; under Sec. Z. Co. F. L. Iaw, July 1, 1913. Includes entire county for tax and service. Porterville, Tulare and Visalia joined under Sec. 3. Bal. July
 1, 1923, \$7157.74. Annual income 1923– 24, \$52,341.73 (from taxation \$44,279.48. library tax being .686 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$265; from .Co. Tacchas' Liburgy fund \$410. from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$410; from other sources \$3387.25). Total payments \$45,155.82. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$14,343,65, 113 employees; 10 in office: \$14,343,65, 113 employees; 10 in office; 103 in branches. Open daily except Sun, and holidays and Sat, afternoon during July and August 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Lo-cated in bldg owned by county. Total branches 118, as follows: community 49 —Allensworth (r. r.), Alpaugh (r. r.), Angiola, Badger, Boy Scouts Camp, Camp Nelson, Cutler, Dinuba (r. r.), Ducor (r. r.), Earlimart, Elbow Creek, Exeter (r. r.) Earenswille General Ducor (r. r.). Earlimart, Elbow Creek, Exeter (r. r.). Farmersville, General Grant National Park, Giant Forest (r. r.), Goshen (r. r.), Hammond, Hot Springs, Kaweah, La Motte, Lemon Cove, Lindcove, Lindsay (r. r.), Orosi (r. r.), Paloma, Pixley, Poplar, Porter-ville (r. r.), Prairie Center, Saucelito, Seville, Springville and Tulare-Kings Co, Tubercular Hospital in Springville, Stoil, Strathmore (r. r.), Sultana, Terra Bella, Three Rivers, Tipton, Traver, Tulare (r. r.), Tulare Co, Kiddie Camp, Venice Hill, Public Library (r. r.), Fire-man's and Main Office in Visalia, Wau-kena, Woodlake, Woodville, Yettem; active school districts that have joined man's and Main Office in Visalia, Wau-kena, Woodlake, Woodville, Yettem; active school districts that have joined (9) (68 school branches)—Alpaugh, Alta Robles, Alta Vista, Aurora, Buena Vista, Burton, Chatham, Columbine, Cutler, Deep Creek, Deer Creek, Ducor, Earli-mart, East Lynne, East Orosi, Elbow Creek, Elk Bayou, Enterprise, Farmers-ville, Goshen, Grand View, Highway, Hope, Ivanhoe, Kings River, Lemon Cove, Liberty, Lindcove, Linder, Lin-wood, Lovell, Monson, Oakdale, Oakland Colony, Olive, Outside Creek, Paloma, Prairie Center, Richgrove, Riverdaie, Rockford, Rocky Hill, Rosedale, St. Johns, Saucelito, Sulphur Springs, Sul-tana, Sunnyside, Surprise, Taurusa, Thermal, Three Rivers, Townsend, Union, Vandalia, Vincent, Visalia High, Walnut Grove, Waukena), Welcome, West on, Wheatland, Willow, Wilson, Windsor, Woodlake, Worth, Yettem; special school oranches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Visalia, 1894 periodicals rec'd regularly: 30 newspapers; 1864 mags. Distributed : 60 to office : 1834 to branches.

TULARE CO.-Continued.

Total books, etc. 125,039; books 85,252; pamphlets 11,134; maps 153; charts 113; globes 25; other material 28.362.Added 24,520: books 16,356 (purchase 15.625, gift or exchange 731): pamphlets 928: charts 24: other material 7212. Withdrawn 6543: books 3857 (discarded 3833); pamphlets 71; other material 2615. Books rep'd 3400. Card-Added 2657: cancelled holders 16.091. 2651. Circulation 296,596 (from headquarters 722, from branches 295,874): books 275,295; periodicals 21,301. Vols. loaned to other libs. 21: borrowed from other libs, 170 (160 from State Library). 2715 shipments (53,985 items: 53,798 books: 187 other material) were sent to Of the above 28,873 were branches. supplementary books. 3598 special requests.

During the year 110 visits were made to 74 branches. 825 visits were made to headquarters by 156 custodians. 6 branches were established; 2 branches were discontinued (La Motte, and Terra Bella School District).

Branch buildings owned by the county are as follows: Dinuba Branch, Carnegie gift, \$8000; Exeter Branch, Carnegie gift, \$5000; Orosi Branch, Carnegie gift, \$3000, Women's Improvement Club \$2000, County Library fund \$118.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Mrs Nellie De Laughter resigned her position as cataloger to accept a similar position in the Flagler Memorial Library, Miami, Florida. Miss Evelyn Kite resigned in August to be married to Mr Kelsey Dineley of Hanford. Miss Kite's position was taken by Miss Iva Powell.

There have been various changes in custodians. Mrs Stella V. Dollarhide succeeded Mrs Blanche Wright at Goshen, and Mrs Fred Hopson succeeded Mrs Maybelle Persian at Sultana. There have been two changes at Woodville; W. A. Higgins is now custodian.

Two rural schools have joined the county library during the quarter, Eshom Valley and Edendale.

The tax rate for the year 1924–25 is .54 m. on the dollar and will raise approximately \$32,000.

GRETCHEN FLOWER, Lib'n.

TULARE CO.—Continued.

TULARE CO. LAW LIBRARY, VISALIA. Miss L. V. Prader, Sec.; Miss Anna Haas, in charge. Est. 1893. Open daily except Sun. and holidays, 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 4919.

Annual report not rec'd.

TULARE CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, VI-SALIA. J. E. Buckman, Co. Supt. Est. 1889. Joined Co. Free Library Jan. 1, 1912. Income 1923–24, \$218, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers certificates. Amt. paid for books, \$218.

Teachers employed 573: elem. 412; high 161. Active school districts: elem. 127 (incl. 4 jt.); high: district 2; union 7; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$14,578; high \$13,212. Vols. in schools: elem. 125,185; high 46,325.

Alpaugh (Exp. via Angiola).

ALPAUGH HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. H. E. Kraus, Prin. Est. 1913. 9 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 475. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 120.

Annual report not rec'd.

Dinuba.

DINUBA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. Fred M. Powell, Prin, Edla Broman, Lib'n. Open 10.30 a.m. to 12 m. and 2.30 to 3.30 p.m. 15 mags, and 2 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1250. Teachers a. 13; pupils a. 200.

Annual report not rec'd.

Edendale School Dist. (P. O. Porterville).

EDENDALE SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established Sept. 26, 1924.

Eshom Valley School Dist. (P. O. Badger).

ESHOM VALLEY SCHOOL DIST. BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY, was established Sept. 19, 1924.

Exeter.

EXETER UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Hugh A. Owen, Prin. Est. Sept. 1909. 16 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 600. Teachers a. 9; pupils a. 165.

Annual report not rec'd.

Goshen.

GOSHEN BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY.

TULARE CO.-Continued.

Goshen-Continued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Tulare Co. Free Library.

Lindsay.

LINDSAY HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. R. W. Snyder, Prin. Est. Sept. 1908. Open 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. 26 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1678. Teachers a. 14; pupils a. 206.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Our school library is under the management of the head of the English department and ten student librarians. Each librarian serves at a definite period each day and makes a written report concerning the number of books loaned, the fines, practical library reading, and other work. One-half hour credit is given for library work done throughout the year by each student librarian.

MABEL E. STEPHENS, Lib'n.

Orosi (Exp. Cutler).

OROSI HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. L. J. Williams, Prin. Est. Sept. 20, 1908. 15 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1260. Added 51 by purchase. Teachers 10; pupils 176.

Porterville.

PORTERVILLE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Sarah Louise Templeton, Lib'n. Est. 1903; as F. P. 1906; branch re-est. July 15, 1918. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$737.19. A n n u a l i n c o me 1923-24, \$4451.42 (from taxation \$4240.09; from other sources \$211.33). Total payments \$4108.17. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$1080.44. 3 employees. Open daily except holidays and Sun. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 45 periodicals rec'd regularly: 10 newspapers; 35 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total vols. 8043. Added 1311: purchase 365; gift or exchange 123; binding 28; deposit 795. Lost and discarded 344; deposit returned 185. Circulation 40,149. Vols. loaned to other libs. 4; borrowed from other libs. 25 (all from State Library).

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The will of the late Andrew Theyer, who died Aug. 26, in the County Hospital, provides that his property shall be sold, the cash revert to the city and be

TULARE CO.—Continued.

445

Porterville-Continued.

used to build a library or reading room for laboring men. After outstanding obligations are satisfied the property may not total more than \$1600.—Visalia Delta, Ag 29

PORTERVILLE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY, W. A. Ferguson, Prin. Ina H. Stiner, Lib'n. Est. 1900. Open school days 8.45 a.m. to 4.10 p.m. 65 mags. and 5 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2766. Added 611: purchase 445; gift 166. Teachers 30; pupils 650. Circulation 2332.

Strathmore.

STRATHMORE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. D. R. Lightner, Prin. Branch est. Nov. 10, 1919. 12 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 390. Added 390 by purchase.

Sultana.

SULTANA BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

See note under Tulare Co. Free Library,

Tulare.

TULARE FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs Rosa D. Reardon, Lib'n. Est. 1878; as F. P. 1901; joined Tulare Co. Free Library May 4, 1914. Annual income 1922-23, \$4259.87 (from taxation \$4195.02). 3 employees. Open daily except legal holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 63 periodicals rec'd regularly: 8 newspapers; 55 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Wed.

Total books, etc. 14,422: books 11,529; pamphlets 1385; maps 8; pictures 1500. Added 3523: books 3453 (purchase 105, gift or exchange 23, provision of law 2, deposit 3323); pamphlets 70. Withdrawn 459: books 434 (lost 16, discarded 84, deposit returned 334); pamphlets 25. Books rep'd 1352. Cardholders 2509. Added 385; cancelled 14. Circulation 33,755: books 31,462; periodicals 2166; other material 127. Vols. borrowed from other libs, 224 (22 from State Library).

TULARE HIGH SCHOOL LIBBARY, S. J. Brainerd, Prin. Mrs Pearl Meyers, Lib'n. Est. 1890. 1 employee. 34 mags. rec'd regularly.

TULARE CO.-Continued.

Tulare-Continued.

Total vols. 2625. Added 168: purchase 161; gift 7. Teachers 26; pupils 450.

Library to be cataloged next year. Librarian to devote half day to library alone.

Visalia.

VISALIA FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY AND BRANCH. TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Mrs M. J. McEwen, Lib'n. Est. June 1, 1904; as F. P. 1904; joined Tulare Co. Free Library Feb. 19, 1914. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1627.60. Annual income 1923– 24, \$5826.18 (from taxation \$5682.63; from other sources \$143.55). Total payments \$5044.74. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2409.04. 3 employees. Open daily except holidays: week days 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$10,000 Carnegie bldg. 57 periodicals rec'd regularly: 7 newspapers; 50 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting second Tues.

Total vols. 7647. Added 664: purchase 446; gift or exchange 157; binding 61. Discarded 56; donated to State Library 273; rep'd 272; reb'd 249. Cardholders added 850. Circulation 38,176. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 30 (all from State Library).

TULARE Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Tulare Co.

VISALIA HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY. Fletcher Ayres, Prin. Helen Wallace, Custodian of branch. Est. 1891. Destroyed by fire Feb. 2, 1912 (a. 1000 vols.). Re-est. Branch est. Nov. 29, 1918. 35 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2000. Teachers a. 20; pupils a. 492.

Annual report not rec'd.

Woodlake.

WOODLAKE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY. L. L. Doig, Prin. Branch est. Oct. 30, 1914. 15 mags. and 2 newspapers from Co. ree'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 500. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 120.

Annual report not rec'd.

Woodville.

WOODVILLE BRANCH, TULARE CO. FREE LIBRARY.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

Sce note under Tulare Co. Free Library.

TUOLUMNE COUNTY.

(Forty-sixth class.)

County seat, Sonora.

Area, 2292 sq. mi. Pop. 7768.

Assessed valuation \$12,485,280 (taxable for county \$8,924,285).

TUOLUMNE Co. FREE LIBRARY, SONORA. Miss Martha J. Coleman, Lib'n, Est. July 3, 1917. Work began Aug. 1, 1917. July 3, 1917. Work began Aug. 1, 1917. Includes entire county for tax and serv-ice. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$763.43. Annual income 1923–24, \$6830.61 (from taxation \$5084.93, library tax being .6 m, on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$1083.08; from other sources \$1562.60). Total payments \$8437.14. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$656.90. 13 em-ployees: 2 in ofice; 11 in branches. Open daily except Sun. and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in courthouse. Total branches 64, as fol-lows: community 32—Algerine, Arastra-ville, Bellview, Big Oak Flat, Buck Meadows, Center Camp, Chinese Camp, C ol u m b i a, Confidence, Corner, Cow Creek, Deer Flat, Gravel Range, Green Springs, Groyeland (r, r.), Jacksonville. Springs, Groveland (r. r.), Jacksonville, Jamestown (r. r.), Mather, Moccasin Creek, Phenix, Quartz, Rawhide, Shawmut (r. r.). Shaw's Flat, Sonora (r. r.). Soulsbyville, Standard, Stanislaus, Stent, Tuolumne (r.r.), Tuttletown, Ward's Ferry; active school districts that have joined 31 (31 school branches)—Algerine, Arastraville, Bellview, Big Oak Flat, Buck Meadows, Chinese Camp, Columbia, Confidence, Corner, Curtis Creek, Deer Flat, Gravel Range, Green Springs, Groveland, Jacksonville, James-town, Middle Camp, Moccasin Creek, Wontezuma, Phoenix, Poverty Hill, Quartz, Rawhide, Shawmut, Shaw's Flat, Sonora, Sonora Union High, Springfield, Tuttletown, Ward's Ferry; special school branches 1—Co. Teachers' Library in Sonora. 279 periodicals (103 for circu-lation) rec'd regularly; 161 newspapers; 118 mags. Mags. distributed : 15 to office ; 103 to branches.

Total books, etc. 21,334 : books 20,134; pamphlets 723; maps 45; prints 78; music records 186: charts 134: other material 34. Added 3751: books 3385 (purchase 2883, gift or exchange 401, binding 101); pamphlets 293; maps 3; music records 22; charts 12; globes 2; other material 34. Withdrawn 6439: books 919 (lost 2; discarded 917); pamphlets 5520. Books rep'd 837. Cardholders a. 2500. Circulation 28,784. all books. Vols. loaned to other libs. 2; borrowed from other libs, 435 (421 from State Library). 577 shipments (10,387 items: 9963 books; 10 periodicals; 414

TUOLUMNE CO.—Continued.

other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 2532 were supplementary books. 3841 special requests.

During the year 105 visits were made to 38 branches. 300 visits were made to headquarters by 44 custodians. 5 branches were established; 1 branch (Mather) was discontinued.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .6 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$5854. MARTHA J. COLEMAN, Lib'n,

The Board of Supervisors have appointed Miss Martha June Coleman of Glenn county, County Librarian to succeed Miss Gladys English whose resignation takes effect Aug. 1. Miss English goes from here to establish a library at Piedmont. Miss Coleman has been for some time an employee of Glenn Co. Free Library.—Stockton *Record*, JI 22

TUOLUMNE CO. LAW LIBRARY, SONORA. Rowan Hardin, in charge. Est. March, 1908. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open to public daily except holidays 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse. Library trustees monthly meeting first Tues.

Total vols. a. 1944.

Annual report not rec'd.

TUOLUMNE CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, SONORA, G. P. Morgan, Co. Supt. Joined Co. Free Library. Income 1923– 24, \$19, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates.

Total vols. 43. Teachers employed 76: elem. 57; high 19. Active school districts: elem. 32; high, union 2. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$2134; high \$1112. Vols. in schools, high 7637.

Sonora.

Sonora. [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, TUOLUMNE CO. FREE LI-BRARY, Miss Esther E. Shaw, Lib'n. Est. as Free Library, 1901; as F. P. Oct. 4, 1915. Branch est. Sept. 28, 1917. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$330.01. Annual income 1923–24, \$799.92 (from taxation \$574.63, library tax being 4 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$225.29). Total payments \$\$46.90. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$283.03. 2 employees. Open daily except holidays 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in bldg. on Main st. 4 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting, first Mon.

TUOLUMNE CO.—Continued.

Sonora-Continued.

Total vols. 3523. Added 83: purchase 53; gift or exchange 30. Lost 4; discarded 20; rep'd 240. Cardholders 1384. Added 377; cancelled 145. Circulation 15,637.

SONORA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, TUOLUMNE CO. FREE LI-BRARY, V. A. Dunlavy, Prin. 1 employee. 26 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2900. Teachers a. 10; pupils a. 250.

Annual report not rec'd.

TUOLUMNE Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Tuolumne Co.

Tuolumne.

SUMMERVILLE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. C. A. Smith, Prin. 6 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1935. Added 16 by purchase. Teachers 5; pupils 62.

VENTURA COUNTY.

(Twenty-third class.)

County seat, Ventura.

Area, 1850 sq. mi. Pop. 28,724.

Assessed valuation \$59,557,982 (taxable for county \$51,268,175).

VENTURA CO. FREE LIBRARY, VEN-TURA. Miss Elizabeth R. Topping, Lib'n. Est. under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, April 9, 1915; work started Jan. 1, 1916. Includes entire county for tax and service, except Oxnard and Santa Paula. Ventura joined under Sec. 3, Co. Teachers' Library joined also. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$11,092.74. Annual income 1923–24, \$23,861.49 (from taxation \$18,140,13. library tax being 4 m. on the dollar: from school districts having joined \$288.608; from Co. Teachers' Library fund \$92; from other sources \$2343.28). Total payments \$26,394.61. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$\$559.62. 32 employees: 9 in office; 23 in branches. Open daily except Sun, and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in new city hall and library bldg. Total branches 87, as follows: community 26 — A r n az, Boney Mountain, Camarillo, Fillmore (r. r.), Frazier, Maxey, Mill, Montebello, Moorpark (r. r.), Newbury Park, Ojai (r. r.), Ojai Valley (r. r.), Ozena, Piru, Santa Stauffer, Summit, Thousand Oaks, Torrey, Ventura (r. r.), California School for Girls and Holy Cross School in Ventura; school districts that have joined 57 (60 school branches)—Apache, Arnaz.

VENTURA CO.—Continued.

Avenue, Bardsdale, Briggs, Buckhorn, Casitas, Center, Colonia, Conejo, Del Norte, Eliseo, Fairview, Fillmore Union, (incl. Fillmore, Montebello, San Cayetana, Sespe, and Willow Grove), Fillmore Union High, Hueneme, Las Posas, Lockwood, Long Canyon, Mill, Montalvo, Moorpark, Moorpark Memorial Union High, Mound, Mupu, Nordhoff Union (incl. Matilija and Nordhoff), Nordhoff Union High, Ocean View, Ojai, Piru, Pleasant Valley, Punta Gorda, Quiotal, Rio, Riverside, San Antonio, Santa Ana, Santa Clara, Santa Rosa, Santa Susana, Santa Yanez, Saticoy (incl. Saticoy, Saticoy Spanish), Simi, Somis, Springville, Summit, Temescal, Timber, Torrey, Ventura (incl. Lincoln, May Henning, Plaza, Santa Clara Kindergarten and Palm St. Kindergarten), Ventura Union High, Yerba Buena; special school branches 1.—Co. Teachers' Library in Ventura. 654 periodicals (all for circulation) rec'd regularly: 17 newspapers; 620 mags.; 17 other serials.

Total books, etc. 58,436: books 49,156; pamphlets 4116; maps 229; music records 168; music sheets 49; stereographs 4045; charts 107; globes 34; other material 532. Added 11,969: books 9095 (purchase 7541, gift or exchange 1372, binding 182); pamphlets 1559; maps 94; music records 78; music sheets 12; stereographs 1074; charts 9; globes 8; other material 40. Withdrawn 1335: books discarded 1254; pamphlets 59; music records 22. Books reb'd 460. Cardholders Added 832; cancelled 361. 5067. Circulation 83,306: books 74,158; periodicals 6472; other material 2676. Vols. loaned to other libs. 57; borrowed from other libs. 548 (355 from State Library). 2425 shipments (24,575 items: 21,899 books; 258 periodicals; 2418 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 10,389 were supplementary books. In addition 8379 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 13,190special requests.

During the year 221 visits were made to 82 branches. 455 visits were made to headquarters by 124 custodians. 4 branches were established; 3 branches were discontinued (Lockwood, Long Canyon and Riverside School Districts).

An apprentice course was given in the summer of 1923 to two people who were going to do attendant work in the library. During the winter of 1923-24 a course in using the library was given to high school pupils twice a week.

VENTURA CO.-Continued.

Among the most important changes that have taken place during the year has been the raising of salaries, which has resulted in a full staff. This is the first time this has happened for any number of months in three years.

Stories were told to the children in the school rooms.

Talks on the buying of books for the home, especially for the children, were given to the various P. T. A. Clubs of the county and other organizations. Lists of books gotten out by the A. L. A. were distributed, not only to clubs, but to book stores and practical aid was given book buyers at Christmas time in advice on prices and character of books for gifts. The librarian even accompanied those who wished to the stores and cooperated with them and the booksellers in obtaining a beter selection of gift books.

A booth was conducted, as usual, at the county fair. This time it was carried on with the cooperation of the Dean Hobbs Memorial Library of Santa Paula.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

There have been two changes on the staff. Miss Kearney has resigned to take charge of the circulation in the Ventura City Library. Miss Weyana Lopp of the Seattle Public Library takes her place. Miss Lopp is a graduate of the University of Washington and of the Library School there. Miss Ruby Hayes, a general attendant, has followed the example of her predecessors and gone to college, and Miss Edna Fossati has taken her place.

The County Board of Education have made out a list for a reading certificate to be given by the county board. The County Library may substitute books for any in this list. The certificate will be granted for reading any of these books so substituted.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .4 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$18,701.

ELIZABETH R. TOPPING, Lib'n.

VENTURA CO. LAW LIBRARY, VENTURA. J. C. P. Moore, Sec. Est. April 18, 1891. Annual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open week days: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in courthouse. 1 periodical rec'd

VENTURA CO.-Continued.

Library trustees meet quarregularly. terly.

Total vols. a. 1500.

Annual report not rec'd.

VENTURA CO. TEACHERS LIBRARY, VENTURA. Mrs James Reynolds, Co. Supt. Est. 1889; joined Ventura Co. Free Library March 13, 1916. Income 1923–24, \$3, from ¹/₂ of \$2 fee for teach-ers certificates. Amt. paid for books \$104.63.

Total vols. 236. Teachers employed 284: elem. 210: high 74. Active school districts; elem. 53 (incl. 2 jt.); high, union 7. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$5078; high \$6424. Vols. in schools: elem. 10,346; high 17,786.

Fillmore.

FILLMORE UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, VENTURA CO. FREE LIBRARY, JONAS B. Ely. Prin. Est. 1909; branch est. Feb. 21, 1922. 4 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1300. Teachers a. 10; pupils a, 130.

Annual report not rec'd.

Moorpark.

MOORPARK MEMORIAL UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, VENTURA Co. FREE LIBRARY. Claude Reevés, Prin. Est. July 5, 1919. Branch est. Sept. 1919. 3 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly.

Teachers a. 3; pupils a. 45.

Annual report not rec'd.

Ojai.

GEORGE THACHER MEMORIAL FREE LIBRARY AND OJAI BRANCH, VENTURA Co. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Zaidee E. Soule, Custodian, Est. Sept. 9, 1893; branch est. Jan. 7, 1916. 1 employee. Open to public daily 2.30 to 5 p.m.; Sat. 7 to 8.30 p.m. also. Located in \$400 bldg. 13 mags. (12 from Co.) rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3264.

Annual report not rec'd.

*JACK BOYD CLUB LIBRARY. W. C. Hendrickson, Sec. Est. 1903. Supported by club, dues 50 cents per mo. Open to members only daily : week days 8 a.m. to 10 p.m.; Sun. 1 to 9 p.m. 14 mags. and 7 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 172. Members a. 155.

Annual report not rec'd.

KENT LIBRARY, THACHER SCHOOL FOR BOYS, Sherman D. Thacher, Prin. Est. 1889. For use of students. Open daily 7 a.m. to 10 p.m. Located in small bldg., valued at \$500. A. 15 mags. and 3 newspapers rec'd regularly.

VENTURA CO.-Continued.

Oiai-Continued.

Total vols. a. 1200. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 60.

Annual report not rec'd.

NORDHOFF UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, VENTURA CO. FREE LIBRARY. Albert Estus, Prin. Est, 1909. Branch est. June 1916. Open school, days 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 5 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 1000. Added 25 by purchase. Teachers 5; pupils 60.

Oxnard.

OXNARD [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY. Miss Ethel Carroll, Lib'n. Est. Dec. 26, 1906. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$208.21. An-pual income \$7255.78 (from taxation nual income \$7255.78 (from taxation \$6878.05; from other sources \$377.73). Total payments \$7315.74. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$148.25. 5 employees: 4 in main library; 1 in branch. Open daily except holidays: week days 10 a. m. to 9 p.m. Located in \$40,500 bldg. (partly Car-negie gift). 1 branch. 114 periodicals (24 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 14 newsnapers: 100 mags. Distributed: newspapers; 100 mags. Distributed: 102 to office; 12 to branches. Library trustees monthly meeting second Tues.

Total books, etc. 25,394: books 17,547; prints 2950; music records 125; music sheets 1972; stereographs 2800. Added 2540: books 2155 (purchase 2002, gift or exchange 107, binding 46); prints 186; music records 96: music sheets 103. Withdrawn 322: books 310 (lost 45, discarded 265); music records 12. Books rep'd 5227; reb'd 158. Cardholders 3223; main library 3053; branch 170. Added 542; cancelled 542. Circulation 86,200 (from main library 80,276, from branch 5924): books 77,547; periodicals 3093; other material 5560.

OXNARD UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY. W. D. Bannister, Prin. Helen Dorrance, Lib'n. Est. 1902. 15 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 2079. Teachers a. 14: pupils a. 235.

Annual report not rec'd.

Santa Paula.

DEAN HOEES BLANCHARD MEMORIAL [FREE PUBLIC] LIBRARY. Miss Mary Boynton, Lib'n. Est. as F. P. June 4, 1907; opened March 1, 1910. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$378.14. Annual income 1923-24, \$9058.02 (from taxation \$8544.86; from other sources \$513.16). Total pay-ments \$9174.71. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$261.45. 4 employees. Open to public daily excent holidays: week days 10 an daily except holidays: week days 10 a.m.

VENTURA CO.-Continued.

Santa Paula-Continued.

to 9 p.m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$13,000 bldg. 83 periodicals rec'd regularly: 12 newspapers; 71 mags. Library trustees monthly meeting first Mon.

Total books, etc. 15,323: books 11,939; pamphlets 1755; serials 777; stereographs 397; pictures 455. Added 2295: books 1642 (purchase 1501, gift or exchange 97, binding 44); pamphlets 191; serials 248; pictures 214. Books lost 29; discarded 207; rep'd 1622; reb'd 238. Cardholders 4830. Added 700; cancelled 208. Circulation 39,709: books 36,726; periodicals 2461; other material 522. Vols. borrowed from other libs. 59 (17 from State Library).

SANTA PAULA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, F. K. Jones, Prin. Est. 1891. 5 mags, rec'd regularly.

Annual report not rec'd.

Ventura.

||VENTURA [FREE] PUBLIC LIBRARY AND BRANCH, VENTURA CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Miss Elizabeth R. Topping, Lib'n. Est. 1874; as F. P. 1878; joined Co. Free Library Aug. 3, 1916. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$1437.32. Annual income 1923-24, \$3547.71 (from taxation \$3448.54, library tax being 10 m. on the dollar; from other sources \$99.17). Total payments \$2446.18. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2538.85. 4 employees. Open daily except holidays 9 a.m. to 12 m.; 12.30 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. 3 to 6 p.m. Lecated in city hall and library bldg. Periodicals supplied by Co. Library. Library trustees monthly meeting first Fri.

Total books, etc. 6549: books 6474; music sheets 75. Books added 135: purchase 84; gift or exchange 14; binding 37. Discarded 548; reb'd 94. Cardholders 2758. Added 807; cancelled 93. Circulation 10,859: books 10,364; periodicals 495.

The circulation as given does not include any circulation of county books from Ventura Free Public Library.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

For the first time in the history of the Ventura City Library, it has been possible to have a children's librarian. Miss Marguerite Chatfield is the new children's librarian.

Miss Florence Vandever, who has sevel so long and faithfully, as librarian and first assistant has taken a long leave of at sence on account of ill health. Miss

VENTURA CO.—Continued.

Ventura-Continued.

Helen Kearney of the County Library is taking her place.

ELIZABETH R. TOPPING, Lib'n.

VENTURA Co. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Ventura Co.

VENTURA UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, VENTURA CO. FREE LIBBARY. H. O. Wise, Prin. Carrie W. Egan, Lib'n. Est. 1889; branch est. Dec. 3, 1921, 56 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1950. Teachers a. 20; pupils a. 248.

Annual report not rec'd.

YOLO COUNTY.

(Thirty-fourth class.)

County seat, Woodland.

Area, 1017 sq. mi. Pop. 17,105.

Assessed valuation \$33,400,226 (taxable for county \$26,927,190).

YOLO CO. FREE LIBRARY, WOODLAND. Miss Nancy C. Laugenour, Lib'n. Est. July 12, 1910; under Sec. 2, Co. F. L. law, Oct. 4, 1915. Includes entire county for tax and service, tax being made under Pol. Code, Sec. 4041. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$3462.43. Annual income 1923-24, \$20 (10) 50. (four typeties \$14.802.47. \$20,606.59 (from taxation \$14,892.47, library tax being 57 m. on the dollar; from school districts having joined \$3895.47; from other sources \$1818.65). 5550.4(; from other sources 51818.6.5). Total payments \$22,094.67. Bal, July 1, 1924, \$1974.35. 24 employees: 5 in office; 19 in branches. Open daily ex-cept Sun, and holidays: Mon. to Fri. 9 a.m. to 12 m. and 1 to 5 p.m.; Sat. 9 a.m. to 12 m. Located in \$12,000 Car-negie bldg. Total branches 77, as fol-lows: community 31—Blocks Broderick negie bldg. Total branches 77, as fol-lows: community 31—Blacks, Broderick (r. r.), Brooks, Capay (r. r.), Clarks-burg, Davis (r. r.), Davis University Farm, D. u. n. å.g a. n. (r. r.), Esparto, Eureka, Fairfield, Fairview, Fillmore, Grafton, Guinda, Madison (r. r.), Monu-ment, Mt. Pleasant, Plainfield, River-bank, Rumsey, Sacramento River, Spring Lake, Willow Slough, Winters (r. r.), Public Library, County Hospital, Main Office (r. r.) and Woodland Sanitarium in Woodland, Woodland Prairie, Yolo (r. r.); school districts that have joined 46 (45 school branches)—Apricot, Buck-eye, Cache Creek, Cacheville, Cadenasso, 46 (45 school branches)—Apricot, Buck-eye, Cache Creek, Cacheville, Cadenasso, Cañon, Capay, Clarksburg Union (incl. Lisbon and Merritt), Clover, Cottonwood, Davis, Enterprise, Esparto, Esparto Union High, Eureka, Fairfield, Fairview, Fillmore, Fremont, Gordon, Grafton, Guinda, Laugenour, Madison, Montgom-ery, Monument, Mt. Pleasant, Mountain, North Grafton, Plainfield, Pleasant Prairie, Prairie, Riverbank, Rumsey,

YOLO CO.—Continued.

Sacramento River, Spring Lake, Union, Washington, Wildwood, Willow Slough, Willow Spring, Winters, Winters Joint Union High (r.r.), Woodland, Woodland Prairie ; special school branches 1— Co, Teachers' Library in Woodland, 292 periodicals (281 for circulation) rec'd regularly ; 2 newspapers ; 281 mags.; 9 other serials.

Total books, etc. 72,590: books 63,351; pamphlets 3645; serials 9; maps 410; prints 720; music records 223; stereegraphs 3739; charts 456; globes 37. Added 6966; books 6190 (purchase 6055, gift or exchange 77, binding 58); pamphlets 388; serials 5; maps 24; music records 32; stereographs 326; globes 1. Withdrawn 245: books 242 (lost 7, discarded 235) : music records 3. Books rep'd 4469 : reb'd 179. Cardholders 7627 : headquarters 156; branches 7471. Added 688: cancelled 362. Circulation 102.863: books 96,060; periodicals 6344; other material 459. Vols. loaned to other libs. 33; borrowed from other libs. 240 (238) from State Library). 1405 shipments (23,171 items: 22.812 books; 359 other material) were sent to branches. Of the above 8541 were supplementary books. In addition 1571 supplementary books were retained from previous year. 16.278 special requests.

During the year 79 visits were made to 76 branches. 665 visits were made to headquarters by 97 custodians. 1 branch was discontinued (Grafton reading room).

Branch library building erected by County Library funds at Davis; cost \$3410.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The tax rate for 1924-25 is .42 m. on the dollar, which will raise about \$12,309. NANCY C. LAUGENOUR, Lib'n.

Yolo County co-operates in giving library service to the Weimar Sanatorium, Placer County.

YOLO CO. LAW LIBRARY, WOODLAND, M. H. Stitt, Pres. W. A. Anderson, Lib'n. Est. a. 1895. Annual income ree'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. No paid employees. Open week days 8 a.m. to 6 p.m. All attorneys have keys. Located in Superior Court, Odd Fellows' bldg. 8 periodicals rec'd regularly. Library trustees annual meeting first Mon. in Jan.

Total vols. a. 2220.

Annual report not rec'd.

YOLO CO.—Continued.

YOLO CO. TEACHERS' LIERARY, WOOD-LAND. Miss Harriett S. Lee, Co. Supt. Est, 1889; became a part of Yolo Co. Free Library July 21, 1911. Income 1923-24, \$54, from ½ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$53.

Total vols. 3250. Teachers employed 131: elem. 91; high 40. Active school districts: elem. 44 (incl. 3 jt.); high: district 1; union 1; jt. union 1. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$3206; high \$3015. Vols. in schools: elem. 24,250; high 2900.

Davis.

DAVIS FREE LIBRARY AND BRANCH. YOLO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Hattie Weber, Lib'n. Est. Oct. 30, 1905. Income from donations. 1 paid employee, incl. janitor. Open to public three evenings a week 7 to 9 p.m., four afternoons 2 to 5 p.m. Located in \$3410 bldg.

Total vols. a. 1000.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

We are in our new library with a very fing reading room which we expect to furnish very soon. The circulation for the past three months has been 1846: fiction 1642; nonfiction 118; magazines S6

HATTIE WEBER, Lib'n.

*UNIVERSITY FARM SCHOOL LIBBARY AND BRANCH, YOLO CO. FREE LIBBARY. C. B. Hutchinson, Dean, Miss Nellie U. Branch, Lib'n. Est. 1909; branch est. Nov. 21, 1910. 2 employees. Open Mon. to Fri. 8 a.m. to 12 m., 1 to 6 and 7 to 10 p.m.; Sat. 8 a.m. to 12 m.; Sun. 2 to 5 p.m. 200 periodicals rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 3968. Teachers a. 35; pupils a. 400.

Annual report not rec'd.

QUARTERLY NEWS ITEMS.

The monthly news bulletin is in its second year of publication, presenting to the faculty the new accessions and library notes which might be of interest to them. New accessions are not circulated for one week after the appearance of the bulletin. During this time both faculty and students may inspect the new books in the Reading Room.

The reference books are being presented to the students through lecture hours in regular classes. An effort is being made to interest more students in reading. For this purpose some of the instructors are helping by occasional comments in class on a particular book,

YOLO CO.-Continued.

Davis-Continued.

a bi-weekly selection of books is placed on a special reading table, and brief reviews are published in the California Aggie.

Miss Nellie U. Branch, formerly of the Oregon Agricultural College at Corvallis has been chosen librarian of University Farm Library at Davis. She replaces Miss Deming who resigned to continue college work .- Sacramento Union, Ag 3

Esparto.

ESPARTO UNION HIGH SCHOOL LI-BRARY AND BRANCH, YOLO CO. FREE LI-BRARY, H. A. Sawyer, Prin. Est. 1892; branch est. Oct. 25, 1915; branch dis-continued Aug. 1918; branch re-est. 8 mags, from Co. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 254. Teachers a. 8; pupils a. 87.

Annual report not rec'd.

Winters.

WINTERS FREE LIBRARY AND READING ROOM AND BRANCH, YOLO CO. FREE LI-BRARY. Est. March, 1892. Branch est. Nov. 10, 1910. 1 employee. Open to public week days 2 to 5 and 7 to 9 p.m. Located in room in city hall, rent free. 25 mags. from Co. rec'd regularly. Library trustees monthly meeting first of month.

Total vols. a. 700.

Annual report not rec'd.

WINTERS JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY AND BRANCH, YOLO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Geo. Sanders, Prin. Est. 1892; joined the county free library, Sept. 1915. 22 mags., 5 newspapers, rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 730. Teachers a. 7; pupils a. 75.

Annual report not rec'd.

Woodland.

WOODLAND FREE [PUBLIC] LIBRARY AND BRANCH, YOLO CO. FREE LIBRARY. Miss Irma V. Cole, Lib'n. Est. June, 1874; as F. P. 1891. Bal. July 1, 1923, \$2174.23. Annual income 1923-24, \$4536.06 (from taxation \$4261.28, li-brary tax being 1.2 m, on the dollar; from other sources \$274.78). Total pay-ments \$3973.94. Bal. July 1, 1924, \$2736.35. 3 employees. Open daily ex-cent holidays: weak days 10 cm to 10 respectively and the set of the s

Total books, etc. 9984: books 8754; pamphlets 1230. Added 2812: books 2658 (purchase 237, gift or exchange 8, de- land donated by W. H. Joy, is to be

YOLO CO .- Continued.

Woodland-Continued.

posit 2413); pamphlets 154. Books lost 10; discarded 87; deposit returned 2263; rep'd 512; reb'd 26. Cardholders 2059. Added 400; cancelled 254. Circulation 39,058: books 38,219; periodicals 803; other material 36. Vols. loaned to other libs. 5: borrowed from other libs. 241 (238 from State Library).

*HOLY ROSARY ACADEMY LIBBARY. Sister M. Madeleva, Prin. Est. Sept. 1886. Open 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. Sup-ported by Academy for use of its stu-dents. 21 mags. and 6 newspapers rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 2465. Added 15: purchase 5; gift 10. Teachers 13; pupils 160.

WOODLAND HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY, William M. Hyman, Prin. Est. Aug. 1892. Open 8.30 a.m. to 5 p.m. 15 mags. rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 303, Teachers a. 22: pupils a. 437.

Building burned and library destroyed; small start made again.

Annual report not rec'd.

YOLO CO. free, law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Yolo Co.

YUBA COUNTY.

(Fortieth class.)

County seat, Marysville.

Area, 625 sq. mi. Pop. 10.375.

Assessed valuation \$20,521,664 (taxable for county \$16,947,965).

YUBA CO. LAW LIBRARY, MARYSVILLE. Haleyon Joyce, Lib'n. Est. 1870. An-nual income rec'd from \$1 fee for filing papers in civil suits. Open week days 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Located in courthouse.

Total vols. a. 3500.

Annual report not rec'd.

YUBA CO. TEACHERS' LIBRARY, MARYS-VILLE. Jennie Malaley, Co. Supt. In-come 1923–24, \$18, from $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$2 fee for teachers' certificates. Amt. paid for books \$25.

Total vols. 454. Teachers employed 87: elem. 60; high 27. Active school districts: elem. 34; high, union 2. Total expended for books for schools, 1923-24: elem. \$2440: high \$1853. Vols. in schools: elem. 14,640; high 7380.

Challenge.

CHALLENGE LIBRARY.

The library building, erected on the

Challenge-Continued.

ready for occupancy about September 15. It is being equipped by the women residents of Challenge, and promises to be very cozy, comfortable and convenient.— Marysville *Appeal*, Ag 19

Marysville.

\$MARYSVILLE CITY [FREE PUBLIC] LIBRARY. Miss Mary E. Subers, Lib'n. Est. 1858; as F. P. April, 1900. No library tax, but city pays librarian's salary, lighting expenses, etc. Income for books derived from interest on bequests. 2 employees. Open to public daily except holidays, Mon. to Fri, 10 a.m. to 12 m., 2 to 4.30 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sat. 2 to 4.30 and 7 to 9 p.m.; Sun. reading room only, 2 to 4.30. Located in \$75,000 library bldg. 57 periodicals (15 for circulation) rec'd regularly: 7 newspapers; 50 mags.

Total vols. a. 9318. Cardholders a. 658. Annual report not rec'd.

MARYSVILLE IIIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Est. 1873, 15 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. a. 1241. Teachers a. 18; pupils a. 369.

Annual report not rec'd.

YUBA Co. law and teachers' libraries are the first listed under Yuba Co.

Wheatland.

WHEATLAND HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY. Frank Schoch, Prin. Est. 1909. Open 2 hrs. each school day. 7 mags. and 1 newspaper rec'd regularly.

Total vols. 822. Added 72 by purchase. Teachers 5; pupils 49.

U. S. NAVY DEPARTMENT.

Eleventh Naval District.

Lois M. Woods, Librarian, San Diego. Helen Goodell, Librarian, Naval Training Station, San Diego.

Myra Hoge, Librarian, U. S. Veterans' Hospital, Palo Alto.

Helen Letson, Librarian, U. S. Veterans' Hospital, Camp Kearny.

As there have been many changes in these institutions recently, we give the above names, which have come to our attention.

NOTES FROM MAUI COUNTY FREE LIBRARY, T. H.

We have ten community branches, including the one here at Wailuku, and thirty-nine school branches. The community branches, except for the Wailuku one, are really just deposit stations. One happens to be located at a settlement house where there is a reading room. The others are in postoffices or other offices. They all want catalogs of the library so I am hoping to have one printed this summer.

The school branches need much more attention. One thing we are spared, that is handling school texts. It is a great relief. We send them the general books and have started collections of music records and pictures. We have now about two hundred records and have just received two hundred mounted colored reproductions of the masterpieces to use with the art course in the school.

Up to the present time I have just had two untrained assistants. One is a Chinese girl who came to me two years ago after completing the grammar school. She does the mechanical work in making up the shipments, processes the books, and helps with the reading room. The other is a Hawaiian girl who has charge of the reading room evenings. We are open from 7 to 9. This staff has managed to ship 8226 books to branches, check off 7179 that have been returned, catalog 2723 books (we now have a total of over ten thousand); and we have loaned from our Wailuku Branch 27.072 books. The other branches have reported a circulation of 12,054 and the schools 16,467. making a total of 55,593. The reports from the schools have been very incomplete so this is anything but an accurate report. These figures would go to indicate I have just been doing my annual report.

(From letter of July 12, 1924, from Marion Morse, Librarian.)

DIRECTORY FOR LIBRARY SUPPLIES AND OTHER ITEMS OF GENERAL INTEREST.

The following directory is based on recommendations received from the libraries of California. New recommendations and corrections will be welcomed at any time.

SUPPLIES.

Amateur Plays. ACTING DRAMAS FOR AMATEURS.

The Book Den, 464 Eighth st., Oakland, Calif.

A. L. A.

BOOKLIST.

78 E. Washington st., Chicago, Ill.

CATALOG.

1904 ed. \$1.

Superintendent of Documents, Government Printing Office, Washington, D. C.

1904-11 ed., \$1.50.

- 1912-21 ed., \$4.
 - A. L. A. Pub. Board, 78 E. Washington st., Chicago, Ill.

HEADQUARTERS.

86 E. Randolph st., Chicago, Ill.

Binding and Mending.

BINDING.

- Cooperative Bindery Co., 330 Jackson st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Foster & Futernick Co., 444 Bryant st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Herring & Robinson, 1927 Howard st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Hicks-Judd Co., 460 Fourth st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Sacramento Bookbindery, 309 J st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Silvius and Schoenbackler, 423 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

MENDING.

. Stix Co., San Jose. Stix-Parchment mending tissue.

Blind.

Embossed books, etc. Addresses will be furnished by the State Library.

Book Cases and Shelving.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, and 759 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Book Packing Bags.

Hoegee Co., 138–142 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Book Packing Boxes.

Pacific Box Factory, 2600 Taylor st., San Francisco, Calif.

CORRUGATED PAPER CARTONS.

Illinois-Pacific Glass Co., 15th and Folsom sts., San Francisco, Calif.

Richardson-Case Paper Co., 1021 Front st., Sacramento, Calif.

Book Plates.

Manhattan Photogravure Co., 142 West 27th st., New York, N. Y.

- Sequoyah Studio, 319 42d st., Oakland, Calif.
- Times-Mirror Printing and Binding House, 118 S. Broadway, Los Angeles, Calif.
- Western Lithograph Co., 600-610 E. Second st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Book Pockets.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

- Hicks-Judd Co., 460 Fourth st., San Francisco, Calif.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, and 759 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- The Zellerbach Paper Co., 534 Battery st., San Francisco, Calif.

Book Stacks, Metal Furniture, Etc.

- Art Metal Construction Co., Jamestown, N. Y.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, and 759 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- J. Niederer Co., 3409 S. Main st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Van Horn Iron Works Co., Cleveland, Ohio.

Book Supports, Bracket and Pedal for Perforating Stamp and Other Me-	Books—Continued. Foreign Books and Publications in
chanical Appliances.	VARIOUS LANGUAGES.
 Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y. McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, and 759 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif. 	 Charles T. Powner Co., 542 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif. Lemcke & Buechner, 30-32 East Twen- tieth st., New York City. G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.
Moise-Klinkner Co., 365–369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.	French.
Book Varnish. Pacific Library Binding Co. 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.	French Book Store, Alfred Blanc & J. Delabriandais, 324 Stockton st., San Francisco, Calif. J. Terquem, 19 Rue Scribe, Paris, France.
Books.	
Baker & Taylor Co., 354 4th ave., New York City. Emporium, 835-865 Market st., San	Italian. A. Cavalli & Co., 255 Columbus ave., San Francisco, Calif.
Francisco, Calif.	Spanish.
Himebaugh & Browne, 471 Fifth ave., New York, N. Y.	Victoriano Suarez, Madrid, Spain.
H. R. Huntting Co., Springfield, Mass. A. C. McClurg & Co., Library Depart-	LAW BOOKS. Bancroft-Whitney Co., 200 McAllister
ment, 330 E. Ohio st., Chicago, Ill.	st., San Francisco, Calif.
McDevitt-Wilson's, Inc., 30 Church st., New York City.	Matthew-Bender & Co., 109 State st., Albany, N. Y.
Newbegin's, 358 Post st., San Fran-	SCHOOL BOOKS.
cisco, Calif. Parker's Book Store (C. C. Parker),	Milton Bradley Co., 20 Second st., San
520 W. 6th st., Los Angeles, Calif.	Francisco, Calif.
Charles T. Powner Co., 542 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.	California School Book Depository, 149 New Montgomery st., San Fran-
Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sac-	cisco, Calif.
ramento, Calif.	Ginn & Co., 45 Second st., San Fran-
Sather Gate Bookshop, 2235 Telegraph	cisco, Calif.
ave., Berkeley, Calif. Chas. Scribner's Sons, 5th ave. and	A. C. McClurg & Co., Library Depart- ment, 330 E. Ohio st., Chicago, Ill.
48th st., New York, N. Y.	Owen Publishing Co., 681 Market st.,
G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.	San Francisco, Calif. White House, Sutter st., bet. Grant
Union Library Association, 225 Fifth	ave. and Kearny st., San Francisco,
ave., New York City.	Calif.
Vrcman's Book Store, 329 E. Colorado	SECOND-HAND BOOKS.
st., Pasadena. Harr Wagner, 149 New Montgomery	McDevitt-Wilson's, Inc., 30 Church st.,
st., San Francisco, Calif.	New York City.
Especially western books by western authors.	Mudie's Select Library, 30-34 New
White House, Sutter st., bet. Grant	Oxford st., London, Eng. Charles T. Powner Co., 542 S. Spring
ave. and Kearny st., San Francisco, Calif.	st., Los Angeles, Calif.
	Henry Sotheran & Co., 140 Strand,
ENGLISH BOOKS AND PUBLICATIONS. G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th	London, W. C. 2, Eng. G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th
st., New York, N. Y.	st., New York, N. Y.
B. F. Stevens & Brown, 4 Trafalgar	B. F. Stevens & Brown, 4 Trafalgar
Square, London, W. C. 2, Eng.	Square, London, W. C. 2, Eng.

Books—Continued.

A. R. Womrath, 15 E. 28th st., New York, N. Y.

For used fiction.

- Especially Californiana.
 - Dawson's Book Shop, 627 S. Grand ave., Los Angeles, California.
 - F. M. De Witt, 620 14th st., Oakland, Calif.
 - Holmes Book Co., 104 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Cabinets.

See FURNITURE AND SUPPLIES.

Catalog Cards.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, and 759 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Yawman & Erbe Manufacturing Co., 132-140 Sutter st., San Francisco, and 727 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Charts.

H. S. Crocker Co., 565-571 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Clippings.

Allen's Press Clipping Bureau, 255 Commercial st., San Francisco, and 626 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.

County Free Library Signs.

For information, write Mrs Frances Burns Linn, Santa Barbara County Free Library, Santa Barbara, Calif.

County Free Library Stickers. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

Cutter Tables, Size Rulers, Etc. McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, and 759 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Duplicating Appliances.

Dandy Duplicator. Dodge & Dent, New York, N. Y.

Edison Rotary Mimeograph.

H. S. Crocker Co. (Agents), 565–571 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Filing Cases.

Films.

See FURNITURE AND SUPPLIES.

For Rent.

- American Red Cross Films, distributed by University of California Library, Berkeley, Calif.
- Fox Film Corporation, New York, N. Y.
- National Producers Film Service, 111 Golden Gate ave., San Francisco, Calif.
- Pathe Exchange, Inc., Non-Theatrical Dept., 985 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- United States Forest Service, Ferry bldg., San Francisco, Calif.
- University of California, Extension Division, Berkeley, Calif.

Furniture and Supplies.

- Grimes-Stassforth Stationery Co., 737-739 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, and 759 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rucker-Fuller Desk Co., 677 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Yawman & Erbe Manufacturing Co., 132-140 Sutter st., San Francisco, and 727 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Filing Cases for Music.

Los Angeles Desk Co., 848 S. Hill st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Globes.

- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rand-McNally Co., 125 E. Sixth st., Los Angeles, and 559 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- C. F. Weber & Co., 985 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Magazine Binders.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Elbe File and Binder Co., 215-217

- Greene st., New York, N. Y.
- Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.
- Gem Binder Co., 65 W. Broadway, New York.
- Wm. G. Johnston & Co., Pittsburgh, Pa.

Magazine Binders-Continued.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, and 759 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Magazines.

See PERIODICALS.

Maps.

- Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Rand-McNally Co., 125 E. Sixth st., Los Angeles, and 559 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.
- C. F. Weber & Co., 985 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

Music.

- Sherman, Clay & Co., Kearny and Sutter sts., San Francisco, Calif.
- G. Schirmer, 3 E. 43d st., New York, N. Y.

Pamphlet and Multi-Binders, and Pamphlet Boxes.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. Gaylord Bros., Syracuse, N. Y.

McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, and 759 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Paste.

Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Pasting Machines.

A. G. Prior, 136 Liberty st., New York, N. Y.

Perforating Stamps.

B. F. Cummins Co., Chicago, Ill. Moise-Klinkner Co., 365–369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.

. Periodicals.

BACK VOLUMES AND NUMBERS.

- F. W. Faxon Co., 83-91 Francis st., Back Bay, Boston, Mass.
- F. M. De Witt, 620 14th st., Oakland, Calif.
- International Magazine Co., 339 Bay Way North, Elizabeth, N. J.
- Pacific Library Binding Co., 770 E. Washington st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- H. W. Wilson Co., 958-64 University ave., New York City.

Periodicals-Continued.

- SUBSCRIPTION AGENCIES.
 - John A. Clow, 2925 N. Lake ave., Pasadena, Calif.
 - Franklin Square Agency, Franklin Square, New York City.
 - Moore-Cottrell Subscription Agencies, North Cohocton, N. Y.
 - Mutual Subscription Agency, 602 Crozer Bldg., Philadelphia, Pa.
 - Purnell Stationery Co., 915 K st., Sacramento, Calif.
 - San Francisco News Co., 657 Howard st., San Francisco, Calif.
 - G. E. Stechert & Co., 31-33 E. 10th st., New York, N. Y.

For foreign periodicals only.

- Sunset Subscription Agency, 631 Chamber of Commerce Bldg., Los Angeles, Calif.
- H. W. Wilson Co., 958-64 University ave., New York City.

Pictures.

Braun & Co., Dornach, Alsace, France.

Curtis & Cameron, Copley Square, Boston, Mass.

Especially for reproduction of American art.

- Toni Landau Photo Co., 1 E. 45th st., New York, N. Y.
- (Formerly Berlin Photographic Co.)
- Perry Pictures Co., Malden, Mass.

Vickery, Atkins & Torrey, 550 Sutter st., San Francisco, Calif.

Rubber Stamps and Type.

- Chipron Stamp Co., 224 West First st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Los Angeles Rubber Stamp Co., 131 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365-369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Sleeper Stamp Co., 528 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

Scales.

Fairbanks-Morse & Co., Spear and Harrison sts., San Francisco, Calif.

Shelf Label-Holders.

Democrat Printing Co., Madison, Wis. McKee & Wentworth (Library Bureau

Distributors), 39 Second st., San Francisco, and 759 S. Los Angeles st., Los Angeles, Calif.

Signs.

- Sam H. Harris, 631 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Moise-Klinkner Co., 365–369 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Tablet & Ticket Co., 604 Mission st., San Francisco, Calif.

Slides.

Geo. Kanzee, 12 Geary st., San Francisco. Calif.

Stamp Affixers. Multipost Co., Rochester, N. Y.

Steel Stacks.

See BOOK STACKS.

Stereoscopic Views.

Keystone View Co., Meadville, Pa.

Philip Brigandi (Agent Keystone View Co. and Underwood & Underwood), 1626 North Hobart blvd., Los Angeles, Calif.

Has also Industries of California, and Missions of California.

Willis E. Case (Agent Keystone View Co. and Underwood & Underwood), 1610 Grove st., Berkeley, Calif.

Typewriter Ribbons.

- L. & M. Alexander, 444 Market st., San Francisco, Calif.
- Remington Typewriter Co., 240 Bush st., San Francisco, 420 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, and 913 8th st., Sacramento, Calif.
- Typewriter Inspection Co., 426 S. Spring st., Los Angeles, Calif.
- Underwood Typewriter Co., 531 Market st., San Francisco, 430 S. Broadway, Los Angeles, and 611 J st., Sacramento, Calif.

CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SCHOOLS.

Los Angeles Library School. For full information, write to Librarian, Public Library, Los Angeles, California.

Riverside Library Service School. For full information write to Librarian, Public Library, Riverside, California.

See, also, this publication, page 391.

University of California Department of Library Science. For full information write to Librarian, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIA-TION.

The officers of the American Library Association for 1924-25 are as follows:

H. H. B. Meyer, Library of Congress, Washington, D. C., President.

Margaret Mann, Engineering Societies Library, New York, 1st Vice-President.

John A. Lowe, Brooklyn Public Library, 2d Vice-President.

Carl H. Milam, Chicago, Secretary.

Edward D. Tweedell, Assistant Librarian, The John Crerar Library, Chicago, Treasurer.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE LIBRARIES.

The officers of the National Association $_{Of}$ State Libraries for 1924-25 are as follows:

Con P. Cronin, Librarian, Arizona State Library, Phoenix, Ariz., President.

H. J. Conant, Assistant Librarian, Vermont State Library, Montpelier, Vt., 1st Vice-President.

W. J. Millard, Librarian, Washington State Law Library, Olympia, Wash., 2d Vice-President.

Herbert S. Hirshberg, Librarian, Ohio State Library, Columbus, Ohio, Secretary-Treasurer.

LEAGUE OF LIBRARY COMMIS-SIONS.

The officers of the League of Library Commissions for 1923-24 are as follows:

Milton J. Ferguson, Librarian, California State Library, Sacramento, Calif., President.

Clarence B. Lester, Sec. Wisconsin Library Commission, Madison, Wis., 1st Vice-President.

Miss Nellie Williams, Sec. Nebraska Library Commission, Lincoln, Neb., 2d Vice-President.

Miss Fannie C. Rawson, Sec. Kentucky Library Commission, Frankfort, Ky., Secretary-Treasurer.

PACIFIC NORTHWEST LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

The officers of the Pacific Northwest Library Association for 1924-25 are as follows:

M. H. Douglass, University of Oregon Library, President.

Ellen G. Smith, Walla Walla, and Edgar S. Robinson, Vancouver, Vice-Presidents.

Constance R. S. Ewing, Portland, Secretary.

Effie L. Chapman, Seattle, Treasurer.

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

The officers of the School Library Association for 1924-25 are:

Northern Section-President, Edna Brown, Roosevelt High School, Oakland.

Secretary, Helen Price, University High School, Oakland.

Southern Section — President, Laura Grover Smith, Virgil Junior High School, Los Angeles.

Secretary-Treasurer, Florence Hazel Macloskey, Lincoln Junior High School, Santa Monica.

SPECIAL LIBRARIES ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA.

The officers of the Special Libraries Association of Southern California for 1924-25 are:

Alice Scheck, First National Bank, Los Angeles, President.

B. E. Edwards, Standard Oil Co., El Segundo, Vice-President.

Rose M. Purcell, Southern California Edison Co., 3d st., Los Angeles, Secretary-Treasurer.

SAN FRANCISCO CHAPTER, NA-TIONAL SPECIAL LIBRARIES ASSOCIATION.

Officers for 1924-25 are:

K. Dorothy Ferguson, Bank of Italy, San Francisco, President.

Annette Windele, Mercantile Trust Co., San Francisco, Secretary-Treasurer.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY SCHOOL AND UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SCHOOL ALUMNI ASSOCIATION.

OFFICERS:

Edna S. Holroyd, C. S. L. S. '15, Librarian San Mateo Co. Free Library, Redwood City, President.

Fern Wing, U. C. L. S. '21, University of California Library, Berkeley, Vice President.

Ivander McIver, U. C. L. S. '20, University of California Library, Berkeley, Secretary.

EMPLOYMENT BUREAU.

The State Library registers all library workers in California who are looking for positions and all from outside the state who wish to come here. Also it will be glad to know of libraries that want head librarians or assistants in any branch of their work. In writing for recommendations, libraries are urged to be as specific as possible, especially in regard to time position must be filled and A librarian who wishes salary offered. to be dropped from the Employment Bureau list and a library that fills a position for which it has asked a recommendation will help the work greatly by notifying the State Library at once. For further information, write to the State Library, Sacramento, California.

LIBRARY SLIDES.

The Keystone View Company, Meadville, Pa., has two series of fifty slides each, illustrating: (a) "Library Work," covering the idea of good books, the beginning of the public library movement, library buildings, work with children, reference, county and commission work, and a few of the leaders and what they contribute to the American library development. (b) "Library Publicity." The community background of library work, public opinion and the 1 ib r a r y, and various types of library publicity—newspapers, exhibits, posters, moving pictures, anniversaries, campaigns of all sorts.

The pictures in this second set are taken from Mr Joseph L. Wheeler's book, "The Library and the Community," and both sets of slides were prepared by him at our expense and on his suggestion, in order that libraries might have the slides available for publicity work of all sorts.

These slides are not for sale, neither are they rented. The Keystone View Company will lend them to any library or library school, or to the officers of any state library association for use on the state program at no expense whatever except the cost of postage back and forth from Meadville. The one-way postage charge is: to Cleveland 24 cents, to Chicago or New York 83 cents.

Typewritten descriptive notes prepared by Mr Wheeler are included and may be used if desired.

THE LIBRARY SURVEY.

Many libraries will soon receive the questionnaire compiled by the Library Survey. Full information regarding the objects of the survey has been printed in recent library periodicals and is therefore familiar to all. I want to urge the California libraries receiving this questionnaire to give it their immediate attention and heartiest support. No one library will need to fill out all the questions asked. It is important, though, that each

library go through the blank carefully and answer those questions applicable to its conditions. When the results are being checked up, we want California to make a perfect showing as to number of questionnaires returned. LET'S ALL HELP. MILTON J. FERGUSON.

WANTS.

Piedmont High School Library, Piedmont, Calif., Miss Gladys English, Librarian, wants Cumulative Book Index, July, 1920-June, 1921.

SCHOOL LIBRARY STATISTICS.

(From reports of County Superintendents of Schools, 1923-24.)

Total school districts	3,622
Elementary	3.331
High (396 schools)	291
Total expended for books for high schools	\$673,685
Total expended for books for elementary schools	\$577,147
Total volumes in elementary schools	2,980,126
Total volumes in high schools	$2,\!300,\!167$

CALIFORNIA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

OFFICERS.

President, H. O. Parkinson, Public Library, Stockton.

Vice-President, Helen T. Kennedy, Public Library, Los Angeles.

Secretary-Treasurer, Hazel Gibson, Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento.

Trustees Section.

President, F. H. Pettingell, Trustee Public Library, Los Angeles.

Secretary, Mrs Katherine G. Smith, Trustee Public Library, Los Angeles.

Municipal Libraries Section.

President, Minnie Maxwell, Public Library, Fullerton.

Special Libraries Section.

Chairman, Margaret Hatch, Standard Oil Company Library, San Francisco.

COMMITTEES.

Executive Committee — The President, Vice - President, Secretary - Treasurer and Mrs Julia G. Babcock, Essae M. Culver, Jeannette M. Drake, Milton J. Ferguson, Carleton B. Joeckel, Ida M. Reagan.

Auditing-Mrs Abbie S. Kellogg, Public Library, San Luis Obispo, chairman; Frances D. Patterson.

Nominating—The Constitution provides for a "Nominating Committee consisting of representatives selected by the respective districts at their district meetings."

Publications—Faith E. Smith, Public Library, Los Angeles, chairman; Celia A. Hayward, Minna Stillman.

Resolutions—J. E. Goodwin, University of California, Southern Branch, Los Angeles, chairman; Thelma Brackett, Margaret E. Livingston.

Certification—Susan T. Smith, City Library, Sacramento, chairman (1926); Mabel R. Gillis (1925), Eleanor Hitt (1927), Mrs Theodora R. Brewitt (1928), Mary Barmby (1929).

Cooperation — Mrs Gladys S. Case, Public Library, Los Angeles, chairman; Mary Boynton, Helen Evans, Gretchen Flower, Edith S. Newcomet, Myrtle Ruhl, Alice M. Scheck, Edith M. Schulze. J. L. Gillis Memorial-Milton J. Ferguson, State Library, Sacramento, chairman; Mary Barmby, Eleanor Hitt.

Legislative—Herbert V. Clayton, State Library, Sacramento, chairman; Jasmine Britton, Charles S. Greene, Mrs Frances B. Linn, Mrs F. H. Manker.

Salaries-Everett R. Perry, Public Library, Los Angeles, chairman; Sarah M. Jacobus, Sarah E. McCardle, Minnie Maxwell, Sydney B. Mitchell.

Scaman's Library-Stella Huntington, Santa Clara County Free Library, San Jose, chairman; Gladys English, Nellie M. Gish, Mrs Ruth M. Moore, Robert Rea.

Membership—Essae M. Culver, Merced County Free Library, Merced, chairman; 1st District, Alice M. Healy; 2d District, Anne Hadden; 3d District, Mrs Elizabeth C. Wright; 4th District, Mabel G. West; 5th District, Amy L. Boynton; 6th District, Katherine D. Kendig; 7th District, Ida M. Reagan; 8th District, Anna L. Williams; 9th District, Edna Hewitt.

Music-Gladys Caldwell, Public Library, Los Angeles, Chairman; Ethel Carroll, Edith A. Hibberd.

Jinks—Althea H. Warren, Public Library, San Diego, chairman; Frances M. Burket, B. B. Futernick, Norah McNeill, Elizabeth R. Topping.

Special Committee on Uniform Lettering for Magazine Binding—Lena B. Hunzicker, Public Library, San Diego, chairman; Ida G. Munson, Della J. Sisler.

P.N.L.A. and C.L.A. Cooperation-C. B. Joeckel, Public Library, Berkeley, chairman; Susan T. Smith, Julia Steffa.

DISTRICT OFFICERS AND DISTRICTS.

First District.

President, Frank M. Bumstead, University of California Library, Berkeley.

Secretary, Alice Charlton, University of California Library, Berkeley.

The first district consists of the following cities: San Francisco, Alameda, Berkeley, Oakland; and the following libraries: Leland Stanford Junior University Library and Margaret Carnegie Library, Mills College.

Second District.

President, Florence J. Wheaton, San Benito County Free Library, Hollister.

Secretary, Ellen B. Frink, Monterey County Free Library, Salinas.

The second district consists of the following counties: Alameda (excepting Alameda, Berkeley, and Oakland), Contra Costa, Monterey, San Benito, San Mateo, Santa Clara (excepting Stanford University), Santa Cruz.

Third District.

President, Margaret A. Barnett, Public Library, Santa Rosa.

Secretary, Ruth Hall, Public Library, Santa Rosa.

The third district consists of the following counties: Lake, Marin, Mendocino, Napa, Solano, Sonoma.

Fourth District.

President, Blanche Galloway, Madera County Free Library, Madera.

Secretary, Mrs Irene G. Bennett, Madera County Free Library, Madera.

The fourth district consists of the following counties: Fresno, Inyo, Kern, Kings, Madera, Mariposa, Merced, Stanislaus, Tulare, Tuolumne.

Fifth District.

President, Beulah Mumm, State Library, Sacramento.

Secretary, Donna Harris, City Library, Sacramento. The fifth district consists of the following counties: Alpine, Amador, Calaveras, El Dorado, Mono, Nevada, Placer, Sacramento, San Joaquin, Yolo.

Sixth District.

President, Charles F. Woods, Public Library, Riverside.

Secretary, Gwendolyn M. Tinker, A. K. Smiley Public Library, Redlands.

The sixth district consists of the following counties: Imperial, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Ventura.

Seventh District.

· President, Henry A. Kendal, Public Library, Eureka.

Secretary, Edna D. Davis, Humboldt County Free Library, Eureka.

The seventh district consists of the following counties: Del Norte, Humboldt.

Eighth District.

President, Edith Gantt, Plumas County Free Library, Quincy.

Secretary, Lenala A. Martin, Lassen County Free Library, Susanville.

The eighth district consists of the following counties: Lassen, Modoc, Plumas, Sierra.

Ninth District.

President, Faye T. Kneeshaw, Glenn County Free Library, Willows.

Secretary, Elizabeth Stevens, Tehama County Free Library, Red Bluff.

The ninth district consists of the following counties: Butte, Colusa, Glenn, Shasta, Siskiyou, Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Yuba.

CALIFORNIA COUNTY LIBRARIANS.

man.

Advisory Committee.

Stella Huntington, Santa Clara County, Chairman.

Clara B. Dills, Solano County.

Margaret E. Livingston, Orange County.

Sarah E. McCardle, Fresno County.

Cornelia D. Provines, Sacramento County, Treasurer.

Rural Teacher Training Conference.

The Northern Section of the Rural Teacher Training Conference met on July 25 and 26, 1924, at the San Francisco State Teachers College. The State Board of Education and the State Teachers Colleges cooperated in holding this conference on rural teacher training. Mrs Grace C. Stanley, Commissioner of Elementary Schools, was in charge of the meeting and was an excellent leader.

Although there were probably not over one hundred in attendance, those who came did so voluntarily and each session vied with the preceding one in interest.

Among those present were the Superintendent of Public Instruction, many county school superintendents, rural supervisors, and rural teachers: members of the State Board of Education. State Department of Education. State Teachers Colleges, University of California, and California Teachers Association. There were representatives from the County Agricultural Extension Service, Parent-Teacher Association, County Library and State Library. The library representatives were Miss Barmby and Miss Baird from the Alameda County Free Library and Mrs Henshall from the State Library. At one session each one present gave his name and occupation. The superintendent of schools of the island of Maui had an opportunity to meet the teacher from Washington and also one who said casually "I'm from New Jersey."

The concise program that had been prepared was subjected to many ramifications in the discussions that ensued. The purpose of the meeting, however, was kept in mind. At the final session a very forceful talk was given by Will C. Wood, Superintendent of Public Instruction.

The conference closed with a definite plan outlined to make rural teaching so attractive by better salaries, better living

Milton J. Ferguson, Ex-officio Chair- conditions, and a better course of study that teachers will voluntarily seek country schools and choose to remain in them.

MAY DEXTER HENSHALL.

A similar meeting was held in Los Angeles, August 1 and 2, and was attended by several of the county librarians. One of those in attendance said in a letter concerning the conference; "Both Mrs Stanley and Professor Eby were heartening in their cordial support of the county library and nowhere did I hear anything but the kindest expressions concerning it."

STATE FAIR.

The State Library had an exhibit at the State Fair, August 30-September 7. 1924. Twice as much space was secured as that of last year, and the exhibit was roughly divided into a State Library section and a County Library section. the State Library side of the partition were shown the resources of that institution, and on the other side hung the large county map and pictures illustrating county library service. The interest was more than ordinarily general, but, it must be confessed, the majority of those who stood in rapt attention before the big map were mainly concerned with discovering just "where we came into the state."

Contra Costa County Library was the only one having an individual exhibit. It is described in the following press story:

"The County Librarian of Contra Costa County has taken a unique way to demonstrate how the county library serves both agricultural and industrial interests of the county.

A small collection of books is shown on a rack, each book relating to an exhibit; in turn each exhibit is tagged with a label bearing the title of book in the collection, the object being to show that the county library is able to furnish any book on any subject. Cards of the county are provided which show a map indicating the location of its forty-one branches and fifty-two schools having county library service. This is the third year that Mrs Alice G. Whitbeck, the county librarian, has had an exhibit, the endeavor each year being to show the very close relation of the county library to the interests of the county."

Some of the labels used by Mrs Whitbeck are on file at the State Library.

LIBRARY CLUBS, ETC.

accounts of meetings of the various should make these articles more available. library clubs and similar organizations throughout the state. Previously such accounts have been printed under the library where they have been held or the sort, it will be discontinued after due library where the president or secretary trial.

Under this heading will be given | was located. This new arrangement News items of the various clubs are solicited.

If clubs do not desire a section of this

BOARD OF LIBRARY EXAMINERS, CALIFORNIA.

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD.

Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian. Chairman.

Robert Rea, Librarian, San Francisco Public Library, Secretary.

Everett R. Perry, Librarian, Los Angeles Public Library.

Sections 6 and 7 of the County free library law (Chap. 68, Cal. Statutes

1911) read as follows: SEC. 6. A commission is hereby cre-ated to be known as the board of library examiners, consisting of the state libra-rian, who shall be ex officio chairman of said board, the librarian of the public library of the city and county of San Francisco, and the librarian of the Los

Angeles public library. SEC. 7. Upon the establishment of a county free library, the board of super-visors shall appoint a county librarian, who shall hold office for the term of four years, subject to prior removal for cause, after a hearing by said board. No per-son shall be eligible to the office of county librarian unless, prior to his appointment, he has received from the board of library examiners a certificate of qualification for the office. At the time of his appointment, the county librarian need not be a resident of the county nor a citizen of the State of county nor a citizen of the State of California.

REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN.

The Board of Library Examiners held an examination at the Public Library, Los Angeles, on September 5, 1924.

Three condidates appeared, but one withdrew before completing the examination.

One certificate was issued: to Helen T. Kennedy.

CERTIFICATE HOLDERS.

Note.-First-grade certificates are valid for use throughout the state; second grade, in counties of the twenty-first to the fifty-eighth (except twenty-fifth, thirty-third, thirty-fifth and forty-second) classes, in-

clusive; third-grade in counties of the forty-ninth to the fifty-eighth classes, in-

The new certificate, issued for the first time, December 22, 1920, is valid for use throughout the state.

First Grade.

Babcock, Mrs Julia G., Ln. Kern County Free Library, Bakersfield.
Culver, Essae M., Ln. Merced County Free Library, Merced.
Flower, Gretchen L., Ln. Tulare County Free Library, Visalia.
Hatch, Margaret, Ln. Standard Oil Co. Library, San Francisco.
Holroyd, Edna S., Ln. San Mateo County Free Library, Redwood City.
Morse, Marion, Ln. Maui County Free Library, Wailuku, T. H.

New Certificates.

New Certificates. Adams, Mrs Lila (Dobell), Ln. Trinity County Free Library, Weaverville. Anderson, Mrs Rachel (Rhoads), Asst. Merced County Free Library, Merced. Bailey, Anne Bell, Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno. Barmby, Mary, Ln. Alameda County Free Library, Oakland. Beardsley, Mrs Arline Davis, Asst. Orange County Free Library, Santa Ana. Be e m a n, Mrs Anne (Madison), Mrs Thomas Beeman, Ln. Sawtelle High School Library, Sawtelle. Boman, Evalyn, Ln. Imperial County Free Library, Leentro. Brackett, Thelma, Ln. Siskiyou County Free Library, Yreka. Brewitt, Mrs Theodora R., Ln. Public Li-brary, Long Beach. Burket, Frances M., Ln. Amador County Free Library, Jackson. Chalfant, Blanche, Ln. Butte County Free Library, Oroville.

Library, Oroville. atfield, Marguerite, Asst. Public Li-

Library, Oroville. Chatfield, Marguerite, Asst. Public Li-brary, Ventura. Chilberg, Marjorie J., Asst. Solano County Free Library, Fairfield. Coleman, Martha June, Ln. Tuolumne County Free Library, Sonora. Coulter, Mabel, Asst. Contra Costa County Free Library, Martinez. De Ford, Estella, Ln. Napa County Free Library, Napa

De Ford, Estella, Lm. Napa County Free Library, Napa. Dills, Clara B., Lm. Solano County Free Library, Fairfield. English, Gladys, Lm. Piedmont High School Library, Piedmont. Ferguson, K. Dorothy, Lm. Bank of Italy Library, San Francisco.

- Ferguson, Milton J., Ln. State Library, Sacramento. Hubert B., Asst. Public Library, Frazier,
- Angeles. Los
- Los Angeles. Frink, Ellen B., Asst. Monterey County Free Library, Salinas. Fuller, Mrs Melissa, Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno. Galloway, Blanche, Ln. Madera County Free Library, Madera. Gantt, Edith, Ln. Plumas County Free Library, Quincy. Gibson, Hazel G., Asst. Sacramento. Greene, Charles S., Ln. Free Library, Oak-land. Hadden, Anne, Ln. Monterey County Free

- Hadden, Anne, Ln. Monterey County Free Library, Salinas.
- Hadden, Anne, Ln. Monterey County Free Library, Salinas.
 Haines, Alice J., Head Documents Dept., State Library, Sacramento.
 Harris, Mary W., Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno.
 Hewitt, Edna J., Ln. Sutter County Free Library, Yuba City.
 Hitt, Eleanor, Ln. San Diego County Free Library, San Diego.
 Huntington Stalle Ln. Santia Clarge

- Library, San Diego. Huntington, Stella, Ln. Santa Clara County Free Library, San Jose. Kennedy, Helen T., Asst. Ln. Public Li-brary, Los Angeles. Kitching, Mrs Ethelene M., Ln. Fullerton High School Library, Fullerton. Kneeshaw, Faye T., Ln. Glenn County Free Library, Willows. Kobler, Marjorie H., Asst. San Diego.

- Kobler, Marjorie H., Asst. San Diego. County Free Library, San Diego.
 Laugenour, Nancy C., Ln. Yolo County Free Library, Woodland.
 Linn, Mrs Frances Burns, Ln. Santa Barbara Free Public Library and Santa Barbara County Free Library, Santa Barbara.
- Barbara. Livingston, Margaret E., Ln. Orange County Free Library, Santa Ana. McCardle, Sarah E., Ln. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno. Margrave, Anne, Ln. Inyo County Free Library, Independence.
- Library, Independence, Martin, Lenala A., Ln, Lassen County Free Library, Susanville. Meredith, Roberta, Asst. Fresno County Free Library, Fresno. Middleton, Maude, Asst. Kings County Free Library, Hanford. Miller, Mabel V., Asst. Los Angeles County Free Library, Los Angeles. Mumm, Beulah, Reference Ln. State Li-brary. Sacramento.

- brary, Sacramento. Packer, Ella, Asst. Colusa County Free
- Library, Colusa. Parkinson, H. O., Ln. Stockton Public Li-brary and San Joaquin County Free Library.
- Perry, Everett R., Ln. Public Library, Los Angeles.
- Provines, Cornelia D., Ln. Sacramento County Free Library, Sacramento. Rea, Robert, Ln. Public Library, San
- Francisco.
- Francisco. Reagan, Ida M., Ln. Humboldt County Free Library, Eureka. Silverthorn, Bessie B., Ln. McHenry Pub-lic Library and Stanislaus County Free Library, Modesto. Smith, Margaret W., Asst. Fremont High School Library, Oakland. Smith, Susan T., Ln. City Library, Sac-ramento
- ramento.
- Steffa, Julia, Ln. Hanford Public Library and Kings County Free Library, Hanford.
- Stevens, Elizabeth, Ln. Tel Free Library, Red Bluff. Tehama County

- Stoddard, Minette L., Asst. Merced County Free Library, Merced. Thomas, Mabel W., Asst. In. Free Li-brary, Oakland.
- Elizabeth Topping. Ventura.
- R., Ln. rv. Ventura. Angeles
- County Free Library, Ventura. Vogleson, Helen E., Ln. Los Angeles County Free Library, Los Angeles. Warren, Althea H., Ln. Public Library,

- County Free Library, Los Angeles. Warren, Althea H., Ln. Public Library, San Diego. Waterman, Minerva H., Ln. Santa Cruz Public Library and Santa Cruz County Free Library, Santa Cruz, Waters, Caroline S., Ln. San Bernardino. County Free Library, San Bernardino. Whitbeck, Mrs Alice G., Ln. Contra Costa County Free Library, Martinez. Worden, Mrs Dorothy (Clarke), Mrs Charles J. Worden, Ln. Colusa County Free Library, Colusa. Wright, Muriel, Asst. Kern County Free Library, Bakersfield.
- Library, Bakersfield.

Second Grade.

- De Witt, Mrs Isabelle (Park), Asst. Mer-ced County Free Library, Merced. Duff, Marcella Carmelita, Asst. State Li-

- Duff, Marcella Carmelita, Asst. State Library, Sacramento.
 Encking, Louise F., Asst. Public Library, Seattle, Wash.
 Faulkner, Mrs Mabel F., Ln. Orange Public Library, Orange.
 Gantz, Flo A., Ln. San Luis Obispo County Free Library, San Luis Obispo.
 Schaer, Mildred E., Southern California Telephone Co. Library, Los Angeles.
 Wheaton, Florence J., Ln. San Benito County Free Library, Hollister.
 Whitbeck, Josephine L, Asst. City Library, Sacramento.

- Whitbeck, Josephine brary, Sacramento.

Third Grade.

Williams, lliams, Anna L., Ln. Free Library, Alturas. Ln. Modoc County

At Present Out of Library Work.

Alexander, Mrs Lela (Clapperton) (New certificate)

- Gerundate). Dambacher, Mrs Helen (Rowland), Mrs Gustav Dambacher (2d grade). Ferris, Katharine Post (New certificate). Gleason, Celia (New certificate). Gregory, Marion L. (New certificate). Herrman, Mrs Jennie (Herrman), Mrs James White Herrman (New certificate).
- Jamieson, Mrs Dorothy (Henders Mrs Natt F. Jamieson (2d grade). Kyle, Eleanore (New certificate). (Henderson),

- Kyle, Eleandre (New Certificate).
 Lewis, Mrs Anna Jean (Thomson), Mrs R. B. Lewis (New certificate).
 McDonald, Mrs Ora Regnart, Mrs Charles E. McDonald (New certificate).
 Work, Mrs Geraldine (Graham), Mrs George A, Work (2d grade).
- Yates, Mrs Bess (Ranton), Mrs John D. Yates. (New certificate.)

COUNTY FREE LIBRARY LAW.

The "California county free library law and circular of information for applicants for certificates of qualification to hold office of county librarian in California" was published in News Notes of California Libraries, April, 1911, and later reprinted in pamphlet form. The edition being exhausted, a revised edition of the circular was printed in News Notes of California Libraries, January, 1914. This has been reprinted as a pamphlet. The fifth edition was issued December, 1921. (Circular of information only.) The fourth edition of the County free library law was also issued in December, 1921. Copies of both of above pamphlets will be furnished on request.

NEXT EXAMINATION.

No date has been set for the next examination,

APPLICATION BLANKS.

All who wish to take the examination should file applications with the Chairman of the Board. For application blanks or further information address the Chairman of the Board, Milton J. Ferguson, State Librarian, Sacramento, California.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY.

The bill establishing the California State Library was signed by Governor Peter H. Burnett, January 24, 1850. California State Library School was established by resolution adopted Sep-

tember 4, 1913.

California State Library School was discontinued by motion adopted May 22, 1920.

Annual income for 1924-25, \$101,605.

Total accessions 252,749 (less 3293 lost and discarded = 249,456) exclusive of 16.479 accessions in Books for Blind Department and of the Sutro Branch in San Francisco.

STAFF.

Milton J. Ferguson, Librarian. Miss Mabel R. Gillis, Assistant Librarian and Head of Books for the Blind

Department. Herbert V. Clayton, Law and Legislative Reference Librarian.

Miss Eudora Garoutte, Head of Cali-fornia Department.

Miss Alice J. Haines. Head of Documents Department.

Mrs May Dexter Henshall, County Library Organizer. Miss Annie Lowry, in charge of Peri-

odicals and Binding

Wm. H. Lugg, Head of Shipping, Re-pairs, etc., Department. Miss Beulah Mumm, Reference Libra-

rian

Miss Ida G. Munson, Head of Catalog Department.

Miss Myrtle Ruhl, in charge of Order Department.

Miss Beryl Andrews, Assistant.

Miss Helen M. Bruner, Assistant, Sutro Branch, San Francisco. Miss Ella A. Clark, Indexer. Miss Benneta Colton, Assistant.

Miss Mae Davies, Assistant. Miss Margaret Dennison, Assistant, Sutro Branch, San Francisco. Mrs Gerna R. Dickson, Assistant. Miss Carmelita Duff, Assistant.

Miss Dorothy Geeslin, Assistant.

Miss Angelina Grant, Assistant. Miss Zilla Grant, Assistant.

Miss Florence Lamb, Bookkeeper. Mrs Bessie Heath McCrea, Assistant.

(On leave of absence.)

Miss Alice Miller, Assistant. Miss D. Florence Montfort, Assistant. Miss D. Florence monthly fund. Miss Dorothy Puffer, Assistant. Miss Irene E. Ryan, Assistant. Miss Lily M. Tilden, Assistant. Mrs Corinne R. Tracy, Assistant. Miss June Vladyka, Assistant. Mrs E. D. Waldron, Assistant. Miss Marguerite Walker, Stenog-

rapher.

Miss Caroline Wenzel, Assistant.

Mrs Ina Brosseau, Book Repairer. Miss Emma F. de Merritt, Book Re-

pairer.

Charles T. Edwards, Assistant Shipping Clerk.

Arden Hall, Assistant Shipping Clerk (Part-time).

Wm. G. Lyons, Assistant Shipping Clerk.

Sarah Carder, Messenger.

Addalbert Morris, Messenger.

Vera Palermo, Messenger.

Leona Rasmussen, Messenger, J. L. Foss, Janitor.

G. A. Klees, Janitor. Harry A. Simons, Elevator Operator.

STAFF NEWS ITEMS.

Miss Alice Chenu left September 13 to take a stenographic position with the Division of Engineering and Irrigation. Department of Public Works. Miss Dorothy Puffer was transferred to the Periodicals Department and Miss Sarah Carder was employed as messenger to fill the vacancy thus caused. Miss Carder began work September 17.

Miss Mary Virginia Provines left the State Library September 30 after fifteen years of service. She has received the appointment as cataloger in the Sacramento County Free Library at a gratifying increase in salary. On September 29, the staff gave a luncheon under the trees in Capitol Park, as a farewell expression of friendship for Miss Provines.

Mrs Bessie Heath McCrea began a six months leave of absence on September 1 to be at home. Miss Caroline Wenzel was transferred from the Catalog Department to the vacancy thus created in the California Department.

Mrs Corinne Ruttle Tracy, formerly Children's Librarian in the Sacramento City Library, joins our staff October 1 as assistant in the Reference Department.

A staff meeting was held on July 28, at which Mr Ferguson told of his trip to the International Rotary Convention, the A. L. A. and the Iowa Library Workers Conference.

On August 29, Mr Ferguson addressed the Soroptomist Club of Sacramento on his eastern trip.

Early in July Miss Marguerite Walker announced her engagement to Mr Grant

Duggins of Sacramento. The wedding will probably be in the Fall.

For note regarding State Fair exhibit, see p. 463.

LIBRARY HOURS.

Week days _____ 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Legislative session:

Week days _____ 9 a.m. to 9 p.m. Sundays _____10 a.m. to 3 p.m.

The Library closed at noon on Saturdays during July and August.

LAW AND LEGISLATIVE REFER-ENCE DEPARTMENT.

HERBERT V. CLAYTON, in charge.

The Law and Legislative Reference Department is fully equipped with the latest reports, digests, encyclopedias and textbooks, the statutes of other states, the United States, Great Britain, Can-ada, Australia and certain other foreign countries, and briefs of counsel in cases decided in the California Supreme and Appellate courts. State officers are en-titled to borrow books, and private indi-viduals are accorded the same privilege upon presentation of a request signed by a Supreme, Appellate or Superior Judge, or other state officer. Books may be kept three weeks, and will be once renewed for two weeks. All books are subject to recall, if required by a state officer, or if, in the opinion of the Librarian, a recall is fair and expedient.

In addition to special service to members of the Legislature, information on the laws of California and other states and countries is given on inquiry from libraries or individuals.

Recent accessions to the department will be found listed under the heading "Law" in the section on "Recent Acces-sions."

The following compilation, recently made, is printed here for general reference :

California County Charters in Force.

(References are to California Statutes.) Butte, 1917:1791; am'd 1923:1554.

Los Angeles, 1913:1484; am'd 1923: 1659.

San Bernardino, 1913:1652; am'd 1915:1726; 1919:1454; 1923:1294. Tehama, 1917:1877; am'd 1921:2025.

City and County.

San Francisco, 1899:242; am'd 1903: 583; 1907 Ex:10,29; 1911:1469, 1661; 1913:1473, 1602; 1915:1807; 1917:1708; 1919:1376; 1921:1776; 1923:1261.

City Charters in Force.

(References are to California Statutes.) Alameda, 1917:1752; am'd 1919:1481; 1921:1885.

Alhambra, 1915:1770. Anaheim, 1877-8:309. Arcata, 1858:7; am'd 1860:109; 1869-70:414; 1873-4:280.

Bakersfield, 1915:1552. Benicia, 1859:314; am'd 1860:118; 1861:17; 1862:231:1867-8:3, 206; 1869-70:854; 1873-4:777.

Berkeley, 1909:1208; am'd 1913:1502; 1917:1814; 1921:2021; 1923:1537.

Chico, 1923:1436.

Cloverdale, 1871-2:164; am'd 1871-2: 550; 1875-6:171.

Colusa, 1875-6:669; am'd 1877-8:248.

Colusa, 1875-6:669; an'd 1877-8:248. Crescent City, 1854:197; an'd 1857: 56, 225; 1858:233. Dixon, 1877-8:712. Etna, 1877-8:712. Eureka, 1895:35; an'd 1907:1172; 1911:2036; 1913:1544; 1917:1742; 1923:1616 1923:1616.

Fort Jones, 1871-2:387. Fresno, 1921:1821.

Gilroy, 1869-7 356; 1875-6:724. 1869-70:263; am'd 1871-2:

Glendale, 1921:2204; am'd 1923:1646. Grass Valley, 1921:1889. Hayward, 1875-6:215.

Healdsburg, 1873-4:665; am'd 1875-6:891

Hollister, 1873-4:675. Hornitos, 1869-70:471

Livermore, 1875-6:913.

Long Beach, 1921:2054; am'd 1923: 1624.

Los Angeles, 1889:455; am'd 1903: 555; 1905:980; 1907:1160; 1909:1289;

1911 :2051 ; 1913 :1629 ; 1917 :1686 ; 1919 :

1430; 1921; 1801; 1923; 1408, 1433, 1651. Markleeville, 1863-4; 441. Martinez, 1875-6; 822; am'd 1877-8;

297.

Marysville, 1919:1467. Modesto, 1911:1493.

Monterey, 1911:1742. Napa, 1915:1591; am'd 1921:2201.

Nevada City, 1877-8:221. Oakland, 1911:1551; am'd 1917:1699, 1948, 1963; 1919:1364, 1515; 1921:2262; 1923:1430, 1635.

Palo Alto, 1909; 1175; am'd 1911:2040; 1917:1859; 1921:2167. Pasadena, 1901:885; am'd 1905:1011; 1909:1198; 1913:1457; 1919:1502;

Petaluma, 1911:1799; am'd 1915:1803;

1919:1434.

Piedmont, 1923:1564.

Placerville, 1863:211; am'd 1863-4: 493; 1871-2:431.

Pomona, 1911:1913.

Red Bluff, 1875-6:637; am'd 1877-8: 116; 1891:108.

Redwood City, 1873-4;946. Richmond, 1909:1262; am'd 1913:1690. Riverside, 1907:1277.

Sacramento, 1921:1919.

Sacramento, 1921;1919. Salinas, 1919;1398; am'd 1921;2039. San Bernardino, 1905;940;am'd 1909; 1166; 1913;1716; 1919;1485;1921;2237, 2242; 1923;1612.

San Buenaventura, 1875-6:534; am'd 1877-8:537.

San Diego, 1889:643; am'd 1901:879; 1905:901; 1909:1137; 1911:1856; 1913:1663; 1915:1817; 1919:1524; 1921:1873, 2254; 1923:1581.

San Jose, 1915:1869; am'd 1921:2258. San Juan, 1869-70:245.

San Leandro, 1873-4:63. San Luis Obispo, 1911

1911:1698: am'd 1913:1667: 1917:1944.

San Mateo, 1923:1275 San Rafael, 1913:1549; am'd 1917:

1905. 1967 Santa Barbara, 1917:1824.

Santa Clara, 1871-2:251; am'd 1873-

4:591.Santa Cruz. 1911:1861: am'd 1923:

1601. Santa Monica, 1907:1107; am'd 1915:

1714; 1919:1393.

Santa Rosa, 1923:1298. Sonora, 1877-8:23; am'd 1877-8:467.

Schora, 1877-8:23; Stockton, 1923:1321. Tulare, 1923:1508. Ukiah, 1875-6:162. Vallejo, 1911:1958; 1919:1442; 1921:2032. Visalia, 1923:1467. Watsonville, 1902:6 am'd 1913:1693;

Watsonville, 1903:647: am'd 1919: 1448

Wheatland, 1873-4:351; am'd 1875-6: 1877-8:441. 19:

Woodland, 1873-4:557; am'd 1875-6: 818; 1877-8:84. 446. Yreka, 1857:229; am'd 1860:313.

DOCUMENTS DEPARTMENT.

ALICE J. HAINES, in charge.

The Documents Department aims to collect, arrange and make available government publications, federal, state, city and foreign.

During the fiscal year 17,300 government publications were added to the collection. The number of California State publications distributed was 9912.

Recent accessions of California State and City publications will be found on pp. 498, 500.

Copies of 9 California state publications have been received for distribution libraries during July, August and September, 1924.

Agriculture Dept. Special publications, nos. 46-47. Fish & Game Comm. Cal. fish & game, vol. 10, no. 3, July, 1924. Highway Comm. Cal. Highways, vol. 1,

no. 7-8.

Insurance Comm. Report 1923, pt. 1. Mining Bureau. Cal. oil fields, vol. 9, no. 10-11.

Railroad Comm. Report, 1923.

REFERENCE DEPARTMENT.

BEULAH MUMM, in charge.

The Reference Department furnishes information to any inquirer. It furnishes books to public libraries on request of the librarian, and to any other educa-tional institution on request of its official head or its librarian; to individuals through the signature of a state officer, of the Librarian of the local library or Francisco County and later Surveyor 13-34984

of the official head of any other educational institution or on receipt of a \$5.00 deposit; to a club or grange on request of its president, secretary or librarian. In counties having county free libraries, *all* requests must be made through the county free library.

During the year July 1, 1923, to June 30, 1924, the service of the Reference Department showed the following totals:

16,186 author requests were looked up;

5,039 subject requests were filled;

8,520 shipments were made;

37,551 books were loaned:

417 pictures were loaned:

19.079 request slips were stamped and mailed;

9,409 receipt postcards were typed.

ORDER AND ACCESSIONS DEPARTMENT.

MYRTLE RUHL, in charge.

During July, August and September, 1189 books and 15 prints were accessioned.

CATALOG DEPARTMENT.

IDA G. MUNSON, in charge.

During July, August and September, 882 books were cataloged and 6108 cards were added to the file. 9862 cards were filed in the Union Catalog.

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT.

EUDORA GAROUTTE, in charge.

The California Department aims to have a thoroughly good collection of books on the h is tory and description, resources and indusries of the State, as well as the works of California authors in all departments of literature. These are made accessible by means of a card sketches of California authors, artists, musicians, pioneers and biographical sketches of California authors, artists, musicians, pioneers and early settlers are being secured, together with their photo-graphs. The collection of bound peri-odicals is quite large. The Department also contains shout 2000 hound a relumest also contains about 9000 bound volumes of newspapers, a file of which is being indexed with reference to the history of the State. Students will be assisted in their work.

Pioneers and Early Settlers.

John Coffee Hays or "Col Jack" Hays as he was known by all the pioneers, and feared by evil doers, arrived in 1849 from Texas where he had been an officer in the Texas Rangers also in the Mexican war.

General of California. In after years he settled in Oakland where he lived at "Fernwood" the remainder of his life. Several interesting photographs of Col Hays were also received.

The card of another '49er is that of John Clark Anderson. Mr Anderson is now living in Pennsylvania and is 96 years of age. The photograph that came with the card shows him to be a very unusual character not looking his age by many years. He came to California as a member of the Pittsburg and California Enterprise Co. After a lew exciting years in the mines and other parts of California he returned to the place of his birth where he still lives in peace and prosperity.

Another pioneer of prominence is Dr Andrew Randall who came to California from Kentucy in 1849. He was identified with public affairs both in Monterey and San Francisco, representing the former county in the legislature and was one of the organizers of the California Academy of Sciences in San Francisco. He was killed by Joseph Hetherington who was afterwards hung by the Vigilance Committee of 1856.

Other cards of interest `are those of Daniel Ellington Hamblen and Mrs Ardelia Hall-Stebbins.

California Authors.

The following author cards have been received since the last issue of News Notes of California Libraries:

> Breeze, Mrs Rita (Green) Mrs Clarence Dean Breeze Curtis, Edward Sheriff Daggett, Stuart *Doran, Louise Agnes Easton, William Edgar Ferguson, Charles D. Lehmer, Derrick Norman Mansfield, George Campbell Neily, Roy MacGregor Robinson, Walter Wallace Spalding, Baird Thomas *Totheroh, Dan W.

California Musicians.

The following musician cards have been received since the last issue of News Notes of California Libraries:

- *Bogart, Andrew Templeman *Larcel, Emilie Lichtenstein, Victor Macquarrie, Mrs Marie (Hughes) Mrs Harold Castle Macquarrie

*Native Californians.

California Artists.

The following artist card has been received since the last issue of News Notes of California Libraries: Foster, Arthur Turner

Newspaper Index,

The index covers the period from August 15, 1846, to date.

Catalog.

Four hundred and eight cards have been added to the California catalog during the last quarter.

Exhibit.

The very interesting exhibit of old daguerreotypes and ambrotypes in the rotunda of the capitol is continuing to excite much interest.

BOOKS FOR THE BLIND DEPARTMENT.

MABEL R. GILLIS, in charge.

Embossed books in the various types are sent to any blind resident in California upon application. Circular and finding list, with Call slip postal, will be sent on request. Writing appliances and games for the blind are loaned as samples to those wishing to buy such articles, so that the different kinds can be tried be-fore they are ordered. Addresses of Addresses firms supplying all articles loaned will be furnished on request.

Books sent to individuals from an in-stitution distributing embossed literature are carried free through the mails.

Embossed catalogs in American Braille, Moon, and New York point are available. They will be loaned to bor-rowers wishing them for use in book selection.

The State Library will be glad to have borrowers who care to do so write any letters or requests for books to the Li-brary in Braille or New York point.

The first book was loaned June 13, 1905. There are now 2148 blind borrowers, 50 borrowers having been added during July, August and September, Total accessions are 16,479 as follows: New York point books 2502; New York point music 188; American Braille books 3026; American Braille music 1269; European Braille books 2550; European Braille music 178; Moon books 4002; Meon music 5: Revised Braille books 1879; Revised Braille music 113; Standard dot books 14; Line books 193; Line music 21; Ink print books 375; *Appliances 84; *Games 47; Maps 33.

*Appliances and games are loaned as samples to anyone wishing to try them.

During July, August and September, 8073 books, etc., were loaned as follows: New York point 576; American Braille 455 : European Braille 1374 : Moon 3265 ; Revised Braille Grade 11 2391; Ink print books 1: Appliances 6: Maps 1: Games The loans were divided by class as 4. Philosophy and religion 622; follows : sociology 33; language 65; primers 52; science 127: useful arts 66: fine arts 0: amusements 7; music 102; literature 282; fiction 4866; travel and history 611; biography 270; periodicals 970.

Copies of magazines have been donated during the last three months by Lucien Ayers, Mrs F. A. Bacher, F. B. Beans, Mrs H. W. Bruning, Frank Caldwell, Mrs A. H. Clise, W. L. England, Mrs F. W. Foster, E. M. Gebhart, Wm. Harper, Ruby Holtz, Geo. W. Lee, Bessie A. Long, Rose McComb, Wm. A. Miller, Hattie B. Newman, Mrs M. E. Phillips, M. W. Sanders, Mrs L. Sargent, George W. Shoemaker, C. H. Snow, Amy Weihe, Christian Record Publishing Co., Free Gospel Library for the Blind, Irish Association for the Blind, National Institute for the Blind, New York Association for the Blind, Permanent Blind Relief War Fund, Society for the Aid of the Sightless, Western Pennsylvania Institute for the Blind, Xavier Braille Publication Society for the Blind, Ziegler Publishing Co.

Other gifts are indicated in the list of books, etc., which have been added to the library during the last three months. See p. 501.

From July 1, 1923, to June 30, 1924, 193 borrowers were added and 50 were lost by death. 965 books, music, etc. were added and 26 were lost or discarded. 31,761 books were loaned.

Home Teaching.

Owing to a decrease in the appropriation for the Library during the present two years home teaching for the blind was discontinued by the Library on June 30, 1923.

On December 1, 1923, home teaching was officially reinstated under the State Board of Control. Persons knowing of possible pupils may communicate with the State Library, or, if in the bay district, with Miss Kate M, Foley, 146 McAllister

street, San Francisco, and, if in Los Angeles and vicinity, with Miss Catharine J. Morrison, 951 El Molino street, Los Angeles.

SUTRO BRANCH.

The Sutro Branch occupies space in the Public Library, Civic Center, San Francisco, and is open every day, except Sunday, from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.

CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY SCHOOL GRADUATES.

Miss Esther M. Bomgardner, San Diego, Cal.

- Miss Esther M. Bomgardner, San Diego, Cal.
 '15. Asst. Public School L., Los Angeles.
 Miss Thelma Brackett, San Diego, Cal.
 '20. Ln. Siskiyou Co. F. L., Yreka.
 Miss Helen V. Briggs, Sacramento, Cal.
 '14. Out of library work.
 Miss Agnes E. Brown, Palo Alto, Cal.
 '15. Asst. Washington State College Library, Pullman, Wash.
 Miss Helen M. Bruner, Sacramento, Cal.
 '14. Asst. in charge, Sutro Branch, State L., San Francisco, Cal.
 Mrs Lucile Huff Buchan, Palo Alto, Cal.
 '20. Out of library work.
 Mrs Virginia Clowe Bullis, Woodland, Cal.
 '17. Out of library work.
 Miss Ruth E. Bullock, Redlands, Cal.
 '15. Ln. Central Union High School and Junior College L., El Centro.
 Miss Blanche-Chalfant, Bishop, Cal.
 '14. Ln. Butte Co. F. L., Oroville.
 Miss Marguerite Chatfield, Pasadena, Cal.
 '20. Asst. Ventura P. L., Ventura.
 Miss Nellie E. Christensen, Selma, Cal.
 '19. Ln. Selma High School L., Selma.
 Miss Mabel Coulter, Salinas, Cal.
 '14. Asst. Contra Costa Co. F. L., Mar-tinez.
 Miss Helen Exterp Crawford, Winters, Cal.
- Miss Helen Esther Crawford, Winters, Cal.

- Miss Helen Esther Crawford, Winters, Cal.
 '20. Out of library work.
 Miss Dorotha Davis, Los Angeles, Cal.
 '17. Ln. Fresno High School L., Fresno.
 Miss Tillie de Bernardi, Santa Rosa, Cal.
 '18. Out of library work.
 Miss Estella De Ford, National City, Cal.
 '15. Ln. Napa Co. F. L., Napa.
 Miss Margaret Dennison, Alameda, Cal.
 '17. Asst. Sutro Branch, State L., San Francisco

- Francisco.
- Francisco. Miss Abbie Doughty, San Luis Obispo, Cal. '20. Teacher-Ln. Bonita Union H i g h School, La Verne. Miss Ellen B. Frink, Palo Alto, Cal. '19. Asst. Monterey Co. F. L., Salinas. Miss Flo A. Gantz, Pomona, Cal. '20. Ln. San Luis Obispo Co. F. L., San Luis Obispo. Miss Beatrice Y. Gawne, Berkeley, Cal. '17. Asst. Monterey Co. F. L., Salinas. Miss Hazel G. Gibson, Santa Monica, Cal. '19. Asst. Sacramento Co. F. L., Sac-ramento.

- Miss Margaret V. Girdner, Sacramento. '17. Ln. Palo Alto High School L., Palo
- Alto:
 Miss Mary E. Glock, Madera, Cal.
 '15. Died, March 6, 1922.
 Miss Bernice L. Goff, San Jose, Cal.
 '14. Asst. P. L., New York City.
 Mrs Jennie Rumsey Gould, Woodland, Cal.
 '14. Out of library work.

- Mrs Mildred Kellogg Hargis, Salinas, Cal. '18. Out of library work. Mrs Louise Jammé Harriss, Hood River,
- Oregon.
- '15. Out of library work. Miss Margaret Hatch, San
- s Margaret Hatch, Santa Rosa, Cal. 5. Ln. Standard Oil Co. L., San Fran-cisco. Hazel Meddaugh Heffner, Stockton, Cal. 15.
- Mrs
- 18.
- '18. Out of library work. Miss Cecilia Henderson, Santa Paula, Cal. '14. Out of library work. Miss Edna S. Holroyd, Hanford, Cal. Dedmood
- 15. Ln. San Mateo Co. F. L., Redwood City
- Mrs Helen Hopwood Judd, Palo Alto, Cal. '20. Out of library work. Mrs Winona McConnell Kennedy, Elk
- Grove, Cal. '15. Out of library work. rs Marguerite Ryan Kirschman, San
- Mrs Jose, Cal. '19. Out of library work. Mrs Algeline Marlow Lawson, San Diego,
- Cal.
- Cal. '18. Asst. P. L., San Diego. Miss Marjorie C. Learned, Pasadena, Cal. '20. Asst. P. L., Pasadena. Miss Amy G. Luke, Willows, Cal. '15. Out of library work. Mrs Bessie Heath McCrea, Michigan Bar,

- Cal.
- '19. Asst. State L., Sacramento. (On
- Miss N. Ruth McCullough, Berkeley, Cal. '17. Out of library work.
- Mrs Ruth Beard McDowell, Modesto, Cal. '14. Out of library work. Miss M. Ruth McLaughlin, Lamanda Park,
- Cal
- Out of library work.
- '17. Out of Everett rs Everett McCullough Berkeley, Cal. '19. Out of library work. Mrs McMullan,
- Mrs Georgia Pearl Secker Meyers, Fresno, Cal.
- Cal.
 Cal.
 Tulare Joint Union High School L., Tulare.
 Miss Anne Margrave, Santa Barbara, Cal.
 14. Ln. Inyo Co. F. L., Independence.
 Miss Lenala Martin, Sacramento, Cal.
 14. Ln. Lassen Co. F. L., Susanville.
 Miss Vera V. Mitchell, Oakland, Cal.
 (19. Asst. Ln, Oroville High School L., Oroville
- Asst. La Oroville

- Miss Marion Morse, Berkeley, Cal. '17. Ln. Maui Co. F. L., Wailuku, T. H. Mrs Alice Moore Patton, Los Gatos, Cal. '18. Out of library work. Mrs Helen Katherine Kellogg Peabody,
- Salinas, Cal. 9. Out of library work.
- '19. Out of library work. rs Marion Schumacher Percival, Han-Mrs
- ford, Cal. '15. Out of library work. rs. Miriam Colcord Post, Modesto, Cal. '14. Ln. Bakersfield Branch, Kern Co. Free L. Bakersfield. (On leave Mrs
- of absence.) Miss Margaret L. Potter, Oakland, Cal. '16. Asst. Lane Medical L., San Francisco.
- Mrs Eunice Steele Price, Berkeley, Cal. '16: Out of library work. Mrs Beatrice Brasefield Rakestraw, Palo
- Mrs Beatrice Brasenete Teasenete Teaseneter, Tale Alto, Cal.
 '18. Ln. Cleveland Junior High School L., Elizabeth, N. J.
 Miss Esther L. Ramont, Modesto, Cal.
 '20. Ln. Modesto High School L., Modesto.
- Mrs Frances Haub Raymond, Sacramento, Cal
 - '20. Out of library work.

Miss Anna Belle Robinson, Claremont, Cal. Miss Mind Belle Rounson, Charlemont, Can.
 '18. Died, June 22, 1920.
 Miss Myrtle Ruhl, Redwood City, Cal.
 '14. Head of Order Dept., State L.,

- Sacramento.
- Sacramento. Miss Ruth Seymour, Mill Valley, Cal. '18. Ln. Tamalpais Union High School L., Mill Valley. Miss Blanche L. Shadle, Lodi, Cal. '17. On vacation. Mrs Edith Edenborg Smalley, Muroc, Cal.

- 18. Out of library work.
 Mrs Edna Bell Smith, Fairoaks, Cal.
 17. Out of library work.
 Mrs Elizabeth Snyder Smith, Berkeley, Mrs En Cal.
 - '20. Out of library work.
- Mrs Vivian Gregory Smith, Woodland, Cal. '14. Ln. Security Trust and Savings Bank, Los Angeles.
- Mrs Rosamond Bradbury Waithman, Mrs Rosamond Bradbury Walthman, Santa Barbara, Cal. '18. Out of library work. Miss Caroline Wenzel, Sacramento, Cal. '14. Asst. State L., Sacramento. Miss Josephine L. Whitbeck, Richmond,

- Cal. '16.
- '16. Asst. P. L., Sacramento. Miss Essie T. White, Broderick, Cal. '19. Asst. Sacramento High School and
- Asst. Sacramento High School and Junior College L., Sacramento.
 Mrs Katharine Cahoon Wilson, Berkeley.
 '17. Out of library work.
 Miss Aldine Winham, Salinas, Cal.
 '20. Lm. State Teachers College L., Santa Barbara.

- Mrs Dorothy Clarke Worden, Sacramento, Cal.
- '15. '15. Ln. Colusa Co. F. L., Colusa. Mrs Bess Ranton Yates, Long Beach, Cal.
- 18. Out of library work.

RECENT ACCESSIONS.

Additions to the Library During July, August and September, 1924.

The last number of the QuarterlyBulletin of the California State Library which was issued was no. 4 of vol. 4, covering the accessions for September-December, 1905. The Bulletin has been discontinued and the matter contained in it is now appearing in the News Notes of California Libraries.

The last list of recent accessions appeared in the July, 1924, issue of this publication.

GENERAL WORKS.

- Tempo-AMERICAN library association. rary library training board.
- Report of the temporary library training board. 1924. ax020.7A 5t

CALIFORNIA library association.

Library buildings, furniture and equipment, compiled for buildings and equipment round tables. 1924.

qx022.9 C15

COMMITTEE of government librarians on	ROUTZAHN, Evart Grant, & Routzahn,
reclassification.	Mrs Mary Brayton (Swain)
Brief and specifications for library	Publicity methods reading list. 1924.
service in the federal government.	016.3 R86
1923. ×023.5 C73	SATURDAY night, v. 3-4, 1922-24.
CUTTER, Charles Ammi.	 SATURDAT Hight, V. 5-4, 1922-24,
Explanation of the Alphabetic-order	fc051 S25 WILLIAMS, Sidney Herbert. A bibliography of the writings of Lewis
marks (three-figure tables). 1908.	Carroll. (Charles Lutwidge Dodg-
q×025.4 C9	son) 1924. g012 D6
DRURY, Francis Keese Wynkoop. College life and college sport, a read- ing list of college activities. 1924. 016.378 D79	Yost, Casper Salathiel. The principles of journalism. 1924. 070 Y66
EDUCATIONAL finance inquiry commission.	Youngstown public library.
Bibliography on educational finance.	Fifty educational books of 1923. 1924.
1924. 016.3791 E24	x016.37 Y81
FARGO, Lucile F. "Seventeen" and the reference libra- rian. [1924] q×021.3 F2 GRAHAM, Bessie. The bookman's manual. 2d ed., rev.	PHILOSOPHY AND ETHICS. ADLER, Felix. The reconstruction of the spiritual ideal; Hibbert lectures, delivered in Manchester college, Oxford, May, 1923. 1924. 170.4 A23r
and enl. 1924. r028 G73a	ASTOR, Nancy Witcher (Langhorne),
THE LARIAT, v. 1–2, 1923. q051 L3	viscountess.
THE LITERARY digest international book	Are temperance reformers cranks?
review. v. 1. 1922–23. q016 16	1922. 178 A85
Lowe, John Adams. The public library building plan. Re- printed from The Architectural forum, January and February, 1924. q×022 L99p McColvin, Lionel Roy. Music in public libraries. 1924.	BOOTH, Herbert. The saint and the sword. c1924. 172.4 B72 BROCKWAY, Archibald Fenner. How to end war; the I. L. P. view on imperialism and internationalism. (I. L. P. programme pamphlet) 172.4 B86
 x025 M12 NATIONAL education association. School library dept. & American library association. School libraries section. Books for the high school library. Pre- liminary edition. 1924. x016 N27 	BROOKS, Phillips, bp. Tolerance, two lectures. [New ed.] [1924] 172.3 B87 BROWN, Charles Reynolds. What is your name? (More "Yale talks") 1924. 170 B87
RADDER, Norman John.	Cox, Coleman.
Newspaper make-up and headlines.	Just plain talk. c1923. c174 C87j
1924. 070 R12	Gift of author.
REECE, Ernest James. Some possible developments in library education. 1924. x020.7 R32	Listen to this. c1922. c174 C871 Gift of author.
ROBERTSON, Annie Isabel.	 FREYD, Max. The personalities of the socially and
Guide to literature of home and family	the mechanically inclined. [1924]
life. c1924. (Lippincott's home	(Psychological review publications.
books) r016.64 R64	Psychological monographs) q126 F8

GALLOWAY, Thomas Walton, Love and marriage: normal sex relations. 1924. (National health series) 173 G17 JOHNSTON, George Alexander. The development of Berkeley's philosophy. 1923. (Shaw fellowship lectures, 1920) 192 B51zi LAY, Wilfrid. A plea for monogamy. c1923. o173 L42 MCDOUGALL, William. Ethics and some modern world problems. 1924. 171 M13 MACKAYE, James. The logic of conduct. c1924. 171 M153 MARDEN, Orison Swett. The conquest of worry, c1924. 174 M32co STURT, Henry Cecil. Human value, 1923. 170 S63 MENTAL PHYSIOLOGY AND HYGIENE. JOHNSON, Florence Miriam.

Spiritual baptism of the body. [1923] c131 J66

MARCHANT, Sir James, ed. Youth and the race; the development and education of young citizens for worthy parenthood. 1923. 136 M31v

Monsarrat, Keith Waldegrave. Health and the human spirit. 1923.

131 M75

CHILD STUDY.

DAVIES, Stanley Powell. Social control of the feebleminded. 1923. 136.76 D24

HART, Hastings Hornell. The extinction of the defective delinquent. 1913. 136.7 H32

MARTIN, Lillien Jane. Mental training for the pre-school age child. e1923. 136.7 M38

MERRIMAN, Curtis. The intellectual resemblance of twins. [1924] (Psychological review pub-

[1924] (Psychological review publications. Psychological Monographs) q136.7 M5 O'Sнел, Michael Vincent, ed.

The child: his nature and his needs. c1924. 136.7 082c

SHAW, Edwin Adams.

A comparison of the intelligence and training of school children in a Massachusetts town. 1922. (Harvard monographs in education: Studies in educational psychology and educational measurements)

q136.7 S5

STEDMAN, Lulu M. Education of gifted children. 1924. (Measurement and adjustment series) 136.7 881

TERMAN, Lewis Madison.

Condensed guide for the Stanford revision of the Binet-Simon intelligence tests. c1920. [Adapted for use with the blind] 1923. (Riverside textbooks in education, division of secondary education) 136.7 T31cl

OCCULTISM. SPIRITUALISM.

HERING, Daniel Webster. Foibles and fallacies of science. 1924. 133 H54

HOUDINI, Harry. A magician among the spirits. 1924. 133.9 H83

ROBSON, Vivian Erwood. The fixed stars and constellations in astrology. [1923] 133.5 R66

VILLIERS, Elizabeth.

The mascot book; a popular encyclopœdia of bringers of luck. [1924]

133 V75

PSYCHOLOGY.

BERL, Emmanuel. The nature of love, authorized translation by Fred Rothwell. 1924.

157 B51

GREEN, George Herbert. The mind in action. 1924. 150 G79

HOLMES, Arthur.

Controlled power. 1924. (Mind and health series) 150 H749

WALSH, William Sebastian. The mastery of fear. c1924.

157 W22

RELIGION, CHRISTIAN SOCIOLOGY.

BALFOUR, Arthur James Balfour, 1st earl of.

Theism and thought, a study in familiar beliefs, being the second course of Gifford lectures. c1924. 211 B18t

- BIBLE, O. T. Psalms, English.
 The book of Psalms, a revised version, by W. M. Furneaux, 223.2 B58f
- BRYAN, William Jennings. Seven questions in dispute. c1924. 230 B91
- CADMAN, Samuel Parkes, Christianity and the state, 1924, 261 C12
- CURRISTIANITY and problems of to-day, lectures delivered before Lake Forest college on the foundation of the late William Bross, 1922. (The Bross lectures, 1921) **204 C55p**
- Doggett, Laurence Locke. History of the Young men's Christian association. 1922- 267.3 D65
- HALLOCK, Gerard Benjamin Fleet, cd. Cyclopedia of commencement sermons and baccalaureate addresses. c1924. 251 H19
- HUME. Robert Ernest. The world's living religions. 1924. (Life and religion series) 209 H92
- KING, Basil. The discovery of God. 1923. 231 K52
- MARTIN, Everett Dean. The mystery of religion, a study in social psychology, 1924. 201 M37
- ROYDEN, Agnes Maude. The friendship of God. 1924. 252 R88
- SPALDING, Baird T. Life and teaching of the masters of the Far East. [1924] (Sun series) c212 \$73
- STOBART, Mabel Annie (Boulton). Ancient lights; or, The Bible, the church, and psychic science. 1923. 230 S86
- STRATON, John Roach, & Potter, Charles Francis.
 - The virgin birth—fact or fiction? Third in the series of fundamentalistmodernist debates. c1924.
 - 230 S89v
- Was Christ both God and man? Fourth in the series of fundamentalist-modernist debates. c1924. 230 \$89w
- THOMS, Craig S. Social imperatives. [1923] 261 T47s

JEWS.

- FRISCH, Ephraim.
 - An historical survey of Jewish philanthropy from the earliest times to the nineteenth century. 1924, **296 F917**
- NOYES, Carleton Eldredge.
 - The genius of Israel; a reading ofHebrew Scriptures prior to the exile.1924.296 N95

SOCIOLOGY: GENERAL.

- BOGARDUS, Emory Stephen. Fundamentals of social psychology. 1924. (The Century social science series) 301 B67
- FOLLETT, Mary Parker. Creative experience. 1924. 301 F66
- RIVERS, William Halse Rivers.
 Social organization. 1924. (History of civilization. Pre-history and antiquity) 301 R62
- ROPER, Reginald Edward. The individual & the community. 1923. 301 R78
- TAYLER, John Lionel. Social life and the crowd. [1923]

301 T23

POLITICAL SCIENCE AND CITIZENSHIP.

ABBOTT, Edith. Immigration ; select documents and case records. c1924. 325.73 A13

- ASHLEY, Roscoe Lewis. The new civics, a textbook for secondary schools. 1920. 320 A82
- BABBITT, Irving. Democracy and leadership. 1924. 320 B11
- BEVERIDGE, Albert Jeremiah. The state of the nation. c1924. 320.73 B57
- CHAMBER of commerce of the United States of America.
 - Referendum no. 38 on legislation for veterans of the world war, 1922. q328.2 C4
- ETTRUDE, Dormin J., comp. Power of Congress to nullify Supreme court decisions, 1924. (The reference shelf) 328.73 E85

HEDRICK, Wilbur Olin. FORD, Henry Jones. Representative government. 1924. The economics of a food supply. 1924. (American science series) 321.8 F69. 338.1 H45 MAYNARD, Harold Howard. GETTELL, Richard Garfield. Marketing northwestern apples. 1923. History of political thought. 1924. 338.1 M47 320.9 G39 GIBBONS. Herbert Adams. MILNER, Alfred Milner, 1st viscount. America's place in the world. c1924. Questions of the hour. [1923] 320.73 G441 330.942 M65 HADOW. Sir William Henry. NATIONAL industrial conference board. Citizenship. 1923. 323.6 H13 Changes in the cost of living, July, HITTI, Philip Khûri. 1914-July, 1923. [1923] (Its Rec1924. The Syrians in America. search report) 331 N277 325.73 H67 PASVOLSKY, Leo, & Moulton, Harold MUNRO, William Bennett, & Ozanne. Glenn. Charles Eugene. Russian debts and Russian reconstruc-Social civics. 1922. 320.73 M96 tion, 1924. (The institute of eco-REUTER. Bertha Ann. nomics. Investigations in interna-Anglo-American relations during the tional reconstruction) 330.947 P29 Spanish-American war. 1924 327.73 R44 TUGWELL, Rexford Guy, ed. ROSENBERGER, Jesse Leonard. The trend of economics. 1924. The Pennsylvania Germans. 330 T91 [1923] WOLFE, Humbert. 325.243 R81 STAFFORD, John I. Labour supply and regulation. 1923. Your business and mine; a study in [Carnegie endowment for international peace. Division of economics social, economic and political quesand history. Economic and social tions in the United States. c1924. history of the world war. British 323 \$77 q330.942 W8 TAYLOR, Hugh. series] Conditions of national success. 1924. 320 T24c LABOR. CAPITAL. WEATHERFORD, Willis Duke. B'LANKENHORN, Heber. The negro from Africa to America. The strike for union; a study of the [1924] 325.26 W36 non-union question in coal and the ECONOMICS. problems of a democratic movement based on the record of the Somerset AMERICAN bankers association. Commisstrike, 1922-23, published for the sion on commerce and marine. Bureau of industrial research. 1924. The river Plate region, an economic 331.89 B64 survey of Argentina, Paraguay and Uruguay. 330.98 A51 COLE, George Douglas Howard. BARNES. Julius Howland. Labour in the coal-mining industry The genius of American business. 1924. (1914-1921). 1923. (Carnegie endowment for international peace. 330.973 B26 Division of economics and history. BIRKENHEAD, Frederick Edwin Smith, Economic and social history of the 1st earl of. world war. (British series) America revisited. 1924.330.94 B61 338,2 C68 CANADIAN bank of commerce. COWDRICK, Edward S. The Canadian bank of commerce year Manpower in industry. c1924. (Amerbook, 1923-330.971 C21 ican business series) 331.8 C87 FRANKLIN, Fabian. FILENE, A. Lincoln, & Kline, Burton. Plain talks on economics; leading prin-A merchant's horizon. 1924. ciples and their application to the issues of today. 1924, 330 F83 331.2 F48

FINANCE. TAXATION. KOPALD. Sylvia. Rebellion in labor unions. 1924. FLIER. Marius Jacobus van der. 331.88 K83 War finances in the Netherlands up to 1918. 1923. (Carnegie endowment THE Labour monthly, v. 4-5. 1923. for international peace. Division of economics and history. Economic 331.05 L12 and social history of the world war. LUBIN. Isador. Dutch series) 336.492 F62 Miners' wages and the cost of coal. (The Institute of economics. 1924. HELM, William P., jr. Investigations in industry and labor) The truth about taxes. c1924. 331.2 L92 336.2 H47 MYERS, James. JENSEN, Jens Peter. Representative government in industry. Problems of public finance. c1924. c1924. 331 M996 (Crowell's social science series) 336 J54 NATIONAL immigration conference, New MELLON, Andrew William. York. Taxation: the people's business. 1924. Proceedings, 1923. (National indus-336.2 M52 trial conference board. Special 331 N277s report) NATIONAL industrial conference board. Proposals for changes in federal income NATIONAL industrial conference board. tax administration. c1924. (Special Engineering education and American 331 N277s report) industry, c1923. (Special report) VERRILL, Alpheus Hyatt. 331 N277s Smugglers and smuggling. 1924.---- 'The Kansas Court of industrial 336.26 V55 relations. c1924. (Research report) LAW AND ADMINISTRATION. 331 N277 FENWICK. Charles Ghequiere. International law. 1924. (The Cen-THE open shop: Harvard-Princeton tury political science series) debate, March 18, 1921. 331.88 061 341 F34 HAMILTON, Mrs Mary E. VEBLEN, Thorstein B. The policewoman, her service and Absentee ownership and business enter-352:2 H21 ideals. 1924. prise in recent times. 1923. 331 V39ab HENNESSY. Francis X. Citizen or subject? c1923. BANKING. INVESTMENTS. 342.73 H51 LAWES, Lewis E. CREDIT. Man's judgment of death. 1924. DIESEN. Emil. 343 L41 Exchange rates of the world. [1922] MAXEY, Chester Collins. 2 v. 332.45 D56 An outline of municipal government. 1924. 352 M463o ENCYCLOPÆDIA of banking. c1922. 332 E56 - Readings in municipal govern-MORMAN, James Bale. ment. 1924. 352 M463r Farm credits in the United States and Canada. 1924. (The Rural science MOORE, John Bassett. series) 332.7 M86f International law and some current illusions, and other essays. 1924. POOR'S quotation register. 1st annual 341 M82 number. 1924. r332.6 P82a SCHMECKEBIER, Laurence Frederick, & STURGIS, Henry Sprague. Weber, Gustavus Adolphus. The Bureau of foreign and domestic Investment, a new profession. 1924. commerce. 1924. (Institute for gov-332.6 S93

477

ernment research. Service mono- graphs of the United States govern- ment) 353.8 S34bu LEAGUE OF NATIONS.	GRIFFIN, Clare Elmer. Principles of foreign trade, 1924. 382 G85 JONES, Eliot. Principles of railway transportation.
BAKER, Ray Stannard.	1924. 385 J76
The Versailles treaty and after. [1924]	
(Christianity and world problems) 341.1 B16v	VINER, Jacob. Canada's balance of international in- debtedness, 1900–1913; an inductive
CECIL, Edgar Algernon Robert Gascoyne- Cecil, viscount. The League of nations, its moral basis.	study in the theory of international trade. 1924. (Harvard economic studies) 382 V78
[1924] (Christianity and world problems) 341.1 C38	[WELLS, Fargo Nevada national bank]
JOHNSEN, Julia E., comp. League of nations. 1924. (The refer-	Early days in the West. c1923. c385.1 W456 Gift of Clare Walker Banta.
ence shelf) 341.1 J651	WHITBECK, Ray Hughes, & Finch, Vernor Clifford.
CONSTITUTIONAL LAW AND HISTORY.	Economic geography. 1924. 380 W57
BECK, James Montgomery.	ASSOCIATIONS. INSTITUTIONS. AMERICAN committee for relief in Ireland.
The Constitution of the United States, yesterday, today—tomorrow? c1924.	[Reports, American committee for re- lief in Ireland, and Irish white cross,
342.73 B391c	1922?] 361 A51c
CLOUD, Archibald J. Our Constitution. c1923. 342.73 C64	Downey, Ezekiel Henry.
OPPENHEIMER, Heinrich.	Workmen's compensation. 1924.
The constitution of the German Repub- lic. 1923. 342.43 062	(Social science textbooks) 368.4 D74w
SMITH, Fred Dumont.	ENGLAND, George Allan.
The story of the Constitution. c1923. 342.73 \$64	Vikings of the ice, being the log of a tenderfoot on the great Newfound- land seal hunt. 1924. 369 E58
Gift.	
MILITARY AND NAVAL SCIENCE. Moore, Albert Burton.	FROST, Stanley. The challenge of the Klan. c1924. 363 F93
Conscription and conflict in the con- federacy, 1924. 355 M82	HART, Hastings Hornell.
ROBINSON, Charles Napier.	Child welfare in the District of Colum- bia, 1924. (Russell Sage founda-
Old naval prints, their artists and engravers. 1924. q359.09 R6	tion. Department of child-helping) 362.7 H32
SHEPARD, Arthur MacCartney.	INSTITUTE of actuaries.
Sea power in ancient history. 1924. 359.09 \$54	Institute of actuaries' textbook of the principles of interest, life annuities,
THOMAS, Norman Mattoon. The conscientious objector in America. 1923. 355 T45	and assurances, and their practical application. 1901–02. 2 v. 368.3 159
COMMERCE AND COMMUNI- CATION.	MACLEAN, Joseph B. Life insurance. 1st ed. (McGraw-Hill insurance series) 368.3 M16
ELY, Owen.	
Railway rates and cost of service. 1924. (Hart, Schaffner & Marx prize essays) 385 E52	McMechen, Elizabeth. Handbook of social resources of Cali- fornia, 1922. qc361 M1

THE Masonic world and Masonic sister- hood, v. 3-4. 1921-23, qc366.105 M4	THE Indiana survey of religious educa- tion. c1923. v. 1. The religious education of Protestants in an Ameri-
NEW England Peabody home for crippled children. Report, 1923–1924.	can commonwealth. 377 139
Gift. 362 N54	JOURNAL of education and school world. v. 55, 1923. q370.5 J8es
O'HARE, Mrs Kate Richards. In prison, 1923. 365 O37	THE Journal of educational psychology, including experimental pedagogy, child physiology and hygiene, and
OSBORNE. Thomas Mott. Prisons and common sense. 1924. 365 O81p	educational statistics. v. 14, 1923. 370.5 J86
Тпе Red cross courier. v. 1-2. 1923. f361.05 R3c	MINOR. Ruby. Principles of teaching practically ap- plied. c1924. (Riverside textbooks
WEBER, Joseph J. First steps in organizing a hospital.	in education. Division of secondary education) 371.3 M66
1924. (Modern hospital library) 362 W37	NATIONAL education association of the United States. Dept. of elementary
WOMAN'S Roosevelt memorial association. Bulletin, 1919–21. q369.05 W8	school principals. Yearbook. 2d, 3d., 1923-1924. 370.6 N27 d
EDUCATION.	PAYNE, Arthur Frank. Administration of vocational educa-
ARCHDIOCESE of San Francisco. Annual report of the superintendent of schools. 5th. 1920–21. c377 A66	tion, with special emphasis on the administration of vocational indus- trial education under the Federal
BOBBITT, John Franklin.	vocational education law. 1924. 370.01 P34
How to make a curriculum. c1924. 375 B66h	SINCLAIR, Upton Beall.
CALDWELL, Otis William. Then and now in education. 1924. 379.744 C14	The goslings, a study of the American schools. c1924. 379.73 S61g
DELBOS, J. M. Historia Combridge 1022	SUZZALLO, Henry. Our faith in education. c1924.
Historic Cambridge, 1923. 378.42 CEd	370.4 \$96
EDUCATIONAL finance inquiry commission.	SWETMAN, Ralph Waldo. Outline and digest California school
The cost and support of secondary	law and state school system. Depart-
schools in the state of New York. 1924. 379.747 E24c Gift.	ment of education, Stanford university. 2d ed. c1924. c379.1 \$97
The fiscal administration of city school systems. 1924. 379.1 E24 Gift.	TIWING, Charles Franklin. What education has the most worth? 1924. 370 T54 w
ERNST, Clayton Holt, ed. What shall I be? Open roads for young men. 1924. 370.01 E71	WHEAT, Harry Grove. The teaching of reading. c1923.
GAMORAN, Emanuel. Changing conceptions in Jewish educa- tion. 1924. 371.9 G19	372.4 W55 WHITEHOUSE, John Howard. Wider aspects of education. 1924. 370.4 W59
HAWLEY. Hattie L.	
Teaching English in junior high schools. c1924. (Riverside educational mono-	WILSON, Harry Bruce [& others]. Modern methods in teaching. c1924.
graphs) 371.3 H39	

 LAW. A. L. R. blue book of supplemental decisions, 1924. For annotations in the American law reports, v. 1–27, A. L. R. ALABAMA. Laws, statutes, etc. The code of Alabama, 1923. 4 v. ALABAMA. Laws, statutes, etc. The code of Alabama, 1923. 4 v. ANNUAL practice, being a collection of the statutes, orders, and rules relating to the general practice, procedure, and jurisdiction of the Supreme court. 42d annual issue, 1924. BIRDSEYE, Clarence Frank. Encyclopædia of general business and legal forms. [3d ed.] 1924. BLACK, Henry Campbell. Handbook of the law and practice in bankruptcy. 1924. (The Hornbook series) BURKE, Moncure. Notes on practice in the Court of appeals of the District of Columbia. 1924. BYNKERSHOEK, Cornelius van. De dominio maris dissertatio, a photographic reproduction of the second edition (1744) with an English 	 FISHEE'S probate law directory for the year 1924. FRY, Sir Edward. A treatise on the specific performance of contracts. 6th ed., by George Russell Northcote. 1921. HYATT, William Harvey. Hyatt on trials. 1924. 2 v. ISAAC, Max. Homestead waivers and assignments. c1923. JOYCE, Howard Clifford. Treatise on the law governing indictments. 2d ed. 1924. KENNEDY, A. R. Contracts of sale (cost, insurance, freight). 1924. KULP, Victor Henry, comp. Cases on oil and gas. 1924. (American casebook series) LAMM, Henry. Legal philology. c1923. MCKELVEY, John Jay. Handbook of the law of evidence. 3d ed. 1924. (The Hornbook series)
Magoffin. 1923. (The Classics of international law)	Debates of the Maryland constitutional convention of 1867. c1923.
CANADA. Laws, statutes, etc.	ROSENBERG, James Naumburg. Corporate reorganization and the fed-
Crankshaw's Criminal code of Canada. 5th ed. 1924.	eral court. 1924.
СLARK, Henry C. Departmental practice, admission of attorneys, etc. 2d ed., rev. & enl. 1924.	 SHIPMAN, Benjamin Jonson. Handbook of common-law pleading. 3d ed. by Henry Winthrop Ballantine. 1923. (The Hornbook series)
THE Constitution and the courts, com-	SINGER, Berthold. Patent laws of the world. 1924.
piled under the editorial supervision of the publishers. 1924. 3 v.	TIFFANY, Francis Buchanan. Handbook of the law of principal and
Cooley, Thomas McIntyre. The law of taxation. 4th ed., by Clark A. Nichols. 1924. 4 v.	agent. 2d ed. by Richard R. B. Powell. 1924. (The Hornbook series)
EATON, James Webster. Handbook of equity jurisprudence. 2d ed. 1923. (The Hornbook series)	UNDERHILL, Arthur. A summary of the law of torts. 1922.
FIXEL, Arthur Ellis. False financial statements; remedies of defrauded creditors. 1924.	VIRGINIA (Colony) Council. Minutes of the Council and General court of colonial Virginia, 1622–1632, 1670– 1676. 1924.

WILLIAMS, IVY.	MATHEMATICS.
The sources of law in the Swiss civil	AMERICAN mathematical society, New
code. 1923.	York. Colloquium 8th, Cambridge,
	1916.
Zoline, Elijah Nathaniel.	The Cambridge colloquium 1916.
Federal appellate jurisdiction and pro- cedure. 2d ed., rev. 1924.	(American mathematical society.
cedure. 2d eu., rev. 1524.	Colloquium lectures) 510 A51c
LANGUAGE.	GRAY, Peter.
CRAIGIE, William Alexander.	Tables for the formation of logarithms
Eglish reading made easy by means of	& antilogarithms to twenty-four or
a system of marks applied to the	any less number of places. 2d ed.
ordinary spelling. 1922. 428 C88e	1900. q510.8 G7
DAVIS, William Hersey.	Runge, C.
Beginner's grammar of the Greek New	Vector analysis. Translated by H.
Testament. c1923. 485 D26	Levy. [1923] 512 R94
FISHER, Annie.	
Learning English. c1923. 428 F53	SMITH, David Eugene.
area and a second	The progress of arithmetic in the last quarter of a century. [1923]
KENT, Roland Grubb.	quarter of a century. [1925] 511 S64p
Language & philology. c1923. (Our	
debt to Greece and Rome)	ASTRONOMY.
420 K37	HALE, George Ellery.
LEE, Ettie, & Page, Jennie I. Living English for new Americans.	The depths of the universe. 1924.
1924. 428 L47.	523 H16d
	NORDMANN, Charles. The kingdom of the heavens. [1923]
SMITH, Egerton.	523 N83
The principles of English metre. 1923. 426 864	
420 304	PHYSICS.
THIRTY home lessons for foreign-born	BLUM, William & Hogaboom, George B.
women in Delaware. c1922.	Principles of electroplating and electro- forming (electrotyping). 1924.
q428 T4	537.8 B65
WILSON, Sir James.	BROWN, Samuel Edward.
The dialect of Robert Burns as spoken in central Ayrshire, 1923.	Experimental electricity and magnet-
427 W74d	ism. 1922. (Experimental science)
TE1 1111	537 B87
NATURAL SCIENCE: GENERAL.	CLAPHAM, Charles Blanchard.
HALDANE, John Burdon Sanderson.	Metric system for engineers. 1921.
Daedalus; or, Science and the future:	(The directly-useful (D. U.) techni-
a paper read to the Heretics, Cam-	cal series) 531 C58
bridge, on February 4, 1923. 1924.	FREUNDLICH, Erwin.
504 H15	The theory of relativity; three lectures
HAMMOND, Mrs D. B.	for chemists. Trans. by Henry L.
Stories of scientific discovery. 1923.	Brose. [1924] 530 F88
509 H22 NATIONAL research council.	HAAS, Arthur Erich.
Bulletins, v. 1–5. 1919–23. 505 N27	The new physics, lectures for laymen
	and others, authorised translation by
NATURE magazine. v. 1-2. 1923.	Robert W. Lawson, [1923]
q505 N28	530 H12 HUGHES, William Earl.

- RUSSELL, Hon. Bertrand Arthur William. Icarus; or, The future of science. 1924. 504 R96
- Modern electro-plating. [1923] (Oxford technical publications)

537.8 H89

LORENTZ, Hendrik Antoon. The principle of relativity; tr. by W. Perrett and G. B. Jeffery. 1923.	MEDICINE AND HYGIENE. ARMSTRONG, Donald Budd.
530 L86p PAGE, Calvin Samuel.	Community health; how to obtain and preserve it. 1924. (The National health series) 614 A73
Rx the life atom, key to nature. c1923. 530 P13	BARKER, Lewellys Franklin, & Cole,
CHEMISTRY.	Norman Brown.
GROGGINS, Philip H.	Blood pressure; cause, effect, and rem- edy. 1924. 612.1 B25
Aniline and its derivatives. 1924.	
547 G87 Svedberg, Theodor.	BLACKHAM, Robert James. Aids to tropical hygiene. 2d ed., en-
Colloid chemistry. 1924. (American	larged, thoroughly revised and mostly
chemical society. Monograph series)	re-written, 1922. 614.4 B62
541.1 S68	BOLT, Richard Arthur.
GEOLOGY.	The baby's health. 1924. (The
BROWN, Robert Wesley. Valuation of oil and gas lands. 1924.	National health series) 649 B69
553.2 B87	COPELAND, Royal Samuel.
LINCOLN, Francis Church.	The health book. c1924. 616 C78
Mining districts and mineral resources of Nevada, 1923, 553.1 L73	CRAMPTON, Charles Ward.
	Physical exercise for daily use. 1924.
PRICE, George McCready. The new geology. c1923. 550 P945	613.7 C88p
The new geology. C1525. 550 1 545	DE NORMANDIE, Robert Laurent.
BIOLOGY.	The expectant mother, care of her
HENDERSON, Lawrence Joseph.	health. 1924. (The National health series) 618.2 D41
The fitness of the environment; an inquiry into the biological signifi-	
cance of the properties of matter.	GILLETT, Lucy Holcomb. Food for health's sake; what to eat.
1924. 577 H49	1924. (The National health series)
KELLOGG, Vernon Lyman.	613.2 G47 GOODWIN, John Cuthbert.
Evolution. 1924. 575 K29e	Insanity and the criminal. c1924.
Russell, David.	616.84 G65
The evolution of continuity in the natural world. [1922] 575 R96	GRIFFITTS, Charles Hurlbut. Fundamentals of vocational psychology.
	1924. 612.8 G85
SIIPLEY, Sir Arthur Everett. Life; a book for elementary students.	HART, Theodore Stuart.
1923. 570 S55	Taking care of your heart. 1924.
THOMSON, John Arthur.	(The National health series)
Science, old and new. 1924.	616.1 H32 Howell, William Henry.
570.4 T 48s	The human machine, how your body
USEFUL ARTS: GENERAL.	functions. 1924. (The National
THE Dodge idea. v. 36-38, 1920-22,	health series) 612 H85h
q605 D6	THE JOURNAL of abnormal psychology
INDUSTRY illustrated. v. 1-3. 1921-22. f605 14	and social psychology. v. 16–17. 1921–23. 616.805 J86a
SAN FRANCISCO news letter and Cali- fornia advertiser.	THE JOURNAL of pathology and bacteri- ology, v. 25, 1922. 616.05 J86p
British empire exhibition number. 1924. qc606 S19n	McFEE, Mrs Inez Nellie (Canfield). Food and health. c1924. 613.2 M143

- 1	0	63
\pm	0	ð

PIERCE, Frederick.	BROWNLIE, David.
Mobilizing the mid-brain. c1924.	Mechanical stoking, 1923. (Pitman's
615.85 P61	technical primer series) 621.18 B88
	terment prince series) or no boo
ROMAINS, Jules.	
Eyeless sight. 1924. 612.84 R75	DAW, Albert William, & Daw, Zacharais
Rose, Robert Hugh.	Williams.
	Oil & gas engine power. [1923]
Eat your way to health. 1924.	q621.4 D2
613.2 R797	Elliott, Benjamin George.
Ross, Thomas Arthur.	Automobile repairing; a text and refer-
The common neuroses, their treatment	
by psychotherapy. 1923.	ence book on the repair and care of
616.85 R82	the modern gasoline automobile.
SUAW, Henry Larned Keith.	1924. 625.6 E46r
The young child's health. 1924. (The	
National health series) 649 \$53	HARDENBERGH, William A.
Mational nearth series) 045 055	Home sewage disposal. [c1924]
SMITH, Horace Joseph.	628.3 H25
Scientific fundamentals for the beauty	HARGER, Wilson Gardner.
specialist, c1923. 613.4 S64	Rural highway pavements, maintenance
specialist. 01525. 015.4 504	and reconstruction. 1924.
SMITH, Samuel Calvin.	
How is your heart? Intimate talks on	625.7 H27r
	HARRIS, D. G.
the prevention of heart disease and	Irrigation in India, 1923. (India of
on the care of an already damaged	today) 626.8 H31
heart. 1924. 616.1 S65	
Sarorr William Engennen	HOBBS, Edward W.
Snow, William Freeman.	Model sailing boats, their design, build-
The venereal diseases; their medical,	ing and sailing. [1923] 623.8 H68
nursing, and community aspects.	ing and saming. [1926] 025.0 100
1924. (The National health series)	Turner Olandan Olanan
616.95 S67	LANDIS, Charles Singer.
STEKEL, Wilhelm.	Rifle-craft. 1923. 623.4 L25
Peculiarities of behavior. 1924. 2 v.	
o616.8 \$82p	LA SCHUM, Edward E.
TOBEY, James Alner.	The electric motor truck. 1924.
The quest for health, where it is and	625.6 L34
	MORRISON, Lacey Harvey.
who can help secure it. 1924. (The	Diesel engines. 1923. 621.43 M87
National health series) 613 T62	
	MUNICIPAL index, 1924—a yearbook for
WILLIAMS Linsly Rudd.	city, town and county officials. c1924.
Tuberculosis, nature, treatment, and	rq628 M9i
prevention. 1924. (The National	
health series) 616.99 W72	SIEBEL, John Ewald.
	Compend of mechanical refrigeration
WINSLOW, Charles Edward Amory.	and engineering. 9th ed. 1918.
Man and the microbe; how com-	621.5 S57
municable diseases are controlled.	SIMONS, Theodore.
1924. (The National health series)	Ore dressing principles and practice.
614.4 W77	1924. 622.7 S61
Wood, Francis Carter.	1021. 022/ 301
	STRICKLAND, Frederic.
Cancer; nature, diagnosis, and cure.	Motor boats. [1923] (Pitman's com-
1923. (The National health series)	
616.99 W875	mon commodities and industries)
ENGINEERING.	623.8 S 91
	TULLEY, Henry Charles.
AGG, Thomas Radford.	Tulley's handbook, steam and electrical.
Construction of roads and pavements.	7th ed. rev. & enl. 1924. 3 v. 621 T9 1

ENGINEERING: ELECTRICAL.	TIPTON, Mrs Edna (Sibley).
CROFT, Terrell Williams.	Table decorations for all occasions
Alternating-current armature winding.	1924. 643 T5 9
1924. 621.31 C94al	TELEPHONE. RADIO.
THE ELECTRICAL world.	BELL telephone quarterly. 1922. v. 1.
Handbook of electrical methods. 1913.	654.05 B43
621.3 E38 Fox, Gordon.	DUNLAP, Orrin Elmer. The radio manual. 1924. 654.6 D92
Principles of electric motors and con-	The radio manual, 1924. 034.0 D92
trol. 1924. 621.31 F79	ELWELL, Cyril Frank.
HENDERGON I & Marshall Charles Wil	The Poulsen arc generator. 1923.
HENDERSON, J., & Marshall, Charles Wil- liam.	654 E52
A. C. protective system and gear.	HAUSMANN, Erich [and others]
1923. (Pitman's technical primer	Radio phone receiving. 1922.
series) 621.31 H49	654.6 H37 MITCHELL, Jay Gordon.
PAINTON, Edgar Theodore.	Principles and practice of telephony.
Small electric motors, D. C. and A. C.	1923–24. 5 v. 654.6 M68
1923. (Pitman's technical primer	RAMSEY, Rolla Roy.
series) 621.31 P14	Experimental radio. Rev. ed. c1923.
AGRICULTURE.	q654 .6 R1
APP, Frank, & Woodward, Carl Raymond.	WOOD, Henry E.
• The farmer and his farm. c1924.	The traveller's code book. 1924. 654 W87
630 A64	
GEHRS, John Henry. Soils and crops. 1924. 631 G31	PRINTING. PUBLISHING.
· ·	BRUNO, Guido.
HUTCHESON, Thomas Barksdale, &	Adventures in American bookshops, antique stores and auction rooms.
Wolfe, Thomas Kennerly. The production of field crops. 1924.	1922. 655.5 B89
(Agricultural and biological publica-	THE FLEURON; a journal of typography.
tions) 630 H973	nos. 1–2. 1923–24. 2 v. q655.1 F6
RECORD, Samuel James, & Garratt,	HOTCHKISS, George Burton.
George A.	Advertising copy. 1924. 659 H832ad
Cocobolo. 1923. (Yale university.	MCMURTRIE, Douglas Crawford.
School of forestry. Bulletin)	The corrector of the press in the early
634.9 R31	days of printing. 1922.
[WILLIAMS, Mrs Georgia Russ]	q655.2 M16 Morison, Stanley.
Redwoods. c634.9 W72	On type faces; examples of the use of
Gift of author.	type for the printing of books. 1923.
WORLD agriculture. v. 1-3. 1919-1923.	q655.53 M8
q630.5 W9	PLOMER, Henry Robert.
DOMESTIC ECONOMY.	English printers' ornaments. 1924. q655.3 P7
BEVIER, Isabel.	
Home economics in education. c1924.	PRINTERS' ink monthly. v. 4-6. 1922- 1923. q659.05 P9
(Books on the home) 640.7 B57h	
JESSUP, Elon.	BUSINESS METHODS.
Camp grub; an out-of-doors cooking manual. c1924. 641 J58	ATKINS, Paul Moody. Industrial cost accounting for execu-
	tives. 1924. 657 A87
SEAL, Ethel Davis. Furnishing the little house. c1924.	Textbook of industrial cost ac-
645 S43	counting. 1924. 657 A87t

BUCK, Charles Edgar. The business letter-writer's manual, for students and business folks. c1924. 658 B92	WEINSTOCK, Lubin company. Living a principle through half a cen- tury, 1874-1924. [1924] gc658 W4
GERSTENBERG, Charles William. Financial organization and manage- ment of business, 1924. 658 G38	Gift. WHITE, Percival, & Hayward, Walter Sumner. Marketing practice. 1924.
HAHN, Lew, & White, Percival, eds. The merchants' manual. 1924.	658 W58m
658 H14	CHEMICAL TECHNOLOGY.
 HALL, Samuel Roland. The handbook of sales management; a review of modern sales practice and management. 1924. 658 H11ha 	 BEARN, Joseph Gauld. The chemistry of paints, pigments & varnishes. 1923. COLLINS, James Hiram.
Retail advertising and selling. 1924. 659 H17r	The story of canned foods. [1924] 664.8 C71
HENLEY, Frank Leete.	DAVENPORT, E. H., & Cooke, Sidney
The inspection and testing of materials, apparatus and lines. 1923. (Man- uals of telegraph and telephone engineering) 654 H51	Russell. The oil trusts & Anglo-American rela- tions. 1923. 665.5 D24
	DUNN, John Thomas.
KILDUFF, Edward Jones. The private secretary, his duties and	Pulverised and colloidal fuel. 1924. q662.6 D9
opportunities. rev. ed. 1924. 651 K48a	KNAPP, Arthur William. The cocoa and chocolate industry; the
MCKEE, Louise.	tree, the bean, the beverage. [1923]
Isaac Pitman dictation course. [1923] 653 M15	(Pitman's common commodities and industries) 663.9 K67
MUSICK, William L. Standard dictation. [1923] 653 M98s	LUTZ, Henry Frederick. Viticulture and brewing in the ancient Orient. 1922. 663.2 L97
NEW YORK university. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research.	MUMFORD, John Kimberly. The story of bakelite. c1924. 668 M96
The exclusive agency. 1923. q658 N5	POUCHER, William Arthur.
RITTENHOUSE, Charles Forest, & Percy, Atlee Lane.	Perfumes and cosmetics. 1923. 668.5 P87
Accounting problems: advanced. 1924. 657 R61acc	SMYTHE, John Armstrong. Lead, its occurrence in nature, the
RUXTON, Robert.	modes of its extraction, its properties and uses. 1923. (Monographs on
The art of resultful letter writing.[1918]658 R98	industrial chemistry) 669.4 S65
SCHELL, Erwin Haskell.	TANKARD, Arnold Rowsby. Chemistry in the service of the com-
The technique of executive control. 1924. 658 \$32	munity. 1922. 660 T16
	UREN, Lester Charles. A textbook of petroleum production
WALKER, Perley F. Management engineering. 1924,	engineering. 1924. 665.5 U75
658 W18	WEBER, Frederick W.
WEESTER, C. B., & co. Old ships of New England. 1923.	Artists' pigments; their chemical and
656.8 W37	physical properties. 1923. 667.6 W37
14- 240.84	

WEISS, John Morris, & Downs, Charles Raymond.	MARSHALL, Henry Rutgers. The beautiful. 1924. 701 M36b
The technical organization. 1924.	II II II
660 W43	SCHEFFAUER, Herman George. The new vision in the German arts.
WRIGHT, Philip Green. Sugar in relation to the tariff. 1924.	1924. 701 S31
(Institute of economics. Investiga-	1021. 701 331
tions in international commercial	CITIES AND TOWNS. PLANNING.
policies) 664.1 W95	
	ADSHEAD, Stanley Davenport.
MANUFACTURES. MECHANICAL	Town planning and town development. [1923] 710 A244
TRADES.	[10_5] / //0 A244
MANCHESTER, H. H.	THOMPSON, Frances Longstreth.
The story of silk and Cheney silks.	Site planning in practice; an investi-
[1924] 677 M26	gation of the principles of housing
Gift.	estate development. [1923] (Ox-
POLKINGHORNE, Ruby Kathleen, & Polk-	ford technical publications)
inghorne, Mabel Irene Rutherford.	710 T 47
Weaving & other pleasant occupations.	WASHINGTON committee of 100.
[1923] 680 P76w	Preliminary report by the Washington
THOMAS, Arthur W.	committee of 100 on the Federal City to the American civic association.
Studies on the chemistry of tanning.	710 W31
[Reprinted from Industrial and	
engineering chemistry] (Columbia	GARDENING.
university. Engineering and scien-	CLOUD, Katharine Mallet Prevost.
tific papers) 675 T45	Practical flower gardening. 1924.
	716 C64
BUILDING.	Roses and how to grow them, revised by
ABTHUR, William.	J. Horace McFarland, 1924. (The
Appraisers' and adjusters' handbook. 1924. 692 A78ap	Amateur's book of the garden series)
out Aloap	716.2 R81
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J.	716.2 R81 Тпомая, George Clifford.
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime	716.2 R81 Тпомая, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924.
BEYEB, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry, 1923.	716.2 R81 Тпомая, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university, Schools of	716.2 R81 Тпомая, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett.
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry.	716.2 R81 Тпомая, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.)	716.2 R81 Тпомая, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett.
 BEYEB, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. 	716.2 R81 Тпомая, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27
 BEYEB, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little.
 BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers.
 BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p 	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers.
BEYEB, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL.	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers. 1924. 716 W952p
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL. BAUD-BOVY, Daniel.	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers, 1924. 716 W952p ARCHITECTURE. BOERSCHMANN, Ernst. Picturesque China, architecture and
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL. BAUD-BOVY, Daniel. Peasant art in Switzerland. Trans. by	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers. 1924. 716 W952p ARCHITECTURE. BOERSCHMANN, Ernst. Picturesque China, architecture and landscape; a journey through twelve
 BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL. BAUD-BOVY, Daniel. Peasant art in Switzerland. Trans. by Arthur Palliser. 1924. 	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers, 1924. 716 W952p ARCHITECTURE. BOERSCHMANN, Ernst. Picturesque China, architecture and
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL. BAUD-BOVY, Daniel. Peasant art in Switzerland. Trans. by	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers. 1924. 716 W952p ARCHITECTURE. BOERSCHMANN, Ernst. Picturesque China, architecture and landscape; a journey through twelve provinces. [1923] q720.951 B6
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL. BAUD-Bovy, Daniel. Peasant art in Switzerland. Trans. by Arthur Palliser. 1924. 9709.494 B33	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers. 1924. 716 W952p ARCHITECTURE. BOERSCHMANN, Ernst. Picturesque China, architecture and landscape; a journey through twelve provinces. [1923] q720.951 B6 BRINCKLOE, William Draper.
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL. BAUD-BOVY, Daniel. Peasant art in Switzerland. Trans. by Arthur Palliser. 1924. q709.494 B33 BOAS, Belle. Art in the school. 1924. q707 B6	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers. 1924. 716 W952p ARCHITECTURE. BOERSCHMANN, Ernst. Picturesque China, architecture and landscape; a journey through twelve provinces. [1923] q720.951 B6
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL. BAUD-BOVY, Daniel. Peasant art in Switzerland. Trans. by Arthur Palliser. 1924. q709.494 B33 BOAS, Belle. Art in the school. 1924. q707 B6 CHENEY, Sheldon.	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers. 1924. 716 W952p ARCHITECTURE. BOERSCHMANN, Ernst. Picturesque China, architecture and landscape; a journey through twelve provinces. [1923] q720.951 B6 BRINCKLOE, William Draper. The small home, how to plan and build it. 1924. q728 B858
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL. BAUD-BOVY, Daniel. Peasant art in Switzerland. Trans. by Arthur Palliser. 1924. q709.494 B33 BOAS, Belle. Art in the school. 1924. q707 B6 CHENEY, Sheldon. A primer of modern art. c1924.	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers. 1924. 716 W952p ARCHITECTURE. BOERSCHMANN, Ernst. Picturesque China, architecture and landscape; a journey through twelve provinces. [1923] q720.951 B6 BRINCKLOE, William Draper. The small home, how to plan and build it. 1924. q728 B858 GILMAN, Roger.
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL. BAUD-BOVY, Daniel. Peasant art in Switzerland. Trans. by Arthur Palliser. 1924. q709.494 B33 BOAS, Belle. Art in the school. 1924. q707 B6 CHENEY, Sheldon. A primer of modern art. c1924. 709 C51	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers. 1924. 716 W952p ARCHITECTURE. BOERSCHMANN, Ernst. Picturesque China, architecture and landscape; a journey through twelve provinces. [1923] q720.951 B6 BRINCKLOE, William Draper. The small home, how to plan and build it. 1924. q728 B858 GLIMAN, Roger. Great styles of interior architecture,
BEYER, Albin H., & Krefeld, William J. Comparative tests of clay, sand-lime and concrete brick masonry. 1923. (Columbia university. Schools of mines, engineering and chemistry. Department of civil engineering.) 693 B57 DINGMAN, Charles Francis. Plan reading and quantity surveying. 1st ed. 1924. 692 D58p FINE ARTS: GENERAL. BAUD-BOVY, Daniel. Peasant art in Switzerland. Trans. by Arthur Palliser. 1924. q709.494 B33 BOAS, Belle. Art in the school. 1924. q707 B6 CHENEY, Sheldon. A primer of modern art. c1924.	716.2 R81 THOMAS, George Clifford. Roses for all American climates. c1924. 716.2 T456 WARNER, Anna Bartlett. Gardening by myself. 1924. 716 W27 WRIGHT, Richardson Little. The practical book of outdoor flowers. 1924. 716 W952p ARCHITECTURE. BOERSCHMANN, Ernst. Picturesque China, architecture and landscape; a journey through twelve provinces. [1923] q720.951 B6 BRINCKLOE, William Draper. The small home, how to plan and build it. 1924. q728 B858 GILMAN, Roger.

JESSEN, Peter. Rococo engravings, two hundred plates of the eighteenth century, 1922.	LUCKIESH, Matthew. Portable lamps, their design and use. c1924. 749 L94
q729 J5 KIMBALL, Sidney Fiske. Domestic architecture of the American colonies and of the early republic. 1922. q728 K4	NORTHEND, Mary Harrod. Colonial homes and their furnishings. 1924. 749 N87c
RUTTER, Frank. The poetry of architecture. c1924. (Doran's modern readers' bookshelf)	PEARSON, F. Arthur. Ticket and show card designing. 1923. 745 P36 ROBINSON, William Heath.
720 R98 SMITH, Henry Atterbury. The books of a thousand homes; work-	Humours of golf. 1923. q741 R6h Rogers, John Charles.
ing drawings and specifications avail- able. v. 1. 1921. q728 \$64	English furniture. 1923. 749 R72 SILERRILL, Charles Hitchcock. Stained glass tours in Spain and Flan-
STEGMAN, Carl Martin, ritter von, & Gey- müller, Heinrich Adolf, freiherr von. The architecture of the renaissance in Tuscany. [1924?] f724.1 \$8	ders. [1924] 748 S55ss Svensen, Carl Lars.
STRZYGOWSKI, Josef. Origin of Christian church art. Trans.	The art of lettering. [1924] q745 S9 WILLIAMSON, George Charles.
from German by O. M. Dalton & H. J. Braunholtz. 1923. q726 S9	The amateur collector; everybody's book on collecting. 1924. 749 W72
SCULPTURE, POTTERY,	PAINTING.
	FAINTING.
Ashton, Leigh. An introduction to the study of Chinese sculpture, 1924. q734 A8	BURROUGHS, Alan. The art of Arthur B. Davies. 1923.
An introduction to the study of Chinese sculpture. 1924. q734 A8 RACKHAM, Bernard, & Read, Herbert. English pottery, its development from	BURROUGHS, Alan.
An introduction to the study of Chinese sculpture. 1924. q734 A8 RACKHAM, Bernard, & Read, Herbert. English pottery, its development from early times to the end of the eigh- teenth century. 1924. q738 R1e	BURROUGHS, Alan. The art of Arthur B. Davies. 1923. q759.1 D2 JACOBS, Michel. The art of colour. 1923. q752 J1 JENNER, Katharine Lee (Rawlings), "Mrs Henry Jenner."
An introduction to the study of Chinese sculpture. 1924. q734 A8 RACKHAM, Bernard, & Read, Herbert. English pottery, its development from early times to the end of the eigh- teenth century. 1924. q738 R1e TAFT, Lorado. History of American sculpture. New ed., rev. and with new matter. 1924.	BURROUGHS, Alan. The art of Arthur B. Davies. 1923. q759.1 D2 JACOBS, Michel. The art of colour. 1923. q752 J1 JENNER, Katharine Lee (Rawlings), "Mrs Henry Jenner." Christ in art. 2d ed. [1923] (Little books on art) 755 J54
An introduction to the study of Chinese sculpture. 1924. q734 A8 RACKHAM, Bernard, & Read, Herbert. English pottery, its development from early times to the end of the eigh- teenth century. 1924. q738 R1e TAFT, Lorado. History of American sculpture. New ed., rev. and with new matter. 1924. q735 T1a VAN BUREN, Mrs E. Douglas. Archaic fictile revetments in Sicily and	BURROUGHS, Alan. The art of Arthur B. Davies. 1923. q759.1 D2 JACOBS, Michel. The art of colour. 1923. q752 J1 JENNER, Katharine Lee (Rawlings), "Mrs Henry Jenner." Christ in art. 2d ed. [1923] (Little books on art) 755 J54 MACFALL, Haldane. The book of Lovat Claud Fraser. 1923. q759.2 F8
An introduction to the study of Chinese sculpture. 1924. q734 A8 RACKHAM, Bernard, & Read, Herbert. English pottery, its development from early times to the end of the eigh- teenth century. 1924. q738 R1e TAFT, Lorado. History of American sculpture. New ed., rev. and with new matter. 1924. q735 T1a VAN BUREN, Mrs E. Douglas.	BURROUGHS, Alan. The art of Arthur B. Davies. 1923. q759.1 D2 JACOBS, Michel. The art of colour. 1923. q752 J1 JENNER, Katharine Lee (Rawlings), "Mrs Henry Jenner." Christ in art. 2d ed. [1923] (Little books on art) 755 J54 MACFALL, Haldane. The book of Lovat Claud Fraser. 1923.
An introduction to the study of Chinese sculpture. 1924. q734 A8 RACKHAM, Bernard, & Read, Herbert. English pottery, its development from early times to the end of the eigh- teenth century. 1924. q738 R1e TAFT, Lorado. History of American sculpture. New ed., rev. and with new matter. 1924. q735 T1a VAN BUREN, Mrs E. Douglas. Archaic fictile revetments in Sicily and Magna Graecia. 1923. q734 V2a	BURROUGHS, Alan. The art of Arthur B. Davies. 1923. q759.1 D2 JACOBS, Michel. The art of colour. 1923. q752 J1 JENNER, Katharine Lee (Rawlings), "Mrs Henry Jenner." Christ in art. 2d ed. [1923] (Little books on art) 755 J54 MACFALL, Haldane. The book of Lovat Claud Fraser. 1923. q759.2 F8 MELDRUM, David Storrar. Rembrandt's paintings, with an essay
An introduction to the study of Chinese sculpture. 1924. q734 A8 RACKHAM, Bernard, & Read, Herbert. English pottery, its development from early times to the end of the eigh- teenth century. 1924. q738 R1e TAFT, Lorado. History of American sculpture. New ed., rev. and with new matter. 1924. q735 T1a VAN BUREN, Mrs E. Douglas. Archaic fictile revetments in Sicily and Magna Graecia. 1923. q734 V2a DRAWING. DECORATION. DESIGN. BARTHOLOMEW, Charles L. Chalk talk and crayon presentation.	BURROUGHS, Alan. The art of Arthur B. Davies. 1923. (759.1 D2) JACOBS, Michel. The art of colour. 1923. (752 J1) JENNEE, Katharine Lee (Rawlings), "Mrs Henry Jenner." Christ in art. 2d ed. [1923] (Little books on art) 755 J54 MACFALL, Haldane. The book of Lovat Claud Fraser. 1923. (759.2 F8) MELDRUM, David Storrar. Rembrandt's paintings, with an essay on his life and work. [1923] (759.9 R3me) MOREAU-VAUTHIER, Charles. A gallery of beautiful women. 1922. 757 M83
An introduction to the study of Chinese sculpture. 1924. q734 A8 RACKHAM, Bernard, & Read, Herbert. English pottery, its development from early times to the end of the eigh- teenth century. 1924. q738 R1e TAFT, Lorado. History of American sculpture. New ed., rev. and with new matter. 1924. q735 T1a VAN BUREN, Mrs E. Douglas. Archaic fictile revetments in Sicily and Magna Graecia. 1923. q734 V2a DRAWING. DECORATION. DESIGN. BARTHOLOMEW, Charles L. Chalk talk and crayon presentation. e1922. 741 B28 BEERBOHM, Max.	BURROUGHS, Alan. The art of Arthur B. Davies. 1923. q759.1 D2 JACOBS, Michel. The art of colour. 1923. q752 J1 JENNER, Katharine Lee (Rawlings), "Mrs Henry Jenner." Christ in art. 2d ed. [1923] (Little books on art) 755 J54 MACFALL, Haldane. The book of Lovat Claud Fraser. 1923. q759.2 F8 MELDRUM, David Storrar. Rembrandt's paintings, with an essay on his life and work. [1923] q759.9 R3me MOREAU-VAUTHIER, Charles. A gallery of beautiful women. 1922. 757 M83 YOUNG, Blamire. The Proverbs of Goya. 759.6 G72y
An introduction to the study of Chinese sculpture. 1924. q734 A8 RACKHAM, Bernard, & Read, Herbert. English pottery, its development from early times to the end of the eigh- teenth century. 1924. q738 R1e TAFT, Lorado. History of American sculpture. New ed., rev. and with new matter. 1924. q735 T1a VAN BUREN, Mrs E. Douglas. Archaic fictile revetments in Sicily and Magna Graecia. 1923. q734 V2a DRAWING. DECORATION. DESIGN. BARTHOLOMEW, Charles L. Chalk talk and crayon presentation. c1922. 741 B28 BEERBOHM, Max. Things new and old. 1923. q741 B4t BRAHDY, Joseph. Blueprint reading, for the machine shop	BURROUGHS, Alan. The art of Arthur B. Davies. 1923. (759.1 D2) JACOBS, Michel. The art of colour. 1923. (752 J1) JENNER, Katharine Lee (Rawlings), "Mrs Henry Jenner." Christ in art. 2d ed. [1923] (Little books on art) 755 J54 MACFALL, Haldane. The book of Lovat Claud Fraser. 1923. (759.2 F8) MELDRUM, David Storrar. Rembrandt's paintings, with an essay on his life and work. [1923] (759.9 R3me) MOREAU-VAUTHIER, Charles. A gallery of beautiful women. 1922. 757 M83 YOUNG, Blamire.

DODGSON, Campbell. French etching from Meryon to Lepère. 1923. (Print collectors' club, Lon- don. Publication) q767 D6	 GILTAY, J. W. Bow instruments, their form and con- struction. [1923] 787 G48 SCHOLES, Percy Alfred.
Dongson, Campbell. Old French colour-prints. 1924. q769 D6	The listener's history of music. 1923- 780.9 \$36 WEIDIG, Adolf.
FINE prints of the year; an annual review of contemporary etching and engrav- ing, 1924. q769 F4	Harmonic material and its uses; a text- book for teachers, students and music lovers. c1923. 781 W41
SALAMAN, Malcolm Charles.	RECREATION.
The etchings of Sir Francis Seymour Haden. 1923. q767 H1 PHOTOGRAPHY.	BAILEY, Charles William. The brain and golf; some hints for golfers from modern mental science. c1924. 796 B15
BELL, George. Photography for beginners. 1923. 770 B43	BERRY, Elmer. The forward pass in football. 1921.
 EASTMAN kodak company, Rochester, N. Y. Aerial haze and its effect on photogra- phy from the air. 1923. (Mono- graphs on the theory of photography) 770 E13 	797 B53f Cook, John. Observations on fox-hunting. New ed. 1922. DE GOVEIA, Clarence J. The community playhouse; a manual
REG, O. Byepaths of colour photography. 770 R33	on its organization and maintenance. 1923. 792 D35 Formes, William Cameron.
MOVING PICTURES.	As to polo. c1923. 797 F69
DONALDSON, William R. Cost accounting in the production of motion pictures. 1923. 778 D67	GOULD, Joseph. Draughts. 3d ed. 794 G69 A HANDBOOK of summer camps; an annual survey. 1924. (Sargent's
GOLDWYN, Samuel. Behind the screen. [1923] 778 G62	handbooks) r796 H236
LANE, Tamar. What's wrong with the movies? 1923. c778 L266	HERD, Alexander. My golfing life, told to Clyde Foster. 1923. 796 H54
MUSIC. ATTL, Kajetan A. A method for the harp. c1924. q787.5 A8	LYELL, Denis D. Memories of an African hunter, with a chapter on eastern India. [1923] 799 L98
CALVOCORESSI, Michel D. The principles and methods of musical criticism. 1923. 780.4 C16	PLAYGROUND and recreation association of America. Camping out; a man- ual on organized camping. 1924.
DICTIONARY of organs and organists. 2d ed. 1921. 786.5 D55 GEHRKENS, Karl Wilson.	796 P72 RACSTER, Olga. How to play Mah-jongg in the Chinese manner. [1924] 795 R12
The fundamentals of music, first year of a study course in music under- standing, adopted by the National federation of music clubs, 1924. 781 G31	RUTLEDGE, Archibald Hamilton. Days off in Dixie. 1924. 799 R98d SELDES, Gilbert.

SPICER, W. F.	THE BEST news stories of 1923.
Universal floor work; a manual for	810.8 B5
drill teams. c1921. 793 S75	BIDWELL, Alice Townsend, & Rosensteil
STODDARD, Charles Coleman.	Isabelle Denison.
Shanks' mare, c1924. 796 S86	The places of English literature;
Wenne of the star Distance	literary guide to the British Isles
WARDLAW, Charles Digby. Fundamentals of baseball. 1924.	c1924. 820.9 B5
797 W26	BOYNTON, Percy Holmes.
	Some contemporary Americans. c1924
PAGEANTS AND PLAYS.	810.9 B79
APPLEGARTH, Margaret Tyson.	BRIDGE, Sir Frederick.
Short missionary plays. c1923.	Shakespearean music in the plays an
793 A64	early operas. 1923. 822.33 Dbri
Contents: Color blind; Kimono; The latest Victor record; Just sup- pose; The girl who fell through the earth; Seven keys to Mr. Bald Pate; Hands up!; Fare, please; Indelible; The gospel acording to the telephone book; Pain streat	BUTLER, Samuel.
pose; The girl who fell through the	The authoress of the Odyssey, wher
earth; Seven keys to Mr. Bald Pate; Hands up!; Fare, please; Indelible;	and when she wrote, who she was
The gospel acording to the telephone book; Pain street.	the use she made of the Iliad. [1922
book, 1 am street.	883 H760
CANDLER, Martha.	CALINA, Josephine. Shakespeare in Poland. 1923
Faith, a miracle play (in one act). c1924. 793 C21	Shakespeare in Poland. 1923 (Shakespeare survey) 822.33 Dc
190 021	(Shakespeare survey) 022.00 DC
CLEMENTS, Colin Campbell.	CAMPBELL, Olwen Ward.
Aunt Betty of Butte; a sentimental	Shelley and the unromantics. [1924
comedy of manners in three acts.	South South Second
1922. (French's international copy- righted ed.) 793 C62au	Collins, Joseph. Taking the literary pulse; psycholog
Gift of author.	cal studies of life and letters. c1924
GLOVER, Lydia M.	804 C712
Friends of Jesus, c1923. (Biblical	DAMON, Samuel Foster.
drama series) 793.2 C56	William Blake: his philosophy an
There are a low d	symbols. 1924. q821 B63z
HUMPHREY, Maud. Why girls stay home; a satiric comedy	Dell, Floyd.
in one act. c1923. (Stewart Kidd	Looking at life. 1924. 814 D3
modern plays) 793 H92	
JOSEPH, Mrs Helen (Haiman).	FAUSSET, Hugh I'Anson.
Princesses; a symbolic drama for	Studies in idealism. 1923.
marionettes. c1923. (Stewart Kidd	821.09 F2 FRANCE, Anatole.
modern plays) 793 J83	The Latin genius. 1924. (The work
MANLEY, Marian.	of Anatole France in an English
The message of the Christ-child. 1921.	translation) 844 F81
792.7 M27	
RUSSELL, Mary M.	HALLSTROM, Per August Leonard.
Drama as a factor in social education.	Selected short stories, translated from Swedish by F. J. Fielden. 1922
c1924. 793 R96	(Scandinavian classics)
LITERATURE.	839.73 H19
BAILEY, John Cann.	HARRINGTON, Karl Pomeroy.
The continuity of letters. 1923.	Catullus and his influence. c1923
824 B154c	(Our debt to Greece and Rome)
BAUDOUIN, Charles.	874 C36z
Psychoanalysis and aesthetics; trans- lated from the French by Eden and	HEWLETT, Maurice Henry. Last essays of Maurice Hewlett. 1924
Cedar Paul. 1924. 801 B34	Rast essays of maurice Hewlett. 1924 824 H61

HOFFMAN, Arthur Sullivant. PHELPS, William Lyon. Fiction writers on fiction writing. Howells, James, Bryant, and other c1923. 808.3 H69f essays. 1924. 814 P54h Contents: Bryant; Whitman; Tho-reau; Lowell; James; Howells; Uncle Tom's cabin. Hoyr, Arthur Stephen. The spiritual message of modern English poetry. 1924. 821.09 H86 POLLARD, Alfred William. Shakespeare's hand in the play of Sir HUSKINSON, Richard King. Thomas More, 1923. (Shakespeare Some confessions of an average man. problems) 822.33 ABp 824 H97 c1923. REPPLIER, Agnes. JOSEPH. Michael. Under dispute. 1924. 814 R42u Short story writing for profit. c1924. 808.3 J83 Rosenfeld, Paul. KAUN, Alexander Samuel. Port of New York; essays on fourteen Leonid Andrevev, 1924. American moderns. c1924. 891.72 A55zk 814 R81 KELLY, Fred Charters. RUBINSTEIN. Harold F. The wisdom of laziness. 1924. What's wrong with the drama? Five 814 K31 one act plays. [1923] (Contempo-KENT, Maria B. rary British dramatists) 822 R89w (Romance) 1922. Contents: The theatre; A speci-men; Repertory; Arms and the drama; Grand Guignol. Alma Triturada, 869.3 K37 Gift of author. STEVENSON, Robert Louis. KIPLING, Rudyard. The best thing in Edinburgh; an ad-Independence, rectorial address at St. dress to the Speculative society of 824 K57 Andrews. 1924. Edinburgh, in March 1873. 1923. ac824 S84 LEWISOHN, Ludwig. TERHUNE, Albert Payson. 801 L67c The creative life, 1924. Now that I'm fifty. c1924. 814 T318 LAVINGSTONE, Richard Winn, ed. THORNBOROUGH, Laura. The pageant of Greece. 1923. The etiquette of letter writing. c1924. 880 L78 808.6 T49 LUCAS, Frank Laurence. WHITE, William Allen. c1923. Euripides and his influence. The editor and his people. 1924. (Our debt to Greece and Rome) 814 W58 882 E89zl WRIGHT, Richardson Little. MASEFIELD, John. A small house and large garden, being The taking of Helen, and other prose a journal of the same with notes. 828 M39t selections. 1924. 1924. 818 W95s MINCHIN, Harry Christopher. YEA and nay, a series of lectures and Talks & traits. 1923. 824 M66 counter-lectures given at the London school of economics in aid of th MORLEY, Christopher Darlington, comp. hospitals of London. [1923] Modern essays (second series) selected 824 Y37 by Christopher Morley. 1924. POETRY. 824 M864a ADAM, Helen Douglas. Moses, Bernard. The elfin pedlar, and tales told by pixy Spanish colonial literature in South 821 A193 pool. 1924. 860 M91 America. 1922. BROWNE, Isaac Hawkins. MUIR. Edwin. A pipe of tobacco. 1923. 821 B882 824 M953I Latitudes. 1924. BYRON, George Gordon Noël Byron, 6th baron. NICOLL, Allardyce. Byron and Greece, by Harold Spender. A history of restoration drama 1660-821 B99s 1700. 1923. 822.09 N64 1924.

CONGREVE, William. Complete works, ed. by Montague Sum- mers. 1923. 4 v. q822 C74c	 Ovid with an English transla- tion: Tristia, Ex Ponto. 1924. (The Loeb classical library [Latin authors]) 871 096wt
DAVIES, Mary Carolyn.	POE, Edgar Allan.
The skyline trail: a book of western	Poe-man, poet, and creative thinker,
verse. c1924. 811 D256s	by Sherwin Cody. c1924.
DICKINSON, Emily. The complete poems. 1924. 811 D55c	811 P7 4zc
FARRAR, John Chipman. The middle twenties. c1924. 811 F24m	RICHARDS, Gertrude Moore, "Mrs Waldo Richards," comp. The magic carpet; poems for travellers. 1924. 808.1 R519
HAYDEN, Dorothea Hoaglin. Deodars and other verse. 1923. c811 H414	Rollins, Hyder Edward, ed. Cavalier and Puritan: ballads and
HOLLAND, Christopher F.	broadsides illustrating the period of
Poems for the wayfarer on the path of	the great rebellion, 1640–1660. 1923.
life. c1923. c811 H734	821.08 R75c
KEMP, Harry.	SHANE, Elizabeth.
Chanteys and ballads. c1920.	By bog and sea in Donegal. [1923]
811 K32c	821 \$528
KERLIN, Robert Thomas.	SINCLAIR, May.
Negro poets and their poems. c1923.	The dark night. 1924. 821 S616
811.08 K39	VEDAS. Rigreda. Selections. English.
LINCOLN, Elliott Curtis. The ranch; poems of the West. 1924. 811 L73r	Vedic hymns. 1923. 891.2 V41t VILLON, François.
MEYNELL, Mrs Alice Christiana (Thomp-	The testaments of François Villon,
son), comp.	translated by John Heron Lepper.
The school of poetry. 1924.	1924. q841 V7
821.08 M61 Montross, Lois Seyster. The crimson cloak. c1924. 811 M813	THE YULE club, Oakland, California, comp. For thought and for remembrance, 1893. c808.1 Y95
MORLEY, Christopher Darlington, comp. The Bowling green. 1924. 811.08 M86	DRAMA.
MORRIS, Joseph, & Adams, St. Clair,	ARMSTRONG, Paul, & Beach, Rex.
comps.	Going some; a play in four acts.
The book of mother verse. c1924.	c1923. (French's standard library
821.08 M876	edition) 812 A737
MOULT, Thomas, <i>comp.</i>	Azerris, Lorenzo de.
The best poems of 1923. 1924.	Casanova. c1924. (Brentano's con-
821.08 M92	temporary drama series) 852 A99
NATIONAL child labor committee, comp.	BAX, Clifford.
Poems of child labor, 1924.	Up stream; a drama in three acts.
808.1 N277	1922. (British drama league library
OVIDIUS Naso, Publius.	of modern British drama)
 Ovid. The lover's handbook; a complete translation of the Ars amatoria, by F. Λ. Wright. [1923] (Broadway translations) 871 096w 	822 B35u BEACH, Lewis. The goose hangs high; a play in three acts. 1924. 812 B36g

BRIGHOUSE, Harold. Once a hero; a comedy in one act. 1922. (Repertory plays) 822 B8550	 KAUFMAN, George S., & Connelly, Marcus Cook. Beggar on horseback. [1924] 812 K21b
Снекноv, Anton Pavlovich. Plays. 1924. 2 v. 891.72 С51р	KELLY, George Edward. The show-off; a transcript of life in
COLTON, John. Rain; a play in three acts. c1923. 812 C72	KNOBLAUCH, Edward. The lullaby, and other plays. 1924.
CRANMER-BYNG, Launcelot Alfred. Salma; a play in three acts. 1923. 822 C891	822 K72l Contents: The lullaby; Marie-Odile; Tiger! tiger!
CRAWSHAY-WILLIAMS, Eliot. Five Grand Guignol plays: E. & O. E., Amends, Rounding the triangle, The nutcracker suite, Cupboard love.	LEE, Harry Sheridan. . The little poor man ("Il poverello"). c1922. 812 L4781 LONSDALE, Frederick.
c1924. 812 C91	Aren't we all; a comedy. c1924.
DAVIES, William Henry. True travellers; a tramps opera in	(Brentano's contemporary drama series) 822 L86
three acts. 812 D257	
The server and the set	Monkhouse, Allan.
EMERY, Gilbert. Tarnish. c1924. (Brentano's contem- porary drama series) 812 E53	The conquering hero; a play in four acts. (Contemporary British drama- tists) 822 M74c
FLAVIN, Martin.Children of the moon; a play. c1924.(Brentano's contemporary drama series)812 F58	O'NEILL, Eugene Gladstone. All God's chillun got wings, and Welded. c1924. 812 O58a l
 FORD, Harriet, & Duer, Caroline King. Where Julia rules; a comedy in four acts. c1923. (French's standard library edition) 812 F699 	RICHMAN, Arthur. Not so long ago; a comedy in prologue, three acts and epilogue. c1924. (French's standard library edition) 812 R53
GALSWORTHY, John. The forest, a drama in four acts. 1924. 822 G17fr	SUTRO, Alfred. The laughing lady; a comedy in three acts. c1922. 822 \$961
GOODMAN, Jules Eckert. Chains; a play in three acts. c1924.	TARKINGTON, Booth, & Wilson, Harry Leon.
(Brentano's contemporary drama series) 812 G653	Tweedles, a comedy. c1924. (French's standard library edition) 812 T18tw
HAMILTON, Cosmo.	THOMAS, Charles Swain.
Four plays: The new poor, Scandal, The silver fox, The mother woman. 1924.	The Atlantic book of junior plays. c1924. (Atlantic classics)
822 H217	808.2 T45
HARDY, Thomas. The famous tragedy of the Queen of Cornwall at Tintagel in Lyonnesse; a new version of an old story, 1923. 822 H27f	 TURGENEV, Ivan Sergieevich. Plays. Trans. from the Russian by M. S. Mandell. 1924. 891.72 T93p TURNER, W. J.
IIUGHES, Hatcher.	The man who ate the popomack; a
Hell-bent fer heaven; a play in three	tragedy-comedy of love in four acts.
acts. 1924. (Harper's modern	1922. (British drama league library
plays) 812 H893	of modern British drama) 822 T95

VOLLMER. Lula. Sun-up. c1924. (Brentano's contemporary drama series) 812 V92 CALIFORNIA FICTION. CORNELL. Hughes. Born rich. c1924. cC Gift of the author. GUE, Belle Willey. The fugitives. c1923. cG9 Gift of the author. - The last ditch, 1923. cG9 Gift of the author. MACFARLANE, Peter Clark. Tongues of flame. 1924. cM1 PARKER. Mrs Cornelia (Stratton). Jenny the joyous. c1924. cP POST. Charles Clement. Driven from sea to sea. 1884. cP GENEALOGY. ACTON. Massachusetts. Vital records of Acton, Massachuse 929.3 to the year 1850, 1923. PLYMPTON, Mass. Vital records of Plympton, Ma chusetts, to the year 1850. 19 929.3 SELLERS, Edwin Jaquett. Jaudon family of Pennsylvania. 19 929.2 Gift of author. STRASSBURGER, Ralph Beaver. The Strassburger family and al families of Pennsylvania; being ancestry of Jacob Andrew Str burger, esquire, of Montgon County, Pennsylvania. 1922. q929.2 BIOGRAPHY: COLLECTIVE. BENSON, Arthur Christopher. Memories and friends. 1924. 920.042 B BOUDOIR mirrors of Washington. An mous. c1923. 920.7 [HAMILTON, Mrs Mary Agnes (Ad son)]

England's labour rulers, by Iconoc [pseud.] 1924. 923.2

STARK. Harold.

People you know, by Young Boswell [pseud.] c1924. , 920 S79

BIOGRAPHY: INDIVIDUAL

	Anissia. TOLSTOI, Lev Nikolaevich, graf,
314	<i>ed.</i> My life, as told by the peasant Anissia
	to T. A. Kouzimskaya, revised and
24f	corrected by Leo Tolstoy. Trans. by Charles Salomon. 1924. B A599
241	Anne Boleyn. SERGEANT, Philip Wals-
	ingham. The life of Anne Boleyn. 1923.
43t	B A613s Archer. ABCHER, Herman.
238	Mr Archer, U. S. A., as told to R. H. Platt, <i>jr.</i> 1924. B A6713p
	Archer. HUMPHRIS, Edith M. The life of Fred Archer. 1923.
857	B A6712h
	Benson. BENSON, Arthur Christopher. The trefoil. Wellington college, Lin-
tts, \18	coln, and Truro. 1923. B B4743b
10	Burroughs. KENNEDY, William Sloane.
ssa-	The real John Burroughs; personal recollection and friendly estimate.
)23. P73	1924. B B972k
	Byron. CHEW, Samuel Claggett. Byron in England. 1924. B B996c
)24. J41	NICHOLSON, Harold George.
	Byron, the last journey. 1924. BB996nc
lied	RAYMOND, Mrs Dora (Neill).
the ass-	The political career of Lord Byron. c1924. B B996r
nery	Camoes. BELL, Aubrey Fitz Gerald.
S89	Luis de Camoes. 1923. (Hispanic notes & monographs; essays, studies,
	and brief biographies issued by the Hispanic society of America. Portu-
	guese series) B C185b
47m	Carlyle. CARLYLE, Mrs Jane Baillie (Welsh).
ony- B75	Jane Welsh Carlyle: letters to her
am-	Huxley. 1924. B C286h
	Carson. CAMP, Charles L.
last H21	Kit Carson in California. 1922. qcB C321c

493

Chase. CHASE, George Millett. George C. Chase, a biography. 1924. B C4872c	Nevinson. NEVINSON, Henry Woodd. Changes and chances. [1923] B N527
Constant. SCHEEMERHORN, Elizabeth. Benjamin Constant. 1924. B C757 Coolidge. GREEN, Horace. The life of Calvin Coolidge. 1924.	Papini. PAPINI, Giovanni. The failure (Un uomo finito), author ized translation by Virginia Pope c1924. (The European library) B P217 Poincaré. HUDDLESTON, Sisley.
B C774g Crapsey. CRAPSEY, Algernon Sidney. The last of the heretics. 1924. B C893	Poincaré; a biographical portrait 1924. B P751 Portland. GREW, Mrs Marion Ethe
Crookes. FOURNIER D'ALBE, Edmund Edward. The life of Sir William Crookes. [1923] B C948f	(Tuckwell). William Bentinck and William III (Prince of Orange), the life of Ben- tinck, earl of Portland, from the Welbeck correspondence. 1924. B P85 2
DAVIESS, Maria Thompson. Seven times seven; an autobiography. 1924. B D256	Roosevelt. CHARNWOOD, Godfrey Rath- bone Benson, 1st baron. Theodore Roosevelt. c1923.
Dickens. NICOLL, Sir William Robertson. Dickens' own story. 1923. B D548n	B R781ch
FitzGerald. FITZGERALD, Edward. Edward FitzGerald and Bernard Bar- ton; letters. 1924. B F553ba	HAGERDOBN, Hermann. Roosevelt, prophet of unity. 1924. B R781hro Shay. SHAY, John C.
Fox. DE MONTMORENCY, James Edward Geoffrey.	Twenty years in the backwoods of Cali- fornia. c1923. cB \$538
Francis William Fox; a biography. 1923. B F7912d	Shelley, MAUROIS, Andre. Ariel; the life of Shelley, tr. by Ella D'Arcy. 1924. B S545ma
Gandhi. MUZUMDAR, Haridas T. Gandhi the apostle; his trial and his message. 1923. B G195m	Sinclair. SINCLAIR, Upton. Biographical and critical opinions.
Lincoln. ARTHUR, Samuel John. Lincoln's legacy, a tribute to the world's great commoner. c1923.	cB S6164 Skinner. SKINNER, Otis. Footlights and spotlights. c1924. B S6281
B L736art BISSETT, Clark Prescott. Abraham Lincoln, 1923. B L736bisa	Smith. MOSKOWITZ, Henry. Alfred E. Smith, an American career. 1924. B S6421
Luther. INCE, R. B. Martin Luther, apostle of the Reforma- tion. 1922. B L973 i	Swedenborg. HODGETTS, E. Brayley. Reasonable religion. Emanuel Sweden- borg, his message and teaching. 1923.
McAdoo. SYNON, Mary. McAdoo, the man and his times; a panorama in democracy. c1924. B M113	B \$974 Tolstoi. Tolstoĭ, Lev L'vovich, graf. The truth about my father. 1924. B T654to
MacDonald. MACDONALD, James Ramsay. Margaret Ethel MacDonald. [1924] B M1354m	Tozer, Tozer, Basil John. Recollections of a rolling stone. [1923] B T757
Napoleon. GUÉRARD, Albert Léon. Reflections on the Napoleonic legend. 1924. B N216gu	Webster. KENNEDY, Elijah Robinson. The real Daniel Webster. c1924. B W378k

Wheeler. WHEELER, Homer W. The frontier trail; or, From cowboy to colonel. 1923. B W563	Collingwood, R. G. Roman Britain. 1923. (World's manuals) 942.01 C71
Wilson. KNIGHT, Lucian Lamar. Woodrow Wilson, the dreamer and the dream. c1924. B W754 k	Exre-Todd, George. The Highland clans of Scotland: their history and traditions. 1923. 2 v.
LAWRENCE, David. The true story of Woodrow Wilson. c1924. B W754la	941.1 E98 The Near East. v. 23-24. 1923.
Youff. YOUFF, Ulv, pscud. Ulven, 1923. cB Y68	q949.605 N3. PALEN, Lewis Stanton. The white devil of the Black Sea.
Zakrzewska. ZAKRZEWSKA, Marie Eliza- beth.	1924. 947 P15
A woman's quest, edited by Agnes C. Vietor. 1924. B Z21	STANNARD, Harold Martin. The fabric of Europe; an historical survey of international relations.
HISTORY: GENERAL.	c1923. 940.9 \$78
DE BURGH, William George. The legacy of the ancient world. 1924.	VYRUBOVA, Anna Aleksandrovna (Tanie- eva).
901 D281 SCHWEITZER, Albert. The decay and the restoration of civili-	Memories of the Russian court. 1923. 947.08 V99 ASIA.
zation. Trans. by C. T. Campion. 1923. (The philosophy of civiliza- tion) 901 S41	DAS. Taraknath. India in world politics. 1923. 954 D22
Somervell, David Churchill. Critical epochs in history. [1924] 904 S69	HOVELAQUE, Émile Lucien. China, tr. by Mrs Laurence Binyon. 1923. 951 H84
TAYLOR, Henry Osborn. Freedom of the mind in history. 1923. 901 T24	MILLARD, Thomas Franklin Fairfax. Conflict of policies in Asia. c1924. 950 M64c
ANCIENT HISTORY.	
PETRIE, William Matthews Flinders.	UNITED STATES.
Religious life in ancient Egypt. 1924. 932 P49r	ALEXANDER, Philip W., & Hamm, Charles P.
SпоwerMAN, Grant. Eternal Rome, the city and its people from the earliest times to the present day. 1924. 2 v. 937 \$55	History of San Mateo County from the earliest times, and the biogra- phies of its representative men. 1916. qc979.469 A3
VELLEIUS Paterculus, C. Compendium of Roman history; Res gestae divi Augusti, with an English translation by Frederick W. Shipley,	ANDREWS, Charles McLean. Connecticut's place in colonial history. 1924. 974.6 A56
(The Loeb classical library [Latin authors]) 937 V43	CRAWFORD, Mary Caroline. Romantic days in old Boston. 1922.
EUROPE.	974.41 B74cr
BIERSTADT, Edward Hale. The great betrayal. 1924. 949.6 B58	DAUGHTERS of the American revolution magazine. v. 55-56. 1921-1922. q973.05 D2
BOTSFORD, Jay Barrett. English society in the eighteenth cen-	

1924.

American colonial government 1696tury as influenced from oversea. 942.07 B75 1765, 1912. 973.2 D54

- HORNER, John B. A short history of Oregon. c1924. 979.5 H81s
- HULBERT, Archer Butler. The making of the American republic. 1923. 973 H91ma
- LATIMER, Louise Payson. Your Washington and mine. 1924. 975.3 L35
- MORISON, Samuel Eliot, ed. Sources and documents illustrating the
- American revolution, 1764–1788, and the formation of the federal Constitution, 1923. 973.3 M86
- PEASE, Theodore Calvin, ed.
 - Illinoiselectionreturns,1818–1848.1923.(Collections of the Illinoisstatehistoricallibrary[Statisticalseries])977.3129

EUROPEAN WAR.

- BETHMANN-HOLLWEG, Theobald von. Reflections on the world war, tr. by George Young. [1920] 940.91 B56
- BUCHAN, John.
 - The battle of the Somme, second phase. [1917] 940.932 B91 Gift.
- GERMANY. Auswärtiges amt.
- Outbreak of the world war: German documents, 1924. (Publications of the Carnegie endowment for international peace. Division of international law) **q940.91 G37**
- GILBERT, Vivian. The romance of the last crusade; with Allenby to Jerusalem. 1923. 940.935 G46

GRAHAM, Malbone Watson, & Binkley, Robert Cedric. New governments of central Europe.

- 1924. **940.98 G74**
- JENISON, Marguerite Edith, ed. War documents and addresses. 1923. (Illinois in the world war)
 - 940.973 J51
- MACARTNEY, Maxwell Henry Hayes. Five years of European chaos. 1923. 940.98 M11
- RAWLINSON, Alfred. Adventures in the Near East, 1918– 1922, 1923. 940.935 R26

WILLIAMS, Charles Halston. Sidelights on negro soldiers. 1923. 940.973 W72

GEOGRAPHY AND TRAVEL: GENERAL.

CARPENTER, Frank George. Australia, New Zealand and some islands of the South Seas. 1924. (Carpenter's world travels)

919.4 C29

LORENZ, Daniel Edward. The 'round the world traveller. c1924. 910.4 L86r

- EUROPE.

BROOKS, Charles Stephen. A thread of English road. c1924. 914.2 B873

CALVERT, Albert Frederick.

- Spain, an historical and descriptive account of its architecture, landscape, and arts. 1924. 2 v.
 - q914.6 Cl
- EATON, Richard. Under the red flag. c1924. 914.7 E14
- GORDON, Jan, & Gordon, Cora Josephine, "Mrs Jan Gordon."

A donkey trip through Spain. 1924. 914.6 G66d

HARPER, Charles George.

- Queer things about London; strange nooks and corners of the greatest city in the world. [2d ed.] c1924. 914.21 H29
- [McBRIDE, Robert Medill] Sweden and its people. 1924. 914.85 M11
- MORLEY, F. V. Travels in East Anglia. 1923.

914.2 M86

MURPHY, Thomas Dowler. In unfamiliar England with a motor car, the record of a fifteen thousand mile tour. Rev. and enl. ed. 1924.

914.2 M97

ASIA.

Asнву, Philip. The mad Rani and other sketches of Indian life and thought. 1923.

915.4 A82

FA-HEEN.

The travels of Fa-hsien (399-414 A. D.) or Record of the Buddhistic kingdoms, re-translated by H. A. Giles, 1923. 915 F15 ŀ

\$

E

C

ŀ

Ί

E

F

E

C

I

F

Iosie, Dorothea (Soothill), lady.	LONGSTRETH, Thomas Morris.
Two gentlemen of China; an intimate	Lake Superior country. c1924.
description of the private life of two patrician Chinese families. 1924.	917.13 L85 MINNIGERODE, Meade.
915.1 H825	The fabulous forties, 1840–1850, a
TEELE, James King.	presentation of private life. 1924.
Wandering feet along well-known high-	917.3 M66
ways and unfrequented byways of	SACRAMENTO souvenir guide, May 1911.
China and Japan. 1923. c915.2 S81	c917.9454 \$12s
	SMITH Wallace.
AFRICA.	On the trail in Yellowstone. 1924.
ARNS, Thomas Alexander.	917.87 S66
Across the great craterland to the Congo. 1924. 916.72 B26	THORNBURY, Delmar L. California's redwood wonderland, Hum-
Collgo. 1724. 910.72 B20	boldt county. c1923. qc917.9412 T4
ANNAN Gilbert.	
Letters from a distance. 1924.	VAN RENSSELAER, May (King) "Mrs J. K. Van Rensselaer, & Van de Water,
916 C22	Frederic Franklyn.
LEY, Charles Fernand. Unconquered Abyssinia as it is today.	The social ladder. 1924. 917.3 V27
1923. 916.3 R45	
VILLOWGIDH William Charles	SOUTH AMERICA.
VILLOUGHBY, William Charles. Race problems in the new Africa.	BLACK, William Harman.
1923. 916.7 W739	The real 'round South America. [1924] 918 B62
NORTH AMERICA.	DOMVILLE-FIFE, Charles William.
HE ANTIOCH ledger.	Among wild tribes of the Amazons; an account of exploration & adventure.
The Golden link, June, 1924.	1924. 918.1 D67am
cq917.946 A6	
BEDELL, Clyde O. Fulfilment. c917.9476 B41	MAY, Earl Chaplin. 2000 miles through Chile, the land of
r uniment. C317.9470 B41	more or less. c1924. 918.3 M46
BEDELL, Mrs Mary (Crehore).	
Modern gypsies, the story of a twelve	ARCHAEOLOGY.
thousand mile motor camping trip encircling the United States. c1924.	BAIKIE, James.
917.3 B41	A century of excavation in the land
SOUCARD, Adolphe.	of the Pharaohs. [1924]
Travels of a naturalist. 1894.	913.32 B15c
c917 B75 CARPENTER, Frank George.	BLACKMAN, Aylward Manley.
Canada and Newfoundland. 1924.	Luxor & its temples. [1923] 913.32 B62
(Carpenter's world travels)	ENGELBACH, R.
917.1 C29	The problem of the obelisks, from a
DEXTER, Mrs Elisabeth Williams (An-	study of the unfinished obelisk at
thony).	Aswan. [1923] 913.32 E57
Colonial women of affairs; a study of	LOTHROP, Samuel Kirkland.
women in business and the profes-	Tulum, an archaeological study of the
sions in America before 1776. 1924. 917.3 D52	east coast of Yucatan. 1924.
317.5 032	(Carnegie institution of Washington. Publication) q913.726 L8
EYES, Mrs Frances Parkinson	
(Wheeler).	RANDALL-MACIVER, David.
Letters from a senator's wife, 1924. 917.53 K45	Mediaeval Rhodesia. 1906. g913.68 R 1
0.1100 1010	40.000 111

q913.68 R1 WEIGALL, Arthur Edward Pearse Brome. Tutankamen and other essays. c1924. 913.32 W41t

CALIFORNIA STATE PUBLICA-TIONS RECEIVED DURING JULY, AUGUST AND SEPTEM-BER. 1924.†

Many of the administrative departments of the state are from time to time publishing reports, bulletins, etc., which are of considerable interest. Copies can usually be obtained free by writing to the departments issuing them. The publications of the University of California are offered for sale or in exchange by the University Press, Berkeley, with the exception of the publications of the Agricultural Experiment Station and some of the administrative bulletins, which are distributed free. Most of the publications of the State Mining Bureau are required by law to be sold. Price is given after each entry. The titles are listed in News Notes of California Libraries as they are received at the State Library.

AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF. Special publication, no. 45. Commercial fertilizers [1923]. 1924. 63 p. illus.

- Same, no. 46. United States grades for grapes, June, 1924. 12 p.

- ---- Same, no. 47. The California grape situation: 1924. 24 p.

FISH AND GAME COMMISSION. California fish and game, vol. 10, no. 3, July, 1924. p. 103-159. illus.

HEALTH, BOARD OF. Weekly bulletin, vol. 3, nos. 19-33, June, 21-September 27, 1924.

HIGHWAY COMMISSION. California highways, vol. 1, nos. 7-8, July-August, 1924. illus. maps.

LABRARY, STATE. News Notes of California Libraries, vol. 19, no. 3, July, 1924. р. 184-275. тар.

MEDICAL EXAMINERS, BOARD OF. Directory of physicians and surgeons, naturopaths, drugless practitioners, chi-

ropodists, midwives; holding certificates issued under the medical practice acts of the state of California, including licentiates in the government service. 1924. 283 р.

MINING BUREAU (San Francisco). * Monthly chapter of report XX of the state Mineralogist covering mining in California and the activities of the State Mining Bureau, vol. 20, no. 2, April, 1924. illus. 176 p.

- Summary of operations California oil fields, vol. 9, nos. 10-11, April-May, 1924.

PRISON, STATE (San Quentin). The bulletin, vol. 11, nos. 10-12, July-September. 1924.

A monthly journal devoted to inmate welfare.

RAILROAD COMMISSION (San Francisco). Report from July 1, 1922, to June 30, 1923, 1924, 976 p.

- Rules of procedure, revised to August 1, 1924. 1924. 22 p.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (Berkeley). Bulletin, third series, vol. 17, no. 13. Prospectus of the College of Agriculture, 1924-1925. Berkeley, May, 1924. 107 p. 12°.

- Same, vol. 17, no. 14. College of Dentistry, announcement for 1924-1925, forty-third session. Berkeley, May. 1924. 56 p. 12°.

----- Same, vol. 18, no. 1. Announcement of courses, 1924-25, primarily for students in the departments at Berkeley, Berkeley, July 1924. 278 p. 12° .

----- Same, vol. 18, no. 2. Circular of information concerning the academic departments. Berkeley, August, 1924. 96 p. 12°.

- Calendar, vol. LXI, nos. 1-8, August 18-October 6, 1924. 8 p. folders. A weekly bulletin of official Univer-sity announcements. Price 25 cents a half year, postpaid.

* The location of an office or institution is in Sacramento, except when otherwise noted.

[†] Except when otherwise noted, publications are printed at the state printing office, Sacramento, and are octavo in size.

Contents: The spirit of progress. Anna Blake Mezquida; Darkness and light in the old world, Grant Showerman: The progress of economics during the last thirty-five years, Carl C. Plehn; Lake Tahoe, Kathrina Banks; Grand Cañon, Regina Kaufman; Symbolism in Chinese art, E. T. Williams; Vignette, Frances Theresa Russell; Meter in Anglo-American free verse, E. C. Hills; Spain, 1901– 1923, Charles E. Chapman; Contentment, Harry Noyes Pratt; Movements of the crust of the earth, R. H. Tucker; Universities and the truth, William Wallace Campbell; Phrontistery; Reviews.

Growth and differentiation in apricot trees, by H. S. Reed. Berkeley, 1924, p. 1-55, 18 figs. in text. roy. 8°. Price 75 cents.

Agricultural Experiment Station. Bulletin no. 378. Studies on a nutritional disease of poultry caused by vitamin A deficiency, by J. R. Beach. Berkeley, May, 1924. 22 p. 7 text figs. roy. 8°.

Circular no. 278. Olive pickling in Mediterranean countries, by W. V. Cruess. Berkeley, September, 1924. 33 p. illus.

American Archaeology and Ethnology, vol. 17, no. 5. Nabaloi tales, by C. R. Moss. 1924. p. 227–353. roy. 8°.

Price \$1.75.

Same, vol. 17. no. 6. The Stege Mounds at Richmond, California, by Llewellyn L. Loud. 1924. p. 355-72, plates 18, 19, 1 figure in text. roy. 8°.

Price 35 cents.

Same, vol. 21, nos. 1 and 2. The Uhle collection from Chincha, by A. L. Kroeber and William Duncan Strong; Explorations at Chincha, by Max Uhle. 1924. p. 1–94, plates 1–24, 28 figures in text. roy. 8°.

Price \$1.60.

Astronomy. Lick Observatory Bulletin no. 354. Investigation of the orbit of comet b 1922 (Skjellerup). Berkeley. p. 135–40. 4°.

_____ 8ame, no. 355. Third catalogue of spectroscopic binary stars. Berkeley, 1924. p. 141-85. 4°.

Frice \$2.50 per vol. in advance. Vol. 11 current.

——— Botany, vol. 12, no. 3. Tahitian mosses collected by W. A. Setchell and H. E. Parks, determined by V. F. Brotherus. Berkeley, 1924. p. 45–48. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

7. no. 9. Herodotus' avowal of silence in his account of Egypt, by Ivan M. Linforth. Berkeley, September 22, 1924. p. 269-92. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

_____ Department of Education. Bureau of Research in Education, study no. 1. Measuring classroom products in Berkeley; sections 1 and 2, by Cyrus D. Mead. May 1, 1921. 108 p. Price 50 cents.

Survey of the garment trades in San Francisco, by Emily G. Palmer. Nov. 1, 1921, 87 p.

Price 40 cents.

_____ Same, studies 4, 5, 6, 7. Applications of psychology to education, by J. V. Breitwieser. May, 1922. 28 p. Price 25 cents.

_____ Same, study no. 8. A school building survey and schoolhousing program for San Rafael, California, by Frank W. Hart and L. H. Peterson. April 25, 1922. .80 p. Price 50 cents.

Nam2, studies nos. 9 and 10. Studies in elementary education-2. by Cyrus D. Mead and Howard O. Welty. May 1, 1922. 33 p. Price 25 cents.

_____ Same, study no. 11. A guide to readings in civic education, by Oliver Thompson. November, 1922. 58 p. Price 50 cents.

Abilities and disabilities in the use of English found in the written compositions of entering freshmen at the University of California, by Howard Eugene Potter. September, 1922. 51 p.

Price 50 cents.

Price 75 cents.

Entomology, vol. 3, no. 2. The parasites of pseudococcus maritimus (Ehrhorn) in California. (Hymenoptera, chalcidoidea), part 1, Taxonomic studies, by P. H. Timberlake. Part 2, Biological studies and life histories, by Curtis P. Clausen. Berkeley, September 16, 1924. p. 223-92, plates 18-19, 8 figures in text. roy. 8°. Price 50 cents.

The Spokesman, vol. 2, nos. 9-12, July-October, 1924.

Geological Sciences, vol. 15, no. 2. Unconformity between the Ringold and Ellensburg formations, Washington, by Olaf P. Jenkins. Berkeley, September 17, 1924. p. 45-48, plate 4, 1 figure in text. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Same, vol. 15, no. 3. The Catalina Metamorphic Facies of the Franciscan series, by Alfred Oswald Woodford. Berkeley, September 19, 1924. p. 49–68, plates 5–7, 2 figures in text. roy. 8°.

Frice 40 cents.

Modern Philology, vol. 8, no. 3. The use of tu and vous in Molière, by Percival B. Fay. Berkeley, March 23, 1920. p. 227-286. roy. 8°.

Seismographic Stations. Bulletin, no. 19. The registration of earthquakes at the Berkeley station and at the Lick Observatory station from October 1, 1919, to March 31, 1920, by Lewis A. Bond. Berkeley, September 29, 1920. p. 387-404. roy. 8°.

Same, no. 20. Regisstration of earthquakes from April 1, 1920, to September 30, 1920, by Lewis A. Bond. Berkeley, April 29, 1920. p. 405-422. roy. 8°.

——— Vocational Education Division. Vocational education news notes, vol. 3, no. 1, October, 1924. 12 p. illus.

Zoology, vol. 26, no. 13. Viability of cysts of human intestinal amoebas as determined by exposure to various substances and subsequent staining in haematoxylin, by Nathaniel Bercovitz. Berkeley, September 17, 1924. p. 249-61. roy. 8°.

Price 25 cents.

Price 25 cents.

WHITTIER STATE SCHOOL. The sentinel (new series), vol. 21, nos. 5-7. June-September, 1924.

Published monthly. Price \$1.00 per year; 10 cents per copy.

CALIFORNIA CITY PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED DURING JULY, AUGUST AND SEPTEMBER, 1924.

BERKELEY. Public library. Bulletin, vol. 8, nos. 7-9, July-September, 1924.

Los ANGELES. Chamber of Commerce. Southern California business, vol. 3, nos. 6-8, July-September, 1924.

——— Municipal League. Light on your city's affairs, bulletin, vol. 1, no. 12, July; vol. 2, nos. 1–2, August-September, 1924.

——— Board of Public Service Commissioners. Twenty-second annual report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1923. 1923.

RICHMOND. Health Department. Monthly report, July-October, 1924. ——— Public Library. Monthly bulletin, vol. 10 no. 12, June; vol. 11, nos. 1–2, July-August, 1924.

SACRAMENTO. Health Department. Statement of vital statistics for the months of July-August, 1924.

SAN DIEGO. Civil Service Commission. Ninth annual report for the calendar year 1923.

------ Health Department. Monthly report, June-August, 1924.

SAN FRANCISCO. Board of Supervisors. Journal of proceedings, vol. 19, nos. 19– 31, May-August, 1924.

Municipal Record, vol. 17, nos. 26-40, July-October, 1924.

STOCKTON. .City Council. Official bulletin, July, 1924.

BOOKS FOR THE BLIND ADDED DURING JULY, AUGUST AND SEPTEMBER, 1924.

In American Braille.

Books marked c are printed with contractions,

MAGAZINES.

cILLUMINATOR for June.

In European Braille.

MAGAZINES.

- BLIND citizen for July. Published by Irish Association for the blind.
- BRAILLE mail for July-September.
- BRAILLE musical magazine for June-August.

BRAILLE packet for July, August.

CHANNELS of blessing for June, August.

HAMPSTEAD for June-August.

HORA jucunda for July-September.

INTERALLIED Braille magazine for July-September.

THE LIGHTBRINGER for November. 15-34984 THE LITERARY journal for July-September.

LE LOUIS Braille. Gifts of back numbers.

PROGRESS for July-September.

REVUE Braille. Gifts of back numbers.

SANTA LUCIA for July-September.

TRIBUNE for July-September.

MUSIC.

BRAILLE musical magazine for June-August.

In Moon Type.

MAGAZINES.

DAWN, part 152.

THE MOON, weekly newspaper, for July-September.

Moon magaazine for July-September.

In New York Point.

MAGAZINES.

CATHOLIC transcript for July, August.

CHRISTIAN record for July-September.

GOSPEL trumpet for July, August.

LUX VERA, Catholic monthly, for July-September.

MATILDA Ziegler magazine for July-September.

SUNDAY school monthly for July-September.

WEEKLY review for July-September.

In Revised Braille.

Books marked c are printed with contractions.

BOOKS.

*cATHERTON, Mrs GERTRUDE FRANKLIN (HORN). The conqueror. 6 vols. The true and romantic story of Alexander Hamilton.

*cBALZAC, HONORÉ DE. In the time of the terror, and other stories. *Other stories*: A passion in the desert; Christ in Flanders.

*cBEACH, REX ELLINGWOOD.. Pardners. 2 vols.

Stories of life in Alaska and the West.

* Gift of U. S. Veterans' Bureau.

*c----- The spoilers. 3 vols.

A story of the Alaskan goldfields, when the gold fever was at its height in the Klondike.

*cCather, Willa Sibert. One of ours. 4 vols.

The first part deals with farm life in Nebraska; the last part with the Great War.

*cCobb, IRVIN SHREWSBURY. The belled buzzard.

From The escape of Mr Trimm. For readers who like mystery tales and detective stories.

*c----- Old Judge Priest.

Appealing and very human sketches of the old time Kentucky judge and his people.—A. L. A. booklist.

- *cCONRAD, JOSEPH. The rescue. 5 vols. A south sea story. A brave young captain rescues a yachting party and in so doing has all his physical and spiritual endurance tested to its limit. --A. L. A. booklist.
- *cCURWOOD, JAMES OLIVER. God's country and the woman. 3 vols. A story of the north.
- *cDAVIS, RICHARD HARDING. Soldiers of fortune. 3 vols.

Introductory picture of New York society, followed by love and adventure in South America.

- *cDUNCAN, FRANCES. My garden doctor. A trained nurse takes her patient to a New England hilltop to give her a chance to live again. The story is full of out-of-door atmosphere and there is a thread of romance.
- cFOOTE, JOHN AMBROSE. Medicine fakes and fakers of all times.

From National Geographic Magazine, January, 1919. Hand copied by and gift of Women

Hand copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California.

*cGALE, ZONA. Miss Lulu Bett. 2 vols. A story of middle western life centering about a spinster who longs for sympathy and an escape from a cheerless life of drudgery in her sister's household.—*Pittsburgh*.

* Gift of U. S. Veterans' Bureau.

cLEACOCK, STEPHEN BUTLER. Selections from "Follies in fiction" and "Further foolishness."

Humorous sketches.

Hand-copied by and gift of Mrs. D. M. Brereton, San Francisco.

*cMAUPASSANT, GUY DE. The odd number. 2 vols.

Der. 2 Vols. Contents: Vol. 1, Happiness; A coward; The wolf; The necklace; The piece of string; La mère Sauvage. Vol. 2. Moonlight; The confession; On the journey; The beggar; A ghost; Little soldier; The wreck.

cSMITH, HUGH M. The pearl fisheries of Ceylon.

From 'National Geograpic Magazine, October, 1912.

Duplicate copy. Hand-copied by and gift of Women Volunteers of Oakland, California.

MAGAZINES.

cTHE BRAILLE courier for July. Not issued in August or September.

cCatholic review for July-September.

cChristian record for July-September.

cGospel trumpet for July-September.

- cMATILDA Ziegler magazine for July-September.
- MESSENGER to the sightless for July-September.

SEARCHLIGHT for June.

cSUNDAY school monthly for July-September.

In Ink Print.

MAGAZINES.

THE BEACON for July-September.

- THE OUTLOOK for the blind for September.
- ST. DUNSTAN'S review for July-September.

* Gift of U. S. Veterans' Bureau.

INDEX.*

A. K. Smiley [Free] Public Library. See Redlands . . . Academy of Notre Dame Library. See Alameda . . . Academy of Pacific Coast History. Bancroft Library. See Berkeley. University of California Adams, Mrs Lila G. See Trinity County Free Library Adams, Mary. See Escondido [Free] Public Library Adin. Big Valley Joint Union High School Library, 375 Adin. Big Valley Joint Union High School Library, 375 Advertising the County Library in Stanislaus County, 1 Agnew. Agnews State Hospital Library, 424 Agnews State Hospital Library. See Agnew . . . Alameda. Academy of Notre Dame Library, 314 Alameda County, 6-7, 100-1, 200-1, 313-21 Alameda County Free Library, 100, 313 ----- Branches. See Alameda County Alameda County Law Library, 6, 313 Alameda County Medical Society Library, 313 Alameda County Teachers' Library, 314 Alameda. Free Public Library, 6, 100, 314 ------ High School Library, 314 Alexander Hamilton Junior High School Library. See Oakland 4. Alhambra. City High School Library, 204, 353 Alexander Hamilton Junior High School Library. See Oak Alhambra. City High School Library, 204, 353 —— [Free] Public Library, 12, 106, 352 Alhambra Union High School Library. See Martinez . Alpaugh High School Library, 444 Alpine County, 7, 102, 201, 321 Alpine County, 7, 102, 201, 321 Alpine County, 7, 102, 201, 321 Alturas. [Free] Public Library, 375 —— Modoc Union High School Library, 375 Amador County, 7, 102, 201, 321–3 Amador County Free Library, 7, 102, 201, 321 —— Branches. See Amador County Amador County Law Library, 322 Amador County Teachers' Library, 35, 130 Amador County Law Library, 322
Amador County Teachers' Library, 322
American Association of Law Library, 322
American Library Association, 34, 129, 221, 458
Anaheim, [Free] Public Library, 383
— Union High School Library, 383
Anderson, Alice. See Chico. State Teachers College Library
Anderson Union High School Library, 429
Anderson Valley Union High School Library. See Boonville
Antelope Valley Union High School Library. See Lancaster
Antioch. Riverview Union High School Library. See Lancaster
Anticol. Riverview Union High School Library, 203, 338
— Humboldt State Teachers College Library, 203, 338
— Union High School Library, 338 - Union High School Library, 338 Armenian Young Men's Library Club. See Fresno Armijo Union High School Library. See Fairfield Arroyo Grande Union High School Library, 118, 418 Art Association Library. See San Francisco. San Francisco Art Association Library Astronomical Society of the Pacific Library. See San Francisco . . Auburn. Free Public Library, 386 Placer Union High School Library, 112, 386 Azusa. Citrus Union High School Library, 12, 353 [Free] Public Library, 353 Babcock, *Mrs* Julia G. *See* Kern County Free Library Backus, Joyce. *See* San Jose. State Teachers College Library Bailey, Caroline H. *See* Los Gatos [Free] Public Library * Locations of county free library branches are not listed in this index. For such information see "Place Index," pages 281 to 312, this volume.

2 - 38306

Bailey, Mrs Olive. Sce Placentia Library District Library

Bakersfield, Beale Memorial [Free Public] Library, 346

Ballard, Ellen. See Sunnyvale Free Public Library Bancroft Library. See Berkeley. University of California. Academy of Pacific Coast History

- Bank of Italy Library. See San Francisco

- Barlow Medical Library. See Los Angeles . . . Barrow Medical Library. See Los Angeles . . . Barmby, Mary. See Alameda County Free Library Barnett, Margaret Adelle. See Santa Rosa Free Public Library

Barstow. Santa Fe Library, 399 ———— Union High School Library, 399 Barton, Laura E. See Redwood City Free Public Library Beale Memorial [Free Public] Library. See Bakersfield . .

- Benish, Blanche, See Yorba Linda Library District Library
 Ben Lomond Library, 428
 Benicia, Free Public Library, 434
 High School Library, 434
 Berkeley, Anna Head School Library, 315
 California School for the Blind [Embossed-Book] Library, 100. 315
 California School of Arts and Crafts Library, 315
 Edison Junior High School Library, 315
 Efreel Public Library 100, 200, 314

- [Free] Public Library, 100, 200, 314
 Garfield Junior High School Library, 315
 Geographical Society of the Pacific Library, 315
 High School Library, 315
- Newman Club Library, 315
- Pacific School of Religion Library, 316 Pacific Unitarian School for the Ministry Library, 316
- ____
- San Francisco Microscopical Society Library, 316 University of California. Academy of Pacific Coast History. Bancroft Library, 316
- Law Library, 316

- Law Labrary, 316
 University of California Library, 200, 316
 Washington Lower High School Library, 316
 Wellesley School Library, 316
 Wellesley School Library, 343
 Big Valley Joint Union High School Library. See Adin
 Biggs. [Free] Public Library, 324
 Union High School Library, 102, 324
 Bishop Union High School Library, 343
 Blind, Books for. See California State Library and Berkeley. California School for the Blind Library and also San Francisco Association for for the Blind Library, and also San Francisco. San Francisco Association for the Blind
- Free Public Library, 389

- Board of Library Examiners, California. See Library Examiners, California, Board of
- Bohemian Club Library. See San Francisco Boman, Evalyn. See Imperial County Free Library, 203, 339

- Boulder Creek Union High School Library, 428 Boynton, Amy L. See Lodi [Free] Public Library Boynton, Mary. See Santa Paula. Dean Hobbs Blanchard Memorial [Free Public] Library
- Boys' and Girls' Aid Society Library. See San Francisco Boys' Polytechnic High School and Junior College Library. See Riverside . . .

Brackett, Thelma. See Siskiyou County Free Library Brawley Union High School Library, 340 Breen, Adelaide. See San Juan Bautista Free Public Library Breeth, McMark, John High School Library, 329 Breslin, Mrs Genevieve. See Chino Free Public Library Bret Harte Union High School Library. See Angels Camp.... Brewitt, Mrs Theodora R. See Long Beach [Free] Public Library Bridgeport. See Mono County Britton, Jasmine, See Los Angeles, Los Angeles City School Library Brodie, H. D. See Oceanside [Free] Public Library Brown, Charlotte M. See Los Angeles. University of Southern California. College of Liberal Arts Library Brown, Mary. See San Leandro Free Public Library Bruner, Helen M. See California State Library. Staff, and also San Francisco. Sutro Branch, California State Library Buena Park. Free Library, 383 Library District Library, 383 Builders' Exchange. See San Francisco . . . Burbank Union High School Library, 353 Burket, Frances M. See Amador County Free Library, and also Λ Children's Book Week Party, 2 Bundingene [Free] Dettie Library 100 Burlingame [Free] Public Library, 420 Burrey, Mrs Mary L. See Ukiah Free Public Library Butte County, 7, 102, 201, 323-5 Butte County Free Library, 201, 323 Free Public Library, 340 Calexico. Union High School Library, 341 California Academy of Science Library. See San Fran California Area, Population, 6, 100, 200, 313 California Camera Club Library. See San Francisco See San Francisco . . California Academy of Science Library. See San Francisco
California Area, Population, 6, 100, 200, 313
California Camera Club Library. See San Francisco
California County Free Libraries. See County Free Libraries
California County Librarians, 41, 139, 225, 463
Advisory Committee, 41, 139, 225, 463
Advisory Committee, 41, 139, 225, 463
Conference of some Co-operating Agencies Concerning Methods in a Nutrition Program for California, 225
County Librarians' Convention, 41, 139, 190, 225
Letter from South Carolina, 41
Rural Teacher Training Conference, 463
State Fair, 463
California Genealogical Society Library. See San Francisco
California Institute of Technology Library. See San Francisco
California Library Association, 37, 132, 223, 461
Annual Meeting. See
Meeting, annual, 38, -133, 188, 224
First District, 39, 133 First District, 38, 133 - Second District, 39, 133 - Third District, 134 Fourth District, 135 Fifth District, 136 Sixth District, 136 – Municipal Libraries Section Section
Officers, District and Districts, 37, 133, 224, 461
Officers, Municipal Libraries Section, 37, 132, 223, 461
Officers, Special Libraries Section, 37, 132, 223, 461
Officers, Trustees Section, 37, 132, 223, 461
Special Libraries Section, *See* Officers, Special Libraries Section
Trustees Section, *See* Officers, Trustees Section

California Library Schools. See Library Schools

505

- California, Map of . . . 4, 98, 198, 278 California Polytechnic School Library. See San Luis Obispo California School for the Blind [Embossed-Book] Library. See Berkeley . . . California School for the Deaf Library. See Berkeley . . . California School Library Association, 35, 130, 222, 459 California School of Arts and Crafts Library. See Berkeley . . . California School of Mechanical Arts and Wilmerding School of Industrial Arts Library See San Francisco Arts and Wilmerding School of Industrial Arts

- Library, See San Francisco
- California Society of Colonial Wars Library. See Los Angeles. California Society Sons of the Revolution and
- California Society Sons of the American Revolution Library. See San Francisco.

California Society Sons of the Revolution (Repository of the Southwest) and California Society of Colonial Wars Library. See Los Angeles

- ornia State Library, 45, 143, 231, 467 Accessions, Recent. See ______ Recent Accessions Books for the Blind Added, 91, 183, 269, 501 Books for the Blind Department, 49, 146, 234, 470 _______ Home Teaching, 49, 147, 235, 471 California Department, 48, 145, 233, 469 Catalog Department, 48, 145, 233, 469 City Publications Received, 90, 182, 268, 500 Documents Department, 47, 144, 232, 469 Employment Bureau, 36, 131, 222, 459 Former Trustees, 45, 143 Law and Legislative Reference Department, 47, 144, 232, 468 Library Hours, 47, 144, 232, 468
- Library Hours, 47, 144, 232, 468 New State Library and Courts Building, 143

- New State Library and Courts Building, 143
 Order and Accessions Department, 48, 145, 233, 469
 Recent Accessions, 51, 148, 237, 472
 Reference Department, 47, 145, 233, 469
 School Alumni Association, 35
 School graduates, 49, 147, 235, 471
 School graduates, 49, 147, 235, 471
 Mews Items, 51, 148, 236
 Staff, 45, 143, 231, 467
 State Publications Received, 85, 179, 265, 498
 Sutro Branch, 49, 147, 235, 471
 California State Library School and University of California Library School Alumni Association, 130, 222, 459
 Calistoga. Free Public Library, 380
 Joint Union High School Library, 380
- Joint Union High School Library, 380
- Calnon, J. Elizabeth. See Anaheim [Free] Public Library Calwa City. Santa Fe Reading Room, 333

- Camp Meeker Free Library, 435 Campbell. Free Library, 24, 424 Union High School Library, 424

 Campbell, Thee Library, 24, 424
 Carmel Free Library, 17, 207, 377
 Carnegie Buildings: Alameda, Alturas, Anaheim, Antioch, Auburn, Azusa, Bayliss, Beaumont, Berkeley, Biggs, Calexico, Chico, Chula Vista, Claremont (Pomona College), Clovis, Coalinga, Colton, Colusa, Concord, Corning, Corona, Covina, Dinuba, Dixon, East San Diego, El Centro, Escondido, Eureka, Exeter, Ferndale, Fresno, Fullerton, Gilroy, Glendale, Grass Valley, Gridley, Hanford, Hayward, Healdsburg, Hemet, Hollister, Huntington Beach, Imperial, Lakeport, Lincoln, Livermore, Lodi, Lompoc, Long Beach, Los Angeles (Arroyo Seco, Boyle Heights, Cahuenga, Eagle Rock, Lincoln Heights, San Pedro, Vermont Square, Vernon and West Hollywood Branches), Los Gatos, Mill Valley, Monrovia, Monterey, National City, Nevada City, Newman, Oakdale, Oakland (Free, Alden, Golden Gate, Melrose and Twenty-third Avenue Branches, and Mills College), Ontario, Orange, Orland, Orosi, Oroxille, Oxanard, Pacific Grove, Palo Alto, Paso Robles, Patterson, Petaluma, Pomona, Porterville, Redding, Redwood City, Richmond, Riverbank, Riverside, Roseville, San Francisco (Public and Golden Gate Valley, Mission, Noe Valley, North Beach, Presidio, Richmond and Golden Gate Valley, Mission, Noe Valley, North Beach, Presidio, Richmond and College Data Charles, Contexino, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Francisco (Public and College), Charley, Mission, Noe Valley, North Beach, Presidio, Richmond and College Data College, Mission, Noe Valley, North Beach, Presidio, Richmond and College Data College, Mission, Noe Valley, North Beach, Presidio, Richmond and College Data College, Mission, Noe Valley, North Beach, Presidio, Richmond and College Data College, Mission, Noe Valley, North Beach, Presidio, Richmond and College Data College, Mission, Noe Valley, North Beach, Presidio, Richmond and College Data College, Colleg Salinas, San Anselmo, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Francisco (Public and Golden Gate Valley, Mission, Noe Valley, North Beach, Presidio, Richmond and Sunset Branches), Sanger, San Jose (Public and East San Jose Branch), San Leandro, San Luis Obispo, San Mateo, San Rafael, Santa Ana, Santa Barbara, Santa Cruz (Public, Eastside, Garfield Park and Seabright Branches). Santa Maria, Santa Monica (Public and Ocean Park Branch), Santa Rosa, Sebasto-pol, Selma, Sonoma, South Pasadena, South San Francisco, Tulare, Turlock, Ukiah, Upland, Vacaville, Vallejo. Visalia, Walnut Creek, Watsonville, Watts. Whittier, Willits, Willows, Woodland, Yolo, Yreka Carpinteria Union High School Library, 422

Carroll. Ethel. See Oxnard [Free] Public Library Caruthers High School Library, 333 Cassiday, Sara Frances. See Petaluma [Free] Public Library Catey, Emma E. See Redondo Beach [Free] Public Library Cathedral High School for Girls Library. See Los Angeles. Catholic Library. See Sacramento . . . and San Francisco. Donahue Library and also Weaverville Cedarville. Surprise Valley Union High School Library, 375 Centerville. Washington High School Library, 316 Central Junior High School Library. See Los Angeles Ceres High School Library, 438 Chaffey High School and Junior College Library. See Ontario . . Chalfant, Blanche. See Butte County Free Library Challenge Library, 452 Charlenge Library, 452 Charlenge Library, 862 Los Angeles . . Chapin, Artena M. See Alhambra [Free] Public Library, 12, 106 Charters. See California Charters etc. Chico. [Free] Public Library, 324 High School Library, 102, 324 Children's Book Week Party, A. by Frances Burket, 2 Chinese Public Library of Central California. See Fresno Chinese Reading Society Reading Room. See San Francisco . [Free] Public Library, 399 High School Library, 399 Chino. Chowchilla High School Library, 368 Chronicle Library. See San Francisco. San Francisco Chronicle Library Chula Vista Free Public Library, 403 Church Divinity School of the Pacific Library. See San Francisco . . . Citrus Experiment Station Library. See Riverside Citrus Union High School Library. See Azusa . Library Clayton, Herbert V. See California State Library Staff, and also How the Cali-fornia State Library can be of assistance to local law libraries, courts and attorneys, 191 Clear Lake Union High School Library. See Lakeport . . . Cloverdale. Free Public Library, 435 ——— Union High School Library, 435 Clovis Union High School Library, 333 Colegan, Martha June. See Tuolumne County Free Library, 446 Collar, Mrs Ida R. See Chula Vista [Free] Public Library College City. Pierce Joint Union High School Library, 327 College Notre Dame Library. See Belmont College of the Pacific Library. See Stockton . . Colton. [Free] Public Library, 399 Colusa County, 7, 102, 201, 326–8 Colusa County, Free Library, 102, 201, 326 Branches. See Contra Costa County Contra Costa County Law Library, 329 Contra Costa County Teachers' Library, 329 Cook, Geo, F. See Los Angeles. Occidental College and Academy Library

3----38306

Corcoran Union High School Library, 347

- Corona. [Free] Public Library, 390
- Coronado High School Library, 300 Coronado Beach [Free] Public Library, 404 Coronado High School Library, 404
- Cotati Free Library, 435

- Culver, Essae M. See Merced County Free Library, and also Merced Free Public Library

- Labrary Daley, Mrs Edith. See San Jose Free Public Library Danford, Mrs Alma J. See Glendale [Free] Public Library Danielson, Myrtle. See Redlands. A. K. Smiley [Free] Public Library, 401 Danville. San Ramon Valley Union High School Library, 329 Davis. Free Library, 124, 216, 451 University Farm School Library, 451 Davison, Mrs H. P. See San Diego [Free] Public Library Dean, John A. See San Francisco. Shell Oil Company of California Library Dean, Hobbs Blanchard Memorial Library Public Library. See Santa Paulo
- Dean Hobbs Blanchard Memorial [Free Public] Library. See Santa Paula . . Dean Hobbs Bianchard Memorial [Free Fubne] Lab De Ford, Estella. See Napa County Free Library Delano Joint Union High School Library, 346 De La Salle Institute Library. See Martinez Del Norte County, 8, 103, 202, 330 Del Norte County High School Library, 330 Del Norte County Law Library, 330 Del Norte County Teachers' Library, 330 Denair Hich School Library, 330

- Denair High School Library, 438
- Dentistry Libraries. See Los Angeles. University of Southern California. College of Dentistry. George H. Cushing Library, and also San Francisco. University of California. College of Dentistry Library
- Dills, Clara B. See Solano County Free Library Dinuba Union High School Library, 444
- Directory for Library Supplies, and Other Items of General Interest, 30, 125, 217, 454

- Documents. See State Publications

- Domine, Mrs Lillian, See Cloverdale Free Public Library Dominican College Library, See San Rafael Dominican Normal School Library, See Mission San Jose Donahue Library, See Grass Valley [Free] Public Library

- Doom, Frances. See Grass valley (Free) Fublic Library
 Dorris High School Library, 431
 Dos Palos Joint Union High School Library, 374
 Douglas. Mrs C. K. See Newport Beach Free Public Library
 Dowing, Nellie. See Yreka Free Public Library
 Downey Union High School Library, 354

- Downieville, See Sierra County Doyle, L. Gertrude, See Vallejo [Free] Public Library Drake, Jeannette M. See Pasadena [Free] Public Library, and also California Library Association. Officers

Duff, Carmelita. Sce Plumas County Free Library, 19 Dunsmuir High School Library, 431 Easton. Washington Union High School Library, 334 Eldridge. Sonoma State Home Library, 435 Elk Grove Union High School Library, 394 Ellis, Ruth. See Whittier [Free] Public Library Emhurst Ursuline Academy Library. See St. Helena El Monte Union High School Library, 354 Elsinore. Free Public Library, 390 ———— Union High School Library, 390 Employment Bureau. See California State Library . English, Gladys. See Tuolumne County Free Library, 28, 123, 215 Escondido. [Free] Public Library, 404 Evans, Julia. See San Francisco. Southern Pacific Company Library Evenis, Juna, See San Francisco. Souther Fachic Co Excelsion Union High School Library, Nee Norwalk . Exeter Union High School Library, 444 Fairfax Community Library and Reading Room, 369 Fairfield. Armijo Union High School Library, 434 Fairoaks, San Juan Union High School Library, 394 Foll Direct Library Library Library, San Mod Faircaks, San Juan Union High School Library, 594 Fall River Joint Union High School Library. See McArthur Fallbrook Union High School Library, 116, 404 Farrell, Mrs Lulu. See Rocklin Free Public Library Faulder, Mrs Henrietta M. See Covina [Free] Public Library Faulkner, Mrs Mabel. See Orange Free Public Library Federal Reserve Bank Library. See San Francisco . . . Feeley, Mrs James. See Red Bluff. Herbert Kraft Free [Public] Library, 122, 412 Ferguson, K. Dorothy. See San Francisco. Bank of Italy Library Ferguson, Milton J. Scc California State Library. Staff, and Board of Library Examiners, Officers, and also Saratoga Springs Again, 185 Ferndale, [Free] Public Library, 339 Ferris, Agnes F. See El Centro [Free] Public Library Fiedler, Caroline L. See Sausalito Free Public Library Fillmore Union High School Library, 449 Fink, E. Leone. See Corona [Free] Public Library Finnish Library. See Rocklin . . . Libraries, See San Francisco, Fire Underwriters Associa-Fire Insurance tion Fire Underwriters Association of the Pacific, Library of the See San Fran-Fox, Christal. See Healdsburg Carnegie [Free] Public Library Francis W. Parker School of San Diego Library. See San Diego Franklin High School Library. See Los Angeles . . . Free Methodist Seminary Library. See Los Angeles. Los Angeles Free Methodist

Seminary Library Fresno.

). Armenian Young Men's Library Club, 334 - Chinese Public Library of Central California, 334

Fresno County, 8–9, 103–4, 202, 331–5 Fresno County Free Library, 8, 103, 202, 331 Branches. See Fresno County Branches. See Fresno County
Fresno County Law Library, 333
Fresno County Law Library, 333
Fresno County Teachers' Library, 333
Fresno. High School Library, 334
— State Teachers College Library, 334
Fullerton. [Free] Public Library, 111, 207, 383
— Union High School and Junior College Library, 18, 384
Galloway, Blanche. See Madera County Free Library
Galt Joint Union High School Library, 394
Gamble, Mrs Margaret. See Watts [Free] Public Library
Gantt, Edith. See Plumas County Free Library
Gante, Flo A. See San Luis Obispo County Free Library
Garden Grove High School Library. See Los Angeles
Garfield Junior High School Library. See Ban Francisco
General Electric Office Library. See San Francisco
General Electric Office Library. See Los Angeles. Library
George H. Cushing Library. See Los Angeles. University of Southern George H. Cushing Library. See Los Angeles. University of Southern California. College of Dentistry George Thacher Memorial Free Library. See Ojai Gervais, Mrs Mary T. See Burlingame [Free] Public Library Geyserville Union High School Library, 435 Girls' High School Library. See Riverside. Riverside City Girls' High School, and Grits High School Library. See Kiverside. Riverside City Girls' High School, and also San Francisco
Gleason, Celia. See Los Angeles County Free Library, 12
Glen Ellen. Jack London Memorial Library, 436
Glendale. [Free] Public Library, 204, 355
Glendora. [Free] Public Library, 107, 355
Glenn County, 9-10, 104, 203, 335-7
Glenn County Free Library, 9, 104, 203, 335
— Branches. See Glenn County
Glenn County High School Library, 336
Glenn County Law Library, 336
Glenn County Law Library, 336
Goodman [Free Public] Library. 377
Goodman [Free Public] Library. See Napa
Goodwin, John Edward. See Los Angeles. Southern Branch of the University of California Library
Grass Valley. [Free] Public Library, 381
— High School Library, 436
Graves, C. E. See Arcata. Humboldt State Teachers College Library
Graves, Francis B. See Oakland Free [Public] Library
Greene, Marian P. See Alhambra [Free] Public] Library
Greene, Marian P. See Alhambra [Free] Public] Library
Greene, Marian P. See Alhambra [Free] Public] Library
Graves, Free Public Library, 325
— Union High School Library, 325 also San Francisco Greene, Marian P. See Alhambra [Free] Public Lif Gridley. Free Public Library, 325 ——— Union High School Library, 325 Grossmont Union High School Library, 404 Gustine Union High School Library, 374 Hadden, Anne. See Monterey County Free Library Half Moon Bay Union High School Library, 420 Hamilton City Union High School Library, 336 Hamlin School Library, See San Francisco Hanford. Free Public Library, 11, 106, 347 —— Union High School Library, 347

- Union High School Library, 316

Hollster Free Fublic Library, 396 Hollywood High School Library. See Los Angeles . . . Holman, Mildred M. See San Francisco. State Teachers College Library Holroyd, Edna. See San Mateo County Free Library Holtville Union High School Library, 341 Holy Rosary Academy Library. See Woodland . . . Hooper Foundation Library. See San Francisco . . . Hopland Union High School Library, 372 Houlahan, May. See Benicia Free Public Library How the California State Library can be of assistance to local law libraries, courts and attorneys, by Herbert V. Clayton, 191 Howe, Lois. See San Francisco. Federal Reserve Bank Library Humboldt County Teachers Library, 338
Humboldt Evening High School. See San Francisco . . .
Humboldt State Teachers College Library. See Arcata . . .
Huntington, Stella. See Santa Clara County Free Library, and also The annual meeting of the California Library Association and of the California County Librarians, 188
Humboldt State Teachers Library Association and of the California County Librarians, 188 gton Beach. [Free] Public Library, 18, 384 Union High School Library, 384 Huntington Beach. Huntington Park Union High School Library, 355 Hutchinson, Leta. See Dixon Union High School District Library Immaculate Conception High School Library. See San Francisco Immaculate Heart College Library. See Los Angeles Imperial County, 10, 104, 203, 339–42 Imperial County Free Library, 10, 104, 203, 339 Inyo County Teachers' Library, 343 Ione Union High School Library, 322 Irish Historical and Literary Society of San Francisco Library. See San Francisco Irwin. Hilmar Colony Union High School Library, 374 Isaac, Winona. See Corning Free Public Library Jack Boyd Club Library. See Ojai . . Jack London Memorial Institute Library. See San Francisco. People's Institute Library Jack London Memorial Library. See Glen Ellen Jackson Joint Union High School Library, 322 Jacobus, Sarah M. See Pomona [Free] Public Library James Hugh Wise Library. See San Francisco Jefferson High School Library. See Los Angeles

Jenkins, Belle M. See Watsonville [Free] Public Library Jewish Library, See San Francisco Joeckel, Carleton B. See Berkeley [Free] Public Library

John C. Fremont High School Library, The. See Oakland John Hays Hammond Public Mining Library. See San Francisco John Muir Junior High School Library. See Pasadena John Swett Union High School Library. See Crockett John Muir Junior High School Library. See Pasadena John Swett Union High School Library. See Crockett Julian Union High School Library. See Crockett Keith, Mrs Nellie E. See South Pasadena Free Public Library Kellogg, Mrs E. L. See San Luis Obispo Free Public Library Kellogg, Mrs E. L. See San Luis Obispo Free Public Library Kendal, H. A. See Eureka [Free] Public Library Kennedy, Helen T. See California Library Association. Officers Kern Library. Thacher School for Boys. See Ojai Kerman Union High School Library, 334 Kern County, 10–11, 105, 203, 344–6 Kern County Tree Library, 10, 105, 203, 344 — Branches. See Kern County Kern County Tree Library, 345 Kern County Teachers' Library, 345 Kern County Teachers' Library, 345 Kern County Teachers' Library, 347 — Union High School Library, 377 — Union High School Library, 377 — Union High School Library, 377 Kings County, 11, 105–6, 203–4, 346–7 Kings County I Free Library, 11, 105, 203, 346 — Branches. See Kings County Kings County Law Library, 347 Kings County Teachers' Library, 347 Kings County Law Library, 347 Kingsburg Joint Union High School Library, 334 Kneeshaw, Faye T. See Glenn County Free Library Krauth, Mrs Marcella H. See Alameda Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Madeline. See Auburn Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Madeline. See Auburn Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Madeline. See Auburn Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Maccella H. See Alameda Free Public Library Kriechbaum, Mrs Madeline. See Auburn Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Maccella H. See Alameda Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Maccella H. See Alameda Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Maccella H. See Alameda Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Maccella H. See Alameda Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Maccella H. See Alameda Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Maccella H. See Alameda Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Maccella H. See Alameda Free Public Library Krauth, Mrs Maccella H. See Alameda Free Public Lake County, 11, 106, 204, 348 Lake County Teachers' Library, 348 Lake County Teachers' Library, 348 Lakeport. Clear Lake Union High School Library, 348 ——— [Free] Public Library, 348 Lakeview Junior High School Library. See Oakland Lancaster. Antelope Valley Union High School Library, 355 Landis, Mrs Bertha C. See Lincoln Free Public Library Lane Medical Library of Stanford University. See San Francisco. Larkspur Free Public Library, 369 La Salle Parochial School Library. See Santa Cruz . . Lasky Studio Library. See Los Angeles Lassen County, 11–12, 106, 204, 348–50 Lassen County Free Library, 11, 106, 348 Branches, See Lassen County Lassen County High School Library, 349 Lassen County Law Library, 349 Lassen County Teachers' Library, 350 Laton Joint Union High School Library, 355 Laugenour, Nancy C. See Yolo County Free Library La Verne. Bonita Union High School Library, 355 Jamistandi, Handy, James Offer Order Gold Control (1997) The Data of the problem of the

Library

League of Library Commissions, 35, 130, 221, 458

Le Conte Memorial Library. See Yosemite Valley Branch of Sierra Club
Library Legislative Reference Librarian. See California State Library. Staff
Le Grande Joint Union High School Library, 374
Leman Stanford Junior University Library. See Stanford University
Letter from South Carolina. See California County Librarians
Letterman General Hospital Library. See San Francisco
Leupp, Harold L. See Berkeley. University of California Library Levi Cooper Lane Library of Medicine and Surgery. See San Francisco. Lane
 Letter from South Carolina. See California County Librarians Letter from South Carolina. See California County Librarians Letterman General Hospital Library. See San Francisco Leupp, Harold L. See Berkeley. University of California Library Levi Cooper Lane Library of Medicine and Surgery. Nec San Francisco. Lane Medical Library of Stanford University Lewis, Minnie A. See San Francisco. General Electric Office Library Library of Miffennia. See California Library. See Brentwood Library of Stanford University
Lewis, Minnie A. See San Francisco. General Electric Office Library
Libraries of California. See California Libraries Library Clubs, etc., 42, 140, 226, 464
Library Clubs, etc., 42, 140, 226, 464
——————————————————————————————————————
 Pasadena Library Club, 140 San Antonio Library Club, 226 Southern California College Librarians' Conference, 42 Special Libraries Association of Southern California, 226 Library Examiners, California, Board of, 43, 141, 228, 464 Application Blanks, 44, 142, 230, 466 Certificate Holders, 43, 141, 228, 464 County Free Library Law, 44, 112, 220, 465
Library Examiners, California, Board of, 43, 141, 228, 464
Application Blanks, 44, 142, 230, 466
Certificate Holders, 43, 141, 228, 464 County Free Library Law, 44, 142, 229, 465
Examinations, 44, 142, 230, 466 Members, 43, 141, 228, 464
Members, 43, 141, 228, 464 Barrow of Chairman, 42, 141, 228, 464
Report of Chairman, 43, 141, 228, 464 Library Schools, 34, 129, 221, 458
Library Schools, 34, 129, 221, 458 Library Slides, 459
Library Survey (questionnaire), The, 460 Lick Observatory Library See Mount Hamilton
Likely. Young People's Library, 375
Library Survey (questionnaire), The, 460 Lick Observatory Library. See Mount Hamilton Likely. Young People's Library, 375 Lincoln Free Public Library, 19, 386 Lincoln High School Library, 19, 386
Lincoln Union High School Library, 386
Innusay High School Indrary, 445
Linn, Mrs Frances Burns. See Santa Barbara Free Public Library, and also Santa Barbara County Free Library
List of Counties having County Free Libraries, 5, 99, 199, 279 Live Oak Union High School Library, 440
Live Oak Union High School Library, 440 Live Oak Union High School Library. See Morgan Hill
Livermore Mrs Sauch P. See Willits Free Dublie Library
Livermore. [Free] Public Library, 317 Union High School Library, 101, 217
Livermore, [Free] Public Library, 317 ————————————————————————————————————
Lodi. [Free] Public Library, 117, 416 ————————————————————————————————————
Lomita High School Library. See Los Angeles
Lompoc. Free [Public] Library, 422 ———————————————————————————————————
Lone Pine Union High School Library, 343
Long Beach. [Free] Public Library, 107, 204, 355
Heald's Business College Library, 356 Polytechnic High School Library, 107, 356
 Los Angeles. Barlow Medical Library, 14, 107, 357 Belmont High School Library, 107, 357 California Society Sons of the Revolution (Repository of the Southwest) and California Society of Colonial Wars Library, 14, 108, 357
——————————————————————————————————————
and California Society of Colonial Wars Library, 14, 108, 357
Los Angeles County, 12–16, 106–9, 204–6, 350–67
Branches, See Los Angeles County
Los Angeles County Law Library, 352
 Central Junior High School Library, 358 Los Angeles County, 12–16, 100–9, 204–6, 350–67 Los Angeles County Free Library, 12, 204–6, 350 Branches. See Los Angeles County Los Angeles County Teachers' Library, 352 Los Angeles County Teachers' Library, 352 Los Angeles. District Court of Appeal Library, 2d District, 358 First National Bank, Research Department Library, 358 Franklin High School Library, 358
First National Bank, Research Department Library, 358
[Free] Public Library, 13, 107, 204, 357 Gardena High School Library, 358

- General Petroleum Co. Library, 108 General Petroleum Corporation Engineering Library, 358

- Harvard Military School Library, 358 High School Library, 359
 Historical Society of Southern California Library, 358
 Hollywood High School Library, 358 Immaculate Heart College Library, 358 - Jefferson High School Library, 359 - Krotona Institute of Theosophy Library, 359 Lasky Studio Library, 359
 Lincoln High School Library, 359
 Lomita High School Library, 359
 Lomita High School Library, 359
 Los Angeles Chamber of Commerce, Library and Statistical Department, 359 Los Angeles Chamber of Commerce, Library and Statistical Department, 3500
 Los Angeles Chamber of Commerce, Library of Research Department, 15
 Los Angeles Chamber of Mines and Oil, Mining and Scientific Library, 359
 Los Angeles City Directory Library, 359
 Los Angeles City School Library, 359
 Los Angeles Free Methodist Seminary Library, 359
 Los Angeles Lodge Theosophical Society Library, 359
 Los Angeles Military Academy Library, 360
 Los Angeles Railway Co. Library, 360
 McKinley Junior High School Library, 360
 Manual Arts High School Library, 360 Manual Arts High School Library, 360 Marlborough School Library, 360 ---- Marlborough School Library, 360
 Masonic Library, 108, 360
 Metaphysical Library, 360
 Neighborhood Settlement Library, 360
 Occidental College and Academy Library, 108, 206, 360
 Owensmouth High School Library, 360
 Page Military Academy Library, 360
 Polytechnic Evening High School and Polytechnic High School Library, 360-1
 Los Angeles Public Library School, 205 Seles. Sacred Heart Academy Library, 361 St. Mary's Academy Library, 361 St. Vincent's Parish Library, 361 Los Angeles. San Pedro High School Library, 361 Santa Fe Coast Lines Hospital Association Library, 361 San Tento Ingli School Inforaty, 501
 San tento Ingli School Inforaty, 501
 Security Trust and Savings Bank Reference Library, Dept. of Research and Service, 361
 Southern Branch of the University of California Library, 108, 361
 Southern California Academy of Sciences Library, 361
 Southern California Edison Co. Library, 361
 Southern California Edison Co. Library, 361
 Southern California Edison Co. Library, 361
 Southwest Museum. Munk Library of Arizoniana, 361
 Southwest University School of Law Library, 362
 University of Southern California. College of Dentistry. George H. Cushing Library, 362
 College of Law Library, 362
 College of Law Library, 362
 Van Nuys High School Library, 362
 Westlake School for Girls Library, 362
 Winington High School Library, 362
 Y. M. C. A. Library, 362
 Y. M. C. A. Library, 362 Y. M. C. A. Library, 362
 Los Banos. West Side Union High School Library, 374
 Los Gatos. [Free] Public Library, 425
 High School Library, 425
 Montegung Mountain Banch School Library, 455 Montezuma Mountain Ranch School Library, 425
 Los Molinos. High School Library, 441
 — Narcissa Cox Vanderlip Free Library, 441
 Love, Mrs J. H. See Turlock [Free] Public Library
 Love, Mary. See Blythe Free Public Library
 Lowel High School Library. See San Francisco . . .
 Lowel Lake Union High School Library, 348
 Loyalton. Sierra Valley Joint Union High School Library, 430
 Luebkeman, Anna R. See Buena Park Library District Library
 Luis de Camoes Library. See Oakland . . .
 McCardle, Sarah E. See Fresno County Free Library
 McCloud. High School Library, 432
 — McCloud Club Library, 432
 McClymonds High School Library. See Oakland . . .
 MacDonald, Margaret. See Sonoma [Free] Public Library
 McDonald, Margaret. See Sonoma [Free] Public Library
 McEwen, Mrs M. J. See Visalia Free [Public] Library
 McFadden, Jeannette E. See Santa Ana Free Public Library Montezuma Mountain Ranch School Library, 425
- Girls' Collegiate School Library, 358

McHenry [Free] Public Library. See Modesto . . McKinley Junior High School Library. Sce Los Ang McNeill, Norah. See Richmond [Free] Public Library Madera County, 16, 109, 206, 367–9 Madera County Free Library, 16, 109, 367 Branches. See Madera County Madera County Lorg Library 268 Sce Los Angeles Madera County Law Library, 368 Madera County Teachers' Library, 368 Madera. Free Public Library, 368 Madera. Free Public Indrary, 369 ——— Union High School Library, 369 —— Union High School Library, 369 Magnenat, Valerie. See Orland Free Public Library Mahler, A. J. See Placerville Free Public Library Manker, Mrs F. H. See Upland [Free] Public Library Mansfield, Mrs E. E. See King City [Free] Public Library Manual Arts High School Library. See Los Angeles . Map of California Showing Counties, 4, 98, 198, 278 Margaret Carnegie Library. See Oakland. Mills College . Margrave, Anne. See Inyo County Free Library Maricopa High School Library, 346 Marin County, 16, 109–10, 206, 369–71 Marin County Law Library, 369 Marion, Guy E. See Los Angeles. Los Angeles Chamber of Marion, Guy E. See Los Angeles. Los Angeles Chamber of Commerce, Library and Statistical Department Statistical Department Mariposa. See Mariposa County Mariposa County, 16, 110, 206, 371 Mariposa County High School Library, 371 Mariposa County Law Library, 371 Market Street Railway Co. Law Library. See San Francisco . Markleville. See Alpine County Marlborough School Library. Sce Los Angeles . . Marriott, Victor E. See Claremont. Pomona College Library Martin, Lenala A. See Lassen County Free Library Martin, Lenala A. See Lassen County Free Library Martinez. Alhambra Union High School Library. 329 Martinez. Albambra Union High School Library, 329 ——— De La Salle Institute Library, 329 Marysville. City [Free Public] Library, 453

Mining Libraries. See Los Angeles. Los Angeles Chamber of Mines Library, and San Francisco. John Hays Hammond Public Mining Library, and also San Francisco. State Mining Bureau Library Miss Harker's School Library. See Palo Alto Miss Harker's School Library. See Berkeley. Anna Head School Library Miss Ransom and Miss Bridges School Library. See Oakland. Piedmont Mission High School Library. See San Francisco Mission San Jose. Dominican Normal School Library, 317 Modesto. High School Library, 439 — McHenry [Free] Public Library, 122, 438 Modoc County, 17, 110–11, 207, 374–5 Modoc County Free Library, 110, 374 Mono County, 17, 111, 207, 376 Mono County Law Library, 376 Mono County Teachers' Library, 376 Monroe, K. A. See Ontario [Free] Public Library Monrovia, [Free] Public Library, 363 - High School Library, 363 Montague High School Library, 432 See Los Gatos . . Montezuma Mountain Ranch School Library. See Los Gatos . . . Moore, Lulu. See Sierra Madre [Free] Public Library Moorpark Memorial Union High School Library, 449 Morgan Hill. Live Oak Union High School Library, 425 (Morse, Marion). Notes from Maui County Free Library, T. H., 453 Morton, Gabrielle. See Coronado Beach [Free] Public Library Morse, Warson & See Sonta Monice (Free] Public Library Mosse, Elfie A. See Santa Monica [Free] Public Library Mount Diablo Union High School Library. See Concord High School Library, 425 Mulhall, Mary A. See Santa Clara Free Public Library Munk Library of Arizoniana. See Los Angeles. Southwest Museum . . . Murphy, Mrs R. C. See Sebastopol Free Public Library Music Libraries. See Los Angeles. University of Southern California. College of Music Library Narcissa Cox Vanderlip Free Library. See Los Molinos National Association of State Libraries, 34, 129, 221, 458 Native Sons' Library and Reading Room. See San Francisco . . . Naval Training Station Library. See San Francisco. San Francisco Naval Training Station Library

Nevada County Law Library, 381 Nevada County Teachers' Library, 381 Nevada County Teachers' Library, 381
Newcastle Library, 386
Newman Club Library. See Berkeley
Newman. Orestimba Union High School Library, 439
Newport Beach Free Public Library, 384
Nichols, Jessie W. See Pacific Grove [Free] Public Library
Nolte, Mrs Anna J. See Hollister Free Public Library
Nordhoff Union High School Library. See Ojai
North Beach Evening High School Library. See San Francisco
North Fork. Forest Rangers' or Sierra North Reserve Library, 369
Norwalk. Excelsior Union High School Library, 363
Nutrition Program for California, Conference of some Co-operating Agencies Concerning Methods in a. See California County Librarians
Nye, Sybil. See Mill Valley [Free] Public Library
Oakland. Alexander Hamilton Junior High School Library, 318 dale Union High School Library, 439
cland. Alexander Hamilton Junior High School Library, 318
College of the Holy Names Library, 318
Free [Public] Library, 6, 101, 200, 317
High School Library, 319
John C. Fremont High School Library, 318
Lakeview Junior High School Library, 6, 318
Luis de Camoes Library, 318
McClymonds High School Library, 318
McClymonds High School Library, 318
McClymonds High School Library, 319
Oakland Directory Library, 319
Oakland Public School Library, 319
Oakland Public School Library, 319
Piedmont. Miss Ransom and Miss Bridges School Library, 320
Prescott Junior High School Library, 320
Roosevelt High and Junior High School Library, 320
St. Mary's College and High School Library, 320 Oakland. Kosseven High and Sumor High School Library, 320
 St. Mary's College and High School Library, 320
 Swedish Society of San Francisco Branch Library, 320
 Technical High School Library, 320
 Theosophical Society Library, 320
 Use School Library, 320 University High School Library, 321 Woodrow Wilson Junior High School Library, 321 Oceanside-Carlsbad Union High School Library, 405
 Oceanside-Carlsbad Union High School Library. See Oceanside .
 Odd Fellows. See Westminster, I. O. O. F.
 Ojai. George Thacher Memorial Free Library, 449
 Jack Boyd Club Library, 449
 Kent Library, Thacher School for Boys, 449
 Nordhoff Union High School Library, 449
 Ontario. Chaffey High School and Junior College Library, 115, 400
 (Free] Public Library, 210, 400
 Orange County, 18-19, 111-12, 207-8, 382-5
 Orange County Free Library, 111, 382
 Branches. See Orange County Orange County Free Library, 111, 382 —— Branches. See Orange County Orange County Law Library, 383 Orange. Grange County Teachers' Library, 383 Orange. Free Public Library, 112, 207, 384 —— Union High School Library, 384 Orestimba Union High School Library, 386 —— Loint Union High School Library, 336

517

Pacific Grove Museum Association Library, 378
Pacific Northwest Library Association. 35, 130, 222, 458
Pacific Philatelic Society Library. See San Francisco
Pacific Union College Library. See La Jota
Pacific Unitarian School for the Ministry Library. See Berkeley
Pacific Unitarian School for the Ministry Library. See Berkeley
Pacific Unitarian School for the Ministry Library. See Berkeley
Palmer, Arthur L. See Mountain View [Free] Public Library
Palmer, Arthur L. See Mountain View [Free] Public Library
Palo Alto. [Free] Public Library, 120, 426
Miss Harker's School Library, 426
Palo Verde Valley Union High School Library. See Blythe
Parkinson, H. O. See San Joaquin County Free Library, and Stockton Free
Public Library, and also California Library Association. Officers
Paramalee, Ella M. See Highland Library District Library
Pasadena, California Institute of Technology Library, 363
High School Library, 364
John Muir Junior High School Library, 363
Pasadena Library Club. See Library Clubs, etc.
Pasadena. Mount Wilson Solar Observatory Library, 108, 364 Pasadena. Mount Wilson Solar Observatory Library, 108, 364 Patty, Mrs Florence M. See Crescent City [Free] Public Library People's Institute Library. See San Francisco Perry, Everett R. See Los Angeles [Free] Public Library, and also Board of Library Examiners Petaluma. [Free] Public Library, 26, 436 High School Library, 436 Pharmacy Library. See San Francisco, University of California, College of Pharmacy Library Phelps, Edith Allen. See Paso Robles [Free] Public Library Piedmont. See Oakland Pierce Joint Union High School Library. See College City . Place index giving county, 281 Placentia Library District Library, 385 Placer County, 19, 112, 208, 385–7 Placer County Law Library, 385 Placer County Teachers' Library, 386 Placer Union High School Library. See Auburn . . Placerville Free Public Library, 331 Plumas County, 19, 112, 208, 387–8 Plumas County Free Library, 19, 112, 208, 387 Branches. See Plumas County Plumas County High School Library, 388 Plumas County Law Library, 388 Plumas County Teachers' Library, 388 Point Arena Union High School Library, 372 Point Arena Union High School Library, 512 Polytechnic College of Engineering Library. See Oakland . . . Polytechnic Evening High School Library. See Los Angeles . . . Los Angeles Polytechnic High School Library. See Long Beach . . . Los Angeles Riverside . . . San Bernardino . . . San Francisco . . . Venice - Union High School Library, 445 Potter, Mrs Elizabeth Gray. See Oakland. Mills College. Margaret Carnegie Library Prescott Junior High School Library. See Oakland Presidit Julior High School Elbrary. See Monterey Presidio of Monterey. Post Library. See Monterey . . . Preston School of Industry Library. See Waterman . . . Princeton Joint Union High School Library, 328 Provines, Cornelia D. See Sacramento County Free Library Public Health Library. See Oakland . . .

- Public School Library. See Los Angeles. Los Angeles City School Library, and also Oakland. Oakland Public School Library Puente High School Library, 365 Purcell, Rose Marie. See Los Angeles. Southern California Edison Co. Library Quincy. See Plumas County

- Railway Co. Library. See Los Angeles. Los Angeles Railway Co. Library Ramona Convent of the Holy Names Library. See West Alhambra

- Examiners, Officers Reagan, Ida M. See Humboldt County Free Library Reardon, Mrs Rosa D. See Tulare Free Public Library Red Bluff. Herbert Kraft Free [Public] Library, 27, 122, 442 — Union High School Library, 442 Redding. [Free Public] Carnegie Library, 429 — Shasta Union High School Library, 429 Redlands. A. K. Smiley [Free] Public Library, 21, 115, 210, 401 — High School Library, 401 Redondo Beach. [Free] Public Library, 365 — Redondo Beach. [Free] Public Library, 365 Redondo Union High School Library, 365 Redondo Union High School Library, 420 — Sequoia Union High School Library, 420 — Sequoia Union High School Library, 325 Reese, Nan. See Vacaville Union High School Library 335 Reese, Nan. See Vacaville Union High School Library California Societ Examiners, Officers

- Reese, Nan. See Vacaville Union High School Library District Library Repository of the Southwest. See Los Angeles. California Society Sons of the Revolution (Repository of the Southwest) and California Society of Colonial Wars Library

- Union High School Library, 330 Rio Vista Joint Union High School Library, 434 Ripon Union High School Library, 416 Riverdale High School Library, 335 Riverside, Boys' Polytechnic High School and Junior College Library, 113, 392 Citrus Experiment Station Library, 392 City Girls' High School Library, 113, 208, 392 Riverside County, 19, 112–13, 208–9, 388–92 Riverside County Free Library, 19, 112, 388

- Enverside County Free Library, 19, 112, 388
 Eranches. See Riverside County
 Riverside County Law Library, 389
 Riverside County Teachers' Library, 389
 Riverside [Free] Public Library, 208, 391
 Riverside Library Service School, 19, 112, 208

- Riverside. Southern Sierras Power Co. Library, 113, 209, 392 Riverview Union High School Library. See Antioch . . . Robinson, Mrs Charlotte G. See San Diego. State Teachers College Library Rocklin. Finnish Library, 386

- Roosevelt High and Junior High School Library. See Oakland . . Roosevelt Junior High School Library. See San Diego . . . Roseville. [Free] Public Library, 112, 386

- Union High School Library, 112, 386

- Union High School Library, 112, 386
 Round Valley Union High School Library. See Covelo
 Rowell, J. C. See Berkeley. University of California Library
 Rural Teacher Training Conference. See California County Librarians .
 Sacramento. California State Library. See California State Library
 Catholic Library of Sacramento, 394
 Sacramento County Pree Library, 20, 113, 392
 Branches. See Sacramento County

- Branches, See Sacramento County
 Sacramento County Law Library, 393
 Sacramento. County Teachers' Library, 393
 Sacramento. District Court of Appeal Library, 304
 Eree Public Library, 20, 114, 209, 394
 High School and Junior College Library, 294

- State Department of Agriculture Library, 395
- ---- State Forestry Library, 395

Sacred Heart Academy Library. See Los Angeles Sacred Heart College Library. See San Francisco St. Andrew's Society Library. See San Francisco Saint Francis School Library. See Watsonville St. Helena. Elmhurst Ursuline Academy Library, 381 —— [Free] Public Library, 381 —— Union High School Library, 381 Saint Ignatius College Library. See San Francisco, University of St. Ignatius Library Library St. Mary's Academy Library. See Los Angeles St. Mary's College and High School Library. See Oakland St. Patrick's Seminary Library. See Menlo Park St. Peter's Academy Library. See San Francisco St. Vincent's Parish Library. See Los Angeles Salinas. City [Free] Public Library, 378 Union High School Library, 379 Can Andrease Union High School Library 226 San Benito County High School Library, 396 San Benito County Law Library, 396 San Benito County Teachers' Library, 396 San Bernardino County, 20–2, 115–16, 209–11, 396–402 San Bernardino County Free Library, 20, 115, 209, 396 San Bernardino County Tree Library, 20, 110, —— Branches, See San Bernardino County San Bernardino County Law Library, 398 San Bernardino, Free Public Library, 401 Distribution of the Science Mathematical Science (1998) San Diego County Teachers Fibrary, 405 San Diego. Directory Library, 405 — Francis W. Parker School of San Diego Library, 405 — [Free] Public Library, 22, 116, 211, 405 — High School Library, 406 La Jolla Library Association Library, 406
 Medical Library Association Library, 406
 Roosevelt Junior High School Library, 406 - San Diego Scientific Library, 22, 406 — Scripps Institution for Biological Research of the University of California, Library of, 406 — State Teachers College Library, 406 San Fernando. Academy Library, 365 Union High School Library, 365 San Francisco, 23, 116–17, 212–13, 406–15 Francisco, 25, 110-11, 212-15, 400-15
 Francisco, Astronomical Society of the Pacific Library, 407
 Bank of Italy Library, 23, 212, 407
 Bohemian Club Library, 407
 Boys' and Girls' Aid Society Library, 407
 Devidenci Hortzow 407 San Francisco. Boys and GHI's And Softery Library, 407
 Builders' Exchange, 407
 California Academy of Science Library, 407
 California Camera Club Library, 407
 California Genealogical Society Library, 408
 California Genealogical Society Library, 408 California School of Mechanical Arts and Wilmerding School of Industrial

- Fire Underwriters Association of the Pacific, Library of the, 408 First Hungarian Society of San Francisco Library, 408
 [Free] Public Library, 116, 406
 General Electric Office Library, 408 - Girls' High School Library, 409 Hanlin School Library, 409
 Henry Pierce Library, The, 409
 High School of Commerce Library, 409 Hooper Foundation Library, 409
 Humboldt Evening High School, 409 Immaculate Conception High School Library, 409
 Irish Historical and Literary Society of San Francisco Library, 409
 James Hugh Wise Library, 116, 409 - Jewish Library, 409 John Hays Hammond Public Mining Library, 409 Lane Medical Library of Stanford University, 409 San Francisco Law Library, 407 Letterman General Hospital Library, 409 Letterman General Hospital Library, 409 Lowell High School Library, 409 Market Street Railway Co. Law Library, 409 Mechanics' Mercantile Library, 409 Mercantile Trust Co. Library, 410 San Francisco Microscopical Society Library, *Sée* Berkeley San Francisco. Mills Building Law Library, 410 Mission High School Library, 410 Native Sons' Library and Reading Room, 410 North Beach Evening High School Library, 410 Pacific Coast Gas Association Library, 410 Pacific Gas and Electric Company Law Library, 410 Pacific Gas and Electric Company Library, 410 Pacific Gas and Electric Company Library, 410 Pacific Chilatelic Society Library, 410 Pacific Philatelic Society Library, 410
 People's Institute Library, 410
 Polytechnic High School Library, 410 Sacred Heart College Library, 410
 St. Andrew's Society Library, 410
 St. Peter's Academy Library, 411
 San Francisco Art Association Library, 411 San Francisco Association for the Blind, 411 San Francisco Bar Association Library, 116, 411 San Francisco Chapter of the American Institute of Banking Library, 411 San Francisco Chronicle Library, 411 - San Francisco Law School Library, 411 San Francisco Metaphysical Library, 411 — San Francisco Naval Training Station Library, 411 — Scottish Rite of Freemasonry Library, 411 ----- Seamen's Church Institute Library, 411
 Shell Oil Company of California Library, 411 Shen on compared of the second state of California Library, 411
 Society of California Pioneers' Library, 411
 Society of Mayflower Descendants in State of California Library, 412 Southern Pacific Company Library, 412
 Southern Pacific Law Department Library, 412
 Standard Oil Company Library, 413
 State Mining Bureau Library, 413 State Teachers College Library, 413
 Supreme Court Library, 413
 Sutro Branch, California State Library, 23, 413 Swedish Society of San Francisco Library, 413 United States Circuit Court of Appeals, 9th Circuit, Library, 414
United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Library, 414
University of California. College of Dentistry Library, 414
University of California. College of Pharmacy Library, 414
University of California. Medical School and Hospital Library, 414
University of St. Ignatius Library, 414
Wells Fargo Nevada Bank Library, 415
Sanger Union High School Library, 335
San Jacinto High School Library, 392
San Joaquin County, 72, 117, 213, 415–17
San Joaquin County Free Library, 415

- Branches. See San Joaquin County San Joaquin County Law Library, 415 San Joaquin County Teachers' Library, 415 San Jose. Coffee Club Library, 426 Free Public Library, 426 - High School Library, 426 - State Teachers College Library, 426 San Juan Bautista Free Public Library, 396 San Juan Capistrano Union High School Library, 385 San Juan Capistrano Union High School Library, 385 San Juan Union High School Library. See Fairoaks . . . San Leandro Free Public Library, 101, 321 San Luis Obispo. California Polytechnic School Library, 419 San Luis Obispo County, 23-4, 118, 213, 417–19 San Luis Obispo County Free Library, 118, 417 — Branches. See San Luis Obispo County San Luis Obispo County Law Library, 418 San Luis Obispo County Teachers' Library, 418 San Luis Obispo County Teachers' Library, 418 San Luis Obispo. Free Public Library, 23, 118, 213, 418 — High School Library, 419 San Luis Obispo. Free Public Library, 23
 — High School Library, 419
 San Mateo County, 24, 118, 213, 419–21
 San Mateo County Free Library, 24, 419
 — Branches. See San Mateo County
 San Mateo County Library, 419
 San Mateo County Teachers' Library, 419
 San Mateo. Free Public Library, 420
 San Mateo. Free Public Library, 421 Junio High School Library, 421
San Pedro. See Los Angeles
San Pedro High School Library. See Los Angeles
San Quentin Prison Library, 370
San Rafael. Dominican College Library, 370
— [Free] Public Library, 16, 370
— High School Library, 371
— Hitchcock Military Academy Library, 371
— Hitchcock Military Academy Library, 371
San Ramon Valley Union High School Library, 385
— High School and Junior College Library, 385
Santa Barbara County, 24, 118–19, 213, 421–3
Santa Barbara County Free Library, 24, 718, 421
— Branches. See Santa Barbara County Union High School Library, 421 Santa Barbara County Free Enorary, 24, 10, 12 Santa Barbara County Law Library, 421 Santa Barbara County Teachers' Library, 422 Santa Barbara. Free Public Library, 24, 118, 422 Santa Barbara. Free Fublic Library, 24, 118,
 —— High School Library, 423
 —— State Teachers College Library, 423
 Santa Clara County, 24, 119–20, 213, 423–7
 Santa Clara County Free Library, 24, 119, 423
 —— Branches. See Santa Clara County
 Grand Clara County
 T The Library, 24, 119, 423 Sodality Debating Society Library, 427
 University of Santa Clara Library, 427
 Santa Cruz County, 25, 121, 214, 427–9
 Santa Cruz County Free Library, 25, 427
 Branches. See Santa Cruz County
 Santa Cruz County Law Library, 428
 Santa Cruz. [Free] Public Library, 428
 High School Library, 428
 La Salle Parochial School Library, 428
 Santa Fe Coast Lines Hospital Association Library. See Los Angeles
 Santa Fe Library. Nee Barstow
 Calwa City - Sodality Debating Society Library, 427 Richmond Maria. [Free] Public Library, 4 Union High School Library, 423 Santa Maria. 423

522

Ursuline College Library, 436 Senta Ynez Valley Union High School Library, 423 Saratoga Springs Again, by Milton J. Ferguson, 185 Sausalito Free Public Library, 371 Sawyers, Laura A. *Net* Chico [Free] Public Library School Library Statistics, 36, 131, 222, 460 Scientific Library. *See* San Diego. San Diego Scientific Library Scottish Rite of Freemasonry Library. *See* San Francisco. Scripps Institution for Biological Research of the University of California, Library of. See San Diego Seabright Library Association Library. See Santa Cruz Seamen's Church Institute Library. See San Francisco Security Trust and Savings Bank Reference Library. See Los Angeles . . . Selma Union High School Library, 335 Sequoia Union High School Library. See Redwood City . . . Shasta County, 25, 121, 214, 429 Shasta County Free Library, 429 Shasta County Teachers' Library, 429 Shasta Forest Reserve Library. See Mt. Shasta . . . Shasta Union High School Library. See Medding . . . Shaw, Esther E. See Sonora [Free] Public Library Shell Oil Company of California Library. See San Francisco . . . Shreve, Minnie C. See Napa. Goodman [Free Public] Library Sierra Club Library, The. See San Francisco . . . Sierra County Law Library, 429 Sierra County Law Library, 429 Sierra County Law Library, 429 Sierra County Teachers' Library, 366 Sierra North Reserve Library. See North Fork. Forest Rangers' or . . . Sierra Valley Joint Union High School Library. See Loyalton . . . Silverthorn, Bessie B. See Modesto. McHenry [Free] Public Library, and also Starislaus County Free Library Simons, Mrs Edith. See Oroville [Free] Public Library Selma Union High School Library, 335 Reference Library Smith, Mrs Virginia Todd. See Arcata Free Public Library Society of California Pioneers Library. See San Francisco Society of Mayflower Descendants in State of California Library. See San Francisco Sodality Debating Society Library. See Santa Clara . . . Solano County, 25, 121, 214, 433–5 Solano County Free Library, 25, 121, 214, 433 Branches. See Solano County Branches. See Solano County
 Solano County Law Library, 433
 Solano County Teachers' Library, 433
 Soldiers' Home Library, 366
 Sonoma County, 25-6, 121, 214, 435-7
 Sonoma County Free Library, 435
 Sonoma County Law Library, 121, 435
 Sonoma County Teachers' Library, 435
 Sonoma County Teachers' Library, 435
 Sonoma County Teachers' Library, 437
 Sonoma Xalley Union High School Library, 437
 Sonoma Valley Union High School Library. See Sonoma . . .

Southern California Edison Co. Library. See Los Angeles Southern California State Hospital Library. See Patton Southern Pacific Company Library. See San Francisco Southern Pacific Law Department Library. See San Francisco Southern Sierras Power Co. Library. See Riverside South Pasadena. Free Public Library, 366 Special Libraries Association, 35, 130 Special Libraries Association, 35, 130 Spining, Frances H. See Pasadena. California Institute of Technology Library Spragins, Mrs Anna Enright. See Colton [Free] Public Library Spreckels Library Association Library, 379 Standard Oil Company Library. See San Francisco Standard Oil Co. Refinery Library. See Richmond . . . Standish Literary Club Library, 350 Stanford University Leland Stanford Innior University Library. 24, 120, 427 Stanford University. Leland Stanford Junior University Library, 24, 120, 427 - Medical Department Library. See San Francisco. Lane Medical Library of Stanford University State Department of Agriculture Library. See Sacramento . . State Fair. See California County Librarians . . . State Fair. See California County Librarians
State Forestry Library. See Sacramento
State Hospital Library. See Agnew
Patton. Southern California State Hospital Library
State Library. See California State Library
State Mining Bureau Library. See San Francisco
State Publications received at California State Library, 85, 179, 265, 498
State Teachers College Library. See Arcata
Chico
Fresno
San Diego
San Francisco
San Jose
Santa Barbara bara Stayner, Miss. See San Francisco. Wells Fargo Nevada Bank Library Stearns, Mrs Minnie. See Santa Maria [Free] Public Library Steffa, Julia. See Kings County Free Library, and also Hanford Free Public Library Indiary
 Stevens, Elizabeth. See Tehama County Free Library
 Stockton. College of the Pacific Library, 416
 Free Public Library, 23, 117, 213, 416
 High School Library, 417
 Stone, Mrs Louise S. See Banning Union High School District Library
 Strathmore Union High School Library, 445
 Striening, Mrs Carrie E. See Salinas City [Free] Public Library
 Sugar Pine Library 369 Sugar Pine Library, 369 Susan Free Public Library, 434 Summerville Union High School Library. See Tuolumne See Cedarville . . Branches. See Sutter County Talmage. Mendocino State Hospital Library, 372 Tamalpais Union High School Library. See Mill Valley . Taylor, Bertha S. See Willows Free Public Library Technical High School Library. See Oakland .

- 525 Thacher School for Boys [Library]. See Ojai. Kent Library Theosophical Book Concern and Library. See San Francisco Theosophical Library Association Library. Sce Los Angeles. Los Angeles Lodge Theosophical Society Library Theosophical Society Library. See Oakland . . Theosophy Library. See Los Angeles. Krotona Institute of Theosophy, Library of the Tinker, Gwendolyn M. See Redlands. A. K. Smiley [Free] Public Library, 21, 115, 210 Tobin, Agnes, See Fresno. State Teachers College Library Tomales Union High School Library, 110, 371 Tomlinson, Anna L. See Whittier. Whittier College Library Tomlinson, Anna L. See Whittier. Whittier College Library Topping, Elizabeth R. See Ventura County Free Library, and also Ventura [Free] Public Library Torrance High School Library, 366 Tracy. West Side Union High School Library, 417 Ukiah. Free Public Library, 372 Union High School Library, 373 Union League Club Library, See San Francisco United Railroads of San Francisco Library, See San Francisco. Market Street Railway Co. Law Library United States Circuit Court Library. See Los Angeles United States Circuit Court of Appeals, 9th Circuit, Library. See San Francisco United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service Library. See San Francisco United States Geological Survey Library. See San Francisco United States Navy Department, Eleventh Naval District, 453 University Farm School Library. See Davis . University High School Library. See Oakland University of California. Academy of Pacific Coast History. Bancroft Library. See Berkeley See Berkeley
 College of Dentistry Library. See San Francisco
 College of Pharmacy Library. See San Francisco
 Law Library. See Berkeley
 Library. See Berkeley
 Medical School and Hospital Library. See San Francisco Southern Branch of the University of California Library. Sec Los Angeles University of Redlands Library. See Redlands University of St. Ignatius Library. See San Francisco University of Santa Clara Library. See Santa Clara

 - University of Southern California. Library. See Los Angeles . . Southern California. College of Dentistry. George H. Cushing

- Union High School Library, 434 - Union High School Library, 01 0. [Free] Public Library, 434 - High School Library, 435 - High School Library, 435 Vallejo. High School Library, 435
 Van Nuys High School Library. See Los Angeles . . .
 Venice. Free Library and Reading Room, 366
 Union Polytechnic High School Library, 109, 367
 Ventura County, 28, 123, 216, 447–50
 Ventura County Free Library, 28, 123, 216, 447
 — Branches. See Ventura County
 Ventura County Law Library, 448
 Ventura County Teachers' Library, 449
 Ventura. [Free] Public Library, 450
 — Union High School Library, 450 Union High School Library, 450 Union High School Library, 450
 Veterans' Home Library, 381
 Victor Valley Union High School Library. See Victorville
 Victor Valley Union High School Library, 402
 Visalia. Free [Public] Library, 27, 446
 — High School Library, 446
 Yogleson, Helen E. See Los Angeles County Free Library, 204, 350
 Warren, Althea H. See San Diego [Free] Public Library
 Wasoc Union High School Library, 346
 Washington High School Library. See Centerville . . .
 Washington Lower High School Library. See Berkeley . . .
 Washington Union High School Library. See Easton . . .
 Waterman, Minerva H. See Santa Cruz [Free] Public Library, and also Santa Cruz County Free Library
 Waterman, Preston School of Industry Library, 323 Weed High School Library, 432 Weimar. See Placer County Wellesley School Library. See Berkeley . . . West, Pike and West Law Library. See San Francisco . . . West Alhambra. Ramona Convent of the Holy Names Library, 367 Westlake School for Girls Library. See Los Angeles . . . Westminster, I. O. O. F. Westminster Free Library, 385 West Side Union High School Library. See Los Banos . . . and also Tracy . . . Westwood, Free Library, 350 ——— High School Library. 350 High School Library, 350 High School Library, 350
 Wheatland High School Library, 453
 Wheaton, Florence J. See San Benito County Free Library
 Whitbeck, Mrs Alice Grover. See Contra Costa County Free Library
 White, Minnie J. See Hemet [Free] Public Library
 White, Mrs Stella G. See Lompoc [Free] Public Library
 Whitery, Mrs Frances Walker. See Red Bluff. Herbert Kraft Free [Public]
 Library, 27
 Whittier. [Free] Public Library, 16, 367
 Whitter, High School Library, 367 Winter, [Free] Fublic Library, 367
 Whittier College Library, 367
 Whittier State School Library, 367
 Williams, Anna L. See Alturas [Free] Public Library, and also Modoc County Free Library Williams Union High School Library, 328 Williamson, Iva. See Nevada City Free [Public] Library Willits, Georgiana R. See Roseville [Free] Public Library Willits. Free Public Library, 373 Union High School Library, 373

526

Willows Free Public Library, 336

0

· · ·

1.5







